
# _______________ 
 

 

Travis County Commissioners Court Agenda Request 
 
Voting Session   9/15/2009  Work Session     

  (Date)  (Date) 

I. A. Request made by:   Joseph P. Gieselman   Phone #  854-9383 
Signature of Elected Official/Appointed Official/ 
Executive Manager/County Attorney  

B. Requested Text:   

Receive Comments regarding request to temporarily close Bridge 113 over 
Walnut Creek on Old Manor Road, in Precinct One for construction of roadway 
approaches to the proposed new bridge beginning on or about February 1, 2010 
and continuing through April 30, 2010 or until construction is completed. 

C. C.  Approved by:    
 Ron Davis, Travis County Commissioner, Precinct One  

 

II. A. Backup memorandum and exhibits should be attached and submitted with this 
Agenda Request (original and eight (8) copies of agenda request and backup). 

B. Please list all of the agencies or officials names and telephone numbers that might 
be affected or be involved with the request.  Send a copy of this Agenda Request 
and backup to them. 

Don Ward, TNR (854-9317) 
David Greear, TNR (854-7650) 

Greg Hamilton, County Sheriff, (854-9770) 
TCSO Dispatch (974-0800) 

Joe Hall, TNR. (854-7648) 
Cheryl McVey, TNR Dispatch (854-9433) Austin Fire Dispatch (974-0400) 
Manor I.S.D. (278-4085) 
Steve Manilla, TNR (854-9429)  

  

  

III. Required Authorizations: Please check if applicable: 

Planning and Budget Office (854 -9106) 
 Additional funding for any department or for any purpose 
 Transfer of existing funds within or between any line item budget 
 Grant 

Human Resources Department (854 -9165) 
 A change in your department’s personnel (reclassifications, etc.) 

Purchasing Office (854 -9700) 
 Bid, Purchase Contract, Request for Proposal, Procurement 

County Attorney’s Office (854 -9415) 
 Contract, Agreement, Policy & Procedure 

AGENDA REQUEST DEADLINE: This Agenda Request, complete with the backup memorandum and exhibits, 
should be submitted to the County Judges Office no later than 5:00 PM on Tuesday for the following week’s 
meeting.  Late or incomplete requests may be deferred to the next subsequent meeting. 

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm

VelasqM
Typewritten Text
Item 1



 
TRANSPORTATION AND NATURAL RESOURCES DEPARTMENT 
JOSEPH P. GIESELMAN, EXECUTIVE MANAGER 
411 W. 13th St.  
Eleventh Floor 
P.O. Box 1748 
Austin, Texas 78767 
(512) 854 -9383 
FAX (512) 854 -4697 
 

MEMORANDUM 

August 24, 2009 

TO: Members of the Commissioners Court 

THROUGH: Joseph P. Gieselman, Executive Manager 

FROM: Steve Manilla, P.E. 
Director, Public Works Division 

SUBJECT: Temporary Closure of Old Manor Road at Bridge 113 Over Walnut Creek for 
Construction of Roadway Approaches to the Proposed New Bridge.  

 

PROPOSED MOTION: 

Receive Comments regarding request to temporarily close Bridge 113 over Walnut Creek on Old 
Manor Road, in Precinct One for construction of roadway approaches to the proposed new 
bridge beginning on or about February 1, 2010 and continuing through April 30, 2010 or until 
construction is completed. 

 

SUMMARY AND STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 

Staff recommends closing Old Manor Road at the bridge for the construction of the approach 
roadways to the new bridge. Construction is scheduled to begin on or about February 1, 2010 and 
continue for an estimated 90 days to April 30, 2010, or until construction is complete. The road 
closure at the bridge is required for the construction of the approaches to the new bridge. 

 

ISSUES AND OPPORTUNITIES: 

The road closure is necessary for the construction of the roadway approaches to the new bridge. 
The proposed bridge will be parallel to the existing historic bridge on Old Manor Road.  

Closing the road will allow the project to be completed safely, less expensively and more 
quickly. Traffic will be detoured onto Commercial Park drive, Springdale and US highway 290. 
The school district, Travis County Sheriff’s Office, and emergency services agencies have been 
notified of this recommendation.  

TNR will withdraw this request from the Court’s agenda prior to the date of the voting session if 
after the public hearing the Court decides not to approve the road closure or delay its decision 
until a later date.  

Early in the design process, TxDOT needed to know if a road closure would be allowed because 
it directly affects how the construction documents will be prepared. Based on the Court’s 

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



approval of the closure of Bridge 112 (which is approximately one thousand feet east of this 
bridge) in 2005, TNR advised TxDOT that it would recommend the closure to the Court. If the 
road can not be closed, TxDOT will need to revise its design plans and the project cost is 
anticipated to increase substantially.   

 

BUDGETARY ISSUES: 
This closure will require some work by Travis County road maintenance crews to post public 
notices. Necessary detour routing signs will be installed by the contractor. 

 
REQUIRED AUTHORIZATIONS: 
This recommendation is made in accordance with Chapter 251 of the Transportation Code. 

BACKGROUND: 
None.  

 

EXHIBITS: 
Map showing detour route. 

cc:  Don Ward  
Steve Sun, Mo Mortazavi 
David Greear, Joe Hall  
Howard Herrin 

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



INSERT EXHIBIT MAP HERE

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



STATE OF TEXAS § 
 § 
COUNTY OF TRAVIS § 
 

ORDER ______________ 
 
  
 WHEREAS, Transportation and Natural Resources has recommended a 
temporary road closure of Old Manor Road at Bridge 113 over Walnut Creek; and 
  
 WHEREAS, a public hearing was held on September 8, 2009 in the 
Commissioners’ Court of Travis County, Texas, following required advance notice prior 
to the approval of this Order; then 
 
 BE IT THEREFORE ORDERED by the Commissioners’ Court of Travis 
County, Texas, that the following road be temporarily closed as listed below: 
 
 
PRECINCT ONE: 
 
OLD MANOR ROAD Temporarily close Old Manor Road at the location 

of Bridge 113 over walnut Creek for the 
construction of the approaches to the new bridge 
beginning on or about February 1, 2010 and 
continuing through April 30, 2010, or until 
construction is completed. 

 
  
PASSED AND ADOPTED THE _______ DAY OF _____________________, 2009. 
 
 

____________________________ 
Samuel T. Biscoe 

County Judge 
 
_________________________ ________________________ 
Ron Davis Sarah Eckhardt 
Commissioner, Precinct 1 Commissioner, Precinct 2 
 
 
_________________________ ________________________ 
Karen Huber Margaret Gomez 
Commissioner, Precinct 3 Commissioner, Precinct 4 
 

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



Pandemic Flu – H1N1 

Travis County Commissioners Court  
September 8, 2009 

David Lurie, Director

Austin/Travis County Health and Human Services Department
The role of public health is to:

PROMOTE community-wide wellness,

PREVENT disease, and

PROTECT  the community from infectious diseases, 
environmental hazards, and epidemics

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



Pandemic Flu
 

Pandemic Flu Explosive global events No Vaccine Virus a threat to 
healthy persons

Seasonal Flu Outbreaks caused by 
variations of viruses that 
have circulated previously; 
many people have some 
immunity

Vaccines are 
easier to 
develop/ readily 
available

Virus is less 
virulent; 
greatest threat 
to ‘at-risk’ 
populations

20TH CENTURY PANDEMICS
1918-19 "Spanish flu" A(H1N1)  

675,000 deaths in US: est. 50 million worldwide 

1957-58 "Asian flu" A(H2N2)       
70,000 deaths in US: 1 million worldwide 

1968-69 "Hong-Kong flu" A(H3N2) 
34,000 deaths in US: 700,000 worldwide

SEASONAL FLU 
Every year in the United States, on average:

•5% to 20% of the population gets the flu; 

•more than 200,000 people are hospitalized from 
flu-related complications; and 

•about 36,000 people die from flu-related causes

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm

http://www.cdc.gov/flu/about/qa/hospital.htm
http://www.cdc.gov/flu/about/disease/us_flu-related_deaths.htm


H1N1 - Mortality
 

Graph: Novel H1N1 U.S. Deaths, By Age Group

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



H1N1 - Symptoms
 

Symptoms
• fever
• cough
• body aches
• runny or stuffy nose
• sore throat
• nausea
• vomiting or diarrhea

Stay Home
• CDC recommends that you stay home for at least 24 hours after your fever is gone except to 

get medical care or for other necessities. Your fever should be gone without the use of a 
fever-reducing medicine.

• Stay away from others as much as possible to keep from making others sick, avoiding 
normal activities, including work, school, travel, shopping, social events, and public 
gatherings. 

Seek Medical Care
• If you have severe illness or you are at risk for flu complications, contact your health care 

provider or seek medical care.

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm

http://www.cdc.gov/h1n1flu/guidance/exclusion.htm


H1N1 Influenza Vaccine 

Process
• Health Care Providers
• Workforce Health programs
• Schools
• Pharmacies/local vendors
• Public Health Clinics

Time Frame
• Vaccinations should begin in October  

Priority Groups whom should get vaccinated (not in priority order):
• Pregnant women 
• Household contacts and out of home caregivers of children less than 6 months of age (these 

children are too young to be vaccinated)
• Health care and emergency medical services personnel
• All people six months through 24 years of age
• Persons 25 years through 64 years of age at high risk for complications from flu

• Note: all H1N1 vaccine recipients will likely need two doses 

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



Neighborhood Response

Develop local community                 
response network 

• Identify vulnerable individuals 

• Stay up-to-date on the latest and keep your 
neighbors informed

 

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



What The Public Can Do To Protect Itself

• Wash hands, hand sanitizers in workplace

• Cover mouth and nose when coughing

• Avoid touching eyes, nose, and mouth

• Stay home when sick

• Avoid close contact with those sick

• Less travel

• Work from home

• Eat nutritious foods

• Exercise

• Get enough sleep

• Family preparedness plan and kit

 

Disaster Supplies Kit
• Prescription medications
•2 weeks of food & water 
•Blanket
•Flashlights batteries
•Portable radio/ television
•Batteries
•First aid kit
•PPE (gloves, masks)
•Cash and coins 
•Copies of important docs

*  Remember special needs of 

 
family and pets.

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm

http://images.google.com/imgres?imgurl=http://www.germx.com/data/photos/15oz_Orig.jpg&imgrefurl=http://www.germx.com/product_detail.aspx%3Fid%3D18&h=300&w=240&sz=29&hl=en&start=28&tbnid=D0d5A5GlrJtIeM:&tbnh=116&tbnw=93&prev=/images%3Fq%3Dimage%2Bhand%2Bsanitizer%26start%3D20%26ndsp%3D20%26svnum%3D10%26hl%3Den%26lr%3D%26rls%3DRNWE,RNWE:2005-09,RNWE:en%26sa%3DN


Communications Outreach

• Media updates via website, news releases, 

earned media and postings on the ANC 

message board

• Websites 

- http://www.ci.austin.tx.us/pandemicflu/

- http://www.ci.austin.tx.us/health/h1n1_resources.htm

• Pandemic Information

– E-mail pandemicflu@ci.austin.tx.us

 

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm

http://www.ci.austin.tx.us/pandemicflu/
http://www.ci.austin.tx.us/health/h1n1_resources.htm
mailto:pandemicflu@ci.austin.tx.us


H1N1 Flu – Resources
– Travis County H1N1 Influenza Resources

• http://www.co.travis.tx.us/health_human_services/press_release/index.asp

– Travis County Season Flu Health Tips and Resources
• http://www.co.travis.tx.us/health_human_services/press_release/default.asp

– City of Austin H1N1 Influenza Resources
• http://www.ci.austin.tx.us/health/h1n1_resources.htm

– City of Austin Pandemic Influenza Information Site
• http://www.ci.austin.tx.us/pandemicflu/

– State of Texas 
• http://www.texasflu.org

– Center for Disease Control and Prevention (CDC)
• http://www.cdc.gov/h1n1flu/

 

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm

http://www.co.travis.tx.us/health_human_services/press_release/index.asp
http://www.co.travis.tx.us/health_human_services/press_release/default.asp
http://www.ci.austin.tx.us/health/h1n1_resources.htm
http://www.ci.austin.tx.us/pandemicflu/
http://www.texasflu.org/
http://www.cdc.gov/h1n1flu/


•Effective Communications/ Informed Community

•Preventive Measures

•Get Vaccinated

•Seek care as appropriate  

 
Summary

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



Site/Location

County 
Metro Area 

Served Dates Business Hours Type Site Status
Travis County Expo 

(7311 Decker Ln
Austin, TX 78724)

Far East, 
County 
Residence

Wednesday, October 21, 2009 7:30 a.m.-1:00 p.m. Drive-Thru Confirmed

Pfluger Hall 
(203 E. Pecan St. 

Suite  B)
Pflugerville, TX 

78660)

North, 
County 
Residence

Wednesday, October 28th, 2009 2:00 p.m. to 7:00 p.m. Walk Confirmed

South Austin Neigh. 
Center 

(2508 Durwood St 
Austin, TX 78704)

South and 
Central

Saturday, October 31, 2009 9:00 a.m. - 2:00 p.m. Walk Confirmed

Manchaca Baptist 
Church 

(1215 FM 1626
Manchaca, TX 78652)

Far South, 
County 
Residence

Wednesday, November 04, 2009 1:00 p.m. - 7:00 p.m. Walk Confirmed

Montopolis Recreation 
Center (1200 

Montopolis Dr., Austin, 
TX 78741) 

Southeast Thursday, November 05, 2009 11:00 a.m. - 6:00 p.m. Walk Confirmed

St. Johns Community 
Center (A & B) 

(7500 Blessing Ave, 
Austin, TX 78752) Northeast Tuesday, November 10, 2009 7:30 a.m. - 1:00 p.m. Walk Confirmed

TC Fire/EMS 
(2 locations):

5905 Nuckols 
Crossing 

1201 Webberville 
Road

South and 
East 

Wednesday, November 11, 2009 9:00 a.m. - 2:00 p.m. Walk Confirmed

Travis County Fire 
ESD No. 2 Pflugerville 

Fire          (203 E. 
Pecan, Pfluggerville, 

TX 78660)

North, 
County 
Residence

Wednesday, November 11, 2009 9:00 a.m. - 2:00 p.m. Walk Confirmed

NWRec Center 
(2913 Northland Dr
Austin, TX 78757)

Northwest Saturday, November 14, 2009 11:00 a.m. - 3:00 p.m. Walk Confirmed

ATCHHSD H1N1 Flu Clinics 2009

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



Site/Location

County 
Metro Area 

Served Dates Business Hours* Type Site Status
St. Johns 

Community Center 
(Gymnasium) 

(7500 Blessing Ave, 
Austin, TX 78752)

Northeast

Saturday, September 12th, 2009

9:00 a.m. - 2:00 p.m. Walk Confirmed

Givens Park 
(3811 E 12th St., 

Austin, TX 78721)
East Central

Wednesday, September 16th, 2009
7:30 a.m.-1:00 p.m.

Drive-Thru
or Walk

Confirmed

South Austin Neigh.
Center          (2508 
Durwood St Austin,

TX 78704)

 

 
South and 
Central

Saturday, September 19th, 2009

9:00 a.m. - 2:00 p.m. Walk Confirmed

Travis County Expo 
(7311 Decker Ln

Austin, TX 78724)

Far East, 
County 
Residence  Wednesday, September 23rd 

7:30 a.m.-1:00 p.m. Drive-Thru Confirmed

Givens Park 
(3811 E 12th St., 

Austin, TX 78721)
East Central Wednesday, October 14, 2009 7:30 a.m.-1:00 p.m.

Drive-Thru
or Walk

Confirmed

ATCHHSD Seasonal Flu Clinics 2009

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY COMMISSIONERS COURT AGENDA REQUEST

Please consider the following item for:
09-08-09

I. A. Request made by: Planning & Budget Office

Review and approve requests regarding grant proposals, applications, contracts, and
permissions to continue, and take other appropriate actions:

a) Grant contract with the US Department of Health and Human Services for
Travis County to continue to participate in the third year of the potential five-
year Parenting in Recovery Project with Travis County Health and Human
Services and Veterans Services (TCHHSVS) serving as the regional
partnership project lead.

Approved by: ___________________________________
Signature of Commissioner(s) or County Judge

II. A. Backup memorandum and exhibits should be attached and submitted with this
Agenda Request (Original and eight copies of agenda request and backup).

B. Please list all of the agencies or officials names and telephone numbers that
might be affected or be involved with the request. Send a copy of this
Agenda Request and backup to them:

Ill. Required Authorizations: Please check if applicable:
Planning and Budget Office (854-9106)

________ Additional funding for any department or for any purpose_________Transfer of existing funds within or between any line item budget_________Grant

Human Resources Department (854-9165)

________A change in your department’s personnel (reclassifications, etc.)

Purchasing Office (854-9700)

______Bid, Purchase Contract, Request for Proposal, Procurement

County Attorney’s Office (854-9415)

______Contract, Agreement, Policy & Procedure

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm

VelasqM
Typewritten Text

VelasqM
Typewritten Text
Item 9



9/8/2009

GRANT APPLICATIONS, CONTRACTS AND PERMISSIONS TO CONTINUE
FY 2009

Thefollowin~g list represents those actions required bj the Commissioners Courtfor departments to app/yfor, accept, or continue to operate ~rantprggrams.
This re&ular a~enáa item contains this summary sheet, as well as backup material that is attachedfor clarification.

Grant Grant County

Dept Grant Title Period Amount Match FTEs Notes Page # ARRA

Contracts

a 58 Parenting in Recovery 9/30/20099 - $500,000 $125,000.00 1 20
9/29/2010

Notes:
I PBO recommends approval.
2 PBO does not recommend approval
3 Please see PBO recommendation for more information

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



FY 2009 Grants Summary Report

Outstanding Grant Applications

Thefollowing is a list ofgrantsfor which application has been made and notification ofaward has notyet been received.
American Recovery and ReinvestmentAct (ARRA) and Latge Multi:year Grants are bold and itali~ed. Additional detailsfor these grants are

summarized on page XXX

Cm. Ct.
Grant County Grant Approval

Dept Name of Grant Amount Match Term FTEs Date
58 Amen Corp $301,429 $281,599 8/1/2009 - 20 10/14/2008

7/31/2010
49 Flood Mitigation Assistance Planning Grant $30,000 $10,000 12/1/2008 - 11/7/2008

11/30/2009

47 Emergency Management Performance Grant $60,215 $60,215 10/1/2008 - 12/16/2008
9/30/2009

45 Young Offender Planning Grant $300,000 10/1/2009 - 3 12/16/2008
9/30/2010

19 Family Violence Accelerated Prosecution Program $98,842 $53,223 9/1/2009 - 1.39 1/6/2009
8/31/2010

45 ParentProject $31,110 9/1/2009- 2/24/2009
8/31/2010

45 JABG (Local) Juvenile Assessment Center $87,047 $9,672 9/1/2009 - 1.5 2/24/2009
8/31/2010

45 Safe and Drug Free Schools CBT Re-Entry $14,386 9/1/2009 - 2/24/2009
Program 8/31/2010

45 JJDP Front End Therapeutic Services Program $35,000 9/1/2009 - 3/3/2009
8/31/2010

55 BJA Justice and Mental Health Collaboration $200,000 $50,000 10/1/2009 - 2 3/10/2009
Program 9/30/2011

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



45 FY 10 BJA Mental Health Court Collaboration- $200,000 $50,000 10/1/2009 - 3/10/2009
COPE (Collaborative Opportunities for Positive 9/30/2011
Change)

37 2009 ByrneJustice Assistance Grant (ARRL4) $495,000 3/1/2009 - 4/7/2009
9/30/2012

45 National School Lunch Program/School $250,000 7/1/2009 - 4/7/2009
Breakfast Program 6/30/2010

39 RecoveryAcz’ ombatingCriminaiNacrotics $373,517 8/1/2009- 4/14/2009
Activity Stemming from the Southern Border 7/31/2011
ofthe US: Enhancing Southern BorderJails,

ommunity Corrections and Detention
Operations (ARRA)

55 Second Chance Act: Prisoner Reentry Initiative $176,240 $175,738 10/1/2009 - 3 4/14/2009
Grant 9/30/2010

45 Travis County enzoringProject(ARRA) $498,467 10/1/2009- 1.5 4/14/2009
9/31/2013

19 OtherVictimAssistanceGrant(OVAG) $99,049 9/1/2009- 1 4/14/2009
8/31/2011

45 Drug Court/In-Home Family Services Grant $175,000 9/1/2009 - 4/21/2009
8/31/2010

45 ByrneMemorialCompetitiveGrant $537,459 10/1/2009- 4/21/2009
Supporting Problem Solving Courts (ARRA) 9/30/2011

24 Drug Diversion Court $187,952 9/1/2009 - 4/21/2009
8/31/2010

59 Travis County STAR Flight Equipment $283,926 10/1/2009 - 4/28/2009
Enhancement 9/30/2010

37 State Criminal Alien Assistance Program - SCAAP $37,368,877 7/1/2007 - 4/28/2009
09 6/30/2008

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



47 Homeland Security Grant for Videoconferenceing $260,686.41 7/1/2009 - 4/28/2009
Network 7/1/2011

23 Victim Coordinator and Liaison Grant $78,000 9/1/2009 - 4/28/2009

8/31/2011
39 Travis County Adult Probation DWI Court $210,315 9/1/2009 - 1 4/28/2009

8/31/2010
58 ParentinginRecovery $500,000 $125,000 9/30/2009- 1 4/28/2009

9/29/2010
22 FamilyDrugTreatmentCourt $161,568 9/1/2009- 2 4/28/2009

8/31/2010
45 Juvenile Treatment Drug Court $424,979 $141,667 10/1/2009 - 2.5 5/5/2009

Enhancement Grant from OJJDP 9/30/2013
45 JuvenileTreatmentDrugCourt $799,379 $0 10/1/2009- 0 5/5/2009

Enhancement Grant from CSAT 9/30/2013
37 SCATTF - Sheriffs Combined Auto Theft Task $634,131 $324,862 9/1/2009 - 12 5/5/2009

Force 8/31/2010
45 National School Lunch Program/School $250,000 7/1/2009 - 5/12/2009

Breakfast Program-annual renewal 6/30/2010
40 Offender Reentry Program (Short Title: ORP) $400,000 10/1/2009 - 2 5/19/2009

9/30/2010
55 Travis County anagementStrategyfor $877,234 10/1/2009- 4 5/26/2009

CriminalJustice (ARRA) 9/30/2010
49 Onion Creek Greenway - Urban Outdoor $1,000,000 1,000,000 8/21/2008 - 5/26/2009

Recreation Grant 8/20/2011

37 COPS FY 2009 Technology Program - Firing $300,000 10/1/2009 - 5/26/2009
Range Phase ha 9/30/2012

58 CommunityDevelopmentBlockGrant $226,300 TBD- 9/30/12 6/2/2009
(ARRI4) CDBG-R

45 Second Chance Juvenile Mentoring Initiative $624,148 $208,049 10/1/2009 - 3.1 6/9/2009
9/30/2012

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



55 Nationallnitiatives:AdjudicationProgram $150,000 10/1/2009- 1.5 6/16/2009
3/31/2011

58 ARR~4 Texas Weatherization Assistance $4,498,894 8/1/2009 - 6/23/2009
Program 7/31/2011

14 Energy Efficiency and Conservation Block $2,207,900 10/2009 - 6/23/2009
Grants - Recovery 04/2011

45 Residential Susstance Abuse Treatment Program $102,888 $34,296 10/1/2009 - 1.58 6/30/2009
9/30/2010

37 2009 Byrne Justice Assistance Grant - Non ARRA $100,000 6/1/2009 - 7/14/2009
9/30/2012

55 Office of Child Representation $180,466 $492,534 10/1/2009 - 8 7/21/2009
9/30/2010

55 Office ofParentRepresentation $187,455 $485,545 10/1/2009- 8 7/21/2009
9/30/2010

49 FY10 HCP Land Acquisition Assistance Grant $4,197,463 $2,798,309 12/1/2009 - 8/4/2009
11/31/2012

24 Drug Diversion Court $176,045 9/1/2009 - 1 8/4/2009
8/31/2010

58 RSVP - Texas Department of Aging and $23,800 $23,800 9/1/2009 - 8/11/2009
Disability Services (TDADS) 8/31/2010

37 FY2oloStateHomelandSecurityProgram- $368,452.50 $122,817.50 10/01/2010- 8/25/2009
TCSO 11/30/2012

47 Homeland Security Grant Program - State $10,125.00 $3,375.00 10/1/2010 - 8/25/2009
Homeland Security program 11/30/2012

47 Homeland Security Grant Program - State $22,500.00 $7,500.00 10/1/2010 - 8/25/2009
Homeland Security Program 11/30/2012

47 Homeland Security Grant Program -. State $15,675.00 $5,225.00 10/1/2010 - 8/25/2009
Homeland Security Program 11/30/2012

47 Homeland Security Grant Program - State $14,985.00 $4,995.00 10/1/2010 - 8/25/2009
Homeland Security Program 11/30/2012

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



47 Homeland Security Grant Program - State $31,050.00 $10,350.00 10/1/2010 - 8/25/2009
Homeland Security Program 11/30/2012

47 Homeland Security Grant Program - State $11,250.00 $3,750.00 10/1/2010 - 8/25/2009
Homeland Security Program 11/30/2012

58 Veterans’ Employment and Training Service $7,000.00 10/24/2009 - 8/25/2009
(Stand Down Grant) 10/24/2009

$60,856,205 $6,482,522 73.07

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



FY 2009 Grants Approved by Commissioners Court

Thefollowing is a list ofgrants that have been received by Travis County since October 1, 2008

American Recovery and Reinvestment Act (ARRA) and Large Multi:year Grants are bold and itali~ed. Additional detailsfor these grants are summarized
on page XXX.

Cm. Ct.
Grant County Local Grant Approval

Dept Name of Grant Amount Match Funds (Donation) Term FTEs Date

47 Emergency Management Performance Grant $67,200 $67,200 10/7/2008
58 AmeriCorps $288,139.00 $223,358 8/1/2007- 16 10/28/2008

7/31/2008
45 Juvenile Justice and Delinquency Prevention (JJDP)- $24,864.00 $223,358 9/1/2008 - 11/4/2008

Intensive In-Home Family Services Grant 8/31/2009
58 Parenting in Recovery $500,000 $91,203 9/30/2008 - 1 11/4/2008

9/29/2009

40 OVW FY08 Safe Havens: Supervised Visitation and $199,320 10/1/2008 - 11/4/2008
Safe Exchange Grant Program 9/30/2010

37 Internal Affairs Software Upgrade $50,000 9/1/2008 - 11/7/2008
5/31/2009

37 Office of Community Oriented Policing Program $350,738 12/26/2007 - 11/18/2008
12/31/2010

37 State Criminal Alien Assistance Program (SCAAP) $1,239,273 7/1/2006 - 11/18/2008
6/30/2007

45 Byrne Memorial ISC Residential Programs $103,888 10/1/2008 - 1 11/25/2008
9/30/2009

23 Project Safe Neighborhoods $48,518 9/1/2008 - 0.48 11/25/2008
8/31/2009

23 Project Safe Neighborhoods Amendment to FY08 $51,482 9/1/2007 - 0.52 11/25/2008
8/31/2010

58 Customer Assistance Program Plus 1 Funding $100,000 12/1/2008 - 12/2/2008
11/30/2009

58 Keeping the Warmth Program, Conservation & Energy $20,000 12/1/2008- 12/2/2008
Efficiency Program 11/30/2009

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



58 Veterans’ Employment and Training Service (Stand $7,000 11/15/2008 - 12/9/2008
Down Grant) 11/16/2008

49 Travis County Flood Protection Planning Grant $195,000 $465,000 3/27/2007 - 12/16/2008

1/31/2009
58 RSVP $61,281 $6,128 10/1/2008- 0.5 12/30/2008

9/30/2009
58 RSVP - Texas Department of Aging and Disability $23,800 $23,800 9/1/2008 - 12/30/2008

Services (TDADS) 8/31/2009
37 Homeland Security Grant Program - Austin Area $153,955 9/1/2008 - 12/30/2008

Fusion Center - TCSO 1/15/2011
23 InterlocalAgreement for the Austin/Travis $685,586 10/1/2008 - 1/27/2009

County Family Violence Protection Team 9/30/2010
49 Northridge Acres Water Corporation Project $250,000 10/18/2005 - 1/27/2009

2/28/2009
24 Formula Grant-Indigent Defense Grants Program $429,859 10/1/2008 - 2/3/2009

9/30/2009
37 2008 ByrneJustice Assistance Grant $70,002 10/1/2008 - 2/10/2009

9/30/2010
45 Justice and Mental Health Collaboration Program $246,662 $61,666 9/1/2006 - 1 2/10/2009

COPE 9/30/2009
45 JABG Juvenile Assessment Center $80,889 $8,988 8/1/2008 - 1.5 2/10/2009

8/31/2009
58 SVCI (Seniors and Volunteers for Childhood $4,000 10/1/2008 - 0.25 2/17/2009

Immunization) 9/30/2009
58 2008 Comprehensive Energy Assistance Program $725,014 1/1/2008 - 2/17/2009

(CEAP) Amendment 1 12/31/2008
24 Drug Diversion Court $160,041 9/1/2008 - 1 2/17/2009

8/31/2009
22 Drug Court (State) Program $98,500 9/1/2008- 1 2/17/2009

8/31/2009

37 Sheriff’s Combined Auto Theft Task Force (SCATTF) $66,077 2/1/2009 - 2/24/2009
8/31/2009

58 Oncor Weatherization Project Amendment One $32,259 11/1/2008 - 2/24/2009
10/31/2009

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



49 Del Valle Composting Grant FY09 Regional Solid $28,653 9/5/2008 - 3/17/2009
Waste Grants Program 7/31/2009

45 Residential Substance Abuse Treatment $109,356 $36,452 10/1/2007 - 3/17/2009
9/30/2008

58 2009 Phase 27 Emergency Food and Shelter Program $121,773 1/1/2009 - 3/24/2009
12/31/2009

23 Title IV-E Legal Administration $1,739,164 9/1/2008 - 3/24/2009
9/30/2009

49 Reimers Urban Outdoor Recreation Grant 1,000,000 $1,000,000 8/21/2008 - 3/31/2009
8/20/2011

58 Casey Family Programs Community and Family $70,000 3/1/2009 - 4/7/2009
Reintegration Project 1/1/2010

58 Texas Dept. of Family and Protective Services (DFPS) $232,000 10/1/2008 - 4/14/2009
Community and Family Reintegration Project 8/31/2009

58 ATCMHMR - Marguerite Casey Foundation $89,028 4/1/2009 - 1 4/28/2009
Community and Family Reintegration Project 11/30/2010

45 $41,800 11/1/2007- 0.5 4/28/2009
Court Order Parent Education Project (COPE) 9/30/2009

17 A Cultural Resources Survey of Rural Properties in $5,000 $5,000 10/1/2008 - 5/5/2009
Northeast Travis County 9/30/2010

55 Travis CountyMental Health Public Defenders $250,000 $375,000 10/1/2009 - 8 5/5/2009
Office 9/30/2010

58 AmeriCorps $224,172 $211,826 8/1/2006- 16 5/5/2009
7/31/2007

58 AmeriCorps $228,120 $223,358 8/1/2007 - 16 5/5/2009
7/31/2008

22 Drug/Specialty Courts Training Stipends $16,200 9/1/2009 - 5/5/2009
8/31/2010

24 TrainingforDrugCourts $8,100 5/1/2009- 5/5/2009
9/30/2009

39 Drug/Specialty Courts Training Stipend-Travis County See Note 6/22/2009 - 5/5/2009
Adult Probation DWI 9/26/2009

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



49 Low Income Vehicle Repair Assistance, Retrofit, and $816,543.14 5/6/2008 - 5/26/2009
Accelerated Vehicle Retirement Program Local 8/31/2010
Initiative Projects Contract with Texas Commission on
Environmental Quality

58 Comprehensive Energy Assistance Program (CEAP) $3,098,477 1/1/2009 - 5/26/2009

12/31/2009
45 USDA School Commodities Program $12,600 7/1/2009 - 6/30/2009

6/30/2010
58 2009 Phase 27ARRA EmergencyFood and Shelter $40,554 04/01/2009 - 7/7/2009

Program 12/31/2009
58 AmeriCorps $228,040 $225,977 8/1/2008- 16 7/7/2009

7/31/2009
37 SCATTF - Sheriffs Combined Auto Theft Task Force $634,131 $324,862 9/1/2009 - 12 7/14/2009

8/31/2010
58 DOE Weathe±ation Assistance Program $169,371 4/1/2009 - 7/21/2009

3/31/2010
58 LIHEAP Weatherization Assistance Program $598,300 4/1/2009 - 7/21/2009

3/31/2010
58 Texas Dept. of Family and Protective Services (DFPS) $232,000 9/1/2009 - 7/28/2009

Community and Family Reintegration Project 8/31/2010

58 SVCI (Seniors and Volunteers for Childhood $8,845.20 9/1/2008 - 0.25 7/28/2009
Immunization) 8/31/2009

45 Integrated Child Support System Cooperative $154,322 7/1/2008 - 8/4/2009
Agreement 8/31/2009

49 Local Transportation Project - Advanced Funding $687,047 $13,741 10/1/2009 - 8/11/2009
Agreement (ARRA) 5/31/2010

19 Other Victim Assistance Grant (OVAG) $99,049 9/1/2009 - 1 8/11/2009
8/31/2011

45 Community Resource Coordinator Contract $69,587 9/1/2009 - 1 8/11/2009
8/31/2010

49 Reimers Ranch Recreational Trails $100,000 $54,560 1/2007 - 8/11/2009
8/31/2010

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



58 2009 Phase 27 Emergency Food and Shelter Program $122,573 1 / 1/2009 - 8/11/2009
Additional Funding 12/31/2009

47 Homeland Security Grant Program - State Homeland $34,759 9/1/2008 - 8/18/2009
Security Program 1/15/2011

58 AmeriCorps $298,238 $281,606 8/1/2009 - 20 8/18/2009

7/31/2010
12 SAVNS Statewide Automated Victim Notification $25,817.00 9/1/2009 - 8/25/2009

Service 8/31/2010
45 Access and Visitation $47,348.00 $5,400.00 9/1/2008 - 8/25/2009

8/31/2010
23 Title IV-E Legal Administration $1,478,416 10/1/2009 - 9/1/2009

9/30/2010
39 Recovery Act Combating Criminal Narcotics Activity $287,500 7/1/2009 - 9/1/2009

Stemming from the Southern Border of the United 6/30/2011
States: Enhancing Southern Border Jails, Community
Corrections, and Detention Operations

45 Integrated Child Support System Cooperative $400,890 9/1/2009 - 9/1/2009
Agreement 8/31/2011

$20,141,120 $3,304,223 $19,141 123.00

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



2009 Grants Summary Report

Amended Grant Applications

Original Total Cm. Ct.
Grant Amendment Total FTEs Approval

Dept Name of Grant Amount Amount Revised Associated Date
55 Travis County Mental

Health Public
Defenders Office

$ 330,776 $ 44,224 8.00 10/7/2008
40 OVWFYO8 Safe $200,000 0.75

Havens: Supervised
Visitation and Safe
Exchange Grant
Program 2/17/2009

22 Drug CourtProgram $65,665.96 1

2/17/2009

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



58 Oncor Weatherization $32,259
Project Amendment
One

2/24/2009
37 SCATTF - Sheriffs $66,077

Combined Auto Theft
Task Force 2/24/2009

otal Outstanding $ 596,442 $ 142,560 9.75
* Original Grant Column shows Beginning FY’08 Amount

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



FY 2009 Grants Summary Report

Permission to Continue

Cm. Ct. Cm. Ct.
Original Original Continuation Original Approval

Name of Grant County Amount Total Approval Date for
Dept Grant Amount Match Total FTEs Date Continuation

22 Drug Court $84,419.75 1 10/14/2008
Program

24 Drug $188,474.00 1 10/21/2008
Diversion
Court

22 Drug Court $84,419.75 1 12/16/2008
Program

24 Drug $160,041 1 12/16/2008
Diversion
Court

24 Drug $160,041 1 1/21/2009
Diversion
Court

22 Family Drug $84,419.75 1 1/21/2009
Treatment
Court Program

58 AmeriCorps $301,236 $281,606 20 6/30/2009

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



22 Drug Court $98,500 1 8/18/2009
(State) Program

24 Drug $176,045
Diversion
Court i 8/18/2009

Total $1,337,596.25 $ 281,606 27.00
Outstanding

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



-~r’i~

• ~

~

~

~
~;~

I.t’a.

TRAVIS COUNTY FY09- FY13 PLANNING TOOL FOR AMERICAN RECOVERY AND REINVESTMENT ACT (ARRA) AND LARGE MULTI-
YEAR GRANT CONTRACTS

The potential impact in future years to the County is shown for planning purposes only. County funding determinations will be made annually by the Commissioners Court based on the
availability Funding and progress of the program. Applicable grant contracts approved in FY08 with a FY09 grant term are also shown below.

Future year amounts are estimated if not known and impact amounts may be reduced if additional Non-County funding is identified. Amounts shown in a particular year may not represent
the actual grant term allocation since terms may overlap the County’s Fiscal Year.

Grant Contracts a • .roved b Commissioners Court

Deot Grant Title

District Attorney

FY09 FY10 FY11 FY12

Grant Amount

Criminal Justice Travis County Mental Public Defenders Office. To establish the $ 375000
Planning nation’s first stand alone Mental Health Public Defenders Office.

Full impact in FY 12 when grant is no longer available.

Criminal Justice Office of Parental Representation. County impact is intended to $ 300,000
Planning be offset by reductions to Civil Indigent Attorney Fees. Full

impact in FY12 when grant is no longer available. Impact
amounts will be updated to take into account internal realocations
and potential savings.

Criminal Justice Office of Child Representation. County impact is intended to be $ 300,000
Planning offset by reductions to Civil Indigent Attorney Fees. FY11 is last

year of grant Impact amounts will be updated to take into
account internal realocations and potential savings.

Interlocal Agreement for the Austin/Travis County Family Violence
Protection Team. Includes funding for the District Attorney’s
Office, County Attorney’s Office, Travis County Sheriffs Office,
and Constable Pct 5. Grant is coordinated by the City of Austin.
It is possible that the responsibility to apply for the Grant may fall
to the County for FY11 and beyond.

Transportation Local Transportation Project - Advanced Funding Agreement
and Natural (ARRA). ARRA funding to upgrade 4 roads by millling and
Resources overlaying roadway. Grant is a one-time grant with the potential

for estimated $13,741 contribution from the Road and Bridge
Fund.

Health and 2009 Phase 27 ARRA Emergency Food and Shelter Program.
Human Services The grant is a one-year one-time grant for emergency utility

assistance that does not require a County match or program to
continue after termination.

Health and Americorps. Grant match is handled internally within the existing $ 288,139
Human Services budget of the Texas AgriLife Extension Service. Assumes grant

will continue each year.

$ 342,793

$ -

$ 40,554

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



$ 833,133

$ 3,069,619 $1,161,189 $3,280,817 $

County Impact includes the grant match amount that is not internally funded or costs that required a budget increase and the amount that may be required by the County
amount does not include all costs related to the administration of the grant that are incurred by the County. Existing grants with approved contracts for the current year with
following year are shown only on the contracts sheet to avoid duplication.

SUMMARY OF APPROVED CONTRACTS AND APPLICATIONS

Combined Totals
(Approved Applications Pending Notification + Approved Contracts)

Approved Applications Pending Notification (Potential Impact)
Approved Contracts

Health and Parenting in Recovery. FY09 is Year Two of a Potential Five
Human Services Year Grant. The full impact will occur in FY13 when grant

funding is no longer available.

$ 500,000

Health and Community Development Block Grant ARRA (CDBG-R) Funds to $ 90,000
Human Services be used for approx 39 water connections for Plainview Estates.

Health and Community Development Block Grant (CDBG). Impact amounts
Human Services are based on the amounts added for staff added in HHS and

County Auditor’s Office to support the grant. The Auditor’s staff
person also supports other large federal grants, but is only listed
here for simplification. Actual amounts may vaiy by year.
Assumes grant will continue each year.

1,233,627 $1,507,470

I I 1.

I .11~ . I

Grant Amount

Combined Totals $ 3,463,871 $1,161,189 $6,367,936 $883,626 $5,054,706 $1,375,584 $2,586,135 $1,500,584 $1,879,373 $2,048,032

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY FY09 -FY13 PLANNING TOOL FOR AMERICAN RECOVERY AND REINVESTMENT ACT (ARRA) AND LARGE MULTI-YEAR

GRANT APPLICATIONS

The potential impact in future years to the County is shown for planning purposes only. County funding determinations will be made annually by the Commissioners Court based on
the availability funding and progress of the program.
Future year amounts are estimated if not known and impact amounts may be reduced if additional Non-County funding is identified. Amounts shown in a particular year may not
represent the actual grant term allocation since terms may overlap the County’s Fiscal Year.

Outstandin • Grant A. . Iications __________

Dept Grant Title

FY09 I FY 10 FY 11 I FY 12 FY 13

Community Recovery Act Combating Criminal Narcotics Activity
Supervision and Stemming from the Southern Border of the US: Enhancing

Corrections Southern Border Jails, Community Corrections and Detention
Operations. (ARRA) Grant will supplment department’s state
funding to help keep all current probation officer positions.
This one-time funding goes to the State and there is no
County obligation or impact. Full amount of grant is believed
to be spent in FY10.

Criminal Justice Travis County Information Management Strategy for Criminal
Planning Justice (ARRA). Includes technology funding for (Constables,

Records Management, Adult Probation, Juvenile Probation,
Court Administration and Manor Police Department).

Criminal Justice National lnitiatives:Adjudication Program (ARRA) This grant is
Planning for 18 months of funding for an attorney and caseworker in

the Mental Health Public Defender’s Office, Travis County
would be expected to continue this program after grant
funding has ended.

Facilities Energy Efficiency and Conservation Block Grant (ARRA).For
Management Retrofit of the Travis County Executive Office Building HVAC

System. One-time grant and includes a $1.2 million County
contribution in FY 10 to complete project.

Health and ARRA Texas Weatherization Assistance Program. Provide
Human Services weatherization services to low income households

Juvenile Juvenile Treatment Drug Court Enhancement Grant from
Probation OJJDP. Includes 2 Grant FTE and may require a $82,865

County contribution in FY13 and the full impact of $130,350
in FY 14. Dept has stated they would seek alternative
funding sources and would only request General Fund dollars
if other funding was unavailable.

.~

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



Juvenile
Probation

TRAVIS COUNTY FY09 -FY13 PLANNING TOOL FOR AMERICAN RECOVERY AND REINVESTMENT ACT (ARRA) AND LARGE MULTI-YEAR

GRANT APPLICATIONS

The potential impact in future years to the County is shown for planning purposes only. County funding determinations will be made annually by the Commissioners Court based on
the availability funding and progress of the program.
Future year amounts are estimated if not known and impact amounts may be reduced if additional Non-County funding is identified. Amounts shown in a particular year may not
represent the actual grant term allocation since terms may overlap the County’s Fiscal Year.

Outstandin Grant Ap lications

Dept Grant Title
Juvenile Treatment Drug Court Enhancement Grant from
CSAT. Application must be submitted each year. Resources
for treatment services and staff training. Full impact potential
in FY14. Dept has stated they would seek alternative funding
sources and would only request General Fund dollars if other
funding was unavailable.

Juvenile Travis County Mentoring Project (ARRA) Grant would end in
Probation FY13. Dept has stated they would seek alternative funding

sources for FY 14 and beyond and would only request
General Fund dollars if other funding was unavailable.

Juvenile Byrne Memorial Competitive Grant Supporting Problem
Probation Solving Courts (ARRA) Grant would end in FY11. Dept has

stated they would seek alternative funding sources and would
only request General Fund dollars if other funding was
unavailable.

Travis County 2009 Byme Justice Assistance Grant (ARRA). One-time grant
Sheriffs Office for one-time capital purchases. Does not require a County

match or program to continue after grant term ends on
9/30/12.

FY09 FY10 FY11 FY12 I FY13

$0 $3,087,119

County Impact includes the grant match amount that is not internally funded or costs that required a budget increase and the amount that maybe required by the County
grant This amount does not include all costs related to the administration of the grant that are incurred by the County. Existing grants with approved contracts for the c
applications for the following year are shown only on the contracts sheet to avoid duplication.

$0 $2,822,236 $266,957 $578,665 $266,957

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



GRANT SUMMARY SHEET

.Cli~ck’.~O~t~ Application Approval: ~ Permission to Continue: LI
Contract Approval: [1 Status Report: C]

~ Travis County Health and Human Services and Veterans Service
~ ~ .~~ John C. Bradshaw
;~ ~~honjimbei~~ 854-4277

MTkit1:~~
âP~i~~L~

‘•~ ~ -•.£heck~One.~
“~- ‘‘?~heeW(i)ne~~

PersoiiiI~l ~$~I
~Qti:;~ ~

Parenting in Recovery
9/30/2009 I~~i 1~I 9/29/20 10

U.S. Dept. of Health and Human Services, Administration for Children and
Families

New: LI I Continuation: ~ I Amendment: LI
One-Time Award: LI
Advance: LI

~Fundm~Snurce~~ ~ ~Fnnds
~St~k~ ~
~1

~

Ongoing Award: ~
Reimbursement: ~

~j~~J14Q S~.

I0~.7,srd~c0~nfl.!~

0

1~c~W~~
~ ‘~ünd~. ‘.. JrMatbli.

I~:$~QO~
Y~ocø~ -~

~

0 ~ &0~O00:
I~’~oo~

500,000
~.~ -

~i 500,000

Auditor’s Office Review: ~ Staff Initials:_JC_______

Auditor’s Office Comments:

County Attorney’s Office Contract Review: ~ Staff Initials:_MG______

Number of new children
entering care

Not
Available

45,000

45,000

80,000
545,000

0
0

625,000
1.00

W~ €‘L~ ~ -~ .~. ,~2-~-~

Outcome Measures~or~3rant~ o~

y~~’ ~.~~ 4~. Projected Projected
~Pcrrnancc~Mêir~~ FY09 Progress To Date FY10
~ ~ Measure 12/31/08 3/31/09 6/31/09 9/30/09 Measure

Number of clients receiving 791 665 Not 850
substance treatment services Available
Number of child welfare 90 25 Not 90
involved families completing Available
service plan goals

500 69 360

~0i0I.W C, ..nl~TmmWV 02. IV 00 Mc..o.T..n,fa,WY0004-28-09 Ills PIR GrnI lunary 2X9-20l0 1c

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



Percentage of children who
had an initial occurrence
and/or recurrence of
substantiated/indicated child
maltreatment within 6, 12, 18
and 24 months after enrolling
in the RPG program.
N=30 (N is based on the
minimum of one child per
enrolled mother as the actual
number of children is not
established until parent entry
into project and includes
enrollments from year one and
projected enrollments for year
two.)

35% 0%0% 35%

Outcome Impact Description Reduces the number of incidences of child maltreatment in our
community.

Percentage of children 60% Not Not 60%
identified as at risk of removal Available Available
from the home who are able to until until
remain in the custody of a August August
parent or caregiver through 2009 2009
case closure.
N=5
PIR participants receive
services up to 18 months from
identification. This indicator
will have viable data starting
August 2009 — 18 months post
first enrollment and first
potential case closure. Please
note that prior to this
demonstration project all the
children would have been
placed in foster care due to risk
factors.
Outcome Impact Description Reduces the number of children that are placed in the foster care

system due to parental substance abuse.
Percentage of parents or 80% 100% 90% 80%
caregivers who were able to
access timely and appropriate
substance abuse treatment as
calculated by number of days
between program entry and
treatment entry (10 days).
N=20 (N is based on the
projected number ofproject
enrollments for year two.)

TIIISPIRO S~n.,~,y1OQ9.~OIO I.doo

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



Outcome Impact Description Parents and caregivers with early access to substance dependence
treatment are projected to have improved outcomes as it relates to

___________________________ establishing and maintaining sobriety.

Percentage of parents or 70% Not Not 70%
caregivers who show Available Available
improvement in mental health until until
functioning as measured by a May May
pre and post treatment survey. 2009 2009
N= 5
Data will only be available on
participants at closure.

Outcome Impact Description Parent/Caregivers with improved mental health functioning are
projected to be better able to maintain sobriety, independence and an
ability to safely care for their children without continued
involvement by the child welfare system.

RPG — Regional Partnership Grant. Designation established by Administration of Children and
Families.
PIR — Parenting in Recovery. The name of the Travis County RPG site and the local project name.

PIR is a 5-year demonstration site grant awarded to test the validity of the project design. The
project, as a part of the award, has a significant investment in evaluation with a designated evaluator
paid through grant dollars. Sanna Thompson, PHD, of the University of Texas is PIR’s evaluator who
designed and is now implementing the evaluation of PIR. As part of the evaluation design, a database
has been created to store and analyze data. The validity of the design will or will not be established by
the use of a comparison control group for whom the project is also collecting the same data. As part of
the grant, no predictions were made regarding specific indicator outcomes. The project design
hypothesized that the continuum of services (seamless services) would result in children remaining
with their mothers, as opposed to foster care, and the mothers would develop the skills and support
required to sustain sobriety. The evaluation is testing this hypothesis.

All percentages provided above, specific to the grant, are to satisfy the grant summary form
requirements and are not part of the evaluation. The percentages are based on local trends and cannot
be directly linked to the project as the data does not yet support any specific trends and will not until
project completion.

A grant evaluation report will be made available to the court at the conclusion of year two of
the grant.

M:’01aff CurraO’Tn.,,FY 02- FY09 Mcm.-Trm,.Fu,~fl 09’4-2109 OHS PIRthfl S.~...,...y2099-2OIO id..

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



PBO Recommendation:
Health Human Services and Veterans Services (HHS&VS) is requesting Commissioners Court
approval of a grant contract for the third year of a potential five year grant program to continue
participation in the Parenting in Recovery Project. The program is funded by the U.S. Department of
Health and Human Services for Targeted Grants to Increase the Well-being of, and to Improve the
Permanency Outcomes for, Children Affected by Methamphetamine and Other Substance Addictions.
HHS&VS serves as project lead on behalf of a regional partnership that includes Austin Recovery,
Foundation Communities, Texas Department of Family and Protective Services and Austin Travis
County Mental Health and Mental Retardation. This proposal falls within one of the three priority
program areas established by the Commissioners Court. The grant will provide $500,000 in grant
resources to serve families in the child welfare system with substance abuse issues. Specially, the
program will provide substance abuse treatment and support for parents involved in the child welfare
system with the goal of keeping families together.

The year-three budget of the grant will provide funding for a Project Director in HHS&VS, between 5
to 10 treatment beds slots at Austin Recovery depending on the level of care needed, financial
assistance for program participants after treatment, and an independent evaluation component.

The grant requires a cash match for the third year of the program in FY 10 that will be met through a
$80,000 cash contribution from the County that is recommend with one-time funding in the FY 10
Preliminary Budget along with $45,000 in existing in-kind resources from the County and partners of
the program. The cash match requirements will remain the same in FY 11, but will increase for FY 12.
Recommendations for FY 10 and future cash match requirements will be based on progress of the
program, availability of funds, and the department’s ability to internally fund some portion or all of the
match. The department will be providing an update on the results of the program that will be included
in the recommendation for the FY 11 request for the cash match. There are no long-term commitments
to provide funding after termination of the grant. However, it is likely that program partners will seek
funding from the County, City, and other resources to continue these services upon termination.

PBO recommends approval of the request in order to continue to the pilot grant program.

1. Brief Narrative - Summary of Grant: What is the goal of the program? How does the grant fit into
the current activities of the department? Is the grant starting a new program, or is it enhancing an
existing program?
The Parenting in Recovery project provides a flexible, comprehensive continuum of services for
families in the child welfare system as a result of methamphetamine or other substance dependence.
The primary objective of the Parenting in Recovery project is to keep families together in the
community while they receive an individualized set of interventions and supports that promote
sustained recovery and independent functioning.

This grant will enhance the services provided by the Office of Children Services within Travis County
Health and Human Services and Veterans Service (TCHHSVS). TCHHSVS serves as the lead agency
on behalf of a regional partnership that includes Austin Recovery, Foundation Communities, Texas
Department of Family and Protective Services (DFPS), Austin Travis County Mental Health and
Mental Retardation (ATCMHMR), Travis County District Court, and WorkSource.
The focus of TCHHSVS — Office of Children Services (OCS) is to promote programs and services that
enhance the functioning of children, youth and families. OCS has an established collaborative
relationship with the child welfare system and maintains oversight for the substance abuse contract.

~TtI1SPIRO,.r~S ,y2OO~-2OIO I.do~

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



The grant expands service opportunities to families involved in both the child welfare and substance
treatment systems.

2. Departmental Resource Commitment: What are the long term County funding requirements of the
grant?

There is $500,000 in grant funds available for FY’10. A cash match of $80,000 and an in-kind match
of $45,000 is required for a total match of $125,000. This match amount is maintained through FY’11,
and is increased to $167,000 in FY’12.
Travis County is providing a cash match of $80,000 in the form of salary and benefits for a full-time
Project Director as well as two staff from the Office of Children’s Services who will spend a portion of
their time on grant oversight. Austin Recovery is providing an in-kind match of $8,500 through
volunteer services dedicated to project participants. Foundation Communities is providing an $11,000
in-kind match using the difference between grant rental rate and the fair housing market rate.
ATCMHMR Center is providing a $25,500 in-kind match using the difference between the 5% MSO
fee charged to the grant and the approved rate of 13%. TCHHSVS is not increasing or expanding
program costs. It is expected that grant partners will be increasing in-kind matches over the grant’s
five-year project period to meet the increasing match requirements.

3. County Commitment to the Grant: Is a county match required? If so, how does the department
propose to fund the grant match? Please explain.
The grant requires a combination of cash and in-kind matches. TCHHSVS is providing all of the cash
match. OCS has put in a request for the Project Director’s salary and benefits as part of its FY’10
budget submission. The salary and benefits for the two OCS staff members who will spend a portion of
their time on grant oversight is already in the approved budget for TCHHSVS. The grant partners are
providing the in-kind match by offering services at a reduced cost and volunteer support for project
participants.

4. Does the grant program have an indirect cost allocation, in accordance with the grant rules? If not,
please explain why not.
There was not enough money in the grant award to cover program costs as well as allow for an indirect
cost allocation. The most current indirect cost rate assigned to TCHHSVS by the consultant Maximus
is .4247. The proposal for a $500,000 grant to provide direct services would not be competitive if
$212,350 of that amount went for indirect costs.

5. County Commitment to the Program Upon Discontinuation of Grant by Grantor: Will the
program discontinue upon discontinuance of the grant funding? (Yes/No) IfNo: What is the
proposed funding mechanism: (1) Request additional funding (2) Use departmental resources.
If (2) is answered, provide details about what internal resources are to be provided and what
other programs will be discontinued as a result.

No. This program relies heavily on local resources for the project model which will support
sustainability after the grant ends. The Project Director position will end with the grant. The Project
Director will develop relationships with program partners that will be sustained after the grants ends
either through MOUs and/or contracts. The length of the grant allows the partners time to evaluate the
effectiveness of the project model and create and implement a viable sustainability plan that includes
the following:

Regional partnership will continue as a collaborative body that informs local practices and
allocates resources for this population

~I~HSPTRG.~S~n.,~y2OO9.1OlO l9o~

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



• Training of Child Protective Services (CPS) staff in Motivational Interview and the use of the
M.I.N.I. screening tool for substance dependence and mental health — current goal is to have these as
continuing education for CPS staff in the first year of employment
• CPS staff will integrate into practice collaborative treatment planning with a special emphasis
on discharge planning
• Austin Recovery will continue to maintain 10 additional beds to serve women and children
bringing the agencies capacity to 22
• Foundation Communities will maintain a case manager position to provide support to this
population

Partners will identify the funding for treatment and flexible services potentially through increased
City/County funding to the existing ATCMHMR Substance Abuse contract to serve this population.
CPS will enter into contracts with TCHHSVS or Austin Recovery and Foundation Communities to
secure needed services for families. Partners will lobby Department of State Health Services to raise
the funding rate of treatment beds closer to cost and comparable to City/County contract rates, among
other things.

6. If this is a new program, please provide information why the County should expand into this area.
NA

7. Please explain how this program will affect your current operations. Please tie the performance
measures for this program back to the critical performance measures for your department or office.
This program is in line with the services currently offered by the Office of Children Services within
TCHHSVS.

~IIHSPIRG S~n~~~.,y2OO9-2OIO I.do~

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



DATE:

TRAVIS COU TY HEALTH and HUMAN SERVICES
and VETERANS SERVICE

100 North I.H. 35
P. 0. Box 1748

Austin, Texas 78767

August 25, 2009

Sherri E. Fleming
Executive Manager

(512) 854-4100
Fax (512) 854-4115

TO: Members of the Commissioners Court

FROM:

SUBJECT: FY10 Grant from the U.S. Department of Health and Human Services for
Targeted Grants to Increase the Well-Being of and to Improve the
Permanency Outcomes for Children Affected by Methamphetamine or
Other Substance Abuse

Proposed Motion:
Consider and Take Appropriate Action to Approve a $500,000 Grant from the
Administration for Children and Families within the U.S. Department of Health and
Human Services to Fund the Travis County Parenting in Recovery Project in FYI 0.

Summary and Staff Recommendations:
Travis County Health and Human Services and Veterans Service (HHS&VS) first
received this grant in FY08. HHSS&VS serves as the lead agency in a regional
partnership (known as the Parenting in Recovery project) that includes Austin
Recovery, Foundation Communities, Texas Department of Family and Protective
Services (DFPS), Austin Travis County Mental Health and Mental Retardation (MHMR),
and WorkSource.

The Parenting in Recovery project provides a flexible, comprehensive continuum of
services for families in the child welfare system as a result of methamphetamine or
other substance dependence. The primary objective of the project is to keep families
together in the community while they receive an individualized set of interventions and
supports that promote sustained recovery and independent functioning.

~ço

Sherri E. Fleming, Executive Man~ ~fr
Travis County Health and Human Services and Veterans Service

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



Parenting in Recovery has three main components: (1) enhanced collaboration
between child welfare and the substance dependence treatment providers; (2)
improved identification and treatment for families involved with the child welfare system
as a result of substance dependence; and (3) the development of a continuum of
services for families from treatment to sustained recovery within the community.

The Parenting in Recovery project started serving families in February of 2008 and has
enrolled 40 families so far. Of these 40 families, four were discharged successfully,
twelve were discharged prematurely from the project, and 24 remain active participants.
The project will serve at least 20 additional families in FYI 0.

HHS&VS Staff recommends approving the FY10 grant funds.

Budgetary and Fiscal Impact:
The amount of grant funds available from the U.S. Department of Health and Human
Services for FY10 is $500,000. A cash and in-kind match of $125,000 is required. This
remains the same for FYI I but increases to $167,000 in FY12, the fifth and final year
of the grant.

For FYI 0, Travis County is providing a cash match of $80,000 in the form of salary and
benefits for a full-time Project Director as well as two staff from the Office of Children’s
Services who will spend a portion of their time on grant oversight. Austin Recovery is
providing an in-kind match of $8,500 by providing volunteers who will provide support
for families enrolled in the program. Foundation Communities will contribute an
$1 1,000 in-kind match by providing rental housing to Parenting in Recovery clients at
below market rates. Austin Travis County MHMR will provide $25,500 as an in-kind
match by reducing the administrative fee it charges for coordinating the services
provided to Parenting in Recovery clients. The total in-kind match comes to $45,000.

Issues and Opportunities:
Children are put at risk when one or both parents have a substance dependence
problem. The cost of maintaining an addiction diverts a family’s financial resources
from providing basic needs such as food, clothing, and housing. Parental substance
dependence is a key factor underlying the abuse or neglect experienced by many of the
children entering foster care. The Parenting in Recovery project is designed to keep
families together by providing treatment and support services.

Background:
The Administration for Children and Families within the U.S. Department of Health and
Human Services provides grants for regional partnerships designed to enhance the
safety of children who are in an out-of-home placement or are at risk of being put in an
out-of-home placement due to a parent’s or caretaker’s methamphetamine or other
substance dependence.

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



cc: Jim Lehrman, Director, Office of Children’s Services, TCHHS&VS
Susan A. Spataro, CPA, CMA, Travis County Auditor
Jose Palacios, Chief Assistant County Auditor
Janice Cohoon, Financial Analyst, Travis County Auditor’s Office
Mary Etta Gerhardt, Assistant County Attorney
Rodney Rhoades, Executive Manager, Planning and Budget Office
Travis Gatlin, Analyst, Planning and Budget Office
Cyd Grimes, C.P.M., Travis County Purchasing Agent
Rebecca Gardner, Assistant Purchasing Agent, Travis County Purchasing Office

Q3

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH & HUMAN SERVICES

JUL 2 02009
The Honorable Samuel T. Biscoe
Travis County Judge
100 N. JR 35
Austin, TX 78701

Reference: Award No. 90CU0039

Dear Judge Biscoe:

ADMINISTRATION FOR CHILDREN AND FAMILIES
Administration on Children, Youth and Families
1250 MaryLand Avenue, S.W.
Washington, D.C. 20024

I am pleased to inform you that your non-competing continuation award application has been
approved for funding. The grant award is made pursuant to the legislative authority of the Child
and Family Services Improvement Act (Public Law 109-288) 42 United States Code section
629g(f).

The enclosed Financial Assistance Award (FAA) specifies the amount and duration of the grant.
Also enclosed is material that describes the administrative policies and procedures pertinent to
your grant.

The Federal Project Officer responsible for monitoring the project and for providing
programmatic assistance is:

Irene Bocella
Child Welfare Program Specialist
Administration on Children, Youth and Families
Children’s Bureau
1250 Maryland Avenue, SW
Suite 800
Washington, DC 20024
Telephone: 202-205-1723

4;~~
rn

—

cD ~
~.J1

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



Page 2 — Judge Biscoe

The Grants Management Specialist assigned to your project and available to assist you with the
business and administrative aspects of the project:

Fonda Hughes/Ben Sharp
Grants Management Specialist
Administration for Children and Families
Office of Grants Management
370 L’Enfant Promenade, SW
6th Floor

Washington, DC 20447
Telephone: 202-260-6607

Please note that originals of all correspondence and reports related to your grant are to be
transmitted to the Grants Management Specialist with copies to the Federal Project Officer. Mi
grant-related correspondence and reports must reference the award number appearing in box 3 of
the FAA.

Program and financial status reports are due 30 days after the end of the second and fourth
quarters (six-month intervals) throughout the total approved project period. The enclosed
material on reporting requirements details the reporting schedule and format.

If we can be of any assistance, please feel free to contact us. We look forward to working with
you as you continue with this important project.

Sincerely,
~7L~

Maiso L. Bryant,
Acting Commissioner

Enclosures

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



1.RECIPIENT SAl NUMBER:

Department of Health and Human Services
Administration for Children and Families PMS DOCUMENT NUMBER:
Financial Assistance Award (FAA) 90CU003903

1. AWARDING OFFICE: 2. ASSISTANCE TYPE: 3. AWARD NO.: 4. AMEND. NO.:
Administration for Children and Families Discretionary Grant 90CU0039/03

5. TYPE OF AWARD: 6. TYPE OF ACTION: 7. AWARD AUTHORITY:
OTHER Non-competing Continuation Prom S & S Fam. Sec. 437 (f) title lV-B42 U.

8. BUDGET PERIOD: 9. PROJECT PERIOD: 10. CAT NO.:

09/30/2009 THRU 09/29/2010 09/30/2007 THRU 09/29/2012 93087

11. RECIPIENT ORGANIZATION: 12. PROJECT! PROGRAM TITLE:
Travis County 4hroU ~VIO~Jt~I C~inkf Targeted Grants: Methamphetamine and other
Health and Human Services Substance Abuse
100 North l.H. 35
Austin TX 78767
Samuel Biscoe, Travis County Judge

13. COUNTY: 14. CONGR. DIST: 15. PRINCIPAL INVESTIGATOR OR PROGRAM DIRECTOR:

TRAVIS 25 Laura Peveto, Prevention and Intervention Manager

16. APPROVED BUDGET: 17. AWARD COMPUTATION:

Personnel $ 0 A. NON-FEDERAL SHARE $ 125,000 20.00 %

Fringe Benefits $ 0 B. FEDERAL SHARE $ 500,000 80.00 %

Travel $ 8,170
. 18. FEDERAL SHARE COMPUTATION:

Equipment $ 0 A.TOTALFEDERALSHARE $ 500,000

Supplies $ 0 B. UNOBLIGATED BALANCE FEDERAL SHARE $

Contractual $ 431,101 C. FED. SHARE AWARDED THIS BUDGET PERIOD.$ 500,000

Facilities/Construction $ 0 19. AMOUNT AWARDED THIS ACTION: $ 500,000

Other $ 60,729 20. FEDERAL $ AWARDED THIS PROJECT $ 1 500 000

Direct Costs $ 500,000 PERIOD:

Indirect Costs $ 0 21. AUTHORIZED TREATMENT OF PROGRAM INCOME:
At % of $ ADDITIONAL COSTS

In Kind Contributions 0 22. APPLICANT EIN: 23. PAYEE EIN: 24. OBJECT CLASS:

Total Approved Budqet(**).. I $ 500,000 1746000192A5 1746000192A5 41.51

25. FINANCIAL INFORMATION: DUNS: 030908842

ORGN DOCUMENT NO. APPROPRIATION CAN NO. NEW AMT. UNOBLIG. NONFED %
ACF 90CU003903 75-9-1 512 2009 G996440 $500,000

26. REMARKS: (Continued on separate sheets)
Paid by DHHS Payment Management System (PMS), see attached for payment information.
This award is subject to the requirements of the HHS Grants Policy Statement (HHS GPS) that are applicable to you based
on your recipient type and the purpose of this award.
This includes requirements in Parts I and II (available at http://www.hhs.gov/grantsnet/adminis/gpd/index.htm) of the HHS GPS.
Although consistent with the HHS GPS, any applicable statutory or regulatory requirements, including 45 CFR Part 74
or 92, directly apply to this award apart from any coverage in the HHS GPS.
This award is subject to the requirements of Section 106 (g) of the Trafficking Victims Protection Act of 2000, as
amended (22 U.S.C. 7104).
For the full text of the award term, go to http~//www,acf.hhs.gov/grants/award_term.html.

27. SIGNATURE~ j~
29 ATURE AND TITLE - PROG M ICIAL(S) DATE:

2~nt,ActIngCom’~, AC __
‘~ 7P~ (I~ P.~\ (CU)

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



I .RECIPIENT

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES
ADMINISTRATION FOR CHILDREN AND FAMILIES

FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE AWARD

11. RECIPIENT ORGANIZATION ~
Travis County, ~a~~c~ervices

T. ~Sco~
~ Co~v~( IcA~jQ~_

26. REMARKS: (Continued from previous page)

This grant is subject to the requirements as set forth in 45 CFR Part 87.
Attached are terms and conditions, reporting requirements, and payment instructions.
Initial expenditure of funds by the grantee constitutes acceptance of this award.
(*~) Reflects only federal share of approved budget.

Grantee assumes complete responsibility for the administration and accountability for all funds
received under this award. Grantee has not listed any Federal funds under personnel line item.

DGCM-3-785 (Rev. 86)
(CU) Page 2~7

SAl NUMBER:

PMS DOCUMENT NUMBER:
90CU003903

1. AWARDING OFFICE: 2. ASSISTANCE TYPE: 3. AWARD NO.: 4. AMEND. NO.
Administration for Children and Families Discretionary Grant 90CU0039/03

5. TYPE OF AWARD: 6. TYPE OF ACTION: 7. AWARD AUTHORITY:
OTHER Non-competing Continuation Prom S & S Fam. Sec. 437 (f) title

8. BUDGET PERIOD: 9. PROJECT PERIOD: 10. CAT NO.:
09/30/2009 THRU 09/29/2010 09/30/2007 THRU 09/29/2012 93087

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



~ARTMENT 01? HEALTh AND HUMAN SERVICI~S
M)MINISTRATION FOR CHILDRj~N AN]) FAMILIES (A~~

$TANDARD TERMS AND CONDITIONS

Has been replaced with the

11115 Grants Policy Statement
~11HS GPSj

http : //www.acfJjjis.~ov/2rants/~rants resources.html

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH & HUMAN SERVICES

ADMINISTRATION FOR CHILDREN AND FAMILIES
370 L’Enfant Promenade, S.W.
Washington, D.C. 20447

NOTICE TO ALL GRANT RECIPIENTS!

SUBJECT: NEW PERFORMANCE PROGRESS
REPORTING REQUIREMENT

Dear ACF Grant Recipient:

Beginning with FY 2009, ACF grantees will begin using the Standard
Form-Performance Progress Report (SF-PPR) for required performance
progress reports. The SF-PPR is the standard government~wj~~
performance progress reporting format used by Federal agencies to
collect performance information from recipients. Use ofACF’s Office
of Grants Management (0GM) version of the SF-PPR will begin for all
awards (new and continuation) made by ACF in FY 2009. At a
minimum, grantees will be required to submit the 0GM version of SF
PPR Coversheet and SF-PPR Appendix B Program Indicators, which are
specific to ACF performance progress reports and available on this page.
Some ACF Programs may utilize reporting formats that differ from the
new 0GM SF-PPR; therefore grantees should consult the published
announcement and their award documents to determine the appropriate
performance progress report requirement.

Attachments

11/17/08

3+

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



I- - -

I

Page of
Pages1.Federal Agency and Organization Element to 2. Federal Grant or Other Identifying J 3a. DUNS Number

Which Report is Submitted V Number Assigned by Federal Agency

__________________ V [~bEIN

4. Recipient Organization (Name and complete address including zip code) ~TRecjpjent Identifying Number

or Account Number

ç~ Prni~I(’rrn~ ~ 8. Final Report? U Yes

DNOV

1 2c. Telephone (aI~a code, number and -

extension)

I 2d. Email Address

1 2b. Signature of Authorized Certifying Official 1 9~

0MB Approval Number: 0970-0334
E)cpiratjon Date: 6130/2009

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



PERFORMANCE PROGRESS REPORT
SF-PPR INSTRUCTIONS

~~~ .~ ,~ . ~ ~ ~,

~~ ~ ~% i~’~””:.~’ ~!k~n~I~’~ ~y~ -.

- . 4 -.

1. Awarding Federal agency Enter the name of the awarding Federal agency and organizationa[ element
and Organizationaj identified in the award document or otherwise instructed by the agency. The
Element to Which Report organizational element is a sub-agency within an awarding Federal agency.
is Submitted

2. Federal Grant or Other Enter the grant/award number contained in the award document.
Identifying Number
Assigned by the
awarding Federal agency

3.a. bUNS Number Enter the recipient organization’s Data Universal Numbering System (DUNS)

number or Central Contract Registry extended DUNS number.

3.b. EIN Enter the recipient organizatjo~’~ Employer Identification Number (EIN)

provided by the Internal Revenue Service.

4. Recipient Organ ization Enter the name of recipient organization and address, including zip code.

5. Recipient Account - Enter the account number or any other identifying number assigned by the
Number or Account recipient to the award. This number is strictly for the recipient’s use only and is
Number not required by the awarding Federal agency.

6. ProjectjGrant Period Indicate the project/grant period established in the award document during

which Federal Sponsorship begins and ends. Note: Some agencies award
multi-year grants for a project/grant period (e.g., 5 years) that are funded in
increments known as budget periods or funding periods. These are typically
annual increments Please enter the project/grant period, not the budget
period or funding period.

Reporting Period End
7. Date Enter the ending date of the reporting period. For quarterly, semi-annual and

annual reports, the following calendar quarter reporting period end dates shall
be used: 3/3 1; 6/30; 9/30; and or 12I3~l. For final PPRs, the reporting period
end date shall be the end date of the project/grant period. The frequency of
required reporting is usually established in the award document.

Mark appropriate box. Check “yes” only if this is the final report for the8. Final Report project/grant period specified in Box 6.

9.

Select the appropriate term corresponding to the requiremen~~ Contained inReport or Frequency the award document. “Other” may be used when more frequent reporting is

re uired for hi h-risk rantees as S ecified in 0MB Circular A-I 10.
10. Performance Narrative Leave blank and corn fete Form ACF~0GM.SFPPR A endix B

0MB Approval Number: 0970-0334
Expiration Date: 6/30/2009

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



• •~ I •- -
I I • I: •.I~l .1 I I- -.

0MB Approval Number: 097O-G3~
Expiration Date: 6/30/2009

~ftachments

I.

I I I I.

II :1 i-•~•. • ‘-I I ••~ I •~I~II- II, I. I - • • I .1 -

• , • •. .1 : • • •• I• i: ~ • ,- • • I • •~ ~. II
- - -I .11 I a-- • • a I - I -

• - a a

.• I. ~ii I
• ~I

• I I I

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



-

- .1~

0MB Approval Number: 0970-0334
Expiration Date: 613012009

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



PERFORMANCE PROGRESS REPORT
ACF-PPR-B INSTRUCTIONS

Schedule

Submit the original progress report to the Office of Grants Management, Division of Discretionary Grants, and a copy
to the Program Office. Reports are due 30 days after the end of the second and fourth quarters of the budget period
(every six months).

A ~L PROGRp~M REPORT IS DUE 90 DAYS AFTER THE PROJECT PERIOD END DATE.

~~ _____

A W F d I e and Enter the name of the awarding Federal agency and organizationa’
OraWza~jon IEIen~ ntt~ Which element identified in the award document or otherwise instructed by

is Submitted e the agency. The organizational element is a sub-agency within anp awarding Federal agency.

Federal Grant or Other Identifying
2 Number Assigned by the awarding Enter the grant/award number Contained in the award document.

Federal agency

Enter the recipient organization’s Data Universal Numbering System3a DUNS Number (DUNS) number or Central Contract Registry extended DUNS

number.
3b EIN Enter the recipient organization’s Employer Identification Number

(EIN) provided by the Internal Revenue Service.
Enter the ending date of the reporting period. For quarterly, semi
annual, and annual reports the following calendar quarter reporting

4 Re ortin Period End Date period end dates shall be used: 3/31; 6/30; 9/30 and or 12/31. ForP g final PPRs, the reporting period end date shall be the end date of the

_____ project/grant period. The frequency of required reporting is usually_____ ___ established in the award document_____ Program lndicato~

Explanation: Recommend use of project task charts from approved grant
B-01 (4) ~and application and/or project work plan with this section. Describe any
~this draft/final products in this section. Use additional pages if needed.
Pviod_____________

Describe any deviations or departures from the original project pi~j
Ex Ianatlon• including actual/anticipated slippage in task completion dates, andB-02(4) ________ special problems encountered or expected. Use this report section

to advise Project Officer and Grants Management Specialist of
assistance needs. Use additional pages if needed.

Ex Ianatjon~ (To be noted by project officer, or reported to regions, States, otherB-034 ~~i1fi~?1gJfldjng5 arid events agencies, Program Director/Commjss~ner Assistant Secretary,

______________ Secretary, etc.) Use additional pages if needed.

Briefly describe project related inquiries and information
dissemination activities carried out over the reporting period. Itemizeanation: and include a copy of any newspaper, newsletter, magazine articles

or other published materials considered relevant to project activities,
or used for project information or public relations purposes. Use

0MB Approval Number~ 0970-0334
Expiration Date: 6130/2009

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



PERFORMANCE PROGRESS REPORT

According to the Paperwork Reduction Act of 1995, no persons are required to respond to a collection of information unless such
collection displays a valid 0MB control number. The valid 0MB control number for this information collection is 0970-0334.
The time required to complete this information collection is estimated to average three (3) hours per response, including the time
to review the instructions, search existing data resources, gather the data needed, and complete and review the information
collection. If you have suggestions about the accuracy of the estimate, we would be happy to hear from you. You can email
us at infocol1ection@acf.i~.gov

0MB Approval Number. 0970-O33~
Expiration Date: 6130/2009

Paperwork Burden Statement

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



DEPARTMENT OF HEALTh AND HUMAN SERVICES
ADMINJSTPATION FOR CHILDREN AND FAMILIES

Discretionary Program
FINANCIAL REPORTING REQUIREMENTS

Standard Form 269 — Fi~~~cj2j Status Report

Financial Status Reports (SF-269) are due 30 days after the end of the second and fourth quarters of the budget
period (every six months).

A final SF-269 is due 90 days after the end of the project period. The financial status report and the Payment
Management System (PMS) expendft~res report for the reporting period must reconcile. For the report to be
considered final, all un-liqujda~e~ obligations must have been paid and $-0- entered on line 10(k) of the final
Financial Status Report.

All financial status reports must be signed by the recipient organjzatjo~’5 financial officer ofby a designated
individual in the organiza~j~~ for which notification of such designation by an authorized official of the
organizatjo~ has been submitted to the Administration for Children and Families.

The Federal grant award number should be indicated on all reports.

Submit the original and two copies of the Financial Status Reports to:

Mailing Address: Delive~ Addres~: (commerciavprjyate Courier)
U.S. Department ofHealth and Human Services U.S. Department of Health and Human Services
Administration for Children and Families Administration for Children and Families
Office of Grants Mar~agement Office of Grants Management
Division ofDiscretionary Grants Division ofDiscretionary Grants
370 L’Enfant Promenade s.w., 6th Floor 901 D Street, S.W., 61h Floor
Washington D.C. 20447 Washington, D.C. 20024

Failure to submit reports when due will be indicative ofnon-compliance with the award Terms and Conditions

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



I PSSfleotfleioitL;ysfwi,n~g~5,

k, Trial LJMqIJI4G1CO obllges~~~

I.

in.

II. TM$Fad5fl~fr~ (nmflieajer,d.,i)

0. ToW floarel Ornces ftxatodfrihl, hm*q pertod

p. lMobl~uadbabweofrldaf~ftjfl,h eoarerunropj

FlNANCl~ STATUS REPORT

(Lone Fonn)
low lnsftvclloila Oil #10 bock

2. Fedfire$a~~ Nwtherped~
91

Proram lucerne. conflun.~ oa
4 tlabiflsd p rkiconi. abnqrn en has csnWarg gen
it Dk0UISMpO~ hicerne tahi~ the eddl&ei akmaU~,

S. Uo*ljw,,çj pxçran~~

t~ rota) g*ograr,, hioarrra meleed (Sum carlnnq, rends)

I. T~pe a(R&e (Aeon ‘arm~~

it bwf:rrd 0 ProvisIonal
Layense ~R*

This Pedod Qomfathe

DGttRMurnllzecf

Pracated by CMBQraAsm *402 Grid *410

• ~IB Apçsow Pane of

0348-0039

7. Basis
U Cash tiAscrusi

To

I. Fedeml in
to %M*1r Repoot totubroMod

3. Radpleag Q;sntyg)~ (Maim end onqaixe erkkesi, lndodnQzlp oaths)

4. Employer l*aeuj~ Nuntcr & ant Ateourg Nmteer 1d6fl041110 ifenher a FlIuIRepon

Qv., QNoa Finer~ty~p~,~ ($flk)wuGff,~,3; 9.
flirt (Mo* Dey Veer) To; (Month, Day, Year) limo (Mcnlh,Daj, Year)

tO. hisMdclkjiw

e. Toblordisy,

I,. Rehrnds,,ee.~9~1,•

• Pmg ibrorona used h~ sooal~we ~hffiqc$rna3en~.,

If. PJdcWe~ fl4,~,, WJth5uwnW$~beodc)

Redplenesss~ duet onifip, cDraItHir9 of:
a (?n•k JIbLIOWre
1. Gffi&fldemlswwcIs.~hani~b Ire used to math this award

w Prograoura~p UMdth5eeolff~,na~
a 2emaa~

41.

L Total rec%Aeat ahere oir~et Odisys (Sen ofThre,~ wsadW

I.

lid Re

:,~ ;Eç.; •. . •

• ir •‘-ifs ~‘• ~. ~

—J - t •f.~,.• :‘j4,
i~

•11 .4.4)! S;..
C Prsdn,~,~1g C Final

4. T~iejApr~

IZ Remw*rM~ S4ye~$innfl~~~ deemed usoaJa yw~ cenpflwoop wfth

(3, Ce4~niLa~ benny to the hat of niy kiowledg~ ndbe)(elrnat flits capon Is coáct sad complete and filet ill oullays and

Wi lildetad slit lions are for he or set forth lii the award doarme -

Typed # PrInted Name sad T’Ue . Telephone (Ares code, minter and exisnatsel

SionMare hiAu9rwbedcaff~ Ottklal

C Fixed
a. Fef~~

Presioug Editor Usable
NSN 7540.OI..012.4295 2$9-1O4

200’4a8 P.O. (aD (Face)

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



1. 2 and 3. SeW.eg~laiato.y.

4 Enter flu, ~tcycr klenil(lreilon ~mber {~If4)
easigned by Iii. U.S. b~emat Re~auue $g~l~~

~ ~~ace ro~ty~ç~ for an account numbe, or o$~r
ldandMn~ number esslgnerj by the rec~,Ia~

8. Checic yes onlyjf this is the last repo1~ for (tue
P’~d ehown In Item 8.

~ 6~lmntory.

8. tJi~I~a~ yôi~ ha\’e r.ceWed other tnmusthns from
the ~ardin~ agency, enter the b5gln~ft~ end
ending dates cf The current finding padod. ~ Oils is
a muNl.yem- txogrml, the Ped~( agency mbht
reqtflre cumutat?~,e, repatIng throUgh cou,sec*j~e
futicflr)g pedod,. In Oust case, enter the begbning
and endIng dates 01 (tue grraitpn end in thereat
of these miruotiore, -sutstrn~ The (eim ~gran(
pedsd for ‘krtt~lag peIiQcj”

IO~
effect ci this repor*~ periods esneactiona on
CUm~j~v5 Inanolal atatu,. The amounla entered In
co&in,~ I wIt normai~, be the same as Those In
a*amn 11 of the preu4ous mpont in the ae~pe
he~rIing pmfc~. ~ Oils Is the first or only report ci
the fundIng pasted. ~ coklmrs tend I blank. f
You need to a~usf amounts entered on prev$,u5
mpcta~ footnola the Ccdrsn~ I entry on this mpei
and attach en~

Ion. Enf~, fo~J ~to~g Irog~ oudeys. Include
dIthursonu,~s of cash rea~e~j as pmgr~ kicq~e
if th Inc~u, wit also be sb~ on IIne~ lOc or
tog. Do not 1nciud~ program income (hat *11 be
ilhow~o~ lines 11W or 10*.

For reports prepared on a cash baels, outlays are
(lie am, of actutat cash disbursemenla for direct
costs ~‘sa~, the
expanse. charged, (he untue Of Inkind conb1buf~
ep~lied, arue (be amount of cash advances ai~
payments mad, to ~ c~uIe~t, For repa~
preparqrj on an accn~f basis, Wiley, are the sum
*1 actual cast, di*bu merit, For direct charges for
goods and aervIca5~ the anotrnt of indirect erpense
Inqr~ro~, the vnkre of lnldnd cpntr~uflons eppfled,
and the r*t Increase or decrease in the aluount,
owed by the redplerd for goods and other poperty
secd~4 for services performad by emplcyeea,
~ 8ub~rant,~ aiud other payees, aid
other amounts becoming owed under p’ogra~p~ for
which no current ;e~vtces or pede,manc~ ~
reqr4red, Such as annuities, insura~ claims, and
other benefit payment,

lOb. Enter ary recepf.s related to outlays reported on the
turn that we being heated as aonJu~ ~
‘ailleriluen Income, end were aol a~encfj netted eta of
the emcuntshawnesoutlays online tOa.

tOe. Enter (lie amount of~Income that was u58d in
a000rdanca with (he dedtgd(loq aitematiro,

Note: ProWam Income used Wi acconJa,,~ with other
at erru ma Is entered on lines q,, r, mud a. Rit~~t,
rep~~ on a cast, basis should enter the amoeni of
cash inom,ø receWed; on en acalJai bnd~, enter (lie
program Income ear,ej Progrm, frucrjgu, ippy or may
noth~ ham, WiCILZICd In en e~IIcaben budget nndIcr
a budget on the awerd document. It actual kiccrne is
from a different ecurce or is ‘I9culdcenfly different In
smut,,g, attach en te(p(anahjon or use the rema~

104 a, t.g, h. I andj.~

10k, Enter the total amoij~( of unflqulda(~ obligations,
iflcludJ~g uliilquldalad obtigaflone (a s*thgrenfecs and
Carl

Uniquldeted obtgattena on a cash basis era obIIga(l~
Incurred, but notyet pale, On an accnjai basis, they are
obtgagIo~,5 Incurred, but foe-which, an ouhey has not yet
been rec~

Do net tricinde any amount, on tune That hay been
Inckide,J on lines iDa and 1(4.

On Vuefinajgapoet tune ItIc mush bezew

101.

lOnu. Onthe fnalrspoe~, he 10mm alogb~~

iOn, o,p,q, r,sa~cf~ Self-expJm,~~4.~

IlL Sapl~~

tib. Enter the IndIra cost rate In effect during the reporting
ped~,d.

110. Enter the anote,~ of the base aga~~~f which the rate
was

lid. Enter the total amount of Indlrec~ costs ch~gerJ during
the report pcdod~

lie, Entertf~~ Federal share of the ~i~lj~ lid.

Note: It more thai one rate was In effect during the parted
Vi fern 8, ettaof~ a sct,ed,4e showing the bases

against Wti(~h the different rates were arnlled, (lie
resp~ge~ rates, the calendar period, they were In
elfect, amounts ci Jidirect experms charged to the
project, end the Federal share of Indfre~ expense
charged to (tie project to daf~,

FINANcIAL STATUSR~POJRT
(Loflç~Fgm,)Pb~~re dlonotlnfo,,iaton Is estImated to~c~rrespc~~ bdudkug(Ime f~

saar&j,g existing ciste sources, gaiheekug aid maintafr&’q the dale noated, end coerplee,g and re’~4m5ig I,e wkdJen ctVifone*~ ~
r~ha~ esini eot.j,~r oherto ectcfttftoufe~ aigge~(a~ (a’ redud,V UIsbJrda,,, Si the Once ci
Menage3nentan,jBudQst Papawxjc R5dudlo~ Pn*d (0848.Oosge ~ DC2osr~,

NOT RETURN YOUR COMPLETED FORM To THE or~ic~ o~’ MANAG~~•T AND

Please ~tpe orpiint legb~,. The fofhtcfng genersi IIustruotio,u~ a~lain hntv to use the form Use If. You may nee~t addIO~n~I
IrTm,IJou to complete certujr~ Items conedlly, or to decfd~ whether a speoifls It~rn Is appflom~ to this award. Usually,
buchu ~nfoflflgUqn uMil be found in the Federal ager,cy~s grant regufatjo~g or in (tie terms and voncjIgon~ of The. swar~ (e,g.,
how to caictante the Federal share, the pemuissi~,je uses of program Income, the value of In4<l,yj confributtons, elc)~ You
may also oontact the Federal agorioydiroogy.

Hem - entry . Item Entry

~F-~g Oaet I Roy 7.97~

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



FINANGIfLI STATUS REPORT
(Long Porn,)

on the be7. WktO 00$ Efeme 2 Fede~Om$ct~a~ ~s~ip~o~ PQ at

8vFndemfAg~y No.

- 0348-0039
~WeM ‘pnba&a (Home ctef cnsrçfêa balms., kricatin~ ZIP

S Re Aentubae,ofl~j~.,~~ 6. Rn$Rapo~j 7. One),

DYne Quo UCWI UAeIViJMS. FbWIi~j~g Parsed (See k*uyfiyoe) 9. Paslae Covered bflle RepM
Flora: (ManOr, Cmj. Yea) Tm (Month, Day. Visa) Fear (Monet, Dey, Year~ a: (Monlir, Day, Yea’)

to, tnaw~0U5W I 0

PrevIous As ~a, Te6Inthys

K ReOuidoLmbatee.a

0, PJOQmmhniWug~$j~gØ0~ MetUw*dtmfla,~Janaa

& Ndonrnuinwnnne_,oq . - . . p

Reefpfentsflr. aTne(oa4eya, neMleflrr~ tat
a fldrri (lt*kW ctnflolloon
I. OeWFeda~Jeuua&~M be posed to pratt, UV.aamd

~, P mshenuadth~ooturonjjfm thW,bi~prcp,,j
cli aereato,

K AScelfl4bdndW$nc4d)o*ncflbfle~fe.9~

Td4rn~k~g0$ ~~ geasdlQ

1. Fbdin4iflO(flntSj)ep(VJ*dfessgr,ed -.

Ii TSBI LMsqUEIraPI cbII~enona ~~ ,

Rod$esfe alma. ~aarop~,d CbV~eljons -‘.~ ~. ~r..

at Ftohmec(flqa~g~aj~~ I

o

a.~

p. ~ a . ~i’ ~

Prognm l0050w,eelwhUpj et -

4 Dbbuaattp LIOCIIWSJ)emeenh$sCefldfa(gtheh. • -t ~h’. C I . air.
r. DfehUmedpQmJi~a,.,fi,~ef~~o, ‘:i~ r t’t~-’ .

a (Ai~obsnedprogaa.nIp,,~

t temIflO0IWefeCon~n_dtEmwfr,~sQ nods) h :~t!4. ~t:. , ‘!

a
11. wiipncj 0 Ptovtetenei 0 PredesermIp~ U Ffn~4 0 FIxed

Eiqpenn b. Rate a: One K NalMp~g a PwJgprj~jo,,

IL Renw*a:A1tethMrescpbPJ~,,,~ Ii, C001ØWWfr wiTh

ocvDmhqk≠alarh,t

13. CatOicatlot 1 cewlyte the best or .t~ knowScdpe end betel Shot (lift repodlo tahiti mid cmopbeo arid that nil outlays arid

teN a etedelsi Hahn I
Typoday PrInfed Name end Title . Tebjtiano Ørea onee, IWmbertnd ulendat)

Slflrp eQesfrrloed Cedhbhip Op’flclsl Data Report Slabnslood

Previous 64’llop, Viable 269194 Slaririen) Form 260 (Roy, 7-97)
NSN 7MO-oLef9.~u . ‘related by 6949 Clreufeçs A402 IP1dA.IIO

200-470 P.0.139 (Face)

4*

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



i~ 2 and 3.

4. Ei~tør the EITPIWØr fr~len oaUcn S~fornl,er CEIN)
assigned b~r the U.S. Inte,p~~ Re~u~ S~vIco.

5. Sp~c~ reren~d icr an a000un( number or other
lnhl~ng flu rJgn~ by the reck)IenL

6. Qhvctc y~ only If this is the last repo~t for the
period shoen hi ItemS.

7.

Unless YOU hays receivocj cther ‘netn’ctjon~ from
the asysrctng sgsn~,, enter the begfrinIt~ aid
encsng datos of the current mindIng p&od~ S this Is
a muRl.yes, f~ograr~ the Federal agei~ mjght
reqtir~ cumi~~~ mroug~ ca1secii~
funding jedod~. In that case, enter tl~ bagtcw,~
and ending dates of the grail petted, aid l~ the rest
of these kisiruoSon,, ed~etIt~ (he latin “grant
petto~j’ for”fundlqgp~od~

0. BeW’~tplanatoty.

1t~
elect ci this reporrni~ period~s lransacfi~ on
cum~ja~jys financial elaba. The arnouns er*ered in
Column I will narma3j be the same as those In
coforon Ill of the pres~oos report In The asne
(VfldIngpe*~i. V thIs Is the Sist a only report of
the foncThig petlod. bay5 columns I and I j~n~ç V
you need to ac~us~ smounta erderatl at, previous
tspcq’ts, fookiote V~, calu~rm lenny on this report
and elfech en

IDa Ent& total ~rosa pmgrwe ~ Indude
dur~tpe~b of cash reaJzed as progr~ kicatne
If that Iflc~Ttiê wit also be shorn, on lines ICc or
lOg. Do not Include ptc~ram kicc*ne that wt1 be
eho~~ioflflnesl~a1gL

Far reports prepared en a cash basis. ounays are
the sum of Soluat cash dis usenergo for dIr~
COStS for goods Sad services, the aunt of Indirect
e~q~ense charged, the value of ln4dnd con1ributJ~
npp1e~, and the emow~ of cash acWan~ end
pepne~go made to ~trec4ptenis For reports
prepared on an secruel bø*ls, ouft~y~ are the aim
of ectuat castt dIs~,~ for dfrect ch5ig~~ for
goods en~ services, the amount of Indirect acpense
lncorn~g, lb. vah~e of in4drid Contrlbu(Ta~s ~
and (he net Increase or decre~ In the ano~r~
owed by the rsdplact Icr goods and cifter p~Opety
received, for sarvkces peflbnned by amptc~,’ees,
coniractora aubgnnteee aid other psyses, aid
olb~r amount~ b4c~,rnha owed tsj~ar ptogr5ns for
which r~ç~ current sentices or pelformances are
req~itecj, such as annuities, Insura~ claims, aid
othier hone pay ~

lOb. Enfe- ery rece4go related to outlays reported on (he.
tomi th~t~~ being lre~~rj as a reducgg~ ci
rather than ino~tne~ aid were n~ ~eady netted out of

IDa
lOc. Enter the angr~sg of l~Ooam l~come that ~ “ns~~~ In

aooordaqç~rg, the deduc6oi, alternative.

Note; Pte~m Income used Wi acco1rja~ with other
altemelvesle entered on lines q, r, and a Reo~I
repctflig on a ensit ba~ should enter the eniolait of
cash kicct,i~ receJj~j; on an accruat basis, enter the
progr~ income earned. Pcogt~,i lnccaiw may or- may
not lusts been included In ~ apohIca~~ budget and.’a
a budget on the award document. If actual income Is
frQ~n a dtVererft souroc or Is CI0t)hT~antIy different In
ajnctj~g, attach at C~1ajwiJ~~ or us~ (ha rema~

104 e,f,9,h,Jaidj Self.explanafo,y

40k. Enter the tots) ei1ou,~ of enIkprIiJa~ chl~aIlons,
b1dUdhiQ.unh1quk~alad Obligatene to aubgranteea ébd
cGnasc,~.

Unbqtidafed obtgauoas one cash basis are oU1gailon~
lactATed, bulnotyetpsj~ Oti an acc.w basis, they we
OlgatIonslflcu~~j, but fat- which en outlay has not yet
been recorded.

Do not klClude any anounis en line 10k that have been
Included on (kiss lOa.and 10).

°nthef*ialtsport Sn. mc fli4jstbez.~n~

10!.

l0n~. On (hø fInal ,spoø,, line tOrn must aleobe zero.

Ion, o,p,q,r.swd~ s~~

Its.

tib. Enter the Indirect oust rate in effect daring the reporitqg
period.

I ic~ Enter the atnetmi of the base against which the rate
was applied.

lid. Enter the total amoula of ksllrec~ costs chalged dwlng
lbS teport period

lie. Enter the Federal share of the amount Ifl lId.

Note: It mare than one rate was In effect during the patiod
fri ItemS, attach a Schedule attesting (he bases.

CgaIqst which the dlffese~( rates were afpll.~f, (he
respecj4ve ‘ales, the Cateodar periods they ware In
effect, amotjJ*g of Wittrecg eq*n,~ charged to the
pro)ec~, and the Federal share of indk~ e)q~eflse
charged to the pro~c~ to date.

FINANCtAL STATUB REPORT

Ptth5orepo~’(hg bualen fa Oils cn~o~e,~0~ bedbna(ed to emrge 3O~kiajjc. psrrespon~ Including tints (a awIng Inshuotlom

P4esagerneit and Oudgot, Paprraork Reductio0 PmJsot qiS4~-ome ~ DC2Osca

PLE~$E P0 NOT RETURN YOUR GOMPLE’r~ FGR1~j TO THE OFFICE OF MANAGEM~T AND

Plsasa type or pilaf legicly. The foIb~t4ng general Ins(ructloas explain h~w to use (he form Itsalf You may need addifional
kifgmtatin~ tocomptete ceilkin Items correctly, or to decide ~Miet1ter a q,eciflo Item Is a~ to thts award, Usually,
euctt lnfomiaUon will be fhand in the Federal ageney~ grant e~ulag0nS or it the terms and concgtl<~g~ of (he award (e.g.,
how to celctfl~fe the Federal share, the pemuIes~e trees of pragiom !nconie~ the ~7ue of In4cfntj Cont1bu5on~ etc.), You
may also contact the Federal agency directly.

item. Entry Itpm , Entjy

8.

sr.-~g Bad~ (Rev r-g7)

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



INSTRUCTIONS FOR REQUESTrl~G PAYMENT FOR FEDERAL FUNDS

This award will be paid through the Department ofHealth and Humans Services’ Divjsi~n of
Payment Management (DPM), operating under the Program Support Center (PSC). The DPM
provides automated grant payment and cash management services for the entire Federal
Government. DPM operated the centralized payment system, Payment Management System
(PMS), and acts as a liaison between the Administration for Children and Families to resolve
any discrepancies~ For additional information, please visit their Website at
~YLWW.DPM.PSC.GOV

If this is your first award paid through the DPM, it is recommended that you review their
Website. Their New Recipient section provides basic information and addressed both funding
and reporting requirements necessary for receiving your awarded funds. It is mandatory that all
new recipients complete and send to DPM a Direct Deposit Sign-Up Form (SF-i 199A). The
form can be printed from DPM’s Website or obtained from. your local financial institution.

The DPM operated in a completely electronic environment; therefore, paper payment requests
and Treasury checks are not longer used. All requests and payments are made electronically.
DPM utilizes two funding request systems, Cashline and Smartlink II. Grantees are provided
instructions by DPM on the procedures and Federal requirements necessary to receive your
funding.

Cashline allows the grantees to dial directly into “voice response’ computer via a touch tone
telephone. Smartlink IT allows the grantees to request their funding via a computer and modem
and may be accessed through the Internet. Smartlink II’s most notable advantage over Cashline
is the grantee’s ability to ‘inquiry’ into account balances.

Regardless of the method used to initiate a payment request, funds are electronically deposited
into the designated bank account the next business day. Funds can be requested as frequently as
disbursements are made under both systems. Since finds are available the next business day,
regulation prohibits payments in excess of your immediate disbursement needs.

Payment method for state agencies shall be Consistent with Treasury/State CMIA agreements or
default procedures codified under 31 CFR Part 205.

If after visiting the DPM Website you have additional questions or require more information,
please contact DPM at 10877-614-5533 from 7:00 AM to 6:30 PM est.

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



DEPAJ{TMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES

OPPORTUNITY TO COMMENT -

__ SIMPLIFICATION OF FEDERAL GRANT PROGRAMS

• Opportunity to Comment — Simplifjcation ofFederal Grants Programs

On November 20, 1 999k the President signed into law the Federal Financial Assjstaiice
Management Improvement Act (Public Law .106-107) whose purposes are to improve the
delivery of services to the public and the.effectjveness and performance ofFederal grant
programs. Federal agencies are working with 0MB to: develop uniform administrative rules
and Coflimon application and reporting systems; replace paper with electronic Processing in
administration ofgrant programs; and identif~y statutory impediments to grants programs
simplification

Consultation with the recipient community is an important part of the grant program
simplification effort. We welcome ideas to make it easier for State, local and tribal
governments and nonprofit organizatjo~5 to apply for and report on federal grants. Please send
your comments via email to: £~JQ6l07~os dhhs gov and be sure to include the name of the
organizatjo~ you represent.

We want to know which processed in the grants life cycle need streamJi~ing and/or
improvement and your suggestions for achieving improvements We need to know what is
most important to you, in terms ofgrants simplificatjo~ Finally, we want you to identjf~’ the
specific grant.program(s) that you find to be most burdensome, with some detail about why they
are burdensome, individually or collectively, because we need to focus our efforts on those
programs that are in the greatest need of review and streamlining.

Your input is valued, and is part of the larger process ofachieving the foals of P.L. 106-107,
namely simplification ofFederal grant programs for the benefit of our recipients. Please note
there will not be any individual response to the input, however, we intend to Periodically
provide summary information relating to implementation of the law, under the “What’s New”
ling in GrantsNet~Thank you for your participation

~(fl

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



Contact the affected Federal awarding agency or pass-
through entity if you have any questions,

Failure to meet the single audit requirements could
result in your entity having to repay grant monies
and/or losing access to future Federal funding.

Additional Information and Where to Get Help

• 0MB Source Documents

Single audit requiremen~ are set forth in 0MB
Circular A-133 and the 0MB Circular A-133
Compliance Supplement which are on OMWs website
(www.flrn b.govIgr’:~7L~)

+ Federal Agency Contact/ar Genera! Assistance

A Federal agency has been designated to answer your
questions and provide help when needed with your
single audit. This designation is generally based upon
which Federal agency provides you with the most
direct Federal funding. (Circular A-133 (paragraph
.400) provides specific guidance for determining
which Federal agency is designated to assist you.)

The single audit contacts are listed in Appendix III of
the 0MB Circular A-133 Compliance Supplement.

• Highlights of the Single Audit Process

The Grants Management Committee of the Chief
Financial Officers Council produced a pamphlet)
Highlights 0/the Single Audit Process, to acquaint
officials of Federal awarding agencies and non-Federal
entities with the single a.idit process. It is available on
the FAC website
(harvester.census.gov/fac),

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



Background

Each year, the Federal Government provides over
$400 billion~one..sixth of the Federal budget—in grants
to non-Federal entities (States, local and tribal
governments, colleges and universities, arid other
non-profit Organizations). Audits are a primary tool
used by the Federal government to ensure that these
funds are expended properly.

Basic Requirements

All non-Federal entities that expend $500,000 or more
of Federal awards in a year are required to obtain an
annual audit in accordance with the Single Audit Act
Amendments of 1996, Office of Management and
Budget (OMB)Circula~~ A-133, “Audits of States,
Local Governments and Non-Profit Organizations,”
the 0MB Circular A-133 Compliance Supplement and
Government Auditing Standards.

Entities expending less than $500,000 in a year are
exempt from Federal audit requirements, but must
make records available for review or audit by Federal
agencies or pass-through entities (non-Federal entities
from whom they receive Federaj funds), if requested,

What is a Single Audit?

Most non-Federal entities annually prepare financial
statements and have them audited. A single audit
combines the annual financial statement audit with
additional audit coverage of Federal funds. The single
audit is intended to meet the basic audit needs of both
the non-Federal entity and Federal awarding agencies.
Any additional auditing by the Federal government
shall build upon work performed by other auditors.

Your Primary Responsibilities

In addition to your responsibility to administer Federal
awards in compliance with Federal requirements, you
have a key role to play in the single audit process:

+ fdent~ing Federal awa,’ds received and expended.

You are required to account for Federal funds received
and expended by individual award. This information

is usually provided in grant award documents, Check
with the awarding agency if you have any questions.

+ Preparingf,nancja/ statements and a Schedule of
Expenditures ofFederal Awards (SE’FA).

Most non-Federal entities prepare annual financial
statements for their own purposes and are familIar with
the process. Your auditor can usually answer any
questions on financial statement preparation.

0MB Circular A-133 sets forth the minimum content
requirements for the SEFA. Questions on the
preparation of the SEFA can be addressed to your
auditor, Federal awarding agency, or pass-through
entity.

+ Obtaining the audit and ensuring it is completed.

0MB Circular A-133 requires that Federal
administrative rules be followed in procuring audit
services, which can be found on OMB’s website,
Factors to consider in evaluating proposals for audit
services include responsiveness to the request for
proposal, availability of staff with professional
qualifications and relevant experience, results of
quality reviews and price.

The Mid-America Intergovernmental Audit Forum
(www.nuclitforum.org) has published a pamphlet,
Choosing an.Exte’rnal Auditor, to assist non-Federal
entities in the procurement of audit services,

The Government Accountability Office’s website
www.(rao.(To%. also contains a pamphlet, How to

Avoid a Substandard Audit: Suggestionsfor Procuring
an Audft. Government Auditing Standards, the
standards auditors must follow in conducting the audit,
are also available at this Site.

+ Submitting the audit reporting package and Data
Collection Form (form SF-SAC) to the Federal
Audit Clearinghouse (FAC) andpass-through
entities

The reporting package includes your financial
statements and SEFA, the auditor’s reports, including a
schedule of findings and questioned costs, and, if
applicable, your corrective action plan and a summary

schedule of prior audit findings.

You and your auditor jointly prepare form SF-SAC.
You are encouraged to prepare the SF-SAC using the
online option at the FAC website
(ii~ryester.census.~ov,,fa~) Blank forms can be
downloaded from the FAC’s website and hard copies
are also available on request.

It is your responsibility to submit the SF-SAC together
with the appropriate number (per the SF-SAC
instructions) of reporting packages to the FAC within
30 days of the receipt of the auditor’s reports, but no
later than 9 months after the end of your fiscal year.
The FAC distributes the reporting package to Federal
agencies and maintains an archival copy. Information
frpm the form SF-SAC is captured by the FAC in an
electronic database, which is publicly accessible via its
website.

For more information concerning submissions to the
FAC, contact the FAC at govs.fac@census.gov or toll-
free at 1-888-222-9907,

Ifyou are a subrecipient receiving Federal funds from
a pass-through entity7 you are also required to submit
either a copy of the reporting package, or a notification
that the audit was completed, to each pass-through
entity that provides you with Fed~ral funding. Contact
your pass-through entity (ies) for questions concerning
submissions to them.

+ Taking corrective action on auditfindings.

You are required to prepare a corrective action plan
that addresses each audit finding. The affected Federal
awarding agency(ies) or pass-through entlty(ies)
should contact you on the acceptability ofyour plan or
alternative actions it expects you to take. You are
responsible for taking those actions.

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



ADMINISTRAflON FOR CHILDREN AND FAMILES

AWARD TERM AND CONDITION

TillS AWARD IS SUBJECT TO REQUIREMENTS OF SECTION 106 (G) OF
THE TRAFFICKJNG VICTIMS PROTECrION ACT OF 2000, AS AMENDED

(22 U.S.C. 7104)

TRAFFICIUNG IN PERSONS

a. Provisions applicable to a recipient that is a private entity.

1. You as the recipient, yOur employees, subrecipients under this award, and
subrecipients’ employees may not.—

1. Engage in severe forms of trafficking in persons duringthe
period of time that the award is in effect;

ii. Procure a commercial sex act during the period of time that the
award is in effect; or

iii. Use forced labor in the performance of the award or subawards
under the award.

2. We as the Federal awarding agency may unilaterally terminate this award,
Without penalty, if you or a subrecipient that is a private entity —

i. is determined to have violated a prohibition in paragraph al of
this award term; or

ii. I-las an employee who iS determined by the agency official
authorized to terminate the award to have violated a
prohibition in paragrapj~ a. I of this award term through
conduct that is either—

A. Associated with performance under this award; or

B. Imputed to you or the subrecipient using the standards and
due process for imputing the conduct of an individual to an
organization that are provided in 2 CFR part 180, “0MB
Guidelines to Agencies on Governmentwjde Debarment
and Suspension (NOnprocurement)” as implemented by
our agency at 2 CFR part 376.

30

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



b. Provision applicable to a recipient other than a private entity. We as the
Federal ‘awarding agency may unilaterally terminate this award, without penalty,
if a subrecipient that is a private entity—

1. Is determined to have violated an applicable prohibitj~~ in paragraph a. I
of this award term; or

2. Has an employee who is determined by the agency official authorized to
terminate the award to have violated an applicable prohibition in
paragraph a.l of this award term.through conduct that is either—

Associated with performance under this award; or

ii. Imputed to the subrecipient using the standards and due
process for imputing the conduct of an individual to an

• organization that are provided in 2 CFR part 180, “0MB
Guidelines to Agencies on Govemmen~ide Debarment and
Suspension (NOnprocurement),” as implemented by our
agency at 2 CFR part 376

c Provisions applicable to any recipient.

1. You must inform US immediately of any information you receive from any
source alleging a violation of a prohibition in paragraph a. I of this award
ternL -.

2. Our right to terminate unilaterally that is described in paragraph a.2 or b of
this Section:

Implements section 1 O6(g) of the Trafficking Victims
Protection Act.of 2000 (TVPA), as amended (22 U.S.C.
71 O4(g)), and

ii. Is in addition to all other remedies for noncompliance that are
available to us under. this award.

3. You must include the requirements ofparagraph a. I of this award term in
any subaward you make- to a private entity.

d. Definitions For purposes of-this award term:

1. “Employee” means either:

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



i. An individual employed by you or a subrecipient who is
• engaged in the performance of the project or program under

this award; or

ii. Another person engaged in the performance of the project or
• program under this award and not Compensated by you

• including, but not limited to, a Volunteer or individual whose
services are contributed by a third.party as an in-kind
contribution toward cost sharing or matching requirements

2. “Forced labor” means labor obtained by any of the following methods: the
recruitment, harboring, transportation, provision, or obtaining of a person
for labor or services, through the use of force, fraud, or coercion for the
purpose of subjection to involuntary servitude, peonage, debt bondage, or
slavery.

3. “Private entity”:

i. Means any entity other than a State, local government Indian
tribe, or foreign public entity, as those terms are defined in 2
CFR 175.25.

ii. Includes:

A. A nonprofit organization, including any nonprofit
institution ofhigher education, hospital, or tribal
organization other than one included in the definition of
Indian tribe at 2 CFR 175.25(b).

B. A for-profit organization.

4. “Severe forms of trafficking in persons,” “commercial sex act,” and
“coercion” have the meanings given at section 103 of the TVPA, as
amended (22 U.s.c. 7102)

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Custodian

JOB CODE: 05184 FLSA STATUS: Non-Exempt
PAY GRADE: 05 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

JOB SUMMARY:

Performs custodial duties to keep County facilities clean and orderly. Cleans and maintains the appearance of offices,
floors, restrooms and other facilities.

DISTINGUISHING CHARACTERISTICS:

This is the first in a series of three custodial-related job classifications within the General/Road Maintenance job family.
This classification is the beginning level custodial function responsible for basic cleaning of bathrooms and office areas
and is distinguished from the Custodian Lead which functions as a working lead over other custodial positions. This
classification may require work in secure facilities. This classification may require a flexible work schedule in order to
meet the needs of the department.

DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES:

• Performs general cleaning, sweeps, mops, dusts, scrubs, vacuums, empties waste baskets and recycling
containers. Cleans walls, windows, light fixtures and air supply/return registers.

• Cleans and disinfects restrooms, including fixtures, mirrors, equipment, windows, floors and walls. Replenishes
restroom supplies, unstops sinks and toilets.

• Operates buffer, stripper, waxer, vacuum, and carpet cleaning machines.

• Secures and locks buildings. Turns out lights in areas completed.

• May replace light bulbs and other similar replaceable items.

• May move office furniture and other items, as required.

• May assist groundskeeper in yard work.

• Performs other job-related duties as assigned.

MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS:

Education and Experience:
One (1) year of custodial or manual labor experience;

OR,

Any combination of education and experience that has been achieved and is equivalent to the stated education and
experience and required knowledge, skills, and abilities sufficient to successfully perform the duties and responsibilities
of this job.

Licenses, Registrations, Certifications, or Special Requirements:
None required.

Knowledge, Skills, and Abilities:
Knowledge of:
• Policies, practices, procedures and methods of janitorial/custodial functions.
• Applicable safety practices and regulations.
• Cleaning equipment, products, techniques, and standards.

Skill in:
• Cleaning windows, dusting furniture, and unstopping toilets.
• Operating cleaning equipment, such as buffers, strippers, waxers, vacuums, and carpet cleaning machines.
• Both verbal and written communication.

I’
Page 1 of 2

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Custodian

JOB CODE: 05184 FLSA STATUS: Non-Exempt
PAY GRADE: 05 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS: (Cont.)

Ability to:
• Understand and follow instructions and communicate effectively to perform the job functions, as required.
• Safely and correctly operate cleaning equipment.
• Work independently and efficiently.
• Manage time well and meet timelines.
• Communicate effectively.
• Establish and maintain effective working relationships with County employees and officials, and the general public.

WORK ENVIRONMENT AND PHYSICAL DEMANDS:

Physical requirements include the ability to lift up to 50 pounds/carry up to 25 pounds, visual acuity, speech and hearing,
hand and eye coordination and manual dexterity. Subject to standing, walking, sitting, repetitive motion, reaching,
climbing stairs, bending, stooping, kneeling, crouching, crawling, pushing, pulling, balancing, client/customer contact,
squatting to perform the essential functions. Subject to contact with hazardous waste, foul odors, animal and human
fecal matter, insects and rodents, and exposure to outside elements.

This job description is intended to be generic in nature. It is not necessarily an exhaustive list of all duties
and responsibilities. The essential duties, functions and responsibilities and overtime eligibility may vary
based on the specific tasks assigned to the position.

Page 2 of 2

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Custodian Lead

JOB CODE: 07803 FLSA STATUS: Non-Exempt
PAY GRADE: 07 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

JOB SUMMARY:

Functions as crew leader for a small crew performing custodial and simple repair and maintenance work in County
buildings. This is a working leader position with incumbent also responsible for the normal range of participation in
custodial duties.

DISTINGUISHING CHARACTERISTICS:

This is the second in a series of three custodial-related job classifications within the General/Road Maintenance job
family. This classification functions as a working lead over the activities of other custodial positions in addition to the
normal range of custodial duties. This classification is distinguished from the Custodial Services Supervisor, which is
responsible for the full range of supervisory duties over a custodial team or teams. This classification may require work
in secure facilities. This classification may require a flexible work schedule in order to meet the needs of the
department.

DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES:

• Coordinates and assigns the activities of crewmembers, inspects work for quality and explains needed
improvements in performance.

• Provides on-the-job training for assigned staff related to cleaning procedures and use of cleaning supplies.

• Identifies building deficiencies and generates work requests.

• Distributes equipment, supplies and materials to crew.

• Performs general cleaning, sweeps, mops, dusts, scrubs, vacuums, empties waste baskets and recycling
containers. Cleans walls, windows, light fixtures and air supply/return registers.

• Cleans and disinfects restrooms and restocks restroom supplies.

• Operates buffer, stripper, waxer, vacuum and carpet cleaning machines.

• Performs minor repairs, such as replacing light bulbs and other similar replaceable items. Unstops and repairs
toilets.

• Moves office furniture and other items, as required.

• Secures and locks buildings, and sets alarms. Ensures lights are turned out in completed spaces.

• Performs other job-related duties as assigned.

MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS:

Education and Experience:
Two (2) years of work experience and training in general custodial and/or building maintenance functions;

OR,

Any combination of education and experience that has been achieved and is equivalent to the stated education and
experience and required knowledge, skills, and abilities sufficient to successfully perform the duties and responsibilities
of this job.

Licenses, Registrations, Certifications, or Special Requirements:
None required.

Preferred:
High School diploma or G.E.D.
One (1) year of lead or supervisory experience.

Page 1 of 2

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Custodian Lead

JOB CODE: 07803 FLSA STATUS: Non-Exempt
PAY GRADE: 07 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS: (Cont.)

Knowledge, Skills, and Abilities:
Knowledge of:
• Policies, practices, procedures and methods of janitorial/custodial functions.
• Applicable safety practices and regulations.
• Cleaning equipment, products, techniques, and standards.
• Principles and practices of leading assigned staff.

Skill in:
• Operating cleaning equipment, such as buffers, strippers, waxers, vacuums, and carpet cleaning machines.
• Coordinating the work activities of assigned staff.
• Resolving routine issues effectively at the crew level.
• Reading and spelling.
• Both verbal and written communication, including conveying and following instructions.

Ability to:
• Understand and follow instructions and communicate effectively as needed to perform the job functions.
• Supervise the work of subordinates and instruct them in proper work methods and procedures.
• Safely and correctly operate cleaning equipment used for cleaning and maintaining facilities.
• Work independently and efficiently.
• Manage time well and meet timelines.
• Communicate effectively.
• Establish and maintain effective working relationships with assigned staff, representatives of outside agencies, other

County employees and officials, and the general public.

WORK ENVIRONMENT AND PHYSICAL DEMANDS:

Physical requirements include the ability to lift up to 50 pounds/carry up to 25 pounds, visual acuity, speech and hearing,
hand and eye coordination and manual dexterity. Subject to standing, walking, sitting, repetitive motion, reaching,
climbing stairs, bending, stooping, kneeling, crouching, crawling, pushing, pulling, balancing, client/customer contact,
squatting to perform the essential functions. Subject to contact with hazardous waste, foul odors, animal and human
fecal matter, insects and rodents, and exposure to outside elements.

This job description is intended to be generic in nature. It is not necessarily an exhaustive list of all duties
and responsibilities. The essential duties, functions and responsibilities and overtime eligibility may vary
based on the specific tasks assigned to the position.

/9
Page 2 of 2

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Custodial Services Supervisor

JOB CODE: 10804 FLSA STATUS: Non-Exempt
PAY GRADE: 10 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

JOB SUMMARY:

Supervises and coordinates activities of staff engaged in cleaning and maintaining condition of assigned facilities.
Inspects assigned facilities for cleanliness, identifies maintenance requirements and develops appropriate training for
assigned crewleaders and custodians. This is a working supervisor position with incumbent also responsible for the
normal range of custodial duties.

DISTINGUISHING CHARACTERISTICS:

This is the third in a series of three custodial-related job classifications within the General/Road Maintenance job family.
This classification functions as the supervisor over several custodial services teams having subordinate custodial crew
leaders. This classification is distinguished from the Custodian Lead due to performing the full range of supervisory
duties over a custodial team or teams, including training, monitoring, evaluating performance, and counseling, as
required. This classification may require work in secure facilities. This classification may require a flexible work
schedule in order to meet the needs of the department.

DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES:

• Assigns duties to crewmembers, inspects work for conformance to standards and explains needed improvements in
performance. Performs daily inspection of assigned facilities prior to releasing crews.

• Performs and participates in full-range of custodial duties along with subordinate staff.

• Issues supplies, equipment and keys.

• Provides on-the-job training for assigned staff on cleaning procedures and use of cleaning supplies.

• Identifies building deficiencies and generates work requests.

• Reviews, approves and submits timesheets for assigned staff. Completes annual performance evaluations for
assigned staff. Recommends approval for leave requests.

• Prepares, reviews and monitors work schedules and assignments. Meets with management to discuss cleaning
procedures/issues. Coordinates with customers in assigned building on satisfaction with cleaning efforts.

• Requests supplies, materials, and equipment needed for facilities. Monitors expenditure of supplies and control of
inventory of supplies, materials and equipment.

• Performs general cleaning, sweeps, mops, dusts, scrubs, vacuums, empties waste baskets and recycling
containers. Cleans walls, windows, light fixtures and air supply/return registers.

• Operates buffer, stripper, waxer, vacuum and carpet cleaning machines.

• Secures and locks buildings, sets alarms. Ensures lights are turned out in completed spaces.

• Performs other job-related duties as assigned.

MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS:

Education and Experience:
High School diploma or G.E.D. AND four (4) years of responsible custodial/janitorial or building maintenance experience,
including one (1) year of lead or supervisory experience;

OR,

Any combination of education and experience that has been achieved and is equivalent to the stated education and
experience and required knowledge, skills, and abilities sufficient to successfully perform the duties and responsibilities
of this job.

2O
Page 1 of 2

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Custodial Services Supervisor

JOB CODE: 10804 FLSA STATUS: Non-Exempt
PAY GRADE: 10 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS: (Cont.)

Licenses, Registrations, Certifications, or Special Requirements:
Valid Texas Driver’s License.

Knowledge, Skills, and Abilities:
Knowledge of:
• Principles and practices of supervision.
• Policies, practices, procedures, materials, equipment and methods of janitorial/custodial functions.
• Cleaning equipment, products, techniques, and standards.
• Applicable safety practices and regulations.

Skill in:
• Supervising the work activities of assigned staff.
• Resolving routine issues effectively.
• Operating cleaning equipment, such as buffers, strippers, waxers, vacuums, and carpet cleaning machines.
• Both verbal and written communication, including conveying and following instructions.

Ability to:
• Supervise and train assigned staff in proper work methods and procedures.
• Read, write and do basic mathematical calculations.
• Safely and correctly operate cleaning equipment used for cleaning and maintaining facilities.
• Work independently and efficiently.
• Manage time well and meet timelines.
• Understand and follow instructions and communicate effectively, as required.
• Establish and maintain effective working relationships with assigned staff, representatives of outside agencies, other

County employees and officials, and the general public.

WORK ENVIRONMENT AND PHYSICAL DEMANDS:

Physical requirements include the ability to lift up to 50 pounds/carry up to 25 pounds, visual acuity, speech and hearing,
hand and eye coordination and manual dexterity. Subject to standing, walking, sitting, repetitive motion, reaching,
climbing stairs, bending, stooping, kneeling, crouching, crawling, pushing, pulling, balancing, client/customer contact,
squatting to perform the essential functions. Subject to contact with hazardous waste, foul odors, animal and human
fecal matter, insects and rodents, and exposure to outside elements.

This job description is intended to be generic in nature. It is not necessarily an exhaustive list of all duties
and responsibilities. The essential duties, functions and responsibilities and overtime eligibility may vary
based on the specific tasks assigned to the position.

Page 2 of 2

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Groundskeeper

JOB CODE: 07299 FLSA STATUS: Non-Exempt
PAY GRADE: 07 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

JOB SUMMARY:

Maintains the grounds surrounding County buildings, including mowing, planting, and equipment care. Cleans parking
lots, garages, driveways and sidewalks.

DISTINGUISHING CHARACTERISTICS:

This is the first in a series of two groundskeeper-related job classifications within the General/Road Maintenance job
family. This classification is distinguished from the Groundskeeper Lead, which has lead duties and responsibilities.

DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES:

• Performs general maintenance of grounds, including mowing lawns, trimming trees, pruning shrubs, edging walks
and gathering litter.

• Plants, trees and shrubs. Prunes shrubs and trees to shape and improve growth or remove damaged branches,
twigs or leaves.

• Waters lawns, shrubs, flowers, and trees. Applies fertilizer.

• Services and makes minor repairs on lawnmowers, tractors and other equipment. Cleans outdoor equipment.

• Removes litter and debris from parking areas. Removes weeds from cracks and around signage, as required.

• Operates trucks, tractors, chippers, edgers, saws, blowers, mowers and other equipment.

• Moves office furniture and other items as assigned.

• Assists in planning duties and objectives for each workday.

• Assists custodial maintenance staff, as required.

• May train workers in the use and maintenance of equipment.

• May maintain first-aid equipment.

• Performs other job-related duties as assigned.

MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS:

Education and Experience:
One (1) year of experience performing groundskeeping or manual labor;

OR,

Any combination of education and experience that has been achieved and is equivalent to the stated education and
experience and required knowledge, skills, and abilities sufficient to successfully perform the duties and responsibilities
of this job.

Licenses, Registrations, Certifications, or Special Requirements:
Valid Texas Driver’s License.

Preferred:
Experience using lawnmowers and trimming equipment.

KnowledQe, Skills, and Abilities:
Knowledge of:
• Policies, practices, procedures and methods of lawn and grounds care.
• Applicable safety practices and regulations.
• Equipment and tools of grounds maintenance.
• Fertilizers, insecticides and herbicides used in grounds maintenance.

Page 1 of 2

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Groundskeeper

JOB CODE: 07299 FLSA STATUS: Non-Exempt
PAY GRADE: 07 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS: (Cont.)

Skill in:
• Operating grounds maintenance equipment.
• Using fertilizers, insecticides and herbicides to properly maintain and enhance grounds.
• Both verbal and written communication.

Ability to:
• Understand and follow instructions and communicate effectively, as required.
• Safely and correctly operate grounds maintenance equipment.
• Work independently and efficiently.
• Manage time well and meet timelines.
• Communicate effectively.
• Establish and maintain effective working relationships with County employees and officials, representatives of

outside agencies, and the general public.

WORK ENVIRONMENT AND PHYSICAL DEMANDS:

Physical requirements include the ability to lift up to 75 pounds/carry up to 50 pounds, visual acuity, speech and hearing,
hand and eye coordination and manual dexterity. Subject to standing, walking, sitting, repetitive motion, reaching,
climbing stairs, bending, stooping, kneeling, crouching, crawling, pushing, pulling, balancing, client/customer contact,
squatting to perform the essential functions. Subject to contact with hazardous waste, foul odors, animal and human
fecal matter, insects and rodents, and exposure to outside elements. Subject to extreme temperatures, outside elements,
noise, vibration, and contact with dust, fumes and hazardous chemicals.

This job description is intended to be generic in nature. It is not necessarily an exhaustive list of all duties
and responsibilities. The essential duties, functions and responsibilities and overtime eligibility may vary
based on the specific tasks assigned to the position.

Page 2 of 2

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Groundskeeper Supervisor

JOB CODE: 10300 FLSA STATUS: Non-Exempt
PAY GRADE: 10 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

JOB SUMMARY:

Functions as working crew leader overseeing the work of groundskeepers performing grounds maintenance work.
Coordinates the work of groundskeepers. Assigns tools, equipment, and vehicles. Schedules and assigns crews to
work sites.

DISTINGUISHING CHARACTERISTICS:

This is the second in a series of two groundskeeper-related job classifications within the General/Road Maintenance job
family. This classification is distinguished from the Groundskeeper with the addition of lead duties and responsibilities. This
classification functions as a working lead over the activities of other groundkeeper positions in addition to the normal
range of groundskeeping duties.

DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES:

• Assigns duties to groundskeeper crewmembers, inspects work for quality and explains needed improvements in
performance.

• Provides on-the-job training for assigned workers in proper grounds care techniques.

• Identifies grounds deficiencies and generates work requests.

• Distributes equipment, vehicles and supplies to crews.

• Performs general groundskeeping duties to include mowing, watering, plant care, weeding, trimming, fertilization,
soil aeration and removal of trash, dead limbs and other debris.

• Maintains inventory of assigned equipment.

• Operates trucks, tractors, chippers, weed eaters, clippers, chain saws, mowers, sprayers and soil aeration
equipment.

• Maintains parking lots to include painting of slots/barriers, removal of grass/weeds and removal of trash.

• Services and makes minor repairs on lawnmowers, tractors and other equipment. Cleans outdoor equipment.

• Moves office furniture and other items, as required.

• Performs other job-related duties as assigned.

MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS:

Education and Experience:
Three (3) years of experience performing groundskeeping or related work;

OR,

Any combination of education and experience that has been achieved and is equivalent to the stated education and
experience and required knowledge, skills, and abilities sufficient to successfully perform the duties and responsibilities
of this job.

Licenses, Registrations, Certifications, or Special Requirements:
Valid Texas Driver’s License.

Preferred:
High School diploma or G.E.D.
One (1) year of lead or supervisory experience.

Page 1 of 2

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Groundskeeper Supervisor

JOB CODE: 10300 FLSA STATUS: Non-Exempt
PAY GRADE: 10 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS: (Cont.)

Knowledcie, Skills, and Abilities:
Knowledge of:
• Policies, practices, procedures and methods of lawn and grounds care.
• Applicable safety practices and regulations.
• Equipment and tools of grounds maintenance.
• Fertilizers, insecticides and herbicides used in grounds maintenance.
• Principles and practices of leading assigned staff.

Skill in:
• Operating grounds maintenance equipment.
• Using fertilizers, insecticides and herbicides to properly maintain and enhance grounds.
• Coordinating the work activities of assigned staff.
• Both verbal and written communication, including conveying and following instructions.

Ability to:
• Understand and follow instructions and communicate effectively, as required.
• Supervise the work of subordinates and instruct them in proper work methods and procedures.
• Safely and correctly apply grounds maintenance techniques.
• Work independently and efficiently.
• Manage time well and meet timelines.
• Communicate effectively.
• Establish and maintain effective working relationships with assigned staff, representatives of outside agencies, other

County employees and officials, and the general public.

WORK ENVIRONMENT AND PHYSICAL DEMANDS:

Physical requirements include the ability to lift up to 75 pounds/carry up to 50 pounds, visual acuity, speech and hearing,
hand and eye coordination and manual dexterity. Subject to standing, walking, sitting, repetitive motion, reaching,
climbing stairs, bending, stooping, kneeling, crouching, crawling, pushing, pulling, balancing, client/customer contact,
squatting to perform the essential functions. Subject to contact with hazardous waste, foul odors, animal and human
fecal matter, insects and rodents, and exposure to outside elements. Subject to extreme temperatures, outside elements,
noise, vibration, and contact with dust, fumes and hazardous chemicals.

This job description is intended to be generic in nature. It is not necessarily an exhaustive list of all duties
and responsibilities. The essential duties, functions and responsibilities and overtime eligibility may vary
based on the specific tasks assigned to the position.

Page 2 of 2

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Building Operations Worker

JOB CODE: 10049 FLSA STATUS: Non-Exempt
PAY GRADE: 10 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

JOB SUMMARY:

Functions as lead worker supervising and assisting in preparation and cleanup of buildings and grounds for upcoming
events. Performs minor repairs on facilities, equipment and furnishings, and completes operational checks on equipment
and systems. Responds to urgent needs of client during assigned events.

DISTINGUISHING CHARACTERISTICS:

This is the first in a series of two building operations-related job classifications within the General/Road Maintenance job
family. This classification functions as a lead worker overseeing and assisting in the preparation and cleanup for events
and performing minor preventative maintenance work. This classification may require a flexible work schedule in order
to meet the needs of the department.

DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES:

• Assists in supervising the preparation and cleanup of buildings and grounds for upcoming events. Serves as lead
worker in performance of building operations functions.

• Attends events to coordinate repairs and assist with the facilitation of operations and respond to emergencies and
urgent needs. Ensures assigned aspects of events are implemented and controlled according to plans.

• Performs operational checks on equipment and systems.

• Operates light and heavy equipment to prepare facilities and grounds for events.

• Performs minor repairs on facilities, equipment and furnishings. Monitors expenditures on supplies and controls
inventory of assigned equipment and tools.

• Monitors and verifies operational status of emergency systems (power, fire alarms, lighting).

• Performs required flow testing of fire hydrant systems.

• Completes structural pesticide applications, as required. Applies appropriate herbicides to grounds.

• Performs other job-related duties as assigned.

MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS:

Education and Experience:
High School diploma or G.E.D. AND four (4) years of increasingly responsible building operations experience, including
minor preventive maintenance and repairs to equipment, buildings and facilities;

OR,

Any combination of education and experience that has been achieved and is equivalent to the stated education and
experience and required knowledge, skills, and abilities sufficient to successfully perform the duties and responsibilities
of this job.

Licenses, Registrations, Certifications, or Special Requirements:
Valid Texas Driver’s License.
Valid Texas Commercial Driver’s License (CDL).

Knowledge, Skills, and Abilities:
Knowledge of:
• Principles and practice of leading staff.
• Standard practices, methods and skills in use and maintenance of facilities.
• Custodial cleaning standards and practices.
• Equipment and tools used in maintenance and repair functions.

Page 1 of 2

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Building Operations Worker

JOB CODE: 10049 FLSA STATUS: Non-Exempt
PAY GRADE: 10 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS: (Cont.)

Knowledge of: (Cont.)
• Pesticides, herbicides and similar grounds maintenance chemicals.
• Federal, State, Local and County applicable laws, rules, regulations and guidelines.
• Policies, practices, procedures and methods of assigned function.
• Applicable safety practices and regulations.

Skill in:
• Leading and advising others.
• Troubleshooting, and performing minor maintenance and repair needs.
• Conferring with clients and ensuring facilities meet those needs.
• Operating light and heavy equipment.
• Both verbal and written communication.

Ability to:
• Lead and train staff.
• Manage time well and meet timelines.
• Evaluate client emergent needs and fulfill those needs.
• Communicate effectively.
• Establish and maintain effective working relationships with County employees and officials, representatives of

outside agencies, and the general public.

WORK ENVIRONMENT AND PHYSICAL DEMANDS:

Physical requirements include the ability to lift/carry up to 75 pounds, visual acuity, speech and hearing, hand and eye
coordination and manual dexterity. Subject to standing, walking, sitting, repetitive motion, reaching, climbing stairs,
bending, stooping, kneeling, crouching, crawling, pushing, pulling, balancing, clientlcustomer contact, squatting to
perform the essential functions. Subject to extreme temperatures, outside elements, noise, vibration, contact with dust,
fumes and hazardous chemicals, foul odors, animal and human fecal matter, insects and rodents.

rhis job description is intended to be generic in nature. It is not necessarily an exhaustive list of all duties
and responsibilities. The essential duties, functions and responsibilities and overtime eligibility may vary
based on the specific tasks assigned to the position.

Page 2 of 2

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Building Operations Supervisor

JOB CODE: 15051 FLSA STATUS: Exempt
PAY GRADE: 15 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

JOB SUMMARY:

Supervises, trains and schedules custodial and operations functions and staff for preparation, maintenance and cleaning
of facility before, during and after events. Assists with preventative maintenance and repair of equipment and
furnishings. Communicates with clients to ensure the facilities are properly prepared for events.

DISTINGUISHING CHARACTERISTICS:

This is the second in a series of two building operations-related job classifications within the General/Road Maintenance
job family. This classification supervises the day-to-day operational aspects of event coordination and preparation and
preventative maintenance of equipment and furnishings. This classification may require a flexible work schedule in order
to meet the needs of the department.

DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES:

• Supervises and schedules custodial and operations functions and staff for preparation, maintenance and cleaning of
facility before, during and after events.

• Supervises, schedules and assists with preventative maintenance and repair of equipment and furnishings. Orders
parts and supplies, as required, tracks expenditures.

• Coordinates with building maintenance staff, as required, for preventative maintenance and repair of buildings and
grounds.

• Serves as representative with consultants and contractors and provides information about the facility.

• Meets with prospective clients to analyze needs for space, equipment and services. Answers questions and
promotes the facility.

• Assists and confers with clients prior to, during and after events. Coordinates equipment needs and troubleshoots
problems as they arise.

• Operates light and heavy equipment, as required. Trains staff on equipment operation and safety.

• Assists in calculating revenue and expenses for various events.

• Performs other job-related duties as assigned.

MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS:

Education and Experience:
High School diploma or G.E.D. AND five (5) years of increasingly responsible building operations experience, including
one (1) year of supervisory experience;

OR,

Any combination of education and experience that has been achieved and is equivalent to the stated education and
experience and required knowledge, skills, and abilities sufficient to successfully perform the duties and responsibilities
of this job.

Licenses, Registrations, Certifications, or Special Requirements:
Valid Texas Driver’s License.
Valid Texas Commercial Driver’s License (CDL).

Knowledge, Skills, and Abilities:
Knowledge of:
• Supervisory principles, practices and techniques.
• Custodial cleaning standards and practices.
• Standard practices, methods and skills in use and maintenance of facilities.

Page 1 of 2

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Building Operations Supervisor

JOB CODE: 15051 FLSA STATUS: Exempt
PAY GRADE: 15 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS: (Cont.)

Knowledge of: (Cant.)
• Federal, State, Local and County applicable laws, rules, regulations and guidelines.
• Policies, practices, procedures and methods of assigned function.
• Applicable safety practices and regulations.

Skill in:
• Supervising, developing and evaluating staff.
• Supervising, assigning and advising custodial and building operations functions.
• Conferring with clients, analyzing their needs and ensuring facilities meet those needs.
• Operating light and heavy equipment.
• Both verbal and written communication.

Ability to:
• Supervise, motivate, and train staff.
• Plan, schedule and oversee building operations and custodial functions.
• Manage time well and meet timelines.
• Evaluate client needs and recommend effective solutions.
• Communicate effectively.
• Establish and maintain effective working relationships with County employees and officials, representatives of

outside agencies, and the general public.

WORK ENVIRONMENT AND PHYSICAL DEMANDS:

Physical requirements include the ability to lift/carry up to 75 pounds, visual acuity, speech and hearing, hand and eye
coordination and manual dexterity. Subject to standing, sitting, walking, climbing stairs, bending, stooping, crouching,
kneeling, pushing, pulling, reaching, twisting, balancing, repetitive motion, driving, client/customer contact, and squatting
to perform the essential functions. Subject to extreme temperatures, outside elements, noise, vibration, contact with dust,
fumes and hazardous chemicals, foul odors, animal and human fecal matter, insects and rodents.

This job description is intended to be generic in nature. It is not necessarily an exhaustive list of all duties
and responsibilities. The essential duties, functions and responsibilities and overtime eligibility may vary
based on the specific tasks assigned to the position.

Page 2 of 2

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Building Maintenance Worker

JOB CODE: 09050 FLSA STATUS: Non-Exempt
PAY GRADE: 09 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

JOB SUMMARY:

Performs a variety of moderately complex preventive maintenance tasks, repairs, and additions to County buildings,
facilities and equipment. Work involves multiple skill areas, including carpentry, air conditioning/heating, painting,
plastering, masonry, plumbing, electrical repairs and installations and machine servicing.

DISTINGUISHING CHARACTERISTICS:

This is the first in a series of two building maintenance-related job classifications within the General/Road Maintenance
job family. This classification is distinguished by moderately complex maintenance work requiring basic proficiency in
multiple skill areas. This classification may require work in secure facilities. This classification may require a flexible
work schedule in order to meet the needs of the department.

DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES:

• Performs a variety of preventive maintenance routines on equipment, building components, and facilities.

• Performs periodic and routine walk through inspections of assigned facilities, identifies work requirements, submits
requirements to service call and performs work assigned.

• Researches and estimates time and materials needed and records time and materials used. Requests for needed
tools, equipment, supplies and materials to perform assigned tasks. Monitors expenditure of supplies and controls
inventory of equipment and tools.

• Makes electrical, plumbing, masonry and carpentry repairs. Services and repairs heating and air-conditioning
systems.

• Replaces broken glass. Installs/replaces light fixtures, and switches.

• Remodels building and facilities. May build cabinets and shelves.

• Prepares for painting. Paints and seals building surfaces and equipment.

• May be required to disassemble/assemble and move furniture and equipment.

• Performs other job-related duties as assigned.

MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS:

Education and Experience:
High School diploma or G.E.D. AND three (3) years of building maintenance experience, including preventive
maintenance and repairs to equipment, buildings and facilities;

OR,

Any combination of education and experience that has been achieved and is equivalent to the stated education and
experience and required knowledge, skills, and abilities sufficient to successfully perform the duties and responsibilities
of this job.

Licenses, Registrations, Certifications, or Special Requirements:
Environmental Protection Agency (EPA) Universal Certification or must be obtained within one (1) year of date of hire.
Valid Texas Driver’s License.

Knowledge, Skills, and Abilities:
Knowledge of:
• Policies, practices, procedures and methods of plumbing, electrical, mechanical and carpentry repair.
• Applicable safety practices and regulations.
• Equipment and tools used in maintenance and repair functions.
• Federal, State, Local and County applicable laws, rules, regulations and guidelines.
• Computer equipment to include word processing, spreadsheets, databases and a variety of software packages.

Pagelof2 30

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Building Maintenance Worker

JOB CODE: 09050 FLSA STATUS: Non-Exempt
PAY GRADE: 09 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS: (Corit.)

Skill in:
• Carpentry, painting, plastering, masonry, plumbing, electrical repairs and installations and machine servicing.
• Troubleshooting, diagnosing and performing maintenance and repair needs.
• Reading and interpreting schematics and blueprints.
• Proper and applicable safety practices, procedures and regulations.
• Working with others, including on a team.
• Both verbal and written communication.

Ability to:
• Understand and follow instructions and communicate effectively, as required.
• Safely and correctly apply building and equipment maintenance and repair techniques, and operate tools and

equipment.
• Work independently and efficiently.
• Manage time well and meet timelines.
• Establish and maintain effective working relationships with County employees and officials, representatives of

outside agencies, and the general public.

WORK ENVIRONMENT AND PHYSICAL DEMANDS:

Physical requirements include the ability to lift up to 100 pounds/carry up to 75 pounds, visual acuity, speech and hearing,
hand and eye coordination and manual dexterity. Subject to standing, walking, sitting, repetitive motion, reaching,
climbing stairs, bending, stooping, kneeling, crouching, crawling, pushing, pulling, balancing, client/customer contact,
squatting to perform the essential functions. Subject to extreme temperatures, outside elements, noise, vibration, contact
with dust, fumes and hazardous chemicals, foul odors, animal and human fecal matter, insects and rodents. Requires
working at heights from ladders and scaffolds.

This job description is intended to be generic in nature. It is not necessarily an exhaustive list of all duties
and responsibilities. The essential duties, functions and responsibilities and overtime eligibility may vary
based on the specific tasks assigned to the position.

Page2of2 3/

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Building Maintenance Worker Senior

JOB CODE: 11053 FLSA STATUS: Non-Exempt
PAY GRADE: 11 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

JOB SUMMARY:

Performs a variety of complex preventive maintenance tasks, repairs, and additions to County buildings, facilities and
equipment. Work involves multiple skill areas, including carpentry, painting, plastering, masonry, plumbing, electrical
repairs and installations and machine servicing. Functions as a lead worker over building maintenance staff. May be
assigned as full time skilled painter or carpenter.

DISTINGUISHING CHARACTERISTICS:

This is the second in a series of two building maintenance-related job classifications within the General/Road
Maintenance job family. This classification is distinguished by complex maintenance work requiring advanced
proficiency in multiple skill areas and/or journey level skill as a painter or carpenter. This classification also performs
lead duties. This classification may require work in secure facilities. This classification may require a flexible work
schedule in order to meet the needs of the department.

DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES:

• Functions as a lead worker in the performance of building maintenance duties. Provides technical advice and
assistance for assigned staff.

• Provides recommendations regarding replacement or upgrade of facilities and equipment.

• Performs a variety of preventive maintenance routines on equipment, building components and facilities.

• Performs periodic and routine walk through inspections of assigned facilities, identifies work requirements, submits
requirements to service call and performs work assigned.

• Researches and estimates time and materials needed and records time and materials used. Requests for needed
tools, equipment, supplies and materials to perform assigned tasks. Monitors expenditure of supplies and controls
inventory of equipment and tools.

• Completes electrical, plumbing, masonry and carpentry repairs.

• Services and repairs heating and air conditioning system.

• Replaces broken glass. Installs/replaces light fixtures, and switches.

• Remodels building and facilities, including removal/replacement of wall systems, doors/frames, windows and built in
furniture/counters.

• Prepares for painting. Paints and seals building surfaces and equipment.

• Repairs and maintains security control panels and video monitors and security cameras.

• May be required to disassemble/assemble and move furniture and equipment.

• Performs other job-related duties as assigned.

MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS:

Education and Experience:
High School diploma or G.E.D. AND five (5) years of increasingly responsible building maintenance experience,
including preventive maintenance and repairs to equipment, buildings and facilities;

OR,

Any combination of education and experience that has been achieved and is equivalent to the stated education and
experience and required knowledge, skills, and abilities sufficient to successfully perform the duties and responsibilities
of this job.

Page 1 of 3 2,.

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Building Maintenance Worker Senior

JOB CODE: 11053 FLSA STATUS: Non-Exempt
PAY GRADE: 11 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS: (Cont.)

Licenses, Registrations, Certifications, or Special Requirements:
Environmental Protection Agency (EPA) Universal Certification or must be obtained within one (1) year of employment.
Valid Texas Driver’s License.

If Painter or Carpenter:
High School diploma or G.E.D. AND five (5) years of experience at the journey painter or carpenter level;

OR,

Any combination of education and experience that has been achieved and is equivalent to the stated education and
experience and required knowledge, skills, and abilities sufficient to successfully perform the duties and responsibilities
of this job.

Licenses, Registrations, Certifications, or Special Requirements:
Valid Texas Driver’s License.

Preferred:
Environmental Protection Agency (EPA) Universal Certification.

Knowledge, Skills, and Abilities:
Knowledge of:
• Principles and practices of leading staff.
• Policies, practices, procedures and methods of assigned function.
• Applicable safety practices and regulations.
• Equipment and tools used in maintenance and repair functions.
• Federal, State, Local and County applicable laws, rules, regulations and guidelines.
• Computer equipment to include word processing, spreadsheets, databases and a variety of software packages.

Skill in:
• Leading and advising others.
• Carpentry, painting, plastering, masonry, plumbing, electrical repairs and installations and machine servicing.
• Troubleshooting, diagnosing and performing maintenance and repair needs.
• Reading and interpreting schematics and blueprints.
• Proper and applicable safety practices, procedures and regulations.
• Working with others, including on a team.
• Both verbal and written communication.

Ability to:
• Motivate, train, and lead others.
• Understand and follow instructions and communicate effectively, as required.
• Safely and correctly apply building and equipment maintenance and repair techniques and operate tools and

equipment.
• Work independently and efficiently.
• Manage time well and meet timelines.
• Establish and maintain effective working relationships with County employees and officials, representatives of

outside agencies, and the general public.

Page2of3 33

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Building Maintenance Worker Senior

JOB CODE: 11053 FLSA STATUS: Non-Exempt
PAY GRADE: 11 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

WORK ENVIRONMENT AND PHYSICAL DEMANDS:

Physical requirements include the ability to lift up to 100 pounds/carry up to 75 pounds, visual acuity, speech and hearing,
hand and eye coordination and manual dexterity. Subject to standing, walking, sitting, repetitive motion, reaching,
climbing stairs, bending, stooping, kneeling, crouching, crawling, pushing, pulling, balancing, client/customer contact,
squatting to perform the essential functions. Subject to extreme temperatures, outside elements, noise, vibration, contact
with dust, fumes and hazardous chemicals, foul odors, animal and human fecal matter, insects and rodents. Requires
working at heights from ladders and scaffolds.

This job description is intended to be generic in nature. It is not necessarily an exhaustive list of all duties
and responsibilities. The essential duties, functions and responsibilities and overtime eligibility may vary
based on the specific tasks assigned to the position.

Page3of3

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Building Maintenance Coordinator

JOB CODE: 13052 FLSA STATUS: Non-Exempt
PAY GRADE: 13 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

JOB SUMMARY:

Directs the building maintenance and repair functions for an assigned building complex or group of buildings. Supervises,
trains, directs and schedules staff assigned to complex or group of buildings. Performs the most complex maintenance
and repair duties, including those involving heating and air conditioning, electrical, plumbing, roof and security systems.
Works with outside consultants and contractors and serves as a technical expert on new construction projects
associated with assigned complex or group of buildings.

DISTINGUISHING CHARACTERISTICS:

This is a job classification within the General/Road Maintenance job family. This classification is responsible for
overseeing and supervising building maintenance staff assigned to a building complex or group of buildings and is
differentiated from the Building Maintenance Worker Senior class that is assigned to projects in various locations. This
classification has supervisory responsibilities. This classification may require work in secure facilities. This classification
may require a flexible work schedule in order to meet the needs of the department.

DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES:

• Functions as a supervisor and a lead worker in the performance of building maintenance, repair and minor
construction duties for a specific building complex or group of buildings. Makes recommendations regarding
replacement or upgrade of systems. Provides technical advice and assistance for assigned staff.

• Serves as primary point of contact with the tenants of building complex or group of buildings concerning facility
maintenance issues.

• Performs a variety of preventive maintenance routines on equipment, building components and facilities. Provides
on-the-job training to subordinate staff on proper procedures, practices and techniques.

• Completes electrical, plumbing, masonry and carpentry repairs. Repairs heating and air conditioning systems,
pumps, fans, air compressors and similar mechanical and electrical components and systems.

• Responds to requests for service and completes or assigns requested work and completes appropriate tracking
documentation.

• Prepares for painting. Paints and seals building surfaces and equipment. Completes necessary actions to restore
fit and finish of building surfaces to acceptable condition.

• Researches and requisitions necessary tools, equipment, supplies and materials. Monitors expenditures of supplies
and controls inventory of assigned equipment and tools.

• Remodels buildings and facilities from plans and/or verbal instructions.

• Serves as representative with consultants and contractors providing services in assigned building complex or group
of buildings.

• Performs other job-related duties as assigned.

MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS:

Education and Experience:
High School diploma or G.E.D. AND five (5) years of increasingly responsible building maintenance experience,
including one (1) year of lead or supervisory experience;

OR,

Any combination of education and experience that has been achieved and is equivalent to the stated education and
experience and required knowledge, skills, and abilities sufficient to successfully perform the duties and responsibilities
of this job.

Page 1 of 2

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Building Maintenance Coordinator

JOB CODE: 13052 FLSA STATUS: Non-Exempt
PAY GRADE: 13 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS: (Cont.)

Licenses, Registrations, Certifications, or Special Requirements:
Environmental Protection Agency (EPA) Universal Certification.
Valid Texas Driver’s License.

Knowledge. Skills, and Abilities:
Knowledge of:
• Supervisory principles, practices and techniques.
• Standard practices, methods and skills in use and care of tools, equipment and materials of the electrical,

mechanical, plumbing, power generation, fire alarm/security and carpentry trades.
• Equipment and tools used in maintenance and repair functions.
• Federal, State, Local and County applicable laws, rules, regulations and guidelines.
• Policies, practices, procedures and methods of assigned function.
• Applicable safety practices and regulations.

Skill in:
• Supervising, assigning and advising building maintenance staff and operations.
• Carpentry, painting, plastering, masonry, plumbing, electrical repairs and installations, and machine servicing.
• Troubleshooting, diagnosing and performing maintenance and repair needs.
• Reading and interpreting schematics and blueprints.
• Both verbal and written communication.

Ability to:
• Supervise, motivate and train staff.
• Plan, schedule and oversee building maintenance functions.
• Read and interpret documents such as safety rules, operating and maintenance instructions, and procedure

manuals.
• Safely and correctly apply building and equipment maintenance and repair techniques, and operate tools and

equipment.
• Evaluate conditions and recommend effective technical solutions.
• Communicate effectively.
• Manage time well and meet timelines.
• Establish and maintain effective working relationships with County employees and officials, representatives of

outside agencies, and the general public.

WORK ENVIRONMENT AND PHYSICAL DEMANDS:

Physical requirements include the ability to lift/carry up to 50-1 00 pounds, visual acuity, speech and hearing, hand and eye
coordination and manual dexterity. Subject to standing, walking, sitting, repetitive motion, reaching, climbing stairs,
bending, stooping, kneeling, crouching, crawling, pushing, pulling, balancing, client/customer contact, squatting to
perform the essential functions. Subject to extreme temperatures, outside elements, noise, vibration, contact with dust,
fumes and hazardous chemicals, foul odors, animal and human fecal matter, insects, rodents and infectious diseases.

This job description is intended to be generic in nature. It is not necessarily an exhaustive list of all duties
and responsibilities. The essential duties, functions and responsibilities and overtime eligibility may vary
based on the specific tasks assigned to the position.

Page2of2

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Building Maintenance Supervisor

JOB CODE: 15054 FLSA STATUS: Exempt
PAY GRADE: 15 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

JOB SUMMARY:

Supervises and coordinates staff and activities related to building maintenance, custodial and security functions.
Develops and implements routine and preventive maintenance schedules, coordinates schedules and assignments,
assists in and evaluates staff job performance and ensures functions are performed in accordance with applicable laws,
rules, regulations, codes, policies and procedures. Serves as a technical advisor and may perform the most complex
maintenance and repair duties, including those involving heating and air conditioning, electrical, plumbing, roof, closed
circuit television, electronic entry and other security systems, and fire protection systems.

DISTINGUISHING CHARACTERISTICS:

This is a job classification within the General/Road Maintenance job family. This classification is responsible for
performing supervisory and administrative duties overseeing subordinate building maintenance, custodial and security
staff and related functions. This classification typically reports to a higher level facilities manager. This classification may
require work in secure facilities. This classification may require a flexible work schedule in order to meet the needs of the
department.

DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES:

• Supervises and coordinates building and equipment maintenance, custodial and security functions, activities and
staff. Schedules and assigns the work activities of subordinate staff. Interviews, hires, trains, develops and
evaluates employee performance. Counsels employees as necessary to improve performance.

• Oversees the operation, maintenance and general repair of security, air conditioning, heating, plumbing, electrical,
mechanical and fire protection systems. Develops or assists in developing and implementing routine and
preventative maintenance schedules for facility and security systems. May assist in developing equipment
specifications.

• Supervises inspections of and makes recommendations for building maintenance, custodial and security systems
replacements and upgrades. Maintains an adequate inventory of materials and equipment used in the maintenance
and repair of facilities and security systems. Orders new stock, as required.

• Responds to building maintenance and security incidents, inquiries and concerns. Reports to higher level
management, as required, and maintains records of issues. Assists in completing building maintenance and
security related reports.

• Serves as a technical advisor and may perform the most complex maintenance and repair duties, including those
involving heating and air conditioning, electrical, plumbing, roof, closed circuit television, electronic entry and other
security systems, and fire protection systems.

• Manages the County’s master key systems and card entry systems. Ensures building security is maintained,
procedures are followed for issuance and return of keys and cards and related databases are maintained for
tracking purposes. Conducts assessments on proper lighting, fencing, key control/access and surveillance systems.

• Identifies projects to be completed by outside contractors. Coordinates all contracted projects on assigned facility
systems. Assists in the development of maintenance/construction/security service contracts. Provides technical
quality assurance inspections and monitors performance of external service contracts.

• Proposes organizational modifications to meet changing needs of the department. Assists in or develops building
maintenance, custodial and security policies, procedures, plans and standards. Provides input into annual budget
for building maintenance, custodial and security requirements.

• Performs other job-related duties as assigned.

Pagelof3 37

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Building Maintenance Supervisor

JOB CODE: 15054 FLSA STATUS: Exempt
PAY GRADE: 15 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS:

Education and Experience:
High School diploma or G.E.D. AND five (5) years of increasingly responsible building maintenance experience,
including two (2) years of supervisory experience;

OR,

Any combination of education and experience that has been achieved and is equivalent to the stated education and
experience and required knowledge, skills, and abilities sufficient to successfully perform the duties and responsibilities
of this job.

Licenses, Registrations, Certifications, or Special Requirements:
Refrigerant Certification.
Environmental Protection Agency (EPA) Universal Certification.
Valid Texas Driver’s License.

Preferred:
Experience supervising building security operations.
Three (3) to five (5) years of correctional or institutional experience.

Knowledge. Skills, and Abilities:
Knowledge of:
• Supervisory principles, practices and techniques.
• Policies, practices, procedures and terminology of assigned function.
• Federal, State, Local and County applicable laws, rules, regulations and guidelines.
• Applicable safety practices and regulations.
• Problem solving and decision-making.

Skill in:
• Supervising building maintenance, custodial and security operations.
• Carpentry, painting, plastering, masonry, plumbing, electrical repairs and installations, and machine servicing.
• Troubleshooting, diagnosing and performing building maintenance and security functions.
• Reading and interpreting schematics and blueprints.
• Monitoring outside vendors and related contracts.
• Both verbal and written communication.

Ability to:
• Supervise, motivate, train, develop and evaluate staff.
• Plan, schedule and oversee building maintenance, custodial and security functions.
• Read and interpret documents, such as safety rules, operating and maintenance instructions and procedure

manuals.
• Safely and correctly apply building and equipment maintenance and repair techniques, and operate tools and

equipment.
• Monitor security systems, recognize and report repairs, and assess security risks and dangers.
• Evaluate conditions and recommend effective technical solutions.
• Manage time well, perform multiple tasks, and organize and prioritize diverse activities.
• Establish and maintain effective working relationships with County employees and officials, representatives of

outside agencies, vendors and the general public.

Page2of3

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Building Maintenance Supervisor

JOB CODE: 15054 FLSA STATUS: Exempt
PAY GRADE: 15 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

WORK ENVIRONMENT AND PHYSICAL DEMANDS:

Physical requirements include the ability to lift up to 50 pounds/carry up to 25 pounds, visual acuity, speech and hearing,
hand and eye coordination and manual dexterity. Subject to standing, walking, sitting, repetitive motion, reaching,
climbing stairs, bending, stooping, kneeling, crouching, crawling, pushing, pulling, balancing, client/customer contact,
squatting to perform the essential functions. Subject to extreme temperatures, outside elements, noise, vibration, contact
with dust, fumes and hazardous chemicals, foul odors, animal and human fecal matter, insects and rodents.

This job description is intended to be generic in nature. It is not necessarily an exhaustive list of all duties
and responsibilities. The essential duties, functions and responsibilities and overtime eligibility may vary
based on the specific tasks assigned to the position.

Page3of3

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Building Maintenance Superintendent

JOB CODE: 16799 FLSA STATUS: Exempt
PAY GRADE: 16 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

JOB SUMMARY:

Directs and supervises the activities of workers engaged in repair, maintenance, cleaning and installation of equipment,
and maintenance and repair of buildings and utility systems of County facilities. Plans, develops and implements new
methods and procedures designed to improve operations. Develops and manages schedules and assignments,
evaluates staff job performance and ensures functions are performed in accordance with applicable laws, rules,
regulations, codes, policies and procedures. Serves as a technical expert and may assist staff in performing the most
complex maintenance and repair duties.

DISTINGUISHING CHARACTERISTICS:

This is a job classification within the General/Road Maintenance job family. This classification directs and supervises
functions related to building maintenance and repair. This classification supervises workers directly and through
subordinate lead and coordinator staff. This classification may require work in secure facilities. This classification may
require a flexible work schedule in order to meet the needs of the department.

DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES:

• Supervises and directs the activities of subordinate building maintenance staff and sections. Monitors and directs
needed improvements in quality, timeliness and completion of subordinate sections services.

• Directs building maintenance staff. Interviews, hires, trains, directs, develops and evaluates employee performance.
Counsels employees as necessary to improve performance. Disciplines and terminates employees, as required.

• Reviews work orders to determine work priorities. Monitors execution of work orders. Analyzes work orders received
and completed for trends. Adjusts work force as necessary to optimize timely completion of received work requests.

• Schedules repair, maintenance and installation of equipment to ensure maximum availability of facilities for County
operations.

• Develops and implements preventive maintenance programs in conjunction with management and subordinate staff
for all key facility systems. Assigns preventive maintenance work to maintenance staff and monitors the execution of
programs.

• Plans, develops and implements new methods and procedures designed to improve operations, minimize operating
costs, and effect greater utilization of labor and materials.

• Requisitions tools, equipment and supplies required for operations. Provides operational controls for tools,
equipment, supplies and vehicles. Processes invoices for payment.

• Confers with management, engineering and other County personnel to resolve maintenance problems and
recommend measures to improve condition of County facilities and supporting equipment.

• Prepares inputs for department budget and monitors expenditure of funds in budget.

• Performs other job-related duties as assigned.

MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS:

Education and Experience:
Associate’s degree AND six (6) years of increasingly responsible building maintenance experience, including three (3)
years of supervisory or management experience;

OR,

Any combination of education and experience that has been achieved and is equivalent to the stated education and
experience and required knowledge, skills, and abilities sufficient to successfully perform the duties and responsibilities of
this job.

Page 1 of 2

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Building Maintenance Superintendent

JOB CODE: 16799 FLSA STATUS: Exempt
PAY GRADE: 16 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS: (Cont.)

Licenses, Registrations, Certifications, or Special Requirements:
Environmental Protection Agency (EPA) Universal Certification.
Valid Texas Driver’s License.

Knowledge, Skills, and Abilities:
Knowledge of:
• Supervisory principles, practices and techniques.
• Standard practices, methods and skills in use and care of tools, equipment and materials of the electrical,

mechanical, plumbing, power generation, fire alarm/security and carpentry trades.
• Equipment and tools used in maintenance and repair functions.
• Federal, State, Local and County applicable laws, rules, regulations and guidelines.
• Policies, practices, procedures and methods of assigned function.
• Applicable safety practices and regulations.

Skill in:
• Planning, assigning, directing and coordinating a variety of functional specialties with overlapping work areas.
• Managing, motivating, developing and evaluating staff.
• Developing and implementing goals, objectives, procedures, work standards and management controls.
• Carpentry, painting, plastering, masonry, plumbing, electrical repairs and installations, and machine servicing.
• Troubleshooting, diagnosing and performing maintenance and repair needs.
• Reading and interpreting schematics and blueprints.
• Both verbal and written communication.

Ability to:
• Manage, motivate and train staff.
• Plan, schedule and oversee building maintenance functions.
• Read and interpret documents, such as safety rules, operating and maintenance instructions, and procedure

manuals.
• Evaluate conditions and recommend effective technical solutions.
• Safely and correctly apply building and equipment maintenance and repair techniques, and operate tools and

equipment.
• Write routine reports and correspondence.
• Speak effectively before groups of customers or employees of organization.
• Plan, schedule and direct subordinates facilities management functions.
• Interpret and work from sketches, blueprints or verbal instructions.
• Communicate effectively.
• Establish and maintain effective working relationships with County employees and officials, representatives of outside

agencies, and the general public.

WORK ENVIRONMENT AND PHYSICAL DEMANDS:

Physical requirements include the ability to lift up to 50 pounds/carry up to 25 pounds, visual acuity, speech and hearing,
hand and eye coordination and manual dexterity. Subject to standing, walking, sitting, repetitive motion, reaching, climbing
stairs, bending, stooping, kneeling, crouching, crawling, pushing, pulling, balancing, client/customer contact, squatting to
perform the essential functions. Subject to extreme temperatures, outside elements, noise, vibration, contact with dust,
fumes and hazardous chemicals, foul odors, animal and human fecal matter, insects and rodents.

This job description is intended to be generic in nature. It is not necessarily an exhaustive list of all duties
and responsibilities. The essential duties, functions and responsibilities and overtime eligibility may vary
based on the specific tasks assigned to the position.

Page2of2
L] 1

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Building Security Guard

JOB CODE: 08055 FLSA STATUS: Non-Exempt
PAY GRADE: 08 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

JOB SUMMARY:

Provides basic building security for County facilities during normal business hours or after hours and on weekends and
holidays. Ensures doors and windows are locked and secured during non-business hours. Reports security violations
and questionable activities. Monitors buildings for damages from flooding, equipment failure or vandalism.

DISTINGUISHING CHARACTERISTICS:

This is a job classification within the General/Road Maintenance job family. This classification is responsible for the
front-line building security functions and does not have any lead or supervisory duties or responsibilities. This
classification may require a flexible work schedule in order to meet the needs of the department.

DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES:

• Provides assistance, directions and information to visitors and County employees/officials. Signs visitors in and out
of assigned facilities. Escorts visitors and staff on and off building premises upon request.

• Makes rounds of each floor of assigned building and/or makes rounds of assigned buildings. Ensures doors and
windows are locked and secured. Monitors security camera systems and verifies proper operation of building
electronic door lock systems. Turns off lights not needed for security.

• Reports security violations, questionable activities and emergencies to appropriate authority.

• Ensures security lighting and security monitoring systems are functioning. Monitors outside areas for vagrants and
other unauthorized personnel. Warns violators of rule infractions, such as loitering, skateboarding or smoking within
15 feet of building exits.

• Monitors heating and air conditioning systems for proper operation during non-business hours as directed. Checks
assigned facilities for leaks, during rainstorms. Monitors buildings for equipment failure or vandalism, notifies proper
emergency contacts for repair.

• Notes building repair and maintenance needs and reports these deficiencies for correction.

• Performs other job-related duties as assigned.

MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS:

Education and Experience:
One (1) year of building security or related experience;

OR,

Any combination of education and experience that has been achieved and is equivalent to the stated education and
experience and required knowledge, skills, and abilities sufficient to successfully perform the duties and responsibilities
of this job.

Licenses, Registrations, Certifications, or Special Requirements:
Valid Texas Driver’s License.

Preferred:
High School diploma or G.E.D.

Knowledge, Skills, and Abilities:
Knowledge of:
• Standard building security systems, including operations and maintenance.
• Policies, practices, procedures and methods of assigned function.
• Security surveillance systems operations and capabilities.

Page 1 of 2

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Building Security Guard

JOB CODE: 08055 FLSA STATUS: Non-Exempt
PAY GRADE: 08 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS: (Cont.)

Skill in:
• Interacting positively with the public.
• Responding effectively to public inquiries, presenting a positive impression of the organization.
• Both verbal and written communication.

Ability to:
• Follow a regular security check schedule.
• Recognize and report needed repairs, security risks and dangers.
• Understand and follow instructions and communicate effectively, as required.
• Work independently and efficiently.
• Establish and maintain effective working relationships with’ employees and officials, and the general public.

WORK ENVIRONMENT AND PHYSICAL DEMANDS:

Physical requirements include the ability to lift/carry up to 25 pounds, visual acuity, speech and hearing, hand and eye
coordination and manual dexterity. Subject to standing, walking, sitting, repetitive motion, reaching, climbing stairs,
bending, stooping, kneeling, crouching, crawling, pushing, pulling, balancing, client/customer contact, squatting to
perform the essential functions. Requires constant walking and standing and exposure to outside elements.

This job description is intended to be generic in nature. It is not necessarily an exhaustive list of all duties
and responsibilities. The essential duties, functions and responsibilities and overtime eligibility may vary
based on the specific tasks assigned to the position.

Page 2 of 2 q3

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Park Maintenance Worker

JOB CODE: 07439 FLSA STATUS: Non-Exempt
PAY GRADE: 07 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

JOB SUMMARY:

Provides general day-to-day custodial, park maintenance and groundskeeping functions within assigned parks or parks
projects, ensuring a safe, smooth, clean, hospitable, secure and efficient operation. Duties include emptying trash
receptacles, cleaning restrooms and other buildings, cleaning picnic tables, picking up litter, mowing grass and
eliminating weeds. Provides visitors and other customers with accurate information regarding parks.

DISTINGUISHING CHARACTERISTICS:

This is the first in a series of two park maintenance-related job classifications within the General/Road Maintenance job
family. This classification is distinguished by performing basic custodial, maintenance and groundskeeping functions
within assigned park areas. This classification may require a flexible work schedule in order to meet the needs of the
department.

DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES:

• Cleans, restocks and maintains restrooms, including cleaning sinks, toilets, floors, ceilings and walls, and restocks
supplies. Inspects facilities and equipment, including toilets, sinks, fixtures, dispensers and lights to ensure
operational and rectifies or refers problems to supervisor.

• Cleans and maintains shelters, maintenance buildings, offices and concession stands, including washing floors, picnic
tables, ceilings and walls, operational dispensers. Empties waste baskets, trash receptacles, and replaces light bulbs.

• Removes ground litter, empties recycle, and trash receptacles.

• Mows, weedeats and weeds common areas. Assists in mowing and maintaining sports fields as assigned. Inspects
areas and equipment to ensure operational and rectifies or refers problems to supervisor.

• Cleans and maintains all equipment and vehicles. Inspects equipment, including hand tools, chainsaws, personnel
carriers and trucks to ensure operational and cleans and rectifies or refers problems to supervisor.

• Cleans and maintains all trails, including weed control and leveling to prevent safety hazards. Inspects trails to ensure
operational.

• Provides visitors and other customers with accurate information regarding parks and park rules.

• May perform minor painting and fence repair or other repair under close supervision.

• Detects, reports and assists in correcting safety hazards in the parks.

• Performs other job-related duties as assigned.

MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS:

Education and Experience:
One (1) year of custodial or building and grounds maintenance experience;

OR,

Any combination of education and experience that has been achieved and is equivalent to the stated education and
experience and required knowledge, skills, and abilities sufficient to successfully perform the duties and responsibilities
of this job.

Licenses, Registrations, Certifications, or Special Requirements:
Valid Texas Driver’s License.

Preferred:
SCUBA Certification.

Pagelof2
111111

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Park Maintenance Worker

JOB CODE: 07439 FLSA STATUS: Non-Exempt
PAY GRADE: 07 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS: (Cant.)

Knowledge, Skills, and Abilities:
Knowledge of:
• Policies, practices, procedures and methods of assigned function.
• Applicable safety practices and regulations.
• Cleaning equipment, products, techniques and standards.
• Equipment and tools used in custodial, maintenance and groundskeeping functions.
• Federal, State, Local and County applicable laws, rules, regulations and guidelines.

Skill in:
• Operating cleaning equipment, such as mops, buffers, strippers, waxers and vacuums.
• Cleaning floors, windows, walls and concession stands, and unstopping toilets.
• Operating grounds maintenance equipment.
• Trash maintenance.
• Both verbal and written communication, including conveying and following instructions and providing information to

the public.

Ability to:
• Safely and correctly apply custodial and grounds maintenance techniques.
• Understand and follow instructions and communicate effectively, as required.
• Work independently and efficiently.
• Manage time well and meet timelines.
• Establish and maintain effective working relationships with County employees and officials, representatives of

outside agencies, and the general public.

WORK ENVIRONMENT AND PHYSICAL DEMANDS:

Physical requirements include the ability to lift/carry up to 50 pounds, visual acuity, speech and hearing, hand and eye
coordination and manual dexterity. Subject to standing, walking, sitting, repetitive motion, reaching, climbing stairs,
bending, stooping, kneeling, crouching, crawling, pushing, pulling, balancing, reaching, twisting, driving, client/customer
contact, squatting to perform the essential functions. Subject to extreme temperatures, outside elements, noise,
vibration, contact with dust, fumes and hazardous chemicals, foul odors, animal and human fecal matter, insects and
rodents.

This job description is intended to be generic in nature. It is not necessarily an exhaustive list of all duties
and responsibilities. The essential duties, functions and responsibilities and overtime eligibility may vary
based on the specific tasks assigned to the position.

Lj5
Page 2 of 2

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Park Maintenance Worker Senior

JOB CODE: 10442 FLSA STATUS: Non-Exempt
PAY GRADE: 10 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

JOB SUMMARY:

Provides general day-to-day custodial, park maintenance and groundskeeping functions to assigned parks or parks
projects, ensuring a safe, smooth, clean, hospitable, secure and efficient operation. Duties include maintaining sports
fields, applying herbicides, repairing sprinkler systems, maintaining buoys, mowing, landscaping and minor carpentry,
masonry, plumbing, and electrical repairs. Oversees and leads the work of subordinate parks staff and inmates in
customer service programs. Performs custodial and litter maintenance duties, as required. Provides visitors and other
customers with accurate information regarding parks.

DISTINGUISHING CHARACTERISTICS:

This is the second in a series of two park maintenance-related job classifications within the General/Road Maintenance
job family. This classification is distinguished from the Park Maintenance Worker by performing minor carpentry,
masonry, and parks building repair, maintaining sports fields and landscaping, and leading the work of subordinate parks
staff and inmates. This classification may require a flexible work schedule in order to meet the needs of the department.

DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES:

• Functions as a lead worker in the performance of maintenance and groundskeeping duties. Provides technical
advice and assistance for assigned staff.

• Maintains and repairs park facilities, including basic carpentry, painting, plumbing, electrical and welding. Repairs
sprinklers and buoys. Inspects areas and equipment to ensure operational and rectifies or refers problems to
supervisor.

• Maintains and repairs sports fields and facilities, including mowing, striping/painting, field lighting, herbicide applications,
goal placement, dragging of ball fields, placement of bases, watering and net replacement.

• Maintains and cleans lights, water/sewer systems, signs, restrooms, shelters, maintenance buildings, common areas,
trails, recycling, dumpster areas, offices and concession stands.

• Cleans and maintains all equipment and vehicles. Inspects equipment, including hand tools, chainsaws, personnel
carriers, heavy and light equipment and trucks to ensure operational and clean and rectifies or refers problems to
supervisor.

• Landscapes, plants trees, trims, mows, weedeats and weeds all park areas.

• Provides visitors and other customers with accurate information regarding parks and park rules.

• Oversees and transports inmates to park locations and participates in and ensures completion of assigned tasks.

• Detects, reports and corrects safety hazards in the parks.

• Assists in cleaning and maintaining trails, restrooms and other facilities, as required.

• Performs other job-related duties as assigned.

MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS:

Education and Experience:
High School diploma or G.E.D. AND two (2) years of building and grounds maintenance or related experience;

OR,

Any combination of education and experience that has been achieved and is equivalent to the stated education and
experience and required knowledge, skills, and abilities sufficient to successfully perform the duties and responsibilities
of this job.

Page 1 of 2

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Park Maintenance Worker Senior

JOB CODE: 10442 FLSA STATUS: Non-Exempt
PAY GRADE: 10 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS: (Cont.)

Licenses, Registrations, Certifications, or Special Requirements:
Valid Texas Driver’s License.
Valid Texas Commercial Driver’s License (CDL).

Preferred:
Water Operator’s License.
System Certification as an EMT with ATCEMS.
Texas Pesticide and Herbicide Applicator’s License.
Lead or supervisory experience.
Certification for Inmate Supervision within Basic Corrections Officer training.

Knowledge, Skills, and Abilities:
Knowledge of:
• Principles and practices of leading subordinate staff and inmates.
• Equipment and tools used in building and grounds maintenance, and landscaping functions.
• Cleaning equipment, products, techniques and standards.
• Policies, practices, procedures and methods of assigned function.
• Applicable safety practices and regulations.
• Federal, State, Local and County applicable laws, rules, regulations and guidelines.

Skill in:
• Coordinating the work activities of assigned staff.
• Basic carpentry, painting, plastering, masonry, plumbing, electrical and welding.
• Operating grounds maintenance and landscaping equipment.
• Using fertilizers, insecticides and herbicides to properly maintain and enhance grounds.
• Operating equipment used in sports field maintenance.
• Both verbal and written communication, including conveying and following instructions and providing information to

the public.

Ability to:
• Train and advise others.
• Safely and correctly apply building and equipment maintenance and repair techniques, and operate tools and

equipment.
• Safely and correctly apply grounds maintenance and landscaping techniques, and operate tools and equipment.
• Understand and follow instructions and communicate effectively, as required.
• Work independently and efficiently.
• Manage time well and meet timelines.
• Establish and maintain effective working relationships with County employees and officials, representatives of

outside agencies, and the general public.

WORK ENVIRONMENT AND PHYSICAL DEMANDS:

Physical requirements include the ability to lift/carry up to 50 pounds, visual acuity, speech and hearing, hand and eye
coordination and manual dexterity. Subject to standing, sitting, walking, climbing stairs, bending, stooping, crouching,
kneeling, pushing, pulling, reaching, twisting, balancing, repetitive motion, driving, client/customer contact, and squatting
to perform the essential functions. Subject to extreme temperatures, outside elements, noise, vibration, contact with dust,
fumes and hazardous chemicals, foul odors, animal and human fecal matter, insects and rodents.

This job description is intended to be generic in nature. It is not necessarily an exhaustive list of all duties
and responsibilities. The essential duties, functions and responsibilities and overtime eligibility may vary
based on the specific tasks assigned to the position.

Page2of2 147

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Park Supervisor I

JOB CODE: 13446 FLSA STATUS: Non-Exempt
PAY GRADE: 13 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

JOB SUMMARY:

Supervises and oversees park operations and maintenance programs, facility maintenance, sports field maintenance,
visitor services, the fee collection system, recreation and sports coordination, environmental education programs,
safety programs and resource protection/maintenance programs in a Travis County park, preserve and/or park area.
Ensures revenues are collected, reconciled and deposited efficiently in accordance with rules, procedures and practices.
Enforces park wles, assists visitors and resolves conflicts among visitors and staff. Supervises and monitors the budget
and efficiencies of the park operations and maintenance, including, time tickets, purchases, vehicle use and line
schedules. Ensures the maintenance and repair of park facilities, including electrical, masonry, plumbing, carpentry,
painting, welding, turf management, sports field maintenance, irrigation system and buoy maintenance and painting.
Participates in endangered species management, natural resource programs and event coordination and scheduling.
Ensures emergency medical assistance is received within the park.

DISTINGUISHING CHARACTERISTICS:

This is the first in a series of two park-supervisor related job classifications within the General/Road Maintenance job
family. This classification is responsible for supervising the park operations and maintenance programs, visitor
services, the fee collection system, recreation and sports coordination, environmental education programs, safety
programs and resource protection/maintenance programs within a park, preserve and/or park area. This classification
may require a flexible work schedule in order to meet the needs of the department.

DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES:

• Supervises the park Maintenance and Operations Program. Monitors and implements routine and cyclic
maintenance and repair programs for facilities and grounds, including turf management, electrical, masonry,
plumbing, carpentry, painting, welding, sprinklers, buoys and painting. Ensures consistency in park maintenance,
operations and public safety. Monitors and implements established standard operating procedures and guidelines
for parks. Assigns and assists with maintenance and repair projects based on annual work plans, facility inspection
reports, scheduled events, and safety requirements. Monitors contracted and in-house construction/repair projects.

• Supervises the park area Visitor Services Program. Supervises entrance and user fee collection program. Ensures
accountability through effective audit program. Monitors and implements standards and guidelines for providing
visitor services. Ensures that factual and accurate information is provided to park visitors. Resolves visitor
complaints and concerns. Manages special events and coordinates with park neighbors, other parks, special
interest groups, event and tournament organizers, and youth and adult sports organizations/users.

• Supervises park operations and maintenance staff. Interviews, hires, trains, develops, assigns and evaluates
employee performance. Counsels and disciplines employees to improve performance, as required. Provides
training, technical advice and assistance to staff.

• Represents the County to the public. Provides visitor services and interpretive information. Enforces park rules
and may notify proper agencies of medical and other emergencies within the parks.

• Oversees the park fee collection process and related system hardware in assigned area. Ensures revenues are
collected, reconciled and deposited efficiently in accordance with rules, procedures and practices.

• Oversees maintenance of sports fields and facilities, preserves and other assigned lands. Answers for the
preventative maintenance on vehicles and equipment according to established standards and guidelines.

• Ensures the maintenance and repair of park facilities, including electrical, masonry, plumbing, carpentry, painting,
welding, sprinklers, buoys and painting. Assigns and assists with maintenance and repair projects based on annual
work plans, facility inspection reports, scheduled events, and safety requirements. Oversees and coordinates work
performed by outside contractors.

• Performs quality control on park operations and maintenance work. Develops standards for work performance,
inspects and documents work products, develops and implements strategies to improve products and productivity.

Pagelof3 148

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Park Supervisor I

JOB CODE: 13446 FLSA STATUS: Non-Exempt
PAY GRADE: 13 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES: (Cant.)

• Protects natural resources within parks and preserves. Participates in endemic and endangered species
management programs. Coordinates with other organizations, as required.

• Performs administrative duties, such as quality control, time tickets, line schedules, facility inspection reports,
effective and efficient use of resources, writing reports and assisting in development of the budget. Maintains
inventory of materials and supplies and orders additional supplies, as required.

• Plans and organizes public educational programs, school programs, volunteer coordination and nature tours in the
parks and preserves. Assists in presenting the programs and leading tours, as required.

• Performs other job-related duties as assigned.

MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS:

Education and Experience:
Associate’s degree in Parks and Recreation, Business Administration, Turf Management, Agriculture, Forestry, Biology,
Conservation, Geology, Wildlife Management, or other related Life Science discipline or a directly related field AND two
(2) years of supervisory experience. Minimum of two (2) years of responsible supervisory experience in park
operations and maintenance may be substituted for the college degree;

OR,

Any combination of education and experience that has been achieved and is equivalent to the stated education and
experience and required knowledge, skills, and abilities sufficient to successfully perform the duties and responsibilities
of this job.

Licenses, Registrations, Certifications, or Special Requirements:
Valid Texas Driver’s License.

Preferred:
Bachelor’s degree in Parks and Recreation, Business Administration, Turf Management, Agriculture, Forestry, Biology,
Conservation, Geology, Wildlife Management or other related Life Science discipline.
Water Operator’s License.
Valid Texas Commercial Driver’s License (CDL) within ninety (90) days of date of hire.
System certification as an Emergency Medical Technician (EMT) with Austin-Travis County Emergency Medical
Services (ATCEMS).
Texas Pesticide and Herbicide Applicator’s License.

KnowledQe, Skills, and Abilities:
Knowledge of:
• Supervisory principles, practices and techniques.
• Natural science, ecology and park operations.
• Principles and procedures of record keeping.
• Policies, practices, procedures and methods of assigned function.
• Federal, State, Local and County applicable laws, rules, regulations and guidelines.
• Land management.
• Basic principles of bookkeeping or accounting as related to revenue collection.
• Equipment and tools used in building and grounds maintenance functions.
• Equipment and tools used in groundskeeping and landscaping functions, including irrigation systems.
• Cleaning equipment, products, techniques and standards.
• Emergency procedures, including medical and other procedures.
• Applicable safety practices and regulations.
• Computer equipment to include word processing, spreadsheets, databases and a variety of software packages.
• Business letter writing, grammar and punctuation, and report preparation.

Page2of3 t1c;1

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Park Supervisor I

JOB CODE: 13446 FLSA STATUS: Non-Exempt
PAY GRADE: 13 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS: (Cont.)

Skill in:
• Supervising, training, developing, assigning and evaluating staff.
• Supervising parks revenue collection and maintenance and custodial operations.
• Enforcing rules in a taciful and authoritative manner.
• Bookkeeping and math.
• Carpentry, painting, plastering, masonry, plumbing, electrical and welding.
• Operating grounds maintenance and landscaping equipment.
• Using fertilizers, insecticides and herbicides to properly maintain and enhance grounds.
• Operating equipment used in sports field maintenance.
• Both verbal and written communication, including conveying and following instructions and providing information to

the public.

Ability to:
• Supervise, motivate, and train staff.
• Plan, schedule and oversee parks fee collection, building maintenance and custodial functions.
• Read and interpret documents, such as safety rules, operating and maintenance instructions, and procedure

manuals.
• Safely and correctly apply building and grounds maintenance and landscaping techniques, and operate related

tools and equipment.
• Inspect conditions and recommend effective technical solutions.
• Develop educational programs and make presentations.
• Manage time well and meet timelines.
• Establish and maintain effective working relationships with County employees and officials, representatives of

outside agencies, and the general public.

WORK ENVIRONMENT AND PHYSICAL DEMANDS:

Physical requirements include the ability to lift/carry up to 50 pounds, visual acuity, speech and hearing, hand and eye
coordination and manual dexterity. Subject to standing, sitting, walking, climbing stairs, bending, stooping, crouching,
kneeling, pushing, pulling, reaching, twisting, balancing, repetitive motion, driving, client/customer contact, and squatting
to perform the essential functions. Subject to extreme temperatures, outside elements, noise, vibration, contact with dust,
fumes and hazardous chemicals, foul odors, animal and human fecal matter, insects and rodents.

This job description is intended to be generic in nature. It is not necessarily an exhaustive list of all duties
and responsibilities. The essential duties, functions and responsibilities and overtime eligibility may vary
based on the specific tasks assigned to the position.

Page 3 of 3 5O

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Park Supervisor II

JOB CODE: 15447 FLSA STATUS: Non-Exempt
PAY GRADE: 15 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

JOB SUMMARY:

Supervises and oversees the park operations and maintenance programs, facility maintenance, sports field maintenance,
visitor services, the fee collection system, recreation and sports coordination, environmental education programs, safety
programs and resource protection/maintenance programs in a Travis County park, preserve and/or park area.
Supervises and monitors the budget and efficiencies of the park operations and maintenance, including, time tickets,
purchases, vehicle use and line schedules. Ensures revenues are collected, reconciled and deposited efficiently in
accordance with rules, procedures and practices. Enforces park rules, assists visitors and resolves conflicts among visitors
and staff. Ensures the maintenance and repair of park facilities, including electrical, masonry, plumbing, carpentry, painting,
welding, turf management, sports field maintenance, irrigation system, buoy maintenance and painting. Coordinates and
communicates with park neighbors, other parks, special interest groups, event and tournament organizers, and youth
and adult sports organizations/users. May provide or ensure emergency medical assistance is received within the park.

DISTINGUISHING CHARACTERISTICS:

This is the second in a series of two park-supervisor related job classifications within the General/Road Maintenance job
family. This classification is responsible for supervising the park operations and maintenance programs, visitor services,
the fee collection system, recreation and sports coordination, environmental education programs, safety programs and
resource protection/maintenance programs within a park, preserve and/or park area. This classification may require a
flexible work schedule in order to meet the needs of the department.

DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES:

• Supervises the park Maintenance and Operations Program. Monitors and implements routine and cyclic
maintenance and repair programs for facilities and grounds, including turf management, electrical, masonry,
plumbing, carpentry, painting, welding, sprinklers, buoys and painting. Ensures consistency in park maintenance,
operations and public safety. Monitors and implements established standard operating procedures and guidelines
for parks. Assigns and assists with maintenance and repair projects based on annual work plans, facility inspection
reports, scheduled events, and safety requirements. Monitors contracted and in-house construction/repair projects.

• Supervises the park area Visitor Services Program. Supervises entrance and user fee collection program. Ensures
accountability through effective audit program. Monitors and implements standards and guidelines for providing
visitor services. Ensures that factual and accurate information is provided to park visitors. Resolves visitor
complaints and concerns. Manages and coordinates tournaments and other special events. Coordinates with park
neighbors, other parks, special interest groups, event and tournament organizers, and youth and adult sports
organizations/users.

• Supervises park operations and maintenance staff. Interviews, hires, trains, develops, assigns and evaluates
employee performance. Counsels and disciplines employees to improve performance, as required. Provides
training, technical advice and assistance to staff.

• Represents the County to the public. Provides visitor services and interpretive information. Is responsible for park
rule enforcement and responds to medical and other emergencies within the parks, notifying proper agencies.

• Oversees the park fee collection process and related system hardware in assigned area. Ensures revenues are
collected, reconciled and deposited efficiently in accordance with rules, procedures and practices.

• Oversees the routine and specialized maintenance of sports fields and facilities, preserves and other assigned
lands, including mowing, striping/painting, field lighting, herbicide applications, goal placement, dragging of ball fields,
placement of bases, irrigation and net replacement. Responsible for the preventative maintenance on vehicles and
equipment according to established standards and guidelines.

• Protects natural resources within parks and preserves. Participates in endemic and endangered species
management programs. Coordinates with other organizations, as required.

Pagelof3

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Park Supervisor II

JOB CODE: 15447 FLSA STATUS: Non-Exempt
PAY GRADE: 15 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES: (Cont.)

• Performs administrative duties, such as quality control, time tickets, line schedules, facility inspection reports,
effective and efficient use of resources, writing reports and assisting in development of the budget. Maintains
inventory of materials and supplies and orders additional supplies, as required.

• Plans and organizes public educational programs, school programs, volunteer coordination and nature tours in the
parks and preserves. Assists in presenting the programs and leading tours, as required.

• Performs other job-related duties as assigned.

MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS:

Education and Experience:
Bachelor’s degree in Parks and Recreation, Business Administration, Turf Management, Agriculture, Forestry, Biology,
Conservation, Geology, Wildlife Management, or other related Life Science discipline or a directly related field AND two
(2) years of supervisory experience. Minimum of four (4) years of responsible supervisory experience in park operations
and maintenance may be substituted for the college degree:

OR,

Any combination of education and experience that has been achieved and is equivalent to the stated education and
experience and required knowledge, skills, and abilities sufficient to successfully perform the duties and responsibilities
of this job.

Licenses, Registrations, Certifications, or Special Requirements:
Valid Texas Driver’s License.
Emergency Medical Technician (EMT) Certification with Texas Department of Health within one (1) year of date of hire.

Preferred:
System certification as an Emergency Medical Technician (EMT) with Austin-Travis County Emergency Medical
Services (ATCEMS).
Water Operator’s License.
Valid Texas Commercial Driver’s License (CDL) within ninety (90) days of date of hire.
Texas Pesticide and Herbicide Applicator’s License.

Knowledge, Skills, and Abilities:
Knowledge of:
• Standard supervisory/management theory, principles, practices and techniques of park management and

operations.
• Federal, State, Local and County applicable laws, rules, regulations and guidelines.
• Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA).
• Natural science, ecology and park operations.
• Land management.
• Supervisory principles, practices and techniques.
• Policies, practices, procedures and methods of assigned function.
• Basic principles of bookkeeping or accounting as related to revenue collection.
• Equipment and tools used in building and grounds maintenance functions.
• Equipment and toots used in groundskeeping and landscaping functions.
• Turf/sports field management and practices, including integrated pest control, fertilization, herbicides, tools and

equipment, including irrigation systems.
• Cleaning equipment, products, techniques and standards.
• Emergency procedures, including medical and other procedures.

Page 2 of 3

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Park Supervisor II

JOB CODE: 15447 FLSA STATUS: Non-Exempt
PAY GRADE: 15 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS: (Cont.)

Knowledge of: (Cont.)
• Applicable safety practices and regulations.
• Computer equipment to include word processing, spreadsheets, databases, POS and a variety of software

packages.
• Business letter writing, grammar and punctuation, and report preparation.

Skill in:
• Supervising, training, developing, assigning and evaluating staff.
• Supervisory principles, practices and techniques.
• Supervising parks revenue collection and maintenance and custodial operations.
• Bookkeeping and math.
• Carpentry, painting, plastering, masonry, plumbing, electrical and welding.
• Operating grounds maintenance and landscaping equipment.
• Using fertilizers, insecticides and herbicides to properly maintain and enhance grounds.
• Supervising turf/sports field management and practices, including tools and equipment.
• Applying emergency medical techniques.
• Enforcing rules in a taciful and authoritative manner.
• Both verbal and written communication, including conveying and following instructions and providing information to

the public.

Ability to:
• Supervise, motivate, and train staff.
• Plan, schedule and oversee park operations and maintenance programs, facility maintenance, sports field

maintenance, visitor services, the fee collection system, recreation and sports coordination, environmental education
programs, safety programs and resource protection/maintenance programs functions.

• Read and interpret documents such as safety rules, operating and maintenance instructions, and procedure
manuals.

• Safely and correctly apply building and grounds maintenance and landscaping techniques and operate related tools
and equipment.

• Inspect conditions and recommend effective technical solutions.
• Develop educational programs and make presentations.
• Manage time well and meet timelines.
• Communicate effectively.
• Establish and maintain effective working relationships with County employees and officials, representatives of

outside agencies, and the general public.

WORK ENVIRONMENT AND PHYSICAL DEMANDS:

Physical requirements include the ability to lift/carry up to 50 pounds, visual acuity, speech and hearing, hand and eye
coordination and manual dexterity. Subject to standing, sitting, walking, climbing stairs, bending, stooping, crouching,
kneeling, pushing, pulling, reaching, twisting, balancing, repetitive motion, driving, client/customer contact, and squatting
to perform the essential functions. Subject to extreme temperatures, outside elements, noise, vibration, contact with dust,
fumes and hazardous chemicals, foul odors, animal and human fecal matter, insects and rodents.

This job description is intended to be generic in nature. It is not necessarily an exhaustive list of all duties
and responsibilities. The essential duties, functions and responsibilities and overtime eligibility may vary
based on the specific tasks assigned to the position.

Page 3 of 3

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Road Maintenance Worker

JOB CODE: 08418 FLSA STATUS: Non-Exempt
PAY GRADE: 08 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

JOB SUMMARY:

Performs road construction and maintenance work in one or more specialized public works programs. Work includes
reconstruction/rehabilitation, surface maintenance, secondary drainage, right-of-way maintenance, or customer services
programs.

DISTINGUISHING CHARACTERISTICS:

This is the first in a series of two road maintenance-related job classifications within the General/Road Maintenance job
family. This classification is distinguished by performing general road maintenance work, drainage system maintenance
work, mowing grass, removing brush and debris from right-of-ways and performing general traffic control at work site.
This classification may require a flexible work schedule in order to meet the needs of the department.

DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES:

• Performs general road maintenance labor associated with tasks required to repair roadways and right-of-ways,
including mixing and pouring concrete, sealing cracks and patching roads, and cleaning drains and ditches.

• Operates light duty vehicles and equipment associated with roadway and right-of-way maintenance, including pick up
trucks, tractors, dump trucks, tank trucks, loaders/backhoes and rollers.

• Removes trash, erects fences and barricades, installs culverts, repairs and erects signs and guard rails, places hot or
cold asphalt mix, repairs driveway approaches and applies dust control emulsion to roadways.

• Installs, erects and processes materials associated with roadway and right-of-way maintenance.

• Provides assistance, as directed, during emergency situations, such as floods, severe weather and accidents.

• Performs general traffic control at the job site to ensure a safe working environment. Places and gathers traffic control
signs and barricades within construction work zones and directs traffic within zone. Observes safety precautions and
follows safety rules and regulations.

• Performs preventative vehicle and equipment minor maintenance and repairs. Checks oil, water, fuel, services tires,
makes appropriate adjustments prior to leaving the job site. Maintains mileage and service record on vehicles driven.

• Cuts and removes brush, mows grass and weedeats along roadside, and removes safety or health hazards, including
dead animal removal and disposal from right-of-ways.

• Assists with indigent burials and cemetery grounds maintenance, as required.

• Performs other job-related duties as assigned.

MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS:

Education and Experience:
One (1) year of road construction and maintenance experience;
OR,

Any combination of education and experience that has been achieved and is equivalent to the stated education and
experience and required knowledge, skills, and abilities sufficient to successfully perform the duties and responsibilities
of this job.

Licenses, Registrations, Certifications, or Special Requirements:
Valid Texas Driver’s License.
Valid Texas Commercial Driver’s License (CDL).

Preferred:
Texas Pesticide and Herbicide Applicator’s License.
Certification for Inmate Supervision within Basic Corrections Officer training.

Page 1 of 2
5?71

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Road Maintenance Worker

JOB CODE: 08418 FLSA STATUS: Non-Exempt
PAY GRADE: 08 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS: (Cant.)

Knowledge, Skills, and Abilities:
Knowledge of:
• Policies, practices, procedures and methods of assigned function.
• Applicable safety practices and regulations.
• Texas Motor Vehicle Code and other codes, laws and statutes relating to assigned function.
• Light equipment and tools used in road maintenance.

Skill in:
• Operating a variety of road maintenance light equipment safely.
• Operating grounds maintenance equipment safely.
• Both verbal and written communication, including conveying and following instructions and providing information to

the public.

Ability to:
• Safely and correctly apply road construction and maintenance techniques.
• Safely and correctly drive light road maintenance and construction vehicles and equipment.
• Understand and follow instructions and communicate effectively, as required.
• Work independently and efficiently.
• Manage time well and meet timelines.
• Establish and maintain effective working relationships with County employees and officials, representatives of

outside agencies, and the general public.

WORK ENVIRONMENT AND PHYSICAL DEMANDS:

Physical requirements include the ability to lift/carry up to 50 pounds, visual acuity, speech and hearing, hand and eye
coordination and manual dexterity. Subject to standing, sitting, walking, climbing stairs, bending, stooping, crouching,
kneeling, pushing, pulling, reaching, twisting, balancing, repetitive motion, driving, client/customer contact, and squatting
to perform the essential functions. Subject to extreme temperatures, outside elements, noise, vibration, contact with dust,
fumes and hazardous chemicals, foul odors, animal and human fecal matter, insects and rodents.

This job description is intended to be generic in nature. It is not necessarily an exhaustive list of all duties
and responsibilities. The essential duties, functions and responsibilities and overtime eligibility may vary
based on the specific tasks assigned to the position.

Page2of2

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Road Maintenance Worker Senior

JOB CODE: 09415 FLSA STATUS: Non-Exempt
PAY GRADE: 09 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

JOB SUMMARY:

Performs road construction and maintenance work in one or more specialized public works programs. Installs and
maintains traffic control signs and striping. Assists in designing road signs and barricades and performs traffic control
within road construction work zones. Performs reconstruction/rehabilitation, surface maintenance, secondary drainage
and right-of-way maintenance. Oversees and leads the work of subordinate road staff and inmates in customer service
programs.

DISTINGUISHING CHARACTERISTICS:

This is the second in a series of two road maintenance-related job classifications within the General/Road Maintenance
job family. This classification is distinguished by performing traffic control sign installation and maintenance and
asphalt markings, legends and striping. This classification functions as a working lead over the activities of other road
maintenance staff and inmates in addition to performing the normal range of road maintenance duties. This
classification may require a flexible work schedule in order to meet the needs of the department.

DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES:

• Installs and maintains traffic control signs and asphalt markings and striping in compliance with the state, federal
and local laws, codes, regulations and procedures. Assists in designing road signs and barricades for traffic control
in road construction areas. Assists in ordering signs and related materials.

• Performs general traffic control at the job site to ensure a safe working environment. Places and gathers traffic
control signs and barricades within construction work zones and directs traffic within zone. Observes safety
precautions and follows safety rules and regulations.

• Operates light duty vehicles and equipment associated with roadway and right-of-way maintenance, including pick up
trucks, tractors, dump trucks, tank trucks, loaders/backhoes and rollers.

• Oversees and leads the work of subordinate road staff and inmates in customer service programs.

• Performs general road maintenance labor associated with tasks required to repair roadways and right-of-ways,
including mixing and pouring concrete, sealing cracks and patching roads and cleaning drains and ditches.

• Removes trash, erects fences and barricades, installs culverts, repairs and erects signs and guard rails, places hot or
cold asphalt mix, repairs driveway approaches and applies dust control emulsion to roadways.

• Installs, erects and processes materials associated with roadway and right-of-way maintenance.

• Provides assistance, as directed, during emergency situations, such as floods, severe weather and accidents.

• Performs preventative vehicle and equipment minor maintenance and repairs. Checks oil, water, fuel, services tires,
makes appropriate adjustments prior to leaving the job site. Maintains mileage and service record on vehicles driven.

• Cuts and removes brush, mows grass and weedeats along roadside, and removes safety or health hazards, including
dead animal removal and disposal from right-of-ways.

• Assists with indigent burials and cemetery grounds maintenance, as required.

• Performs other job-related duties as assigned.

MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS:

Education and ExDerience:
High School diploma or G.E.D. AND two (2) years of experience in either road construction and maintenance, or traffic
control device fabrication and sign barricade installation and maintenance;
OR,

Any combination of education and experience that has been achieved and is equivalent to the stated education and
experience and required knowledge, skills, and abilities sufficient to successfully perform the duties and responsibilities
of this job.

Page 1 of 2

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Road Maintenance Worker Senior

JOB CODE: 09415 FLSA STATUS: Non-Exempt
PAY GRADE: 09 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS: (Cont)

Licenses, Registrations, Certifications, or Special Requirements:
Valid Texas Driver’s License.
Valid Texas Commercial Driver’s License (CDL).

Preferred:
Texas Pesticide and Herbicide Applicator’s License.
Certification for Inmate Supervision within Basic Corrections Officer training.

Knowledge, Skills, and Abilities:
Knowledge of:
• Traffic control signs, sign construction and installation, asphalt striping, markings and legends in compliance with

state, federal and local laws, codes, regulations and procedures.
• Principles and practices of leading subordinate staff and inmates.
• Policies, practices, procedures and methods of assigned function.
• Applicable safety practices and regulations.
• Texas Motor Vehicle Code and other codes, laws and statutes relating to assigned function.
• Light equipment and tools used in road maintenance.

Skill in:
• Traffic control sign construction, installation and maintenance.
• Coordinating the work activities of assigned staff.
• Operating a variety of road maintenance light equipment safely.
• Operating grounds maintenance equipment safely.
• Both verbal and written communication, including conveying and following instructions and providing information to

the public.

Ability to:
• Train and advise others.
• Safely and correctly apply road and sign construction and maintenance techniques.
• Safely and correctly drive light road maintenance and construction vehicles and equipment.
• Understand and follow instructions and communicate effectively, as required.
• Work independently and efficiently.
• Manage time well and meet timelines.
• Establish and maintain effective working relationships with County employees and officials, representatives of

outside agencies, and the general public.

WORK ENVIRONMENT AND PHYSICAL DEMANDS:

Physical requirements include the ability to lift/carry up to 50 pounds, visual acuity, speech and hearing, hand and eye
coordination and manual dexterity. Subject to standing, sitting, walking, climbing stairs, bending, stooping, crouching,
kneeling, pushing, pulling, reaching, twisting, balancing, repetitive motion, driving, client/customer contact, and squatting
to perform the essential functions. Subject to extreme temperatures, outside elements, noise, vibration, contact with dust,
fumes and hazardous chemicals, foul odors, animal and human fecal matter, insects and rodents.

This job description is intended to be generic in nature. It is not necessarily an exhaustive list of all duties
and responsibilities. The essential duties, functions and responsibilities and overtime eligibility may vary
based on the specific tasks assigned to the position.

Page2of2 5_7

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Road Maintenance Supervisor

JOB CODE: 15281 FLSA STATUS: Exempt
PAY GRADE: 15 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

JOB SUMMARY:

Oversees and manages the daily operations of individual programs assigned, including work crews and their crew
leaders, performing construction and maintenance work in reconstruction, surface maintenance, traffic control,
secondary drainage, right-of-way maintenance and customer service program elements. Plans, schedules, coordinates
and prioritizes work, tracks production schedules and materials and resources consumed, and monitors program
processes for efficiency. Evaluates and inspects projects and recommends and implements program and process
changes, as required. Develops and submits program and project reports to management.

DISTINGUISHING CHARACTERISTICS:

This is the first in a series of two road maintenance-related job classifications within the General/Road Maintenance job
family. This classification is responsible for supervising road maintenance and construction projects through
subordinate, first-line supervisors. This classification may require a flexible work schedule in order to meet the needs of
the department.

DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES:

• Plans, develops, schedules, prioritizes, directs, implements and monitors the daily work activities of subordinate
supervisors, work crews and other staff performing construction and maintenance work in reconstruction, surface
maintenance, traffic control, secondary drainage, right-of-way maintenance and customer service program
elements.

• Manages subordinate first-line supervisors, work crews and other staff to ensure policies and procedures are
followed, work and safety standards are maintained and schedules are met. Interviews and recommends hires,
oversees training and development, assigns and evaluates employees. Counsels employees as necessary to
improve performance. Determines necessity of, implements, reviews and recommends disciplinary action or
termination of employees, as required.

• Inspects design specifications on project site for adherence to sound construction standards, overall project design
and quality control. Reviews engineering design plans for construction projects for feasibility or practical application
as it relates to conditions of site.

• Monitors, inspects and reports on work performance within programs. Recommends appraisal standard changes
based on production analysis and customer service standards tracking. Serves as technical advisor in road
maintenance and construction.

• Prepares cost estimates for road maintenance work and construction projects. Develops and submits program and
project reports, periodic production reports, and summary reports to management within appropriate time frames.
Prepares and recommends program objectives and budgets for each element assigned, including recommendations
for required additional resources.

• Communicates and coordinates with County staff, citizens, other public and private entities regarding program
operations, project coordination, schedules, work requests, traffic control, gas, telephone, water and sewage utility
issues and conflict resolution. Responds to public and citizen complaints and work requests by communicating
solutions, providing information, resolving road and right-of-way issues, evaluating problems and scheduling
required work as appropriate.

• Reviews and evaluates estimated project work materials and personnel resources needed to complete the annual
work plan objectives. Oversees and manages the inventory of materials and supplies to ensure an adequate
quantity is available to complete the work projects. Creates and/or approves purchase requests for vendors.

• Prepares cost estimates for road maintenance work and construction projects. Approves equipment repair
recommendations.

• Performs other job-related duties as assigned.

Pagelof3

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Road Maintenance Supervisor

JOB CODE: 15281 FLSA STATUS: Exempt
PAY GRADE: 15 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS: (Cont.)

Education and Experience:
Associate’s degree in Construction Management, General Studies, Applied Sciences, Construction Trades or a directly
related field AND five (5) years of increasingly responsible road maintenance and construction experience, including two
(2) years of supervisory or management experience;

OR,

Any combination of education and experience that has been achieved and is equivalent to the stated education and
experience and required knowledge, skills, and abilities sufficient to successfully perform the duties and responsibilities
of this job.

Licenses, Registrations, Certifications, or Special Requirements:
Valid Texas Driver’s License.

Knowledge, Skills, and Abilities:
Knowledge of:
• Supervisory principles, practices and techniques.
• Policies, practices, procedures and methods of road maintenance and construction.
• Equipment, materials and standards used in the construction and maintenance of roadways.
• Federal, State, Local and County applicable laws, rules, regulations and guidelines.
• Applicable safety practices and regulations.
• Texas Motor Vehicle Code and other codes, laws and statutes relating to assigned function.
• Equipment and tools used in road maintenance and construction.
• Computer equipment to include word processing, spreadsheets, databases and a variety of software packages.

Skill in:
• Managing, training, developing, assigning, coaching and evaluating staff.
• Managing road maintenance and construction operations.
• Operating a variety of road maintenance equipment safely.
• Both verbal and written communication.

Ability to:
• Plan, schedule, prioritize, direct, implement and monitor the work of staff.
• Plan, schedule and manage road maintenance and construction functions.
• Safely and correctly apply road and sign construction and maintenance techniques.
• Estimate materials, equipment and personnel needed for road and bridge reconstruction and maintenance projects.
• Monitor project progress and develop related reports and statistics.
• Read and interpret documents, such as safety rules, operating and maintenance instructions, and procedure

manuals.
• Inspect conditions and recommend effective technical solutions.
• Manage time well and meet timelines.
• Communicate effectively.
• Establish and maintain effective working relationships with County employees and officials, representatives of

outside agencies, and the general public.

Page2of3 5

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Road Maintenance Supervisor

JOB CODE: 15281 FLSA STATUS: Exempt
PAY GRADE: 15 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

WORK ENVIRONMENT AND PHYSICAL DEMANDS:

Physical requirements include the ability to lift/carry up to 10 pounds, visual acuity, speech and hearing, hand and eye
coordination and manual dexterity. Subject to standing, sitting, walking, climbing stairs, bending, stooping, crouching,
kneeling, pushing, pulling, reaching, twisting, balancing, repetitive motion, driving, client/customer contact, and squatting
to perform the essential functions. Subject to extreme temperatures, outside elements, noise, vibration, contact with dust,
fumes and hazardous chemicals, foul odors, animal and human fecal matter, insects and rodents.

This job description is intended to be generic in nature. It is not necessarily an exhaustive list of all duties
and responsibilities. The essential duties, functions and responsibilities and overtime eligibility may vary
based on the specific tasks assigned to the position.

Page3of3

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Road Maintenance Manager

JOB CODE: 18523 FLSA STATUS: Exempt
PAY GRADE: 18 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

JOB SUMMARY:

Directs and manages all resources associated with large public works programs. Develops, implements and monitors
program and project schedules to ensure effective and efficient completion of construction or service delivery. Directs and
manages field supervisors and program staff engaged in roadway reconstruction/rehabilitation, surface treatments, traffic
control, secondary drainage, right-of-way maintenance, emergency response, community restitution and customer services
programs.

DISTINGUISHING CHARACTERISTICS:

This is the second in a series of two road maintenance-related job classifications within the General/Road Maintenance
job family. This classification is responsible for directing and managing publics works programs and projects through
subordinate supervisors. This classification may require a flexible work schedule in order to meet the needs of the
department.

DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES:

• Manages road maintenance programs and program elements, including roadway reconstruction/ rehabilitation,
traffic control, secondary drainage, right-of-way maintenance, sign fabrication and customer services programs.
Manages other road maintenance related programs and coordinates contract purchases of road maintenance
materials.

• Directs and manages through subordinate field supervisors, work crews and other staff to ensure policies and
procedures are followed, work and safety standards are maintained and schedules are met. Oversees and
participates in interviewing, hiring, coaching, counseling, disciplining and performance appraisal.

• Develops and prepares program objectives and schedules and budgets for each element, including the
determination of resources required to meet work plan objectives. Coordinates deployment of resources within
individual programs and program elements by reviewing and approving schedules and resource assignments.

• Manages and participates in development of construction, equipment and material specifications for various
programs and projects. Documents project scope, duration and resource utilization. Approves proposed project
design and/or scope changes during construction.

• Evaluates program objectives and documents alternative or modifications to objectives or construction methods.
Presents objectives and program goals and schedules to internal staff and the public. Answers questions to clarify
program goals and objectives.

• Evaluates road and right-of-way conditions and formulates decisions regarding method and extent of repair required.
Determines resources required to complete repair including staff, materials and equipment.

• Communicates with and responds to constituents, other departments and public or private entities requests for
services or projects.

• May organize and manage the departments or division operations/dispatch center, administrative support and
emergency response operations.

• Performs other job-related duties as assigned.

MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS:

Education and Experience:
Bachelor’s degree in Civil Engineering, Public Administration, Planning or a directly related field AND six (6) years of
increasingly responsible road, bridge and/or drainage structure maintenance and construction experience, including
three (3) years of progressively responsible supervisory or management experience;

OR,

Any combination of education and experience that has been achieved and is equivalent to the stated education and
experience and required knowledge, skills, and abilities sufficient to successfully perform the duties and responsibilities
of this job.

Page 1 of 2

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Road Maintenance Manager

JOB CODE: 18523 FLSA STATUS: Exempt
PAY GRADE: 18 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS: (Cont.)

Licenses, Registrations, Certifications, or Special Requirements:
Valid Texas Driver’s License.

Knowledge, Skills, and Abilities:
Knowledge of:
• Management principles, practices and techniques.
• Policies, practices, procedures and methods of road maintenance and construction.
• Federal, State, Local and County applicable laws, rules, regulations and guidelines.
• Equipment, materials and standards used in the construction and maintenance of roadways.
• Applicable safety practices and regulations.
• Budgetary preparation, principles and techniques.
• Texas Motor Vehicle Code and other codes, laws and statutes relating to assigned function.
• Equipment and tools used in road maintenance and construction.
• Computer equipment to include word processing, spreadsheets, databases and a variety of software packages.

Skill in:
• Managing, training, developing, assigning, coaching and evaluating staff.
• Managing road maintenance and construction operations.
• Budgeting resources and costing estimation and allocation techniques.
• Operating a variety of road maintenance equipment safely.
• Both verbal and written communication.

Ability to:
• Plan, schedule, prioritize, direct, implement and monitor the work of staff.
• Plan, schedule and manage road maintenance and construction functions.
• Estimate materials, equipment and personnel needed for road and bridge reconstruction and maintenance projects.
• Monitor project progress and develop related reports and statistics.
• Inspect conditions and recommend effective technical solutions.
• Safely and correctly apply road and sign construction and maintenance techniques.
• Read and interpret documents, such as safety rules, operating and maintenance instructions, and procedure

manuals.
• Manage time well and meet timelines.
• Communicate effectively.
• Establish and maintain effective working relationships with County employees and officials, representatives of

outside agencies, and the general public.

WORK ENVIRONMENT AND PHYSICAL DEMANDS:

Physical requirements include the ability to lift/carry up to 10 pounds occasionally, visual acuity, speech and hearing, hand
and eye coordination and manual dexterity necessary to operate a computer and office equipment. Subject to standing,
walking, sitting, repetitive motion, reaching, climbing stairs, bending, stooping, kneeling, crouching, crawling, pushing,
pulling, balancing, client/customer contact, squatting to perform the essential functions. Subject to extreme
temperatures, outside elements, noise, vibration, contact with dust, fumes and hazardous chemicals, foul odors, animal and
human fecal matter, insects and rodents.

This job description is intended to be generic in nature. It is not necessarily an exhaustive list of all duties
and responsibilities. The essential duties, functions and responsibilities and overtime eligibility may vary
based on the specific tasks assigned to the position.

Page 2 of 2

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Laundry Attendant

JOB CODE: 07528 FLSA STATUS: Non-Exempt
PAY GRADE: 07 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

JOB SUMMARY:

Under close supervision, performs service work of sorting, washing, drying, processing and delivering laundry, towels
and linens. Performs all work using appropriate safety procedures.

DISTINGUISHING CHARACTERISTICS:

This is a job classification within the General/Road Maintenance job family. This classification is responsible for routine
laundry work. This classification may require a flexible work schedule in order to meet the needs of the department.

DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES:
• Operates laundering equipment. Receives and sorts soiled laundry, towels, and linens for commercial laundry.

Loads and unloads processed laundry, towels and linens from washers and dryers in the laundry room. May handle
contaminated articles.

• Assembles, irons, folds and delivers laundry and linens. Maintains replacement clothing room. Maintains inventory
of laundry.

• Inspects clothing for cleanliness. Provides proper care by mending torn clothing.

• Monitors and maintains inventory of supplies. Receives and replaces laundry chemicals, as required.

• Performs other job-related duties as assigned.

MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS:

Education and Experience:
Any combination of training and experience which demonstrates the ability to perform the duties of the position.

Licenses, Registrations, Certifications, or Special Requirements:
Valid Texas Driver’s License.

Knowledge, Skills, and Abilities:
Knowledge of:
• Methods and procedures used in laundry.
• Practices and techniques in caring for garments and linens.
• General office/clerical practices and procedures.

Skill in:
• Working with laundry equipment and materials in a laundry room.
• Both verbal and written communication.

Ability to:
• Sort laundry items.
• Work independently and efficiently.
• Manage time well and meet timelines.
• Determine appropriate procedures, methods and priorities for completing assigned work.
• Follow, understand and carry out verbal and written instruction and/or directions.
• Establish and maintain effective working relationships with departmental clientele, representatives of outside

agencies, other County employees and officials, and the general public.

WORK ENVIRONMENT AND PHYSICAL DEMANDS:
Physical requirements include the ability to lift/carry up to 10-20 pounds occasionally, visual acuity, speech and hearing,
hand and eye coordination. Subject to standing, walking, sitting, repetitive motion, reaching, climbing stairs, bending,
stooping, kneeling, crouching, crawling, pushing, pulling, balancing, reaching, twisting to perform the essential functions.

This job description is intended to be generic in nature. It is not necessarily an exhaustive list of all duties
and responsibilities. The essential duties, functions and responsibilities and overtime eligibility may vary
based on the specific tasks assigned to the position.

I K

Page 1 of 1

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Cook

JOB CODE: 08529 FLSA STATUS: Non-Exempt
PAY GRADE: 08 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

JOB SUMMARY:

Under close supervision, performs service work of preparing, cleaning and cooking a variety of foods using standardized
or revised recipes. Performs all work using appropriate safety procedures.

DISTINGUISHING CHARACTERISTICS:

This is a job classification within the General/Road Maintenance job family. This classification is responsible for routine
food preparation and kitchen work. This classification may require work in secure facilities. This classification may
require a flexible work schedule in order to meet the needs of the department.

DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES:

• Plans, prepares and cooks meats, soups, vegetables, sauces and gravies, salads and desserts. Checks food for
appearance and taste.

• Serves meals using proper portion control and acceptable methods of serving. Carves and displays meats,
vegetables, salads and desserts. Plans for proper utilization of overproduced foods.

• Operates, cleans, and maintains cooking utensils and related equipment used in the preparation of meals. Ensures
equipment is operational. Maintains cleanliness and safe working conditions in the kitchen area in accordance with
Health Department standards.

• Ensures proper storage of food and supplies. Stores and rotates perishable and nonperishable food. Monitors
inventory of food supply. Sets dishes and dining room equipment in proper storage. Receives and monitors kitchen
deliveries.

• Performs other job-related duties as assigned.

MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS:

Education and Experience:
One (1) year of increasingly responsible food preparation experience in a food service facility;

OR,

Any combination of education and experience that has been achieved and is equivalent to the stated education and
experience and required knowledge, skills, and abilities sufficient to successfully perform the duties and responsibilities
of this job.

Licenses, Registrations, Certifications, or Special Requirements:
Food Handler’s Registration as issued by the Austin/Travis County Health Human Services Department or by the Texas
Department of State Health Services.

Preferred:
Food Service Manager Certificate as issued by the Texas Board of Health.
Valid Texas Driver’s License.

Knowledge, Skills, and Abilities:
Knowledge of:
• Methods of preparing and storing food in large volumes.
• Methods of preparing modified and calculated diets.
• Health, sanitation, nutritional and safety practices involved in food preparation.
• General office/clerical practices and procedures.

Skill in:
• Using and cleaning equipment and materials for food preparation.
• Both verbal and written communication.

Pagelof2

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Cook

JOB CODE: 08529 FLSA STATUS: Non-Exempt
PAY GRADE: 08 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS: (Cont.)

Ability to:
• Exercise judgment and initiative in estimating food quantities.
• Work independently and efficiently.
• Manage time well and meet timelines.
• Determine appropriate procedures, methods, and priorities for completing assigned work.
• Follow, understand and carry out verbal and written instruction and/or directions.
• Establish and maintain effective working relationships with departmental clientele, representatives of outside

agencies, other County employees and officials, and the general public.

WORK ENVIRONMENT AND PHYSICAL DEMANDS:

Physical requirements include the ability to lift/carry up to 10-20 pounds occasionally, visual acuity, speech and hearing,
hand and eye coordination. Subject to standing, walking, sitting, repetitive motion, reaching, climbing stairs, bending,
stooping, kneeling, crouching, crawling, pushing, pulling, balancing, reaching, twisting to perform the essential functions.

This job description is intended to be generic in nature. It is not necessarily an exhaustive list of all dutie
and responsibilities. The essential duties, functions and responsibilities and overtime eligibility may vary
based on the specific tasks assigned to the position.

Page2of2

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Food Services Supervisor

JOB CODE: 12530 FLSA STATUS: Non-Exempt
PAY GRADE: 12 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

JOB SUMMARY:

Performs food service supervisor work of managing food service program. Performs all work using appropriate safety
procedures.

DISTINGUISHING CHARACTERISTICS:

This is the first in a series of two food services-related job classifications within the General/Road Maintenance job
family. This classification is responsible for supervisory and administrative responsibilities. This classification may
require work in secure facilities. This classification may require a flexible work schedule in order to meet the needs of
the department.

DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES:

• Oversees the serving of meals using proper portion control and acceptable methods of serving. Carves and
displays meats, vegetables, desserts and salads. Plans for proper utilization of overproduced foods.

• Plans, assigns and reviews work of support staff in the preparation, cleaning and cooking of meats, soups,
vegetables, sauces and gravies, salads and desserts. Oversees the checking of food for appearance and taste.
Inspects prepared foods for color, taste, aroma and temperature.

• Supervises the operation, maintenance, and cleaning of food preparation and related equipment. Inspects and
maintains cleanliness and safe working conditions in the kitchen area. Ensures equipment is operational and
supplies are readily available. Reports all equipment malfunctions.

• Assists in menu planning by coordinating efforts in ordering of appropriate supplies, preparation of food and serving
of food. Maintains food usage reports. Prepares food requisitions, as required.

• Ensures proper storage of foods. Receives, checks, stores and rotates perishable and nonperishable food and
kitchen deliveries.

• Ensures menu and production worksheets and recipes are followed and that therapeutic/religious diets are
administered. Completes daily head counts.

• Supervises staff, evaluates staff job performance and coordinates schedules and assignments, authorizes staff
productive and non-productive work hours, prepares and administers budget, prepares a variety of fiscal and
administrative reports.

• Ensures kitchen supplies are on hand. Assists in food purchases for regular meals and additional items for special
diets. Maintains inventory and inspections. Checks quantities and conditions of delivered items and supervises
effective storage.

• Performs other job-related duties as assigned.

MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS:

Education and Experience:
High School diploma or G.E.D AND three (3) years of related increasingly responsible food service work experience,
including one (1) year of supervisory experience;
OR,
Any combination of education and experience that has been achieved and is equivalent to the stated education and
experience and required knowledge, skills, and abilities sufficient to successfully perform the duties and responsibilities
of this job.

Licenses, Registrations, Certifications, or Special Requirements:
Food Handler’s Registration Certificate as issued by the Austin/Travis County Health and Human Services or by the
Texas Department of State Health Services.
Cardio-pulmonary Resuscitation (CPR) Certification or must obtain certification within six (6) months of date of hire.
Valid Texas Driver’s License.

Page 1 of 2

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Food Services Supervisor

JOB CODE: 12530 FLSA STATUS: Non-Exempt
PAY GRADE: 12 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS: (Cant.)

Preferred:
Food Service Manager Certificate as issued by the Texas Board of Health.

Knowledge, Skills, and Abilities:
Knowledge of:
• Health protection procedures and requirements in food handling.
• Supervision practices and techniques.
• Methods, materials and equipment used in large volume food preparation and storage.
• Health, sanitation, nutritional and safety practices involved in large volume food preparation.
• General office/clerical practices and procedures.
• Accounting, purchasing and budgetary theory, principles and practices.
• Federal, State, Local and County applicable laws, rules, regulations and guidelines.
• Policies, practices, procedures and terminology of assigned function.
• Computer equipment to include word processing, spreadsheets, databases and a variety of software packages.
• Business English, spelling and arithmetic, letter writing, grammar and punctuation, and report preparation.

Skill in:
• Problem-solving and decision-making.
• Supervising others.
• Using and cleaning equipment and materials for food preparation and related equipment.
• Both verbal and written communication.

Ability to:
• Apply food preparation procedures and nutritional principles.
• Train and supervise personnel.
• Plan, assign, motivate and coordinate work of support staff.
• Exercise judgment and initiative in estimating food quantities.
• Compile data and to write clear and comprehensive reports.
• Assist in monitoring a budget, implement and maintain filing and accounting systems.
• Research, compile, analyze, interpret and prepare a variety of fiscal, statistical and administrative reports.
• Determine appropriate procedures, methods, and priorities for completing assigned work.
• Follow verbal and written instructions and/or directions.
• Manage time well, perform multiple tasks and organize diverse activities.
• Independently prepare correspondence, memorandums, and other materials.
• Communicate verbally and in writing and exercise tact and courtesy.
• Establish and maintain effective working relationships with departmental clientele, representatives of outside

agencies, other County employees and officials, and the general public.

WORK ENVIRONMENT AND PHYSICAL DEMANDS:

Physical requirements include the ability to lift/carry up to 20-50 pounds occasionally, visual acuity, speech and hearing,
hand and eye coordination and manual dexterity necessary to operate a computer and office equipment. Subject to
standing, walking, sitting, repetitive motion, reaching, climbing stairs, bending, stooping, kneeling, crouching, crawling,
pushing, pulling, balancing, reaching, twisting to perform the essential functions.

This job description is intended to be generic in nature. It is not necessarily an exhaustive list of all duti
and responsibilities. The essential duties, functions and responsibilities and overtime eligibility may vary
based on the specific tasks assigned to the position.

‘7
Page 2 of 2

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Food Services Manager

JOB CODE: 15532 FLSA STATUS: Non-Exempt
PAY GRADE: 15 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

JOB SUMMARY:

Performs food service manager work of managing food service program. Performs all work using appropriate safety
procedures.

DISTINGUISHING CHARACTERISTICS:

This is the second in a series of two food services-related job classifications within the General/Road Maintenance job
family. This classification is responsible for supervisory and management responsibilities. This classification may
require work in secure facilities. This classification may require a flexible work schedule in order to meet the needs of
the department.

DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES:

• Manages food service program operations, including food preparation, serving, sanitation, and conformance with
nutritional standards. Ensures order, discipline and effective security measures prevail. Ensures compliance with
safety, sanitation, and health standards and regulations.

• Supervises staff, evaluates staff job performance and coordinates schedules and assignments, authorizes staff
productive and non-productive work hours, prepares and administers budget, prepares a variety of fiscal and
administrative reports.

• Purchases food items for regular meals and additional items for special diets. Checks quantities and conditions of
delivered items and gives proper instructions for effective storage. Prepares quarterly and monthly menus,
observing pounding limitations, economy and nutritional values. Maintains records and statistics and prepares
reports related to food service operations.

• Performs other job-related duties as assigned.

MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS:

Education and Experience:
High School diploma or G.E.D. AND four (4) years of related increasingly responsible food service work experience,
including one (1) year of supervisory experience;
OR,

Any combination of education and experience that has been achieved and is equivalent to the stated education and
experience and required knowledge, skills, and abilities sufficient to successfully perform the duties and responsibilities
of this job.

Licenses, Registrations, Certifications, or Special Requirements:
Food Service Manager Certificate as issued by the Texas Board of Health.
Cardio-pulmonary Resuscitation (CPR) Certification or must obtain certification within six (6) months of date of hire.
Valid Texas Driver’s License.

KnowIedce, Skills, and Abilities:
Knowledge of:
• Health protection procedures and requirements in food handling.
• Supervisory principles, practices and techniques.
• Methods, materials and equipment used in large volume food preparation and storage.
• Health, sanitation, nutritional and safety practices involved in large volume food preparation.
• General office/clerical practices and procedures.
• Accounting, purchasing and budgetary preparation and theory, principles and practices.
• Federal, State, Local and County applicable laws, rules, regulations and guidelines.
• Policies, practices, procedures and terminology of assigned function.
• Computer equipment to include word processing, spreadsheets, databases and variety of software packages.
• Business English, spelling and arithmetic, letter writing, grammar and punctuation, and report preparation.

Page 1 of 2

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Food Services Manager

JOB CODE: 15532 FLSA STATUS: Non-Exempt
PAY GRADE: 15 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS: (Cont.)

Skill in:
• Problem-solving and decision-making.
• Supervising others.
• Using and cleaning equipment and materials for food preparation and related equipment.
• Both verbal and written communication.

Ability to:
• Apply food preparation procedures and nutritional principles.
• Train and supervise personnel.
• Plan, assign, motivate and coordinate work of support staff.
• Exercise judgment and initiative in estimating food quantities.
• Compile data and to write clear and comprehensive reports.
• Assist in monitoring a budget, implement and maintain filing and accounting systems.
• Research, compile, analyze, interpret and prepare a variety of fiscal, statistical and administrative reports.
• Determine appropriate procedures, methods, and priorities for completing assigned work.
• Follow verbal and written instructions and/or directions.
• Manage time well, perform multiple tasks and organize diverse activities.
• Independently prepare correspondence, memorandums, and other materials.
• Communicate verbally and in writing and exercise tact and courtesy.
• Establish and maintain effective working relationships with departmental clientele, representatives of outside

agencies, other County employees and officials, and the general public.

WORK ENVIRONMENT AND PHYSICAL DEMANDS:

Physical requirements include the ability to lift/carry up to 20-50 pounds occasionally, visual acuity, speech and hearing,
hand and eye coordination and manual dexterity necessary to operate a computer and office equipment. Subject to
standing, walking, sitting, repetitive motion, reaching, climbing stairs, bending, stooping, kneeling, crouching, crawling,
pushing, pulling, balancing, reaching, twisting to perform the essential functions.

This job description is intended to be generic in nature. It is not necessarily an exhaustive list of all duties
and responsibilities. The essential duties, functions and responsibilities and overtime eligibility may vary
based on the specific tasks assigned to the position.

Page2of2

‘(7

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: School Crossing Guard Supervisor

JOB CODE: 11534 FLSA STATUS: Non-Exempt
PAY GRADE: 11 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

JOB SUMMARY:

Oversees the operations of providing protection to school children at school crossings, as well as maintaining an orderly
and safe movement of vehicular traffic to allow the children to cross safely. Reports any safety hazards that exist or
other potential hazards. Recruits process for school crossing guards. Provides training for school crossing guards.
Responds to complaints.

DISTINGUISHING CHARACTERISTICS:

This is a job classification within the General/Road Maintenance job family. This classification is responsible for
supervisory and administrative responsibilities. This classification may require a flexible work schedule in order to meet
the needs of the department.

DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES:

• Supervises school crossing guards, provides training, evaluates job performance and coordinates schedules and
assignments, authorizes productive and non-productive work hours.

• Performs on-site assessments of school crossing guards’ performance and proper use of safety equipment.
Conducts on-site visits to determine striping conditions on cross walks. Reports any safety hazards that exist or
other potential hazards.

• Maintains training programs for school crossing guards to ensure proper safety procedures.

• Responds to difficult inquires, grievances, or complaints from school officials and/or parents. Compiles statistical data
on complaints. Prepares a variety of administrative reports.

• Works closely with school officials, parents, the general public, department heads and other County staff.
Communicates and meets with school officials concerning any personnel or citizen complaint regarding the school
crossing guard program. Provides solutions or resolutions to problems.

• Performs other job-related duties as assigned.

MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS:

Education and Exierience:
High School diploma or G.E.D. AND two (2) years of increasingly responsible experience in a crossing guard program or
a similar program working with children and the public, including one (1) year of supervisory experience;

OR,

Any combination of education and experience that has been achieved and is equivalent to the stated education and
experience and required knowledge, skills, and abilities sufficient to successfully perform the duties and responsibilities
of this job.

Licenses, Registrations, Certifications, or Special Requirements:
Current Cardio-pulmonary Resuscitation (CPR) Certification.
Valid Texas Driver’s License.

Knowledge, Skills, and Abilities:
Knowledge of:
• Basic traffic and crossing regulations, laws and safety procedures related to school crossings.
• School schedules.
• Supervisory principles, practices and techniques.
• Modern office/clerical practices, procedures and methods.
• Standard practices in area of assignment.
• Policies, practices, procedures and terminology of assigned function.
• File management and techniques. i—JO

Pagelof2

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: School Crossing Guard Supervisor

JOB CODE: 11534 FLSA STATUS: Non-Exempt
PAY GRADE: 11 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS: (Cont.)

Knowledge of: (Cont.)
• Principles and procedures of record keepng.
• Computer equipment to include word processing, spreadsheets, databases and a variety of software packages.
• Business letter writing, grammar and punctuation, and report preparation.

Skill in:
• Problem solving and decision-making.
• Recording and compiling material for reports.
• Supervising others, including team building.
• Both verbal and written communication.

Ability to:
• Provide customer service.
• Train and supervise personnel.
• Compile data and write clear and comprehensive reports.
• Communicate effectively.
• Establish and maintain effective working relationships with departmental clientele, representatives of outside

agencies, other County employees and officials, and the general public.

WORK ENVIRONMENT AND PHYSICAL DEMANDS:

Physical requirements include the ability to lift/carry up to 10-20 pounds occasionally, visual acuity, speech and hearing,
hand and eye coordination and manual dexterity necessary to operate a computer and office equipment. Subject to
standing, walking, sitting, repetitive motion, reaching, climbing, bending, stooping, kneeling, crouching, crawling,
pushing, pulling, balancing, reaching, twisting to perform the essential functions.

This job description is intended to be generic in nature. It is not necessarily an exhaustive list of all duties
and responsibilities. The essential duties, functions and responsibilities and overtime eligibility may vary
based on the specific tasks assigned to the position.

Page2of2
/7/

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Mover

JOB CODE: 08539 FLSA STATUS: Non-Exempt
PAY GRADE: 08 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

JOB SUMMARY:

Under close supervision, performs service work of loading and unloading furniture and equipment, and drives truck to
specified destinations. Assembles and reassembles systems furniture. Moves excess equipment and furniture to the
fixed asset warehouse.

DISTINGUISHING CHARACTERISTICS:

This is a job classification within the General/Road Maintenance job family. This classification is responsible for moving
furniture and equipment from one destination to another. This classification may require a flexible work schedule in
order to meet the needs of the department.

DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES:

• Loads truck, drives to destination point, unloads contents and places into office or warehouse. Arranges items
properly to protect fragile furniture and equipment. Handles items carefully and distributes weight evenly, forming
compact load and maximizing available space. Covers furniture and equipment using a packing material or blankets
to prevent damage.

• Disassembles and reassembles various types of systems furniture.

• Trains and provides direction to assistants in properly preparing items for moving and in moving items.

• Obtains customers signatures on property transfer documentation and provides appropriate documents to receiving
destination.

• Performs other job-related duties as assigned.

MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS:

Education and Experience:
One (1) year of increasingly responsible moving or manual labor experience;

OR,

Any combination of education and experience that has been achieved and is equivalent to the stated education and
experience and required knowledge, skills, and abilities sufficient to successfully perform the duties and responsibilities
of this job.

Licenses, Registrations, Certifications, or Special Requirements:
Valid Texas Driver’s License.

Knowledge, Skills, and Abilities:
Knowledge of:
• Moving techniques.
• Policies, practices, procedures and methods of furniture assembly and moving services.
• Applicable safety practices and regulations.

Skill in:
• Packing, loading and unloading items for moves.
• Moving, assembling and reassembling systems furniture.
• Using moving trucks and dollies.
• Both verbal and written communication.

Page 1 of 2

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Mover

JOB CODE: 08539 FLSA STATUS: Non-Exempt
PAY GRADE: 08 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS: (Cont.)

Ability to:
• Safely and correctly apply moving techniques.
• Work independently and efficiently.
• Manage time well and meet timelines.
• Determine appropriate procedures, methods and priorities for completing assigned work.
• Follow, understand and carry out verbal and written instruction and/or directions.
• Establish and maintain effective working relationships with departmental clientele, representatives of outside

agencies, other County employees and officials, and the general public.

WORK ENVIRONMENT AND PHYSICAL DEMANDS:

Physical requirements include the ability to lift/carry up to 20-1 00 pounds with the assistance of moving equipment, visual
acuity, speech and hearing, hand and eye coordination. Subject to standing, sifting, walking, climbing, crawling, bending,
stooping, crouching, kneeling, pushing, pulling, reaching, twisting, balancing, repetitive motion, and squatting to perform
the essential functions.

This job description is intended to be generic in nature. It is not necessarily an exhaustive list of all duties
and responsibilities. The essential duties, functions and responsibilities and overtime eligibility may vary
based on the specific tasks assigned to the position.

(72
Page2of2

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: ShippinglReceivinglSupply Assistant

JOB CODE: 09540 FLSA STATUS: Non-Exempt
PAY GRADE: 09 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

JOB SUMMARY:

Under minimal supervision, performs service work of receiving, storing, and issuing materials, supplies and equipment.
Maintains inventory of materials, supplies, files and records. Retrieves and issues items from warehouse.

DISTINGUISHING CHARACTERISTICS:

This is a job classification within the General/Road Maintenance job family. This classification is responsible for
receiving, storing, retrieving and delivering supplies, equipment and materials within a general warehouse facility. This
classification may require a flexible work schedule in order to meet the needs of the department.

DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES:

• Receives, stores, and issues materials, supplies and equipment. Sorts and puts items on racks, shelves, or bins
according to predetermined sequences. Marks items and records tag numbers to identify property.

• Maintains inventory records of materials, supplies, files and records. Conducts daily inventory of tools and equipment.
Receives and inspects incoming tools and equipment.

• Coordinates warehouse operations. Retrieves, issues and distributes items from warehouse. Loads and unloads
materials with forklift.

• Prepares purchase orders for cleaning supplies. Checks and verifies supplies received to ensure receipt. Picks up and
delivers materials and custodial supplies from vendors.

• Provides guidance to workers assigned to assist in warehouse.

• Performs other job-related duties as assigned.

MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS:

Education and Experience:
High School diploma or G.E.D. AND one (1) year of increasingly responsible experience in shipping/receiving, stocking
or inventory control;

OR,

Any combination of education and experience that has been achieved and is equivalent to the stated education and
experience and required knowledge, skills, and abilities sufficient to successfully perform the duties and responsibilities
of this job.

Licenses, Registrations, Certifications, or Special Requirements:
Valid Texas Driver’s License.

Knowledge, Skills, and Abilities:
Knowledge of:
• Policies, practices, procedures and methods of warehouse/inventory management.
• Applicable safety practices and regulations.
• Equipment and tools used in warehouse operations.
• Stocking and inventory procedures.
• Ordering, stocking and inventory management techniques.

Skill in:
• Tracking parts inventory and related record keeping.
• Operating warehousing equipment.
• Both verbal and written communication.

Pagelof2

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: ShippinglReceivinglSupply Assistant

JOB CODE: 09540 FLSA STATUS: Non-Exempt
PAY GRADE: 09 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS: (Cont.)

Ability to:
• Safely and correctly operate warehousing equipment, including a forklift and truck.
• Provide guidance to workers assigned to assist in warehouse.
• Work independently and efficiently.
• Manage time well and meet timelines.
• Determine appropriate procedures, methods and priorities for completing assigned work.
• Follow, understand and carry out verbal and written instruction and/or directions.
• Establish and maintain effective working relationships with departmental clientele, representatives of outside

agencies, other County employees and officials, and the general public.

WORK ENVIRONMENT AND PHYSICAL DEMANDS:

Physical requirements include the ability to lift/carry up to 20-50 pounds occasionally, visual acuity, speech and hearing,
hand and eye coordination. Subject to standing, sitting, walking, climbing, crawling, bending, stooping, crouching,
kneeling, pushing, pulling, reaching, twisting, balancing, repetitive motion, and squatting to perform the essential
functions.

This job description is intended to be generic in nature. It is not necessarily an exhaustive list of all duties
and responsibilities. The essential duties, functions and responsibilities and overtime eligibility may vary
based on the specific tasks assigned to the position.

Page2of2 ‘75

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Equipment Operator

JOB CODE: 10323 FLSA STATUS: Non-Exempt
PAY GRADE: 10 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

JOB SUMMARY:

Operates light and heavy equipment in a variety of construction and maintenance activities. Performs all work in
compliance with established work schedules, methods and safety procedures and practices.

DISTINGUISHING CHARACTERISTICS:

This is the first in a series of two equipment operator-related job classifications within the Skilled Trades job family. This
classification is distinguished by the operation of the light and heavy motorized equipment, and by the experience. This
classification may require a flexible work schedule in order to meet the needs of the department.

DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES:

• Drives and operates light and heavy equipment, including track and pneumatic tire excavation equipment, loaders,
backhoes and dozers, class l—IV motor graders, haul trucks, dump trucks, tank trucks, asphalt paving and striping
machines, steel drum and pneumatic tire compaction machines and other equipment. Transfers equipment and
materials to and from job sites or other destinations.

• Performs general construction and maintenance duties, such as excavation for drainage ways, removing and
replacing concrete sidewalks, curbs and pads, and cutting brush. Operates general hand and power tools, as
required.

• Installs warning signs and barricades to assist the public by routing and controlling traffic around and within
construction and maintenance work site.

• Operates equipment during emergency situations, such as removing debris from roadways, response to floods,
severe weather, accidents, and ice on roadways, including the placement of sand on County roads and bridges with
sander attachment.

• Performs routine preventative repairs and maintenance, and refueling on equipment, such as checking tires, fluid
levels, grease areas, and hydraulic system. Cleans and cares for tools and equipment.

• Maintains records of mileage, servicing, minor maintenance, equipment hours, unit numbers, destinations on
equipment assigned. Estimates and recommends to supervisor materials needed on an assigned project; and,
records time and materials used. Identifies and recommends equipment needs for each assigned projects.
Requests for needed tools, equipment, supplies and materials. Monitors expenditure of supplies and controls
inventory of equipment and tools. Prepares reports, as required.

• Follows blueprints to ensure proper compliance for roads, culverts and drainage in maintenance construction.
Reworks roadways, incorporating standard construction and maintenance techniques to produce a finished product
to required specifications.

• Performs various additional general laboring tasks associated with assigned construction and maintenance projects,
such as patching roads, cutting brush, and building fences, as required.

• Performs other job-related duties as assigned.

MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS:

Education and Experience:
High School diploma or G.E.D. AND two (2) years of related increasingly responsible light and heavy equipment
operating experience;

OR,

Any combination of education and experience that has been achieved and is equivalent to the stated education and
experience and required knowledge, skills, and abilities sufficient to successfully perform the duties and responsibilities
of this job.

Page 1 of 2

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Equipment Operator

JOB CODE: 10323 FLSA STATUS: Non-Exempt
PAY GRADE: 10 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS: (Cant.)

Licenses, Registrations, Certifications, or Special Requirements:
Valid Texas Commercial Driver’s License (CDL).

Preferred:
One or more of the following endorsements on the license: Double/Triple Trailer (C), Passenger (P), Tank Vehicle (T),
Hazardous Materials (H), and Air Brakes (A).
Structural Pest Control Board License for Weed Control, or Lawn and Ornament.

Knowledge. Skills, and Abilities:
Knowledge of:
• Operation and maintenance characteristics of light and heavy equipment used for construction and maintenance

activities.
• Basic hand and power tools, and routine preventative maintenance on motorized equipment.
• Applicable provisions of operating hazards and safety rules and regulations, and precautions.
• Industry standards and processes.
• Business logging report preparation.

Skill in:
• Operating light and heavy construction and maintenance equipment.
• Diagnosing problem to repair and make field repairs and adjustments.
• Reading and interpreting schematics and blueprints.
• Applying proper and applicable safety practices, procedures and regulations.
• Working with others, including on a team.
• Calculating estimates of time, labor, and quantities of materials needed.
• Both verbal and written communication.

Ability to:
• Understand and precisely follow both verbal and written instructions and communicate in a concise and effective

manner.
• Reason and make judgments and decisions.
• Manage time well, perform multiple tasks, and organize diverse activities.
• Establish and maintain effective working relationships with departmental clientele, other County employees and

officials, representatives of outside agencies, and the general public.

WORK ENVIRONMENT AND PHYSICAL DEMANDS:

Physical requirements include the ability to lift/carry up to 10-60 pounds, visual acuity, speech and hearing, hand and eye
coordination and manual dexterity necessary to operate a computer and office equipment. Subject to standing, walking,
sitting, reaching, climbing stairs, bending, stooping, kneeling, crouching, crawling, pushing, repetitive motion, pulling,
driving, twisting, balancing, client/customer contact, squatting to perform the essential functions. Subject to contact with
mechanical hazards, chemical hazards, fume/odor hazards, toxic waste hazards, electrical hazards, explosive hazards,
biological hazards, noise, vibration, fumes, foul odor, dirt, dust, mist, gases, and poor ventilation, and moving large set of
construction parts, tools or machinery. Requires use of protective devices such as masks, goggles, and gloves. Requires
fieldwork, and exposure to traffic, public work development sites, construction site hazards, climbing and walking and
traveling over rough, uneven, mud, rocky, high grass terrain, and indoors/outdoors in all types of weather (excessive heat
and cold).

This job description is intended to be generic in nature. It is not necessarily an exhaustive list of all duties
and responsibilities. The essential duties, functions and responsibilities and overtime eligibility may vary
based on the specific tasks assigned to the position.

Page2of2 1’?

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Equipment Operator Senior

JOB CODE: 11324 FLSA STATUS: Non-Exempt
PAY GRADE: 11 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

JOB SUMMARY:

Provides lead supervision to a field crew. Operates light and heavy-duty equipment in a variety of construction and
maintenance activities. Performs all work in compliance with established work schedules, methods and safety
procedures and practices.

DISTINGUISHING CHARACTERISTICS:

This is the second in a series of two equipment operator-related job classifications within the Skilled Trades job family.
This classification is distinguished by acting as a lead worker to a field crew, the operation of light and heavy-duty
motorized equipment, and by the experience. This classification may require a flexible work schedule in order to meet
the needs of the department.

DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES:

• Serves as a lead worker to a field crew. Provides training to crewmembers in processes, operations and
maintenance of equipment.

• Drives and operates light and heavy-duty equipment, including track pneumatic, tire excavation equipment, loaders,
backhoes and dozers, class l—lV motor graders, haul trucks, dump trucks, tank trucks, asphalt paving and striping
machines, steel drum and pneumatic tire compaction machines and other equipment. Transfers equipment and
materials to and from job sites or other destinations.

• Operates mobile radio to communicate with crewmembers, dispatchers, and supervisor for instructions, directions,
new assignments, and availability of equipment or materials to be transferred.

• Performs general construction and maintenance duties, such as excavation for drainage ways, removing and
replacing concrete sidewalks, curbs and pads, and cutting brush. Operates general hand and power tools, as
required.

• Installs warning signs and barricades to assist the public by routing and controlling traffic around construction and
maintenance work site.

• Operates equipment during emergency situations, such as removing debris from roadways, responding to floods,
severe weather, accidents, and ice on roadways, including the placement of sand on County roads and bridges with
sander attachment.

• Performs routine preventative repairs and maintenance, and refueling on equipment, such as checking tires, fluid
levels, and hydraulic system. Cleans and cares for tools and equipment.

• Maintains records of mileage, servicing, minor maintenance, equipment hours, unit numbers, destinations on
equipment assigned. Estimates and recommends to supervisor materials needed on assigned project and records
time and materials used. Identifies and recommends equipment needs for each assigned projects. Requests for
needed tools, equipment, supplies and materials. Monitors expenditure of supplies and controls inventory of
equipment and tools. Prepares reports, as required.

• Follows blueprints to ensure proper compliance for roads, culverts and drainage in maintenance construction.
Reworks roadways, incorporating standard construction and maintenance techniques to produce a finished product
to required specifications.

• Performs various additional general laboring tasks associated with assigned construction and maintenance projects,
such as patching roads, cutting brush, and building fences, as required.

• Performs other job-related duties as assigned.

Page 1 of 3

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Equipment Operator Senior

JOB CODE: 11324 FLSA STATUS: Non-Exempt
PAY GRADE: 11 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS:

Education and Experience:
High School diploma or G.E.D. AND three (3) years of related increasingly responsible light and heavy equipment
operating experience, including one (1) year of lead experience;

OR,

Any combination of education and experience that has been achieved and is equivalent to the stated education and
experience and required knowledge, skills, and abilities sufficient to successfully perform the duties and responsibilities
of this job.

Licenses, Registrations, Certifications, or Special Requirements:
Valid Texas Commercial Driver’s License (CDL).

Preferred:
One or more of the following endorsements on the license: Double/Triple Trailer (C), Passenger (P), Tank Vehicle (T),
Hazardous Materials (H), and Air Brakes (A).
Structural Pest Control Board License for Weed Control or Lawn and Ornament.

Knowledge, Skills, and Abilities:
Knowledge of:
• Operation and maintenance characteristics of light and heavy equipment used for construction and maintenance

activities.
• Supervisory principles, practices and techniques.
• Basic hand and power tools, and routine preventative maintenance on motorized equipment.
• Applicable provisions of operating hazards and safety rules and regulations, and precautions.
• Industry standards and processes.
• Business logging report preparation.

Skill in:
• Operating light and heavy-duty construction and maintenance equipment.
• Operating mobile radios.
• Diagnosing problem to repair and make field repairs and adjustments.
• Reading and interpreting schematics and blueprints.
• Applying proper and applicable safety practices, procedures, and regulations.
• Working with others, including on a team.
• Calculating estimates of time, labor, and quantities of materials needed.
• Both verbal and written communication.

Ability to:
• Understand and precisely follow both verbal and written instructions and communicate in a concise and effective

manner.
• Reason and make judgments and decisions.
• Manage time well and perform multiple tasks, and organize diverse activities.
• Establish and maintain effective working relationships with departmental clientele, other County employees and

officials, representatives of outside agencies, and the general public.

Page 2 of 3

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Equipment Operator Senior

JOB CODE: 11324 FLSA STATUS: Non-Exempt
PAY GRADE: 11 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

WORK ENVIRONMENT AND PHYSICAL DEMANDS:

Physical requirements include the ability to lift/carry up to 10-60 pounds, visual acuity, speech and hearing, hand and eye
coordination and manual dexterity necessary to operate a computer and office equipment. Subject to standing, walking,
sitting, reaching, climbing stairs, bending, stooping, kneeling, crouching, crawling, pushing, repetitive motion, pulling,
driving, twisting, balancing, client/customer contact, squatting to perform the essential functions. Subject to contact with
mechanical hazards, chemical hazards, fume/odor hazards, toxic waste hazards, electrical hazards, explosive hazards,
biological hazards, noise, vibration, fumes, foul odor, dirt, dust, mist, gases, and poor ventilation, and moving large set of
construction parts, tools or machinery. Requires use of protective devices such as masks, goggles, and gloves. Requires
fieldwork, and exposure to traffic, public work development sites, construction site hazards, climbing and walking and
traveling over rough, uneven, mud, rocky, high grass terrain, and indoors/outdoors in all types of weather (excessive heat
and cold).

This job description is intended to be generic in nature. It is not necessarily an exhaustive list of all duti]
and responsibilities. The essential duties, functions and responsibilities and overtime eligibility may vary
based on the specific tasks assigned to the position.

Page 3 of 3

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Automotive Mechanic

JOB CODE: 12421 FLSA STATUS: Non-Exempt
PAY GRADE: 12 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

JOB SUMMARY:

Performs maintenance and repair work on light motor vehicles. Performs all work in compliance with established work
schedules, methods and safety procedures and practices.

DISTINGUISHING CHARACTERISTICS:

This is a job classification within the Skilled Trades job family. This classification is distinguished by the maintenance of
the light motor vehicles (vehicles that are less then 14,000 pounds gross vehicle weight rating (GVWR)), and by the
experience. This classification may require a flexible work schedule in order to meet the needs of the department.

DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES:

• Inspects, diagnoses, and repairs on light motor vehicles in accordance with manufactures specifications, such as
tune-ups, rebuilds, drivetrains, computers and electrical components.

• Services on light motor vehicles in accordance with preventive maintenance schedules, such as changing oil, oil
filters, fuel filters, air filters, transmission fluid and filters, water separators, hydraulic filters, lubricates all parts
requiring lubrication, makes minor adjustments on any and all components, and refills all fluids with the proper fluids.

• Conducts quality control checks and tests. Test drives light motor vehicles.

• Maintains records of repairs made, work orders, and time worked.

• Performs State inspections.

• Researches, locates and completes purchase requests for parts orders.

• Cleans and maintains a clean and safe work area and environment.

• Performs field service calls. Makes diagnosis and required repairs in the field.

• Operates charging system test equipment, steam cleaner and diagnostic scanners.

• Performs new motor vehicle make-ready as assigned.

• Performs other job-related duties as assigned.

MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS:

Education and Experience:
High School diploma or G.E.D. AND two (2) years of full-time light motor vehicle repair experience;

OR,

Any combination of education and experience that has been achieved and is equivalent to the stated education and
experience and required knowledge, skills, and abilities sufficient to successfully perform the duties and responsibilities
of this job.

Licenses, Registrations, Certifications, or Special Requirements:
Air Conditioner (Ri 2 & 1 34A) Refrigerant License within sixty (60) days of date of hire.
State Inspector’s License within sixty (60) days of date of hire.
Valid Texas Driver’s License.

Preferred:
Automotive Service Excellence (ASE) Certification.

Pagelof2
ii

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Automotive Mechanic

JOB CODE: 12421 FLSA STATUS: Non-Exempt
PAY GRADE: 12 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS: (Cont.)

Knowledge, Skills, and Abilities:
Knowledge of:
• Methods, materials, and tools used in repairing light motor vehicles.
• Federal, State, Local and County applicable laws, rules, regulations, guidelines, and applicable automotive

standards and procedures.
• Computer equipment to include word processing, spreadsheets, databases and a variety of software packages.

Skill in:
• Using and caring for tools and materials.
• Applying proper and applicable safety practices, procedures and regulations.
• Working with others, including on a team.
• Explaining complicated problems in simple non-technical language.
• Calculating estimates of time, labor and quantities of materials needed.
• Diagnosing problem to repair or replace.
• Both verbal and written communication.

Ability to:
• Diagnose problems and determine appropriate service or repair.
• Understand and precisely follow both verbal and written instructions and communicate in a concise and effective

manner.
• Maintain accurate records.
• Work efficiently, both independently and as part of a team.
• Reason and make judgments and decisions.
• Manage time well, perform multiple tasks and organize diverse activities.
• Establish and maintain effective working relationships with departmental clientele, other County employees and

officials, representatives of outside agencies, and the general public.

WORK ENVIRONMENT AND PHYSICAL DEMANDS:

Physical requirements include the ability to lift/carry up to 10-60 pounds, visual acuity, speech and hearing, hand and eye
coordination and manual dexterity necessary to operate a computer and office equipment. Subject to standing, walking,
sitting, repetitive motion, reaching, climbing stairs, bending for extended periods of time, stooping, kneeling, crouching,
crawling, pushing, pulling, driving, handling, use of vision, depth perception, reaching, forceful gripping, twisting,
balancing, client/customer contact, squatting to perform the essential functions. Subject to contact with exhaust fumes,
volatile chemicals and hazardous substances. Subject to contact with dangerous machinery, noise, vibration, fumes, foul
odor, dirt, dust, mist, gases, and poor ventilation, tools or machinery, indoors/outdoors in all types of weather (excessive
heat and cold).

This job description is intended to be generic in nature. It is not necessarily an exhaustive list of all duties
and responsibilities. The essential duties, functions and responsibilities and overtime eligibility may vary
based on the specific tasks assigned to the position.

Page 2 of 2

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Equipment Mechanic

JOB CODE: 13422 FLSA STATUS: Non-Exempt
PAY GRADE: 13 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

JOB SUMMARY:

Performs maintenance and repair work on heavy motor vehicles and equipment. May lead the work of staff. Performs
all work in compliance with established work schedules, methods and safety procedures and practices.

DISTINGUISHING CHARACTERISTICS:

This is the first in a series of two equipment mechanic-related job classifications within the Skilled Trades job family.
This classification is distinguished by the maintenance and repair work on heavy motor vehicles and equipment and by
the experience. This classification may require a flexible work schedule in order to meet the needs of the department.

DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES:

• Services, inspects, diagnoses, and repairs heavy motor vehicles and equipment in accordance with preventive
maintenance schedules or unscheduled repair work, such as tune-ups, basic and extensive brake jobs, transmission
work both automatic and manual, rear end, front end, fuel system, electrical systems, ignition system, engine
overhaul, tire repair and mounting, hydraulic systems, rebuilding carburetors, starters and engines.

• Conducts quality control checks and tests. Test drives heavy motor vehicles and equipment.

• Maintains records of repairs made, work orders, parts used and time worked.

• Performs State inspections.

• Researches, locates, and completes purchase requests for parts orders.

• Cleans equipment and maintains a clean and safe work area and environment.

• Performs field service calls. Makes diagnosis and required repairs in the field.

• Performs new heavy motor vehicle and equipment make-ready.

• Operates welding equipment, steam cleaner, and heavy repair equipment.

• Provides lead supervision to other staff in the absence of the supervisor, as required.

• Performs other job-related duties as assigned.

MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS:

Education and Experience:
High School diploma or G.E.D. AND three (3) years of full-time heavy motor vehicle and equipment mechanic
experience;

OR,

Any combination of education and experience that has been achieved and is equivalent to the stated education and
experience and required knowledge, skills, and abilities sufficient to successfully perform the duties and responsibilities
of this job.

Licenses, Registrations, Certifications, or Special Requirements:
Air Conditioner (Ri 2 & 1 34A) Refrigerant License or within sixty (60) days of date of hire.
State Inspector’s License or within sixty (60) days of date of hire.
Valid Texas Commercial Driver’s License (CDL).
One or more of the following endorsements on the license: Tank Vehicle (T) and Air Brakes (A).

Preferred:
Welding experience.
Automotive Service Excellence (ASE) Certification.
Two (2) years of diesel engine experience, training or certification.

Page 1 of 2

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Equipment Mechanic

JOB CODE: 13422 FLSA STATUS: Non-Exempt
PAY GRADE: 13 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS: (Cont.)

Knowledge. Skills, and Abilities:
Knowledge of:
• Methods, equipment, materials and tools used in repairing heavy motor vehicles and equipment.
• Federal, State, Local and County applicable laws, rules, regulations, guidelines; and, applicable automotive!

equipment standards and procedures.
• Computer equipment to include word processing, spreadsheets, databases and a variety of software packages.

Skill in:
• Using and caring for equipment, tools and materials.
• Applying proper and applicable safety practices, procedures and regulations.
• Working with others, including on a team.
• Explaining complicated problems in simple non-technical language.
• Calculating estimates of time, labor and quantities of materials needed.
• Diagnosing problem to repair or replace.
• Both verbal and written communication.

Ability to:
• Diagnose problems and determine appropriate service or repair.
• Understand and precisely follow both verbal and written instructions and communicate in a concise and effective

manner.
• Maintain accurate records.
• Work efficiently, both independently and as part of a team.
• Reason and make judgments and decisions.
• Manage time well, perform multiple tasks and organize diverse activities.
• Establish and maintain effective working relationships with departmental clientele, other County employees and

officials, representatives of outside agencies, and the general public.

WORK ENVIRONMENT AND PHYSICAL DEMANDS:

Physical requirements include the ability to lift/carry up to 10-60 pounds, visual acuity, speech and hearing, hand and eye
coordination and manual dexterity necessary to operate a computer and office equipment. Subject to standing, walking,
sitting, repetitive motion, reaching, climbing stairs, bending for extended periods of time, stooping, kneeling, crouching,
crawling, pushing, pulling, driving, handling, use of vision, depth perception, reaching, forceful gripping, twisting,
balancing, client/customer contact, squatting to perform the essential functions. Subject to contact with exhaust fumes,
volatile chemicals and hazardous substances. Subject to contact with dangerous machinery, noise, vibration, fumes, foul
odor, dirt, dust, mist, gases, and poor ventilation, tools or machinery, indoors/outdoors in all types of weather (excessive
heat and cold).

This job description is intended to be generic in nature. It is not necessarily an exhaustive list of all duties
and responsibilities. The essential duties, functions and responsibilities and overtime eligibility may vary
based on the specific tasks assigned to the position.

Page 2 of 2

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Equipment Mechanic Supervisor

JOB CODE: 15580 FLSA STATUS: Non-Exempt
PAY GRADE: 15 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

JOB SUMMARY:

Performs supervisory work, services and some repair work on light and heavy-duty vehicles and equipment. Oversees
and manages the yearly, monthly and daily operations of the vehicle/equipment maintenance and repair shops and staff
performing scheduled maintenance work and unscheduled maintenance repairs. Plans, schedules, coordinates and
prioritizes work, tracks production schedules and materials and resources consumed, and monitors program processes
for efficiency. Evaluates and inspects projects and recommends and implements program and process changes, as
required. Develops and submits program and project reports to management within appropriate time frames. Performs
all work in compliance with established work schedules, methods and safety procedures and practices.

DISTINGUISHING CHARACTERISTICS:

This is the second in a series of two equipment mechanic-related job classifications within the Skilled Trades job family.
This classification is distinguished by the scope of supervisory work and additional lead and technical experience being
performed. This classification may require a flexible work schedule in order to meet the needs of the department.

DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES:

• Supervises, plans, develops, schedules, prioritizes, directs, implements and monitors the daily work activities of
subordinates and other staff members performing daily maintenance and customer service program elements.

• Manages subordinates and other staff to ensure policies and procedures are followed, work and safety standards
are maintained, and schedules are met.

• Monitors, inspects and reports on work performance within programs. Recommends changes based on production
analysis and customer service standards tracking. Counsels employees as necessary to improve performance.
Determines necessity of, implements, reviews and recommends disciplinary action or termination of employees, as
required.

• May service, inspect, diagnose and perform some repair work on vehicles and equipment in accordance with
preventive maintenance schedules or unscheduled repair work.

• Conducts quality control checks and tests. Test drives vehicles and equipment.

• Prepares cost estimates for work projects.

• Coordinates purchase requests for parts orders. Controls and manages stock inventory for repair facility.

• Maintains records of repairs made, work orders and time worked. Prepares and evaluates reports and keeps
records on types of repairs, costs and materials used.

• Communicates and coordinates with County departments, staff, and other public and private entities regarding
program operations, project coordination, schedules, work requests, and issues and conflict resolutions. Serves as
technical advisor in fleet maintenance and repairs.

• Performs other job-related duties as assigned.

MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS:

Education and Experience:
Associate’s degree AND five (5) years of increasingly responsible fleet maintenance and repair experience, including two
(2) years of supervisory or management experience;

OR,

Any combination of education and experience that has been achieved and is equivalent to the stated education and
experience and required knowledge, skills, and abilities sufficient to successfully perform the duties and responsibilities
of this job.

Page 1 of 2

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Equipment Mechanic Supervisor

JOB CODE: 15580 FLSA STATUS: Non-Exempt
PAY GRADE: 15 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS: (Cont.)

Licenses, Registrations, Certifications, or Special Requirements:
State Inspector’s License or within sixty (60) days of date of hire.
Valid Texas Driver’s License.
Valid Texas Commercial Driver’s License (CDL) or within two (2) weeks of date of hire.

Preferred:
One or more of the following endorsements on the license: Tank Vehicle (T) and Air Brakes (A).
Welding experience.
Automotive Service Excellence (ASE) Certification and certified in A/C Recycling.

Knowledge, Skills, and Abilities:
Knowledge of:
• Methods, equipment, materials and tools used in repairing light and heavy-duty vehicles and equipment.
• Federal, State, Local and County applicable laws, rules, regulations, guidelines; and, applicable automotive!

equipment standards and procedures.
• Supervisory principles, practices and techniques.
• Computer equipment to include word processing, spreadsheets, databases and a variety of software packages.

Skill in:
• Operating and using tools, equipment, materials and supplies used in motor vehicle fleet maintenance, and light and

heavy-duty equipment.
• Applying proper and applicable safety practices, procedures and regulations.
• Working with others, including on a team.
• Explaining complicated problems in simple non-technical language.
• Calculating estimates of time, labor and quantities of materials needed.
• Diagnosing problem to repair or replace.
• Both verbal and written communication.

Ability to:
• Supervise and train the work of staff.
• Understand and precisely follow both verbal and written instructions and communicate in a concise and effective

manner.
• Prepare and maintain work records and reports.
• Work efficiently, both independently and as part of a team.
• Reason and make judgments and decisions.
• Manage time well, perform multiple tasks and organize diverse activities.
• Establish and maintain effective working relationships with departmental clientele, other County employees and

officials, representatives of outside agencies, and the general public.

WORK ENVIRONMENT AND PHYSICAL DEMANDS:

Physical requirements include the ability to lift/carry up to 10-60 pounds, visual acuity, speech and hearing, hand and eye
coordination and manual dexterity necessary to operate a computer and office equipment. Subject to standing, walking,
sitting, repetitive motion, reaching, climbing stairs, bending for extended periods of time, stooping, kneeling, crouching,
crawling, pushing, pulling, driving, handling, use of vision, depth perception, reaching, forceful gripping, twisting,
balancing, client/customer contact, squatting to perform the essential functions. Subject to contact with exhaust fumes,
volatile chemicals and hazardous substances. Subject to contact with dangerous machinery, noise, vibration, fumes, foul
odor, dirt, dust, mist, gases, and poor ventilation, tools or machinery, indoors/outdoors in all types of weather (excessive
heat and cold).

This job description is intended to be generic in nature. It is not necessarily an exhaustive list of all duties
and responsibilities. The essential duties, functions and responsibilities and overtime eligibility may vary
based on the specific tasks assigned to the position.

Page 2 of 2

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Sign Technician

JOB CODE: 10541 ELSA STATUS: Non-Exempt
PAY GRADE: 10 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

JOB SUMMARY:

Performs work for full range production of traffic, and other various signs for County departments. Performs all work
using appropriate safety procedures.

DISTINGUISHING CHARACTERISTICS:

This is the first in a series of two sign tech-related job classifications within the Skilled Trades job family. This
classification is distinguished by the experience and the ability to perform skilled journey level of work in sign fabrication
and assembly. This classification may require a flexible work schedule in order to meet the needs of the department.

DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES:

• Performs work within the full range of production, fabrication, assembly and installation of traffic, and other various
signs for County departments.

• Performs processing work by operating computerized sign making equipment, heat activated vacuum applicator,
pressure sensitive sign applicator and other processes.

• Reviews and performs layout, design, computer designs, silk screening and other processes in compliance with
regulations and standards. Performs layout with graphic art designs for custom information signs and graphic
application.

• Develops, maintains and updates databases and other associated computer systems. Develops technical and
administrative project reports.

• Ensures equipment and materials are safe, operational and maintained. Requests for needed tools, equipment,
supplies and materials to perform assigned tasks.

• Researches and estimates time and materials needed and records time and materials used.

• Performs other job-related duties as assigned.

MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS:

Education and Experience:
High School diploma or G.E.D. AND one (1) year of related increasingly responsible skilled graphic design and/or sign
fabrication work experience;

OR,

Any combination of education and experience that has been achieved and is equivalent to the stated education and
experience and required knowledge, skills, and abilities sufficient to successfully perform the duties and responsibilities
of this job.

Licenses, Registrations, Certifications, or Special Requirements:
Valid Texas Driver’s License.

Knowledge, Skills, and Abilities:
Knowledge of:
• Codes, related terminology, practices and procedures as to sign fabrication and assembly.
• Preventive maintenance schedules and procedures for operations and systems associated with sign fabrication.
• Federal, State, Local and County applicable laws, regulatory codes, rules, permits, guidelines, licenses, practices,

standards, policies and procedures.
• Computer equipment to include word processing, presentations, spreadsheets, databases, maps, records, graphics,

project scheduling and management, and other related graphic applications.
• Business letter writing, grammar and punctuation, and report preparation.

Page 1 of 2

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Sign Technician

JOB CODE: 10541 FLSA STATUS: Non-Exempt
PAY GRADE: 10 LAST REVISED: 10/01109

MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS: (Cont.)

Skill in:
• Using and caring for equipment, tools and materials.
• Installing and maintaining work.
• Reading and interpreting schematics and blueprints.
• Proper and applicable safety practices, procedures and regulations.
• Working with others, including on a team.
• Explaining complicated problems in simple non-technical language.
• Calculating estimates of time, labor and quantities of materials needed.
• Diagnosing problem to repair or replace.
• Both verbal and written communication.

Ability to:
• Read and comprehend lay out specifications and plans.
• Exercise sound judgment and make decisions.
• Manage time well, perform multiple tasks and organize diverse activities.
• Perform in a stressful environment, while maintaining a professional manner.
• Follow verbal and written instructions and/or directions.
• Establish and maintain effective working relationships with County employees and officials, developers, engineers,

contractors, representatives of outside agencies, and the general public.

WORK ENVIRONMENT AND PHYSICAL DEMANDS:

Physical requirements include the ability to lift/carry up to 10-60 pounds, visual acuity, speech and hearing, hand and eye
coordination and manual dexterity necessary to operate a computer and office equipment. Subject to viewing screens for
long periods, standing, walking, sitting, repetitive motion, reaching, climbing stairs, bending for extended periods of time,
stooping, kneeling, crouching, crawling, pushing, pulling, driving, handling, use of vision, depth perception, reaching,
forceful gripping, twisting, balancing, client/customer contact, squatting to perform the essential functions. Subject to
contact with noise, vibration, fumes, foul odor, dirt, dust, mist, gases, and poor ventilation, and moving large set of
construction parts, tools or machinery. Requires use of protective devices such as masks, goggles, and gloves. Requires
fieldwork, and exposure to traffic, public work development sites, construction site hazards, climbing and walking and
traveling over rough, uneven, mud, rocky, high grass terrain, indoors/outdoors in all types of weather (excessive heat and
cold).

This job description is intended to be generic in nature. It is not necessarily an exhaustive list of all duties
and responsibilities. The essential duties, functions and responsibilities and overtime eligibility may vary
based on the specific tasks assigned to the position.

Page 2 of 2

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Sign Technician Supervisor

JOB CODE: 11547 FLSA STATUS: Non-Exempt
PAY GRADE: 11 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

JOB SUMMARY:

Supervises daily work activities for full range production of traffic and other various signs for County departments.
Performs all work using appropriate safety procedures.

DISTINGUISHING CHARACTERISTICS:

This is the second in a series of two sign tech-related job classifications within the Skilled Trades job family. This
classification is distinguished by the additional experience, supervisory responsibilities, and the ability to perform skilled
journey level of work in sign fabrication and assembly. This classification may require a flexible work schedule in order
to meet the needs of the department.

DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES:

• Supervises and performs work within the full range of production, fabrication, assembly and installation of signs and
other various signs for County departments.

• Performs and monitors staff, processes work by operating computerized sign making equipment, heat activated
vacuum applicator, pressure sensitive sign application and other processes.

• Reviews and performs layout, design, computer designs, silk screening and other processes in compliance with
regulations and standards. Performs layout with graphic art design for custom information signs and graphic
application.

• Develops, maintains and updates databases and other associated computer systems. Develops technical and
administrative project reports.

• Oversees and ensures equipment are safe, operational, and maintained. Monitors and maintains inventory.
Requests for needed tools, equipment, supplies and materials to perform assigned tasks. Performs quality control
checks.

• Researches and estimates time and materials needed and records time and materials used.

• Supervises staff, evaluates staff job performance and coordinates schedules and assignments, authorizes staff
productive and non-productive work hours, prepares and administers budget, prepares a variety of fiscal and
administrative reports.

• Performs other job-related duties as assigned.

MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS:

Education and Experience:
High School diploma or G.E.D. AND two (2) years of related increasingly responsible skilled graphic design and/or
fabrication work experience, including one (1) year of lead experience;

OR,

Any combination of education and experience that has been achieved and is equivalent to the stated education and
experience and required knowledge, skills, and abilities sufficient to successfully perform the duties and responsibilities
of this job.

Licenses, Registrations, Certifications, or Special Requirements:
Valid Texas Driver’s License.

Knowledge, Skills, and Abilities:
Knowledge of:
• Codes, related terminology, practices and procedures as to sign fabrication and assembly.
• Preventive maintenance schedules and procedures for operations and systems with sign fabrication.
• Federal, State, Local and County applicable laws, regulatory codes, rules, permits, guidelines, licenses, practices,

standards, policies and procedures.
• Management and supervisory principles, practices and techniques.

Page 1 of 2

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Sign Technician Supervisor

JOB CODE: 11547 FLSA STATUS: Non-Exempt
PAY GRADE: 11 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS: (Cont.)

Knowledge of: (Cont.)
Computer equipment to include word processing, presentations, spreadsheets, databases, maps, records, graphics,
project scheduling and management, and other related graphics applications.

• Business letter writing, grammar and punctuation, and report preparation.

Skill in:
• Using and caring for equipment, tools and materials.
• Installing and maintaining work.
• Reading and interpreting schematics and blueprints.
• Proper and applicable safety practices, procedures and regulations.
• Working with others, including on a team.
• Explaining complicated problems in simple non-technical language.
• Calculating estimates of time, labor and quantities of materials needed.
• Diagnosing problem to repair or replace.
• Both verbal and written communication.

Ability to:
• Read and comprehend lay out specifications and plans.
• Exercise sound judgment and make decisions.
• Manage time well, perform multiple tasks and organize diverse activities.
• Perform in a stressful environment while maintaining a professional manner.
• Follow verbal and written instructions and/or directions.
• Establish and maintain effective working relationships with County employees and officials, developers, engineers,

contractors, representatives of outside agencies, and the general public.

WORK ENVIRONMENT AND PHYSICAL DEMANDS:

Physical requirements include the ability to lift/carry up to 10-60 pounds, visual acuity, speech and hearing, hand and eye
coordination and manual dexterity necessary to operate a computer and office equipment. Subject to viewing screens for
long periods, standing, walking, sitting, repetitive motion, reaching, climbing stairs, bending for extended periods of time,
stooping, kneeling, crouching, crawling, pushing, pulling, driving, handling, use of vision, depth perception, reaching,
forceful gripping, twisting, balancing, client/customer contact, squatting to perform the essential functions. Subject to
contact with noise, vibration, fumes, foul odor, dirt, dust, mist, gases, and poor ventilation, and moving large set of
construction parts, tools or machinery. Requires use of protective devices such as masks, goggles, and gloves. Requires
fieldwork, and exposure to traffic, public work development sites, construction site hazards, climbing and walking and
traveling over rough, uneven, mud, rocky, high grass terrain, indoors/outdoors in all types of weather (excessive heat and
cold).

rThis job description is intended to be generic in nature. It is not necessarily an exhaustive list of all duties
and responsibilities. The essential duties, functions and responsibilities and overtime eligibility may vary
based on the specific tasks assigned to the position.

Page 2 of 2

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: HVAC Refrigeration Mechanic

JOB CODE: 15548 FLSA STATUS: Non-Exempt
PAY GRADE: 15 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

JOB SUMMARY:

Performs skilled journey level work for preventive maintenance, repairs, and additions to County heating, ventilation, air
conditioning and refrigeration (HVAC) systems, including preventive maintenance and repairs on large chillers, heating
boilers, water treatment systems and associated equipment. Serves as Technical Quality Assurance Evaluator on any
contracted work on these systems. Performs all work in accordance with adopted building codes using appropriate
safety procedures.

DISTINGUISHING CHARACTERISTICS:

This is a job classification within the Skilled Trades job family. This classification is distinguished by the additional
experience and the ability to perform skilled journey level of HVAC work on large chiller water refrigeration
systems/boilers. This classification may require work in secure facilities. This classification may require a flexible work
schedule in order to meet the needs of the department

DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES:

• Performs routine maintenance and repair on chilled water cooling systems and hot water/steam heating systems,
including related equipment.

• Performs daily, weekly and monthly inspection, testing, certification, maintenance and repairs on the large chilled
water and heating systems.

• Maintains equipment logs for assigned systems.

• Inspects and corrects settings for control, and safety devices associated with chillers/boilers.

• Opens and inspects chillers, condensers, cooling towers, belts, valves, back-flow preventers and motors.

• Opens, inspects and cleans assigned boilers, operates and bleeds feed equipment to ensure proper operation,
chemically tests system water, checks motors, pumps and couplings prior to winter startup.

• Checks steam lines and gas pressure to boilers. Provides summer shut down of heating systems.

• Monitors expiration dates for boiler certifications and schedules inspections.

• Provides technical quality assurance evaluations for contractor work on assigned systems.

• Provides on-the-job training and serves as crew leader for mechanics on chiller/boiler systems.

• Researches and estimates time and materials needed and records time and materials used. Requests for needed
tools, equipment, supplies and materials to perform assigned tasks. Monitors expenditure of supplies and controls
inventory of equipment and tools.

• Performs other job-related duties as assigned.

MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS:

Education and ExDerience:
Associate’s degree in a technical field AND five (5) years experience in chiller and boiler maintenance field, including two
(2) years experience in maintenance of large chiller units;

OR,

Seven (7) years experience in chiller and boiler maintenance field, including two (2) years of documented experience in
maintenance of large chiller units;

OR,

Any combination of education and experience that has been achieved and is equivalent to the stated education and
experience and required knowledge, skills, and abilities sufficient to successfully perform the duties and responsibilities
of this job.

Page 1 of 3

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: HVAC Refrigeration Mechanic

JOB CODE: 15548 FLSA STATUS: Non-Exempt
PAY GRADE: 15 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS: (Cont.)

Licenses, Registrations, Certifications, or Special Requirements:
Environmental Protection Agency (EPA) Universal CFC Certification.
Valid Texas Driver’s License.

Preferred:
Certification as a chiller mechanic by at least one major chiller manufacturer.
Three (3) to five (5) years of correctional or institutional experience.

Knowledge, Skills, and Abilities:
Knowledge of:
• HVAC codes, related terminology, practices and procedures.
• Standard HVAC maintenance and repair methods, materials, tools and equipment.
• Centrifugal/screw chillers, hot water and steam boiler systems and associated systems.
• Proper procedures for working with and containing freons.
• Preventive maintenance schedules and procedures for major chiller/heating systems.
• Remote and other DDC systems to monitor system operations.
• Chilled water expansion systems.
• Federal, State, Local and County applicable laws, guidelines, rules, regulations and applicable carpentry standards

and procedures.
• Computer equipment to include word processing, spreadsheets, databases and a variety of software packages.
• Business letter writing, grammar and punctuation, and report preparation.

Skill in:
• Operating and using standard HVAC tools and equipment.
• Installing and maintaining HVAC work.
• Reading and interpreting schematics and blueprints.
• Proper and applicable safety practices, procedures and regulations.
• Working with others, including on a team.
• Explaining complicated problems in simple non-technical language.
• Calculating estimates of time, labor and quantities of materials needed.
• Diagnose problem to repair or replace.
• Both verbal and written communication.

Ability to:
• Understand and precisely follow both verbal and written instructions and communicate in a concise and effective

manner.
• Work efficiently, both independently and as part of a team.
• Reason and make judgments and decisions.
• Manage time well, perform multiple tasks and organize diverse activities.
• Establish and maintain effective working relationships with departmental clientele, other County employees and

officials, representatives of outside agencies, and the general public.

VPage 2 of 3

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: HVAC Refrigeration Mechanic

JOB CODE: 15548 FLSA STATUS: Non-Exempt
PAY GRADE: 15 LAST REVISED: 10101/09

WORK ENVIRONMENT AND PHYSICAL DEMANDS:

Physical requirements include the ability to lift/carry up to 50 pounds, visual acuity, speech and hearing, hand and eye
coordination and manual dexterity necessary to operate a computer and office equipment. Subject standing, walking,
sitting, repetitive motion, reaching, climbing stairs, bending for extended periods of time, stooping, kneeling, crouching,
crawling, pushing, pulling, driving, handling, use of vision, depth perception, reaching, forceful gripping, twisting,
balancing, client/customer contact, squatting, working in cramped or confined spaces or areas for extended periods of
time to perform the essential functions. Subject to contact with hazardous waste, foul odors, animal and human fecal
matter, insects and rodents, toxic or potential hazardous chemical or substances, dirt, dust, fumes, smoke, loud noises, and
high voltage. Requires work indoors/outdoors in all types of weather (excessive heat and cold). Requires working at
heights from ladders and scaffolds.

This job description is intended to be generic in nature. It is not necessarily an exhaustive list of all duties
and responsibilities. The essential duties, functions and responsibilities and overtime eligibility may vary
based on the specific tasks assigned to the position.

Page 3of3

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Fleet Services Coordinator

JOB CODE: 20549 FLSA STATUS: Exempt
PAY GRADE: 20 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

JOB SUMMARY:

Oversees daily operations of the countywide fleet shops, schedules fleet maintenance, oversees the distribution of newly
purchased vehicles and equipment with other departments. Serves as technical advisor with various other departments.
Performs all work in compliance with established work schedules, methods and safety procedures and practices.

DISTINGUISHING CHARACTERISTICS:

This is a job classification within the Skilled Trades job family. This classification is distinguished by the supervisory
responsibility, the technical advisor responsibility and additional experience. This classification may require a flexible
work schedule in order to meet the needs of the department.

DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES:

• Oversees daily operations of the countywide fleet shops.

• Coordinates vehicle and equipment servicing, repair and replacement activities with other departments.

• Prepares policies and procedures. Monitors policies for compliance with Local, State and Federal requirements.
Interprets and applies regulatory requirements.

• Coordinates and maintains fleet database information system. Tracks and reviews vehicles. Reviews and analyzes
documentation. Generates reports and statistical data, as required. Prepares a variety of administrative reports.

• Oversees the distribution of newly purchased vehicles and equipment with other departments.

• Manages the daily operations of the countywide fueling infrastructure.

• Serves as technical advisor to other departments.

• Assists in developing strategic short and long-term plans, develops and implements goals, objectives, policies,
procedures and priorities. Coordinates with officials to achieve those goals.

• Ensures the adherence to safe work practices and regulations. Oversees all safety issues concerning fleet services.

• Reviews specifications with established procedures for contract issues.

• Works closely with officials, department heads, multiple outside suppliers and other County staff.

• Represents the County in attending meetings, community meetings, seminars, conferences, professional
association meetings, private organizations and participates on related committees.

• Provides and/or arranges in-service training to staff.

• Performs other job-related duties as assigned.

MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS:

Education and Experience:
Associate’s degree AND five (5) years of directly related, increasingly responsible vehicle and equipment maintenance
servicing operations or fleet automotive mechanical repair and maintenance work experience, including two (2) years of
supervisory experience;

OR,

Any combination of education and experience that has been achieved and is equivalent to the stated education and
experience and required knowledge, skills, and abilities sufficient to successfully perform the duties and responsibilities
of this job.

Page 1 of 2

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Fleet Services Coordinator

JOB CODE: 20549 FLSA STATUS: Exempt
PAY GRADE: 20 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS: (Cont.)

Licenses, Registrations, Certifications, or Special Requirements:
Valid Texas Driver’s License.

Knowledge, Skills, and Abilities:
Knowledge of:
• Federal, State, Local and County applicable laws, rules, regulatory codes, guidelines, regulations, standards,

policies and procedures.
• Principles and methods of organizational management and inventory techniques.
• Supervisory principles, practices and techniques.
• Computer software equipment to include word processing, presentations, spreadsheets, databases, maps, records,

graphics, project scheduling and management, and other related engineering applications.
• Business letter writing, grammar and punctuation, and report preparation.

Skill in:
• Operating, caring and using tools, equipment, materials, and supplies used in motor vehicle fleet maintenance, and

light and heavy equipment.
• Proper and applicable safety practices, procedures and regulations.
• Explaining problems in simple non-technical language.
• Working with others, including on a team.
• Both verbal and written communication.

Ability to:
• Operate and maintain computerized tracking systems.
• Prepare and maintain work records and reports.
• Plan, research, and analyze operations.
• Supervise and train the work of staff.
• Work efficiently, both independently and as part of a team.
• Reason and make judgments and decisions.
• Manage time well, perform multiple tasks and organize diverse activities.
• Establish and maintain effective working relationships with departmental clientele, other County employees and

officials, representatives of outside agencies, and the general public.

WORK ENVIRONMENT AND PHYSICAL DEMANDS:

Physical requirements include the ability to lift/carry up to 30 pounds, visual acuity, speech and hearing, hand and eye
coordination and manual dexterity necessary to operate a computer and office equipment. Subject to standing, walking,
sitting, reaching, climbing stairs, bending, stooping, kneeling, crouching, pushing, pulling, driving, forceful gripping,
twisting, balancing, repetitive motion, depth perception, client/customer contact, squatting, and bending for extended
periods of time to perform the essential functions. Subject to contact with exhaust fumes, volatile chemicals and
hazardous substances. Subject to contact with dangerous machinery, noise, vibration, fumes, foul odor, dirt, dust, mist,
gases, and poor ventilation, tools or machinery, indoors/outdoors in all types of weather (excessive heat and cold).

This job description is intended to be generic in nature. It is not necessarily an exhaustive list of all duties
and responsibilities. The essential duties, functions and responsibilities and overtime eligibility may vary
based on the specific tasks assigned to the position.

95
Page 2 of 2

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Carpenter Associate

JOB CODE: 10064 FLSA STATUS: Non-Exempt
PAY GRADE: 10 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

JOB SUMMARY:

Under the direction of a highly skilled carpenter, performs carpenter duties, the repair, maintenance, inspection and
installation of systems, and includes electrical, plumbing and HVAC projects. Provides direct housing services, including
provision of on-site labor. Installs weatherization materials and performs home repair activities including carpentry,
plumbing, and electrical repairs. Performs all work in accordance with adopted building codes and using appropriate
safety procedures.

DISTINGUISHING CHARACTERISTICS:

This is the first in a series of three carpenter-related job classifications within the Skilled Trades job family. This
classification is distinguished by the ability to perform skilled carpentry work. This classification may require a flexible
work schedule in order to meet the needs of the department.

DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES:

• Performs general air infiltration work, including caulking, glazing, weather-stripping, insulation, door and window units,
ceiling, wall and floor repair, and replacing broken glass.

• Performs emergency repairs. Corrects roofing bracing and performs decking repairs, as required.

• Repairs and replaces various types of roofing materials. Repairs floors, including rebracing, replacing broken joists and
replacing floors with plywood.

• Replaces, installs or repairs bad doors, framing and locks, as required.

• Installs wheel chair ramps, grab bars, commode seats, hand held showers and enlarges doors to assist handicapped
and elderly clients.

• Follows proper safety methods.

• Picks up and delivers materials to job sites and takes proper care of tools and materials on the job site.

• Accomplishes plumbing repairs, including repairing and installing hot water heaters. Frees backed up commodes and
drains. Replaces or repairs broken/damaged pipe. Installs and replaces faucets and commodes as water conservation
measures.

• Performs other job-related duties as assigned.

MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS:

Education and Experience:
High School diploma or G.E.D. AND two (2) years of general carpentry and housing projects experience, including
completion of an accepted carpentry apprenticeship program or two (2) years of carpentry trade experience under the
direction of a highly skilled carpenter performing duties equivalent to the craftsman experience in multiple trades (e.g.,
carpentry, plumbing, electrical) and experience in energy conservation techniques;

OR,

Any combination of education and experience that has been achieved and is equivalent to the stated education and
experience and required knowledge, skills, and abilities sufficient to successfully perform the duties and responsibilities
of this job.

Licenses, Registrations, Certifications, or Special Requirements:
Valid Texas Driver’s License.

Knowledge, Skills, and Abilities:
Knowledge of:
• Carpenter codes, related terminology, practices and procedures.
• Carpentry, plumbing, electrical work, energy conservation and subcontracting.

Page 1 of 2

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Carpenter Associate

JOB CODE: 10064 FLSA STATUS: Non-Exempt
PAY GRADE: 10 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS: (Cant.)

Knowledge of: (Cant.)
• Standard carpentry maintenance and repair methods, materials, tools and equipment.
• Residential construction and remodeling, including carpentry, heating, A/C and ductwork, basic electrical, and

plumbing.
• Federal, State, Local and County applicable laws, rules, regulations, guidelines, and applicable carpentry standards

and procedures.
• Management and supervisory principles, practices and techniques.
• Budget preparation and office management.
• Computer equipment to include word processing, spreadsheets, databases and a variety of software packages.
• Business letter writing, grammar and punctuation, and report preparation.

Skill in:
• Operating and using standard carpentry, plumbing, electrical work tools and equipment.
• Installing and maintaining carpenter work.
• Reading and interpreting schematics and blueprints.
• Proper and applicable safety practices, procedures and regulations.
• Working with others, including on a team.
• Explaining complicated problems in simple non-technical language.
• Problem solving and decision-making.
• Both verbal and written communication.

Ability to:
• Work efficiently, both independently and as part of a team.
• Reason and make judgments and decisions.
• Manage time well, perform multiple tasks and organize diverse activities.
• Establish and maintain effective working relationships with departmental clientele, other County employees and

officials, representatives of outside agencies, and the general public.

WORK ENVIRONMENT AND PHYSICAL DEMANDS:

Physical requirements include the ability to lift/carry up to 50 pounds on a regular basis, occasional heavy lifting with
assistance, visual acuity, speech and hearing, hand and eye coordination and manual dexterity necessary to operate a
computer. Subject to standing, sitting, walking, climbing stairs, bending, stooping, crouching, kneeling, pushing, pulling,
reaching, twisting, balancing, repetitive motion, client/customer contact, squatting, occasional crawling, and working in
cramped or confined spaces or areas for extended periods of time to perform the essential functions. Subject to contact
with hazardous waste, foul odors, animal and human fecal matter, insects and rodents, toxic or potential hazardous
chemical or substances, dirt, dust, fumes, smoke, loud noises, and high voltage. Requires work indoors/outdoors in all
types of weather (excessive heat and cold). Requires working at heights from ladders and scaffolds.

This job description is intended to be generic in nature. It is not necessarily an exhaustive list of all duties
and responsibilities. The essential duties, functions and responsibilities and overtime eligibility may vary
based on the specific tasks assigned to the position.

Page2of2
q7

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Carpenter

JOB CODE: 14427 FLSA STATUS: Non-Exempt
PAY GRADE: 14 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

JOB SUMMARY:

Performs carpenter duties, including the repair, maintenance, inspection and installation of systems and skill craftsman
projects. Provides direct housing services, including provision of on-site labor. Installs weatherization materials and
performs home repair activities including carpentry, plumbing and electrical repairs. Performs all work in accordance with
adopted building codes and using appropriate safety procedures.

DISTINGUISHING CHARACTERISTICS:

This is the second in a series of three carpenter-related job classifications within the Skilled Trades job family. This
classification is distinguished by the additional experience and the ability to perform skilled carpentry work. This
classification may require a flexible work schedule in order to meet the needs of the department.

DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES:

• Performs skilled carpentry and weatherization functions. Assists in conducting the final home inspection.

• Provides on-the-job training for crewmembers and volunteers.

• Assigns and reviews work, and trains personnel.

• Estimates materials needed for particular jobs and coordinates material requirements with the Carpenter involved in
purchasing materials. Compiles reports of completed projects.

• Provides instruction on, and monitors safe operations of equipment.

• Refers clients to other agencies for services not covered by the County.

• Monitors materials and tools inventory in the shop and on the job site.

• Maintains vehicles, and reports needed repairs to assure safe and reliable operations.

• Performs other job-related duties as assigned.

MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS:

Education and Experience:
High School diploma or G.E.D. AND four (4) years of general carpentry and weatherization function experience,
including two (2) years increasingly responsible experience under the direction of a Carpenter Senior or Housing
Services staff performing duties equivalent to the craftsman experience in multiple trades (e.g., carpentry, plumbing,
electrical) and experience in energy conservation techniques;

OR,
Any combination of education and experience that has been achieved and is equivalent to the stated education and
experience and required knowledge, skills, and abilities sufficient to successfully perform the duties and responsibilities
of this job.

Licenses, Registrations, Certifications, or Special Requirements:
Valid Texas Driver’s License.

Knowledge. Skills, and Abilities:
Knowledge of:
• Carpenter codes, related terminology, practices and procedures.
• Multiple trades carpentry, plumbing, electrical work, energy conservation, and subcontracting.
• Standard carpentry maintenance and repair methods, materials, tools and equipment.
• Residential construction and remodeling, including carpentry, heating, A/C and ductwork, basic electrical, and

plumbing.
• Federal, State, Local and County applicable laws, rules, regulations, guidelines and applicable carpentry standards

and procedures.

Page 1 of 2

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Carpenter

JOB CODE: 14427 FLSA STATUS: Non-Exempt
PAY GRADE: 14 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS: (Cont.)

Knowledge of: (Cont.)
• Management and supervisory principles, practices and techniques.
• Budget preparation and office management.
• Computer equipment to include word processing, spreadsheets, databases and a variety of software packages.
• Business letter writing, grammar and punctuation, and report preparation.

Skill in:
• Operating and using standard carpentry, plumbing, electrical work tools and equipment.
• Installing and maintaining of carpenter work.
• Reading and interpreting schematics and blueprints.
• Proper and applicable safety practices, procedures and regulations.
• Working with others, including on a team.
• Explaining complicated problems in simple non-technical language.
• Problem solving and decision-making.
• Both verbal and written communication.

Ability to:
• Understand and precisely follow both verbal and written instructions and communicate in a concise and effective

manner.
• Work efficiently, both independently and as part of a team.
• Reason and make judgments and decisions.
• Manage time well, perform multiple tasks and organize diverse activities.
• Establish and maintain effective working relationships with departmental clientele, other County employees and

officials, representatives of outside agencies, and the general public.

WORK ENVIRONMENT AND PHYSICAL DEMANDS:

Physical requirements include the ability to lift/carry up to 50 pounds on a regular basis, occasional heavy lifting with
assistance, visual acuity, speech and hearing, hand and eye coordination and manual dexterity necessary to operate a
computer. Subject to standing, sitting, walking, climbing stairs, bending, stooping, crouching, kneeling, pushing, pulling,
reaching, twisting, balancing, repetitive motion, client/customer contact, squatting, occasional crawling, and working in
cramped or confined spaces or areas for extended periods of time to perform the essential functions. Subject to contact
with hazardous waste, foul odors, animal and human fecal matter, insects and rodents, toxic or potential hazardous
chemical or substances, dirt, dust, fumes, smoke, loud noises, and high voltage. Requires work indoors/outdoors in all
types of weather (excessive heat and cold). Requires working at heights from ladders and scaffolds.

This job description is intended to be generic in nature. It is not necessarily an exhaustive list of all duties
and responsibilities. The essential duties, functions and responsibilities and overtime eligibility may vary
based on the specific tasks assigned to the position.

Page2of2

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Carpenter Senior

JOB CODE: 15428 FLSA STATUS: Non-Exempt
PAY GRADE: 15 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

JOB SUMMARY:

Leads the work of skilled carpenters. Performs carpenter duties, the repair, maintenance, inspection and installation of
systems, and includes electrical, plumbing and HVAC projects. Provides direct housing services, including provision of on-
site labor. Installs weatherization materials and performs home repair activities including carpentry, plumbing and electrical
repairs. Performs all work in accordance with adopted building codes and using appropriate safety procedures.

DISTINGUISHING CHARACTERISTICS:

This is the third in a series of three carpenter-related job classifications within the Skilled Trades job family. This
classification is distinguished by the additional experience and the ability to perform skilled carpentry work, and by lead
duties and responsibilities. This classification may require a flexible work schedule in order to meet the needs of the
department.

DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES:

• Leads the work of highly skilled carpenter crew and volunteer laborers on the job site involved in replacing windows,
doors, roofing, minor electrical work, insulating attics, carpentry repairs, plumbing and other highly skilled maintenance
work.

• Performs highly skilled carpentry and weatherization functions. Assists in conducting the final home inspection.

• Provides on-the-job training for crewmembers and volunteers.

• Assigns and reviews work and trains personnel.

• Estimates materials needed for particular jobs and coordinates material requirements with the Carpenter involved in
purchasing materials. Compiles reports of completed projects.

• Provides instruction on, and monitors safe operations of equipment.

• Refers clients to other agencies for services not covered by the County.

• Monitors materials and tools inventory in the shop and on the job site.

• Maintains vehicles, and reports needed repairs to assure safe and reliable operations.

• Performs other job-related duties as assigned.

MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS:

Education and Experience:
High School diploma or G.E.D. AND five (5) years of skilled carpentry experience, including three (3) years increasingly
responsible experience under the direction of a highly skilled carpenter performing duties equivalent to the craftsman
experience in multiple trades (e.g., carpentry, plumbing, electrical) and experience in energy conservation techniques,
including one (1) year of lead level experience;

OR,

Any combination of education and experience that has been achieved and is equivalent to the stated education and
experience and required knowledge, skills, and abilities sufficient to successfully perform the duties and responsibilities
of this job.

Licenses, Registrations, Certifications, or Special Requirements:
Valid Texas Driver’s License.

Preferred:
Three (3) to five (5) years of correctional or institutional experience.

Page 1 of 2 / DO

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Carpenter Senior

JOB CODE: 15428 FLSA STATUS: Non-Exempt
PAY GRADE: 15 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS: (Cont.)

Knowledge, Skills, and Abilities:
Knowledge of:
• Carpenter codes, related terminology, practices and procedures.
• Carpentry, plumbing, electrical work, energy conservation and subcontracting.
• Standard carpentry maintenance and repair methods, materials, tools and equipment.
• Residential construction and remodeling, including carpentry, heating, A/C and ductwork, basic electrical and plumbing.
• Federal, State, Local and County applicable laws, rules, regulations, guidelines and applicable carpentry standards

and procedures.
• Management and supervisory principles, practices and techniques.
• Budget preparation and office management.
• Computer equipment to include word processing, spreadsheets, databases and a variety of software packages.
• Business letter writing, grammar and punctuation, and report preparation.

Skill in:
• Operating and using standard carpentry, plumbing, electrical work tools and equipment.
• Installing and maintaining senior carpenter work.
• Reading and interpreting schematics and blueprints.
• Proper and applicable safety practices, procedures and regulations.
• Supervising others, including team building.
• Explaining complicated problems in simple non-technical language.
• Problem solving and decision-making.
• Both verbal and written communication.

Ability to:
• Train, lead, supervise and motivate employees.
• Write specifications for plumbing, electrical and roofing repair work.
• Interpret policy and procedures to employees and the public.
• Plan, assign, supervise and review the work of subordinates.
• Reason and make judgments and decisions.
• Understand and precisely follow both verbal and written instructions and communicate in a concise and effective

manner.
• Work efficiently, both independently and as part of a team.
• Manage time well, perform multiple tasks and organize diverse activities.
• Perform in a stressful environment while maintaining a professional manner.
• Establish and maintain effective working relationships with departmental clientele, other County employees and

officials, representatives of outside agencies, and the general public.

WORK ENVIRONMENT AND PHYSICAL DEMANDS:

Physical requirements include the ability to lift/carry up to 50 pounds on a regular basis, occasional heavy lifting with
assistance, visual acuity, speech and hearing, hand and eye coordination and manual dexterity necessary to operate a
computer. Subject to standing, sitting, walking, climbing stairs, bending, stooping, crouching, kneeling, pushing, pulling,
reaching, twisting, balancing, repetitive motion, client/customer contact, squatting, occasional crawling, and working in
cramped or confined spaces or areas for extended periods of time to perform the essential functions. Subject to contact
with hazardous waste, foul odors, animal and human fecal matter, insects and rodents, toxic or potential hazardous
chemical or substances, dirt, dust, fumes, smoke, loud noises, and high voltage. Requires work indoors/outdoors in all
types of weather (excessive heat and cold). Requires working at heights from ladders and scaffolds.

This job description is intended to be generic in nature. It is not necessarily an exhaustive list of all duties
and responsibilities. The essential duties, functions and responsibilities and overtime eligibility may vary
based on the specific tasks assigned to the position.

Page2of2 //

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Home Repair Supervisor

JOB CODE: 16420 FLSA STATUS: Non-Exempt
PAY GRADE: 16 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

JOB SUMMARY:

Provides daily supervision and coordination of on-site work performed by the housing services crews, volunteers and
trade contractors. Plans, schedules, performs and assigns carpentry work projects, inspects completed work, and
maintains records. Assists with preparing and monitoring annual budget. Administratively responsible for on-going or
temporary construction-related contracts or programs, and/or grant funded programs. Performs all work in accordance
with adopted building codes and using appropriate safety procedures.

DISTINGUISHING CHARACTERISTICS:

This is a job classification within the Skilled Trades job family. This classification is distinguished by the supervisory and
administrative responsibilities, the additional experience and the ability to perform skilled carpentry work. This
classification may require a flexible work schedule in order to meet the needs of the department.

DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES:

• Supervises staff, evaluates staff job performance and coordinates schedules and assignments, authorizes staff
productive and non-productive work hours, prepares and administers budget, prepares a variety of fiscal and
administrative reports. Provides journey level training to staff. Assists in the development and administration of
current or new programs. Serves in Manager’s absence, as required.

• Coordinates activities to ensure efficient delivery of services. Manages and coordinates resources to provide
effective and efficient services to ensure compliance with statutory applicable laws, rules, regulations and applicable
standards and procedures.

• Conducts on-site assessment of work needed on low-income clients’ homes according to the operating guidelines of
the programs. Develops scope of work, writes specifications for and monitors contract work in the areas of
carpentry, plumbing, electrical, weatherization and energy conservation, roofing and mechanical system repairs.
Monitors purchasing and delivery of materials.

• Performs contract administration of the contract or project. Performs on-site inspections of ongoing work as well as
final inspections to ensure that quality standards are met. Monitors appropriate contracts, grants, etc. to ensure
compliance. Coordinates construction activities with internal and external governmental agencies (City, State, and
Federal), non-profit and volunteer groups, and private organizations. Maintains client files for ongoing projects for
purposes of scheduling, controlling expenditures and reporting program information.

• Prepares concise and accurate cost estimates. Resolves problems related to clients, contractors, etc. Responds
and analyzes difficult inquires, grievances or complaints.

• Reports problems with staff personnel (including conducting performance evaluations) to Housing Manager.

• Assists in developing strategic short and long-term plans, develops and implements goals, objectives, policies,
procedures and priorities. Coordinates with officials to achieve those goals.

• Works closely with officials, department heads, multiple outside suppliers and other County staff, to establish
procedures for the monitoring of contract compliance issues.

• Represents the County in attending meetings, community meetings, seminars, conferences, professional
association meetings, private organizations and participates on related committees.

• Performs other job-related duties as assigned.

MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS:

Education and Experience:
Associate’s degree AND six (6) years of skilled carpentry experience, including four (4) years of increasingly responsible
experience under the direction of a highly skilled carpenter performing duties equivalent to the craftsman experience in
multiple trades (e.g., carpentry, plumbing, electrical) and experience in energy conservation techniques, including one
(1) year of mid- to senior level supervisory or management experience;

/&Page 1 of 3

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Home Repair Supervisor

JOB CODE: 16420 FLSA STATUS: Non-Exempt
PAY GRADE: 16 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS: (Cont.)

Education and Experience: (Cont.)

OR,

Any combination of education and experience that has been achieved and is equivalent to the stated education and
experience and required knowledge, skills, and abilities sufficient to successfully perform the duties and responsibilities
of this job.

Licenses, Registrations, Certifications, or Special Requirements:
Valid Texas Driver’s License.

Knowledcie, Skills, and Abilities:
Knowledge of:
• Carpenter codes, related terminology, practices and procedures.
• Carpentry, plumbing, electrical work, energy conservation and subcontracting.
• Standard carpentry maintenance and repair methods, materials, tools and equipment.
• Residential construction and remodeling, including carpentry, heating, A/C and ductwork, basic electrical and plumbing.
• Federal, State, Local and County applicable laws, rules, regulations, guidelines and applicable carpentry standards

and procedures.
• Management and supervisory principles, practices and techniques.
• Budget preparation and office management.
• Computer equipment to include word processing, spreadsheets, databases and a variety of software packages.
• Business letter writing, grammar and punctuation, and report preparation.

Skill in:
• Supervising others, including team building.
• Installing and maintaining of supervisory and senior carpenter work.
• Operating and using standard carpentry, plumbing, electrical work tools and equipment.
• Reading and interpreting schematics and blueprints.
• Calculating estimates of time, labor and quantities of materials needed.
• Proper and applicable safety practices, procedures and regulations.
• Working with others, including on a team.
• Explaining complicated problems in simple non-technical language.
• Problem-solving and decision-making.
• Both verbal and written communication.

Ability to:
• Train, supervise and motivate employees.
• Write specifications for plumbing, electrical and roofing repair work.
• Interpret policy and procedures to employees and the public.
• Plan, assign, supervise and review the work of subordinates.
• Reason and make judgments and decisions.
• Understand and precisely follow both verbal and written instructions and communicate in a concise and effective

manner.
• Work efficiently, both independently and as part of a team.
• Manage time well, perform multiple tasks and organize diverse activities.
• Perform in a stressful environment while maintaining a professional manner.
• Establish and maintain effective working relationships with departmental clientele, other County employees and

officials, representatives of outside agencies, and the general public.

/03Page 2 of 3

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Home Repair Supervisor

JOB CODE: 16420 FLSA STATUS: Non-Exempt
PAY GRADE: 16 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

WORK ENVIRONMENT AND PHYSICAL DEMANDS:

Physical requirements include the ability to lift/carry up to 50 pounds on a regular basis, occasional heavy lifting with
assistance, visual acuity, speech and hearing, hand and eye coordination and manual dexterity necessary to operate a
computer. Subject to standing, sitting, walking, climbing stairs, bending, stooping, crouching, kneeling, pushing, pulling,
reaching, twisting, balancing, repetitive motion, client/customer contact, squatting, occasional crawling, working in
cramped or confined spaces or areas for extended periods of time to perform the essential functions. Subject to contact
with hazardous waste, foul odors, animal and human fecal matter, insects and rodents, toxic or potential hazardous
chemical or substances, dirt, dust, fumes, smoke, loud noises, and high voltage. Requires work indoors/outdoors in all
types of weather (excessive heat and cold). Requires working at heights from ladders and scaffolds.

This job description is intended to be generic in nature. It is not necessarily an exhaustive list of all duties
and responsibilities. The essential duties, functions and responsibilities and overtime eligibility may vary
based on the specific tasks assigned to the position.

Page3of3
/017/

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Painter

JOB CODE: 14431 FLSA STATUS: Non-Exempt
PAY GRADE: 14 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

JOB SUMMARY:

Performs skilled journey level painting/carpentry duties, including repairs to damaged surfaces, preparation for painting,
painting, minor construction, and renovation work. Performs all work in accordance with adopted building codes and
using appropriate safety procedures. Requests for needed supplies, equipment and materials.

DISTINGUISHING CHARACTERISTICS:

This is a job classification within the Skilled Trades job family. This classification is distinguished by the additional
experience and the ability to perform skilled journey level of painting/carpentry work. This classification may require a
flexible work schedule in order to meet the needs of the department.

DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES:

• Inspects, maintains and repairs building paint surfaces. Makes recommendations regarding replacement of coating
systems and/or scheduling of repainting services.

• Responds to service requests for repairs to building fit and finish. Completes necessary actions to restore fit and
finish to acceptable condition.

• Researches and estimates time and materials needed and records time and materials used. Requests for needed
tools, equipment, supplies and materials to perform assigned tasks. Monitors expenditure of supplies and controls
inventory of equipment and tools.

• Provides carpentry services to include removal/replacement of wall systems, doors/frames, windows and built in
furniture/counters. Includes both interior and exterior work.

• May be assigned to provide training and technical advice/assistance for staff. May provide quality control
inspections for work performed by others.

• Performs other job-related duties as assigned.

MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS:

Education and ExDerience:
High School diploma or G.E.D. AND five (5) years experience as a skilled journey level painter or finish carpenter,
including the completion of an accepted journey level painting or carpenter apprenticeship program or three (3) years
increasingly responsible experience in the painting or carpenter trade working under a journey level painter or carpenter;

OR,

Any combination of education and experience that has been achieved and is equivalent to the stated education and
experience and required knowledge, skills, and abilities sufficient to successfully perform the duties and responsibilities
of this job.

Licenses, Registrations, Certifications, or Special Requirements:
Valid Texas Driver’s License.

Knowledge, Skills, and Abilities:
Knowledge of:
• Painting and carpentry codes, related terminology, practices and procedures.
• Standard painting and carpentry maintenance and repair methods, materials, tools and equipment.
• Federal, State, Local and County applicable laws, rules, regulations, guidelines and applicable carpentry standards

and procedures.
• Management and supervisory principles, practices and techniques.
• Budget preparation and office management.
• Computer equipment to include word processing, spreadsheets, databases and a variety of software packages.
• Business letter writing, grammar and punctuation, and report preparation.

/o5Page 1 of 2

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Painter

JOB CODE: 14431 FLSA STATUS: Non-Exempt
PAY GRADE: 14 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS: (Cont.)

Skill in:
• Operating and using standard painting and carpentry tools and equipment.
• Mixing, matching and blending paint to desired color, consistency and drying properties.
• Identifying color of paints and selecting harmonizing colors.
• Applying paints and surface preparation materials to a wide variety of surfaces.
• Reading and interpreting schematics and blueprints.
• Installing and maintaining painting work.
• Proper and applicable safety practices, procedures and regulations.
• Working with others, including on a team.
• Explaining complicated problems in simple non-technical language.
• Calculating estimates of time, labor and quantities of materials needed.
• Both verbal and written communication.

Ability to:
• Understand and precisely follow both verbal and written instructions and communicate in a concise and effective

manner.
• Work efficiently, both independently and as part of a team.
• Reason and make judgments and decisions.
• Manage time well, perform multiple tasks and organize diverse activities.
• Establish and maintain effective working relationships with departmental clientele, other County employees and

officials, representatives of outside agencies, and the general public.

WORK ENVIRONMENT AND PHYSICAL DEMANDS:

Physical requirements include the ability to lift/carry up to 50-100 pounds, visual acuity, speech and hearing, hand and eye
coordination and manual dexterity necessary to operate a computer and office equipment. Subject to standing, walking,
sitting, reaching, climbing stairs, bending, stooping, kneeling, crouching, crawling, pushing, repetitive motion, pulling,
driving, twisting, balancing, client/customer contact, squatting and working in cramped or confined spaces or areas for
extended periods of time to perform the essential functions. Subject to contact with hazardous waste, foul odors, animal
and human fecal matter, insects and rodents, toxic or potential hazardous chemical or substances, dirt, dust, fumes, smoke,
loud noises, and high voltage. Requires work indoors/outdoors in all types of weather (excessive heat and cold). Requires
working at heights from ladders and scaffolds.

This job description is intended to be generic in nature. It is not necessarily an exhaustive list of all dutieij
and responsibilities. The essential duties, functions and responsibilities and overtime eligibility may vary
based on the specific tasks assigned to the position.

Page2of2

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Electrician

JOB CODE: 13432 FLSA STATUS: Non-Exempt
PAY GRADE: 13 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

JOB SUMMARY:

Performs journey electrician licensed level work in the installation, maintenance and repair of electrical circuits/systems.
Installs new and repairs existing systems, develops and maintains preventive maintenance schedules, and performs
specialized tests. Performs all work in accordance with adopted building codes and uses appropriate safety procedures.

DISTINGUISHING CHARACTERISTICS:

This is the first in a series of two electrician-related job classifications within the Skilled Trades job family. This
classification may require work in secure facilities. This classification may require a flexible work schedule in order to
meet the needs of the department.

DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES:

• Responds to requests for system repairs.

• Inspects, maintains and repairs electrical systems. Makes recommendations regarding replacement of repairs of
systems.

• Plans and develops routine maintenance schedules for systems. Performs preventive maintenance tasks on
systems.

• Inspects, maintains and repairs electrical motors and generators.

• Researches and estimates time and materials needed and records time and materials used. Requests for needed
tools, equipment, supplies and materials to perform assigned tasks. Tests, calibrates and repairs electronic and
electrical equipment and controls.

• Obtains building permits, as required, from regulatory agencies for the construction of new systems.

• Operates a variety of technical test equipment, such as DC high voltage testers, multi-channel analog recorder,
electronic meters and vibration test equipment. Performs special tests to determine problems with
equipment/circuits.

• Inspects, maintains and repairs electrical motors and generators.

• Inspects, maintains and repairs electrical systems. Makes recommendations regarding replacement of repairs of
systems.

• Performs other job-related duties as assigned.

MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS:

Education and Experience:
High School diploma or G.E.D. AND two (2) to four (4) years experience in the installation and repair of plumbing fixtures
and systems, such as gas, water and steam systems;

OR,

Any combination of education and experience that has been achieved and is equivalent to the stated education and
experience and required knowledge, skills, and abilities sufficient to successfully perform the duties and responsibilities
of this job.

Licenses, Registrations, Certifications, or Special Requirements:
State of Texas Journeyman Electrician License or must be obtained within six (6) months of date of hire.
Valid Texas Driver’s License.

Page 1 of 2

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Electrician

JOB CODE: 13432 FLSA STATUS: Non-Exempt
PAY GRADE: 13 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS: (Cont.)

Knowledge, Skills, and Abilities:
Knowledge of:
• Electrical codes, related terminology, practices and procedures.
• Standard electrical maintenance and repair methods, materials, tools and equipment.
• Computer equipment to include word processing, spreadsheets, databases and a variety of software packages.
• Business letter writing, grammar and punctuation, and report preparation.

Skill in:
• Operating and using standard electrical tools and test equipment.
• Installing and maintaining electrical work.
• Reading and interpreting schematics and blueprints.
• Proper and applicable safety practices, procedures and regulations.
• Working with others, including on a team.
• Explaining complicated problems in simple non-technical language.
• Calculating estimates of time, labor and quantities of materials needed.
• Both verbal and written communication.

Ability to:
• Understand and precisely follow both verbal and written instructions and communicate in a concise and effective

manner.
• Work efficiently, both independently and as part of a team.
• Reason and make judgments and decisions.
• Manage time well, perform multiple tasks and organize diverse activities.
• Establish and maintain effective working relationships with departmental clientele, other County employees and

officials, representatives of outside agencies, and the general public.

WORK ENVIRONMENT AND PHYSICAL DEMANDS:

Physical requirements include the ability to lift/carry up to 50 pounds, visual acuity, speech and hearing, hand and eye
coordination and manual dexterity necessary to operate a computer and office equipment. Subject to standing, walking,
sitting, reaching, climbing stairs, bending, stooping, kneeling, crouching, crawling, pushing, repetitive motion, pulling,
driving, twisting, balancing, client/customer contact, squatting, and working in cramped or confined spaces or areas for
extended periods of time to perform the essential functions. Subject to contact with hazardous waste, foul odors, animal
and human fecal matter, insects and rodents, toxic or potential hazardous chemical or substances, dirt, dust, fumes, smoke,
loud noises, and high voltage. Requires work indoors/outdoors in all types of weather (excessive heat and cold). Requires
working at heights from ladders and scaffolds.

This job description is intended to be generic in nature. It is not necessarily an exhaustive list of all duties
and responsibilities. The essential duties, functions and responsibilities and overtime eligibility may vary
based on the specific tasks assigned to the position.

Page 2 of 2

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Master Electrician

JOB CODE: 15433 FLSA STATUS: Non-Exempt
PAY GRADE: 15 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

JOB SUMMARY:

Performs skilled master electrician licensed level work in the installation, maintenance and repair of electrical
circuits/systems. Installs new and repairs existing systems, develops and maintains preventive maintenance schedules,
and performs specialized tests. Performs all work in accordance with adopted building codes and uses appropriate
safety procedures.

DISTINGUISHING CHARACTERISTICS:

This is the second in a series of two electrician-related job classifications within the Skilled Trades job family. This
classification is distinguished by the requirement for a master electrician license, additional experience, the ability to
perform skilled master-level of electrical work, and by lead duties and responsibilities. This classification may require
work in secure facilities. This classification may require a flexible work schedule in order to meet the needs of the
department.

DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES:

• Responds to requests for system repairs.

• Inspects, maintains and repairs electrical systems. Makes recommendations regarding replacement of repairs of
systems.

• Provides training and technical advice/assistance. Serves as lead worker for crews assigned to assist on electrical
projects/work orders.

• Plans and develops routine maintenance schedules for systems. Performs preventive maintenance tasks on
systems.

• Inspects, maintains and repairs electrical motors and generators.

• Researches and estimates time and materials needed and records time and materials used. Requests for needed
tools, equipment, supplies and materials to perform assigned tasks. Monitors expenditure of supplies and controls
inventory of equipment and tools.

• Tests, calibrates and repairs electronic and electrical equipment and controls.

• Obtains building permits, as needed, from regulatory agencies for the construction of new systems.

• Operates a variety of technical test equipment such as DC high voltage testers, multi-channel analog recorder,
electronic meters and vibration test equipment. Performs special tests to determine problems with
equipment/circuits.

• Inspects, maintains and repairs electrical motors and generators.

• Inspects, maintains and repairs electrical systems. Makes recommendations regarding replacement of repairs of
systems.

• Performs other job-related duties as assigned.

MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS:

Education and Experience:
High School diploma or G.E.D. AND six (6) years experience in the installation, testing and repair of electrical control
equipment, lighting systems, motors, HVAC electrical systems and other types of electrical equipment, including lead or
supervisory experience;

OR,
Any combination of education and experience that has been achieved and is equivalent to the stated education and
experience and required knowledge, skills, and abilities sufficient to successfully perform the duties and responsibilities
of this job.

Pagelof2

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Master Electrician

JOB CODE: 15433 FLSA STATUS: Non-Exempt
PAY GRADE: 15 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS: (Cont.)

Licenses, Registrations, Certifications, or Special Requirements:
State of Texas Master Electrician License.
Valid Texas Driver’s License.

Preferred:
Three (3) to five (5) years of correctional or institutional experience.

Knowledge. Skills, and Abilities:
Knowledge of:
• Electrical codes, related terminology, practices and procedures.
• Standard electrical maintenance and repair methods, materials, tools and equipment.
• Computer equipment to include word processing, spreadsheets, databases and a variety of software packages.
• Business letter writing, grammar and punctuation, and report preparation.

Skill in:
• Operating and using standard electrical tools and test equipment.
• Installing and maintaining electrical work.
• Reading and interpreting schematics and blueprints.
• Proper and applicable safety practices, procedures and regulations.
• Working with others, including on a team.
• Explaining complicated problems in simple non-technical language.
• Calculating estimates of time, labor and quantities of materials needed.
• Both verbal and written communication.

Ability to:
• Understand and precisely follow both verbal and written instructions and communicate in a concise and effective

manner.
• Work efficiently, both independently and as part of a team.
• Reason and make judgments and decisions.
• Manage time well, perform multiple tasks and organize diverse activities.
• Establish and maintain effective working relationships with departmental clientele, other County employees and

officials, representatives of outside agencies, and the general public.

WORK ENVIRONMENT AND PHYSICAL DEMANDS:

Physical requirements include the ability to lift/carry up to 50 pounds, visual acuity, speech and hearing, hand and eye
coordination and manual dexterity necessary to operate a computer and office equipment. Subject to standing, walking,
sitting, reaching, climbing stairs, bending, stooping, kneeling, crouching, crawling, pushing, repetitive motion, pulling,
driving, twisting, balancing, client/customer contact, squatting, and working in cramped or confined spaces or areas for
extended periods of time to perform the essential functions. Subject to contact with hazardous waste, foul odors, animal
and human fecal matter, insects and rodents, toxic or potential hazardous chemical or substances, dirt, dust, fumes, smoke,
loud noises, and high voltage. Requires work indoors/outdoors in all types of weather (excessive heat and cold). Requires
working at heights from ladders and scaffolds.

This job description is intended to be generic in nature. It is not necessarily an exhaustive list of all duties
and responsibilities. The essential duties, functions and responsibilities and overtime eligibility may vary
based on the specific tasks assigned to the position.

Page2of2 / / ‘

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Plumber

JOB CODE: 13434 FLSA STATUS: Non-Exempt
PAY GRADE: 13 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

JOB SUMMARY:

Performs skilled journey plumber level licensed work in the installation, maintenance and repair of plumbing systems.
Installs new and repairs existing systems, develops and maintains preventive maitenance schedules and performs
specialized tests. Performs all work in accordance with adopted building codes and uses appropriate safety procedures
under the general oversight of a licensed Master Plumber.

DISTINGUISHING CHARACTERISTICS:

This is the first in a series of two plumber-related job classifications within the Skilled Trades job family. This
classification is distinguished by the requirement for a journey plumber license, additional experience and the ability to
perform skilled journeyman level of plumbing work. This classification may require a flexible work schedule in order to
meet the needs of the department.

DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES:

• Installs new and repairs plumbing systems. Makes recommendations regarding replacement or upgrade of
systems.

• Plans and develops routine preventive maintenance schedules for systems. Responds to requests for service.

• Researches and estimates time and materials needed and records time and materials used. Requests for needed
tools, equipment, supplies and materials to perform assigned tasks. Monitors expenditure of supplies and controls
inventory of equipment and tools.

• Installs new equipment, piping and fixtures. Obtains permits, as required, from regulatory agencies for the
construction of new plumbing systems.

• Performs preventive maintenance and required testing on plumbing systems, including back flow preventors.

• Performs other job-related duties as assigned.

MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS:

Education and Experience:
High School diploma or G.E.D. AND four (4) years experience in the installation and repair of plumbing fixtures and
systems, such as gas, water and steam systems;
OR,

Any combination of education and experience that has been achieved and is equivalent to the stated education and
experience and required knowledge, skills, and abilities sufficient to successfully perform the duties and responsibilities
of this job.

Licenses, Registrations, Certifications, or Special Requirements:
Journeyman Plumber License issued by the State of Texas.
Valid Texas Driver’s License.

Knowledge, Skills, and Abilities:
Knowledge of:
• Plumbing codes, related terminology, practices and procedures.
• Standard plumbing maintenance and repair methods, materials, tools and equipment.
• Computer equipment to include word processing, spreadsheets, databases and a variety of software packages.
• Business letter writing, grammar and punctuation, and report preparation.

Skill in:
• Operating and using standard plumbing tools and equipment.
• Installing and maintaining plumbing work.
• Reading and interpreting schematics and blueprints.

Page 1 of 2

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Plumber

JOB CODE: 13434 FLSA STATUS: Non-Exempt
PAY GRADE: 13 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS: (Cont.)

Skill in: (Cont.)
• Proper and applicable safety practices, procedures and regulations.
• Working with others, including on a team.
• Explaining complicated problems in simple non-technical language.
• Calculating estimates of time, labor and quantities of materials needed.
• Both verbal and written communication.

Ability to:
• Understand and precisely follow both verbal and written instructions and communicate in a concise and effective

manner.
• Work efficiently, both independently and as part of a team.
• Reason and make judgments and decisions.
• Manage time well, perform multiple tasks and organize diverse activities.
• Establish and maintain effective working relationships with departmental clientele, other County employees and

officials, representatives of outside agencies, and the general public.

WORK ENVIRONMENT AND PHYSICAL DEMANDS:

Physical requirements include the ability to lift/carry up to 50 pounds, visual acuity, speech and hearing, hand and eye
coordination and manual dexterity necessary to operate a computer and office equipment. Subject to standing, walking,
sitting, reaching, climbing stairs, bending, stooping, kneeling, crouching, crawling, pushing, repetitive motion, pulling,
driving, twisting, balancing, client/customer contact, squatting, and working in cramped or confined spaces or areas for
extended periods of time to perform the essential functions. Subject to contact with hazardous waste, foul odors, animal
and human fecal matter, insects and rodents, toxic or potential hazardous chemical or substances, dirt, dust, fumes, smoke,
loud noises, and high voltage. Requires work indoors/outdoors in all types of weather (excessive heat and cold). Requires
working at heights from ladders and scaffolds.

This job description is intended to be generic in nature. It is not necessarily an exhaustive list of all duties
and responsibilities. The essential duties, functions and responsibilities and overtime eligibility may vary
based on the specific tasks assigned to the position.

Page 2 of 2

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Master Plumber

JOB CODE: 15435 FLSA STATUS: Non-Exempt
PAY GRADE: 15 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

JOB SUMMARY:

Performs skilled master plumber level plumbing work in the installation, maintenance and repair of plumbing systems.
Performs full range of repairs and installation of building plumbing systems, including emergency repairs. Requisitions
needed supplies, equipment and materials. Performs mandated testing of plumbing systems. Performs all work in
accordance with adopted building codes and uses appropriate safety procedures.

DISTINGUISHING CHARACTERISTICS:

This is the second in a series of two plumber-related job classifications within the Skilled Trades job family. This
classification is distinguished by the requirement for a master plumber license, additional experience, the ability to
perform skilled journey level of plumbing work, and by lead duties and responsibilities. This classification may require a
flexible work schedule in order to meet the needs of the department.

DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES:

• Inspects, maintains and repairs building plumbing systems. Makes recommendations regarding replacement or
upgrade of systems.

• Provides training and technical advice/assistance. Serves as lead worker for specific projects/work orders.

• Plans and develops routine maintenance schedules for systems. Responds to requests for service.

• Researches and estimates time and materials needed and records time and materials used. Requests for needed
tools, equipment, supplies and materials to perform assigned tasks. Monitors expenditure of supplies and controls
inventory of equipment and tools.

• Installs new equipment, piping and fixtures. Obtains permits, as required, from regulatory agencies for the
construction of new plumbing systems.

• Performs preventive maintenance and required testing on plumbing systems, including back flow preventors.

• Performs other job-related duties as assigned.

MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS:

Education and Experience:
High School diploma or G.E.D. AND five (5) years experience in the installation and repair of plumbing fixtures and
systems, such as gas, water and steam systems, including lead or supervisory experience;

OR,

Any combination of education and experience that has been achieved and is equivalent to the stated education and
experience and required knowledge, skills, and abilities sufficient to successfully perform the duties and responsibilities
of this job.

Licenses, Registrations, Certifications, or Special Requirements:
Master Plumber License issued by the State of Texas.
Valid Texas Driver’s License.

Knowledge. Skills, and Abilities:
Knowledge of:
• Plumbing codes, related terminology, practices and procedures.
• Standard plumbing maintenance and repair methods, materials, tools and equipment.
• Computer equipment to include word processing, spreadsheets, databases and a variety of software packages.
• Business letter writing, grammar and punctuation, and report preparation.

Pagelof2

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Master Plumber

JOB CODE: 15435 FLSA STATUS: Non-Exempt
PAY GRADE: 15 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS: (Cont.)

Skill in:
• Operating and using standard plumbing tools and equipment.
• Installing and maintaining plumbing work.
• Reading and interpreting schematics and blueprints.
• Proper and applicable safety practices, procedures and regulations.
• Working with others, including on a team.
• Explaining complicated problems in simple non-technical language.
• Calculating estimates of time, labor and quantities of materials needed.
• Both verbal and written communication.

Ability to:
• Understand and precisely follow both verbal and written instructions and communicate in a concise and effective

manner.
• Work efficiently, both independently and as part of a team.
• Reason and make judgments and decisions.
• Manage time well, perform multiple tasks and organize diverse activities.
• Establish and maintain effective working relationships with departmental clientele, other County employees and

officials, representatives of outside agencies, and the general public.

WORK ENVIRONMENT AND PHYSICAL DEMANDS:

Physical requirements include the ability to lift/carry up to 50 pounds, visual acuity, speech and hearing, hand and eye
coordination and manual dexterity necessary to operate a computer and office equipment. Subject to standing, walking,
sitting, reaching, climbing stairs, bending, stooping, kneeling, crouching, crawling, pushing, repetitive motion, pulling,
driving, twisting, balancing, client/customer contact, squatting, and working in cramped or confined spaces or areas for
extended periods of time to perform the essential functions. Subject to contact with hazardous waste, foul odors, animal
and human fecal matter, insects and rodents, toxic or potential hazardous chemical or substances, dirt, dust, fumes,
smoke, loud noises, and high voltage. Requires work indoors/outdoors in all types of weather (excessive heat and cold).
Requires working at heights from ladders and scaffolds.

This job description is intended to be generic in nature. It is not necessarily an exhaustive list of all duties
and responsibilities. The essential duties, functions and responsibilities and overtime eligibility may vary
based on the specific tasks assigned to the position.

Page2of2

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Locksmith

JOB CODE: 14436 FLSA STATUS: Non-Exempt
PAY GRADE: 14 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

JOB SUMMARY:

Performs journey locksmith level installation and maintenance of all types of locking and security-related equipment.
Equipment includes, but is not limited to, cylindrical, mortise, and rim locks, motor and manually driven detention equipment,
mechanical and electrical locks, including those operated by magnetic strip, keypad, proximity reader and remote control.
Maintains computerized monitoring systems, key issue records, encoding key cards and electronic locking systems.

DISTINGUISHING CHARACTERISTICS:

This is a job classification within the Skilled Trades job family. This classification is distinguished by experience and the
ability to perform skilled journey locksmith level work. This classification may require work in secure facilities. This
classification may require a flexible work schedule in order to meet the needs of the department.

DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES:

• Plans, installs, services and tests mechanical and electronic locking, control, intercom and video surveillance
systems. Makes emergency repairs to detention and security locking and intercom systems.

• Opens, repairs and changes the combination of all types of locking devices and makes keys for same.

• Determines the correct locking system to install based upon facility requirements. Estimates time and material costs
on proposed projects. Completes requisitions for materials and equipment for key installations and engraving.

• Procures and stocks material for bench stock. Maintains inventory of all lock and detention-related hardware for use
by maintenance staff. Trains other maintenance staff to make simple repairs of locks and detention systems.

• Repairs and maintains all types of doors, door closers, exit devices, panic hardware and related hardware.

• Compiles and updates a confidential log of system codes. Operates manual key coding/cutting machine. Logs keys
that are issued and returned.

• As directed, assists other staff with building maintenance tasks, such as plumbing, electrical or other essential
building functions.

• Performs other job-related duties as assigned.

MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS:

Education and Experience:
High School diploma or G.E.D. AND five (5) to seven (7) years of increasingly responsible experience in the installation,
repair and servicing of mechanical and electrical locking devices, security systems and/or detention systems;

OR,

Associate’s degree in an electronics, electrical or related technical field and three (3) years of increasingly responsible
experience in the installation, repair and servicing of mechanical and electrical locking devices, security systems and/or
detention systems;

OR,

Any combination of education and experience that has been achieved and is equivalent to the stated education and
experience and required knowledge, skills, and abilities sufficient to successfully perform the duties and responsibilities
of this job.

Licenses, Registrations, Certifications, or Special Requirements:
Locksmith certification.
Valid Texas Driver’s License.

Preferred:
Three (3) to five (5) years of correctional or institutional experience.

Pagelof2

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Locksmith

JOB CODE: 14436 FLSA STATUS: Non-Exempt
PAY GRADE: 14 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS: (Cont.)

Knowledge, Skills, and Abilities:
Knowledge of:
• Locking and security equipment, including security alarms and surveillance systems.
• Machines and tools, including their design, repair, and maintenance.
• Principles and practice of leading staff.
• Policies, practices, procedures and methods of assigned function.
• Applicable safety practices and regulations.
• Federal, State, Local and County applicable laws, rules, regulations and guidelines.

Skill in:
• Repairing machines or systems using the needed tools.
• Troubleshooting, diagnosing and performing maintenance and repair needs.
• Reading and interpreting schematics and blueprints.
• Proper and applicable safety practices, procedures and regulations.
• Working with others, including on a team.
• Both verbal and written communication.

Ability to:
• Motivate, train and lead others.
• Understand and precisely follow both verbal and written instructions and communicate in a concise and effective

manner.
• Safely and correctly apply building and equipment maintenance and repair techniques and operate tools and

equipment.
• Work independently and efficiently.
• Manage time well and meet timelines.
• Establish and maintain effective working relationships with County employees and officials, representatives of

outside agencies, and the general public.

WORK ENVIRONMENT AND PHYSICAL DEMANDS:

Physical requirements include the ability to lift/carry up to 50 pounds, visual acuity, speech and hearing, hand and eye
coordination and manual dexterity necessary to operate a computer and office equipment. Subject to standing, walking,
sitting, reaching, climbing stairs, bending, stooping, kneeling, crouching, crawling, pushing, repetitive motion, pulling,
driving, twisting, balancing, client/customer contact, squatting to perform the essential functions. Subject to extreme
temperatures, outside elements, noise, vibration, contact with dust, fumes and hazardous chemicals, foul odors, animal and
human fecal matter, insects and rodents. Requires working at heights from ladders and scaffolds.

This job description is intended to be generic in nature. It is not necessarily an exhaustive list of all duties
and responsibilities. The essential duties, functions and responsibilities and overtime eligibility may vary
based on the specific tasks assigned to the position.

/ /1’
Page2of2 II

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Equipment Technician

JOB CODE: 13437 FLSA STATUS: Non-Exempt
PAY GRADE: 13 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

JOB SUMMARY:

Performs advanced mechanical, electrical and electronic troubleshooting and repair of commercial food service equipment.
Performs tasks and supervises the work of other staff and contractors, as required, to maintain detention facility kitchens.

DISTINGUISHING CHARACTERISTICS:

This is a job classification within the Skilled Trades job family. This classification is distinguished by experience, the
ability to perform skilled journey-level equipment maintenance work, and the requirement to supervise and direct the
work of other staff and contractors. This classification may require work in secure facilities. This classification may
require a flexible work schedule in order to meet the needs of the department.

DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES:

• Performs regular and preventative maintenance on commercial food service equipment and detention facility kitchen
facilities. Responds to operations staff reports of equipment failure to ensure minimal downtime.

• Installs, repairs and maintains new and replacement food service equipment. Diagnoses machine malfunctions and
makes repairs. Conducts inspections and performs tests to verify proper machine operation and the effectiveness
of preventative maintenance programs. Performs safety checks on equipment to ensure no hazards to personnel
are present.

• Inspects, tests, evaluates, calibrates and upgrades food service equipment and systems to improve reliability and to
ensure compliance with all applicable federal, state and local rules and regulations.

• Orders and stocks supplies, materials and spare parts to ensure their availability for routine/unscheduled
maintenance and for scheduled projects. Obtains verbal and written quotes for materials and equipment.

• Provides direction, guidance and instruction to other internal staff and outside vendors/contractors in the proper
operation and maintenance of food service and related kitchen equipment. May supervise the work of contracted
repair workers. Provides verbal and written notifications to supervisor and operations personnel on equipment
condition and maintenance schedules.

• Assists other staff with building maintenance tasks as directed, such as plumbing, electrical or other essential
building functions.

• Performs other job-related duties as assigned.

MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS:

Education and Experience:
High School diploma or G.E.D. AND three (3) to five (5) years of increasingly responsible building maintenance
experience, including preventive maintenance and repairs to equipment, buildings and facilities;

OR,

Any combination of education and experience that has been achieved and is equivalent to the stated education and
experience and required knowledge, skills, and abilities sufficient to successfully perform the duties and responsibilities
of this job.

Licenses, Registrations, Certifications, or Special Requirements:
Valid Texas Driver’s License.

Preferred:
Commercial Food Equipment Service Association (CFESA) Technician Certification and/or documented CFESA or
equivalent manufacturers’ technical training.
Three (3) to five (5) years of correctional or institutional experience.

Pagelof2 //

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Equipment Technician

JOB CODE: 13437 FLSA STATUS: Non-Exempt
PAY GRADE: 13 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS: (Cont.)

Knowledge, Skills, and Abilities:
Knowledge of:
• Commercial food service equipment, including related kitchen equipment and systems.
• Policies, practices, procedures and methods of assigned function.
• Federal, State, Local and County laws, rules, regulations and guidelines.
• Machines and tools, including their design, repair and maintenance.
• Applicable safety practices and regulations.
• Equipment and tools used in building maintenance and repair functions.
• Computer equipment to include word processing, spreadsheets, databases and a variety of software packages.
• Business letter writing, grammar and punctuation, and report preparation.

Skill in:
• Repairing machines or systems using the needed tools.
• Troubleshooting, diagnosing and performing maintenance and repair needs.
• Reading and interpreting schematics and blueprints.
• Proper and applicable safety practices, procedures and regulations.
• Leading and advising others.
• Working with others, including on a team.
• Both verbal and written communication.

Ability to:
• Motivate, train and lead others.
• Understand and precisely follow both verbal and written instructions and communicate in a concise and effective

manner.
• Safely and correctly apply building and equipment maintenance and repair techniques and operate tools and

equipment.
• Work independently and efficiently.
• Manage time well and meet timelines.
• Establish and maintain effective working relationships with County employees and officials, representatives of

outside agencies, and the general public.

WORK ENVIRONMENT AND PHYSICAL DEMANDS:

Physical requirements include the ability to lift/carry up to 50 pounds, visual acuity, speech and hearing, hand and eye
coordination and manual dexterity necessary to operate a computer and office equipment. Subject to standing, walking,
sitting, reaching, climbing stairs, bending, stooping, kneeling, crouching, crawling, pushing, repetitive motion, pulling,
driving, twisting, balancing, client/customer contact, squatting to perform the essential functions. Subject to extreme
temperatures, outside elements, noise, vibration, contact with dust, fumes and hazardous chemicals, foul odors, animal and
human fecal matter, insects and rodents. Requires working at heights from ladders and scaffolds.

This job description is intended to be generic in nature. It is not necessarily an exhaustive list of all duties
and responsibilities. The essential duties, functions and responsibilities and overtime eligibility may vary
based on the specific tasks assigned to the position.

Page 2 of 2

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Marketable Skills Program Supervisor

JOB CODE: 18438 FLSA STATUS: Exempt
PAY GRADE: 18 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

JOB SUMMARY:

Performs senior-level construction, restoration, renovation, and building alteration work. Oversees construction staff and
inmate work crews, schedules and assigns work, and requisitions materials and supplies. Prepares designs, plans,
estimates and calculates for projects. Plans, coordinates and conducts Occupational Safety and Health Administration
(OSHA) Certification and skills training for inmate programs.

DISTINGUISHING CHARACTERISTICS:

This is a job classification within the Skilled Trades job family. This classification is distinguished by the supervisory and
administrative responsibilities, the additional experience, and the ability to perform skilled carpentry work. This
classification works under minimal direction with extensive latitude for the use of initiative and independent judgment.
This classification may require work in secure facilities. This classification may require a flexible work schedule in order
to meet the needs of the department.

DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES:

• Provides for the planning, scheduling and execution of building repair, renovation or restoration projects. Provides for
the preparation of estimates for work hours, materials and other resources required for projects. Coordinates efforts
with other supervisors to ensure efficient use of all resources. Initiates and approves requisitions for materials and
supplies. Maintains an adequate inventory of materials and equipment used in the construction and renovation of
facilities and security systems. Prepares budgets and maintains project records.

• Coordinates work of outside contractors and advises management on specifics of proposed or ongoing projects.
Schedules and inspects completed work for buildings, equipment and grounds. Oversees and assigns work of internal
skilled trades and construction staff to include mechanical, electrical, plumbing and general carpentry.

• Inspects structures and evaluates required work to select the best method. Inspects completed work for compliance
with all applicable codes, rules and regulations. Performs repairs and renovations to modernize buildings or adapt them
to new uses. Performs workshop operations, including fabrication of specialized items, customized millwork, or
refinishing of furniture and other fixtures.

• Serves as lead trainer for OSHA certifications. Provides for safety, job skills and administrative training. Develops
and prepares training curriculums, course outlines, instructional methods, training aids and other materials. Ensures
training materials and facilities are ready for use.

• Provides training and career development for other staff. Assists with employee performance evaluations and
coaches employees to improve performance, as required.

• Performs other job-related duties as assigned.

MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS:

Education and Experience:
High School diploma or G.E.D. AND five (5) to ten (10) years of increasingly responsible skilled carpentry experience in
multiple trades (e.g., carpentry, plumbing, electrical) and experience in energy conservation techniques, including one
(1) year of supervisory experience. Must have experience in developing and conducting training for adults;

OR,

Any combination of education and experience that has been achieved and is equivalent to the stated education and
experience and required knowledge, skills, and abilities sufficient to successfully perform the duties and responsibilities
of this job.

Licenses, Registrations, Certifications, or Special Requirements:
Occupational Safety and Health Administration (OSHA) Certified Trainer or must obtain certification within six (6) months of
date of hire.
Valid Texas Driver’s License. .

Pagelof3 I

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Marketable Skills Program Supervisor

JOB CODE: 18438 FLSA STATUS: Exempt
PAY GRADE: 18 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS: (Cont.)

Preferred:
Three (3) to five (5) years of correctional or institutional experience.

Knowledge. Skills, and Abilities:
Knowledge of:
• Carpenter codes, related terminology, practices and procedures.
• Carpentry, plumbing, electrical work, energy conservation and subcontracting.
• Standard carpentry maintenance and repair methods, materials, tools and equipment.
• Residential construction and remodeling, including carpentry, heating, A/C and ductwork, basic electrical and plumbing.
• Federal, State, Local and County applicable laws, rules, regulations and applicable carpentry standards and

procedures.
• Supervisory principles, practices and techniques.
• Budget preparation and office management.
• Computer equipment to include word processing, spreadsheets, databases and a variety of software packages.
• Business letter writing, grammar and punctuation, and report preparation.

Skill in:
• Supervising others, including team building.
• Operating and using standard carpentry, plumbing, electrical work tools and equipment.
• Reading and interpreting schematics and blueprints.
• Calculating estimates of time, labor and quantities of materials needed.
• Proper and applicable safety practices, procedures and regulations.
• Explaining complicated problems in simple non-technical language.
• Problem-solving and decision-making.
• Adapting training material and presentation to match the skill and knowledge level of the audience.
• Both verbal and written communication.

Ability to:
• Train, lead, supervise and motivate employees.
• Write specifications for plumbing, electrical and roofing repair work.
• Interpret policy and procedures to employees and the public.
• Plan, assign, supervise and review the work of subordinates.
• Reason and make judgments and decisions.
• Understand and precisely follow both verbal and written instructions and communicate in a concise and effective

manner.
• Work efficiently, both independently and as part of a team.
• Manage time well, perform multiple tasks and organize diverse activities.
• Perform in a stressful environment, while maintaining a professional manner.
• Establish and maintain effective working relationships with departmental clientele, other County employees and

officials, representatives of outside agencies, and the general public.

Page2of3

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Marketable Skills Program Supervisor

JOB CODE: 18438 FLSA STATUS: Exempt
PAY GRADE: 18 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

WORK ENVIRONMENT AND PHYSICAL DEMANDS:

Physical requirements include the ability to lift/carry up to 50 pounds, visual acuity, speech and hearing, hand and eye
coordination and manual dexterity necessary to operate a computer and office equipment. Subject to standing, walking,
sitting, reaching, climbing stairs, bending, stooping, kneeling, crouching, crawling, pushing, repetitive motion, pulling,
driving, twisting, balancing, client/customer contact, squatting, and working in cramped or confined spaces or areas for
extended periods of time to perform the essential functions. Subject to contact with hazardous waste, foul odors, animal
and human fecal matter, insects and rodents, toxic or potential hazardous chemical or substances, dirt, dust, fumes, smoke,
loud noises, and high voltage. Requires work indoors/outdoors in all types of weather (excessive heat and cold). Requires
working at heights from ladders and scaffolds.

This job description is intended to be generic in nature. It is not necessarily an exhaustive list of all duties
and responsibilities. The essential duties, functions and responsibilities and overtime eligibility may vary
based on the specific tasks assigned to the position.

Page 3 of 3

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Court Clerk Assistant

JOB CODE: 11745 FLSA STATUS: Non-Exempt
PAY GRADE: 11 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

JOB SUMMARY:

Under close supervision, performs a variety of legal clerical duties in response to actions of the courts. Uses some
independent judgment interpreting and applying procedures and precedents to specific misdemeanor cases. Reviews
legal documents, indexes documents by applying appropriate category codes and scans documents into electronic
imaging systems. Prepares and issues a variety of legal documents. Assesses fees and performs cashier duties. Assists
the public and acts as a liaison between the department, courts, other agencies and the public.

DISTINGUISHING CHARACTERISTICS:

This is the first in a series of four court clerical-related job classifications within the Administrative Support job family.
Incumbents perform duties of routine complexity. This classification is distinguished from Court Clerk I in that it is entry-
level, meaning that incumbents do not review the work of other clerical staff and work requires less independent judgment.
Incumbents perform a greater amount of routine clerical work than others within the court clerical series.

DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES:

• Assists and answers questions from the public received in person, by phone or by email regarding the status, disposition,
pending actions or other aspects of court cases. Directs customers to the appropriate court clerk. Processes incoming
faxes and faxes document confirmation returns. Sorts and distributes incoming mail and legal documents. Notifies
customers of improperly submitted mail via phone or mail. May assist in locating missing, lost or misapplied child support
payments. Performs filing duties. Makes copies when appropriate.

• Assesses statutorily allowed fees as determined by the specific action requested. Receives and cashiers funds collected
from these assessments, including credit card payments. Maintains and balances individual cash drawers. Processes
daily deposits by calculating, posting, verifying and reconciling daily business transactions.

• Prepares and issues legal documents, such as capiases, warrants, subpoenas, commitments, summons and
release/recall calls, as required by statute, rule, or order of the court. Reviews, interprets, analyzes and evaluates all
signed legal documents submitted in an assigned cause of action and takes appropriate action. Reviews submitted
bonds for determination if a future court setting is required. Does extensive research and reviews all income withholding
orders, writ of withholding orders and all required documents needed to determine if an income withholding order should
be issues and a fee assessed.

• Prepares and organizes documents for scanning. Determines whether legal documents are to be scanned and submitted
to other court staff and agencies. Indexes each document by entering the appropriate category codes and descriptions
so that documents can be retrieved quickly using a variety of data elements. Uses scanning software to input case
information, capture images, and perform quality assurance. Scans incoming legal documents. Performs quality
verification procedures on scanned documents prepared by co-workers. Assesses scanned electronic images for
legibility, blank documents and missing records. Ensures descriptors have been properly indexed.

• Serves as a liaison between department, judges, court staff, state agencies, County attorneys office, attorneys, pro se
litigants, law enforcement agencies, child support agencies, employers, parents and the general public. Works with
accounting personnel to deliver daily deposit forms and resolve any outstanding issues. Maintains statistical data,
records, and prepares and submits reports. Compiles and updates court dockets in daily binders.

• Performs other job-related duties as assigned.

MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS:

Education and Experience:
Associate’s degree in Criminal Justice, Public Administration, Business Administration or a directly related field AND one (1)
year of clerical work experience;

OR,

Any combination of education and experience that has been achieved and is equivalent to the stated education and
experience and required knowledge, skills, and abilities sufficient to successfully perform the duties and responsibilities of
this job.

Page 1 of 2

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Court Clerk Assistant

JOB CODE: 11745 FLSA STATUS: Non-Exempt
PAY GRADE: 11 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS: (Cont.)

Licenses, Registrations, Certifications, or Special Requirements:
None required.

Preferred:
Customer service experience.

Knowledge, Skills, and Abilities:
Knowledge of:
• Criminal justice system policies and procedures.
• Legal terminology, principles, procedures, documents and forms.
• Office procedures and protocol.
• Scanning equipment and document control.
• Business letter writing, grammar and punctuation, and report preparation.

Skill in:
• Problem-solving and decision-making.
• Analyzing legal documents.
• Operating a variety of modern office equipment, including a computer.
• Both verbal and written communication.

Ability to:
• Understand and follow through on verbal and written instructions.
• Make decisions with minimum guidance on actions related to statutes, policies and procedures.
• Handle a high volume of detail oriented work.
• Establish and maintain effective working relationships with County employees and officials, judges, attorneys,

representatives of outside agencies, and the general public.

WORK ENVIRONMENT AND PHYSICAL DEMANDS:

Physical requirements include the ability to lift/carry up to 20-50 pounds occasionally, visual acuity, speech and hearing, hand
and eye coordination and manual dexterity necessary to operate a computer and office equipment. Subject to sitting,
client/customer contact, standing, walking, vision to monitor, repetitive motion, stooping/kneeling, squatting, bending, and
reaching to perform the essential functions. Transporting file folders to and from courtroom.

This job description is intended to be generic in nature. It is not necessarily an exhaustive list of all duties and
responsibilities. The essential duties, functions and responsibilities and overtime eligibility may vary based on
the specific tasks assigned to the position.

Page 2 of 2

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Court Clerk I

JOB CODE: 13746 FLSA STATUS: Non-Exempt
PAY GRADE: 13 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

JOB SUMMARY:

Under moderate supervision, performs a variety of legal clerical duties in response to actions of the courts. Uses
independent judgment interpreting and applying procedures and precedents to specific misdemeanor cases.
Coordinates and carries out duties involved in assigned causes of action. Performs detailed and complex legal
procedures associated with the receipt, review, and filing of court documents. Reviews and analyzes legal documents,
indexes documents by applying appropriate category codes and scans documents into electronic imaging systems.
Prepares and issues a variety of legal documents. Assesses fees and performs cashier duties. Assists the public and
acts as a liaison between the department, courts, other agencies and the public. May function as a Court Clerk II
alternate in supporting the court.

DISTINGUISHING CHARACTERISTICS:
This is the second in a series of four court clerical-related job classifications within the Administrative Support job family.
Incumbents perform duties of moderate complexity. This classification is distinguished from Court Clerk Assistant in that
incumbents routinely review the work performed by the Court Clerk Assistant, perform fewer general clerical duties and
require greater independent judgment. This classification is distinguished from Court Clerk II in that incumbents do not
regularly perform the majority of their work in a court setting and do not function as lead workers or have regular
supervisory duties.

DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES:

• Assists and answers questions from the public received in person, by phone or by email regarding the status,
disposition, pending actions or other aspects of court cases. Directs customers to the appropriate court clerk.
Processes incoming faxes and faxes document confirmation returns. Sorts, logs and distributes incoming mail and
legal documents. May date-stamp incoming documents. Performs filing duties. Makes copies when appropriate. May
schedule wedding appointments. May provide notary services to public.

• Serves as liaison or primary point of contact with defendants, plaintiffs, families, judges, court personnel,
Constable’s Officers, attorneys, County and District Attorney’s Office, law enforcement agencies, interested parties,
and the general public regarding status, disposition, pending actions of individual cases and parties’ actions. Assists
public and departments on office policy and procedures. Responds to legal and administrative inquiries. Takes initial
steps to resolve citizen complaints and ensures department policies and procedures are met. Provides technical advice
and assistance regarding legal documents of all types.

• May assess fees and fines, receive payments, and perform as cashier for the office on a daily basis. Accepts monies in
the form of cash, money orders and cashier checks and issues signed receipts. Receives payment from public for fees
and lower court appeal bonds. Conducts cash transactions as payments for warrants including entering credit card
transactions and mail payments. Prepares bank deposits. Makes daily and monthly reports to reconcile receipts.

• Receives and processes petitions, indictments, tickets, affidavits, complaints, applications or information instituting a
cause of action and makes appropriate notations in computer system including data element codes. Notifies
appropriate authorities of filing when required by law. Conducts review of legal documents submitted, including those
submitted electronically. Determines the legal and factual issues presented and dockets the filing into the case tracking
system with the appropriate code structure. May process emergency protection orders, peace bond applications,
school cases, property hearings, animal cruelty seizures, unlawful towing of vehicles and writs of re-entry. May
research and verify petitions and orders for expungement. Maintains a tracking system for processing acquittal
expungement orders. Routes assigned causes of action to court, as required. May determine nature of suit and
assess fees and fines. Reviews documents submitted in assigned cause of action and determines case impact.
Makes appropriate notation on case docket, and on computer system.

• Initiates new cases and updates the status of existing cases in the automated case management system. Determines
the category and description of each document or transaction by reviewing event logs and case dockets. Organizes,
bar codes, and scans documents into the document imaging system. Indexes each document by entering the
appropriate category codes and descriptions so that documents can be retrieved quickly using a variety of data
elements. Uses scanning software to input case information, capture images and perform quality assurance. Scans
incoming legal documents. Performs quality verification procedures on scanned documents prepared by co-workers.
Assesses scanned electronic images for legibility, blank documents and missing records.

Page 1 of 3

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Court Clerk I

JOB CODE: 13746 FLSA STATUS: Non-Exempt
PAY GRADE: 13 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES: (Cont.)

Prepares or issues summons, capiases, warrants, commitments, subpoenas, citations, writs, injunctions, protective
orders, restraining orders, judgments, notices and executed commitments by statute, rule, order of court or request
by customer. May accept pleas, pleadings, and motions and records all documents. Maintains up-to-date docket
detail retrieval to provide accurate information to judge and interested parties. May prepare extensions, deferred
dispositions, defensive driving requests and determines if conditions are met. May review and verify license
suspension orders and submit documentation to law enforcement agencies. Reviews and may interpret orders
signed by judge to determine further action required. Follows through on action. Receives and processes exhibits
to be filed, follows through on orders for consolidation, severance or transfer. Prepares post-judgment documents,
such as writs of habeas corpus, abstracts of judgment, order of sale, and writs of execution in compliance with
statutes, rules, case law and customer requests. Inspects proposed orders and court records for correctness before
submitting to judge.

• Sets cases for trial and notifies parties of scheduled settings. Files pleadings and records docket information. May
schedule criminal and civil bench and jury trials. Prepares and issues subpoenas, judgments and orders. May
coordinate with jury office to ensure adequate availability of jurors. Assists judge in courtroom with jurors and other
parties during trial. Issues notices, prepares documents and files for court, and ensures equipment and materials
are prepared daily for courtroom. Checks in parties arriving for trial and assists judge in courtroom. May schedule
interpreter if needed. May prepare commitments and assist judge with jail call. May assist inmates who have limited
English skills. May prepare appeals, including accepting bonds and determining due dates to be filed with Appellate
Court. May process, execute and distribute judgments, opinions and mandates from Appellate Court.

• May provide radio and telecommunications services to deputies in the field. Receives, evaluates and responds to
radio traffic. Maintains radio or phone contact and monitors deputies. Processes information received from field
deputies and updates deputies with research.

• May calculate judgments and writs at multiple interest rates. Prepares public notices of property sales and postings.
Prepares and files documents of sale, including deeds. Prepares legal notices of eviction. Maintains inventories of
seized property and funds and arranges for storage, as required.

• Works closely with division managers on special projects. Conducts research inquiries in multiple databases.
Updates legal files with pertinent information. May coordinate for off-site storage of records. Performs statistical
analysis and produces activity reports.

• May receive warrants and processes warrant information into computer system. Conducts research on parties
named in warrants and updates files. Prepares and mails notices to individuals with outstanding warrants. Notifies
deputies of outstanding warrants. Tracks warrants currently bring worked. Works with deputies in clearing
outstanding warrants. Closes outstanding warrants when obligations fulfilled.

• May notify law enforcement authorities and other essential parties when a protective order becomes final. Assists
customers with Legal Ease payments and receives approval information from bank. Coordinates files going to off-
site storage and docketing of civil case files and civil bond forfeitures cases.

• Performs other job-related duties as assigned.

MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS:

Education and Experience:
Associate’s degree in Criminal Justice, Public Administration, Business Administration or a directly related field AND two
(2) years of responsible clerical experience, including familiarity with legal procedures, terminology, the court system,
and customer service;

OR,

Any combination of education and experience that has been achieved and is equivalent to the stated education and
experience and required knowledge, skills, and abilities sufficient to successfully perform the duties and responsibilities
of this job.

Page2of3 /5

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Court Clerk I

JOB CODE: 13746 FLSA STATUS: Non-Exempt
PAY GRADE: 13 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS: (Cont.)

Licenses, Registrations, Certifications, or Special Requirements:
None required.

Knowledge, Skills, and Abilities:
Knowledge of:
• Criminal justice system policies and procedures.
• Legal terminology, principles, procedures, documents and forms.
• Office procedures and protocol.
• Scanning equipment and document control.
• County Court at Law Systems.
• Litigation procedures.
• Appeal process from lower courts.
• Warrant process.
• Criminal justice procedures to handle bond forfeiture cases.
• Business letter writing, grammar and punctuation, and report preparation.

Skill in:
• Analyzing legal documents.
• Coordinating the review and processing of legal documents.
• Calculating and collecting money.
• Operating two-way radios and other communications devices.
• Operating a variety of modern office equipment, including a computer.
• Both verbal and written communication.

Ability to:
• Interpret and process legal data.
• Operate complex databases.
• Work under minimal direction.
• Make independent decisions based on the requirement of statutes, policies and procedures.
• Handle high volumes of detail-oriented work and to delegate.
• Handle multiple tasks simultaneously.
• Effectively deal with dissatisfied customers.
• Establish and maintain effective working relationships with County employees and officials, judges, attorneys,

representatives of outside agencies, and the general public.

WORK ENVIRONMENT AND PHYSICAL DEMANDS:

Physical requirements include the ability to lift/carry up to 20-50 pounds occasionally, visual acuity, speech and hearing,
hand and eye coordination and manual dexterity necessary to operate a computer and office equipment. Subject to sitting,
client/customer contact, standing, walking, vision to monitor, repetitive motion, stooping/kneeling, squatting, bending, and
reaching to perform the essential functions. Extended periods of time at the computer entering data. Subject to heavy
workloads, time schedules, deadlines and office interpersonal management duties, and walking to courtroom and outside
walking.

This job description is intended to be generic in nature. It is not necessarily an exhaustive list of all duties
and responsibilities. The essential duties, functions and responsibilities and overtime eligibility may vary
based on the specific tasks assigned to the position.

Page3of3 /1db

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Court Clerk II

JOB CODE: 15747 FLSA STATUS: Non-Exempt
PAY GRADE: 15 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

JOB SUMMARY:

Under minimal supervision, performs highly responsible work in coordinating and carrying out responsibilities involving
assigned causes of action. Makes independent decisions, organizes and prioritizes workload and performs detailed and
complex legal procedures associated with the receipt, review, and filing of court documents. Serves as conduit for flow
of work to and from assigned court. Reviews and analyzes legal documents, indexes documents by applying
appropriate category codes and scans documents into electronic imaging systems. Prepares and issues a variety of
legal documents. Assesses fees and performs cashier duties. Assists the public and acts as a liaison between the
departments, courts, other agencies and the public. Assists judges in jury selection and other court activities. Reviews
work of others. May function as County/District Clerk/Justice of the Peace representative directly supporting the Judges.

DISTINGUISHING CHARACTERISTICS:

This is the third in a series of four court clerical-related job classifications within the Administrative Support job family.
Incumbents perform complex duties. This classification is distinguished from Court Clerk I in that incumbents routinely
perform the majority of their work in a court setting, function as lead workers or have regular supervisory duties. This
classification is distinguished from Court Clerk II Lead in that the primary responsibility is not that of supervisor and
incumbents typically do not act as subject area experts.

DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES:

• Independently processes court documents such as petitions, indictments or complaints initiating a court case in
accordance with statutory requirements and enters data into the case tracking system with the appropriate codes.
Notifies appropriate authorities of filing when required by law.

• Prepares and issues citations, writs (attachment, habeas corpus, execution, sequestration, supercedes) abstracts of
judgment, capiases, warrants, injunctions, protective orders, subpoenas, restraining orders, and notices according to
statutes, rules or court orders. May perform accounting related duties, such as calculating judgment amounts,
preparing bills of cost, issuing writs of execution and abstracts of judgment.

• Responds to legal and administrative inquiries by clients. Prepares legal documents in the adjudication and disposition
of cases for judge’s signature. Reviews orders signed by judge to determine further action required. Follows through
on action. Receives and processes exhibits to be filed, follows through on orders for consolidation, severance or
transfer. May coordinate mental health commitments with other agencies and officers of the court.

• Conducts review of legal documents submitted, including those submitted electronically. Determines the legal and
factual issues presented and dockets the filing into the case tracking system with the appropriate code structure.
Organizes, bar codes, and scans documents into the document imaging system. Indexes each document by entering
the appropriate category codes and descriptions so that documents can be retrieved quickly using a variety of data
elements. Performs quality verification procedures on scanned documents prepared by co-workers. Inspects
proposed orders and court records for correctness before submitting to judge.

• Prepares appeals, including accepting bonds, and submits them to the Appellate Court. May process, execute and
distribute judgments, opinions and mandates from Appellate Court. May maintain bond forfeiture lists, submit files to
court for certification by judge, process warrant requests and issuance of warrants, and maintain bond forfeiture lists
for missing case files, including continuing to research location of missing case files.

• Prepares, assembles, processes or maintains a variety of reports, logs, forms and official documents generated
from court proceedings, such as minutes, abstracts, rulings, orders, criminal commitments, statistics and reports.
Makes certified copies, uses appropriate legal terminology and format, ensures all necessary items/paperwork are
available, submits orders for judge’s signature and/or copies, files and distributes documents, as required. Acts as
liaison. Maintains assigned courtroom schedule. Tracks cases submitted to the court. Maintains control of and
acts as custodian of exhibits. Reviews orders and filings. May operate electronic courtroom equipment under
direction of judge.

Page 1 of 3

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Court Clerk II

JOB CODE: 15747 FLSA STATUS: Non-Exempt
PAY GRADE: 15 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES: (Cont.)

• Assists the judge in the jury selection process. Maintains jury records and records excuses and strikes. Establishes
and manages communication system with jurors assigned to court.

• May prepare statistical data for monthly report transmission. Develops data quality internal controls. Monitors and
audits data. Analyzes changing business needs and their impact on various processes. Develops and designs
statistical reports to track data.

• May serve as a trainer. Trains subordinate staff in court operations, procedures and policies. Develops, coordinates
and conducts employee training and career development courses. Arranges for outside training and evaluates
training received.

• May serve as a lead employee. Supervises, monitors, prioritizes and makes decisions on workload distribution.
Reviews employee work for timeliness and accuracy. Keeps division manager informed of significant work issues.

• May serve as a liaison or primary point of contact with defendants, plaintiffs, families, judges, court personnel,
Constable’s Officers, attorneys, County and District Attorney’s Office, law enforcement agencies, interested parties,
and the general public regarding status, disposition, pending actions of individual cases and parties’ actions. Assists
public and departments on office policy and procedures. Responds to legal and administrative inquiries. Takes initial
steps to resolve citizen complaints and ensures department policies and procedures are met.

• Attends docket call, court hearings and trials, as required by the court. Routes daily scheduled assigned causes of
action on the docket to the courtroom and returns same to the County/District Clerk’s office. Reviews documents
submitted in court and determines case impact and makes appropriate notations. Reviews and verifies orders
signed by a judge to determine required action and follows through on actions, such as orders for consolidation,
severance, or transfers and conducts research on cases, as required by the judge.

• Reviews and verifies case documents, makes appropriate notations, processes documents and files for data entry
and issues. Enters case dispositions into computer to ensure proper tracking by affected agencies. Reviews
additional court case documents to determine and follow through on action.

• May determine the number of cases that will require payment agreement preparation. Negotiates contract/pay
agreements with individual parties to determine the amount of court costs. Assesses fees, receives payments and
performs as cashier. Makes daily and monthly reports to reconcile receipts.

• May work with representatives of Sheriffs Department, County Attorney’s Office, officials in other counties, court
masters, attorneys and hospital representatives in processing Mental Health commitment cases. Creates court
hearing docket. Attends commitment and other mental health hearings to record the proceedings and to issue court
legal documents for release or to authorize commitment or treatment.

• Performs other job-related duties as assigned.

MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS:

Education and Experience:
Associate’s degree in Criminal Justice, Public Administration, Business Administration or a directly related field AND four
(4) years of responsible administrative and clerical experience, including working knowledge of legal procedures,
terminology, the court system and customer service, and including some experience working in and supporting a court
system;

OR,

Any combination of education and experience that has been achieved and is equivalent to the stated education and
experience and required knowledge, skills, and abilities sufficient to successfully perform the duties and responsibilities
of this job.

Licenses, Registrations, Certifications, or Special Requirements:
None required.

Page2of3

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Court Clerk II

JOB CODE: 15747 FLSA STATUS: Non-Exempt
PAY GRADE: 15 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS: (Cont.)

Knowledge, Skills, and Abilities:
Knowledge of:
• Criminal justice system policies and procedures.
• Legal terminology, principles, procedures, documents and forms.
• Office procedures and protocol.
• Scanning equipment and document control.
• County Court at Law Systems.
• Litigation procedures.
• Appeal process from lower courts.
• Warrant process.
• Criminal justice procedures to handle bond forfeiture cases.
• Business letter writing, grammar and punctuation, and report preparation.

Skill in:
• Analyzing legal documents.
• Coordinating the review and processing of legal documents.
• Calculating and collecting money.
• Communicating with attorneys or judges related to case information.
• Drafting correspondence.
• Monitoring, scheduling and assigning work.
• Operating a variety of modern office equipment, including a computer.
• Both verbal and written communication.

Ability to:
• Compile and generate reports.
• Effectively monitor work flow.
• Interpret and process legal data.
• Operate complex databases.
• Work under minimal direction.
• Make independent decisions based on the requirement of statutes, policies and procedures.
• Handle high volumes of detail-oriented work and to delegate.
• Handle multiple tasks simultaneously.
• Effectively deal with dissatisfied customers.
• Prioritize and work independently.
• Establish and maintain effective working relationships with County employees and officials, judges, attorneys,

representatives of outside agencies, and the general public.

WORK ENVIRONMENT AND PHYSICAL DEMANDS:

Physical requirements include the ability to lift/carry up to 20-50 pounds occasionally, visual acuity, speech and hearing,
hand and eye coordination and manual dexterity necessary to operate a computer and office equipment. Subject to sitting,
client/customer contact, standing, walking, vision to monitor, repetitive motion, stooping/kneeling, squatting, bending, and
reaching to perform the essential functions. Extended periods of time at the computer entering data. Subject to heavy
workloads, time schedules, deadlines and office interpersonal management duties, and walking to courtroom and outside
walking. Transporting file folders to courtroom.

This job description is intended to be generic in nature. It is not necessarily an exhaustive list of all duties
and responsibilities. The essential duties, functions and responsibilities and overtime eligibility may vary
based on the specific tasks assigned to the position.

Page 3 of 3

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Court Clerk II Senior

JOB CODE: 16748 FLSA STATUS: Non-Exempt
PAY GRADE: 16 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

JOB SUMMARY:

Under limited direction, performs highly responsible work in coordinating and carrying out responsibilities involving
assigned causes of action. Makes independent decisions, organizes and prioritizes workload and performs detailed and
complex legal procedures associated with the receipt, review, and filing of court documents. Functions as a team
leader. Reviews work of others. Assigns work to co-workers and reviews work output for quality control. Provides
technical assistance in completing work assignments. Serves as conduit for flow of work to and from assigned court.
Serves as a subject matter specialist. Trains other clerical staff. Assists judges in jury selection and other court
activities. Assists in recommending policies and drafting procedures. May function as County/District Clerk/Justice of
the Peace representative directly supporting the judges. Reviews and analyzes legal documents, indexes documents by
applying appropriate category codes and scans documents into electronic imaging systems. Prepares and issues a
variety of legal documents. May assess fees and perform cashier duties. Assists the public and acts as a liaison
between the departments, courts, other agencies and the public.

DISTINGUISHING CHARACTERISTICS:

This is the fourth in a series of four court clerical-related job classifications within the Administrative Support job family.
Incumbents perform duties of advanced complexity. This classification is distinguished from Court Clerk II in that the
primary responsibility is that of supervisor and incumbents frequently act as subject area experts.

DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES:

• Serves as a lead worker for all court clerks. Answers staff questions related to processes and procedures.
Supervises, monitors, prioritizes and makes decisions on workload schedules. Schedules substitute coverage when
needed. Trains permanent and temporary staff. May assist in preparing, updating training manuals, work guides
and community resource information. Reviews employee work for accuracy and adherence to deadlines and
performance standards. May assist the division manager in the hiring process and advise on performance
appraisals and other personnel actions.

• Coordinates with division manager to develop, monitor and evaluate team’s operational plans within established
guidelines. Keeps division manager informed of issues within the work unit. Makes recommendations to division
manager regarding improvements to department policies and workflow. Directs problem-solving efforts for team in
complex case management issues. Responds to customer complaints. Serves as subject matter expert and resource
person relating to state rules, regulations and requirements.

• Independently processes court documents, such as petitions, indictments or complaints initiating a court case in
accordance with statutory requirements and enters data into the case tracking system with the appropriate codes.
Notifies appropriate authorities of filing when required by law.

• Prepares and issues citations, writs (attachment, habeas corpus, execution, sequestration, supersedes) abstracts of
judgment, capiases, warrants, injunctions, protective orders, subpoenas, restraining orders, and notices according to
statutes, rules or court orders. May perform accounting related duties, such as calculating judgment amounts,
preparing bills of cost, issuing writs of execution and abstracts of judgment.

• Responds to legal and administrative inquiries by clients. Prepares legal documents in the adjudication and disposition
of cases for judge’s signature. Reviews orders signed by judge to determine further action required. Follows through
on action. Receives and processes exhibits to be filed, follows through on orders for consolidation, severance or
transfer. May coordinate mental health commitments with other agencies and officers of the court.

• Conducts review of legal documents submitted, including those submitted electronically. Determines the legal and
factual issues presented and dockets the filing into the case tracking system with the appropriate code structure.
Organizes, bar codes and scans documents into the document imaging system. Indexes each document by entering
the appropriate category codes and descriptions so that documents can be retrieved quickly using a variety of data
elements. Performs quality verification procedures on scanned documents prepared by co-workers. Directs resolution
of problems with documents that are rejected in quality control. Inspects proposed orders and court records for
correctness before submitting to judge.

Page 1 of 4 /30

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Court Clerk II Senior

JOB CODE: 16748 FLSA STATUS: Non-Exempt
PAY GRADE: 16 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES: (Cant.)

• Prepares appeals, including accepting bonds, and submits them to the Appellate Court. May process, execute and
distribute judgments, opinions and mandates from Appellate Court. May maintain bond forfeiture lists, submit files to
court for certification by judge, process warrant requests and issuance of warrants. Maintains bond forfeiture lists
for missing case files, including continuing to research location of missing case files.

• Prepares, assembles, processes or maintains a variety of reports, logs, forms and official documents generated
from court proceedings, such as minutes, abstracts, rulings, orders, criminal commitments, statistics and reports.
Makes certified copies, uses appropriate legal terminology and format, ensures all necessary items/paperwork are
available, submits orders for judge’s signature and/or copies, files and distributes documents, as required. Acts as
liaison. Maintains assigned courtroom schedule. Tracks cases submitted to the court. Maintains control of and
acts as custodian of exhibits. Reviews orders and filings. May operate electronic courtroom equipment under
direction of judge.

• Assists the judge in the jury selection process. Maintains jury records and records excuses and strikes. Establishes
and manages communication system with jurors assigned to court.

• May work with cashiers to appropriately assess, collect, and receipt fees based upon the application of established
rules, laws and policy. Makes sure that cash, checks, vouchers and credit card balances are accurate and balanced.
Completes deposit slips and prepares deposits.

• Serves as primary contact and works with County Courts at Law, Probate Court, Sheriff’s Office, Community
Supervision, Austin Police Department, Texas Department of Public Safety, defense attorneys, County and District
Attorney’s Office, defendants, executors, administrators, guardians, interested parties and the general public
regarding status, disposition, pending actions, warrant status, etc. of individual cases and defendants’ actions.
Keeps judge abreast of case changes.

• Attends docket call, court hearings and trials, as required by the court. Routes daily scheduled assigned causes of
action on the docket to the courtroom and returns same to the County/District Clerk/Justice of the Peace office.
Reviews documents submitted in court and determines case impact and makes appropriate notations. Reviews and
verifies orders signed by a judge to determine required action and follows through on actions such as orders for
consolidation, severance, or transfers and conducts research on cases, as required by the judge.

• Reviews and verifies case documents, makes appropriate notations, processes documents and files for data entry
and issues. Enters case dispositions into computer to ensure proper tracking by affected agencies. Reviews
additional court case documents to determine and follow through on action.

• Prepares and issues subpoenas, writs, capiases, commitments, bench warrants, summons, bond forfeiture set
asides, release/recall cards, posted notices, citations, writs, letters testamentary, letters of administration, letters of
guardianship, and other related documentation in compliance with statutes, rules, case law and customer requests.

• Prepares post-judgment documents such as, writs of habeas corpus and writ of attachment. Locates and amends
commitments, as required. Issues jail commitments to out of County agencies and electronic monitoring to ensure
compliance with court sentencing orders and execution of commitments, and obtains fingerprints of defendant on
court orders, as required.

• Coordinates and assists courts in the impaneling of jurors, preparation of jury lists, certification of list, issuance of
lists of interested parties, administration of oaths, and determination and submission of payment vouches.

• Prepares appeals and appeal transcripts to Appellate Court, prepares actions on requests from Appellate Court,
including opinions, mandates and supplemental transcripts. Delivers lower court appeals to County Court and takes
appropriate action. Executes opinions and judgments in municipal.

• May maintain bond forfeiture lists, submit files to court for certification by judge, process warrant requests and
issuance of warrants. Maintains bond forfeiture lists for missing case files, including continuing to research location
of missing case files.

• Performs other job-related duties as assigned.

Page2of4 /31

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Court Clerk II Senior

JOB CODE: 16748 FLSA STATUS: Non-Exempt
PAY GRADE: 16 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS:

Education and Experience:
Associate’s degree in Criminal Justice, Public Administration, Business Administration or a directly related field AND four
(4) years of responsible clerical experience, including familiarity with legal procedures, terminology, the court system and
customer service, and including some experience in supporting a court system, and including two (2) years of supervisory
experience;

OR,

Any combination of education and experience that has been achieved and is equivalent to the stated education and
experience and required knowledge, skills, and abilities sufficient to successfully perform the duties and responsibilities
of this job.

Licenses, Registrations, Certifications, or Special Requirements:
None required.

Knowledge, Skills, and Abilities:
Knowledge of:
• Criminal justice system policies and procedures.
• Legal terminology, principles, procedures, documents and forms.
• Office procedures and protocol.
• Scanning equipment and document control.
• County Court at Law Systems.
• Warrant process.
• Criminal justice procedures to handle bond forfeiture cases (County Attorney’s office).
• Relevant statutes and rules of court.
• Litigation procedures.
• Appeal process from lower courts.
• Workflow management.
• Personnel management.
• Business letter writing, grammar and punctuation, and report preparation.

Skill in:
• Monitoring, scheduling and assigning work.
• Communicating with attorneys or judges related to case information.
• Drafting correspondence.
• Data entry and computer systems.
• Analyzing legal documents.
• Coordinating the review and processing of legal documents.
• Calculating and collecting money.
• Operating a variety of modern office equipment, including a computer.
• Both verbal and written communication.

Ability to:
• Supervise, train, assign and monitor work assignments.
• Compile and generate reports.
• Effectively monitor workflow.
• Interpret and process legal data.

Page 3of4 /32

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Court Clerk II Senior

JOB CODE: 16748 FLSA STATUS: Non-Exempt
PAY GRADE: 16 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS: (Cont.)

Ability to: (Cont.)
• Operate complex databases.
• Work under minimal direction.
• Make independent decisions based on the requirement of statutes, policies and procedures.
• Handle high volumes of detail-oriented work and delegate.
• Handle multiple tasks simultaneously.
• Effectively deal with dissatisfied customers.
• Prioritize and work independently.
• Establish and maintain effective working relationships with County employees and officials, judges, attorneys,

representatives of outside agencies, and the general public.

WORK ENVIRONMENT AND PHYSICAL DEMANDS:

Physical requirements include the ability to lift/carry up to 20-50 pounds occasionally, visual acuity, speech and hearing,
hand and eye coordination and manual dexterity necessary to operate a computer and office equipment. Subject to sitting,
client/customer contact, standing, walking, vision to monitor, repetitive motion, stooping/kneeling, squatting, bending, and
reaching to perform the essential functions. Subject to extended periods of time at the computer entering data, heavy
workloads, time schedules, deadlines and office interpersonal management duties, and walking to courtroom and outside
walking.

This job description is intended to be generic in nature. It is not necessarily an exhaustive list of all duties
and responsibilities. The essential duties, functions and responsibilities and overtime eligibility may vary
based on the specific tasks assigned to the position.

Page 4 of 4 /33

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Judicial Aide

JOB CODE: 15749 FLSA STATUS: Non-Exempt
PAY GRADE: 15 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

JOB SUMMARY:

Under minimal supervision, performs complex administrative, legal and research duties for judge and other members of
the legal staff. Sets cases for hearing or trial. Monitors cases for compliance and is responsible for communicating with
legal commitments, other courts, and law enforcement agencies. Verifies accuracy and completeness of legal
documents including adherence to completion of deadlines and statutory compliance. Coordinates division schedules,
workloads and projects. Performs various administrative duties for judge. Provides assistance to court staff in
coordinating jury trials.

DISTINGUISHING CHARACTERISTICS:

This is the first in a series of two judicial-related job classifications within the Administrative Support job family. This
classification works directly under Criminal or Civil judges. This classification is distinguished from the Judicial Aide
Specialist and Court Operations Officer in that incumbents do not work directly in the courtroom and they typically have
less experience, more administrative duties, less direct responsibility for case management and act more as a liaison
than an advisor or representative for a judge. Sensitivity to detail and confidentiality.

DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES:

• Schedules, prepares, manages and monitors all cases assigned to the specific court through court settings and re
settings until disposition. Sets cases for hearing or trial as requested by attorney, party, or judge. Monitors case
status to insure accuracy and compliance with basic requirements. Notifies parties of case settings. Coordinates
transfer of cases between other courts and jurisdictions. Coordinates with County departments and attorneys on jail
defendants to ensure that those cases are ready for trial and are heard expeditiously. Assists judges in designing
annual docket schedule of trial activities and disseminates schedule to attorneys. Monitors preparation of judgments
on defendants in jail to ensure orders are completed in a timely fashion.

• Reviews and analyzes multiple legal documents. Creates and maintains court dockets. Prepares written opinions,
court orders and other legal documents as requested by the judge. Enters, updates, processes, retrieves and
disseminates information and documents using multiple systems and databases. Drafts, types and prepares
memoranda, legal documents and correspondence in conjunction with the disposition of cases, opinions, court
orders, jury charges, judgments and other County transactions. Organizes, maintains and retrieves case files for
assigned courts. Transcribes legal and other technical dictation. Proofreads legal documents. Performs confidential
legal secretarial assistance in complex cases.

• Performs various administrative duties for judge(s). Schedules appointments, maintains calendars and reminder
systems for the judge and court administrative staff. Obtains travel arrangements, and prepares and processes
necessary forms. Ensures adequate inventory of office supplies. Processes, organizes and distributes mail for
judges and staff. Screens walk-ins and telephone callers and refers to appropriate office. Assists in retrieving and
returning court files and exhibits, locating legal documents and making copies, greeting court visitors, as required.

• Serves as a liaison between judge and attorneys, law enforcement and other agencies, County and other officials
and staff, the media and the public regarding case settings and proceedings. Attends meetings and drafts minutes
for distribution. Communicates with attorneys, other courts, and the general public to provide guidance on local
rules and procedures. Coordinates media responses and may represent the judge in various communications.
Responds to inquiries regarding status of cases and contract and opinion preparations. Communicates case
information, practices, local rules and procedures to attorneys, other courts, jurors, the media, the general public and
litigants. Answers general questions about court activities and directs courtroom traffic.

• Requests visiting judges through state monitored process. Maintains calendar of court hearings and special case
assignments for visiting judges. Notifies visiting judges of settings and provides them with case information. Makes
travel arrangements and processes payment claim forms and travel reimbursements for visiting judges. Acts as
liaison for visiting judges and locates courtrooms for them.

Pagelof3
/317I

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Judicial Aide

JOB CODE: 15749 FLSA STATUS: Non-Exempt
PAY GRADE: 15 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES: (Cont.)

• Attends court proceedings to create and finalize legal documents and record summaries of actions taken in court
upon the direction of the judge or attorney. Organizes and maintains accurate case files. Ensures that all legal
documents are filed and copies are disseminated to involved parties. Swears in witnesses, notarizes documents,
makes and maintains recordings of court proceedings. Ensures key personnel and other special staff are available
to conduct court. Assists with daily operation of electronic courtroom equipment and document management
system. Ensures special equipment is available to conduct court. Coordinates with clerk’s office to get case files
transported to courtroom. May act as a relief bailiff, and prepares the courtroom for court sessions, opens and
closes each session of court.

• Provides assistance to court staff with the coordination of jury trial. Coordinates juror communication with the court
and notifies the court of juror questions or notifications of verdict. Assists with the preparation of jury instructions
and charges. May assist in the preparation of jury lists and questionnaires, as required.

• Conducts research on case activity and prepares statistical reports. Maintains effective document, file and record
retrieval system. Compiles information in several specialized databases and extracts information through the use of
queries. May be responsible for coordinating and tracking off-site case files.

• May ensure that all indigent defendants receive court appointed counsel. Manages rotating lists of attorneys with
various levels of qualifications. Reviews cases in multiple databases to determine the appropriate setting and level
of attorney qualification. Prepares appropriate legal paperwork necessary for court appointments. Enters jail case
setting information to create the court’s jail dockets.

• Performs other job-related duties as assigned.

MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS:

Education and Experience:
Associate’s degree in Criminal Justice, Public Administration, Business Administration or a directly related field AND four
(4) years of responsible administrative or general business experience in a court, judicial, legal office or a directly related
environment involving some limited legal research, administrative and technical duties;
OR,

Any combination of education and experience that has been achieved and is equivalent to the stated education and
experience and required knowledge, skills, and abilities sufficient to successfully perform the duties and responsibilities
of this job.

Licenses, Registrations, Certifications, or Special Requirements:
None required.

Knowledge, Skills, and Abilities:
Knowledge of:
• Policies, practices, procedures and legal terminology related to court system.
• Legal terminology, principles, procedures, documents and forms.
• Court scheduling and case management.
• Office protocol and management.
• Computer equipment to include word processing, spreadsheets, databases and a variety of software packages.
• Business letter writing, grammar and punctuation, and report preparation.

Skill in:
• Working directly with judges and other court personnel.
• Communicating effectively with court participants and observers.
• Managing court dockets.
• Conducting legal research.
• Both verbal and written communication.

Page 2 of 3

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Judicial Aide

JOB CODE: 15749 FLSA STATUS: Non-Exempt
PAY GRADE: 15 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS: (Cont.)

Ability to:
• Prepare written opinions and other legal documents.
• Compile and analyze moderately complex statistical information.
• Conduct administrative duties for a judge in an office setting.
• Work under minimal direction.
• Prioritize work.
• Maintain confidential data and information for judicial staff.
• Establish and maintain effective working relationships with County employees and officials, judges, attorneys and

other participants in the civil justice system, representatives of outside agencies, and the general public.

WORK ENVIRONMENT AND PHYSICAL DEMANDS:

Physical requirements include the ability to lift/carry up to 20-50 pounds occasionally, visual acuity, speech and hearing,
hand and eye coordination and manual dexterity necessary to operate a computer and office equipment. Subject to sitting,
client/customer contact, standing, walking, vision to monitor, repetitive motion, stooping/kneeling, squatting, bending, and
reaching to perform the essential functions. Subject to extensive phone and client contact.

This job description is intended to be generic in nature. It is not necessarily an exhaustive list of all dutiesj
and responsibilities. The essential duties, functions and responsibilities and overtime eligibility may vary
based on the specific tasks assigned to the position.

Page 3of3 1c31’

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Judicial Aide Specialist

JOB CODE: 16750 FLSA STATUS: Non-Exempt
PAY GRADE: 16 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

JOB SUMMARY:

Under limited supervision, assists, advises and represents the judge in the execution of judicial duties in the operation of
the court and coordinates activities of the court. Reports directly to the judge and interacts with other officials, attorneys,
law enforcement and other agencies, County personnel, the media, and the general public. Manages the court’s docket.
Monitors all cases assigned to the specific court through indictment/filing and all appropriate court settings, until
disposition. Assists the judge in analyzing problem cases, researching legal issues addressed in correspondence, and
preparing legal documents, such as opinions, court orders, jury charges and judgments. Coordinates inmate attendance
for the court.

DISTINGUISHING CHARACTERISTICS:

This is the second in a series of two judicial-related job classifications within the Administrative Support job family. This
classification works directly under Criminal or Civil judges. This classification is distinguished from the Judicial Aide in
that incumbents typically have more experience, fewer administrative duties, and more direct responsibility for case
management and directly advise the judge in the execution of judicial duties. Work is performed primarily in a courtroom
setting. Incumbents are responsible for managing, scheduling and monitoring the docket and other courtroom activities
for a specific judge. This position has a significant impact on the operation of the court. Sensitivity to detail and
confidentiality.

DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES:

• Schedules, prepares and manages the docket for the court. Monitors all cases assigned to the specific court through
indictment/filing, court settings and resettings, until disposition. Develops efficient procedures on managing dockets
and case flow to ensure fair and speedy disposition in all cases and promote judicial efficiency. Ensures that cases are
heard expeditiously through oversight and tracking of cases assigned to court. Maintains a thorough knowledge and
understanding of criminal law and procedures. Notifies and ensures that all appropriate criminal justice and other
entities and individuals are properly informed regarding court settings.

• Assists, advises and represents judge in the execution of judicial duties. Serves as a liaison between the judge and
attorneys, law enforcement and other agencies, County and other officials and staff, the media and the public regarding
case settings and proceedings. Coordinates communication exchange between assigned court and involved entities
and individuals. Provides information regarding cases and local rules and practices, coordinates responses to media
inquiries, and may represent the judge in various communications. May serve as media liaison regarding high profile
cases. Ensures key personnel and others are available to conduct court. Arranges for equipment and supplemental
services, as required for cases.

• Prepares legal documents such as opinions, court orders, jury charges and judgments. Conducts research on case
activity and analyzes problem cases, as required. Conducts preliminary legal research in order to ascertain the correct
agency to handle legal issues. Reviews correspondence sent to the court from constituents and others seeking
information or assistance from the court. Ascertains if any action is required and prepares responses for the court.
Receives office visitors and officials and responds to telephone inquires.

• Coordinates with the TCSO to arrange inmate attendance for the court. Tracks inmates assigned to the specific court
to ensure that those cases are heard expeditiously. Arranges bench warrants for appropriate inmates. Arranges for
interpreter services and psychological/psychiatric services, as required.

• Performs other job-related duties as assigned.

MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS:

Education and Experience:
Associate’s degree in Criminal Justice, Public Administration, Business Administration or a directly related field AND five
(5) years of responsible administrative or general business experience in a court, judicial, legal office or a directly related
environment involving some limited legal research, administrative and technical duties;

Pagelof2

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Judicial Aide Specialist

JOB CODE: 16750 FLSA STATUS: Non-Exempt
PAY GRADE: 16 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS: (Cont.)

Education and Experience: (Cont.)

OR,

Any combination of education and experience that has been achieved and is equivalent to the stated education and
experience and required knowledge, skills, and abilities sufficient to successfully perform the duties and responsibilities
of this job.

Licenses, Registrations, Certifications, or Special Requirements:
None required.

Preferred:
Bachelor’s degree in Criminal Justice, Public Administration, Business Administration or a directly related field.

Knowledge, Skills, and Abilities:
Knowledge of:
• Policies, practices, procedures and terminology of assigned function.
• Federal, State, Local and County applicable laws, rules, regulations and guidelines.
• Criminal justice system policies and procedures.
• Legal terminology, principles, procedures, documents and forms.
• Penal Code and Code of Criminal Procedure.
• Indigence requirements.
• Docket management.
• Modern courtroom and office practices, procedures and methods.
• Computer equipment to include word processing, spreadsheets, databases and a variety of software packages.
• Business English, spelling and arithmetic, letter writing, grammar and punctuation, and report preparation.

Skill in:
• Working directly with judges and other legal staff.
• Problem-solving and decision-making.
• Conducting legal research.
• Scheduling and monitoring dockets.
• Both verbal and written communication.

Ability to:
• Manage and monitor all criminal cases assigned to the court.
• Receive, research, analyze, prioritize, and communicate information.
• Work independently.
• Manage time well, perform multiple tasks and prioritize work.
• Maintain confidential data and information for judicial staff.
• Establish and maintain effective working relationships with County employees and officials, judges, attorneys and

other participants in the civil justice system, representatives of outside agencies, and the general public.

WORK ENVIRONMENT AND PHYSICAL DEMANDS:

Physical requirements include the ability to lift/carry up to 20-50 pounds occasionally, visual acuity, speech and hearing,
hand and eye coordination and manual dexterity necessary to operate a computer and office equipment. Subject to sitting,
client/customer contact, standing, walking, vision to monitor, repetitive motion, stooping/kneeling, squatting, bending, and
reaching to perform the essential functions.

This job description is intended to be generic in nature. It is not necessarily an exhaustive list of all dutiei
and responsibilities. The essential duties, functions and responsibilities and overtime eligibility may vary
based on the specific tasks assigned to the position.

I2
Page2of2 /

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Court Operations Officer

JOB CODE: 16755 FLSA STATUS: Non-Exempt
PAY GRADE: 16 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

JOB SUMMARY:

Under limited supervision, performs advanced complex legal, administrative, technical and operations assistance and
research for judges and court staff. Maintains order and decorum of the court during hearings and trials. Assists the judge,
attorneys, jurors and the public in their interaction with the court system. Coordinates activities within the courtroom and
monitors and assists with daily implementation and use of electronic courtroom equipment and the document management
system during trials and hearings. Sets and calendars cases for hearing or trial coordination with court staff. Compiles and
maintains statistical case management and docket information. Verifies accuracy and completion of legal documents
including adherence to deadlines and statutory compliance. Communicates with jurors, witnesses, attorneys, other courts,
law enforcement agencies and members of the public regarding cases and proceedings. Assists with selection and
notification of jurors and provides information to jurors, attorneys and citizens.

DISTINGUISHING CHARACTERISTICS:

This is a job classification within the Administrative Support job family. This classification is distinguished from the
Judicial Aide in that incumbents typically have more experience, fewer administrative duties, more direct responsibility
for case management and directly advises the judge in the execution of judicial duties. Work is performed primarily in a
courtroom setting. Incumbents are responsible for managing, scheduling and monitoring the docket and other courtroom
activities for a specific Judge. Incumbents have jury management responsibilities. This classification has a significant
impact on the operation of the court. This classification also operates and troubleshoots the electronic courtroom
equipment and document management system.

DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES:

• Assists in devetopment, coordination and monitoring of docket control for judges. Sets cases for hearing/trial and
monitors status. Assists judges in designing docket schedule of various trial activities for assigned complex cases,
administrative appeals and specialized dockets. Prepares and coordinates docket jury/non-jury. Performs docket
entry. Coordinates transfer of cases between other courts and jurisdictions.

• Works and interacts with court staff, attorneys, jurors and the public by phone, mail, electronically and in person.
Monitors case status to ensure accuracy and compliance with basic requirements and notifies parties of case
settings, assignment of cases and coordination of any briefing schedules and docket control orders. Serves as
liaison with members of the public, the bar, the bench, assorted agencies and litigants. Answers general questions
about court activity, directs courtroom participants to the proper places, locates and summons litigants and
witnesses. Responds to inquiries and communicates local rules and procedures to attorneys, other courts, the
media, the general public and pro se litigants. Coordinates with law enforcement transportation units to arrange
inmate attendance for court proceedings, as required. Assists elected officials and other administrative staff in
retrieving and returning court files and exhibits, locating legal documents and making copies, greeting court
participants, functioning as backup for other court staff, as required. Opens and closes each session of court and
provides security while court is in session.

• Assists with daily operation of electronic courtroom equipment and document management system. Ensures key
personnel and other special staff are available to timely conduct court proceedings and ensures special equipment is
available to conduct court operations. Coordinates with departments as necessary in connection with operation and
functioning of the document management system in court. Assists in ensuring pleadings, exhibits or documents are
retrieved for court proceedings in the event electronic systems are down when court proceedings are scheduled to
commence or pursuant to court request. Assists visiting judges with electronic courtroom operations and operation
of the document management system, as required.

• Provides suggestions concerning adjustments and changes in operation, handling of jury panels or program
administration within the court. Performs jury management duties, including assisting in jury empanelling,
overseeing jurors during the trial process, providing for the needs of jurors and coordinating juror communication
with the court and/or notifying the court in the event of juror questions and notice of verdict. Assists with preparation
of jury instructions and jury charges for courts in jury trial, assists with jury lists, jury panel requests and juror
questionnaires, as required.

Pagelof3 )31

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Court Operations Officer

JOB CODE: 16755 FLSA STATUS: Non-Exempt
PAY GRADE: 16 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES: (Cant.)

• Performs complex legal, administrative and technical assistance for judges. Prepares written opinions, court orders,
and other documents as requested. Performs general office duties, such as word processing, faxing, completion of
reporting or statistical forms, ordering supplies, routing invoices, and responding to inquiries. Verifies accuracy and
completeness of legal documents including adherence to local deadlines, policy and rule compliance, and statutory
compliance. May perform complex statistical research, compilation of data and reporting on pending and disposed
cases. Conducts research on case activity and preparation of statistical reports.

• Performs other job-related duties as assigned.

MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS:

Education and Experience:
Associate’s degree in Criminal Justice, Public Administration, Business Administration or a directly related field AND five
(5) years of responsible administrative or general business experience in a court, judicial, legal office or a directly related
environment involving some limited legal research, administrative and technical duties;

OR,

Any combination of education and experience that has been achieved and is equivalent to the stated education and
experience and required knowledge, skills, and abilities sufficient to successfully perform the duties and responsibilities
of this job.

Licenses, Registrations, Certifications, or Special Requirements:
None required.

Preferred:
Bachelor’s degree in Criminal Justice, Public Administration, Business Administration or a directly related field.

Knowledge, Skills, and Abilities:
Knowledge of:
• Policies, practices, procedures, operations and legal terminology related to court system.
• Federal, State, Local and County applicable laws, rules, regulations and guidelines.
• Docket management.
• Courtroom procedures.
• Jury system and jury management.
• Modern office practices, procedures and methods.
• Computer equipment to include word processing, spreadsheets, databases and a variety of software packages.
• Business letter writing, grammar and punctuation, and report preparation.

Skill in:
• Working directly with judges, juries and other legal staff.
• Maintaining order and decorum within a courtroom.
• Problem-solving and decision-making.
• Conducting legal research.
• Coordinating the work of others.
• Operating a variety of modern office equipment, including a computer.
• Both verbal and written communication.

Page2of3 //71t

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Court Operations Officer

JOB CODE: 16755 FLSA STATUS: Non-Exempt
PAY GRADE: 16 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS: (Cont.)

Ability to:
• Perform complex legal, technical and administrative duties for a judge.
• Operate the data management system and electronic courtroom equipment.
• Manage time well, perform multiple tasks and prioritize work.
• Perform in a stressful environment while maintaining a professional manner.
• Research, compile, analyze, interpret and prepare a variety of statistical and other information.
• Establish and maintain effective operation of and decorum in the court.
• Establish and maintain effective working relationships with County employees and officials, judges, attorneys and,

other participants in the civil justice system, representatives of outside agencies, and the general public.

WORK ENVIRONMENT AND PHYSICAL DEMANDS:

Physical requirements include the ability to lift/carry up to 20-50 pounds occasionally, visual acuity, speech and hearing,
hand and eye coordination and manual dexterity necessary to operate a computer and office equipment. Subject to sitting,
client/customer contact, standing, walking, vision to monitor, repetitive motion, stooping/kneeling, squatting, bending, and
reaching to perform the essential functions.

This job description is intended to be generic in nature. It is not necessarily an exhaustive list of all duties
and responsibilities. The essential duties, functions and responsibilities and overtime eligibility may vary
based on the specific tasks assigned to the position.

Page3of3 /

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Legal Secretary

JOB CODE: 15789 FLSA STATUS: Non-Exempt
PAY GRADE: 15 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

JOB SUMMARY:

Under minimal supervision, provides legal secretarial assistance to assigned legal and/or compliance staff. Prepares,
processes, and types legal documents such as contracts, briefs, summonses, complaints and motions. Enters, updates
and retrieves information using multiple systems and databases. Collects, organizes and prepares files and materials for
attorneys and compliance staff for use in court appearances or for transacting other legal business. Schedules
appointments and maintains calendars. Acts as a liaison between attorneys, courts, witnesses, other agencies and the
public.

DISTINGUISHING CHARACTERISTICS:

This is the first in a series of two legal secretarial-related job classifications within the Administrative Support job family.
This classification is distinguished from the Legal Secretary Senior in that incumbents typically have less experience and do
not function as lead Legal Secretaries or work directly for a Division Director. Sensitivity to detail and confidentiality.

DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES:

• Drafts, under attorney supervision, various legal documents, including pleadings, motions, judgments, dispositions,
subpoenas and correspondence for use in legal proceedings. Records messages of adjudication and disposition of
cases, real estate and business transactions, child support payments or the status of contract and opinion
preparations. Examines all files and paperwork for accuracy and completeness. Logs all file enhancements with
updated status. Creates and updates case lists. Organizes case lists by attorney or investigator. Creates, organizes
and prepares case files. Notifies personnel of case assignments and case closures.

• Acts as liaison between attorneys, courts, witnesses, victims, other agencies departments and the general public.
Responds to inquiries from defense attorneys, victims, witnesses, others agencies and the general public regarding
the status of cases, child support payments, or the status of contract and opinion preparations. Works closely with
other government agencies and law enforcement agencies to facilitate the apprehension of defendants, docketing
and prosecution of cases. Provides continuous updates to referring agencies, attorneys and the public concerning
case status and disposition. Coordinates witness and attorney travel and lodging arrangements. Orchestrates travel
to and from court for time-sensitive trial and grand jury appearances. Contacts criminal justice agencies and other
sources to obtain information needed for prosecution of cases.

• Organizes, maintains and retrieves case files for assigned court or unit. Enters, updates and retrieves information
using multiple systems and databases. Uses the computer to process, retrieve, and disseminate information and
documents, including word processing functions for letters, memoranda and legal documents.

• Types legal documents and correspondence. Types, certifies and sends legal documents regarding a summary of
action taken in court or wage garnishments. Transcribes interview tapes and maintains spreadsheets for case
investigations and statistics. Screens walk-ins and telephone callers or complainants and refers to appropriate
officer, managers, or locations. Proofreads legal documents (orders) prepared by staff. Assists attorneys in court
and helps maintain court dockets and calendars.

• Schedules appointments, maintains calendars and reminder systems, and sorts and distributes incoming mail.
Assists in budget preparation. Compiles and types statistical reports, and keeps monthly statistics on cases.
Performs notary public services. Performs as backup for other clerical staff. Maintains court docket and court
calendar. Troubleshoots office equipment, printers, computers, fax machines and copiers and schedules needed
maintenance. Coordinates meetings and takes minutes. May serve as backup receptionist. May assist in training
staff, processing payroll and various personnel actions.

• Performs other job-related duties as assigned.

MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS:

Education and ExDerience:
Associate’s degree in Legal Secretarial Science, Paralegal Studies, Criminal Justice, Public Administration, Business
Administration or a directly related field AND two (2) years of advanced secretarial experience, including one (1) year as a
Legal Secretary;

Page 1 of 2 1 171;

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Legal Secretary

JOB CODE: 15789 FLSA STATUS: Non-Exempt
PAY GRADE: 15 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS: (Cont.)

Education and Experience: (Cont.)

OR,

Any combination of education and experience that has been achieved and is equivalent to the stated education and
experience and required knowledge, skills, and abilities sufficient to successfully perform the duties and responsibilities of
this job.

Licenses, Registrations, Certifications, or Special Requirements:
None required.

Knowledge. Skills, and Abilities:
Knowledge of:
• Policies, practices, procedures and legal terminology related to court system.
• Legal terminology, principles, procedures, documents and forms.
• File management and modern office practices.
• Word processing and other software programs.
• Business letter writing, grammar and punctuation, and report preparation.

Skill in:
• Organizing, updating and filing legal case files.
• Working with attorneys and other legal personnel in a high volume environment.
• Preparing legal correspondence.
• Operating a variety of modern office equipment, including a computer.
• Both verbal and written communication.

Ability to:
• Work independently on difficult or complex clerical tasks.
• Prepare, verify, correct and record legal documents and complicated legal instruments.
• Maintain confidential data and information.
• Establish and maintain effective working relationships with County employees and officials, attorneys, court

personnel, law enforcement agencies, representatives of outside agencies, and the general public.

WORK ENVIRONMENT AND PHYSICAL DEMANDS:

Physical requirements include the ability to lift/carry up to 20-50 pounds occasionally, visual acuity, speech and hearing,
hand and eye coordination and manual dexterity necessary to operate a computer and office equipment. Subject to sitting,
client/customer contact, standing, walking, vision to monitor, listening to recording, repetitive motion, stooping/kneeling,
squatting, bending, and reaching to perform the essential functions.

This job description is intended to be generic in nature. It is not necessarily an exhaustive list of all duties
and responsibilities. The essential duties, functions and responsibilities and overtime eligibility may vary
based on the specific tasks assigned to the position.

Page 2 of 2 1 L3

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Legal Secretary Senior

JOB CODE: 16790 FLSA STATUS: Non-Exempt
PAY GRADE: 16 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

JOB SUMMARY:

Under limited supervision, provides legal secretarial and administrative assistance to a division director or higher level of
management. Independently generates complex legal documents and performs complex legal secretarial tasks.
Independently verifies accuracy and completeness of legal documents and files, including adherence to completion
deadlines and statutory compliance. May perform routine legal research. As lead worker, may assign work for other
support staff within a legal environment, coordinate completion of tasks and division schedules, or monitor and allocate
workloads and projects.

DISTINGUISHING CHARACTERISTICS:

This is the second in a series of two legal secretarial-related job classifications within the Administrative Support job
family. This classification is distinguished from the Legal Secretary in that incumbents typically have more experience in
complex legal document preparation and perform lead Legal Secretary duties or work directly for a Division Director.
Sensitivity to detail and confidentiality.

DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES:

• Acts as lead secretary for secretarial and clerical staff. Supervises, trains and coordinates work assignments of
secretaries and clerks. May participate in secretarial and clerical staff selection, evaluation, promotion or retention
processes. May chair and conduct monthly secretarial/clerical staff meetings. Provides technical advice and
assistance to law clerks when they are involved in administrative duties and tasks. Resolves problems and monitors
workflow. Assists in overseeing general procedures and assures that all courts are fully staffed. Interprets and applies
operating principles and procedures. Informs and advises staff of upcoming events.

• Acts as primary secretarial support to Division Director. Provides legal secretarial assistance in complex cases.
Provides some legal research for a Division Director or higher level of management, under direct attorney supervision.
Streamlines and creates administrative processes. Coordinates schedules, meetings and group trainings. May monitor
court meetings to ensure attendance, as required, and keep records of requested tasks. Prepares agenda requests
and required backup. Schedules appointments and maintains calendars and reminder systems.

• May supervise or coordinate court dockets, maintain accurate information on all court settings and dockets, and
coordinate pretrial docket settings. May perform duties of deputy clerk, i.e., issue summons, subpoenas, citations and
notices, certify authenticity of copies of court documents, date-stamp, and file legal documents with court. Swears in
witnesses, makes and maintains electronic recordings of court proceedings, files exhibits, prepares appeals,
transcripts, as required.

• Drafts, under attorney supervision, various legal documents, including pleadings, motions, judgments, dispositions,
subpoenas and correspondence for use in legal proceedings. Records messages of adjudication and disposition of
cases, real estate and business transactions, child support payments or the status of contract and opinion
preparations. Examines all files and paperwork for accuracy and completeness. Logs all file enhancements with
updated status. Creates and updates case lists. Organizes case lists by attorney or investigator. Creates, organizes
and prepares case files. Notifies personnel of case assignments and case closures.

• Acts as liaison between attorneys, courts, witnesses, victims, other agencies and the general public. Responds to
inquiries from defense attorneys, victims, witnesses, others agencies and the general public regarding the status of
cases, child support payments, or the status of contract and opinion preparations. Works closely with other
government agencies and law enforcement agencies to facilitate the apprehension of defendants, docketing and
prosecution of cases. May aid in locating witnesses and scheduling their appearance. Provides continuous updates
to referring agencies, attorneys and the public concerning case status and disposition. Coordinates witness travel
and lodging arrangements. Orchestrates travel to and from court for time-sensitive trial and grand jury appearances.
Contacts criminal justice agencies and other sources to obtain information needed for prosecution of cases.

Page 1 of 3

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Legal Secretary Senior

JOB CODE: 16790 FLSA STATUS: Non-Exempt
PAY GRADE: 16 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES: (Cont.)

• Organizes, maintains and retrieves case files for assigned court or unit. Enters, updates and retrieves information
using multiple systems and databases. Uses the computer to process, retrieve, and disseminate information and
documents, including word processing functions for letters, memoranda, and legal documents. Records summary of
actions taken in court, wage garnishments or other proceedings and maintains accurate files on assigned cases.
Contacts criminal justice agencies and other sources to obtain information needed for prosecution of cases.
Processes, retrieves and disseminates information and documents. Obtains information needed in prosecution of a
criminal case or processing of a civil case from individuals and agencies. Obtains information needed to assist in
drafting or reviewing legal documents relating to County business. May log cases filed or new files opened to reflect file
numbers and dates assigned. May maintain tickler calendar for follow-ups. May prepare off-site storage for case files
and be responsible for retrieval.

• Drafts, types and prepares legal documents and correspondence in connection with the adjudication and disposition of
cases, opinions or other County transactions. Transcribes legal and other technical dictation. Proofreads legal
documents. Compiles data from references, such as digests, encyclopedias, practice manuals, and other sources.
Types, certifies, and sends legal documents regarding a summary of action taken in court or wage garnishments.
Transcribes interview tapes and maintains spreadsheets for case investigations and statistics. Screens walk-ins
and telephone callers or complainants and refers to appropriate officer, managers or locations. Proofreads legal
documents (orders) prepared by staff. Assists with open records requests. May assist attorneys in court. May
prepare prospective jurors Voir Dire process.

• Assists in and helps supervise budget preparation. Compiles and maintains case, billing, personnel and other statistics,
and prepares reports. Performs notary public services. Ensures and maintains adequate inventory of office supplies
for division or units. Schedules appointments, maintains calendars and reminder systems. Sorts and distributes
incoming mail. Keeps monthly statistics on cases. Performs notary public service and performs for other clerical
staff. Troubleshoots office equipment, printers, computers, fax machines and copiers and schedules needed
maintenance. Coordinates meetings and takes minutes. May process payroll and perform other various personnel
actions.

• May screen potential clients for eligibility of various County programs. Responds to inquiries from clients, the media,
law enforcement agencies, plaintiff or defense attorneys, and the general public regarding status of cases, contracts
and opinion preparations. May conduct criminal background checks and train others in conducting criminal background
checks.

• Performs other job-related duties as assigned.

MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS:

Education and Experience:
Associate’s degree in Legal Secretarial Science, Paralegal Studies, Criminal Justice, Public Administration, Business
Administration or a directly related field AND three (3) years of legal secretarial experience involving the use of legal
forms and documents;

OR,

Any combination of education and experience that has been achieved and is equivalent to the stated education and
experience and required knowledge, skills, and abilities sufficient to successfully perform the duties and responsibilities
of this job.

Licenses, Registrations, Certifications, or Special Requirements:
None required.

Preferred:
Minimum of one (1) year of supervisory experience.

iIIC
Page2of3 l’1—)

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Legal Secretary Senior

JOB CODE: 16790 FLSA STATUS: Non-Exempt
PAY GRADE: 16 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS: (Cont.)

Knowledge, Skills, and Abilities:
Knowledge of:
• Policies, practices, procedures and legal terminology related to court system.
• Legal terminology, principles, procedures, documents and forms.
• File management and modern office practices.
• Methods of research and sources of legal information.
• Supervisory practices and workflow distribution.
• Business letter writing, grammar and punctuation, and report preparation.

Skill in:
• Working with Division Directors and other high-ranking officials.
• Organizing, updating and filing legal case files.
• Working with attorneys and other legal personnel in a high volume environment.
• Preparing legal correspondence.
• Operating a variety of modern office equipment, including a computer.
• Both verbal and written communication.

Ability to:
• Coordinate work among legal secretaries and other administrative personnel.
• Motivate, train and supervise work of clerical and/or secretarial employees.
• Resolve problems and review work of others for accuracy, completeness and timeliness.
• Work independently on difficult or complex clerical tasks.
• Prepare, verify and correct legal documents and complicated legal instruments.
• Maintain confidential data and information.
• Establish and maintain effective working relationships with other County employees and officials, attorneys, court

personnel, law enforcement agencies, representatives of outside agencies, and the general public.

WORK ENVIRONMENT AND PHYSICAL DEMANDS:

Physical requirements include the ability to lift/carry up to 20-50 pounds occasionally, visual acuity, speech and hearing,
hand and eye coordination and manual dexterity necessary to operate a computer and office equipment. Subject to sitting,
client/customer contact, standing, walking, vision to monitor, repetitive motion, stooping/kneeling, squatting, bending, and
reaching to perform the essential functions.

riiis job description is intended to be generic in nature. It is not necessarily an exhaustive list of all duties
and responsibilities. The essential duties, functions and responsibilities and overtime eligibility may vary
based on the specific tasks assigned to the position.

Page3of3 IL/b

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Paralegal

JOB CODE: 1 7791 FLSA STATUS: Non-Exempt
PAY GRADE: 17 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

JOB SUMMARY:

Under moderate supervision or under supervision of an attorney, provides routine legal research support. Screens,
reviews, analyzes and organizes case-related material required for Court presentation and/or case settlement in the
Criminal and/or Civil Courts. Drafts agreed summary and default judgment motions and orders. Drafts various
pleadings, discovery, motions, affidavits, and subpoenas. Coordinates the work of assigned secretarial support staff.

DISTINGUISHING CHARACTERISTICS:

This is the first in a series of two paralegal-related job classifications within the Administrative Support job family. This
classification is distinguished from the Paralegal Senior in that incumbents do not supervise other Paralegals or serve as the
primary agent in the research and drafting of legal memoranda on substantive and procedural legal topics. Sensitivity to
detail and confidentiality. Customer and client contact. This classification may require work in secure facilities.

DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES:

• Prepares and organizes pretrial case materials. Retrieves information from computer to assist case documentation.
Contacts office staff, Court personnel, employees from other criminal justice agencies and others, as required to
obtain information needed for prosecution of cases. Reviews, screens, and analyzes case-related materials for
assigned cases and provides summary of facts to assigned attorneys. Processes documents, including preparation,
filing and issuance of information. Obtains, indexes and outlines criminal histories, offense reports and all other
relevant documents. Analyzes jury lists.

• Assists attorney(s) in preparation for depositions, trials, Court and administrative hearings. Coordinates witness
appearance in all Court proceedings. Investigates facts, files pleadings and orders. Drafts correspondence to
victims, clients, attorney(s), governmental agencies, law enforcement agencies and the general public as to the
status of cases, contracts, or opinions. Conducts legal research, prepares files, subpoenas and other legal
documents, as required. Meets with respondent’s or defendant’s attorney(s) to provide case information or
discovery.

• Negotiates agreed judgments with defense attorneys. Drafts judgments, orders, contracts, payment agreements
and other documents for assigned cases. May appear in Court with attorneys to take notes and follow up on items
requested. Files documents with the court and appears on behalf of supervising attorney at Civil / District Court, and
calls to obtain default judgments.

• Coordinates discovery, including drafting and calendaring of interrogatories, requests for disclosures, requests for
production, requests for admissions and other requests in accordance with local, state, federal and administrative
and agency rules and procedures. Drafts discovery responses and objections in assigned cases.

• Coordinates and schedules Court appearances, trials, depositions and meetings. Maintains Court settings for
attorney’s calendar. Responds to inquiries related to the cases pending and returns messages for assigned
attorneys. Maintains personal time and billing records. Maintains statistical records and prepares reports.
Responds to inquiries related to the pending cases and returns messages for assigned attorney(s). Communicates
with office staff, adverse counsel and staff, Court Clerks and personnel, and other Travis County employees.
Contacts witnesses and expert witnesses, as required. Interviews witnesses and prepares summaries. Receives
and responds to open records requests.

• May select, train and supervise clerical support staff, including reviewing prepared files and documents. May locate
and make contractual arrangements with foreign language interpreters.

• Performs other job-related duties as assigned.

MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS:

Education and Experience:
Bachelor’s degree in Paralegal Studies, Public Administration, Business Administration or a directly related field AND two
(2) years experience as a paralegal;

Pagelof2
j147

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Paralegal

JOB CODE: 17791 FLSA STATUS: Non-Exempt
PAY GRADE: 17 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS: (Cont.)

Education and Experience: (Cont.)
OR,

Any combination of education and experience that has been achieved and is equivalent to the stated education and
experience and required knowledge, skills, and abilities sufficient to successfully perform the duties and responsibilities
of this job.

Licenses, Registrations, Certifications, or Special Requirements:
Paralegal Certificate from a professionally recognized Paralegal/Legal Assistant program.

Knowledge, Skills, and Abilities:
Knowledge of:
• Federal, State, Local and County applicable laws, rules, regulations and guidelines.
• Law office management and administration.
• Open meetings laws and Public Information Act.
• Policies, practices, procedures and legal terminology related to Court system.
• Discovery process.
• Current legal trends in the interaction of law and professional ethics.
• Statistical and record keeping applications, including databases and spreadsheets.
• Business letter writing, grammar and punctuation, and report preparation.

Skill in:
• Acquiring, maintaining, organizing, analyzing and summarizing case evidence.
• Understanding legal terminology and English grammar.
• Case file examination for documentation accuracy.
• Operating a variety of modern office equipment, including a computer.
• Both verbal and written communication.

Ability to:
• Train and supervise clerical and administrative employees.
• Accurately and succinctly summarize legal information.
• Perform legal research.
• Establish and maintain effective working relationships with County employees and officials, judges, attorneys, Court

personnel, other participants in the civil justice system, representatives of outside agencies, and the general public.

WORK ENVIRONMENT AND PHYSICAL DEMANDS:

Physical requirements include the ability to lift/carry up to 20-50 pounds occasionally, visual acuity, speech and hearing,
hand and eye coordination and manual dexterity necessary to operate a computer and office equipment. Subject to sitting,
client/customer contact, standing, walking, vision to monitor, repetitive motion, stooping/kneeling, squatting, bending, and
reaching to perform the essential functions.

This job description is intended to be generic in nature. It is not necessarily an exhaustive list of all duties
and responsibilities. The essential duties, functions and responsibilities and overtime eligibility may vary
based on the specific tasks assigned to the position.

Page2of2
JL/

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Paralegal Senior

JOB CODE: 18792 FLSA STATUS: Non-Exempt
PAY GRADE: 18 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

JOB SUMMARY:

Under limited supervision or under supervision of an attorney, provides legal research support and screens, reviews,
analyzes and organizes case-related material required for court presentation and/or case settlement in both the criminal
and civil courts. Drafts agreed summary and default judgment motions and orders. Drafts various pleadings, discovery,
motions, affidavits, and subpoenas. Manages attorney caseloads. Performs complex discovery work and assists
attorneys in all facets of legal work related to advanced felony and other cases. Supervises the work of assigned
paralegal and secretarial support staff.

DISTINGUISHING CHARACTERISTICS:

This is the second in a series of two paralegal-related job classifications within the Administrative Support job family.
This classification is distinguished from the Paralegal in that incumbents supervise other Paralegals and serve as the
primary agent in the research and drafting of legal memoranda on substantive and procedural legal topics. Incumbents also
have a more pronounced role in the discovery process and high profile felony cases. Incumbents assist attorneys in
analyzing, evaluating, developing and implementing process and systems to create more efficient work flow procedures.
Sensitivity to detail and confidentiality. Customer and client contact. This classification may require work in secure facilities.

DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES:

• Supervises, trains and coordinates work assignments of paralegals, secretarial, clerical, and other staff. May
participate in paralegal, secretarial, clerical or other staff selection, promotion or retention processes and may help
to evaluate them. May also chair and conduct monthly paralegal staff meetings.

• Assists attorney(s) in all stages in preparation for trials, court and administrative hearings, depositions, meetings and
other proceedings. Preparation may include, but is not limited to, coordinating witness appearance in court,
investigating facts, filing pleadings and orders, drafting correspondence to victims, clients, attorney(s), governmental
agencies, law enforcement agencies and the general public as to the status of cases, contracts, or opinions.
Coordinates, assembles, and prepares evidence, exhibits, affidavits, and other documents for use in court,
administrative and other legal proceedings. Prepares trial notebooks. Appears in court with attorneys to take notes
and follow up on items requested.

• Coordinates complex discovery, including drafting, responding and calendaring of interrogatories, requests for
disclosures, requests for production, requests for admission and other requests for information in accordance with
local, state, federal, administrative and agency rules and procedures.

• Researches and analyzes legal sources such as statutes, code law, administrative records, opinions, articles, land
titles, abstracts, legislative histories and rules and regulations. Prepares and drafts legal memoranda on substantive
and procedural legal topics consistent with research findings.

• Reviews, screens, and analyzes case-related materials for assigned cases and provides summary of facts to
assigned attorneys. Conducts legal research assisting attorneys in case preparation, as required. Retrieves
information from computer to assist case documentation and obtains other agency information related to case
preparation. May locate and interview fact and expert witnesses. Maintains statistical records and prepares reports.
Drafts, prepares, reviews, cites, checks and edits pleadings, motions, briefs, abstracts, legislative histories, petitions,
answers, summary judgments, and other legal documents. Negotiates agreed judgments with defense attorneys.
Drafts judgments, orders, contracts, payment agreements and other documents for assigned cases.

• Prepares and organizes pretrial case materials. Preparation may include, but is not limited to, obtaining, indexing
and outlining criminal histories, offense reports and other relevant documents, analyzing jury lists and preparing and
filing subpoenas and other legal documents. Meets with plaintiff’s, respondent’s or defendant’s attorney(s) to
provide case information or discovery.

• Files documents with the court and appears on behalf of supervising attorney at civil court uncontested docket.

Pagelof3

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Paralegal Senior

JOB CODE: 18792 FLSA STATUS: Non-Exempt
PAY GRADE: 18 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES: (Cont.)

• Manages attorney’s case load, including scheduling, prioritizing, attending initial expert and fact witness interviews,
investigating, organizing files for research and analysis, attending and analyzing depositions, preparing chronologies,
fact summaries and witness files. Maintains court settings for attorney’s calendar. Responds to inquiries related to
the cases pending and returns messages for assigned attorneys.

• Assists in analyzing, evaluating, developing and implementing processes and systems to create more efficient
workflow procedures in the criminal justice system.

• May educate and train employees regarding potential liabilities in law enforcement and correctional facilities.

• May attend meetings, post meeting agendas and assist with Public Information Act requests.

• Performs other job-related duties as assigned.

MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS:

Education and Experience:
Bachelor’s degree in Paralegal Studies, Public Administration, Business Administration or a directly related field AND three
(3) years experience as a paralegal;

OR,

Any combination of education and experience that has been achieved and is equivalent to the stated education and
experience and required knowledge, skills, and abilities sufficient to successfully perform the duties and responsibilities
of this job.

Licenses, Registrations, Certifications, or Special Requirements:
Paralegal Certificate from a professionally recognized Paralegal/Legal Assistant program.

Preferred:
Project, lead or supervisory experience.

Knowledge, Skills, and Abilities:
Knowledge of:
• Federal, State, Local and County applicable jaws, rules, regulations and guidelines.
• Law office management and administration.
• Policies, practices, procedures and legal terminology related to court system.
• Criminal and/or civil justice system policies and procedures.
• Discovery process.
• Open meetings law and the Public Information Act.
• Current legal trends in the interaction of law and professional ethics.
• Statistical and record keeping applications, including databases and spreadsheets.
• Business letter writing, grammar and punctuation, and report preparation.

Skill in:
• Acquiring, maintaining, organizing, analyzing and summarizing case evidence.
• Crafting legal documents.
• Working with witnesses, victims, attorneys and other court staff.
• Understanding legal terminology and English grammar.
• Operating a variety of modern office equipment, including a computer.
• Both verbal and written communication.

Page2of3 /50

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Paralegal Senior

JOB CODE: 18792 FLSA STATUS: Non-Exempt
PAY GRADE: 18 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS: (Cont.)

Ability to:
• Supervise and train clerical and administrative employees.
• Perform legal research.
• Accurately and succinctly summarize legal information.
• Prepare and draft legal memoranda on substantive and procedural legal topics consistent with research findings.
• Establish and maintain effective working relationships with County employees and officials, judges, attorneys, court

personnel, other participants in the civil justice system, representatives of outside agencies, and the general public.

WORK ENVIRONMENT AND PHYSICAL DEMANDS:

Physical requirements include the ability to lift/carry up to 20-50 pounds occasionally, visual acuity, speech and hearing,
hand and eye coordination and manual dexterity necessary to operate a computer and office equipment. Subject to sitting,
client/customer contact, standing, walking, vision to monitor, repetitive motion, stooping/kneeling, squatting, bending, and
reaching to perform the essential functions.

This job description is intended to be generic in nature. It is not necessarily an exhaustive list of all duties
and responsibilities. The essential duties, functions and responsibilities and overtime eligibility may vary
based on the specific tasks assigned to the position.

Page3of3 /51

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Office Assistant

JOB CODE: 08793 FLSA STATUS: Non-Exempt
PAY GRADE: 08 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

JOB SUMMARY:

Under close supervision, performs a variety of office/clerical functions related to division/department. Performs a service
such as greeting the public over the telephone or in person and refers them to the appropriate individuals, departments,
or agencies or may provide counter service. Performs routine office/clerical tasks to include correspondence, basic
spreadsheets, mail distribution, file and record maintenance, and assistance or information to customers. Maintains logs
and simple databases. Uses some independent judgment interpreting and applying general office/clerical practices and
procedures.

DISTINGUISHING CHARACTERISTICS:

This is the first in a series of three general clerical-related job classifications within the Administrative Support job family.
This classification is distinguished from the Office Specialist by the general nature of clerical responsibilities (copying
and filing) performed as opposed to the Office Specialist whose work requires specialized functional knowledge with
independent decision-making within established limits.

DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES:

• Performs receptionist duties, answers telephone, and directs calls. Takes and relays accurate messages. Provides
information to telephone callers or transfers calls to appropriate personnel. Logs phone calls and visitors. Faxes
information, as required. Courteously greets and receives the public. Answers general questions about the
department, its functions and activities, and its interrelationships with County departments and outside agencies.
Refers individuals to appropriate persons, departments, or agencies. Performs messenger duties, and picks up and
delivers information to other County departments. Delivers verbal and written messages to unit members. Maintains
a ready reference list for referrals. Maintains records of staff member’s whereabouts. May produce and monitor
staff and visitor identification badges. May schedule meeting rooms and appointments.

• Performs mail distribution duties. Opens, sorts, counts and distributes mail. Picks up and delivers mail, printing,
equipment, and/or other material from various sites and/or office locations. Updates postage meter machine,
ensures sufficient postage for mailings, and meters outgoing mail. Updates mailing lists. Prepares materials for mail
outs.

• Performs general office clerical duties. Makes copies, orders and maintains adequate supplies. Coordinates pick-ups
and deliveries. Maintains time keeping system, attends assigned meetings and records minutes. Develops forms,
rosters, and mailing lists. Maintains appropriate suspense files and monitors suspense items regularly. Looks up
information in files, replaces file folders, and generates labels on folders. Purges items from files and/or pulls and
destroys inactive files. Issues file or case numbers. Reviews, validates, codes and processes a variety of documents.
Reviews and verifies documents, and submits to departments and agencies. May scan data and maintain electronic
files. Drafts and responds to inquiries. Assists clientele in completing forms. Maintains statistical data, records and
logs. Performs data entry duties. Enters, maintains, and updates data or information on a computer. Types
correspondence, labels, envelopes, spreadsheets and/or databases, reports, bills, vouchers, dockets, receipts,
schedules, minutes, requisitions, notices, court waivers, discharge forms and other related items. May update records
management documentation and maintain computerized tracking system.

• May perform cashier-related tasks. Receives, posts, and issues receipts (manually or using computer or computerized
cash register) for payments for various instruments being filed or for fees or other charges which must be paid through
assigned office. Makes cash change and performs cashiering functions, including providing and accounting for cash
balances and ensures cash balances with issued receipts. Prepares cash and checks for deposit transaction (may
make deposit). Processes checks returned for insufficient funds to recover payment.

• Performs other job-related duties as assigned.

Page 1 of 2

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Office Assistant

JOB CODE: 08793 FLSA STATUS: Non-Exempt
PAY GRADE: 08 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS:

Education and Experience:
High School diploma or G.E.D. AND one (1) year of office/clerical experience;

OR,

Any combination of education and experience that has been achieved and is equivalent to the stated education and
experience and required knowledge, skills, and abilities sufficient to successfully perform the duties and responsibilities
of this job.

Licenses, Registrations, Certifications, or Special Requirements:
None required.

Preferred:
Experience in data entry, general office machines, copiers and computer equipment, including word processing,
spreadsheets, databases and a variety of software packages.

Knowledge, Skills, and Abilities:
Knowledge of:
• General office/clerical practices and procedures.
• Office/clerical telephone etiquette.
• File management and techniques.
• Principles and procedures of record keeping.
• Business English, spelling and arithmetic, letter writing, grammar and punctuation, and report preparation.

Skill in:
• Performing cashier duties, such as receiving cash, issuing and posting receipts for fee payments or other charges.
• Operating a variety of modern office equipment, including a computer.
• Both verbal and written communication.

Ability to:
• Follow verbal and written instructions and/or directions.
• Operate telephones.
• Maintain records and reports.
• Communicate verbally and in writing, and exercise tact and courtesy.
• Establish and maintain effective working relationships with departmental clientele, representatives of outside

agencies, other County employees and officials, and the general public.

WORK ENVIRONMENT AND PHYSICAL DEMANDS:

Physical requirements include the ability to lift/carry up to 20-50 pounds occasionally, visual acuity, speech and hearing,
hand and eye coordination and manual dexterity necessary to operate a computer and office equipment. Subject to sitting,
client/customer contact, standing, walking, vision to monitor, repetitive motion, stooping/kneeling, squatting, bending, and
reaching to perform the essential functions.

This job description is intended to be generic in nature. It is not necessarily an exhaustive list of all duties
and responsibilities. The essential duties, functions and responsibilities and overtime eligibility may vary
based on the specific tasks assigned to the position.

Page 2 of 2 i53

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Office Specialist

JOB CODE: 10795 FLSA STATUS: Non-Exempt
PAY GRADE: 10 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

JOB SUMMARY:

Under moderate supervision, performs moderately complex clerical and administrative support tasks involving some
independent judgment. Performs a variety of administrative, technical or analytical work of a specialized nature in
furtherance of department mission. Performs research and analysis. Performs general office functions. Provides
direction and information to the public on department and County procedures, regulations and policies. Maintains
document, file, and record retrieval systems.

DISTINGUISHING CHARACTERISTICS:

This is the second in a series of three general clerical-related job classifications within the Administrative Support job
family. This classification is distinguished from the Office Assistant in that work requires specialized functional
knowledge with independent decision-making within established limits. This classification is distinguished from the
Office Specialist Senior in that incumbents typically have less experience, specialized knowledge and responsibility.

DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES:

• Applies functional knowledge to analyze and respond to matters requiring basic knowledge of department policies
and procedures. Performs research and analysis in furtherance of program and department goals. Gathers
information and statistical data. Creates databases and generates reports using spreadsheets, databases, and
word processing and presentation software.

• Performs general office functions. Writes and prepares correspondence. Performs and conducts research and
interpretation of data. Proofs documents and performs quality control reviews. Opens and distributes incoming
mail, prepares mail outs, and maintains mailing lists. Maintains office schedules and appointments. Makes copies,
does filing and sends faxes. Performs data entry on a regular basis. Schedules meetings, conferences and
facilities. May assist with department personnel functions. Performs general office activities, such as ensuring
facility availability, opening and closing doors, assisting in administrative staff support. Participates in
complex/technical administrative projects with staff as directed. Assists with specialized or difficult work activities of
subordinates or other staff members, such as mileage and travel/training requests and submittals. Responds to
technical administrative questions, and ensures necessary follow-up.

• Performs receptionist duties, answers telephone, directs calls, office errands and takes and relays accurate
messages. Logs phone calls and visitors. Greets and receives the public. Answers general questions about the
department, its functions and activities, and its interrelationships with County departments and outside agencies.
Refers individuals to appropriate persons, departments, or agencies.

• Provides direction and information to the public on department and County procedures, regulations and policies.
Records transactions and maintains manual and computerized journal entries. Processes financial reports,
including receipts, claims, and disbursements. Receives, posts and issues receipts for fee payments or other
charges and submits monies and pertinent information to appropriate departments.

• Maintains effective document, file, and record retrieval systems. Maintains accountability for paper and electronic
files. Creates, compiles, retrieves and disseminates information using computer and paper files. May be
responsible for record storage. May maintain records and files for microfilming. May be responsible for scanning
documents and managing indexed files. May serve as timekeeper.

• May translate for Spanish speaking clients. Serves as a notary public. Orders and purchases office supplies.

• Performs other job-related duties as assigned.

MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS:

Education and Experience:
High School diploma or G.E.D. AND three (3) years of responsible office/clerical experience, including the operation of
computer equipment to include word processing, spreadsheets, databases and a variety of software packages:

Page 1 of 2
/5i/

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Office Specialist

JOB CODE: 10795 FLSA STATUS: Non-Exempt
PAY GRADE: 10 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS: (Cont.)

Education and Experience: (Cont.)

OR,

Any combination of education and experience that has been achieved and is equivalent to the stated education and
experience and required knowledge, skills, and abilities sufficient to successfully perform the duties and responsibilities
of this job.

Licenses, Registrations, Certifications, or Special Requirements:
None required.

Knowledge, Skills, and Abilities:
Knowledge of:
• Modern office/clerical practices, procedures, and methods.
• Policies, practices, procedures and terminology of assigned function.
• File management and techniques.
• Principles and procedures of record keeping.
• Customer service etiquette.
• Computer equipment to include word processing, spreadsheets, databases and a variety of software packages.
• Business English, spelling and arithmetic, letter writing, grammar and punctuation and report, preparation.

Skill in:
• Conducting research and presenting information.
• Processing financial reports, including receipts, claims, disbursements, travel, purchasing and mileage submittals.
• Performing cashier duties, such as receiving cash, issuing and posting receipts for fee payments or other charges.
• Operating a variety of modern office equipment, including a computer.
• Both verbal and written communication.

Ability to:
• Compile data and write clear and comprehensive reports.
• Understand and carry out verbal and written directions.
• Perform multitasking.
• Create effective filing systems, and retrieve and disseminate information.
• Establish and maintain effective working relationships with departmental clientele, representatives of outside

agencies, other County employees and officials, and the general public.

WORK ENVIRONMENT AND PHYSICAL DEMANDS:

Physical requirements include the ability to lift/carry up to 20-50 pounds occasionally, visual acuity, speech and hearing,
hand and eye coordination, and manual dexterity necessary to operate a computer and office equipment. Subject to sitting,
client/customer contact, standing, walking, vision to monitor, repetitive motion, stooping/kneeling, squatting, bending, and
reaching to perform the essential functions.

his job description is intended to be generic in nature. It is not necessarily an exhaustive list of all duties
and responsibilities. The essential duties, functions and responsibilities and overtime eligibility may vary
based on the specific tasks assigned to the position.

Page 2 of 2

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Office Specialist Senior

JOB CODE: 12796 FLSA STATUS: Non-Exempt
PAY GRADE: 12 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

JOB SUMMARY:

Under limited direction, performs advanced complex clerical and administrative work in a specific subject area. Provides
advanced customer service functions and fosters positive public relations. Performs a variety of advanced
administrative, analytical, or technical work of a highly specialized nature. Coordinates or performs all functions within a
distinct, complex program area. Analyzes, resolves and documents difficult problems by using appropriate and defined
methods. Researches operational databases, manuals and electronic files to respond to customers and/or caller
inquiries. Coordinates and completes data collection, analysis, reporting, documentation or projects. Supervises and
trains clerical subordinates.

DISTINGUISHING CHARACTERISTICS:

This is the third in a series of three general clerical-related job classifications within the Administrative Support job family.
This classification is distinguished from the Office Specialist in that incumbents typically specialize in a
division/department function and also possess broader knowledge/skills about division/department operations to allow
more independence in carrying out responsibilities. This classification is distinguished in that incumbents frequently
work under their own initiative in performing advanced administrative/support duties and/or providing formalized work
leadership. Frequently trains and/or supervises subordinate clerical personnel. The results of assigned projects have
direct impact on the accomplishment or establishment of the divisional and/or departmental goals and objectives.

DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES:

• Applies functional knowledge to analyze and respond to matters requiring comprehensive knowledge of department
policies and procedures. Performs and conducts research and interpretation of data. Coordinates and completes
data collection, analysis, reporting, documentation or projects and other duties to ensure accurate and timely
processing or development of required operational needs. Researches operational databases, manuals and
electronic files to respond to customers and/or caller inquiries. Compiles information in a self-reporting relational
database system and generates monthly workload and performance reports.

• Coordinates or performs all functions within a distinct, complex program area easily distinguishable from other
operations or involving specialized operations that are not readily integrated into other work processes within the
department. Performs highly specialized duties in furtherance of department/division mission. Supervises and
trains clerical subordinates. Assists in computer training of new employees and general training of volunteers.
Provides assistance to others on difficult assignments.

• Analyzes, resolves and documents difficult problems by using appropriate and defined methods. Authorizes
exceptions to policy within defined limits and response time subject to demand for immediate service. Reports to
and advises customers, representatives of other counties, law enforcement agencies and businesses. Documents
actions taken in response to all inquiries.

• Acts as primary customer contact for assigned function with outside organizations or other departments. Responds
to technical computer system and/or administrative questions and ensures necessary follow up. Responds to
requests in person, by mail, and by telephone, based upon the application of established rules and regulations.
Provides technical advice and assistance regarding documents required for all types of transactions. Takes initial
steps to resolve and/or resolves citizen complaints about division/department. Ensures departmental policies and
procedures are followed and statutory requirements are met.

• Performs various tasks involving processing of forms, letters, data entry/retrieval, equipment maintenance and
inventory control. Participates in complex technical administrative projects with staff as directed. Assists with
specialized or difficult work activities of subordinates or other staff members. Reviews documents presented for
transactions. Prepares forms and determines amount of fee by applying established rules and regulations. Collects
fees and provides receipts. May perform duties of Office Specialist. May serve as timekeeper. May perform
transcription duties, as required for the generation of autopsy reports and other documents.

• Performs other job-related duties as assigned.

Page 1 of 2

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Office Specialist Senior

JOB CODE: 12796 FLSA STATUS: Non-Exempt
PAY GRADE: 12 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS:

Education and Experience:
High School diploma or G.E.D. AND four (4) years of increasingly responsible office/clerical experience, including the
operation of computer equipment to include word processing, spreadsheets, databases and a variety of software
packages AND a minimum of one (1) year experience in a directly related function;

OR,

Any combination of education and experience that has been achieved and is equivalent to the stated education and
experience and required knowledge, skills, and abilities sufficient to successfully perform the duties and responsibilities
of this job.

Licenses, Registrations, Certifications, or Special Requirements:
None required.

Knowledge, Skills, and Abilities:
Knowledge of:
• Modern office/clerical practices and procedures, and methods.
• Policies, practices, procedures and terminology of assigned function.
• File management and techniques.
• Principle and procedures of record keeping.
• Computer equipment to include word processing, spreadsheets, databases and a variety of software packages.
• Business letter writing, grammar and punctuation, and report preparation.

Skill in:
• Resolving complex problems.
• Conducting research and presenting information.
• Processing financial reports, including receipts, claims, and disbursements.
• Performing cashier duties, such as receiving cash, issuing and posting receipts for fee payments or other charges.
• Recording and compiling material for reports.
• Operating a variety of modern office equipment, including a computer.
• Both verbal and written communication.

Ability to:
• Compile data and to write clear and comprehensive reports.
• Create effective filing systems, and retrieve and disseminate information.
• Train and supervise office personnel.
• Work independently and accomplish department/division objectives.
• Perform multitasking.
• Maintain confidential data and information for executive staff.
• Understand and carry out verbal and written directions.
• Establish and maintain effective working relationships with departmental clientele, representatives of outside

agencies, other County employees and officials, and the general public.

WORK ENVIRONMENT AND PHYSICAL DEMANDS:

Physical requirements include the ability to lift/carry up to 20-50 pounds occasionally, visual acuity, speech and hearing,
hand and eye coordination and manual dexterity necessary to operate a computer and office equipment. Subject to sitting,
client/customer contact, standing, walking, vision to monitor, repetitive motion, stooping/kneeling, squatting, bending, and
reaching to perform the essential functions.

This job description is intended to be generic in nature. It is not necessarily an exhaustive list of all duties
and responsibilities. The essential duties, functions and responsibilities and overtime eligibility may vary
based on the specific tasks assigned to the position.

Page2of2 /57

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Tax Specialist I

JOB CODE: 12800 FLSA STATUS: Non-Exempt
PAY GRADE: 12 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

JOB SUMMARY:

Under close supervision, performs moderately complex clerical support tasks involving independent judgment. Performs a
variety of work tasks of a specialized nature, including processing registrations, property tax payments, court fines, fees
and simple titles. Applies knowledge of tax, court and voter registration policies to customer circumstances and works to
resolve customer issues.

DISTINGUISHING CHARACTERISTICS:

This is the first in a series of three tax-related job classifications within the Administrative Support job family. This
classification is distinguished from the Tax Specialist II in that incumbents typically have limited tasking capabilities, do
not process complex titles, and require extensive supervision to meet standards. This is an entry-level job classification
with a pronounced emphasis on customer service.

DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES:

• Applies functional knowledge to analyze and respond to matters requiring basic knowledge of department policies
and procedures. Performs and conducts research and interpretation in a variety of substantive areas, including
whether registrants are in compliance with Texas Traffic Laws, Property Tax Code, Alcoholic Beverage Code, and
Texas Election Law. Applies knowledge to system of court fines and fees to determine necessary method of
transaction completion. Analyzes simple tax accounts/court cases and legal documents.

• Processes registrations, property tax payments, court fines and fees. Determines eligibility and compliance of voter
registration applications. Returns incomplete voter registration applications to applicants with explanation of
additional information required. Performs tasks necessary to complete mail-in license registration, subcontractor
renewals and title applications. Processes simple titles independently.

• Records transactions and maintains manual and computerized journal entries. Processes financial reports,
including receipts, claims, and disbursements. Performs cashiering functions on a rotating basis and balances cash
drawer at the end of shift. Balances tax revenues to tax payments and receipts on a daily basis. Receives, posts
and issues receipts for fee payments or other charges and submits monies and pertinent information to appropriate
departments.

• Approves short-term payment arrangements within office guidelines. Reviews delinquent accounts and contacts
appropriate party(s) for payment.

• Maintains effective document, file, and record retrieval system. Maintains accountability for files processed through
the system. Enters data from document receipts into automated record system. Compiles information using
computer systems. Audits data entry reports and prints final reports for other departments.

• Performs general office functions, including gathering information and statistical data, creating databases and
generating reports using spreadsheet and database software. Writes and prepares correspondence. Provides
direction and information to the public on procedures, forms and regulations. Provides public with file information, in
person and by telephone and may act as the primary contact for assigned functions. May perform general office
activities, such as ensuring facility availability, opening and closing doors, and assisting in administrative staff
support. May staff service counters, information booth, drive through and lobby areas to assist customers.

• Performs other job-related duties as assigned.

MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS:

Education and Experience:
High School diploma or G.E.D. AND four (4) years of increasingly responsible office/clerical experience, including the
operation of modern office procedures and computer equipment to include word processing, spreadsheets, databases
and a variety of software packages. Must have customer service experience AND a minimum of one (1) year
experience in a directly related function;

Page 1 of 3
57

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Tax Specialist I

JOB CODE: 12800 FLSA STATUS: Non-Exempt
PAY GRADE: 12 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS: (Cont.)

Education and Experience: (Cont.)

OR,

Any combination of education and experience that has been achieved and is equivalent to the stated education and
experience and required knowledge, skills, and abilities sufficient to successfully perform the duties and responsibilities
of this job.

Licenses, Registrations, Certifications, or Special Requirements:
None required.

Preferred:
Negotiation experience.
Call center experience.
Valid Texas Driver’s License.

Knowledge, Skills, and Abilities:
Knowledge of:
• Customer service and resolving customer problems.
• Texas Traffic Laws, Property Tax Code, Alcoholic Beverage Code, and Texas Election Law.
• Modern office/clerical practices and procedures, and methods.
• Application of court fines and fees.
• File management and techniques.
• Principle and procedures of record keeping.
• Computer equipment to include word processing, spreadsheets, databases and a variety of software packages.
• Business letter writing, grammar and punctuation, and report preparation.

Skill in:
• Working with customers, both in person and on the phone.
• Resolving complex problems.
• Conducting research and presenting information.
• Processing financial reports, including receipts, claims, and disbursements.
• Performing cashier duties, such as receiving cash, issuing and posting receipts for fee payments or other charges.
• Working independently.
• Analyzing data.
• Negotiating payment plans.
• Recording and compiling material for reports.
• Operating a variety of modern office equipment, including a computer.
• Both verbal and written communication.

Ability to:
• Resolve customer issues and maintain a production schedule.
• Compile data and present it in a clear and comprehensive manner.
• Understand and carry out verbal and written directions.
• Establish and maintain effective working relationships with departmental clientele, representatives of outside

agencies, other County employees and officials, and the general public.

/37Page 2 of 3

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Tax Specialist I

JOB CODE: 12800 FLSA STATUS: Non-Exempt
PAY GRADE: 12 LAST REVISED: 10101/09

WORK ENVIRONMENT AND PHYSICAL DEMANDS:

Physical requirements include the ability to lift/carry up to 20-50 pounds occasionally, visual acuity, speech and hearing,
hand and eye coordination and manual dexterity necessary to operate a computer and office equipment. Subject to sitting,
client/customer contact, standing, walking, vision to monitor, repetitive motion, stooping/kneeling, squatting, bending, and
reaching to perform the essential functions.

This job description is intended to be generic in nature. It is not necessarily an exhaustive list of all dutiij
and responsibilities. The essential duties, functions and responsibilities and overtime eligibility may vary

Lbased on the specific tasks assigned to the position.

Page3of3

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Tax Specialist II

JOB CODE: 14801 FLSA STATUS: Non-Exempt
PAY GRADE: 14 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

JOB SUMMARY:

Under minimal supervision, performs complex clerical support tasks involving independent judgment. Performs a variety of
work tasks of a specialized nature, including processing registrations, property tax payments, court fines, fees and
simple and complex titles. Applies knowledge of tax, court and voter registration policies to customer circumstances and
works to resolve customer issues. Provides problem solving assistance to subordinate staff.

DISTINGUISHING CHARACTERISTICS:

This is the second in a series of three tax-related job classifications within the Administrative Support job family. This
classification is distinguished from the Tax Specialist I in that incumbents typically have more experience, extensive
tasking capabilities, require limited supervision to meet performance standards and provide leadership to subordinate
personnel. This classification is distinguished from the Tax Specialist III in that incumbents do not typically perform
special projects and do not perform officially in a supervisory capacity.

DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES:

• Applies functional knowledge to analyze and respond to matters requiring basic knowledge of department policies
and procedures. Performs and conducts research and interpretation in a variety of substantive areas, including
whether registrants are in compliance with Texas Traffic Laws, Property Tax Code, Alcoholic Beverage Code, and
Texas Election Law. Applies knowledge to system of court fines and fees to determine necessary method of
transaction completion. Analyzes moderately complex tax accounts/court cases and legal documents.

• Processes registrations, property tax payments, court fines and fees. Determines eligibility and compliance of voter
registration applications. Returns incomplete voter registration applications to applicants with explanation of
additional information required. Performs tasks necessary to complete mail-in license registration, subcontractor
renewals and title applications. Processes simple and complex titles.

• Records transactions and maintains manual and computerized journal entries. Processes financial reports,
including receipts, claims, and disbursements. Performs cashiering functions on a rotating basis and balances cash
drawer at the end of shift. Balances tax revenues to tax payments and receipts on a daily basis. Receives, posts
and issues receipts for fee payments or other charges and submits monies and pertinent information to appropriate
departments. Reviews and analyzes monetary reports.

• Interviews and communicates with defendants and property owners regarding financial status and delinquency of
accounts or cases, and with latitude approves payment terms. Reviews delinquent accounts and contacts
responsible party(s) for payment. Initiates appropriate legal action, as required.

• Maintains effective document, file, and record retrieval system. Maintains accountability for files processed through
the system. Enters data from document receipts into automated record system. Compiles information using
computer systems. Audits data entry reports and prints final reports for other departments.

• Performs general office functions, including gathering information and statistical data, creating databases and
generating reports using spreadsheet and database software. Writes and prepares correspondence. Provides
direction and information to the public on procedures, forms and regulations. Provides public with file information in
person and by telephone, and may act as the primary contact for assigned functions. May perform general office
activities, such as ensuring facility availability, opening and closing doors, and assisting in administrative staff
support. May staff service counters, information booth, drive through and lobby areas to assist customers.

• Performs other job-related duties as assigned.

MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS:

Education and Experience:
High School diploma or G.E.D. AND five (5) years of increasingly responsible office/clerical experience, including the
operation of modern office procedures and computer equipment to include word processing, spreadsheets, databases
and a variety of software packages. Must have customer service experience AND a minimum of two (2) years
experience in a directly related function;

Pagelof3

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Tax Specialist II

JOB CODE: 14801 FLSA STATUS: Non-Exempt
PAY GRADE: 14 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS: (Cont.)

Education and Experience: (Cant.)
OR,

Any combination of education and experience that has been achieved and is equivalent to the stated education and
experience and required knowledge, skills, and abilities sufficient to successfully perform the duties and responsibilities
of this job.

Licenses, Registrations, Certifications, or Special Requirements:
None required.

Preferred:
Negotiation experience.
Call center experience.
Valid Texas Driver’s License.

Knowledge, Skills, and Abilities:
Knowledge of:
• Customer service and resolving customer problems.
• Texas Traffic Laws, Property Tax Code, Alcoholic Beverage Code, and Texas Election Law.
• Modern office/clerical practices and procedures, and methods.
• Application of court fines and fees.
• File management and techniques.
• Principle and procedures of record keeping.
• Computer equipment to include word processing, spreadsheets, databases and a variety of software packages.
• Business letter writing, grammar and punctuation, and report preparation.

Skill in:
• Working with customers, both in person and on the phone.
• Assisting employees with complex problems.
• Resolving complex problems.
• Conducting research and presenting information.
• Processing financial reports, including receipts, claims, and disbursements.
• Performing cashier duties, such as receiving cash, issuing and posting receipts for fee payments or other charges.
• Working independently.
• Analyzing data.
• Negotiating payment plans.
• Recording and compiling material for reports.
• Operating a variety of modern office equipment, including a computer.
• Both verbal and written communication.

Ability to:
• Resolve customer issues and maintain a production schedule.
• Compile data and present it in a clear and comprehensive manner.
• Understand and carry out verbal and written directions.
• Establish and maintain effective working relationships with department clientele, representatives of outside

agencies, other County employees and officials, and the general public.

Page2of3

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Tax Specialist II

JOB CODE: 14801 FLSA STATUS: Non-Exempt
PAY GRADE: 14 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

WORK ENVIRONMENT AND PHYSICAL DEMANDS:

Physical requirements include the ability to lift/carry up to 20-50 pounds occasionally, visual acuity, speech and hearing,
hand and eye coordination and manual dexterity necessary to operate a computer and office equipment. Subject to sitting,
client/customer contact, standing, walking, vision to monitor, repetitive motion, stooping/kneeling, squatting, bending, and
reaching to perform the essential functions.

This job description is intended to be generic in nature. It is not necessarily an exhaustive list of all duties
and responsibilities. The essential duties, functions and responsibilities and overtime eligibility may vary
based on the specific tasks assigned to the position.

Page3of3 /73

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Tax Specialist III

JOB CODE: 15802 FLSA STATUS: Non-Exempt
PAY GRADE: 15 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

JOB SUMMARY:

Under general supervision, performs advanced clerical tasks involving independent judgment. Performs a variety of work
tasks of a specialized nature, including processing registrations, property tax payments, court fines, fees and complex
titles. Completes special projects. Analyzes and completes monetary reports. Applies knowledge of tax, court and
voter registration policies to customer circumstances and works to resolve customer issues. Performs as a lead worker
and acts in a supervisory capacity, as required.

DISTINGUISHING CHARACTERISTICS:

This is the third in a series of three tax-related job classifications within the Administrative Support job family. This
classification is distinguished from the Tax Specialist II in that incumbents typically have more experience, have more
tasking capabilities, complete special projects and assignments and perform in a supervisory capacity, as required.

DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES:

• Applies functional knowledge to analyze and respond to matters requiring basic knowledge of department policies
and procedures. Performs and conducts research and interpretation in a variety of substantive areas, including
whether registrants are in compliance with Texas Traffic Laws, Property Tax Code, Alcoholic Beverage Code, and
Texas Election Law. Applies knowledge to system of court fines and fees to determine necessary method of
transaction completion. Analyzes extremely complex tax accounts/court cases and legal documents.

• Processes registrations, property tax payments, court fines and fees. Determines eligibility and compliance of voter
registration applications. Returns incomplete voter registration applications to applicants with explanation of
additional information required. Performs tasks necessary to complete mail-in license registration, subcontractor
renewals and title applications. Processes complex titles.

• Records transactions and maintains manual and computerized journal entries. Processes financial reports,
including receipts, claims, and disbursements. Performs cashiering functions on a rotating basis and balances cash
drawer at the end of shift. Balances tax revenues to tax payments and receipts on a daily basis. Receives, posts
and issues receipts for fee payments or other charges and submits monies and pertinent information to appropriate
departments.

• Interviews and communicates with difficult defendants and complex property owners regarding financial status and
delinquency of accounts or cases and with great latitude approving payment terms. Reviews delinquent accounts
and contacts responsible party(s) for payment. Initiates and approves subordinates legal action, as required.

• Maintains effective document, file, and record retrieval system. Maintains accountability for files processed through
the system. Enters data from document receipts into automated record system. Compiles information using
computer systems. Audits data entry reports and prints final reports for other departments.

• Performs general office functions, including gathering information and statistical data, creating databases and
generating reports using spreadsheet and database software. Writes and prepares correspondence. Provides
direction and information to the public on procedures, forms and regulations. Provides public with file information in
person and by telephone, and may act as the primary contact for assigned functions. May perform general office
activities, such as ensuring facility availability, opening and closing doors, and assisting in administrative staff
support. May staff service counters, information booth, drive through and lobby areas to assist customers.

• Performs special projects, as required. Serves as a reference to subordinate personnel and routinely reviews work
of others for completeness and timeliness. Performs supervisory duties, as required.

• Performs other job-related duties as assigned.

MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS:

Education and Experience:
High School diploma or G.E.D. AND six (6) years of increasingly responsible office/clerical experience, including the
operation of modern office procedures and computer equipment to include word processing, spreadsheets, databases
and a variety of software packages. Must have customer service experience AND a minimum of three (3) years
experience in a directly related function;

Page 1 of 3

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Tax Specialist III

JOB CODE: 15802 FLSA STATUS: Non-Exempt
PAY GRADE: 15 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS: (Cant.)

Education and Experience: (Cont.)
OR,

Any combination of education and experience that has been achieved and is equivalent to the stated education and
experience and required knowledge, skills, and abilities sufficient to successfully perform the duties and responsibilities
of this job.

Licenses, Registrations, Certifications, or Special Requirements:
None required.

Preferred:
Negotiating experience.
Call center experience.
Lead worker experience.
Valid Texas Driver’s License.

Knowledge, Skills, and Abilities:
Knowledge of:
• Customer service and resolving customer problems.
• Texas Traffic Laws, Property Tax Code, Alcoholic Beverage Code, and Texas Election Law.
• Modern office/clerical practices and procedures, and methods.
• Application of court fines and fees.
• File management and techniques.
• Principle and procedures of record keeping.
• Computer equipment to include word processing, spreadsheets, databases and a variety of software packages.
• Business letter writing, grammar and punctuation, and report preparation.

Skill in:
• Acting as a lead worker.
• Working with customers, both in person and on the phone.
• Assisting employees with complex problems.
• Resolving complex problems.
• Conducting research and presenting information.
• Processing financial reports, including receipts, claims, and disbursements.
• Performing cashier duties, such as receiving cash, issuing and posting receipts for fee payments or other charges.
• Working independently.
• Analyzing data.
• Negotiating payment plans.
• Recording and compiling material for reports.
• Operating a variety of modern office equipment, including a computer.
• Both verbal and written communication.

Ability to:
• Resolve customer issues and maintain a production schedule.
• Compile data and present it in a clear and comprehensive manner.
• Understand and carry out verbal and written directions.
• Establish and maintain effective working relationships with department clientele, representatives of outside

agencies, other County employees and officials, and the general public.

Page 2 of 3

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Tax Specialist III

JOB CODE: 15802 FLSA STATUS: Non-Exempt
PAY GRADE: 15 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

WORK ENVIRONMENT AND PHYSICAL DEMANDS:

Physical requirements include the ability to lift/carry up to 20-50 pounds occasionally, visual acuity, speech and hearing,
hand and eye coordination and manual dexterity necessary to operate a computer and office equipment. Subject to sitting,
client/customer contact, standing, walking, vision to monitor, repetitive motion, stooping/kneeling, squatting, bending, and
reaching to perform the essential functions.

This job description is intended to be generic in nature. It is not necessarily an exhaustive list of all duties
and responsibilities. The essential duties, functions and responsibilities and overtime eligibility may vary
based on the specific tasks assigned to the position.

Page 3of3 /

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Administrative Assistant I

JOB CODE: 11500 FLSA STATUS: Non-Exempt
PAY GRADE: 11 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

JOB SUMMARY:

Under moderate supervision, performs a variety of responsible administrative duties. Drafts various documents and
correspondence. Operates basic spreadsheets, performs typing/word processing duties, and establishes and maintains
files and records. Schedules appointments and serves as intermediary for division/department head/elected official in
carrying out important delegated administrative detail tasks. Answers routine questions and participates in budget
preparations. May produce reports and serve in an analytical capacity. Researches and interprets rules, regulations,
policies and procedures to staff, other agencies, and the public. Performs and/or monitors divisional/departmental
purchasing. Coordinates work load of clerical staff and assists in resolving problems and conflicts. May oversee work of
other clerical staff, coordinate work with other units and provide training.

DISTINGUISHING CHARACTERISTICS:

This is the first in a series of five administrative-related job classifications within the Administrative Support job family.
This classification is distinguished from the Administrative Assistant II in that incumbents perform more general
administrative duties than the Administrative Assistant II. This classification is characterized by the unique mix of
function administrative duties performed.

DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES:

• Performs direct administrative support services for division/department head or elected official. Schedules and
coordinates appointment calendars as directed. Receives visitors, answers telephone calls and voice mails. Assists
the general public, visitor or caller by answering questions or providing information regarding office, work unit and
countywide activities and programs, policies or procedures utilizing thorough knowledge of office operations and/or
County funded programs. Attends committee meetings, budgetary hearings, and task force meetings. Takes and
transcribes minutes for division/department. Serves as liaison to staff, outside agencies and the public concerning
information. May serve as notary public.

• Composes, prepares, and processes various documents, such as correspondence, letters, memoranda, mailers,
court documents, and reports. Formats and proofreads documents. Maintains mailing lists. May develop and
implement office forms. Faxes and copies documents. Researches and interprets rules, regulations, policies and
procedures to staff, other agencies, and the public. Assists in research and preparation of spreadsheets and/or
databases, reports and statistical data. Prepares monthly report of expenditures, and reconciles/balances
division/department expenditures.

• Participates in budget preparation and justification. Performs and/or monitors divisional/departmental purchasing.
Records expenditures and maintains fiscal control over line items in divisions/departments or divisions
administrative budget. Prepares purchase orders for equipment and office supplies within purchasing guidelines.
Maintains office supply inventory.

• May complete personnel forms, workers compensation claims and leave forms/requests for payroll. Sets up and
maintains personnel files. Verifies and prepares and/or updates timesheets, distributes payroll checks, completes
personnel action forms and vacancy announcements. May serve as personnel liaison. May issue staff identification
cards. Performs transcription duties, as required for the generation of autopsy reports and other documents.

• Coordinates work load of clerical staff and assists in resolving problems and conflicts. May oversee work of other
clerical staff, coordinate work with other units and provide training. May process payments and log payments into
appropriate databases.

• Performs other job-related duties as assigned.

MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS:

Education and Experience:
Associate’s degree in Public Administration, Business Management or a directly related field AND one (1) year of
increasingly responsible administrative experience;

Pagelof2 J;7

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Administrative Assistant I

JOB CODE: 11500 FLSA STATUS: Non-Exempt
PAY GRADE: 11 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS: (Cont.)

Education and Experience: (Cont.)
OR,

Any combination of education and experience that has been achieved and is equivalent to the stated education and
experience and required knowledge, skills, and abilities sufficient to successfully perform the duties and responsibilities
of this job.

Licenses, Registrations, Certifications, or Special Requirements:
None required.

Knowledge, Skills, and Abilities:
Knowledge of:
• Standard office administration practices and procedures.
• Administrative filing and record keeping operations.
• Policies, practices, procedures and terminology of assigned function.
• Budgeting and purchasing procedures.
• Computer equipment to include word processing, spreadsheets, databases and a variety of software packages.
• Business letter writing, grammar and punctuation, and report preparation.

Skill in:
• Supervising subordinate clerical staff.
• Conducting research in areas of substantive importance.
• Maintaining important files and records.
• Compiling data and writing clear and comprehensive reports and letters.
• Writing reports, business memos and other documents.
• Both verbal and written communication.

Ability to:
• Independently prepare correspondence, memorandums, and other materials.
• Perform responsible administrative involving the use of independent judgment.
• Research, compile, analyze, interpret and prepare a variety of fiscal, statistical and administrative reports.
• Maintain standard filing and accounting systems.
• Establish and maintain effective working relationships with departmental clientele, representatives of outside

agencies, other County employees and officials, and the general public.

WORK ENVIRONMENT AND PHYSICAL DEMANDS:

Physical requirements include the ability to lift/carry up to 10-20 pounds occasionally, visual acuity, speech and hearing,
hand and eye coordination and manual dexterity necessary to operate a computer and office equipment. Subject to sitting,
client/customer contact, standing, walking, vision to monitor, repetitive motion, stooping/kneeling, squatting, bending, and
reaching to perform the essential functions.

This job description is intended to be generic in nature. It is not necessarily an exhaustive list of all duties
and responsibilities. The essential duties, functions and responsibilities and overtime eligibility may vary
based on the specific tasks assigned to the position.

Page 2 of 2

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Administrative Assistant II

JOB CODE: 13505 FLSA STATUS: Non-Exempt
PAY GRADE: 13 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

JOB SUMMARY:

Under minimal supervision, performs a variety of responsible and administrative work unique to the work unit requiring
initiative and independent judgment. Serves as intermediary for department head or elected official in carrying out
important delegated administrative detail tasks. Maintains official records requiring knowledge of a specialized subject
matter. Coordinates office schedules and work loads. Interprets and explains established policies and procedures.
Participates in budget preparation and may supervise subordinate personnel. Incumbents may have contact with high-
level administrative offices requiring use of business vocabulary, tact, discretion and independent judgment.

DISTINGUISHING CHARACTERISTICS:

This is the second in a series of five administrative-related job classifications within the Administrative Support job
family. This classification is distinguished from the Administrative Assistant I in that the major duties performed are
administrative in nature and clerical duties are performed infrequently. This classification also has a higher degree of
supervisory responsibility. This classification is distinguished from the Administrative Associate or Executive Assistant in
that incumbents do not serve in an advisory capacity or perform constituent service.

DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES:

• Performs direct administrative support services for a department head or elected official. Coordinates calendar and
travel arrangements for department head or elected official. Performs a variety of administrative support activities
for supervisor, such as composing replies to correspondence. Keeps supervisor(s) informed of significant items
requiring supervisory review or action. Monitors work flow by relaying assignments, calling attention to deadlines,
and obtaining progress reports. Maintains frequent contacts for supervisor with other departments and agencies.
Provides administrative assistance in program development, grant proposals, contract management, and
management of special projects. May serve as notary public.

• Composes, prepares, and processes various documents, such as correspondence, letters, memoranda, court
documents and reports. Formats and proofreads documents. May develop and implement office forms. Edits,
copies and faxes documents. Opens and reviews all incoming mail. Routes and/or answers inquiries and
composes correspondence on general and technical matters. Organizes, establishes and maintains filing system for
correspondence, records, documents, conferences and publications. Receives visitors and officials. Answers and
screens telephone calls, voice mails and e-mails. Assists the general public by answering questions or providing
information regarding office, work unit and countywide activities and programs, policies or procedures. Serves as
liaison to staff, outside agencies and the public concerning information or complaints. Resolves problems within
scope of position. Conducts research, creates and maintains databases and spreadsheets, summarizes and
analyzes information, performs and calculates statistical analysis, and compiles data to prepare special and
recurring reports containing specialized information. Prepares agenda, attends meetings and records minutes. May
track committee member attendance. Attends committee meetings, budgetary hearings, and task force meetings.

• Completes personnel forms, workers compensation claims and leave forms/requests for payroll. Sets up and
maintains personnel files. Verifies and prepares and/or updates timesheets and distributes payroll checks.
Completes personnel action forms and vacancy announcements and may issue staff identification cards. May serve
as personnel liaison.

• Maintains, monitors and reconciles departmental budgets. Prepares monthly report of expenditures. Performs
departmental purchasing and records expenditures. Assumes responsibility for fiscal control over line items in
department’s administrative budget. Monitors expenditures and performs budget analysis on accounts and reviews
transactions. Collects fees, prepares deposits and reports, researches discrepancies and prepares special and
recurring management financial/budget departmental reports. Monitors equipment repairs. May participate in
budget preparation and justification.

Page 1 of 3

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Administrative Assistant II

JOB CODE: 13505 FLSA STATUS: Non-Exempt
PAY GRADE: 13 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES: (Cont.)

• Interviews, evaluates, and makes recommendations for hiring clerical staff. Trains and supervises clerical staff.
Provides input on merit increases, promotions, disciplinary actions, and dismissals for clerical staff. May supervise,
monitor and coordinate work assignments.

• Performs other job-related duties as assigned.

MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS:

Education and Experience:
Associate’s degree in Public Administration, Business Management or a directly related field AND two (2) years of
increasingly responsible administrative/secretarial and clerical experience;

OR,

Any combination of education and experience that has been achieved and is equivalent to the stated education and
experience and required knowledge, skills, and abilities sufficient to successfully perform the duties and responsibilities
of this job.

Licenses, Registrations, Certifications, or Special Requirements:
None required.

Preferred:
One (1) year of supervisory experience.

Knowledge, Skills, and Abilities:
Knowledge of:
• Standard office administration practices and procedures.
• Specialized subject matter.
• Personnel rules and procedures.
• Policies, practices, procedures and terminology of assigned function.
• Budgeting and purchasing procedures.
• Computer equipment to include word processing, spreadsheets, databases and a variety of software packages.
• Business letter writing, grammar and punctuation, and report preparation.

Skill in:
• Training and supervising administrative and clerical staff.
• Conducting research in areas of substantive importance.
• Maintaining important files and records.
• Compiling data and writing clear and comprehensive reports and letters.
• Writing reports, business memos and other documents.
• Both verbal and written communication.

Ability to:
• Manage office workflow and delegate responsibilities.
• Independently prepare correspondence, memorandums, and other materials.
• Perform responsible and complex administrative/secretarial work involving the use of independent judgment.
• Research, compile, analyze, interpret and prepare a variety of fiscal, statistical and administrative reports.
• Maintain confidential data and information for executive staff.
• Train and supervise office personnel.
• Assist in monitoring a budget and implementing and maintaining standard filing and accounting systems.
• Establish and maintain effective working relationships with departmental clientele, representatives of outside

agencies, other County employees and officials, and the general public.

Page2of3 /7O

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Administrative Assistant II

JOB CODE: 13505 FLSA STATUS: Non-Exempt
PAY GRADE: 13 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

WORK ENVIRONMENT AND PHYSICAL. DEMANDS:

Physical requirements include the ability to lift/carry up to 10-20 pounds occasionally, visual acuity, speech and hearing,
hand and eye coordination and manual dexterity necessary to operate a computer and office equipment. Subject to sitting,
client/customer contact, standing, walking, vision to monitor, repetitive motion, stooping/kneeling, squatting, bending, and
reaching to perform the essential functions.

This job description is intended to be generic in nature. It is not necessarily an exhaustive list of all duti
and responsibilities. The essential duties, functions and responsibilities and overtime eligibility may vary
based on the specific tasks assigned to the position.

Page3of3 /7/

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Administrative Associate

JOB CODE: 14506 FLSA STATUS: Non-Exempt
PAY GRADE: 14 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

JOB SUMMARY:

Under general supervision, assists an elected official or department head in advanced administrative support activities.
Performs a variety of highly complex administrative work unique to the work unit. Work requires independent judgment,
initiative and authority. Work includes coordinating staff and general administrative functions to include monitoring
budgets, administrative affairs, personnel matters, and interpreting policies and procedures. Serves as liaison between
the department, officials, agencies, and the public. Performs a variety of research, planning, and technical duties.
Handles problems and non-routine situations by determining the approach or action to take and implementing
guidelines, policies and procedures. Incumbents may have contact with high-level administrative offices requiring use of
business vocabulary, tact, discretion and judgment. Sets work unit priorities and interprets policy. Authorizes purchase
requisitions and budget adjustments. Utilizes knowledge of policies and procedures to speak on behalf of supervisor
and performs constituent services. Serves as an advisor to elected official or department head.

DISTINGUISHING CHARACTERISTICS:

This is the third of five administrative-related job classifications within the Administrative Support job family. This
classification emphasizes a variety of support functions focusing on administrative and office management functions and
responsibilities, organization and coordination toward accomplishment of program, divisional or departmental goals,
objectives and departmental budgetary functions. This classification is distinguished from the Administrative Assistant II
in that incumbents serve in an advisory capacity, perform constituent service and have complete knowledge of the
supervisor’s activities. The major duties performed are administrative in nature and require a high degree of
independent judgment, discretion, initiative and authority. The results of assigned projects have direct impact on the
accomplishment or establishment of the divisional and/or departmental goals and objectives.

DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES:

• Performs direct administrative support services for designated elected official/department head. Schedules and
coordinates appointment calendar as directed utilizing knowledge of priorities and prearranged plans. Schedules
meeting rooms, reserves necessary equipment, prepares daily itineraries and assembles necessary background
materials. Sends meeting notices and reminders. Attends meetings to record and report on proceedings. Keeps
supervisor(s) informed of significant items requiring supervisory review or action. May prepare Commissioners
agenda packet for Commissioners Court meetings and brief supervisors on agenda items. May serve as notary
public.

• Supervises, monitors, prioritizes and makes daily decisions on work load schedules to meet work unit operations.
Trains and supervises clerical staff. Interviews, evaluates, and makes recommendations for hiring, merit increases,
promotions, disciplinary actions, and dismissals. Completes personnel forms, workers compensation claims and
leave forms/requests for payroll. Sets up and maintains personnel files. Verifies, prepares and/or updates
timesheets. Distributes payroll checks. Completes personnel action forms, vacancy announcements and issues
staff identification cards. May serve as personnel liaison.

• Maintains, monitors and reconciles departmental budgets. Prepares monthly report of expenditures. Responsible
for departmental purchasing, for recording expenditures, and for fiscal control over line items in department’s or
division’s administrative budget. Monitors expenditures and performs budget analysis on accounts and review of
transactions. Authorizes expenditures or actions for administrative and operational needs. Researches
discrepancies and prepares special and recurring management financial/budget departmental reports. Participates
in budget preparation and justification. Monitors equipment repairs. Purchases or approves for purchase of office
supplies.

• Assists in preparing all departmental policies and procedures. Evaluates and recommends operational changes to
work unit to ensure effectiveness and compliance with policies and regulations. Develops and selects relevant
research and evaluation tools from a variety of sources. Conducts research and prepares summaries for
supervisor. Analyzes information, performs and calculates statistical analysis, and compiles data to prepare special
and recurring reports containing specialized information.

Page 1 of3

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Administrative Associate

JOB CODE: 14506 FLSA STATUS: Non-Exempt
PAY GRADE: 14 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES: (Cont.)

• Serves as liaison to staff, city and County departments, other agencies, elected officials and the public. Coordinates
communication exchange between various entities and departments. May represent the department head or elected
official on various committees and at meetings. May prepare press releases and coordinate responses to media
inquiries and/or press conferences, interviews, speeches and other special events. Answers inquiries and
composes complex, confidential and technical correspondence, articles and speeches in accordance with
established guidelines. Develops and implements office forms and procedures. Researches and interprets rules,
regulations, policies and procedures to staff, other agencies, and the public. May coordinate department-wide
events and functions.

• Performs other job-related duties as assigned.

MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS:

Education and Experience:
Bachelor’s degree in Public Administration, Business Management or a directly related field AND two (2) years of
increasingly responsible administrative experience;

OR,

Any combination of education and experience that has been achieved and is equivalent to the stated education and
experience and required knowledge, skills, and abilities sufficient to successfully perform the duties and responsibilities
of this job.

Licenses, Registrations, Certifications, or Special Requirements:
None required.

Preferred:
One (1) year of supervisory experience.

Knowledge. Skills, and Abilities:
Knowledge of:
• Standard office administration practices and procedures.
• Specialized subject matter.
• Personnel rules and procedures.
• Policies, practices, procedures and terminology of assigned function.
• Accounting, purchasing and budgeting procedures and techniques.
• Constituent interests.
• Computer equipment to include word processing, spreadsheets, databases and a variety of software packages.
• Business letter writing, grammar and punctuation, and report preparation.

Skill in:
• Training and supervising administrative and clerical staff.
• Conducting research in areas of substantive importance.
• Maintaining important files and records.
• Compiling data and writing clear and comprehensive reports and letters.
• Writing reports, business memos and other documents.
• Interacting with leading public officials, County employees and the general public.
• Interpreting policy and applying to situations as they arise.
• Problem-solving and decision-making.
• Both verbal and written communication.

Page2of3 /173

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Administrative Associate

JOB CODE: 14506 FLSA STATUS: Non-Exempt
PAY GRADE: 14 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS: (Cont.)

Ability to:
• Set office priorities and ensure that work is performed in a timely manner.
• Independently prepare correspondence, memorandums, and other materials.
• Organize diverse activities.
• Advise elected official or department head in substantive matters.
• Perform responsible and complex administrative work involving the use of independent judgment.
• Research, compile, analyze, interpret and prepare a variety of fiscal, statistical and administrative reports.
• Maintain confidential data and information for executive staff.
• Assist in monitoring a budget, implementing, and maintaining filing and accounting systems.
• Establish and maintain effective working relationships with departmental clientele, representatives of outside

agencies, other County employees and officials, and the general public.

WORK ENVIRONMENT AND PHYSICAL DEMANDS:

Physical requirements include the ability to lift/carry up to 20-50 pounds occasionally, visual acuity, speech and hearing,
hand and eye coordination and manual dexterity necessary to operate a computer and office equipment. Subject to sitting,
client/customer contact, standing, walking, vision to monitor, repetitive motion, stooping/kneeling, squatting, bending, and
reaching to perform the essential functions.

This job description is intended to be generic in nature. It is not necessarily an exhaustive list of all duties
and responsibilities. The essential duties, functions and responsibilities and overtime eligibility may vary
based on the specific tasks assigned to the position.

Page3of3 1’?

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Office Supervisor

JOB CODE: 15513 FLSA STATUS: Non-Exempt
PAY GRADE: 15 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

JOB SUMMARY:

Under limited supervision, oversees general office operations in small to mid-size office settings. Schedules and monitors
a section of office employees whose duties are specialized and involve varied procedures and methods. Plans,
organizes and supervises the work of support personnel and coordinates workflow to achieve peak efficiency. May also
serve as an intermediary between different units or divisions within a department. Supervises, monitors, prioritizes and
makes daily decisions on work load schedules. Recommends departmental policy development and revisions to
supervisor. May participate in budget preparation and justification and oversee department/division records
maintenance.

DISTINGUISHING CHARACTERISTICS:

This is a supervisory job classification within the Administrative Support job family. This classification is distinguished from
the Office Manager in that supervision takes place in smaller offices with fewer employees and a smaller administrative
budget.

DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES:

• Supervises, monitors, prioritizes and makes daily decisions on work load schedules. Schedules work to meet
appropriate deadlines. Monitors workflow and ensures completed work is distributed to proper entities. Trains and
supervises clerical staff. May create and update training documents and manuals. Assists with office space
assignments. Interviews, evaluates, and makes recommendations for hiring, merit increases, promotions,
disciplinary actions and dismissals. Conducts background checks on perspective applicants. Initiates measures to
improve employee performance. Schedules substitute coverage or acts as backup for all staff. Responds to public
inquiries, as required. May serve as notary public. May serve as department representative at various meetings.

• Recommends departmental policy development and revisions to supervisor. Updates related procedural manuals.
Initiates and coordinates complex projects with other departments and interacts with other department personnel to
accomplish objectives. May initiate and coordinate public interaction with department staff. Develops, implements
and revises work methods and procedures. Provides information and advice concerning specialized or technical
services rendered and related office functions, including response to difficult problems and questions raised by
public or subordinates. Keeps supervisor(s) informed of significant items requiring supervisory review or action.
Obtains information from staff members, relays assignments, calls attention to deadlines, and obtains progress
reports. Maintains frequent contacts with other departments and agencies.

• Drafts and prepares reports, memos, correspondence and spreadsheets. Researches, collects and analyzes data.
Establishes and maintains fiscal and office files. Oversees department records retention. Maintains databases.
Prepares requisitions and purchase orders. Maintains inventory and equipment records. Schedules and makes
arrangements for meetings, training sessions, and conferences. May participate in budget preparation and
justification. Monitors equipment repairs. May coordinate facility repair. Purchases or approves for purchase of
office supplies for department, division, or office.

• Monitors or completes personnel forms, workers compensation claims, and leave forms/requests for payroll. Sets
up and maintains personnel files. Verifies, prepares and/or updates timesheets, distributes payroll checks, and
completes personnel action forms and vacancy announcements. May serve as personnel liaison. May issue staff
identification cards.

• Performs other job-related duties as assigned.

MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS:

Education and Experience:
Bachelor’s degree in Public Administration, Business Management or a directly related field AND three (3) years of
administrative/secretarial and clerical experience, including two (2) years of supervisory experience;

Pagelof2

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Office Supervisor

JOB CODE: 15513 FLSA STATUS: Non-Exempt
PAY GRADE: 15 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS: (Cant.)

Education and Experience: (Cant.)
OR,

Any combination of education and experience that has been achieved and is equivalent to the stated education and
experience and required knowledge, skills, and abilities sufficient to successfully perform the duties and responsibilities
of this job.

Licenses, Registrations, Certifications, or Special Requirements:
None required.

Knowledge, Skills, and Abilities:
Knowledge of:
• Office and supervision principles, practices and techniques.
• Standard practices in area of assignment.
• Policies, practices, procedures and terminology of assigned function.
• Accounting, purchasing and budgetary theory, principles and practices.
• State and Federal laws and regulations pertaining to departmental accounting, purchasing and budgets practices.
• Computer equipment to include word processing, spreadsheets, databases and a variety of software packages.
• Business letter writing, grammar and punctuation, and report preparation.

Skill in:
• Training and supervising others.
• Compiling data and writing clear and comprehensive reports.
• Problem-solving and decision-making.
• Serving as an intermediary between different units or divisions.
• Both verbal and written communication.

Ability to:
• Train and supervise office personnel.
• Plan, assign, motivate, and coordinate work of support staff.
• Assist in monitoring a budget.
• Implement and maintain filing and accounting systems.
• Research, compile, analyze, interpret and prepare a variety of fiscal, statistical and administrative reports.
• Manage time well, perform multiple tasks and organize diverse activities.
• Independently prepare correspondence, memorandums, and other materials.
• Establish and maintain effective working relationships with departmental clientele, representatives of outside

agencies, other County employees and officials, and the general public.

WORK ENVIRONMENT AND PHYSICAL DEMANDS:

Physical requirements include the ability to lift/carry up to 20-50 pounds occasionally, visual acuity, speech and hearing,
hand and eye coordination and manual dexterity necessary to operate a computer and office equipment. Subject to sitting,
client/customer contact, standing, walking, vision to monitor, repetitive motion, stooping/kneeling, squatting, bending, and
reaching to perform the essential functions.

This job description is intended to be generic in nature. It is not necessarily an exhaustive list of all duties
and responsibilities. The essential duties, functions and responsibilities and overtime eligibility may vary
based on the specific tasks assigned to the position.

Page2of2 /11

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Commissioners Court Specialist

JOB CODE: 15516 FLSA STATUS: Non-Exempt
PAY GRADE: 15 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

JOB SUMMARY:

Under limited direction, provides clerical and administrative support services for Commissioners Court meetings.
Attends Commissioners Court Voting, Executive, Budget and Road District Voting sessions and prepares official
records. Serves as custodian of official court records. Creates and maintains digital records and electronic tracking
systems. Directs the transfer of digital information to proper media and retrieves information when necessary. Works
with Records Management staff on procedures for proper storage, retrieval and preservation of court records.

DISTINGUISHING CHARACTERISTICS:

This is a job classification within the Administrative Support job family.

DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES:

• Posts official notices of Commissioners Court meetings with appropriate authorities and within time requirements
established by law. Attends Commissioners Court Voting, Executive, Budget and Road District Voting sessions.
Audio tapes proceedings of these minutes and prepares the official minutes. Submits minutes to court for approval
and distributes approved minutes to departments, Executive Managers and others as requested. Advises Elected
Officials and staff on agenda items. Serves as a primary resource person to employees and officials and to the
general public for information on actions taken by the Court.

• Receives, maintains and updates all official records and original documents from the court’s meetings and
processes them in accordance with government code. Prepares documents for imaging and converts scanned
materials to digital format. Serves as primary quality control agent. Downloads, indexes and converts source
computer output files into searchable reports. Conducts manual and computer searches for internal and external
customers. Certifies documents when appropriate.

• Supervises the daily maintenance and backup of all electronic data pertaining to all electronic tracking systems of
Commissioners Court records. Maintains production reports and files on a weekly basis. Maintains computer
hardware, software, and scanning equipment needed for the document management system. Collects and analyzes
statistical data retrieved from the imaging software workflow and production reports and creates reports for Division
Manager. Works with Records Management staff to ensure efficient storage, retrieval and preservation of original
Commissioners Court records.

• Directs, trains, and assigns work to temporary staff.

• Performs other job-related duties as assigned.

MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS:

Education and Experience:
Bachelor’s degree in Public Administration, Business Management or a directly related field AND three (3) years of
increasingly responsible clerical and administrative work experience;

OR,

Any combination of education and experience that has been achieved and is equivalent to the stated education and
experience and required knowledge, skills, and abilities sufficient to successfully perform the duties and responsibilities
of this job.

Licenses, Registrations, Certifications, or Special Requirements:
None required.

Preferred:
Governmental, word processing, and data base management computer experience.

Pagelof2 /7’?

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Commissioners Court Specialist

JOB CODE: 15516 FLSA STATUS: Non-Exempt
PAY GRADE: 15 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS: (Cont.)

Knowledge, Skills, and Abilities:
Knowledge of:
• Commissioners Court proceedings.
• Recording equipment.
• Digital imaging hardware and software.
• Records maintenance protocol.
• Computer equipment to include word processing, spreadsheets, databases and a variety of software packages.
• Business letter writing, grammar and punctuation, and report preparation.

Skill in:
• Recording all Commissioners Court proceedings.
• Transcribing court minutes accurately and completely.
• Providing official documents in multiple media formats.
• Documenting, filing, storing and retrieving official Commissioners Court documents and materials.
• Both verbal and written communication.

Ability to:
• Research, process, and analyze a large volume of information and materials, to make decisions about manual and

automated record keeping and indexing to ensure easy and accurate retrieval.
• Organize work, and work independently.
• Answer questions related to court activities.
• Establish and maintain effective working relationships with County employees and officials, representatives of

outside agencies, and the general public.

WORK ENVIRONMENT AND PHYSICAL DEMANDS:

Physical requirements include the ability to liftlcarry up to 20-50 pounds occasionally, visual acuity, speech and hearing,
hand and eye coordination and manual dexterity necessary to operate a computer and office equipment. Subject to sitting,
client/customer contact, standing, walking, vision to monitor, repetitive motion, stooping/kneeling, squatting, bending, and
reaching to perform the essential functions.

This job description is intended to be generic in nature. It is not necessarily an exhaustive list of all duties
and responsibilities. The essential duties, functions and responsibilities and overtime eligibility may vary
based on the specific tasks assigned to the position.

Page2of2

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Executive Assistant - NE

JOB CODE: 16519 FLSA STATUS: Non-Exempt
PAY GRADE: 16 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

JOB SUMMARY:

Provides specialized support for an Elected Official, Appointed Official, or Department Head in the execution of their
responsibilities in the operation of County government. Serves as liaison between other officials, County personnel,
attorneys, boards, commissions, state and local government officials and the general public. Resolves problems and
issues by conducting research, analyzing and developing action-oriented strategies, handling special projects and
assisting constituents seeking information or assistance. Oversees operational functions of the office, such as staffing,
budgeting, payroll, and purchasing. Makes policy recommendation and advises the official or department head in all
matters.

DISTINGUISHING CHARACTERISTICS:

This is the fourth in a series of five administrative-related job classifications within the Administrative Support job family.
This classification is distinguished from the Administrative Associate in that incumbents provide specific, dedicated
support to an official or department head as opposed to broader administrative support to the department or function.
This classification has a Non-Exempt ELSA status. This classification is distinguished from the Executive Assistant-
Elected Official in that incumbents recommend and advise to the Elected Official, Appointed Official or Department
Head. Incumbents in this classification serve as the lead administrative official within their respective offices and
perform administrative and office management functions. The major duties performed are administrative in nature and
require a moderate degree of independent judgment, discretion, initiative and authority. The results of assigned projects
may have direct impact on the achievement of departmental goals and objectives. Policy recommendations may have a
regular impact the development of public policy.

DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES:

• Reviews agenda items and prepares or briefs the official or department head on relevant issues. Monitors
Commissioners Court meetings and assists in related functions. Coordinates departmental activities by informing all
parties involved in proceedings. Prepares resolutions, proclamations, office correspondence and agenda requests.
Reviews incoming correspondence and recommends actions that require decisions.

• Supervises administrative and clerical support staff to include daily work/community assignments, research projects,
performance reviews, and other administrative tasks. Prepares or assists in preparing and administering department
budget. Handles office transfers and budget amendments. Serves as liaison to Auditor’s office. Processes time
sheets, travel vouchers, and purchase orders to ensure that controls and costs are within budget and auditing
standards. Prepares office correspondence and departmental memos. Receives office visitors and officials and
responds to telephone inquires. May review and resolve problems with contracts, invoices and other official documents
prior to official’s signature. May coordinate appointments, meetings, and calendars.

• Organizes, prepares, and represents the official or department head at neighborhood, community, budget, precinct,
city/state or other key meetings, and commissioners work sessions, as required. Responds to constituents’ needs and
updates the official on issues affecting the County. Responds to constituents seeking information or assistance from
the official or department head or County government. May conduct field visits and prepares reports on findings related
to projects and activities. May serve as liaison to other governmental and nongovernmental agencies and
organizations, and on boards and commissions.

• Serves as principal advisor to Appointed Official/Department Head on issues of importance. May serve as an advisor to
an Elected Official.

• Proposes, designs and organizes legal, technical or policy development research projects. Coordinates with other
offices to execute them. Organizes and implements departmental programs and activities. Performs programmatic
and administrative reviews. Coordinates special projects, as required.

• Performs other job-related duties as assigned.

MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS:

Education and Experience:
Bachelor’s degree in Government, Public Administration, Business Administration or a directly related field AND three (3)
years of responsible administrative experience in a service-oriented organization;

Pagelof3 /76

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Executive Assistant - NE

JOB CODE: 16519 FLSA STATUS: Non-Exempt
PAY GRADE: 16 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS: (Cont.)

Education and Experience: (Cont.)

OR,

Any combination of education and experience that has been achieved and is equivalent to the stated education and
experience and required knowledge, skills, and abilities sufficient to successfully perform the duties and responsibilities
of this job.

Licenses, Registrations, Certifications, or Special Requirements:
None required.

Knowledge, Skills, and Abilities:
Knowledge of:
• County governmental policies and procedures.
• Standard office administration practices and procedures.
• Specialized subject matter.
• Personnel rules and procedures.
• Policies, practices, procedures and terminology of assigned function.
• Accounting, purchasing and budgeting procedures and techniques.
• Constituent interests and issues.
• Computer equipment to include word processing, spreadsheets, databases and a variety of software packages.
• Business letter writing, grammar and punctuation, and report preparation.

Skill in:
• Conducting research in areas of substantive importance.
• Maintaining important files and records.
• Compiling data and writing clear and comprehensive reports and letters.
• Writing reports, business memos and other documents.
• Interacting with leading public officials, County employees and the general public.
• Interpreting policy and applying to situations as they arise.
• Problem-solving and decision-making.
• Both verbal and written communication.

Ability to:
• Manage and organize diverse community and County activities.
• Accurately receive, research, analyze, prioritize, and effectively communicate information.
• Work independently within broad policy guidelines.
• Set office priorities and ensure that work is performed in a timely manner.
• Independently prepare correspondence, memorandums, and other materials.
• Organize diverse activities.
• Advise Elected Official or department head in substantive matters.
• Perform responsible and complex administrative work involving the use of independent judgment.
• Research, compile, analyze, interpret and prepare a variety of fiscal, statistical and administrative reports.
• Maintain confidential data and information for executive staff.
• Assist in monitoring a budget, implementing, and maintaining filing and accounting systems.
• Establish and maintain effective working relationships with County employees and officials, with representatives of

outside private and public organizations, and with the general public.

Page 2 of 3 / t’3

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Executive Assistant - NE

JOB CODE: 16519 FLSA STATUS: Non-Exempt
PAY GRADE: 16 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

WORK ENVIRONMENT AND PHYSICAL DEMANDS:

Physical requirements include the ability to lift/carry up to 20-50 pounds occasionally, visual acuity, speech and hearing,
hand and eye coordination and manual dexterity necessary to operate a computer and office equipment. Subject to sitting,
client/customer contact, standing, walking, vision to monitor, repetitive motion, stooping/kneeling, squatting, bending, and
reaching to perform the essential functions.

This job description is intended to be generic in nature. It is not necessarily an exhaustive list of all duties
and responsibilities. The essential duties, functions and responsibilities and overtime eligibility may vary
based on the specific tasks assigned to the position.

Page3of3 /3/

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Executive Assistant

JOB CODE: 16520 FLSA STATUS: Exempt
PAY GRADE: 16 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

JOB SUMMARY:

Provides specialized support for an Elected Official, Appointed Official, or Department Head in the execution of their
responsibilities in the operation of County government. Serves as liaison between other officials, County personnel,
attorneys, boards, commissions, state and local government officials and the general public. Resolves problems and
issues by conducting research, analyzing and developing action-oriented strategies, handling special projects and
assisting constituents seeking information or assistance. Oversees operational functions of the office, such as staffing,
budgeting, payroll, and purchasing. Makes policy recommendation and advises the Official or Department Head in all
matters.

DISTINGUISHING CHARACTERISTICS:

This is the fourth in a series of five administrative-related job classifications within the Administrative Support job family.
This classification is distinguished from the Administrative Associate in that incumbents provide specific, dedicated
support to an Official or Department Head as opposed to broader administrative support to the department or function.
This classification is distinguished from the Executive Assistant-Elected Official in that incumbents recommend and
advise to the Elected Official, Appointed Official or Department Head. Incumbents in this classification serve as the lead
administrative official within their respective offices and perform administrative and office management functions. The
major duties performed are administrative in nature and require a moderate degree of independent judgment, discretion,
initiative and authority. The results of assigned projects may have direct impact on the achievement of departmental
goals and objectives. Policy recommendations may have a regular impact the development of public policy.

DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES:

• Reviews agenda items and prepares or briefs the Official or Department Head on relevant issues. Monitors
Commissioners Court meetings and assists in related functions. Coordinates departmental activities by informing all
parties involved in proceedings. Prepares resolutions, proclamations, office correspondence and agenda requests.
Reviews incoming correspondence and recommends actions that require decisions.

• Supervises administrative and clerical support staff to include daily work/community assignments, research projects,
performance reviews, and other administrative tasks. Prepares or assists in preparing and administering department
budget. Handles office transfers and budget amendments. Serves as liaison to Auditor’s office. Processes time
sheets, travel vouchers, and purchase orders to ensure that controls and costs are within budget and auditing
standards. Prepares office correspondence and departmental memos. Receives office visitors and officials and
responds to telephone inquires. May review and resolve problems with contracts, invoices and other official documents
prior to official’s signature. May coordinate appointments, meetings, and calendars.

• Organizes, prepares, and represents the Official or Department Head at neighborhood, community, budget, precinct,
city/state or other key meetings, and commissioners work sessions, as required. Responds to constituents’ needs and
updates the Official on issues affecting the County. Responds to constituents seeking information or assistance from
the official or department head or County government. May conduct field visits and prepares reports on findings related
to projects and activities. May serve as liaison to other governmental and nongovernmental agencies and
organizations, and on boards and commissions.

• Serves as principal advisor to Appointed Official/Department Head on issues of importance. May serve as an advisor to
an Elected Official.

• Proposes, designs and organizes legal, technical or policy development research projects. Coordinates with other
offices to execute them. Organizes and implements departmental programs and activities. Performs programmatic
and administrative reviews. Coordinates special projects, as required.

• Performs other job-related duties as assigned.

MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS:

Education and Experience:
Bachelor’s degree in Government, Public Administration, Business Administration or a directly related field AND three (3)
years of responsible administrative experience in a service-oriented organization:

Page 1 of 3 /.?Z

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Executive Assistant

JOB CODE: 16520 FLSA STATUS: Exempt
PAY GRADE: 16 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS: (Cont.)

Education and Experience: (Cont.)

OR,

Any combination of education and experience that has been achieved and is equivalent to the stated education and
experience and required knowledge, skills, and abilities sufficient to successfully perform the duties and responsibilities
of this job.

Licenses, Registrations, Certifications, or Special Requirements:
None required.

Knowledge, Skills, and Abilities:
Knowledge of:
• County governmental policies and procedures.
• Standard office administration practices and procedures.
• Specialized subject matter.
• Personnel rules and procedures.
• Policies, practices, procedures and terminology of assigned function.
• Accounting, purchasing and budgeting procedures and techniques.
• Constituent interests and issues.
• Computer equipment to include word processing, spreadsheets, databases and a variety of software packages.
• Business letter writing, grammar and punctuation, and report preparation.

Skill in:
• Conducting research in areas of substantive importance.
• Maintaining important files and records.
• Compiling data and writing clear and comprehensive reports and letters.
• Writing reports, business memos and other documents.
• Interacting with leading public officials, County employees and the general public.
• Interpreting policy and applying to situations as they arise.
• Problem-solving and decision-making.
• Both verbal and written communication.

Ability to:
• Manage and organize diverse community and County activities.
• Accurately receive, research, analyze, prioritize, and effectively communicate information.
• Work independently within broad policy guidelines.
• Set office priorities and ensure that work is performed in a timely manner.
• Independently prepare correspondence, memorandums, and other materials.
• Organize diverse activities.
• Advise Elected Official or department head in substantive matters.
• Perform responsible and complex administrative work involving the use of independent judgment.
• Research, compile, analyze, interpret and prepare a variety of fiscal, statistical and administrative reports.
• Maintain confidential data and information for executive staff.
• Assist in monitoring a budget, implementing, and maintaining filing and accounting systems.
• Establish and maintain effective working relationships with County employees and officials, with representatives of

outside private and public organizations, and with the general public.

Page 2 of 3 /?3

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Executive Assistant

JOB CODE: 16520 FLSA STATUS: Exempt
PAY GRADE: 16 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

WORK ENVIRONMENT AND PHYSICAL DEMANDS:

Physical requirements include the ability to lift/carry up to 20-50 pounds occasionally, visual acuity, speech and hearing,
hand and eye coordination and manual dexterity necessary to operate a computer and office equipment. Subject to sitting,
client/customer contact, standing, walking, vision to monitor, repetitive motion, stooping/kneeling, squatting, bending, and
reaching to perform the essential functions.

This job description is intended to be generic in nature. It is not necessarily an exhaustive list of all duties
and responsibilities. The essential duties, functions and responsibilities and overtime eligibility may vary
based on the specific tasks assigned to the position.

Page 3 of 3

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Executive Assistant — Elected Official

JOB CODE: 18521 FLSA STATUS: Exempt
PAY GRADE: 18 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

JOB SUMMARY:

Provides specialized support for an Elected Official in the execution of their responsibilities in the operation of County
government. Serves as liaison between other officials, County personnel, attorneys, boards, commissions, state and
local government officials and the general public. Resolves problems and issues by conducting research, analyzing and
developing action-oriented strategies, handling special projects and assisting constituents seeking information or
assistance. Oversees operational functions of the office, such as staffing, budgeting, payroll, and purchasing. Serves
as the primary advisor to an Elected Official in all areas.

DISTINGUISHING CHARACTERISTICS:

This is the fifth in a series of five administrative-related job classifications within the Administrative Support job family.
This classification is distinguished from the Executive Assistant in that incumbents serve as primary advisors to an
Elected Official and serves as the representative of the Elected Official’s office. Incumbents in this classification serve
as the lead administrative official within their respective offices and perform administrative and office management
functions. The major duties performed are administrative in nature and require a high degree of independent judgment,
discretion, initiative and authority. The results of assigned projects have direct impact on the achievement of
departmental goals and objectives. Policy recommendations regularly impact the development of public policy.

DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES:

• Reviews agenda items for the Elected Official and prepares or briefs the official on relevant issues. Monitors
Commissioners Court meetings and assists in related functions. Coordinates departmental activities by informing all
parties involved in proceedings. Prepares resolutions, proclamations, office correspondence and agenda requests.
Reviews incoming correspondence and recommends actions that require decisions.

• Supervises administrative and clerical support staff to include daily work/community assignments, research projects,
performance reviews, and other administrative tasks. Prepares or assists in preparing and administering department
budget. Handles office transfers and budget amendments. May arrange for office travel. Serves as liaison to Auditors’
office and Planning and Budget Office. Processes time sheets, travel vouchers, and purchase orders to ensure that
controls and costs are within budget and auditing standards. Prepares office correspondence and departmental
memos. Receives office visitors and officials and responds to telephone inquires. May review and resolve problems
with contracts, invoices and other official documents prior to official’s signature. Coordinates appointments, meetings,
calendars and other day-to-day workflow issues.

• Organizes, prepares, and represents the Elected Official at neighborhood, community, budget, precinct, city/state or
other key meetings, and commissioners work sessions. Responds to constituents’ needs and updates the official on
issues affecting the County. Follows up on constituent issues and keeps files related to constituent issues. Reports
outcome of constituent issues back to constituents. May conduct field visits and prepares reports on findings related to
projects and activities. Serves as a liaison to other governmental and nongovernmental agencies and organizations,
and on boards and commissions.

• Serves as principal advisor to the Elected Official on issues of importance. May serve as spokesperson to media for
the Elected Official. Manages inner-office workflow and serves as a primary point-of-contact for Elected Official.

• Proposes, designs and organizes legal, technical or policy development and research projects. Coordinates with other
offices to execute them. May organize and implement departmental programs and activities. Performs programmatic
and administrative reviews. May work independently on the coordination of special projects, as required. May
participate and advise in drafting County budget.

• Performs other job-related duties as assigned.

MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS:

Education and Experience:
Bachelor’s degree in Government, Public Administration, Business Administration or a directly related field AND four (4) to
five (5) years of responsible administrative experience in a service-oriented organization;

Page 1 of 3

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Executive Assistant — Elected Official

JOB CODE: 18521 FLSA STATUS: Exempt
PAY GRADE: 18 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS: (Cont.)

Education and Experience: (Cant.)

OR,

Any combination of education and experience that has been achieved and is equivalent to the stated education and
experience and required knowledge, skills, and abilities sufficient to successfully perform the duties and responsibilities
of this job.

Licenses, Registrations, Certifications, or Special Requirements:
None required.

Knowledge, Skills, and Abilities:
Knowledge of:
• County governmental policies and procedures.
• Standard office administration practices and procedures.
• Specialized subject matter.
• Personnel rules and procedures.
• Policies, practices, procedures and terminology of assigned function.
• Accounting, purchasing and budgeting procedures and techniques.
• Constituent interests and issues.
• Specific precinct policies.
• Computer equipment to include word processing, spreadsheets, databases and a variety of software packages.
• Business letter writing, grammar and punctuation, and report preparation.

Skill in:
• Conducting research in areas of substantive importance.
• Advising elected officials on matters of public policy.
• Maintaining important files and records.
• Training and supervising administrative and clerical staff.
• Compiling data and writing clear and comprehensive reports and letters.
• Writing reports, business memos and other documents.
• Interacting with leading public officials, County employees and the general public.
• Interpreting policy and applying to situations as they arise.
• Problem-solving and decision-making.
• Both verbal and written communication.

Ability to:
• Manage and organize diverse community and County activities.
• Accurately receive, research, analyze, prioritize, and effectively communicate information.
• Work independently within broad policy guidelines.
• Set office priorities and ensure that work is performed in a timely manner.
• Independently prepare correspondence, memorandums, and other materials.
• Organize diverse activities.
• Advise Elected Official in substantive matters.
• Perform responsible and complex administrative work involving the use of independent judgment.
• Research, compile, analyze, interpret and prepare a variety of fiscal, statistical and administrative reports.
• Maintain confidential data and information for executive staff.
• Train and supervise office personnel.
• Assist in monitoring a budget, implementing, and maintaining filing and accounting systems.
• Establish and maintain effective working relationships with County employees and officials, with representatives of

outside private and public organizations, and with the general public.

Page 2 of 3

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Executive Assistant — Elected Official

JOB CODE: 18521 FLSA STATUS: Exempt
PAY GRADE: 18 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

WORK ENVIRONMENT AND PHYSICAL DEMANDS:

Physical requirements include the ability to lift/carry up to 20-50 pounds occasionally, visual acuity, speech and hearing,
hand and eye coordination and manual dexterity necessary to operate a computer and office equipment. Subject to sitting,
client/customer contact, standing, walking, vision to monitor, repetitive motion, stooping/kneeling, squatting, bending, and
reaching to perform the essential functions.

I This job description is intended to be generic in nature. It is not necessarily an exhaustive list of all duties
and responsibilities. The essential duties, functions and responsibilities and overtime eligibility may vary
based on the specific tasks assigned to the position.

Page3of3 /?7

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Mailroom Services Assistant

JOB CODE: 09531 FLSA STATUS: Non-Exempt
PAY GRADE: 09 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

JOB SUMMARY:

Under close supervision, processes incoming and outgoing mail for offices. Picks up and delivers mail and printed
materials, which consists of certified, registered, insured letters, packages and express mail. Applies postage and
operates various mail vehicles. Performs a variety of administrative functions copying, filing, preparing labels, answering
telephones and assisting the public with County procedures.

DISTINGUISHING CHARACTERISTICS:

This is the first in a series of two mailroom services-related job classifications within the Administrative Support job
family. This classification is distinguished from the Mailroom Services Assistant Senior by the general nature of work
and the absence of lead duty responsibilities. This classification is distinguished from the Office Assistant in that duties
are limited or related to the processing of mail on a countywide level.

DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES:

• Picks-up, sorts, and distributes incoming mail. May pick up incoming mail at various post offices. Assists in
receiving various supplies and materials. Maintains and organizes records, reference materials, and documents and
provides security for controlled items (e.g., items labeled “confidential” as well as other controlled items).

• Applies postage to all outgoing County mail in accordance to postal regulations. Stages mail for pick up by U.S.
Post Office according to postal regulations. Delivers outgoing mail. Assists in shipping various supplies and
materials. May hand-deliver special items to satellite locations. Processes outgoing bulk mail. Sorts, meters and
processes outgoing mail to the post office or expedited mail carrier. Operates various mail vehicles.

• Keeps monthly records of postage expenditures. Purchases stamps and documents costs. Makes deliveries to
offices of mail packages and printing materials. Keeps daily activity logs of certified mail. Assists in compiling and
monitoring statistical information. Performs a variety of clerical functions, to include making copies, posting
information, typing labels, and answering telephones. Assists the public by showing them how to use County
records or equipment, how to complete applications for assistance or services, pulling records or files for their use,
or answering questions about County procedures.

• Performs other job-related duties as assigned.

MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS:

Education and ExDerience:
High School diploma or G.E.D. AND one (1) to two (2) years of related work experience;

OR,

Any combination of education and experience that has been achieved and is equivalent to the stated education and
experience and required knowledge, skills, and abilities sufficient to successfully perform the duties and responsibilities
of this job.

Licenses, Registrations, Certifications, or Special Requirements:
Valid Texas Driver’s License.

Knowledge, Skills, and Abilities:
Knowledge of:
• Mail system policies and procedures.
• Postal regulations.
• Office locations and driving routes.
• Business English, spelling and arithmetic.

Page 1 of 2

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Mailroom Services Assistant

JOB CODE: 09531 FLSA STATUS: Non-Exempt
PAY GRADE: 09 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS: (Cont.)

Skill in:
• Operating a variety of modern office equipment, including a computer.
• Both verbal and written communication.

Ability to:
• Read and comprehend simple instructions, short correspondence, and memos.
• Add, subtract, multiply and divide in all units of measure, using whole numbers, common fractions, and decimals.
• Carry out detailed verbal and written instructions.
• Deaf with problems involving concrete variables in standardized situations.
• Operate mail vehicles.
• Perform various administrative functions.
• Courteously assist the public with questions and provide information.
• Establish and maintain effective working relationships with County employees and officials, representatives of

outside agencies, and the general public.

WORK ENVIRONMENT AND PHYSICAL DEMANDS:

Physical requirements include the ability to lift/carry up to 70 pounds occasionally, visual acuity, speech and hearing, hand
and eye coordination and manual dexterity necessary to operate a computer and office equipment. Subject to sitting,
client/customer contact, standing, walking, vision to monitor, repetitive motion, stooping/kneeling, squatting, bending, and
reaching with hands and arms, frequent work in outdoor weather conditions, and work in a moderately noisy.

This job description is intended to be generic in nature. It is not necessarily an exhaustive list of all duties
and responsibilities. The essential duties, functions and responsibilities and overtime eligibility may vary
based on the specific tasks assigned to the position.

Page 2 of 2

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Mailroom Services Assistant Senior

JOB CODE: 11552 FLSA STATUS: Non-Exempt
PAY GRADE: 11 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

JOB SUMMARY:

Under moderate supervision, coordinates and oversees the County’s daily mail service operations. Coordinates and
schedules work. May make recommendation on personnel matters. Coordinates and processes incoming and outgoing
mail for offices. Picks up and delivers mail and printed materials, which consists of certified, registered, insured letters,
packages and express mail. Operates and maintains mail vehicles. Monitors postal accounts and postage levels in
meters and requests additional postage, as required. Performs other administrative tasks such as purchasing stamps,
organizing records, maintaining postal statistics and tracking monthly expenditures.

DISTINGUISHING CHARACTERISTICS:

This is the second in a series of two mailroom services-related job classifications within the Administrative Support job
family. This classification is distinguished from the Mailroom Services Assistant in that it performs duties of a lead
nature, such as training and overseeing work of other mailroom staff.

DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES:

• Schedules and leads the County’s daily mail operations. Coordinates, assigns and schedules work. Schedules and
monitors daily operations. Oversees work of subordinate mailroom personnel. Makes recommendations on
personnel matters. Monitors accounts to ensure postal costs are within budget. Keeps monthly records of postage
expenditures. Monitors postage levels in mail meters and requests additional funds, as required. Maintains postal
statistics and provides reports, as required.

• Serves as liaison between County and post office on all routine mail matters. Purchases stamps and documents
costs. Maintains and organizes records, reference materials, and documents and provides security for controlled
items. Maintains mailroom and equipment.

• Picks-up, sorts, and distributes incoming mail. Processes outgoing bulk mail. Delivers and receives initial evidence
for criminal cases. Sorts, meters and processes outgoing mail to the post office or expedited mail carrier. May pick
up incoming mail at various post offices. Operates various mail vehicles. Processes outgoing bulk mail. Tags and
maintains log of certified mail. Assists in receiving/shipping various supplies and materials and distributing. Makes
delivery of mail, packages, and printing materials to offices.

• Performs other job-related duties as assigned.

MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS:

Education and Experience:
High School diploma or G.E.D. AND three (3) years of related work experience, including one (1) year experience as
lead worker;

OR,

Any combination of education and experience that has been achieved and is equivalent to the stated education and
experience and required knowledge, skills, and abilities sufficient to successfully perform the duties and responsibilities
of this job.

Licenses, Registrations, Certifications, or Special Requirements:
Valid Texas Driver’s License.

Knowledge, Skills, and Abilities:
Knowledge of:
• Mail system policies and procedures.
• Postal regulations.
• Office locations and driving routes.
• Scheduling patterns to ensure adequate staff coverage.
• Business English, spelling and arithmetic.

Pagelof2

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Mailroom Services Assistant Senior

JOB CODE: 11552 FLSA STATUS: Non-Exempt
PAY GRADE: 11 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS: (Cont.)

Skill in:
• Coordinating the work of others.
• Monitoring work of others.
• Operating a variety of modern office equipment, including a computer.
• Both verbal and written communication.

Ability to:
• Read and comprehend simple instructions, short correspondence, and memos.
• Add, subtract, multiply and divide in all units of measure, using whole numbers, common fractions, and decimals.
• Carry out detailed verbal and written instructions.
• Operate mail vehicles.
• Perform various administrative functions.
• Courteously assist the public with questions and provide information.
• Act as lead worker and answer questions from other employees.
• Deal with problems involving concrete variables in standardized situations.
• Establish and maintain effective working relationships with County employees and officials, representatives of

outside agencies, and the general public.

WORK ENVIRONMENT AND PHYSICAL DEMANDS:

Physical requirements include the ability to lift/carry up to 70 pounds occasionally, visual acuity, speech and hearing, hand
and eye coordination and manual dexterity necessary to operate a computer and office equipment. Subject to sitting,
client/customer contact, standing, walking, vision to monitor, repetitive motion, stooping/kneeling, squatting, bending, and
reaching with hands and arms, frequent work in outdoor weather conditions, and work in a moderately noisy.

This job description is intended to be generic in nature. It is not necessarily an exhaustive list of all duties
and responsibilities. The essential duties, functions and responsibilities and overtime eligibility may vary
based on the specific tasks assigned to the position.

Page2of2 /9/

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Recording Specialist I

JOB CODE: 12558 FLSA STATUS: Non-Exempt
PAY GRADE: 12 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

JOB SUMMARY:

Under moderate supervision and using some independent judgment, receives, scans, analyzes, and indexes a wide
variety of legal documents. Issues marriage licenses. Assists customers in understanding different types of documents
and provides training on the retrieval of digital or microfilm copies. Performs moderately complex bookkeeping and
accounting tasks, including assessing fees, balancing cash receipts, preparing deposits, and generating reports.
Responds to customer requests and acts as a primary contact point for the department.

DISTINGUISHING CHARACTERISTICS:

This is the first in a series of three recording specialist-related job classifications within the Administrative Support job
family. This classification is distinguished from the Recording Specialist II in that the overall nature of the job is
production oriented and focused on the entry of data, not the review of data entered by others.

DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES:

Provides specialized support, expertise, and information to the general public on matters relating to the transaction
of documents filed. Maintains knowledge of statutes and implements new recording laws. Provides information and
answers technical questions from title companies, law firms, financial institutions, other government agencies and
the general public. Assists customers by providing information on how to locate documents and instruction on how
to use computer indexing and image retrieval systems, microfilm equipment, venda card machines, and copiers.
Provides technical advice and assistance regarding documents required for all types of transactions on matters
including real property, business creation, marriage licenses, elections, and civil, probate and misdemeanor court
matters.

• Prepares documents for imaging and operates electronic scanning equipment. Converts scanned material to digital
form. Edits and inspects each scanned image to ensure it has been properly input and the integrity of the document
has been maintained. May perform additional quality control tests of all documents that are imaged and indexed.
Insures safety, security, and confidentiality of digitized records. Identifies documents that do not meet legal
requirements and assesses penalties or returns document to customer.

• Interprets a wide variety of complex legal documents and records key information and fee assessment in an
automated indexing system. Performs a variety of moderately complex bookkeeping and accounting functions in a
large revenue office. Posts receipts and disbursements to appropriate ledgers, journals, or reports. Updates
computer logs. Prepares a variety of reports, reconciles cash receipts, prepares bank deposits, and processes state
vouchers. Maintains a daily log for reconciliation of accounts and measurement of performance against
performance standards.

• Responds to customer requests by mail, email, telephone or in person. Uses expertise to research and retrieve
documents from electronic and manual databases as well as extensive document library. Provides plain or certified
copies upon request. Mails documents to customers in a timely manner. Issues marriage licenses and files all
official records. Creates compact discs for customers and off-site storage.

• Serves as central information, answers the main telephone number, and operates an information desk. Logs
telephone calls. Directs callers to appropriate division on matters that require specialized knowledge. Receives,
opens, logs and directs department mail. Maintains log on checks received. Maintains and compiles statistical
reports. Maintains and performs preventative and operational maintenance on venda card machines, copiers,
microfilm readers and electronic scanning equipment. Maintains research library and ensures library is organized
and current. Maintains copy center.

• Performs other job-related duties as assigned.

MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS:

Education and Experience:
Associate’s degree in Public Administration, Business Administration or a directly related field AND two (2) years of
increasingly responsible clerical and administrative experience;

Page 1 of 2 /9,

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Recording Specialist I

JOB CODE: 12558 FLSA STATUS: Non-Exempt
PAY GRADE: 12 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS: (Cont.)

Education and Experience: (Cont.)
OR,

Any combination of education and experience that has been achieved and is equivalent to the stated education and
experience and required knowledge, skills, and abilities sufficient to successfully perform the duties and responsibilities
of this job.

Licenses, Registrations, Certifications, or Special Requirements:
None required.

Preferred:
Experience in data entry and the interpretation of complex legal documents.

Knowledge, Skills, and Abilities:
Knowledge of:
• Basic customer service and telephone etiquette.
• Scanning and imaging equipment.
• County indexing codes.
• Legal instruments and recording forms.
• Basic accounting procedures.
• Research procedures and data sources.
• Business letter writing, grammar and punctuation, and report preparation.

Skill in:
• Preparing documents for scanning.
• Retrieving documents from indexes and various databases.
• Analyzing legal documents and assigning proper codes.
• Operating scanning and imaging equipment.
• Maintaining neat and well-organized records.
• Operating a variety of modern office equipment, including a computer and data entry packages.
• Both verbal and written communication.

Ability to:
• Make decisions about manual and automated record keeping and indexing to insure easy and accurate retrieval.
• Work quickly and accurately with numbers.
• Perform accurate detailed work with permanent records.
• Operate a 10-key calculator by touch.
• Establish and maintain effective working relationships with County employees and officials, representatives of

outside agencies, and the general public.

WORK ENVIRONMENT AND PHYSICAL DEMANDS:

Physical requirements include the ability to lift/carry up to 20-50 pounds occasionally, visual acuity, speech and hearing,
hand and eye coordination and manual dexterity necessary to operate a computer and office equipment. Subject to sitting,
client/customer contact, standing, walking, vision to monitor, repetitive motion, stooping/kneeling, squatting, bending,
reaching, reading large volume of documents, and considerable time on telephone to perform the essential functions.

This job description is intended to be generic in nature. It is not necessarily an exhaustive list of all duties
and responsibilities. The essential duties, functions and responsibilities and overtime eligibility may vary
based on the specific tasks assigned to the position.

Page 2 of 2 /93

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Recording Specialist II

JOB CODE: 14563 FLSA STATUS: Non-Exempt
PAY GRADE: 14 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

JOB SUMMARY:

Under minimal supervision, coordinates the imaging and indexing of legal documents filed. Analyzes documents and
verifies the accuracy of entries to ensure overall quality and accuracy of the document index. Verifies accuracy of
completed entries. Checks outside vendors indexing for accuracy. Provides information and answers technical
questions from title companies, law firms, financial institutions, other government agencies and the general public.
Receives and responds to mail, telephone, and in-person customer service requests in an office with very heavy traffic.
Performs moderately complex bookkeeping and accounting tasks, including verifying data, daily balancing and preparing
reports, deposits, and disbursements.

DISTINGUISHING CHARACTERISTICS:

This is the second in a series of three recording specialist-related job classifications within the Administrative Support job
family. This classification is distinguished from the Recording Specialist I in that the primary duty is to verify the data
entry work per-formed by the Recording Specialist I and, to a lesser degree, outside vendors. This classification is
distinguished from the Recording Specialist Senior in that the primary nature of the job is not supervisory.

DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES:

• Evaluates a high volume of legal documents to determine relevant information. Enters a variety of data elements into
imaging/indexing system to ensure that documents can be efficiently retrieved. Verifies accuracy of entries to ensure
quality and accuracy of the document index. Verifies images created from film by outside vendor and checks outside
vendor’s indexing for accuracy. Maintains rules and policies related to manner in which documents are indexed.

• Provides specialized support, expertise, and information to the general public on matters relating to the transactions
of documents filed. Maintains knowledge of statutes and implements new recording laws. Provides information and
answers technical questions from title companies, law firms, financial institutions, other government agencies and
the general public. Responds to customer requests by mail, email, telephone or in person. Mails documents to
customers in timely manner. Uses expertise to research and retrieve documents from electronic and manual
databases as well as extensive document library. Provides plain or certified copies upon request.

• Performs other job-related duties as assigned.

MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS:

Education and Experience:
Associate’s degree in Public Administration, Business Administration or a directly related field AND three (3) years of
increasingly responsible clerical and administrative experience;

OR,

Any combination of education and experience that has been achieved and is equivalent to the stated education and
experience and required knowledge, skills, and abilities sufficient to successfully perform the duties and responsibilities
of this job.

Licenses, Registrations, Certifications, or Special Requirements:
None required.

Preferred:
Experience in data entry and the interpretation of complex legal documents.

Knowledge, Skills, and Abilities:
Knowledge of:
• Basic customer service and telephone etiquette.
• Scanning and imaging equipment.
• County indexing codes.
• State and Local statutes related to the preparation and recording of legal documents.
• Department policies related to the preparation, review, scanning, indexing and verification of legal documents.

Page 1 of 2

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Recording Specialist II

JOB CODE: 14563 FLSA STATUS: Non-Exempt
PAY GRADE: 14 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS: (Cont.)

Knowledge of: (Cont.)
• Legal instruments and recording forms.
• Basic accounting procedures.
• Research procedures and data sources.
• Business letter writing, grammar and punctuation, and report preparation.

Skill in:
• Reviewing prepared documents and correcting potential errors.
• Retrieving documents from indexes and various databases.
• Analyzing legal documents and assigning proper codes.
• Operating scanning and imaging equipment.
• Maintaining neat and well-organized records.
• Providing customers with accurate information.
• Operating a variety of modern office equipment, including a computer and data entry packages.
• Both verbal and written communication.

Ability to:
• Perform accurate detailed work with permanent records.
• Use codes to retrieve documents quickly.
• Coordinate work in a high-volume environment.
• Make decisions about manual and automated record keeping and indexing to insure easy and accurate retrieval.
• Operate 10-key calculator by touch.
• Work quickly and accurately with numbers.
• Perform duties under high stress at times.
• Establish and maintain effective working relationships with County employees and officials, representatives of

outside agencies, and the general public.

WORK ENVIRONMENT AND PHYSICAL DEMANDS:

Physical requirements include the ability to lift/carry up to 20-50 pounds occasionally, visual acuity, speech and hearing,
hand and eye coordination and manual dexterity necessary to operate a computer and office equipment. Subject to sitting,
client/customer contact, standing, walking, vision to monitor, repetitive motion, stooping/kneeling, squatting, bending,
reaching, reading large volume of documents, and considerable time on telephone to perform the essential functions.

This job description is intended to be generic in nature. It is not necessarily an exhaustive list of all duti
and responsibilities. The essential duties, functions and responsibilities and overtime eligibility may vary
based on the specific tasks assigned to the position.

Page 2 of 2

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Recording Specialist Senior

JOB CODE: 15565 FLSA STATUS: Non-Exempt
PAY GRADE: 15 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

JOB SUMMARY:

Under limited supervision and using independent judgment, supervises and leads clerical staff in the performance of
their duties. Monitors, prioritizes and makes daily decisions on workload schedules to meet work area’s responsibilities
and deadlines. Supervises employees in the processing and indexing of a high volume of documents. Ensures the
efficient operation of the work area. Responds to customer concerns and provides information concerning specialized
or technical services. Performs complex administrative tasks and completes research projects for a diverse range of
customers. Supervises employees serving in the role of cashier and ensures transactions are accurate and balanced.
Performs moderately complex bookkeeping and accounting tasks.

DISTINGUISHING CHARACTERISTICS:

This is the third in a series of three recording specialist-related job classifications within the Administrative Support job
family. This classification is distinguished from the Recording Specialist II in that the nature of the work is primarily
supervisory.

DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES:

• Supervises, monitors, prioritizes and makes decisions on workload schedules to meet work area’s responsibilities
and deadlines. Schedules substitute coverage when needed. Trains and supervises permanent and temporary
staff. Assists in hiring process and provides input on personnel functions. Maintains and compiles statistical reports
from a variety of sources to track workload volume and performance. Monitors calls to ensure Call Center
employees are providing accurate information. Supervises front counter employees and assists walk-in customers
requesting a variety of services, including the filing of real property documents, issuing marriage licenses,
acknowledging and processing business name applications, posting notices and processing applications.
Supervises employees responsible for filing and cashiering official documents and requests received by mail.

• Keeps department head informed of issues in the work unit. Makes recommendations regarding improvements to
department policies and workflow structures. Prepares and updates training manuals, work guides and community
resource information. Works with others within and outside the department to resolve complex issues and suggest
procedural improvements.

• Works with cashiers to appropriately assess, collect and receipt fees based upon the application of established rules
and regulations. Reviews cash, checks, vouchers and credit card amounts and ensures that they are accurate and
balanced. Ensures proper completion of deposit slips and prepares deposits for pick up.

• Serves as emergency/business resumption leader for work unit. Trains employees and implements procedures
regarding business resumption depending on circumstance. Makes recommendations on improving employee and
public safety in emergency situations.

• Responds to customer concerns. Provides information and advice concerning specialized or technical services,
including response to difficult problems and questions raised by the public. Responds to inquiries from County
offices, general government and law enforcement agencies, title companies, attorneys, financial institutions,
business operators and the general public on matters requiring a comprehensive knowledge of department policies,
procedures and laws. Serves as liaison to title companies. Analyzes documents to determine appropriate actions,
as required by law. May prepare documents for imaging, operate electronic scanning equipment, and convert
scanned material to digital form. Performs quality control tests of all documents that are imaged and indexed.
Ensures safety, security, and confidentiality of digitized records.

• Performs other job-related duties as assigned.

MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS:

Education and Experience:
Associate’s degree in Public Administration, Business Administration or a directly related field AND four (4) years of
increasingly responsible clerical and administrative experience, including two (2) years of lead or supervisory
experience;

Page 1 of 3

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Recording Specialist Senior

JOB CODE: 15565 FLSA STATUS: Non-Exempt
PAY GRADE: 15 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS: (Cont.)

Education and Experience: (Cont.)
OR,

Any combination of education and experience that has been achieved and is equivalent to the stated education and
experience and required knowledge, skills, and abilities sufficient to successfully perform the duties and responsibilities
of this job.

Licenses, Registrations, Certifications, or Special Requirements:
None required.

Preferred:
Experience in data entry and the interpretation of complex legal documents.

Knowledge, Skills, and Abilities:
Knowledge of:
• Scheduling work in a high-volume environment.
• Customer service and telephone etiquette.
• Scanning and imaging equipment.
• County indexing codes.
• State and Local statutes related to the preparation and recording of legal documents.
• Department policies related to the preparation, review, scanning, indexing and verification of legal documents.
• Legal instruments and recording forms.
• Basic accounting procedures.
• Research procedures and data sources.
• Business letter writing, grammar and punctuation, and report preparation.

Skill in:
• Supervising and leading clerical staff.
• Scheduling work to meet deadlines and quality standards.
• Reviewing prepared documents and correcting potential errors.
• Retrieving documents from indexes and various databases.
• Analyzing legal documents and assigning proper codes.
• Operating scanning and imaging equipment.
• Maintaining neat and well-organized records.
• Operating a variety of modern office equipment, including a computer and data entry packages.
• Both verbal and written communication.

Ability to:
• Resolve operational problems as they arise.
• Make suggestions to improve operational efficiency.
• Perform accurate detailed work with permanent records.
• Research issues and provide customers with accurate responses.
• Make decisions about manual and automated record keeping and indexing to insure easy and accurate retrieval.
• Work quickly and accurately with numbers.
• Establish and maintain effective working relationships with County employees and officials, representatives of

outside agencies, and the general public.

Page2of3 /c27

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Recording Specialist Senior

JOB CODE: 15565 FLSA STATUS: Non-Exempt
PAY GRADE: 15 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

WORK ENVIRONMENT AND PHYSICAL DEMANDS:

Physical requirements include the ability to lift/carry up to 20-50 pounds occasionally, visual acuity, speech and hearing,
hand and eye coordination and manual dexterity necessary to operate a computer and office equipment. Subject to sitting,
client/customer contact, standing, walking, vision to monitor, repetitive motion, stooping/kneeling, squatting, bending,
reaching, reading large volume of documents, and considerable time on telephone to perform the essential functions.

This job description is intended to be generic in nature. It is not necessarily an exhaustive list of all duties
and responsibilities. The essential duties, functions and responsibilities and overtime eligibility may vary
based on the specific tasks assigned to the position.

Page 3 of 3 /9>

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Interpreter

JOB CODE: 20567 FLSA STATUS: Exempt
PAY GRADE: 20 Mkt. Duff. LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

JOB SUMMARY:

Provides sign language interpreting services, including assignments for departments, one-on-one, and small and large
group situations.

DISTINGUISHING CHARACTERISTICS:

This is the first in a series of three interpreter-related job classifications within the Administrative Support job family. This
classification is distinguished from the Interpreter Senior job classification in that incumbents perform less demanding
work and typically have less experience. Additionally, incumbents are not qualified by the State of Texas to interpret in
court.

DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES:

• Provides sign language interpreting services, which may include assignments for consumers, staff, one-on-one
appointments, small or large group meetings, telephone calls and documents. Interpreters holding Level III, IV or V
certification or equivalent may provide interpreting services in legal (not court) situations, which may include
meetings with Attorneys.

• Provides advocacy services regarding access by people who are deaf according to applicable Federal, State and
Local laws. Conducts outreach and education to members of the community, staff, other departments, and the
general public. Provides independent living skills training for one-on-one or small groups, job development or search
to deaf people, including those with multiple disabilities.

• Creates and maintains service records of activities and participants. Prepares reports and statistics. Mentors other
team interpreters, as required. Provides back-up assistance in scheduling/coordinating interpreter services and
other office duties, as required.

• Performs other job-related duties as assigned.

MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS:

Education and Experience:
Bachelor’s degree in Deaf Education, Interpreting, Linguistics, Communications, Liberal Arts, Social or Behavioral
Sciences or a directly related field AND three (3) years interpreting services experience in a variety of community, health,
governmental and social situations, including medical, one-on-one, and small groups.

Licenses, Registrations, Certifications, or Special Requirements:
Interpreter Certification at Level I from the Board for Evaluation of Interpreters of the Texas Commission for the Deaf and
Hard of Hearing; or its equivalent; OR

Interpreter Certification at Level Basic or II from the Board for Evaluation of Interpreters of the Texas Commission for the
Deaf and Hard of Hearing; or the Interpretation Certificate (IC) AND/OR Transliteration Certificate (TC) from the National
Registry of Interpreters for the Deaf; or their equivalent; OR

Interpreter Certification at Level III or Illi from the Board for Evaluation of Interpreters of the Texas Commission for the
Deaf and Hard of Hearing; or the Comprehensive Skills Certificate (CSC), Reverse Skills Certificate (RSC), Certificate of
Transliteration (CT), Certificate of Interpretation (CI), Oral Interpreting Certificate (OIC) or Certified Deaf Interpreter-
Provisional (CDI-P) from the National Registry of Interpreters for the Deaf; or their equivalent (but does not hold Court
Certification from the Board for Evaluation of Interpreters of the Texas Commission for the Deaf and Hard of Hearing);
OR

Interpreter Certification at Level Advanced, IV or lVi from the Board of Evaluation of Interpreters of the Texas
Commission for the Deaf and Hard of Hearing; or Masters Comprehensive Skills Certificate (MCSC), Certificate of
Transliteration (CT) AND Certificate of Interpretation (CI) or National Interpreter Certification (NIC) from the National
Registry of Interpreters for the Deaf; or their equivalent (but does not hold Court Certification from the Board for
Evaluation of Interpreters of the Texas Commission for the Deaf and Hard of Hearing); OR

Page 1 of 3

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Interpreter

JOB CODE: 20567 FLSA STATUS: Exempt
PAY GRADE: 20 Mkt. Duff. LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS: (Cont.)

Licenses, Registrations, Certifications, or Special Requirements: (Cont.)
Interpreter Certification at Level V or Vi from the Board for Evaluation of Interpreters of the Texas Commission for the
Deaf and Hard of Hearing; or Certified Deaf Interpreter (CDI) or National Interpreter Certification (NIC) at Advanced
Level from the National Registry of Interpreters for the Deaf; or their equivalent (but does not hold Court Certification
from the Board for Evaluation of Interpreters of the Texas Commission for the Deaf and Hard of Hearing); OR,

Interpreter Certification at Master Level from the Board of Evaluation of Interpreters of the Texas Commission for the
Deaf and Hard of Hearing; or National Interpreter Certification (NIC) at Master Level from National Registry of
Interpreters for the Deaf; or their equivalent (but does not hold Court Certification from the Board for Evaluation of
Interpreters of the Texas Commission for the Deaf and Hard of Hearing).

Knowledge, Skills, and Abilities:
Knowledge of:
• Manual communication in American Sign Language.
• Methods of expressive and voice interpreting and their applications (e.g., Simultaneous and Consecutive).
• Issues and terminology of the interpreting profession.
• Standard practices and ethical standards in interpreting.
• Computer software applications, including word processing, presentations, spreadsheets, databases, graphics and

other related applications.
• Business letter writing, grammar and punctuation, and report preparation.

Skill in:
• Assessing and matching the communication needs of the client(s) and the situation utilizing various interpreting

techniques which may include gestures, other sign systems/languages, formal American Sign Language, etc. to
ensure effective communication.

• Coordinating and prioritizing the work and activities of self.
• English language vocabulary.
• Dealing with hostile, abusive or irrational individuals.
• Operating a variety of modern office equipment, including a computer.
• Both verbal and written communication.

Ability to:
• Respond appropriately to crisis situations.
• Interpret accurately in court proceedings.
• Listen attentively for long periods of time.
• Prepare accurate and complete records, reports and statistics.
• Manage time well, perform multiple tasks and organize diverse activities.
• Perform in a stressful environment while maintaining a professional manner.
• Continue professional growth through continuing education.
• Establish and maintain effective working relationships with deaf and hearing clients, departmental clientele,

representatives of outside agencies, other County employees and officials, members of diverse cultural and
linguistic backgrounds, attorneys, children, judges and the general public.

Page2of3

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Interpreter

JOB CODE: 20567 FLSA STATUS: Exempt
PAY GRADE: 20 Mkt. Duff. LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

WORK ENVIRONMENT AND PHYSICAL DEMANDS:

Working conditions may be determined by the situation requiring interpreting and may vary from the usual office or
meeting room environment. Physical requirements may include the ability to lift/carry up to 5-10 pounds occasionally,
visual acuity, speech and hearing, hand and eye coordination and manual dexterity necessary to operate a computer and
office equipment. Subject to reaching, twisting, handling and walking to perform the essential job functions. Involves
contact with clients in possible stressful situations.

This job description is intended to be generic in nature. It is not necessarily an exhaustive list of all duties
and responsibilities. The essential duties, functions and responsibilities and overtime eligibility may vary
based on the specific tasks assigned to the position.

Page 3 of 3

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Interpreter Senior

JOB CODE: 21570 FLSA STATUS: Exempt
PAY GRADE: 21 Mkt. Duff. LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

JOB SUMMARY:

Provides sign language interpreting services, including assignments for departments, court hearings, small and large
group situation, Commissioners Court, formal, highly technical situations.

DISTINGUISHING CHARACTERISTICS:

This is the second in a series of three interpreter-related job classifications within the Administrative Support job family.
This is specialized professional work providing sign language interpreting services. This classification is distinguished
from the Interpreter in that incumbents provide more demanding technical and complex interpreting services and
typically have more experience. This classification is limited to individuals who are qualified and certified by the State of
Texas to interpret in court.

DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES:

• Provides sign language interpreting services, which may include assignments for, but not limited to, consumers,
staff, one-on-one appointments, small or large group meetings, and telephone calls. Documents court and other
legal situations (probation, jail, counseling, Commissioners Court, televised meetings) and other highly technical and
corn p1 icated meetings and hearings.

• Provides advocacy services regarding access by people who are deaf according to applicable Federal, State and
Local laws. Conducts outreach and education to members of the community, staff, other departments, and the
general public. Provides independent living skills training for one-on-one or small groups, job development or search
to deaf people, including those with multiple disabilities.

• Provides back-up assistance in scheduling/coordinating interpreter services and other office duties, as required.
Mentors other team interpreters. Creates and maintains service records of activities and participants. Prepares
reports and statistics.

• Performs other job-related duties as assigned.

MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS:

Education and Experience:
Bachelor’s degree in Deaf Education, Interpreting, Linguistics, Communications, Liberal Arts, Social or Behavioral
Sciences or a directly related field AND five (5) years interpreting services experience in a variety of community, health,
governmental, and social situations, including highly technical or legal situations. Must have at least an additional three
(3) years of court interpreting experience. Experience should include interpreting for deaf individuals with special
communication issues, including individuals with additional disabilities, mental retardation, mental illness and those with
limited formal communication.

Licenses, Registrations, Certifications, or Special Requirements:
Court Interpreter Certification (CIC) from the Board for Evaluation of Interpreters of the Texas Commission for the Deaf and
Hard of Hearing; or Special Certificate: Legal (SC: L) from the National Registry of Interpreters for the Deaf to interpret court
proceedings for a hearing-impaired individual AND one of the following:

Interpreter Certification at Level Ill or Illi from the Board for Evaluation of Interpreters of the Texas Commission for the
Deaf and Hard of Hearing; or the Comprehensive Skills Certificate (CSC), Reverse Skills Certificate (RSC), Certificate of
Transliteration (CT), Certificate of Interpretation (Cl), Oral Interpreting Certificate (OlC) or Certified Deaf Interpreter
Provisional (CDI-P) from the National Registry of Interpreters for the Deaf; or their equivalent; OR

Interpreter Certification at Level Advanced, IV or IVi from the Board of Evaluation of Interpreters of the Texas
Commission for the Deaf and Hard of Hearing; or Masters Comprehensive Skills Certificate (MCSC), Certificate of
Transliteration (CT) AND Certificate of Interpretation (CI) or National Interpreter Certification (NIC) from the National
Registry of Interpreters for the Deaf; or their equivalent; OR

Page 1 of 3

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Interpreter Senior

JOB CODE: 21570 FLSA STATUS: Exempt
PAY GRADE: 21 Mkt. Diff. LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS: (Cont.)

Licenses, Registrations, Certifications, or Special Requirements: (Cont.)
Interpreter Certification at Level V or Vi from the Board for Evaluation of Interpreters of the Texas Commission for the
Deaf and Hard of Hearing; or Certified Deaf Interpreter (CDI) or National Interpreter Certification (NIC) at Advanced
Level from the National Registry of Interpreters for the Deaf; or their equivalent; OR

Interpreter Certification at Master Level from the Board of Evaluation of Interpreters of the Texas Commission for the
Deaf and Hard of Hearing; or National Interpreter Certification (NIC) at Master Level from National Registry of
Interpreters for the Deaf; or their equivalent.

Knowledcie. Skills, and Abilities:
Knowledge of:
• Manual communication in American Sign Language.
• Methods of expressive and voice interpreting and their applications (e.g., Simultaneous and Consecutive).
• Issues and terminology of the interpreting profession.
• Standard practices and ethical standards in interpreting.
• Legal terminology, procedures and court decorum.
• Court interpreter training.
• Computer software applications, including word processing, presentations, spreadsheets, databases, graphics, and

other related applications.
• Business letter writing, grammar and punctuation, and report preparation.

Skill in:
• Assessing and matching the communication needs of the client(s) and the situation utilizing various interpreting

techniques, which may include gestures, other sign systems/languages, formal American Sign Language, etc. to
ensure effective communication.

• Coordinating and prioritizing the work and activities of self.
• English language vocabulary.
• Dealing with hostile, abusive or irrational individuals.
• Operating a variety of modern office equipment, including a computer.
• Both verbal and written communication.

Ability to:
• Respond appropriately to crisis situations.
• Interpret accurately in court proceedings.
• Listen attentively for long periods of time.
• Prepare accurate and complete records, reports and statistics.
• Manage time well, perform multiple tasks and organize diverse activities.
• Perform in a stressful environment while maintaining a professional manner.
• Continue professional growth through continuing education.
• Establish and maintain effective working relationships with deaf and hearing clients, departmental clientele,

representatives of outside agencies, other County employees and officials, members of diverse cultural and
linguistic backgrounds, attorneys, children, judges and the general public.

Page2of3

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Interpreter Senior

JOB CODE: 21570 FLSA STATUS: Exempt
PAY GRADE: 21 Mkt. Duff. LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

WORK ENVIRONMENT AND PHYSICAL DEMANDS:

Working conditions may be determined by the situation requiring interpreting and may vary from the usual office or
meeting room environment. Physical requirements may include the ability to lift/carry up to 5-10 pounds occasionally,
visual acuity, speech and hearing, hand and eye coordination and manual dexterity necessary to operate a computer and
office equipment. Subject to reaching, twisting, handling and walking to perform the essential job functions. Involves
contact with clients in possible stressful situations.

This job description is intended to be generic in nature. It is not necessarily an exhaustive list of all duties7
and responsibilities. The essential duties, functions and responsibilities and overtime eligibility may vary
based on the specific tasks assigned to the position.

Page 3 of 3

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Interpreter LanguagelCourt Senior

JOB CODE: 21571 FLSA STATUS: Exempt
PAY GRADE: 21 Mkt. Duff. LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

JOB SUMMARY:

Provides language interpretation services for the court. Schedules and coordinates interpreter services for the court and
department.

DISTINGUISHING CHARACTERISTICS:

This is the third in a series of three interpreter-related job classifications within the Administrative Support job family.
This is specialized professional work providing sign language interpreting services. This classification is distinguished
from the Interpreter Senior in that incumbents, in addition to providing interpreter services, schedule and coordinate with
outside agencies to secure interpreters proficient in languages other than Spanish. Incumbents perform administrative
tasks and translate documents in various legal settings.

DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES:

• Interprets spoken statements simultaneously and consecutively from one language into another in court
proceedings, hearings, functions and related interviews. Answers to and interprets for specialized or assigned
functions, as required. Translates documents, forms and other related materials used in court proceedings and
County departments. Transcribes and translates court/departmental documents.

• Receives and processes interpreter requests. Maintains calendar for scheduled appointments. Schedules and
coordinates with outside agencies to secure interpreters proficient in languages other than Spanish. Provides
training of new contract interpreters, as required. Creates and maintains service records of activities and
participants. Prepares reports and statistics.

• Provides advocacy regarding access according to any and all laws. Provides emergency training and orientation to
interpreters without legal experience.

• Performs other job-related duties as assigned.

MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS:

Education and Experience:
Bachelor’s degree in Deaf Education, Linguistics, Communications, Liberal Arts, Social or Behavioral Sciences or a
directly related field AND three (3) years directly related interpreting or translating experience, including one (1) year
experience in court interpreting.

Licenses, Registrations, Certifications, or Special Requirements:
Licensed Court Interpreter issued by the Texas Commission of Licensing and Regulations to interpret court proceedings.

Knowledge, Skills, and Abilities:
Knowledge of:
• Issues and terminology of interpreter/transliterator profession.
• Fundamentals of court interpretation.
• Guidelines of judiciary interpreters/translators.
• Standard practices and ethical standards in interpreting/transliterating.
• Methods of expressive and voice interpreting/transliterating and their applications (e.g., Simultaneous and

Consecutive).
• Legal terminology, procedures and court decorum.
• Juvenile justice/criminal justice systems.
• Computer software applications, including word processing, presentations, spreadsheets, databases, graphics and

other related packages.
• Business letter writing, grammar and punctuation, and report preparation.

Page 1 of 2

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Interpreter LanguagelCourt Senior

JOB CODE: 21571 FLSA STATUS: Exempt
PAY GRADE: 21 Mkt. Duff. LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS: (Cont.)

Skill in:
• Coordinating and prioritizing the work and activities of self.
• English language vocabulary.
• Dealing with hostile, abusive or irrational individuals.
• Operating a variety of modern office equipment, including a computer.
• Both verbal and written communication.

Ability to:
• Interpret accurately from one language into another in court proceedings.
• Listen attentively for long periods of time.
• Prepare accurate and complete records, reports and statistics.
• Manage time well and perform multiple tasks, and organize diverse activities.
• Perform in a stressful environment, while maintaining a professional manner.
• Continue professional growth through continuing education.
• Establish and maintain effective working relationships with departmental clientele, representatives of outside

agencies, other County employees and officials, attorneys, children, judges and the general public.

WORK ENVIRONMENT AND PHYSICAL DEMANDS:

Working conditions may be determined by the situation requiring interpreting and may vary from the usual office or
meeting room environment. Physical requirements include the ability to lift/carry up to 5-10 pounds occasionally, visual
acuity, speech and hearing, hand and eye coordination and manual dexterity necessary to operate a computer and office
equipment. Subject to reaching, twisting, handling and walking to perform the essential job functions. Involves contact with
clients in possible stressful situations.

This job description is intended to be generic in nature. It is not necessarily an exhaustive list of all duties
and responsibilities. The essential duties, functions and responsibilities and overtime eligibility may vary
based on the specific tasks assigned to the position.

Page 2 of 2 o

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Law Enforcement Specialist

JOB CODE: 13588 FLSA STATUS: Non-Exempt
PAY GRADE: 13 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

JOB SUMMARY:

Under minimal supervision, performs investigative tasks on low priority cases. Completes and enters criminal reports
and legal documents into the computer system. Maintains written records of all correspondence with caseload
information. Performs administrative functions, such as typing search warrants, arrest warrants, statements, affidavits,
statistical reports and forms. Assists the public by telephone and in person by answering questions and referring them
to appropriate investigator or agency. Collects and distributes crime statistics and analysis of criminal trends to assist in
investigations. Assists detectives by using a variety of sources to investigate criminal activity.

DISTINGUISHING CHARACTERISTICS:

This is a job classification within the Administrative Support job family. This is a specialized classification with duties similar
but not identical to the Office Specialist title. Incumbents perform complex duties in the investigation and documentation of
criminal activity. This classification is distinguished from the Office Specialist in the quasi-detective nature of the duties
performed. This classification is distinguished from the Detective in that incumbents are civilians, do not have TCLEOSE
training or possess formal arrest powers.

DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES:

• Performs investigative tasks on low priority cases. Takes original reports from victims. Makes contact with victims
and takes sworn statements. Interviews witnesses and records statements. Collects evidence and records in case
files. Generates criminal incident and supplemental reports in connection with criminal investigations. Enters
supplemental reports that were submitted by detectives and supervisors (including stolen property) into computer
system. Maintains written record of any and all correspondence with caseload information. Uses computer to
inquire about sensitive information (such as criminal histories) for agencies. Uses a variety of resources, including
textbooks, electronic databases, maps and assorted legal media to investigate criminal activity.

• Types legal documents for detectives, such as search warrants, arrest warrants, voluntary statements, affidavits of
fact, probable cause affidavits, lab submission forms, statistics reports, clearance rates and crime rates. Composes
and prepares correspondence. Assists the public in person and on the phone. Assists with budget preparation.
Keeps monthly statistics. Collects and distributes crime statistics for outside agencies. Serves as notary public for
legal documents.

• Serves as civilian witness to voluntary statements and testifies in court, as required. Serves as liaison among CID
and County Attorney’s Office and District Attorney’s Office. Provides victims with information regarding assistance
programs and referral agencies. Prepares photo line-ups. Prepares analysis of criminal trends and patterns to
assist in investigations. May assist detectives in translation.

• Performs other job-related duties as assigned.

MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS:

Education and Experience:
High School diploma or G.E.D. AND four (4) years of responsible clerical experience, including use of legal terminology;

OR,

Any combination of education and experience that has been achieved and is equivalent to the stated education and
experience and required knowledge, skills, and abilities sufficient to successfully perform the duties and responsibilities
of this job.

Licenses, Registrations, Certifications, or Special Requirements:
None required.

Page 1 of 2 z07

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Law Enforcement Specialist

JOB CODE: 13588 FLSA STATUS: Non-Exempt
PAY GRADE: 13 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS: (Cont.)

Knowledge, Skills, and Abilities:
Knowledge of:
• Law enforcement practices and procedures.
• Rules of criminal and civil procedures.
• Various legal instruments and terminology.
• Office procedures and policies.
• Evidence collection procedures.
• Computer equipment to include word processing, spreadsheets, databases and a variety of software packages.
• Business letter writing, grammar and punctuation, and report preparation.

Skill in:
• Communicating effectively with victims, witnesses, law enforcement officers and others involved in criminal

proceedings.
• Researching criminal histories.
• Documenting trends in criminal activities and other patterns related to solving cases.
• Performing administrative duties, such as typing reports and updating files.
• Operating a variety of modern office equipment, including a computer.
• Both verbal and written communication.

Ability to:
• Use independent judgment regarding release of confidential information.
• Serve as a witness, as required.
• Establish and maintain effective working relationships with victims, witnesses, law enforcement officers, judges,

attorneys, representatives of outside agencies, other County employees and officials, and the general public.

WORK ENVIRONMENT AND PHYSICAL DEMANDS:

Physical requirements include the ability to lift/carry up to 20-50 pounds occasionally, visual acuity, speech and hearing,
hand and eye coordination and manual dexterity necessary to operate a computer and office equipment. Subject to sitting,
client/customer contact, standing, walking, vision to monitor, repetitive motion, stooping/kneeling, squatting, bending, and
considerable time on telephone to perform the essential functions.

This job description is intended to be generic in nature. It is not necessarily an exhaustive list of all duties
and responsibilities. The essential duties, functions and responsibilities and overtime eligibility may vary
based on the specific tasks assigned to the position.

Page 2 of 2 06’

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Civil Services Coordinator

JOB CODE: 18590 FLSA STATUS: Exempt
PAY GRADE: 18 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

JOB SUMMARY:

Directs, coordinates and oversees all functions of the County’s Civil Service Commission. Ensures TCSO and Civil Service
Commission are in compliance with all governing laws, rules and regulations. Leads in the process of research,
development, implementation and revision of all Civil Service Commission policies. Sets and coordinates Civil Service
Commission meetings and researches agenda items. Performs administrative duties, such as preparing budget, collecting
and organizing data and providing statistical analysis. Serves as an advisor to the Civil Service Commission. Develops and
administers all entry and promotional exams for TCSO employees. Oversees the grievance process.

DISTINGUISHING CHARACTERISTICS:

This is a job classification within the Administrative Support family. Incumbents perform advanced complex duties in
coordinating the day-to-day operations of the Civil Service Commission. This classification may require a flexible work
schedule in order to meet the needs of the department.

DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES:

• Establishes need for Civil Service Commission meetings. Researches agenda items and coordinates with Sheriff,
administrative staff, law enforcement and corrections associations on meeting requests and presentations. Prepares
and briefs Commissioners on relevant issues. Oversees the TCSO employee grievance process. Ensures all
grievance process requirements are met. Coordinates hearings with Civil Service Commissioners, County
Attorney’s Office, aggrieved parties and their attorneys. Serves as court reporter preparing official hearing
transcripts, rulings, objections, voir dire decisions and remarks of the court. Records items of evidence and all
objections to the admissibility of evidence. Prepares subpoenas to commission hearings. Investigates employee
grievances and helps resolve conflicts, complaints and problems.

• Evaluates, recommends and initiates changes to policies and procedures. Ensures policies are consistent with state
and federal policies, laws and regulations. Consults with outside agencies for assistance in policy development and
coordinates reviews with the County Attorney’s Office. Serves as an advisor to Commissioners on issues and
represents Commissioners under various circumstances. Advises managers, supervisors and employees regarding
Civil Service Commission rules and regulations.

• Develops plans, implements, coordinates and oversees verbal and written promotional exams for Lieutenant,
Sergeant, Detective, Senior Deputy, Senior Corrections Officer Senior, Dispatcher and Dispatcher Supervisor titles.
Researches criminal law, investigative and supervisory text, state jail standards and TCSO and Civil Service
Commission policy to prepare verbal and written questions. Writes interview questions and scenarios. Sets
deadlines and posts notices for promotional testing and interviews. Develops, coordinates and conducts training for
captains, lieutenants, sergeants and detectives regarding the proper proceedings of verbal interviews. Administers
all promotional exams. Administers all patrol and dispatch entry-level exams. Conducts and oversees all
promotional and entry-level law enforcement review boards. Reviews and makes final decisions regarding exam
appeals. Certifies names of eligible individuals to appointing authority for filling of promotional and entry-level
vacancies within TCSO.

• Performs administrative duties for the Civil Service Commission. Collects and organizes information related to
activities and meetings. Creates and maintains activity database. Provides statistical analysis to Commissioners,
TCSO and other agencies. Establishes budget priorities. Prepares and administers annual budget. Purchases
office equipment and supplies.

• Performs other job-related duties as requested.

MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS:

Education and Experience:
Bachelor’s degree in Human Resources Administration, Public Administration or a directly related field AND three (3)
years of increasingly responsible personnel, employment or labor relations experience;

Page 1 of 3

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Civil Services Coordinator

JOB CODE: 18590 FLSA STATUS: Exempt
PAY GRADE: 18 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS: (Cont.)

Education and Experience: (Cont.)

OR,

Any combination of education and experience that has been achieved and is equivalent to the stated education and
experience and required knowledge, skills, and abilities sufficient to successfully perform the duties and responsibilities
of this job.

Licenses, Registrations, Certifications, or Special Requirements:
Valid Texas Driver’s License.

Preferred:
Knowledge of labor laws, civil rights legislation, and personnel policies.

Knowledge, Skills, and Abilities:
Knowledge of:
• Federal, State, Local and County laws and ordinances governing personnel and employment practices.
• Civil Service Commission policies and procedures.
• TCSO structure, regulations and operating procedures.
• Policies, practices, procedures, operations and legal terminology of assigned function.
• Basic principles of public administration and budgeting.
• Modern office practices, procedures and methods.
• Computer equipment to include word processing, spreadsheets, databases and a variety of software packages.
• Business letter writing, grammar and punctuation, and report preparation.

Skill in:
• Performing administrative functions.
• Strategic planning and analysis.
• Conducting research, compiling and analyzing data and producing statistical reports.
• Coordinating the work of self and others.
• Problem-solving and decision-making, and conflict resolution.
• Operating a variety of modern office equipment, including a computer.
• Both verbal and written communication, including public presentations.

Ability to:
• Develop valid testing instruments.
• Administer tests and report results consistent with applicable rules and statutes.
• Research, compile, analyze, interpret and prepare a variety of statistical and other information.
• Prioritize assignments and work with multiple deadlines.
• Independently prepare correspondence, memorandums and other materials.
• Organize and assign the work of others.
• Develop, analyze and interpret policies.
• Establish and maintain effective working relationships with Commission members, TCSO employees, other County

employees and officials, attorneys, other participants in the civil justice system, and the general public.

Page2of3

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Civil Services Coordinator

JOB CODE: 18590 FLSA STATUS: Exempt
PAY GRADE: 18 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

WORK ENVIRONMENT AND PHYSICAL DEMANDS:

Physical requirements include the ability to lift/carry up to 20-50 pounds occasionally, visual acuity, speech and hearing,
hand and eye coordination and manual dexterity necessary to operate a computer and office equipment. Subject to
standing, walking, sitting, repetitive motion, reaching, climbing stairs, bending, stooping, kneeling, crouching, crawling,
pushing, pulling, balancing, client/customer contact, squatting to perform the essential functions.

This job description is intended to be generic in nature. It is not necessarily an exhaustive list of all duties
and responsibilities. The essential duties, functions and responsibilities and overtime eligibility may vary
based on the specific tasks assigned to the position.

Page3of3

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Chaplain

JOB CODE: 16072 FLSA STATUS: Exempt
PAY GRADE: 16 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

JOB SUMMARY:

Performs ministerial clergy work. Responds to spiritual and religious counseling needs of clients, families of clients and
staff, religious resources and literature, as required. Trains and orients volunteers to work with clients, coordinates
specialized religious and social services for clients and provides opportunities for clients to express and practice their
faith, individually or collectively.

DISTINGUISHING CHARACTERISTICS:

This is the first in a series of two chaplain-related job classifications within the Social Services job family. This classification
is distinguished from the higher-level classification that is responsible for overseeing and supervising pastoral care
programs, religious, staff and volunteers. This classification may require work in secure facilities. This classification may
require a flexible work schedule in order to meet the needs of the department.

DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES:

• Provides pastoral care and counseling to clients, families of clients and staff as requested and coordinates client
requests for religious and social services, religious materials and visits from community representatives.

• Coordinates acquisition of religious materials as appropriate.

• Recruits, trains, assigns and supervises volunteers from the religious community to provide a variety of religious
services for clients.

• Coordinates prayer, worship, visitation and other religious services for clients, families of clients and staff.

• Arranges family and specialized visits for clients.

• Assists in planning and coordinating religious programs for clients, families and staff. Communicates requirements of
special religious programs to staff.

• Serves as liaison with religious and community organizations.

• Documents activity and reports statistics of assigned religious activities.

• Performs other job-related duties as assigned.

MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS:

Education and ExDerience:
Bachelor’s degree in Theology or a directly related field AND one (1) year of clinical pastoral education training and
experience;

OR,

Any combination of education and experience that has been achieved and is equivalent to the stated education and
experience and required knowledge, skills, and abilities sufficient to successfully perform the duties and responsibilities
of this job.

Licenses, Registrations, Certifications, or Special Requirements:
None required.

Preferred:
Board certified Chaplain by the Association of Professional Chaplains.

Pagelof2 IZ

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Chaplain

JOB CODE: 16072 FLSA STATUS: Exempt
PAY GRADE: 16 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS: (Cont.)

Knowledge, Skills, and Abilities:
Knowledge of:
• Religious beliefs and practices of various faiths, groups and denominations.
• Religious materials of various faiths, groups and denominations.
• Types of prayer and prayer services of various faiths, groups and denominations.
• Policies, practices, procedures and terminology of assigned function.
• Local religious and social service organizations and programs and the resources available.
• Principles and procedures of record keeping.
• Computer equipment to include word processing, spreadsheets, databases and a variety of software packages.

Skill in:
• Providing pastoral care and counseling to clients, families of clients and staff.
• Pastoral caring and counseling functions.
• Problem-solving and decision-making.
• Both verbal and written communication, including presentations.

Ability to:
• Recruit, train, assign and supervise volunteers from the religious community.
• Provide sacramental services.
• Work independently.
• Manage time well and meet timelines.
• Communicate effectively.
• Establish and maintain effective working relationships with departmental clientele, other County employees and

officials, community organizations and the general public.

WORK ENVIRONMENT AND PHYSICAL DEMANDS:

Physical requirements include the ability to lift/carry up to 25 pounds occasionally, visual acuity, speech and hearing, hand
and eye coordination and manual dexterity necessary to operate a computer and office equipment. Subject to standing,
sitting, walking, climbing stairs, bending, stooping, crouching, kneeling, pushing, pulling, reaching, twisting, balancing,
repetitive motion, client/customer contact, and squatting to perform the essential functions. Subject to extreme
temperatures, outside elements, noise, vibration, contact with dust, fumes and hazardous chemicals, foul odors, animal and
human fecal matter, insects and rodents.

This job description is intended to be generic in nature. It is not necessarily an exhaustive list of all duties
and responsibilities. The essential duties, functions and responsibilities and overtime eligibility may vary
based on the specific tasks assigned to the position.

Page2of2 e.2/3

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Chaplain Senior

JOB CODE: 17073 FLSA STATUS: Exempt
PAY GRADE: 17 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

JOB SUMMARY:

Oversees and supervises pastoral care programs, staff and volunteers related to fulfilling the spiritual and religious
counseling needs of clients, families of clients and staff. Ensures religious resources and literature are available to clients,
as required. Trains and orients volunteers to work with clients, coordinates specialized religious and social services for
clients and provides opportunities for clients to express and practice their faith, individually or collectively.

DISTINGUISHING CHARACTERISTICS:

This is the second in a series of two chaplain-related job classifications within the Social Services job family. This
classification is distinguished from the Chaplain classification and is responsible for overseeing and supervising pastoral
care programs, religious, staff and volunteers. This classification may require work in secure facilities. This classification
may require a flexible work schedule in order to meet the needs of the department.

DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES:

• Oversees and supervises pastoral care programs, staff and volunteers. Recruits, assesses, trains, assigns and
supervises staff and volunteers from the religious community to provide a variety of religious services for clients.
Provides recommendations for new hires, performance evaluation, promotions, disciplinary actions and terminations.

• Provides pastoral care and counseling to clients, families of clients and staff as requested and coordinates client
requests for religious and social services, religious materials, visits from community representatives.

• Plans and coordinates religious programs for clients, families and staff. Schedules prayer, worship, visitation and other
religious services and related staff. Oversees communication requirements of special religious programs to staff.

• Provides pastoral care and counseling to clients, families of clients and staff during crisis situations.

• Oversees acquisition of religious materials.

• Arranges family and specialized visits for clients.

• Monitors hospitalization of clients and staff.

• Serves as liaison with religious and community organizations.

• Documents activity and reports statistics of assigned religious activities.

• Performs other job-related duties as assigned.

MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS:

Education and Experience:
Bachelor’s degree in Theology or a directly related field AND three (3) years of clinical pastoral education training and
experience, including lead or supervisory experience;

OR,

Any combination of education and experience that has been achieved and is equivalent to the stated education and
experience and required knowledge, skills, and abilities sufficient to successfully perform the duties and responsibilities
of this job.

Licenses, Registrations, Certifications, or Special Requirements:
None required.

Preferred:
Master’s Degree in Theology or a directly related field.
Board certified Chaplain by the Association of Professional Chaplains.

Page 1 of 2

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Chaplain Senior

JOB CODE: 1 7073 FLSA STATUS: Exempt
PAY GRADE: 17 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS: (Cont.)

Knowledge, Skills, and Abilities:
Knowledge of:
• Supervisory principles, practices and techniques.
• Religious beliefs and practices of various faiths, groups and denominations.
• Religious materials of various faiths, groups and denominations.
• Types of prayer and prayer services of various faiths, groups and denominations.
• Policies, practices, procedures and terminology of assigned function.
• Local religious and social service organizations and programs and the resources available.
• Accounting, purchasing and budgetary theory, principles and practices.
• Principles and procedures of record keeping.
• Computer equipment to include word processing, spreadsheets, databases and a variety of software packages.

Skill in:
• Recruiting, assessing, training, supervising and evaluating staff and volunteers.
• Providing pastoral care and counseling to clients, families of clients and staff.
• Pastoral caring and counseling functions.
• Problem-solving and decision-making.
• Both verbal and written communication, including presentations.

Ability to:
• Supervise, motivate, train and evaluate staff and volunteers.
• Plan and coordinate religious programs for clients, families and staff.
• Oversee acquisition of religious materials and maintain related budget.
• Provide sacramental services.
• Work independently.
• Manage time well and meet timelines.
• Communicate effectively.
• Establish and maintain effective working relationships with departmental clientele, other County employees and

officials, community organizations and the general public.

WORK ENVIRONMENT AND PHYSICAL DEMANDS:

Physical requirements include the ability to lift/carry up to 25 pounds occasionally, visual acuity, speech and hearing, hand
and eye coordination and manual dexterity necessary to operate a computer and office equipment. Subject to standing,
sitting, walking, climbing stairs, bending, stooping, crouching, kneeling, pushing, pulling, reaching, twisting, balancing,
repetitive motion, client/customer contact, and squatting to perform the essential functions. Subject to extreme
temperatures, outside elements, noise, vibration, contact with dust, fumes and hazardous chemicals, foul odors, animal and
human fecal matter, insects and rodents.

This job description is intended to be generic in nature. It is not necessarily an exhaustive list of all duties
and responsibilities. The essential duties, functions and responsibilities and overtime eligibility may vary
based on the specific tasks assigned to the position.

Page2of2

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Counselor

JOB CODE: 15169 FLSA STATUS: Non-Exempt
PAY GRADE: 15 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

JOB SUMMARY:

Provides screening, assessment, crisis intervention, individual and group counseling, and support services to clients.
Screens and assesses the medical, psychosocial and environmental status of clients, and coordinates and monitors referral
of clients to clinical and other resources and services. Assists in developing counseling programs and interventions and
provides related training for staff.

DISTINGUISHING CHARACTERISTICS:

This is the first in a series of two counselor-related job classifications within the Social Services job family. This
classification is responsible for assessing the medical, psychosocial and environmental status of clients, coordinating
referral to resources and services, and conducting related counseling programs. This classification is distinguished from
the higher level class which typically attends to the more complex cases, develops counseling programs and related
training, and may function in a lead capacity. This classification may require work in secure facilities. This classification
may require a flexible work schedule in order to meet the needs of the department

DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES:

• Conducts a medical, psychosocial and environmental assessment of clients through personal interviews, observation
and other methods to determine clinical and other resources and services required.

• Conducts individual and group counseling related to mental and behavioral problems, substance abuse, personal and
other problems. Provides crisis intervention services for clients. Identifies clients in at-risk situations and seeks
treatment solutions and alternative environmental surroundings.

• Assists in developing treatment and intervention programs and recommending service plans for clients. Presents
potential diagnosis based on established criteria. Coordinates referral of clients to clinical and other resources and
services and monitors client progress. Resolves obstacles to service delivery.

• Maintains primary responsibility for coordinating client services provided by clinical and social service professionals and
community outreach service providers. Initiates and sustains ongoing advocacy for client. Manages a client caseload.

• Assists in administering, scoring and interpreting sociological, psychological and vocational tests.

• Prepares progress reports of client treatment, documents interviews, observations and evaluations for case file.
Maintains statistical reports of treatment and service provisions.

• Monitors mental health and environmental adjustment.

• Assists in planning, developing and conducting training sessions for staff and volunteers.

• Serves as liaison with advocacy groups, clinical and other service providers, community outreach services and law
enforcement personnel.

• Performs other job-related duties as assigned.

MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS:

Education and Experience:
Bachelor’s degree in Social or Behavioral Sciences or a directly related field AND two (2) years experience in
counseling/social services or criminal justice work;

OR,

Any combination of education and experience that has been achieved and is equivalent to the stated education and
experience and required knowledge, skills, and abilities sufficient to successfully perform the duties and responsibilities
of this job.

Page 1 of 2

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Counselor

JOB CODE: 15169 FLSA STATUS: Non-Exempt
PAY GRADE: 15 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS: (Cont.)

Licenses, Registrations, Certifications, or Special Requirements:
Valid Texas Driver’s License.

Preferred:
Master’s degree in Social or Behavioral Sciences or a directly related field.
Experience in crisis and trauma counseling.
Licensed Professional Counselor (LPC).
Qualified Credentialed Counselor (QCC).
Licensed Clinical Social Worker (LCSW).
Licensed Master Social Worker (LMSW).

Knowledge. Skills, and Abilities:
Knowledge of:
• Procedures for assessing medical, psychosocial and environmental status of clients.
• Counseling and crisis stabilization techniques and resources.
• Policies, practices, procedures and standards within area of assignment.
• Advocacy groups, clinical and other service providers and community outreach services.
• Principles and procedures of case file documentation.
• Computer equipment to include word processing, spreadsheets, databases and a variety of software packages.

Skill in:
• Counseling and providing crisis and other assistance to clients.
• Screening and assessing the medical, psychosocial and environmental status of clients.
• Determining types of counseling, social service provider and other services indicated for clients.
• Obtaining information from clients and other sources.
• Developing treatment and intervention programs and recommending service plans for clients.
• Conducting training sessions.
• Problem-solving and decision-making.
• Both verbal and written communication.

Ability to:
• Apply counseling theory, practice and procedures.
• Develop client advocacy programs.
• Work efficiently, both independently and as a team member.
• Manage time well and meet timelines.
• Communicate effectively.
• Establish and maintain effective working relationships with departmental clientele, other County employees and

officials, community outreach and other organizations, clinical service providers, law enforcement personnel and the
general public.

WORK ENVIRONMENT AND PHYSICAL DEMANDS:

Physical requirements include the ability to lift/carry up to 25 pounds occasionally, visual acuity, speech and hearing, hand
and eye coordination and manual dexterity necessary to operate a computer and office equipment. Subject to standing,
sitting, walking, climbing stairs, bending, stooping, crouching, kneeling, pushing, pulling, reaching, twisting, balancing,
repetitive motion, driving, client/customer contact, and squatting to perform the essential functions.

This job description is intended to be generic in nature. It is not necessarily an exhaustive list of all duties
and responsibilities. The essential duties, functions and responsibilities and overtime eligibility may vary
based on the specific tasks assigned to the position.

Page2of2
c/7

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Counselor Senior

JOB CODE: 16170 FLSA STATUS: Non-Exempt
PAY GRADE: 16 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

JOB SUMMARY:

Provides screening, assessment, crisis intervention, individual and group counseling, and support services to clients.
Screens and assesses the medical, psychosocial and environmental status of clients, and coordinates and monitors referral
of clients to clinical and other resources and services. Develops, or assists in developing counseling programs and
interventions and provides related training for staff.

DISTINGUISHING CHARACTERISTICS:

This is the second in a series of two counselor-related job classifications within the Social Services job family. This
classification is distinguished from the lower level and is responsible for assessing the medical, psychosocial and
environmental status of clients, coordinating referral to resources and services, and developing or assisting in the
development of and conducting related counseling programs. This classification typically attends to the more complex
cases and may function in a lead capacity. This classification may require work in secure facilities. This classification
may require a flexible work schedule in order to meet the needs of the department.

DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES:

• Conducts a medical, psychosocial and environmental assessment of clients through personal interviews, observation
and other methods to determine clinical and other resources and services required.

• Conducts individual and group counseling related to mental and behavioral problems, substance abuse, personal and
other problems. Provides crisis intervention services for clients. Identifies clients in at-risk situations and seeks
treatment solutions and alternative environmental surroundings.

• Develops or assists in developing treatment and intervention programs and recommends service plans for clients.
Presents potential diagnosis based on established criteria. Coordinates referral of clients to clinical and other resources
and services and monitors client progress. Resolves obstacles to service delivery.

• Maintains primary responsibility for coordinating client services provided by clinical and social service professionals and
community outreach service providers, Initiates and sustains ongoing advocacy for client. Manages a client caseload.

• Assists in administering, scoring and interpreting sociological, psychological and vocational tests.

• Prepares progress reports of client treatment, documents interviews, observations and evaluations for case file.
Maintains statistical reports of treatment and service provisions. S

• Monitors mental health and environmental adjustment.

• Plans, develops and conducts training sessions for staff and volunteers.

• Serves as liaison with advocacy groups, clinical and other service providers, community outreach services and law
enforcement personnel.

• May function as lead over subordinate counselors and other staff and/or volunteers.

• Performs other job-related duties as assigned.

MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS:

Education and Experience:
Bachelor’s degree in Social or Behavioral Sciences or a directly related field AND four (4) years experience in
counseling/social services or criminal justice work;

OR,

Any combination of education and experience that has been achieved and is equivalent to the stated education and
experience and required knowledge, skills, and abilities sufficient to successfully perform the duties and responsibilities
of this job.

Page 1 of 2

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Counselor Senior

JOB CODE: 16170 FLSA STATUS: Non-Exempt
PAY GRADE: 16 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS: (Cont.)

Licenses, Registrations, Certifications, or Special Requirements:
Valid Texas Driver’s License.

Preferred:
Master’s degree in Social or Behavioral Sciences or a directly related field.
Experience in crisis and trauma counseling.
Licensed Professional Counselor (LPC).
Qualified Credentialed Counselor (QCC).
Licensed Clinical Social Worker (LCSW).
Licensed Master Social Worker (LMSW).

Knowledge, Skills, and Abilities:
Knowledge of:
• Procedures for assessing medical, psychosocial and environmental status of clients.
• Counseling and crisis stabilization techniques and resources.
• Policies, practices, procedures and standards within area of assignment.
• Advocacy groups, clinical and other service providers and community outreach services.
• Principles and procedures of case file documentation.
• Computer equipment to include word processing, spreadsheets, databases and a variety of software packages.

Skill in:
• Counseling and providing crisis and other assistance to clients.
• Screening and assessing the medical, psychosocial and environmental status of clients.
• Determining types of counseling, social service provider and other services indicated for clients.
• Obtaining information from clients and other sources.
• Developing treatment and intervention programs and recommending service plans for clients.
• Developing and conducting training sessions.
• Problem-solving and decision-making.
• Both verbal and written communication.

Ability to:
• Apply counseling theory, practice and procedures.
• Develop client advocacy programs.
• Train and supervise staff and volunteers.
• Work efficiently, both independently and as a team member.
• Manage time well and meet timelines.
• Communicate effectively.
• Establish and maintain effective working relationships with departmental clientele, other County employees and

officials, community outreach and other organizations, clinical service providers, law enforcement personnel and the
general public.

WORK ENVIRONMENT AND PHYSICAL DEMANDS:

Physical requirements include the ability to lift/carry up to 25 pounds occasionally, visual acuity, speech and hearing, hand
and eye coordination and manual dexterity necessary to operate a computer and office equipment. Subject to standing,
sitting, walking, climbing stairs, bending, stooping, crouching, kneeling, pushing, pulling, reaching, twisting, balancing,
repetitive motion, driving, client/customer contact, and squatting to perform the essential functions.

This job description is intended to be generic in nature. It is not necessarily an exhaustive list of all duties
and responsibilities. The essential duties, functions and responsibilities and overtime eligibility may vary
based on the specific tasks assigned to the position.

zjqPage 2 of 2

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Victim Counselor

JOB CODE: 15586 FLSA STATUS: Non-Exempt
PAY GRADE: 15 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

JOB SUMMARY:

Provides counseling and support services to clients and assists with problems resulting from victimization. Screens and
provides intake services for clients seeking court orders. Refers clients to counseling and other clinical and social service
provider resources, coordinates client court appearances and accompanies clients to trial.

DISTINGUISHING CHARACTERISTICS:

This is the first in a series of two victim counselor-related job classifications within the Social Services job family. This
classification is responsible for providing counseling and support services to clients and assisting with problems resulting
from victimization. This classification is distinguished from the higher level which is responsible for clinical assessment
of client psychosocial status and recommendation of types of counseling and other outreach services required. This
classification typically does not function in a lead capacity. This classification may require work in secure facilities. This
classification may include response at crime scenes. This classification may require a flexible work schedule in order to
meet the needs of the department.

DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES:

• Provides counseling and support services to clients and assists with problems resulting from victimization. Screens and
provides intake services for clients seeking court orders.

• Provides information to clients related to crime and/or court case. Answers general questions from the public.

• Assists in gathering evidence requested for court cases. Locates and contacts clients to obtain information related to
criminal cases. Processes subpoenas for upcoming court cases, requests medical records, collision reports, and other
case related information.

• Coordinates client court appearances. Escorts clients to courtroom and provides support while testifying.

• Prepares and maintains statistical records. Records case file information in tracking system.

• Performs administrative duties such as preparing correspondence and processing incoming mail for case files.

• May assist in assessing the psychosocial status of clients and determining the types of counseling, social service
provider and other services indicated. May assist in coordinating referrals and provision of services to clients.

• May serve as liaison with advocacy groups, clinical and other service providers, community outreach services and law
enforcement personnel.

• Performs other job-related duties as assigned.

MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS:

Education and Experience:
Bachelor’s degree in Social or Behavioral Sciences or a directly related field AND two (2) years experience in
counseling/social services or criminal justice work;

OR,

Any combination of education and experience that has been achieved and is equivalent to the stated education and
experience and required knowledge, skills, and abilities sufficient to successfully perform the duties and responsibilities
of this job.

Licenses, Registrations, Certifications, or Special Requirements:
Valid Texas Driver’s License.

Page 1 of 2

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Victim Counselor

JOB CODE: 15586 FLSA STATUS: Non-Exempt
PAY GRADE: 15 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS: (Cont.)

Knowledge, Skills, and Abilities:
Knowledge of:
• Policies, practices and procedures within the criminal justice system.
• Counseling techniques and resources.
• Advocacy groups, clinical and other service providers and community outreach services.
• Procedures for gathering evidence and researching information.
• Principles and procedures of record keeping.
• Computer equipment to include word processing, spreadsheets, databases and a variety of software packages.

Skill in:
• Counseling and providing assistance to clients.
• Coordinating client court appearances.
• Processing court related documents.
• Problem-solving and decision-making.
• Both verbal and written communication.

Ability to:
• Work independently.
• Manage time well and meet timelines.
• Communicate effectively.
• Establish and maintain effective working relationships with departmental clientele, other County employees and

officials, community outreach and other organizations, clinical service providers, law enforcement personnel and the
general public.

WORK ENVIRONMENT AND PHYSICAL DEMANDS:

Physical requirements include the ability to lift/carry up to 25 pounds occasionally, visual acuity, speech and hearing, hand
and eye coordination and manual dexterity necessary to operate a computer and office equipment. Subject to standing,
sitting, walking, climbing stairs, bending, stooping, crouching, kneeling, pushing, pulling, reaching, twisting, balancing,
repetitive motion, driving, client/customer contact, and squatting to perform the essential functions.

This job description is intended to be generic in nature. It is not necessarily an exhaustive list of all duties
and responsibilities. The essential duties, functions and responsibilities and overtime eligibility may vary
based on the specific tasks assigned to the position.

Page 2 of 2

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Victim Counselor Senior

JOB CODE: 16587 FLSA STATUS: Non-Exempt
PAY GRADE: 16 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

JOB SUMMARY:

Provides counseling, crisis stabilization and support services to clients and assists with problems resulting from
victimization. Assesses the psychosocial status of clients, determines the types of counseling, social service provider
resource referrals and services indicated and coordinates provision of services to clients. Serves as a liaison in preparing
clients for trial, coordinates client court appearances and accompanies clients to trial.

DISTINGUISHING CHARACTERISTICS:

This is the second in a series of two victim counselor-related job classifications within the Social Services job family. This
classification is responsible for assessing the psychosocial status of clients, determining the types of counseling, social
service provider resource referrals and services indicated and coordinating provision of services to clients. This
classification typically performs advanced counseling duties and may function in a lead capacity. This classification may
require work in secure facilities. This classification may include response at crime scenes. This classification may require
a flexible work schedule in order to meet the needs of the department

DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES:

• Provides counseling, crisis stabilization and support services to clients and assists with problems resulting from
victimization.

• Assesses the psychosocial status of clients and determines the types of counseling, social service provider and other
services indicated. Coordinates referrals and provision of services to clients.

• Serves as a liaison in preparing clients for trial and in dealing with related emotional issues. Coordinates client court
appearances, accompanies clients to trial and provides support while testifying.

• Provides information to clients related to crime and/or court case. Explains legal issues, terms and court procedures.

• Assists in gathering evidence requested for court cases. Locates and contacts clients to obtain information related to
criminal cases. Requests medical records, collision and other reports, and other case related information. May
process subpoenas for upcoming court cases.

• Consults with prosecutors regarding punishment and other pertinent matters.

• Develops client advocacy programs and trains staff and volunteers.

• Prepares and maintains statistical records. Records case file information in tracking system.

• Performs administrative duties such as preparing correspondence and processing incoming mail for case files.

• Serves as liaison with advocacy groups, clinical and other service providers, community outreach services and law
enforcement personnel.

• May function as lead over subordinate counselors and other staff and/or volunteers.

• Performs other job-related duties as assigned.

MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS:

Education and Experience:
Bachelor’s degree in Social or Behavioral Sciences or a directly related field AND four (4) years experience in
counseling/social services or criminal justice work;

OR,

Any combination of education and experience that has been achieved and is equivalent to the stated education and
experience and required knowledge, skills, and abilities sufficient to successfully perform the duties and responsibilities
of this job.

Page 1 of 2

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Victim Counselor Senior

JOB CODE: 16587 FLSA STATUS: Non-Exempt
PAY GRADE: 16 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS: (Cont.)

Licenses, Registrations, Certifications, or Special Requirements:
Valid Texas Driver’s License.

Preferred:
Master’s degree in Social or Behavioral Sciences or a directly related field.
Experience in crisis and trauma counseling.
Licensed Master Social Worker (LMSW); OR,
Licensed Professional Counselor (LPC).

Knowledge, Skills, and Abilities:
Knowledge of:
• Policies, practices and procedures within the criminal justice system.
• Counseling and crisis stabilization techniques and resources.
• Advocacy groups, clinical and other service providers and community outreach services.
• Procedures for gathering evidence and researching information.
• Principles and procedures of record keeping.
• Computer equipment to include word processing, spreadsheets, databases and a variety of software packages.

Skill in:
• Counseling and providing crisis and other assistance to clients.
• Assessing the psychosocial status of clients.
• Determining types of counseling, social service provider and other services indicated for clients.
• Obtaining information from clients and other sources.
• Coordinating client court appearances.
• Processing court related documents.
• Problem-solving and decision-making.
• Both verbal and written communication.

Ability to:
• Explain legal issues, terms and court procedures.
• Develop client advocacy programs.
• Train and supervise staff and volunteers.
• Work independently.
• Manage time well and meet timelines.
• Communicate effectively.
• Establish and maintain effective working relationships with departmental clientele, other County employees and

officials, community outreach and other organizations, clinical service providers, law enforcement personnel and the
general public.

WORK ENVIRONMENT AND PHYSICAL DEMANDS:

Physical requirements include the ability to lift/carry up to 25 pounds occasionally, visual acuity, speech and hearing, hand
and eye coordination and manual dexterity necessary to operate a computer and office equipment. Subject to standing,
sitting, walking, climbing stairs, bending, stooping, crouching, kneeling, pushing, pulling, reaching, twisting, balancing,
repetitive motion, driving, client/customer contact, and squatting to perform the essential functions.

This job description is intended to be generic in nature. It is not necessarily an exhaustive list of all duties
and responsibilities. The essential duties, functions and responsibilities and overtime eligibility may vary
based on the specific tasks assigned to the position.

Page 2 of 2

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Chemical Dependency Counselor

JOB CODE: 15075 FLSA STATUS: Non-Exempt
PAY GRADE: 15 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

JOB SUMMARY:

Provides screening, assessment, intake and treatment, and discharge planning for clients. Screens and assesses the
substance abuse, psychosocial and environmental status of clients. Provides individual and group counseling, assists in
developing counseling programs and intervention techniques, coordinates and monitors referral of clients to clinical and
other resources and services and assists in providing related training for staff.

DISTINGUISHING CHARACTERISTICS:

This is the first in a series of two chemical dependency counselor-related job classifications within the Social Services
job family. This classification is responsible for assessing the substance abuse, psychosocial and environmental status of
clients, developing treatment and discharge plans, coordinating referral to resources and services and conducting related
counseling programs. This classification is distinguished from the higher level by assisting in, rather than full development
of counseling programs and related training. This classification typically does not function in a lead capacity. This
classification may require work in secure facilities. This classification may require a flexible work schedule in order to
meet the needs of the department.

DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES:

• Performs intake, screening and assessment of clients for substance abuse problems. Assesses the substance abuse,
psychosocial and environmental status of clients through screening instruments, personal interviews, observation
and other methods to determine clinical and other education/treatment resources and services required.
Administers various clinical and other screening tests.

• Conducts individual and group counseling and/or psycho-educational classes regarding substance abuse rehabilitation,
cognitive skill development, and relapse prevention techniques. Provides crisis and substance abuse intervention
services for clients. Identifies clients in at-risk situations and seeks treatment solutions and alternative environmental
surroundings.

• Assists in developing treatment plans and intervention programs and recommending resources and services for clients.
Coordinates referral of clients to clinical resources and other services and monitors client progress. Resolves obstacles
to service delivery.

• Maintains primary responsibility for coordinating client services provided by clinical and social service professionals and
community outreach service providers, Initiates and sustains ongoing advocacy for client.

• Prepares progress reports of client treatment, documents interviews, observations and evaluations for case file.
Conducts and maintains analysis of treatment and service provider usage. Develops discharge plans, including
referrals to counseling and social service programs in the community.

• Assists in planning, developing and conducting training sessions for staff and volunteers.

• Serves as liaison with advocacy groups, clinical and other service providers, community outreach services and law
enforcement personnel. Conducts presentations related to substance abuse treatment and counseling for outside
groups, agencies and organizations.

• Performs other job-related duties as assigned.

MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS:

Education and Experience:
Bachelor’s degree in Social or Behavioral Sciences or a directly related field AND two (2) years experience in substance
abuse counseling, social services or criminal justice work;

OR,

Any combination of education and experience that has been achieved and is equivalent to the stated education and
experience and required knowledge, skills, and abilities sufficient to successfully perform the duties and responsibilities
of this job.

Page 1 of 2 (7/

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Chemical Dependency Counselor

JOB CODE: 15075 FLSA STATUS: Non-Exempt
PAY GRADE: 15 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS: (Cont.)

Licenses, Registrations, Certifications, or Special Requirements:
Licensed Chemical Dependency Counselor (LCDC); OR,
Qualified Credentialed Counselor (QCC) must be obtained within six (6) months of employment.
Valid Texas Driver’s License.

Preferred:
Licensed Clinical Social Worker (LCSW).

Knowledge, Skills, and Abilities:
Knowledge of:
• Procedures for assessing the substance abuse, psychosocial and environmental status of clients.
• Counseling theory techniques and resources.
• Substance abuse and crisis intervention techniques and resources.
• Policies, practices, procedures and standards within area of assignment.
• Advocacy groups, clinical and other service providers and community outreach services.
• Principles and procedures of case file documentation.
• Computer equipment to include word processing, spreadsheets, databases and a variety of software packages.

Skill in:
• Counseling and providing crisis and other assistance to clients.
• Screening and assessing the substance abuse, psychosocial and environmental status of clients.
• Administering various clinical and other screening tests.
• Determining types of counseling, social service provider and other services indicated for clients.
• Obtaining information from clients and other sources.
• Developing treatment, intervention and discharge plans for clients.
• Developing and conducting training sessions.
• Problem-solving and decision-making.
• Both verbal and written communication.

Ability to:
• Apply counseling theory, practice and procedures.
• Develop client advocacy programs.
• Work efficiently, both independently and as a team member.
• Manage time well and meet timelines.
• Communicate effectively.
• Maintain clear and legible documentation.
• Establish and maintain effective working relationships with departmental clientele, other County employees and

officials, community outreach and other organizations, clinical service providers, law enforcement personnel and the
general public.

WORK ENVIRONMENT AND PHYSICAL DEMANDS:

Physical requirements include the ability to lift/carry up to 25 pounds occasionally, visual acuity, speech and hearing, hand
and eye coordination and manual dexterity necessary to operate a computer and office equipment. Subject to standing,
sitting, walking, climbing stairs, bending, stooping, crouching, kneeling, pushing, pulling, reaching, twisting, balancing,
repetitive motion, driving, client/customer contact, and squatting to perform the essential functions.

This job description is intended to be generic in nature. It is not necessarily an exhaustive list of all duties
and responsibilities. The essential duties, functions and responsibilities and overtime eligibility may vary
based on the specific tasks assigned to the position.

Page 2 of 2

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Chemical Dependency Counselor Senior

JOB CODE: 16076 FLSA STATUS: Non-Exempt
PAY GRADE: 16 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

JOB SUMMARY:

Provides screening, assessment, intake and treatment, and discharge planning for clients. Screens and assesses the
substance abuse, psychosocial and environmental status of clients. Provides individual and group counseling, develops
counseling programs and intervention techniques, coordinates and monitors referral of clients to clinical and other
resources and services and provides related training for staff.

DISTINGUISHING CHARACTERISTICS:

This is the second in a series of two chemical dependency counselor-related job classifications within the Social
Services job family. This classification is responsible for assessing the substance abuse, psychosocial and environmental
status of clients, developing treatment and discharge plans, coordinating referral to resources and services and developing
and conducting related counseling programs. This classification is distinguished from the lower level by performing
advanced counseling duties and may function in a lead capacity. This classification may require work in secure facilities.
This classification may require a flexible work schedule in order to meet the needs of the department.

DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES:

• Performs intake, screening and assessment of clients for substance abuse problems. Assesses the substance abuse,
psychosocial and environmental status of clients through screening instruments, personal interviews, observation
and other methods to determine clinical and other education/treatment resources and services required.
Administers various clinical and other screening tests.

• Conducts individual and group counseling and/or psycho-educational classes regarding substance abuse rehabilitation,
cognitive skill development, and relapse prevention techniques. Provides crisis and substance abuse intervention
services for clients. Identifies clients in at-risk situations and seeks treatment solutions and alternative environmental
surroundings.

• Develops treatment plans and intervention programs and recommends resources and services for clients. Coordinates
referral of clients to clinical resources and other services and monitors client progress. Resolves obstacles to service
delivery.

• Maintains primary responsibility for coordinating client services provided by clinical and social service professionals and
community outreach service providers. Initiates and sustains ongoing advocacy for client. Recommends revisions to
counseling initiatives and operational/administrative procedures.

• Prepares progress reports of client treatment, documents interviews, observations and evaluations for case file.
Conducts and maintains analysis of treatment and service provider usage. Develops discharge plans, including
referrals to counseling and social service programs in the community.

• Plans, develops and conducts training sessions for staff and volunteers.

• Serves as liaison with advocacy groups, clinical and other service providers, community outreach services and law
enforcement personnel. Conducts presentations related to substance abuse treatment and counseling for outside
groups, agencies and organizations.

• May function as lead over subordinate counselors and other staff and/or volunteers. Plans workload distribution,
assigns work, adjusts assignments to accommodate work fluctuations and changes, monitors work of subordinate staff
and keeps supervisor informed.

• Performs other job-related duties as assigned.

MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS:

Education and Experience:
Bachelor’s degree in Social or Behavioral Sciences or a directly related field AND four (4) years experience in substance
abuse counseling, social services or criminal justice work;

Page 1 of 3

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Chemical Dependency Counselor Senior

JOB CODE: 16076 FLSA STATUS: Non-Exempt
PAY GRADE: 16 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS: (Cont.)

Education and Experience: (Cont.)

OR,

Any combination of education and experience that has been achieved and is equivalent to the stated education and
experience and required knowledge, skills, and abilities sufficient to successfully perform the duties and responsibilities
of this job.

Licenses, Registrations, Certifications, or Special Requirements:
Licensed Chemical Dependency Counselor (LCDC); OR,
Qualified Credentialed Counselor (QCC) must be obtained within six (6) months of employment.
Valid Texas Driver’s License.

Preferred:
Licensed Professional Counselor (LPC).
Licensed Clinical Social Worker (LCSW).
Licensed Master Social Worker (LMSW).

Knowledge, Skills, and Abilities:
Knowledge of:
• Procedures for assessing the substance abuse, psychosocial and environmental status of clients.
• Counseling theory techniques and resources.
• Substance abuse and crisis intervention techniques and resources.
• Policies, practices, procedures and standards within area of assignment.
• Advocacy groups, clinical and other service providers and community outreach services.
• Principles and procedures of case file documentation.
• Computer equipment to include word processing, spreadsheets, databases and a variety of software packages.

Skill in:
• Counseling and providing crisis and other assistance to clients.
• Screening and assessing the substance abuse, psychosocial and environmental status of clients.
• Administering various clinical and other screening tests.
• Determining types of counseling, social service provider and other services indicated for clients.
• Obtaining information from clients and other sources.
• Developing treatment, intervention and discharge plans for clients.
• Developing and conducting training sessions.
• Problem-solving and decision-making.
• Both verbal and written communication.

Ability to:
• Apply counseling theory, practice and procedures.
• Develop client advocacy programs.
• Train and supervise staff and volunteers.
• Work efficiently, both independently and as a team member.
• Manage time well and meet timelines.
• Communicate effectively.
• Maintain clear and legible documentation.
• Establish and maintain effective working relationships with departmental clientele, other County employees and

officials, community outreach and other organizations, clinical service providers, law enforcement personnel and the
general public.

Page 2 of 3

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Chemical Dependency Counselor Senior

JOB CODE: 16076 FLSA STATUS: Non-Exempt
PAY GRADE: 16 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

WORK ENVIRONMENT AND PHYSICAL DEMANDS:

Physical requirements include the ability to lift/carry up to 25 pounds occasionally, visual acuity, speech and hearing, hand
and eye coordination and manual dexterity necessary to operate a computer and office equipment. Subject to standing,
sitting, walking, climbing stairs, bending, stooping, crouching, kneeling, pushing, pulling, reaching, twisting, balancing,
repetitive motion, driving, client/customer contact, and squatting to perform the essential functions.

This job description is intended to be generic in nature. It is not necessarily an exhaustive list of all duties
and responsibilities. The essential duties, functions and responsibilities and overtime eligibility may vary
based on the specific tasks assigned to the position.

Page 3 of 3

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Social Services Aide

JOB CODE: 09550 FLSA STATUS: Non-Exempt
PAY GRADE: 09 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

JOB SUMMARY:

Provides basic paraprofessional social services support services assisting clients and other social services staff. Performs
a variety of routine tasks, such as providing basic social services information, transporting clients to and from medical and
social services appointments, and assisting in supervising and documenting client visitations. Assists in organizing case
files and other materials and resources for social services staff.

DISTINGUISHING CHARACTERISTICS:

This is the first in a series of two social services-related job classifications within the Social Services job family. This
classification is responsible for performing basic paraprofessional social services support services assisting clients and
other social services staff. This classification is distinguished from the Social Services Assistant class which performs a
greater variety and complexity of tasks which require additional program knowledge and greater variety in prescribed
procedures. This classification may require a flexible work schedule in order to meet the needs of the department.

DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES:

• Provides basic social services information and forms to clients. Answers routine questions, provides pamphlets and
other program information, and refers clients to appropriate social services staff for further information and assistance.

• Transports clients to and from medical and social services appointments.

• Assists in supervising and documenting client visitations with eligible family members.

• Assists in the preparation of case activity notes and reports.

• Assists in data collection, data entry and organization, and maintenance of case files.

• Performs administrative duties, such as providing information to clients over the phone, preparing routine
correspondence and processing incoming mail for case files.

• Assists in compiling, monitoring, documenting and maintaining statistical and other information and records.

• Performs other job-related duties as assigned.

MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS:

Education and Experience:
High School diploma or G.E.D. AND one (1) year experience in social services;

OR,
Any combination of education and experience that has been achieved and is equivalent to the stated education and
experience and required knowledge, skills, and abilities sufficient to successfully perform the duties and responsibilities
of this job.

Licenses, Registrations, Certifications, or Special Requirements:
Valid Texas Driver’s License.

Preferred:
Social services experience with a high level of client contact.

Knowledge. Skills, and Abilities:
Knowledge of:
• Policies, practices, procedures and terminology of assigned function.
• Local social services, organizations and programs and the resources available.
• Modern office/clerical practices, procedures and methods.
• File management and techniques.
• Principles and procedures of record keeping.
• Federal, State and Local program laws and requirements.
• Computer equipment to include word processing, spreadsheets, databases and a variety of software packages.

Page 1 of 2 q

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Social Services Aide

JOB CODE: 09550 FLSA STATUS: Non-Exempt
PAY GRADE: 09 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS: (Cont.)

Skill in:
• Operating a variety of modern office equipment, including a computer.
• Both verbal and written communication.

Ability to:
• Work effectively and courteously under high-pressure circumstances.
• Establish and maintain effective working relationships with departmental clientele, representatives of outside

agencies, other County employees and officials, and the general public.

WORK ENVIRONMENT AND PHYSICAL DEMANDS:

Physical requirements include the ability to lift/carry up to 25 pounds occasionally, visual acuity, speech and hearing, hand
and eye coordination and manual dexterity necessary to operate a computer and office equipment. Subject to standing,
sitting, walking, driving, climbing stairs, bending, stooping, crouching, kneeling, pushing, pulling, reaching, twisting,
balancing, repetitive motion, driving, client/customer contact, and squatting to perform the essential functions.

This job description is intended to be generic in nature. It is not necessarily an exhaustive list of all duties
and responsibilities. The essential duties, functions and responsibilities and overtime eligibility may vary
based on the specific tasks assigned to the position.

Page2of2 23O

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Social Services Assistant

JOB CODE: 11811 FLSA STATUS: Non-Exempt
PAY GRADE: 11 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

JOB SUMMARY:

Provides paraprofessional social services support services assisting clients and other social services staff. Screens clients
to assess their social services and health needs. Determines preliminary client eligibility for a variety of services. Refers
clients to social services provider resources and services as appropriate. Organizes case files and other materials and
resources for social services staff. Assists in participating in outreach activities and serving as a liaison with community
organizations.

DISTINGUISHING CHARACTERISTICS:

This is the second in a series of two social services-related job classifications within the Social Services job family. This
classification is responsible for performing paraprofessional social services support services assisting clients and other
social services staff. This classWication is distinguished from the Social Services Aide class and performs a greater variety
and complexity of tasks which require additional program knowledge and greater variety in prescribed procedures. This
classification may require a flexible work schedule in order to meet the needs of the department.

DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES:

• Interviews clients, collects data and determines clients potential eligibility for assistance based on a variety of services,
regulations and procedures, including those grant funded. Provides clients and potential clients with program
information, procedures and documentation requirements. Assigns clients to appropriate caseworker or other social
services staff and refers clients to appropriate internal and external social services programs.

• Performs initial eligibility determinations which may result in a subsequent determination by a caseworker. Initiates,
facilitates and participates in the eligibility determination process by encumbering grant monies.

• Answers telephone inquiries concerning program functions and documentation requirements. Refers clients to other
agencies and community resources, as required.

• Provides basic problem solving assistance to clients. May provide limited short-term basic needs counseling and
problem solving assistance to clients. May contact other social service providers to coordinate service delivery,
schedule appointments, provide written referrals and schedule home visits.

• Performs administrative duties, such as providing information to clients over the phone, preparing correspondence,
processing incoming mail for case files, filing and ordering and stocking supplies and/or food pantry items for clients.
Enters data into the computer system to record information.

• Assists in compiling, monitoring, documenting and maintaining statistical and other information and records.

• Participates in planning and implementing special projects.

• May supervise clients in all phases of work to be accomplished. Transports clients, provides safety briefing and
ensures all equipment is available and in good working condition.

• Performs other job-related duties as assigned.

MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS:

Education and Experience:
Associate’s degree in one of the Social or Behavioral Sciences AND one (1) year experience in social services with a
high level of client contact;

OR,

Any combination of education and experience that has been achieved and is equivalent to the stated education and
experience and required knowledge, skills, and abilities sufficient to successfully perform the duties and responsibilities
of this job.

Pagelof2 c;;?.s /

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Social Services Assistant

JOB CODE: 11811 FLSA STATUS: Non-Exempt
PAY GRADE: 11 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS: (Cant.)

Licenses, Registrations, Certifications, or Special Requirements:
Valid Texas Driver’s License.

Preferred:
Food Handler Certificate.
Six (6) months of lead or supervisory experience.

Knowledge, Skills, and Abilities:
Knowledge of:
• Policies, practices, procedures and terminology of assigned function.
• Local social services, organizations and programs and the resources available.
• Modern office/clerical practices, procedures and methods.
• File management and techniques.
• Principles and procedures of record keeping.
• Federal, State and Local program laws and requirements.
• Computer equipment to include word processing, spreadsheets, databases and a variety of software packages.

Skill in:
• Interviewing techniques.
• Operating a variety of modern office equipment, including a computer.
• Both verbal and written communication.

Ability to:
• Deal effectively with persons experiencing crises and economic stress.
• Work effectively and courteously under high-pressure circumstances.
• Safely and effectively operate all equipment required of job.
• Establish and maintain effective working relationships with departmental clientele, representatives of outside

agencies, other County employees and officials, and the general public.

WORK ENVIRONMENT AND PHYSICAL DEMANDS:

Physical requirements include the ability to lift/carry up to 25 pounds occasionally, visual acuity, speech and hearing, hand
and eye coordination and manual dexterity necessary to operate a computer and office equipment. Subject to standing,
sitting, walking, driving, climbing stairs, bending, stooping, crouching, kneeling, pushing, pulling, reaching, twisting,
balancing, repetitive motion, driving, client/customer contact, and squatting to perform the essential functions.

I This job description is intended to be generic in nature. It is not necessarily an exhaustive list of all duties
and responsibilities. The essential duties, functions and responsibilities and overtime eligibility may vary

j based on the specific tasks assigned to the position.

Page 2 of 2

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Intake Officer

JOB CODE: 13779 FLSA STATUS: Non-Exempt
PAY GRADE: 13 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

JOB SUMMARY:

Interviews, investigates and evaluates clients to determine eligibility for release from jail on personal bond or eligibility for
further screening towards participation in criminal justice programs related to substance abuse treatment services and
related assistance. Assists in coordinating and monitoring referral of clients to clinical and other resources and services.
Gathers clinical and other data to track client progress toward improvement and potential completion and discharge from
program. Prepares and maintains client case files and other materials and resources. Serves as a liaison with clinical
and social service providers and community organizations.

DISTINGUISHING CHARACTERISTICS:

This is a job classification within the Social Services job family. This classification is responsible for interviewing,
investigating and evaluating clients for recommendation into criminal justice programs related to court mandated
substance abuse treatment programs. This classification is distinguished from the Chemical Dependency Counselor
classification which is a licensed counselor responsible for clinical substance abuse and psychosocial assessment,
treatment and intervention planning and counseling. This classification may require work in secure facilities. This
classification may require a flexible work schedule in order to meet the needs of the department.

DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES:

• Interviews, investigates and evaluates clients to determine eligibility for release from jail on personal bond or
eligibility for further screening towards participation in criminal justice programs related to substance abuse
treatment services and related assistance.

• Provides recommendations regarding full eligibility for court mandated substance abuse treatment programs.

• Provides clients with program information, procedures, documentation requirements and case status.

• Assists in coordinating and monitoring referral of clients to clinical and other resources and services. Gathers
clinical and other data to track client progress toward improvement and potential completion and discharge from
program.

• Serves as a liaison between criminal justice system team, clients, social service providers and community
organizations. Provides information as appropriate concerning client status and program compliance.

• Organizes and maintains court dockets. Maintains current caseload information.

• Prepares and maintains client case files and other materials and resources.

• Compiles, and maintains statistical and other information, records and reports.

• Participates in planning and implementing special projects.

• Performs other job-related duties as assigned.

MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS:

Education and Experience:
Bachelor’s degree in Social or Behavioral Sciences, Criminal Justice or a directly related field AND one (1) year
experience in substance abuse counseling, social services or criminal justice work;

OR,

Any combination of education and experience that has been achieved and is equivalent to the stated education and
experience and required knowledge, skills, and abilities sufficient to successfully perform the duties and responsibilities
of this job.

Licenses, Registrations, Certifications, or Special Requirements:
Valid Texas Driver’s License.

Page 1 of 2

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Intake Officer

JOB CODE: 13779 FLSA STATUS: Non-Exempt
PAY GRADE: 13 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS: (Cont.)

Preferred:
Licensed Chemical Dependency Counselor (LCDC); OR,
Qualified Credentialed Counselor (QCC).

Knowledge, Skills, and Abilities:
Knowledge of:
• Policies, practices, procedures and legal terminology related to court system.
• Criminal justice system.
• Federal, State, Local and County applicable laws, rules, regulations and guidelines.
• Case management and social service delivery systems.
• Local social services, organizations and programs and the resources available.
• Modern office practices, procedures and methods.
• Computer equipment to include word processing, spreadsheets, databases and a variety of software packages.

Skill in:
• Interviewing, investigating and decision-making.
• Providing assistance to clients.
• Referring clients to appropriate clinical and social services organizations and programs.
• Problem-solving and decision-making.
• Operating a variety of modern office equipment, including a computer.
• Both verbal and written communication.

Ability to:
• Prepare accurate and complete records and case files.
• Work well under pressure and exercise tact in trying situations.
• Work independently.
• Manage time well and meet timelines.
• Communicate effectively.
• Establish and maintain effective working relationships with departmental clientele, representatives of outside

agencies, other County employees and officials, community outreach and other organizations, clinical service
providers, law enforcement personnel and the general public.

WORK ENVIRONMENT AND PHYSICAL DEMANDS:

Physical requirements include the ability to lift/carry up to 25 pounds occasionally, visual acuity, speech and hearing, hand
and eye coordination and manual dexterity necessary to operate a computer and office equipment. Subject to standing,
sitting, walking, climbing stairs, bending, stooping, crouching, kneeling, pushing, pulling, reaching, twisting, balancing,
repetitive motion, driving, client/customer contact, and squatting to perform the essential functions.

This job description is intended to be generic in nature. It is not necessarily an exhaustive list of all dutie
and responsibilities. The essential duties, functions and responsibilities and overtime eligibility may vary
based on the specific tasks assigned to the position.

Page2of2 cj

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Case Worker

JOB CODE: 15812 FLSA STATUS: Non-Exempt
PAY GRADE: 15 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

JOB SUMMARY:

Determines applicants’ eligibility for a variety of social services available and/or provides other social services related to
crisis intervention and short-term case management. Interviews clients, collects and completes required eligibility
documentation, determines eligibility for social services assistance and monitors client progress and usage of assistance.
Refers clients to clinical and social service provider resources. May serve as lead worker over subordinate social services
staff.

DISTINGUISHING CHARACTERISTICS:

This is a job classification within the Social Services job family. This classification is distinguished from other social
services classes due to the eligibility-related functions and short-term case management for various clients. This
classification interviews clients and collects eligibility documentation to determine appropriate social services assistance
and monitors client progress and usage of assistance. Duties also include problem-solving assistance and functioning
as an advocate on behalf of the client. This classification may require a flexible work schedule in order to meet the
needs of the department.

DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES:

• Interviews clients, collects and completes required documentation and determines eligibility for assistance based upon
a variety of service regulations and procedures. Monitors and ensures contract and program compliance. May make
home visits on an “as needed” basis for clients unable to come to the service site.

• Provides basic needs counseling and problem-solving assistance or case management services for clients. Conducts
assessment of client needs. Develops caseworklservice plans, monitors progress and follow-up. Provides social
services related to crisis intervention.

• Coordinates with other service agencies, organizations, and vendors to provide appropriate services and information for
clients as well as referrals. Serves as an advocate on behalf of client. Makes appropriate referrals to other social
service, education, and/or health agencies as needed. Interprets eligibility requirements, policy and procedures to
clients, other agencies, vendors and governmental entities.

• Assists in contract development and monitoring.

• Plans, organizes and participates in special projects, including outreach efforts, public speaking and special activities for
client. Provides education and training to clients/community.

• May provide short and long-term case management, crisis intervention and service coordination to ensure maximum
self-sufficiency and non-institutional living. May provide short-term independent living skills assistance and training.

• May assist clients in obtaining vocational and employment services.

• May coordinate arrangement for indigent burials with funeral homes, survivors and staff. Attends indigent burials to
ensure compliance with contract.

• May recruit, train and function as lead over volunteers and staff.

• Performs other job-related duties as assigned.

MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS:

Education and Experience:
Bachelor’s degree in one of the Social or Behavioral Sciences AND two (2) years experience in social services related work;

OR,

Any combination of education and experience that has been achieved and is equivalent to the stated education and
experience and required knowledge, skills, and abilities sufficient to successfully perform the duties and responsibilities
of this job.

Page 1 of 2 35

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Case Worker

JOB CODE: 15812 FLSA STATUS: Non-Exempt
PAY GRADE: 15 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS: (Cont.)

Licenses, Registrations, Certifications, or Special Requirements:
Valid Texas Driver’s License.

Knowledge, Skills, and Abilities:
Knowledge of:

Policies, practices, procedures and terminology of assigned function.
• Local social services, organizations and programs and the resources available.
• Federal, State and Local program laws and requirements.
• Modern office practices, procedures and methods.
• Computer equipment to include word processing, spreadsheets, databases and a variety of software packages.

Skill in:
• Providing assistance to clients.
• Interviewing techniques.
• Problem solving and decision-making.
• Referring clients to appropriate social services organizations and programs.
• Math computation.
• Operating a variety of modern office equipment, including a computer.
• Both verbal and written communication.

Ability to:
• Deal effectively with persons experiencing crises and economic stress.
• Work effectively and courteously under high-pressure circumstances.
• Prepare accurate and complete records and reports.
• Demonstrate consistent, sound, and mature judgment in the effective and efficient use of human and financial

resources.
• Manage time well and meet timelines.
• Communicate effectively.
• Establish and maintain effective working relationships with departmental clientele, representatives of outside

agencies, other County employees and officials, community outreach and other organizations, clinical and other social
service providers, and the general public.

WORK ENVIRONMENT AND PHYSICAL DEMANDS:

Physical requirements include the ability to lift/carry up to 25 pounds occasionally, visual acuity, speech and hearing, hand
and eye coordination and manual dexterity necessary to operate a computer and office equipment. Subject to standing,
sitting, walking, climbing stairs, bending, stooping, crouching, kneeling, pushing, pulling, reaching, twisting, balancing,
repetitive motion, driving, client/customer contact, and squatting to perform the essential functions.

This job description is intended to be generic in nature. It is not necessarily an exhaustive list of all duties
and responsibilities. The essential duties, functions and responsibilities and overtime eligibility may vary
based on the specific tasks assigned to the position.

Page2of2

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Case Management Coordinator

JOB CODE: 20815 FLSA STATUS: Exempt
PAY GRADE: 20 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

JOB SUMMARY:

Directs and manages the designated Social Worker personnel licensed under the Regulation of Social Work
Practitioners Act of the State of Texas. Develops, implements, oversees and coordinates all case management
functions performed by assigned staff in compliance with all relevant division and grant policies and procedures.
Provides consultation regarding social work practice. Conducts case management quality assurance and ensures
compliance with licensure requirements for licensed staff. Collaborates with external community providers. Develops
new systems to ensure effective and efficient service delivery.

DISTINGUISHING CHARACTERISTICS:

This is a job classification within the Social Services job family. This classification is distinguished from the Social
Worker classification due to providing oversight and management of the social work functions to ensure compliance with
the state and federal social work laws and policies.

DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES:

• Conducts management and supervisory functions, including compliance monitoring of licensed and unlicensed
personnel. Oversees social worker involvement in staffing, training and employee development and performance
management. Monitors and ensures compliance with current licensure of all licensed social worker staff, including
required continuing education.

• Facilitates and supports the development of community resource development by providing consultation to upper
administration, other department staff and community partners/coalitions regarding identified and unresolved service
gaps and barriers.

• Establishes and implements case management goals and outcomes and maintains an accurate accounting of
participants receiving case management related services. Conducts research, plans programs, develops and
recommends internal policies and procedures.

• Conducts case management quality assurance and compliance monitoring functions consistent with client goals,
program/grant policies and procedures and licensed social worker professional standards. Provides performance input
on quality and efficiency of case management and related activities.

• Researches, develops and trains on “best practices” in the area of case management and related social work areas.
Facilitates and coordinates staff development on case management and related practices.

• Assists in preparing and conducting reports and presentations to policy makers and the community.

• Provides professional and technical consultation and assistance to department staff and community providers on social
work and case management strategies. Works directly with community networks and providers to collaboratively
address basic needs service delivery and promote increased client self-sufficiency.

• Performs other job-related duties as assigned.

MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS:

Education and Experience:
Master’s degree in Social Work AND four (4) years of progressively responsible social service experience, including at
least two (2) years of mid-senior level supervisory or management experience, including some combination of
counseling, case management, crisis intervention and working with a variety of services and programs;

OR,

Any combination of education and experience that has been achieved and is equivalent to the stated education and
experience and required knowledge, skills, and abilities sufficient to successfully perform the duties and responsibilities
of this job.

Page 1 of 3 37

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Case Management Coordinator

JOB CODE: 20815 FLSA STATUS: Exempt
PAY GRADE: 20 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS: (Cont.)

Licenses, Registrations, Certifications, or Special Requirements:
Licensed Master Social Worker (LMSW).
Valid Texas Driver’s License.

Knowledge, Skills, and Abilities:
Knowledge of:
• Management and supervisory principles, practices and techniques.
• Theoretical constructs of human development and social work theory and practices.
• Policies, practices, procedures and terminology of assigned function.
• Quality assurance techniques.
• Federal, State and Local program laws and requirements.
• Local social services, organizations and programs and the resources available.
• Crisis intervention and counseling techniques.
• Requirements for categorical assistance programs.
• Psychosocial factors impacted by stressors, illness and disability and interventive techniques.
• Quality assurance techniques and practices.
• Modern office practices, procedures and methods.
• Computer equipment to include word processing, spreadsheets, databases and a variety of software packages.
• Business letter writing, grammar and punctuation, and report preparation.

Skill in:
• Supervising others, allocating resources and evaluating programs.
• Counseling and providing crisis and other assistance to clients.
• Assessing the medical, psychosocial and environmental status of clients.
• Determining types of counseling, social service provider and other services indicated for clients.
• Referring clients to appropriate social services organizations and programs.
• Crisis intervention and counseling techniques used in trauma, grief or crisis situations.
• Planning and organizing social service programs and activities.
• Application of casework principles.
• Interviewing and obtaining information from clients and other sources.
• Problem-solving and decision-making.
• Both verbal and written communication, including presentations.

Ability to:
• Plan, assign, motivate, and supervise work of staff to achieve specific service objectives.
• Apply social work and counseling theory, practice and procedures.
• Deal effectively with persons experiencing crises and economic stress.
• Deal effectively with mentally disturbed, hostile and aggressive individuals.
• Work independently.
• Manage time well and meet timelines.
• Communicate effectively.
• Establish and maintain effective working relationships with departmental clientele, representatives of outside agencies,

other County employees and officials, and the general public.

Page 2 of 3 3

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Case Management Coordinator

JOB CODE: 20815 FLSA STATUS: Exempt
PAY GRADE: 20 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

WORK ENVIRONMENT AND PHYSICAL DEMANDS:

Physical requirements include the ability to lift/carry up to 25 pounds occasionally, visual acuity, speech and hearing, hand
and eye coordination and manual dexterity necessary to operate a computer and office equipment. Subject to standing,
sitting, walking, climbing stairs, bending, stooping, crouching, kneeling, pushing, pulling, reaching, twisting, balancing,
repetitive motion, driving, client/customer contact, and squatting to perform the essential functions.

This job description is intended to be generic in nature. It is not necessarily an exhaustive list of all duties
and responsibilities. The essential duties, functions and responsibilities and overtime eligibility may vary
based on the specific tasks assigned to the position.

Page 3 of 3 c2E’ct3Q

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Social Services Program Specialist Associate

JOB CODE: 13557 FLSA STATUS: Non-Exempt
PAY GRADE: 13 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

JOB SUMMARY:

Performs consultative, technical and administrative work in the planning, development, implementation and monitoring of
a social services program or programs. Assists in analyzing program issues, completing policy and program analysis,
conducting program research and presenting program-related training and education. May function as lead over
subordinate administrative and/or other staff.

DISTINGUISHING CHARACTERISTICS:

This is the first in a series of three social services program-related job classifications within the Social Services job family.
This classification is dedicated to work in a specific social services program or programs and is responsible for performing
consultative, technical and administrative work in the planning development, implementation and monitoring of a social
services program. This classification is distinguished from the Social Services Program Specialist by assisting in, rather
than full planning and development of a program. This classification may require a flexible work schedule in order to meet
the needs of the department.

DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES:

• Participates in program planning and development.

• Assists in, or implements program directives and initiatives.

• Serves as technical consultant for program and related policy and provides technical assistance on program services.

• Analyzes program and program policy issues and documents findings.

• Monitors, reviews and evaluates information on service delivery system methods, program outcomes and activities in
order to identify gaps in resources. May recommend and implement related improvements.

• Serves as liaison with, and resource for community outreach and advocacy groups, service providers and others.

• Conducts program related research and evaluates findings.

• Prepares administrative and statistical reports, studies and assists with specialized projects.

• Assists in analyzing the applications and variations of programs in order to develop action plans for program
improvement.

• Initiates or assists in initiating new program initiatives.

• May assist in determining program trends and resolving technical problems.

• May plan, develop and conduct program-related educational sessions and training. May speak to community and other
groups.

• May review case histories to evaluate the effectiveness of program standards and policies serving clients.

• Performs other job-related duties as assigned.

MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS:

Education and Experience:
Associate’s degree in Social or Behavioral Sciences or a directly related field AND three (3) years experience in social
services or field directly related to program area;

OR,

Any combination of education and experience that has been achieved and is equivalent to the stated education and
experience and required knowledge, skills, and abilities sufficient to successfully perform the duties and responsibilities
of this job.

Page 1 of 2 9’O

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Social Services Program Specialist Associate

JOB CODE: 13557 FLSA STATUS: Non-Exempt
PAY GRADE: 13 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS: (Cont.)

Licenses, Registrations, Certifications, or Special Requirements:
Valid Texas Driver’s License.

Preferred:
Bachelor’s degree in Social or Behavioral Sciences or a directly related field.

Knowledge, Skills, and Abilities:
Knowledge of:
• Policies, practices and procedures within area of assignment.
• Federal, State and Local program laws and requirements.
• Advocacy groups, social service providers and community outreach organizations.
• Computer equipment to include word processing, spreadsheets, databases and a variety of software packages.

Skill in:
• Program planning, developing and monitoring.
• Conducting education and training sessions.
• Problem-solving and decision-making.
• Both verbal and written communication.

Ability to:
• Analyze, research and evaluate findings.
• Prepare administrative and statistical reports.
• Serve as technical consultant and liaison.
• Work independently.
• Manage time well and meet timelines.
• Communicate effectively.
• Establish and maintain effective working relationships with departmental clientele, representatives of outside

agencies, other County employees and officials, community outreach and other organizations, clinical service
providers, and the general public.

WORK ENVIRONMENT AND PHYSICAL DEMANDS:

Physical requirements include the ability to lift/carry up to 25 pounds occasionally, visual acuity, speech and hearing, hand
and eye coordination and manual dexterity necessary to operate a computer and office equipment. Subject to standing,
sitting, walking, climbing stairs, bending, stooping, crouching, kneeling, pushing, pulling, reaching, twisting, balancing,
repetitive motion, driving, client/customer contact, and squatting to perform the essential functions.

This job description is intended to be generic in nature. It is not necessarily an exhaustive list of all duties
and responsibilities. The essential duties, functions and responsibilities and overtime eligibility may vary
based on the specific tasks assigned to the position.

Page2of2

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Social Services Program Specialist

JOB CODE: 16562 FLSA STATUS: Non-Exempt
PAY GRADE: 16 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

JOB SUMMARY:

Performs consultative, technical and administrative work in the planning, development, implementation and monitoring of a
social services program or programs. Analyzes program issues, completes policy and program analysis, conducts program
research and presents program-related training and education. May coordinate, or assist in coordinating the activities and
functions of a designated social services program. May function as lead over subordinate program and/or other staff.

DISTINGUISHING CHARACTERISTICS:
This is the second in a series of three social services program-related job classifications within the Social Services job
family. This classification is dedicated to work in a specific social services program or programs and is responsible for
performing consultative, technical and administrative work in the planning development, implementation and monitoring
of a social services program. This classification is distinguished from the Social Services Program Specialist Associate
and is responsible for planning, developing, implementing and monitoring a program and serving as technical program
expert and consultant. This classification may require a flexible work schedule in order to meet the needs of the
department.

DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES:

• Participates in program planning and development.

• Implements, or assists in implementing program directives and initiatives.

• Serves as technical consultant for program and related policy and provides technical assistance on program services.

• Analyzes program and program policy issues and documents findings.

• Monitors, reviews and evaluates information on service delivery system methods, program outcomes and activities in
order to identify gaps in resources. Recommends and implements related improvements.

• Works with program staff in determining trends and resolving technical problems.

• Plans, develops and conducts program-related educational sessions and training. Speaks to community and other
groups.

• Serves as liaison with, and resource for community outreach and advocacy groups, service providers and others.
Coordinates, improves and stimulates interest in the program and may secure financial support for program as
appropriate.

• Conducts program related research and evaluates findings.

• Prepares administrative and statistical reports, studies and specialized projects.

• Assists in analyzing the applications and variations of programs in order to develop action plans for program
improvement.

• Initiates or assists in initiating new program initiatives.

• May review case histories to evaluate the effectiveness of program standards and policies serving clients.

• May function as lead over subordinate program and other staff.

• Performs other job-related duties as assigned.

MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS:

Education and Experience:
Bachelor’s degree in Social or Behavioral Sciences or a directly related field AND four (4) years experience in social
services or a directly field;
OR,

Any combination of education and experience that has been achieved and is equivalent to the stated education and
experience and required knowledge, skills, and abilities sufficient to successfully perform the duties and responsibilities
of this job.

Page 1 of 2

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Social Services Program Specialist

JOB CODE: 16562 FLSA STATUS: Non-Exempt
PAY GRADE: 16 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS: (Cont.)

Licenses, Registrations, Certifications, or Special Requirements:
Valid Texas Driver’s License.

Knowledge, Skills, and Abilities:
Knowledge of:
• Policies, practices and procedures within area of assignment.
• Federal, State and Local program laws and requirements.
• Advocacy groups, social service providers and community outreach organizations.
• Computer equipment to include word processing, spreadsheets, databases and a variety of software packages.

Skill in:
• Program planning, development and monitoring.
• Conducting education and training sessions and public speaking presentations.
• Problem-solving and decision-making.
• Both verbal and written communication.

Ability to:
• Analyze, research and evaluate findings.
• Prepare administrative and statistical reports.
• Serve as technical consultant and liaison.
• Work independently.
• Manage time well and meet timelines.
• Communicate effectively.
• Establish and maintain effective working relationships with departmental clientele, representatives of outside

agencies, other County employees and officials, community outreach and other organizations, clinical service
providers, and the general public.

WORK ENVIRONMENT AND PHYSICAL DEMANDS:

Physical requirements include the ability to lift/carry up to 25 pounds occasionally, visual acuity, speech and hearing, hand
and eye coordination and manual dexterity necessary to operate a computer and office equipment. Subject to standing,
sitting, walking, climbing stairs, bending, stooping, crouching, kneeling, pushing, pulling, reaching, twisting, balancing,
repetitive motion, driving, client/customer contact, and squatting to perform the essential functions.

This job description is intended to be generic in nature. It is not necessarily an exhaustive list of all duties
and responsibilities. The essential duties, functions and responsibilities and overtime eligibility may vary
based on the specific tasks assigned to the position.

Page 2 of 2

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Social Services Program Coordinator

JOB CODE: 17564 FLSA STATUS: Exempt
PAY GRADE: 17 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

JOB SUMMARY:

Coordinates all phases of activities and functions associated with a social services program or programs. Performs
consultative, technical and administrative work in the planning, development, coordination, implementation and
monitoring of a program. Ensures that program goals and objectives are accomplished in accordance with established
priorities. Analyzes program issues, completes policy and program analysis, conducts program research and presents
program-related training and education. Typically supervises additional program staff.

DISTINGUISHING CHARACTERISTICS:

This is the third in a series of three social services program-related job classifications within the Social Services job family.
This classification is responsible for coordinating, participating in and monitoring the activities and functions of a social
services program or programs. This classification is distinguished from a Social Services Manager which has
responsibility for an entire work unit. The Social Services Program Coordinator typically coordinates larger and more
complex programs than a specialist, senior or lead staff position. This classification may require a flexible work
schedule in order to meet the needs of the department.

DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES:

• Coordinates, supervises, trains, monitors and evaluates program activities and staff.

• Plans, develops and recommends new or revised programs and goals and objectives.

• Develops and schedules program work plans, oversees daily operations and coordinates program activities.

• Determines, or assists in determining program priorities.

• Evaluates program effectiveness to develop improved methods. Devises evaluation methodology and coordinates
implementation. Analyzes results and recommends or takes appropriate action.

• Monitors and approves program expenditures within established budget. May prepare or assist in preparing proposals
for funding or funding continuation.

• Serves as technical consultant for program and related policy and provides technical and problem solving assistance on
program services. Participates in providing program services to clients.

• Analyzes and reviews analysis of program and program policy issues.

• Prepares periodic reports, financial analysis and statistical reports on program activities and program progress.

• Serves as liaison with, and resource for community outreach and advocacy groups, service providers and others.
Coordinates, improves and stimulates interest in the program and recruits program participants.

• Plans, develops and conducts program-related educational sessions and training. Speaks to community and other
groups.

• Performs other job-related duties as assigned.

MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS:

Education and Experience:
Bachelor’s degree in Social or Behavioral Sciences or a directly related field AND five (5) years experience in social
services or a directly related field, including experience coordinating a program;

OR,

Any combination of education and experience that has been achieved and is equivalent to the stated education and
experience and required knowledge, skills, and abilities sufficient to successfully perform the duties and responsibilities
of this job.

Page 1 of 2

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Social Services Program Coordinator

JOB CODE: 17564 FLSA STATUS: Exempt
PAY GRADE: 17 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS: (Cont.)

Licenses, Registrations, Certifications, or Special Requirements:
Licensed Chemical Dependency Counselor (LCDC); OR,
Qualified Credentialed Counselor (QCC).
Licensed Social Worker (LSW); OR,
Licensed Master Social Worker (LMSW).
Valid Texas Drivers License.

Preferred:
Licensed Professional Counselor (LPC).
Master’s degree in Social or Behavioral Sciences or a directly related field.
Probation or Corrections Officer Certification within six (6) months of employment.

Knowledge, Skills, and Abilities:
Knowledge of:
• Supervisory principles, practices and techniques.
• Program coordination and oversight techniques.
• Policies, practices and procedures within area of assignment.
• Federal, State and Local program laws and requirements.
• Advocacy groups, social service providers and community outreach organizations.
• Computer equipment to include word processing, spreadsheets, databases and a variety of software packages.

Skill in:
• Program planning, development, monitoring and evaluation.
• Conducting education and training sessions and public speaking presentations.
• Referring clients to appropriate social services organizations and programs.
• Problem-solving and decision-making.
• Monitoring and recommending program expenditures.
• Both verbal and written communication.

Ability to:
• Coordinate, supervise and evaluate program staff and activities.
• Analyze, research and evaluate findings.
• Prepare administrative and statistical reports.
• Serve as technical consultant and liaison.
• Work with clients to facilitate access to social services programs and resources.
• Work independently.
• Manage time well and meet timelines.
• Communicate effectively.
• Establish and maintain effective working relationships with departmental clientele, representatives of outside

agencies, other County employees and officials, community outreach and other organizations, clinical service
providers, and the general public.

WORK ENVIRONMENT AND PHYSICAL DEMANDS:
Physical requirements include the ability to lift/carry up to 25 pounds occasionally, visual acuity, speech and hearing, hand
and eye coordination and manual dexterity necessary to operate a computer and office equipment. Subject to standing,
sitting, walking, climbing stairs, bending, stooping, crouching, kneeling, pushing, pulling, reaching, twisting, balancing,
repetitive motion, driving, client/customer contact, and squatting to perform the essential functions.

This job description is intended to be generic in nature. It is not necessarily an exhaustive list of all duties
and responsibilities. The essential duties, functions and responsibilities and overtime eligibility may vary
based on the specific tasks assigned to the position.

Page 2 of 2

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Social Services Manager

JOB CODE: 18814 FLSA STATUS: Exempt
PAY GRADE: 18 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

JOB SUMMARY:

Manages the day-to-day and overall operations of a social services department, work unit or program composed of multiple
operational components and related staff. Performs managerial, consultative, technical and administrative work in the
planning, developing, overseeing implementation of and evaluating departmental goals and objectives.

DISTINGUISHING CHARACTERISTICS:

This is a job classification within the Social Services job family. This classification is responsible for managing the
operations of a social services department, work unit or program composed of multiple operational components and related
staff. This classification is distinguished from the Social Services Program Administrator which directs and manages a
large department or broad based series of multiple funded programs with broad scope of responsibility, complex budget
and large staff.

DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES:

• Directs and manages the planning and operations of a social services department, work unit or program. Oversees
subordinate managers and staff, including hiring, training, performance evaluation and disciplinary actions, ensuring
activities are consistent with policies, procedures, laws, regulations, goals and objectives.

• Plans, develops and establishes goals and objectives. Participates in, or develops strategic plans to accomplish the
goals and objectives.

• Manages service delivery and program operations for assigned area. Organizes operations and procedures. Sets
priorities, monitors activities and assignments and resolves problems.

• Provides technical advice, policy interpretation and guidance for application of appropriate procedures to staff.

• Evaluates program effectiveness to develop improved methods. Devises evaluation methodology and manages
implementation. Analyzes results and recommends or takes appropriate action.

• Develops, oversees and evaluates new and existing services and initiatives for implementation.

• Assists in, or develops budget for area of assignment. Administers budget and approves or recommends expenditures
within established budget. May prepare proposals for funding or funding continuation.

• Serves as liaison and collaborates with governmental and public agency representatives, community outreach and
advocacy groups, service providers and others. Plans, develops and manages a variety of community development
and community organizing activities. Identifies and resolves service gaps and barriers, stimulates interest in
departmental programs and services.

• Develops and participates in education and training for clients and community. Makes presentations related to
departmental programs and services.

• Prepares periodic reports, financial analysis and statistical reports on program activities and program progress.

• Performs other job-related duties as assigned.

MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS:

Education and Experience:
Bachelor’s degree in Social or Behavioral Sciences or a directly related field AND five (5) years increasingly responsible
experience in social services, including one (1) year of supervisory or management experience:

OR,

Any combination of education and experience that has been achieved and is equivalent to the stated education and
experience and required knowledge, skills, and abilities sufficient to successfully perform the duties and responsibilities
of this job.

Page 1 of 2

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Social Services Manager

JOB CODE: 18814 FLSA STATUS: Exempt
PAY GRADE: 18 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS: (Cont.)

Licenses, Registrations, Certifications, or Special Requirements:
Licensed Chemical Dependency Counselor (LCDC); OR,
Qualified Credentialed Counselor (QCC).
Licensed Social Worker (LSW); OR,
Licensed Master Social Worker (LMSW).
Valid Texas Driver’s License.

Preferred:
Licensed Professional Counselor (LPC).
Master’s degree in Social or Behavioral Sciences or a directly related field.

Knowledge, Skills, and Abilities:
Knowledge of:
• Management and supervisory principles, practices and techniques.
• Policies, practices and procedures within area of assignment.
• Federal, State and Local program laws and requirements.
• Advocacy groups, social service providers and community outreach organizations.
• Budgetary practices and techniques.
• Modern office practices, procedures and methods.
• Computer equipment to include word processing, spreadsheets, databases and a variety of software packages.
• Business letter writing, grammar and punctuation, and report preparation.

Skill in:
• Planning, development, monitoring and evaluation of social service programs and services.
• Supervising others, allocating resources and evaluating programs.
• Leadership and community collaboration.
• Problem-solving and decision-making.
• Operating a variety of modern office equipment, including a computer.
• Both verbal and written communication, including presentations.

Ability to:
• Motivate, train, supervise and develop and evaluate staff.
• Serve as technical consultant and liaison.
• Create and recommend department and program initiatives.
• Prepare administrative and statistical reports.
• Communicate effectively.
• Work independently.
• Manage time well and perform multiple tasks, and organize diverse activities.
• Establish and maintain effective working relationships with departmental clientele, representatives of outside

agencies, other County employees and officials, and the general public.

WORK ENVIRONMENT AND PHYSICAL DEMANDS:

Physical requirements include the ability to lift/carry up to 25 pounds occasionally, visual acuity, speech and hearing, hand
and eye coordination and manual dexterity necessary to operate a computer and office equipment. Subject to standing,
sitting, walking, climbing stairs, bending, stooping, crouching, kneeling, pushing, pulling, reaching, twisting, balancing,
repetitive motion, driving, client’customer contact, and squatting to perform the essential functions.

This job description is intended to be generic in nature. It is not necessarily an exhaustive list of all duties
and responsibilities. The essential duties, functions and responsibilities and overtime eligibility may vary
based on the specific tasks assigned to the position.

Page 2 of 2 77

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Social Services Program Administrator

JOB CODE: 20560 FLSA STATUS: Exempt
PAY GRADE: 20 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

JOB SUMMARY:

Directs the overall operations and staff of a comprehensive and complex social services program. Directs the day-to-day
operations through subordinate managers and supervisors. Plans and develops policies, procedures and programs to
accomplish goals and objectives. Oversees and performs managerial, consultative, technical and administrative work,
develops and recommends strategic plans and new program initiatives, and directs and prepares annual budget.

DISTINGUISHING CHARACTERISTICS:

This is a job classification within the Social Services job family. This classification is responsible for directing the operations
and staff of a comprehensive and complex social services program. This classification is distinguished from the Social
Services Manager by the responsibility for developing strategic plans, goals and objectives, initiatives, and budget for a
large, comprehensive, complex program or programs. The classification has a broad scope of operational and staff
responsibility and typically directs through subordinate managers.

DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES:

• Directs the planning and operations of a comprehensive and complex social services program. Directs subordinate
managers and staff, including hiring, training, performance evaluation, disciplinary actions and dismissals, ensuring
activities are consistent with policies, procedures, laws, regulations, goals and objectives. Creates opportunities for
improved performance, learning and development of staff, and identifies and addresses problems or conflicts.

• Directs and participates in the planning, developing and establishing of goals and objectives. Develops strategic
plans, policies and programs to accomplish the goals and objectives.

• Directs the service delivery and program operations. Oversees the establishing of procedures and priorities and directs
the monitoring of activities and assignments to achieve desired results. Resolves problems.

• Evaluates effectiveness of programs and operations and develops new and modified initiatives to improve
effectiveness. Directs the implementation and monitoring of new and existing programs.

• Provides high-level technical advice, policy interpretation and guidance for application of appropriate procedures to
managers and other staff.

• Directs and participates in development of annual program budget. Directs ongoing administration of approved budget
and oversees expenditures. Prepares proposals for funding or funding continuation, as required.

• Represents the organization and collaborates with governmental and public agency representatives, community
outreach and advocacy groups, service providers and others. Plans, develops and directs a variety of community
development and community organizing activities. Identifies and resolves service gaps and barriers, stimulates interest
in programs and services.

• Directs the development of, and participation in training and education programs for clients, social service providers,
community organizations and others.

• Prepares periodic reports, financial analysis and statistical reports on program activities, results and performance.

• Performs other job-related duties as assigned.

MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS:

Education and Experience:
Bachelor’s degree in Social or Behavioral Sciences or a directly related field AND seven (7) years increasingly
responsible experience in social services, including two (2) years of supervisory or management experience;

OR,

Any combination of education and experience that has been achieved and is equivalent to the stated education and
experience and required knowledge, skills, and abilities sufficient to successfully perform the duties and responsibilities
of this job.

Page 1 of 2 ck;i’8;J

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Social Services Program Administrator

JOB CODE: 20560 FLSA STATUS: Exempt
PAY GRADE: 20 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS: (Cont.)

Licenses, Registrations, Certifications, or Special Requirements:
Valid Texas Driver’s License.

Preferred:
Master’s degree in Social or Behavioral Sciences or a directly related field.

Knowledge, Skills, and Abilities:
Knowledge of:
• Management and supervisory principles, practices and techniques.
• Program administration and oversight techniques.
• Policies, practices and procedures within area of assignment.
• Federal, State and Local program laws and requirements.
• Advocacy groups, social service providers and community outreach organizations.
• Budgetary practices and techniques.
• Modern office practices, procedures and methods.
• Computer equipment to include word processing, spreadsheets, databases and a variety of software packages.
• Business letter writing, grammar and punctuation, and report preparation.

Skill in:
• Strategic planning, development, monitoring and evaluation of social service programs and services.
• Supervising others, allocating resources and evaluating programs.
• Leadership and community collaboration.
• Problem-solving and decision-making.
• Developing and monitoring program budgets.
• Operating a variety of modern office equipment, including a computer.
• Both verbal and written communication, including presentations.

Ability to:
• Direct, motivate, train, develop and evaluate staff.
• Serve as technical consultant and liaison.
• Create and recommend program initiatives.
• Prepare administrative and statistical reports.
• Communicate effectively.
• Work independently.
• Manage time well and perform multiple tasks, and organize diverse activities.
• Establish and maintain effective working relationships with departmental clientele, representatives of outside

agencies and providers, other County employees and officials, and the general public.

WORK ENVIRONMENT AND PHYSICAL DEMANDS:

Physical requirements include the ability to lift/carry up to 25 pounds occasionally, visual acuity, speech and hearing, hand
and eye coordination and manual dexterity necessary to operate a computer and office equipment. Subject to standing,
sitting, walking, climbing stairs, bending, stooping, crouching, kneeling, pushing, pulling, reaching, twisting, balancing,
repetitive motion, driving, client/customer contact, and squatting to perform the essential functions.

This job description is intended to be generic in nature. It is not necessarily an exhaustive list of all duties
and responsibilities. The essential duties, functions and responsibilities and overtime eligibility may vary
based on the specific tasks assigned to the position.

Page2of2

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Social Worker

JOB CODE: 17813 FLSA STATUS: Exempt
PAY GRADE: 17 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

JOB SUMMARY:

Provides social work services to clients and families to include case management, psychosocial and/or needs
assessments. Develops client/family individualized service plans and monitors progress. Utilizes community resources
to assist clients and their families and provides client/family education, training and advocacy.

DISTINGUISHING CHARACTERISTICS:

This is a job classification within the Social Services job family. This classification is distinguished from other social
services classes due to the social work functions and services provided to clients. This classification performs case
management, psychosocial and/or needs assessments, develops client service plans and accesses community
resources to assist clients. This classification may require a flexible work schedule in order to meet the needs of the
department.

DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES:

• Conducts client and/or family psychosocial and/or needs assessment and obtains maximum benefit from all
available sources.

• Develops and implements client/family individualized service plans and monitors progress. Conducts periodic and
final assessments to determine progress, client barriers, follow-up needs and client outcomes.

• Provides brief counseling and crisis intervention to individuals and/or their families to resolve crisis, prevent future
crisis and promote progress toward self-sufficiency and individualized service plan goals and outcomes.

• Provides short or long-term case management and service coordination in manners and settings condusive to best
client outcomes. Utilizes community resources to assist client in learning to live as a self-sufficient member of the
community, including, but not limited to, medical resources, local, state and federal agencies, community-based
agencies and other resources.

• Participates in community collaboration for resource development and elimination of duplication of services. Serves
as member of community groups advocating for client populations and needs.

• Provides client/family education, training and advocacy.

• Maintains current knowledge about resource availability, service costs and budgetary parameters and remains
fiscally responsible in carrying out all case management functions and activities.

• Participates in evaluative and quality assurance activities designed to monitor the appropriateness and effectiveness
of both the service delivery system in which case management operates as well as the case manager’s own case
management services. Ensures full professional accountability. Uses evidence based practices and remains
current with standards of profession.

• Writes informational reports and compiles data/information in accordance with professional standards and policies.

• Participates and coordinates in case reviews involving client/family and other service providers.

• Provides information, referral and linkage services to all community residents.

• Performs other job-related duties as assigned.

MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS:

Education and Experience:
Master’s degree in Social Work AND two (2) years social work experience counseling individuals in crisis/trauma
situations.

Licenses, Registrations, Certifications, or Special Requirements:
Licensed Master Social Worker (LMSW).
Valid Texas Driver’s License.

Page 1 of 2 L59

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Social Worker

JOB CODE: 17813 FLSA STATUS: Exempt
PAY GRADE: 17 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS: (Cont.)

Knowledge, Skills, and Abilities:
Knowledge of:
• Theoretical constructs of human development and social work theory and practices.
• Policies, practices, procedures and terminology of assigned function.
• Local social services, organizations and programs and the resources available.
• Crisis intervention and counseling techniques.
• Requirements for categorical assistance programs.
• Psychosocial factors impacted by stressors, illness and disability and intervention techniques.
• Federal, State and Local program laws and requirements.
• Financial resources available to clients.
• Modern office practices, procedures and methods.
• Computer equipment to include word processing, spreadsheets, databases and a variety of software packages.

Skill in:
• Counseling and providing crisis and other assistance to clients.
• Assessing the medical, psychosocial and environmental status of clients.
• Determining types of counseling, social service provider and other services indicated for clients.
• Referring clients to appropriate social services organizations and programs.
• Crisis intervention and counseling techniques used in trauma, grief or crisis situations.
• Obtaining services for clients.
• Planning and organizing social service programs and activities.
• Application of casework principles.
• Interviewing and obtaining information from clients and other sources.
• Problem-solving and decision-making.
• Both verbal and written communication.

Ability to:
• Apply social work and counseling theory, practice and procedures.
• Deal effectively with persons experiencing crises and economic stress.
• Work effectively and courteously under high-pressure circumstances.
• Prepare accurate and complete records and reports.
• Demonstrate consistent, sound and mature judgment in the effective and efficient use of human and financial

resources.
• Deal effectively with mentally disturbed, hostile and aggressive individuals.
• Work independently.
• Manage time well and meet timelines.
• Communicate effectively.
• Establish and maintain effective working relationships with departmental clientele, representatives of outside agencies,

other County employees and officials, and the general public.

WORK ENVIRONMENT AND PHYSICAL DEMANDS:

Physical requirements include the ability to lift/carry up to 25 pounds occasionally, visual acuity, speech and hearing, hand
and eye coordination and manual dexterity necessary to operate a computer and office equipment. Subject to standing,
sitting, walking, climbing stairs, bending, stooping, crouching, kneeling, pushing, pulling, reaching, twisting, balancing,
repetitive motion, driving, client/customer contact, and squatting to perform the essential functions.

This job description is intended to be generic in nature. It is not necessarily an exhaustive list of all duties
and responsibilities. The essential duties, functions and responsibilities and overtime eligibility may vary
based on the specific tasks assigned to the position.

Page2of2

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Psychologist

JOB CODE: 23694 FLSA STATUS: Exempt
PAY GRADE: 23 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

JOB SUMMARY:

Under administrative direction, performs work of directing psychological programs and services, conducting
psychological testing and evaluations, managing case planning and strategies, assigning and reviewing all psychological
screenings and consultation to assist in making decisions related to treatment plans and court case dispositions, and
diagnosing and counseling offenders. Providing consultation and training on conducting counseling sessions and
conducting psychological research. Provides supervision to master’s level psychology staff. Works under minimal
supervision with extensive latitude for the use of initiative and independent judgment.

DISTINGUISHING CHARACTERISTICS:

This is a job classification within the Social Services job family. This classification serves as primary Psychologist. This
classification may require a flexible work schedule in order to meet the needs of the department.

DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES:

• Plans and directs psychological programs and services. Conducts psychological testing and evaluations. Manages
case planning and strategies. Assigns and reviews all psychological screenings and consultation to assist in making
decisions related to treatment plans and court case dispositions and diagnoses and counsels offenders.

• Develops, coordinates and evaluates mental health delivery programs and services. Develops systems for
improved management or administration.

• Recommends, implements and administers policies and procedures.

• Directs administrative activities in the office. Directs the work and activities of professional and support staff,
including master’s level psychology interns, which includes hiring, training, work distribution, performance appraisal
and discipline.

• Conducts psychological research. Provides outreach services. Assists with program evaluation studies. Plans and
directs research studies and projects, ensuring findings are appropriately disseminated.

• Provides consultation, training and technical assistance to staff. Designs, supervises and conducts workshops on
psychological topics for staff and the community.

• Provides consultation to the staff regarding case management in the design and implementation of special treatment
programs. Determines nature and extent of treatment programs. Reviews psychological reports for completeness
and accuracy and prepares written reports. Maintain documentation of service delivery in accordance with
standards of the profession. Organizes patient’s data.

• Provides court testimony as an expert witness.

• Serves on various committees, as required.

• Performs other job-related duties as assigned.

MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS:

Education and Experience:
Ph.D. degree in Psychology AND two (2) years of experience in assessment and counseling with an adolescent
population.

Licenses, Registrations, Certifications, or Special Requirements:
Licensed as a Psychologist issued by the Texas State Medical Board of Psychology.
Valid Texas Driver’s License.

Page 1 of 2

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Psychologist

JOB CODE: 23694 FLSA STATUS: Exempt
PAY GRADE: 23 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS: (Cont.)

Knowledcie. Skills, and Abilities:
Knowledge of:
• Psychology, psychometry, psychopathy and physiological principles.
• Diagnostic criteria.
• Psychological evaluation methods.
• Policies, procedures, rules and regulations.
• Child and adolescent development.

Skill in:
• Using psychological evaluation and assessment techniques and apply mediation procedures.
• Interpreting diagnostic evaluations and analyzing behavior.
• Preparing and maintaining accurate records, files and reports.
• Supervising and training employees.
• Interacting effectively with all levels of management, employees and outside contacts.
• Exercising independent judgment under minimal supervision.
• Both verbal and written communication.

Ability to:
• Plan and direct psychological activities and research.
• Organize workloads.
• Provide psychological counseling.
• Plan, assign and/or supervise the work of others.
• Establish and maintain effective working relationships with County employees and officials, representatives of outside

agencies, and the general public.

WORK ENVIRONMENT AND PHYSICAL DEMANDS:

Physical requirements include the ability to lift/carry up to 35-1 00 pounds occasionally, visual acuity, speech and hearing,
hand and eye coordination and manual dexterity necessary to operate a computer and office equipment. Subject to
standing, sitting, walking, climbing stairs, bending, stooping, crouching, kneeling, pushing, pulling, reaching, repetitive
motion, twisting, balancing, repetitive motion, client/customer contact, squatting, and occasional indoor/outdoor activities to
perform the essential functions. Subject to contact with communicable diseases, radiation, hazardous waste, human fecal
matter and foul odors.

This job description is intended to be generic in nature. It is not necessarily an exhaustive list of all duties
and responsibilities. The essential duties, functions and responsibilities and overtime eligibility may vary
based on the specific tasks assigned to the position.

Page2of2

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Engineering Technician

JOB CODE: 13257 FLSA STATUS: Non-Exempt
PAY GRADE: 13 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

JOB SUMMARY:

Performs technical engineering work, including design and drafting activities. Provides technical engineering and property
information. Reviews and interprets engineering projects for accuracy and compliance. Performs all work using
appropriate safety procedures.

DISTINGUISHING CHARACTERISTICS:

This is the first in a series of two engineering-related job classifications within the Engineering and Support Services job
family. This classification is distinguished by the performance of more routine duties assigned. Work is performed
under the direct supervision of a professional engineer. This classification may require a flexible work schedule in order
to meet the needs of the department.

DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES:

• Performs routine design work and drafting plans for engineering projects. Assists in preparing project estimates.

• Develops, maintains and updates engineering databases and other associated computer systems. Performs
engineering calculations. Develops technical and administrative project reports.

• Reviews and interprets engineering projects for accuracy and compliance with applicable laws, regulatory codes,
rules, permits, licenses, standards, policies and procedures.

• Participates in the processing of permits. Calculates and collects payment of fees.

• Researches, investigates and analyzes issues. Prepares recommendations for professional staff.

• Provides technical engineering and property information to the public, County staff and officials, developers,
designers, architects, engineers, contractors and representatives of outside agencies.

• Maintains accurate records and notes of office work activities.

• Performs other job-related duties as assigned.

MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS:

Education and Experience:
Associate’s degree in a related Engineering or Drafting discipline AND two (2) years related increasingly responsible
engineering work experience in the areas of design and drafting;

OR,

Any combination of education and experience that has been achieved and is equivalent to the stated education and
experience and required knowledge, skills, and abilities sufficient to successfully perform the duties and responsibilities
of this job.

Licenses, Registrations, Certifications, or Special Requirements:
Valid Texas Driver’s License.

Knowledge, Skills, and Abilities:
Knowledge of:
• Principles, methods, practices and techniques of designing and drafting.
• Advanced mathematical and statistical methods as used in engineering and planning.
• Federal, State, Local and County applicable laws, rules, regulations, permits, licenses, practices, standards, policies

and procedures.
• Engineering maps and records.
• Principles and practices related to public works projects and or contract plans, specifications and estimates.

Page 1 of2 2 3 ‘/

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Engineering Technician

JOB CODE: 13257 FLSA STATUS: Non-Exempt
PAY GRADE: 13 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS: (Cont.)

Knowledge of: (Cont.)
• Methods, practices, and techniques of inspections, compliance and enforcement.
• Computer equipment to include word processing, presentations, spreadsheets, databases, maps, records, graphics,

project scheduling and management, and other related engineering applications.
• Business letter writing, grammar and punctuation, and report preparation.

Skill in:
• Preparing technical engineering drawings.
• Analyzing data, technical engineering data and reports.
• Applying principles and practices as used in engineering.
• Adapting approved engineering methods and standards a variety of engineering projects.
• Using and caring for equipment, tools and testing materials.
• Using and caring for computer-aided design and drafting (CADD), Geographic Information System (GIS) and other

related electronic equipment.
• Explaining complicated technical problems in simple non-technical language.
• Problem-solving and technical decision-making for developing effective solutions.
• Both verbal and written communication.

Ability to:
• Interpret maps, plans, specifications, standards, policies, procedures and regulatory codes.
• Perform technical research, calculations, and computations, and prepare plans and reports.
• Manage time well, perform multiple tasks and organize diverse activities.
• Convey ideas and concepts verbally and in writing.
• Perform in a stressful environment while maintaining a professional manner.
• Continue professional growth through continuing education.
• Establish and maintain effective working relationships with County employees and officials, developers, engineers,

contractors, representatives of outside agencies, and the general public.

WORK ENVIRONMENT AND PHYSICAL DEMANDS:

Physical requirements include the ability to lift/carry up to 10-60 pounds occasionally, visual acuity, mental effort, speech
and hearing, hand and eye coordination and manual dexterity necessary to operate a computer, and viewing screens for
long periods. Subject to standing, sitting, walking, climbing stairs, bending, stooping, squatting, crouching, kneeling,
pushing, pulling, reaching, twisting, balancing, driving, repetitive motion, and client/customer contact to perform the
essential functions. Subject to contact with noise, vibration, fumes, foul odor, dirt, dust, mist, gases, and poor ventilation.
Requires use of protective devices such as masks, goggles, and gloves. Requires fieldwork, and exposure to traffic, public
work development sites, construction site hazards, climbing and walking and traveling over rough, uneven, mud, rocky,
high grass terrain, and indoors/outdoors in all types of weather (excessive heat and cold).

This job description is intended to be generic in nature. It is not necessarily an exhaustive list of all duties
and responsibilities. The essential duties, functions and responsibilities and overtime eligibility may vary
based on the specific tasks assigned to the position.

Page 2 of 2

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Engineering Technician Senior

JOB CODE: 15258 FLSA STATUS: Non-Exempt
PAY GRADE: 15 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

JOB SUMMARY:

Performs technical engineering work, including design and drafting activities. Provides technical engineering and property
information. Reviews and interprets engineering projects for accuracy and compliance. Performs all work using
appropriate safety procedures. May lead or supervise staff.

DISTINGUISHING CHARACTERISTICS:

This is the second in a series of two engineering-related job classifications within the Engineering and Support Services
job family. This classification is distinguished by the performance of more variety and complex duties assigned. This
classification may lead or supervise staff. Work is performed under the direct supervision of a professional engineer.
This classification may require a flexible work schedule in order to meet the needs of the department.

DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES:

• Performs more variety and complex design work and drafting plans for engineering projects. Prepares project
estimates.

• May assign, review work and train staff.

• Develops, maintains and updates engineering databases and other associated computer systems. Performs
engineering calculations. Develops technical and administrative project reports.

• Reviews and interprets engineering projects for accuracy and compliance with applicable laws, regulatory codes,
rules, permits, licenses, standards, policies and procedures.

• Researches, investigates and analyzes issues. Prepares recommendations for professional staff.

• Provides technical engineering and property information to the public, County staff and officials, developers,
designers, architects, engineers, contractors and representatives of outside agencies.

• Acts as computer-aided design and drafting (CADD) coordinator for other County staff and officials. Develops
CADD standards, establishes and maintains working relationships with CADD software providers.

• Maintains accurate records and notes, and of office work activities.

• Performs other job-related duties as assigned.

MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS:

Education and Experience:
Associate’s degree in a related Engineering or Drafting discipline AND three (3) years related increasingly responsible
engineering work experience in the areas of design and drafting;

OR,

Any combination of education and experience that has been achieved and is equivalent to the stated education and
experience and required knowledge, skills, and abilities sufficient to successfully perform the duties and responsibilities
of this job.

Licenses, Registrations, Certifications, or Special Requirements:
Valid Texas Driver’s License.

Preferred:
One (1) year of lead or supervisory level experience.

Pagelof3

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Engineering Technician Senior

JOB CODE: 15258 FLSA STATUS: Non-Exempt
PAY GRADE: 15 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS: (Cont.)

Knowledge, Skills, and Abilities:
Knowledge of:
• Principles, methods, practices and techniques of designing and drafting.
• Advanced mathematical and statistical methods as used in engineering and planning.
• Engineering maps and records.
• Management and supervisory principles, practices and techniques.
• Principles and practices related to public works projects and or contract plans, specifications and estimates.
• Methods, practices, and techniques of inspections, compliance and enforcement.
• Federal, State, Local and County applicable laws, rules, regulations, permits, licenses, practices, standards, policies

and procedures.
• Computer-aided design and drafting (CADD) software and related third party software.
• Computer equipment to include word processing, presentations, spreadsheets, databases, maps, records, graphics,

project scheduling and management, and other related engineering applications.
• Business letter writing, grammar and punctuation, and report preparation.

Skill in:
• Preparing technical engineering drawings.
• Analyzing data, technical engineering data and reports.
• Applying principles and practices as used in engineering.
• Adapting approved engineering methods and standards a variety of engineering projects.
• Using and caring for equipment, tools and testing materials.
• Using and caring for computer-aided design and drafting (CADD), Geographic Information System (GIS), Global

Positioning System (GPS) processing, survey data collection processing and other related electronic equipment.
• Supervising others, including team building.
• Explaining complicated technical problems in simple non-technical language.
• Problem-solving and technical decision-making for developing effective solutions.
• Both verbal and written communication.

Ability to:
• Train, lead, supervise and motivate employees.
• Interpret maps, plans, specifications, standards, policies, procedures and regulatory codes.
• Perform technical research, calculations, and computations, and prepare plans and reports.
• Plan, assign, supervise and review the work of subordinates.
• Manage time well, perform multiple tasks and organize diverse activities.
• Convey ideas and concepts verbally and in writing.
• Perform in a stressful environment while maintaining a professional manner.
• Continue professional growth through continuing education.
• Establish and maintain effective working relationships with County employees and officials, developers, engineers,

contractors, representatives of outside agencies, and the general public.

Page2of3 c57

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Engineering Technician Senior

JOB CODE: 15258 FLSA STATUS: Non-Exempt
PAY GRADE: 15 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

WORK ENVIRONMENT AND PHYSICAL DEMANDS:

Physical requirements include the ability to lift/carry up to 10-60 pounds occasionally, visual acuity, mental effort, speech
and hearing, hand and eye coordination and manual dexterity necessary to operate a computer, and viewing screens for
long periods. Subject to standing, sitting, walking, climbing stairs, bending, stooping, squatting, crouching, kneeling,
pushing, pulling, reaching, twisting, balancing, driving, repetitive motion, and client/customer contact to perform the
essential functions. Subject to contact with noise, vibration, fumes, foul odor, dirt, dust, mist, gases, and poor ventilation.
Requires use of protective devices such as masks, goggles, and gloves. Requires fieldwork, and exposure to traffic, public
work development sites, construction site hazards, climbing and walking and traveling over rough, uneven, mud, rocky,
high grass terrain, and indoors/outdoors in all types of weather (excessive heat and cold).

This job description is intended to be generic in nature. It is not necessarily an exhaustive list of all duties
and responsibilities. The essential duties, functions and responsibilities and overtime eligibility may vary
based on the specific tasks assigned to the position.

Page 3of3

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Engineering Specialist

JOB CODE: 17250 FLSA STATUS: Exempt
PAY GRADE: 17 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

JOB SUMMARY:

Under general supervision, functions as project designer over small less-complex public work projects. Performs all
work using appropriate safety procedures.

DISTINGUISHING CHARACTERISTICS:

This is the first in a series of two engineering-related job classifications within the Engineering and Support Services job
family. This classification is distinguished by the scope of project work. Work is performed under the direct supervision
of a professional engineer. This classification may require a flexible work schedule in order to meet the needs of the
department.

DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES:

• Functions as project designer providing engineering design and analysis support for public/private small less-
complex work projects of varying complexity. Scopes public works projects, develops project schedules and
budgets, develops and completes project planning documents, designs, specifications and estimates. Plans and
designs roadways, structures, and parks, including hydraulic designs, traffic control, various land surveys and utility
relocations.

• Performs contract and construction management duties for public works projects. Conducts work on construction
quality assurance, contract administration, permit inspection and compliance, utility relocation coordination and
inspection, and assurance of contractor compliance with traffic control requirements.

• May be responsible for traffic safety issues and concerns. Conducts and analyzes traffic count data, investigates
and responds to traffic work orders, performs data entry, and maintains a statistical database on countywide
vehicular accidents.

• May review street and drainage plans and subdivision plans prepared by others to ensure compliance. Completes
work orders. Develops and manages databases.

• May be responsible for processing, coordinating, tracking and assuring that fiscal security status is updated.
Recommends proper action to take regarding fiscal status.

• Reviews plans to ensure compliance. Reviews for approval of various permit and license applications. Reviews
license agreements. Coordinates construction activities with other agencies. Verifies plans for compliance with
regulations and standards. Collects and deposits revenue generated by permit reviews. Directs funds to correct
accounts.

• Continues professional growth through continuing education.

• Performs other job-related duties as assigned.

MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS:

Education and Experience:
Bachelor’s degree in Civil Engineering AND one (1) year of directly related increasingly responsible engineering design
and/or analysis work experience;

OR,

Any combination of education and experience that has been achieved and is equivalent to the stated education and
experience and required knowledge, skills, and abilities sufficient to successfully perform the duties and responsibilities
of this job.

Licenses, Registrations, Certifications, or Special Requirements:
Valid Texas Driver’s License.

Page 1 of 3 7

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Engineering Specialist

JOB CODE: 17250 FLSA STATUS: Exempt
PAY GRADE: 17 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS: (Cont.)

Preferred:
Ability to achieve Engineer-in-Training (E.I.T.) certification issued by the State of Texas.
Certified Erosion, Sediment and Storm Water Inspector (CESSWI); OR,
Certified Inspector of Sediment and Erosion Control (CISEC); OR,
Certified Professional in Erosion and Sediment Control (CPESC)

Knowledge, Skills, and Abilities:
Knowledge of:
• Principles, procedures, practices, programs, systems, methods and techniques of engineering.
• Principles and practices related to public works projects and or contract plans, specifications and estimates.
• Materials sampling and testing procedures, permit requirements, utility construction requirements, and traffic control

policies and standards is required, as well as familiarity with construction techniques.
• Design standards and policies.
• Requirements, purpose, and limitations of various permits, security fiscal, licenses, and regulations.
• Advanced mathematical and statistical methods as used in engineering and planning.
• Methods, practices, and techniques of inspections, compliance, and enforcement.
• Recent developments and current literature regarding engineering.
• Principles of project management, including scheduling, estimating, contracts, budgeting.
• Federal, State, Local and County applicable laws, rules, regulations, permits, licenses, practices, standards, policies

and procedures.
• Computer equipment to include word processing, presentations, spreadsheets, databases, maps, records, graphics,

project scheduling and management, and other related engineering applications.
• Business letter writing, grammar and punctuation, and report preparation.

Skill in:
• Analyzing data, technical engineering data and reports.
• Applying principles and practices as used in engineering.
• Adapting approved engineering methods and standards a variety of engineering projects.
• Using and caring for equipment, tools, and testing materials.
• Using and caring for computer-aided design and drafting (CADD), Geographic Information System (GIS), and other

related electronic equipment.
• Explaining complicated technical problems in simple non-technical language.
• Problem-solving and technical decision-making for developing effective solutions.
• Both verbal and written communication.

Ability to:
• Perform engineering studies, analysis and design.
• Work independently.
• Exercise sound judgment and make decisions.
• Manage time well, perform multiple tasks and organize diverse activities.
• Perform technical research, calculations, and computations, and prepare plans and reports.
• Convey ideas and concepts verbally and in writing.
• Interpret plans, specifications, standards, policies, procedures and regulatory codes.
• Perform in a stressful environment while maintaining a professional manner.
• Continue professional growth through continuing education.
• Establish and maintain effective working relationships with County employees and officials, developers, engineers,

contractors, representatives of outside agencies, and the general public.

Page 2 of 3

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Engineering Specialist

JOB CODE: 17250 FLSA STATUS: Exempt
PAY GRADE: 17 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

WORK ENVIRONMENT AND PHYSICAL DEMANDS:

Physical requirements include the ability to lift/carry up to 10-60 pounds occasionally, visual acuity, mental effort, speech
and hearing, hand and eye coordination and manual dexterity necessary to operate a computer, and viewing screens for
long periods. Subject to standing, sitting, walking, climbing stairs, bending, stooping, squatting, crouching, kneeling,
pushing, pulling, reaching, twisting, balancing, driving, repetitive motion, and client/customer contact to perform the
essential functions. Subject to contact with noise, vibration, fumes, foul odor, dirt, dust, mist, gases, and poor ventilation.
Requires use of protective devices such as masks, goggles, and gloves. Requires fieldwork, and exposure to traffic, public
work development sites, construction site hazards, climbing and walking and traveling over rough, uneven, mud, rocky,
high grass terrain, and indoors/outdoors in all types of weather (excessive heat and cold).

This job description is intended to be generic in nature. It is not necessarily an exhaustive list of all duties
and responsibilities. The essential duties, functions and responsibilities and overtime eligibility may vary
based on the specific tasks assigned to the position.

Page 3 of 3

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Engineering Specialist Senior

JOB CODE: 19251 FLSA STATUS: Exempt
PAY GRADE: 19 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

JOB SUMMARY:

Under general supervision, provides engineering design and analysis support and engineering analysis over small public
works projects of varying complexity. Performs all work using appropriate safety procedures.

DISTINGUISHING CHARACTERISTICS:

This is the second in a series of two engineering-related job classifications within the Engineering and Support Services
job family. This classification is distinguished by the scope of project work, Engineer in Training (EIT) Certificate, and
required additional experience. This classification may require a flexible work schedule in order to meet the needs of the
department.

DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES:

• Functions as project designer providing engineering design and analysis support for public/private work projects of
varying complexity. Scopes public works projects, develops project schedules and budgets, develops and
completes project planning documents, designs, specifications and estimates. Plans and designs roadways,
structures and parks, including hydraulic designs, traffic control, various land surveys and utility relocations.

• Collects and analyzes data, scopes projects, develops project schedules and makes recommendations. Provides
plan reviews and engineering analysis on proposed designs for private and public projects.

• Performs contract and construction management duties for public works projects. Conducts work on construction
quality assurance, contract administration, permit inspection and compliance, utility relocation coordination and
inspection, and assurance of contractor compliance with traffic control requirements.

• Reviews plans to ensure compliance. Reviews for approval of various permit and license applications. Reviews
license agreements. Evaluates bid proposals and recommend selections, coordinates construction activities with
other agencies. Develops and issues work orders. Verifies plans for compliance with regulations and standards.
Collects and deposits revenue generated by permit reviews. Directs funds to correct accounts.

• Coordinates and corresponds with Federal Emergency Management Association (FEMA) and general public
concerning regulations.

• May review street and drainage plans and subdivision plans prepared by others to ensure compliance. Completes
work orders. Develops and manages databases.

• May supervise staff, as required.

• Represents the County in attending meetings, community meetings, seminars, conferences, professional
associations meetings, private organizations and participates on related committees. Continue professional growth
through continuing education.

• Performs other job-related duties as assigned.

MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS:

Education and Experience:
Bachelor’s degree in Civil Engineering AND two (2) years of directly related, increasingly responsible engineering design
and/or analysis work experience, including one (1) year of lead experience;

OR,

Any combination of education and experience that has been achieved and is equivalent to the stated education and
experience and required knowledge, skills, and abilities sufficient to successfully perform the duties and responsibilities
of this job.

Licenses, Registrations, Certifications, or Special Requirements:
Valid Texas Driver’s License.

Page 1 of 3

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Engineering Specialist Senior

JOB CODE: 19251 FLSA STATUS: Exempt
PAY GRADE: 19 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS: (Cont.)

Preferred:
Ability to achieve Engineer-in-Training (E.l.T.) certification issued by the State of Texas.

Knowledge, Skills, and Abilities:
Knowledge of:
• Principles, procedures, practices, programs, systems, methods and techniques of engineering.
• Principles and practices related to public works projects and or contract plans, specifications and estimates.
• Materials sampling and testing procedures, permit requirements, utility construction requirements, and traffic control

policies and standards is required, as well as familiarity with construction techniques.
• Design standards and policies.
• Requirements, purpose, and limitations of various permits, security fiscal, licenses, and regulations.
• Advanced mathematical and statistical methods as used in engineering and planning.
• Principles of project management, including scheduling, estimating, contracts and budgeting.
• Federal, State, Local and County applicable laws, rules, regulations, permits, licenses, practices, standards, policies

and procedures.
• Recent developments and current literature regarding engineering.
• Methods, practices, and techniques of inspections, compliance, and enforcement.
• Computer equipment to include word processing, presentations, spreadsheets, databases, maps, records, graphics,

project scheduling and management, and other related engineering applications.
• Business letter writing, grammar and punctuation, and report preparation.

Skill in:
• Analyzing data, technical engineering data and reports.
• Applying principles and practices as used in engineering.
• Adapting approved engineering methods and standards a variety of engineering projects.
• Using and caring for equipment, tools and testing materials.
• Using and caring for computer-aided design and drafting (CADD), Geographic Information System (GIS) and other

related electronic equipment.
• Explaining complicated technical problems in simple non-technical language.
• Problem-solving and technical decision-making for developing effective solutions.
• Both verbal and written communication.

Ability to:
• Perform engineering studies, analysis and design.
• Work independently.
• Exercise sound judgment and make decisions.
• Manage time well, perform multiple tasks and organize diverse activities.
• Perform technical research, calculations, and computations, and prepare plans and reports.
• Convey ideas and concepts verbally and in writing.
• Interpret plans, specifications, standards, policies, procedures and regulatory codes.
• Perform in a stressful environment while maintaining a professional manner.
• Continue professional growth through continuing education.
• Establish and maintain effective working relationships with County employees and officials, developers, engineers,

contractors, representatives of outside agencies, and the general public.

Page 2 of 3

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Engineering Specialist Senior

JOB CODE: 19251 FLSA STATUS: Exempt
PAY GRADE: 19 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

WORK ENVIRONMENT AND PHYSICAL DEMANDS:

Physical requirements include the ability to lift/carry up to 10-60 pounds occasionally, visual acuity, mental effort, speech
and hearing, hand and eye coordination and manual dexterity necessary to operate a computer, and viewing screens for
long periods. Subject to standing, sitting, walking, climbing stairs, bending, stooping, squatting, crouching, kneeling,
pushing, pulling, reaching, twisting, balancing, driving, repetitive motion, and client/customer contact to perform the
essential functions. Subject to contact with noise, vibration, fumes, foul odor, dirt, dust, mist, gases, and poor ventilation.
Requires use of protective devices such as masks, goggles, and gloves. Requires fieldwork, and exposure to traffic, public
work development sites, construction site hazards, climbing and walking and traveling over rough, uneven, mud, rocky,
high grass terrain, and indoors/outdoors in all types of weather (excessive heat and cold).

This job description is intended to be generic in nature. It is not necessarily an exhaustive list of all duties
and responsibilities. The essential duties, functions and responsibilities and overtime eligibility may vary
based on the specific tasks assigned to the position.

Page 3 of 3

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Engineering Associate

JOB CODE: 21252 FLSA STATUS: Exempt
PAY GRADE: 21 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

JOB SUMMARY:

Under general supervision of engineers, functions as project designer and performs engineering design and analysis
support for small to medium sized public works projects of varying complexity. Performs all work using appropriate
safety procedures.

DISTINGUISHING CHARACTERISTICS:

This is the first in a series of three engineering-related job classifications within the Engineering and Support Services
job family. This classification is distinguished by the scope of project work, Engineer in Training (EIT) certificate, and
required additional experience. This classification may require a flexible work schedule in order to meet the needs of the
department.

DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES:

• Provides engineering design and analysis support for small to medium sized public/private work projects of varying
complexity. Identifies scope of public works projects and develops project schedules and budgets. Plans and
designs roadways, structures and parks, including hydrologic and hydraulic analysis and designs, traffic control,
various land surveys, and utility relocations, collecting and analyzing data.

• Provides plan review and engineering analysis of proposed designs for public private development to ensure
compliance with state, federal guidelines, codes and regulations. Reviews street and drainage plans and
subdivision plans prepared by others to ensure compliance with department design standards and policies.
Reviews for approval, various permit and license applications, and develops and issues traffic regulations.

• Performs contract and construction management duties for public works projects. Develops schedules and
estimates, monitors construction and/or professional services contracts. Performs cash flow forecasting and
financial management. Evaluates bid proposals and recommends selections.

• Performs construction quality assurance, contract administration, permit inspection and compliance, utility
relocation coordination and inspection, and assurance of contractor compliance with traffic control requirements.
Develops and issues drainage and traffic work orders.

• Represents the County in attending meetings, community meetings, seminars, conferences, professional
associations meetings, private organizations and participates on related committees. Continue professional growth
through continuing education.

• Performs other job-related duties as assigned.

MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS:

Education and Experience:
Bachelor’s degree in Civil Engineering AND four (4) years of directly related, increasingly responsible engineering design
and/or analysis experience, including one (1) year of lead experience;

OR,

Any combination of education and experience that has been achieved and is equivalent to the stated education and
experience and required knowledge, skills, and abilities sufficient to successfully perform the duties and responsibilities
of this job.

Licenses, Registrations, Certifications, or Special Requirements:
Valid Texas Driver’s License.

Preferred:
Engineer-in-Training (E.l.T.) certification issued by the State of Texas within six (6) months of date of hire.

Page 1 of 3

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Engineering Associate

JOB CODE: 21252 FLSA STATUS: Exempt
PAYGRADE: 21 LASTREVISED: 10/01/09

MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS: (Cont.)

Knowledge, Skills, and Abilities:
Knowledge of:
• Principles, procedures, practices, programs, systems, methods and techniques of engineering.
• Advanced mathematical and statistical methods as used in engineering and planning.
• Federal, State, Local and County applicable laws, rules, regulations, permits, licenses, practices, standards, policies

and procedures.
• Principles and practices related to public works projects and or contract plans, specifications and estimates.
• Materials sampling and testing procedures, permit requirements, utility construction requirements, and traffic control

policies and standards is required, as well as familiarity with construction techniques.
• Design standards and policies.
• Requirements, purposes, and limitations of various permits, security fiscal, licenses, and regulations.
• Methods, practices, and techniques of inspections, compliance, and enforcement.
• Computer equipment to include word processing, presentations, spreadsheets, databases, maps, records, graphics,

project scheduling and management, and other related engineering applications.
• Business letter writing, grammar and punctuation, and report preparation.

Skill in:
• Analyzing data, technical engineering data and reports.
• Applying principles and practices as used in engineering.
• Adapting approved engineering methods and standards a variety of engineering projects.
• Using and caring for equipment, tools and testing materials.
• Using and caring for computer-aided design and drafting (CADD), Geographic Information System (GIS) and other

related electronic equipment.
• Explaining complicated technical problems in simple non-technical language.
• Problem-solving and technical decision-making for developing effective solutions.
• Both verbal and written communication.

Ability to:
• Perform engineering studies, analysis and design.
• Work independently.
• Exercise sound judgment and make decisions.
• Manage time well, perform multiple tasks and organize diverse activities.
• Perform technical research, calculations, and computations, and prepare plans and reports.
• Convey ideas and concepts verbally and in writing.
• Interpret plans, specifications, standards, policies, procedures and regulatory codes.
• Perform in a stressful environment while maintaining a professional manner.
• Continue professional growth through continuing education.
• Establish and maintain effective working relationships with County employees and officials, developers, engineers,

contractors, representatives of outside agencies, and the general public.

Page 2 of 3

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Engineering Associate

JOB CODE: 21252 FLSA STATUS: Exempt
PAY GRADE: 21 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

WORK ENVIRONMENT AND PHYSICAL DEMANDS:

Physical requirements include the ability to lift/carry up to 10-60 pounds occasionally, visual acuity, mental effort, speech
and hearing, hand and eye coordination and manual dexterity necessary to operate a computer, and viewing screens for
long periods. Subject to standing, sitting, walking, climbing stairs, bending, stooping, squatting, crouching, kneeling,
pushing, pulling, reaching, twisting, balancing, driving, repetitive motion, and clientlcustomer contact to perform the
essential functions. Subject to contact with noise, vibration, fumes, foul odor, dirt, dust, mist, gases, and poor ventilation.
Requires use of protective devices such as masks, goggles, and gloves. Requires fieldwork, and exposure to traffic, public
work development sites, construction site hazards, climbing and walking and traveling over rough, uneven, mud, rocky,
high grass terrain, and indoors/outdoors in all types of weather (excessive heat and cold).

This job description is intended to be generic in nature. It is not necessarily an exhaustive list of all duties
and responsibilities. The essential duties, functions and responsibilities and overtime eligibility may vary
based on the specific tasks assigned to the position.

Page 3 of 3

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Engineer

JOB CODE: 23247 FLSA STATUS: Exempt
PAY GRADE: 23 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

JOB SUMMARY:

Functions as a project manager over highly complex small to medium-scale public works projects. Manages multiple
public works projects simultaneously and continuously, including short or long-term projects. Develops, prepares,
establishes and implements project management plan, scope of work, work plans, schedules, and cost estimates to
ensure projects are delivered on time, within budget, adhere to established plans, specifications and quality goals.
Responsible for project planning, monitoring and tracking key project progress and performance measures, final reports
and adjusting project plans and resources. Provides Professional Engineering certification for numerous public works
projects in various stages of completion. Provides technical guidance, consultation and evaluates qualifications of
engineering firms to determine the best qualified firms for providing professional services for a variety of projects.
Serves as the team leader, or team member, or field supervisor in an interdisciplinary group of professionals and
technicians involved with project planning, environmental review, design, construction management, and production of
project plans, specifications, and estimates as well as on-site inspections and field engineering. Measures and monitors
projects to identify variances from the Project Management Plan and initiates corrective action as needed. Performs all
work using appropriate safety procedures.

DISTINGUISHING CHARACTERISTICS:

This is the second in a series of three engineering-related job classifications within the Engineering and Support
Services job family. This classification is distinguished by the scope size of the project work, license as a Professional
Engineer (PE), and required additional experience. This classification may require a flexible work schedule in order to
meet the needs of the department.

DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES:

• Functions as project manager over small to medium public works projects. Develops scope of public works
projects, project schedules and budgets. Conducts feasibility research studies and analysis of site, ownership,
required permits and available utilities. May analyze roadway conditions, subdivision plats, street and drainage
plans and site plan, field conditions.

• Prepares or oversees the preparation of plans, specifications and estimates for various transportation improvement
projects. Develops or oversees the development and completion of and completes project planning documents,
designs, specifications and estimates. Prepares or oversees the preparation of detailed preliminary engineering
designs which include engineering drawings, schedules and estimates, planning and design of roadways, structures
and parks, including hydraulic designs, traffic control, storm water management and water quality, environmental
issues, construction quality assurance, contract administration, permit inspection and compliance, utility relocation
coordination and inspection, and overall assurance of contractor compliance with project plans, specifications,
estimates and various land surveys. Reviews for compliance with appropriate standards and various permit and
license applications, and develops and issues regulations. Develops and issues work orders. Certifies and seals
plans for public work projects.

• Prepares or oversees preparation of construction documents, such as engineering plans and specifications, bid
items, construction schedules and project cost estimates, coordinates construction documents prepared by
interdisciplinary team, and interfaces with regulatory agency requirements. Coordinates bid forms with construction
documents, conducts bid conferences, evaluates bid tabulations and prepares addenda. Functions as construction
contract administrator and oversees consultants construction administrative contract. Conducts construction
conferences, reviews shop drawings, change orders and processes contractor’s invoices.

• Prepares a variety of engineering research and administrative materials, and develops correspondence, records,
memorandums and reports, attends meetings and training sessions, responds to inquiries and concerns from
private and public entities, and other County officials and departments. May meet with neighborhood associations.

• Performs other job-related duties as assigned.

Page 1 of 3

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Engineer

JOB CODE: 23247 FLSA STATUS: Exempt
PAY GRADE: 23 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS:

Education and Experience:
Bachelor’s degree in Civil Engineering AND two (2) years of directly related, increasingly responsible professional
engineering design and project management experience as a licensed Professional Engineer, including one (1) year of
lead experience.

Licenses, Registrations, Certifications, or Special Requirements:
License as a Professional Engineer (P.E.) issued by the State of Texas. If licensed as a P.E. in another state, must
become licensed in the State of Texas within six (6) months of date of hire.
Valid Texas Driver’s License.

Preferred:
Advanced training in Project Management.
Certification as a Project Management Professional (PMP).

Knowledge, Skills, and Abilities:
Knowledge of:
• Principles, procedures, practices, programs, systems, methods and techniques of engineering.
• Project management methodologies, practices and techniques.
• Advanced mathematical and statistical methods as used in engineering and planning.
• Principles of project management, including scheduling, estimating, contracts and budgeting.
• Management and supervisory principles, practices and techniques.
• Federal, State, Local and County applicable laws, rules, regulations, permits, licenses, practices, standards, policies

and procedures.
• Recent developments and current literature regarding engineering.
• Methods, practices, and techniques of inspections, compliance and enforcement.
• Computer equipment to include word processing, presentations, spreadsheets, databases, maps, records, graphics,

project scheduling and management, and other related engineering applications.
• Business letter writing, grammar and punctuation, and report preparation.

Skill in:
• Analyzing complex data, technical engineering data and reports.
• Contract management and project budgeting.
• Managing staff, allocating resources and evaluating programs.
• Leadership, collaboration and negotiation techniques.
• Applying principles and practices as used in engineering.
• Adapting approved engineering methods and standards a variety of engineering projects.
• Using and caring for equipment, tools and testing materials.
• Using and caring for computer-aided design and drafting (CADD), Geographic Information System (GIS) and other

related electronic equipment.
• Explaining complicated technical problems in simple non-technical language.
• Problem-solving and technical decision-making for developing effective solutions.
• Both verbal and written communication, including presentations and communicating technical issues in non

technical language.

Ability to:
• Plan and prioritize programs, projects and activities.
• Perform complex engineering studies, analysis and design.
• Work independently.
• Exercise sound judgment and make decisions.
• Manage time well, perform multiple tasks and organize diverse activities.
• Perform technical research, calculations, and computations, and prepare plans and reports.
• Convey complex ideas and concepts verbally and in writing.

Page 2 of 3

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Engineer

JOB CODE: 23247 FLSA STATUS: Exempt
PAY GRADE: 23 LAST REVISED: 10101/09

MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS: (Cont.)

Ability to: (Cont.)
• Plan, assign, supervise, train and review the work of professional and technical subordinates.
• Interpret plans, specifications, standards, policies, procedures and regulatory codes.
• Respond to inquiries from customers, regulatory agencies or members of the professional community.
• Perform in a stressful environment while maintaining a professional manner.
• Make appropriate and effective public presentations.
• Establish and maintain effective working relationships with County employees and officials, developers, engineers,

contractors, representatives of outside agencies, and the general public.

WORK ENVIRONMENT AND PHYSICAL. DEMANDS:

Physical requirements include the ability to lift/carry up to 10-60 pounds occasionally, visual acuity, mental effort, speech
and hearing, hand and eye coordination and manual dexterity necessary to operate a computer, and viewing screens for
long periods. Subject to standing, sitting, walking, climbing stairs, bending, stooping, squatting, crouching, kneeling,
pushing, pulling, reaching, twisting, balancing, driving, repetitive motion, and client/customer contact to perform the
essential functions. Subject to contact with noise, vibration, fumes, foul odor, dirt, dust, mist, gases, and poor ventilation.
Requires use of protective devices such as masks, goggles, and gloves. Requires fieldwork, and exposure to traffic, public
work development sites, construction site hazards, climbing and walking and traveling over rough, uneven, mud, rocky,
high grass terrain, and indoors/outdoors in all types of weather (excessive heat and cold).

riiis job description is intended to be generic in nature. It is not necessarily an exhaustive list of all duties
and responsibilities. The essential duties, functions and responsibilities and overtime eligibility may vary
based on the specific tasks assigned to the position.

Page 3 of 3

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Engineer Senior

JOB CODE: 25249 FLSA STATUS: Exempt
PAY GRADE: 25 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

JOB SUMMARY:

Functions as a project manager over highly complex medium to large-scale public works projects. Manages multiple
public works projects simultaneously and continuously, including short or long-term projects. Develops, prepares,
establishes and implements project management plan, scope of work, work plans, schedules, and cost estimates to
ensure projects are delivered on time, within budget, adhere to established plans, specifications and quality goals.
Responsible for project planning, monitoring and tracking key project progress and performance measures, final
developing reports, adjusting project plans and resources. Provides Professional Engineering certification for numerous
public works projects in various stages of completion. Provides technical guidance and consultation and evaluates
qualifications of engineering firms to determine the best qualified firms for providing professional services for a variety of
projects. Serves as the team leader, or team member, or field supervisor in an interdisciplinary group of professionals
and technicians involved with project planning, environmental review, design, construction management, and production
of project plans, specifications, and estimates as well as on-site inspections and field engineering. Measures and
monitors projects to identify variances from the Project Management Plan and initiates corrective action as needed.
Performs all work using appropriate safety procedures.

DISTINGUISHING CHARACTERISTICS:

This is the third in a series of three engineering-related job classifications within the Engineering and Support Services
job family. This classification is distinguished by the scope size of project management duties and responsibilities,
license as a Professional Engineer (PE), and required additional supervisory experience. This classification may require
a flexible work schedule in order to meet the needs of the department.

DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES:

• Functions as project manager and leads on highly complex public works projects. Manages multiple, highly complex
projects and/or staff simultaneously, using established plans and specifications. Manages major engineering,
planning and operations functions. Leads or participates in selection of consultants for professional services and in
the evaluation of consultant performance.

• Develops, maintains and communicates project planning documentation, including project designs, specifications,
schedules and budget estimates. Prepares detailed preliminary engineering designs which include engineering
drawings, schedules and estimates, planning and design of roadways, structures and parks, including hydraulic
designs, traffic control, storm water management and water quality, environmental issues, various land surveys and
utility relocations. Leads and facilitates in providing training and design guidance to staff. May provide expert
testimony in condemnations and tort claims. Prepares final engineering design.

• Functions as construction manager or contract administrator or oversees consultant construction administrator
contract on public works projects. Develops construction specifications, bid items, construction schedules and
project cost estimates, reviews and approves pay requests/invoices/change orders, monitors quality assurance,
prepares design and cost estimates, negotiates cost with contractors, inspects work in progress, interprets plans for
contractors, reviews shop drawings and material testing reports and recommends final acceptance of project.
Evaluates and documents consultant and contractor performance during design, construction and warranty phases
of project.

• Reviews and interprets County development regulations for general public and professional consultants. Reviews
for compliance with appropriate engineering standards, subdivision plats and construction plans prepared by outside
consultants. Reviews cost estimates for Private Development Projects to ensure developers are paying adequate
review, inspection and fiscal and bonding fees.

• Assists with planning public works projects. Develops scope of public works projects, project schedules and
budgets. Conducts feasibility research studies and analysis of site, ownership, required permits and available
utilities.

Pagelof3

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Engineer Senior

JOB CODE: 25249 FLSA STATUS: Exempt
PAY GRADE: 25 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES: (Cont.)
• Prepares a variety of engineering research and administrative materials, and develops correspondence, records,

memorandums and complex reports, attends meetings and training sessions, prepares court agenda packet,
supports policy makers by participation as a technical advisor, and assists in preparation of annual work plan.

• Performs other job-related duties as assigned.

MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS:

Education and Experience:
Bachelor’s degree in Civil Engineering AND four (4) years of directly related, increasingly responsible professional
engineering design and project management experience as a licensed Professional Engineer, including two (2) years of
lead, supervisory, management and/or project management experience.

Licenses, Registrations, Certifications, or Special Requirements:
License as a Professional Engineer (P.E.) issued by the State of Texas. If licensed as a P.E. in another state, must
become licensed in the State of Texas within six (6) months of date of hire.
Valid Texas Driver’s License.

Preferred:
Advanced training in Project Management.
Certification as a Project Management Professional (PMP).

Knowledge, Skills, and Abilities:
Knowledge of:
• Project planning, including scope development and budgetary.
• Project management methodologies, practices and techniques.
• Principles, procedures, practices, programs, systems, methods and techniques of engineering.
• Advanced mathematical and statistical methods as used in engineering and planning.
• Principles of project management, including scheduling, estimating, measuring and monitoring.
• Supervisory and management principles, practices and techniques.
• Federal, State, Local and County applicable laws, rules, regulations, permits, licenses, practices, standards, policies

and procedures.
• Recent developments and current literature regarding engineering.
• Methods, practices, and techniques of inspections, compliance and enforcement.
• Computer equipment to include word processing, presentations, spreadsheets, databases, maps, records, graphics,

project scheduling and management, and other related engineering applications.
• Business letter writing, grammar and punctuation, and report preparation.

Skill in:
• Planning and directing a variety of engineering projects.
• Contract management, project management and project budgeting.
• Managing staff, allocating resources and evaluating programs.
• Leadership, collaboration and negotiation techniques.
• Analyzing complex data, technical engineering data and reports.
• Supervisory principles, practices and techniques.
• Applying principles and practices as used in engineering.
• Adapting approved engineering methods and standards a variety of engineering projects.
• Using and caring for equipment, tools and testing materials.
• Using and caring for computer-aided design and drafting (CADD), Geographic Information System (GIS) and other

related electronic equipment.
• Explaining complicated technical problems in simple non-technical language.
• Problem-solving and technical decision-making for developing effective solutions.
• Both verbal and written communication, including presentations and communicating technical issues in non

technical language.

Page 2 of 3 7_Z

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Engineer Senior

JOB CODE: 25249 FLSA STATUS: Exempt
PAY GRADE: 25 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS: (Cont.)

Ability to:
• Coordinate, plan and prioritize programs, projects and activities.
• Plan, assign, supervise, train and revtew the work of professional and technical subordinates.
• Convey complex ideas and concepts verbally and in writing.
• Interpret plans and specifications, standards, policies, procedures and regulatory codes.
• Perform complex engineering studies, analysis and design.
• Perform technical research, calculations, and computations, and prepare plans and reports.
• Manage time well, perform multiple tasks and organize diverse activities.
• Work independently.
• Respond to inquiries from customers, regulatory agencies or members of the professional community.
• Perform in a stressful environment while maintaining a professional manner.
• Make appropriate and effective public presentations.
• Establish and maintain effective working relationships with County employees and officials, developers, engineers,

contractors, representatives of outside agencies, and the general public.

WORK ENVIRONMENT AND PHYSICAL DEMANDS:

Physical requirements include the ability to lift/carry up to 10-60 pounds occasionally, visual acuity, mental effort, speech
and hearing, hand and eye coordination and manual dexterity necessary to operate a computer, and viewing screens for
long periods. Subject to standing, sitting, walking, climbing stairs, bending, stooping, squatting, crouching, kneeling,
pushing, pulling, reaching, twisting, balancing, driving, repetitive motion, and client/customer contact to perform the
essential functions. Subject to contact with noise, vibration, fumes, foul odor, dirt, dust, mist, gases, and poor ventilation.
Requires use of protective devices such as masks, goggles, and gloves. Requires fieldwork, and exposure to traffic, public
work development sites, construction site hazards, climbing and walking and traveling over rough, uneven, mud, rocky,
high grass terrain, and indoors/outdoors in all types of weather (excessive heat and cold).

This job description is intended to be generic in nature. It is not necessarily an exhaustive list of all duties
and responsibilities. The essential duties, functions and responsibilities and overtime eligibility may vary
based on the specific tasks assigned to the position.

Page3of3 73

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Architectural Associate

JOB CODE: 19274 FLSA STATUS: Exempt
PAY GRADE: 19 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

JOB SUMMARY:

Functions as project designer and performs architecture and engineering design and analysis support for small to
medium sized public works projects of varying complexity. Responsible for understanding safety procedures and
ensuring that work is performed accordingly.

DISTINGUISHING CHARACTERISTICS:

This is the first in a series of two architectural-related job classifications within the Engineering and Support Services job
family. This classification is distinguished by the scope of project work and educational requirements. This classification
may require a flexible work schedule in order to meet the needs of the department.

DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES:

• Designs and prepares architectural and engineering drawings, using AutoCAD or Mircrostation system, for new
facilities and renovation of existing facilities.

• Performs plan review and architectural analysis on proposed designs for facilities projects to ensure compliance with
local, state and federal guidelines, codes and regulations.

• Assists Project Managers in project management and construction administration of new facilities and renovation of
existing facilities.

• Assists in facilities database tracking assignment of floor space by department, location and facility. Develops
queries and retrievals, as required, to provide detailed reports on space assignments.

• Forecasts the cost of future projects, using cost estimating software, based on preliminary plans. Projects in the
future may involve new construction projects and renovation of existing facilities.

• Creates, updates and monitors project schedules using scheduling software.

• Makes recommendations concerning products, materials and equipment incorporated into facility designs.

• Prepares technical reports and makes presentation to departmental directors and project managers.

• Analyzes and responds to inquiries, comments and concerns from County officials and staff.

• Works closely with officials, department heads and other County staff to establish procedures for the monitoring of
contract compliance issues.

• Represents the County by attending meetings, seminars, conferences, professional association meetings and
private organizations.

• Performs other job-related duties as assigned.

MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS:

Education and Experience:
Bachelor’s degree in Architecture AND two (2) years of directly related, increasingly responsible architectural and design
experience.

Licenses, Registrations, Certifications, or Special Requirements:
Valid Texas Driver’s License.

Preferred:
Engineer-in-Training (E.I.T.) certification issued by the State of Texas or be eligible to sit for the Texas Architectural
Registration Examination within six (6) months of date of hire.

Page 1 of 2 7L/

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Architectural Associate

JOB CODE: 19274 FLSA STATUS: Exempt
PAY GRADE: 19 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS: (Cant.)

Knowledge, Skills, and Abilities:
Knowledge of:
• Principles and practices of architecture and engineering.
• Mathematical and statistical methods as used in architecture, engineering and planning.
• Federal, State, Local and County applicable laws, rules, regulations, permits, licenses, practices, standards, policies

and procedures.
• Materials sampling and testing procedures, permit requirements, utility construction requirements, and traffic control

policies and standards as well as familiarity with construction techniques.
• Methods, practices, and techniques of inspections, compliance and enforcement.
• Computer equipment to include word processing, presentations, spreadsheets, databases, maps, records, graphics,

project scheduling and management, and other related architecture/engineering applications.
• Business letter writing, grammar and punctuation, and report preparation.

Skill in:
• Analyzing technical architecture and engineering data and reports.
• Applying principles and practices as used in architecture and engineering.
• Using and caring for equipment, tools and testing materials.
• Using and caring for computer-aided design and drafting (CADD), Geographic Information System (GIS) and other

related electronic equipment.
• Explaining complicated technical problems in simple non-technical language.
• Problem-solving and technical decision-making for developing effective solutions.
• Both verbal and written communication.

Ability to:
• Work independently.
• Exercise sound judgment and make decisions.
• Manage time well, perform multiple tasks and organize diverse activities.
• Convey ideas and concepts verbally and in writing.
• Perform in a stressful environment while maintaining a professional manner.
• Continue professional growth through continuing education.
• Establish and maintain effective working relationships with County employees and officials, engineers, contractors,

representatives of outside agencies, and the general public.

WORK ENVIRONMENT AND PHYSICAL DEMANDS:

Physical requirements include the ability to lift/carry up to 60 pounds, visual acuity, mental effort, speech and hearing, hand
and eye coordination, manual dexterity necessary to operate a computer, and viewing screen for long periods. Subject to
standing, sitting, walking, climbing stairs, bending, stooping, squatting, crouching, kneeling, pushing, pulling, reaching,
twisting, balancing, and driving and repetitive motion to perform the essential functions. Occasionally may be subject to
contact with noise, vibration, fumes, foul odor, dirt, dust, gases and poor ventilation. Requires the use of protective devices
such as masks, goggles, hearing protection devices and gloves. Requires fieldwork and exposure to traffic, public work
development sites, and construction site hazards. May require climbing and traveling over uneven, muddy, rocky, and
high grass terrain in all types of weather.

This job description is intended to be generic in nature. It is not necessarily an exhaustive list of all duties
and responsibilities. The essential duties, functions and responsibilities and overtime eligibility may vary
based on the specific tasks assigned to the position.

Page 2 of 2

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Architectural Associate Senior

JOB CODE: 21275 FLSA STATUS: Exempt
PAY GRADE: 21 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

JOB SUMMARY:

Under general supervision of architects and engineers, designs and prepares architectural and engineering drawings of
proposed projects using CADD system. Assists with project scope definition and planning. May function as a team
member in an interdisciplinary group of professionals and technicians involved with facilities planning, design, project
management, and production of project plans, specifications, schedules, estimates and construction administration.
Responsible for understanding safety procedures and ensuring that work is performed accordingly.

DISTINGUISHING CHARACTERISTICS:

This is the second in a series of two architectural-related job classifications within the Engineering and Support Services
job family. This classification is distinguished by the scope of project work, Engineer in Training (EIT) certificate or
completion of the Intern Development Program (IDP) for approval to take the Architectural Registration Examination,
and required additional experience. This classification may require a flexible work schedule in order to meet the needs
of the department.

DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES:

• Designs and prepares architectural and engineering drawings, using AutoCAD or Mircrostation system, for new
facilities and renovation of existing facilities.

• Performs plan review and architectural analysis on proposed designs for facilities projects to ensure compliance with
Federal, State and Local guidelines, codes and regulations.

• Assists Project Managers in project management and construction administration of new facilities and renovation of
existing facilities.

• Assists in facilities database tracking assignment of floor space by department, location and facility. Develops
queries and retrievals as necessary to provide detailed reports on space assignments.

• Forecasts the cost of future projects, using cost estimating software, based on preliminary plans. Projects in the
future may involve new construction projects and renovation of existing facilities.

• Creates, updates and monitors project schedules using scheduling software.

• Makes recommendations concerning products, materials and equipment incorporated into facility designs.

• Prepares technical reports and makes presentation to departmental directors and project managers.

• Analyzes and responds to inquiries, comments and concerns from County officials and staff.

• Works closely with officials, department heads and other County staff, to establish procedures for the monitoring of
contract compliance issues.

• Represents the County by attending meetings, seminars, conferences, professional association meetings and
private organizations.

• Performs other job-related duties as assigned.

MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS:

Education and Experience:
Bachelor’s degree in Architecture AND four (4) years of directly related, increasingly responsible architectural and design
experience, including one (1) year of lead experience.

Licenses, Registrations, Certifications, or Special Requirements:
Engineer-in-Training (E.I.T.) certification or have completed the Intern Development Program (IDP) required to sit for the
Architectural Registration Examination.
Valid Texas Driver’s License.

Page 1 of 2 :9

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Architectural Associate Senior

JOB CODE: 21275 FLSA STATUS: Exempt
PAY GRADE: 21 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS: (Cant.)

Knowledge, Skills, and Abilities:
Knowledge of:
• Principles and practices of architecture and engineering.
• Mathematical and statistical methods as used in architecture, engineering and planning.
• Federal, State, Local and County applicable laws, rules, regulations, permits, licenses, practices, standards, policies

and procedures.
• Materials sampling and testing procedures, permit requirements, utility construction requirements, and traffic control

policies and standards as well as familiarity with construction techniques.
• Methods, practices, and techniques of inspections, compliance and enforcement.
• Computer equipment to include word processing, presentations, spreadsheets, databases, maps, records, graphics,

project scheduling and management, and other related architecture/engineering applications.
• Business letter writing, grammar and punctuation, and report preparation.

Skill in:
• Analyzing technical architecture and engineering data and reports.
• Performing architecture and engineering studies, analysis and design.
• Using and caring for equipment, tools and testing materials.
• Using and caring for computer-aided design and drafting (CADD), Geographic Information System (GIS) and other

related electronic equipment.
• Explaining complicated technical problems in simple non-technical language.
• Problem-solving and technical decision-making for developing effective solutions.
• Both verbal and written communication.

Ability to:
• Work independently.
• Exercise sound judgment and make decisions.
• Manage time well, perform multiple tasks and organize diverse activities.
• Convey ideas and concepts verbally and in writing.
• Perform in a stressful environment while maintaining a professional manner.
• Continue professional growth through continuing education.
• Establish and maintain effective working relationships with County employees and officials, engineers, contractors,

representatives of outside agencies, and the general public.

WORK ENVIRONMENT AND PHYSICAL DEMANDS:

Physical requirements include the ability to lift/carry up to 60 pounds, visual acuity, mental effort, speech and hearing, hand
and eye coordination, manual dexterity necessary to operate a computer, and viewing screen for long periods. Subject to
standing, sitting, walking, climbing stairs, bending, stooping, squatting, crouching, kneeling, pushing, pulling, reaching,
twisting, balancing, and driving and repetitive motion. Occasionally may be subject to contact with noise, vibration, fumes,
foul odor, dirt, dust, gases and poor ventilation. Requires the use of protective devices such as masks, goggles, hearing
protection devices and gloves. Requires fieldwork and exposure to traffic, public work development sites, and construction
site hazards. May require climbing and traveling over uneven, muddy, rocky, and high grass terrain in all types of
weather.

This job description is intended to be generic in nature. It is not necessarily an exhaustive list of all duties
and responsibilities. The essential duties, functions and responsibilities and overtime eligibility may vary
based on the specific tasks assigned to the position.

Page 2of2

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Facilities Project Manager

JOB CODE: 23277 FLSA STATUS: Exempt
PAY GRADE: 23 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

JOB SUMMARY:

Project team member responsible for facility analysis and oversight of planning, design, construction and inspection of
new facilities, renovations and remodels of existing facilities. Assigned as the project manager on facility design and
construction projects based on technical background and as a technical expert. May also act as the leader of a team of
multi-disciplinary professionals engaged in the design of facility projects. Serves as the key County contact for oversight
and acceptance of the work of contractors and consultants. Responsible for understanding safety procedures and
ensuring that work is performed accordingly.

DISTINGUISHING CHARACTERISTICS:

This is the first in a series of two facilities project-related job classifications within the Engineering and Support Services
job family. This classification is distinguished by the scope of project work, license as a Professional Engineer or
Registered Architect and required additional experience. This classification may require a flexible work schedule in
order to meet the needs of the department.

DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES:

• Oversees facility design and construction services for County departments. Provides recommendations on facility
projects.

• Oversees development of project master plans and implementation of those plans through reviews, cost estimates
and construction. Plans, designs and writes specifications for construction projects. Prepares bid documents and
works with other County departments to procure professional services and construction contracts. Reviews bids
and recommends contract award for construction projects.

• Ensures that professional consultants provide appropriate services related to program and scope requirements of
design projects. Ensures that vendors and contractors comply with plans and specifications of the construction
contract. Supervises the inspection of construction in progress and of existing systems in cooperation with relevant
contractual and governmental agencies.

• Establishes project priorities and sets schedules for timely completion of construction projects.

• Analyzes and responds to inquiries, comments and complaints from County officials, staff and the public.

• Works closely with officials, department heads, and County staff to establish procedures for the monitoring of
contract compliance issues.

• Represents the County in community meetings, seminars, conferences and professional associations. Maintains
current knowledge of professional practice and renewal of professional license through continuing education
program activities.

• Performs other job-related duties as assigned.

MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS:

Education and Experience:
Bachelor’s degree in Architecture, Structural, Mechanical, Electrical or Civil Engineering AND two (2) years of directly
related, increasingly responsible professional architectural or engineering planning, design or construction experience,
licensed Professional Architect or Professional Engineer, including one (1) year of lead, management or project
management experience.

Licenses, Registrations, Certifications, or Special Requirements:
Registered Architect (R.A.) or Professional Engineer (P.E.) issued by the State of Texas. If licensed in another state,
must acquire license reciprocity in the State of Texas within six (6) months of date of hire.
Valid Texas Driver’s License.

Page 1 of 3

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Facilities Project Manager

JOB CODE: 23277 FLSA STATUS: Exempt
PAY GRADE: 23 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS: (Cont.)

Knowledge. Skills, and Abilities:
Knowledge of:
• Principles and practices of architecture or engineering.
• Familiarity with the principles and practices of all other professional building construction disciplines.
• Mathematical and statistical methods as used in engineering and planning.
• Principles of project management, including scheduling, estimating, contracting, and budgeting.
• Supervisory principles, practices and techniques.
• Federal, State, Local and County applicable laws, rules, regulations, permits, licenses, practices, standards, policies

and procedures.
• Recent developments and current literature regarding the practices of architecture and engineering.
• Methods, practices and techniques of inspections, compliance and enforcement.
• Computer-aided drafting and design (CAD) methods and techniques.
• Computer equipment, including word processing, presentations, spreadsheets, databases, graphics, project

scheduling and management, and related engineering applications.
• Business letter writing, grammar and punctuation, and report preparation.

Skill in:
• Planning and directing a variety of facility-related projects.
• Analyzing complex data and reports.
• Supervisory principles, practices and techniques.
• Applying principles and practices used in engineering and architecture.
• Contract management and project budgeting.
• Explaining complicated technical problems in simple non-technical language.
• Problem-solving and technical decision-making for developing effective solutions.
• Both verbal and written communication.

Ability to:
• Plan and prioritize programs, projects and activities.
• Perform complex engineering studies, analysis and design.
• Work independently.
• Exercise sound judgment and make decisions.
• Manage time well, perform multiple tasks and organize diverse activities.
• Plan, assign, supervise, train and review the work of professional and technical subordinates.
• Interpret plans, specifications, standards, policies, procedures and regulatory codes.
• Respond to inquiries from customers, regulatory agencies and members of the professional community.
• Perform in a stressful environment while maintaining a professional manner.
• Make appropriate and effective public presentations.
• Continue professional growth through continuing education.
• Establish and maintain effective working relationships with County employees and officials, other professionals,

contractors, representatives of outside agencies, and the general public.

Page2of3

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Facilities Project Manager

JOB CODE: 23277 FLSA STATUS: Exempt
PAY GRADE: 23 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

WORK ENVIRONMENT AND PHYSICAL DEMANDS:

Physical requirements include the ability to lift/carry up to 10-60 pounds, visual acuity, mental effort, speech and hearing,
hand and eye coordination and manual dexterity necessary to operate a computer, and viewing screens for long periods.
Subject to standing, sitting, walking, climbing stairs, bending, stooping, squatting, crouching, kneeling, pushing, pulling,
reaching, twisting, balancing, driving, repetitive motion, and client/customer contact to perform the essential functions.
Subject to contact with noise, vibration, fumes, foul odor, dirt, dust, mist, gases, and poor ventilation. Requires use of
protective devices such as masks, goggles, and gloves. Requires fieldwork, and exposure to traffic, public work
development sites, construction site hazards, climbing and walking and traveling over rough, uneven, mud, rocky, high
grass terrain, and indoors/outdoors in all types of weather (excessive heat and cold).

This job description is intended to be generic in nature. It is not necessarily an exhaustive list of all duties
and responsibilities. The essential duties, functions and responsibilities and overtime eligibility may vary
based on the specific tasks assigned to the position.

Page 3 of 3

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Facilities Project Manager Senior

JOB CODE: 25278 FLSA STATUS: Exempt
PAY GRADE: 25 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

JOB SUMMARY:

Project team member responsible for facility analysis and oversight of planning, design, construction and inspection of
new facilities, renovations and remodels of existing facilities. Assigned as the project manager on facility design and
construction projects based on technical background and as a technical expert. May also act as the leader of a team of
multi-disciplinary professionals engaged in the design of facility projects. Serves as the key County contact for oversight
and acceptance of the work of contractors and consultants. Responsible for understanding safety procedures and
ensuring that work is performed accordingly.

DISTINGUISHING CHARACTERISTICS:

This is the second in a series of two facilities project-related job classifications within the Engineering and Support
Services job family. This classification is distinguished by the project management responsibilities, technical design
expertise, a license as a Professional Engineer or Registered Architect and additional years of required supervisory
experience. This classification may require a flexible work schedule in order to meet the needs of the department.

DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES:

• Oversees facility design and construction services for County departments. Provides recommendations on facility
projects.

• Oversees development of project master plans and implementation of those plans through construction. Prepares
and reviews cost estimates. Designs projects and writes specifications. Reviews bids and recommends contract
awards for construction and modification of County facilities.

• Ensures that project construction contractors and architecture/engineering contractors fully comply with all
specifications of the contract. Supervises the inspection of construction in progress and of existing systems in
cooperation with relevant contractual and governmental agencies.

• Assists in preparing budgets for construction projects and initiates construction budget transfers and amendments.
Plans, as part of a team, the future services and budgetary needs of the department and assists in the departmental/
project budget process.

• Establishes project priorities and sets schedules for timely completion of the phases of new construction contractors.

• Interprets laws and policies relevant to construction and maintenance of County facilities.

• Responds and analyzes difficult inquires, grievances or complaints.

• Works closely with officials, department heads, multiple outside suppliers, and other County staff, to establish
procedures for the monitoring of contract compliance issues. Makes appropriate and effective public presentations.

• Represents the County in attending meetings, community meetings, seminars, conferences, professional
associations meetings, private organizations and participates on related committees. Continue professional growth
through continuing education.

• Performs other job-related duties as assigned.

MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS:

Education and Experience:
Bachelor’s degree in Architecture, Structural, Mechanical, Electrical or Civil Engineering AND four (4) years of directly
related, increasingly responsible professional architectural or engineering planning, design or construction experience,
licensed Professional Architect or Professional Engineer, including two (2) years of management or project management
experience.

Page 1 of 3

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Facilities Project Manager Senior

JOB CODE: 25278 FLSA STATUS: Exempt
PAY GRADE: 25 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS: (Cont.)

Licenses, Registrations, Certifications, or Special Requirements:
Registered Architect (R.A.) or Professional Engineer (RE.) issued by the State of Texas. If licensed in another state,
must acquire license reciprocity in the State of Texas within six (6) months of date of hire.
Valid Texas Driver’s License.

Knowledge, Skills, and Abilities:
Knowledge of:
• Principles, procedures, practices, programs, systems, methods, and techniques of architectural and engineering.
• Advanced mathematical and statistical methods as used in engineering and planning.
• Principles of project management, including scheduling, estimating, contracting, and budgeting.
• Supervisory principles, practices and techniques.
• Federal, State, Local and County applicable laws, rules, regulations, permits, licenses, practices, standards, policies

and procedures.
• Recent developments and current literature regarding engineering.
• Methods, practices, and techniques of inspections, compliance, and enforcement.
• Computer equipment to include word processing, presentations, spreadsheets, databases, maps, records, graphics,

project scheduling and management, and other related engineering applications.
• Business letter writing, grammar and punctuation, and report preparation.

Skill in:
• Planning and directing a variety of engineering projects.
• Analyzing complex data, technical engineering data and reports.
• Supervisory principles, practices and techniques.
• Applying principles and practices as used in engineering.
• Adapting approved engineering methods and standards a variety of engineering projects.
• Using and caring for equipment, tools, and testing materials.
• Using and caring for computer-aided design and drafting (CADD), Geographic Information System (GIS) and other

related electronic equipment.
• Contract management and project budgeting.
• Explaining complicated technical problems in simple non-technical language.
• Problem-solving and technical decision-making for developing effective solutions.
• Both verbal and written communication.

Ability to:
• Plan and prioritize programs, projects and activities.
• Perform complex engineering studies, analysis and design.
• Work independently.
• Exercise sound judgment and make decisions.
• Manage time well, perform multiple tasks and organize diverse activities.
• Perform technical research, calculations, and computations, and prepare plans and reports.
• Convey complex ideas and concepts verbally and in writing.
• Plan, assign, supervise, train and review the work of professional and technical subordinates.
• Interpret plans, specifications, standards, policies, procedures and regulatory codes.
• Respond to inquiries from customers, regulatory agencies or members of the professional community.
• Perform in a stressful environment while maintaining a professional manner.
• Make appropriate and effective public presentations.
• Continue professional growth through continuing education.
• Establish and maintain effective working relationships with County employees and officials, developers, engineers,

contractors, representatives of outside agencies, and the general public.

Page 2 of 3

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Facilities Project Manager Senior

JOB CODE: 25278 FLSA STATUS: Exempt
PAY GRADE: 25 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

WORK ENVIRONMENT AND PHYSICAL DEMANDS:

Physical requirements include the ability to lift/carry up to 10-60 pounds, visual acuity, mental effort, speech and hearing,
hand and eye coordination and manual dexterity necessary to operate a computer, and viewing screens for long periods.
Subject to standing, sitting, walking, climbing stairs, bending, stooping, squatting, crouching, kneeling, pushing, pulling,
reaching, twisting, balancing, driving, repetitive motion, and client/customer contact to perform the essential functions.
Subject to contact with noise, vibration, fumes, foul odor, dirt, dust, mist, gases, and poor ventilation. Requires use of
protective devices such as masks, goggles, and gloves. Requires fieldwork, and exposure to traffic, public work
development sites, construction site hazards, climbing and walking and traveling over rough, uneven, mud, rocky, high
grass terrain, and indoors/outdoors in all types of weather (excessive heat and cold).

This job description is intended to be generic in nature. It is not necessarily an exhaustive list of all duties
and responsibilities. The essential duties, functions and responsibilities and overtime eligibility may vary
based on the specific tasks assigned to the position.

Page 3of3

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Cost Estimator

JOB CODE: 23279 FLSA STATUS: Exempt
PAY GRADE: 23 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

JOB SUMMARY:

Under general supervision, responsible for developing project estimates/budgets from order-of-magnitude (parametric,
top-down) to detailed (bottom-up) working estimates/budgets, based on the latest available costing methodology and
data, and presenting the results in a work breakdown format suitable for use by project managers and/or County
officials. Estimates will be developed as appropriate for the current phase of the project. Reviews contractor developed
construction change orders for appropriateness of cost and schedule impacts.

DISTINGUISHING CHARACTERISTICS:

This is a job classification within the Engineering and Support Services job family. This classification is distinguished by
the scope of project work, and required additional experience in construction cost estimating. This classification may
require a flexible work schedule in order to meet the needs of the department.

DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES:

• Develops parametric project cost estimates on new construction and renovations projects for budgeting purposes.

• Prepares progressive levels of estimates for construction and renovation projects at each level of design from
schematic through design development to construction document stages. Cost estimates to become more precise
take-off estimates as data becomes available.

• Assists project managers in decisions on alternative approaches or methods based on cost information.

• Reviews contractor developed construction change orders for proper costing and schedule impacts during
construction phase of projects.

• Prepares forecast update cost estimates covering work still to be completed on projects.

• Develops methods for maintaining current and historical construction cost data.

• Represents the department in community meetings, seminars, conferences and professional associations.
Maintains current knowledge of professional cost estimating practice.

• Performs other job-related duties as assigned.

MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS:

Education and Experience:
Bachelor’s degree in Construction Management, Engineering, Architecture or a directly related field AND five (5) years of
directly related, increasingly responsible experience in commercial building construction cost estimating;

OR,

Any combination of education and experience that has been achieved and is equivalent to the stated education and
experience and required knowledge, skills, and abilities sufficient to successfully perform the duties and responsibilities
of this job.

Licenses, Registrations, Certifications, or Special Requirements:
None required.

Preferred:
Valid Texas Driver’s License.

Page 1 of 2

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Cost Estimator

JOB CODE: 23279 FLSA STATUS: Exempt
PAY GRADE: 23 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS: (Cont.)

Knowledge, Skills, and Abilities:
Knowledge of:
• Principles and practices of architecture or engineering and related cost estimation.
• Familiarity with the principles and practice of all other professional building construction disciplines.
• Mathematical and statistical methods as used in engineering and planning.
• Federal, State, Local and County applicable laws, rules, regulations, permits, licenses, practices, standards, policies

and procedures.
• Recent developments and current literature regarding the practices of construction cost estimating.
• Computer-aided drafting and design (CADD) methods and techniques (preferable).
• Computer equipment to include cost estimation, word processing, presentations, spreadsheets, databases, graphics

and related engineering applications.
• Business letter writing, grammar and punctuation, and report preparation.

Skill in:
• Developing detailed cost estimates for variety of facility-related projects.
• Developing comprehensive cost reports for projects at all levels of design.
• Analyzing complex data and reports.
• Applying principles and practices used in engineering and architecture.
• Developing preliminary project costs for budgeting.
• Explaining complicated technical problems in simple non-technical language.
• Problem-solving and technical decision-making for developing effective solutions.
• Both verbal and written communication.

Ability to:
• Plan and prioritize programs, projects and activities.
• Perform complex studies, analysis and design.
• Work independently.
• Exercise sound judgment and make decisions.
• Manage time well, perform multiple tasks and organize diverse activities.
• Interpret plans, specifications, standards, policies, procedures and regulatory codes.
• Respond to inquiries from customers, regulatory agencies and members of the professional community.
• Perform in a stressful environment while maintaining a professional manner.
• Make appropriate and effective public presentations.
• Continue professional growth through continuing education.
• Establish and maintain effective working relationships with County employees and officials, other professionals,

contractors, representatives of outside agencies, and the general public.

WORK ENVIRONMENT AND PHYSICAL DEMANDS:

Physical requirements include the ability to lift/carry up to 25 pounds, visual acuity, mental effort, speech and hearing,
hand and eye coordination, manual dexterity necessary to operate a computer, and viewing screen for long periods.
Subject to standing, sitting, walking, climbing stairs, bending, stooping, squatting, crouching, kneeling, reaching, twisting,
balancing, driving and repetitive motion to perform the essential functions. Occasionally may be subject to contact with
noise and dust. Requires fieldwork and exposure to traffic, public work development sites, and construction site
hazards. May require climbing and traveling over uneven, muddy, rocky, and high grass terrain in all types of weather.

This job description is intended to be generic in nature. It is not necessarily an exhaustive list of all duties
and responsibilities. The essential duties, functions and responsibilities and overtime eligibility may vary
based on the specific tasks assigned to the position.

Page2of2

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Facilities Building Maintenance Engineer Senior

JOB CODE: 25417 FLSA STATUS: Exempt
PAY GRADE: 25 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

JOB SUMMARY:

Functions as project manager over complex facility maintenance projects, analysis and coordination of planning, design
and analysis, and implementation of engineering projects for maintenance of existing secure facilities. Supervises staff
involved in maintenance projects. Performs all work using appropriate safety procedures.

DISTINGUISHING CHARACTERISTICS:

This is a job classification within the Engineering and Support Services job family. This classification is distinguished by
the project management duties and responsibilities, license as a Professional Engineer, and required additional
supervisory experience. This classification may require work in secure facilities. This classification may require a
flexible work schedule in order to meet the needs of the department.

DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES:

• Provides preventive maintenance planning, analysis and recommendations. Prepares cost estimates. Reviews and
approves maintenance work plans and specifications. Reviews bids and recommends contract awards for repairs
and modifications. Evaluates services rendered by maintenance contractors and conformance to contract
provisions.

• Prepares budgets for maintenance projects and sets schedule and cost objectives for timely completion of all
maintenance projects.

• Develops specifications, REPs/bids and recommends the best alternatives for awarding maintenance contracts to
competing contractors, including coordination in sealing plans in accordance with State regulations.

• Supervises operational inspection of existing systems to assure relevant building codes, ordinances and standards
are met. Interprets complex statutes, ordinances and building codes. Ensures building codes, such as ADA, fire
codes are met.

• Responds and analyzes difficult inquires, grievances or complaints.

• Develops scope of projects, project schedules and budgets.

• Prepares a variety of engineering research and administrative materials, and develops correspondence, records,
memorandums and complex reports, attends meetings and training sessions, prepares court agenda packet,
supports policy makers by participation as a technical advisor and assists in preparation of annual work plan.

• Performs other job-related duties as assigned.

MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS:

Education and Experience:
Bachelor’s degree in Civil Engineering AND four (4) years of directly related, increasingly responsible professional
engineering design and/or analysis experience as a licensed Professional Engineer, including two (2) years of lead,
supervisory, management, and/or project management experience.

Licenses, Registrations, Certifications, or Special Requirements:
Professional Engineer (P. E.) issued by the State of Texas. If licensed as a P. E. in another state, must become licensed
in the State of Texas within six (6) months of date of hire.
Valid Texas Driver’s License.

Knowledge. Skills, and Abilities:
Knowledge of:
• Principles, procedures, practices, programs, systems, methods, and techniques of engineering.
• Advanced mathematical and statistical methods as used in engineering and planning.
• Principles of project management, including scheduling, estimating, contracting, and budgeting.
• Supervisory principles, practices and techniques.

Page 1 of 3

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Facilities Building Maintenance Engineer Senior

JOB CODE: 25417 FLSA STATUS: Exempt
PAY GRADE: 25 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS: (Cont.)

Knowledge of: (Cant.)
• Federal, State, Local and County applicable laws, rules, regulations, permits, licenses, practices, standards, policies

and procedures.
• Recent developments and current literature regarding engineering.
• Methods, practices, and techniques of inspections, compliance and enforcement.
• Budget preparation and office management.
• Computer equipment to include word processing, presentations, spreadsheets, databases, maps, records, graphics,

project scheduling and management, and other related engineering applications.
• Business letter writing, grammar and punctuation, and report preparation.

Skill in:
• Planning and directing a variety of engineering projects.
• Analyzing complex data, technical engineering data and reports.
• Supervisory principles, practices and techniques.
• Applying principles and practices as used in engineering.
• Adapting approved engineering methods and standards a variety of engineering projects.
• Using and caring for equipment, tools and testing materials.
• Using and caring for computer-aided design and drafting (CADD), Geographic Information System (GIS) and other

related electronic equipment.
• Contract management and project budgeting.
• Explaining complicated technical problems in simple non-technical language.
• Problem-solving and technical decision-making for developing effective solutions.
• Both verbal and written communication.

Ability to:
• Plan and prioritize programs, projects and activities.
• Perform complex engineering studies, analysis and design.
• Work independently.
• Exercise sound judgment and make decisions.
• Manage time well, perform multiple tasks and organize diverse activities.
• Perform technical research, calculations, and computations, and prepare plans and reports.
• Convey complex ideas and concepts verbally and in writing.
• Plan, assign, supervise, train and review the work of professional and technical subordinates.
• Interpret plans, specifications, standards, policies, procedures and regulatory codes.
• Respond to inquiries from customers, regulatory agencies, or members of the professional community.
• Perform in a stressful environment while maintaining a professional manner.
• Make appropriate and effective public presentations.
• Establish and maintain effective working relationships with County employees and officials, developers, engineers,

contractors, representatives of outside agencies, and the general public.

Page2of3 7

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Facilities Building Maintenance Engineer Senior

JOB CODE: 25417 FLSA STATUS: Exempt
PAY GRADE: 25 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

WORK ENVIRONMENT AND PHYSICAL DEMANDS:

Physical requirements include the ability to lift/carry up to 10-60 pounds, visual acuity, mental effort, speech and hearing,
hand and eye coordination and manual dexterity, necessary to operate a computer, and viewing screens for long periods.
Subject to standing, sitting, walking, climbing stairs, bending, stooping, squatting, crouching, kneeling, pushing, pulling,
reaching, twisting, balancing, driving, repetitive motion, and client/customer contact to perform the essential functions.
Subject to contact with noise, vibration, fumes, foul odor, dirt, dust, mist, gases, and poor ventilation. Requires use of
protective devices such as masks, goggles, and gloves. Requires fieldwork, and exposure to traffic, public work
development sites, construction site hazards, climbing and walking and traveling over rough, uneven, mud, rocky, high
grass terrain, and indoors/outdoors in all types of weather (excessive heat and cold).

This job description is intended to be generic in nature. It is not necessarily an exhaustive list of all duties
and responsibilities. The essential duties, functions and responsibilities and overtime eligibility may vary
based on the specific tasks assigned to the position.

Page 3 of 3

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Engineering Inspector Specialist

JOB CODE: 16663 FLSA STATUS: Non-Exempt
PAY GRADE: 16 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

JOB SUMMARY:

Performs inspections work to ensure compliance. Performs all work using appropriate safety procedures.

DISTINGUISHING CHARACTERISTICS:

This is the first in a series of two engineering inspector-related job classifications within the Engineering and Support
Services job family. This classification is distinguished by the performance of more routine duties assigned. This
classification may require a flexible work schedule in order to meet the needs of the department.

DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES:

• Performs inspections for compliance of contracts, regulatory codes, specifications, rules, licenses, standards,
policies and procedures. Reviews plans and specifications, and prepares project estimates. Ensures quality and
proper environmental management procedures.

• Conducts site visits to collect data. Evaluates progress and note field conditions.

• Provides technical interpretation and explanation of information and policies and procedures to the public, County
staff and officials, developers, designers, architects, engineers, contractors and representatives of outside agencies.

• Reviews and interprets plans, specifications, plats, maps and County standards.

• Develops, maintains and updates databases. Prepares technical and administrative project reports.

• Researches, investigates and analyzes issues. Prepares recommendations for professional staff.

• Maintains accurate records and notes, and of office work activities.

• Performs other job-related duties as assigned.

MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS:

Education and Experience:
Associate’s degree in a related Engineering discipline AND two (2) years of related increasingly responsible inspection
work experience;

OR,

Any combination of education and experience that has been achieved and is equivalent to the stated education and
experience and required knowledge, skills, and abilities sufficient to successfully perform the duties and responsibilities
of this job.

Licenses, Registrations, Certifications, or Special Requirements:
Valid Texas Driver’s License.

Preferred:
Certified Erosion, Sediment and Storm Water Inspector (CESSWI); OR,
Certified Inspector of Sediment and Erosion Control (CISEC); OR,
Certified Professional in Erosion and Sediment Control (CPESC)

If assigned to On-Site Wastewater program:
Designated Representative License or must be obtained within six (6) months of date of hire.

Knowledge, Skills, and Abilities:
Knowledge of:
• Methods and procedures used in inspecting.
• Federal, State and Local applicable laws, regulatory codes, rules, permits, licenses, practices, standards, policies

and procedures.
• Principles, methods, practices and techniques of engineering.

Page 1 of 2

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Engineering Inspector Specialist

JOB CODE: 16663 FLSA STATUS: Non-Exempt
PAY GRADE: 16 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS: (Cont.)
Knowledge of: (Cont.)
• Advanced mathematical and statistical methods as used in engineering and planning.
• Engineering maps and records.
• Principles and practices related to public works projects and or contract plans, specifications and estimates.
• Methods, practices, and techniques of inspections, compliance and enforcement.
• Computer equipment to include word processing, presentations, spreadsheets, databases, maps, records, graphics,

project scheduling and management, and other related engineering applications.
• Business letter writing, grammar and punctuation, and report preparation.

Skill in:
• Interpreting written documents, including construction plans, engineered blue prints, specifications and contract

provisions.
• Interpreting laboratory test data.
• Analyzing data, technical engineering data and reports.
• Applying principles and practices as used in engineering.
• Adapting approved engineering methods and standards a variety of engineering projects.
• Using and caring for equipment, tools and testing materials.
• Using and caring for computer-aided design and drafting (CADD), Geographic Information System (GIS) and other

related electronic equipment.
• Explaining complicated technical problems in simple non-technical language.
• Problem-solving and technical decision-making for developing effective solutions.
• Both verbal and written communication.

Ability to:
• Interpret maps, plans, specifications, standards, policies, procedures and regulatory codes.
• Perform technical research, calculations, and computations, and prepare plans and reports.
• Manage time well, perform multiple tasks and organize diverse activities.
• Convey ideas and concepts verbally and in writing.
• Perform in a stressful environment while maintaining a professional manner.
• Establish and maintain effective working relationships with County employees and officials, developers, engineers,

contractors, representatives of outside agencies, and the general public.

WORK ENVIRONMENT AND PHYSICAL DEMANDS:

Physical requirements include the ability to lift/carry up to 10-60 pounds, visual acuity, mental effort, speech and hearing,
hand and eye coordination and manual dexterity necessary to operate a computer, and viewing screens for long periods.
Subject to standing, sitting, walking, climbing stairs, bending, stooping, squatting, crouching, kneeling, pushing, pulling,
reaching, twisting, balancing, driving, repetitive motion, talking, and client/customer contact to perform the essential
functions. Subject to contact with noise, vibration, fumes, foul odor, dirt, dust, mist, gases, and poor ventilation, parts, tools
or machinery. Must be mobile enough to conduct geological site reviews and be able to inspect systems with a high
degree of visual acuity and foot control. Requires use of protective devices such as masks, goggles, and gloves.
Requires fieldwork, and exposure to traffic, public work development sites, construction site hazards, climbing and walking
and traveling over rough, uneven, mud, rocky, high grass terrain, and indoors/outdoors in all types of weather (excessive
heat and cold).

This job description is intended to be generic in nature. It is not necessarily an exhaustive list of all duties
and responsibilities. The essential duties, functions and responsibilities and overtime eligibility may vary
based on the specific tasks assigned to the position.

Page2of2

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Engineering Inspector Specialist Senior

JOB CODE: 18797 FLSA STATUS: Non-Exempt
PAY GRADE: 18 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

JOB SUMMARY:

Performs complex inspections work to ensure compliance. Performs complaint investigation and enforcement. Performs
all work using appropriate safety procedures.

DISTINGUISHING CHARACTERISTICS:

This is the second in a series of two engineering inspector-related job classifications within the Engineering and Support
Services job family. This classification is distinguished by the performance of complex duties assigned. This
classification acts as a supervisor for a crew of inspectors. This classification may require a flexible work schedule in
order to meet the needs of the department.

DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES:

• Supervises and performs inspections for compliance of contracts, regulatory codes, specifications, rules, permits,
licenses, standards, policies and procedures. Reviews plans, specifications, and prepares project estimates.
Ensures quality and proper environmental management procedures.

• Conducts site visits to collect data. Evaluates progress and notes field conditions.

• Provides technical interpretation and explanation of information and policies and procedures to the public, County
staff and officials, developers, designers, architects, engineers, contractors and representatives of outside agencies.

• Participates in the processing of permits. Ensures compliance with permits. Performs complaint investigation and
enforcement.

• Reviews and interprets plans, specifications, estimates, plats, maps and County standards.

• Develops, maintains and updates databases. Prepares technical and administrative project documents and reports.

• Researches, investigates and analyzes problems and issues. Prepares recommendations, including solutions, for
professional staff.

• Maintains accurate records and notes, and of office work activities.

• Performs other job-related duties as assigned.

MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS:

Education and Experience:
Associate’s degree in a related Engineering discipline AND three (3) years of related increasingly responsible inspection
work experience;

OR,

Any combination of education and experience that has been achieved and is equivalent to the stated education and
experience and required knowledge, skills, and abilities sufficient to successfully perform the duties and responsibilities
of this job.

Licenses, Registrations, Certifications, or Special Requirements:
Valid Texas Driver’s License.

If assigned to On-Site Wastewater program:
Designated Representative License or must be obtained within six (6) months of date of hire.

Page 1 of 3 29/

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Engineering Inspector Specialist Senior

JOB CODE: 18797 FLSA STATUS: Non-Exempt
PAY GRADE: 18 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS: (Cont.)

Knowledge, Skills, and Abilities:
Knowledge of:
• Methods and procedures used in inspecting.
• Federal, State, Local and County applicable laws, rules, regulations, permits, licenses, practices, standards, policies

and procedures.
• Supervisory principles, practices and techniques.
• Principles, methods, practices and techniques of engineering.
• Advanced mathematical and statistical methods as used in engineering and planning.
• Engineering maps and records.
• Principles and practices related to public works projects and or contract plans, specifications and estimates.
• Methods, practices, and techniques of inspections, compliance and enforcement.
• Computer equipment to include word processing, presentations, spreadsheets, databases, maps, records, graphics,

project scheduling and management, and other related engineering applications.
• Business letter writing, grammar and punctuation, and report preparation.

Skill in:
• Interpreting written documents, including construction plans, engineered blue prints, specifications and contract

provisions.
• Interpreting laboratory test data.
• Analyzing data, technical engineering data and reports.
• Applying principles and practices as used in engineering.
• Adapting approved engineering methods and standards a variety of engineering projects.
• Using and caring for equipment, tools, and testing materials.
• Using and caring for computer-aided design and drafting (CADD), Geographic Information System (GIS) and other

related electronic equipment.
• Explaining complicated technical problems in simple non-technical language.
• Problem-solving and technical decision-making for developing effective solutions.
• Both verbal and written communication.

Ability to:
• Interpret maps, plans, specifications, standards, policies, procedures and regulatory codes.
• Perform technical research, calculations, and computations, and prepare plans and reports.
• Manage time well, perform multiple tasks and organize diverse activities.
• Convey ideas and concepts verbally and in writing.
• Perform in a stressful environment while maintaining a professional manner.
• Establish and maintain effective working relationships with County employees and officials, developers, engineers,

contractors, representatives of outside agencies, and the general public.

Page 2 of 3

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Engineering Inspector Specialist Senior

JOB CODE: 18797 FLSA STATUS: Non-Exempt
PAY GRADE: 18 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

WORK ENVIRONMENT AND PHYSICAL DEMANDS:

Physical requirements include the ability to lift/carry up to 10-60 pounds, visual acuity, mental effort, speech and hearing,
hand and eye coordination and manual dexterity necessary to operate a computer, and viewing screens for long periods.
Subject to standing, sitting, walking, climbing stairs, bending, stooping, squatting, crouching, kneeling, pushing, pulling,
reaching, twisting, balancing, driving, repetitive motion, talking, and client/customer contact to perform the essential
functions. Subject to contact with noise, vibration, fumes, foul odor, dirt, dust, mist, gases, and poor ventilation, parts, tools
or machinery. Must be mobile enough to conduct geological site reviews and be able to inspect systems with a high
degree of visual acuity and foot control. Requires use of protective devices such as masks, goggles, and gloves.
Requires fieldwork, and exposure to traffic, public work development sites, construction site hazards, climbing and walking
and traveling over rough, uneven, mud, rocky, high grass terrain, and indoors/outdoors in all types of weather (excessive
heat and cold).

This job description is intended to be generic in nature. It is not necessarily an exhaustive list of all duties
and responsibilities. The essential duties, functions and responsibilities and overtime eligibility may vary
based on the specific tasks assigned to the position.

Page3of3 2’93

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Survey Crew Technician

JOB CODE: 10551 FLSA STATUS: Non-Exempt
PAY GRADE: 10 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

JOB SUMMARY:

Performs technical field engineering and survey crew work. Performs all work using appropriate safety procedures.

DISTINGUISHING CHARACTERISTICS:

This is the first in a series of two survey crew-related job classifications within the Engineering and Support Services job
family. This classification is distinguished by the performance of more routine duties assigned. This classification may
require a flexible work schedule in order to meet the needs of the department.

DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES:

• Performs surveying or computer-aided design and drafting (CADD) work and drafting plans for engineering projects.
Prepares project estimates. Performs manual drafting, as required.

• Performs work of a field survey crew. Operates survey equipment. Processes survey field data.

• Reviews and interprets plans, specifications, estimates, plats, maps and County standards.

• Develops, maintains and updates databases and other associated computer systems. Develops technical and
administrative project reports.

• Reviews and interprets engineering projects for accuracy and compliance with applicable laws, regulatory codes,
rules, permits, licenses, standards, policies and procedures.

• Researches, investigates and analyzes issues. Prepares recommendations for professional staff.

• Researches public records for supporting documents for engineering and surveying projects.

• Maintains accurate records and notes, and of office work activities.

• Performs other job-related duties as assigned.

MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS:

Education and Experience:
Associate’s degree in a related Engineering or Drafting discipline AND one (1) year of technical survey field experience,
including experience in geometry and trigonometry;

OR,

Any combination of education and experience that has been achieved and is equivalent to the stated education and
experience and required knowledge, skills, and abilities sufficient to successfully perform the duties and responsibilities
of this job.

Licenses, Registrations, Certifications, or Special Requirements:
Valid Texas Driver’s License.

Knowledge, Skills, and Abilities:
Knowledge of:
• Principles, methods, practices and techniques surveying.
• Interpreting and utilizing engineering plans, maps and specifications.
• Mathematical and statistical methods as used in surveying.
• Computer equipment to include word processing, presentations, spreadsheets, databases, maps, records, graphics,

project scheduling and management, and other related engineering applications.
• Business letter writing, grammar and punctuation, and report preparation.

Pagelof2

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Survey Crew Technician

JOB CODE: 10551 FLSA STATUS: Non-Exempt
PAY GRADE: 10 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS: (Cont.)

Skill in:
• Using and caring for equipment, tools and testing materials.
• Using geometry and trigonometry and conduct measurements.
• Using and caring for computer-aided design and drafting (CADD), Geographic Information System (GIS), Global

Positioning System (GPS) equipment, survey data collection and other related electronic equipment.
• Both verbal and written communication.

Ability to:
• Working with others, including on a crew.
• Establish and maintain effective working relationships with County employees and officials, developers, engineers,

contractors, representatives of outside agencies, and the general public.

WORK ENVIRONMENT AND PHYSICAL DEMANDS:

Physical requirements include the ability to lift/carry up to 10-60 pounds, visual acuity, mental effort, speech and hearing,
hand and eye coordination and manual dexterity necessary to operate a computer, and viewing screens for long periods.
Subject to standing, sitting, walking, climbing stairs, bending, stooping, squatting, crouching, kneeling, pushing, pulling,
reaching, twisting, balancing, driving, repetitive motion, client/customer contact to perform the essential functions. Subject
to contact with noise, vibration, fumes, foul odor, dirt, dust, mist, gases, and poor ventilation, parts, tools or machinery.
Requires use of protective devices such as masks, goggles, and gloves. Requires fieldwork, and exposure to traffic, public
work development sites, construction site hazards, climbing and walking and traveling over rough, uneven, mud, rocky,
high grass terrain, and indoors/outdoors in all types of weather (excessive heat and cold).

This job description is intended to be generic in nature. It is not necessarily an exhaustive list of all duties
and responsibilities. The essential duties, functions and responsibilities and overtime eligibility may vary
based on the specific tasks assigned to the position.

Page 2 of 2

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Survey Crew Specialist

JOB CODE: 13556 FLSA STATUS: Non-Exempt
PAY GRADE: 13 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

JOB SUMMARY:

Performs technical field engineering and survey crew work. Performs all work using appropriate safety procedures.

DISTINGUISHING CHARACTERISTICS:

This is the second in a series of two survey crew-related job classifications within the Engineering and Support Services
job family. This classification is distinguished by the performance of more variety and complex duties assigned, and
may serve in a lead capacity, as required. This classification may require a flexible work schedule in order to meet the
needs of the department.

DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES:

• Performs, and may lead, as required, surveying or computer-aided design and drafting (CADD) work and drafting
plans for engineering projects. Prepares project estimates. Performs manual drafting, as required.

• Performs work of a field survey crew. Operates survey equipment. Processes survey field data.

• Reviews and interprets plans, specifications, estimates, plats, maps and County standards.

• Develops, maintains and updates engineering databases and other associated computer systems. Performs
engineering calculations. Develops technical and administrative project reports.

• Reviews and interprets engineering projects for accuracy and compliance with applicable laws, regulatory codes,
rules, permits, licenses, standards, policies and procedures.

• Researches, investigates and analyzes issues. Prepares recommendations for professional staff.

• Researches public records for supporting documents for engineering and surveying projects.

• Maintains accurate records and notes, and of office work activities.

• Provides technical interpretation and explanation of information and policies and procedures to the public, County
staff and officials, developers, designers, architects, engineers, contractors and representatives of outside agencies.

• Performs other job-related duties as assigned.

MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS:

Education and Experience:
Associate’s degree in Engineering or Drafting AND two (2) years of technical field survey experience, including
experience in geometry and trigonometry;

OR,
Any combination of education and experience that has been achieved and is equivalent to the stated education and
experience and required knowledge, skills, and abilities sufficient to successfully perform the duties and responsibilities
of this job.

Licenses, Registrations, Certifications, or Special Requirements:
Valid Texas Driver’s License.

Knowledcie, Skills, and Abilities:
Knowledge of:
• Principles, methods, practices and techniques surveying.
• Interpreting and utilizing engineering plans, maps, and specifications.
• Mathematical and statistical methods as used in surveying.
• Computer equipment to include word processing, presentations, spreadsheets, databases, maps, records, graphics,

project scheduling and management, and other related engineering applications.
• Business letter writing, grammar and punctuation, and report preparation.

Page 1 of 2

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Survey Crew Specialist

JOB CODE: 13556 FLSA STATUS: Non-Exempt
PAY GRADE: 13 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS: (Cont.)

Skill in:
• Using and caring for equipment, tools, and testing materials.
• Using and caring for computer-aided design and drafting (CADD), Geographic Information System (GIS), Global

Positioning System (GPS) processing, survey data collection, and other related electronic equipment.
• Using geometry and trigonometry and conduct measurements.
• Both verbal and written communication.

Ability to:
• Working with others, including on a crew.
• Establish and maintain effective working relationships with County employees and officials, developers, engineers,

contractors, representatives of outside agencies, and the general public.

WORK ENVIRONMENT AND PHYSICAL DEMANDS:

Physical requirements include the abihty to lift/carry up to 10-60 pounds, visual acuity, mental effort, speech and hearing,
hand and eye coordination and manual dexterity necessary to operate a computer, and viewing screens for long periods.
Subject to standing, sitting, walking, climbing stairs, bending, stooping, squatting, crouching, kneeling, pushing, pulling,
reaching, twisting, balancing, driving, repetitive motion, client/customer contact to perform the essential functions. Subject
to contact with noise, vibration, fumes, foul odor, dirt, dust, mist, gases, and poor ventilation, parts, tools or machinery.
Requires use of protective devices such as masks, goggles, and gloves. Requires fieldwork, and exposure to traffic, public
work development sites, construction site hazards, climbing and walking and traveling over rough, uneven, mud, rocky,
high grass terrain, and indoors/outdoors in all types of weather (excessive heat and cold).

This job description is intended to be generic in nature. It is not necessarily an exhaustive list of all duties
and responsibilities. The essential duties, functions and responsibilities and overtime eligibility may vary
based on the specific tasks assigned to the position.

.Th?Page2of2 c2s1

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Survey & Records Manager

JOB CODE: 21653 FLSA STATUS: Exempt
PAY GRADE: 21 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

JOB SUMMARY:

Directs and supervises the operations of the field surveying, Global Positioning System (GPS), Computer Aided Drafting
(CAD), and records research staff and operations. Performs all work using appropriate safety procedures.

DISTINGUISHING CHARACTERISTICS:

This is a job classification within the Engineering and Support Services job family. This classification is distinguished by
the management duties and responsibilities. This classification serves as the County Surveyor. This classification may
require a flexible work schedule in order to meet the needs of the department.

DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES:

• Supervises staff and field crew staff, evaluates staff job performance and coordinates schedules and assignments,
authorizes staff productive and non-productive work hours, prepares and administers budget, prepares a variety of
fiscal and administrative reports.

• Reviews and makes boundary resolutions, check final maps and sketches, and prepares legal descriptions, certifies
and seals maps and documents for content, accuracy, and completeness, as prescribed by law. Maintains all maps
and records.

• Researches and analyzes survey records and legal documents. Applies appropriate laws and regulations to
determine boundaries, property lines and survey control lines.

• Supervises the development and maintains both vertical and horizontal control for Global Positioning System (GPS)
for County and other users.

• Plans and schedules for the future services and budgetary needs. Assists with preparation and administration of
budget, and a variety of fiscal and administrative reports. Evaluates hardware and software, and services and
programs. Reviews and evaluates work methods and procedures. Applies problem-solving techniques.
Demonstrates continuous effort to improve operations and seamless customer service.

• Provides in-service training to staff.

• Assists in developing strategic short and long-term plans, develops and implements goals, objectives, policies,
procedures, and priorities. Coordinates with officials to achieve those goals.

• Responds and analyzes difficult inquires, grievances or complaints.

• Works closely with officials, department heads, legal staff, multiple outside suppliers and other County staff, to
establish procedures for the monitoring of contract compliance issues.

• Represents the County in attending meetings, community meetings, seminars, conferences, professional
associations meetings, private organizations and participates on related committees. Maintains recent
developments and current literature regarding surveying.

• Performs other job-related duties as assigned.

MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS:

Education and Experience:
Bachelor’s degree in Surveying AND four (4) years of directly related, increasingly responsible surveying experience,
including one (1) year of supervisory or management experience;

OR,

Any combination of education and experience that has been achieved and is equivalent to the stated education and
experience and required knowledge, skills, and abilities sufficient to successfully perform the duties and responsibilities
of this job.

Page 1 of 3

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Survey & Records Manager

JOB CODE: 21653 FLSA STATUS: Exempt
PAY GRADE: 21 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS: (Cont.)

Licenses, Registrations, Certifications, or Special Requirements:
Registration as a Professional Land Surveyor issued by the State of Texas.
Valid Texas Driver’s License.

Knowledge, Skills, and Abilities:
Knowledge of:
• Principles, methods, practices and techniques surveying.
• Management and supervisory principles, practices and techniques.
• Federal, State, Local and County applicable laws, rules, regulations, permits, licenses, practices, standards, policies

and procedures.
• Mathematical and statistical methods as used in surveying.
• Recent developments and current literature regarding surveying.
• Computer equipment to include word processing, presentations, spreadsheets, databases, maps, records, graphics,

project scheduling and management, and other related engineering applications.
• Business letter writing, grammar and punctuation, and report preparation.

Skill in:
• Supervisory principles, practices and techniques.
• Using and caring for computer-aided design and drafting (CADD), Geographic Information System (GIS), Global

Positioning System (GPS) processing, survey data collection, and other related electronic equipment.
• Interpreting and utilizing engineering plans, maps, and specifications
• Explaining complicated technical problems in simple non-technical language.
• Problem-solving and technical decision-making for developing effective solutions.
• Both verbal and written communication.

Ability to:
• Plan and prioritize programs, projects, and activities.
• Work independently.
• Exercise sound judgment and make decisions.
• Manage time well, perform multiple tasks and organize diverse activities.
• Convey complex ideas and concepts verbally and in writing.
• Plan, assign, supervise, train and review the work of subordinates.
• Interpret plans, specifications, standards, policies, procedures and regulatory codes.
• Respond to inquiries from customers, regulatory agencies or members of the professional community.
• Perform in a stressful environment while maintaining a professional manner.
• Make appropriate and effective public presentations.
• Establish and maintain effective working relationships with County employees and officials, developers, engineers,

contractors, representatives of outside agencies, and the general public.

Page 2 of 3 ,,9

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Survey & Records Manager

JOB CODE: 21653 FLSA STATUS: Exempt
PAY GRADE: 21 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

WORK ENVIRONMENT AND PHYSICAL DEMANDS:

Physical requirements include the ability to lift/carry up to 10-60 pounds, visual acuity, mental effort, speech and hearing,
hand and eye coordination and manual dexterity, necessary to operate a computer, and viewing screens for long periods.
Subject to standing, sitting, walking, climbing stairs, bending, stooping, squatting, crouching, kneeling, pushing, pulling,
reaching, twisting, balancing, driving, repetitive motion, client/customer contact to perform the essential functions. Subject
to contact with noise, vibration, fumes, foul odor, dirt, dust, mist, gases, and poor ventilation, parts, tools or machinery.
Requires use of protective devices such as masks, goggles, and gloves. Requires fieldwork, and exposure to traffic, public
work development sites, construction site hazards, climbing and walking and traveling over rough, uneven, mud, rocky,
high grass terrain, and indoors/outdoors in all types of weather (excessive heat and cold).

This job description is intended to be generic in nature. It is not necessarily an exhaustive list of all duties
and responsibilities. The essential duties, functions and responsibilities and overtime eligibility may vary
based on the specific tasks assigned to the position.

Page 3 of 3

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: GIS Specialist

JOB CODE: 16559 FLSA STATUS: Non-Exempt
PAY GRADE: 16 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

JOB SUMMARY:

Under general supervision, performs varied data entry to complete Geographic Information System (GIS) work projects,
including maintaining related computer systems through design, database maintenance and implementation of GIS work
projects.

DISTINGUISHING CHARACTERISTICS:

This is the first in a series of three GIS-related job classifications within the Engineering and Support Services job family.
This classification is distinguished by the routine-specialist level of work being performed. This classification may
require a flexible work schedule in order to meet the needs of the department.

DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES:

• Designs, creates, maintains and integrates databases by operating and maintaining GIS and other computer
programs.

• Produces and prepares GIS related maps, reports, papers, proposals, presentations, instructional and other related
training materials.

• May perform project management of routine GIS tasks in support of projects. Reviews and interprets projects for
accuracy and compliance with applicable laws, standards, policies and procedures.

• Assists in the coordination of department GIS work projects and user requirements via teams. Designs and
implements program specific applications, databases, tools, critical path identifications, provides technical
assistance for other departments and other agencies, ensures modifications, edits or enhancements to existing
programming files, and databases are compatible and standardized to meet current requirements.

• Conducts specialized research for projects, interprets recorded plans, captures and collects data, addresses and
identifies critical issues, develops and recommends action plans and strategies, including time tables.

• Performs database entry. Maintains accurate records and documentation of work performed.

• Performs other job-related duties as assigned.

MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS:

Education and Experience:
Bachelor’s degree in Geographic Information Science, Information Systems Management, Urban or Transportation
Planning, Geography or a directly related field AND one (1) year of directly related, increasingly responsible experience
utilizing geographic information systems;

OR,

Any combination of education and experience that has been achieved and is equivalent to the stated education and
experience and required knowledge, skills, and abilities sufficient to successfully perform the duties and responsibilities
of this job.

Licenses, Registrations, Certifications, or Special Requirements:
Valid Texas Driver’s License.

Knowledge, Skills, and Abilities:
Knowledge of:
• Computer based GIS, including terminology, data structures, automated mapping, spatial information processing

methods and applications.
• Principles, procedures, practices, modern land mapping application methods and theory, and techniques of GIS.
• Federal, State, Local and County applicable laws, rules, regulations, permits, licenses, practices, standards, policies

and procedures.

Page 1 of 2

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: GIS Specialist

JOB CODE: 16559 FLSA STATUS: Non-Exempt
PAY GRADE: 16 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS: (Cont.)

Knowledge of: (Cont.)
• Computer equipment to include word processing, presentations, spreadsheets, databases, maps, records, graphics,

project scheduling and management, and related engineering applications.
• Business letter writing, grammar and punctuation, and report preparation.

Skill in:
• Using and caring for GIS and other related computer applications, programs and operating systems.
• Coordinating database management and data analysis.
• Analyzing complex data, technical data and reports.
• Applying principles and practices as used in GIS.
• Explaining complicated technical problems in simple non-technical language.
• Problem-solving and technical decision-making for developing effective solutions.
• Both verbal and written communication.

Ability to:
• Read and interpret related surveys, plans, records and documents.
• Produce maps and other representations of spatial data.
• Understand both verbal and written direction.
• Analyze database systems and computerized modeling information.
• Assess and understand user needs.
• Perform computer programming and system design.
• Convey complex ideas and concepts verbally and in writing.
• Working with others, including on a team.
• Manage time well, perform multiple tasks and organize diverse activities.
• Perform technical research, technical writing and prepare reports.
• Perform in a stressful environment while maintaining a professional manner.
• Establish and maintain effective working relationships with County employees and officials, developers, engineers,

contractors, representatives of outside agencies, and the general public.

WORK ENVIRONMENT AND PHYSICAL DEMANDS:

Physical requirements include the ability to lift/carry up to 10-60 pounds, visual acuity, mental effort, speech and hearing,
hand and eye coordination and manual dexterity necessary to operate a computer, and viewing screens for long periods.
Subject to standing, sitting, walking, climbing stairs, bending, stooping, squatting, crouching, kneeling, pushing, pulling,
reaching, twisting, balancing, driving, repetitive motion, and client/customer contact to perform the essential functions.

This job description is intended to be generic in nature. It is not necessarily an exhaustive list of all duti
and responsibilities. The essential duties, functions and responsibilities and overtime eligibility may vary
based on the specific tasks assigned to the position.

Page 2 of 2

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: GIS Analyst

JOB CODE: 18660 FLSA STATUS: Non-Exempt
PAY GRADE: 18 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

JOB SUMMARY:

Completes Geographic Information System (GIS) work projects, including maintaining related computer systems through
design, database maintenance and implementation of GIS work projects.

DISTINGUISHING CHARACTERISTICS:

This is the second in a series of three GIS-related job classifications within the Engineering and Support Services job
family. This classification is distinguished by the analyst level of work being performed. This classification may require a
flexible work schedule in order to meet the needs of the department.

DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES:

• Designs, creates, maintains and integrates databases by operating and maintaining GIS and other computer
programs.

• Produces and prepares GIS related maps, reports, papers, proposals, presentations, instructional and other related
training materials.

• Performs project management through teams. Identifies and develops project scope and project assignment budget
monitoring.

• Coordinates department GIS work projects and user requirements via teams. Designs and implements program
specific applications, databases, tools, critical path identifications, provides technical assistance for other
departments and other agencies, ensures modifications, edits or enhancements to existing programming files, and
databases are compatible and standardized to meet current requirements.

• Conducts specialized research for projects, interprets recorded plans, captures and collects data, addresses and
identifies critical issues, develops and recommends action plans and strategies, including time tables.

• Performs other job-related duties as assigned.

MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS:

Education and Experience:
Bachelor’s degree in Geographic Information Science, Information Systems Management, Urban or Transportation
Planning, Geography or a directly related field AND two (2) years of directly related, increasingly responsible experience
utilizing geographic information systems;

OR,

Any combination of education and experience that has been achieved and is equivalent to the stated education and
experience and required knowledge, skills, and abilities sufficient to successfully perform the duties and responsibilities
of this job.

Licenses, Registrations, Certifications, or Special Requirements:
Valid Texas Driver’s License.

Knowledge, Skills, and Abilities:
Knowledge of:
• Computer based GIS, including terminology, data structures, automated mapping, spatial information processing

methods and applications.
• Principles, procedures, practices, modern land mapping application methods and theory, and techniques of GIS.
• Federal, State, Local and County applicable laws, rules, regulations, permits, licenses, practices, standards, policies

and procedures.
• Computer equipment to include word processing, presentations, spreadsheets, databases, maps, records, graphics,

project scheduling and management, and related engineering applications.
• Business letter writing, grammar and punctuation, and report preparation.

Page 1 of 2

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: GIS Analyst

JOB CODE: 18660 FLSA STATUS: Non-Exempt
PAY GRADE: 18 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS: (Cont.)

Skill in:
• Using and caring for GIS and other related computer applications, programs and operating systems.
• Coordinating database management and data analysis.
• Analyzing complex data, technical data and reports.
• Applying principles and practices as used in GIS.
• Explaining complicated technical problems in simple non-technical language.
• Problem-solving and technical decision-making for developing effective solutions.
• Both verbal and written communication.

Ability to:
• Read and interpret related surveys, plans, records and documents.
• Produce maps and other representations of spatial data.
• Understand both verbal and written direction.
• Analyze database systems and computerized modeling information.
• Assess and understand user needs.
• Perform computer programming and system design.
• Convey complex ideas and concepts verbally and in writing.
• Working with others, including on a team.
• Manage time well, perform multiple tasks and organize diverse activities.
• Perform technical research, technical writing and prepare reports.
• Perform in a stressful environment while maintaining a professional manner.
• Establish and maintain effective working relationships with County employees and officials, developers, engineers,

contractors, representatives of outside agencies, and the general public.

WORK ENVIRONMENT AND PHYSICAL DEMANDS:

Physical requirements include the ability to lift/carry up to 10-60 pounds, visual acuity, mental effort, speech and hearing,
hand and eye coordination and manual dexterity necessary to operate a computer, and viewing screens for long periods.
Subject to standing, sitting, walking, climbing stairs, bending, stooping, squatting, crouching, kneeling, pushing, pulling,
reaching, twisting, balancing, driving, repetitive motion, and client/customer contact to perform the essential functions.

This job description is intended to be generic in nature. It is not necessarily an exhaustive list of all duties
and responsibilities. The essential duties, functions and responsibilities and overtime eligibility may vary
based on the specific tasks assigned to the position.

Page2of2

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: GIS Coordinator

JOB CODE: 19659 FLSA STATUS: Exempt
PAY GRADE: 19 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

JOB SUMMARY:

Coordinates the Geographic Information System (GIS) support activities, serves as technical advisor, provides technical
support for related GIS work projects, including project coordination, supervision of staff, maintaining related computer
systems and implementation of GIS work projects.

DISTINGUISHING CHARACTERISTICS:

This is the third in a series of three GIS-related job classifications within the Engineering and Support Services job
family. This classification is distinguished by the supervisory responsibility, the technical advisor experience and working
knowledge of GIS support activities. This classification may require a flexible work schedule in order to meet the needs
of the department.

DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES:

• Produces and prepares GIS related maps, reports, papers, proposals, presentations, instructional and other related
training materials.

• Develops, designs, creates, maintains and integrates databases by operating and maintaining GIS and other related
computer programs, including quality control, data capture, translation, documentation and access.

• Conducts specialized research for projects, interpret recorded plans, captures and collects data, addresses and
identifies critical issues, develops and recommends action plans and strategies, including time tables.

• Assists in developing strategic short and long-term plans, develops and implements goals, objectives, policies,
procedures and priorities. Coordinates with officials to achieve those goals.

• Coordinates department GIS work projects and user requirements via teams. Designs and implements program
specific applications, databases, tools, critical path identifications, acts as technical advisor and provides assistance
for other departments and other agencies, ensures modifications, edits or enhancements to existing programming
files, and databases are compatible and standardized to meet current requirements.

• Supervises professional and support staff, provides technical user training, evaluates staff job performance and
coordinates schedules and assignments, authorizes staff productive and non-productive work hours.

• Performs other job-related duties as assigned.

MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS:

Education and Experience:
Bachelor’s degree in Geographic Information Science, Information Systems Management, Urban or Transportation
Planning, Geography or a directly related field AND two (2) years of directly related, increasingly responsible experience
utilizing geographic information systems, including one (1) year of lead experience;

OR,

Any combination of education and experience that has been achieved and is equivalent to the stated education and
experience and required knowledge, skills, and abilities sufficient to successfully perform the duties and responsibilities
of this job.

Licenses, Registrations, Certifications, or Special Requirements:
Valid Texas Driver’s License.

Page 1 of 2 3Q5

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: GIS Coordinator

JOB CODE: 19659 FLSA STATUS: Exempt
PAY GRADE: 19 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS: (Cont.)

Knowledge. Skills, and Abilities:
Knowledge of:
• Computer based GIS, including terminology, data stwctures, automated mapping, spatial information processing

methods and applications.
• Supervisory principles, practices and techniques.
• Principles, procedures, practices, modern land mapping application methods and theory, and techniques of GIS.
• Federal, State, Local and County applicable laws, rules, regulations, permits, licenses, practices, standards, policies

and procedures.
• Computer equipment to include word processing, presentations, spreadsheets, databases, maps, records, graphics,

project scheduling and management, and related engineering applications.
• Business letter writing, grammar and punctuation, and report preparation.

Skill in:
• Using and caring for GIS and other related computer applications, programs and operating systems.
• Coordinating database management and data analysis.
• Explaining complicated technical problems in simple non-technical language.
• Analyzing complex data, technical data and reports.
• Applying principles and practices as used in GIS.
• Supervisory principles, practices and techniques.
• Problem-solving and technical decision-making for developing effective solutions.
• Both verbal and written communication.

Ability to:
• Read and interpret related surveys, plans, records and documents.
• Produce maps and other representations of spatial data.
• Understand both verbal and written direction.
• Analyze problems, situations, database systems and computerized modeling information.
• Plan, assess, and understand user present and future needs.
• Perform computer programming and system design.
• Convey complex ideas and concepts verbally and in writing.
• Provide technical user training, and working with others, including on a team.
• Manage time well, perform multiple tasks and organize diverse activities.
• Perform technical research, technical writing and prepare reports.
• Perform in a stressful environment while maintaining a professional manner.
• Establish and maintain effective working relationships with County employees and officials, developers, engineers,

contractors, representatives of outside agencies, and the general public.

WORK ENVIRONMENT AND PHYSICAL DEMANDS:

Physical requirements include the ability to lift/carry up to 10-60 pounds, visual acuity, mental effort, speech and hearing,
hand and eye coordination and manual dexterity, necessary to operate a computer, and viewing screens for long periods.
Subject to standing, sitting, walking, climbing stairs, bending, stooping, squatting, crouching, kneeling, pushing, pulling,
reaching, twisting, balancing, driving, repetitive motion, and client/customer contact to perform the essential functions.

I This job description is intended to be generic in nature. It is not necessarily an exhaustive list of all duties
and responsibilities. The essential duties, functions and responsibilities and overtime eligibility may vary
based on the specific tasks assigned to the position.

Page2of2

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Court Bailiff

JOB CODE: 10046 FLSA STATUS: Non-Exempt
PAY GRADE: 10 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

JOB SUMMARY:

Maintains safety, security and decorum in courtroom. Carries out orders by the judge, provides assistance to the judge,
prepares courtrooms and assures that all essential parties and materials are present. Coordinates activities within the
courtroom and announces opening and closing of court. Performs jury management, calls witnesses and interacts with
attorneys. Assists the general public in their dealings with the court.

DISTINGUISHING CHARACTERISTICS:

This is a job classification within the Courts job family. This classification is a specialized classification and not part of
series. This classification may require a flexible work schedule in order to meet the needs of the department.

DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES:

• Maintains safety, security and decorum in courtroom. Observes courtroom activities. Announces opening and
closing of court. Advises and enforces courtroom rules of behavior and procedures. Monitors court agenda.
Informs judge of general concerns and assists with court activities.

• Performs jury management duties by assisting in jury empanelling. Looks after jurors during the trial process,
handles the needs of the jurors and notifies the court when a verdict is reached.

• Notifies Sheriff Deputy Law Enforcement of existing or potential security issues.

• Communicates and interacts with attorneys. Provides general information to the general public and answers
questions of others.

• Serves as a liaison to the public, the bar, the bench, agencies and litigants. Answers general questions about court
activity, guides courtroom participants to the proper places, and locates litigants and court cases.

• Performs other job-related duties as assigned.

MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS:

Education and Experience:
High School diploma or G.E.D. AND three (3) years of relevant court, security equipment/operation, computer equipment
and office/clerical experience, including one (1) year of experience in working with the public;

OR,

Any combination of education and experience that has been achieved and is equivalent to the stated education and
experience and required knowledge, skills, and abilities sufficient to successfully perform the duties and responsibilities
of this job.

Licenses, Registrations, Certifications, or Special Requirements:
None required.

Knowledge, Skills, and Abilities:
Knowledge of:
• Policies, practices, procedures and legal terminology related to court system.
• Legal and court terminology.
• FederaL State, Local and County laws, rules, regulations and guidelines relating to assigned court.

Skill in:
• Operating a variety of modern office equipment, including a computer.
• Both verbal and written communication.

Pagelof2 3O7

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Court Bailiff

JOB CODE: 10046 FLSA STATUS: Non-Exempt
PAY GRADE: 10 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS: (Cont.)

Ability to:
• Maintain proper order in a court setting.
• Understand and follow verbal and written instructions, laws, regulations, guidelines and policies.
• Perform in a stressful environment while maintaining a professional manner.
• Communicate in a tactful and courteous manner.
• Establish and maintain effective working relationships with departmental clientele, representatives of outside

agencies, other County employees and officials, attorneys, judges, jurors and the general public.

WORK ENVIRONMENT AND PHYSICAL DEMANDS:

Physical requirements include the ability to lift/carry up to 10-25 pounds, extensive periods of sitting and standing to
perform the essential functions. Subject to continual contact with persons accused or convicted of crimes. Subject to
stressful court environment and client and customer contact for extended periods of time.

This job description is intended to be generic in nature. It is not necessarily an exhaustive list of all duties
and responsibilities. The essential duties, functions and responsibilities and overtime eligibility may vary
based on the specific tasks assigned to the position.

Page 2 of 2

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Court Reporter

JOB CODE: 24177 FLSA STATUS: Exempt
PAY GRADE: 24 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

JOB SUMMARY:

Records, transcribes and maintains records of court proceedings. Furnishes transcripts of court proceedings to
requesting parties. Provides equipment used in performing duties, including stenographic machine, computers, software
and printers, along with necessary reference materials.

DISTINGUISHING CHARACTERISTICS:

This is a job classification within the Courts job family. This classification is distinguished in that incumbents must be
certified by the State of Texas Court Reporters. This classification is a highly specialized classification and not part of a
series. This classification is responsible for preparing transcripts of court proceedings. This classification may require a
flexible work schedule in order to meet the needs of the department.

DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES:

• Attends sessions of court and records all proceedings of evidence, objections, rulings, voir dire of jury duty and
arguments. Records all objections to admissibility of evidence, court rulings and remarks of the objections and
exceptions to the rulings.

• Makes full record of jury arguments and voir dire examinations when requested by attorney for any party to a case,
together with all objections to such arguments, rulings and remarks of court.

• Documents files with courts exhibits and indexes, and files notes taken in courts. Preserves shorthand or machine
notes taken in court for period required by law and prepares transcripts for appeals or other future legal
proceedings.

• Prepares official transcripts of all evidence or court proceedings, subject to laws of the State, the rules and
instructions of presiding judge of the court, for appeals or future court use. Certifies the accuracy of court
transcripts. Responds to requests of official transcripts.

• May serve as a liaison to attorneys, judges, other County departments and staff, officials and general public.
Provides information relating to court hearings and charges.

• May conduct depositions of witnesses. May receive, execute and return commissions. May make a certificate of
proceedings in any County that is included in the judicial district of the court. May prepare jury charges in civil cases.

• May perform administrative support duties as assigned for administrative functions of the court.

• Performs other job-related duties as assigned.

MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS:

Education and Experience:
Must pass two (2) proficiency tests consisting of 180 wpm literary, 200 wpm jury charge, and 225 wpm Q & A, depending
on nature of dictation used, to become eligible for certification. Certification exam consists of two (2) sections, Part A
and Part B. Part A requires a minimum passing grade of at least ninety-five (95%) percent accuracy on the certification
exam and Part B requires a minimum passing grade of seventy-five (75%) percent.

Licenses, Registrations, Certifications, or Special Requirements:
Certification by the State of Texas Court Reporters.
Texas Certified Court Reporters are required to complete continuing education pursuant to the rules promulgated by the
Texas Supreme Court.

Preferred:
Graduation from an accredited Court Reporting school.
Two (2) years of experience as a Certified Court Reporter.

Page 1 of 2

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Court Reporter

JOB CODE: 24177 FLSA STATUS: Exempt
PAY GRADE: 24 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS: (Cont.)

Knowledge, Skills, and Abilities:
Knowledge of:
• Machine shorthand theory and minimum standards established for certification as a Certified Court Reporter.
• Texas law and court procedures, terminology, record keeping practices and procedures, and Court decorum.
• Federal, State, Local and County laws, rules, regulations and guidelines relating to court reporting services.
• Computer applications and hardware related to performance of the essential functions.

Skill in:
• Coordinating and prioritizing the work and activities of self.
• Both verbal and written communication.

Ability to:
• Apply correct English grammar and spelling, vocabulary, medical and legal terminology.
• Record, transcribe and maintain records of court proceedings.
• Listen attentively for long periods of time.
• Operate a stenotype machine to record and prepare accurate and complete official records.
• Perform in a stressful environment while maintaining a professional manner.
• Continue professional growth through continuing education.
• Establish and maintain effective working relationships with departmental clientele, representatives of outside

agencies, other County employees and officials, and the general public.

WORK ENVIRONMENT AND PHYSICAL DEMANDS:

Physical requirements include the ability to lift/carry up to 10-25 pounds, extensive detailed record keepings by machine or
shorthand, extensive periods of sitting, typing, writing, and listening to recordings to perform the essential functions.
Subject to continual contact with persons accused or convicted of crimes. Subject to stressful court environment and client
and customer contact for extended periods of time.

This job description is intended to be generic in nature. It is not necessarily an exhaustive list of all duties
and responsibilities. The essential duties, functions and responsibilities and overtime eligibility may vary
based on the specific tasks assigned to the position.

Page2of2

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Pretrial Officer I

JOB CODE: 15331 FLSA STATUS: Non-Exempt
PAY GRADE: 15 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

JOB SUMMARY:

Interviews, investigates and evaluates clients incarcerated on criminal charges to determine their eligibility for personal
bond and determines indigent status for court appointed attorney. Refers personal bond applicants to various agencies
for treatment or assistance with alcohol, drug or personal problems. Makes recommendations to judges as to whether a
client should be granted release from jail on personal recognizance bond and on motions to revoke personal bonds.
Completes indigence forms to determine defendants’ eligibility for court appointed legal representation.

DISTINGUISHING CHARACTERISTICS:

This is the first in a series of four pretrial-related job classifications within the Courts job family. This classification is
distinguished from the Pretrial Officer II in that incumbents typically work under limited supervision and personal bond
cases evaluated are of a routine nature and type and may initially perform duties in training together with a higher-level staff
member. This classification may require work in secure facilities. This classification may require a flexible work
schedule in order to meet the needs of the department.

DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES:

• Investigates and interviews incarcerated clients to determine if they are eligible for release from jail on personal
recognizance bond. Recommends to the judge whether a client should be granted release on personal
recognizance bond, and what terms or specific conditions should be required when granted. Refers clients released
or due to be released on bond to agencies for assistance and/or treatment.

• Ensures indigence forms are completed to determine defendants’ eligibility for court appointed attorney. Serves as an
intermediary between judges and attorneys on questions concerning bond recommendations and court appointed
attorney status.

• Informs and briefs police, jail personnel, family and friends of the incarcerated client, lawyers and others regarding
bond recommendations. Serves as the personal bond representative at the County court jail call. Serves as the
Pretrial Services representative at jail calls for selected Justices of the Peace and County Courts at Law. Compiles
lists of defendants needing interviews and completes appropriate documentation.

• Completes follow-up investigations on denied bonds from previous shifts and/or personal bonds completed by
attorneys. Completes follow-up on denied bonds which have secured jail release. Recommends to judges that
bonds be revoked on subsequent arrest or problem clients, or when there is imminent danger to the community.
Provides testimony in court, as required, on assigned cases.

• Performs other job-related duties as assigned.

MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS:

Education and Experience:
Bachelor’s degree in Criminal Justice or a directly related field;

OR,

Any combination of education and experience that has been achieved and is equivalent to the stated education and
experience and required knowledge, skills, and abilities sufficient to successfully perform the duties and responsibilities
of this job.

Licenses, Registrations, Certifications, or Special Requirements:
Valid Texas Driver’s License.

Preferred:
Texas Crime Information Center Certification.
National Crime Information Center Certification.
One (1) year of work experience in a directly related field.

Pagelof2

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Pretrial Officer I

JOB CODE: 15331 FLSA STATUS: Non-Exempt
PAY GRADE: 15 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS: (Cont.)

Knowledge, Skills, and Abilities:
Knowledge of:
• Policies, practices, procedures and legal terminology related to court system.
• Federal, State, Local and County applicable laws, rules, regulations, guidelines and applicable pretrial services

standards and procedures.
• Standard practices in area of assignment.
• Computer equipment to include word processing, spreadsheets, databases and a variety of software packages.
• Business letter writing, grammar and punctuation, and report preparation.

Skill in:
• Problem-solving and decision-making.
• Interviewing clients.
• Both verbal and written communication.

Ability to:
• Work efficiently both independently and as part of a team.
• Reason and make judgments and decisions.
• Work effectively and courteously under stressful circumstances.
• Deal effectively with mentally disturbed, hostile and aggressive individuals.
• Manage time well, perform multiple tasks and organize diverse activities.
• Perform in a stressful environment while maintaining a professional manner.
• Research, compile, analyze, interpret and prepare a variety of memorandums or reports.
• Establish and maintain effective working relationships with departmental clientele, representatives of outside

agencies, other County employees and officials, attorneys, judges and the general public.

WORK ENVIRONMENT AND PHYSICAL DEMANDS:

Physical requirements include the ability to lift/carry up to 10-25 pounds, visual acuity, speech and hearing, hand and eye
coordination and manual dexterity necessary to operate a computer and office equipment. Subject to standing, sitting,
walking, climbing stairs, bending, stooping, crouching, kneeling, pushing, pulling, reaching, twisting, balancing, repetitive
motion, and squatting to perform the essential functions. Subject to contact with communicable diseases, radiation,
hazardous waste, human fecal matter and foul odors. Subject to client and customer contact for extended periods of time.

This job description is intended to be generic in nature. It is not necessarily an exhaustive list of all duties
and responsibilities. The essential duties, functions and responsibilities and overtime eligibility may vary
based on the specific tasks assigned to the position.

Page 2 of 2
,...

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Pretrial Officer II

JOB CODE: 16334 FLSA STATUS: Non-Exempt
PAY GRADE: 16 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

JOB SUMMARY:

Supervises and maintains contact with specialized caseload of clients released on bond and assists clients with meeting
bond conditions. Decides on the type and frequency of contact and length of time a client must spend in the program.
Interviews, investigates and evaluates clients incarcerated on criminal charges to determine their eligibility for personal
bond and determines indigent status for court appointed attorney. Evaluates persons for alcohol/drug related offenses in
order to assess and make recommendations on clients’ needs for alcohol/drug counseling. Refers personal bond
applicants to various agencies for treatment or assistance with alcohol, drug or personal problems. Makes
recommendations to judges as to whether a client should be granted release from jail on personal recognizance bond
and on motions to revoke personal bonds.

DISTINGUISHING CHARACTERISTICS:

This is the second in a series of four pretrial-related job classifications within the Courts job family. This classification is
distinguished from the Pretrial Officer I in that incumbents typically work under minimal supervision and monitor
specialized cases that range from routine to moderately complex nature and type. This classification also assists with
personal bond interviews, investigations and evaluating clients incarcerated on criminal charges to determine their
eligibility for personal bond. Personal bond cases evaluated are of routine to moderate complexity and type. This
classification may require work in secure facilities. This classification may require a flexible work schedule in order to
meet the needs of the department.

DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES:

• Oversees and maintains contact with specialized caseload of clients released on bond and assists clients with
meeting bond conditions. Provides input as to the type and frequency of contact and length of time a client must
spend in the program.

• Maintains records on clients placed on supervised bonds, including documentation of any communications with
those clients and the collection of data on those cases. Submits monthly and annual reports on caseload activity.

• Investigates and interviews incarcerated clients to determine if they are eligible for release from jail on personal
recognizance bond. Recommends to the judge whether a client should be granted release on personal
recognizance bond, and what terms or specific conditions should be required when granted. Refers clients released
or due to be released on bond to agencies for assistance or treatment.

• Ensures indigence forms are completed to determine defendants’ eligibility for court appointed attorney. Serves as an
intermediary between judges and attorneys on questions concerning bond recommendations and court appointed
attorney status.

• Assesses the substance abuse, psychosocial and environmental status of clients through screening instruments,
personal interviews, observations and other methods to determine educational/treatment needs. Administers
various screening instruments. Develops treatment plans and recommends resources and services for clients.
Coordinates referral of clients to clinical resources and other services and monitors clients’ progress.

• Informs and briefs police, jail personnel, family and friends of the incarcerated client, lawyers and others regarding
bond recommendations. Serves as the Pretrial Services representative at jail calls for selected Justices of the
Peace and County Courts at Law. Compiles lists of defendants needing interviews and completes appropriate
documentation.

• Prepares and presents legal documents and other reports to County Court-at-Law Judges, attorneys and the court
system, as required. Proofreads legal reports. May serve as a liaison with Court system on issues related to case
management.

• Recommends to judges that bonds be revoked on subsequent arrest or problem clients, or when there is imminent
danger to the community. Provides testimony in court on assigned cases, as required.

• Performs other job-related duties as assigned.

Page 1 of 3 /3

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Pretrial Officer Il

JOB CODE: 16334 FLSA STATUS: Non-Exempt
PAY GRADE: 16 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS:

Education and Exøerience:
Bachelor’s degree in Criminal Justice or a directly related field AND two (2) years experience in Pretrial Services; OR,

Bachelor’s degree in Criminal Justice or a directly related field AND six months to two year increasingly responsible
experience in Pretrial Services;

Departmental consideration may be given to a PTO I with less than two (2) years experience when incumbent selection
with two (2) years of Pretrial Services experience does not exist.

OR,

Any combination of education and experience that has been achieved and is equivalent to the stated education and
experience and required knowledge, skills, and abilities sufficient to successfully perform the duties and responsibilities
of this job.

Licenses, Registrations, Certifications, or Special Requirements:
Valid Texas Driver’s License.

Preferred:
Texas Crime Information Center certification.
National Crime Information Center certification.

Knowledge, Skills, and Abilities:
Knowledge of:
• Policies, practices, procedures and legal terminology related to court system.
• Federal, State, Local and County applicable laws, rules, regulations, guidelines and applicable pretrial services

standards and procedures.
• Standard practices in area of assignment.
• Computer equipment to include word processing, spreadsheets, databases and a variety of software packages.
• Business letter writing, grammar and punctuation, and report preparation.

Skill in:
• Problem-solving and decision-making.
• Interviewing clients.
• Both verbal and written communication.

Ability to:
• Work efficiently both independently and as part of a team.
• Reason and make judgments and decisions.
• Work effectively and courteously under stressful circumstances.
• Deal effectively with mentally disturbed, hostile and aggressive individuals.
• Manage time well, perform multiple tasks and organize diverse activities.
• Perform in a stressful environment while maintaining a professional manner.
• Research, compile, analyze, interpret and prepare a variety of memorandums or reports.
• Establish and maintain effective working relationships with departmental clientele, representatives of outside

agencies, other County employees and officials, attorneys, judges and the general public.

Page2of3

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Pretrial Officer II

JOB CODE: 16334 FLSA STATUS: Non-Exempt
PAY GRADE: 16 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

WORK ENVIRONMENT AND PHYSICAL DEMANDS:

Physical requirements include the ability to lift/carry up to 10-25 pounds, visual acuity, speech and hearing, hand and eye
coordination and manual dexterity necessary to operate a computer and office equipment. Subject to standing, sitting,
walking, climbing stairs, bending, stooping, crouching, kneeling, pushing, pulling, reaching, twisting, balancing, repetitive
motion, and squatting to perform the essential functions. Subject to contact with communicable diseases, radiation,
hazardous waste, human fecal matter and foul odors. Subject to client and customer contact for extended periods of time.

This job description is intended to be generic in nature. It is not necessarily an exhaustive list of all duties
and responsibilities. The essential duties, functions and responsibilities and overtime eligibility may vary
based on the specific tasks assigned to the position.

Page 3of3

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Pretrial Officer Ill

JOB CODE: 17337 FLSA STATUS: Non-Exempt
PAY GRADE: 17 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

JOB SUMMARY:

Interviews, investigates and evaluates clients incarcerated on criminal charges to determine their eligibility for personal
bond and determines indigent status for court appointed attorney. Evaluates personal bond cases that are of a higher
level and are more complex in nature and type. Evaluates persons for alcohol/drug related offenses in order to assess
and make recommendations on clients’ needs for alcohol/drug counseling. Refers personal bond applicants to various
agencies for treatment or assistance with alcohol, drug or personal problems. Makes recommendations to judges as to
whether a client should be granted release from jail on personal recognizance bond and on motions to revoke personal
bonds.

DISTINGUISHING CHARACTERISTICS:

This is the third in a series of four pretrial-related job classifications within the Courts job family. This classification is
distinguished from the Pretrial Officer II in that incumbents typically monitor specialized and personal bond cases that
are of a higher-level complex nature and type. Works under minimal supervision and uses independent judgment on
bond recommendations and other areas requiring decision. This classification may require work in secure facilities.
This classification may require a flexible work schedule in order to meet the needs of the department.

DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES:

• Investigates and interviews incarcerated clients to determine if they are eligible for release from jail on personal
recognizance bond. Makes independent, higher level recommendations to the judge whether a client should be
granted release on personal recognizance bond, and what terms or specific conditions should be required when
granted. Handles higher level cases for personal bond release.

• Oversees and maintains contact with specialized caseload of clients released on bond and assists clients with meeting
bond conditions and assuring their appearance in court. Provides input as to the type and frequency of contact and
length of time a client must spend in the program.

• Serves as an intermediary between judges and attorneys on questions concerning bond recommendations and
higher level departmental issues. Refers clients released or due to be released on bond to agencies for assistance
and/or treatment. Informs and briefs police, jail personnel, family and friends of the incarcerated client, lawyers and
others regarding bond recommendations.

• Compiles lists of defendants needing interviews and completes appropriate documentation. Monitors and ensures
granted personal bond applications and follow-up investigations on denied bonds from previous shifts comply with
standard operating procedures. Maintains records on clients placed on supervised bonds, including documentation of
any communications with those clients and the collection of data on those cases. Submits monthly and annual reports
on caseload activity.

• Makes recommendations to judges on motions to revoke personal bonds. Recommends to judges that bonds be
revoked on subsequent arrest or problem clients, or when there is imminent danger to the community. Serves as
the Pretrial Services representative at jail calls for selected Justices of the Peace and County Courts at Law.

• Assesses the substance abuse, psychosocial and environmental status of clients through screening instruments,
personal interviews, observations and other methods to determine educational/treatment needs. Administers
various screening instruments. Develops treatment plans and recommends resources and services for clients.
Coordinates referral of clients to clinical resources and other services and monitors clients’ progress.

• Serves as a mentor and advisor to lower-level Pretrial Officers. Advises and makes recommendations on higher-level
cases and bond investigations. Assists with case management responsibilities, provides direct supervision to
defendants assigned to Pretrial Services’ case management programs, as required. Presents legal documents to
County Courts at Law and District Court Judges, as required. Assists with periodically revising and updating
departmental policies, procedures and training documents. Provides testimony in court on assigned cases, as required.

• Performs other job-related duties as assigned.

Pagelof2

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Pretrial Officer III

JOB CODE: 1 7337 FLSA STATUS: Non-Exempt
PAY GRADE: 17 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS:

Education and Experience:
Bachelor’s degree in Criminal Justice or a directly related field AND three (3) years experience with Pretrial Services;

OR,

Any combination of education and experience that has been achieved and is equivalent to the stated education and
experience and required knowledge, skills, and abilities sufficient to successfully perform the duties and responsibilities
of this job.

Licenses, Registrations, Certifications, or Special Requirements:
Valid Texas Driver’s License.

Preferred:
Texas Crime Information Center certification.
National Crime Information Center certification.

Knowledge, Skills, and Abilities:
Knowledge of:
• Policies, practices, procedures and legal terminology related to court system.
• Federal, State, Local and County applicable laws, rules, regulations, guidelines and applicable pretrial services

standards and procedures.
• Standard practices in area of assignment.
• Computer equipment to include word processing, spreadsheets, databases and a variety of software packages.
• Business letter writing, grammar and punctuation, and report preparation.

Skill in:
• Problem-solving and decision-making.
• Interviewing clients.
• Both verbal and written communication.

Ability to:
• Work efficiently both independently and as part of a team.
• Reason and make judgments and decisions.
• Work effectively and courteously under stressful circumstances.
• Deal effectively with mentally disturbed, hostile and aggressive individuals.
• Manage time well, perform multiple tasks and organize diverse activities.
• Perform in a stressful environment while maintaining a professional manner.
• Research, compile, analyze, interpret and prepare a variety of memorandums or reports.
• Establish and maintain effective working relationships with departmental clientele, representatives of outside

agencies, other County employees and officials, attorneys, judges and the general public.

WORK ENVIRONMENT AND PHYSICAL DEMANDS:

Physical requirements include the ability to lift/carry up to 10-25 pounds, visual acuity, speech and hearing, hand and eye
coordination and manual dexterity necessary to operate a computer and office equipment. Subject to standing, sitting,
walking, climbing stairs, bending, stooping, crouching, kneeling, pushing, pulling, reaching, twisting, balancing, repetitive
motion, and squatting to perform the essential functions. Subject to contact with communicable diseases, radiation,
hazardous waste, human fecal matter and foul odors. Subject to client and customer contact for extended periods of time.

This job description is intended to be generic in nature. It is not necessarily an exhaustive list of all duties
and responsibilities. The essential duties, functions and responsibilities and overtime eligibility may vary
based on the specific tasks assigned to the position.

Page2of2 :/7

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Pretrial Officer Senior

JOB CODE: 18336 FLSA STATUS: Non-Exempt
PAY GRADE: 18 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

JOB SUMMARY:

Interviews, investigates and evaluates clients incarcerated on criminal charges to determine their eligibility for personal
bond and determines indigent status for court appointed attorney. Refers personal bond applicants to various agencies
for treatment or assistance with alcohol, drug or personal problems. Makes recommendations to judges as to whether a
client should be granted release from jail on personal recognizance bond and on motions to revoke personal bonds.
Supervises and maintains contact with specialized caseload of clients released on bond and assists clients with meeting
bond conditions. Supervises employees engaged in similar duties and may assist in duties related to day-to-day
operations of the unit.

DISTINGUISHING CHARACTERISTICS:

This is the fourth in a series of four pretrial-related job classifications within the Courts job family. This classification is
distinguished from the Pretrial Officer III in that incumbents function as a working lead over the activities of other pretrial
positions, supervising, training, assigning and reviewing work in addition to the normal range of duties. Personal Bond
cases evaluated are of the most complex nature and type. May function as a liaison between the department, the jail
facility and the courts. This classification may require work in secure facilities. This classification may require a flexible
work schedule in order to meet the needs of the department.

DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES:

• Functions as a working lead over other pretrial positions. Trains, schedules, assigns and reviews work of employees.
Conducts caseload audits. May assist in revising and updating policies and procedures.

• Investigates and interviews incarcerated clients to determine if they are eligible for release from jail on personal
recognizance bond. Recommends to the judge whether a client should be granted release on personal
recognizance bond, and what terms or specific conditions should be required when granted. Handles higher level
cases for personal bond release. Refers clients released or due to be released on bond to agencies for assistance
and/or treatment.

• Ensures indigence forms are completed to determine defendant’s eligibility for court appointed attorney. Serves as an
intermediary between judges and attorneys on questions concerning bond recommendations and court appointed
attorney status. May serve as liaison with jail facility and courts on higher level departmental issues.

• Informs and briefs police, jail personnel, family and friends of the incarcerated client, lawyers and others regarding
bond recommendations. Serves as the Pretrial Services representative at jail calls for selected Justices of the
Peace and County Courts at Law. Compiles lists of defendants needing interviews and completes appropriate
documentation.

• Monitors and ensures granted personal bond applications and follow-up investigations on denied bonds from
previous shifts comply with standard operating procedures. Oversees and maintains contact with specialized
caseload of clients released on bond and assists clients with meeting bond conditions. Provides input as to the type
and frequency of contact and length of time a client must spend in the program.

• Maintains records on clients placed on supervised bonds, including documentation of any communications with those
clients and the collection of data on those cases. Submits monthly and annual reports on caseload activity.
Recommends to judges that bonds be revoked on subsequent arrest or problem clients, or when there is imminent
danger to the community. Provides testimony in court on assigned cases, as required.

• Performs other job-related duties as assigned.

MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS:

Education and Experience:
Bachelor’s degree in Criminal Justice or a directly related field AND three (3) to four (4) years experience with Pretrial
Services;

Page 1 of 2

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Pretrial Officer Senior

JOB CODE: 18336 FLSA STATUS: Non-Exempt
PAY GRADE: 18 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS: (Cant.)

Education and Experience: (Cont.)

OR,

Any combination of education and experience that has been achieved and is equivalent to the stated education and
experience and required knowledge, skills, and abilities sufficient to successfully perform the duties and responsibilities
of this job.

Licenses, Registrations, Certifications, or Special Requirements:
Valid Texas Driver’s License.

Preferred:
Texas Crime Information Center Certification.
National Crime Information Center Certification.

Knowledge. Skills, and Abilities:
Knowledge of:
• Supervisory principles, practices and techniques.
• Policies, practices, procedures and legal terminology related to court system.
• Federal, State, Local and County applicable laws, rules, regulations, guidelines and applicable pretrial services

standards and procedures.
• Standard practices in area of assignment.
• Computer equipment to include word processing, spreadsheets, databases and a variety of software packages.
• Business letter writing, grammar and punctuation, and report preparation.

Skill in:
• Training, supervising and reviewing the work of others.
• Problem-solving and decision-making.
• Interviewing clients.
• Both verbal and written communication.

Ability to:
• Work efficiently both independently and as part of a team.
• Reason and make judgments and decisions.
• Work effectively and courteously under stressful circumstances.
• Deal effectively with mentally disturbed, hostile and aggressive individuals.
• Manage time well, perform multiple tasks and organize diverse activities.
• Perform in a stressful environment while maintaining a professional manner.
• Research, compile, analyze, interpret and prepare a variety of memorandums or reports.
• Establish and maintain effective working relationships with departmental clientele, representatives of outside

agencies, other County employees and officials, attorneys, judges and the general public.

WORK ENVIRONMENT AND PHYSICAL DEMANDS:

Physical requirements include the ability to lift/carry up to 10-25 pounds, visual acuity, speech and hearing, hand and eye
coordination and manual dexterity necessary to operate a computer and office equipment. Subject to standing, sitting,
walking, climbing stairs, bending, stooping, crouching, kneeling, pushing, pulling, reaching, twisting, balancing, repetitive
motion, and squatting to perform the essential functions. Subject to contact with communicable diseases, radiation,
hazardous waste, human fecal matter and foul odors. Subject to client and customer contact for extended periods of time.

This job description is intended to be generic in nature. It is not necessarily an exhaustive list of all duties
and responsibilities. The essential duties, functions and responsibilities and overtime eligibility may vary
based on the specific tasks assigned to the position.

Page2of2

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Substance Abuse Monitor

JOB CODE: 9142 FLSA STATUS: Non-Exempt
PAY GRADE: 09 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

JOB SUMMARY:

Administers pupillometer pre-screening tests for presence of drugs and/or alcohol, and monitors and performs tests on
urine specimens submitted by clients placed on community supervision. Maintains statistical data and records related to
testing.

DISTINGUISHING CHARACTERISTICS:

This is a job classification within the Courts job family. This classification is responsible for substance abuse monitoring
of clients placed on community supervision. This classification may require work in secure facilities. This classification
may require a flexible work schedule in order to meet the needs of the department.

DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES:

• Administers pupillometer pre-screening test for clients to detect possible presence of drugs or alcohol.

• Monitors and performs testing on urine specimens from clients.

• Runs negative controls daily to ensure accuracy of test. Maintains a sterile working environment.

• Maintains inventory of testing supplies, and orders testing supplies, as required.

• Fills out forms and data sheets. Maintains accurate daily records. Performs data entry related to testing and
results. Maintains statistical data and records, and compiles reports.

• Handles confirmation-testing procedures with the appropriate staff.

• Contacts vendor to obtain information regarding medication cross-reactions.

• Fingerprints and/or photographs clients, as required.

• Assists in training staff in testing procedures.

• Performs other job-related duties as assigned.

MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS:

Education and Experience:
One (1) year of experience in work requiring public contact;

OR,
Any combination of education and experience that has been achieved and is equivalent to the stated education and
experience and required knowledge, skills, and abilities sufficient to successfully perform the duties and responsibilities
of this job.

Licenses, Registrations, Certifications, or Special Requirements:
None required.

Preferred:
High School diploma or G.E.D.

Knowledge, Skills, and Abilities:
Knowledge of:
• Policies, practices, procedures and terminology of assigned function.
• Standard practices in area of assignment.
• Federal, State and Local program laws and requirements.
• Applicable health and safety practices and regulations.
• Office management principles and practices.
• Principles and procedures of record keeping.
• Computer equipment to include word processing, spreadsheets, databases and a variety of software packages.
• Business English, spelling and arithmetic.

Page 1 of 2

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Substance Abuse Monitor

JOB CODE: 9142 FLSA STATUS: Non-Exempt
PAY GRADE: 09 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS: (Cont.)

Skill in:
• Attention to detail.
• Operating a variety of substance abuse testing and office equipment, including a computer.
• Both verbal and written communication.

Ability to:
• Learn assigned tasks readily.
• Understand and follow verbal and written instructions and communicate effectively as needed to perform the job

functions.
• Work independently and efficiently.
• Effectively deal with aggressive and/or hostile offenders.
• Maintain confidentiality.
• Establish and maintain effective working relationships with County employees and officials, representatives of

outside agencies, and the general public.

WORK ENVIRONMENT AND PHYSICAL DEMANDS:

Physical requirements include the ability to lift/carry up to 10-25 pounds, visual acuity, speech and hearing, hand and eye
coordination and manual dexterity necessary to operate a computer and office equipment. Subject to standing, sitting,
walking, climbing stairs, bending, stooping, crouching, kneeling, pushing, pulling, reaching, twisting, balancing, repetitive
motion, and squatting to perform the essential functions. Subject to contact with communicable diseases, radiation,
hazardous waste, human fecal matter and foul odors. Subject to client and customer contact for extended periods of time.

This job description is intended to be generic in nature. It is not necessarily an exhaustive list of all duties
and responsibilities. The essential duties, functions and responsibilities and overtime eligibility may vary
based on the specific tasks assigned to the position.

Page 2 of 2

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Probation Officer Assistant

JOB CODE: 12143 FLSA STATUS: Non-Exempt
PAY GRADE: 12 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

JOB SUMMARY:

Interviews clients directly after sentencing in court for those who have been placed on community supervision and those
residing out of Travis County (indirect clients) and prepares appropriate paperwork to transfer supervision of the case to
the client’s County of residence. Provides supervision to indirect clients who have been placed on community
supervision by the courts, enforces conditions of community supervision, and monitors aspects of casework related to
the conditions of community supervision. Provides supervision for individuals who have been placed on Pre-Trial
Diversion by the County Attorney, assures their compliance with the orders as set forth by the County Attorney, and
monitors all aspects related to the client’s Orders of the County Attorney.

DISTINGUISHING CHARACTERISTICS:

This is the first in a series of five probation-related job classifications within the Courts job family. This classification
provides supervision to indirect clients who have been placed on community supervision by the courts. Client caseload
consists of indirect or Pre-Trial Diversion clients. Cases are staffed with higher-level community supervision staff.

DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES:

• Provides supervision to indirect clients who have been placed on community supervision by the courts. Documents
all contacts and all pertinent facts and events occurring in client’s life, including issues of compliance and
noncompliance. Documents collateral contacts, referrals, correspondence, and any and all other pertinent information.
Responds to written or telephone contacts. Requests offense reports and urinalysis. Prepares requests to amend
conditions of community supervision. Transfers cases to Probation Officer for violation reports and direct supervision.

• Conducts interviews with clients who have been placed on community supervision. Conducts orientation for newly
probated clients. Explains conditions of community supervision as set forth by the courts. Makes appropriate court
ordered referrals for the clients. Prepares file and sends to Probation Officer.

• Conducts interviews with clients who have been placed on community supervision, but who reside outside of Travis
County. Explains the case transfer procedures and expectations to the client, prepares and sends the transfer packet
to the appropriate receiving County/State.

• Conducts interviews with clients placed on Pre-Trial Diversion by the County Attorney. Explains conditions set forth by
the County Attorney. Monitors client’s progress and documents compliance or non-compliance and makes
recommendations to the County Attorney accordingly. Assists with Community Service Restitution referrals and
placement. Prepares legal documents for County AttorneVs office.

• Ensures all money owed by client is collected and properly recorded.

• Performs other job-related duties as assigned.

MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS:

Education and Experience:
Bachelor’s degree in Criminal Justice or a directly related field.

Licenses, Registrations, Certifications, or Special Requirements:
None required.

Knowledge. Skills, and Abilities:
Knowledge of:
• Policies, practices, procedures and legal terminology related to court system.
• Federal, State, Local and County applicable laws, rules, regulations, guidelines and applicable community

supervision services standards and procedures.
• Standard practices in area of assignment.
• Psychological concepts of good behavior, social adjustment and emotional stability.

Page 1 of 2 3m m

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Probation Officer Assistant

JOB CODE: 12143 FLSA STATUS: Non-Exempt
PAY GRADE: 12 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS: (Cont.)

Knowledge of: (Cont.)
• Casework techniques.
• Principles and procedures of record keeping and file management.
• Computer equipment to include word processing, spreadsheets, databases and a variety of software packages.
• Business letter writing, grammar and punctuation, and report preparation.

Skill in:
• Problem-solving and decision-making.
• Interviewing clients.
• Both verbal and written communication.

Ability to:
• Conduct interviews and report results clearly, accurately and impartially.
• Work efficiently both independently and as part of a team.
• Reason and make judgments and decisions.
• Work effectively and courteously under stressful circumstances.
• Deal effectively with mentally disturbed, hostile and aggressive individuals.
• Manage time well, perform multiple tasks and organize diverse activities.
• Perform in a stressful environment while maintaining a professional manner.
• Document information, compile data and prepare a variety of memorandums or reports.
• Establish and maintain effective working relationships with departmental clientele, representatives of outside

agencies, other County employees and officials, attorneys, judges and the general public.

WORK ENVIRONMENT AND PHYSICAL DEMANDS:

Physical requirements include the ability to lift/carry up to 10-25 pounds, visual acuity, speech and hearing, hand and eye
coordination and manual dexterity necessary to operate a computer and office equipment. Subject to standing, sitting,
walking, climbing stairs, bending, stooping, crouching, kneeling, pushing, pulling, reaching, twisting, balancing, repetitive
motion, and squatting to perform the essential functions. Subject to contact with communicable diseases, radiation,
hazardous waste, human fecal matter and foul odors. Subject to client and customer contact for extended periods of time.

This job description is intended to be generic in nature. It is not necessarily an exhaustive list of all duties
and responsibilities. The essential duties, functions and responsibilities and overtime eligibility may vary
based on the specific tasks assigned to the position.

Page 2 of 2 3;

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Probation Officer I

JOB CODE: 14144 FLSA STATUS: Non-Exempt
PAY GRADE: 14 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

JOB SUMMARY:

Provides supervision to clients who have been placed on community supervision by the courts, enforces conditions of
community supervision and monitors all aspects of casework related to the conditions of community supervision. Conducts
initial and subsequent interviews with clients to assist in sentencing, explains conditions of community supervision, and
assists clients in meeting terms of community supervision.

DISTINGUISHING CHARACTERISTICS:

This is second in a series of five probation-related job classifications within the Courts job family. This classification
provides supervision to clients who have been placed on community supervision by the courts and may initially perform
duties during training period together with a higher-level staff member. Cases must be staffed with a higher-level staff
member for recommendations for appropriate action to be taken. This classification may require work in secure facilities.
This classification may require a flexible work schedule in order to meet the needs of the department.

DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES:

• Conducts interviews with clients, investigates and examines information related to client’s case, and prepares a
report to facilitate the sentencing process.

• Conducts initial and subsequent interviews with clients, explaining conditions of community supervision as set forth by
the courts. Develops supervision plans for clients and completes all required documents on newly probated clients.

• Interprets conditions of community supervision, monitors for compliance with conditions, and takes appropriate action
for non-compliance.

• Maintains ongoing accurate level of supervision on all offenders.

• Monitors client’s progress through regular interviews with client. Conducts field visits to client’s home and other
locations pertinent to client’s case.

• Uses motivational interviewing techniques to assist in addressing criminogenic needs and to facilitate change in in
behavior to reduce recidivism.

• Documents all contacts with clients and all pertinent facts and events occurring in client’s life, including issues of
compliance and noncompliance. Documents collateral contacts, referrals, correspondence, and any and all other
pertinent information.

• Assists clients with various referrals, including, but not limited to, counseling, treatment and job referrals.

• Ensures all money owed by client, as set forth in the conditions of community supervision, is collected and properly
recorded.

• Prepares legal documents and other reports for judges, attorneys and the court system, as required.

• Conducts urinalysis on clients, as required, for purposes of substance abuse monitoring. May administer other
substance abuse screening and assessment tools.

• Provides testimony in court, as required.

• May transport clients.

• Performs other job-related duties as assigned.

MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS:

Education and Experience:
Bachelor’s degree in Criminal Justice or a directly related field. If Bachelor’s degree is in unrelated field, must have one
(1) year of graduate work in related field or one (1) year of experience in full-time casework, counseling or community
group work.

Page 1 of 2

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Probation Officer I

JOB CODE: 14144 FLSA STATUS: Non-Exempt
PAY GRADE: 14 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS: (Cont.)

Licenses, Registrations, Certifications, or Special Requirements:
Valid Texas Driver’s License.

Knowledge, Skills, and Abilities:
Knowledge of:
• Policies, practices, procedures and legal terminology related to court system.
• Federal, State, Local and County applicable laws, rules, regulations, guidelines and applicable community

supervision services standards and procedures.
• Standard practices in area of assignment.
• Psychological concepts of good behavior, social adjustment and emotional stability.
• Casework techniques.
• Computer equipment to include word processing, spreadsheets, databases and a variety of software packages.
• Business letter writing, grammar and punctuation, and report preparation.

Skill in:
• Problem-solving and decision-making.
• Interviewing clients.
• Both verbal and written communication.

Ability to:
• Conduct investigations and report results clearly, accurately and impartially.
• Work efficiently both independently and as part of a team.
• Reason and make judgments and decisions.
• Work effectively and courteously under stressful circumstances.
• Deal effectively with mentally disturbed, hostile and aggressive individuals.
• Manage time well, perform multiple tasks and organize diverse activities.
• Perform in a stressful environment while maintaining a professional manner.
• Research, compile, analyze, interpret and prepare a variety of memorandums or reports.
• Establish and maintain effective working relationships with departmental clientele, representatives of outside

agencies, other County employees and officials, attorneys, judges and the general public.

WORK ENVIRONMENT AND PHYSICAL DEMANDS:

Physical requirements include the ability to lift/carry up to 10-25 pounds, visual acuity, speech and hearing, hand and eye
coordination and manual dexterity necessary to operate a computer and office equipment. Subject to standing, sitting,
walking, climbing stairs, bending, stooping, crouching, kneeling, pushing, pulling, reaching, twisting, balancing, repetitive
motion, and squatting to perform the essential functions. Subject to contact with communicable diseases, radiation,
hazardous waste, human fecal matter and foul odors. Subject to client and customer contact for extended periods of time.

This job description is intended to be generic in nature. It is not necessarily an exhaustive list of all duties
and responsibilities. The essential duties, functions and responsibilities and overtime eligibility may vary
based on the specific tasks assigned to the position.

Page 2of2

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Probation Officer II

JOB CODE: 15145 FLSA STATUS: Non-Exempt
PAY GRADE: 15 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

JOB SUMMARY:

Provides supervision to clients who have been placed on community supervision by the courts, enforces conditions of
community supervision and monitors all aspects of casework related to the conditions of community supervision. Conducts
initial and subsequent interviews with clients to assist in sentencing, explains conditions of community supervision, and
assists clients in meeting terms of community supervision.

DISTINGUISHING CHARACTERISTICS:

This is the third in a series of five probation-related job classifications within the Courts job family. This classification
provides supervision to clients who have been placed on community supervision by the courts. This classification assists in
the training process for lower level Probation Officers. This classification may require work in secure facilities. This
classification may require a flexible work schedule in order to meet the needs of the department.

DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES:

• Conducts interviews with clients, investigates and examines information related to client’s case, and prepares a
report to facilitate the sentencing process.

• Conducts initial and subsequent interviews with clients, explaining conditions of community supervision as set forth by
the courts. Develops supervision plans for clients and completes all required documents on newly probated clients.

• Interprets conditions of community supervision, monitors for compliance with conditions, and takes appropriate action
for non-compliance.

• Maintains ongoing accurate level of supervision on all offenders.

• Monitors client’s progress through regular interviews with client. Conducts field visits to client’s home and other
locations pertinent to client’s case.

• Uses motivational interviewing techniques to assist in addressing criminogenic needs and to facilitate change in
behavior to reduce recidivism.

• Documents all contacts with clients and all pertinent facts and events occurring in client’s life, including issues of
compliance and noncompliance. Documents collateral contacts, referrals, correspondence, and any and all other
pertinent information.

• Assists clients with various referrals, including, but not limited to, counseling, treatment and job referrals.

• Ensures all money owed by client, as set forth in the conditions of community supervision, is collected and properly
recorded.

• Prepares legal documents and other reports for judges, attorneys and the court system, as required.

• Conducts urinalysis on clients as required for purposes of substance abuse monitoring. May administer other
substance abuse screening and assessment tools.

• Provides testimony in court, as required.

• May be assigned to present reports and provide court assistance on probation related matters.

• Assists in the training process for lower level Probation Officers. May supervise interns and volunteers assigned to the
unit.

• May transport clients.

• Performs other job-related duties as assigned.

Page 1 of 2

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Probation Officer II

JOB CODE: 15145 FLSA STATUS: Non-Exempt
PAY GRADE: 15 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS:

Education and Experience:
Bachelor’s degree in Criminal Justice or a directly related field AND two (2) years of employment with Travis County
Community Supervision and Corrections Department as a Probation Officer I and pass Probation Officer II testing.

Licenses, Registrations, Certifications, or Special Requirements:
Valid Texas Driver’s License.

Knowledge, Skills, and Abilities:
Knowledge of:
• Policies, practices, procedures and legal terminology related to court system.
• Federal, State, Local and County applicable laws, rules, regulations, guidelines and applicable community

supervision services standards and procedures.
• Standard practices in area of assignment.
• Psychological concepts of good behavior, social adjustment and emotional stability.
• Casework techniques.
• Computer equipment to include word processing, spreadsheets, databases and a variety of software packages.
• Business letter writing, grammar and punctuation, and report preparation.

Skill in:
• Problem-solving and decision-making.
• Interviewing clients.
• Both verbal and written communication.

Ability to:
• Conduct investigations and report results clearly, accurately and impartially.
• Work efficiently both independently and as part of a team.
• Reason and make judgments and decisions.
• Work effectively and courteously under stressful circumstances.
• Deal effectively with mentally disturbed, hostile and aggressive individuals.
• Manage time well, perform multiple tasks and organize diverse activities.
• Perform in a stressful environment while maintaining a professional manner.
• Research, compile, analyze, interpret and prepare a variety of memorandums or reports.
• Establish and maintain effective working relationships with departmental clientele, representatives of outside

agencies, other County employees and officials, attorneys, judges and the general public.

WORK ENVIRONMENT AND PHYSICAL DEMANDS:

Physical requirements include the ability to lift/carry up to 10-25 pounds, visual acuity, speech and hearing, hand and eye
coordination and manual dexterity necessary to operate a computer and office equipment. Subject to standing, sitting,
walking, climbing stairs, bending, stooping, crouching, kneeling, pushing, pulling, reaching, twisting, balancing, repetitive
motion, and squatting to perform the essential functions. Subject to contact with communicable diseases, radiation,
hazardous waste, human fecal matter and foul odors. Subject to client and customer contact for extended periods of time.

This job description is intended to be generic in nature. It is not necessarily an exhaustive list of all dutiesl
and responsibilities. The essential duties, functions and responsibilities and overtime eligibility may vary
based on the specific tasks assigned to the position.

Page 2 of 2

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Probation Officer Senior

JOB CODE: 16146 FLSA STATUS: Non-Exempt
PAY GRADE: 16 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

JOB SUMMARY:

Provides supervision to clients who have been placed on community supervision by the courts, enforces conditions of
community supervision and monitors all aspects of casework related to the conditions of community supervision.
Conducts initial and subsequent interviews with clients to assist in sentencing, explains conditions of community
supervision, and assists clients in meeting terms of community supervision.

DISTINGUISHING CHARACTERISTICS:

This is the fourth in a series of five probation-related job classifications within the Courts job family. This classification
provides supervision to clients who have been placed on community supervision by the courts. This classification typically
functions as the more experienced officers in the unit who assist the Manager in overseeing the work of subordinate
Probation Officers in addition to the normal range of duties. This classification may require work in secure facilities. This
classification may require a flexible work schedule in order to meet the needs of the department.

DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES:

• Conducts interviews with clients, investigates and examines information related to client’s case, and prepares a
report to facilitate the sentencing process.

• Conducts initial and subsequent interviews with clients, explaining conditions of community supervision as set forth by
the courts. Develops supervision plans for clients and completes all required documents on newly probated clients.

• Interprets conditions of community supervision, monitors for compliance with conditions, and takes appropriate action
for non-compliance.

• Maintains ongoing accurate level of supervision on all offenders.

• Monitors client’s progress through regular interviews with client. Conducts field visits to client’s home and other
locations pertinent to client’s case.

• Uses motivational interviewing techniques to assist in addressing criminogenic needs and to facilitate change in
behavior to reduce recidivism.

• Documents all contacts with clients and all pertinent facts and events occurring in client’s life, including issues of
compliance and noncompliance. Documents collateral contacts, referrals, correspondence, and any and all other
pertinent information.

• Assists clients with various referrals, including, but not limited to, counseling, treatment and job referrals.

• Ensures all money owed by client, as set forth in the conditions of community supervision, is collected and properly
recorded.

• Trains, assigns and reviews work of lower level Probation Officers and staffs cases for staff. May supervise interns and
volunteers assigned to the unit.

• Prepares legal documents and other reports for judges, attorneys and the court system as needed. Proofs legal reports
of Probation Officers. May serve as liaison with court system on higher level departmental issues.

• Conducts urinalysis on clients as needed for purposes of substance abuse monitoring. May administer other substance
abuse screening and assessment tools.

• Provides testimony in court, as required.

• Conducts audits of cases relating to exit audits, performance evaluations and any special audits as requested by
administration.

• Conducts supervisory hearings.

• Assists manager with administrative duties as needed for the day to day functioning of unit.

• Provides input into revising and updating policies and procedures.

Page 1 of 3 :3

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Probation Officer Senior

JOB CODE: 16146 FLSA STATUS: Non-Exempt
PAY GRADE: 16 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES: (Cant.)

• Collects statistical data and prepares reports, as required.

• May transport clients.

• Performs other job-related duties as assigned.

MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS:

Education and Experience:
Bachelor’s degree in Criminal Justice or a directly related field AND three (3) years of employment as a Probation Officer
with Travis County Community Supervision and Corrections Department;

Licenses, Registrations, Certifications, or Special Requirements:
Valid Texas Driver’s License.

Knowledge, Skills, and Abilities:
Knowledge of:
• Supervisory principles, practices and techniques.
• Policies, practices, procedures and legal terminology related to court system.
• Federal, State, Local and County applicable laws, rules, regulations, guidelines and applicable community

supervision services standards and procedures.
• Standard practices in area of assignment.
• Psychological concepts of good behavior, social adjustment and emotional stability.
• Casework techniques.
• Computer equipment to include word processing, spreadsheets, databases and a variety of software packages.
• Business letter writing, grammar and punctuation, and report preparation.

Skill in:
• Training and reviewing the work of others.
• Problem-solving and decision-making.
• Interviewing clients.
• Both verbal and written communication.

Ability to:
• Conduct investigations and report results clearly, accurately and impartially.
• Work efficiently both independently and as part of a team.
• Reason and make judgments and decisions.
• Work effectively and courteously under stressful circumstances.
• Deal effectively with mentally disturbed, hostile and aggressive individuals.
• Manage time well, perform multiple tasks and organize diverse activities.
• Perform in a stressful environment while maintaining a professional manner.
• Research, compile, analyze, interpret and prepare a variety of memorandums or reports.
• Establish and maintain effective working relationships with departmental clientele, representatives of outside

agencies, other County employees and officials, attorneys, judges and the general public.

Page2of3

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Probation Officer Senior

JOB CODE: 16146 FLSA STATUS: Non-Exempt
PAY GRADE: 16 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

WORK ENVIRONMENT AND PHYSICAL DEMANDS:

Physical requirements include the ability to lift/carry up to 10-25 pounds, visual acuity, speech and hearing, hand and eye
coordination and manual dexterity necessary to operate a computer and office equipment. Subject to standing, sitting,
walking, climbing stairs, bending, stooping, crouching, kneeling, pushing, pulling, reaching, twisting, balancing, repetitive
motion, and squatting to perform the essential functions. Subject to contact with communicable diseases, radiation,
hazardous waste, human fecal matter and foul odors. Subject to client and customer contact for extended periods of time.

This job description is intended to be generic in nature. It is not necessarily an exhaustive list of all duties
and responsibilities. The essential duties, functions and responsibilities and overtime eligibility may vary
based on the specific tasks assigned to the position.

Page 3 of 3

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Probation Officer Lead

JOB CODE: 17147 FLSA STATUS: Non-Exempt
PAY GRADE: 17 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

JOB SUMMARY:

Provides daily supervision for employees assigned to a specialized section of the Community Supervision and
Corrections Department (CSCD). Ensures work is performed in accordance with laws, policies and procedures.
Approves leave and schedule adjustments, trains staff, and addresses personnel issues, referring to management when
appropriate. Provides assistance and makes recommendations on client issues. May be assigned to supervise a small
caseload of clients who have been placed on community supervision by the courts.

DISTINGUISHING CHARACTERISTICS:

This is the fifth in a series of five probation-related job classifications within the Courts job family. This classification
oversees the daily operations of employees assigned to a specialized section of CSCD. This classification has
supervisory authority, but does not have the full managerial authority of the Probation Case Work Manager. This
classification provides assistance to staff and makes recommendations on client issues. This classification may require
work in secure facilities. This classification may require a flexible work schedule in order to meet the needs of the
department.

DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES:

• Plans, schedules, distributes and monitors workload of staff in assigned section. Ensures work is performed in
accordance with laws, policies and procedures. Sets priorities on tasks. Oversees functions to ensure work is
completed and objectives are met.

• Documents employee performance, maintains personnel records, addresses personnel issues and refers to the
manager when action is necessary. Approves leave time for employees, maintains employee leave in tracking
system, approves timesheets and adjusts work schedule accordingly.

• Prepares performance evaluations for employees of assigned section for management approval. Reviews the
evaluation with the employee and with the manager present as deemed necessary by the manager. Conducts case
audits.

• Proofs and approves legal and other community supervision documents generated by subordinate staff. Staffs
cases, as required.

• Recommends changes in office policy and procedure, assists in updating policy and procedure manuals, and
monitors for staff compliance with policy and procedure.

• Assists in developing staff meetings and other meeting agendas and presenting agenda at meetings, as required.

• Maintains databases, compiles statistics and prepares reports related to work performed.

• Completes all required case management functions for assigned caseload. Enforces conditions of community
supervision and monitors all aspects of casework related to conditions of community supervision.

• May perform a variety of administrative functions, such as coordinating exterior movements, coordinating
maintenance/repair of facility vehicles, approving clients for work release, and assists in completing reports or other
assignments.

• May transport clients.

• Performs other job-related duties as assigned.

MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS:

Education and Experience:
Bachelor’s degree in Criminal Justice or a directly related field AND four (4) years experience with Travis County
Community Supervision and Corrections Department as a Probation Officer, including one (1) year as a Probation
Officer Senior.

Pagelof2 :3:3/

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Probation Officer Lead

JOB CODE: 17147 FLSA STATUS: Non-Exempt
PAY GRADE: 17 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS: (Cont.)

Licenses, Registrations, Certifications, or Special Requirements:
Valid Texas Driver’s License.

Knowledge, Skills, and Abilities:
Knowledge of:
• Supervisory principles, practices and techniques.
• Policies, practices, procedures and legal terminology related to court system.
• Federal, State, Local and County applicable laws, rules, regulations, guidelines and applicable community

supervision services standards and procedures.
• Standard practices in area of assignment.
• Psychological concepts of good behavior, social adjustment and emotional stability.
• Casework techniques.
• Computer equipment to include word processing, spreadsheets, databases and a variety of software packages.
• Business letter writing, grammar and punctuation, and report preparation.

Skill in:
• Supervising others, including team building.
• Problem-solving and decision-making.
• Training, supervising and reviewing the work of others.
• Interviewing clients.
• Both verbal and written communication.

Ability to:
• Conduct investigations and report results clearly, accurately and impartially.
• Work efficiently both independently and as part of a team.
• Reason and make judgments and decisions.
• Work effectively and courteously under stressful circumstances.
• Deal effectively with mentally disturbed, hostile and aggressive individuals.
• Manage time well, perform multiple tasks and organize diverse activities.
• Perform in a stressful environment while maintaining a professional manner.
• Research, compile, analyze, interpret and prepare a variety of memorandums or reports.
• Establish and maintain effective working relationships with departmental clientele, representatives of outside

agencies, other County employees and officials, attorneys, judges and the general public.

WORK ENVIRONMENT AND PHYSICAL DEMANDS:

Physical requirements include the ability to lift/carry up to 10-25 pounds, visual acuity, speech and hearing, hand and eye
coordination and manual dexterity necessary to operate a computer and office equipment. Subject to standing, sitting,
walking, climbing stairs, bending, stooping, crouching, kneeling, pushing, pulling, reaching, twisting, balancing, repetitive
motion, and squatting to perform the essential functions. Subject to contact with communicable diseases, radiation,
hazardous waste, human fecal matter and foul odors. Subject to client and customer contact for extended periods of time.

I This job description is intended to be generic in nature. It is not necessarily an exhaustive list of all duties
and responsibilities. The essential duties, functions and responsibilities and overtime eligibility may vary
based on the specific tasks assigned to the position.

Page2of2

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Juvenile Probation Officer Assistant

JOB CODE: 12386 FLSA STATUS: Non-Exempt
PAY GRADE: 12 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

JOB SUMMARY:

Assists in providing supervision and counseling to juvenile clients positioned at various stages within the juvenile justice
system. Assists in supervising and monitoring all aspects of client’s case related to conditions of probation, including
visits with client’s family and other significant contacts. Assists in conducting initial and subsequent interviews with clients
to assist in sentencing, explains conditions of probation, and assists clients in meeting terms of probation. Documents client
behavior for use within the juvenile justice system.

DISTINGUISHING CHARACTERISTICS:

This is the first in a series of five juvenile probation-related job classifications within the Courts job family. This
classification assists in providing supervision to clients who are within various phases of the juvenile justice system. This
classification performs duties of the most routine nature and type and typically performs duties in training together with a
higher-level staff member. This classification may require work in secure facilities. This classification may require a
flexible work schedule in order to meet the needs of the department.

DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES:

• Assists in conducting investigations on the background of each case, which includes interviewing clients, their
families and other significant contacts. Reviews documentation, such as police reports, court transcripts and
criminal records and makes assessments regarding the nature of the individual’s environmental, employment,
financial or domestic difficulties as they apply to the case. Assists in making recommendations for sentencing and
disposition of probationer and preparing probation plans.

• Assists in supervising and monitoring juveniles on probation through regular home, school and office visits and other
needed contacts. Determines the needs of the client and family and assists in developing supervision plans for
clients.

• Assures client’s understanding of obligations with respect to conditions of the court’s order and monitors compliance
with the terms and conditions of probation. Addresses violations of court orders by taking appropriate action.
Assists in coordinating case management with representatives of criminal justice and social service agencies.

• Assists clients with various referrals, including, but not limited to, counseling, treatment and job referrals. Verifies
attendance and completion of alcohol, drug, mental health counseling and any other court ordered programs.

• Assists in preparing written assessments and recommendations to the court concerning alternative forms of
sentencing, treatment, custody release, suspension of sentence, release into treatment facilities, out-of-custody
probation supervision, and compliance and progress during probation.

• Maintains client files and records consistent with laws and policies.

• Transports clients to other facilities, as required.

• May assist in developing client placement plans, including completing placement applications, purchasing clothing,
obtaining medical and psychological reports and maintaining contact with clients in placement.

• May assist in providing individual and crisis intervention counseling, as required.

• May conduct urinalysis, request and execute warrants, obtain consents and other required paperwork.

• Performs other job-related duties as assigned.

MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS:

Education and Experience:
Associate’s degree in Criminal Justice, Social or Behavioral Sciences or a directly related field AND one (1) year
experience in social services, criminal justice or related field;

Page 1 of 3 3 3 3

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Juvenile Probation Officer Assistant

JOB CODE: 12386 FLSA STATUS: Non-Exempt
PAY GRADE: 12 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS: (Cont.)

Education and Exnerience: (Cont.)

OR,

Any combination of education and experience that has been achieved and is equivalent to the stated education and
experience and required knowledge, skills, and abilities sufficient to successfully perform the duties and responsibilities
of this job.

Licenses, Registrations, Certifications, or Special Requirements:
Valid Texas Driver’s License.
Must be at least 21 years of age.
Certification as a Probation Officer or eligible for certification within six (6) months of date of hire, including successful
completion of Cardio-pulmonary Resuscitation (CPR) Certification, First Aid and Handle with Care (state approved
physical restraint technique).

Knowledge, Skills, and Abilities:
Knowledge of:
• Policies, practices, procedures and legal terminology related to court system.
• Federal, State, Local and County applicable laws, rules, regulations, guidelines and applicable juvenile justice system

standards and procedures.
• Standard practices in area of assignment.
• Psychological concepts of good behavior, social adjustment and emotional stability.
• Standard counseling techniques.
• Safety and security techniques and standards.
• Physical restraint techniques to control aggressive behavior.
• Computer equipment to include word processing, spreadsheets, databases and a variety of software packages.

Skill in:
• Monitoring and responding to client behavior.
• Problem-solving and decision-making.
• Interviewing clients.
• Both verbal and written communication.

Ability to:
• Gather, analyze and evaluate facts to conduct investigations and report results clearly, accurately and impartially.
• Work efficiently both independently and as part of a team.
• Reason and make judgments and decisions.
• Work effectively and courteously under stressful circumstances.
• Deal effectively with mentally disturbed, hostile and aggressive individuals.
• Manage time well, perform multiple tasks and organize diverse activities.
• Perform in a stressful environment while maintaining a professional manner.
• Establish and maintain effective working relationships with departmental clientele, representatives of outside

agencies, other County employees and officials, representatives of the juvenile justice system and the general
public.

Page 2 of 3 9’

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Juvenile Probation Officer Assistant

JOB CODE: 12386 FLSA STATUS: Non-Exempt
PAY GRADE: 12 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

WORK ENVIRONMENT AND PHYSICAL DEMANDS:

Physical requirements include the ability to lift/carry up to 50-100 pounds, visual acuity, speech and hearing, hand and eye
coordination and manual dexterity necessary to operate a computer and basic office equipment. Subject to standing, sitting,
walking, climbing stairs, bending, stooping, crouching, kneeling, pushing, pulling, reaching, twisting, balancing, repetitive
motion, and squatting to perform the essential functions. Subject to contact with communicable diseases, radiation,
hazardous waste, human fecal matter and foul odors. Subject to client and customer contact for extended periods of time.

This job description is intended to be generic in nature. It is not necessarily an exhaustive list of all duties
and responsibilities. The essential duties, functions and responsibilities and overtime eligibility may vary
based on the specific tasks assigned to the position.

Page 3 of 3 3 35

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Juvenile Probation Officer I

JOB CODE: 14387 FLSA STATUS: Non-Exempt
PAY GRADE: 14 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

JOB SUMMARY:

Provides supervision and counseling to juvenile clients positioned at various stages within the juvenile justice system.
Supervises and monitors all aspects of client’s case related to conditions of probation, including visits with client’s family
and other significant contacts. Conducts initial and subsequent interviews with clients to assist in sentencing, explains
conditions of probation, and assists clients in meeting terms of probation. Documents client behavior for use within the
juvenile justice system.

DISTINGUISHING CHARACTERISTICS:

This is the second in a series of five juvenile probation-related job classifications within the Courts job family. This
classification provides supervision to clients who are within various phases of the juvenile justice system. Duties performed
are of a routine to moderately complex nature and type and may initially perform duties in training together with a higher-
level staff member. This classification may require work in secure facilities. This classification may require a flexible
work schedule in order to meet the needs of the department.

DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES:

• Conducts investigations on the background of each case, which includes interviewing clients, their families and other
significant contacts. Reviews documentation, such as police reports, court transcripts and criminal records and
makes assessments regarding the nature of the individual’s environmental, employment, financial or domestic
difficulties as they apply to the case. Makes recommendations for sentencing and disposition of probationer and
prepares probation plans.

• Supervises and monitors juveniles on probation through regular home, school and office visits and other needed
contacts. Determines the needs of the client and family and develops supervision plans for clients.

• Assures client’s understanding of obligations with respect to conditions of the court’s order and monitors compliance
with the terms and conditions of probation. Addresses violations of court orders by taking appropriate action.
Coordinates case management with representatives of criminal justice and social service agencies.

• Provides individual and crisis intervention counseling, as required.

• Assists clients with various referrals, including, but not limited to, counseling, treatment and job referrals. Verifies
attendance and completion of alcohol, drug, mental health counseling and any other court ordered programs.

• Prepares written assessments and recommendations to the court concerning alternative forms of sentencing,
treatment, custody release, suspension of sentence, release into treatment facilities, out-of-custody probation
supervision, and compliance and progress during probation.

• Develops client placement plans, including completing placement applications, purchasing clothing, obtaining
medical and psychological reports and maintaining contact with clients in placement.

• Appears and testifies in court, conducts urinalysis, requests and executes warrants, obtains consents and other
required paperwork.

• Maintains client files and records consistent with laws and policies.

• Transports clients to other facilities, as required.

• Performs other job-related duties as assigned.

MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS:

Education and Experience:
Bachelor’s degree in Criminal Justice, Social or Behavioral Sciences or a directly related field.

Page 1 of 2 33

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Juvenile Probation Officer I

JOB CODE: 14387 FLSA STATUS: Non-Exempt
PAY GRADE: 14 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS: (Cont.)

Licenses, Registrations, Certifications, or Special Requirements:
Valid Texas Driver’s License.
Must be at least 21 years of age.
Certification as a Juvenile Probation Officer or eligible for certification within six (6) months of date of hire, including
successful completion of Cardio-pulmonary Resuscitation (CPR) Certification, First Aid and Handle with Care (state
approved physical restraint technique).

Knowledge. Skills, and Abilities:
Knowledge of:
• Policies, practices, procedures and legal terminology related to court system.
• Federal, State, Local and County applicable laws, rules, regulations, guidelines and applicable juvenile justice system

standards and procedures.
• Standard practices in area of assignment.
• Psychological concepts of good behavior, social adjustment and emotional stability.
• Standard counseling techniques.
• Safety and security techniques and standards.
• Physical restraint techniques to control aggressive behavior.
• Computer equipment to include word processing, spreadsheets, databases and a variety of software packages.

Skill in:
• Monitoring and responding to client behavior.
• Problem-solving and decision-making.
• Interviewing clients.
• Both verbal and written communication.

Ability to:
• Gather, analyze and evaluate facts to conduct investigations and report results clearly, accurately and impartially.
• Work efficiently both independently and as part of a team.
• Reason and make judgments and decisions.
• Work effectively and courteously under stressful circumstances.
• Deal effectively with mentally disturbed, hostile and aggressive individuals.
• Manage time well, perform multiple tasks and organize diverse activities.
• Conduct investigations and report results clearly, accurately and impartially.
• Perform in a stressful environment while maintaining a professional manner.
• Establish and maintain effective working relationships with departmental clientele, representatives of outside

agencies, other County employees and officials, representatives of the juvenile justice system and the general
public.

WORK ENVIRONMENT AND PHYSICAL DEMANDS:

Physical requirements include the ability to lift/carry up to 50-100 pounds, visual acuity, speech and hearing, hand and eye
coordination and manual dexterity necessary to operate a computer and basic office equipment. Subject to standing, sitting,
walking, climbing stairs, bending, stooping, crouching, kneeling, pushing, pulling, reaching, twisting, balancing, repetitive
motion, and squatting to perform the essential functions. Subject to contact with communicable diseases, radiation,
hazardous waste, human fecal matter and foul odors. Subject to client and customer contact for extended periods of time.

This job description is intended to be generic in nature. It is not necessarily an exhaustive list of all duties
and responsibilities. The essential duties, functions and responsibilities and overtime eligibility may vary
based on the specific tasks assigned to the position.

Page 2 of 2 3 3 7

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Juvenile Probation Officer II

JOB CODE: 15388 FLSA STATUS: Non-Exempt
PAY GRADE: 15 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

JOB SUMMARY:

Provides supervision and counseling to juvenile clients positioned at various stages within the juvenile justice system.
Supervises and monitors all aspects of client’s case related to conditions of probation, including visits with client’s family
and other significant contacts. Conducts initial and subsequent interviews with clients to assist in sentencing, explains
conditions of probation, and assists clients in meeting terms of probation. Documents client behavior for use within the
juvenile justice system.

DISTINGUISHING CHARACTERISTICS:

This is the third in a series of five juvenile probation-related job classifications within the Courts job family. This
classification provides supervision to clients who are within various phases of the juvenile justice system. Duties performed
are of more complex nature and type. This classification may require work in secure facilities. This classification may
require a flexible work schedule in order to meet the needs of the department.

DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES:

• Conducts investigations on the background of each case, which includes interviewing clients, their families and other
significant contacts. Reviews documentation such as police reports, court transcripts and criminal records and
makes assessments regarding the nature of the individual’s environmental, employment, financial or domestic
difficulties as they apply to the case. Makes recommendations for sentencing and disposition of probationer and
prepares probation plans.

• Supervises and monitors juveniles on probation through regular home, school and office visits and other needed
contacts. Determines the needs of the client and family and develops supervision plans for clients.

• Assures client’s understanding of obligations with respect to conditions of the court’s order and monitors compliance
with the terms and conditions of probation. Addresses violations of court orders by taking appropriate action.
Coordinates case management with representatives of criminal justice and social service agencies.

• Provides individual and crisis intervention counseling, as required.

• Assists clients with various referrals, including, but not limited to, counseling, treatment and job referrals. Verifies
attendance and completion of alcohol, drug, mental health counseling and any other court ordered programs.

• Prepares written assessments and recommendations to the court concerning alternative forms of sentencing,
treatment, custody release, suspension of sentence, release into treatment facilities, out-of-custody probation
supervision, and compliance and progress during probation.

• Develops client placement plans, including completing placement applications, purchasing clothing, obtaining
medical and psychological reports, and maintaining contact with clients in placement.

• Appears and testifies in court, conducts urinalysis, requests and executes warrants, obtains consents and other
required paperwork.

• Maintains client files and records consistent with laws and policies.

• Transports clients to other facilities, as required.

• Performs other job-related duties as assigned.

MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS:

Education and Experience:
Bachelor’s degree in Criminal Justice, Social or Behavioral Sciences or a directly related field AND two (2) years
experience in social services, criminal justice or related field.

Pagelof2 338

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Juvenile Probation Officer II

JOB CODE: 15388 FLSA STATUS: Non-Exempt
PAY GRADE: 15 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS: (Cont.)

Licenses, Registrations, Certifications, or Special Requirements:
Valid Texas Driver’s License.
Must be at least 21 years of age.
Cert/fication as a Juvenile Probation Officer or eligible for certification within six (6) months of date of hire, including
successful completion of Cardio-pulmonary Resuscitation (CPR) Certification, First Aid and Handle with Care (state
approved physical restraint technique).

Knowledge, Skills, and Abilities:
Knowledge of:
• Policies, practices, procedures and legal terminology related to court system.
• Federal, State, Local and County applicable laws, rules, regulations, guidelines and applicable juvenile justice system

standards and procedures.
• Standard practices in area of assignment.
• Psychological concepts of good behavior, social adjustment and emotional stability.
• Standard counseling techniques.
• Safety and security techniques and standards.
• Physical restraint techniques to control aggressive behavior.
• Computer equipment to include word processing, spreadsheets, databases and a variety of software packages.

Skill in:
• Monitoring and responding to client behavior.
• Problem-solving and decision-making.
• Interviewing clients.
• Both verbal and written communication.

Ability to:
• Gather, analyze and evaluate facts to conduct investigations and report results clearly, accurately and impartially.
• Work efficiently both independently and as part of a team.
• Reason and make judgments and decisions.
• Work effectively and courteously under stressful circumstances.
• Deal effectively with mentally disturbed, hostile and aggressive individuals.
• Manage time well, perform multiple tasks and organize diverse activities.
• Conduct investigations and report results clearly, accurately and impartially.
• Perform in a stressful environment while maintaining a professional manner.
• Establish and maintain effective working relationships with departmental clientele, representatives of outside

agencies, other County employees and officials, representatives of the juvenile justice system and the general
public.

WORK ENVIRONMENT AND PHYSICAL DEMANDS:

Physical requirements include the ability to lift/carry up to 50-100 pounds, visual acuity, speech and hearing, hand and eye
coordination and manual dexterity necessary to operate a computer and office equipment, standing, sitting, walking,
climbing stairs, bending, stooping, crouching, kneeling, pushing, pulling, reaching, twisting, balancing, repetitive motion,
squatting to perform the essential functions. Subject to contact with communicable diseases, radiation, hazardous waste,
human fecal matter and foul odors. Subject to client and customer contact for extended periods of time.

This job description is intended to be generic in nature. It is not necessarily an exhaustive list of all duties
and responsibilities. The essential duties, functions and responsibilities and overtime eligibility may vary
based on the specific tasks assigned to the position.

Page2of2 33c7

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Juvenile Probation Officer III

JOB CODE: 16389 FLSA STATUS: Non-Exempt
PAY GRADE: 16 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

JOB SUMMARY:

Provides supervision and counseling to juvenile clients positioned at various stages within the juvenile justice system.
Supervises and monitors all aspects of client’s case related to conditions of probation, including visits with client’s family
and other significant contacts. Conducts initial and subsequent interviews with clients to assist in sentencing, explains
conditions of probation, and assists clients in meeting terms of probation. Documents client behavior for use within the
juvenile justice system. May supervise specialized caseload of clients.

DISTINGUISHING CHARACTERISTICS:

This is the fourth in a series of five juvenile probation-related job classifications within the Courts job family. This
classification provides supervision to clients who are within various phases of the juvenile justice system. This classification
is distinguished from the Juvenile Probation Officer Lead in that incumbents do not have lead responsibilities. This
classification may require work in secure facilities. This classification may require a flexible work schedule in order to
meet the needs of the department.

DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES:

• Conducts investigations on the background of each case, which includes interviewing clients, their families and other
significant contacts. Reviews documentation such as police reports, court transcripts and criminal records and
makes assessments regarding the nature of the individual’s environmental, employment, financial or domestic
difficulties as they apply to the case. Makes recommendations for sentencing and disposition of probationer and
prepares probation plans.

• Supervises and monitors juveniles on probation through regular home, school and office visits and other neesied
contacts. Determines the needs of the client and family and develops supervision plans for clients. May supervise
specialized caseload of clients.

• Assures client’s understanding of obligations with respect to conditions of the court’s order and monitors compliance
with the terms and conditions of probation. Addresses violations of court orders by taking appropriate action.
Coordinates case management with representatives of criminal justice and social service agencies. May serve as
liaison with court system on higher-level departmental issues.

• Provides individual and crisis intervention counseling, as required.

• Assists clients with various referrals, including, but not limited to, counseling, treatment and job referrals. Verifies
attendance and completion of alcohol, drug, mental health counseling and any other court ordered programs.

• Prepares written assessments and recommendations to the court concerning alternative forms of sentencing,
treatment, custody release, suspension of sentence, release into treatment facilities, out-of-custody probation
supervision, and compliance and progress during probation.

• Develops client placement plans, including completing placement applications, purchasing clothing, obtaining
medical and psychological reports, and maintaining contact with clients in placement.

• Appears and testifies in court, conducts urinalysis, requests and executes warrants, obtains consents and other
required paperwork.

• Maintains client files and records consistent with laws and policies.

• Provides input into revising and updating policies and procedures.

• Transports clients to other facilities, as required.

• Performs other job-related duties as assigned.

MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS:

Education and Experience:
Bachelor’s degree in Criminal Justice, Social or Behavioral Sciences or a directly related field AND three (3) years
experience in social services, criminal justice or related field.

Pagelof3

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Juvenile Probation Officer III

JOB CODE: 16389 FLSA STATUS: Non-Exempt
PAY GRADE: 16 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS: (Cant.)

Licenses, Registrations, Certifications, or Special Requirements:
Valid Texas Driver’s License.
Must be at least 21 years of age.
Certification as a Juvenile Probation Officer or eligible for certification within six (6) months of date of hire, including
successful completion of Cardio-pulmonary Resuscitation (CPR) Certification, First Aid and Handle with Care (state
approved physical restraint techniques).

Knowledge, Skills, and Abilities:
Knowledge of:
• Supervisory principles, practices and techniques.
• Policies, practices, procedures and legal terminology related to court system.
• Federal, State, Local and County applicable laws, rules, regulations, guidelines and applicable juvenile justice system

standards and procedures.
• Standard practices in area of assignment.
• Psychological concepts of good behavior, social adjustment and emotional stability.
• Standard counseling techniques.
• Safety and security techniques and standards.
• Physical restraint techniques to control aggressive behavior.
• Computer equipment to include word processing, spreadsheets, databases and a variety of software packages.

Skill in:
• Training, supervising and reviewing the work of others.
• Monitoring and responding to client behavior.
• Problem-solving and decision-making.
• Interviewing clients.
• Both verbal and written communication.

Ability to:
• Gather, analyze and evaluate facts to conduct investigations and report results clearly, accurately and impartially.
• Work efficiently both independently and as part of a team.
• Reason and make judgments and decisions.
• Work effectively and courteously under stressful circumstances.
• Deal effectively with mentally disturbed, hostile and aggressive individuals.
• Manage time well, perform multiple tasks and organize diverse activities.
• Conduct investigations and report results clearly, accurately and impartially.
• Perform in a stressful environment while maintaining a professional manner.
• Establish and maintain effective working relationships with departmental clientele, representatives of outside

agencies, other County employees and officials, representatives of the juvenile justice system and the general
public.

Page 2 of 3

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Juvenile Probation Officer III

JOB CODE: 16389 FLSA STATUS: Non-Exempt
PAY GRADE: 16 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

WORK ENVIRONMENT AND PHYSICAL DEMANDS:

Physical requirements include the ability to lift/carry up to 50-1 00 pounds, visual acuity, speech and hearing, hand and eye
coordination and manual dexterity necessary to operate a computer and basic office equipment. Subject to standing, sitting,
walking, climbing stairs, bending, stooping, crouching, kneeling, pushing, pulling, reaching, twisting, balancing, repetitive
motion, and squatting to perform the essential functions. Subject to contact with communicable diseases, radiation,
hazardous waste, human fecal matter and foul odors. Subject to client and customer contact for extended periods of time.

This job description is intended to be generic in nature. It is not necessarily an exhaustive list of all duties
and responsibilities. The essential duties, functions and responsibilities and overtime eligibility may vary
based on the specific tasks assigned to the position.

Page3of3

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Juvenile Probation Officer Lead

JOB CODE: 17390 FLSA STATUS: Non-Exempt
PAY GRADE: 17 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

JOB SUMMARY:

Assists Casework Manager with administrative duties, including case computer audits, approve court reports, directive to
apprehend requests, administrative hearings and staff cases. May serve as acting supervisor in the absence of the
Casework Manager. Trains, assigns, schedules and reviews work of employees. Ensures procedures and decisions are
consistent with regulations and policies. Supervises and counsels high risk adjudicated juveniles. May supervise
specialized caseloads of clients.

DISTINGUISHING CHARACTERISTICS:

This is the fifth in a series of five juvenile probation-related job classifications within the Courts job family. This
classification typically functions as a working lead over the activities of other juvenile probation positions in addition to the
normal range of duties. This classification is distinguished from the Juvenile Probation Officer III in that incumbents
typically have more responsibilities and duties performed are of the most complex nature and type. This classification
may require work in secure facilities. This classification may require a flexible work schedule in order to meet the needs
of the department.

DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES:

• Trains, assigns, schedules and reviews work of employees. Guides staff in assessment, planning and case
supervision by consultation and case reviews. Assists the Casework Manager in auditing cases and supervising the
unit. Reviews the results of periodic caseload audits to assure compliance with state laws, regulations, court rules,
and division policies and procedures. May serve as acting supervisor in the absence of the Casework Manager.
Maintains client files and records consistent with laws and policies.

• Conducts investigations on the background of each case, which includes interviewing clients, their families and other
significant contacts. Reviews documentation, such as police reports, court transcripts and criminal records and
makes assessments regarding the nature of the individual’s environmental, employment, financial or domestic
difficulties as they apply to the case. Makes recommendations for sentencing and disposition of probationer and
prepares probation plans.

• Supervises and counsels high risk adjudicated juveniles, which may include certification and/or determinate
sentence hearings, or juveniles whose conduct indicates a need for supervision. Supervises and monitors juveniles
on probation through regular home, school and office visits and other needed contacts. Determines the needs of the
client and family and develops supervision plans for clients. May supervise specialized caseload of clients.

• Assures client’s understanding of obligations with respect to conditions of the court’s order and monitors compliance
with the terms and conditions of probation. Addresses violations of court orders by taking appropriate action.
Coordinates case management with representatives of criminal justice and social service agencies. May serve as
liaison on higher-level departmental issues.

• Provides individual and crisis intervention counseling as needed. Assists clients with various referrals, including, but not
limited to, counseling, treatment and job referrals. Verifies attendance and completion of alcohol and drug testing
mental health counseling and any other court ordered programs. Develops client placement plans, including
completing placement applications, purchasing clothing, obtaining medical and psychological reports, and
maintaining contact with clients in placement.

• Appears and testifies in court, conducts urinalysis, requests and executes warrants, serves summons or other court
reports, obtains consents and other required paperwork. Prepares written assessments and recommendations to
the court concerning alternative forms of sentencing, treatment, custody release, suspension of sentence, release
into treatment facilities, out-of-custody probation supervision, and compliance and progress during probation.
Prepares statistical reports and summaries related to work performed.

• Makes recommendations in revising and updating policies and procedures. Attends and participates in staff
meetings and related activities. Participates in in-service training, continuing education, and researches to maintain
and increase professional knowledge.

• Performs other job-related duties as assigned.

Page 1 of 3 E3-1 3

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Juvenile Probation Officer Lead

JOB CODE: 17390 FLSA STATUS: Non-Exempt
PAY GRADE: 17 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS:

Education and ExDerience:
Bachelor’s degree in Criminal Justice, Social or Behavioral Sciences or a directly related field AND three (3) to four (4)
years experience in social services, criminal justice or related field, including two (2) years experience as a Juvenile
Probation Officer.

Licenses, Registrations, Certifications, or Special Requirements:
Valid Texas Driver’s License.
Must be at least 21 years of age.
Certification as a Juvenile Probation Officer or eligible for certification within six (6) months of date of hire, including
successful completion of Cardio-pulmonary Resuscitation (CPR) Certification, First Aid and Handle with Care (state
approved physical restraint techniques).

Preferred:
Project, lead or supervisory experience.

Knowledge, Skills, and Abilities:
Knowledge of:
• Supervisory principles, practices and techniques.
• Policies, practices, procedures and legal terminology related to court system.
• Federal, State, Local and County applicable laws, rules, regulations, guidelines and applicable juvenile justice system

standards and procedures.
• Standard practices in area of assignment.
• Psychological concepts of good behavior, social adjustment and emotional stability.
• Standard counseling techniques.
• Safety and security techniques and standards.
• Physical restraint techniques to control aggressive behavior.
• Computer equipment to include word processing, spreadsheets, databases and a variety of software packages.

Skill in:
• Training, supervising and reviewing the work of others.
• Monitoring and responding to client behavior.
• Problem-solving and decision-making.
• Interviewing clients.
• Both verbal and written communication.

Ability to:
• Gather, analyze and evaluate facts to conduct investigations and report results clearly, accurately and impartially.
• Work efficiently both independently and as part of a team.
• Reason and make judgments and decisions.
• Work effectively and courteously under stressful circumstances.
• Deal effectively with mentally disturbed, hostile and aggressive individuals.
• Manage time well, perform multiple tasks and organize diverse activities.
• Perform in a stressful environment while maintaining a professional manner.
• Establish and maintain effective working relationships with departmental clientele, representatives of outside

agencies, other County employees and officials, representatives of the juvenile justice system and the general
public.

Page 2of3

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Juvenile Probation Officer Lead

JOB CODE: 17390 FLSA STATUS: Non-Exempt
PAY GRADE: 17 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

WORK ENVIRONMENT AND PHYSICAL DEMANDS:

Physical requirements include the ability to lift/carry up to 50-1 00 pounds, visual acuity, speech and hearing, hand and eye
coordination and manual dexterity necessary to operate a computer and basic office equipment. Subject to standing, sitting,
walking, climbing stairs, bending, stooping, crouching, kneeling, pushing, pulling, reaching, twisting, balancing, repetitive
motion, and squatting to perform the essential functions. Subject to contact with communicable diseases, radiation,
hazardous waste, human fecal matter and foul odors. Subject to client and customer contact for extended periods of time.

This job description is intended to be generic in nature. It is not necessarily an exhaustive list of all duties
and responsibilities. The essential duties, functions and responsibilities and overtime eligibility may vary
based on the specific tasks assigned to the position.

Page 3 of 3

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Juvenile Detention Officer Assistant

JOB CODE: 11381 FLSA STATUS: Non-Exempt
PAY GRADE: 11 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

JOB SUMMARY:

Assists in providing direct supervision and maintaining security and control of detained juvenile clients in order to prevent
harm and provide for their safety. Assists in counseling clients on an individual basis and facilitating cognitive skill groups to
assist dients in developing appropriate coping skills and behavior. Assists in implementing appropriate programs for clients.
Documents client behavior for use within the juvenile justice system.

DISTINGUISHING CHARACTERISTICS:

This is the first in a series of four juvenile detention-related job classifications within the Courts job family. This
classification assists in providing direct supervision to clients who have been placed in the juvenile detention facility by the
court system. This classification performs duties of a routine type and typically performs duties with a higher-level staff
member available to assist or give direction. This classification may require work in secure facilities. This classification
may require a flexible work schedule in order to meet the needs of the department.

DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES:

• Assists in providing direct supervision of all client daily activities. Maintains accountability of all clients and equipment
and ensures that the environment is safe, clean and secure.

• Ensures that clients are aware of and understand their responsibilities and appropriate behavior. Assists in
implementing corrective discipline plans and programs, as required.

• Documents clients’ behavior and enters into department computer information system.

• Monitors security and fire alarm systems, including closed circuit monitors.

• Maintains communication with facility posts.

• Maintains communication with other staff to ensure continuity of care.

• Assists in physically restraining aggressive clients using approved protocols, as required.

• Transports clients to other facilities, as required.

• May assist in providing individual and crisis intervention counseling, as required.

• May assist in facilitating cognitive skill groups and relaxation training for clients.

• May assist in investigating incidents involving clients.

• Performs other job-related duties as assigned.

MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS:

Education and Experience:
High School diploma or G.E.D.;

OR,

Any combination of education and experience that has been achieved and is equivalent to the stated education and
experience and required knowledge, skills, and abilities sufficient to successfully perform the duties and responsibilities
of this job.

Licenses, Registrations, Certifications, or Special Requirements:
Valid Texas Driver’s License.
Must be at least 21 years of age.
Certification as a Juvenile Detention Officer or eligible for certification within six (6) months of date of hire, including
successful completion of Cardio-pulmonary Resuscitation (CPR) Certification, First Aid and Handle with Care (state
approved physical restraint technique).

Page 1 of 2

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Juvenile Detention Officer Assistant

JOB CODE: 11381 FLSA STATUS: Non-Exempt
PAY GRADE: 11 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS: (Cont.)

Knowledge, Skills, and Abilities:
Knowledge of:
• Policies, practices, procedures and terminology related to court system.
• Federal, State, Local and County applicable laws, rules, regulations, guidelines and applicable juvenile justice system

standards and procedures.
• Standard practices in area of assignment.
• Psychological concepts of good behavior, social adjustment and emotional stability.
• Standard counseling techniques.
• Safety and security techniques and standards.
• Physical restraint techniques to control aggressive behavior.
• First aid techniques.
• Computer equipment to include word processing, spreadsheets, databases and a variety of software packages.

Skill in:
• Monitoring and responding to client behavior.
• Problem-solving and decision-making.
• Interviewing clients.
• Both verbal and written communication.

Ability to:
• Work efficiently both independently and as part of a team.
• Reason and make judgments and decisions.
• Work effectively and courteously under stressful circumstances.
• Deal effectively with mentally disturbed, hostile and aggressive individuals.
• Manage time well, perform multiple tasks and organize diverse activities.
• Conduct investigations and report results clearly, accurately and impartially.
• Perform in a stressful environment, while maintaining a professional manner.
• Establish and maintain effective working relationships with departmental clientele, representatives of outside

agencies, other County employees and officials, representatives of the juvenile justice system and the general
public.

WORK ENVIRONMENT AND PHYSICAL DEMANDS:

Physical requirements include the ability to lift/carry up to 50-100 pounds, visual acuity, speech and hearing, hand and eye
coordination and manual dexterity necessary to operate a computer and basic office equipment. Subject to standing, sitting,
walking, climbing stairs, bending, stooping, crouching, kneeling, pushing, pulling, reaching, twisting, balancing, repetitive
motion, and squatting to perform the essential functions. Subject to contact with communicable diseases, radiation,
hazardous waste, human fecal matter and foul odors. Subject to stressful environment and client and customer contact for
extended periods of time.

This job description is intended to be generic in nature. It is not necessarily an exhaustive list of all duties
and responsibilities. The essential duties, functions and responsibilities and overtime eligibility may vary
based on the specific tasks assigned to the position.

Page2of2 3/7

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Juvenile Detention Officer I

JOB CODE: 12382 FLSA STATUS: Non-Exempt
PAY GRADE: 12 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

JOB SUMMARY:

Provides direct supervision and maintains security and control of detained juvenile clients in order to prevent harm and
provide for their safety. Counsels clients on an individual basis and facilitates cognitive skill groups to assist clients in
developing appropriate coping skills and behavior. Implements appropriate programs for clients. Documents client
behavior for use within the juvenile justice system.

DISTINGUISHING CHARACTERISTICS:

This is the second in a series of four juvenile detention-related job classifications within the Courts job family. This
classification provides direct supervision to clients who have been placed in the juvenile detention facility by the court
system. Duties performed are of a routine to moderately complex nature and type and may initially perform duties in training
together with a higher-level staff member. This classification may require work in secure facilities. This classification may
require a flexible work schedule in order to meet the needs of the department.

DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES:

• Provides direct supervision of all client daily activities. Maintains accountability of all clients and equipment and ensures
that the environment is safe, clean and secure.

• Ensures that clients are aware of and understand their responsibilities and appropriate behavior. Implements corrective
discipline plans and programs, as required.

• Facilitates cognitive skill groups and relaxation training for clients.

• Provides individual and crisis intervention counseling, as required.

• Documents clients’ behavior and enters into department computer information system.

• Monitors security and fire alarm systems, including closed circuit monitors.

• Maintains communication with facility posts.

• Maintains communication with other staff to ensure continuity of care.

• Physically restrains aggressive clients using approved protocols, as required.

• Transports clients to other facilities, as required.

• May assist in investigating incidents involving clients.

• Performs other job-related duties as assigned.

MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS:

Education and Experience:
Associate’s degree in Human Services or a directly related field AND one (1) year experience in direct client care,
counseling, law enforcement, corrections or related field;

OR,
Any combination of education and experience that has been achieved and is equivalent to the stated education and
experience and required knowledge, skills, and abilities sufficient to successfully perform the duties and responsibilities
of this job.

Licenses, Registrations, Certifications, or Special Requirements:
Valid Texas Driver’s License.
Must be at least 21 years of age.
Certification as a Juvenile Detention Officer or eligible for certification within six (6) months of date of hire, including
successful completion of Cardio-pulmonary Resuscitation (CPR) Certification, First Aid and Handle with Care (state
approved physical restraint technique).

Page 1 of 2

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Juvenile Detention Officer I

JOB CODE: 12382 FLSA STATUS: Non-Exempt
PAY GRADE: 12 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS: (Cont.)

Knowledge, Skills, and Abilities:
Knowledge of:
• Policies, practices, procedures and legal terminology related to court system.
• Federal, State, Local and County applicable laws, rules, regulations, guidelines and applicable juvenile justice system

standards and procedures.
• Standard practices in area of assignment.
• Psychological concepts of good behavior, social adjustment and emotional stability.
• Standard counseling techniques.
• Safety and security techniques and standards.
• Physical restraint techniques to control aggressive behavior.
• First aid techniques.
• Computer equipment to include word processing, spreadsheets, databases and a variety of software packages.

Skill in:
• Monitoring and responding to client behavior.
• Problem-solving and decision-making.
• Interviewing clients.
• Both verbal and written communication.

Ability to:
• Work efficiently both independently and as part of a team.
• Reason and make judgments and decisions.
• Work effectively and courteously under stressful circumstances.
• Deal effectively with mentally disturbed, hostile and aggressive individuals.
• Manage time well, perform multiple tasks, and organize diverse activities.
• Conduct investigations and report results clearly, accurately and impartially.
• Perform in a stressful environment while maintaining a professional manner.
• Establish and maintain effective working relationships with departmental clientele, representatives of outside

agencies, other County employees and officials, representatives of the juvenile justice system and the general
public.

WORK ENVIRONMENT AND PHYSICAL DEMANDS:

Physical requirements include the ability to lift/carry up to 50-100 pounds, visual acuity, speech and hearing, hand and eye
coordination and manual dexterity necessary to operate a computer and basic office equipment. Subject to standing, sitting,
walking, climbing stairs, bending, stooping, crouching, kneeling, pushing, pulling, reaching, twisting, balancing, repetitive
motion, and squatting to perform the essential functions. Subject to contact with communicable diseases, radiation,
hazardous waste, human fecal matter and foul odors. Subject to stressful environment and client and customer contact for
extended periods of time.

This job description is intended to be generic in nature. It is not necessarily an exhaustive list of all duties
and responsibilities. The essential duties, functions and responsibilities and overtime eligibility may vary
based on the specific tasks assigned to the position.

Page2of2

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Juvenile Detention Officer II

JOB CODE: 13383 FLSA STATUS: Non-Exempt
PAY GRADE: 13 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

JOB SUMMARY:

Provides direct supervision and maintains security and control of detained juvenile clients in order to prevent harm and
provide for their safety. Counsels clients on an individual basis and facilitates cognitive skill groups to assist clients in
developing appropriate coping skills and behavior. Implements appropriate programs for clients. Documents client
behavior for use within the juvenile justice system.

DISTINGUISHING CHARACTERISTICS:

This is the third in a series of four juvenile detention-related job classifications within the Courts job family. This
classification provides direct supervision to clients who have been placed in the juvenile detention facility by the court
system. Duties performed are of more complex nature and type. This classification may require work in secure facilities.
This classification may require a flexible work schedule in order to meet the needs of the department.

DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES:

• Provides direct supervision of all client daily activities. Maintains accountability of all clients and equipment and ensures
that the environment is safe, clean and secure.

• Ensures that clients are aware of and understand their responsibilities and appropriate behavior, Implements corrective
discipline plans and programs, as required.

• Facilitates cognitive skill groups and relaxation training for clients.

• Provides individual and crisis intervention counseling, as required.

• Documents clients’ behavior and enters into department computer information system.

• Monitors security and fire alarm systems, including closed circuit monitors.

• Maintains communication with facility posts.

• Maintains communication with other staff to ensure continuity of care.

• Physically restrains aggressive clients using approved protocols, as required.

• Transports clients to other facilities, as required.

• May assist in investigating incidents involving clients.

• Performs other job-related duties as assigned.

MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS:

Education and Experience:
Associate’s degree in Human Services or a directly related field or two (2) years of college education in Human Services
or a directly related field AND two (2) years experience in direct client care, counseling, law enforcement, corrections or
related field;

OR,
Any combination of education and experience that has been achieved and is equivalent to the stated education and
experience and required knowledge, skills, and abilities sufficient to successfully perform the duties and responsibilities
of this job.

Licenses, Registrations, Certifications, or Special Requirements:
Valid Texas Driver’s License.
Must be at least 21 years of age.
Certification as a Juvenile Detention Officer or eligible for certification within six (6) months of date of hire, including
successful completion of Cardio-pulmonary Resuscitation (CPR) Certification, First Aid and Handle with Care (state
approved physical restraint technique).

Page 1 of 2 3S0

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Juvenile Detention Officer II

JOB CODE: 13383 FLSA STATUS: Non-Exempt
PAY GRADE: 13 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS: (Cont.)

Knowledge, Skills, and Abilities:
Knowledge of:
• Policies, practices, procedures and legal terminology related to court system.
• Federal, State, Local and County applicable laws, rules, regulations, guidelines and applicable juvenile justice system

standards and procedures.
• Standard practices in area of assignment.
• Psychological concepts of good behavior, social adjustment and emotional stability.
• Standard counseling techniques.
• Safety and security techniques and standards.
• Physical restraint techniques to control aggressive behavior.
• First aid techniques.
• Computer equipment to include word processing, spreadsheets, databases and a variety of software packages.

Skill in:
• Monitoring and responding to client behavior.
• Problem-solving and decision-making.
• Interviewing clients.
• Both verbal and written communication.

Ability to:
• Work efficiently both independently and as part of a team.
• Reason and make judgments and decisions.
• Work effectively and courteously under stressful circumstances.
• Deal effectively with mentally disturbed, hostile and aggressive individuals.
• Manage time well, perform multiple tasks and organize diverse activities.
• Conduct investigations and report results clearly, accurately and impartially.
• Perform in a stressful environment while maintaining a professional manner.
• Establish and maintain effective working relationships with departmental clientele, representatives of outside

agencies, other County employees and officials, representatives of the juvenile justice system and the general
public.

WORK ENVIRONMENT AND PHYSICAL DEMANDS:

Physical requirements include the ability to lift/carry up to 50-1 00 pounds, visual acuity, speech and hearing, hand and eye
coordination and manual dexterity necessary to operate a computer and basic office equipment. Subject to standing, sitting,
walking, climbing stairs, bending, stooping, crouching, kneeling, pushing, pulling, reaching, twisting, balancing, repetitive
motion, and squatting to perform the essential functions. Subject to contact with communicable diseases, radiation,
hazardous waste, human fecal matter and foul odors. Subject to stressful environment and client and customer contact for
extended periods of time.

This job description is intended to be generic in nature. It is not necessarily an exhaustive list of all duties
and responsibilities. The essential duties, functions and responsibilities and overtime eligibility may vary
based on the specific tasks assigned to the position.

3;fPage 2 of 2

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Juvenile Detention Officer Ill

JOB CODE: 14384 FLSA STATUS: Non-Exempt
PAY GRADE: 14 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

JOB SUMMARY:

Provides direct supervision and maintains security and control of detained juvenile clients in order to prevent harm and
provide for their safety. Counsels clients on an individual basis and facilitates cognitive skill groups to assist clients in
developing appropriate coping skills and behavior. Recommends and implements appropriate programs for clients.
Documents client behavior for use within the juvenile justice system. Trains staff and functions as a working lead over other
juvenile detention positions.

DISTINGUISHING CHARACTERISTICS:

This is the fourth in a series of four juvenile detention-related job classifications within the Courts job family. This
classification provides direct supervision to clients who have been placed in the juvenile detention facility by the court
system. Duties performed are of the most complex nature and type. This classification typically functions as a working
lead over the activities of other juvenile detention positions in addition to the normal range of duties. This classification
may require work in secure facilities. This classification may require a flexible work schedule in order to meet the needs
of the department.

DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES:

• Provides direct supervision of all client daily activities. Maintains accountability of all clients and equipment and ensures
that the environment is safe, clean and secure.

• Ensures that clients are aware of and understand their responsibilities and appropriate behavior. Implements corrective
discipline plans and programs, as required.

• Facilitates cognitive skill groups and relaxation training for clients.

• Provides individual and crisis intervention counseling, as required.

• Documents clients’ behavior and enters into department computer information system.

• Functions as a working lead over other juvenile detention positions. Trains, assigns and reviews work of employees.

• Monitors security and fire alarm systems, including closed circuit monitors.

• Maintains communication with facility posts.

• Maintains communication with other staff to ensure continuity of care.

• Physically restrains aggressive clients using approved protocols, as required.

• Transports clients to other facilities, as required.

• May assist in investigating incidents involving clients.

• Performs other job-related duties as assigned.

MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS:

Education and Experience:
Associate’s degree in Human Services or a directly related field or two (2) years of college education in Human Services
or a related field AND three (3) years experience in direct client care, counseling, law enforcement, corrections or related
field;

OR,

Any combination of education and experience that has been achieved and is equivalent to the stated education and
experience and required knowledge, skills, and abilities sufficient to successfully perform the duties and responsibilities
of this job.

Page 1 of 3

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Juvenile Detention Officer III

JOB CODE: 14384 FLSA STATUS: Non-Exempt
PAY GRADE: 14 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS: (Cont.)

Licenses, Registrations, Certifications, or Special Requirements:
Valid Texas Driver’s License.
Must be at least 21 years of age.
Certification as a Juvenile Detention Officer or eligible for certification within six (6) months of date of hire, including
successful completion of Cardio-pulmonary Resuscitation (CPR) Certification, First Aid and Handle with Care (state
approved physical restraint technique).

Knowledge, Skills, and Abilities:
Knowledge of:
• Supervisory principles, practices and techniques.
• Policies, practices, procedures and legal terminology related to court system.
• Federal, State, Local and County applicable laws, rules, regulations, guidelines and applicable juvenile justice system

standards and procedures.
• Standard practices in area of assignment.
• Psychological concepts of good behavior, social adjustment and emotional stability.
• Standard counseling techniques.
• Safety and security techniques and standards.
• Physical restraint techniques to control aggressive behavior.
• First aid techniques.
• Computer equipment to include word processing, spreadsheets, databases and a variety of software packages.

Skill in:
• Training, supervising and reviewing the work of others.
• Monitoring and responding to client behavior.
• Problem-solving and decision-making.
• Interviewing clients.
• Both verbal and written communication.

Ability to:
• Work efficiently both independently and as part of a team.
• Reason and make judgments and decisions.
• Work effectively and courteously under stressful circumstances.
• Deal effectively with mentally disturbed, hostile and aggressive individuals.
• Manage time well and perform multiple tasks, and organize diverse activities.
• Conduct investigations and report results clearly, accurately and impartially.
• Perform in a stressful environment while maintaining a professional manner.
• Establish and maintain effective working relationships with departmental clientele, representatives of outside

agencies, other County employees and officials, representatives of the juvenile justice system and the general
public.

Page 2 of 3 __3

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Juvenile Detention Officer III

JOB CODE: 14384 FLSA STATUS: Non-Exempt
PAY GRADE: 14 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

WORK ENVIRONMENT AND PHYSICAL DEMANDS:

Physical requirements include the ability to lift/carry up to 50-100 pounds, visual acuity, speech and hearing, hand and eye
coordination and manual dexterity necessary to operate a computer and basic office equipment. Subject to standing, sitting,
walking, climbing stairs, bending, stooping, crouching, kneeling, pushing, pulling, reaching, twisting, balancing, repetitive
motion, and squatting to perform the essential functions. Subject to contact with communicable diseases, radiation,
hazardous waste, human fecal matter and foul odors. Subject to stressful environment and client and customer contact for
extended periods of time.

This job description is intended to be generic in nature. It is not necessarily an exhaustive list of all duties
and responsibilities. The essential duties, functions and responsibilities and overtime eligibility may vary
based on the specific tasks assigned to the position.

Page3of3

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Juvenile Residential Treatment Officer Assistant

JOB CODE: 11507 FLSA STATUS: Non-Exempt
PAY GRADE: 11 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

JOB SUMMARY:

Assists in providing direct supervision and treatment intervention of juvenile clients assigned to a residential treatment
program. Maintains security, control and guidance of detained juvenile clients in order to facilitate treatment, prevent
harm and provide for their safety during all daily activities. Assists in implementing available treatment plans and
corrective disciplinary strategies. Documents client behavior for use within the juvenile justice system.

DISTINGUISHING CHARACTERISTICS:

This is the first in a series of five juvenile residential treatment-related job classifications within the Courts job family.
This classification assists in providing supervision to clients who have been placed in the juvenile residential facility by the
court system. This classification performs duties of the most routine type and typically performs duties in training together
with a higher-level staff member. This classification may require work in secure facilities. This classification may require
a flexible work schedule in order to meet the needs of the department.

DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES:

• Assists in providing direct supervision of all client daily activities. Maintains accountability of all clients and equipment
and ensures that the environment is safe, clean and secure.

• Assists in assessing juveniles and implementing available treatment plans, corrective disciplinary strategies and
effective treatment intervention programs. Ensures that clients are aware of and understand their responsibilities and
appropriate behavior.

• Documents clients’ behavior and enters into department computer information system.

• Ensures environment is safe and clean. Assists in maintaining order and discipline.

• Assists in physically restraining aggressive clients using approved protocols, as required.

• Transports clients to other facilities, as required.

• Maintains communication with other staff to ensure continuity of care.

• May assist in providing individual and crisis intervention counseling, as required.

• May assist in conducting cognitive skill groups and teamwork activities.

• May assist in investigating incidents involving clients.

• Performs other job-related duties as assigned.

MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS:

Education and Experience:
High School diploma or G.E.D.;

OR,

Any combination of education and experience that has been achieved and is equivalent to the stated education and
experience and required knowledge, skills, and abilities sufficient to successfully perform the duties and responsibilities
of this job.

Licenses, Registrations, Certifications, or Special Requirements:
Valid Texas Driver’s License.
Must be at least 21 years of age.
Certification as a Juvenile Detention Officer or eligible for certification within six (6) months of date of hire, including
successful completion of Cardio-pulmonary Resuscitation (CPR) Certification, First Aid and Handle with Care (state
approved physical restraint technique).

Page 1 of 2 3 ,35

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Juvenile Residential Treatment Officer Assistant

JOB CODE: 11507 FLSA STATUS: Non-Exempt
PAY GRADE: 11 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS: (Cant.)

Knowledcie. Skills, and Abilities:
Knowledge of:
• Policies, practices, procedures and legal terminology related to court system.
• Federal, State, Local and County applicable laws, rules, regulations, guidelines and applicable juvenile justice system

standards and procedures.
• Standard practices in area of assignment.
• Psychological concepts of good behavior, social adjustment and emotional stability.
• Standard counseling techniques.
• Safety and security techniques and standards.
• Physical restraint techniques to control aggressive behavior.
• First aid techniques.
• Computer equipment to include word processing, spreadsheets, databases and a variety of software packages.

Skill in:
• Monitoring and responding to client behavior.
• Problem-solving and decision-making.
• Interviewing clients.
• Both verbal and written communication.

Ability to:
• Work efficiently both independently and as part of a team.
• Reason and make judgments and decisions.
• Work effectively and courteously under stressful circumstances.
• Deal effectively with mentally disturbed, hostile and aggressive individuals.
• Manage time well and perform multiple tasks, and organize diverse activities.
• Conduct investigations and report results clearly, accurately and impartially.
• Perform in a stressful environment while maintaining a professional manner.
• Establish and maintain effective working relationships with departmental clientele, representatives of outside

agencies, other County employees and officials, representatives of the juvenile justice system and the general
public.

WORK ENVIRONMENT AND PHYSICAL DEMANDS:

Physical requirements include the ability to lift/carry up to 50-1 00 pounds, visual acuity, speech and hearing, hand and eye
coordination and manual dexterity necessary to operate a computer and basic office equipment. Subject to standing, sitting,
walking, climbing stairs, bending, stooping, crouching, kneeling, pushing, pulling, reaching, twisting, balancing, repetitive
motion, and squatting to perform the essential functions. Subject to contact with communicable diseases, radiation,
hazardous waste, human fecal matter and foul odors. Subject to stressful environment and client and customer contact for
extended periods of time.

This job description is intended to be generic in nature. It is not necessarily an exhaustive list of all duties
and responsibilities. The essential duties, functions and responsibilities and overtime eligibility may vary
based on the specific tasks assigned to the position.

Page 2 of 2 3

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Juvenile Residential Treatment Officer I

JOB CODE: 12508 FLSA STATUS: Non-Exempt
PAY GRADE: 12 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

JOB SUMMARY:

Provides direct supervision and treatment intervention of juvenile clients assigned to a residential treatment program.
Maintains security, control and guidance of detained juvenile clients in order to facilitate treatment, prevent harm and
provide for their safety during all daily activities. Implements available treatment plans and corrective disciplinary
strategies. Documents client behavior for use within the juvenile justice system.

DISTINGUISHING CHARACTERISTICS:

This is the second in a series of five juvenile residential treatment-related job classifications within the Courts job family.
This classification provides supervision to clients who have been placed in the juvenile residential facility by the court
system. Duties performed are of routine to moderately complex nature and type and may initially perform duties in training
together with a higher-level staff member. This classification may require work in secure facilities. This classification may
require a flexible work schedule in order to meet the needs of the department.

DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES:

• Provides direct supervision of all client daily activities. Maintains accountability of all clients and equipment and ensures
that the environment is safe, clean and secure.

• Assesses juveniles and implements available treatment plans, corrective disciplinary strategies and effective treatment
intervention programs. Ensures that clients are aware of and understand their responsibilities and appropriate
behavior.

• Conducts cognitive skill groups and teamwork activities. Models competency in direct care principles for less
experienced staff.

• Documents clients’ behavior and enters into department computer information system.

• Provides individual and crisis intervention counseling, as required.

• Ensures environment is safe and clean. Maintains order and discipline.

• Physically restrains aggressive clients using approved protocols, as required.

• Transports clients to other facilities, as required.

• Serves on committees and participates in special projects.

• Maintains communication with other staff to ensure continuity of care.

• May assist in investigating incidents involving clients.

• Performs other job-related duties as assigned.

MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS:

Education and Experience:
Associate’s degree in Human Services or a directly related field AND one (1) year experience in direct client care,
counseling, law enforcement, corrections or a directly related field;

OR,

Any combination of education and experience that has been achieved and is equivalent to the stated education and
experience and required knowledge, skills, and abilities sufficient to successfully perform the duties and responsibilities
of this job.

Page 1 of 2 3 c57

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Juvenile Residential Treatment Officer I

JOB CODE: 12508 FLSA STATUS: Non-Exempt
PAY GRADE: 12 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS: (Cont.)

Licenses, Registrations, Certifications, or Special Requirements:
Valid Texas Driver’s License.
Must be at least 21 years of age.
Certification as a Juvenile Detention Officer or eligible for certification within six (6) months of date of hire, including
successful completion of Cardio-pulmonary Resuscitation (CPR) Certification, First Aid and Handle with Care (state
approved physical restraint technique).

Knowledge, Skills, and Abilities:
Knowledge of:
• Policies, practices, procedures and legal terminology related to court system.
• Federal, State, Local and County applicable laws, rules, regulations, guidelines and applicable juvenile justice system

standards and procedures.
• Standard practices in area of assignment.
• Psychological concepts of good behavior, social adjustment and emotional stability.
• Standard counseling techniques.
• Safety and security techniques and standards.
• Physical restraint techniques to control aggressive behavior.
• First aid techniques.
• Computer equipment to include word processing, spreadsheets, databases and a variety of software packages.

Skill in:
• Monitoring and responding to client behavior.
• Problem-solving and decision-making.
• Interviewing clients.
• Both verbal and written communication.

Ability to:
• Work efficiently both independently and as part of a team.
• Reason and make judgments and decisions.
• Work effectively and courteously under stressful circumstances.
• Deal effectively with mentally disturbed, hostile and aggressive individuals.
• Manage time well, perform multiple tasks and organize diverse activities.
• Conduct investigations and report results clearly, accurately and impartially.
• Perform in a stressful environment while maintaining a professional manner.
• Establish and maintain effective working relationships with departmental clientele, representatives of outside

agencies, other County employees and officials, representatives of the juvenile justice system and the general
public.

WORK ENVIRONMENT AND PHYSICAL DEMANDS:
Physical requirements include the ability to lift/carry up to 50-1 00 pounds, visual acuity, speech and hearing, hand and eye
coordination and manual dexterity necessary to operate a computer and basic office equipment. Subject to standing, sitting,
walking, climbing stairs, bending, stooping, crouching, kneeling, pushing, pulling, reaching, twisting, balancing, repetitive
motion, and squatting to perform the essential functions. Subject to contact with communicable diseases, radiation,
hazardous waste, human fecal matter and foul odors. Subject to stressful environment and client and customer contact for
extended periods of time.

This job description is intended to be generic in nature. It is not necessarily an exhaustive list of all duties
and responsibilities. The essential duties, functions and responsibilities and overtime eligibility may vary
based on the specific tasks assigned to the position.

Page 2 of 2 E3

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Juvenile Residential Treatment Officer II

JOB CODE: 13509 FLSA STATUS: Non-Exempt
PAY GRADE: 13 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

JOB SUMMARY:

Provides direct supervision and treatment intervention of juvenile clients assigned to a residential treatment program.
Maintains security, control and guidance of detained juvenile clients in order to facilitate treatment, prevent harm and
provide for their safety during all daily activities, Implements available treatment plans and corrective disciplinary
strategies. Documents client behavior for use within the juvenile justice system.

DISTINGUISHING CHARACTERISTICS:

This is the third in a series of five juvenile residential treatment-related job classifications within the Courts job family
This classification provides supervision to clients who have been placed in the juvenile residential facility by the court
system. Duties performed are of a more complex nature and type. This classification may require work in secure
facilities. This classification may require a flexible work schedule in order to meet the needs of the department.

DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES:

• Provides direct supervision of all client daily activities. Maintains accountability of all clients and equipment and ensures
that the environment is safe, clean and secure.

• Assesses juveniles and implements available treatment plans, corrective disciplinary strategies and effective treatment
intervention programs. Ensures that clients are aware of and understand their responsibilities and appropriate
behavior.

• Conducts cognitive skill groups and teamwork activities. Models competency in direct care principles for less
experienced staff.

• Documents clients’ behavior and enters into department computer information system.

• Provides individual and crisis intervention counseling, as required.

• Ensures environment is safe and clean. Maintains order and discipline.

• Physically restrains aggressive clients using approved protocols, as required.

• Transports clients to other facilities, as required.

• Serves on committees and participates in special projects.

• Maintains communication with other staff to ensure continuity of care.

• May assist in investigating incidents involving clients.

• Performs other job-related duties as assigned.

MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS:

Education and Experience:
Associate’s degree in Human Services or a directly related field AND two (2) years experience in direct client care,
counseling, law enforcement, corrections or a directly related field;
OR,
Any combination of education and experience that has been achieved and is equivalent to the stated education and
experience and required knowledge, skills, and abilities sufficient to successfully perform the duties and responsibilities
of this job.

Licenses, Registrations, Certifications, or Special Requirements:
Valid Texas Driver’s License.
Must be at least 21 years of age.
Certification as a Juvenile Detention Officer or eligible for certification within six (6) months of date of hire, including
successful completion of Cardio-pulmonary Resuscitation (CPR) Certification, First Aid and Handle with Care (state
approved physical restraint technique).

Page 1 of 2

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Juvenile Residential Treatment Officer II

JOB CODE: 13509 FLSA STATUS: Non-Exempt
PAY GRADE: 13 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS: (Cont.)

Knowledge, Skills, and Abilities:
Knowledge of:
• Policies, practices, procedures and legal terminology related to court system.
• Federal, State, Local and County applicable laws, rules, regulations, guidelines and applicable juvenile justice system

standards and procedures.
• Standard practices in area of assignment.
• Psychological concepts of good behavior, social adjustment and emotional stability.
• Standard counseling techniques.
• Safety and security techniques and standards.
• Physical restraint techniques to control aggressive behavior.
• First aid techniques.
• Computer equipment to include word processing, spreadsheets, databases and a variety of software packages.

Skill in:
• Monitoring and responding to client behavior.
• Problem-solving and decision-making.
• Interviewing clients.
• Both verbal and written communication.

Ability to:
• Work efficiently both independently and as part of a team.
• Reason and make judgments and decisions.
• Work effectively and courteously under stressful circumstances.
• Deal effectively with mentally disturbed, hostile and aggressive individuals.
• Manage time well, perform multiple tasks and organize diverse activities.
• Conduct investigations and report results clearly, accurately and impartially.
• Perform in a stressful environment, while maintaining a professional manner.
• Establish and maintain effective working relationships with departmental clientele, representatives of outside

agencies, other County employees and officials, representatives of the juvenile justice system and the general
public.

WORK ENVIRONMENT AND PHYSICAL DEMANDS:

Physical requirements include the ability to liftJcarry up to 50-1 00 pounds, visual acuity, speech and hearing, hand and eye
coordination and manual dexterity necessary to operate a computer and basic office equipment. Subject to standing, sitting,
walking, climbing stairs, bending, stooping, crouching, kneeling, pushing, pulling, reaching, twisting, balancing, repetitive
motion, and squatting to perform the essential functions. Subject to contact with communicable diseases, radiation,
hazardous waste, human fecal matter and foul odors. Subject to stressful environment and client and customer contact for
extended periods of time.

This job description is intended to be generic in nature. It is not necessarily an exhaustive list of all duties
and responsibilities. The essential duties, functions and responsibilities and overtime eligibility may vary
based on the specific tasks assigned to the position.

Page2of2

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Juvenile Residential Treatment Officer III

JOB CODE: 14510 FLSA STATUS: Non-Exempt
PAY GRADE: 14 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

JOB SUMMARY:

Provides direct supervision and treatment intervention of juvenile clients assigned to a residential treatment program.
Maintains security, control and guidance of detained juvenile clients in order to facilitate treatment, prevent harm and
provide for their safety during all daily activities. Assists in recommending and implementing available treatment plans
and corrective disciplinary strategies. Documents client behavior for use within the juvenile justice system. Assists in
training staff.

DISTINGUISHING CHARACTERISTICS:

This is the fourth in a series of five juvenile residential treatment-related job classifications within the Courts job family.
This classification provides supervision to clients who have been placed in the juvenile residential facility by the court
system. Duties performed are of a complex nature and type. This classification assists in recommending available
treatment plans and training other juvenile residential treatment positions in addition to the normal range of duties. This
classification may require work in secure facilities. This classification may require a flexible work schedule in order to
meet the needs of the department.

DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES:

• Provides direct supervision of all client daily activities. Maintains accountability of all clients and equipment and ensures
that the environment is safe, clean and secure.

• Assesses juveniles, assists in developing treatment plans and implements available treatment plans, corrective
disciplinary strategies and effective treatment intervention programs. Ensures that clients are aware of and understand
their responsibilities and appropriate behavior.

• Conducts cognitive skill groups and teamwork activities. Models competency in direct care principles for less
experienced staff.

• Documents clients’ behavior and enters into department computer information system. Develops strategies for case
management.

• Assists in training other juvenile residential treatment employees.

• Provides individual and crisis intervention counseling, as required.

• Ensures environment is safe and clean. Maintains order and discipline.

• Physically restrains aggressive clients using approved protocols, as required.

• Transports clients to other facilities, as required.

• Serves on committees and participates in special projects.

• Maintains communication with other staff to ensure continuity of care.

• Assists in investigating incidents involving clients.

• Performs other job-related duties as assigned.

MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS:

Education and Experience:
Associate’s degree in Human Services or a directly related field AND three (3) years experience in direct client care,
counseling, law enforcement, corrections or a directly related field;
OR,
Any combination of education and experience that has been achieved and is equivalent to the stated education and
experience and required knowledge, skills, and abilities sufficient to successfully perform the duties and responsibilities
of this job.

Pagelof3

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Juvenile Residential Treatment Officer III

JOB CODE: 14510 FLSA STATUS: Non-Exempt
PAY GRADE: 14 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS: (Cont.)

Licenses, Registrations, Certifications, or Special Requirements:
Valid Texas Driver’s License.
Must be at least 21 years of age.
Certification as a Juvenile Detention Officer or eligible for certification within six (6) months of date of hire, including
successful completion of Cardio-pulmonary Resuscitation (CPR) Certification, First Aid and Handle with Care (state
approved physical restraint technique).

Knowledge, Skills, and Abilities:
Knowledge of:
• Policies, practices, procedures and legal terminology related to court system.
• Federal, State, Local and County applicable laws, rules, regulations, guidelines and applicable juvenile justice system

standards and procedures.
• Standard practices in area of assignment.
• Psychological concepts of good behavior, social adjustment and emotional stability.
• Standard counseling techniques.
• Safety and security techniques and standards.
• Physical restraint techniques to control aggressive behavior.
• First aid techniques.
• Computer equipment to include word processing, spreadsheets, databases and a variety of software packages.

Skill in:
• Training of others.
• Monitoring and responding to client behavior.
• Problem-solving and decision-making.
• Interviewing clients.
• Both verbal and written communication.

Ability to:
• Work efficiently both independently and as part of a team.
• Reason and make judgments and decisions.
• Work effectively and courteously under stressful circumstances.
• Deal effectively with mentally disturbed, hostile and aggressive individuals.
• Manage time well, perform multiple tasks and organize diverse activities.
• Conduct investigations and report results clearly, accurately and impartially.
• Perform in a stressful environment while maintaining a professional manner.
• Establish and maintain effective working relationships with departmental clientele, representatives of outside

agencies, other County employees and officials, representatives of the juvenile justice system and the general
public.

Page 2 of 3

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Juvenile Residential Treatment Officer Ill

JOB CODE: 14510 FLSA STATUS: Non-Exempt
PAY GRADE: 14 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

WORK ENVIRONMENT AND PHYSICAL DEMANDS:

Physical requirements include the ability to lift/carry up to 50-1 00 pounds, visual acuity, speech and hearing, hand and eye
coordination and manual dexterity necessary to operate a computer and basic office equipment. Subject to standing, sitting,
walking, climbing stairs, bending, stooping, crouching, kneeling, pushing, pulling, reaching, twisting, balancing, repetitive
motion, and squatting to perform the essential functions. Subject to contact with communicable diseases, radiation,
hazardous waste, human fecal matter and foul odors. Subject to stressful environment and client and customer contact for
extended periods of time.

This job description is intended to be generic in nature. It is not necessarily an exhaustive list of all duties
and responsibilities. The essential duties, functions and responsibilities and overtime eligibility may vary
based on the specific tasks assigned to the position.

Page 3 of 3 3

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Juvenile Residential Treatment Officer Senior

JOB CODE: 15511 FLSA STATUS: Non-Exempt
PAY GRADE: 15 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

JOB SUMMARY:

Provides direct supervision and treatment intervention of juvenile clients assigned to a residential treatment program.
Maintains security, control and guidance of detained juvenile clients in order to facilitate treatment, prevent harm and
provide for their safety during all daily activities. Recommends and implements available treatment plans and corrective
disciplinary strategies. Documents client behavior for use within the juvenile justice system. Trains staff and functions
as a working lead over other juvenile detention positions.

DISTINGUISHING CHARACTERISTICS:

This is the fifth in a series of five juvenile residential treatment-related job classifications within the Courts job family.
This classification provides supervision to clients who have been placed in the juvenile residential facility by the court
system. Duties performed are of the most complex nature and type. This classification typically functions as a working
lead over the activities of other juvenile residential treatment positions in addition to the normal range of duties. This
classification may require work in secure facilities. This classification may require a flexible work schedule in order to
meet the needs of the department.

DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES:

• Provides direct supervision of all client daily activities. Maintains accountability of all clients and equipment and ensures
that the environment is safe, clean and secure.

• Assesses juveniles, develops and implements available treatment plans, corrective disciplinary strategies and effective
treatment intervention programs. Ensures that clients are aware of and understand their responsibilities and
appropriate behavior.

• Conducts cognitive skill groups and teamwork activities. Models competency in direct care principles for less
experienced staff.

• Documents clients’ behavior and enters into department computer information system. Develops strategies for case
management.

• Functions as a working lead over other juvenile residential positions. Trains, assigns and reviews work of employees.

• Provides individual and crisis intervention counseling, as required.

• Ensures environment is safe and clean. Maintains order and discipline.

• Physically restrains aggressive clients using approved protocols, as required.

• Transports clients to other facilities, as required.

• Serves on committees and participates in special projects.

• Maintains communication with other staff to ensure continuity of care.

• Assists in investigating incidents involving clients.

• Performs other job-related duties as assigned.

MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS:

Education and Experience:
Bachelor’s degree in Criminal Justice, Social or Behavioral Sciences or a directly related field AND three (3) years
experience in social services, criminal justice or a directly related field;

OR,
Any combination of education and experience that has been achieved and is equivalent to the stated education and
experience and required knowledge, skills, and abilities sufficient to successfully perform the duties and responsibilities
of this job.

3’/Page 1 of 3

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Juvenile Residential Treatment Officer Senior

JOB CODE: 15511 FLSA STATUS: Non-Exempt
PAYGRADE: 15 LASTREVISED: 10/01/09

MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS: (Cont.)

Licenses, Registrations, Certifications, or Special Requirements:
Valid Texas Driver’s License.
Must be at least 21 years of age.
Certification as a Juvenile Probation Officer and Detention Officer or eligible for certification within six (6) months of date of
hire, including successful completion of Cardio-pulmonary Resuscitation (CPR) Certification, First Aid and Handle with
Care (state approved physical restraint technique).

Knowledge. Skills, and Abilities:
Knowledge of:
• Supervisory principles, practices and techniques.
• Policies, practices, procedures and legal terminology related to court system.
• Federal, State, Local and County applicable laws, rules, regulations, guidelines and applicable juvenile justice system

standards and procedures.
• Standard practices in area of assignment.
• Psychological concepts of good behavior, social adjustment and emotional stability.
• Standard counseling techniques.
• Safety and security techniques and standards.
• Physical restraint techniques to control aggressive behavior.
• First aid techniques.
• Computer equipment to include word processing, spreadsheets, databases and a variety of software packages.

Skill in:
• Training, supervising and reviewing the work of others.
• Monitoring and responding to client behavior.
• Problem-solving and decision-making.
• Interviewing clients.
• Both verbal and written communication.

Ability to:
• Work efficiently both independently and as part of a team.
• Reason and make judgments and decisions.
• Work effectively and courteously under stressful circumstances.
• Deal effectively with mentally disturbed, hostile and aggressive individuals.
• Manage time well, perform multiple tasks and organize diverse activities.
• Conduct investigations and report results clearly, accurately and impartially.
• Perform in a stressful environment while maintaining a professional manner.
• Establish and maintain effective working relationships with departmental clientele, representatives of outside

agencies, other County employees and officials, representatives of the juvenile justice system and the general
public.

Page2of3

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Juvenile Residential Treatment Officer Senior

JOB CODE: 15511 FLSA STATUS: Non-Exempt
PAY GRADE: 15 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

WORK ENVIRONMENT AND PHYSICAL DEMANDS:

Physical requirements include the ability to lift/carry up to 50-1 00 pounds, visual acuity, speech and hearing, hand and eye
coordination and manual dexterity necessary to operate a computer and basic office equipment. Subject to standing, sitting,
walking, climbing stairs, bending, stooping, crouching, kneeling, pushing, pulling, reaching, twisting, balancing, repetitive
motion, and squatting to perform the essential functions. Subject to contact with communicable diseases, radiation,
hazardous waste, human fecal matter and foul odors. Subject to stressful environment and client and customer contact for
extended periods of time.

This job description is intended to be generic in nature. It is not necessarily an exhaustive list of all duties
and responsibilities. The essential duties, functions and responsibilities and overtime eligibility may vary
based on the specific tasks assigned to the position.

Page 3 of 3

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Enforcement Officer I

JOB CODE: 14756 FLSA STATUS: Non-Exempt
PAY GRADE: 14 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

JOB SUMMARY:

Performs child support and visitation related functions. Provides customer service to the general public concerning child
support and visitation enforcement, Attorney General inquiries, court order interpretations and other general information.
Attends court proceedings and negotiates agreed settlements with parties using mediation techniques.

DISTINGUISHING CHARACTERISTICS:

This is the first in a series of three enforcement-related job classifications within the Courts job family. This classification
performs child support and visitation related functions. Duties performed are of routine to moderately complex nature and
type and may initially perform duties in training together with a higher-level staff member. This classification may require a
flexible work schedule in order to meet the needs of the department.

DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES:

• Provides customer service to the general public concerning child support and visitation enforcement, fee questions,
Attorney General and other inquiries, court order interpretations and other general information.

• Prepares cases for prosecution and referral to attorney. Attends court to assist attorneys in all phases of the
disposition of a pending case. Negotiates agreed settlements with parties using mediation techniques. Recommends
course of action to attorney if no agreement possible. Testifies at trial, as required.

• Processes requests for enforcement of child support court orders. Researches case files, database of court activity
and order history. Reviews court order for enforceability. Performs audit on account to determine child support arrears.

• Conducts investigations to locate absent parents.

• Monitors cases for compliance.

• Serves as community supervision officer of defendants placed on probation by the District Courts.

• May assist with the training of staff.

• Performs other job-related duties as assigned.

MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS:

Education and Experience:
Bachelor’s degree in Criminal Justice, Social or Behavioral Sciences or a directly related field AND one (1) year of
increasingly responsible experience in a Child Support Program, Family Law, family counseling, children and family
programs, investigations or related experience;

OR,

Any combination of education and experience that has been achieved and is equivalent to the stated education and
experience and required knowledge, skills, and abilities sufficient to successfully perform the duties and responsibilities
of this job.

Licenses, Registrations, Certifications, or Special Requirements:
Valid Texas Driver’s License.

Knowledge, Skills, and Abilities:
Knowledge of:
• Texas Family Code.
• Conciliation and mediation concepts.
• Policies, practices, procedures and legal terminology related to court system.

Page 1 of 2 7

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Enforcement Officer I

JOB CODE: 14756 FLSA STATUS: Non-Exempt
PAY GRADE: 14 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS: (Cont.)

Knowledge of: (Cont.)
• Federal, State, Local and County applicable laws, rules, regulations and guidelines.
• Psychological concepts of good behavior, social adjustment and emotional stability.
• Local social services, organizations and programs and the resources available.
• Computer equipment to include word processing, spreadsheets, databases and a variety of software packages.
• Business letter writing, grammar and punctuation, and report preparation.

Skill in:
• Assessing the medical, psychosocial and environmental status of clients.
• Negotiating, interviewing and investigating practices and techniques.
• Application of casework principles.
• Problem-solving and decision-making.
• Both verbal and written communication.

Ability to:
• Accurately assess the present and future needs of a child, to present that child’s case and advocate their best interests

in court as well as out of court for as long as the case is in the court system.
• Research, compile, analyze, interpret and prepare a variety of reports and maintain legal concepts.
• Perform in a stressful environment while maintaining a professional manner.
• Manage time well, perform multiple tasks and organize diverse activities.
• Establish and maintain effective working relationships with departmental clientele, representatives of outside

agencies, other County employees and officials, attorneys, children, judges and the general public.

WORK ENVIRONMENT AND PHYSICAL DEMANDS:

Physical requirements include the ability to lift/carry up to 10-50 pounds, visual acuity, speech and hearing, hand and eye
coordination and manual dexterity necessary to operate a computer and basic office equipment. Subject to standing, sitting,
walking, climbing stairs, bending, stooping, crouching, kneeling, pushing, pulling, reaching, twisting, balancing, repetitive
motion, and squatting to perform the essential functions. Subject to client and customer contact.

This job description is intended to be generic in nature. It is not necessarily an exhaustive list of all duties
and responsibilities. The essential duties, functions and responsibilities and overtime eligibility may vary
based on the specific tasks assigned to the position.

Page 2 of 2

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Enforcement Officer II

JOB CODE: 15757 FLSA STATUS: Non-Exempt
PAY GRADE: 15 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

JOB SUMMARY:

Performs child support and visitation related functions. Provides customer service to the general public concerning child
support and visitation enforcement, Attorney General inquiries, court order interpretations and other general information.
Attends court proceedings and negotiates agreed settlements with parties using mediation techniques.

DISTINGUISHING CHARACTERISTICS:

This is the second in a series of three enforcement-related job classifications within the Courts job family. This
classification performs child support and visitation related functions. Duties performed are of routine to moderately
complex nature and type and may initially perform duties in training together with a higher-level staff member. This
classification may require a flexible work schedule in order to meet the needs of the department.

DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES:

• Provides customer service to the general public concerning child support and visitation enforcement, fee questions,
Attorney General and other inquiries, court order interpretations and other general information.

• Prepares cases for prosecution and referral to attorney. Attends court to assist attorneys in all phases of the
disposition of a pending case. Negotiates agreed settlements with parties using mediation techniques. Recommends
course of action to attorney if no agreement possible. Testifies at trial, as required.

• Processes requests for enforcement of child support court orders. Researches case files, database of court activity
and order history. Reviews court order for enforceability. Performs audit on account to determine child support arrears.

• Conducts investigations to locate absent parents.

• Monitors cases for compliance.

• Serves as community supervision officer of defendants placed on probation by the District Courts.

• May assist with the training of staff.

• Performs other job-related duties as assigned.

MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS:

Education and Experience:
Bachelor’s degree in Criminal Justice, Social or Behavioral Sciences or a directly related field AND two (2) years of
increasingly responsible experience in a Child Support Program, Family Law, family counseling, children and family
programs, investigations or directly related experience;

OR,

Any combination of education and experience that has been achieved and is equivalent to the stated education and
experience and required knowledge, skills, and abilities sufficient to successfully perform the duties and responsibilities
of this job.

Licenses, Registrations, Certifications, or Special Requirements:
Valid Texas Driver’s License.

Knowledge. Skills, and Abilities:
Knowledge of:
• Texas Family Code.
• Conciliation and mediation concepts.
• Policies, practices, procedures, and legal terminology related to court system.

Page 1 of 2

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Enforcement Officer II

JOB CODE: 15757 FLSA STATUS: Non-Exempt
PAY GRADE: 15 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS: (Cont.)

Knowledge of: (Cont.)
• Federal, State, Local and County applicable laws, rules, regulations and guidelines.
• Psychological concepts of good behavior, social adjustment and emotional stability.
• Local social services, organizations and programs and the resources available.
• Computer equipment to include word processing, spreadsheets, databases and a variety of software packages.
• Business letter writing, grammar and punctuation, and report preparation.

Skill in:
• Assessing the medical, psychosocial and environmental status of clients.
• Negotiating, interviewing and investigating practices and techniques.
• Application of casework principles.
• Problem-solving and decision-making.
• Both verbal and written communication.

Ability to:
• Accurately assess the present and future needs of a child, to present that child’s case and advocate their best interests

in court as well as out of court for as long as the case is in the court system.
• Research, compile, analyze, interpret and prepare a variety of reports and maintain legal concepts.
• Perform in a stressful environment while maintaining a professional manner.
• Manage time well, perform multiple tasks and organize diverse activities.
• Establish and maintain effective working relationships with departmental clientele, representatives of outside

agencies, other County employees and officials, attorneys, children, judges and the general public.

WORK ENVIRONMENT AND PHYSICAL DEMANDS:

Physical requirements include the ability to lift/carry up to 10-50 pounds, visual acuity, speech and hearing, hand and eye
coordination and manual dexterity necessary to operate a computer and basic office equipment. Subject to standing, sitting,
walking, climbing stairs, bending, stooping, crouching, kneeling, pushing, pulling, reaching, twisting, balancing, repetitive
motion, and squatting to perform the essential functions. Subject to client and customer contact.

This job description is intended to be generic in nature. It is not necessarily an exhaustive list of all duties
and responsibilities. The essential duties, functions and responsibilities and overtime eligibility may vary
based on the specific tasks assigned to the position.

Page2of2 37o

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Enforcement Officer Senior

JOB CODE: 17758 FLSA STATUS: Non-Exempt
PAY GRADE: 17 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

JOB SUMMARY:

Performs child support and visitation related functions. Provides customer service to the general public concerning child
support and visitation enforcement, Attorney General inquiries, court order interpretations and other general information.
Attends court proceedings and negotiates agreed settlements with parties using mediation techniques. Trains staff and
functions as a working lead over other Enforcement Officer positions.

DISTINGUISHING CHARACTERISTICS:

This is the third in a series of three enforcement-related job classifications within the Courts job family. This classification
performs child support and visitation related functions. Duties performed are of a more complex nature and type. This
classification typically functions as a working lead over the activities of other Enforcement Officer positions in addition to
the normal range of duties. This classification may require a flexible work schedule in order to meet the needs of the
department.

DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES:

• Provides customer service to the general public concerning child support and visitation enforcement, fee questions,
Attorney General and other inquiries, court order interpretations and other general information.

• Prepares cases for prosecution and referral to attorney. Attends court to assist attorneys in all phases of the
disposition of a pending case. Negotiates agreed settlements with parties using mediation techniques. Recommends
course of action to attorney if no agreement possible. Testifies at trial, as required.

• Processes requests for enforcement of child support court orders. Researches case files, database of court activity
and order history. Reviews court order for enforceability. Performs audit on account to determine child support arrears.

• Functions as a working lead over other Enforcement Officer positions. Trains, assigns and reviews work of
employees.

• Conducts investigations to locate absent parents.

• Monitors cases for compliance.

• Serves as community supervision officer of defendants placed on probation by the District Courts.

• Performs other job-related duties as assigned.

MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS:

Education and Experience:
Bachelor’s degree in Criminal Justice, Social or Behavioral Sciences or a directly related field AND three (3) years of
increasingly responsible experience in a Child Support Program, Family Law, family counseling, children and family
programs, investigations or directly related experience;

OR,

Any combination of education and experience that has been achieved and is equivalent to the stated education and
experience and required knowledge, skills, and abilities sufficient to successfully perform the duties and responsibilities
of this job.

Licenses, Registrations, Certifications, or Special Requirements:
Valid Texas Driver’s License.

Pagelof2 37/

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Enforcement Officer Senior

JOB CODE: 1 7758 FLSA STATUS: Non-Exempt
PAY GRADE: 17 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS: (Cont.)

Knowledge. Skills, and Abilities:
Knowledge of:
• Texas Family Code.
• Supervisory principles, practices and techniques.
• Conciliation and mediation concepts.
• Policies, practices, procedures, and legal terminology related to court system.
• Federal, State, Local and County applicable laws, rules, regulations and guidelines.
• Psychological concepts of good behavior, social adjustment and emotional stability.
• Local social services, organizations and programs and the resources available.
• Computer equipment to include word processing, spreadsheets, databases and a variety of software packages.
• Business letter writing, grammar and punctuation, and report preparation.

Skill in:
• Training, supervising and reviewing the work of others.
• Assessing the medical, psychosocial and environmental status of clients.
• Negotiating, interviewing and investigating practices and techniques.
• Application of casework principles.
• Problem-solving and decision-making.
• Both verbal and written communication.

Ability to:
• Accurately assess the present and future needs of a child, to present that child’s case and advocate their best interests

in court as well as out of court for as long as the case is in the court system.
• Research, compile, analyze, interpret and prepare a variety of reports and maintain legal concepts.
• Perform in a stressful environment while maintaining a professional manner.
• Manage time well, perform multiple tasks and organize diverse activities.
• Establish and maintain effective working relationships with departmental clientele, representatives of outside

agencies, other County employees and officials, attorneys, children, judges and the general public.

WORK ENVIRONMENT AND PHYSICAL. DEMANDS:

Physical requirements include the ability to liWcarry up to 10-50 pounds, visual acuity, speech and hearing, hand and eye
coordination and manual dexterity necessary to operate a computer and basic office equipment. Subject to standing, sitting,
walking, climbing stairs, bending, stooping, crouching, kneeling, pushing, pulling, reaching, twisting, balancing, repetitive
motion, and squatting to perform the essential functions. Subject to client and customer contact.

This job description is intended to be generic in nature. It is not necessarily an exhaustive list of all duties
and responsibilities. The essential duties, functions and responsibilities and overtime eligibility may vary
based on the specific tasks assigned to the position.

Page2of2 :3-72..

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Guardian Ad Litem I

JOB CODE: 16744 FLSA STATUS: Exempt
PAY GRADE: 16 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

JOB SUMMARY:

Investigates and protects the best interest of the children for whom the District Court appoints a Guardian Ad Litem.
Appointments may occur by individual Court order or by the Local Rules of Civil Procedure in the following types of cases:
terminations, adoptions, divorces, modifications, protective orders, suits affecting the parent-child relationship, habeas
corpus, paternity and other similar cases involving the care and custody of children.

DISTINGUISHING CHARACTERISTICS:

This is the first in a series of three guardian-related job classifications within the Courts job family. This classification
investigates and protects the best interest of the children for whom the District Court appoints a Guardian Ad Litem. Duties
performed are initially of a minimally complex nature and type within the scope of Guardian Ad Litem duties and then
advance to a more complex level of Guardian duties. This classification may require a flexible work schedule in order to
meet the needs of the department.

DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES:

• Conducts forensic interviews and assessments of parents. Reviews legal documents and other forms of written or
tangible items of evidence to be submitted by litigants at time of trial.

• Assesses and advocates the best interest of the child for who appointed in all aspects of the case, including all legal
proceedings. Attends and participates in court hearing, depositions, mediations and any other activities associated with
a Family Law matter to which a Guardian Ad Litem has been assigned. Appointments continue until the case is no
longer active in the Court system or the Guardian is otherwise relieved by the Court.

• Interviews the children and each individual that the Guardian considers likely to have significant knowledge of the
children’s history and condition. Observes the children interacting at each home and at school and with any other
individuals involved in the case in order to form an opinion for the Court in answering questions of conservatorship.

• Requests and reviews school, medical and psychological records on parents and children. Recommends appropriate
therapeutic intervention where indicated.

• Monitors participation and progress in recommended or court-ordered parent education or counseling.

• Conducts and writes social studies for non-agency adoptions and other reports as directed by Court order.

• Sets hearings when necessary to report to the Court, to request the appointment of an Attorney Ad Litem for the
children, or to request dismissal from a case. Files necessary motions, with the assistance of attorneys.

• Ensures that all required documentation is submitted prior to hearing of uncontested adoption or termination cases.
Sets disputed matters for pre-trial. Provides written reports to the Court in adoptions, termination of parental rights suits
and any other suit affecting the parent-child relationship. Monitors compliance with Court orders prior to final hearing.

• Maintains contact with Attorneys to facilitate investigation and settlement of cases. Participates in mediation and
promotes out-of-court resolution of issues whenever possible and in the children’s best interest.

• Attends all legal proceedings and provides recommendations and expert testimony to the Court.

• Provides public information on divorce, mental health, child development and co-parenting topics to groups and
individuals.

• Provides immediate service on an on-call basis as Duty Guardian to the Court. Assists parents and/or attorneys who
walk in with request for Guardian appointment or other divorce-related issues. Refers litigants to appropriate
community resources, including facilitation of drug testing.

• Maintains case files and computer records on each case.

• May assist in providing training of staff and may present department and general public training activities.

• Performs other job-related duties as assigned.

373Page 1 of 3

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Guardian Ad Litem I

JOB CODE: 16744 FLSA STATUS: Exempt
PAY GRADE: 16 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS:

Education and ExDerience:
Master’s degree in one of the Social or Behavioral Sciences, Social Work, Sociology, Psychology, Counseling or Education
AND two (2) years of increasingly responsible experience in casework with children, family counseling or mediation;

OR,

Any combination of education and experience that has been achieved and is equivalent to the stated education and
experience and required knowledge, skills, and abilities sufficient to successfully perform the duties and responsibilities
of this job.

Licenses, Registrations, Certifications, or Special Requirements:
Valid Texas Driver’s License.

Preferred:
Licensed Professional Counselor (LPC); OR,
Licensed Social Worker (LSW); OR,
Licensed Marriage and Family Therapist.

Knowledge. Skills, and Abilities:
Knowledge of:
• Family law and the District Court system.
• Conciliation and mediation concepts.
• Policies, practices, procedures, and legal terminology related to court system.
• Federal, State, Local and County applicable laws, rules, regulations and guidelines.
• Psychological concepts of good behavior, social adjustment and emotional stability.
• Local social services, organizations and programs and the resources available.
• Computer equipment to include word processing, spreadsheets, databases and a variety of software packages.
• Business letter writing, grammar and punctuation, and report preparation.

Skill in:
• Assessing the medical, psychosocial and environmental status of clients.
• Negotiating, interviewing and investigating practices and techniques.
• Application of casework principles.
• Problem-solving and decision-making.
• Both verbal and written communication.

Ability to:
• Accurately assess the present and future needs of a child, to present that child’s case and advocate their best interests

in court as well as out of court for as long as the case is in the court system.
• Evaluate psychological and other professional reports.
• Research, compile, analyze, interpret and prepare a variety of reports and maintain legal concepts.
• Perform in a stressful environment while maintaining a professional manner.
• Establish and maintain effective working relationships with departmental clientele, representatives of outside

agencies, other County employees and officials, attorneys, children, judges and the general public.

Page 2 of 3

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Guardian Ad Litem I

JOB CODE: 16744 FLSA STATUS: Exempt
PAY GRADE: 16 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

WORK ENVIRONMENT AND PHYSICAL DEMANDS:

Physical requirements include the ability to lift/carry up to 10-50 pounds, visual acuity, speech and hearing, hand and eye
coordination and manual dexterity necessary to operate a computer and basic office equipment. Subject to standing, sitting,
walking, climbing stairs, bending, stooping, crouching, kneeling, pushing, pulling, reaching, twisting, balancing, repetitive
motion, and squatting to perform the essential functions. Subject to client and customer contact.

This job description is intended to be generic in nature. It is not necessarily an exhaustive list of all duties
and responsibilities. The essential duties, functions and responsibilities and overtime eligibility may vary
based on the specific tasks assigned to the position.

Page 3 of 3 75

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Guardian Ad Litem II

JOB CODE: 17775 FLSA STATUS: Exempt
PAY GRADE: 17 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

JOB SUMMARY:

Investigates and protects the best interest of the children for whom the District Court appoints a Guardian Ad Litem.
Appointments may occur by individual Court order or by the Local Rules of Civil Procedure in the following types of cases:
terminations, adoptions, divorces, modifications, protective orders, suits affecting the parent-child relationship, habeas
corpus, paternity and other similar cases involving the care and custody of children.

DISTINGUISHING CHARACTERISTICS:

This is the second in a series of three guardian-related job classifications within the Courts job family. This classification
investigates and protects the best interest of the children for whom the District Court appoints a Guardian Ad Litem. Duties
performed are initially of a moderately complex nature and type within the scope of Guardian Ad Litem duties and then
advance to the fully functioning complex level of Guardian duties. This classification may require a flexible work schedule
in order to meet the needs of the department.

DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES:

• Conducts forensic interviews and assessments of parents. Reviews legal documents and other forms of written or
tangible items of evidence to be submitted by litigants at time of trial.

• Assesses and advocates the best interest of the child for who appointed in all aspects of the case, including all legal
proceedings. Attends and participates in court hearing, depositions, mediations and any other activities associated with
a Family Law matter to which a Guardian Ad Litem has been assigned. Appointments continue until the case is no
longer active in the Court system or the Guardian is otherwise relieved by the Court.

• Interviews the children and each individual that the Guardian considers likely to have significant knowledge of the
children’s history and condition. Observes the children interacting at each home and at school and with any other
individuals involved in the case in order to form an opinion for the Court in answering questions of conservatorship.

• Requests and reviews school, medical and psychological records on parents and children. Recommends appropriate
therapeutic intervention where indicated.

• Monitors participation and progress in recommended or court-ordered parent education or counseling.

• Conducts and writes social studies for non-agency adoptions and other reports as directed by Court order.

• Sets hearings when necessary to report to the Court, to request the appointment of an Attorney Ad Litem for the
children, or to request dismissal from a case. Files necessary motions, with the assistance of attorneys.

• Ensures that all required documentation is submitted prior to hearing of uncontested adoption or termination cases.
Sets disputed matters for pre-trial. Provides written reports to the Court in adoptions, termination of parental rights suits
and any other suit affecting the parent-child relationship. Monitors compliance with Court orders prior to final hearing.

• Maintains contact with Attorneys to facilitate investigation and settlement of cases. Participates in mediation and
promotes out-of-court resolution of issues whenever possible and in the children’s best interest.

• Attends all legal proceedings and provides recommendations and expert testimony to the Court.

• Provides public information on divorce, mental health, child development and co-parenting topics to groups and
individuals.

• Provides immediate service on an on-call basis as Duty Guardian to the Court. Assists parents and/or attorneys who
walk in with request for Guardian appointment or other divorce-related issues. Refers litigants to appropriate
community resources, including facilitation of drug testing.

• Maintains case files and computer records on each case.

• May assist in providing training of staff and may present department and general public training activities.

• Performs other job-related duties as assigned.

Page 1 of 3

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Guardian Ad Litem II

JOB CODE: 17775 FLSA STATUS: Exempt
PAY GRADE: 17 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS:

Education and Experience:
Master’s degree in one of the Social or Behavioral Sciences, Social Work, Sociology, Psychology, Counseling or Education
AND three (3) years of increasingly responsible experience in casework with children, family counseling or mediation;

OR,

Any combination of education and experience that has been achieved and is equivalent to the stated education and
experience and required knowledge, skills, and abilities sufficient to successfully perform the duties and responsibilities
of this job.

Licenses, Registrations, Certifications, or Special Requirements:
Valid Texas Driver’s License.

Preferred:
Licensed Professional Counselor (LPC); OR,
Licensed Social Worker (LSW); OR,
Licensed Marriage and Family Therapist.

Knowledge, Skills, and Abilities:
Knowledge of:
• Family law and the District Court system.
• Conciliation and mediation concepts.
• Policies, practices, procedures, and legal terminology related to court system.
• Federal, State, Local and County applicable laws, rules, regulations and guidelines.
• Psychological concepts of good behavior, social adjustment and emotional stability.
• Local social services, organizations and programs and the resources available.
• Computer equipment to include word processing, spreadsheets, databases and a variety of software packages.
• Business letter writing, grammar and punctuation, and report preparation.

Skill in:
• Assessing the medical, psychosocial and environmental status of clients.
• Negotiating, interviewing and investigating practices and techniques.
• Application of casework principles.
• Problem-solving and decision-making.
• Both verbal and written communication.

Ability to:
• Accurately assess the present and future needs of a child, to present that child’s case and advocate their best interests

in court as well as out of court for as long as the case is in the court system.
• Evaluate psychological and other professional reports.
• Research, compile, analyze, interpret and prepare a variety of reports and maintain legal concepts.
• Perform in a stressful environment while maintaining a professional manner.
• Manage time well, perform multiple tasks and organize diverse activities.
• Establish and maintain effective working relationships with departmental clientele, representatives of outside

agencies, other County employees and officials, attorneys, children, judges and the general public.

Page2of3 377

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Guardian Ad Litem II

JOB CODE: 17775 FLSA STATUS: Exempt
PAY GRADE: 17 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

WORK ENVIRONMENT AND PHYSICAL DEMANDS:

Physical requirements include the ability to lift/carry up to 10-50 pounds, visual acuity, speech and hearing, hand and eye
coordination and manual dexterity necessary to operate a computer and basic office equipment. Subject to standing, sitting,
walking, climbing stairs, bending, stooping, crouching, kneeling, pushing, pulling, reaching, twisting, balancing, repetitive
motion, and squatting to perform the essential functions. Subject to client and customer contact.

This job description is intended to be generic in nature. It is not necessarily an exhaustive list of all duties
and responsibilities. The essential duties, functions and responsibilities and overtime eligibility may vary
based on the specific tasks assigned to the position.

Page3of3

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Guardian Ad Litem Senior

JOB CODE: 18776 FLSA STATUS: Exempt
PAY GRADE: 18 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

JOB SUMMARY:

Investigates and protects the best interest of the children for whom the District Court appoints a Guardian Ad Litem.
Appointments may occur by individual Court order or by the Local Rules of Civil Procedure in the following types of cases:
terminations, adoptions, divorces, modifications, protective orders, suits affecting the parent-child relationship, habeas
corpus, paternity and other similar cases involving the care and custody of children. Trains staff and functions as a working
lead over other Guardian Ad Litem positions.

DISTINGUISHING CHARACTERISTICS:

This is the third in a series of three guardian-related job classifications within the Courts job family. This classification
investigates and protects the best interest of the children for whom the District Court appoints a Guardian Ad Litem. Duties
performed are of a more complex nature and type. This classification typically functions as a working lead over the
activities of other Guardian Ad Litem positions in addition to the normal range of duties. This classification may require a
flexible work schedule in order to meet the needs of the department.

DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES:

• Conducts forensic interviews and assessments of parents. Reviews legal documents and other forms of written or
tangible items of evidence to be submitted by litigants at time of trial.

• Assesses and advocates the best interest of the child for whom appointed in all aspects of the case, including all legal
proceedings. Attends and participates in court hearing, depositions, mediations and any other activities associated with
a Family Law matter to which a Guardian Ad Litem has been assigned. Appointments continue until the case is no
longer active in the Court system or the Guardian is otherwise relieved by the Court.

• Interviews the children and each individual that the Guardian considers likely to have significant knowledge of the
children’s history and condition. Observes the children interacting at each home and at school and with any other
individuals involved in the case in order to form an opinion for the Court in answering questions of conservatorship.

• Requests and reviews school, medical and psychological records on parents and children. Recommends appropriate
therapeutic intervention where indicated.

• Monitors participation and progress in recommended or court-ordered parent education or counseling.

• Conducts and writes social studies for non-agency adoptions and other reports as directed by Court order.

• Functions as a working lead over other Guardian Ad Litem positions. Trains, assigns and reviews work of employees.
May serve as liaison with Court system on higher-level departmental issues.

• Sets hearings when necessary to report to the Court, to request the appointment of an Attorney Ad Litem for the
children, or to request dismissal from a case. Files necessary motions, with the assistance of attorneys.

• Ensures that all required documentation is submitted prior to hearing of uncontested adoption or termination cases.
Sets disputed matters for pretrial. Provides written reports to the Court in adoptions, termination of parental rights suits
and any other suit affecting the parent-child relationship. Monitors compliance with Court orders prior to final hearing.

• Maintains contact with Attorneys to facilitate investigation and settlement of cases. Participates in mediation and
promotes out-of-court resolution of issues whenever possible and in the children’s best interest.

• Attends all legal proceedings and provides recommendations and expert testimony to the Court.

• Provides public information on divorce, mental health, child development and co-parenting topics to groups and
individuals.

• Provides immediate service on an on-call basis as Duty Guardian to the Court. Assists parents and/or attorneys who
walk in with request for Guardian appointment or other divorce-related issues. Refers litigants to appropriate
community resources, including facilitation of drug testing.

• Maintains case files and computer records on each case.

Pagelof3 77

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Guardian Ad Litem Senior

JOB CODE: 18776 FLSA STATUS: Exempt
PAY GRADE: 18 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES: (Cont.)

• Reviews Guardian casework and recommends appropriate action.

• May present department and general public training activities.

• Performs other job-related duties as assigned.

MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS:

Education and Experience:
Master’s degree in one of the Social or Behavioral Sciences, Social Work, Sociology, Psychology, Counseling or Education
AND four (4) years of increasingly responsible experience in casework with children, family counseling or mediation;

OR,

Any combination of education and experience that has been achieved and is equivalent to the stated education and
experience and required knowledge, skills, and abilities sufficient to successfully perform the duties and responsibilities
of this job.

Licenses, Registrations, Certifications, or Special Requirements:
Valid Texas Driver’s License.

Preferred:
Licensed Professional Counselor (LPC); OR,
Licensed Social Worker (LSW); OR,
Licensed Marriage and Family Therapist.

Knowledge, Skills, and Abilities:
Knowledge of:
• Family law and the District Court system.
• Conciliation and mediation concepts.
• Supervisory principles, practices and techniques.
• Policies, practices, procedures, and legal terminology related to court system.
• Federal, State, Local and County applicable laws, rules, regulations and guidelines.
• Psychological concepts of good behavior, social adjustment and emotional stability.
• Local social services, organizations and programs and the resources available.
• Computer equipment to include word processing, spreadsheets, databases and a variety of software packages.
• Business letter writing, grammar and punctuation, and report preparation.

Skill in:
• Training, supervising and reviewing the work of others.
• Assessing the medical, psychosocial and environmental status of clients.
• Negotiating, interviewing and investigating practices and techniques.
• Application of casework principles.
• Problem-solving and decision-making.
• Both verbal and written communication.

Ability to:
• Accurately assess the present and future needs of a child, to present that child’s case and advocate their best interests

in court as well as out of court for as long as the case is in the court system.
• Evaluate psychological and other professional reports.
• Research, compile, analyze, interpret and prepare a variety of reports and maintain legal concepts.
• Perform in a stressful environment while maintaining a professional manner.
• Manage time well, perform multiple tasks and organize diverse activities.
• Establish and maintain effective working relationships with departmental clientele, representatives of outside

agencies, other County employees and officials, attorneys, children, judges and the general public.

Page 2 of 3

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Guardian Ad Litem Senior

JOB CODE: 18776 FLSA STATUS: Exempt
PAY GRADE: 18 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

WORK ENVIRONMENT AND PHYSICAL DEMANDS:

Physical requirements include the ability to lift/carry up to 10-50 pounds, visual acuity, speech and hearing, hand and eye
coordination and manual dexterity necessary to operate a computer and basic office equipment. Subject to standing, sitting,
walking, climbing stairs, bending, stooping, crouching, kneeling, pushing, pulling, reaching, twisting, balancing, repetitive
motion, and squatting to perform the essential functions. Subject to client and customer contact.

This job description is intended to be generic in nature. It is not necessarily an exhaustive list of all duties
and responsibilities. The essential duties, functions and responsibilities and overtime eligibility may vary
based on the specific tasks assigned to the position.

Page3of3 3 /

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Accounting Clerk

JOB CODE: 11002 FLSA STATUS: Non-Exempt
PAY GRADE: 11 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

JOB SUMMARY:

Under close supervision, performs clerical accounting functions in accordance with standard policies and procedures.
Reconciles accounting spreadsheets and bank accounts, posts information to general or subsidiary ledgers, processes
payments and cash receipts, and prepares accounting reports. May carry out clerical accounting functions related to the
collection of delinquent tax accounts or court fine and fee accounts to bring into compliance with the various property tax
or criminal justice system laws, requirements and regulations.

DISTINGUISHING CHARACTERISTICS:

This is the first in a series of a two clerical and paraprofessional accounting-related job classifications within the Finance job
family. Incumbents typically perform routine clerical and administrative accounting functions that require application of basic
standard bookkeeping and accounting theories, principles and techniques, and require the appropriate skill levels including
basic skill levels in computer, analytical and communication skills. This classification typically performs duties at a
department or office level. This classification may require a flexible work schedule in order to meet the needs of the
department.

DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES:

• Receives, processes and records cash, check or fund payments. Verifies amount received is correct, issues receipt
and enters and records transactions into accounting system. Computes charges and refunds. Identifies delinquent
accounts and insufficient payments. Responds to accounting inquiries and prepares and issues related
correspondence.

• Establishes and maintains a variety of accounts, including posting receipts, disbursements and other accounting
transactions to appropriate ledgers and journals. Verifies receipts and/or cash register tapes to checks and cash
received, identifies errors, and makes necessary corrections. Reconciles account ledgers and ensures that accounts
balance.

• Prepares deposits to send to bank. Executes wire transfer slips or prepares deposits for submission to County
Treasurer. Verifies completion of funds transactions to appropriate entity. Processes checks returned for insufficient
funds for collection and makes necessary adjustments to accounting records.

• Receives, processes and verifies purchase orders for payment of bills. Processes and reviews invoices for payment.
May prepare purchase order or check to vendor, call vendors for quotes, enter requisitions, and receive items into the
financial system.

• Reconciles simple bank statements, ledger balances and other accounting transactions. Refers problem
transactions to higher level staff for assistance and problem resolution. Maintains a filing system of canceled
checks, bank statements and other documentation. May monitor funds or line item budget balances and expenditures
to ensure budget does not exceed budgeted line items.

• Prepares periodic financial reports reflecting receipts, disbursements, ledger balances and other accounting
transactions. Collects, analyzes and summarizes accounting information. Produces various spreadsheets and
reports using established or other formats.

• May specialize in collection of delinquent court fines and fees, including receiving payments, determining appropriate
accounts to apply payment, posting monies to accounts and tracking in automated system, communicating basic
information to clients, preparing and sending collections correspondence, and compiling daily collections reports for
supervisory review. May also include interviewing and communicating with defendants regarding financial status,
calculating fees and investigating, evaluating and verifying applications for extension of time for payment of fines
and/or court costs. May negotiate and grant or deny an application based on defendant’s financial resources.

• May determine a payment schedule if an extension of time for payment is granted, distribute applications for
extension of time for payment, establish and maintain a system for reviewing delinquency, monitor delinquent
accounts, contact defendants regarding delinquent accounts and process for non-compliance. May issue and mail
notices on delinquent accounts. 2

Page 1 of 3

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Accounting Clerk

JOB CODE: 11002 FLSA STATUS: Non-Exempt
PAY GRADE: 11 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES: (Cont.)

• May prepare reports on delinquent accounts and other relevant information and submit for review and required
action. May request that warrants be prepared based on court orders.

• May process and/or audit payroll, travel, or other administrative accounting transactions.

• May prepare and process Treasurer warrant funds. May process funds for State agencies and disbursements for
outside jurisdictions.

• Maintains accounting controls and financial security by following policies and procedures and internal controls.

• Performs other job-related duties as assigned.

MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS:

Education and Experience:
High School diploma or G.E.D. AND two (2) years of relevant bookkeeping/accounting experience;

OR,

Any combination of education and experience that has been achieved and is equivalent to the stated education and
experience and required knowledge, skills, and abilities sufficient to successfully perform the duties and responsibilities
of this job.

Licenses, Registrations, Certifications, or Special Requirements:
None required.

Preferred:
Valid Texas Driver’s License.

Knowledge, Skills, and Abilities:
Knowledge of:
• Policies, practices, procedures and terminology of assigned function.
• Federal, State, Local and County applicable laws, rules, regulations and guidelines.
• Generally Accepted Accounting Principles (GAAP) and standardized financial practices.
• Manual and automated systems relating to assigned function.
• Modern office practices, procedures and methods.
• Computer equipment to include word processing, spreadsheets, databases and a variety of software packages.
• Business letter writing, grammar and punctuation, and report preparation.

Skill in:
• Problem-solving and decision-making.
• Entering and reconciling financial data and reporting and monitoring ledger balances.
• Both verbal and written communication.

Ability to:
• Process financial transactions.
• Follow standardized accounting policies and procedures.
• Establish and maintain effective working relationships with departmental clientele, representatives of outside

agencies and providers, other County employees and officials, and the general public.

Page2of3

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Accounting Clerk

JOB CODE: 11002 FLSA STATUS: Non-Exempt
PAY GRADE: 11 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

WORK ENVIRONMENT AND PHYSICAL DEMANDS:

Physical requirements include the ability to lift/carry up to 10-15 pounds occasionally, visual acuity, speech and hearing,
hand and eye coordination and manual dexterity necessary to operate a computer and office equipment. Subject to
standing, sitting, walking, climbing, crawling, bending, stooping, crouching, kneeling, pushing, pulling, reaching, twisting,
balancing, repetitive motion, and squatting to perform the essential functions.

This job description is intended to be generic in nature. It is not necessarily an exhaustive list of all duties
and responsibilities. The essential duties, functions and responsibilities and overtime eligibility may vary
based on the specific tasks assigned to the position.

Page 3 of 3 3 9’

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Accountant Associate

JOB CODE: 13003 FLSA STATUS: Non-Exempt
PAY GRADE: 13 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

JOB SUMMARY:

Under close supervision, performs paraprofessional accounting functions in accordance with standard policies and
procedures. Records, analyzes, processes and reconciles accounting spreadsheets, bank accounts, general and
subsidiary ledgers, cash receipts, grants, fixed assets, pooled cash, purchase orders, payroll, travel and other general
accounting transactions. Prepares accounting reports.

DISTINGUISHING CHARACTERISTICS:

This is the second in a series of a two clerical and paraprofessional accounting-related job classifications within the Finance
job family. Incumbents typically perform routine paraprofessional accounting functions that require application of basic
standard accounting theories, principles and techniques, and require the appropriate skill levels including basic skill levels in
computer, analytical and communication skills. Duties require a minimal degree of initiative and independent judgment.
This classification typically performs duties at a department or office level. This classification may require a flexible work
schedule in order to meet the needs of the department.

DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES:

• Receives, records, processes and analyzes cash receipts, grants, fixed assets, pooled cash, purchase orders,
payroll, travel and other general accounting transactions. Reviews and verifies accuracy of transactions and
information, resolves discrepancies, obtains required authorizations and processes or prepares and submits
transactions for further processing.

• Reconciles and maintains bank statements, ledger balances and other accounting transactions. Verifies account
entries and reconciliation work completed by others. Monitors accounts and line item budget balances and
expenditures to ensure that transactions are within budget. Refers problem transactions to higher level staff for
assistance and problem resolution. Maintains information and creates and monitors electronic files and/or
accounting documents.

• Prepares periodic financial reports by collecting, analyzing, and summarizing account information and trends.
Produces various spreadsheets and reports using established or other formats. Submits reports to appropriate staff
for review and further action.

• Assists department staff and other clients by providing procedural/financial information and/or other information and
guidance with automated or manual systems. Provides assistance with and verifies required documents are
completed, reviews for accuracy and submits to appropriate staff for further processing, as required. Instructs staff in
entering information into accounting system, as required.

• Maintains accounting controls and financial security by following policies and procedures and internal controls.

• Performs other job-related duties as assigned.

MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS:

Education and Experience:
Associate’s degree in Accounting, Finance or a directly related field AND two (2) years of increasingly responsible
relevant paraprofessional bookkeeping and accounting experience;
OR,

Any combination of education and experience that has been achieved and is equivalent to the stated education and
experience and required knowledge, skills, and abilities sufficient to successfully perform the duties and responsibilities
of this job.

Licenses, Registrations, Certifications, or Special Requirements:
None required.

Preferred:
Valid Texas Driver’s License.

Page 1 of 2 3 .,5

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Accountant Associate

JOB CODE: 13003 FLSA STATUS: Non-Exempt
PAY GRADE: 13 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS: (Cont.)

Knowledge, Skills, and Abilities:
Knowledge of:
• Policies, practices, procedures and terminology of assigned function.
• Federal, State, Local and County applicable laws, rules, regulations and guidelines.
• Generally Accepted Accounting Principles (GAAP) and standardized financial practices.
• Manual and automated systems relating to assigned function.
• Modern office practices, procedures and methods.
• Computer equipment to include word processing, spreadsheets, databases and a variety of software packages.
• Business letter writing, grammar and punctuation, and report preparation.

Skill in:
• Problem-solving and decision-making.
• Entering and reconciling financial data and reporting and monitoring ledger balances.
• Completing financial reports.
• Both verbal and written communication.

Ability to:
• Process financial transactions.
• Prepare accurate financial reports and statements.
• Follow standardized accounting policies and procedures.
• Establish and maintain effective working relationships with County employees and officials, representatives of

outside agencies, and the general public.

WORK ENVIRONMENT AND PHYSICAL DEMANDS:

Physical requirements include the ability to lift/carry up to 10-15 pounds occasionally, visual acuity, speech and hearing,
hand and eye coordination and manual dexterity necessary to operate a computer and office equipment. Subject to
standing, sitting, walking, climbing, crawling, bending, stooping, crouching, kneeling, pushing, pulling, reaching, twisting,
balancing, repetitive motion, and squatting to perform the essential functions.

rñis job description is intended to be generic in nature. It is not necessarily an exhaustive list of all duties
and responsibilities. The essential duties, functions and responsibilities and overtime eligibility may vary
based on the specific tasks assigned to the position.

Page 2 of 2

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Accountant

JOB CODE: 16005 FLSA STATUS: Exempt
PAY GRADE: 16 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

JOB SUMMARY:

Under moderate supervision, performs professional accounting services using standardized methods and procedures in
accordance with Generally Accepted Accounting Principles (GAAP) and County policies. Work involves preparing
financial statements, schedules and reports, completing journal entries, maintaining ledgers, reconciling and verifying
accounts, and monitoring revenue and expense accounts. Interprets and analyzes accounting data and financial reports
and recommends action. May carry out accounting functions related to the collection of delinquent tax accounts or court
fine and fee accounts to bring into compliance with the various property tax or criminal justice system laws, requirements
and regulations.

DISTINGUISHING CHARACTERISTICS:

This is the first in a series of three professional accounting-related job classifications within the Finance job family.
Incumbents typically perform routine professional financial accounting duties that require the application of standard
accounting theories, principles and techniques, and require the appropriate skill levels including basic skill levels in
computer, analytical and communication skills. This classification is distinguished from the Accountant Senior classification
in that incumbents usually consult with higher level accounting staff for advice and assistance and are not typically
responsible for the more complex accounting functions. Duties require some degree of initiative and independent judgment.
This classification typically performs duties at a department or office level. This classification may require a flexible work
schedule in order to meet the needs of the department.

DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES:

• Prepares monthly, quarterly and annual financial statements, schedules and reports including completion of
accounting entries and reconciliation of accounts and statements. Develops or assists in developing non-standard
reports and statements, such as detailed cost and financial analysis, forecasts, trend analysis and projections.
Participates in or completes special accounting studies. Monitors revenue and expenses for assigned accounts.

• Completes journal entries, maintains ledgers and prepares cost accounting information. Verifies accounts and
reconciles and analyzes entries, transactions, ledgers and reports. Maintains filing system of accounting data, such
as canceled checks, bank statements and other documentation.

• Interprets and analyzes accounting data and financial reports and recommends action. Assists in developing and
implementing accounting systems and procedures for department. Assists in drafting financial policies and
procedures. May assist in budget preparation and maintenance.

• Monitors compliance with Generally Accepted Accounting Principles (GAAP). Maintains accounting controls and
financial security by following policies and procedures and internal controls.

• Assists department staff and other clients by providing procedural/financial information and/or other information and
guidance with automated or manual systems. Provides assistance with and verifies required documents are
completed, reviews for accuracy and submits to appropriate staff for further processing, as required. Instructs staff, in
entering information into accounting system, as required.

• May train or assist in training, reviewing the work of, and providing technical assistance to lower level accounting staff
making ledger entries, completing reconciliations and trial balances, maintaining payroll, purchasing or travel records
and completing other accounting and bookkeeping work.

• May perform specialized accounting functions, such as grant accounting, accounting related to a collections
program, or other types of accounting functions.

• May assist in establishing and maintaining a system for reviewing delinquency of tax accounts or court fine and fee
accounts.

• Performs other job-related duties as assigned.

Pagelof2

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Accountant

JOB CODE: 16005 FLSA STATUS: Exempt
PAY GRADE: 16 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS:

Education and Experience:
Bachelor’s degree in Accounting, Finance or a directly related field AND two (2) years of increasingly responsible
relevant professional level accounting or financial analysis experience. Master’s degree in Accounting, Finance or a
directly related field may substitute for the two (2) years required experience.

Licenses, Registrations, Certifications, or Special Requirements:
None required.

Preferred:
Valid Texas Driver’s License.

Knowledge, Skills, and Abilities:
Knowledge of:
• Policies, practices, procedures and terminology of assigned function.
• Federal, State, Local and County applicable laws, rules, regulations and guidelines.
• Generally Accepted Accounting Principles (GAAP) and standardized financial practices.
• Manual and automated systems relating to assigned function.
• Modern office practices, procedures and methods.
• Computer equipment to include word processing, spreadsheets, databases and a variety of software packages.
• Business letter writing, grammar and punctuation, and report preparation.

Skill in:
• Problem- solving and decision-making.
• Entering and reconciling financial data and reporting and monitoring fund and ledger balances.
• Corn pleting professional financial reports.
• Both verbal and written communication.

Ability to:
• Analyze, calculate, consolidate, reconcile and interpret accounting data and identify errors.
• Develop and maintain financial spreadsheets, accounts and ledgers.
• Prepare accurate financial statements.
• Establish and maintain effective working relationships with County employees and officials, representatives of

outside agencies, and the general public.

WORK ENVIRONMENT AND PHYSICAL DEMANDS:

Physical requirements include the ability to lift/carry up to 10-15 pounds occasionally, visual acuity, speech and hearing,
hand and eye coordination and manual dexterity necessary to operate a computer and office equipment. Subject to
standing, sitting, walking, climbing, crawling, bending, stooping, crouching, kneeling, pushing, pulling, reaching, twisting,
balancing, repetitive motion, and squatting to perform the essential functions.

This job description is intended to be generic in nature. It is not necessarily an exhaustive list of all duties
and responsibilities. The essential duties, functions and responsibilities and overtime eligibility may vary
based on the specific tasks assigned to the position.

Page 2 of 2

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Accountant Senior

JOB CODE: 18006 FLSA STATUS: Exempt
PAY GRADE: 18 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

JOB SUMMARY:

Under limited supervision, performs a wide range of professional accounting and advisory services using standard and
specialized methods and procedures in accordance with Generally Accepted Accounting Principles (GAAP) and County
policies. Work involves preparing detailed financial statements, schedules and reports, completing journal entries,
maintaining ledgers, reconciling and verifying accounts, and monitoring revenue and expense accounts. Interprets and
analyzes a wide variety of accounting data and financial reports and recommends action.

DISTINGUISHING CHARACTERISTICS:

This is the second in a series of three professional accounting-related job classifications within the Finance job family.
Incumbents typically perform moderately complex professional financial accounting duties that require the application of
standard accounting theories, principles and techniques, and require the appropriate skill levels including intermediate skill
levels in computer, analytical and communication skills. Incumbents work relatively independently and exercise
professional judgment within assigned function. This classification is distinguished from the Accountant Lead classification
in that incumbents typically are not responsible for the more complex accounting functions and do not have formal authority
for leading or supervising lower level staff. Duties require a moderate degree of initiative and independent judgment. This
classification typically performs duties at a department or office level. This classification may require a flexible work
schedule in order to meet the needs of the department.

DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES:

• Prepares monthly, quarterly and annual financial statements, schedules and reports, including completion of
accounting entries and reconciliation of accounts and statements. Develops non-standard reports and statements,
such as detailed cost and financial analysis, forecasts, trend analysis and projections. Completes a variety of
special accounting studies. Monitors revenue and expenses for assigned accounts.

• Completes intricate journal entries, maintains ledgers and prepares cost accounting information. Verifies accounts
and reconciles and analyzes entries, transactions, ledgers and reports. Maintains filing system of accounting data,
such as canceled checks, bank statements and other documentation.

• Interprets and analyzes a wide variety of accounting data and financial reports and recommends action. Identifies
informational needs of management and revises or refines account structures or data accordingly. Participates in
developing and implementing a variety of accounting systems and procedures for department. Drafts standard and
specialized financial policies and procedures. May assist in budget preparation and maintenance.

• Monitors compliance with Generally Accepted Accounting Principles (GAAP). Maintains accounting controls and
financial security by following policies and procedures and internal controls. Decides proper handling of financial
transactions and approves transactions within designated limits.

• Assists department staff and other clients by providing procedural/financial information and/or other information and
guidance with automated or manual systems. Provides solutions to problems presented by lower level staff and
recommends changes to accounting system, methods or procedures.

• Trains or assists in training, reviewing the work of, and providing technical assistance to lower level accounting staff
making ledger entries, completing reconciliations and trial balances, maintaining payroll, purchasing or travel records
and completing other accounting and bookkeeping work.

• May perform specialized accounting functions, such as grant accounting, accounting related to a collections
program, or other types of accounting functions.

• Performs other job-related duties as assigned.

Page 1 of 2

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Accountant Senior

JOB CODE: 18006 FLSA STATUS: Exempt
PAY GRADE: 18 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS:

Education and Experience:
Bachelor’s degree in Accounting, Finance or a directly related field AND four (4) years of increasingly responsible
relevant professional level accounting or financial analysis experience. Master’s degree in Accounting, Finance or a
directly related field may substitute for two (2) years of the required experience.

Licenses, Registrations, Certifications, or Special Requirements:
None required.

Preferred:
Valid Texas Driver’s License.

Knowledge, Skills, and Abilities:
Knowledge of:
• Policies, practices, procedures and terminology of assigned function.
• Federal, State, Local and County applicable laws, rules, regulations and guidelines.
• Generally Accepted Accounting Principles (GAAP) and standardized financial practices.
• Manual and automated systems relating to assigned function.
• Modern office practices, procedures and methods.
• Computer equipment to include word processing, spreadsheets, databases and a variety of software packages.
• Business letter writing, grammar and punctuation, and report preparation.

Skill in:
• Problem-solving and decision-making.
• Entering and reconciling financial data and reporting and monitoring fund and ledger balances.
• Completing professional financial reports.
• Both verbal and written communication.

Ability to:
• Analyze, calculate, consolidate, reconcile and interpret accounting data and identify errors.
• Develop and maintain financial spreadsheets, accounts and ledgers.
• Prepare accurate financial statements.
• Establish and maintain effective working relationships with County employees and officials, representatives of

outside agencies, and the general public.

WORK ENVIRONMENT AND PHYSICAL DEMANDS:

Physical requirements include the ability to lift/carry up to 10-15 pounds occasionally, visual acuity, speech and hearing,
hand and eye coordination and manual dexterity necessary to operate a computer and office equipment. Subject to
standing, sitting, walking, climbing, crawling, bending, stooping, crouching, kneeling, pushing, pulling, reaching, twisting,
balancing, repetitive motion, and squatting to perform the essential functions.

This job description is intended to be generic in nature. It is not necessarily an exhaustive list of all duties
and responsibilities. The essential duties, functions and responsibilities and overtime eligibility may vary
based on the specific tasks assigned to the position.

Page 2 of 2 39 (3

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Accountant Lead

JOB CODE: 20007 FLSA STATUS: Exempt
PAY GRADE: 20 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

JOB SUMMARY:

Under general direction, performs a wide range of professional accounting and advisory services using standard and
specialized methods and procedures in accordance with Generally Accepted Accounting Principles (GAAP) and County
policies. Work involves preparing detailed financial statements, schedules and reports, completing specialized journal
entries, maintaining ledgers, reconciling and verifying accounts, and monitoring revenue and expense accounts.
Functions as a lead worker over lower level accounting and other staff and provides technical advice and assistance to
staff.

DISTINGUISHING CHARACTERISTICS:

This is the third in a series of three professional accounting-related job classifications within the Finance job family.
Incumbents typically perform complex professional financial accounting duties that require the application of standard
accounting theories, principles and techniques, and require the appropriate skill levels including intermediate to advanced
skill levels in computer, analytical and communication skills. Incumbents work independently and exercise professional
judgment in solving intermediate to advanced technical problems within assigned function. This classification is
distinguished from the other accounting job classifications in that incumbents typically lead or supervise staff and make
recommendations for accounting systems and policy changes to management. Duties require a substantial degree of
initiative and independent judgment. This classification typically performs duties at a department or office level. This
classification may require a flexible work schedule in order to meet the needs of the department.

DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES:

• Leads or supervises activities of subordinate accounting and/or other staff. Plans, directs, organizes and schedules the
activities of an accounting function or accounting functional areas. Assigns work, trains or facilitates training, provides
technical expertise and assistance to staff, and provides input into and may evaluate subordinate performance.
Reviews the work of assigned staff.

• Prepares or leads preparation of monthly, quarterly and annual financial statements, schedules and reports including
completion of accounting entries and reconciliation of accounts and statements. Develops non-standard reports and
statements, such as detailed cost and financial analysis, forecasts, trend analysis and projections. Completes a
variety of special accounting studies. Monitors revenue and expenses for assigned accounts.

• Oversees the completion of journal entries, the maintenance of ledgers and the preparation of cost accounting
information. Verifies accounts and reconciles and analyzes entries, transactions, ledgers and reports. Leads the
maintenance of filing systems of accounting data, such as canceled checks, bank statements and other
documentation.

• Interprets and analyzes a wide variety of accounting data and financial reports and recommends alternatives and
action to be taken. Identifies informational needs of management and leads the revision or refinement of account
structures or data accordingly. Participates in developing and implementing a variety of accounting systems and
procedures for department. Drafts standard and specialized financial policies and procedures. Assists in budget
preparation and maintenance.

• Monitors compliance with Generally Accepted Accounting Principles (GAAP) for assigned accounting area and
ensures staff performs duties accordingly. Maintains accounting controls and financial security by following policies
and procedures and internal controls and recommends improvements to reinforce and strengthen controls. Decides
proper handling of financial transactions and approves transactions within designated limits.

• Leads the assistance of department staff and other clients by providing procedural/financial information and/or other
information and guidance with automated or manual systems. Provides solutions to problems presented by
management and staff, recommends changes to accounting system, methods or procedures, and implements
approved changes.

• Performs other job-related duties as assigned.

Page 1 of 2 ‘39 /

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Accountant Lead

JOB CODE: 20007 FLSA STATUS: Exempt
PAY GRADE: 20 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS:

Education and Experience:
Bachelor’s degree in Accounting, Finance or a directly related field AND six (6) years of increasingly responsible relevant
professional level accounting or financial analysis experience. Master’s degree in Accounting, Finance or a directly
related field may substitute for two (2) years of the required experience.

Licenses, Registrations, Certifications, or Special Requirements:
None required.

Preferred:
Lead or supervisory experience.
Valid Texas Driver’s License.

Knowledge, Skills, and Abilities:
Knowledge of:
• Policies, practices, procedures and terminology of assigned function.
• Federal, State, Local and County applicable laws, rules, regulations and guidelines.
• Generally Accepted Accounting Principles (GAAP) and standardized financial practices.
• Manual and automated systems relating to assigned function.
• Modern office practices, procedures and methods.
• Computer equipment to include word processing, spreadsheets, databases and a variety of software packages.
• Business letter writing, grammar and punctuation, and report preparation.

Skill in:
• Leading projects and related staff.
• Problem-solving and decision-making.
• Entering and reconciling financial data and reporting and monitoring fund and ledger balances.
• Corn pleting professional financial reports.
• Both verbal and written communication.

Ability to:
• Analyze, calculate, consolidate, reconcile and interpret accounting data and identify errors.
• Develop and maintain financial spreadsheets, accounts and ledgers.
• Prepare accurate financial statements.
• Establish and maintain effective working relationships with departmental clientele, representatives of outside

agencies and providers, other County employees and officials, and the general public.

WORK ENVIRONMENT AND PHYSICAL DEMANDS:

Physical requirements include the ability to lift/carry up to 10-15 pounds occasionally, visual acuity, speech and hearing,
hand and eye coordination and manual dexterity necessary to operate a computer and office equipment. Subject to
standing, sitting, walking, climbing, crawling, bending, stooping, crouching, kneeling, pushing, pulling, reaching, twisting,
balancing, repetitive motion, and squatting to perform the essential functions.

rmis job description is intended to be generic in nature. It is not necessarily an exhaustive list of all duties
and responsibilities. The essential duties, functions and responsibilities and overtime eligibility may vary
based on the specific tasks assigned to the position.

Page2of2 3q47

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Financial Analyst

JOB CODE: 17008 FLSA STATUS: Exempt
PAY GRADE: 17 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

JOB SUMMARY:

Under moderate supervision, performs professional financial duties using standardized methods and procedures in
accordance with Generally Accepted Accounting Principles (GAAP) and Federal, State and Local laws and policies.
Collects, analyzes, researches, documents, interprets, audits and reports financial data. Prepares financial statements
and standardized reports for activities, such as financial reporting, budgeting, revenue estimation, grants, purchasing,
contracts, payroll, and other accounting transactions.

DISTINGUISHING CHARACTERISTICS:

This is the first in a series of four professional financial analyst-related job classifications within the Finance job family.
Incumbents typically perform a range of routine to moderately complex professional financial analysis duties that require the
application of standard financial theories, principles and techniques, and require the appropriate skill levels including basic
to intermediate skill levels in computer, analytical and communication skills. This classification is distinguished from the
Financial Analyst Senior class in that incumbents usually consult with higher level Financial staff for advice and assistance
and are not typically responsible for the more complex financial analysis functions. Duties require a moderate degree of
initiative and independent judgment. This classification typically performs duties at a department or office level. This
classification may require a flexible work schedule in order to meet the needs of the department.

DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES:

• Prepares financial reports by preparing periodic internal and external financial documents, supporting schedules and
financial reports. Researches, compiles, monitors and summarizes financial information and data and reports on
financial condition.

• Conducts financial analysis by monitoring, reviewing and analyzing current and historical financial and budget
information. Analyzes trends, prepares financial forecasts, summarizes and interprets the results of financial analysis
and provides possible alternatives for consideration. Informs higher level staff and management of the financial
condition of the department.

• Prepares budget reports by researching, compiling, monitoring and summarizing current and historical budget
information and data. Monitors or assists in monitoring the departmental budget and reports on budget variances.
Prepares budget transfers, as required. Participates in preparing annual departmental budget submission.

• Prepares, processes and maintains all financial transactions and documents for departmental activities, such as
financial reporting, budget, grants, purchasing, contracts, payroll, and other financial transactions. Maintains
accounting ledgers, documents and accounts and reviews, verifies and reconciles accounting transactions.

• Assists in or develops and maintains computer spreadsheet models, databases and queries. Designs and
maintains spreadsheets and databases to support departmental financial operations. Conducts project and division
specific financial analysis. Prepares, updates and maintains monthly financial activity reports, spreadsheets and
ledgers. Maintains financial data and records.

• Responds to financial inquiries from departmental management and staff, other County fiscal representatives and
the public. Provides technical assistance to departmental staff in developing and maintaining grants, proposals,
contracts, payroll, and other operations having financial implications.

• Assists in developing strategic and tactical financial plans. May assist in the development and implementation of
departmental financial policies, procedures and strategies.

• Performs other job-related duties as assigned.

Page 1 of 2 33

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Financial Analyst

JOB CODE: 17008 FLSA STATUS: Exempt
PAY GRADE: 17 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS:

Education and Experience:
Bachelor’s degree in Finance, Accounting or a directly related field AND three (3) years of increasingly responsible
professional level financial analysis or accounting experience. Master’s degree in Accounting, Finance or a directly
related field may substitute for two (2) years of the required experience.

Licenses, Registrations, Certifications, or Special Requirements:
None required.

Preferred:
Valid Texas Driver’s License.

Knowledge, Skills, and Abilities:
Knowledge of:
• Policies, practices, procedures and terminology of assigned function.
• Federal, State, Local and County applicable laws, rules, regulations and guidelines.
• Generally Accepted Accounting Principles (GAAP) and standardized financial, accounting and auditing practices.
• Budget planning, development, preparation, and monitoring.
• Manual and automated systems relating to assigned function.
• Modern office practices, procedures and methods.
• Computer equipment to include word processing, spreadsheets, databases and a variety of software packages.
• Business letter writing, grammar and punctuation, and report preparation.

Skill in:
• Problem-solving and decision-making.
• Developing financial spreadsheets and financial trend analysis.
• Completing professional financial reports.
• Planning and evaluating financial processes.
• Developing financial policies and procedures.
• Both verbal and written communication, including presentations.

Ability to:
• Work independently.
• Manage time well, perform multiple tasks and organize diverse activities.
• Analyze, calculate, forecast and interpret financial data and identify and correct errors.
• Establish and maintain effective working relationships with departmental clientele, representatives of outside

agencies and providers, other County employees and officials, and the general public.

WORK ENVIRONMENT AND PHYSICAL. DEMANDS:

Physical requirements include the ability to liWcarry up to 10-15 pounds occasionally, visual acuity, speech and hearing,
hand and eye coordination and manual dexterity necessary to operate a computer and office equipment. Subject to
standing, sitting, walking, climbing, crawling, bending, stooping, crouching, kneeling, pushing, pulling, reaching, twisting,
balancing, repetitive motion, and squatting to perform the essential functions.

This job description is intended to be generic in nature. It is not necessarily an exhaustive list of all duties
and responsibilities. The essential duties, functions and responsibilities and overtime eligibility may vary
based on the specific tasks assigned to the position.

Page 2of2

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Financial Analyst Senior

JOB CODE: 19010 FLSA STATUS: Exempt
PAY GRADE: 19 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

JOB SUMMARY:

Under limited supervision, performs professional financial duties using standardized methods and procedures in
accordance with Generally Accepted Accounting Principles (GAAP) and Federal, State and Local laws and policies.
Collects, analyzes, researches, documents, interprets, audits and reports financial data. Prepares financial statements
and standardized and special reports for activities, such as financial reporting, budgeting, revenue estimation, grants,
purchasing, contracts, payroll, and other accounting transactions.

DISTINGUISHING CHARACTERISTICS:

This is the second in a series of four professional financial analyst-related job classifications within the Finance job family.
Incumbents typically perform a range of complex professional financial analysis duties that require the application of
standard financial theories, principles and techniques, and require the appropriate skill levels including intermediate skill
levels in computer, analytical and communication skills. This classification is distinguished from the Financial Analyst Lead
class in that incumbents typically are not responsible for the most complex financial analysis functions and do not have
formal authority for leading or supervising lower level staff. Duties require a substantial degree of initiative and independent
judgment. This classification typically performs duties at a department or office level. This classification may require a
flexible work schedule in order to meet the needs of the department.

DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES:

• Prepares specialized financial reports by preparing periodic internal and external financial documents, supporting
schedules and financial reports. Researches, compiles, monitors and summarizes financial information and data and
reports on financial condition.

• Conducts financial analysis by monitoring, reviewing and analyzing current and historical financial and budget
information. Analyzes trends, prepares financial forecasts, summarizes and interprets the results of financial analysis
and provides possible alternatives for consideration. Informs management of the financial condition of the
department.

• Prepares budget reports by researching, compiling, monitoring and summarizing current and historical budget
information and data. Monitors the departmental budget and reports on budget variances. Prepares budget transfers,
as required. Participates in preparing annual departmental budget submission.

• Prepares, processes and maintains all financial transactions and documents for departmental activities, such as
financial reporting, budget, grants, purchasing, contracts, payroll, and other financial transactions. Maintains
accounting ledgers, documents and accounts and reviews, verifies and reconciles accounting transactions.

• Develops and maintains computer spreadsheet models, databases and queries. Designs and maintains
spreadsheets and databases to support standard and specialized departmental financial operations. Conducts
project and division specific financial analysis. Prepares, updates and maintains monthly financial activity reports,
spreadsheets and ledgers. Maintains financial data and records.

• Responds to financial inquiries from departmental management and staff, other County fiscal representatives and
the public. Provides technical assistance to departmental staff in developing and maintaining grants, proposals,
contracts, payroll, and other operations having financial implications.

• Assists in and develops strategic and tactical financial plans. Develops, recommends and implements departmental
financial policies, procedures and strategies.

• Performs other job-related duties as assigned.

Page 1 of 2 395

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Financial Analyst Senior

JOB CODE: 19010 FLSA STATUS: Exempt
PAY GRADE: 19 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS:

Education and Experience:
Bachelor’s degree in Finance, Accounting or a directly related field AND five (5) years of increasingly responsible
professional level financial analysis or accounting experience. Master’s degree in Accounting, Finance or a directly
related field may substitute for two (2) years of the required experience.

Licenses, Registrations, Certifications, or Special Requirements:
None required.

Preferred:
Valid Texas Driver’s License.

Knowledge, Skills, and Abilities:
Knowledge of:
• Policies, practices, procedures and terminology of assigned function.
• Federal, State, Local and County applicable laws, rules, regulations and guidelines.
• Generally Accepted Accounting Principles (GAAP) and standardized financial, accounting and auditing practices.
• Budget planning, development, preparation, and monitoring.
• Manual and automated systems relating to assigned function.
• Modern office practices, procedures and methods.
• Computer equipment to include word processing, spreadsheets, databases and a variety of software packages.
• Business letter writing, grammar and punctuation, and report preparation.

Skill in:
• Problem-solving and decision-making.
• Developing financial spreadsheets and financial trend analysis.
• Corn pleting professional financial reports.
• Planning and evaluating financial processes.
• Developing financial policies and procedures.
• Both verbal and written communication, including presentations.

Ability to:
• Work independently.
• Manage time well, perform multiple tasks and organize diverse activities.
• Analyze, calculate, forecast and interpret financial data and identify and correct errors.
• Establish and maintain effective working relationships with departmental clientele, representatives of outside

agencies and providers, other County employees and officials, and the general public.

WORK ENVIRONMENT AND PHYSICAL DEMANDS:

Physical requirements include the ability to lift/carry up to 10-15 pounds occasionally, visual acuity, speech and hearing,
hand and eye coordination and manual dexterity necessary to operate a computer and office equipment. Subject to
standing, sitting, walking, climbing, crawling, bending, stooping, crouching, kneeling, pushing, pulling, reaching, twisting,
balancing, repetitive motion, and squatting to perform the essential functions.

This job description is intended to be generic in nature. It is not necessarily an exhaustive list of all duties
and responsibilities. The essential duties, functions and responsibilities and overtime eligibility may vary
based on the specific tasks assigned to the position.

Page2of2 :39’6

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Financial Analyst Lead

JOB CODE: 22013 FLSA STATUS: Exempt
PAY GRADE: 22 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

JOB SUMMARY:

Under general direction, performs a wide range of professional financial and budgetary analysis using standardized
methods and procedures in accordance with Generally Accepted Accounting Principles (GAAP) and Federal, State and
Local laws and policies. Oversees collection of, analyzes, researches, documents, interprets, audits and reports
financial data. Prepares financial statements and standardized and special reports for activities, such as financial
reporting, budgeting, revenue estimation, grants, purchasing, contracts, payroll, and other accounting transactions.
Functions as a lead worker over lower level financial and other staff and provides technical advice and assistance to
staff.

DISTINGUISHING CHARACTERISTICS:

This is the third in a series of four professional financial analyst-related job classifications within the Finance job family.
Incumbents typically perform a wide range of highly complex professional financial analysis duties that require the
application of standard financial theories, principles and techniques, and require the appropriate skill levels including
intermediate to advanced skill levels in computer, analytical and communication skills. This classification is distinguished
from the other financial analyst job classifications in that incumbents are typically responsible for the most complex
financial analysis functions and lead or supervise lower level financial or other staff. Duties require an extensive degree of
initiative and independent judgment. This classification typically performs duties at a department or office level. This
classification may require a flexible work schedule in order to meet the needs of the department.

DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES:

• Leads or supervises activities of subordinate financial and/or other staff. Plans, directs, organizes and schedules the
activities of a financial function or functional areas. Assigns work, trains or facilitates training, provides technical
expertise and assistance to staff, and provides input into and may evaluate subordinate performance. Reviews the
work of assigned staff.

• Prepares specialized financial reports by preparing periodic internal and external financial documents, supporting
schedules and financial reports. Researches, compiles, monitors and summarizes financial information and data and
reports on financial condition for higher level management.

• Conducts and/or leads the conduct of financial analysis by monitoring, reviewing and analyzing current and historical
financial and budget information. Analyzes trends, prepares financial forecasts, summarizes and interprets the results
of financial analysis, provides possible alternatives for consideration and makes recommendations for optimal
strategies and actions.

• Prepares budget reports by researching, compiling, monitoring and summarizing current and historical budget
information and data. Monitors the budget and reports on budget variances. Prepares budget transfers, as required.
Participates in preparing annual budget submission.

• Oversees the preparation, processing and maintenance of all financial transactions and documents activities, such
as financial reporting, budget, revenue estimation, grants, purchasing, contracts, payroll, and other financial
transactions. Maintains accounting ledgers, documents and accounts, and reviews, verifies and reconciles
accounting transactions.

• Develops and maintains computer spreadsheet models, databases and queries. Designs and maintains
spreadsheets and databases to support standard and specialized financial operations. Conducts project and
division specific financial analysis. Prepares, updates and maintains monthly financial activity reports,
spreadsheets and ledgers. Maintains financial data and records.

• Responds to financial inquiries from management and staff, other County fiscal representatives and the public.
Provides technical assistance to staff in developing and maintaining grants, proposals, contracts, payroll, and other
operations having financial implications.

• Develops strategic and tactical financial plans. Develops, recommends and implements financial policies,
procedures and strategies.

• Performs other job-related duties as assigned.

Pagelof2

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Financial Analyst Lead

JOB CODE: 22013 FLSA STATUS: Exempt
PAY GRADE: 22 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS:

Education and Experience:
Bachelor’s degree in Finance, Accounting or a directly related field AND seven (7) years of increasingly responsible
professional level financial analysis or accounting experience. Master’s degree in Finance, Accounting or a directly
related field may substitute for two (2) years of the required experience.

Licenses, Registrations, Certifications, or Special Requirements:
None required.

Preferred:
Lead or supervisory experience.
Valid Texas Driver’s License.

Knowledge, Skills, and Abilities:
Knowledge of:
• Management and supervisory principles, practices and techniques.
• Policies, practices, procedures and terminology of assigned function.
• Federal, State, Local and County applicable laws, rules, regulations and guidelines.
• Generally Accepted Accounting Principles (GAAP) and standardized financial, accounting and auditing practices.
• Budget planning, development, preparation and monitoring.
• Manual and automated systems relating to assigned function.
• Modern office practices, procedures and methods.
• Computer equipment to include word processing, spreadsheets, databases and a variety of software packages.
• Business letter writing, grammar and punctuation, and report preparation.

Skill in:
• Leading staff, allocating resources and evaluating programs.
• Problem-solving and decision-making.
• Developing financial spreadsheets and financial trend analysis.
• Completing and reviewing professional financial reports.
• Planning and evaluating financial processes.
• Developing financial policies and procedures.
• Both verbal and written communication, including presentations.

Ability to:
• Lead, motivate, train, develop and evaluate staff.
• Work independently.
• Manage time well, perform multiple tasks and organize diverse activities.
• Set priorities and schedule tasks.
• Analyze, calculate, forecast and interpret financial data and identify and correct errors.
• Establish and maintain effective working relationships with departmental clientele, representatives of outside

agencies and providers, other County employees and officials, and the general public.

WORK ENVIRONMENT AND PHYSICAL DEMANDS:

Physical requirements include the ability to lift/carry up to 10-15 pounds occasionally, visual acuity, speech and hearing,
hand and eye coordination and manual dexterity necessary to operate a computer and office equipment. Subject to
standing, sitting, walking, climbing, crawling, bending, stooping, crouching, kneeling, pushing, pulling, reaching, twisting,
balancing, repetitive motion, and squatting to perform the essential functions.

I This job description is intended to be generic in nature. It is not necessarily an exhaustive list of all duties
and responsibilities. The essential duties, functions and responsibilities and overtime eligibility may vary
based on the specific tasks assigned to the position.

Page 2of2

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Financial Manager

JOB CODE: 24014 FLSA STATUS: Exempt
PAY GRADE: 24 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

JOB SUMMARY:

Under general direction, plans, directs and manages the financial operations of a department, including managing the
staff and functions in accordance with Generally Accepted Accounting Principles (GAAP) and Federal, State and Local
laws and policies. Plans, directs, implements and evaluates the preparation and distribution of periodic financial
statements, budgets, forecasts and trends analysis, revenue and expenditure projections, and other financial activities.
Oversees grant development and reporting, contracts and purchasing, and accounting functions.

DISTINGUISHING CHARACTERISTICS:

This is the fourth in a series of four professional financial analyst-related job classifications within the Finance job family.
Incumbent typically performs a wide range of highly complex duties that requires the application of standard financial
theories, principles and techniques, and requires the appropriate skill levels including advanced skill levels in computer,
analytical and communication skills. This classification performs highly complex work planning, directing and managing the
financial staff and operations of a department. Incumbents in this class have a broad scope of operational and staff
responsibility and manage all aspects of the departments financial reporting, budgeting, financial trend analysis and all
other financial activities. This classification is distinguished from other financial job classifications in that incumbents
typically have authority for hiring, training, developing and evaluating other financial and/or accounting staff, in addition to
managing the everyday operational aspects of a financial division. Duties require the highest degree of initiative and
independent judgment. This classification typically performs duties at a department or office level. This classification
may require a flexible work schedule in order to meet the needs of the department.

DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES:

• Plans, directs, implements and evaluates all operational aspects of finance, accounting, financial reporting and
budgeting for a department. Oversees and directs preparation of, reviews, and evaluates financial reports and
information. May also direct activities related to departmental payroll, purchasing or other functions.

• Manages all aspects of staffing related to the department’s financial positions. Maintains responsibility for hiring,
training, developing, performance evaluation and disciplinary actions of the financial staff. Monitors and confirms
activities are consistent with financial and other goals and objectives. Seeks and creates opportunities for improved
performance, learning and development of staff and identifies and addresses problems or conflicts.

• Conducts strategic financial planning. Forecasts future staffing, technology, and other needs and makes
recommendations. Researches new financial processes, develops financial policies and procedures to meet
changing needs.

• Conducts specialized financial analysis and reports for the department. Analyzes historical revenue and expenditure
trends and forecasts future trends. Prepares and presents recommendations to other high level management,
including the department head, the Commissioners Court and external organizations.

• Oversees and develops annual departmental budget submission. Monitors expenditures and revenues and directs
preparation of budget transfers, as required.

• Serves as primary financial resource for departmental management and staff. Represents the department before
Commissioners Court, other departments, staff, external organizations and the public and responds to financial
inquiries. Provides technical information, presents solutions to financial problems and shares information to remain
abreast of laws, regulations, trends and developments.

• Performs other job-related duties as assigned.

Page 1 of 3

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Financial Manager

JOB CODE: 24014 FLSA STATUS: Exempt
PAY GRADE: 24 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS:

Education and Experience:
Bachelor’s degree in Finance, Accounting or a directly related field AND eight (8) years of increasingly responsible
professional level financial analysis or accounting experience, including two (2) years of supervisory or management
experience. Master’s degree in Finance, Accounting or a directly related field may substitute for two (2) years of the
required experience.

Licenses, Registrations, Certifications, or Special Requirements:
None required.

Preferred:
Certified Public Accountant (CPA), Chartered Financial Analyst (CFA) or other relevant certification.
Valid Texas Driver’s License.

Knowledge, Skills, and Abilities:
Knowledge of:
• Management and supervisory principles, practices and techniques.
• Policies, practices, procedures and terminology of assigned function.
• Federal, State, Local and County applicable laws, rules, regulations and guidelines.
• Generally Accepted Accounting Principles (GAAP) and standardized financial, accounting and auditing practices.
• Budget planning, development, preparation and monitoring.
• Manual and automated systems relating to assigned function.
• Modern office practices, procedures and methods.
• Computer equipment to include word processing, spreadsheets, databases and a variety of software packages.
• Business letter writing, grammar and punctuation, and report preparation.

Skill in:
• Managing staff, allocating resources and evaluating programs.
• Problem-solving and decision-making.
• Developing financial spreadsheets and financial trend analysis.
• Reviewing and completing professional financial reports.
• Long range planning and evaluating financial processes.
• Developing financial policies and procedures.
• Both verbal and written communication, including presentations.

Ability to:
• Direct, motivate, train, develop and evaluate staff.
• Work independently.
• Manage time well, perform multiple tasks and organize diverse activities.
• Set priorities and manage the program operations.
• Analyze, calculate, forecast and interpret financial data and identify and resolve errors.
• Establish and maintain effective working relationships with County employees and officials, representatives of

outside agencies, and the general public.

Page 2 of 3

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Financial Manager

JOB CODE: 24014 FLSA STATUS: Exempt
PAY GRADE: 24 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

WORK ENVIRONMENT AND PHYSICAL DEMANDS:

Physical requirements include the ability to lift/carry up to 10-15 pounds occasionally, visual acuity, speech and hearing,
hand and eye coordination and manual dexterity necessary to operate a computer and office equipment. Subject to
standing, sitting, walking, climbing, crawling, bending, stooping, crouching, kneeling, pushing, pulling, reaching, twisting,
balancing, repetitive motion, and squatting to perform the essential functions.

This job description is intended to be generic in nature. It is not necessarily an exhaustive list of all duties
and responsibilities. The essential duties, functions and responsibilities and overtime eligibility may vary
based on the specific tasks assigned to the position.

Page 3 of 3 /

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Corporations Administrator

JOB CODE: 22015 FLSA STATUS: Exempt
PAY GRADE: 22 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

JOB SUMMARY:

Under general direction, provides staff support for Travis County Corporations. Provides leadership in implementing
affordable housing programs and related activities, such as issuance of private activity bonds for multifamily developers
in Travis County, issuance of mortgage revenue bonds to assist low and moderate income families in the purchase of
their first home, managing HOME programs to provide down payment and closing cost assistance to low and moderate
home income buyers, completes compliance audits of apartment complexes to verify adherence to affordable housing
rental restrictions, and prepares agenda items to enable the Corporations Board to make decisions in a timely manner.
Serves as fully trained back-up in the management of the County’s investment portfolio.

DISTINGUISHING CHARACTERISTICS:

This is a job classification within the Finance job family. Incumbents typically perform a wide range of highly complex
professional financial analysis duties that require the application of standard financial theories, principles and techniques,
and require the appropriate skill levels including intermediate to advanced skill levels in computer, analytical and
communication skills. Incumbents typically perform a range of highly complex duties providing leadership and facilitating
the implementation of affordable housing programs and related activities. This classification initiates, coordinates and/or
completes housing and investment transactions that may result in the most severe consequences without supervision.
This classification typically performs duties for various departments with countywide responsibility. This classification
may require a flexible work schedule in order to meet the needs of the department.

DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES:

• Assists in the issuance and management of private activity bonds programs. Interacts with the public, mortgage
lenders, attorneys, developers, County officials, and others involved in the affordable housing industry regarding the
Travis County Housing Finance Corporation’s programs. Serves as staff support with the Corporations attorney and
financial advisor to recommend approval or disapproval of affordable housing and healthcare related private activity
bonds. Reviews the feasibility and appropriateness of affordable housing programs initiated by the Housing
Authority of Travis County. Prepares reports for the Commissioners Court and Housing Authority staff on their
programs. Reviews the progress of originations of the lease-to-own housing program.

• Prepares and analyzes daily cash position to determine the availability of funds for investment opportunities and
invests in TexPool or Texas Daily.

• Reports findings and recommendations to the Board of Directors of the Travis County Corporations on such issues
as compliance and grant audits, proposed affordable housing initiatives, annual budgets, approval of invoices,
collections of fees and new policies. Prepares work papers for outside auditors.

• Serves as backup in the management of Travis County’s investment portfolio to maintain security of funds, sufficient
liquidity and maximize return, within Policy and State Law. Assists in the review of the Travis County Investment
Policy and Procedures, the evaluation of broker/dealers, and the preparation of the Quarterly Reports.

• Purchases securities in accordance with the Travis County Investment Policy and Procedures. Prepares weekly
securities purchased and portfolio statistics reports for Commissioners Court approval. Prepares Pooled Bond cash
flow work papers. Prepares monthly investment report and assists with other cash management duties, as required.

• Prepares minutes and agenda requests for the County Corporations. Maintains corporate bank, accounting, and
financial records. Maintains and updates the corporate conduit debt outstanding report.

• Prepares monthly account analysis reports comparing actual bank fees and earnings credits with the depository
bank contract. Reports findings to bank officers and County officials. Helps prepare the depository bank request for
proposal (REP) and assists in managing the bank depository relationship.

• Manages HOME grants to provide down payment assistance to low and moderate income home buyers. Ensures
the grant is administered in compliance with rules and regulations of the Texas Department of Housing and Urban
Affairs. Communicates with real estate agents, mortgage lenders, home buyers, and other governmental entities
about grant opportunities.

• Performs other job-related duties as assigned.

Page 1 of 2

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Corporations Administrator

JOB CODE: 22015 FLSA STATUS: Exempt
PAY GRADE: 22 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS:

Education and Experience:
Bachelor’s degree in Finance, Economics, Accounting, Business or a directly related field AND seven (7) years of high
level financial management, including investment experience. Master’s degree in Finance, Economics, Accounting,
Business or a directly related field may substitute for two (2) years of the required experience.

Licenses, Registrations, Certifications, or Special Requirements:
Must qualify for surety bond.

Preferred:
Proficiency with Bloomberg Financial Reporting Service.
Experience in County government.
Certified Public Accountant (CPA).
Valid Texas Driver’s License.

Knowledge. Skills, and Abilities:
Knowledge of:
• Federal, State, Local and County applicable laws, rules, regulations and guidelines.
• Principles and practices of accounting, finance and fixed income securities markets.
• Securities allowed under the Texas Public Funds Investment Act (PFIA).
• Security options and their financial impact.
• Multi-family and single family bond financing, housing finance corporations under Federal and State laws.
• Banking services.
• Modern office practices, procedures and methods.
• Computer equipment to include word processing, spreadsheets, databases and a variety of software packages.
• Business letter writing, grammar and punctuation, and report preparation.

Skill in:
• Problem-solving and decision-making.
• Conducting financial analysis and interpretation of financial data.
• Both verbal and written communication, including presentations.

Ability to:
• Analyze, consolidate and interpret financial records in a clear concise form, including financial cash flow forecasting

models.
• Work within a diverse organization.
• Work independently and efficiently.
• Manage time well, perform multiple tasks and organize diverse activities.
• Establish and maintain effective working relationships with County employees and officials, other government entity

staff, representatives of outside agencies, and the general public.

WORK ENVIRONMENT AND PHYSICAL DEMANDS:

Physical requirements include the ability to lift/carry up to 10-15 pounds occasionally, visual acuity, speech and hearing,
hand and eye coordination and manual dexterity necessary to operate a computer and office equipment. Subject to
standing, sitting, walking, climbing, crawling, bending, stooping, crouching, kneeling, pushing, pulling, reaching, twisting,
balancing, repetitive motion, and squatting to perform the essential functions.

This job description is intended to be generic in nature. It is not necessarily an exhaustive list of all duties
and responsibilities. The essential duties, functions and responsibilities and overtime eligibility may vary
based on the specific tasks assigned to the position.

Page2of2

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Investment Manager

JOB CODE: 23016 FLSA STATUS: Exempt
PAY GRADE: 23 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

JOB SUMMARY:

Under general direction, manages Travis County’s investment portfolio and the portfolio of the Travis County Health
District to maintain security of funds, sufficient liquidity and maximize investment income. Invests in securities allowed
by the Public Funds Investment Act (PFIA) and the Travis County Investment Policy. Monitors market trends, analyzes
the yield curve, compares spreads between yields of different securities, and considers the timing of the County’s cash
needs to maximize interest income. Serves as part of a team that manages the day-to-day cash management,
investment decision-making, and operations support to the County’s public corporations.

DISTINGUISHING CHARACTERISTICS:

This is a job classification within the Finance job family. Incumbents typically perform a wide range of highly complex
professional financial analysis duties that require the application of standard financial theories, principles and techniques,
and require the appropriate skill levels including intermediate to advanced skill levels in computer, analytical and
communication skills. Incumbents typically perform a range of highly complex duties initiating and completing investment
transactions that may result in the most severe consequences without supervision. This classification typically performs
duties for various departments with countywide responsibility. This classification may require a flexible work schedule in
order to meet the needs of the department.

DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES:

• Makes independent investment decisions for Travis County funds, purchasing investment portfolios, purchasing
Treasury Notes, Agency Notes, Agency Discount Notes and Commercial Paper in two different portfolios.
Supervises the decisions for a third portfolio.

• Prepares and monitors investment strategies based on market information, such as economic data, rate trends and
Federal Reserve decisions, and develops investment procedures to minimize risk and enhance yield.

• Prepares and updates Operating Cash Flow Forecast, prepares and uses daily historical records of the Operating
Account and information from other County departments to establish revenue and expense estimates for future
years, in order to anticipate expenditure needs and guide investment decisions.

• Recommends investment policy decisions to enhance safety and yield and recommends appropriate changes, such
as compliance with State and other laws. Implements approved changes. Reviews the performance of approved
broker/dealers and evaluates applications of the new broker/dealers at least annually. Recommends new list to
Commissioners Court for approval.

• Prepares the Quarterly Investment Report by the Texas Public Funds Investment Act (PFIA) and Travis County
Policy, as required. Certifies compliance of the Travis County portfolio with the Act and with County Policy.

• Manages the investment portfolio of the Travis County Health District (TCHD), including all related investment,
monitoring, and policy and procedure related functions.

• Prepares the depository bank Request for Application (RFA) and Bank Depository Contract in conjunction with
County legal staff. Manages the County Bank Depository relationship, including compliance with the bank services
contract, relationship with Bank, and new services and problems for various County departments. Manages the
Depository Bank budget for the entire County.

• Functions as a technical expert on task forces and committees. Prepares reports and analyzes issues, as required.

• Provides support to the Travis County Corporations, including overseeing incoming cash, assisting in Corporation
Board presentations, and reviewing agenda items.

• Performs other job-related duties as assigned.

Page 1 of 2

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Investment Manager

JOB CODE: 23016 FLSA STATUS: Exempt
PAY GRADE: 23 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS:

Education and Experience:
Bachelor’s degree in Finance, Economics, Accounting, Business or a directly related field AND seven (7) years of high
level financial management experience, including the investment of a multi-million dollar portfolio. Experience must
include the independent authority to make decisions and at least two (2) years of training in selecting and evaluating
fixed income securities. Master’s degree in Finance, Economics, Accounting, Business or a directly related field may
substitute for two (2) years of the required experience.

Licenses, Registrations, Certifications, or Special Requirements:
Must qualify for surety bond.
Proficiency with Bloom berg Financial Reporting Service.

Preferred:
Experience in County government.
Certified Public Accountant (CPA).
Valid Texas Driver’s License.

Knowledge, Skills, and Abilities:
Knowledge of:
• Federal, State, Local and County applicable laws, rules, regulations and guidelines.
• Principles and practices of accounting, finance and fixed income securities markets.
• Securities allowed under the Texas Public Funds Investment Act (PFIA).
• Security options and their financial impact.
• Multi-family and single family bond financing, housing finance corporations under Federal and State laws.
• Banking services.
• Computer systems.
• Investment reporting systems and standardized financial/accounting software.
• Modern office practices, procedures and methods.
• Business letter writing, grammar and punctuation, and report preparation.

Skill in:
• Problem-solving and decision-making.
• Conducting financial analysis and interpretation of financial data.
• Both verbal and written communication, including public presentations.

Ability to:
• Analyze, consolidate and interpret financial records in a clear concise form, including financial cash flow forecasting

models.
• Work within a diverse organization.
• Work independently and efficiently.
• Manage time well, perform multiple tasks and organize diverse activities.
• Establish and maintain effective working relationships with County employees and officials, other government entity

staff, representatives of outside agencies, and the general public.

WORK ENVIRONMENT AND PHYSICAL DEMANDS:

Physical requirements include the ability to lift/carry up to 10-15 pounds occasionally, visual acuity, speech and hearing,
hand and eye coordination and manual dexterity necessary to operate a computer and office equipment. Subject to
standing, sitting, walking, climbing, crawling, bending, stooping, crouching, kneeling, pushing, pulling, reaching, twisting,
balancing, repetitive motion, and squatting to perform the essential functions.

This job description is intended to be generic in nature. It is not necessarily an exhaustive list of all duties
and responsibilities. The essential duties, functions and responsibilities and overtime eligibility may vary
based on the specific tasks assigned to the position.

Page2of2

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Probate Auditor

JOB CODE: 19017 FLSA STATUS: Exempt
PAY GRADE: 19 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

JOB SUMMARY:

Under general direction, audits all inventories and accounts filed by estates, personal representatives and guardians to
ensure compliance with the Texas Probate Code. Monitors the caseload for probate and guardianships to ensure
Probate Court compliance. Maintains related statistical data, records and reports.

DISTINGUISHING CHARACTERISTICS:

This is a job classification within the Finance job family. Incumbents typically perform a range of complex professional
financial duties that require the application of standard financial theories, principles and techniques, and require the
appropriate skill levels including intermediate skill levels in computer, analytical and communication skills. Incumbents
perform complex work auditing probate records and accounts, conducting research and preparing related statistics and
reports. Duties require a substantial degree of initiative and independent judgment. This classification typically performs
duties at a department or office level. This classification may require a flexible work schedule in order to meet the needs
of the department.

DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES:

• Audits Annual and Final Accounts to ensure compliance with Court instruction and the Texas Probate Code.
Reviews bank statements, receipts, cancelled checks, and any additional information required by law for a complete
audit of each Annual and Final Account. Reviews accounts for missing documents and writes letters or makes
phone calls to request missing documents before auditing. Verifies and balances all accounts, noting questions
raised and cash balance discrepancies on audit sheet. Ensures bond limit is sufficient to cover the estate.

• Inputs audit and account results into computer for future reference. Changes status of automated records to
indicate next time period court review is required. Develops accounting systems and procedures to support Court’s
auditing procedures.

• Contacts attorneys to correct remaining problems in Annual and Final Accounts. Discusses problem accountings
with Probate Judge and/or Associate Judge. Discusses with judges issues such as appointment of Attorneys Ad
litem and case settings for Compliance or Show Cause hearing. Sends out monthly reminders for case settings and
works with attorneys to resolve problems prior to court date. Attends required court hearings. Updates database to
reflect the next action.

• Develops and maintains databases to generate reports, conducts analysis, and responds to requests for
information. Designs, customizes and implements methods of retrieving data for use by Court staff. Assists in
analyzing departmental methods of data usage to identify opportunities for improving databases. Trains and
provides technical assistance to staff related to databases.

• Reviews bonds and miscellaneous applications such as motions to release funds from the Court Registry and
applications for safekeeping, commissions, closing an estate, and attorney fees pertaining to the accounting.
Discusses with judges any proposed actions on these applications. Updates databases to reflect actions required by
the Court.

• Collects and prepares monthly case-activity statistics used to generate reports for Court staff. Updates database
with statistical information.

• Serves as departmental liaison and represents the department’s interests and works with County representatives
and technology providers to implement automated systems.

• Supports the technical needs of the department. Coordinates with ITS staff to facilitate computer problems and
issues. Provides backup for computer problems.

• Performs other job-related duties as assigned.

Page 1 of 2

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Probate Auditor

JOB CODE: 19017 FLSA STATUS: Exempt
PAY GRADE: 19 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS:

Education and Experience:
Bachelor’s degree in Accounting, Finance or a directly related field AND four (4) years of increasingly responsible
relevant professional level accounting, financial and/or legal assistant experience, including data analysis and case
management related duties. Master’s degree in Accounting, Finance or a directly related field may substitute for two (2)
years of the required experience.

Licenses, Registrations, Certifications, or Special Requirements:
None required.

Preferred:
Completion of Texas College of Probate Judges (TCPJ) course work.
Valid Texas Driver’s License.

Knowledge, Skills, and Abilities:
Knowledge of:
• Policies, practices, procedures and terminology of assigned function.
• Federal, State, Local and County applicable laws, rules, regulations and guidelines.
• Generally Accepted Accounting Principles (GAAP) and standardized financial practices.
• Manual and automated systems relating to assigned function.
• Modern office practices, procedures and methods.
• Various types of investment vehicles and commonly used legal terminology.
• Business English, letter writing, grammar and punctuation, and report preparation.

Skill in:
• Problem-solving and decision-making.
• Completing professional financial reports.
• Both verbal and written communication.

Ability to:
• Evaluate statutorily required financial records.
• Collect necessary data and prepare analytical reports.
• Read, interpret and understand legal instruments.
• Establish and maintain effective working relationships with County employees and officials, representatives of

outside agencies, and the general public.

WORK ENVIRONMENT AND PHYSICAL DEMANDS:

Physical requirements include the ability to lift/carry up to 10-15 pounds occasionally, visual acuity, speech and hearing,
hand and eye coordination and manual dexterity necessary to operate a computer and office equipment. Subject to
standing, sitting, walking, climbing, crawling, bending, stooping, crouching, kneeling, pushing, pulling, reaching, twisting,
balancing, repetitive motion, and squatting to perform the essential functions.

flhis job description is intended to be generic in nature. It is not necessarily an exhaustive list of all duties
and responsibilities. The essential duties, functions and responsibilities and overtime eligibility may vary
based on the specific tasks assigned to the position.

Page2of2

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Tax Analyst

JOB CODE: 12019 FLSA STATUS: Non-Exempt
PAY GRADE: 12 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

JOB SUMMARY:

Under moderate supervision, performs tax research toward identifying, analyzing and resolving problem tax accounts
and returning them to normal processing stream. Work involves applying various research techniques and utilizing an
array of tax research tools.

DISTINGUISHING CHARACTERISTICS:

This is the first in a series of four tax-related job classifications specific to the County tax collection functions within the
Finance job family. Incumbents typically perform routine financial duties that require the application of standard financial
theories, principles and techniques, and require the appropriate skill levels including basic skill levels in computer, analytical
and communication skills. Incumbents perform routine tax research for purposes of resolving problem tax accounts and
returning them to the regular processing flow. Duties require some degree of initiative and independent judgment. This
classification typically performs duties at a department or office level. This classification may require a flexible work
schedule in order to meet the needs of the department.

DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES:

• Interacts with clients, agents, or other interested parties to respond to questions or problems. Researches tax
questions, provides appropriate response and communicates problem resolution to client in person, on the phone or
in writing.

• Reviews problem accounts to determine source of problem. Researches tax files and other documentation.
Consults relevant laws and regulations, as required. Analyzes research data and provides results and
recommendations to management and clients as appropriate.

• Communicates with the appraisal district, attorneys, business owners, staff and others, to obtain information and
resolve account problems, as required. Coordinates activities among concerned parties and clients, including
mortgage companies to maintain record database on all tax escrowed loans.

• Prepares and revises tax and legal forms based on research, regulations and communications with clients. Updates
tax records and generates proper documentation. Maintains and updates files, including suspense files. Maintains
and retains records in accordance with laws, regulations and policies.

• Assists with general tax research projects, large tax cases, special projects, and payment posting requiring follow-up
correspondence. Summarizes and provides results of research to management and staff.

• Gathers, prepares and analyzes support documentation for tax refunds. Organizes documentation and files for
review, action and file maintenance.

• Performs other job-related duties as assigned.

MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS:

Education and Experience:
Associate’s degree in Accounting, Finance or a directly related field AND one (1) year of experience in tax research or
other directly related experience;

OR,

Any combination of education and experience that has been achieved and is equivalent to the stated education and
experience and required knowledge, skills, and abilities sufficient to successfully perform the duties and responsibilities
of this job.

Licenses, Registrations, Certifications, or Special Requirements:
None required.

Pagelof2 / LI.

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Tax Analyst

JOB CODE: 12019 FLSA STATUS: Non-Exempt
PAY GRADE: 12 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS: (Cont.)

Preferred:
Valid Texas Driver’s License.

Knowledge, Skills, and Abilities:
Knowledge of:
• Policies, practices, procedures and terminology of assigned function.
• Federal, State, Local and County applicable laws, rules, regulations and guidelines.
• Tax codes and laws, including Texas Property Tax Code, and standard tax accounting practices.
• Manual and automated systems relating to assigned function.
• Modern office practices, procedures and methods.
• Computer equipment to include word processing, spreadsheets, databases and a variety of software packages.
• Business letter writing, grammar and punctuation, and report preparation.

Skill in:
• Problem-solving and decision-making.
• Both verbal and written communication.

Ability to:
• Work independently.
• Conduct systematic research to resolve problems.
• Follow standardized policies and procedures.
• Establish and maintain effective working relationships with departmental clientele, representatives of outside

agencies and providers, other County employees and officials, and the general public.

WORK ENVIRONMENT AND PHYSICAL DEMANDS:

Physical requirements include the ability to lift/carry up to 10-15 pounds occasionally, visual acuity, speech and hearing,
hand and eye coordination and manual dexterity necessary to operate a computer and office equipment. Subject to
standing, sitting, walking, climbing, crawling, bending, stooping, crouching, kneeling, pushing, pulling, reaching, twisting,
balancing, repetitive motion, and squatting to perform the essential functions.

This job description is intended to be generic in nature. It is not necessarily an exhaustive list of all duties
and responsibilities. The essential duties, functions and responsibilities and overtime eligibility may vary
based on the specific tasks assigned to the position.

Page2of2

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Tax Compliance Officer

JOB CODE: 13020 FLSA STATUS: Non-Exempt
PAY GRADE: 13 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

JOB SUMMARY:

Under moderate supervision, performs research to identify, analyze and resolve problems with individual delinquent tax
accounts or court fine and fee accounts applying a variety of collection methods and procedures. Responsible for
bringing delinquent taxpayer or criminal defendant accounts into compliance with the various property tax or criminal
justice system laws, requirements and regulations through implementation of an aggressive collection program.

DISTINGUISHING CHARACTERISTICS:

This is the second in a series of four tax-related job classifications specific to the County tax collection functions within
the Finance job family. Incumbents typically perform routine financial duties that require the application of standard financial
theories, principles and techniques, and require the appropriate skill levels including basic skill levels in computer, analytical
and communication skills. Incumbents perform routine research and analysis to resolve and collect delinquent accounts
and bring them into compliance with the regulations. This classification is distinguished from the Tax Compliance Officer
Lead in that incumbents usually consult with higher level technical staff for advice and assistance and are not typically
responsible for reviewing the work of lower level technical tax staff. Duties require a moderate degree of initiative and
independent judgment. This classification typically performs duties at a department or office level. This classification
may require a flexible work schedule in order to meet the needs of the department.

DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES:

• Negotiates payment arrangements and grants extension to property owners who owe delinquent taxes.
Communicates with taxpayers in person and on the telephone for collection of taxes, resolution of complaints or
problems and explanation of discrepancies. Provides information regarding tax laws and procedures. Informs
taxpayers of rights, remedies and responsibilities, available exemptions and payment options. Maintains accurate
file of delinquent accounts with payment arrangements.

• Establishes collection priorities based on laws, regulations, requirements and departmental policies and procedures.
Keeps management informed as to business and economic conditions in assigned area.

• Initiates the filing of lawsuits and requests the investigation of seizures to collect delinquent taxes. Conducts
research of historical data, court records, state records, County deed records and other relevant information to
obtain proper service of legal documents prior to the filing of delinquent tax lawsuits. Investigates and analyzes tax
accounts upon the taxpayer’s failure to meet requirements. Determines appropriate legal action to be taken when
partial payment agreements are breached. Evaluates problem accounts and determines appropriate action for
resolution.

• Certifies the issuance of tax certificates after researching and analyzing tax appraisal records indicating current tax
status. Researches tax roll to determine eligibility of prospective tax sale bidders and issues appropriate certificate.

• Selects delinquent properties to be sold at auction by evaluating current judgments of properties in various taxing
jurisdictions within the County. Performs visual inspection of properties to be sold. Calculates and verifies all fees
due for litigation and foreclosure. Attends tax sale, registers eligible bidders and collects highest bid. Assures the
correct collection and payment process of tax amounts, court costs, various outside vendor fees, excess proceeds
and other costs and fees.

• Determines appropriate tax accounts to apply payments received by analyzing a variety of documentation and
conducting computer searches. Posts monies to accounts and sends related underpayment or refund
correspondence, as required.

• Allocates court costs and fees to affected parties in paid court cases. Interviews and communicates with defendants
regarding financial status. Calculates and verifies fees and investigates, evaluates and verifies applications for
extension of time for payment of fines and/or court costs. Negotiates and grants or denies an application based on
defendant’s financial resources. Adjusts fees, as required. Requests refunds when applicable.

Page 1 of 3 /7c)

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Tax Compliance Officer

JOB CODE: 13020 FLSA STATUS: Non-Exempt
PAY GRADE: 13 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES: (Cont.)

• Determines payment schedule if an extension of time for payment is granted. Distributes applications for extension
of time for payment. Establishes and maintains a system for reviewing delinquency. Monitors delinquent accounts,
contacts defendants regarding delinquent accounts and processes for non-compliance. Issues and mails notices on
delinquent accounts.

• Prepares reports on delinquent accounts and other relevant information and submits for review and required action.
Requests that warrants be prepared based on court orders.

• Performs other job-related duties as assigned.

MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS:

Education and Experience:
Associate’s degree in Accounting, Finance or a directly related field AND two (2) years of increasingly responsible
experience in collections or other directly related experience;

OR,

Any combination of education and experience that has been achieved and is equivalent to the stated education and
experience and required knowledge, skills, and abilities sufficient to successfully perform the duties and responsibilities
of this job.

Licenses, Registrations, Certifications, or Special Requirements:
None required.

Preferred:
Valid Texas Driver’s License.

Knowledge, Skills, and Abilities:
Knowledge of:
• Policies, practices, procedures and terminology of assigned function.
• Federal, State, Local and County applicable laws, rules, regulations and guidelines.
• Standard accounting and collections practices relating to assigned function.
• Manual and automated systems relating to assigned function.
• Modern office practices, procedures and methods.
• Computer equipment to include word processing, spreadsheets, databases and a variety of software packages.
• Business letter writing, grammar and punctuation, and report preparation.

Skill in:
• Problem-solving and decision-making.
• Manual and automated research techniques.
• Developing payment agreements.
• Both verbal and written communication.

Ability to:
• Work independently.
• Conduct systematic research to resolve problems.
• Follow standardized collections policies and procedures.
• Establish and maintain effective working relationships with departmental clientele, representatives of outside

agencies and providers, other County employees and officials, and the general public.

Page 2 of 3

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Tax Compliance Officer

JOB CODE: 13020 FLSA STATUS: Non-Exempt
PAY GRADE: 13 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

WORK ENVIRONMENT AND PHYSICAL DEMANDS:

Physical requirements include the ability to lift/carry up to 10-15 pounds occasionally, visual acuity, speech and hearing,
hand and eye coordination and manual dexterity necessary to operate a computer and office equipment. Subject to
standing, sitting, walking, climbing, crawling, bending, stooping, crouching, kneeling, pushing, pulling, reaching, twisting,
balancing, repetitive motion, and squatting to perform the essential functions.

This job description is intended to be generic in nature. It is not necessarily an exhaustive list of all duties
and responsibilities. The essential duties, functions and responsibilities and overtime eligibility may vary
based on the specific tasks assigned to the position.

Page 3 of 3

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Tax Compliance Officer Lead

JOB CODE: 14021 FLSA STATUS: Non-Exempt
PAY GRADE: 14 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

JOB SUMMARY:

Under limited supervision, functions as a project leader to implement an aggressive collection program to bring
delinquent tax accounts or court fine and fee accounts into compliance with the various property tax or criminal justice
system laws, requirements and regulations. Monitors subordinates who perform research to identify, analyze and
resolve problems with individual tax or criminal defendant accounts applying a variety of collection methods and
procedures.

DISTINGUISHING CHARACTERISTICS:

This is the third in a series of four tax-related job classifications specific to the County tax collection functions within the
Finance job family. Incumbents typically perform routine financial duties that require the application of standard financial
theories, principles and techniques, and require the appropriate skill levels including basic skill levels in computer, analytical
and communication skills. Incumbents perform routine work leading subordinates performing research and analysis to
resolve and collect delinquent accounts and bring them into compliance with the regulations. This classification is
distinguished from the Tax Compliance Officer in that incumbents lead, monitor, review and provide technical advice to Tax
Compliance Officers. Duties require a substantial degree of initiative and independent judgment. This classification
typically performs duties at a department or office level. This classification may require a flexible work schedule in order
to meet the needs of the department.

DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES:

• Oversees the collection of delinquent tax and court fine and fee accounts. Assigns accounts to staff, establishes
individual subordinate’s collection priorities and monitors an array of collection activities, including the initiating of
legal action against delinquent taxpayers and defendants and the processing of filing legal documents. Assures that
staff remain within the laws and the guidelines established by management.

• Communicates with taxpayers and other agencies for collection of taxes, negotiation of payment agreements,
resolution of complaints or problems and explanation of discrepancies. Testifies in court cases regarding delinquent
taxes.

• Audits accounts determined to be non-collectible. Reviews the entire process of selling foreclosed properties,
including deciding which properties to sell, the calculation of minimum bids and the distribution of the proceeds.

• Interviews and communicates with defendants regarding financial status. Calculates fees and investigates,
evaluates and verifies applications for extension of time for payment of fines and/or court costs. Negotiates and
grants or denies an application based on defendant’s financial resources.

• Reconciles and prepares reports to disburse defendant’s court cost and fee payments to governmental agencies,
law enforcement agencies and private vendors. Reviews invoices from attorney ad litems and submits invoices to
be paid.

• Develops procedures and trains employees. Identifies and informs management of changes in environment and
evaluates current processes to offer solutions to meet needed changes. Assists subordinate compliance officer staff
with issues concerning tax or court fine and fee liabilities.

• Leads staff responsible for posting and processing current payments to the system. Oversees the processing of
payments through a remittance operating device and the downloading of files to post payments to the system.

• Adjusts the tax roll according to court order. Files liens and recommends the approval or rejection of transfers of tax
liens to lenders.

• Performs other job-related duties as assigned.

Page 1 of 2 /3

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Tax Compliance Officer Lead

JOB CODE: 14021 FLSA STATUS: Non-Exempt
PAY GRADE: 14 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS:

Education and Experience:
Associate’s degree in Accounting, Finance or a directly related field AND three (3) years of increasingly responsible
experience in collections or other directly related experience, including project lead experience;

OR,

Any combination of education and experience that has been achieved and is equivalent to the stated education and
experience and required knowledge, skills, and abilities sufficient to successfully perform the duties and responsibilities
of this job.

Licenses, Registrations, Certifications, or Special Requirements:
None required.

Preferred:
Valid Texas Driver’s License.

Knowledcje, Skills, and Abilities:
Knowledge of:
• Policies, practices, procedures and terminology of assigned function.
• Federal, State, Local and County applicable laws, rules, regulations and guidelines.
• Standard accounting and collections practices relating to assigned function.
• Manual and automated systems relating to assigned function.
• Modern office practices, procedures and methods.
• Computer equipment to include word processing, spreadsheets, databases and a variety of software packages.
• Business letter writing, grammar and punctuation, and report preparation.

Skill in:
• Leading projects and related staff.
• Problem-solving and decision-making.
• Manual and automated research techniques.
• Developing payment agreements.
• Both verbal and written communication.

Ability to:
• Work independently.
• Conduct systematic research to resolve problems.
• Follow standardized collections policies and procedures.
• Establish and maintain effective working relationships with departmental clientele, representatives of outside

agencies and providers, other County employees and officials, and the general public.

WORK ENVIRONMENT AND PHYSICAL DEMANDS:

Physical requirements include the ability to lift/carry up to 10-15 pounds occasionally, visual acuity, speech and hearing,
hand and eye coordination and manual dexterity necessary to operate a computer and office equipment. Subject to
standing, sitting, walking, climbing, crawling, bending, stooping, crouching, kneeling, pushing, pulling, reaching, twisting,
balancing, repetitive motion, and squatting to perform the essential functions.

This job description is intended to be generic in nature. It is not necessarily an exhaustive list of all duties
and responsibilities. The essential duties, functions and responsibilities and overtime eligibility may vary
based on the specific tasks assigned to the position.

Page 2 of 2

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Tax Supervisor

JOB CODE: 18024 FLSA STATUS: Exempt
PAY GRADE: 18 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

JOB SUMMARY:

Under general direction, supervises the operational activities and staff of a tax work unit. Responsible for staff utilization,
productivity, performance evaluation, operational procedures, and accomplishment of all work unit objectives. Assists in
managing the assessment and collection of local property taxes and court fines and fees, the registering and titling of
motor vehicles, the registering of voters, and the distribution of information for the department.

DISTINGUISHING CHARACTERISTICS:

This is the fourth in a series of four tax-related job classifications specific to the County tax collection functions within the
Finance job family. Incumbents typically perform complex financial duties that require the application of standard financial
theories, principles and techniques, and require the appropriate skill levels including intermediate skill levels in computer,
analytical and communication skills. Incumbents perform complex work supervising the work of subordinates in a work unit
performing tax-related processing, collections and other similar functions. Incumbents plan, schedule, train, monitor and
evaluate the work of staff and exercise professional judgment in solving technical problems within assigned function. Duties
require a substantial degree of initiative and independent judgment. This classification typically performs duties at a
department or office level. This classification may require a flexible work schedule in order to meet the needs of the
department.

DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES:

• Plans, schedules, organizes and coordinates the work operating plan in conjunction with higher level management.
Develops, evaluates and monitors unit operating procedures and recommends and implements revisions, as required.
Interviews and makes hiring recommendations. Coordinates the disciplining of unit staff.

• Supervises unit staff. Delegates and schedules assignments, monitors and evaluates job performance, coordinates
priorities and authorizes staff leave requests. Provides and facilitates employee training and development, creating
curriculum, materials, written policies and procedures and other technical information and products. Conducts formal
classes, including professional accreditation courses related to the functions of the department.

• Manages unit staff participating in the collection of tax revenue and/or court fines and fees, including delinquent billing
and collections processes. Administers the creation, correction and maintenance of tax rolls. Oversees delinquent
billing and collection, including initiating legal action, as required. Manages motor vehicle registration and titling.
Supervises the assessment and collection of court costs, fines and fees. Delivers training to assist in the registering of
County voters. Disseminates tax and court fine and fees related information to the public.

• Serves as a liaison with other taxing entities and with Federal, State and Local governmental agencies, including judicial
and law enforcement entities and staff. Coordinates the exchange of client-related information among entities toward
facilitating the collection of taxes and fees. Shares information to remain abreast of laws, regulations, trends and
developments.

• Coordinates research regarding irregular property tax, motor vehicles and defendant customer issues. Analyzes the
results of the research and recommends appropriate operational methods and procedures assuring compliance with
laws.

• Adheres to court orders by reviewing and analyzing each order. Determines outcome and develops the process to
carry out the order. Delegates and monitors the actions taken to revise the tax roll. Transfers the vehicle’s title and
registers the vehicle or assesses court costs, fines and fees.

• Performs other job-related duties as assigned.

MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS:

Education and ExDerience:
Bachelor’s degree in Accounting, Finance or a directly related field AND four (4) years of increasingly responsible
relevant professional level tax, accounting or financial analysis experience, including two (2) years of lead or supervisory
experience. Master’s degree in Accounting, Finance or a directly related field may substitute for two (2) years of the
required experience.

Page 1 of 2

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Tax Supervisor

JOB CODE: 18024 FLSA STATUS: Exempt
PAY GRADE: 18 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS: (Cont.)

Licenses, Registrations, Certifications, or Special Requirements:
None required.

Preferred:
Experience in providing direct service to the public.
State accreditation as a Registered Texas Assessor/Collector.
Valid Texas Driver’s License.

Knowledge, Skills, and Abilities:
Knowledge of:
• Standard management and supervision practices and techniques.
• Policies, practices, procedures and terminology of assigned function.
• Federal, State, Local and County applicable laws, rules, regulations and guidelines.
• Standard accounting practices relating to assigned function.
• Budget planning and preparation.
• Manual and automated systems relating to assigned function.
• Modern office practices, procedures and methods.
• Computer equipment to include word processing, spreadsheets, databases and a variety of software packages.
• Business letter writing, grammar and punctuation, and report preparation.

Skill in:
• Managing staff, allocating resources and evaluating programs.
• Leading projects and related staff.
• Problem-solving and decision-making.
• Developing payment agreements.
• Both verbal and written communication.

Ability to:
• Train and supervise employees.
• Work independently.
• Manage time well, perform multiple tasks and organize diverse activities.
• Set priorities, coordinate and schedule tasks or events in a logical manner.
• Identify a problem and its causes.
• Identify and choose appropriate solutions from a variety of alternate choices.
• Establish and maintain effective working relationships with departmental clientele, representatives of outside

agencies and providers, other County employees and officials, and the general public.

WORK ENVIRONMENT AND PHYSICAL DEMANDS:

Physical requirements include the ability to lift/carry up to 10-15 pounds occasionally, visual acuity, speech and hearing,
hand and eye coordination and manual dexterity necessary to operate a computer and office equipment. Subject to
standing, sitting, walking, climbing, crawling, bending, stooping, crouching, kneeling, pushing, pulling, reaching, twisting,
balancing, repetitive motion, and squatting to perform the essential functions.

This job description is intended to be generic in nature. It is not necessarily an exhaustive list of all duties
and responsibilities. The essential duties, functions and responsibilities and overtime eligibility may vary
based on the specific tasks assigned to the position.

Page 2 of 2

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Forensic Analyst

JOB CODE: 19034 FLSA STATUS: Exempt
PAY GRADE: 19 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

JOB SUMMARY:

Under general supervision, performs professional forensic accounting analysis in support of white-collar criminal
prosecution cases. Work involves independently gathering and analyzing financial data and records, verifying the
accuracy of financial records, conducting investigative research and presenting results in the form of written reports
and/or verbal presentations in preparation for trial. Conducts forensic analysis to determine whether or not an offense
has occurred, the methodology used to commit the offense, and the total financial loss to the victim.

DISTINGUISHING CHARACTERISTICS:

This is the first in a series of two professional forensic analyst-related job classifications within the Finance job family.
Incumbents typically perform a range of complex professional financial analysis duties that require the application of
standard financial theories, principles and techniques, and require the appropriate skill levels including intermediate skill
levels in computer, analytical and communication skills. Incumbents typically perform analysis of complex financial data and
investigative research to prepare reports and presentations to be used in support of white-collar criminal prosecution cases.
This classification is distinguished from the Forensic Analyst Senior in that incumbents are typically not responsible for
analyzing the most advanced data without the assistance of higher level staff and do not have formal authority for leading or
supervising other forensic staff. Duties require a substantial degree of initiative and independent judgment. This
classification typically performs duties at a department or office level. This classification may require a flexible work
schedule in order to meet the needs of the department.

DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES:

• Analyzes allegations and identifies key issues, actual and potential suspects and the type of evidence needed to
prove the allegations. Sets relevant objectives and completes forensic accounting analysis within the confines of
prosecutorial time limitations. Reviews, evaluates and analyzes voluminous, financial records of individuals and
businesses, including restructuring partial or missing information. Analyzes computer records and other information
stored in an electronic medium. Sets out leads that may be beneficial to case disposition.

• Participates in the interviewing of witnesses, victims and suspects to gather testimonial evidence required to support
the forensic accounting analysis. Prepares necessary information to support subpoenas or search warrants.
Assists in the service or execution and the seizure or gathering of the relevant information sought.

• Prepares verbal and written reports, summarizing the significant facts and results of analysis, using various formats,
for use by investigative and legal personnel in preparation for trial. Works with prosecutors in the preparation of
clear and concise testimony and trial exhibits.

• Provides sworn testimony as a subject-matter expert before the Grand Jury, trial jury or other legal entity, regarding
the information obtained, chain of custody of evidence, and conclusions of work and analysis completed. Addresses
questions related to the procedures used in the analysis.

• Performs other job-related duties as assigned.

MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS:

Education and Experience:
Bachelor’s degree in Finance, Accounting or a directly related field AND five (5) years of increasingly responsible
professional level financial analysis, accounting, auditing or related experience. Master’s degree in Finance, Accounting
or a directly related field may substitute for two (2) years of the required experience.

Licenses, Registrations, Certifications, or Special Requirements:
None required.

Preferred:
Certified Public Accountant (CPA), Certified Fraud Examiner (CFE), Certified Internal Auditor (CIA), or other relevant
certification.
Valid Texas Driver’s License.

Page 1 of 2

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Forensic Analyst

JOB CODE: 19034 FLSA STATUS: Exempt
PAY GRADE: 19 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS: (Cont.)

Knowledge, Skills, and Abilities:
Knowledge of:
• Policies, practices, procedures and terminology of assigned function.
• Federal, State, Local and County applicable laws, rules, regulations and guidelines.
• Generally Accepted Accounting Principles (GAAP) and standardized financial practices.
• Manual and automated systems relating to assigned function.
• Modern office practices, procedures and methods.
• Computer equipment to include word processing, spreadsheets, databases and a variety of software packages.
• Business letter writing, grammar and punctuation, and report preparation.

Skill in:
• Problem-solving and decision-making.
• Forensic analyzing, auditing and investigating of financial data and records.
• Interviewing and interrogating techniques in order to elicit relevant information concerning financial crimes.
• Reviewing and developing financial spreadsheets.
• Both verbal and written communication, including presentations.

Ability to:
• Interpret financial data and identify fraudulent activities.
• Organize information into presentations.
• Prepare exhibits, graphs and/or flowcharts.
• Establish and maintain effective working relationships with County employees and officials, representatives of

outside agencies, and the general public.

WORK ENVIRONMENT AND PHYSICAL DEMANDS:

Physical requirements include the ability to lift/carry up to 10-15 pounds occasionally, visual acuity, speech and hearing,
hand and eye coordination and manual dexterity necessary to operate a computer and office equipment. Subject to
standing, sitting, walking, climbing, crawling, bending, stooping, crouching, kneeling, pushing, pulling, reaching, twisting,
balancing, repetitive motion, and squatting to perform the essential functions.

This job description is intended to be generic in nature. It is not necessarily an exhaustive list of all duties
and responsibilities. The essential duties, functions and responsibilities and overtime eligibility may vary

[jbased on the specific tasks assigned to the position.

Page 2 of 2

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Forensic Analyst Senior

JOB CODE: 21035 FLSA STATUS: Exempt
PAY GRADE: 21 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

JOB SUMMARY:

Under minimal direction, performs professional forensic accounting analysis in support of white-collar criminal
prosecution cases. Work involves independently gathering and analyzing complex financial data and records, verifying
the accuracy of financial records, conducting investigative research and presenting results in the form of written reports
and/or verbal presentations in preparation for trial. Directs and conducts forensic analysis to determine whether or not
an offense has occurred, the methodology used to commit the offense, and the total financial loss to the victim.

DISTINGUISHING CHARACTERISTICS:

This is the second in a series of two professional forensic analyst-related job classifications within the Finance job family.
Incumbents typically perform a range of complex to highly complex professional financial analysis duties that require the
application of standard financial theories, principles and techniques, and require the appropriate skill levels including
intermediate to advanced skill levels in computer, analytical and communication skills. Incumbents typically perform
analysis of complex to highly complex financial data and investigative research to prepare reports and presentations to be
used in support of white-collar criminal prosecution cases. This classification is distinguished from the Forensic Analyst in
that incumbents independently analyze the most advanced data and lead or supervise tower level staff in forensic analysis.
Duties require an extensive degree of initiative and independent judgment. This classification typically performs duties at a
department or office level. This classification may require a flexible work schedule in order to meet the needs of the
department.

DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES:

• Analyzes allegations, determines the nature of the scheme(s) and identifies key issues, actual and potential
suspects and the type of evidence needed to prove the allegations. Sets relevant objectives and completes forensic
accounting analysis within the confines of prosecutorial time limitations. Reviews, evaluates and analyzes
voluminous, financial records of individuals and businesses, including restructuring partial or missing information.
Analyzes computer records and other information stored in an electronic medium. Sets out leads that may be
beneficial to case disposition.

• Coordinates, organizes and directs investigations with other prosecutorial team members and others to gather
testimonial evidence required to support the forensic accounting analysis. Oversees the work of other forensic
analysts. Prepares necessary information to support subpoenas or search warrants. Assists in the service or
execution and the seizure or gathering of the relevant information sought.

• Prepares verbal presentations and written reports of the forensic analysis, summarizing the significant findings using
various formats, for use by investigative and legal personnel in preparation for trial. Works with prosecutors in the
preparation of clear and concise testimony and trial exhibits.

• Provides sworn testimony as a subject-matter expert before the Grand Jury, trial jury or other legal entity, regarding
the information obtained, chain of custody of evidence, and conclusions of work and analysis completed. Addresses
questions related to the procedures used in the analysis.

• Performs other job-related duties as assigned.

MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS:

Education and Experience:
Bachelor’s degree in Finance, Accounting or a directly related field AND six (6) years of increasingly responsible
professional level financial analysis, accounting, auditing or related experience. Master’s degree in Finance, Accounting,
or a directly related field may substitute for two (2) years of the required experience.

Licenses, Registrations, Certifications, or Special Requirements:
Certified Public Accountant (CPA), Certified Internal Auditor (CIA) or other relevant certification.

MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS: (Cont.)

Preferred: / ‘

Pagelof2

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Forensic Analyst Senior

JOB CODE: 21035 FLSA STATUS: Exempt
PAY GRADE: 21 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

Valid Texas Driver’s License.

Knowledge. Skills, and Abilities:
Knowledge of:
• Policies, practices, procedures and terminology of assigned function.
• Federal, State, Local and County applicable laws, rules, regulations and guidelines.
• Generally Accepted Accounting Principles (GAAP) and standardized financial practices.
• Management and supervision practices and techniques.
• Manual and automated systems relating to assigned function.
• Modern office practices, procedures and methods.
• Computer equipment to include word processing, spreadsheets, databases and a variety of software packages.
• Business letter writing, grammar and punctuation, and report preparation.

Skill in:
• Leading projects and related staff.
• Problem-solving and decision-making.
• Forensic analyzing, auditing and investigating of financial data and records.
• Interviewing and interrogating techniques in order to elicit relevant information concerning financial crimes.
• Reviewing and developing financial spreadsheets.
• Both verbal and written communication, including presentations.

Ability to:
• Train and supervise employees.
• Set priorities and coordinate and schedule tasks in a logical manner.
• Interpret financial data and identify fraudulent activities.
• Organize information into presentations.
• Prepare exhibits, graphs and/or flowcharts.
• Establish and maintain effective working relationships with County employees and officials, representatives of

outside agencies, and the general public.

WORK ENVIRONMENT AND PHYSICAL DEMANDS:

Physical requirements include the ability to lift/carry up to 10-15 pounds occasionally, visual acuity, speech and hearing,
hand and eye coordination and manual dexterity necessary to operate a computer and office equipment. Subject to
standing, sitting, walking, climbing, crawling, bending, stooping, crouching, kneeling, pushing, pulling, reaching, twisting,
balancing, repetitive motion, and squatting to perform the essential functions.

This job description is intended to be generic in nature. It is not necessarily an exhaustive list of all duties
and responsibilities. The essential duties, functions and responsibilities and overtime eligibility may vary
based on the specific tasks assigned to the position.

Page 2 of 2 0

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Budget Analyst I

JOB CODE: 16036 FLSA STATUS: Exempt
PAY GRADE: 16 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

JOB SUMMARY:

Provides planning, budget, fiscal and policy analysis made directly and in public to the Commissioners Court working in
cooperation with a more senior analyst. Works under close supervision with some latitude for independent judgment
and action. Coordinates budget development, evaluation, and execution. Analyzes budget requests and develops
funding recommendations throughout the budget process. Conducts visible and sometimes controversial fiscal and
programmatic research on a wide variety of topics. Required to publicly defend analytic conclusions to Elected and
Appointed Officials. Provides analysis and recommendations on the development of County strategic plans and special
analytic projects. Conducts economic and programmatic research and makes recommendations on County finances
and projects, as required.

DISTINGUISHING CHARACTERISTICS:

This is the first in a series of four budget analyst-related job classifications within the Finance job family. Incumbents
typically perform a range of routine professional financial and budget analysis duties that require the application of standard
financial theories, principles and techniques, and require the appropriate skill levels including basic skill levels in computer,
analytical and communication skills. Incumbents typically perform routine budget work that may result in the least severe
consequences without supervision. Incumbents typically perform moderately complex budget work that may result in
moderate consequences with supervision. Works in cooperation with a more senior analyst. This classification typically
performs duties for various departments with countywide responsibility. This classification may require a flexible work
schedule in order to meet the needs of the department.

DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES:

• Coordinates every phase of planning and development of the Adopted Budget for assigned departments. Conducts
budget reviews and prepares analysis of departmental budget requests. Performs such reviews and analysis,
independently, as a member of work teams, and under supervision of a more senior analyst. Presents findings
directly to Commissioners Court in a public forum and defends conclusions reached with Elected and Appointed
Officials.

• Works during the year with respective departments to develop budgets consistent with the departments’ relevant
strategic plans and available County resources. Determines the effectiveness of performance measures and
identifies measures that best reflect departmental operations. Monitors the execution of departmental budgets,
analyzes departmental expenditure patterns for anomalies, evaluates financial plans, interprets budget variances,
and acts as liaison with County departments concerning budgetary and program matters.

• Conducts independent departmental, programmatic, and functional evaluations, research, and analysis and presents
findings and recommendations to Commissioners Court for improvement, including departmental reorganizations,
new programs and management analysis. Functions as a member of interdepartmental problem solving teams to
address priority County issues with broad organizational impact. Prepares economic, social and programmatic
research on countywide trends and finances for evaluation of present and future components of County services.

• Performs periodic revenue and expenditure forecasts, cost-effectiveness analysis, and other financial studies.
Performs cost comparisons and cost/benefit analysis. Develops forecasts to facilitate short and long term financial
needs. Develops evaluative and statistical methods to appraise operating results. Analyzes and interprets fiscal
variances. Evaluates data from national, state and local resources to assist in the planning and evaluation process.

• Assists County departments in the development of strategic plans, including establishing goals, objectives and
performance measures and the assessment of internal and external environments.

• Performs other job-related duties as assigned.

MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS:

Education and Experience:
Bachelor’s degree in Public Administration, Business Administration, Finance or a directly related field AND three (3)
years experience in the area of budget analysis and management, public administration and/or local governmental
finance. Experience with strategic planning, development of outcome measures, and financial forecasts. Master’s
degree in Public Administration, Business Administration, Finance or a directly related field may substitute for two (2)
years of the required experience.

Page 1 of 2

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Budget Analyst I

JOB CODE: 16036 FLSA STATUS: Exempt
PAY GRADE: 16 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS: (Cont.)

Licenses, Registrations, Certifications, or Special Requirements:
None required.

Preferred:
Valid Texas Driver’s License.

Knowledge, Skills, and Abilities:
The knowledge, skills and abilities outlined below should be appropriate for an entry-level individual, reflecting basic
knowledge, good skills and the ability to perform the functions outlined.

Knowledge of:
• Federal, State, Local and County applicable laws, rules, regulations and guidelines.
• Principles of public administration and budgeting.
• Program evaluation.
• Financial principles and practices.
• State and local issues.
• Organization and management principles.
• Manual and automated systems relating to assigned function.
• Computer equipment to include word processing, spreadsheets, databases and a variety of software packages.
• Business letter writing, grammar and punctuation, and report preparation.

Skill in:
• Problem-solving and decision-making.
• Public policy research.
• Statistical methods.
• Financial analysis.
• Strategic planning.
• Analytical methods.
• Both verbal and written communication, including public presentations.

Ability to:
• Speak and write effectively.
• Work with both the large and small details.
• Work independently and efficiently.
• Manage time well, perform multiple tasks and organize diverse activities.
• Establish and maintain effective working relationships with County employees and officials, other government entity

staff, representatives of outside agencies, and the general public.

WORK ENVIRONMENT AND PHYSICAL DEMANDS:

Physical requirements include the ability to lift/carry up to 10-15 pounds occasionally, visual acuity, speech and hearing,
hand and eye coordination and manual dexterity necessary to operate a computer and office equipment. Subject to
standing, sitting, walking, climbing, crawling, bending, stooping, crouching, kneeling, pushing, pulling, reaching, twisting,
balancing, repetitive motion, and squatting to perform the essential functions.

This job description is intended to be generic in nature. It is not necessarily an exhaustive list of all duties
and responsibilities. The essential duties, functions and responsibilities and overtime eligibility may vary
based on the specific tasks assigned to the position.

Page 2 of 2

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Budget Analyst II

JOB CODE: 18037 FLSA STATUS: Exempt
PAY GRADE: 18 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

JOB SUMMARY:

Provides independent planning, budget, fiscal and policy analysis made directly and in public to the Commissioners
Court. Works under general supervision with some latitude for independent judgment and action. Coordinates budget
development, evaluation, and execution. Analyzes budget requests and develops funding recommendations throughout
the budget process. Conducts visible and sometimes controversial fiscal and programmatic research on a wide variety
of topics. Required to publicly defend analytic conclusions to Elected and Appointed Officials. Provides analysis and
recommendations on the development of County strategic plans and special analytic projects. Conducts economic and
programmatic research and makes recommendations on County finances and projects, as required.

DISTINGUISHING CHARACTERISTICS:

This is the second in a series of four budget analyst-related job classifications within the Finance job family. Incumbents
typically perform a range of routine to moderately complex professional financial and budget analysis duties that require the
application of standard financial theories, principles and techniques, and require the appropriate skill levels including basic
to intermediate skill levels in computer, analytical and communication skills. Incumbents typically perform routine budget
work that may result in moderate consequences without supervision. Incumbents typically perform moderately complex
budget work with more severe consequences in cooperation with a more senior analyst. This classification typically
performs duties for various departments with countywide responsibility. This classification may require a flexible work
schedule in order to meet the needs of the department.

DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES:

• Coordinates every phase of planning and development of the Adopted Budget for assigned departments. Conducts
budget reviews and prepares analysis of departmental budget requests. Performs such reviews and analysis,
independently and as a member of work teams. Presents findings directly to Commissioners Court in a public forum
and defends conclusions reached with Elected and Appointed Officials.

• Works during the year with respective departments to develop budgets consistent with the departments’ relevant
strategic plans and available County resources. Determines the effectiveness of performance measures and
identifies measures that best reflect departmental operations. Monitors the execution of departmental budgets,
analyzes departmental expenditure patterns for anomalies, evaluates financial plans, interprets budget variances,
and acts as liaison with County departments concerning budgetary and program matters.

• Conducts independent departmental, programmatic, and functional evaluations, research, and analysis and presents
findings and recommendations directly to Commissioners Court for improvement, including departmental
reorganizations, new programs and management analysis. Functions as member of interdepartmental problem
solving teams to address high priority County issues with broad organizational impact. Prepares economic, social
and programmatic research on countywide trends and finances, for evaluation of present and future components of
County services.

• Performs periodic revenue and expenditure forecasts, cost-effectiveness analysis, and other financial studies.
Performs cost comparisons and cost/benefit analysis. Develops forecasts to facilitate short and long term financial
needs. Develops evaluative and statistical methods to appraise operating results. Analyzes and interprets fiscal
variances. Evaluates data from national, state and local resources to assist in the planning and evaluation process.

• Assists County departments in the development of strategic plans, including establishing goals, objectives and
performance measures and the assessment of internal and external environments.

• Performs other job-related duties as assigned.

MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS:

Education and Experience:
Bachelor’s degree in Public Administration, Business Administration, Finance or a directly related field AND five (5) years
experience in the area of budget analysis and management, public administration and/or local governmental finance.
Experience with strategic planning, development of outcome measures, and financial forecasts. Master’s degree in
Public Administration, Business Administration, Finance or a directly related field may substitute for two (2) years of the
required experience.

Page 1 of 2

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Budget Analyst II

JOB CODE: 18037 FLSA STATUS: Exempt
PAY GRADE: 18 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS: (Cont.)

Licenses, Registrations, Certifications, or Special Requirements:
None required.

Preferred:
Valid Texas Driver’s License.

Knowledge, Skills, and Abilities:
The knowledge, skills and abilities outlined below must be moderately extensive, reflecting a working knowledge, good
skills and a well-developed ability to perform the functions outlined.

Knowledge of:
• Federal, State, Local and County applicable laws, rules, regulations and guidelines.
• Principles of public administration and budgeting.
• Program evaluation.
• Financial principles and practices.
• State and local issues.
• Organization and management principles.
• Manual and automated systems relating to assigned function.
• Computer equipment to include word processing, spreadsheets, databases and a variety of software packages.
• Business letter writing, grammar and punctuation, and report preparation.

Skill in:
• Problem-solving and decision-making.
• Public policy research.
• Statistical methods.
• Financial analysis.
• Strategic planning.
• Analytical methods.
• Both verbal and written communication, including public presentations.

Ability to:
• Speak and write effectively.
• Work with both the large and small details.
• Work independently and efficiently.
• Manage time well, perform multiple tasks and organize diverse activities.
• Establish and maintain effective working relationships with County employees and officials, other government entity

staff, representatives of outside agencies, and the general public.

WORK ENVIRONMENT AND PHYSICAL DEMANDS:

Physical requirements include the ability to lift/carry up to 10-15 pounds occasionally, visual acuity, speech and hearing,
hand and eye coordination and manual dexterity necessary to operate a computer and office equipment. Subject to
standing, sitting, walking, climbing, crawling, bending, stooping, crouching, kneeling, pushing, pulling, reaching, twisting,
balancing, repetitive motion, and squatting to perform the essential functions.

This job description is intended to be generic in nature. It is not necessarily an exhaustive list of all duties
and responsibilities. The essential duties, functions and responsibilities and overtime eligibility may vary
based on the specific tasks assigned to the position.

Page 2 of 2
c::7/2

y

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Budget Analyst Ill

JOB CODE: 20039 FLSA STATUS: Exempt
PAY GRADE: 20 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

JOB SUMMARY:

Provides independent planning, budget, fiscal and policy analysis made directly and in public to the Commissioners
Court. Works under general supervision with moderate latitude for independent judgment and action. Coordinates
budget development, evaluation, and execution. Analyzes budget requests and develops funding recommendations
throughout the budget process. Conducts visible and sometimes controversial fiscal and programmatic research on a
wide variety of topics. Required to publicly defend analytic conclusions to Elected and Appointed Officials. Provides
analysis and recommendations on the development of County strategic plans and special analytic projects. Conducts
economic and programmatic research and makes recommendations on County finances and projects, as required.

DISTINGUISHING CHARACTERISTICS:

This is the third in a series of four budget analyst-related job classifications within the Finance job family. Incumbents
typically perform complex professional financial and budget analysis duties that require the application of standard financial
theories, principles and techniques, and require the appropriate skill levels including intermediate skill levels in computer,
analytical and communication skills. Incumbents typically perform complex budget work that may result in more severe
consequences without supervision. Incumbents typically perform more complex budget work that may result in the most
severe consequences with supervision. This classification typically performs duties for various departments with
countywide responsibility. This classification may require a flexible work schedule in order to meet the needs of the
department.

DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES:

• Coordinates every phase of planning and development of the Adopted Budget for assigned departments. Conducts
budget reviews and prepares analysis of departmental budget requests. Performs such reviews and analysis,
independently and as a member of work teams. Presents findings directly to Commissioners Court in a public forum
and defends conclusions reached with Elected and Appointed Officials.

• Works during the year with respective departments to develop budgets consistent with the departments’ relevant
strategic plans and available County resources. Determines the effectiveness of performance measures and
identifies measures that best reflect departmental operations. Monitors the execution of departmental budgets,
analyzes departmental expenditure patterns for anomalies, evaluates financial plans, interprets budget variances,
and acts as liaison with County departments concerning budgetary and program matters.

• Conducts independent departmental, programmatic, and functional evaluations, research, and analysis and presents
findings and recommendations directly to Commissioners Court for improvement, including departmental
reorganizations, new programs and management analysis. Functions as member of interdepartmental problem
solving teams to address high priority County issues with broad organizational impact. Prepares economic, social
and programmatic research on countywide trends and finances, for evaluation of present and future components of
County services.

• Performs periodic revenue and expenditure forecasts, cost-effectiveness analysis, and other financial studies.
Performs cost comparisons and cost/benefit analysis. Develops forecasts to facilitate short and long term financial
needs. Develops evaluative and statistical methods to appraise operating results. Analyzes and interprets fiscal
variances. Evaluates data from national, state and local resources to assist in the planning and evaluation process.

• Assists County departments in the development of strategic plans, including establishing goals, objectives and
performance measures and the assessment of internal and external environments.

• Performs other job-related duties as assigned.

MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS:

Education and Experience:
Bachelor’s degree in Public Administration, Business Administration, Finance or a directly related field AND six (6) years
experience in the area of budget analysis and management, public administration and/or local governmental finance.
Experience with strategic planning, development of outcome measures, and financial forecasts. Master’s degree in
Public Administration, Business Administration, Finance or a directly related field may substitute for two (2) years of the
required experience.

Page 1 of 2

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Budget Analyst III

JOB CODE: 20039 FLSA STATUS: Exempt
PAY GRADE: 20 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS: (Cant.)

Licenses, Registrations, Certifications, or Special Requirements:
None required.

Preferred:
Valid Texas Driver’s License.

Knowledge, Skills, and Abilities:
The knowledge, skills and abilities outlined below must be considerably extensive, reflecting an excellent knowledge,
very strong skills and a highly developed ability to perform the functions outlined.

Knowledge of:
• Federal, State, Local and County applicable laws, rules, regulations and guidelines.
• Principles of public administration and budgeting.
• Program evaluation.
• Financial principles and practices.
• State and local issues.
• Organization and management principles.
• Manual and automated systems relating to assigned function.
• Computer equipment to include word processing, spreadsheets, databases and a variety of software packages.
• Business letter writing, grammar and punctuation, and report preparation.

Skill in:
• Problem-solving and decision-making.
• Public policy research.
• Statistical methods.
• Financial analysis.
• Strategic planning.
• Analytical methods.
• Both verbal and written communication, including public presentations.

Ability to:
• Speak and write effectively.
• Work with both the large and small details.
• Work independently and efficiently.
• Manage time well, perform multiple tasks, and organize diverse activities.
• Establish and maintain effective working relationships with County employees and officials, other government entity

staff, representatives of outside agencies, and the general public.

WORK ENVIRONMENT AND PHYSICAL DEMANDS:

Physical requirements include the ability to lift/carry up to 10-15 pounds occasionally, visual acuity, speech and hearing,
hand and eye coordination and manual dexterity necessary to operate a computer and office equipment. Subject to
standing, sitting, walking, climbing, crawling, bending, stooping, crouching, kneeling, pushing, pulling, reaching, twisting,
balancing, repetitive motion, and squatting to perform the essential functions.

This job description is intended to be generic in nature. It is not necessarily an exhaustive list of all duties
and responsibilities. The essential duties, functions and responsibilities and overtime eligibility may vary
based on the specific tasks assigned to the position.

Page2of2

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Budget Analyst Senior

JOB CODE: 22042 FLSA STATUS: Exempt
PAY GRADE: 22 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

JOB SUMMARY:
Provides independent planning, budget, fiscal and policy analysis made directly and in public to the Commissioners
Court. Works under only general direction with extensive latitude for independent judgment and action. Coordinates
budget development, evaluation, and execution. May serve as lead analyst for countywide program functions, such as
grants. Analyzes budget requests and develops funding recommendations throughout the budget process. Conducts
highly visible and sometimes controversial fiscal and programmatic research on a wide variety of topics. Required to
publicly defend analytic conclusions to Elected and Appointed Officials. Provides analysis and recommendations on the
development of County strategic plans and special analytic projects. Proactively identifies problems and solutions.
Initiates independent and group analytic projects. Conducts economic and programmatic research and makes
recommendations on County finances and projects, as required.

DISTINGUISHING CHARACTERISTICS:

This is the fourth in a series of four budget analyst-related job classifications within the Finance job family. Incumbents
typically perform highly complex professional financial and budget analysis duties that require the application of standard
financial theories, principles and techniques, and require the appropriate skill levels including intermediate to advanced skill
levels in computer, analytical and communication skills. Incumbents typically perform highly complex budget work that
may result in the most severe consequences without supervision. This classification typically performs duties for various
departments with countywide responsibility. This classification may require a flexible work schedule in order to meet the
needs of the department.

DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES:

• Coordinates every phase of planning and development of the Adopted Budget for assigned departments. Conducts
budget reviews and prepares analysis of departmental budget requests. Performs such reviews and analysis,
independently and with little supervision, and as the member of work teams. Presents findings directly to
Commissioners Court in a public forum and defends conclusions reached with Elected and Appointed officials.

• Works during the year with respective departments to develop budgets consistent with the departments’ relevant
strategic plans and available County resources. Determines the effectiveness of performance measures and
identifies measures that best reflect departmental operations. Monitors the execution of departmental budgets,
analyzes departmental expenditure patterns for anomalies, evaluates financial plans, interprets budget variances,
and acts as liaison with County departments concerning budgetary and program matters. Functions as a team
leader on special projects and assignments.

• Conducts independent departmental, programmatic, and functional evaluations, research, and analysis. Presents
findings and recommendations directly to Commissioners Court for improvement, including departmental
reorganizations, new programs and management analysis. Functions as member of interdepartmental problem
solving teams to address high priority County issues with broad organizational impact. Prepares economic, social
and programmatic research on countywide trends and finances, for evaluation of present and future components of
County services.

• Performs periodic revenue and expenditure forecasts, cost-effectiveness analysis, and other financial studies.
Performs cost comparisons and cost/benefit analysis. Develops forecasts to facilitate short and long term financial
needs. Develops evaluative and statistical methods to appraise operating results. Analyzes and interprets fiscal
variances. Evaluates data from national, state and local resources to assist in the planning and evaluation process.

• Assists County departments in the development of strategic plans, including establishing goals, objectives and
performance measures and the assessment of internal and external environments.

• Performs other job-related duties as assigned.

Page 1 of 3 7

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Budget Analyst Senior

JOB CODE: 22042 FLSA STATUS: Exempt
PAY GRADE: 22 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS:

Education and Experience:
Bachelor’s degree in Public Administration, Business Administration, Finance or a directly related field AND seven (7)
years experience in the area of budget analysis and management, public administration and/or local governmental
finance. Experience with strategic planning, development of outcome measures, and financial forecasts. Master’s
degree in Public Administration, Business Administration, Finance or a directly related field may substitute for two (2)
years of the required experience.

Licenses, Registrations, Certifications, or Special Requirements:
None required.

Preferred:
Valid Texas Driver’s License.

Knowledge, Skills, and Abilities:
The knowledge, skills, and abilities outlined below must be all at the highest professional level, reflecting extensive
knowledge, outstanding skills and an exceptional ability to perform the functions outlined.

Knowledge of:
• Federal, State, Local and County applicable laws, rules, regulations and guidelines.
• Principles of public administration and budgeting.
• Program evaluation.
• Financial principles and practices.
• State and local issues.
• Organization and management principles.
• Manual and automated systems relating to assigned function.
• Computer equipment to include word processing, spreadsheets, databases and a variety of software packages.
• Business letter writing, grammar and punctuation, and report preparation.

Skill in:
• Problem-solving and decision-making.
• Public policy research.
• Statistical methods.
• Financial analysis.
• Strategic planning.
• Analytical methods.
• Both verbal and written communication, including public presentations.

Ability to:
• Speak and write effectively.
• Work with both the large and small details.
• Work independently and efficiently.
• Manage time well, perform multiple tasks, and organize diverse activities.
• Establish and maintain effective working relationships with County employees and officials, other government entity

staff, representatives of outside agencies, and the general public.

Page 2 of 3

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Budget Analyst Senior

JOB CODE: 22042 FLSA STATUS: Exempt
PAY GRADE: 22 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

WORK ENVIRONMENT AND PHYSICAL DEMANDS:

Physical requirements include the ability to lift/carry up to 10-15 pounds occasionally, visual acuity, speech and hearing,
hand and eye coordination and manual dexterity necessary to operate a computer and office equipment. Subject to
standing, sitting, walking, climbing, crawling, bending, stooping, crouching, kneeling, pushing, pulling, reaching, twisting,
balancing, repetitive motion, and squatting to perform the essential functions.

This job description is intended to be generic in nature. It is not necessarily an exhaustive list of all duties
and responsibilities. The essential duties, functions and responsibilities and overtime eligibility may vary
based on the specific tasks assigned to the position.

Page 3of3

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Community Liaison

JOB CODE: 18769 FLSA STATUS: Exempt
PAY GRADE: 18 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

JOB SUMMARY:

Acts as the primary contact with the community on matters of concern, local issues, constituency issues and community
outreach. Develops strong community relationships. Serves as a liaison between the community and the local agencies
as appropriate. Assists in planning community need-based projects and events. Coordinates and represents the
agencies with neighborhood associations, groups, community members, clubs, schools and other community
organizations within the geographical area.

DISTINGUISHING CHARACTERISTICS:

This is a job classification within the Senior Management/Middle Management job family. Incumbent’s in this
classification represents the community and is the primary contact between the local agencies. This classification may
require a flexible work schedule in order to meet the needs of the department.

DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES:

• Develops strong community relationships. Serves as a liaison between the community and the local agencies as
appropriate. Coordinates and represents the agencies with neighborhood associations, groups, community
members, clubs, schools and other community organizations. Coordinates and attends planning meetings,
community meetings, groups and forums, and interacts with policy makers.

• Coordinates public information plans and strategies. Participates in developing materials used in publications and
promotional projects. Creates, designs and maintains all marketing communications. Coordinates with local print and
electronic media for distribution of announcements. Assists in strategic planning, facilitating program development,
project fundraising and grant proposals.

• Maintains close coordination with the community. Meets individually and works closely with participating groups,
community members and organization representatives. Represents the public and media relations within the
community. Serves on local boards and/or councils. Interacts with city, County and state government
representatives. Oversees collaboration with various institutions and officials.

• Provides information to community members, parents, departmental clientele, outside agencies, other County staff
and officials, and the general public. Provides technical assistance and community advocacy for various issues.
Promotes community-wide and public/private partnerships and collaborations. Receives and processes incoming
correspondence, telephone and email messages as appropriate.

• Prepares and conducts presentations to the Commissioners Court, other policy makers and community groups and
organizations. Attends staff meetings and special events, as required. Assists with community presentations and
public educational events.

• Performs other job-related duties as assigned.

MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS:

Education and Experience:
Bachelor’s degree in Criminal Justice, Communication, Public Relations or a directly related field AND three (3) years
progressively responsible relevant work experience in public information, public relations, public affairs/community
relations/outreach or similar such program experience;

OR,

Any combination of education and experience that has been achieved and is equivalent to the stated education and
experience and required knowledge, skills, and abilities sufficient to successfully perform the duties and responsibilities
of this job.

Licenses, Registrations, Certifications, or Special Requirements:
Valid Texas Driver’s License.

Page 1 of 2

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Community Liaison

JOB CODE: 18769 FLSA STATUS: Exempt
PAY GRADE: 18 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS: (Cont.)

Knowledge, Skills, and Abilities:
Knowledge of:
• Community organizations and agencies.
• Public relations principles, practices and techniques.
• Organizing events or workshops.
• County public relations strategies and practices.
• Public relations and promotional methods.

Skill in:
• Public speaking.
• Conflict resolution and community relations.
• Both verbal and written communications.

Ability to:
• Work in highly visible position.
• Manage highly sensitive issues while subject to public scrutiny.
• Maintain cooperative relationships with those contacted.
• Make effective presentations before various audiences.
• Communicate clearly, verbally and in writing.
• Use proper English, including grammar, vocabulary, spelling, punctuation and organization.
• Communicate and interact effectively with a wide variety of people, elected officials, other County departments, local

agencies, state agencies, news media organizations, private organizations, special interest groups and the general
public.

• Establish and maintain effective working relationships with departmental clientele, representatives of outside
agencies, other County employees and officials, and the general public.

WORK ENVIRONMENT AND PHYSICAL DEMANDS:

Physical requirements include the ability to lift/carry up to 10-50 pounds occasionally, visual acuity, speech and hearing,
hand and eye coordination and manual dexterity necessary to operate a computer and office equipment. Subject to
standing, walking, sitting, repetitive motion, reaching, climbing stairs, bending, stooping, kneeling, crouching, crawling,
pushing, pulling, balancing, client/customer contact, squatting to perform the essential functions. May be subject to
contact with dust and exposure to extreme temperature/weather change including wet and/or humidity weather.

This job description is intended to be generic in nature. It is not necessarily an exhaustive list of all duties
and responsibilities. The essential duties, functions and responsibilities and overtime eligibility may vary
based on the specific tasks assigned to the position.

Page 2 of 2 ‘y3 /

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Strategic Planning Manager

JOB CODE: 25628 FLSA STATUS: Exempt
PAY GRADE: 25 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

JOB SUMMARY:

Functions as the coordinator of an inter-disciplinary team performing strategic facility analysis and planning use/re-use of
existing physical assets and capital developments. Prepares and maintains a strategic master plan for short-term or
long-term capital improvement program that incorporates departmental operational plans. Coordinates and provides
additional detailed level planning in preparation for the implementation of the strategic master plan. Provides assistance
and technical support in the preparation of strategic initiatives requiring capital improvements. Provides analytic support
and assistance to Citizens Bond Committees to shape the scope of bond elections for new facilities. Performs cost
feasibility studies for the acquisition of land and/or facilities. Reviews departmental requests for additional employees for
the potential impact to existing facilities and coordinates development of associated costs. Prepares information and
makes presentations for the education of end users and the general public regarding the strategic master plan.

DISTINGUISHING CHARACTERISTICS:

This is a job classification within the Senior Management/Middle Management job family. Incumbents in this
classification performs high level strategic facility analysis and plans for the use/re-use of existing physical assets and
capital developments and performs planning in preparation for implementation of the strategic master plan. This
classification reviews departmental requests for additional employees in conjunction with the annual budget process.

DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES:

• Develops policy and process recommendations and information for the Commissioners Court on strategic level
planning issues as assigned, particularly those that may have long-term/strategic facility impacts. Performs other
research or policy development related projects as assigned.

• Reviews all requests for additional staff and reorganizations submitted by County departments during the annual budget
process and prepares information for and coordinates the development of full cost proposals for the appropriate
accommodation of the additional staff included in such requests. Coordinates with budget staff and provides audit of
cost information developed for capital improvements to support requests for additional staff.

• Performs technical analysis, drafts recommendations and acts as a technical expert and facilitator for the planning
committee whose objective is to develop and maintain a capital facilities strategic plan.

• Prepares and presents recommendations to the Commissioners Court related to the development and maintenance of
the capital facilities strategic plan.

• Maintains the inventory of County owned property.

• Assists Elected and Appointed Officials and department heads and department staff with the planning and
programming of strategic capital improvement initiatives.

• Performs financial cost feasibility analysis related to the acquisition of new properties and makes recommendations to
Commissioners Court.

• Prepares and makes presentations to and receives feedback from outside agencies, organizations and other
governmental agencies on issues related to the development, maintenance and implementation of the capital facilities
short-term or long-term strategic plan or other issues.

• Performs other job-related duties as assigned.

MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS:

Education and Experience:
Bachelor’s degree in Environmental Design, Urban Design, Urban Planning, Architecture or a directly related field AND
four (4) years relevant experience in master planning, massing studies, capital development programs, acquisition of
facilities, real estate analysis and negotiations, and/or facility planning and programming, including a minimum of two (2)
years of management or project management experience in the planning function for a government, corporate,
university or institutional environment with frequent contacts at the Board level;

Page 1 of 3

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Strategic Planning Manager

JOB CODE: 25628 FLSA STATUS: Exempt
PAY GRADE: 25 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS: (Cont.)

Education and Experience: (Cant.)

OR,

Any combination of education and experience that has been achieved and is equivalent to the stated education and
experience and required knowledge, skills, and abilities sufficient to successfully perform the duties and responsibilities
of this job.

Licenses, Registrations, Certifications, or Special Requirements:
None required.

Preferred:
Master’s degree in Environmental Design, Urban Design, Urban Planning, Architecture or a directly related field.

Knowledge, Skills, and Abilities:
Knowledge of:
• Policies, practices, procedures and terminology of assigned function.
• Planning and design principles and practices.
• Project planning.
• Project management methodologies, practices and techniques.
• Local and State building and land use codes and ordinances.
• County budget policies, procedures and practices.
• County leasing restrictions and practices.
• Purchasing policies and procedures for professional services.
• Capital financing and federal arbitrage laws for counties.
• Architectural drawings and construction documents.
• Conflict resolution methods.
• Computer equipment to include word processing, spreadsheets, databases and a variety of software packages.
• Business letter writing, grammar and punctuation, and report preparation.

Skill in:
• Planning and directing a variety of strategic planning projects.
• Leadership, collaboration and negotiation techniques.
• Problem-solving and technical decision-making for developing effective solutions.
• Analytical methods.
• Both verbal and written communication, including presentations and communicating technical issues in non

technical language.

Ability to:
• Coordinate, plan and prioritize programs, projects and activities.
• Exercise sound judgment and make decisions.
• Perform in a stressful environment while maintaining a professional manner.
• Make appropriate and effective public presentations.
• Work as a facilitator for diverse groups regarding controversial issues and negotiate a balanced position.
• Perform cost feasibility studies.
• Manage time well, perform multiple tasks and organize diverse activities.
• Work with both the large and small details.
• Establish and maintain effective working relationships with departmental clientele, representatives of outside

agencies, other County employees and officials, and the general public.

Page 2 of 3 (133

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Strategic Planning Manager

JOB CODE: 25628 FLSA STATUS: Exempt
PAY GRADE: 25 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

WORK ENVIRONMENT AND PHYSICAL DEMANDS:

Physical requirements include the ability to lift/carry up to 5-25 pounds occasionally, visual acuity, speech and hearing,
hand and eye coordination and manual dexterity necessary to operate a computer and office equipment. Subject to
standing, walking, sitting, repetitive motion, reaching, climbing stairs, bending, stooping, kneeling, crouching, crawling,
pushing, pulling, balancing, client/customer contact, squatting to perform the essential functions.

This job description is intended to be generic in nature. It is not necessarily an exhaustive list of all duties
and responsibilities. The essential duties, functions and responsibilities and overtime eligibility may vary
based on the specific tasks assigned to the position.

Page 3of3

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Assistant Budget Director

JOB CODE: 26043 FLSA STATUS: Exempt
PAY GRADE: 26 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

JOB SUMMARY:

Serves as part of a management team providing the effective management and operation of the Planning and Budget
Office. Provides mentoring and day to day supervision of new analysts and provides general staff direction for all
analysts. Supervises the PBO Office Manager. Coordinates the development of the countywide Planning and Budget
Manual, the annual Budget Rules, internal and external PBO tables, forms and computer applications necessary to track
and monitor the annual budget process. Represents the Executive Manager and the Budget Director in their absence.
Develops and executes the capital budget process for all departments. In conjunction with the Budget Director, provides
Commissioners Court with overall budget parameters, including countywide funding requirements. Participates in the
recruitment and selection of all departmental staff. Serves as a Senior Planning and Budget Analyst for assigned
departments. Works under general direction with extensive latitude for independent judgment and action.

DISTINGUISHING CHARACTERISTICS:

This is the first in a series of two budget-related job classifications within the Senior Management/Middle Management
job family. Focus is on the County’s Planning and Budget process. Incumbents in this classification lead and assist in
supervising the Budget Analysts and facilitate the handling of budget issues that are the most highly complex and that
may result in the most severe consequences with countywide implications. Must have comprehensive knowledge of
budget techniques, program evaluation, and financial principles and practices. This classification may require a flexible
work schedule in order to meet the needs of the department.

DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES:

• Coordinates every phase of planning and development of the Adopted Budget for both countywide processes and
assigned departments. Conducts budget reviews and prepares analysis of departmental budget requests with
minimal supervision. Presents findings to the Commissioners Court in a public forum and defends conclusions
reached with Elected and Appointed Officials.

• Develops and executes the capital budget process for all departments, including the periodic updating of the Travis
County Debt Model which projects the amount of capital that can be purchased in any fiscal year and stay within
Commissioners Court Debt Policy.

• Monitors the execution of departmental budgets, analyzes departmental expenditure patterns for anomalies,
evaluates financial plans, interprets budget variances and acts as liaison with County departments concerning
budgetary and policy matters. Monitors capital budget. Functions as a team leader on special projects and is
responsible for training and mentoring new analysts. Responsible for training all new staff. Supervises the PBO
Office Manager. Provides general staff direction for all analysts.

• Conducts independent departmental, programmatic and functional evaluations, research and analysis. Presents
findings and recommendations directly to Commissioners Court, including departmental reorganizations, new
programs and management analysis. Functions as member of interdepartmental problem solving teams to address
high priority County issues with broad organizational impact. Prepares economic, social and programmatic research
on countywide trends and finances for evaluation of present and future components of County services.
Coordinates the development of the countywide Planning and Budget Manual and annual Budget Rules.

• Performs periodic expenditure forecasts, cost-effectiveness analysis and other financial studies. Performs cost
comparisons and cost/benefit analysis. Develops forecasts to facilitate short and long-term financial needs,
including the determination of the timing and means of debt and other long term financing methods. Develops
evaluative and statistical methods to appraise operating results. Analyzes and interprets fiscal variances. Evaluates
data from national, state and local sources to assist in the planning and evaluation process.

• Represents the Executive Manager and the Budget Director in their absence.

• Performs other job-related duties as assigned.

Page 1 of 3 35

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Assistant Budget Director

JOB CODE: 26043 FLSA STATUS: Exempt
PAY GRADE: 26 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS:

Education and Experience:
Bachetor’s degree in Business Administration, Public Administration, Accounting, Finance or a directly related field AND
eight (8) years experience in the area of budget analysis and management, public administration and/or local
governmental finance, including two (2) years of mid- to senior level supervisory or management experience. Extensive
experience with strategic planning, development of outcome measures and financial forecasts;

OR,

Any combination of education and experience that has been achieved and is equivalent to the stated education and
experience and required knowledge, skills, and abilities sufficient to successfully perform the duties and responsibilities
of this job.

Licenses, Registrations, Certifications, or Special Requirements:
Valid Texas Driver’s License.

Preferred:
Master’s degree in Public Administration or a directly related field.

Knowledcje, Skills, and Abilities:
Knowledge of:
• Supervisory principles, practices and techniques.
• Training professional staff and supervising staff.
• Federal, State, Local and County applicable program laws, rules, regulations and guidelines.
• Basic principles of public administration and budgeting.
• Program evaluation.
• Financial principles and practices.
• State and local issues.
• Organization and management principles.
• Computer equipment to include word processing, spreadsheets, databases and a variety of software packages.
• Business letter writing, grammar and punctuation, and report preparation.

Skill in:
• Problem-solving and decision-making.
• Strategic planning and analysis.
• Public policy research, statistical methods and financial analysis.
• Both verbal and written communication, including public presentations.

Ability to:
• Develop procedures and make budgetary recommendations.
• Work with both the large and small details.
• Manage time well, perform multiple tasks and organize diverse activities.
• Speak and write at the highest level.
• Establish and maintain effective working relationships with other governmental entities, Elected and Appointed

Officials, civic groups, other County employees and officials, and the general public.

Page 2 of 3

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Assistant Budget Director

JOB CODE: 26043 FLSA STATUS: Exempt
PAY GRADE: 26 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

WORK ENVIRONMENT AND PHYSICAL DEMANDS:

Physical requirements include the ability to lift/carry up to 10-15 pounds occasionally, visual acuity, speech and hearing,
hand and eye coordination and manual dexterity necessary to operate a computer and office equipment. Subject to
standing, walking, sitting, repetitive motion, reaching, climbing stairs, bending, stooping, kneeling, crouching, crawling,
pushing, pulling, balancing, client/customer contact, squatting to perform the essential functions.

This job description is intended to be generic in nature. It is not necessarily an exhaustive list of all duties
and responsibilities. The essential duties, functions and responsibilities and overtime eligibility may vary
based on the specific tasks assigned to the position.

37Page 3 of 3

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Budget Director

JOB CODE: 31450 FLSA STATUS: Exempt
PAY GRADE: 31 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

JOB SUMMARY:

Under minimal direction, manages operational elements of the County’s overall budget process, including budget
preparation and monitoring, in consultation with the Executive Manager Planning and Budget. Directly supervises
budget analysts on executing budget and finance matters, including evaluation and resource recommendations for all
departmental operating and capital budget requests, including current funding base calculations, total departmental
expenditures, and grants. Makes presentations directly to Commissioners Court in public and must defend conclusions
to Elected and Appointed Officials. Interacts with Elected and Appointed Officials concerning their budget requests for
new funding and requests to modify adopted departmental budgets during the year. Serves as the primary contact with
the County Auditor’s Office for accounting and finance matters. Represents the Executive Manager in the absence to
the Commissioners Court, the public and press, and other governmental agencies. Ensures prompt and accurate
development of the countywide multi-million dollar budget. Makes primary recommendations directly to the
Commissioners Court on more efficient procedures for countywide operations. Insures that countywide expenditures are
within approved budgets. Represents Travis County on City/County and County/State study teams. The position has
considerable discretion and independence in accomplishing all responsibilities.

DISTINGUISHING CHARACTERISTICS:

This is the second in a series of two budget-related job classifications within the Senior Management/Middle
Management job family. Incumbent’s in this classification reports directly to the department head and functions as the
second highest level of management within the department.

DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES:

• Provides to the Commissioners Court the overall parameters of the countywide budget, including the consolidation
of departmental current funding requirements, and countywide funding requirements, such as projected salary
increases, retirement increases, health insurance increases, and all other recommended additional funding
allocations, in conjunction with the Executive Manager.

• Prepares recapitulation of countywide funds in Preliminary, Proposed, and Adopted Budgets, including the
reconciliation of interfund transfers. Coordinates the projected total expenditures of all funds and estimated
revenues from recommended budget requests. Responsible for producing and filing the Preliminary, Proposed and
Adopted Budgets.

• Provides day-to-day operational supervision of analysts on budget and finance matters. Reviews all analysts’
recommendations for logic and accuracy. Consolidates and prioritizes all budget recommendations into the
Preliminary and Proposed Budgets. Meets with analysts and departments to review budget recommendations.
Intervenes with departments when necessary to resolve conflicts between departments and analysts. Performs
duties of Senior Analysts in their absence.

• Supervises and/or conducts departmental, programmatic, functional and organizational evaluations and analysis,
and presents findings and recommendations to the Executive Manager and/or the Commissioners Court. Assists in
the development of outcome and performance measures in County departments. Serves as Project Director on
various budget and/or research projects as assigned. Assists in planning and coordinating the County’s planning
and budget process.

• Oversees staff and operations of the Cash Investment Management Office. Provides general administrative and
programmatic oversight.

• Supervises and/or conducts departmental, programmatic, functional, and organizational evaluations and analysis,
and presents findings and recommendations to the Executive Manager and/or the Commissioners Court. Assists in
the development of outcome and performance measures in County departments. Serves as Project Director on
various budget and/or research projects as assigned.

• Supervises and/or performs periodic expenditure forecasts, cost-effectiveness analysis, and other financial studies.
Supervises and/or conducts fiscal, management, program, and issue/policy development analysis.

Page 1 of 3 :38

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Budget Director

JOB CODE: 31450 FLSA STATUS: Exempt
PAY GRADE: 31 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES: (Cont.)

• Represents the Planning and Budget Office at Commissioners Court meetings. Participates in the recruitment,
selection, evaluation and discipline of all departmental staff. Trains analysts in appropriate concepts, methods,
tools, and procedures relevant to financial planning, organizational analysis, operations research and other
techniques.

• Performs other job-related duties as assigned.

MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS:

Education and Experience:
Bachelor’s degree in Public Administration, Business Administration, Economics, Accounting, Finance or a directly
related field AND eight (8) years of responsible administrative/supervisory level experience, using an automated
performance based budget system, including four (4) years of mid- to senior level supervisory or management
experience supervising budget analysts and financial management within a County or comparable environment;

OR,

Any combination of education and experience that has been achieved and is equivalent to the stated education and
experience and required knowledge, skills, and abilities sufficient to successfully perform the duties and responsibilities
of this job.

Licenses, Registrations, Certifications, or Special Requirements:
None required.

Preferred:
Master’s degree in Public Administration, Business Administration, Economics, Accounting, Finance or a directly related
field.
Certified Public Accountant (CPA).

Knowledge, Skills, and Abilities:
Knowledge of:
• Basic principles of public administration, accounting and budgeting, and state and local issues.
• Organization, management and supervisory principles, practices and techniques.
• Policies, practices, procedures and terminology related to budgeting.
• Program evaluation.
• Financial principles and practices.
• State and local issues.
• Federal, State, Local and County applicable program laws, rules, regulations and guidelines.
• Standard practices in area of assignment.
• Computer equipment to include word processing, spreadsheets, databases and a variety of software packages.
• Business English, letter writing, grammar and punctuation, and report preparation.

Skill in:
• Statistical methods.
• Financial analysis.
• Directing and managing others, including team building.
• Project direction and coordination.
• Developing long-term strategies.
• Problem-solving and decision-making.
• Training, managing and evaluating the work of others.
• Preparing and making public presentations and communications.
• Both verbal and written communication.

Page 2 of 3

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Budget Director

JOB CODE: 31450 FLSA STATUS: Exempt
PAY GRADE: 31 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS: (Cont.)

Ability to:
• Develop budget formats and procedures and to make budgetary recommendations.
• Bring together several viewpoints and ideas to a balanced position.
• Direct, motivate, train and educate others in budgetary and automation matters.
• Reason and make judgments and decisions.
• Reach sound conclusions and make realistic recommendations based on facts and objective analysis.
• Work with both the large and small details.
• Manage time well, perform multiple tasks and organize diverse activities.
• Perform in a stressful environment while maintaining a professional manner.
• Research, compile, analyze, interpret and prepare a variety of memorandums or reports.
• Establish and maintain effective working relationships with other governmental entities, Elected and Appointed

Officials, civic groups, other County employees and officials, and the general public.

WORK ENVIRONMENT AND PHYSICAL DEMANDS:

Physical requirements include the ability to lift/carry up to 25 pounds occasionally, visual acuity, speech and hearing, hand
and eye coordination and manual dexterity necessary to operate a computer and office equipment. Subject to standing,
walking, sitting, repetitive motion, reaching, climbing stairs, bending, stooping, kneeling, crouching, crawling, pushing,
pulling, balancing, client/customer contact, squatting to perform the essential functions.

This job description is intended to be generic in nature. It is not necessarily an exhaustive list of all duties
and responsibilities. The essential duties, functions and responsibilities and overtime eligibility may vary
based on the specific tasks assigned to the position.

Page 3 of 3

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Veterans Services Officer

JOB CODE: 21583 FLSA STATUS: Exempt
PAY GRADE: 21 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

JOB SUMMARY:

Oversees the operations and staff of the CounWs veterans’ assistance program. Supervises staff engaged in advising
and assisting veterans in matters pertaining to their rights and benefits under various federal and state statutes.
Manages and participates in the planning and development of policies, procedures and programs to accomplish goals and
objectives. Oversees and performs managerial, consultative, technical and administrative work. Develops and
recommends strategic plans and new program initiatives, and assists in preparing annual budget. Advises and assists
the Commissioners Court on veterans and military affairs.

DISTINGUISHING CHARACTERISTICS:

This is a job classification within the Senior Management/Middle Management job family. Incumbents in this
classification supervise personnel engaged in advising and assisting veterans in matters pertaining to their rights and
benefits based on various Federal and State laws. Independent judgment is exercised in the interpretation of the rules
and regulations.

DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES:

• Supervises, plans, organizes, implements, monitors and evaluates the overall operations, staff and functions of the
CounWs veterans’ assistance program. Oversees and ensures conformity with Federal, State and Local laws,
policies and procedures.

• Manages staff, including hiring, training, performance evaluation, disciplinary actions and dismissals, and ensures
activities are consistent with goals and objectives. Seeks and creates opportunities for improved performance,
learning and development of staff and identifies and addresses problems or conflicts.

• Oversees and conducts initial veteran eligibility assessment. Interviews clients and other appropriate individuals.
Reviews and analyzes documentation and determines benefits.

• Manages and coordinates counseling to veterans and other appropriate affected individuals related to disability
and/or pension benefits. Prepares and submits applications and documentation for requested benefits. Partners
with various veteran organizations and community agencies in administering veterans programs.

• Assists in providing legal and medical research in support of veterans’ claims when claims are denied or disputed.
Screens, reviews and analyzes case-related material. Prepares legal briefs and documentation, coordinates
witnesses, presents arguments, responds to inquiries, and drafts correspondence.

• Assists in the commitment of veterans to appropriate healthcare and living facilities.

• Prepares and administers program budget. Monitors and approves budget expenditures to ensure consistently with
program goals and objectives and remaining available funds.

• Prepares, receives or and reviews statistical and programmatic reports, monitors programs and interprets findings.
Evaluates current programs, procedures and practices on an on-going basis. Plans and develops policies,
procedures and programs to enhance efficiency and effectiveness of operations and services.

• Prepares and presents public speaking forums to community groups. Provides information and referral to veterans
and other City, County, State and Federal agencies.

• Performs other job-related duties as assigned.

MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS:

Education and Experience:
Bachelor’s degree in Business Administration, Public Administration, one of the Social Sciences or a directly related field
AND four (4) years experience in veterans services or related work, including experience in the law, regulations and
rulings of the United States Department of Veterans Affairs;

Page 1 of 3 <JL/

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Veterans Services Officer

JOB CODE: 21583 FLSA STATUS: Exempt
PAY GRADE: 21 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS: (Cont.)

Education and Experience: (Cont.)

OR,

Any combination of education and experience that has been achieved and is equivalent to the stated education and
experience and required knowledge, skiNs, and abilities sufficient to successfully perform the duties and responsibilities
of this job.

Licenses, Registrations, Certifications, or Special Requirements:
Licensed to practice before the United States Court of Appeals for Veterans Claims as non-attorney practitioner.
Served on active duty in a branch of the armed forces or Nurses Corps of the United States for at least four (4) months
or have a service-connected disability and have received an Honorable Military Discharge DD 214. If service experience
is not met, be a widowed Gold Star Mother or unremarried widow of a serviceman or veteran whose death resulted from
service.
Both certified and an Accredited Veterans Service Officer with the Texas Veterans Commission.
Be (or become) a member of the Veterans County Service Officers Association of Texas.
Be (or become) a member of the National Association of County Veterans Service Officers.
Provide to the Commissioners Court a certificate of approval by the Texas Veterans Commission.
Valid Texas Driver’s License.

Knowledge, Skills, and Abilities:
Knowledge of:
• Management and supervisory principles, practices and techniques.
• Policies, practices, procedures and terminology related to veterans services.
• Federal, State, Local and County applicable laws, rules, regulations and applicable services standards and

procedures.
• Law office management and administrative practice before the US Court of Veterans Appeals.
• Advocacy groups, clinical and other service providers and community outreach services.
• Budget development, preparation and monitoring.
• Computer equipment to include word processing, spreadsheets, databases and a variety of software packages.
• Business letter writing, grammar and punctuation, and report preparation.

Skill in:
• Supervising and managing others.
• Problem-solving and decision-making.
• Training, managing and evaluating the work of others.
• Developing and monitoring budgets.
• Preparing and making presentations.
• Obtaining information from clients and other sources.
• Case file examination for documentation accuracy.
• Both verbal and written communication.

Ability to:
• Supervise, motivate, train, develop and evaluate staff.
• Perform legal research and explain legal issues, terms and court procedures.
• Plan, assign and evaluate the work of staff.
• Reason and make judgments and decisions.
• Manage time well, perform multiple tasks and organize diverse activities.
• Develop and access client advocacy programs.
• Establish and maintain effective working relationships with departmental clientele, veterans services system

representatives, other representatives of outside agencies, other County employees and officials, community outreach
and other organizations, and the general public.

Page 2 of 3

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Veterans Services Officer

JOB CODE: 21583 FLSA STATUS: Exempt
PAY GRADE: 21 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

WORK ENVIRONMENT AND PHYSICAL DEMANDS:

Physical requirements include the ability to lift/carry up to 5-15 pounds occasionally, visual acuity, speech and hearing,
hand and eye coordination and manual dexterity necessary to operate a computer and office equipment. Subject to
standing, walking, sitting, repetitive motion, reaching, climbing stairs, bending, stooping, kneeling, crouching, crawling,
pushing, pulling, balancing, client/customer contact, squatting to perform the essential functions.

This job description is intended to be generic in nature. It is not necessarily an exhaustive list of all duties
and responsibilities. The essential duties, functions and responsibilities and overtime eligibility may vary
based on the specific tasks assigned to the position.

Page3of3 3

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Office Manager

JOB CODE: 19708 FLSA STATUS: Exempt
PAY GRADE: 19 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

JOB SUMMARY:

Provides day-to-day management over administrative and operational functions, including Budgeting, Purchasing,
Human Resources, Payroll, Records Management, Information Technology and office functions. Plans and coordinates
office services and related activities. Makes recommendations relating to the establishment of office administrative
processes, policies and procedures. Identifies and resolves operational problems to ensure operation at maximum
efficiency. Plans, supervises, schedules and monitors a section of office employees whose duties are specialized and
involve varied procedures and methods. Answers questions on policies and procedures.

DISTINGUISHING CHARACTERISTICS:

This is the first in a series of two office management-related job classifications within the Senior Management/Middle
Management job family. This classification is distinguished from the Office Manager Senior in that incumbents are first
line managers who oversee the administrative functions of a department and duties are primarily supervisory and
administrative in nature.

DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES:

• Provides day-to-day management over the administrative and operational functions within a department. Manages
operations to meet deadlines. Advises Elected Official or department head of issues.

• Implements office administrative policies and procedures and makes recommendations for improvement. Answers
questions on policies and procedures. Evaluates operations and makes recommendations for improvement.
Handles and resolves personnel management issues, develops and/or assists in the development of performance
standards and measures to ensure resources are allocated effectively.

• Evaluates, implements, and makes recommendations on processes, policies, procedures and systems to improve
departmental office operations and ensure operating at maximum efficiency. Establishes and/or assists on
establishing policy and procedures for department. Researches, monitors, and ensures changes in applicable laws,
regulations, and directives that impact the department. Ensures compliance with current policies, procedures, and
regulations. Oversees efficient operations of departmental records management, including files, reports, and
storage.

• Manages, plans, delegates, coordinates, monitors and evaluates work of support staff, and reviews their work
involving well-defined procedures. May hire, orient and train support staff. May make recommendations on merit
increases, disciplinary actions, and dismissals. Schedules substitute coverage or acts as back-up for all staff.

• Performs complex administrative assistant tasks. Prepares calendars and schedules. May prepare
correspondence for Elected Official or department head.

• Makes recommendations regarding budget requirements for staffing and equipment needs. Monitors personal
services budget and/or operating budget expenditures. Ensures contracting and purchasing procedures are
followed. May prepare purchase orders. May order and purchase needed equipment and supplies.

• Oversees the receipt and deposit of fees and fines collected. May develop and implement departments accounting
and financial fiscal oversight systems to monitor and safeguard the budget, revenues, and purchases. Compiles
comprehensive reports. May prepare and/or assist in preparing annual budget documents. Establishes budgetary
needs and forecasts service revenue. Works with agencies on statistical reports and inquiries.

• Ensures building maintenance is completed. Works with support departments to ensure facility is properly
maintained. Continuously evaluates operations and makes recommendations for improvements. Evaluates
computer needs and makes recommendations for automation needs of the department. Provides information and
advice concerning specialized or technical services rendered and related office functions, including responding to
and resolving difficult issues and problems, client inquires, complaints and questions raised by public served or by
subordinates.

Pagelof3

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Office Manager

JOB CODE: 19708 FLSA STATUS: Exempt
PAY GRADE: 19 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES: (Cont.)

May represent the represent the County by attending meetings, community meetings, seminars, conferences and
professional association meetings. Participates in private organizations and participates serves on related
committees. Works with County departments and outside agencies in sharing information and addressing issues.
May serve as the department liaison.

• Performs other job-related duties as assigned.

MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS:

Education and Experience:
Bachelor’s degree in Public Administration, Business Administration, Business Management, Government, Political
Science, Criminal Justice or a directly related field AND four (4) years of professional experience with a broad
administrative support activity, such as human resources, records management, purchasing, contracting, financial
analysis, budgeting, information technology, payroll, and office functions, including one (1) year of mid- to senior level
supervisory or management experience;

OR,

Any combination of education and experience that has been achieved and is equivalent to the stated education and
experience and required knowledge, skills, and abilities sufficient to successfully perform the duties and responsibilities
of this job.

Licenses, Registrations, Certifications, or Special Requirements:
Valid Texas Driver’s License.

Knowledge, Skills, and Abilities:
Knowledge of:
• Management and supervision practices and techniques.
• Federal, State, Local and County applicable laws, rules, regulations and guidelines.
• Policies, practices, procedures and terminology of assigned function.
• Filing and reporting requirements.
• Legal research procedures.
• Accounting, purchasing and budgetary theory, principles and practices.
• Computer equipment to include word processing, spreadsheets, databases and a variety of software packages.
• Business letter writing, grammar and punctuation, and report preparation.

Skill in:
• Supervising others, making presentations and evaluating programs.
• Problem-solving and decision-making.
• Developing databases and conducting research.
• Both verbal and written communication.

Ability to:
• Train and supervise office personnel.
• Plan, assign, motivate and coordinate work of support staff.
• Compile and analyze data, and to write clear and comprehensive reports.
• Assist in monitoring a budget, implementing and maintaining filing and accounting systems.
• Research, compile, analyze, interpret and prepare a variety of fiscal, statistical, legal, and administrative reports.
• Manage time well, perform multiple tasks and organize diverse activities.
• Perform in a stressful environment, while maintaining a professional manner.
• Independently prepare correspondence, memorandums and other materials.
• Establish and maintain effective working relationships with departmental clientele, attorneys, judges, representatives

of outside agencies, other County employees and officials, and the general public.

Page 2 of 3 </e.( 5

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Office Manager

JOB CODE: 19708 FLSA STATUS: Exempt
PAY GRADE: 19 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

WORK ENVIRONMENT AND PHYSICAL DEMANDS:

Physical requirements include the ability to lift/carry up to 20-50 pounds occasionally, visual acuity, speech and hearing,
hand and eye coordination and manual dexterity necessary to operate a computer and office equipment. Subject to
standing, walking, sitting, repetitive motion, reaching, climbing stairs, bending, stooping, kneeling, crouching, crawling,
pushing, pulling, balancing, client/customer contact, squatting to perform the essential functions.

This job description is intended to be generic in nature. It is not necessarily an exhaustive list of all duties
and responsibilities. The essential duties, functions and responsibilities and overtime eligibility may vary
based on the specific tasks assigned to the position.

Page3of3

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Office Manager Senior

JOB CODE: 21709 FLSA STATUS: Exempt
PAY GRADE: 21 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

JOB SUMMARY:

Oversees daily management of administrative and operational functions, including Budgeting, Purchasing, Human
Resources, Payroll, Records Management, Information Technology and office functions. Plans, supervises, schedules
and monitors a section of office employees whose duties are specialized and involve varied procedures and methods.
Answers questions on policies and procedures.

DISTINGUISHING CHARACTERISTICS:

This is the second in a series of two office management-related job classifications within the Senior Management/Middle
Management job family. This classification is distinguished from the Office Manager in that incumbents have more
experience, are responsible for the most complex and involved office administrative operations, and duties are primarily
financial, supervisory, and administrative in nature.

DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES:

• Oversees daily management of administrative and operational functions within the department, including Budgeting,
Purchasing, Human Resources, Payroll, Records Management, Information Technology and office functions.
Manages operations to meet deadlines. Advises Elected Official or department head of issues.

• Develops and implements office administrative policies and procedures to ensure operating at maximum efficiency.
Answers questions on policies and procedures. Evaluates operations and makes recommendations for
improvement. Handles and resolves personnel management issues, develops performance standards and
measures to ensure resources are allocated effectively.

• Plans, evaluates, establishes and implements processes, policies, procedures and systems to improve
departmental office operations. Researches, monitors and ensures changes in applicable laws, regulations and
directives that impact the department. Ensures compliance with reporting requirements and legislative mandates.
Oversees efficient operations of the departmental records management, including files, reports and storage.

• Manages, plans, delegates, coordinates, monitors and evaluates work of support staff, and reviews their work
involving well-defined procedures. Hires and trains support staff. Makes recommendations on merit increases,
disciplinary actions and dismissals. Oversees and schedules substitute coverage or acts as back-up for all staff.

• Performs the most complex administrative tasks. Prepares calendars and schedules. Prepares correspondence for
Elected Official or department head.

• Performs highly technical analysis, complex financial and budgetary analysis and makes recommendations.
Collects, analyzes, researches, documents, audits financial data and prepares financial documents and reports.
Prepares and/or assists in preparing annual budget documents. Develops and implements departments accounting
and financial fiscal oversight systems to monitor and safeguard the budget, revenues and purchases. Establishes
budgetary needs and forecasts service revenue. Compiles comprehensive reports.

• Manages and maintains all purchasing functions. Monitors personal services budget and/or operating budget
expenditures. Ensures contracting and purchasing procedures are followed. May prepare purchase orders. May
order and purchase needed equipment and supplies. Works with agencies on statistical reports and inquiries.

• Ensures building maintenance is completed. Works with support departments to ensure facility is properly
maintained. Works with County departments and outside agencies in sharing information and addressing issues.
Oversees and is responsible for maintaining department inventory.

• Evaluates training needs and develops strategies to address needs. Conducts training or secures training to ensure
training needs are met. Evaluates computer needs and makes determination for departments automation needs.
Continuously evaluates operations and makes recommendations for improvements.

• Represents the County by attending meetings, community meetings, seminars, conferences and professional
association meetings. Participates in private organizations and participates serves on related committees. Serves
as the department liaison. May serve as spokesperson to media and outside agencies.

Page 1 of 3 (f4 7

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Office Manager Senior

JOB CODE: 21709 FLSA STATUS: Exempt
PAY GRADE: 21 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES: (Cont.)

• Provides information and advice concerning specialized or technical services rendered and related office functions,
including responding to and resolving the most difficult and sensitive issues and problems, client inquires,
complaints and questions raised by public served or by subordinates.

• Performs other job-related duties as assigned.

MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS:

Education and Experience:
Bachelor’s degree in Public Administration, Business Administration, Business Management, Government, Political
Science, Criminal Justice or a directly related field AND five (5) years of professional experience with a broad
administrative support activity, such as human resources, payroll, records management, purchasing, contracting,
financial analysis, budgeting, information technology and office functions, including two (2) years of mid- to senior level
supervisory or management experience;

OR,

Any combination of education and experience that has been achieved and is equivalent to the stated education and
experience and required knowledge, skills, and abilities sufficient to successfully perform the duties and responsibilities
of this job.

Licenses, Registrations, Certifications, or Special Requirements:
Valid Texas Driver’s License.

Knowledge, Skills, and Abilities:
Knowledge of:
• Management and supervision practices and techniques.
• Federal, State, Local and County applicable laws, rules, regulations and guidelines.
• Policies, practices, procedures and terminology of assigned function.
• Filing and reporting requirements.
• Legal research procedures.
• Accounting, purchasing and budgetary theory, principles and practices.
• Computer equipment to include word processing, spreadsheets, databases and a variety of software packages.
• Business letter writing, grammar and punctuation, and report preparation.

Skill in:
• Supervising others, making presentations and evaluating programs.
• Problem-solving and decision-making.
• Developing databases and conducting research.
• Both verbal and written communication.

Ability to:
• Train and supervise office personnel.
• Plan, assign, motivate and coordinate work of support staff.
• Compile and analyze data, and to write clear and comprehensive reports.
• Assist in monitoring a budget, implementing and maintaining filing and accounting systems.
• Research, compile, analyze, interpret and prepare a variety of fiscal, statistical, legal, and administrative reports.
• Manage time well, perform multiple tasks and organize diverse activities.
• Perform in a stressful environment while maintaining a professional manner.
• Independently prepare correspondence, memorandums and other materials.
• Establish and maintain effective working relationships with departmental clientele, attorneys, judges, representatives

of outside agencies, other County employees and officials, and the general public.

Page2of3

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Office Manager Senior

JOB CODE: 21709 FLSA STATUS: Exempt
PAY GRADE: 21 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

WORK ENVIRONMENT AND PHYSICAL DEMANDS:

Physical requirements include the ability to lift/carry up to 20-50 pounds occasionally, visual acuity, speech and hearing,
hand and eye coordination and manual dexterity necessary to operate a computer and office equipment. Subject to
standing, walking, sitting, repetitive motion, reaching, climbing stairs, bending, stooping, kneeling, crouching, crawling,
pushing, pulling, balancing, client/customer contact, squatting to perform the essential functions.

This job description is intended to be generic in nature. It is not necessarily an exhaustive list of all duties
and responsibilities. The essential duties, functions and responsibilities and overtime eligibility may vary
based on the specific tasks assigned to the position.

Page3of3

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Legal Services Program Manager

JOB CODE: 24400 FLSA STATUS: Exempt
PAY GRADE: 24 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

JOB SUMMARY:

Under limited supervision. Oversees the daily management of the administrative and operational functions within the
department. Plans, supervises, trains and directs a section of legal office employees whose duties are specialized and
involve varied procedures and methods. Performs highly complex legal administrative tasks and activities, such as
financial reporting, budget, grants, purchasing, payroll and other accounting transactions. Answers questions on policies
and procedures.

DISTINGUISHING CHARACTERISTICS:

This is a job classification within the Senior Management/Middle Management job family. Incumbents are first line
managers who oversee the administrative functions of a department.

DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES:

• Manages the administrative and operational functions within the legal department, including Budgeting, Purchasing,
Human Resources, Payroll, Records Management, Information Technology and other legal office functions.
Manages operations to meet deadlines. Advises Elected Official or department head of issues.

• Develops and implements long-term legal departmental policies and procedures. Answers questions on policies
and procedures. Evaluates operations and makes recommendations for improvement. Handles and resolves
personnel management issues, develops performance standards and measures to ensure resources are allocated
effectively.

• Manages, plans, delegates and directs the work of legal support staff. Reviews their work involving well-defined
procedures and ensures conformity to departmental policies. Selects, trains and evaluates subordinate staff. May
make recommendations on merit increases, disciplinary actions and dismissals. Determines priorities, schedules and
assigns work. Oversees and schedules substitute coverage or acts as back-up for all staff. Evaluates training
needs and develops strategies to address needs. Conducts training or secures training to ensure training needs are
met.

• Performs complex legal administrative tasks and activities. Maintains and prepares calendars, schedules and all
travel arrangements. Prepares legal documents and correspondence and prepares statistical reports. Performs
complex legal research and discovery. Oversees efficient operations of departmental records management,
including legal files, reports and storage. Verifies accuracy and completeness of legal documents and files. Follows
up on items to ensure timely completion and statutory compliance.

• Develops, conducts and reviews highly complex and specialized financial analysis, research and reports. Analyzes,
tracks and updates departmental salary projections. Processes departmental payroll and timesheets. Assists in the
development and execution of the annual departmental budget submission. Monitors personal services budget
and/or operating budget and revenues and prepares budget transfers, as required. Monitors the office’s compliance
with the adopted budget and all budget rules. Authorizes purchase requests in accordance with the adopted budget.
Oversees and is responsible for maintaining legal department inventory. Maintains legal records management and
retention program in compliance with County procedures. Secures legal records and sensitive documents. May
order and purchase needed equipment and supplies.

• Provides information and advice concerning specialized or technical services rendered and related office functions,
including responding and resolving difficult issues and problems, client inquires, complaints and questions raised by
public served or by subordinates.

• Performs other job-related duties as assigned.

MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS:

Education and Experience:
Bachelor’s degree in Public Administration, Business Administration, Business Management, Government, Political
Science, Criminal Justice or a directly related field AND five (5) years of professional and legal support experience with a
broad administrative support activity, such as human resources, payroll, records management, purchasing, contracting,
financial analysis, budgeting, information technology and office functions, including two (2) years of mid- to senior level
supervisory or management experience;

Page 1 of 3

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Legal Services Program Manager

JOB CODE: 24400 FLSA STATUS: Exempt
PAY GRADE: 24 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS: (Cont.)

Education and Exierience:

OR,

Any combination of education and experience that has been achieved and is equivalent to the stated education and
experience and required knowledge, skills, and abilities sufficient to successfully perform the duties and responsibilities
of this job.

Licenses, Registrations, Certifications, or Special Requirements:
Valid Texas Driver’s License.

Knowledge, Skills, and Abilities:
Knowledge of:
• Management and supervision practices and techniques.
• Policies, practices, procedures and legal terminology related to court system.
• Federal, State, Local and County applicable laws, rules, regulations and guidelines.
• Legal documents and forms.
• Filing and reporting requirements.
• Methods of research and sources of legal information.
• Accounting, purchasing and budgetary theory, principles and practices.
• Computer equipment to include word processing, spreadsheets, databases and a variety of software packages.
• Business English, spelling and arithmetic, letter writing, grammar and punctuation, and report preparation.

Skill in:
• Supervising others, making presentations and evaluating programs.
• Problem-solving and decision-making.
• Developing databases and conducting research.
• Both verbal and written communication.

Ability to:
• Train and supervise office personnel.
• Plan, assign, motivate and coordinate work of support staff.
• Work independently on difficult or complex legal, clerical and administrative tasks and instruments.
• Compile and analyze data, and to write clear and comprehensive reports.
• Assist in monitoring a budget, implementing and maintaining filing and accounting systems.
• Research, compile, analyze, interpret and prepare a variety of fiscal, statistical, legal and administrative reports.
• Manage time well, and perform multiple tasks and organize diverse activities.
• Perform in a stressful environment while maintaining a professional manner.
• Independently prepare, verify and correct legal documents, correspondence, memorandums and other materials.
• Establish and maintain effective working relationships with departmental clientele, attorneys, judges, representatives

of outside agencies, other County employees and officials, and the general public.

Page2of3 5 1

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Legal Services Program Manager

JOB CODE: 24400 FLSA STATUS: Exempt
PAY GRADE: 24 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

WORK ENVIRONMENT AND PHYSICAL DEMANDS:

Physical requirements include the ability to lift/carry up to 20-50 pounds occasionally, visual acuity, speech and hearing,
hand and eye coordination and manual dexterity necessary to operate a computer and office equipment. Subject to
standing, walking, sitting, repetitive motion, reaching, climbing stairs, bending, stooping, kneeling, crouching, crawling,
pushing, pulling, balancing, client/customer contact, squatting to perform the essential functions.

This job description is intended to be generic in nature. It is not necessarily an exhaustive list of all duties
and responsibilities. The essential duties, functions and responsibilities and overtime eligibility may vary
based on the specific tasks assigned to the position.

Page 3 of 3 .L/2

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Juvenile Probation Division Manager

JOB CODE: 22778 FLSA STATUS: Exempt
PAY GRADE: 22 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

JOB SUMMARY:

Under administrative direction, plans, manages, organizes and supervises the staff and operation of a division within a
juvenile justice system. Directs and manages conformity with State and Federal laws and guidelines, and policies and
procedures for the health, safety and welfare of juveniles. Assists in planning, organizing, developing, scheduling and
implementing policies, procedures, goals and objectives of the division. Manages the staffing, training, development and
performance evaluation of division staff. May be assigned oversight of the facility in the absence of Division Director.

DISTINGUISHING CHARACTERISTICS:

This is the first in a series of four juvenile probation-related job classifications within the Senior Management/Middle
Management job family. This classification is distinguished by the administrative and management duties and
responsibilities performed in overseeing the staff and operations of a division under the direction of a division director
level position. This classification may require work in secure facilities. This classification may require a flexible work
schedule in order to meet the needs of the department.

DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES:

• Assists Division Director in planning, managing, organizing, monitoring and evaluating the staff and overall
operations of a division. Directs and ensures conformity with State and Federal laws and guidelines, and policies
and procedures for the health, safety and welfare of juveniles.

• Oversees management staff and others, including hiring, training, performance evaluation, disciplinary actions and
dismissals, and ensures activities are consistent with goals and objectives. Seeks and creates opportunities for
improved performance, learning and development of staff. Identifies and addresses problems or conflicts.

• Plans, organizes, develops, schedules and implements policies, procedures, goals and objectives of the unit.

• Prepares, receives and reviews a variety of fiscal, administrative and statistical reports and interprets findings.
Evaluates current programs, procedures and practices on an on-going basis. Plans and develops policies,
procedures and programs to enhance efficiency and effectiveness and monitors the unit’s workload to ensure that
quality services are being provided.

• Assists in the development and implementation of comprehensive strategic plans for the division.

• Provides high-level technical advice, policy interpretation and guidance for application of appropriate procedures to
supervisors and other staff.

• Assists in preparation and administration of division budget. Monitors and approves budget expenditures to ensure
consistently with system goals and objectives and remaining available funds. Establishes internal control
procedures for budget related activities.

• Represents the department and serves as a liaison for local and statewide committees and task forces, advisory
groups and the general public. Serves as spokesperson to media and outside agencies.

• Performs administrative division tasks, as required.

• Performs other job-related duties as assigned.

MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS:

Education and Experience:
Bachelors degree in Public Administration, Business Administration or one of the Social or Behavioral Sciences or a
directly related field AND five (5) years of increasingly responsible experience in a social service, community corrections
or a juvenile agency, including two (2) years of mid- to senior level supervisory or management experience;

Page 1 of 3 933

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Juvenile Probation Division Manager

JOB CODE: 22778 FLSA STATUS: Exempt
PAY GRADE: 22 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS: (Cont.)

Education and Experience: (Cont.)

OR,

Any combination of education and experience that has been achieved and is equivalent to the stated education and
experience and required knowledge, skills, and abilities sufficient to successfully perform the duties and responsibilities
of this job.

Licenses, Registrations, Certifications, or Special Requirements:
Must be at least 21 years of age.
Certification as a Juvenile Probation Officer and/or Detention Officer or eligible for certification within six (6) months of
employment, including successful completion of Cardio-pulmonary Resuscitation (CPR) Certification, First Aid and
Handle with Care (state approved physical restraint technique).
Valid Texas Driver’s License.

Preferred:
One (1) year of experience in full time casework management.
Experience in correctional administration.

Knowledge, Skills, and Abilities:
Knowledge of:
• Management and supervisory principles, practices and techniques.
• Policies, procedures, practices and terminology of assigned function.
• Federal, State and Local laws and program requirements.
• Budgetary practices and techniques.
• Computer equipment to include word processing, spreadsheets, databases and a variety of software packages.
• Business letter writing, grammar and punctuation, and report preparation.

Skill in:
• Supervising others, allocating resources and evaluating programs.
• Strategic planning, developing, monitoring and evaluating of programs.
• Leadership and collaboration.
• Problem-solving and decision-making.
• Developing and monitoring program budgets.
• Both verbal and written communication, including presentations.

Ability to:
• Direct, motivate, train, develop and evaluate staff.
• Develop and implement policies and procedures and operational plans or activities.
• Create and recommend program initiatives.
• Gather and evaluate facts to develop individual program planning and appropriate case disposition.
• Serve as technical consultant and liaison.
• Prepare administrative and statistical reports.
• Manage time well, perform multiple tasks and organize diverse activities.
• Prepare correspondence, memorandums and other written materials.
• Work with mentally disturbed, hostile and aggressive individuals.
• Establish and maintain effective working relationships with departmental clientele, representatives of outside

agencies and providers, other County employees and officials, and the general public.

Page 2 of 3

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Juvenile Probation Division Manager

JOB CODE: 22778 FLSA STATUS: Exempt
PAY GRADE: 22 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

WORK ENVIRONMENT AND PHYSICAL DEMANDS:

Physical requirements include the ability to lift/carry up to 50-100 pounds occasionally, visual acuity, speech and hearing,
hand and eye coordination and manual dexterity necessary to operate a computer and office equipment. Subject to
standing, walking, sitting, repetitive motion, reaching, climbing stairs, bending, stooping, kneeling, crouching, crawling,
pushing, pulling, balancing, squatting to perform the essential functions. Requires exposure to hostile behavior from
clients. May be subject to contact with noise, vibration, fumes, foul odor, dirt, dust, mist, gases and poor ventilation.
Subject to contact with communicable diseases, radiation, hazardous waste, human fecal matter and foul odors. Subject to
stressful environment and client and customer contact for extended periods of time.

This job description is intended to be generic in nature. It is not necessarily an exhaustive list of all duties
and responsibilities. The essential duties, functions and responsibilities and overtime eligibility may vary
based on the specific tasks assigned to the position.

Page3of3
/ ..___)___‘

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Court Services Management Admin Coord

JOB CODE: 18396 FLSA STATUS: Exempt
PAY GRADE: 18 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

JOB SUMMARY:

Coordinates and supervises the staff and daily operation of an assigned court system process or program. Oversees
compliance with applicable State and Federal laws and guidelines, and departmental policies and procedures. Evaluates
and participates in the development of policies, programs and procedures and makes recommendations to facilitate
efficiency and effectiveness.

DISTINGUISHING CHARACTERISTICS:

This is a job classification within the Senior Management/Middle Management job family. Incumbent’s in this
classification coordinates and supervises the staff and daily operation of an assigned court system process or program.
Assists management in planning and developing programs, policies and procedures, goals and objectives of the unit.

DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES:

• Organizes office activities and supervises and assigns the work and activities of professional and/or support staff
which includes hiring, training, work distribution, performance appraisal and discipline.

• Prepares reports, compiles statistics, and monitors the unit’s workload to ensure that quality services are being
provided.

• Conducts research and plans or assists in planning and developing programs, policies and procedures, goals and
objectives of the unit. May assist in budget preparations and monitoring.

• Assists with the coordination of division functions with other divisions or other representatives within the Court
system.

• May perform administrative duties, conduct staff meetings and chair staff committees.

• May represent the department and advocate with local businesses, community organizations, other public and
private entities and the general public.

• May prepare and submit grant proposals to State and Federal agencies and ensure compliance with contract
agreements.

• Performs other job-related duties as assigned.

MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS:

Education and Experience:
Bachelor’s degree in one of the Social or Behavioral Sciences, Social Work, Sociology, Psychology, Counseling, Education,
Criminal Justice or a directly related field AND four (4) years of increasingly responsible experience in social services,
community corrections or juvenile agency, including one (1) year of lead, mid- to senior level supervisory or management
experience;

OR,

Any combination of education and experience that has been achieved and is equivalent to the stated education and
experience and required knowledge, skills, and abilities sufficient to successfully perform the duties and responsibilities
of this job.

Licenses, Registrations, Certifications, or Special Requirements:
None required.

Preferred:
Licensed Chemical Dependency Counselor (LCDC).

Page 1 of 2 (J/5.

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Court Services Management Admin Coord

JOB CODE: 18396 FLSA STATUS: Exempt
PAY GRADE: 18 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS: (Cont.)

Knowledge. Skills, and Abilities:
Knowledge of:
• Management and supervisory principles, practices and techniques.
• Policies, practices, procedures and terminology of assigned function.
• Standard practices in area of assignment.
• Computer equipment to include word processing, spreadsheets, databases and a variety of software packages.
• Business letter writing, grammar and punctuation, and report preparation.

Skill in:
• Supervising others.
• Problem-solving and decision-making.
• Both verbal and written communication.

Ability to:
• Plan, assign, motivate, and coordinate work of staff to achieve specific service objectives.
• Manage time well, and perform multiple tasks and organize diverse activities.
• Independently prepare correspondence, memorandums, and other materials.
• Research, compile, analyze, interpret and prepare a variety of fiscal, statistical and administrative reports.
• Establish and maintain effective working relationships with departmental clientele, representatives of outside

agencies, other County employees and officials, attorneys, children, judges and the general public.

WORK ENVIRONMENT AND PHYSICAL DEMANDS:

Physical requirements include the ability to lift/carry up to 10-25 pounds occasionally, visual acuity, speech and hearing,
hand and eye coordination and manual dexterity necessary to operate a computer and office equipment. Subject to
standing, walking, sitting, repetitive motion, reaching, climbing stairs, bending, stooping, kneeling, crouching, crawling,
pushing, pulling, balancing, client/customer contact, squatting to perform the essential functions.

This job description is intended to be generic in nature. It is not necessarily an exhaustive list of all duties
and responsibilities. Duties and responsibilities and overtime eligibility may vary based on the specific tasks
assigned to the position.

Page2of2 -fs7

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: District Clerk Jury Manager

JOB CODE: 20397 FLSA STATUS: Exempt
PAY GRADE: 20 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

JOB SUMMARY:

Manages, directs and coordinates jury management activities. Plans for future services and budgetary needs. Manages
budget and other resources. Manages and evaluates staff. Establishes policies and oversees development of
corresponding procedures. Attends meetings with related agencies as jury liason.

DISTINGUISHING CHARACTERISTICS:

This is a job classification within the Senior Management/Middle Management job family. Oversees a division in the
District Clerk’s Office. Typically manages a subordinate group of professionals through supervisory or lead staff.

DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES:

• Manages, plans, organizes, implements, monitors and evaluates the overall operations of jury management
activities. Manages the development and implementation of comprehensive strategic plans for the department.
Oversees all aspects of the impaneling process. Ensures that adequate numbers of jurors are summoned and are
available to fill all jury panel requests from the Courts. Ensures all eligible jurors are assigned to a Court panel.

• Manages, plans, delegates, coordinates, monitors and evaluates work of support staff, and reviews their work
involving well-defined procedures. Hires and trains support staff. Makes recommendations on merit increases,
disciplinary actions and dismissals. Oversees and schedules substitute coverage or acts as back-up for all staff.

• Serves as department liaison between related departments and outside agencies. Meets with the impaneling judge
in advance to coordinate activities. Oversees activities relating to automation for the department. Includes creation
of juror service records. Integrates online impaneling with in-person impaneling processes.

• Provides information and advice concerning specialized or technical services rendered and related office functions,
including responding to and resolving the most difficult and sensitive issues and problems, client inquires,
complaints and questions raised by public served or by subordinates. Resolves problems and develops alternatives
when necessary. Monitors personal services budget and/or operating budget expenditures.

• Performs other job-related duties as assigned.

MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS:

Education and Experience:
Bachelor’s degree in Public Administration, Business Administration, Government, Criminal Justice or a directly related
field AND five (5) years of progressively responsible experience in government or related field, including two (2) years of
mid- to senior level supervisory or management experience;
OR,
Any combination of education and experience that has been achieved and is equivalent to the stated education and
experience and required knowledge, skills, and abilities sufficient to successfully perform the duties and responsibilities
of this job.

Licenses, Registrations, Certifications, or Special Requirements:
None required.

Knowledge, Skills, and Abilities:
Knowledge of:
• Management and supervisory principles, practices and techniques.
• Jury management.
• Policies, practices, procedures and terminology of assigned function.
• Federal, State and Local program laws and requirements.
• Budgetary practices and techniques.
• Computer equipment to include word processing, spreadsheets, databases and a variety of software packages.
• Business letter writing, grammar and punctuation, and report preparation.

Page 1 of 2

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: District Clerk Jury Manager

JOB CODE: 20397 FLSA STATUS: Exempt
PAY GRADE: 20 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS: (Cont.)

Skill in:
• Supervising others, allocating resources and evaluating programs.
• Strategic planning, developing, monitoring and evaluating of programs.
• Leadership and collaboration.
• Problem-solving and decision-making.
• Developing and monitoring program budgets.
• Both verbal and written communication, including presentations.

Ability to:
• Direct, motivate, train, develop and evaluate staff.
• Develop and implement policies and procedures and operational plans or activities.
• Create and recommend program initiatives.
• Gather and evaluate facts to develop individual program planning and appropriate case disposition.
• Serve as technical consultant and liaison.
• Prepare administrative and statistical reports.
• Manage time well, perform multiple tasks and organize diverse activities.
• Prepare correspondence, memorandums and other written materials.
• Work with mentally disturbed, hostile and aggressive individuals.
• Establish and maintain effective working relationships with departmental clientele, representatives of outside

agencies and providers, other County employees and officials, and the general public.

WORK ENVIRONMENT AND PHYSICAL DEMANDS:

Physical requirements include the ability to lift/carry up to 5-15 pounds occasionally, visual acuity, speech and hearing,
hand and eye coordination and manual dexterity necessary to operate a computer and office equipment. Subject to
standing, walking, sitting, repetitive motion, reaching, climbing stairs, bending, stooping, kneeling, crouching, crawling,
pushing, pulling, balancing, client/customer contact, squatting to perform the essential functions.

This job description is intended to be generic in nature. It is not necessarily an exhaustive list of all duties
and responsibilities. The essential duties, functions and responsibilities and overtime eligibility may vary
based on the specific tasks assigned to the position.

Page2of2

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: County I District Clerk Division Director

JOB CODE: 26751 FLSA STATUS: Exempt
PAY GRADE: 26 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

JOB SUMMARY:

Manages and coordinates all functions of a County or District Clerk division, including, but not limited to, management of
division employees, supervision of programs and operations of the division, and representation of the County or District
Clerk in an official capacity. Manages operations in accordance with State, Federal and Local laws and guidelines, policies
and procedures.

DISTINGUISHING CHARACTERISTICS:

This is a job classification within the Senior Management/Middle Management job family. Incumbent’s in this
classification oversees a division in the County or District Clerk’s Office. Typically manages a subordinate group of
professionals through supervisory or lead staff.

DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES:

• Manages, plans, organizes, implements, monitors and evaluates the overall operations, staff and functions of a
County or District Clerk division. Directs and ensures conformity with State, Federal and Local laws, policies and
procedures. Assigns and monitors workload through subordinate supervisors.

• Oversees supervisors and other staff, including hiring, training, performance evaluation, disciplinary actions and
dismissals, and ensures activities are consistent with goals and objectives. Seeks and creates opportunities for
improved performance, learning and development of staff. Identifies and addresses problems or conflicts.

• Plans, organizes, develops, schedules and implements policies, procedures, goals and objectives of the division.

• Prepares, receives and reviews a variety of fiscal, administrative and statistical reports and interprets findings.
Evaluates current programs, procedures and practices on an on-going basis. Plans and develops policies,
procedures, programs and goals to enhance efficiency and effectiveness. Monitors the division workload to ensure
that quality services are being provided.

• Assists in the development and implementation of comprehensive strategic plans for the division.

• Provides high-level technical advice, policy interpretation and guidance for application of appropriate procedures to
supervisors and other staff.

• Assists in preparation and administration of division budget. Monitors and approves budget expenditures to ensure
consistently with system goals and objectives and remaining available funds. Establishes internal control
procedures for budget related activities.

• Represents the department in coordinating activities with various governmental and other agencies, advocacy
groups, local, regional and statewide committees and the general public. Coordinates with agencies providing
similar services to deliver and enhance service needs.

• Performs other job-related duties as assigned.

MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS:

Education and Experience:
Bachelor’s degree in Public Administration, Business Administration, Government, Criminal Justice or a directly related
field AND five (5) years of progressively responsible experience in government or related field, including two (2) years of
mid- to senior level supervisory or management experience;

OR,

Any combination of education and experience that has been achieved and is equivalent to the stated education and
experience and required knowledge, skills, and abilities sufficient to successfully perform the duties and responsibilities
of this job.

Page 1 of 2

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: County I District Clerk Division Director

JOB CODE: 26751 FLSA STATUS: Exempt
PAY GRADE: 26 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS: (Cant.)

Licenses, Registrations, Certifications, or Special Requirements:
None required.

Knowledge, Skills, and Abilities:
Knowledge of:
• Management and supervisory principles, practices and techniques.
• Policies, practices, procedures and terminology of assigned function.
• Federal, State and Local program laws and requirements.
• Budgetary practices and techniques.
• Computer equipment to include word processing, spreadsheets, databases and a variety of software packages.
• Business letter writing, grammar and punctuation, and report preparation.

Skill in:
• Supervising others, allocating resources and evaluating programs.
• Strategic planning, developing, monitoring and evaluating programs.
• Leadership and collaboration.
• Problem-solving and decision-making.
• Developing and monitoring program budgets.
• Both verbal and written communication, including presentations.

Ability to:
• Direct, motivate, train, develop and evaluate staff.
• Develop and implement policies and procedures and operational plans or activities.
• Create and recommend program initiatives.
• Gather and evaluate facts to develop individual program planning and appropriate case disposition.
• Serve as technical consultant and liaison.
• Prepare administrative and statistical reports.
• Manage time well, perform multiple tasks and organize diverse activities.
• Prepare correspondence, memorandums and other written materials.
• Work with mentally disturbed, hostile and aggressive individuals.
• Establish and maintain effective working relationships with departmental clientele, representatives of outside

agencies and providers, other County employees and officials, and the general public.

WORK ENVIRONMENT AND PHYSICAL DEMANDS:

Physical requirements include the ability to lift/carry up to 5-15 pounds occasionally, visual acuity, speech and hearing,
hand and eye coordination and manual dexterity necessary to operate a computer and office equipment. Subject to
standing, walking, sitting, repetitive motion, reaching, climbing stairs, bending, stooping, kneeling, crouching, crawling,
pushing, pulling, balancing, client/customer contact, squatting to perform the essential functions.

This job description is intended to be generic in nature. It is not necessarily an exhaustive list of all duties
and responsibilities. The essential duties, functions and responsibilities and overtime eligibility may vary
based on the specific tasks assigned to the position.

Page2of2 </:2) I

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Juvenile Probation Division Director

JOB CODE: 25397 FLSA STATUS: Exempt
PAY GRADE: 25 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

JOB SUMMARY:

Directs the overall operations, staff and functions of a division within a juvenile justice system through subordinate
managers. Provides leadership, management and coordination in planning, organizing, implementing and evaluating
division operations in accordance with State, Federal and Local laws, policies, procedures and guidelines. Develops
division strategic plans to accomplish goals and objectives and improve effectiveness and efficiency of services. Directs
the staffing, training, development and performance evaluation of division staff.

DISTINGUISHING CHARACTERISTICS:

This is the second in a series of four juvenile probation-related job classifications within the Senior Management/Middle
Management job family. This classification is distinguished by the administrative and management duties and
responsibilities performed in directing the staff and operations of a division through subordinate managers. This
classification may require a flexible work schedule in order to meet the needs of the department.

DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES:

• Directs, plans, organizes, implements, monitors and evaluates the overall operations, staff and functions of a division.
Directs and ensures conformity with State and Federal laws and guidelines, and policies and procedures for the
health, safety and welfare of juveniles.

• Directs management and staff, including hiring, training, performance evaluation, disciplinary actions and dismissals,
and ensures activities are consistent with goals and objectives. Seeks and creates opportunities for improved
performance, learning and development of staff, and identifies and addresses problems or conflicts.

• Develops division strategic plans to accomplish goals and objectives and improve effectiveness and efficiency of
services.

• Oversees and participates in development of division policies, procedures, goals and objectives. Directs the
scheduling of day-to-day operations and staffing for the division.

• Prepares and reviews a variety of fiscal, administrative and statistical reports, and interprets findings. Evaluates
current programs, procedures and practices on an on-going basis. Plans and develops policies, procedures and
programs to enhance efficiency and effectiveness and monitors the division’s workload to ensure that quality
services are being provided.

• Prepares and administers division budget. Monitors and approves budget expenditures to ensure consistently with
system goals and objectives and remaining available funds. Establishes internal control procedures for budget
related activities.

• Provides high-level technical advice, policy interpretation and guidance for application of appropriate procedures to
managers and other staff.

• Represents the department and serves as a liaison for local and statewide committees and task forces, advisory
groups and the general public. Serves as spokesperson to media and outside agencies.

• Performs other job-related duties as assigned.

MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS:

Education and Experience:
Bachelor’s degree in Public Administration, Business Administration or one of the Social or Behavioral Sciences or a
directly related field AND six (6) years of increasingly responsible experience in a social service, community corrections
or a juvenile agency, including three (3) years of mid- to senior level supervisory or management experience;
OR,
Any combination of education and experience that has been achieved and is equivalent to the stated education and
experience and required knowledge, skills, and abilities sufficient to successfully perform the duties and responsibilities
of this job.

Page 1 of 3

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Juvenile Probation Division Director

JOB CODE: 25397 FLSA STATUS: Exempt
PAY GRADE: 25 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS: (Cont.)

Licenses, Registrations, Certifications, or Special Requirements:
Must be at least 21 years of age.
Certification as a Juvenile Probation Officer and/or Detention Officer or eligible for certification within six (6) months of
date of hire, including successful completion of Cardio-pulmonary Resuscitation (CPR) Certification, First Aid and
Handle with Care (state approved physical restraint technique).
Valid Texas Driver’s License.

Preferred:
One (1) year of experience in full time casework management.
Experience in correctional administration.

Knowledge. Skills, and Abilities:
Knowledge of:
• Management principles, practices and techniques.
• Policies, practices, procedures and terminology of assigned function.
• Federal, State and Local program laws and requirements.
• Budgetary practices and techniques.
• Computer equipment to include word processing, spreadsheets, databases and a variety of software packages.
• Business letter writing, grammar and punctuation, and report preparation.

Skill in:
• Directing management and staff, allocating resources and evaluating programs.
• Strategic planning, developing, monitoring and evaluating programs.
• Leadership and collaboration.
• Problem- solving and decision-making.
• Developing and monitoring program budgets.
• Both verbal and written communication, including presentations.

Ability to:
• Direct, motivate, train, develop and evaluate staff.
• Develop and implement policies and procedures and strategic and operational plans.
• Plan, develop, implement and evaluate program initiatives.
• Serve as a high-level technical consultant and liaison.
• Prepare administrative and statistical reports.
• Manage time well, perform multiple tasks and organize diverse activities.
• Prepare correspondence, memorandums and other written materials.
• May require the ability to work with mentally disturbed, hostile and aggressive individuals.
• Establish and maintain effective working relationships with departmental clientele, representatives of outside

agencies and providers, other County employees and officials, and the general public.

Page2of3

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Juvenile Probation Division Director

JOB CODE: 25397 FLSA STATUS: Exempt
PAY GRADE: 25 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

WORK ENVIRONMENT AND PHYSICAL DEMANDS:

Physical requirements include the ability to lift/carry up to 50-1 00 pounds occasionally, visual acuity, speech and hearing,
hand and eye coordination and manual dexterity necessary to operate a computer and office equipment. Subject to
standing, walking, sitting, repetitive motion, reaching, climbing stairs, bending, stooping, kneeling, crouching, crawling,
pushing, pulling, balancing, squatting to perform the essential functions. Requires exposure to hostile behavior from
clients. May be subject to contact with noise, vibration, fumes, foul odor, dirt, dust, mist, gases and poor ventilation. Subject
to contact with communicable diseases, radiation, hazardous waste, human fecal matter and foul odors. Subject to
stressful environment and client and customer contact for extended periods of time.

This job description is intended to be generic in nature. It is not necessarily an exhaustive list of all duties
and responsibilities. The essential duties, functions and responsibilities and overtime eligibility may vary
based on the specific tasks assigned to the position.

Page3of3

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Tax Assessor-Collection Division Director

JOB CODE: 28213 FLSA STATUS: Exempt
PAY GRADE: 28 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

JOB SUMMARY:

Directs, administers and manages operational activities of a divisional area.

DISTINGUISHING CHARACTERISTICS:

This is a job classification within the Senior Management/Middle Management job family. Directs and administers a
divisional area of tax operations. Distinguished in that incumbents have management and administrative responsibilities.

DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES:

• Directs and administers operational activities. Manages systems, staff and equipment of a contemporary, customer-
oriented service environment. Determines resources needed to meet service demands in various customer access
environments. Ensures service delivery systems comply with applicable Federal, State and Local laws.

• Directs the planning, development, coordination and implementation of annual strategic work plan to achieve
organizational mission statement, stated goals and objectives. Evaluates and reports on performance and develops
and implements quality improvements strategies.

• Evaluates operations and makes recommendations for improvement. Handles and resolves personnel
management issues, develops performance standards and measures to ensure resources are allocated effectively.
Evaluates, plans and implements systems, processes and procedures to ensure office operates at maximum
efficiency.

• Directs media and outreach programs and media relations. Issues official written and online publications, news
releases and newsletters. Evaluates and reports on contracted information services. Produces media
presentations, represents Elected Official and prepares and delivers speeches.

• Directs, manages and controls division budget. Prepares a variety of fiscal and administrative reports.

• Supervises support staff, evaluates staff job performance, coordinates, and prioritizes schedules and assignments
and authorizes staff productive and non-productive work hours. Orients and trains staff.

• Directs, administers and manages mandated training. Coordinates professional accreditation course curriculum.
Serves as liaison with other agencies.

• Attends and participates in meetings with other departments and agencies. Participate in professional association
meetings and serves on committees and boards related accreditation activities. Represents office at meetings and
in dealing with the public, public officials and other public agencies. Makes presentations. Coordinates with
appropriate Elected Officials, Appointed Officials and department heads for services, as required.

• Performs other job-related duties as assigned.

MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS:

Education and ExDerience:
Bachelor’s degree in Business Administration, Business Management, Public Administration, Government,
Communications, Public Relations or a directly related field AND five (5) years of increasingly responsible program
development division level experience, including four (4) years of mid- to senior level supervisory or management
experience;

OR,

Any combination of education and experience that has been achieved and is equivalent to the stated education and
experience and required knowledge, skills, and abilities sufficient to successfully perform the duties and responsibilities
of this job.

Page 1 of 2 5

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Tax Assessor-Collection Division Director

JOB CODE: 28213 FLSA STATUS: Exempt
PAY GRADE: 28 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS: (Cont.)

Licenses, Registrations, Certifications, or Special Requirements:
None required.

Preferred:
Master’s degree in Business Administration, Business Management, Public Administration, Government,
Communications, Public Relations or a directly related field.

Knowledge, Skills, and Abilities:
Knowledge of:
• Texas Property Tax Code, Texas Election Laws, Motor Vehicle Laws.
• Automated delivery systems in a call center environment.
• Federal, State, Local and County applicable laws, rules, regulations and guidelines.
• Management and supervisory principles, practices and techniques.
• Standard media practices.
• Adult learning principles and contemporary delivery methods.
• Standard practices in area of assignment.
• Supervisory principles, practices and techniques.
• Online computer searching and internet.
• Computer equipment to include word processing, spreadsheets, databases and a variety of software packages.
• Business letter writing, grammar and punctuation, and report preparation.

Skill in:
• Resolving supervisory/management issues, including planning and managing teams.
• Problem-solving and decision-making.
• Developing general and specific programs to reach certain segments of the public.
• Conflict resolution and community relations.
• Public speaking and content delivery.
• Both verbal and written communication.

Ability to:
• Train and supervise office personnel.
• Plan, organize and effectively direct projects.
• Develop and implement new and innovative ideas.
• Work on a wide variety of tasks simultaneously and produce timely and tangible results.
• Utilize online resources.
• Address complex issues.
• Manage time well, perform multiple tasks and organize diverse activities.
• Independently prepare correspondence, memorandums and other materials.
• Develop, analyze and interpret complex policies, regulations and procedures.
• Establish and maintain effective working relationships with departmental clientele, technical staff, state and local

officials, elected and appointed officials, members of the media, representatives of outside agencies, other County
employees and officials, and the general public.

WORK ENVIRONMENT AND PHYSICAL DEMANDS:
Physical requirements include the ability to lift/carry up to 20-50 pounds occasionally, visual acuity, speech and hearing,
hand and eye coordination and manual dexterity necessary to operate a computer and office equipment. Subject to
standing, walking, sitting, repetitive motion, reaching, climbing stairs, bending, stooping, kneeling, crouching, crawling,
pushing, pulling, balancing, client/customer contact, squatting to perform the essential functions.

This job description is intended to be generic in nature. It is not necessarily an exhaustive list of all duties
and responsibilities. The essential duties, functions and responsibilities and overtime eligibility may vary
based on the specific tasks assigned to the position.

Page 2 of 2

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Probation Division Manager

JOB CODE: 22398 FLSA STATUS: Exempt
PAY GRADE: 22 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

JOB SUMMARY:

Directs the day-to-day and overall operations and staff of a comprehensive and complex court services program. Plans
and develops policies, procedures and programs to accomplish goals and objectives and ensures conformity with State
and Federal laws and guidelines. Oversees and performs managerial, consultative, technical and administrative work,
develops and recommends strategic plans and new program initiatives, and directs and prepares annual program
budget.

DISTINGUISHING CHARACTERISTICS:

This is the first in a series of two probation-related job classifications within the Senior Management/Middle Management
job family. Incumbents in this classification is responsible for directing the operations and staff of a comprehensive and
complex court services program. This classification is responsible for developing strategic plans, goals and objectives,
initiatives, and budget for a large, comprehensive, complex program or programs. The classification has a broad scope of
operational and staff responsibility and typically directs through subordinate managers or supervisors.

DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES:

• Directs the planning and operations of a comprehensive and complex court services program. Directs subordinate
managers and staff, including hiring, training, performance evaluation, disciplinary actions and dismissals, ensuring
activities are consistent with policies, procedures, laws, regulations, goals and objectives. Creates opportunities for
improved performance, learning and development of staff. Identifies and addresses problems or conflicts.

• Directs and participates in the planning, developing and establishing of goals and objectives. Develops strategic
plans, policies and programs to accomplish goals and objectives.

• Directs service delivery and program operations. Oversees the establishment of procedures and priorities and directs
the monitoring of activities and assignments to achieve desired results. Resolves problems.

• Evaluates effectiveness of programs and operations and develops new and modified initiatives to improve
effectiveness. Directs the implementation and monitoring of new and existing programs.

• Provides high-level technical advice, policy interpretation, research and guidance for application of appropriate
procedures to managers and other staff.

• Directs and participates in development of annual program budget. Directs ongoing administration of approved budget
and oversees expenditures. Prepares proposals for funding or funding continuation, as required.

• Represents the organization and collaborates with representatives of the Court system, governmental and public
agency representatives, community outreach and, advocacy groups, service providers and others.

• Prepares periodic reports, financial analyses and statistical reports on program activities, results and performance.

• Performs other job-related duties as assigned.

MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS:

Education and Experience:
Bachelor’s degree in Social or Behavioral Sciences or a directly related field AND five (5) years of increasingly
responsible experience in social services or probation related work, including three (3) years mid- to senior level
supervisory or management experience;

OR,

Any combination of education and experience that has been achieved and is equivalent to the stated education and
experience and required knowledge, skills, and abilities sufficient to successfully perform the duties and responsibilities
of this job.

Page 1 of 3

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Probation Division Manager

JOB CODE: 22398 FLSA STATUS: Exempt
PAY GRADE: 22 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS: (Cont.)

Licenses, Registrations, Certifications, or Special Requirements:
Valid Texas Driver’s License.

Preferred:
Licensed Professional Counselor (LPC); OR,
Licensed Chemical Dependency Counselor (LCDC); OR,
Licensed Social Worker (LSW).
Certification as a Community Supervision Officer.

Knowledge, Skills, and Abilities:
Knowledge of:
• Management and supervisory principles, practices and techniques.
• Program administration and oversight techniques.
• Policies, practices, procedures and terminology of assigned function.
• Federal, State and Local program laws and requirements.
• Advocacy groups, social service providers and community outreach organizations.
• Conciliation and mediation concepts.
• Budgetary practices and techniques.
• Modern office practices, procedures and methods.
• Computer equipment to include word processing, spreadsheets, databases and a variety of software packages.
• Business letter writing, grammar and punctuation and report preparation.

Skill in:
• Strategic planning, developing, monitoring and evaluating of court services programs and services.
• Supervising others, allocating resources and evaluating programs.
• Leadership and collaboration.
• Problem-solving and decision-making.
• Negotiating, interviewing and investigating practices and techniques.
• Developing and monitoring program budgets.
• Both verbal and written communication, including presentations.

Ability to:
• Direct, motivate, train, develop and evaluate staff.
• Plan, assign, motivate and coordinate work of support staff to achieve specific service objectives.
• Serve as technical consultant and liaison.
• Evaluate psychological and other professional reports.
• Create and recommend program initiatives.
• Prepare administrative and statistical reports.
• Work independently and efficiently.
• Manage time well, perform multiple tasks and organize diverse activities.
• Establish and maintain effective working relationships with departmental clientele, representatives of outside

agencies and providers, other County employees and officials, and the general public.

Page 2 of 3

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Probation Division Manager

JOB CODE: 22398 FLSA STATUS: Exempt
PAY GRADE: 22 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

WORK ENVIRONMENT AND PHYSICAL DEMANDS:

Physical requirements include the ability to lift/carry up to 10-25 pounds occasionally, visual acuity, speech and hearing,
hand and eye coordination and manual dexterity necessary to operate a computer and office equipment. Subject to
standing, walking, sitting, repetitive motion, reaching, climbing stairs, bending, stooping, kneeling, crouching, crawling,
pushing, pulling, balancing, client/customer contact, squatting to perform the essential functions.

This job description is intended to be generic in nature. It is not necessarily an exhaustive list of all duties
and responsibilities. The essential duties, functions and responsibilities and overtime eligibility may vary

Lbased on the specific tasks assigned to the position.

Page 3of3

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Juvenile Shift Supervisor

JOB CODE: 19385 FLSA STATUS: Exempt
PAY GRADE: 19 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

JOB SUMMARY:

Responsible for shift activities on an assigned shift at the Juvenile Detention facility. Provides orientation for juveniles
entering detention. Plans and coordinates daily living activities and ensures that health, safety and welfare measures
and procedures are carried out by shift members and residents. May supervise evening and weekend personnel. May
be assigned oversight of the facility in the absence of higher level management.

DISTINGUISHING CHARACTERISTICS:

This is a job classification within the Senior Management/Middle Management job family. Provides supervision to clients
who have been placed in the juvenile facility by the Court system. Provides supervision to Juvenile Officer positions of
various types. Duties performed are of a more complex nature and type. Incumbents in this classification typically
functions as a working lead over the activities of other positions in addition to the normal range of duties. May require
work in secure facilities. Remains on-call 24 hours a day, seven days a week. This classification may require a flexible
work schedule in order to meet the needs of the department.

DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES:

• Supervises shift activities within the juvenile facility, including assigned personnel, assigns tasks to shift workers and
schedules part-time employees. Conducts mandatory training sessions and staff meetings.

• Assumes responsibility during assigned shift for juveniles detained in the detention facility.

• Provides orientation for juveniles entering the system during the shift, and programs and coordinates daily living
activities for the residents, including health and personal hygiene, counseling, recreation, education and social
experiences.

• Maintains chronological logs concerning juveniles, including medical and emotional conditions.

• Writes reports and communicates significant observations to the staff, parents, attorneys, and judges. Ensures that
chronological records of the juveniles in the facility are updated daily at the end of the shift.

• Inspects and maintains safety, sanitation and security of the facilities, and ensures that all policies and procedures
regarding safety, sanitation and security of residents and staff are followed.

• Establishes probable cause and makes decisions to detain youth.

• Researches and maintains current knowledge of family law, counseling, treatment techniques, and departmental
policies and procedures. Maintains current knowledge of available community resources for making referrals.

• Receives data and processes information concerning juveniles.

• Participates in in-service training and continuing education.

• Maintains records and generates statistical and other reports, as required.

• Ensures that all incident and medical reports are written and distributed to appropriate persons at the end of each
shift.

• Ensures that appropriate persons are contacted in the event of a dorm incident or medical emergency.

• Communicates with law enforcement agencies, correctional agencies, attorneys and families as needed. Counsels
residents and shift members.

• Conducts employee job performance evaluations, trains, supervises, recommends and carries out disciplinary
action for line staff, in conjunction with the manager.

• Conducts research and recommends programs and policies.

• Investigates resident and line staff complaints and recommends appropriate action.

Pagelof3 -/‘ 79

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Juvenile Shift Supervisor

JOB CODE: 19385 FLSA STATUS: Exempt
PAY GRADE: 19 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES: (Cont.)

• Classifies and updates juveniles according to policy to determine level of supervision and placement.

• Conducts grievance resolution with residents to ensure staff is in compliance with progressive discipline model and
policies, procedures, laws and standards.

• May screen cases referred to the Court and take appropriate action.

• Performs other job-related duties as assigned.

MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS:

Education and Experience:
Bachelor’s degree in Criminal Justice or in one of the Social or Behavioral Sciences, Social Work, Sociology, Psychology,
Counseling or a directly related field AND four (4) years increasingly responsible experience in probation, community
corrections, social services or related work, including one (1) year mid- to senior level lead, supervisory or management
experience;

OR,

Any combination of education and experience that has been achieved and is equivalent to the stated education and
experience and required knowledge, skills, and abilities sufficient to successfully perform the duties and responsibilities
of this job.

Licenses, Registrations, Certifications, or Special Requirements:
Must be at least 21 years of age.
Certification as a Juvenile Probation Officer and Detention Officer or eligible for certification within six (6) months of date
of hire, including successful completion of Cardio-pulmonary Resuscitation (CPR) Certification, First Aid and Handle with
Care (state approved physical restraint technique).
Valid Texas Driver’s License.

Knowledge, Skills, and Abilities:
Knowledge of:
• Supervisory principles, practices and techniques.
• Policies, practices, procedures and legal terminology related to Court system.
• Federal, State, Local and County applicable laws, rules, regulations and applicable juvenile justice system standards

and procedures.
• Standard practices in area of assignment.
• Psychological concepts of good behavior, social adjustment and emotional stability.
• Standard counseling techniques.
• Safety and security techniques and standards.
• Physical restraint techniques to control aggressive behavior.
• First aid techniques.
• Computer equipment to include word processing, spreadsheets, databases and a variety of software packages.

Skill in:
• Training, supervising and reviewing the work of others.
• Monitoring and responding to client behavior.
• Problem-solving and decision-making.
• Interviewing clients.
• Both verbal and written communication.

Page2of3
7/7f

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Juvenile Shift Supervisor

JOB CODE: 19385 FLSA STATUS: Exempt
PAY GRADE: 19 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS: (Cont.)

Ability to:
• Train, guide, organize and assign the work of others.
• Make investigations and report the results clearly, accurately and impartially.
• Gather, analyze and evaluate facts to develop individual program plans and appropriate case dispositions.
• Develop, analyze and interpret policies and procedures.
• Deal effectively with mentally disturbed, hostile and aggressive individuals.
• Manage time well, perform multiple tasks and organize diverse activities.
• Research, compile, analyze, interpret and prepare a variety of fiscal, statistical and administrative reports.
• Perform in a stressful environment while maintaining a professional manner.
• Establish and maintain effective working relationships with departmental clientele, representatives of outside

agencies, other County employees and officials, and the general public.

WORK ENVIRONMENT AND PHYSICAL DEMANDS:

Physical requirements include the ability to lift/carry up to 50-100 pounds occasionally, visual acuity, speech and hearing,
hand and eye coordination and manual dexterity necessary to operate a computer and office equipment. Subject to
standing, walking, sitting, repetitive motion, reaching, climbing stairs, bending, stooping, kneeling, crouching, crawling,
pushing, pulling, balancing, squatting to perform the essential functions. Requires exposure to hostile behavior from
clients. May be subject to contact with noise, vibration, fumes, foul odor, dirt, dust, mist, gases and poor ventilation. Subject
to contact with communicable diseases, radiation, hazardous waste, human fecal matter and foul odors. Subject to
stressful environment and client and customer contact for extended periods of time.

This job description is intended to be generic in nature. It is not necessarily an exhaustive list of all duties
and responsibilities. The essential duties, functions and responsibilities and overtime eligibility may vary
based on the specific tasks assigned to the position.

Page3of3 ‘/ 72..

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Juvenile Case Work Manager

JOB CODE: 19391 FLSA STATUS: Exempt
PAY GRADE: 19 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

JOB SUMMARY:

Manages the personnel and tasks of assigned work unit. Manages the compliance with applicable State and Federal
laws and guidelines, and departmental policies and procedures. Conducts research, plans programs, policies and
procedures, goals and objectives of the unit. May manage an assigned caseload. May be assigned oversight of the
facility and administrative functions in the absence of the Division Manager.

DISTINGUISHING CHARACTERISTICS:

This is a job classification within the Senior Management/Middle Management job family. Incumbent’s in this
classification oversees and manages the daily operations of employees assigned to supervise and monitor progress of
clients within the juvenile justice system. Provides assistance to staff and makes recommendations on the more complex
client issues. May require work in secure facilities. This classification may require a flexible work schedule in order to
meet the needs of the department.

DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES:

• Manages the daily operations of employees assigned to supervise and monitor progress of clients within the juvenile
justice system. Interviews, hires, trains, manages, develops and evaluates employee performance. Counsels
employees as necessary to improve performance. Disciplines and terminates employees, as required.

• Plans, schedules, distributes and monitors workload. Ensures work is performed in accordance with laws, policies
and procedures. Sets priorities on tasks. Oversees functions to ensure work is completed and objectives are met.

• Evaluates, recommends and initiates change in office policies and procedures. Prepares reports. Assists in
analyzing operations. Assists in budget preparation.

• Provides oversight and guidance to staff and makes recommendations on the more complex client issues.

• Prepares reports, compiles statistics and monitors the unit’s workload to ensure that quality services are being
provided.

• Conducts research, plans programs, policies and procedures, goals and objectives of the unit. Develops,
implements and evaluates programs to address specialized needs and provides clinical program oversight.

• May manage an assigned caseload. Conducts case reviews and audits, and develops, implements and reviews
case management systems. Maintains case files and computer records on each case.

• Investigates and processes complaints from clients and their families, citizens, public and private agencies,
attorneys, judges and others. Resolves problems.

• Assists with the coordination of division functions with other divisions.

• Represents the department in coordinating activities with other departments, various law enforcement agencies,
governmental and other agencies.

• May perform administrative division tasks, staff meetings and chair staff committees. May be assigned oversight of
the facility and administrative functions in the absence of the Division Manager.

• May coordinate client’s transportation needs according to policy and procedures.

• Performs other job-related duties as assigned.

MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS:

Education and Experience:
If assigned to Domestic Relations:
Bachelor’s degree in one of the Social or Behavioral Sciences, Social Work, Sociology, Psychology, Counseling, Education,
Criminal Justice or a directly related field AND four (4) years of increasingly responsible experience in social services,
community corrections, or juvenile agency, including one (1) year mid- to senior level supervisory or management
experience;

Pagelof3 <1/ 73

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Juvenile Case Work Manager

JOB CODE: 19391 FLSA STATUS: Exempt
PAY GRADE: 19 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS: (Cont.)

Education and Experience: (Cont.)

OR,

Any combination of education and experience that has been achieved and is equivalent to the stated education and
experience and required knowledge, skills, and abilities sufficient to successfully perform the duties and responsibilities
of this job.

Licenses, Registrations, Certifications, or Special Requirements:
Valid Texas Driver’s License.

Preferred:
Licensed Social Worker (LSW); OR, Licensed Professional Counselor (LPC); OR, Licensed Marriage and Family Therapist.
Master’s degree in one of the Social or Behavioral Sciences, Social Work, Sociology, Psychology, Counseling, Education,
Criminal Justice or a directly related field.

If not assigned to Domestic Relations:
Bachelor’s degree in one of the Social or Behavioral Sciences, Social Work, Sociology, Psychology, Counseling, Education,
Criminal Justice or a directly related field AND four (4) years of increasingly responsible experience in social services,
community corrections, or juvenile agency, including at least one (1)year in lead, supervisory or management experience;

OR,

Any combination of education and experience that has been achieved and is equivalent to the stated education and
experience and required knowledge, skills, and abilities sufficient to successfully perform the duties and responsibilities
of this job.

Licenses, Registrations, Certifications, or Special Requirements:
Must be at least 21 years of age.
Certification as a Juvenile Probation Officer and Detention Officer or eligible for certification within six (6) months of date of
hire, including successful completion of Cardio-pulmonary Resuscitation (CPR) First Aid and Handle with Care (state
approved physical restraint technique).
Valid Texas Driver’s License.

Preferred:
Licensed Social Worker (LSW); OR, Licensed Professional Counselor (LPC); OR, Licensed Marriage and Family Therapist.
Master’s degree in one of the Social or Behavioral Sciences, Social Work, Sociology, Psychology, Counseling, Education,
Criminal Justice or a directly related field.

Knowledge, Skills, and Abilities:
Knowledge of:
• Family law and the District Court system.
• Conciliation and mediation concepts.
• Management and supervisory principles, practices and techniques.
• Policies, practices, procedures and legal terminology related to court system.
• Standard practices in area of assignment.
• Computer equipment to include word processing, spreadsheets, databases and a variety of software packages.
• Business letter writing, grammar and punctuation, and report preparation.

Page 2 of 3

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Juvenile Case Work Manager

JOB CODE: 19391 FLSA STATUS: Exempt
PAY GRADE: 19 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS: (Cont)

Skill in:
• Supervising others.
• Developing general and specific programs to reach certain segments of the public.
• Public speaking and content delivery.
• Negotiating, interviewing and investigating practices and techniques.
• Problem-solving and decision-making.
• Both verbal and written communication.

Ability to:
• Train and supervise office personnel.
• Plan, assign, motivate, and coordinate work of support staff to achieve specific service objectives.
• Accurately assess the present and future needs of a child, to present that child’s case and advocate their best interests

in court as well as out of court for as long as the case is in the court system.
• Evaluate psychological and other professional reports.
• Research and maintain legal concepts.
• Perform in a stressful environment while maintaining a professional manner.
• Manage time well, perform multiple tasks and organize diverse activities.
• Independently prepare correspondence and memorandums and other materials.
• Research, compile, analyze, interpret and prepare a variety of fiscal, statistical and administrative reports.
• Establish and maintain effective working relationships with departmental clientele, representatives of outside

agencies, other County employees and officials, attorneys, children, judges and the general public.

WORK ENVIRONMENT AND PHYSICAL DEMANDS:

Physical requirements include the ability to lift/carry up to 50-100 pounds occasionally, visual acuity, speech and hearing,
hand and eye coordination and manual dexterity necessary to operate a computer and office equipment. Subject to
standing, walking, sitting, repetitive motion, reaching, climbing stairs, bending, stooping, kneeling, crouching, crawling,
pushing, pulling, balancing, squatting to perform the essential functions. Requires exposure to hostile behavior from
clients. May be subject to contact with noise, vibration, fumes, foul odor, dirt, dust, mist, gases and poor ventilation.
Subject to contact with communicable diseases, radiation, hazardous waste, human fecal matter and foul odors. Subject to
stressful environment and client and customer contact for extended periods of time.

This job description is intended to be generic in nature. It is not necessarily an exhaustive list of all duties
and responsibilities. The essential duties, functions and responsibilities and overtime eligibility may vary
based on the specific tasks assigned to the position.

Page3of3 7 /)

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Probation Case Work Manager

JOB CODE: 19150 FLSA STATUS: Exempt
PAY GRADE: 19 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

JOB SUMMARY:

Oversees and manages the daily operations of employees assigned to supervise clients who have been placed on
community supervision by the courts. Plans, schedules, distributes and monitors workload. Ensures work is performed
in accordance with laws, policies and procedures. Recommends and initiates changes in office policies and procedures.
Provides casework assistance and makes decisions on client issues.

DISTINGUISHING CHARACTERISTICS:

This is a job classification within the Senior Management/Middle Management job family. Incumbents in this
classification oversees and manages the daily operations of employees assigned to supervise and monitor progress of
clients who have been placed on community supervision. This classification provides casework assistance to staff and
makes decisions on client issues. This classification may require work in secure facilities.

DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES:

• Manages the daily operations of employees assigned to supervise clients who have been placed on community
supervision by the courts, enforces conditions of community supervision and monitors all aspects of casework related
to the conditions of community supervision. Interviews, trains, manages, develops and evaluates employee
performance. Counsels employees as necessary to improve performance. Develops performance improvement
plans and disciplines employees, as required. Maintains employee supervision files and documents all pertinent
information.

• Plans, schedules, distributes and monitors workload. Ensures work is performed in accordance with laws, policies
and procedures. Sets priorities on tasks. Oversees functions to ensure work is completed and objectives are met.

• Evaluates, recommends and initiates changes in office policies and procedures. Prepares reports. Assists in
analyzing operations. May assist in budget preparation. May require grant writing.

• Provides oversight and guidance to staff and makes decisions on client issues. Staffs cases with Probation Officers.

• Conducts administrative and supervisory hearings for clients not in compliance with their conditions of community
supervision.

• Investigates complaints from clients, their families, judicial entities and the general public.

• Conducts case audits on a continuing basis.

• Maintains databases, compiles statistics and prepares reports related to work performed.

• May coordinate building maintenance issues and equipment in unit.

• Represents the department in coordinating activities with various law enforcement, governmental and other
agencies. Participates in planning projects. Presents informational programs to community organizations and
educational institutions.

• Conducts staff meetings and may chair staff committees. May serve on various task forces or administrative
committees as requested by Administration.

• Performs other job-related duties as assigned.

MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS:

Education and Experience:
Bachelor’s degree in Criminal Justice or in one of the Social or Behavioral Sciences, Social Work, Sociology, Psychology,
Counseling or a directly related field AND five (5) years experience as a Probation Officer with Travis County Community
Supervision and Corrections Department, including one (1) year as a Probation Officer Senior;

Pagelof3

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Probation Case Work Manager

JOB CODE: 19150 FLSA STATUS: Exempt
PAY GRADE: 19 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS: (Cont.)

Education and Experience: (Cont.)

OR,

Any combination of education and experience that has been achieved and is equivalent to the stated education and
experience and required knowledge, skills, and abilities sufficient to successfully perform the duties and responsibilities
of this job.

Licenses, Registrations, Certifications, or Special Requirements:
Valid Texas Driver’s License.

Preferred:
Experience in more than one area or field casework, Court Services, Diagnostic, specialized caseloads.

Knowledge, Skills, and Abilities:
Knowledge of:
• Management and supervisory principles, practices and techniques.
• Policies, practices, procedures and legal terminology related to court system.
• Federal, State and Local applicable laws, rules, regulations and applicable community supervision services

standards and procedures.
• Standard practices in area of assignment.
• Budget preparation and office management.
• Psychological concepts of good behavior, social adjustment and emotional stability.
• Casework techniques.
• Computer equipment to include word processing, spreadsheets, databases and a variety of software packages.
• Business letter writing, grammar and punctuation, and report preparation.

Skill in:
• Supervising others, including team building.
• Problem-solving and decision-making.
• Training, supervising and reviewing the work of others.
• Interviewing clients.
• Both verbal and written communication.

Ability to:
• Plan, assign, supervise and review the work of subordinates.
• Conduct investigations and report results clearly, accurately and impartially.
• Reason and make judgments and decisions.
• Work effectively and courteously under stressful circumstances.
• Deal effectively with mentally disturbed, hostile and aggressive individuals.
• Manage time well, perform multiple tasks and organize diverse activities.
• Perform in a stressful environment while maintaining a professional manner.
• Research, compile, analyze, interpret and prepare a variety of memorandums or reports.
• Establish and maintain effective working relationships with departmental clientele, representatives of outside

agencies, other County employees and officials, attorneys, judges and the general public.

Page2of3 ) 7

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Probation Case Work Manager

JOB CODE: 19150 FLSASTATUS: Exempt
PAY GRADE: 19 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

WORK ENVIRONMENT AND PHYSICAL DEMANDS:

Physical requirements include the ability to lift/carry up to 10-25 pounds occasionally, visual acuity, speech and hearing,
hand and eye coordination and manual dexterity necessary to operate a computer and office equipment. Subject to
standing, walking, sitting, repetitive motion, reaching, climbing stairs, bending, stooping, kneeling, crouching, crawling,
pushing, pulling, balancing, squatting to perform the essential functions. Subject to contact with communicable diseases,
radiation, hazardous waste, human fecal matter and foul odors. Subject to client and customer contact for extended
periods of time.

This job description is intended to be generic in nature. It is not necessarily an exhaustive list of all duties
and responsibilities. The essential duties, functions and responsibilities and overtime eligibility may vary
based on the specific.tasks assigned to the position.

Page3of3

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Pretrial Manager

JOB CODE: 20335 FLSA STATUS: Exempt
PAY GRADE: 20 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

JOB SUMMARY:

Oversees and manages the daily operations of employees assigned to interview, investigate and evaluate clients
incarcerated on criminal charges to determine their eligibility for personal bond and determine indigent status for court
appointed attorney. Oversee and manages employees assigned to supervise and maintain contact with specialized
caseload of clients released on bond with bond conditions. Plans, schedules, distributes and monitors workload.
Ensures work is performed in accordance with laws, policies and procedures. Recommends and initiates changes in
office policies and procedures. Provides assistance and makes recommendations on the more complex bonds and issues.

DISTINGUISHING CHARACTERISTICS:

This is the first in a series of two pretrial-related job classifications within the Senior Management/Middle Management
job family. Incumbents in this classification oversees and manages the daily operations of employees assigned to
interview, investigate and evaluate clients incarcerated on criminal charges to determine their eligibility for personal bond
and determine indigent status for court appointed attorney. Oversee and manages employees assigned to supervise
and maintain contact with specialized caseload of clients released on bond with bond conditions. Provides assistance to
staff and makes recommendations on the more complex bonds and issues. May require work in secure facilities. This
classification may require a flexible work schedule in order to meet the needs of the department.

DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES:

• Manages the daily operations of employees assigned to interview, investigate and evaluate clients incarcerated on
criminal charges to determine their eligibility for personal bond, and employees assigned to supervise and maintain
contact with specialized caseload of clients released on bond with bond conditions.

• Interviews, trains, manages, develops and evaluates employee performance. Counsels employees as necessary to
improve performance. Develops performance improvement plans. Disciplines employees, as required. Maintains
employee supervision files and documents all pertinent information.

• Plans, schedules, distributes and monitors workload. Ensures work is performed in accordance with laws, policies
and procedures. Sets priorities on tasks. Oversees functions to ensure work is completed and objectives are met.

• Evaluates, recommends and initiates changes in office policies and procedures. Prepares reports. Assists in
analyzing operations. Assists in budget preparation. May require grant writing.

• Provides oversight and guidance to staff and makes recommendations on the more complex client issues.

• Assists judges and attorneys on investigations and makes recommendations on personal bonds in cases with high
bonds, serious allegations or high profile cases.

• Investigates complaints from clients, their families, judicial entities and the general public.

• Maintains databases, compiles statistics and prepares reports related to work performed.

• Represents the department in coordinating activities with various law enforcement, governmental and other
agencies. Participates in planning projects.

• May perform administrative division tasks. Conducts staff and chairs staff committees and meetings.

• Performs other job-related duties as assigned.

MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS:

Education and Experience:
Bachelor’s degree in Criminal Justice or a directly related field AND four (4) years increasingly responsible experience in
pretrial services related work, including one (1) year in mid- to senior level supervisory or management experience;

Pagelof3

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Pretrial Manager

JOB CODE: 20335 FLSA STATUS: Exempt
PAY GRADE: 20 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS: (Cont.)

Education and Experience: (Cont.)
OR,

Any combination of education and experience that has been achieved and is equivalent to the stated education and
experience and required knowledge, skills, and abilities sufficient to successfully perform the duties and responsibilities
of this job.

Licenses, Registrations, Certifications, or Special Requirements:
Valid Texas Driver’s License.

Preferred:
Texas Crime Information Center Certificate.
National Crime Information Center Certificate.

Knowledge, Skills, and Abilities:
Knowledge of:
• Management and supervisory principles, practices and techniques.
• Policies, practices, procedures and legal terminology related to court system.
• Federal, State, Local and County applicable laws, rules, regulations and applicable pretrial services standards and

procedures.
• Standard practices in area of assignment.
• Budget preparation and office management.
• Computer equipment to include word processing, spreadsheets, databases and a variety of software packages.
• Business letter writing, grammar and punctuation, and report preparation.

Skill in:
• Supervising others, including team building.
• Problem-solving and decision-making.
• Training, supervising and reviewing the work of others.
• Interviewing clients.
• Both verbal and written communication.

Ability to:
• Work efficiently both independently and as part of a team.
• Plan, assign, supervise and review the work of subordinates.
• Reason and make judgments and decisions.
• Deal effectively with mentally disturbed, hostile and aggressive individuals.
• Manage time well, perform multiple tasks and organize diverse activities.
• Perform in a stressful environment while maintaining a professional manner.
• Research, compile, analyze, interpret and prepare a variety of memorandums, reports or grant requests.
• Establish and maintain effective working relationships with departmental clientele, representatives of outside

agencies, other County employees and officials, attorneys, judges and the general public.

Page 2 of 3 ::/ gQ

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Pretrial Manager

JOB CODE: 20335 FLSA STATUS: Exempt
PAY GRADE: 20 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

WORK ENVIRONMENT AND PHYSICAL DEMANDS:

Physical requirements include the abihty to lift/carry up to 10-25 pounds occasionally, visual acuity, speech and hearing,
hand and eye coordination and manual dexterity necessary to operate a computer and office equipment. Subject to
standing, walking, sitting, repetitive motion, reaching, climbing stairs, bending, stooping, kneeling, crouching, crawling,
pushing, pulling, balancing, squatting to perform the essential functions. Subject to contact with communicable diseases,
radiation, hazardous waste, human fecal matter and foul odors. Subject to client and customer contact for extended
periods of time.

This job description is intended to be generic in nature. It is not necessarily an exhaustive list of all duties
and responsibilities. The essential duties, functions and responsibilities and overtime eligibility may vary
based on the specific tasks assigned to the position.

Page3of3

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Pretrial Division Director

JOB CODE: 26338 FLSA STATUS: Exempt
PAY GRADE: 26 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

JOB SUMMARY:

Plans and directs the budget, services and operations of the County Pretrial Services functions. Oversees the recruiting,
hiring, training, scheduling and evaluation of employees assigned to interview, investigate and evaluate clients
incarcerated on criminal charges to determine their eligibility for personal bond. Ensures work is performed in
accordance with laws, policies and procedures. Implements changes in office policies and procedures. Determines
Personal Recognizance eligibility on the most serious allegations of criminal charges and/or those charges with high
bond settings.

DISTINGUISHING CHARACTERISTICS:

This is the second in a series of two pretrial-related job classifications within the Senior Management/Middle
Management job family. Incumbents in this classification plans and directs the budget, services and operations of the
County Pretrial Services functions. Together with subordinate managers, provides assistance to staff and makes
recommendations on the more complex bonds and issues. May require work in secure facilities. This classification may
require a flexible work schedule in order to meet the needs of the department.

DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES:

• Plans and directs the budget, services and operations of the County Pretrial Services functions.

• Oversees the recruitment, hiring, training and evaluation of employees assigned to interview, investigate and
evaluate clients incarcerated on criminal charges to determine their eligibility for personal bond. Assists managers
in counseling, disciplining and terminating employees, as required.

• Directs the planning, scheduling, distribution and monitoring of workload. Ensures work is performed in accordance
with laws, policies and procedures. Assists managers and other staff in setting priorities on tasks. Oversees
functions to ensure aims are carried out.

• Monitors aspects of criminal justice system and evaluates, recommends and initiates changes in office policies and
procedures. Prepares reports and analyzes operations.

• Determines Personal Recognizance eligibility on the most serious of criminal allegations and/or those charges with
highest bond settings. Revokes personal bonds. Reviews and approves denied bonds for irregularities and is
available to handle appeals from attorneys on denied personal bonds.

• Serves as a direct liaison to judges, attorneys and criminal justice agencies. Represents the department at
Corn rn issioners Court.

• Plans, prepares and implements the department budget and ensures all expenditures are in accordance with the
budget. Plans for future services and budgetary needs. Investigates availability of funding sources and coordinates
contracts and grant writing.

• Oversees and administers the human resources, purchasing, information technology and records management
functions for the department.

• Represents the department to Elected and Appointed Officials, staff, external organizations and the general public.

• Performs other job-related duties as assigned.

MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS:

Education and Experience:
Bachelor’s degree in Criminal Justice or a directly related field AND six (6) years directly related, increasingly responsible
experience in criminal justice system, including four (4) years of mid- to senior level supervisory or management
experience;

Page 1 of 3 cr?

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Pretrial Division Director

JOB CODE: 26338 FLSA STATUS: Exempt
PAY GRADE: 26 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS: (Cont.)

Education and Experience: (Cont.)
OR,

Any combination of education and experience that has been achieved and is equivalent to the stated education and
experience and required knowledge, skills, and abilities sufficient to successfully perform the duties and responsibilities
of this job.

Licenses, Registrations, Certifications, or Special Requirements:
Valid Texas Driver’s License.

Preferred:
Texas Crime Information Center Certificate.
National Crime Information Center Certificate.

Knowledge, Skills, and Abilities:
Knowledge of:
• Management and supervisory principles, practices and techniques.
• Policies, practices, procedures and legal terminology related to court system.
• Federal, State, Local and County applicable laws, rules, regulations and applicable pretrial services standards and

procedures.
• Standard practices in area of assignment.
• Current drug abuse counseling and treatment methodologies and services.
• Budget preparation, grant writing and office management.
• Computer equipment to include word processing, spreadsheets, databases and a variety of software packages.
• Business letter writing, grammar and punctuation, and report preparation.

Skill in:
• Managing staff and program operations.
• Problem-solving and decision-making.
• Training, managing and reviewing the work of others.
• Interviewing clients.
• Both verbal and written communication.

Ability to:
• Plan, direct, assign, manage and review the work of subordinates.
• Apply general management principles.
• Develop, analyze, and interpret policies, procedures, and financial records.
• Reason and make judgments and decisions.
• Deal effectively with mentally disturbed, hostile, and aggressive individuals.
• Manage time well, perform multiple tasks and organize diverse activities.
• Perform in a stressful environment while maintaining a professional manner.
• Research, compile, analyze, interpret and prepare a variety of memorandums or reports.
• Establish and maintain effective working relationships with departmental clientele, representatives of outside

agencies, other County employees and officials, attorneys, judges and the general public.

Page 2 of 3 3

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Pretrial Division Director

JOB CODE: 26338 FLSA STATUS: Exempt
PAY GRADE: 26 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

WORK ENVIRONMENT AND PHYSICAL DEMANDS:

Physical requirements include the ability to lift/carry up to 10-25 pounds occasionally, visual acuity, speech and hearing,
hand and eye coordination and manual dexterity necessary to operate a computer and office equipment. Subject to
standing, walking, sitting, repetitive motion, reaching, climbing stairs, bending, stooping, kneeling, crouching, crawling,
pushing, pulling, balancing, squatting to perform the essential functions. Subject to contact with communicable diseases,
radiation, hazardous waste, human fecal matter and foul odors. Subject to client and customer contact for extended
periods of time.

This job description is intended to be generic in nature. It is not necessarily an exhaustive list of all duties
and responsibilities. The essential duties, functions and responsibilities and overtime eligibility may vary
based on the specific tasks assigned to the position.

Page 3of3

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Victim Witness Services Division Director

JOB CODE: 25585 FLSA STATUS: Exempt
PAY GRADE: 25 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

JOB SUMMARY:

Directs the operations and staff of a complex victim/witness services division. Oversees and participates in the planning
and development of policies, procedures and programs to accomplish goals and objectives. Oversees and performs
managerial, consultative, technical and administrative work. Develops and recommends strategic plans and new
program initiatives, and directs and prepares annual budget.

DISTINGUISHING CHARACTERISTICS:

This is a job classification within the Senior Management/Middle Management job family. Incumbent’s in this
classification directs the division operations of employees assigned to provide services for crime victims and witnesses.
The classification has broad scope of operational and staff responsibility.

DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES:

• Directs, plans, organizes, implements, monitors and evaluates the overall operations, staff and functions of a
complex victim/witness services division. Directs and facilitates conformity with State, Federal and Local laws,
policies and procedures.

• Directs management and staff, including hiring, training, performance evaluation, disciplinary actions and dismissals.
Directs activities to be consistent with goals and objectives. Seeks and creates opportunities for improved
performance, learning and development of staff. Identifies and addresses problems or conflicts.

• Oversees and participates in development of division policies, procedures, goals and objectives. Directs the
scheduling of day-to-day operations and staffing for the division.

• Develops division strategic plans to accomplish goals and objectives and improve effectiveness and efficiency of
services.

• Provides oversight and guidance to management and staff and makes recommendations on complex client issues.

• Prepared, receives and reviews statistical and programmatic reports, monitors programs and interprets findings.
Evaluates current programs, procedures and practices on an on-going basis. Plans and develops policies,
procedures and programs to enhance efficiency and effectiveness of operations and services. Researches and
develops grants for related programs.

• Develops and oversees implementation of training programs for representatives of the criminal justice system, other
staff and volunteers to enhance services provided to crime victims and witnesses.

• Prepares and administers division budget. Monitors and approves budget expenditures to provide consistency with
program goals and objectives. Ensures that expenditures are made within available funds.

• Represents the department in coordinating activities with various law enforcement, criminal justice, governmental
and other agencies, victim advocacy groups, local, regional and statewide committees and the general public.
Coordinates with agencies providing similar services to deliver and enhance the service needs of crime victims and
witnesses.

• Serves as spokesperson to media and outside agencies for crime victim issues and related community outreach
activities.

• Performs other job-related duties as assigned.

MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS:

Education and Experience:
Bachelor’s degree in Criminal Justice, Social or Behavioral Science or a directly related field AND six (6) years
increasingly responsible experience in victim services or related work, including three (3) years mid- to senior level
supervisory or management experience;

Page 1 of 3

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Victim Witness Services Division Director

JOB CODE: 25585 FLSA STATUS: Exempt
PAY GRADE: 25 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS: (Cont.)

Education and Experience: (Cont.)
OR,
Any combination of education and experience that has been achieved and is equivalent to the stated education and
experience and required knowledge, skills, and abilities sufficient to successfully perform the duties and responsibilities
of this job.

Licenses, Registrations, Certifications, or Special Requirements:
Valid Texas Driver’s License.

Preferred:
Master’s degree in Criminal Justice, Social or Behavioral Science or a directly related field.
Experience in crisis and trauma counseling.
Licensed Master Social Worker (LMSW).
Licensed Professional Counselor (LPC).

Knowledge, Skills, and Abilities:
Knowledge of:
• Management and supervisory principles, practices and techniques.
• Policies, practices, procedures and legal terminology related to court system.
• Federal, State, Local and County applicable laws, rules, regulations and guidelines.
• Standard practices in area of assignment.
• Criminal justice agencies and task forces.
• Counseling and crisis stabilization techniques and resources.
• Psychological concepts of good behavior, social adjustment and emotional stability.
• Advocacy groups, clinical and other service providers and community outreach services.
• Budget development, preparation, and monitoring.
• Computer equipment to include word processing, spreadsheets, databases and a variety of software packages.
• Business letter writing, grammar and punctuation, and report preparation.
Skill in:
• Directing and managing others, including team building.
• Problem-solving and decision-making.
• Training, managing and evaluating the work of others.
• Developing and monitoring budgets.
• Preparing and making presentations.
• Counseling and providing crisis and other assistance to clients.
• Assessing the psychosocial status of clients.
• Determining types of counseling, social service provider and other services indicated for clients.
• Obtaining information from clients and other sources.
• Both verbal and written communication.

Ability to:
• Direct, motivate, train, develop and evaluate staff.
• Plan, assign, direct and evaluate the work of staff.
• Reason and make judgments and decisions.
• Manage time well, perform multiple tasks and organize diverse activities.
• Explain legal issues, terms and court procedures.
• Develop client advocacy programs.
• Research, compile, analyze, interpret and prepare a variety of memorandums or reports.
• Establish and maintain effective working relationships with departmental clientele, criminal justice system

representatives, other representatives of outside agencies, other County employees and officials, community outreach
and other organizations, clinical service providers and the general public.

Page 2 of 3

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Victim Witness Services Division Director

JOB CODE: 25585 FLSA STATUS: Exempt
PAY GRADE: 25 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

WORK ENVIRONMENT AND PHYSICAL DEMANDS:

Physical requirements include the ability to lift/carry up to 5-15 pounds occasionally, visual acuity, speech and hearing,
hand and eye coordination and manual dexterity necessary to pounds occasionally, visual acuity, speech and hearing, hand
and eye coordination and manual dexterity necessary to operate a computer and office equipment. Subject to standing,
walking, sitting, repetitive motion, reaching, climbing stairs, bending, stooping, kneeling, crouching, crawling, pushing,
pulling, balancing, squatting to perform the essential functions.

This job description is intended to be generic in nature. It is not necessarily an exhaustive list of all duties
and responsibilities. The essential duties, functions and responsibilities and overtime eligibility may vary
based on the specific tasks assigned to the position.

/7 2
Page3of3 7ij 7

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Commissary Manager

JOB CODE: 18591 FLSA STATUS: Exempt
PAY GRADE: 18 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

JOB SUMMARY:

Under general supervision, manages the day-to-day operation of the TCSO commissary. Supervises assigned staff and
makes recommendations related to employee hiring, evaluation, promotion, discipline and dismissal. Implements
inventory, purchasing and accounting systems related to the daily operations of the TCSO commissary. Produces a
wide range of reports related to business performance and tracks business statistics. Monitors vendor performance.
Oversees purchasing and inventory process. Supervises inmate workers.

DISTINGUISHING CHARACTERISTICS:

This is a job classification within the Senior Management/Middle Management job family. Incumbents perform complex
duties in managing the day-to-day operation of the TCSO commissary. This classification may require work in secure
facilities. This classification may require a flexible work schedule in order to meet the needs of the department.

DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES:

• Supervises civilian employees in a correctional setting. Reviews applications and makes recommendations for new
hires and transfers. Conducts employee training and development. Makes recommendations on employee
discipline actions, merit increases and dismissals. Conducts performance reviews, counsels employees and
monitors employee performance and productivity. Monitors employee workloads. Maintains time sheets and work
schedules for assigned employees. Prepares daily duty rosters. Schedules substitute coverage or acts as backup
for all staff. Updates employees on all new policies and procedures.

• Coordinates inventory purchases and maintains appropriate inventory levels. Conducts physical inventories.
Resolves inventory discrepancies. Maintains inventory assessments of needed office equipment, supplies and
furniture. Prepares bid packages and solicits bids from vendors. Reviews pricing, product quality and shipment
costs. Evaluates vendor service and conducts product testing. Ensures contracting and purchasing procedures are
followed. Prepares purchase orders.

• Manages commissary computer system and reporting functions. Produces and monitors computer generated
inventory cost reports, sales tax reports and business management reports. Maintains and monitors product and
cost analysis reports. Projects sales, expenditures and anticipated profit margins. Analyzes product demand,
pricing and requirements. Monitors and maintains operational efficiency and economy. Works with agencies on
statistical reports and inquiries.

• Reviews a wide range of forms and documents related to inmate accounts, orders and indigent requests.
Investigates and resolves requests regarding funds, errors, credits and losses. Maintains records, reports and files
as mandated by law. Prepares or assists in preparing annual budget documents. Establishes budgetary needs and
forecasts revenue. Reports and follows up on building maintenance issues.

• Supervises inmate workers. Writes and reviews inmate incident reports. Makes recommendations for disciplinary
action when appropriate. Documents serious incidents and trains employees in emergency response procedures
and equipment.

• Performs other job-related duties as assigned.

MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS:

Education and Experience:
Associate’s degree in Business, Retail Management or a directly related field AND four (4) years of retail experience,
including two (2) years of mid- to senior level supervisory or management experience;

OR,

Any combination of education and experience that has been achieved and is equivalent to the stated education and
experience and required knowledge, skills, and abilities sufficient to successfully perform the duties and responsibilities
of this job.

Page 1 of 2

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Commissary Manager

JOB CODE: 18591 FLSA STATUS: Exempt
PAY GRADE: 18 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS: (Cont.)

Education and Exierience: (Cont.)

Licenses, Registrations, Certifications, or Special Requirements:
None required.

Knowledge, Skills, and Abilities:
Knowledge of:
• Management and supervisory principles, practices and techniques.
• Policies, practices, procedures and legal terminology related to court system.
• Federal, State, Local and County applicable laws, rules, regulations and guidelines.
• Standard practices in area of assignment.
• Corrections procedures and environment.
• Automated inventory and product systems.
• Retail business practices.
• Business statistics.
• Computer equipment to include word processing, spreadsheets, databases, inventory control, purchasing, customer

accounts and other general business software.
• Business letter writing, grammar and punctuation, and report preparation.

Skill in:
• Directing and managing others, including team building.
• Problem-solving and decision-making.
• Training, managing and evaluating the work of others.
• Planning, organizing and controlling operations in a corrections environment.
• Evaluating business operations and recommending improvements.
• Supervising staff and inmates.
• Maintaining business records.
• Both verbal and written communication.

Ability to:
• Direct, motivate, train, develop and evaluate staff.
• Plan, assign, direct and evaluate the work of staff.
• Reason and make judgments and decisions.
• Manage time well, perform multiple tasks and organize diverse activities.
• Communicate effectively.
• Establish and maintain effective working relationships with County employees and officials, vendors, representatives of

outside agencies, and with the general public.

WORK ENVIRONMENT AND PHYSICAL DEMANDS:

Physical requirements include the ability to lift/carry up to 20-50 pounds visual acuity, speech and hearing, hand and eye
coordination and manual dexterity necessary to operate a computer and office equipment. Subject to standing, walking,
sitting, repetitive motion, reaching, climbing stairs, bending, stooping, kneeling, crouching, crawling, pushing, pulling,
balancing, squatting to perform the essential functions.

This job description is intended to be generic in nature. It is not necessarily an exhaustive list of all duties
and responsibilities. The essential duties, functions and responsibilities and overtime eligibility may vary
based on the specific tasks assigned to the position.

Page2of2 4’S

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

Juvenile Facilities ManagerJOB TITLE:

JOB CODE: 19780 FLSA STATUS: Exempt
PAY GRADE: 19 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

JOB SUMMARY:

Provides management oversight and direction for facilities assessments, service contracts and in-house moving
services. Executes building support initiatives. Directs, plans, and schedules building support services. Supervises and
trains staff. Oversees facility maintenance, food services and fleet operations.

DISTINGUISHING CHARACTERISTICS:

This is a job classification within the Senior Management/Middle Management job family. This classification is
distinguished by the management duties and responsibilities. This classification may require a flexible work schedule in
order to meet the needs of the department.

DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES:

• Supervises staff, evaluates staff job performance and coordinates schedules and assignments. Prepares a variety
of fiscal and administrative reports.

• Provides coaching and counseling, conducts disciplinary actions, and ensures compliance with policies, procedures,
laws, regulations, goals and objectives.

• Establishes project priorities and plans for timely completion of facility projects.

• Coordinates and manages utilization of vendors and contractors. Manages inventory, purchases materials and
services for maintenance, construction and custodial services.

• Plans for replacement of building components based on life cycle analysis.

• Administers budget for building support services and assists in minor construction and planning estimating.

• Manages work order systems, analyzes trends and provides feedback. Responds to facilities related emergencies.

• Conducts research, plans programs, policies, procedures, goals and objectives.

• Ensures that policies and procedures regarding safety, sanitation and security of residents and staff are being
followed.

• Performs administrative division tasks, as required.

• Performs other job-related duties as assigned.

MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS:

Education and Experience:
Bachelor’s degree in Public Administration, Business Administration or a field directly related to facilities maintenance
and management AND five (5) years increasingly responsible facilities maintenance experience, including two (2) mid- to
senior level supervisory or management experience;

OR,

Any combination of education and experience that has been achieved and is equivalent to the stated education and
experience and required knowledge, skills, and abilities sufficient to successfully perform the duties and responsibilities
of this job.

Licenses, Registrations, Certifications, or Special Requirements:
Certified by the Texas Juvenile Probation Commission as a Probation Officer.
Valid Texas Driver’s License.
Current Cardio-pulmonary Resuscitation (CPR) Certification.

Preferred:
Correctional administration experience.

Y9oPage 1 of 2

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Juvenile Facilities Manager

JOB CODE: 19780 FLSA STATUS: Exempt
PAY GRADE: 19 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS: (Cont.)

Knowledge, Skills, and Abilities:
Knowledge of:
• Management and supervisory principles, practices and techniques.
• Policies, practices, procedures and terminology of assigned function.
• Standard practices in area of assignment.
• Federal, State, Local and County applicable laws, rules, regulations and applicable professional health care

standards and procedures.
• Budget preparation and office management.
• Computer equipment to include word processing, spreadsheets, databases and a variety of software packages.
• Business letter writing, grammar and punctuation, and report preparation.

Skill in:
• Supervising others, including team building.
• Using and caring for equipment utilized in area of assignment.
• Explaining complicated technical problems in simple non-technical language.
• Problem-solving and decision-making.
• Both verbal and written communication.

Ability to:
• Train and supervise office personnel.
• Develop, analyze and interpret policies and procedures, financial statements, public information statements, and

operational plans or activities.
• Plan, assign, motivate and coordinate work of support staff to achieve specific service objectives.
• Manage time well, perform multiple tasks and organize diverse activities.
• Independently prepare correspondence, memorandums, and other materials.
• Research, compile, analyze, interpret and prepare a variety of fiscal, statistical and administrative reports.
• Establish and maintain effective working relationships with County employees and officials, representatives of

outside agencies, and the general public.

WORK ENVIRONMENT AND PHYSICAL DEMANDS:

Physical requirements include the ability to lift/carry up to 50-1 00 pounds occasionally, visual acuity, speech and hearing,
hand and eye coordination and manual dexterity necessary to operate a computer and office equipment. Subject to
standing, walking, sitting, repetitive motion, reaching, climbing stairs, bending, stooping, kneeling, crouching, crawling,
pushing, pulling, balancing, squatting to perform the essential functions. Subject to contact with noise, vibration, fumes,
foul odor, dirt, dust, mist, gases, and poor ventilation, and moving large set of construction parts, tools or machinery. May
be exposed to hostile behavior from clients.

rThis job description is intended to be generic in nature. It is not necessarily an exhaustive list of all duties
and responsibilities. The essential duties, functions and responsibilities and overtime eligibility may vary
based on the specific tasks assigned to the position.

Page 2 of 2 17/9/

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Court Services Program Manager

JOB CODE: 24399 FLSA STATUS: Exempt
PAY GRADE: 24 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

JOB SUMMARY:

Manages and assigns the work of a comprehensive and complex courts system operations staff. Plans and develops
policies, procedures and programs to accomplish goals and objectives. Conducts work flow and trend analysis, and
establishes department systems to ensure the efficiency and quality of departmental functions and operations. Oversees
and performs managerial, consultative, technical and administrative work. Assists in developing and recommending
strategic plans and new program initiatives, and assists in preparation of the annual budget.

DISTINGUISHING CHARACTERISTICS:

This is a job classification within the Senior Management/Middle Management job family. Incumbent’s in this
classification is responsible for managing and assigning the work of a comprehensive and complex courts system
operations staff. This classification is responsible for assisting in development of, recommending strategic plans, and
new program initiatives to facilitate efficiency and effectiveness of a complex court system.

DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES:

• Manages and assigns the work of a comprehensive and complex courts system operations staff. Recruits,
interviews, hires, trains and evaluates employee performance. Creates opportunities for improved performance,
learning and development of staff. Identifies and addresses problems or conflicts.

• Conducts work flow and trend analysis, and establishes department systems to ensure the efficiency and quality of
departmental functions and operations.

• Prepares reports, monitors statistics and monitors department workload to ensure policies, procedures, laws and
regulations are being followed and goals are being met. Reviews statistics to evaluate, plan and assist in setting
departmental goals.

• Performs human resource functions within a courts system. Performs or assists departmental management and
employees with staffing, classification, compensation, benefits, training, policy compliance, employee relations and
other human resource functions.

• Ensures that court system procedures are consistent with legislative mandates.

• Represents the courts system in coordinating activities with various criminal justice agencies and task forces.
Participates in local and regional planning for court related initiatives.

• Assists judges and other high-level management in determining resources required.

• Assists in or writes grants. Participates in development of grant performance measures and deliverables. Facilitates
implementation of grant deliverables to ensure they are met.

• Performs other job-related duties as assigned.

MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS:

Education and Experience:
Bachelor’s degree in Criminal Justice, Business Administration, Public Policy/Administration, Government, Social
Science or Behavioral Science or a directly related field AND five (5) years increasingly responsible experience in criminal
justice related work, including two (2) years of mid- to senior level supervisory or management experience;

OR,

Any combination of education and experience that has been achieved and is equivalent to the stated education and
experience and required knowledge, skills, and abilities sufficient to successfully perform the duties and responsibilities
of this job.

Licenses, Registrations, Certifications, or Special Requirements:
Valid Texas Driver’s License.

Page 1 of 2

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Court Services Program Manager

JOB CODE: 24399 FLSA STATUS: Exempt
PAY GRADE: 24 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS: (Cont.)

Knowledge. Skills, and Abilities:
Knowledge of:
• Management and supervisory principles, practices and techniques.
• Court system administration and oversight techniques.
• Policies, practices, procedures and legal terminology related to court system.
• Federal, State and Local program laws and requirements.
• Criminal justice agencies and task forces.
• Budgetary practices and techniques.
• Modern office practices, procedures and methods.
• Computer equipment to include word processing, spreadsheets, databases and a variety of software packages.
• Business letter writing, grammar and punctuation, and report preparation.

Skill in:
• Strategic planning, developing, monitoring and evaluating court systems and services.
• Supervising others, allocating resources and evaluating programs.
• Leadership and collaboration.
• Problem-solving and decision-making.
• Negotiating, interviewing and investigating practices and techniques.
• Developing and monitoring program budgets.
• Both verbal and written communication, including presentations.

Ability to:
• Manage, motivate, train, develop and evaluate staff.
• Plan, assign, motivate and coordinate work of staff to achieve specific service objectives.
• Serve as technical consultant and liaison.
• Create and recommend program initiatives.
• Prepare administrative and statistical reports.
• Work independently and efficiently.
• Manage time well, perform multiple tasks and organize diverse activities.
• Establish and maintain effective working relationships with departmental clientele, representatives of outside

agencies and providers, other County employees and officials, and the general public.

WORK ENVIRONMENT AND PHYSICAL DEMANDS:

Physical requirements include the ability to lift/carry up to 5-15 pounds occasionally, visual acuity, speech and hearing,
hand and eye coordination and manual dexterity necessary to pounds occasionally, visual acuity, speech and hearing, hand
and eye coordination and manual dexterity necessary to operate a computer and office equipment. Subject to standing,
walking, sitting, repetitive motion, reaching, climbing stairs, bending, stooping, kneeling, crouching, crawling, pushing,
pulling, balancing, squatting to perform the essential functions.

This job description is intended to be generic in nature. It is not necessarily an exhaustive list of all duties
and responsibilities. The essential duties, functions and responsibilities and overtime eligibility may vary
based on the specific tasks assigned to the position.

Page2of2 / / —.“

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Medical Services Director

JOB CODE: 27041 FLSA STATUS: Exempt
PAY GRADE: 27 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

JOB SUMMARY:

Directs and supervises the delivery of health care services, programs and related services to patients in the medical
section of a secure facility. Monitors and oversees that services delivered are in compliance with applicable laws, rules,
regulations and applicable professional health care standards and procedures established by the state, court, physicians
and the department. Administers, manages and directs professional staff. Ensures that appropriate services,
operational management policies and procedures, and protocols are formulated, developed and implemented.

DISTINGUISHING CHARACTERISTICS:

This is a job classification within the Senior Management/Middle Management job family. Serves as the Director of the
health care and medical sections in a secure facility. This classification may require a flexible work schedule in order to
meet the needs of the department.

DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES:

• Supervises health care staff, evaluates staff job performance and coordinates schedules and assignments.
Authorizes staff productive and non-productive work hours, prepares and administers budget, and prepares a variety
of fiscal and administrative reports.

• Manages and coordinates health care resources to provide effective and efficient services in the medical section of
secure facilities that are in compliance with applicable laws, rules, regulations and applicable professional health
care standards and procedures established by the state, court, physicians and the department.

• Coordinates activities to ensure efficient delivery of health care services.

• Oversees maintenance of security and safety of patients and health care personnel.

• Consults with other health care members, County staff, department staff or County officials about patient treatment.

• Performs quality control audits. Purchases medication and nursing supplies and maintains supply inventory.

• Assists medical staff and coordinates health care with doctors inside and outside the facilities.

• Provides in-service training to health care staff.

• Assists in developing strategic short and long-term plans, develops and implements goals, objectives, policies,
procedures and priorities. Coordinates with officials to achieve those goals.

• Responds and analyzes difficult inquires, grievances and complaints.

• Works closely with officials, department heads, multiple outside suppliers and other County staff to establish
procedures for the monitoring of contract compliance issues.

• Represents the County by attending meetings, community meetings, seminars, conferences and professional
association meetings. Participates in private organizations and participates serves on related committees.

• Performs other job-related duties as assigned.

MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS:

Education and Experience:
Bachelor’s degree in Nursing AND five (5) years of directly related, increasingly responsible experience in nursing,
including two (2) years of mid- to senior level supervisory or management experience.

Licenses, Registrations, Certifications, or Special Requirements:
Current license to practice as a Licensed Vocational Nurse or Registered Nurse in the State of Texas.
Valid Texas Driver’s License.
Current Cardio-pulmonary Resuscitation (CPR) Certification.

Pagelof2 1 I

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Medical Services Director

JOB CODE: 27041 FLSA STATUS: Exempt
PAY GRADE: 27 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS: (Cont.)

Education and Experience: (Cont.)
Preferred:
Experience in correctional administration and programming.

Knowledge, Skills, and Abilities:
Knowledge of:
• Standard nursing and other health care practices.
• Policies, practices, procedures and terminology related to nursing and health care.
• Federal, State, Local and County applicable laws, rules, regulations and applicable professional health care

standards and procedures.
• Management and supervisory principles, practices and techniques.
• Budget preparation and office management.
• Standard practices in area of assignment.
• Computer equipment to include word processing, spreadsheets, databases and a variety of software packages.
• Business letter writing, grammar and punctuation, and report preparation.

Skill in:
• In-patient care.
• Using medical equipment utilized in area of assignment.
• Supervising others, including team building.
• Explaining complicated technical problems in simple non-technical language.
• Problem-solving and decision-making.
• Both verbal and written communication.

Ability to:
• Communicate effectively.
• Work efficiently both independently and as part of a medical team.
• Plan, assign, supervise and review the work of subordinates.
• Reason and make judgments and decisions.
• Manage time well, perform multiple tasks and organize diverse activities.
• Fit health care and related services into a secure environment.
• Perform in a stressful environment while maintaining a professional manner.
• Research, compile, analyze, interpret and prepare a variety of memorandums or reports.
• Establish and maintain effective working relationships with patients, medical and other County employees and

officials, representatives of outside agencies, attorneys, judges and the general public.

WORK ENVIRONMENT AND PHYSICAL DEMANDS:

Physical requirements include the ability to lift/carry up to 35-50 pounds, and may be required to lift/carry up to 100 pounds
occasionally, visual acuity, speech and hearing, hand and eye coordination and manual dexterity necessary to operate a
computer and office equipment. Subject to standing, walking, sitting, repetitive motion, reaching, climbing stairs, bending,
stooping, kneeling, crouching, crawling, pushing, pulling, balancing, squatting to perform the essential functions. Subject
to contact with communicable diseases, radiation, hazardous waste, human fecal matter and foul odors.

This job description is intended to be generic in nature. It is not necessarily an exhaustive list of all duties
and responsibilities. The essential duties, functions and responsibilities and overtime eligibility may vary
based on the specific tasks assigned to the position.

Page2of2 / I.__)

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Social Services Director

JOB CODE: 25561 FLSA STATUS: Exempt
PAY GRADE: 25 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

JOB SUMMARY:

Directs the overall operations, staff and functions of a complex social services division through subordinate managers.
Provides leadership, management and coordination in planning, organizing, implementing and evaluating division
operations in accordance with State, Federal and Local laws, policies, procedures and guidelines. Develops division
strategic plans to accomplish goals and objectives and improve effectiveness and efficiency of services. Directs the
staffing, training, development and performance evaluation of division staff.

DISTINGUISHING CHARACTERISTICS:

This is a job classification within the Senior Management/Middle Management job family. Incumbent’s in this
classification is responsible for directing the operations and staff of a comprehensive and complex social services division.
This classification has broad scope of operational and staff responsibility.

DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES:

• Directs, plans, organizes, implements, monitors and evaluates the overall operations, staff and functions of a
complex social services division. Directs and ensures conformity with State, Federal and Local laws, policies and
procedures.

• Directs management and staff, including hiring, training, performance evaluation, disciplinary actions and dismissals,
and ensures activities are consistent with goals and objectives. Seeks and creates opportunities for improved
performance, learning and development of staff. Identifies and addresses problems or conflicts.

• Oversees and participates in the planning and development of division policies, procedures, goals and objectives.
Directs the scheduling of day-to-day operations and staffing for the division.

• Develops division strategic plans to accomplish goals and objectives and improve effectiveness and efficiency of
service delivery and program operations.

• Provides oversight and guidance to management and staff and makes recommendations on complex issues.

• Initiates, develops, plans and oversees implementation of special programs. Evaluates effectiveness of programs
and operations and develops new and modified initiatives to improve effectiveness. Directs the implementation and
monitoring of new and existing programs.

• Provides high-level technical advice, policy interpretation and guidance for application of appropriate procedures to
managers and other staff.

• Prepares, receives or and reviews statistical and programmatic reports and interprets findings. Oversees research
and development of grants for related programs.

• Prepares and administers division budget. Monitors and approves budget expenditures to ensure consistently with
division goals and objectives and remaining available funds.

• Represents the organization and collaborates with governmental and public agency representatives, community
outreach and advocacy groups, service providers and others. Plans, develops and directs a variety of community
development and community organizing activities. Identifies and resolves service gaps and barriers. Stimulates
interest in programs and services.

• Serves as spokesperson to media and outside agencies for programmatic issues and related community outreach
activities.

• Directs the development of, and participation in, training and education programs for clients, social service providers,
community organizations and others.

• Performs other job-related duties as assigned.

(Jq,
Pagelof3 / “

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Social Services Director

JOB CODE: 25561 FLSA STATUS: Exempt
PAY GRADE: 25 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS:

Education and Experience:
Bachelor’s degree in Public Administration, Business Administration or one of the Social or Behavioral Sciences or a
directly related field AND seven (7) years of increasingly responsible experience in a social services, including three (3)
years of mid- to senior level supervisory or management experience;
OR,
Any combination of education and experience that has been achieved and is equivalent to the stated education and
experience and required knowledge, skills, and abilities sufficient to successfully perform the duties and responsibilities
of this job.

Licenses, Registrations, Certifications, or Special Requirements:
Valid Texas Driver’s License.

Preferred:
Master’s degree in Public Administration, Business Administration or one of the Social or Behavioral Sciences in a
directly related field.

Knowledge, Skills, and Abilities:
Knowledge of:
• Management and supervisory principles, practices and techniques.
• Policies, practices, procedures and terminology related to social services.
• Federal, State, Local and County applicable laws, rules, regulations and guidelines.
• Program administration and oversight techniques.
• Standard practices in area of assignment.
• Strategic planning, development, monitoring and evaluation of social service programs and services.
• Leadership and community collaboration.
• Social service agencies, delivery systems and task forces.
• Advocacy groups, clinical and other service providers and community outreach services.
• Budget development, preparation, and monitoring.
• Computer equipment to include word processing, spreadsheets, databases and a variety of software packages.
• Business letter writing, grammar and punctuation, and report preparation.

Skill in:
• Directing and managing others, including team building.
• Leadership and community collaboration.
• Problem-solving and decision-making.
• Strategic planning, developing, monitoring and evaluating social service programs and services.
• Developing and monitoring budgets.
• Preparing and making presentations.
• Obtaining information from clients and other sources.
• Both verbal and written communication.

Ability to:
• Direct, motivate, train, develop and evaluate staff.
• Plan, assign, direct and evaluate the work of staff.
• Reason and make judgments and decisions.
• Manage time well, perform multiple tasks and organize diverse activities.
• Facilitate community collaborations and represent the department or County in a wide range of community settings.
• Research, compile, analyze, interpret and prepare a variety of memorandums or reports.
• Establish and maintain effective working relationships with departmental clientele, other County employees and

officials, community outreach and other organizations, clinical service providers and the general public.

Page2of3

9/97

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Social Services Director

JOB CODE: 25561 FLSA STATUS: Exempt
PAY GRADE: 25 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

WORK ENVIRONMENT AND PHYSICAL DEMANDS:

Physical requirements include the ability to lift/carry up to 5-15 pounds occasionally, visual acuity, speech and hearing,
hand and eye coordination and manual dexterity necessary to operate a computer and office equipment. Subject to
standing, walking, sitting, repetitive motion, reaching, climbing stairs, bending, stooping, kneeling, crouching, crawling,
pushing, pulling, balancing, squatting to perform the essential functions.

This job description is intended to be generic in nature. It is not necessarily an exhaustive list of all duties
and responsibilities. The essential duties, functions and responsibilities and overtime eligibility may vary
based on the specific tasks assigned to the position.

/Ic2
Page3of3 _7 /J

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: HHS Division Director

JOB CODE: 26566 FLSA STATUS: Exempt
PAY GRADE: 26 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

JOB SUMMARY:

Directs the overall operations, staff and functions of a complex health and human services division through subordinate
managers. Provides leadership, management and coordination in planning, organizing, implementing and evaluating
division operations in accordance with State, Federal and Local laws, policies and procedures and guidelines. Develops
division strategic plans to accomplish goals and objectives and improve effectiveness and efficiency of services. Directs
the staffing, training, development and performance evaluation of division staff.

DISTINGUISHING CHARACTERISTICS:

This is a job classification within the Senior Management/Middle Management job family. Incumbent’s in this
classification is responsible for directing the operations and staff of a comprehensive and complex health and human
services division. This classification has broad scope of operational and staff responsibility.

DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES:

• Directs, plans, organizes, implements, monitors and evaluates the overall operations, staff and functions of a
complex health and human services division. Directs and ensures conformity with State, Federal and Local laws,
policies and procedures.

• Directs management and staff, including hiring, training, performance evaluation, disciplinary actions and dismissals,
and ensures activities are consistent with goals and objectives. Seeks and creates opportunities for improved
performance, learning and development of staff. Identifies and addresses problems or conflicts. Answers questions
on policies and procedures.

• Directs the development of division policies, procedures, goals and objectives. Directs the scheduling of day-to-day
operations and staffing for the division. Maintains knowledge of best practices

• Directs division strategic plans to accomplish goals and objectives and improve effectiveness and efficiency of
service delivery and program operations.

• Directs the oversight and guidance of management and staff and makes recommendations on complex issues.

• Directs, initiates, develops and plans implementation of special programs. Evaluates effectiveness of programs and
operations and develops new and modified initiatives to improve effectiveness. Directs the implementation and
monitoring of new and existing programs.

• Provides high-level technical advice, policy and procedure interpretation and guidance of appropriate actions to
managers and other staff.

• Prepared, receives and reviews statistical and programmatic reports and interprets findings. Directs the research
and development of grants for related programs.

• Prepares and administers division budget. Monitors and approves budget expenditures to ensure consistently with
division goals and objectives and remaining available funds.

• Represents the organization and collaborates with governmental and public agency representatives, community
outreach and advocacy groups, service providers and others. Directs, plans and develops a variety of community
development and community organizing activities. Identifies and resolves service gaps and barriers. Stimulates
interest in programs and services.

• Directs or attends meetings with individuals, organizations or other agencies for the purpose of problem-solving and
negotiations that lead to the effective execution of contracts, mutually beneficial interagency agreements and
collaborative efforts in the health and human services arena. Serves as spokesperson to media and outside
agencies for programmatic issues and related community outreach activities.

• Directs the development of, and participation in, training and education programs for clients, social service providers,
community organizations and others.

• Performs other job-related duties as assigned.

Pagelof3 / .‘ /

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: HHS DMsion Director

JOB CODE: 26566 FLSA STATUS: Exempt
PAY GRADE: 26 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS:

Education and Experience:
Bachelors degree in Public Administration, Business Administration or one of the Social or Behavioral Sciences or a
directly related field AND seven (7) years of increasingly responsible experience in a social services, including three (3)
years of mid- to senior level management experience;

OR,

Any combination of education and experience that has been achieved and is equivalent to the stated education and
experience and required knowledge, skills, and abilities sufficient to successfully perform the duties and responsibilities
of this job.

Licenses, Registrations, Certifications, or Special Requirements:
Valid Texas Driver’s License.

Preferred:
Master’s degree in Public Administration, Business Administration or one of the Social or Behavioral Sciences or a
directly related field.

Knowledge, Skills, and Abilities:
Knowledge of:
• Management and supervisory principles, practices and techniques.
• Policies, practices, procedures and terminology related to social services.
• Social work, skills, values and theory.
• Federal, State, Local and County applicable laws, rules, regulations and guidelines.
• Program administration and oversight techniques.
• Standard practices in area of assignment.
• Strategic planning, developing, monitoring and evaluating social service programs and services.
• Leadership and community collaboration.
• Social service agencies, delivery systems and task forces.
• Advocacy groups, clinical and other service providers and community outreach services.
• Budget development, preparation, and monitoring.
• Computer equipment to include word processing, spreadsheets, databases and a variety of software packages.
• Business letter writing, grammar and punctuation, and report preparation.

Skill in:
• Directing and managing others, including team building.
• Leadership and community collaboration.
• Problem-solving and decision-making.
• Strategic planning, developing, monitoring, and evaluating social service programs and services.
• Developing and monitoring budgets.
• Preparing and making presentations.
• Obtaining information from clients and other sources.
• Both verbal and written communication, including presentations.

Page 2 of 3

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: HHS Division Director

JOB CODE: 26566 FLSA STATUS: Exempt
PAY GRADE: 26 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS: (Cont.)

Ability to:
• Direct, lead, motivate, train, develop and evaluate staff.
• Plan, assign, direct and evaluate the work of staff.
• Reason and make judgments and decisions.
• Resolve complex problems.
• Make appropriate and effective public presentations.
• Manage time well, perform multiple tasks and organize diverse activities.
• Facilitate community collaborations and represent the department or County in a wide range of community settings.
• Research, compile, analyze, interpret and prepare a variety of memorandums or reports.
• Establish and maintain effective working relationships with departmental clientele, representatives of outside

agencies, other County employees and officials, community outreach and other organizations, clinical service
providers and the general public.

WORK ENVIRONMENT AND PHYSICAL DEMANDS:

Physical requirements include the ability to lift/carry up to 5-15 pounds occasionally, visual acuity, speech and hearing,
hand and eye coordination and manual dexterity necessary to operate a computer and office equipment. Subject to
standing, walking, sitting, repetitive motion, reaching, climbing stairs, bending, stooping, kneeling, crouching, crawling,
pushing, pulling, balancing, squatting to perform the essential functions.

This job description is intended to be generic in nature. It is not necessarily an exhaustive list of all duties
and responsibilities. The essential duties, functions and responsibilities and overtime eligibility may vary
based on the specific tasks assigned to the position.

Page3of3

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Records Services Manager

JOB CODE: 22697 FLSA STATUS: Exempt
PAY GRADE: 22 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

JOB SUMMARY:

Manages the records management program. Directs the processing, organization and management of countywide
department records and files.

DISTINGUISHING CHARACTERISTICS:

This is a job classification within the Senior Management/Middle Management job family. This classification manages
the records management program.

DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES:

• Oversees the countywide offsite records storage program. Ensures vendor contract compliance. Ensures that
County records are maintained according to industry standards as well as federal and state laws. Develops and
implements administrative policies and procedures.

• P’ans, implements and directs records management systems countywide. Develops retention plans, manages
forms and work processes for County departments. Oversees the destruction of County records. Develops and
oversees records management databases.

• Responsible for program development. Analyzes, plans, develops, implements and evaluates related programs and
services. Collects and analyzes data for cost efficiencies.

• Supervises support staff, evaluates staff job performance and coordinates and prioritizes schedules and
assignments. Authorizes staff productive and non-productive work hours. Orients and trains staff.

• Develops, prepares and administers budget and prepares a variety of fiscal and administrative reports.

• Performs other job-related duties as assigned.

MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS:

Education and Experience:
Bachelor’s degree in Records Management, Business Administration, Business Management, Information Systems or a
directly related field AND five (5) years of professional records management experience, including one (1) year of mid- to
senior level supervisory or management experience;

OR,

Any combination of education and experience that has been achieved and is equivalent to the stated education and
experience and required knowledge, skills, and abilities sufficient to successfully perform the duties and responsibilities
of this job.

Licenses, Registrations, Certifications, or Special Requirements:
None required.

Knowledge, Skills, and Abilities:
Knowledge of:
• Management and supervision practices and techniques.
• Federal, State, Local and County applicable laws, rules, regulations and guidelines.
• Issues and trends in records management.
• Policies, practices, procedures and terminology of assigned function.
• Filing and reporting requirements.
• Accounting, purchasing and budgetary theory, principles and practices.
• Computer equipment to include word processing, spreadsheets, databases and a variety of software packages.
• Business English, spelling and arithmetic, letter writing, grammar and punctuation, and report preparation.

Page 1 of 2 .5’.) cEE

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Records Services Manager

JOB CODE: 22697 FLSA STATUS: Exempt
PAY GRADE: 22 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS: (Cont.)

Skill in:
• Supervising others, including team building.
• Problem-solving and decision-making.
• Both verbal and written communication.

Ability to:
• Train and supervise support staff.
• Write reports, business correspondence, and procedure manuals.
• Independently prepare correspondence, memorandums and other materials.
• Read, analyze and interpret general business periodicals, professional journals, technical procedures and governmental

regulations.
• Assist in monitoring a budget.
• Implement, and maintain filing and accounting systems.
• Reason and make judgments and decisions.
• Interpret a variety of instructions furnished in written, verbal, diagram or schedule form.
• Manage time well, perform multiple tasks and organize diverse activities.
• Perform in a stressful environment while maintaining a professional manner.
• Research, compile, analyze, interpret and prepare a variety of memorandums or reports.
• Establish and maintain effective working relationships with County employees and officials, representatives of

outside agencies, and the general public.

WORK ENVIRONMENT AND PHYSICAL DEMANDS:

Physical requirements include the ability to lift/carry up to 20-50 pounds visual acuity, speech and hearing, hand and eye
coordination and manual dexterity necessary to operate a computer and office equipment. Subject to standing, walking,
sitting, repetitive motion, reaching, climbing stairs, bending, stooping, kneeling, crouching, crawling, pushing, pulling,
balancing, client/customer contact, squatting, and occasional indoor/outdoor activities, carrying and lifting of moderately
heavy equipment, boxes to perform the essential functions.

This job description is intended to be generic in nature. It is not necessarily an exhaustive list of all duties
and responsibilities. The essential duties, functions and responsibilities and overtime eligibility may vary
based on the specific tasks assigned to the position.

Page2of2 503

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Support Services Manager

JOB CODE: 22696 FLSA STATUS: Exempt
PAY GRADE: 22 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

JOB SUMMARY:

Manages the support services program. Manages, plans, organizes and analyzes revenue estimates, grants, purchasing,
internal controls and special projects.

DISTINGUISHING CHARACTERISTICS:

This is a job classification within the Senior Management/Middle Management job family. Incumbents in this
classification perform advanced financial and budgetary analysis.

DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES:

• Develops departmental programs. Develops, prepares and administers the department budget and purchasing.
Prepares a variety of fiscal and administrative reports. Develops and implements administrative policies and
procedures.

• Manages the rental and service of countywide office equipment program, including, but not limited to, copiers,
shredders, faxes and typewriters. Coordinates and manages equipment preventative maintenance services,
programs and schedules. Plans, develops, implements and evaluates related programs and services. Collects and
analyzes data for cost efficiencies.

• Supervises support staff, evaluates staff job performance and coordinates and prioritizes schedules and
assignments. Authorizes staff productive and non-productive work hours. Orients and trains staff.

• Prepares and/or directs the preparation of special statistical reports, detailed accounting information, surveys or
analysis of a complex and difficult nature for management. Interprets various data, reports and recommends and/or
initiates actions to be taken.

• Performs other job-related duties as assigned.

MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS:

Education and Experience:
Bachelor’s degree in Accounting, Public Administration, Business Administration, Business Management or a directly
related field AND five (5) years related professional experience, including one (1) year of mid- to senior level supervisory
or management experience;

OR,

Any combination of education and experience that has been achieved and is equivalent to the stated education and
experience and required knowledge, skills, and abilities sufficient to successfully perform the duties and responsibilities
of this job.

Licenses, Registrations, Certifications, or Special Requirements:
None required.

Knowledge, Skills, and Abilities:
Knowledge of:
• Management and supervision practices and techniques.
• Federal, State, Local and County applicable laws, rules, regulations and guidelines.
• Issues and trends in related field.
• Policies, practices, procedures and terminology of assigned function.
• Filing and reporting requirements.
• Accounting, purchasing and budgetary theory, principles and practices.
• Computer equipment to include word processing, spreadsheets and databases, and related software packages.
• Business letter writing, grammar and punctuation, and report preparation.

Page 1 of 2

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Support Services Manager

JOB CODE: 22696 FLSA STATUS: Exempt
PAY GRADE: 22 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS: (Cont.)

Skill in:
• Supervising others, including team building.
• Problem-solving and decision-making.
• Both verbal and written communication.

Ability to:
• Train and supervise support staff.
• Write reports, business correspondence and procedure manuals.
• Independently prepare correspondence, memorandums and other materials.
• Read, analyze and interpret general business periodicals, professional journals, technical procedures and governmental

regulations.
• Assist in monitoring a budget.
• Implement and maintain filing and accounting systems.
• Reason and make judgments and decisions.
• Interpret a variety of instructions furnished in written, verbal, diagram, or schedule form.
• Manage time well, perform multiple tasks and organize diverse activities.
• Perform in a stressful environment while maintaining a professional manner.
• Research, compile, analyze, interpret and prepare a variety of memorandums or reports.
• Establish and maintain effective working relationships with County employees and officials, representatives of

outside agencies, and the general public.

WORK ENVIRONMENT AND PHYSICAL DEMANDS:

Physical requirements include the ability to lift/carry up to 20-50 pounds visual acuity, speech and hearing, hand and eye
coordination and manual dexterity necessary to operate a computer and office equipment. Subject to standing, walking,
sitting, repetitive motion, reaching, climbing stairs, bending, stooping, kneeling, crouching, crawling, pushing, pulling,
balancing, client/customer contact, squatting, and occasional indoor/outdoor activities carrying and lifting of moderately
heavy equipment, boxes to perform the essential functions.

This job description is intended to be generic in nature. It is not necessarily an exhaustive list of all duties
and responsibilities. The essential duties, functions and responsibilities and overtime eligibility may vary
based on the specific tasks assigned to the position.

Page2of2

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Elections Management Coordinator

JOB CODE: 22207 FLSA STATUS: Exempt
PAY GRADE: 22 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

JOB SUMMARY:

Coordinates operational activities of a divisional area.

DISTINGUISHING CHARACTERISTICS:

This is a job classification within the Senior Management/Middle Management job family. Incumbent’s in this
classification develops and implements daily operations of election process. This classification may require a flexible
work schedule in order to meet the needs of the department.

DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES:

• Designs, plans, implements, coordinates and oversees election programs and projects.

• Supervises day-to-day administrative office activities. Recruits, trains and supervises the work of election temporary
workforce. Develops, prepares and schedules training and orientation sessions for each election. Develops,
implements and tracks project plans. Analyzes voter registration information.

• Assists in preparation of negotiated arrangements and contracts to conduct elections for intergovernmental entities.
Prepares post elections billing information.

• Assists in developing and proofing ballot formats and layouts.

• Prepares recommendations for polling places. Procures polling places based upon inspections, interviews and input
from voters, election judges, political party officials and Elected Officials.

• Coordinates with polling places for election activities. Estimates and orders needed supplies. Maintains supply and
technical equipment inventory. Oversees warehouse operations, supply preparation and delivery of equipment for
all elections.

• Coordinates and prepares documentation and statutorily required notices. Coordinates activities related to the
official reporting of financial disclosure documents for candidates and specific purpose political action committees,
including distribution of forms, acceptance of filings and preparation of information for public view, in person, and on
the Internet.

• Supervises preparation of materials and arranges publications to meet legally mandated times of notices.

• Administers mock election program for area high schools.

• Provides manager with cost worksheets for assigned projects. Prepares and administers budget. Prepares a
variety of fiscal and administrative reports. Determines resources needed to meet service demands.

• Performs other job-related duties as assigned.

MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS:

Education and Experience:
Bachelor’s degree in Public Administration, Business Administration, Business Management, Government, Political
Science or a directly related field AND three (3) years of increasingly responsible elections program or project
management experience, including one (1) year of mid- to senior level supervisory or management experience;

OR,

Any combination of education and experience that has been achieved and is equivalent to the stated education and
experience and required knowledge, skills, and abilities sufficient to successfully perform the duties and responsibilities
of this job.

Licenses, Registrations, Certifications, or Special Requirements:
Valid Texas Driver’s License.

Page 1 of 3 _)

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Elections Management Coordinator

JOB CODE: 22207 FLSA STATUS: Exempt
PAY GRADE: 22 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS: (Cont.)

Education and Experience: (Cont.)

Preferred:
Experience in elections and handling deadline oriented projects.

Knowledge, Skills, and Abilities:
Knowledge of:
• Federal, State, Local and City election laws, rules, guidelines, regulations and legislative processes.
• Strategic planning and production-related project management.
• Management of automated voting systems and information system technology and software applications.
• Management and supervisory principles, practices and techniques.
• Practices in record-keeping functions.
• Standard practices in area of assignment.
• Supervisory principles, practices and techniques.
• Online computer searches.
• Budget preparation and office management.
• Computer equipment to include word processing, spreadsheets, databases and a variety of software packages.
• Business letter writing, grammar and punctuation, and report preparation.

Skill in:
• Supervising others, including team building.
• Explaining complicated technical problems in simple non-technical language.
• Problem-solving and technical decision-making for developing effective solutions.
• Conflict resolution and community relations.
• Public speaking and content delivery.
• Both verbal and written communication.

Ability to:
• Coordinate a variety of inter-related areas of election preparation.
• Train, guide, organize and assign the work of others.
• Conduct training presentations to large groups.
• Plan, coordinate, monitor, and negotiate arrangements and evaluate complex projects.
• Develop, analyze and interpret policies and procedures, public information statements and operational plans or

activities.
• Work on a wide variety of tasks simultaneously and produce timely and tangible results.
• Manage time well, perform multiple tasks and organize diverse activities.
• Research, compile, analyze, interpret and prepare a variety of fiscal, statistical and administrative reports.
• Independently prepare correspondence, memorandums and other materials.
• Develop, analyze and interpret complex policies, regulations and procedures.
• Establish and maintain effective working relationships with departmental clientele, technical staff, state and local

officials, elected and appointed officials, members of the media, representatives of outside agencies, other County
employees and officials, and the general public.

Page 2of3 5o7

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Elections Management Coordinator

JOB CODE: 22207 FLSA STATUS: Exempt
PAY GRADE: 22 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

WORK ENVIRONMENT AND PHYSICAL DEMANDS:

Physical requirements include the ability to lift/carry up to 20-50 pounds visual acuity, speech and hearing, hand and eye
coordination and manual dexterity necessary to operate a computer and office equipment. Subject to standing, walking,
sitting, repetitive motion, reaching, climbing stairs, bending, stooping, kneeling, crouching, crawling, pushing, pulling,
balancing, client/customer contact, squatting, and occasional indoor/outdoor activities carrying and lifting of moderately
heavy equipment, boxes to perform the essential functions.

This job description is intended to be generic in nature. It is not necessarily an exhaustive list of all duties
and responsibilities. The essential duties, functions and responsibilities and overtime eligibility may vary
based on the specific tasks assigned to the position.

Page 3 of 3 538

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Elections Assistant Administrator

JOB CODE: 26208 FLSA STATUS: Exempt
PAY GRADE: 26 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

JOB SUMMARY:

Assists the Division Manager in strategic planning that establishes goals and objectives for the division. Oversees the daily
operational activities of a divisional area.

DISTINGUISHING CHARACTERISTICS:

This is a job classification within the Senior Management/Middle Management job family. Incumbents in this
classification develop and implement phases of election process. This classification may require a flexible work
schedule in order to meet the needs of the department.

DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES:

• Oversees the day-to-day functions of the division, including personnel, information systems, facilities, resources
planning, strategic planning and records management. Assists the Division Manager with planning, coordinating,
administering and evaluating operations, staff and functions of the division.

• Supervises support staff, evaluates staff job performance, coordinates and prioritizes, and schedules assignments.
Authorizes staff productive and non-productive work hours. Orients and trains staff, including assignments and
distribution of workload to adjust to changing priorities.

• Interprets and implements policies and procedures to achieve the objectives of the division. Provides input for
developing new strategies. Serves as primary support to the Division Manager in planning, developing, and
organizing division programs.

• Manages the timely implementation of all activities contributing to elections operations. Works with information
systems staff in support of the division’s systems needs, programming and hardware support.

• Monitors Federal, State and Local laws to ensure programs are in compliance. Oversees the review and analysis of
Local, State and Federal legislation in election laws. Implements operational changes, as required.

• Oversees the implementation and monitors the progress of voter outreach programs held for various citizen groups
within the community. Ensures that accurate information is disseminated to all public entities including the press.

• Evaluates projects and programs. Monitors issues and reviews strategies for future project and program planning
requirements.

• Assists in the development of annual budget. Monitors costs that pertain to each election and prepares cost analysis
and billing, as required. Assists in the management of internal monitoring, evaluation, quality control and
performance analysis of division programs. Prepares regular and ad hoc statistical analysis and reporting of
information. Maintains and ensures proper inventory control and security of all equipment and materials, including
electronic voting system.

• Interacts and serves as liaison for the department with community representatives, committees, legislature, County
offices, governmental agencies, other departments, and outside agencies and constituencies to facilitate project and
program issues, goals, objectives and implementation. Responds to difficult inquires and complaints.

• Attends and participates in meetings with other departments and agencies. Attends professional association meetings
and serves on related committees and boards. Represents department at meetings and in dealing with the public,
public officials and other public agencies. Makes presentations. Acts as liaison to other municipalities, counties and
other public agencies.

• Performs other job-related duties as assigned.

Page 1 of 3

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Elections Assistant Administrator

JOB CODE: 26208 FLSA STATUS: Exempt
PAY GRADE: 26 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS:

Education and ExDerience:
Bachelor’s degree in Public Administration, Business Administration, Business Management, Government, Political
Science or a directly related field AND four (4) years of increasingly responsible elections program or project
management experience, including three (3) years of mid- to senior level supervisory or management experience;

OR,

Any combination of education and experience that has been achieved and is equivalent to the stated education and
experience and required knowledge, skills, and abilities sufficient to successfully perform the duties and responsibilities
of this job.

Licenses, Registrations, Certifications, or Special Requirements:
Valid Texas Driver’s License.

Preferred:
Master’s degree in Public Administration, Business Administration, Business Management, Government, Political
Science or a directly related field.
Experience in elections and handling deadline oriented projects.

Knowledge, Skills, and Abilities:
Knowledge of:
• Federal, State, Local and City election laws, ordinances, rules, regulations, guidelines and legislative processes.
• Strategic planning and production-related project management.
• Management of automated voting systems and information system hardware and software applications.
• Management and supervisory principles, practices and techniques.
• Practices in record-keeping functions.
• Standard practices in area of assignment.
• Supervisory principles, practices and techniques.
• Online computer searches.
• Budget preparation and office management.
• Computer equipment to include word processing, spreadsheets, databases and a variety of software packages.
• Business letter writing, grammar and punctuation, and report preparation.

Skill in:
• Supervising others, including team building.
• Explaining complicated technical problems in simple non-technical language.
• Problem-solving and technical decision-making for developing effective solutions.
• Conflict resolution and community relations.
• Public speaking and content delivery.
• Both verbal and written communication, including presentations.

Ability to:
• Coordinate a variety on inter-related areas of election preparation.
• Train, guide, organize and assign the work of others.
• Conduct training presentations to large groups.
• Plan, coordinate, monitor and negotiate arrangements and evaluate complex projects.
• Develop, analyze and interpret policies and procedures, public information statements, and operational plans or

activities.
• Understand and interpret election laws, ordinances, rules and regulations.
• Plan and manage elections and election-related processes.
• Work on a wide variety of tasks simultaneously and produce timely and tangible results.

Page 2 of 3 ___)/ C)

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Elections Assistant Administrator

JOB CODE: 26208 FLSA STATUS: Exempt
PAY GRADE: 26 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS: (Cont.)

Ability to: (Cont.)
• Manage time well, perform multiple tasks and organize diverse activities.
• Research, compile, analyze, interpret and prepare a variety of fiscal, statistical and administrative reports.
• Work independently.
• Develop, analyze and interpret complex policies, regulations and procedures.
• Establish and maintain effective working relationships with departmental clientele, technical staff, state and local

officials, elected and appointed officials, members of the media, representatives of outside agencies, other County
employees and officials, and the general public.

WORK ENVIRONMENT AND PHYSICAL DEMANDS:

Physical requirements include the ability to liWcarry up to 20-50 pounds visual acuity, speech and hearing, hand and eye
coordination and manual dexterity necessary to operate a computer and office equipment. Subject to standing, walking,
sitting, repetitive motion, reaching, climbing stairs, bending, stooping, kneeling, crouching, crawling, pushing, pulling,
balancing, client/customer contact, squatting, and occasional indoor/outdoor activities carrying and lifting of moderately
heavy equipment, boxes to perform the essential functions.

This job description is intended to be generic in nature. It is not necessarily an exhaustive list of all duties
and responsibilities. The essential duties, functions and responsibilities and overtime eligibility may vary
based on the specific tasks assigned to the position.

Page3of3

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: District Park Manager

JOB CODE: 21234 FLSA STATUS: Exempt
PAY GRADE: 21 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

JOB SUMMARY:

Oversees, directs, controls, and monitors the use of Park Resources within district, including staff, materials, facilities
and equipment. Measures and analyses resource requirements, develops annual work programs and schedules, and
assists in preparation of annual budget requirements and performance measures. Develops and implements
management controls, routinely inspects work-in-progress and status of material, equipment, and facilities. Develops
performance standards, and directs park supervisors and evaluates their performance.

DISTINGUISHING CHARACTERISTICS:

This is a job classification within the Senior Management/Middle Management job family. This is a management
position and represents senior management within the division. This classification will require a flexible work schedule
and performs manager on duty functions in order to meet the needs of the division.

DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES:

• Oversees and manages the maintenance and operation of all parks and preserves within the district, including long-
and short-term maintenance, operations and policy. Develops and coordinates annual work plans. Provides
standard operating procedures, protocols, training, facility inspections, and proper documentation of work and quality
control standards to ensure that standards and goals are maintained.

• Oversees and manages the visitor services for all parks, including user fee collection program. Ensures
accountability through effective audit program, develops and implements standards and guidelines for providing
visitor services, ensures that factual and accurate information is provided to park visitors, coordinates district
education and recreation program, and resolves visitor complaints and concerns.

• Manages the park safety programs, including coordinating law enforcement and medical services with Park Ranger
Chief. Ensures sound safety programs, oversees safety program, ensures safety in the workplace, and ensures
compliance with the Federal Endangered Species Act.

• Plans, develops, and administers programs, policies, and annual work plans. Tracks statistical data, prepares
administrative reports and documents work activity.

• Supervises subordinate supervisors. Recruits, hires, counsels, disciplines, rewards or recommends termination of
regular or seasonal staff. Prepares work schedules, conducts performance appraisals, and ensures compliance
with the Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA).

• Supervises support staff, evaluates staff job performance, coordinates and prioritizes and schedules assignments
and authorizes staff productive and non-productive work hours. Orients and trains staff, including assignments and
distribution of workload to adjust to changing priorities.

• Prepares short and medium range plans. Provides input into and assists in writing medium to long range park
plans. Adapts operations to approved system-wide plans. Provides input into the Parks Master Plan development
for individual parks and the park system. Works in cooperation with other Park District Managers to coordinate
operations.

• Communicates and interfaces with citizens, public and private entities and special interest groups. Ensures
coordination and cooperation among groups. May address civic, conservation and natural resources groups on park
operations.

• Coordinates with outside organizations for various sporting and other special events within the parks.

• Performs other job-related duties as assigned.

MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS:

Education and Experience:
Bachelor’s degree in Parks and Recreation, Business Administration, Turf Management, Agriculture, Forestry, Biology,
Conservation, Geology, Wildlife Management or other related Life Science discipline AND five (5) years of experience in
park management, including two (2) years of mid- to senior level supervisory or management experience;

Page 1 of 3

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: District Park Manager

JOB CODE: 21234 FLSA STATUS: Exempt
PAY GRADE: 21 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS: (Cont.)

Education and Experience: (Cont.)

OR,

Any combination of education and experience that has been achieved and is equivalent to the stated education and
experience and required knowledge, skills, and abilities sufficient to successfully perform the duties and responsibilities
of this job.

Licenses, Registrations, Certifications, or Special Requirements:
Valid Texas Driver’s License.

Preferred:
Certified Park and Recreation Professional (CPRP).

Knowledge, Skills, and Abilities:
Knowledge of:
• Management and supervisory principles, practices and techniques.
• Standard management theory, principles, practices, and techniques of park management and operations.
• Federal, State, Local and County applicable laws, rules, regulations and guidelines.
• Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA).
• State and Federal regulatory or administrative requirements and practices.
• Budgetary practices and techniques.
• Supervisory principles, practices and techniques.
• Computer equipment to include word processing, spreadsheets, databases and a variety of software packages.
• Business letter writing, grammar and punctuation, and report preparation.

Skill in:
• Managing staff and program operations.
• Maintenance of park facilities including buildings, landscaping, turf, irrigation systems, trails, Playscapes, aquatic

areas, and preserves.
• Texas Department of Health Emergency Medical Technical.
• Public Safety within a park and preserve environment.
• Supervisory/management issues, including planning and managing teams in a park and preserve environment.
• Planning and coordinating work activities.
• Researching, analyzing, compiling, preparing and presenting technical data/information and reports.
• Problem-solving and decision-making.
• Public speaking and content delivery.
• Conflict resolution and community relations.
• Both verbal and written communication, including presentations.

Ability to:
• Organize and manage personnel in visitor service, public safety and education.
• Plan, organize and effectively direct projects.
• Supervise work for maintenance, operations and Emergency Medical Technician (EMT) staff members.
• Manage time well, perform multiple tasks and organize diverse activities.
• Perform in a stressful environment while maintaining a professional manner.
• Work on a wide variety of tasks simultaneously and produce timely and tangible results.
• Prioritize needs and develop and implement plans of action.
• Work as a team member within a diverse organization.
• Read and understand basic legal documents.
• Establish and maintain effective working relationships with County employees and officials, representatives of

outside agencies, and the general public.

Page2of3 ..,,/ 3

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: District Park Manager

JOB CODE: 21234 FLSA STATUS: Exempt
PAY GRADE: 21 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

WORK ENVIRONMENT AND PHYSICAL DEMANDS:

Physical requirements include the ability to lift/carry up to 20-50 pounds occasionally, visual acuity, speech and hearing,
hand and eye coordination and manual dexterity necessary to operate a computer and office equipment. Subject to
standing, walking, sitting, repetitive motion, reaching, climbing stairs, bending, stooping, kneeling, crouching, crawling,
pushing, pulling, balancing, client/customer contact, squatting to perform the essential functions.

This job description is intended to be generic in nature. It is not necessarily an exhaustive list of all duties
and responsibilities. The essential duties, functions and responsibilities and overtime eligibility may vary
based on the specific tasks assigned to the position.

Page 3 of 3

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Development Services Program Manager

JOB CODE: 23299 FLSA STATUS: Exempt
PAY GRADE: 23 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

JOB SUMMARY:

Manages, plans, organizes and supervises the work unit.

DISTINGUISHING CHARACTERISTICS:

This is a job classification within the Senior Management/Middle Management job family. Incumbent’s in this
classification represents senior management within the department. This classification may require a flexible work
schedule in order to meet the needs of the department.

DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES:

• Manages, directs and supervises work and activities of professional support staff, which includes hiring, training, work
distribution, performance management, performance reviews and discipline. Plans, organizes, develops, schedules
and implements policies, procedures, goals and objectives for the program.

• Coordinates and manages land development regulatory services, flood plain administration, fiscal surety, site plan
engineering, development permitting and on-site wastewater programming to confirm County interests and
mandates are met.

• Coordinates and collaborates with other jurisdictions, constituents and authorities to maximize regulatory
concurrence. Communicates with owners, developers, engineers and consultants to advise of project status.

• Directs, manages and ensures correct and accurate information is contained in County recommendations or
requirements. Researches historical and environmental context of proposed projects. Troubleshoots, negotiates,
and problem-solves concerns or conflicts between various involved parties. Provides data reports.

• Makes recommendations to departmental executives and Elected Officials. Provides information to the public
regarding property subdivision in Travis County.

• Manages the flow of information and data from the program area and ensures information as related to subdivision,
land development, and legislative issues are presented to Executive Management and Commissioners Court
accurately.

• Responsible for compliance of Federal, State and Local Government Code and Travis County regulations as related
to land development, a range of map types, including FEMA Flood plain maps, USGS and other forms of
topographic maps, tax maps and other property maps.

• Conducts online computer searches. Utilizes online resources, such as County Clerk’s documents, County, City,
and CAPCO GIS data, the CAMPO plan and the Austin Transportation Criteria Manual. Utilizes basic engineering,
planning and construction terms. Reads and interprets basic legal documents.

• Coordinates development of multi-year programs, including an annual Work Program. Develops and revises
operating procedures.

• Coordinates review and analysis of Federal, State and Local legislation.

• Monitors relevant local and regional events related to community development, regional planning, land use,
transportation and parks. Meets with citizens’ groups on Transportation, Environmental, and Park Development
issues.

• Attends and participates in meetings with other departments and agencies. Participates in professional association
meetings and serves on related committees and boards. Represents unit at meetings and in dealing with the public,
public officials and other public agencies. Makes presentation.

• Acts as liaison to other municipalities, counties and public agencies.

• Assists in development of annual budget. Coordinates development of planning documents for programs. Serves
as staff support for bond program efforts.

• Performs other job-related duties as assigned.

Page 1 of 3 3 /%.5

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Development Services Program Manager

JOB CODE: 23299 FLSA STATUS: Exempt
PAY GRADE: 23 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS:

Education and Experience:
Bachelor’s degree in Planning, Business Administration, Transportation, Engineering or a directly related field AND five
(5) years of directly related, increasingly responsible experience in planning or coordinating activities in subdivision
planning and administration, including two (2) years of mid- to senior level supervisory or management experience;

OR,

Any combination of education and experience that has been achieved and is equivalent to the stated education and
experience and required knowledge, skills, and abilities sufficient to successfully perform the duties and responsibilities
of this job.

Licenses, Registrations, Certifications, or Special Requirements:
None required.

Preferred:
Master’s degree in Planning, Business Administration, Transportation, Engineering or a directly related field.

Knowledge, Skills, and Abilities:
Knowledge of:
• Urban planning and research methodology of Federal, State, County and City environmental, transportation and

resources management laws and regulations and legislative processes of community issues.
• Standard management theory, principles, practices and techniques.
• Federal, State, Local and County applicable laws, rules, regulations and guidelines.
• State and Federal regulatory or administrative requirements and practices.
• Design standards and policies.
• Purpose and limitations of various permits and regulations.
• Budgetary and fiscal process.
• Supervisory principles, practices and techniques.
• Online computer searches.
• Computer equipment to include word processing, spreadsheets, databases, ArcView GIS hardware and software,

and related applications.
• Business letter writing, grammar and punctuation, and report preparation.

Skill in:
• Advanced transportation planning, including traffic impact analysis and/or demand modeling.
• Economic analysis, including cost/benefit and marginal analysis.
• Statistical analysis, including quantitative and systems analysis and other statistical tools as they relate to enhancing

management decision-making.
• Resolving supervisory/management issues, including planning and managing teams.
• Planning and coordinating work activities.
• Researching analyzing, compiling, preparing and presenting technical data/information and reports.
• Problem-solving and decision-making.
• Public speaking and content delivery.
• Conflict resolution and community relations.
• Both verbal and written communication.

5/’Page 2 of 3

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Development Services Program Manager

JOB CODE: 23299 FLSA STATUS: Exempt
PAY GRADE: 23 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS: (Cont.)

Ability to:
• Plan, organize and effectively direct projects.
• Supervise work of professional and support staff members.
• Work on a wide variety of tasks simultaneously and produce timely and tangible results.
• Utilize online resources.
• Prioritize needs and develop and implement plans of action.
• Work as a team member within a diverse organization.
• Read and understand basic legal documents.
• Establish and maintain effective working relationships with County employees and officials, representatives of

outside agencies, and the general public.

WORK ENVIRONMENT AND PHYSICAL DEMANDS:

Physical requirements include the ability to lift/carry up to 20-50 pounds occasionally, visual acuity, speech and hearing,
hand and eye coordination and manual dexterity necessary to operate a computer and office equipment. Subject to
standing, walking, sitting, repetitive motion, reaching, climbing stairs, bending, stooping, kneeling, crouching, crawling,
pushing, pulling, balancing, client/customer contact, squatting to perform the essential functions.

This job description is intended to be generic in nature. It is not necessarily an exhaustive list of all duties
and responsibilities. The essential duties, functions and responsibilities and overtime eligibility may vary
based on the specific tasks assigned to the position.

c_’) 7
Page3of3 ..)f /

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Parks Division Manager

JOB CODE: 26310 FLSA STATUS: Exempt
PAY GRADE: 26 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

JOB SUMMARY:

Manages and directs a countywide park system.

DISTINGUISHING CHARACTERISTICS:

This is the first in a series of two parks-related job classifications within the Senior Management/Middle Management job
family. Represents senior management within the department. This classification may require a flexible work schedule
in order to meet the needs of the department.

DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES:

• Plans, develops, manages and supervises the activities of park operations by establishing standard operating
procedures, maintenance programs, and annual work development plan and facility goals. Ensures proper protocol
by conducting inspections, determining facility and training needs, developing training programs and quality control
standards. Develops methods for improved management and technical techniques.

• Plans, develops, manages and oversees park facility maintenance and repair projects. Manages park revenue
collection and reporting.

• Oversees, manages, plans, programs and directs the visitor services for Parks, including policy, fee collection, cash
handling, customer service training, educational programming, defining needs of user groups, public information,
online information systems, brochure information, public communication, special events and visitor interaction with
employees.

• Oversees, manages, plans, programs and directs the public safety for Parks including law enforcement/peace
officers, emergency medical services and search and rescue.

• Reviews, approves and monitors interagency and consultant contracts. May address civic, conservation and natural
resources groups on park operations.

• Manages directs and supervises work and activities of professional support staff, which includes hiring, training,
work distribution, performance management, performance reviews and discipline. Plans, organizes, develops,
schedules and implements goals and objectives for the program.

• Manages employee safety programs and facility and property security programs.

• Plans, directs and monitors park programs, policies and annual work plan.

• Performs other job-related duties as assigned.

MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS:

Education and Experience:
Bachelor’s degree in Parks and Recreation, Conservation, Business Administration or a directly related field AND five (5)
years of directly related, increasingly responsible experience in park operations and management, including three (3)
years of mid- to senior level supervisory or management experience;

OR,

Any combination of education and experience that has been achieved and is equivalent to the stated education and
experience and required knowledge, skills, and abilities sufficient to successfully perform the duties and responsibilities
of this job.

Licenses, Registrations, Certifications, or Special Requirements:
Valid Texas Driver’s License.

Preferred:
Certified Park and Recreation Professional (CPRP).

Pagelof2 57’

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Parks Division Manager

JOB CODE: 26310 FLSA STATUS: Exempt
PAY GRADE: 26 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS: (Cont.)

Knowledcie, Skills, and Abilities:
Knowledge of:
• Standard management theory, principles, practices and techniques of park management and operations.
• Federal, State, Local and County applicable laws, rules, regulations and guidelines.
• Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA).
• State and Federal regulatory or administrative requirements and practices.
• Budgetary and fiscal process.
• Supervisory principles, practices and techniques.
• Online computer searches.
• Computer equipment to include word processing, spreadsheets, databases and a variety of software packages.
• Business letter writing, grammar and punctuation and report preparation.

Skill in:
• Search and rescue techniques.
• Resolving supervisory/management issues, including planning and managing teams.
• Planning and coordinating work activities.
• Researching, analyzing, compiling, preparing and presenting technical data/information and reports.
• Problem-solving and decision-making.
• Public speaking and content delivery.
• Conflict resolution and community relations.
• Both verbal and written communication.

Ability to:
• Organize and direct personnel in park maintenance, operations, visitor service, public safety and recreation!

education.
• Plan, organize and effectively direct projects.
• Supervise work of professional and support staff members.
• Work on a wide variety of tasks simultaneously and produce timely and tangible results.
• Utilize online resources.
• Manage operations at multiple sites.
• Prioritize needs, develop and implement plans of action.
• Work as a team member within a diverse organization.
• Read and understand basic legal documents.
• Establish and maintain effective working relationships with County employees and officials, representatives of

outside agencies, and the general public.

WORK ENVIRONMENT AND PHYSICAL DEMANDS:

Physical requirements include the ability to lift/carry up to 20-50 pounds occasionally, visual acuity, speech and hearing,
hand and eye coordination and manual dexterity necessary to operate a computer and office equipment. Subject to
standing, walking, sitting, repetitive motion, reaching, climbing stairs, bending, stooping, kneeling, crouching, crawling,
pushing, pulling, balancing, client/customer contact, squatting to perform the essential functions.

This job description is intended to be generic in nature. It is not necessarily an exhaustive list of all duties
and responsibilities. The essential duties, functions and responsibilities and overtime eligibility may vary
based on the specific tasks assigned to the position.

Page 2 of 2 ‘7

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Fleet Division Manager

JOB CODE: 26311 FLSA STATUS: Exempt
PAY GRADE: 26 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

JOB SUMMARY:

Manages, directs, plans, organizes and supervises the fleet management programs.

DISTINGUISHING CHARACTERISTICS:

This is a job classification within the Senior Management/Middle Management job family. Incumbent’s in this
classification represents senior management within the department. This classification may require a flexible work
schedule in order to meet the needs of the department.

DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES:

• Oversees, manages and directs the vehicles and equipment, maintenance facilities and administration of
countywide Fleet Services. Provides short and long term maintenance criteria, guidelines, systems, standard
operating procedures, protocols, training, facility inspections, proper documentation of work and quality control to
ensure standards and goals are maintained.

• Oversees, manages and coordinates the County Fleet policy. Works with user departments for vehicle replacement
and/or new vehicle needs. Writes specifications for County’s vehicle/equipment purchases. Reviews specifications
submitted by other County departments. Coordinates with Purchasing on all major purchases.

• Provides accurate fleet inventories. Audits fleet inventories with user departments. Manages pool vehicles at
various County locations and coordinates their assignment with all users.

• Manages development of schedules and budgets.

• Reviews, investigates and manages vehicle and equipment accidents.

• Develops and monitors fleet system program guidelines, procedures, policies, rules and regulations.

• Develops short-and long-term alternate fuels implementation plans in conjunction with divisions, districts and
agencies.

• Works directly and through supervisors to manage, develop and direct operations staff. Provides leadership and
guidance. Leads by example. Ensures effective two-way communications within chain of command. Develops and
maintains relevant performance standards and measures. Addresses personnel issues in a fair and timely manner.

• Plans, develops, administers, and monitors annual work plan. Prepares statistical data. Directs and monitors
development of training and operational materials, information for vehicles and equipment-related programs.

• Represents department in development of County telecommunications policy, procedures and protocol. Oversees
department procurement and inventory control of telecommunication equipment.

• Performs other job-related duties as assigned.

MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS:

Education and Experience:
Bachelor’s degree in Business Administration or a directly related field AND five (5) years of directly related, increasingly
responsible experience in fleet management or technical program administration, including three (3) years of mid- to
senior level supervisory or management experience;

OR,

Any combination of education and experience that has been achieved and is equivalent to the stated education and
experience and required knowledge, skills, and abilities sufficient to successfully perform the duties and responsibilities
of this job.

Licenses, Registrations, Certifications, or Special Requirements:
Valid Texas Driver’s License.

Page 1 of 3 52c7

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Fleet Division Manager

JOB CODE: 26311 FLSA STATUS: Exempt
PAY GRADE: 26 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS: (Cont.)

Knowledge, Skills, and Abilities:
Knowledge of:
• Vehicles and heavy equipment applications and fleet operations and management.
• Mechanical repair techniques.
• Standard management theory, principles, practices, and techniques.
• Federal, State, Local and County applicable laws, rules, regulations and guidelines.
• State and Federal regulatory or administrative requirements and practices.
• Budgetary and fiscal process.
• Supervisory principles, practices and techniques.
• Online computer searches.
• Computer equipment to include word processing, spreadsheets, databases and a variety of software packages.
• Business letter writing, grammar and punctuation, and report preparation.

Skill in:
• Work design, time management, facilitation and managing budgets.
• Resolving Leadership/management issues, including planning and managing teams.
• Planning and coordinating work activities.
• Researching, analyzing, compiling, preparing and presenting technical data/information and reports.
• Problem-solving and decision-making.
• Public speaking and content delivery.
• Conflict resolution and community relations.
• Both verbal and written communication.

Ability to:
• Plan, organize and effectively direct programs.
• Direct and lead work of professional and support staff members.
• Coach, mentor and motivate staff.
• Work on a wide variety of tasks simultaneously and produce timely and tangible results.
• Utilize online resources.
• Anticipate future requirements, and research and analyze emerging programs.
• Conduct and prepare feasibility studies.
• Develop proposals including estimates for resource usage.
• Prepare statistical reports and complete cost/benefit analysis.
• Effectively communicate strategic directions and goals.
• Communicate with a broad base of stakeholders and multiple management layers.
• Prioritize needs, develop and implement plans of action.
• Work as a team member within a diverse organization.
• Read and understand basic legal documents.
• Establish and maintain effective working relationships with County employees and officials, representatives of

outside agencies, and the general public.

Page 2 of 3

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Fleet Division Manager

JOB CODE: 26311 FLSA STATUS: Exempt
PAY GRADE: 26 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

WORK ENVIRONMENT AND PHYSICAL DEMANDS:

Physical requirements include the ability to lift/carry up to 20-50 pounds occasionally, visual acuity, speech and hearing,
hand and eye coordination and manual dexterity necessary to operate a computer and office equipment. Subject to
standing, walking, sitting, repetitive motion, reaching, climbing stairs, bending, stooping, kneeling, crouching, crawling,
pushing, pulling, balancing, client/customer contact, squatting to perform the essential functions..

This job description is intended to be generic in nature. It is not necessarily an exhaustive list of all duties
and responsibilities. The essential duties, functions and responsibilities and overtime eligibility may vary
based on the specific tasks assigned to the position.

Page 3 of 3 52 2.

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Elections Division Director

JOB CODE: 28209 FLSA STATUS: Exempt
PAY GRADE: 28 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

JOB SUMMARY:

Directs, administers and manages operational activities of a divisional area.

DISTINGUISHING CHARACTERISTICS:

This is a job classification within the Senior Management/Middle Management job family. Incumbent’s in this
classification directs and administers operational activities. This classification may require a flexible work schedule in
order to meet the needs of the department.

DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES:

o Directs and administers operational activities. Manages systems, staff and equipment. Ensures that systems
comply with applicable federal, state and local election laws.

• Supervises support staff, evaluates staff job performance, coordinates and prioritizes schedules and assignments.
Authorizes staff productive and non-productive work hours. Orients and trains staff, including assignments and
distribution of workload to adjust to changing priorities.

• Directs, manages and controls division budget. Prepares and submits a variety of fiscal and administrative reports.
Ensures adequate resources available for operation of division.

• Designs, budgets, implements, monitors and evaluates operations. Directs the annual work plan to achieve
organizational mission statement, stated goals and objectives. Evaluates and reports on performance and develops
and implements quality improvements strategies.

• Solicits, conducts initial negotiations for, and drafts new contracts with other governmental entities for providing any
combination of election services.

• Serves as liaison with other agencies and the media with regard to elections issues.

• Performs other job-related duties as assigned.

MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS:

Education and Experience:
Bachelor’s degree in Public Administration, Business Administration, Business Management, Government, Political
Science or a directly related field AND five (5) years of increasingly responsible elections program division level
experience, including four (4) years of mid- to senior level supervisory or management experience;

OR,

Any combination of education and experience that has been achieved and is equivalent to the stated education and
experience and required knowledge, skills, and abilities sufficient to successfully perform the duties and responsibilities
of this job.

Licenses, Registrations, Certifications, or Special Requirements:
Valid Texas Driver’s License.

Preferred:
Master’s degree in Public Administration, Business Administration, Business Management, Government, Political
Science or a directly related field.
Experience in elections and handling deadline oriented projects.

s3Page 1 of 2

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Elections Division Director

JOB CODE: 28209 FLSA STATUS: Exempt
PAY GRADE: 28 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS: (Cont.)

Knowledge, Skills, and Abilities:
Knowledge of:
• Federal, State, Local and City election laws, ordinances, rules, regulations, guidelines and legislative processes.
• Strategic planning and production-related project management.
• Management of automated voting systems and information system technology and software applications.
• Management and supervisory principles, practices and techniques.
• Practices in record-keeping functions.
• Standard practices in area of assignment.
• Supervisory principles, practices and techniques.
• Online computer searches.
• Budget preparation and office management.
• Computer equipment to include word processing, spreadsheets, databases and a variety of software packages.
• Business letter writing, grammar and punctuation, and report preparation.

Skill in:
• Resolving supervisory/management issues, including planning and managing teams.
• Problem-solving and decision-making.
• Conflict resolution and community relations.
• Public speaking and content delivery.
• Both verbal and written communication, including presentations.

Ability to:
• Train and supervise office personnel.
• Plan, organize and effectively direct projects.
• Develop and implement new and innovative ideas.
• Work on a wide variety of tasks simultaneously and produce timely and tangible results.
• Address complex issues.
• Understand and interpret election laws, ordinances, rules and regulations.
• Plan and manage elections and election-related processes.
• Manage time well, perform multiple tasks and organize diverse activities.
• Work independently.
• Develop, analyze and interpret complex policies, regulations and procedures.
• Research, compile, analyze, interpret and prepare a variety of fiscal, statistical and administrative reports.
• Establish and maintain effective working relationships with departmental clientele, technical employees, state and

local officials, elected and appointed officials, members of the media, outside agencies, other County employees
and officials, and the general public.

WORK ENVIRONMENT AND PHYSICAL DEMANDS:

Physical requirements include the ability to lift/carry up to 20-50 pounds, visual acuity, speech and hearing, hand and eye
coordination and manual dexterity necessary to operate a computer and office equipment. Subject to standing, walking,
sitting, repetitive motion, reaching, climbing stairs, bending, stooping, kneeling, crouching, crawling, pushing, pulling,
balancing, client/customer contact, squatting to perform the essential functions.

This job description is intended to be generic in nature. It is not necessarily an exhaustive list of all duties
and responsibilities. The essential duties, functions and responsibilities and overtime eligibility may vary
based on the specific tasks assigned to the position.

Page2of2

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Juvenile Probation Director

JOB CODE: 27405 FLSA STATUS: Exempt
PAY GRADE: 27 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

JOB SUMMARY:

Directs department-wide operations in multiple complex functional or programmatic areas within a juvenile justice
system. Directs the overall operations, staff and functions through subordinate managers. Provides leadership,
oversight and direction in planning, organizing, implementing and evaluating operations in accordance with state, federal
and local laws, policies and procedures and guidelines. Develops departmental strategic plans to accomplish goals and
objectives and improve effectiveness and efficiency of services. Directs the staffing, training, development and
performance evaluation of division staff.

DISTINGUISHING CHARACTERISTICS:

This is the third in a series of four juvenile probation-related job classifications within the Senior Management/Middle
Management job family. This classification is distinguished by the high-level administrative and management duties and
responsibilities performed in directing the staff and operations of one or more complex functional or programmatic areas
within a juvenile justice system through subordinate managers. Reports directly to the department head. This
classification may require a flexible work schedule in order to meet the needs of the department.

DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES:

• Directs, plans, organizes, implements, monitors and evaluates department-wide operations and staff in complex
functional or programmatic areas within a juvenile justice system. Provides oversight and directs and ensures
conformity with State, Federal, County, Local laws and guidelines, and policies and procedures for the health, safety
and welfare of juveniles.

• Directs management and staff, including hiring, training, performance evaluation, disciplinary actions and dismissals,
and ensures activities are consistent with goals and objectives. Seeks and creates opportunities for improved
performance, learning and development of staff. Identifies and addresses problems or conflicts.

• Develops departmental strategic plans to accomplish goals and objectives and improve effectiveness and efficiency
of services.

• Plans, develops and implements departmental goals, objectives, policies and procedures. Maintains oversight of
day-to-day staffing and operations for program areas.

• Prepares and reviews a variety of programmatic, fiscal, administrative and statistical reports and interprets findings.
Evaluates current programs, services, procedures and practices on an on-going basis. Plans and develops policies,
procedures and programs to enhance efficiency and effectiveness and monitors workload to ensure that quality
services are being provided.

• Prepares and administers budget for areas of oversight. Monitors and approves budget expenditures to ensure
consistently with system goals and objectives and remaining available funds. Establishes internal control
procedures for budget related activities.

• Provides high-level technical advice, policy interpretation and guidance for application of appropriate procedures to
managers and other staff.

• Represents the department and serves as a liaison for local and statewide committees and task forces, advisory
groups, and the general public. Serves as spokesperson to media and outside agencies.

• Performs other job-related duties as assigned.

MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS:

Education and Experience:
Bachelor’s degree in Public Administration or Business Administration or one of the Social or Behavioral Sciences or a
directly related field AND seven (7) years of increasingly responsible experience in a social service, community
corrections or a juvenile agency, including four (4) years of mid- to senior level supervisory or management experience;

Page 1 of 3

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Juvenile Probation Director

JOB CODE: 27405 FLSA STATUS: Exempt
PAY GRADE: 27 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS: (Cont.)

Education and Experience: (Cont.)

OR,

Any combination of education and experience that has been achieved and is equivalent to the stated education and
experience and required knowledge, skills, and abilities sufficient to successfully perform the duties and responsibilities
of this job.

Licenses, Registrations, Certifications, or Special Requirements:
Eligible for certification by the Texas Juvenile Probation Commission as a Juvenile Probation Officer.
Valid Texas Driver’s License.

Preferred:
Master’s degree in Public Administration or Business Administration or one of the Social or Behavioral Sciences or a
directly related field.
One (1) year of experience in full time casework management.
Experience in correctional administration.

Knowledge, Skills, and Abilities:
Knowledge of:
• Management principles, practices and techniques.
• Policies, practices, procedures and terminology of assigned function.
• Federal, State and Local program laws and requirements.
• Budgetary practices and techniques.
• Computer equipment to include word processing, spreadsheets, databases and a variety of software packages.
• Business letter writing, grammar and punctuation, and report preparation.

Skill in:
• Directing management and staff, allocating resources and evaluating programs.
• Strategic planning, developing, monitoring and evaluating programs.
• Leadership and collaboration.
• Problem-solving and decision-making.
• Developing and monitoring program budgets.
• Both verbal and written communication, including presentations.

Ability to:
• Direct, motivate, train, develop and evaluate staff.
• Develop and implement policies and procedures and strategic and operational plans.
• Plan, develop, implement and evaluate program initiatives.
• Serve as a high-level technical consultant and liaison.
• Prepare administrative and statistical reports.
• Manage time well, perform multiple tasks and organize diverse activities.
• Prepare correspondence, memorandums and other written materials.
• May require the ability to work with mentally disturbed, hostile and aggressive individuals.
• Establish and maintain effective working relationships with departmental clientele, representatives of outside

agencies and providers, other County employees and officials, and the general public.

Page2of3

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Juvenile Probation Director

JOB CODE: 27405 FLSA STATUS: Exempt
PAY GRADE: 27 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

WORK ENVIRONMENT AND PHYSICAL DEMANDS:

Physical requirements include the ability to lift/carry up to 10-20 pounds occasionally, visual acuity, speech and hearing,
hand and eye coordination and manual dexterity necessary to operate a computer and office equipment. Subject to
standing, walking, sitting, repetitive motion, reaching, climbing stairs, bending, stooping, kneeling, crouching, crawling,
pushing, pulling, balancing, client/customer contact, squatting to perform the essential functions. Requires exposure to
hostile behavior from clients. May be subject to contact with noise, vibration, fumes, foul odor, dirt, dust, mist, gases, and
poor ventilation.

This job description is intended to be generic in nature. It is not necessarily an exhaustive list of all duties
and responsibilities. The essential duties, functions and responsibilities and overtime eligibility may vary
based on the specific tasks assigned to the position.

Page 3 of 3

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Natural Resources and Environmental Quality Div Dir

JOB CODE: 27309 FLSA STATUS: Exempt
PAY GRADE: 27 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

JOB SUMMARY:

Under administrative direction of the Executive Manager TNR, serves as the Environmental Officer to the
Commissioners Court, and directs, administers and manages operational activities of the Natural Resources and
Environmental Quality Division. Provides consultation and guidance directly to the Commissioners Court on a wide
variety of technical, policy and regulatory issues in natural resource and environmental contexts. Directs the
development and implementation of complex natural resource and environmental projects and programs. Develops
policies and procedures. Plans, directs, monitors, allocates and controls resources, staffing, equipment and materials.
Develops, implements and monitors budget, and oversees all other administrative matters for the division. Coordinates
and works closely with officials, department heads and outside agencies. Supervises and directs work of subordinate
managers. Monitors and oversees that services delivered are in compliance with applicable laws, statutes, rules,
regulations and applicable standards and procedures established by the Fderal Government, State, Court and the
department. Performs all work using appropriate safety procedures.

DISTINGUISHING CHARACTERISTICS:

This is a job classification within the Senior Management/Middle Management job family. Incumbent’s in this
classification represents senior management within the department. This classification is responsible for overall
performance and environmental compliance in the areas of civil environmental enforcement, natural resource grants,
hazardous materials management, solid waste regulatory matters, recycling, waste minimization, stormwater system
management, general water quality protection, air quality protection, cultural and natural resource management and
endangered species preserve and habitat conservation plan management in a countywide scope. This classification
may require a flexible work schedule in order to meet the needs of the department.

DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES:

• Plans, organizes, directs, reviews and evaluates the activities, functions and operations of the division. Manages
resources to ensure the completion of projects. Determines staffing requirements and hires accordingly.

• Supervises professional, technical and administrative support staff, evaluates staff job performance, coordinates,
prioritizes and schedules assignments. Authorizes staff productive and non-productive work hours. Orients and
trains staff, including assignments and distribution of workload to adjust to changing priorities.

• Directs, manages and controls division’s budgets. Prepares and submits a variety of fiscal and administrative
reports. Ensures adequate resources available for operation of division.

• Directs planning, development and implementation of policies and programs to ensure compliance with State,
Federal, County, Local environmental laws and regulations on a countywide basis. Reports to and provides
recommendations to Commissioners Court on environmental regulatory, technical and policy matters. Represents
the County before Local, State and Federal regulatory agencies.

• Directs and conducts research, consultation and provides reports to Commissioners Court in response to queries
from constituents and Commissioners Court regarding current and prospective environmental and natural resource
issues, program activities and plans.

• Plans, directs, oversees work plan creation/implementation and strategic planning for cultural and natural resource
consultation and management services on Travis County owned or managed lands to include habitat conservation
planning, open space and preserve management, park and preserve land acquisition, ecological monitoring and
restoration.

• Works with Program Manager to create work plans, conduct strategic planning for, and direct performance of natural
resources grant acquisition and administration services, solid waste minimization and recycling services, hazardous
materials management services and regulatory support programs in the areas of stormwater management, air
quality and civil environmental enforcement.

• Serves as liaison with other agencies, the media, State and Federal authorities and other local political subdivisions
with regards to coordination of environmental and natural resources protection.

Page 1 of 3

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Natural Resources and Environmental Quality Div Dir

JOB CODE: 27309 FLSA STATUS: Exempt
PAY GRADE: 27 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES: (Cont.)

• Directs and performs administrative duties to include reports, correspondence, short and long term strategic
planning, attending meetings and training, preparing annual work plan, budget and project status reports.

• Represents the County by attending meetings, community meetings, seminars, conferences and professional
association meetings. Participates in private organizations and participates serves on related committees.

• Responds and investigates citizen inquires, grievances or complaints.

• Performs other job-related duties as assigned.

MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS:

Education and Experience:
Bachelor’s degree in Environmental Engineering, Biology, Botany, Natural Resources, Planning, Business Administration
or a directly related field AND seven (7) years of senior management level experience in supervising planning,
coordinating and managing of environmental and resource management activities, including four (4) years of mid- to
senior level supervisory or management experience;

OR,

Any combination of education and experience that has been achieved and is equivalent to the stated education and
experience and required knowledge, skills, and abilities sufficient to successfully perform the duties and responsibilities
of this job.

Licenses, Registrations, Certifications, or Special Requirements:
Valid Texas Driver’s License.

Preferred:
Master’s degree in Environmental Engineering, Biology, Botany, Natural Resources, Planning, Business Administration or
a directly related field.

Knowledge. Skills, and Abilities:
Knowledge of:
• Supervisory principles, practices and techniques.
• Principles of project management.
• Standard management theory, principles, practices, and techniques.
• Federal, State, Local and County applicable laws, rules, regulations and guidelines.
• Budgetary and fiscal process.
• Grant information sources, standards and guidelines.
• Consultant contract management policies and procedures.
• Requirements for contract plans, specifications, and estimates.
• Online computer searches.
• Computer equipment to include word processing, spreadsheets, databases and a variety of software packages.
• Business letter writing, grammar and punctuation, and report preparation.

Skill in:
• Resolving supervisory/management issues, including planning and managing teams.
• Planning and directing a variety of projects.
• Analyzing and evaluating complex data.
• Performing contract negotiation.
• Contract management and project budgeting.
• Explaining complicated technical problems in simple non-technical language.

Page 2 of 3 3 9

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Natural Resources and Environmental Quality Div Dir

JOB CODE: 27309 FLSA STATUS: Exempt
PAY GRADE: 27 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS: (Cont.)

Skill in: (Cant.)
• Researching, analyzing, compiling, preparing and presenting technical data/information and reports.
• Problem-solving and technical decision-making for developing effective solutions.
• Public speaking and content delivery.
• Conflict resolution and community relations.
• Both verbal and written communication.

Ability to:
• Plan, coordinate, organize and effectively prioritize program and projects.
• Plan, assign, supervise, train and review the work of subordinates.
• Interpret plans and specifications, standards, policies, procedures and regulatory codes.
• Develop and implement new and innovative ideas.
• Work on a wide variety of tasks simultaneously and produce timely and tangible results.
• Utilize online resources.
• Prioritize needs and develop and implement plans of action.
• Convey complex ideas and concepts verbally and in writing.
• Work as a team member within a diverse organization.
• Read and understand basic legal documents.
• Address complex issues so they may be understood by the audience.
• Establish and maintain effective working relationships with County employees and officials, representatives of

outside agencies, and the general public.

WORK ENVIRONMENT AND PHYSICAL DEMANDS:

Physical requirements include the ability to lift/carry up to 20-50 pounds occasionally, visual acuity, speech and hearing,
hand and eye coordination and manual dexterity necessary to operate a computer and office equipment. Subject to
standing, walking, sitting, repetitive motion, reaching, climbing stairs, bending, stooping, kneeling, crouching, crawling,
pushing, pulling, balancing, client/customer contact, squatting to perform the essential functions. May work in extreme
temperature/weather change/conditions, and smoke on prescribed or wild fires. May be subject to contact with
dangerous machinery, fumes, and hazardous chemicals.

This job description is intended to be generic in nature. It is not necessarily an exhaustive list of all duties
and responsibilities. The essential duties, functions and responsibilities and overtime eligibility may vary
based on the specific tasks assigned to the position.

Page3of3 5 30

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Road Maintenance Bridge Fleet Division Director

JOB CODE: 29313 FLSA STATUS: Exempt
PAY GRADE: 29 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

JOB SUMMARY:

Manages and directs activities of road reconstruction. Manages and directs countywide vehicles and fleet, including road
maintenance equipment. Manages traffic program.

DISTINGUISHING CHARACTERISTICS:

This is a job classification within the Senior Management/Middle Management job family. Incumbent’s in this
classification represents senior management within the department. This classification may require a flexible work
schedule in order to meet the needs of the department.

DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES:

• Uses a strategic planning process and plans, organizes and provides leadership to an interdisciplinary group of
professional managers and technical staff, including engineers, for the annual work plan and performance objectives.
Sets the standard for current as well as future services. Prepares the strategic direction and goals of the division,
determines staffing requirements and plans accordingly for resources. Monitors division programs for compliance to
policies, procedures, Federal, State, County and Local requirements. Anticipates and identifies issues inhibiting the
attainment of goals. Develops and implements corrective action.

• Provides expert consultation to Commissioners Court, Executive Manager, political entities, agencies and internal
management staff regarding current and prospective issues, program activities and plans within road construction,
road maintenance and fleet issues. Functions as a member of the department’s senior executive management
team. Responds to inquiries from within the department, from other departments and agencies, from the public and
from Elected and Appointed Officials.

• Develops, manages and controls programs, budgets and personnel. Forecasts budget and work activities for the
division. Responsible for major purchases, monitors and maintains fixed assets for Road Maintenance, countywide
Fleet and Traffic program. Utilizes statistical processes and output measures to forecast needs of the division. Leads
continuing transformation of division operations.

• Works directly and through middle-level managers and supervisors to manage, develop and direct operations staff.
Provides leadership and guidance. Leads by example. Implements effective management controls. Ensures
effective two-way communications within chain of command. Develops and maintains relevant performance
standards and measures. Addresses personnel issues in a fair and timely manner.

• Analyzes division program initiatives, determines strategies, prioritizes implementation and ensures high quality delivery
through appropriate tracking and feedback processes. Defines, prioritizes, schedules and monitors multiple operations
projects, developing and maintaining comprehensive project plans/schedules. Reviews and analyzes annual contract
deliverables. Develops project resource strategies, allocating budget, staff, tools necessary for implementation of
projects. Reports metrics and service deliverables to ensure quality and satisfaction.

• Directs, develops and monitors policies and operating procedures directly related to Road and Maintenance, Fleet
Services and Traffic programs. Implements, communicates and effectively uses resources and departments, agencies
and organizations to accomplish goals and objectives of the department and division. Responsible for development of
processes and maintaining day-to-day operations for budget and fiscal operations, capital and human resources.
Develops and deploys management systems that optimize resource utilization.

• Reviews proposed Federal, State, County and Local legislation pertaining to road and bridge and fleet issues and
makes recommendations.

• Serves as liaison with State and Federal authorities and other Local organizations to ensure coordination. Serves as
key liaison between Executive Manager, Commissioners Court and operations staff. Works with peers from across
the County on common issues. Develops relationships with professional organizations, peer groups and industry
trade groups to stay current on practices.

• Performs other job-related duties as assigned.

Page 1 of 3

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Road Maintenance Bridge Fleet Division Director

JOB CODE: 29313 FLSA STATUS: Exempt
PAY GRADE: 29 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS:

Education and Experience:
Bachelor’s degree in Civil Engineering or a directly related field AND seven (7) years of senior management level
experience in road and bridge engineering and maintenance, including four (4) years of mid- to senior level supervisory or
management experience;

OR,

Any combination of education and experience that has been achieved and is equivalent to the stated education and
experience and required knowledge, skills, and abilities sufficient to successfully perform the duties and responsibilities
of this job.

Licenses, Registrations, Certifications, or Special Requirements:
Valid Texas Driver’s License.

Preferred:
Registration as a Professional Engineer (RE.) issued by the State of Texas. Proof of eligibility for reciprocity at the time
of appointment. If reciprocity is sought, registration must be obtained within six (6) months of employment.

Knowledge, Skills, and Abilities:
Knowledge of:
• Standard management theory, principles, practices, and techniques.
• Federal, State, Local and County applicable laws, rules, regulations and guidelines.
• State, Federal, County and Local regulatory or administrative requirements and practices.
• Budgetary and fiscal process.
• Supervisory principles, practices and techniques.
• Online computer searches.
• Computer equipment to include word processing, windows, spreadsheets, databases and a variety of software

packages.
• Business letter writing, grammar and punctuation, and report preparation.

Skill in:
• Work design, time management, facilitation and managing budgets.
• Resolving leadership/management issues, including planning and managing teams.
• Planning and coordinating work activities.
• Researching, analyzing, compiling, preparing and presenting technical data/information and reports.
• Problem-solving and decision-making.
• Public speaking and content delivery.
• Conflict resolution and community relations.
• Both verbal and written communication.

Ability to:
• Plan, organize and effectively direct programs.
• Direct and lead work of professional and support staff members.
• Coach, mentor and motivate staff.
• Work on a wide variety of tasks simultaneously and produce timely and tangible results.
• Anticipate future requirements, and research and analyze emerging programs.
• Conduct and prepare feasibility studies.
• Develop proposals including estimates for resource usage.
• Prepare statistical reports and complete cost/benefit analysis.

Page2of3 5 32.

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Road Maintenance Bridge Fleet Division Director

JOB CODE: 29313 FLSA STATUS: Exempt
PAY GRADE: 29 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS: (Cont.)

Ability to: (Cont.)
• Effectively communicate strategic directions and goals.
• Communicate with a broad base of stakeholders and multiple management layers.
• Prioritize needs and develop and implement plans of action.
• Work as a team member within a diverse organization.
• Read and understand basic legal documents.
• Make decisions where there is uncertainty.
• Establish and maintain effective working relationships with County employees and officials, representatives of

outside agencies, and the general public.

WORK ENVIRONMENT AND PHYSICAL DEMANDS:

Physical requirements include the ability to lift/carry up to 20-50 pounds occasionally, visual acuity, speech and hearing,
hand and eye coordination and manual dexterity necessary to operate a computer and office equipment. Subject to
standing, walking, sitting, repetitive motion, reaching, climbing stairs, bending, stooping, kneeling, crouching, crawling,
pushing, pulling, balancing, client/customer contact, squatting to perform the essential functions.

This job description is intended to be generic in nature. It is not necessarily an exhaustive list of all duties
and responsibilities. The essential duties, functions and responsibilities and overtime eligibility may vary
based on the specific tasks assigned to the position.

Page 3 of 3 -:3 3

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Parks Division Director

JOB CODE: 28315 FLSA STATUS: Exempt
PAY GRADE: 28 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

JOB SUMMARY:

Manages and directs activities of Parks programs and services.

DISTINGUISHING CHARACTERISTICS:

This is the second in a series of two parks-related job classifications within the Senior Management/Middle Management
job family. Represents senior management within the department. This classification may require a flexible work
schedule in order to meet the needs of the department.

DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES:

• Uses a strategic planning process and plans, organizes and provides leadership to an interdisciplinary group of
professional, managerial and technical staff, to ensure comprehensive and coordinated Parks programs and
services through an annual work plan and performance objectives. Sets the standard for current as well as future
services. Prepares the strategic direction and goals of the division, determines staffing requirements and plans
accordingly for resources. Develops and evaluates alternatives and recommends action to solve problems.
Researches and implements new programs and practices needed to sustain strategic initiatives. Directs
development and implementation of Standard Operating Procedures for existing and new operations/processes.

• Provides expert consultation to Commissioners Court, political entities, agencies and internal management staff
regarding current and prospective issues, program activities and plans. Functions as a member of the department’s
senior executive management group.

• Works directly and through middle-level managers and supervisors to manage, develop and direct operations staff.
Provides leadership and guidance. Leads by example. Implements effective management controls. Ensures
effective two-way communications within chain of command. Develops and maintains relevant performance
standards and measures. Addresses personnel issues in a fair and timely manner.

• Analyzes division program initiatives, determines strategies, prioritizes implementation and ensures high quality delivery
through appropriate tracking and feedback processes. Defines, prioritizes, schedules and monitors multiple operations
projects, developing and maintaining comprehensive project plans/schedules. Reviews and analyzes annual contract
deliverables. Develops project resource strategies, allocating budget, staff, tools, etc. necessary for implementation of
projects. Reports metrics and service deliverables to ensure quality and satisfaction.

• Responsible for development of processes and maintaining day-to-day operations for budget and fiscal operations,
capital and human resources. Develops and deploys management systems that optimize resources.

• Ensures compliance with County and other applicable standards.

• Serves as liaison with State and Federal authorities and other local organizations to ensure coordination. Serves as
key liaison between Executive Manager, Commissioners Court and operations staff. Works with peers from across
the County on common issues. Develops relationships with professional organizations, peer groups and industry
trade groups to stay current on practices.

• Performs other job-related duties as assigned.

MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS:

Education and ExDerience:
Bachelor’s degree in Parks and Recreation, Conservation, Business Administration or a directly related field AND seven
(7) years of senior management level experience in managing parks, including four (4) years of mid- to senior level
supervisory or management experience;

OR,

Any combination of education and experience that has been achieved and is equivalent to the stated education and
experience and required knowledge, skills, and abilities sufficient to successfully perform the duties and responsibilities
of this job.

Pagelof3

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Parks Division Director

JOB CODE: 28315 FLSA STATUS: Exempt
PAY GRADE: 28 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS: (Cont.)

Licenses, Registrations, Certifications, or Special Requirements:
Valid Texas Driver’s License.

Preferred:
Master’s degree in Parks and Recreation, Conservation, Business Administration or a directly related field.
Certified Park and Recreation Professional (CPRP).

Knowledge, Skills, and Abilities:
Knowledge of:
• Standard management theory, principles, practices, and techniques of park management and operations.
• Federal, State, Local and County applicable laws, rules, regulations and guidelines.
• State and Federal regulatory or administrative requirements and practices.
• Budgetary and fiscal process.
• Supervisory principles, practices and techniques.
• Online computer searching.
• Computer equipment to include word processing, spreadsheets, databases and a variety of software packages.
• Business letter writing, grammar and punctuation, and report preparation.

Skill in:
• Work design, time management, facilitation and managing budgets.
• Resolving leadership/management issues, including planning and managing teams.
• Planning and coordinating work activities.
• Researching, analyzing, compiling, preparing and presenting technical data/information and reports.
• Problem-solving and decision-making.
• Public speaking and content delivery.
• Conflict resolution and community relations.
• Both verbal and written communication.

Ability to:
• Plan, organize and effectively direct programs.
• Direct and lead work of professional and support staff members.
• Coach, mentor and motivate staff.
• Work on a wide variety of tasks simultaneously and produce timely and tangible results.
• Anticipate future requirements, and research and analyze emerging programs.
• Conduct and prepare feasibility studies.
• Develop proposals including estimates for resource usage.
• Prepare statistical reports and complete cost/benefit analysis.
• Effectively communicate strategic directions and goals.
• Communicate with a broad base of stakeholders and multiple management layers.
• Prioritize needs, develop and implement plans of action.
• Work as a team member within a diverse organization.
• Read and understand basic legal documents.
• Make decisions where there is uncertainty.
• Establish and maintain effective working relationships with County employees and officials, representatives of

outside agencies, and the general public.

Page 2 of 3

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Parks Division Director

JOB CODE: 28315 FLSA STATUS: Exempt
PAY GRADE: 28 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

WORK ENVIRONMENT AND PHYSICAL DEMANDS:

Physical requirements include the ability to lift/carry up to 20-50 pounds occasionally, visual acuity, speech and hearing,
hand and eye coordination and manual dexterity necessary to operate a computer and office equipment. Subject to
standing, walking, sitting, repetitive motion, reaching, climbing stairs, bending, stooping, kneeling, crouching, crawling,
pushing, pulling, balancing, client/customer contact, squatting to perform the essential functions.

This job description is intended to be generic in nature. It is not necessarily an exhaustive list of all duties
and responsibilities. The essential duties, functions and responsibilities and overtime eligibility may vary
based on the specific tasks assigned to the position.

Page 3 of 3 D 3&

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Exposition Center EventslFacilities Coordinator Senior

JOB CODE: 21568 FLSA STATUS: Exempt
PAY GRADE: 21 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

JOB SUMMARY:

Schedules, books and coordinates events within the Travis County Exposition Center. Develops and monitors contracts,
arranges various aspects of events, such as staffing, facility needs, security and parking. Supervises, trains and
schedules operations staff and supervises facility operation and usage.

DISTINGUISHING CHARACTERISTICS:

This is a job classification within the Senior Management/Middle Management job family. Incumbents in this
classification has is responsible for booking, contracting and coordinating events within the Travis County Exposition
Center and ensuring all staffing, facility, security and parking needs are arranged. This classification reports to the
facility director. This classification may require a flexible work schedule in order to meet the needs of the department.

DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES:

• Supervises facility operation and usage. Supervises, trains and schedules operations staff to ensure event needs are
met and facility operations and maintenance requirements are managed. Prepares and reviews performance
evaluations and makes recommendations for hiring, promotion and disciplinary actions.

• Schedules, books and coordinates events within the Exposition Center facility. Assists in determining the eligibility and
profitability of clients requesting rental of the facilities.

• Plans, develops, implements and monitors facility contracts. Ensures compliance with all Federal, State, County and
Local laws and ordinances and County policies. Documents and settles event contracts.

• Supervises event-planning, set up, implementation and clean up to ensure effective and efficient operations and quality
customer service.

• Assists in developing and monitoring annual and event-specific budgets. Reviews rental and rate structures and
assists in developing policies and procedures to accomplish fiscal and other goals.

• Assists with design and production of marketing plans and strategies. Assists in evaluating effectiveness of marketing
programs. Assists in developing short and long-range goals and objectives.

• Assists in representing the facility in public relations activities and establishing and maintaining good working
relationships with clients, participating vendors, advertising agencies, media and the general public.

• Prepares or assists in preparing and analyzing statistical reports regarding facility operation, maintenance and budget.

• Assists in the development, production and distribution of facility brochures, pamphlets and other informational material.

• Performs other job-related duties as assigned.

MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS:

Education and Experience:
Bachelor’s degree in Business, Marketing, Public Relations or a directly related field AND four (4) years experience in
convention industry events management and/or events marketing, including one (1) year mid- to senior level supervisory
or management experience;

OR,

Any combination of education and experience that has been achieved and is equivalent to the stated education and
experience and required knowledge, skills, and abilities sufficient to successfully perform the duties and responsibilities
of this job.

Licenses, Registrations, Certifications, or Special Requirements:
Valid Texas Driver’s License.

Pagelof2

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Exposition Center EventslFacilities Coordinator Senior

JOB CODE: 21568 FLSA STATUS: Exempt
PAY GRADE: 21 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS: (Cont.)

Knowledge, Skills, and Abilities:
Knowledge of:
• Management and supervisory principles, practices and techniques.
• Policies, practices, procedures and terminology of assigned function.
• Marketing, advertising and sales techniques.
• Federal, State, Local and County applicable laws, regulatory codes, ordinances, rules, permits, licenses, purposes,

sources, standards, policies and procedures, regulations and guidelines.
• Contract administration and facility management practices, procedures, methods, negotiation techniques and

services of an entertainment and convention/conference facilities program.
• Accounting, purchasing and budgetary theory, principles and practices.
• Modern office practices, procedures and methods.
• Computer equipment to include word processing, spreadsheets, databases and a variety of software packages.
• Business letter writing, grammar and punctuation, and report preparation.

Skill in:
• Supervising staff, allocating resources and evaluating programs.
• Problem-solving and decision-making.
• Contract negotiation and compliance.
• Developing and evaluating marketing programs.
• Developing and monitoring program budgets.
• Both verbal and written communication, including presentations.

Ability to:
• Supervise, plan and implement event operations and activities.
• Supervise, motivate, train, develop and evaluate staff.
• Develop and recommend program initiatives.
• Prepare and analyze administrative and statistical reports.
• Work independently and efficiently.
• Manage time well, perform multiple tasks and organize diverse activities.
• Establish and maintain effective working relationships with departmental clientele, representatives of outside

agencies and providers, other County employees and officials, and the general public.

WORK ENVIRONMENT AND PHYSICAL DEMANDS:

Physical requirements include the ability to lift/carry up to 5-25 pounds occasionally, visual acuity, speech and hearing,
hand and eye coordination and manual dexterity necessary to operate a computer and office equipment. Subject to
standing, walking, sitting, repetitive motion, reaching, climbing stairs, bending, stooping, kneeling, crouching, crawling,
pushing, pulling, balancing, client/customer contact, squatting to perform the essential functions. Subject to outside
elements, noise, vibration, contact with dust, foul odors, animal fecal matter, insects and rodents.

This job description is intended to be generic in nature. It is not necessarily an exhaustive list of all duties
and responsibilities. The essential duties, functions and responsibilities and overtime eligibility may vary
based on the specific tasks assigned to the position.

Page 2 of 2

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Exposition Center Director

JOB CODE: 24569 FLSA STATUS: Exempt
PAY GRADE: 24 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

JOB SUMMARY:

Directs the administrative and operational aspects of the Travis County Exposition Center, including event planning and
management, facility sales and contract management, marketing programs, facilities maintenance, custodial services,
security/parking services, financial management and staffing.

DISTINGUISHING CHARACTERISTICS:

This is a job classification within the Senior Management/Middle Management job family. Incumbent’s in this
classification directs the day-to-day administrative and operations functions within the Expo Center. This classification is
responsible for the efficient and effective operation of the events facility and reports to the department head. This
classification may require a flexible work schedule in order to meet the needs of the department.

DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES:

• Directs the daily operations of the event facility, such as event planning and management, facility sales and contract
management, marketing programs, facilities maintenance, custodial services and security/parking services.

• Oversees staff, including hiring, performance evaluation, disciplinary actions and dismissals, and ensures activities
are consistent with goals and objectives. Seeks and creates opportunities for improved performance, learning and
development of staff. Identifies and addresses problems or conflicts.

• Receives requests for facilities use. Determines eligibility and profitability of requests. Analyzes event specifications
and objectives to determine if aligned with facility goals and objectives.

• Directs and develops marketing strategies to maximize usage of the facilities. Develops short- and long-term
programs and objectives. Evaluates effectiveness of marketing programs and makes adjustments, as required.

• Monitors contracts and contractors to ensure compliance with contractual obligations, including event requirements
and Federal, State and Local safety and other laws and codes.

• Represents the facility in public relations activities and establishes and maintains good working relationships with
clients, participating vendors, advertising agencies, media and the general public.

• Assists in planning, preparing and administering annual budget. Forecasts projected revenues from events. Ensures
expenditures remain within approved budget.

• Develops policies and procedures and recommends program improvements. Analyzes statistical data and develops
reports regarding facility.

• Performs other job-related duties as assigned.

MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS:

Education and Experience:
Bachelor’s degree in Business, Public Relations or a directly related field AND six (6) years experience in convention
industry facility management, sales and marketing, including three (3) years m mid- to senior level supervisory or
management experience;

OR,

Any combination of education and experience that has been achieved and is equivalent to the stated education and
experience and required knowledge, skills, and abilities sufficient to successfully perform the duties and responsibilities
of this job.

Licenses, Registrations, Certifications, or Special Requirements:
Valid Texas Driver’s License.

4c_’ 2C1
Pagelof2 ..) ,_) 1

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Exposition Center Director

JOB CODE: 24569 FLSA STATUS: Exempt
PAY GRADE: 24 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS: (Cont.)

Knowledge, Skills, and Abilities:
Knowledge of:
• Management and supervisory principles, practices and techniques.
• Policies, practices, procedures and terminology of assigned function.
• Federal, State, Local and County applicable laws, regulatory codes, ordinances, guidelines, rules, permits, licenses,

purposes, sources, standards, policies and procedures.
• Contract administration and facility management practices, procedures, methods and negotiation techniques and

services of an entertainment and convention/conference facilities program.
• Accounting, purchasing and budgetary theory, principles and practices.
• Modern office practices, procedures and methods.
• Computer equipment to include word processing, spreadsheets, databases and a variety of software packages.
• Business letter writing, grammar and punctuation, and report preparation.

Skill in:
• Managing staff, allocating resources and evaluating programs.
• Leadership and collaboration.
• Problem-solving and decision-making.
• Contract negotiation and compliance.
• Developing and evaluating marketing programs.
• Developing and monitoring program budgets.
• Both verbal and written communication, including presentations.

Ability to:
• Direct, plan and implement department operations and activities.
• Direct, motivate, train, develop and evaluate staff.
• Develop and recommend program initiatives.
• Prepare and analyze administrative and statistical reports.
• Work independently and efficiently.
• Manage time well, perform multiple tasks and organize diverse activities.
• Establish and maintain effective working relationships with departmental clientele, representatives of outside

agencies and providers, other County employees and officials, and the general public.

WORK ENVIRONMENT AND PHYSICAL DEMANDS:

Physical requirements include the ability to lift/carry up to 5-25 pounds occasionally, visual acuity, speech and hearing,
hand and eye coordination and manual dexterity necessary to operate a computer and office equipment. Subject to
standing, walking, sitting, repetitive motion, reaching, climbing stairs, bending, stooping, kneeling, crouching, crawling,
pushing, pulling, balancing, client/customer contact, squatting to perform the essential functions. Subject to outside
elements, noise, vibration, contact with dust, foul odors, animal fecal matter, insects and rodents.

This job description is intended to be generic in nature. It is not necessarily an exhaustive list of all duties
and responsibilities. The essential duties, functions and responsibilities and overtime eligibility may vary
based on the specific tasks assigned to the position.

fg
Page2of2 Z 7J

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Probation Division Director

JOB CODE: 25400 FLSA STATUS: Exempt
PAY GRADE: 25 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

JOB SUMMARY:

Directs and manages the division operations of employees assigned to supervise clients who have been placed on
probation by the courts. Directs activities through subordinate managers and supervisors. Plans, develops and
implements new methods and procedures designed to improve operations. Ensures work is performed in accordance
with laws, policies and procedures. Develops and initiates changes in office policies and procedures to improve
operations.

DISTINGUISHING CHARACTERISTICS:

This is the second in a series of two probation-related job classifications within the Senior Management/Middle
Management job family. Incumbent’s in this classification directs the division operations of employees assigned to
supervise and monitor progress of clients who have been placed on probation. Has broad scope of operational and staff
responsibility and directs through subordinate managers and supervisors. This classification reports directly to the Chief
Deputy.

DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES:

• Directs subordinate managers and staff, including hiring, training, performance evaluation, disciplinary actions and
dismissals, ensuring activities are consistent with policies, procedures, laws, regulations, goals and objectives.
Creates opportunities for improved performance, learning and development of staff. Identifies and addresses
problems or conflicts.

• Oversees the planning, scheduling, distribution and monitoring of workload. Ensures work is performed in
accordance with laws, policies and procedures. Sets divisional goals and objectives and oversees operations to
ensure goals are implemented.

• Plans, develops, implements and evaluates new methods and procedures designed to improve operations.
Analyzes operations and prepares reports. Writes or directs the writing of new or revised policies.

• Provides oversight and guidance to management and staff and makes recommendations on complex client issues.

• Directs the investigation of complaints from clients, their families, judicial entities and the general public.

• Coordinates divisional case audits. Gathers and compiles statistical data for administration and external entities as
needed.

• Initiates, develops, plans and oversees implementation of special programs.

• Represents the department in coordinating activities with various law enforcement, governmental and other
agencies.

• Performs other job-related duties as assigned.

MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS:

Education and Experience:
Bachelor’s degree in Criminal Justice or a directly related field AND six (6) years increasingly responsible experience in
probation related work, including three (3) years mid- to senior level supervisory or management experience;

OR,

Any combination of education and experience that has been achieved and is equivalent to the stated education and
experience and required knowledge, skills, and abilities sufficient to successfully perform the duties and responsibilities
of this job.

Licenses, Registrations, Certifications, or Special Requirements:
Valid Texas Driver’s License.

Page 1 of 2

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Probation Division Director

JOB CODE: 25400 FLSA STATUS: Exempt
PAY GRADE: 25 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS: (Cont.)

Knowledge. Skills, and Abilities:
Knowledge of:
• Management and supervisory principles, practices and techniques.
• Policies, practices, procedures and legal terminology related to court system.
• Federal, State, Local and County applicable laws, rules, regulations, guidelines and applicable probation services

standards and procedures.
• Standard practices in area of assignment.
• Budget development, preparation and monitoring.
• Psychological concepts of good behavior, social adjustment and emotional stability.
• Casework techniques.
• Computer equipment to include word processing, spreadsheets, databases and a variety of software packages.
• Business letter writing, grammar and punctuation, and report preparation.

Skill in:
• Directing and managing others, including team building.
• Problem-solving and decision-making.
• Training, managing and evaluating the work of others.
• Developing and monitoring budgets.
• Preparing and making presentations.
• Interviewing clients.
• Both verbal and written communication.

Ability to:
• Direct, motivate, train, develop and evaluate staff.
• Plan, assign, direct and evaluate the work of staff.
• Conduct investigations and report results clearly, accurately and impartially.
• Reason and make judgments and decisions.
• Work effectively and courteously under high pressure circumstances.
• Deal effectively with mentally disturbed, hostile, and aggressive individuals.
• Manage time well, perform multiple tasks and organize diverse activities.
• Perform in a stressful environment while maintaining a professional manner.
• Research, compile, analyze, interpret and prepare a variety of memorandums or reports.
• Establish and maintain effective working relationships with departmental clientele, representatives of outside

agencies, other County employees and officials, attorneys, judges and the general public.

WORK ENVIRONMENT AND PHYSICAL DEMANDS:

Physical requirements include the ability to lift/carry up to 10-25 pounds occasionally, visual acuity, speech and hearing,
hand and eye coordination and manual dexterity necessary to operate a computer and office equipment. Subject to
standing, walking, sitting, repetitive motion, reaching, climbing stairs, bending, stooping, kneeling, crouching, crawling,
pushing, pulling, balancing, client/customer contact, squatting to perform the essential functions.

This job description is intended to be generic in nature. It is not necessarily an exhaustive list of all duties
and responsibilities. The essential duties, functions and responsibilities and overtime eligibility may vary
based on the specific tasks assigned to the position.

Page 2 of 2

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Administrative Services Division Director

JOB CODE: 26768 FLSA STATUS: Exempt
PAY GRADE: 26 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

JOB SUMMARY:

Directs the planning, development, implementation of the business and other administrative functions of a department,
including finance, budgeting, human resources, purchasing, information systems, facilities, resources planning, strategic
planning, safety management, and records management. Oversees and develops administrative policies and procedures
and participates in strategic planning activities of division and/or department. Provides leadership and direction to
subordinate managers and staff engaged in business and other administrative functions. Supervises work activities of
subordinate professionals, paraprofessionals and clerical staff.

DISTINGUISHING CHARACTERISTICS:

This is a job classification within the Senior Management/Middle Management job family. This classification is intended
to describe division director level positions responsible for four or more of the administrative functions, including finance,
budgeting, human resources, purchasing, information systems, facilities, resources planning, strategic planning, safety
management and records management. This classification typically directs through subordinate managers and
supervisors.

DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES:

• Develops and directs all core administrative functions and systems, including finance, budgeting, human resources,
purchasing, information systems, facilities, resources planning, strategic planning, safety management and records
management. Manages the day-to-day operations through subordinate managers and supervisors.

• Oversees management and staff, including hiring, training, performance evaluation, disciplinary actions and
dismissals, and ensures activities are consistent with goals and objectives. Seeks and creates opportunities for
improved performance, learning and development of staff. Identifies and addresses problems and/or resolves
conflicts.

• Develops, implements and monitors department-wide employment relations practices, policies and programs
necessary to establish positive employer-employee relationships and promote a high level of employee morale, such as
EEOC, FMLA, ADA, employee training and development and performance development.

• Directs departmental planning, development, implementation and management of all financial and budgetary
functions, including budget preparation, analysis, accounting functions, internal and external controls, compliance
issues, financial reporting, grants, interlocals, and discretionary and other funds.

• Oversees and implements departmental human resources functions, including staffing, employee relations,
classification, compensation, recruitment/retention and benefits, training and guidance on day-to-day actions in
compliance with Federal, State and County policies.

• Directs development and implementation of procedures for administrative support functions, information processing,
and communication.

• Oversees administration of department-wide safety programs in order to prevent and eliminate occupational deaths,
injuries, illness, and accidents as well as property loss liability.

• Develops, directs and manages division human resources, equipment, facilities and budget. Plans future budgetary
requirements. Evaluates and reports on division performance. Uses statistical process to continually monitor and
improve quality of processes and output.

• Directs the planning, development, implementation and operation of the department’s information and records
management systems. Works with information systems staff to determine and prioritize the department’s
information systems needs.

• Prepares high-level analysis of fiscal impact of various programmatic and policy-related decisions for policymakers.
Provides management support to executives and administrative oversight of the department. Evaluates, plans and
implements systems, processes and procedures to maximize office efficiency.

C.—
Pagelof3 -3

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Administrative Services Division Director

JOB CODE: 26768 FLSA STATUS: Exempt
PAY GRADE: 26 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES: (Cont.)

• Manages departmental facilities utilization and resources planning allocation functions. Plans and oversees
implementation of department, division, or individual office relocations, including staff and equipment. Manages
optimal utilization of space and resources.

• Develops or assists in developing and implementing comprehensive strategic plans that establish goals and
objectives for the department.

• Represents the department and serves as a liaison for local and statewide committees and task forces, advisory
groups, and the general public. Serves as spokesperson to media and outside agencies.

• Participates as a committee member and researches process improvement strategies for departmental operations.
Measures results of activities.

• Performs other job-related duties as assigned.

MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS:

Education and Experience:
Bachelor’s degree in Finance, Accounting, Business Management, Purchasing, Public Administration, Social or
Behavioral Sciences, Human Resources or a directly related field AND seven (7) years of increasingly responsible
experience with a broad administrative support activity, such as accounting, purchasing, budgetary, financial analysis,
human resources, contracting or similar capacity, including three (3) years of mid- to senior level supervisory or
management experience;

OR,

Any combination of education and experience that has been achieved and is equivalent to the stated education and
experience and required knowledge, skills, and abilities sufficient to successfully perform the duties and responsibilities
of this job.

Licenses, Registrations, Certifications, or Special Requirements:
Valid Texas Driver’s License.

Preferred:
Master’s degree in a directly related field.
Certified Public Accountant (CPA); OR, Certified Government Financial Manager (CGFM).
Senior Professional in Human Resources (SPHR); OR, Professional in Human Resources (PHR) Certification.

Knowledge, Skills, and Abilities:
Knowledge of:
• Management and supervisory principles, practices and techniques.
• Federal, State, and Local laws and regulations to include Title VII, ADA, FMLA, Fair Employment Practices, Open

Records Act, Workers Compensation, Safety Management practices and OSHA Regulations.
• Texas Local Government Code.
• Budgetary practices and techniques.
• Benchmark practices and trends.
• Strategic planning concepts.
• Standard management theory, principles, practices, and techniques.
• Policies, practices, procedures and terminology of assigned function.
• Accounting, purchasing and budgetary theory, principles and practices.
• State and Federal laws and regulations pertaining to departmental accounting, purchasing and budgets practices.
• Information technology as related to assigned function.
• Computer equipment to include word processing, spreadsheets, databases and a variety of software packages.
• Business letter writing, grammar and punctuation, and report preparation.

cz-: ç/)
Page2of3 ....) (

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Administrative Services Division Director

JOB CODE: 26768 FLSA STATUS: Exempt
PAY GRADE: 26 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS: (Cont.)

Skill in:
• Managing staff, allocating resources and evaluating programs.
• Developing and monitoring program budgets.
• Problem-solving and decision-making.
• Leadership and collaboration.
• Both verbal and written communication, including presentations.

Ability to:
• Manage, motivate, train, develop and evaluate staff.
• Prepare and monitor budgets and implement and maintain accounting and records management systems.
• Effectively manage employees.
• Exercise judgment and discretion in formulating, applying, and interpreting complex procedures and policies.
• Correctly interpret and apply complex laws and regulations to program situations.
• Prepare and effectively defend both verbal and written reports on complex and/or controversial issues.
• Analyze personnel problems and needs and make sound recommendations and decisions.
• Plan, coordinate and direct the work of professionals.
• Develop and recommend program initiatives.
• Research, compile, analyze, interpret and prepare a variety of fiscal, statistical and administrative reports.
• Manage time well, perform multiple tasks and organize diverse activities.
• Establish and maintain effective working relationships with departmental clientele, representatives of outside

agencies and providers, other County employees and officials, and the public.

WORK ENVIRONMENT AND PHYSICAL DEMANDS:

Physical requirements include the ability to lift/carry up to 5-15 pounds occasionally, visual acuity, speech and hearing,
hand and eye coordination and manual dexterity necessary to operate a computer and office equipment. Subject to
standing, walking, sitting, repetitive motion, reaching, climbing stairs, bending, stooping, kneeling, crouching, crawling,
pushing, pulling, balancing, client/customer contact, squatting to perform the essential functions.

This job description is intended to be generic in nature. It is not necessarily an exhaustive list of all duties
and responsibilities. The essential duties, functions and responsibilities and overtime eligibility may vary
based on the specific tasks assigned to the position.

Page3of3 5/5

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Court Legal Management Administration Director

JOB CODE: 30485 FLSA STATUS: Exempt
PAY GRADE: 30 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

JOB SUMMARY:

Directs the administrative and operational functions within a comprehensive and complex court system or legal office.
Oversees and participates in the planning and development of policies, procedures and programs to accomplish goals
and objectives. Develops strategic plans, oversees administrative functions, including finance, budgeting, human
resources, purchasing, information systems, facilities, resources planning, strategic planning and records management.
Represents the court system or legal office and presents programmatic, statistical, budgetary and other information to
department heads, including judges, legislative bodies, the Commissioners Court and other organizations.

DISTINGUISHING CHARACTERISTICS:

This is a job classification within the Senior Management/Middle Management job family. Incumbent’s in this
classification is responsible for directing the administrative and operations functions within a comprehensive and complex
court system or legal office. Responsible for development of strategic plans and program initiatives to facilitate efficiency
and effectiveness. Typically directs the human resources management, finance, budgeting, information systems,
facilities and other administrative and operational functions through subordinate managers and administrative staff.

DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES:

• Plans, organizes and directs the administrative and operational functions within a comprehensive and complex court
system or legal office. Oversees management and staff, including hiring, training, performance evaluation,
disciplinary actions and dismissals, and directs activities to be consistent with goals and objectives. Seeks and
creates opportunities for improved performance, learning and development of staff. Identifies and addresses
problems or conflicts.

• Oversees and performs administrative and operational functions, such as financial, budgeting, human resources,
purchasing, information systems, strategic planning, records management and special programs. Facilitates
meeting all basic requirements related to policies, procedures, staffing, equipment and other resources to enhance
efficiency. Manages the day-to-day operations through subordinate managers and supervisors.

• Directs departmental planning, development, implementation and management of all financial and budgetary
functions, including budget preparation and monitoring, analysis, accounting functions, internal and external
controls, compliance issues, financial reporting, grants, interlocals, and discretionary and other funds.

• Oversees and implements departmental human resources functions, including staffing, employee relations,
classification, compensation, recruitment/retention, training and guidance on day-to-day actions in compliance with
Federal, State and County policies.

• Directs the planning, development, implementation and operation of the department’s information and records
management systems. Works with information systems staff to determine and prioritize the department’s
information systems needs.

• Prepares high-level analysis of fiscal impact of various programmatic and policy-related decisions for policymakers.
Provides management support to executives and administrative oversight of the department. Evaluates, plans and
implements systems, processes and procedures to maximize office efficiency.

• Develops and implements comprehensive strategic plans consistent with departmental goals and objectives.

• Prepares, receives and reviews statistical and programmatic reports, monitors programs, and interprets findings.
Evaluates current programs, procedures and practices on an on-going basis. Plans and develops policies,
procedures and programs to enhance efficiency and effectiveness of operations and services.

• Represents the department and serves as a liaison for local, regional and statewide committees and task forces,
advisory groups, and the general public. Serves as spokesperson to media and outside agencies.

Page 1 of 3

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Court Legal Management Administration Director

JOB CODE: 30485 FLSA STATUS: Exempt
PAY GRADE: 30 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES: (Cont.)

• Prepares and presents comprehensive reports and recommendations based upon analytical research and study of
court system issues. Recommends new or revised systems, technologies, policies or procedures to improve the
administrative and operational functions of the court system.

• Monitors and directs procedures to ensure that are consistent with legislative mandates.

• May oversee additional programs within the department.

• Performs other job-related duties as assigned.

MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS:

Education and Experience:
Bachelor’s degree in Court Administration, Finance, Accounting, Business, Public Administration or a directly related
field AND seven (7) years of increasingly responsible experience in court administration, business administration, legal
or related work, including four (4) years of mid- to senior level supervisory or management experience;

OR,

Any combination of education and experience that has been achieved and is equivalent to the stated education and
experience and required knowledge, skills, and abilities sufficient to successfully perform the duties and responsibilities
of this job.

Licenses, Registrations, Certifications, or Special Requirements:
None required.

Preferred:
Graduation from the Court Executive Development Program of the Institute for Court Management (1CM) or other
certifications, such as Certified Public Accountant (CPA) or Certified Management Accountant (CMA); OR,
Master’s degree in Court Administration, Finance, Accounting, Business, Public Administration or a directly related field;
OR,
Certified Government Financial Manager (CGFM).

Knowledge, Skills, and Abilities:
Knowledge of:
• Management and supervisory principles, practices and techniques.
• Court system administration and oversight techniques.
• Policies, practices, procedures and terminology of assigned function.
• Federal, State and Local program laws and requirements.
• Accounting, purchasing and budgetary theory, principles and practices.
• Information technology as related to assigned function.
• Criminal justice agencies and task forces.
• Modern office practices, procedures and methods.
• Computer equipment to include word processing, spreadsheets, databases and a variety of software packages.
• Business letter writing, grammar and punctuation, and report preparation.

Skill in:
• Strategic planning, developing, monitoring and evaluating court systems and services.
• Managing staff, allocating resources and evaluating programs.
• Leadership and collaboration.
• Problem-solving and decision-making.
• Negotiating, interviewing and investigating practices and techniques.
• Developing and monitoring program budgets.
• Both verbal and written communication, including presentations.

Page2of3

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Court Legal Management Administration Director

JOB CODE: 30485 FLSA STATUS: Exempt
PAY GRADE: 30 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS: (Cont.)

Ability to:
• Direct, motivate, train, develop and evaluate staff.
• Develop and recommend program initiatives.
• Prepare and analyze administrative and statistical reports.
• Work independently and efficiently.
• Manage time well, perform multiple tasks and organize diverse activities.
• Establish and maintain effective working relationships with departmental clientele, representatives of outside

agencies and providers, other County employees and officials, and the general public.

WORK ENVIRONMENT AND PHYSICAL DEMANDS:

Physical requirements include the ability to lift/carry up to 5-15 pounds occasionally, visual acuity, speech and hearing,
hand and eye coordination and manual dexterity necessary to operate a computer and office equipment. Subject to
standing, walking, sitting, repetitive motion, reaching, climbing stairs, bending, stooping, kneeling, crouching, crawling,
pushing, pulling, balancing, client/customer contact, squatting to perform the essential functions.

This job description is intended to be generic in nature. It is not necessarily an exhaustive list of all duties
and responsibilities. The essential duties, functions and responsibilities and overtime eligibility may vary
based on the specific tasks assigned to the position.

/1 c(
Page3of3

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Chief Deputy County Clerk

JOB CODE: 30486 FLSA STATUS: Exempt
PAY GRADE: 30 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

JOB SUMMARY:

Implements and executes policies and programs. Manages day-to-day operations.

DISTINGUISHING CHARACTERISTICS:

This is a job classification within the Senior Management/Middle Management job family. Incumbent’s in this
classification reports directly to the department head and functions as the second highest level of management within
the department.

DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES:

• Plans, directs and coordinates work and resources, including strategic planning and development of policy initiatives.

• Provides operational, administrative and statutory compliance assistance and procedural advice to departmental
employees.

• Develops goals and objectives. Monitors, analyzes and evaluates office operations and procedures and makes
changes as necessary. Develops methods and procedures for progressive, efficient operations. Schedules and sets
priorities and standards for achieving established goals.

• Analyzes, researches, plans and implements new technologies for computer applications, including imaging systems.

• Supervises professional, technical and clerical staff engaged in performing a variety of administrative tasks.

• Develops, trains and oversees work and job performance of supervisory personnel, including making recommendations
on interviewing methods, performance increases, disciplinary actions and dismissals. Investigates all allegations of
misconduct and takes appropriate action. Develops policies used for performance pay programs.

• Maintains liaison with the public and other offices and entities. Explains activities and responsibilities of the office.
Handles all media relations, including interviews, news releases and press conferences. Utilizes tact, diplomacy and
persuasiveness when representing the County Clerk.

• Develops and prepares budget requests. Makes purchases and monitors annual budget. Determines need for and
recommends budget amendments.

• Performs other job-related duties as assigned.

MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS:

Education and Experience:
Bachelor’s degree in Business Administration or Public Administration or a directly related field AND eight (8) years of
responsible administrative/supervisory level experience in a governmental management position, including four (4) years
of mid- to senior level supervisory or management experience;

OR,

Any combination of education and experience that has been achieved and is equivalent to the stated education and
experience and required knowledge, skills, and abilities sufficient to successfully perform the duties and responsibilities
of this job.

Licenses, Registrations, Certifications, or Special Requirements:
None required.

Preferred:
Master’s degree in Business Administration or Public Administration or a directly related field.

I—’?

Pagelof3 5 7L

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Chief Deputy County Clerk

JOB CODE: 30486 FLSA STATUS: Exempt
PAY GRADE: 30 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS: (Cont.)

Knowledge, Skills, and Abilities:
Knowledge of:
• Governmental personnel policies, planning and budgeting concepts.
• Federal, State, Local and County applicable laws, rules, regulations and guidelines.
• Principles of public administration, accounting and budgeting.
• State and local issues.
• Office administration and evaluation techniques.
• Organization and management principles.
• Management and supervisory principles, practices and techniques.
• Policies, practices, procedures and terminology in area of assignment.
• Standard administration practices in area of assignment.
• Computer equipment to include word processing, spreadsheets, databases and a variety of software packages.
• Business letter writing, grammar and punctuation, and report preparation.

Skill in:
• Directing and managing others, including team building.
• Project direction and coordination.
• Resolving leadership/management issues, including planning and managing subordinate staff.
• Developing long-term strategies.
• Problem-solving and decision-making.
• Training, managing and evaluating the work of others.
• Preparing and making public presentations and communications.
• Both verbal and written communication.

Ability to:
• Develop budget formats and procedures and to make budgetary recommendations.
• Develop policies and procedures, then interpret and apply them correctly and consistently.
• Bring together several viewpoints and ideas to a balanced position.
• Coordinate diverse division responsibilities into a comprehensive unit.
• Relate to employees as well as evaluate and counsel personnel in problem areas.
• Reason and make judgments and decisions.
• Develop and implement new and innovative ideas.
• Reach sound conclusions and make realistic recommendations based on facts and objective analysis.
• Manage time well, perform multiple tasks and organize diverse activities.
• Perform in a stressful environment while maintaining a professional manner.
• Research, compile, analyze, interpret and prepare a variety of memorandums or reports.
• Establish and maintain effective working relationships with departmental clientele, varieties of constituents, technical

staff, state and local officials, elected and appointed officials, members of the media, representatives of outside
agencies, other County employees and officials, and the general public.

Page2of3

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Chief Deputy County Clerk

JOB CODE: 30486 FLSA STATUS: Exempt
PAY GRADE: 30 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

WORK ENVIRONMENT AND PHYSICAL DEMANDS:

Physical requirements include the ability to lift/carry up to 20-50 pounds occasionally, visual acuity, speech and hearing,
hand and eye coordination and manual dexterity necessary to operate a computer and office equipment. Subject to
standing, walking, sitting, repetitive motion, reaching, climbing stairs, bending, stooping, kneeling, crouching, crawling,
pushing, pulling, balancing, client/customer contact, squatting to perform the essential functions.

This job description is intended to be generic in nature. It is not necessarily an exhaustive list of all duties
and responsibilities. The essential duties, functions and responsibilities and overtime eligibility may vary
based on the specific tasks assigned to the position.

Page3of3

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Chief Deputy District Clerk

JOB CODE: 30487 FLSA STATUS: Exempt
PAY GRADE: 30 LAST REVISED: 10101109

JOB SUMMARY:

Assists in directing the overall operations and functions of the District Clerk. Provides executive leadership, oversight
and direction and assists in planning, organizing, directing, implementing and evaluating all departmental functions and
operations in accordance with State, Federal and Local laws, policies and procedures. Plans and develops policies,
procedures, programs and strategies to accomplish goals and objectives and improve effectiveness and efficiency of
services. Directs activities through subordinate division managers.

DISTINGUISHING CHARACTERISTICS:

This is a job classification within the Senior Management/Middle Management job family. Incumbent’s in this
classification reports directly to the department head and functions as the second highest level of management within
the department. The classification has broad scope of operational and staff responsibility and directs through
subordinate division directors. This classification may require a flexible work schedule in order to meet the needs of the
department.

DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES:

• Directs daily operations of divisions and functions and provides executive leadership, management and
coordination. Oversees management and staff, including hiring, performance evaluation, disciplinary actions and
dismissals, and ensures activities are consistent with goals and objectives. Seeks and creates opportunities for
improved performance, learning and development of staff. Identifies and addresses problems or conflicts.

• Assists department head in planning and directing all departmental services and operations. Analyzes, evaluates and
establishes departmental programs, policies and procedures and makes recommendations regarding overall
departmental decisions. Ensures departmental compliance with Federal, State, Local and judicial directives.

• Provides oversight and direction to management and staff and makes decisions on complex issues.

• Assists in planning, preparing and administering annual budget. Ensures expenditures remain within approved budget.

• Develops, receives and reviews statistical and other reports, monitors programs, and interprets findings. Evaluates
current programs, procedures and practices on an on-going basis. Keeps the department head informed on matters
of note.

• Represents the department at Commissioners Court, statewide and at local and community meetings. Serves as
liaison and functions as a resource person for advice and assistance to departmental staff, representatives of the
courts, representatives of other organizations and the general public.

• Performs other job-related duties as assigned.

MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS:

Education and Experience:
Bachelor’s degree in Business Administration, Government, Criminal Justice or a directly related field AND seven (7)
years increasingly responsible experience in civil or criminal justice, business or directly related field, including five (5)
years mid- to senior level supervisory or management experience;

OR,

Any combination of education and experience that has been achieved and is equivalent to the stated education and
experience and required knowledge, skills, and abilities sufficient to successfully perform the duties and responsibilities
of this job.

Licenses, Registrations, Certifications, or Special Requirements:
Valid Texas Driver’s License.

Page 1 of 2

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Chief Deputy District Clerk

JOB CODE: 30487 FLSA STATUS: Exempt
PAY GRADE: 30 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS: (Cont.)

Knowledge, Skills, and Abilities:
Knowledge of:
• Management and supervisory principles, practices and techniques.
• Policies, practices, procedures and legal terminology related to court system.
• Federal, State and Local program laws and requirements.
• Standard practices in area of assignment.
• Budget development, preparation and monitoring.
• Computer equipment to include word processing, spreadsheets, databases and a variety of software packages.
• Business letter writing, grammar and punctuation, and report preparation.

Skill in:
• Directing and managing others, including team building.
• Problem-solving and decision-making.
• Training, managing and evaluating the work of others.
• Developing and monitoring budgets.
• Both verbal and written communication, including presentations.

Ability to:
• Direct, motivate, train, develop and evaluate staff.
• Reason and make judgments and decisions.
• Work effectively and courteously under high pressure circumstances.
• Manage time well, perform multiple tasks and organize diverse activities.
• Research, compile, analyze, interpret and prepare a variety of memorandums or reports.
• Establish and maintain effective working relationships with departmental clientele, representatives of outside

agencies, other County employees and officials, attorneys, judges, law enforcement personnel and the general
public.

WORK ENVIRONMENT AND PHYSICAL DEMANDS:

Physical requirements include the ability to lift/carry up to 5-10 pounds occasionally, visual acuity, speech and hearing,
hand and eye coordination and manual dexterity necessary to operate a computer and office equipment. Subject to
standing, walking, sitting, repetitive motion, reaching, climbing stairs, bending, stooping, kneeling, crouching, crawling,
pushing, pulling, balancing, client/customer contact, squatting to perform the essential functions.

This job description is intended to be generic in nature. It is not necessarily an exhaustive list of all duties
and responsibilities. The essential duties, functions and responsibilities and overtime eligibility may vary
based on the specific tasks assigned to the position.

Page2of2 -

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Probate Court Administrator

JOB CODE: 27488 FLSA STATUS: Exempt
PAY GRADE: 27 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

JOB SUMMARY:

Directs the administrative and operational functions within a probate court system. Participates in the planning and
development of policies, procedures and programs to accomplish goals and objectives. Develops strategic plans,
oversees and performs departmental human resource, finance, budgeting, information systems, facilities and purchasing
functions. Administers probate docket and represents the court and presents programmatic, statistical, budgetary and
other information to judges, legislative bodies, the Commissioners Court and other organizations.

DISTINGUISHING CHARACTERISTICS:

This is a job classification within the Senior Management/Middle Management job family. Incumbent’s in this
classification is responsible for directing the administrative and operational functions within a probate court system, and the
development of strategic plans and program initiatives to facilitate efficiency and effectiveness. Typically manages and
performs the departmental human resources, budgeting, information technology, purchasing and other administrative
and operational functions through subordinate supervisory, technical and administrative staff. This classification serves
as a high-level legal advisor on complex or sensitive cases.

DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES:

• Oversees and performs administrative and operational functions within a probate court system, such as financial,
budgeting, human resources, purchasing, information systems, strategic planning, records management and special
programs. Ensures all basic requirements are met related to policies, procedures, staffing, equipment and other
resources to enhance efficiency. Manages the work of departmental administrative and legal staff.

• Oversees and implements departmental human resources functions, including staffing, employee relations,
classification, compensation, recruitment/retention, training and guidance on day-to-day actions in compliance with
Federal, State and County policies. Seeks and creates opportunities for improved performance, learning and
development of staff. Identifies and addresses problems or conflicts.

• Serves as a high-level legal advisor to judges and department attorneys on complex or sensitive cases. Performs
legal analysis and research on legal records and documents pertaining to the cases or issues under consideration.
Writes or updates legal orders, rulings, reports and other legal documents and forms used by the court.

• Assists in developing and implementing strategic plans that establish goals and objectives for the court system.

• Assists in developing and preparing the annual budget. Monitors budget expenditures to ensure consistency with
court goals and objectives and remaining available funds. Establishes internal control procedures for budget-
related activities and ensures all compliance and financial reporting requirements are met.

• Oversees the planning, development, implementation and operation of the department’s information and records
management systems. Works with information systems staff to determine and prioritize the department’s
information systems needs.

• Prepared, receives and reviews statistical and programmatic reports, monitors programs, and interprets findings.
Evaluates current programs, procedures and practices on an on-going basis. Plans and develops policies,
procedures and programs to enhance efficiency and effectiveness of the court system.

• Administers probate court docket. Reviews legal documents to determine compliance and attends probate
hearings. May assist judge in the courtroom.

• Serves as representative for the court system on local, regional and statewide judicial and justice system
committees. Participates in local and regional planning for court-related initiatives.

• Monitors and ensures that court system procedures are consistent with legislative mandates.

• Discusses court cases with appropriate members of the court system or directly involved medical or other related
staff within the laws and rules of court procedure.

• Performs other job-related duties as assigned.

Page 1 of 3

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Probate Court Administrator

JOB CODE: 27488 FLSA STATUS: Exempt
PAY GRADE: 27 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS:

Education and Experience:
Bachelor’s degree in Court Administration, Business Administration or a directly related field AND six (6) years
increasingly responsible experience in court administration, business administration, legal or related work, including three
(3) years of mid- to senior level supervisory or management experience;

OR,

Any combination of education and experience that has been achieved and is equivalent to the stated education and
experience and required knowledge, skills, and abilities sufficient to successfully perform the duties and responsibilities
of this job.

Licenses, Registrations, Certifications, or Special Requirements:
None required.

Preferred:
J.D./LL..B. from an accredited law school.
Licensed to practice law in the State of Texas.
Graduation from the Court Executive Development Program of the Institute for Court Management (1CM) or other
certifications such as Certified Public Accountant (CPA) or Certified Management Accountant (CMA).

Knowledge. Skills, and Abilities:
Knowledge of:
• Management and supervisory principles, practices and techniques.
• Court system administration and oversight techniques.
• Policies, practices, procedures and legal terminology of court system.
• Federal, State and Local program laws and requirements.
• Budgetary practices and techniques.
• Information technology as related to assigned function.
• Criminal justice agencies and task forces.
• Modern office practices, procedures and methods.
• Computer equipment to include word processing, spreadsheets, databases and a variety of software packages.
• Business letter writing, grammar and punctuation, and report preparation.

Skill in:
• Strategic planning, developing, monitoring and evaluating court systems and services.
• Managing staff, allocating resources and evaluating programs.
• Leadership and collaboration.
• Problem-solving and decision-making.
• Negotiating, interviewing and investigating practices and techniques.
• Developing and monitoring program budgets.
• Both verbal and written communication, including presentations.

Ability to:
• Direct, motivate, train, develop and evaluate staff.
• Develop and recommend program initiatives.
• Prepare and analyze administrative and statistical reports.
• Work independently and efficiently.
• Manage time well, perform multiple tasks and organize diverse activities.
• Establish and maintain effective working relationships with departmental clientele, representatives of outside

agencies and providers, other County employees and officials, and the general public.

Page 2 of 3 3 Sc

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Probate Court Administrator

JOB CODE: 27488 FLSA STATUS: Exempt
PAY GRADE: 27 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

WORK ENVIRONMENT AND PHYSICAL DEMANDS:

Physical requirements include the ability to lift/carry up to 5-15 pounds occasionally, visual acuity, speech and hearing,
hand and eye coordination and manual dexterity necessary to operate a computer and office equipment. Subject to
standing, walking, sitting, repetitive motion, reaching, climbing stairs, bending, stooping, kneeling, crouching, crawling,
pushing, pulling, balancing, client/customer contact, squatting to perform the essential functions.

This job description is intended to be generic in nature. It is not necessarily an exhaustive list of all duties
and responsibilities. The essential duties, functions and responsibilities and overtime eligibility may vary
based on the specific tasks assigned to the position.

Page 3 of 3

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Tax Assessor-Collector Associate Deputy

JOB CODE: 29025 FLSA STATUS: Exempt
PAY GRADE: 29 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

JOB SUMMARY:

Under broad direction, performs highly responsible administrative duties assisting in directing the major program areas
within the office of the Tax Assessor-Collector. Provides leadership, oversight and direction and assists in planning,
organizing, directing, implementing and evaluating assigned departmental functions and operations in accordance with
State, Federal and Local laws, policies and procedures. Interprets, administers and enforces laws pertinent to motor
vehicle registration and titling, collection of court fines and fees and collection of ad valorem taxes for various taxing
entities. Develops and implements policies, operating procedures and programs to accomplish goals and objectives and
improve effectiveness and efficiency of services. Directs activities through subordinate supervisors.

DISTINGUISHING CHARACTERISTICS:

This is the first in a series of two tax assessor-collector-related job classifications in the Senior Management/Middle
Management job family. This classification performs advanced complex work assisting the Elected Official, department
head and Chief Deputy in directing and administering the program work within the department. Incumbents in this class
have broad scope of operational and staff responsibility and direct through subordinate supervisors. Duties require the
highest degree of initiative and independent judgment. This classification may require a flexible work schedule in order to
meet the needs of the department.

DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES:

• Prepares and administers budget for the Revenue Management areas of operation. Monitors and approves budget
expenditures to ensure consistency with system goals and objectives and remaining available funds. Establishes
internal control procedures for budget related activities.

• Develops departmental strategic plans to accomplish goals and objectives and improve the effectiveness and efficiency
of service delivery to an array of Federal, State and Local government agencies, including judicial and law enforcement
officials. Provides interpretation and directs and facilitates division compliance with all applicable laws. Oversees the
revision and updating of policies, programs and procedures as legislation is modified and created.

• Oversees and delegates authority to carry out the work of various units to subordinate supervisors and staff, including
hiring, training, performance evaluation and disciplinary actions. Monitors and confirms activities are consistent with
goals and objectives. Seeks and creates opportunities for improved performance, learning and development of staff.
Identifies and addresses problems or conflicts.

• Coordinates security of all remittances, receipts and controlled items received or generated by various programs.
Monitors related work of satellite offices, substations and other entities. Verifies that all substations are bonded in
accordance with contract provisions. Reconciles original, monthly corrections and supplements of tax rolls for taxing
entities with the appraisal district.

• Directs and administers the collection of state and local tax revenue and/or court fines and fees. Administers the
creation, correction and maintenance of tax rolls. Oversees delinquent billing and collection, including initiating legal
action as needed. Manages motor vehicle registration and titling. Oversees the assessment and collection of court
costs, fines and fees. Disseminates information to the public for operational divisions of the department, facilitating the
assessment and collection of all revenue generated by the department.

• Evaluates existing programs, services, procedures and practices on an ongoing basis. Reviews plans and develops
policies, procedures and programs to enhance efficiency and effectiveness and monitors workload to ensure that
quality services are being provided.

• Represents Elected Official and department head and serves as a liaison with local government bodies and an array of
Federal, State and Local governmental agencies, including judicial and law enforcement officials. Coordinates the
exchange of information among entities toward facilitating the collection of taxes and fees. Shares information to
remain abreast of laws, regulations, trends and developments.

• Performs other job-related duties as assigned.

Pagelof2

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Tax Assessor-Collector Associate Deputy

JOB CODE: 29025 FLSA STATUS: Exempt
PAY GRADE: 29 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS:

Education and Experience:
Bachelor’s degree in Accounting, Finance or a directly related field AND eight (8) years of increasingly responsible
relevant experience, including two (2) years of mid- to senior level supervisory or management experience;

OR,

Any combination of education and experience that has been achieved and is equivalent to the stated education and
experience and required knowledge, skills, and abilities sufficient to successfully perform the duties and responsibilities
of this job.

Licenses, Registrations, Certifications, or Special Requirements:
Valid Texas Driver’s License.
State accreditation as a Registered Texas Assessor/Collector.

Knowledge, Skills, and Abilities:
Knowledge of:
• Standard and complex management and supervisory principles, practices and techniques.
• Basic and highly complex policies, practices, procedures and terminology of assigned function.
• Federal, State, Local and County laws, rules, regulations and guidelines.
• Budget planning, development, preparation and monitoring.
• Manual and automated systems relating to assigned function.
• Modern office practices, procedures and methods.
• Computer equipment to include word processing, spreadsheets, databases, presentation, automated systems and

related software applications.
• Business letter writing, grammar and punctuation, and report preparation.

Skill in:
• Managing staff, allocating resources and evaluating programs.
• Problem-solving and decision-making.
• Both verbal and written communication, including presentations.

Ability to:
• Direct, motivate, train, develop and evaluate staff.
• Work independently.
• Manage time well, perform multiple tasks and organize diverse activities.
• Set priorities and manage the program operations.
• Identify and resolve problems.
• Establish and maintain effective working relationships with departmental clientele, representatives of outside

agencies and providers, other County employees and officials, and the public.

WORK ENVIRONMENT AND PHYSICAL DEMANDS:

Physical requirements include the ability to lift/carry up to 10-15 pounds occasionally, visual acuity, speech and hearing,
hand and eye coordination and manual dexterity necessary to operate a computer and office equipment. Subject to
standing, walking, sitting, repetitive motion, reaching, climbing stairs, bending, stooping, kneeling, crouching, crawling,
pushing, pulling, balancing, client/customer contact, squatting to perform the essential functions.

This job description is intended to be generic in nature. It is not necessarily an exhaustive list of all duties
and responsibilities. The essential duties, functions and responsibilities and overtime eligibility may vary
based on the specific tasks assigned to the position.

Page2of2

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Chief Deputy Tax Assessor-Collector

JOB CODE: 31476 FLSA STATUS: Exempt
PAY GRADE: 31 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

JOB SUMMARY:

Implements and executes policies and programs. Manages day-to-day operations.

DISTINGUISHING CHARACTERISTICS:

This is the second in a series of two tax assessor-collector-related job classifications in the Senior Management/Middle
Management job family. Reports directly to the department head and functions as the second highest level of
management within the department.

DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES:

• Establishes program objectives and identifies and ensures adequate and appropriate resources are assigned to
programs to meet goals and department’s needs. Supervises development of annual operating plans and budget.
Authorizes checks, warrants, expenditures, disbursements and purchase orders and monitors budget.

• Serves as subject expert by advising Elected Officials, Appointed Officials, department heads, County staff, general
public, other agencies and consultants on matters relevant to the department.

• Acts as liaison on procurement of services and equipment for the department.

• Establishes procedures for maintaining high standard of service.

• Evaluates and develops improved techniques for the control of operations, service quality, reliability and governing
requirements.

• Determines and enforces productivity, quality and service requirements in accordance with department needs.

• Promotes department-wide quality improvement efforts.

• Represents department in coordinating operations with other County departments and agencies and organizations.
Assists other departments as needed. Acts for department in absence of Tax Assessor-Collector. Coordinates with
appropriate Elected Officials, Appointed Officials and department heads for services, as required.

• Performs other job-related duties as assigned.

MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS:

Education and Experience:
Bachelor’s degree in Business Administration, Economics, Public Administration, Accounting, Finance or a directly
related field AND eight (8) years of responsible administrative/supervisory level experience in a governmental
management position, including four (4) years of mid- to senior level supervisory or management experience;

OR,

Any combination of education and experience that has been achieved and is equivalent to the stated education and
experience and required knowledge, skills, and abilities sufficient to successfully perform the duties and responsibilities
of this job.

Licenses, Registrations, Certifications, or Special Requirements:
None required.

Preferred:
Master’s degree in Business Administration, Economics, Public Administration, Accounting, Finance or a directly related
field.

Pagelof2 31

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Chief Deputy Tax Assessor-Collector

JOB CODE: 31476 FLSA STATUS: Exempt
PAY GRADE: 31 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS: (Cont.)

Knowledge, Skills, and Abilities:
Knowledge of:
• Governmental personnel policies, planning and budgeting concepts.
• Principles of public administration, accounting, and budgeting.
• State and local issues.
• Organization and management principles.
• Management and supervisory principles, practices and techniques.
• Policies, practices, procedures and terminology in area of assignment.
• Federal, State, Local and County applicable laws, rules, regulations and guidelines.
• Standard administration practices in area of assignment.
• Computer equipment to include word processing, spreadsheets, databases and a variety of software packages.
• Business letter writing, grammar and punctuation, and report preparation.

Skill in:
• Directing and managing others, including team building.
• Project direction and coordination.
• Developing long-term strategies.
• Problem-solving and decision-making.
• Training, managing and evaluating the work of others.
• Preparing and making public presentation and communication.
• Both verbal and written communication.

Ability to:
• Develop budget formats and procedures and to make budgetary recommendations.
• Bring together several viewpoints and ideas to a balanced position.
• Relate to employees as well as evaluate and counsel personnel in problem areas.
• Reason and make judgments and decisions.
• Develop and implement new and innovative ideas.
• Reach sound conclusions and make realistic recommendations based on facts and objective analyses.
• Manage time well, perform multiple tasks and organize diverse activities.
• Perform in a stressful environment while maintaining a professional manner.
• Research, compile, analyze, interpret and prepare a variety of memorandums or reports.
• Establish and maintain effective working relationships with departmental clientele, technical staff, state and local

officials, elected and appointed officials, members of the media, representatives of outside agencies, other County
employees and officials, and the general public.

WORK ENVIRONMENT AND PHYSICAL DEMANDS:

Physical requirements include the ability to lift/carry up to 20-50 pounds occasionally, visual acuity, speech and hearing,
hand and eye coordination and manual dexterity necessary to operate a computer and office equipment. Subject to
standing, walking, sitting, repetitive motion, reaching, climbing stairs, bending, stooping, kneeling, crouching, crawling,
pushing, pulling, balancing, client/customer contact, squatting to perform the essential functions.

This job description is intended to be generic in nature. It is not necessarily an exhaustive list of all duties
and responsibilities. The essential duties, functions and responsibilities and overtime eligibility may vary
based on the specific tasks assigned to the position.

Page2of2

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Chief Deputy Juvenile Probation

JOB CODE: 30402 FLSA STATUS: Exempt
PAY GRADE: 30 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

JOB SUMMARY:

Assists in directing the overall operations within the Juvenile Probation Department. Provides leadership, oversight and
direction and assists in planning, organizing, directing, implementing and evaluating departmental functions and
operations in accordance with State, Federal and Local laws. Assists with planning and developing poilcy, procedures
and programs. Assists in development of strategies to accomplish goals and objectives of the department to improve
effectiveness and efficiency of services. Directs activities through subordinate division directors.

DISTINGUISHING CHARACTERISTICS:

This is the fourth in a series of four juvenile probation-related job classifications within the Senior Management/Middle
Management job family. Reports directly to the Chief Juvenile Probation Officer and functions as the senior level of
middle management within the department. This classification has broad scope of operational and staff responsibility
and directs through subordinate division directors. This classification may require a flexible work schedule in order to
meet the needs of the department.

DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES:

• Assists in the daily direction of operations of divisions and functions and provides executive leadership,
management and coordination. Oversees management and staff, including making recommendations for hiring,
performance evaluation, disciplinary actions and dismissals, and ensures activities are consistent with goals and
objectives. Seeks and creates opportunities for improved performance, learning and development of staff. Identifies
and addresses problems or conflicts.

• Assists department head in planning and directing departmental services and operations. Analyzes, evaluates and
establishes departmental programs, policies and procedures and makes recommendations regarding overall
departmental decisions. Ensures departmental compliance with Federal, State, Local and judicial directives.

• Provides oversight and direction to management and staff and makes decisions on complex client issues.

• Assists in planning, preparing and administering annual budget. Ensures expenditures remain within approved budget.

• Receives and reviews statistical and other reports, monitors programs and interprets findings. Evaluates current
programs, procedures and practices on an on-going basis. Keeps the department head informed on matters
concerning department personnel and operations.

• Oversees the investigation of complaints from clients, their families, judicial entities and the general public.

• May represent the department at Commissioners Court, criminal justice, statewide and at local and community
meetings. Serves as liaison and functions as a resource person for advice and assistance to criminal justice
representatives, departmental staff and the general public.

• Performs other job-related duties as assigned.

MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS:

Education and Experience:
Bachelor’s degree in Criminal Justice, Social or Behavioral Sciences or a directly related field AND seven (7) years
increasingly responsible experience in criminal justice, probation, community corrections or related work, including five
(5) years mid- to senior level supervisory management experience;

OR,

Any combination of education and experience that has been achieved and is equivalent to the stated education and
experience and required knowledge, skills, and abilities sufficient to successfully perform the duties and responsibilities
of this job.

Pagelof2

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Chief Deputy Juvenile Probation

JOB CODE: 30402 FLSA STATUS: Exempt
PAY GRADE: 30 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS: (Cont.)

Licenses, Registrations, Certifications, or Special Requirements:
Valid Texas Driver’s License.
Eligible for certification by the Texas Juvenile Probation Commission as a Juvenile Probation Officer.

Preferred:
Master’s degree in Criminal Justice, Social or Behavioral Sciences or a directly related field.

Knowledge, Skills, and Abilities:
Knowledge of:
• Management and supervisory principles, practices and techniques.
• Policies, practices, procedures and legal terminology related to court system.
• Federal, State, Local and County applicable laws, rules, regulations and applicable probation and juvenile justice

standards and procedures.
• Standard practices in area of assignment.
• Budget development, preparation, and monitoring.
• Social adjustment and emotional stability.
• Computer equipment to include word processing, spreadsheets, databases and a variety of software packages.
• Business letter writing, grammar and punctuation, and report preparation.

Skill in:
• Directing and managing others, including team building.
• Problem-solving and decision-making.
• Training, managing and evaluating the work of others.
• Developing and monitoring budgets.
• Preparing and making presentations.
• Both verbal and written communication.

Ability to:
• Direct, motivate, train, develop and evaluate staff.
• Conduct investigations and report results clearly, accurately and impartially.
• Reason and make judgments and decisions.
• Work effectively and courteously under high pressure circumstances.
• Manage time well, perform multiple tasks and organize diverse activities.
• Research, compile, analyze, interpret and prepare a variety of memorandums or reports.
• Establish and maintain effective working relationships with departmental clientele, representatives of outside

agencies, other County employees and officials, attorneys, judges and the general public.

WORK ENVIRONMENT AND PHYSICAL DEMANDS:

Physical requirements include the ability to lift/carry up to 5-10 pounds occasionally, visual acuity, speech and hearing,
hand and eye coordination and manual dexterity necessary to operate a computer and office equipment. Subject to
standing, walking, sitting, repetitive motion, reaching, climbing stairs, bending, stooping, kneeling, crouching, crawling,
pushing, pulling, balancing, client/customer contact, squatting to perform the essential functions. May be subject to
contact with noise, vibration, fumes, foul odor, dirt, dust, mist, gases, and poor ventilation.

This job description is intended to be generic in nature. It is not necessarily an exhaustive list of all duties
and responsibilities. The essential duties, functions and responsibilities and overtime eligibility may vary
based on the specific tasks assigned to the position.

Page 2 of 2

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Chief Deputy CSCD

JOB CODE: 30403 FLSA STATUS: Exempt
PAY GRADE: 30 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

JOB SUMMARY:

Assists in directing the overall operations of Adult Probation and Pretrial Services activities. Provides executive
leadership and assists in planning, organizing, directing and evaluating all departmental functions. Plans and develops
policies, procedures and programs and strategies. Directs activities through subordinate division directors.

DISTINGUISHING CHARACTERISTICS:

This is a job classification within the Senior Management/Middle Management job family. Reports directly to the
department head and functions as the second highest level of management within the department. This classification
has broad scope of operational and staff responsibility and directs through subordinate division directors.

DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES:

• Directs daily operations of divisions and functions and provides executive leadership, management and
coordination. Oversees management and staff, including hiring, performance evaluation, disciplinary actions and
dismissals, and ensures activities are consistent with goals and objectives. Seeks and creates opportunities for
improved performance, learning and development of staff. Identifies and addresses problems or conflicts.

• Assists department head in planning and directing all departmental services and operations. Analyzes, evaluates and
establishes departmental programs, policies and procedures and makes recommendations regarding overall
departmental decisions. Ensures departmental compliance with federal, state, local and judicial directives.

• Provides oversight and direction to management and staff and makes decisions on complex client issues.

• Assists in planning, preparing and administering annual budget. Ensures expenditures remain within approved budget.

• Receives and reviews statistical and other reports, monitors programs and interprets findings. Evaluates current
programs, procedures and practices on an on-going basis. Keeps the department head informed on matters of
note.

• Oversees the investigation of complaints from clients, their families, judicial entities and the general public.

• Represents the department at Commissioners Court, criminal justice, statewide and at local and community
meetings. Serves as liaison and functions as a resource person for advice and assistance to criminal justice
representatives, departmental staff and the general public.

• Performs other job-related duties as assigned.

MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS:

Education and Experience:
Bachelor’s degree in Criminal Justice, Social or Behavioral Sciences or a directly related field AND seven (7) years
increasingly responsible experience in probation, pretrial or other criminal justice related work, including four (4) years
mid- to senior level supervisory or management experience;

OR,

Any combination of education and experience that has been achieved and is equivalent to the stated education and
experience and required knowledge, skills, and abilities sufficient to successfully perform the duties and responsibilities
of this job.

Licenses, Registrations, Certifications, or Special Requirements:
Valid Texas Driver’s License.

Preferred:
Master’s degree in Criminal Justice, Social or Behavioral Sciences or a directly related field.

Page 1 of 2

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Chief Deputy CSCD

JOB CODE: 30403 FLSA STATUS: Exempt
PAY GRADE: 30 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS: (Cont.)

Knowledge. Skills, and Abilities:
Knowledge of:
• Management and supervisory principles, practices and techniques.
• Policies, practices, procedures and legal terminology related to court system.
• Federal, State, Local and County applicable laws, rules, regulations and applicable probation and pretrial services

standards and procedures.
• Standard practices in area of assignment.
• Budget development, preparation, and monitoring.
• Psychological concepts of good behavior, social adjustment and emotional stability.
• Computer equipment to include word processing, spreadsheets, databases and a variety of software packages.
• Business letter writing, grammar and punctuation, and report preparation.

Skill in:
• Directing and managing others, including team building.
• Problem-solving and decision-making.
• Training, managing and evaluating the work of others.
• Developing and monitoring budgets.
• Preparing and making presentations.
• Both verbal and written communication.

Ability to:
• Direct, motivate, train, develop and evaluate staff.
• Conduct investigations and report results clearly, accurately and impartially.
• Reason and make judgments and decisions.
• Work effectively and courteously under high pressure circumstances.
• Manage time well, perform multiple tasks and organize diverse activities.
• Perform in a stressful environment while maintaining a professional manner.
• Research, compile, analyze, interpret and prepare a variety of memorandums or reports.
• Establish and maintain effective working relationships with departmental clientele, representatives of outside

agencies, other County employees and officials, attorneys, judges and the general public.

WORK ENVIRONMENT AND PHYSICAL DEMANDS:

Physical requirements include the ability to lift/carry up to 5-10 pounds occasionally, visual acuity, speech and hearing,
hand and eye coordination and manual dexterity necessary to operate a computer and office equipment. Subject to
standing, walking, sitting, repetitive motion, reaching, climbing stairs, bending, stooping, kneeling, crouching, crawling,
pushing, pulling, balancing, client/customer contact, squatting to perform the essential functions.

This job description is intended to be generic in nature. It is not necessarily an exhaustive list of all duties
and responsibilities. The essential duties, functions and responsibilities and overtime eligibility may vary
based on the specific tasks assigned to the position.

Page2of2 .J )

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: CES Manager

JOB CODE: 24553 FLSA STATUS: Exempt
PAY GRADE: 24 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

JOB SUMMARY:

Manages the personnel and tasks of assigned work unit. Develops, implements and manages goals, objectives and
activities related to substance abuse and family violence assessments, case management and administrative functions
including the department’s information and records management system and rehabilitative classes. Manages operations,
recommends and initiates changes in policies and procedures. Oversees clinical supervision and quality assurance for all
assessments, case management and classes provided for District Courts, County Courts at Law and other departments.

DISTINGUISHING CHARACTERISTICS:

This is the first in a series of two CES-related job classifications within the Senior Management/Middle Management job
family. Reports directly to the Assistant Director and has broad scope of operational and staff responsibility for a
complex and comprehensive program area. This classification may require a flexible work schedule in order to meet the
needs of the department.

DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES:

• Supervises and assigns the work and activities of professional staff which includes hiring, training, work distribution,
performance appraisal and discipline. Prepares reports and monitors the unit’s workload to ensure that quality
services are being provided.

• Oversees and determines resources and training requirements for unit to meet service demands.

• Provides clinical training for professional staff to meet qualifications for licensure as well as provide quality service.

• Assists in planning, organizing and implementing annual strategic work plan to achieve mission, stated goals and
objectives.

• Evaluates and reports on performance and determines short and long-range plans to assure quality improvement
strategies for service demands.

• Oversees quality assurance audits to ensure quality assessments, case management, classes and administrative
operations are being provided.

• Conducts research and plans for unit policies and procedures.

• Schedules and maintains departmental training calendar and facilitates various trainings.

• Directs the planning, development, implementation, and management of all financial and budgetary functions,
including the budget preparation, analysis, accounting function, internal and external controls, compliance issues
and financial reporting.

• Oversees purchasing, records retention, security compliance and property management.

• Serves as liaison and point of contact for intra-agency and inter-agency contacts including various courts sharing
information and addressing service issues.

• Performs other job-related duties as assigned.

MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS:

Education and Experience:
Bachelor’s degree in Social or Behavioral Sciences, Criminal Justice or a directly related field AND five (5) years of
experience in human services or related field, including three (3) years of mid- to senior level supervisory management
experience;

OR,

Any combination of education and experience that has been achieved and is equivalent to the stated education and
experience and required knowledge, skills, and abilities sufficient to successfully perform the duties and responsibilities
of this job.

Page 1 of 2 5

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: CES Manager

JOB CODE: 24553 FLSA STATUS: Exempt
PAY GRADE: 24 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS: (Cant.)

Licenses, Registrations, Certifications, or Special Requirements:
None required.

Preferred:
Licensed Chemical Dependency Counselor (LCDC); OR, Qualified Credentialed Counselor (QCC).

Knowledge, Skills, and Abilities:
Knowledge of:
• Laws relating to various alcohol-drug related violations as well as other misdemeanor violations.
• Various community referral sources including alcohol-drug related treatment programs.
• Management and supervisory principles, practices and techniques.
• Policies, practices, procedures and terminology of assigned function.
• Federal, State, Local and County applicable laws, rules, regulations and guidelines.
• Counseling and training techniques and practices.
• Standard practices in area of assignment.
• Budget development, preparation and monitoring.
• Computer equipment to include word processing, spreadsheets, databases and a variety of software packages.
• Business letter writing, grammar and punctuation, and report preparation.

Skill in:
• Supervising and managing others.
• Problem-solving and decision-making.
• Preparing and making presentations.
• Both verbal and written communication.

Ability to:
• Direct, motivate, train, develop and evaluate staff.
• Develop, analyze and interpret policies and procedures, financial statements, public information statements, and

operational plans or activities.
• Plan, organize, assign, motivate and coordinate work of support staff to achieve specific service objectives.
• Deal effectively with mentally disturbed, hostile and aggressive individuals.
• Gather, analyze, and evaluate facts and to develop individual program planning and appropriate case disposition.
• Present investigation and report and results clearly, accurately and impartially.
• Manage time well, perform multiple tasks and organize diverse activities.
• Independently prepare correspondence and memorandums and other materials.
• Research, compile, analyze, interpret and prepare a variety of fiscal, statistical and administrative reports.
• Establish and maintain effective working relationships with departmental clientele, representatives of outside

agencies, other County employees and officials, and the general public.

WORK ENVIRONMENT AND PHYSICAL DEMANDS:

Physical requirements include the ability to lift/carry up to 5-10 pounds occasionally, visual acuity, speech and hearing,
hand and eye coordination and manual dexterity necessary to operate a computer and office equipment. Subject to
standing, walking, sitting, repetitive motion, reaching, climbing stairs, bending, stooping, kneeling, crouching, crawling,
pushing, pulling, balancing, client/customer contact, squatting to perform the essential functions. Requires exposure to
hostile behavior from clients. May be subject to contact with noise, vibration, fumes, foul odor, dirt, dust, mist, gases, and
poor ventilation.

This job description is intended to be generic in nature. It is not necessarily an exhaustive list of all duties
and responsibilities. The essential duties, functions and responsibilities and overtime eligibility may vary
based on the specific tasks assigned to the position.

Page2of2

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: CES Director

JOB CODE: 27555 FLSA STATUS: Exempt
PAY GRADE: 27 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

JOB SUMMARY:

Directs the overall operations within a department responsible for assessment and rehabilitative programs for adults and
juveniles referred by various criminal justice affiliates. Provides leadership, oversight and direction. Oversees the
planning, organization, direction, implementation and evaluation all departmental functions and operations in accordance
with State, Federal, Local and County laws, policies and procedures. Plans and develops policies, procedures,
programs and strategies to accomplish goals and objectives and improve effectiveness and efficiency of services.
Directs activities through subordinate managers.

DISTINGUISHING CHARACTERISTICS:

This is the second in a series of two CES-related job classifications within the Senior Management/Middle Management
job family. This classification is distinguished by the high-level administrative and management duties and
responsibilities performed in directing the staff and operations through subordinate managers. This classification may
require a flexible work schedule in order to meet the needs of the department.

DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES:

• Directs, plans, organizes, implements, monitors and evaluates department-wide operations and staff. Provides
oversight and directs and facilitates conformity with State and Federal laws and guidelines, and policies and
procedures.

• Directs management and staff, including hiring, performance evaluation, disciplinary actions and dismissals, and
ensures activities are consistent with goals and objectives. Seeks and creates opportunities for improved
performance, learning and development of staff. Identifies and addresses problems or conflicts.

• Develops departmental strategic plans to accomplish goals and objectives and improve effectiveness and efficiency
of service delivery to clients.

• Works with elected officials, judges and agencies to provide a complete and thorough analysis of counseling services.
Maintains frequent communication with District, County, Juvenile and Municipal judges to maximize collaborative
planning and gauge changing service needs.

• Prepares and reviews a variety of programmatic, fiscal, administrative and statistical reports and interprets findings.
Evaluates current programs, services, procedures and practices on an on-going basis. Plans and develops policies,
procedures and programs to enhance efficiency and effectiveness and monitors workload to ensure that quality
services are being provided.

• Prepares and administers budget for areas of oversight. Monitors and approves budget expenditures to ensure
consistently with system goals and objectives and remaining available funds. Establishes internal control
procedures for budget related activities.

• Provides high-level technical advice, policy interpretation and guidance for application of appropriate procedures to
managers and other staff.

• Represents the department and serves as a liaison for local and statewide committees and task forces, advisory
groups and the general public. Serves as spokesperson to media and outside agencies.

• Performs other job-related duties as assigned.

MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS:

Education and Experience:
Bachelor’s degree in Social or Behavioral Sciences, Criminal Justice or a directly related field AND six (6) years of
experience in counseling, substance abuse or related field, including four (4) years of mid- to senior level supervisory or
management experience;

Pagelof3

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: CES Director

JOB CODE: 27555 FLSA STATUS: Exempt
PAY GRADE: 27 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS: (Cont.)

Education and Experience: (Cont.)

OR,

Any combination of education and experience that has been achieved and is equivalent to the stated education and
experience and required knowledge, skills, and abilities sufficient to successfully perform the duties and responsibilities
of this job.

Licenses, Registrations, Certifications, or Special Requirements:
Valid Texas Driver’s License.

Preferred:
Master’s degree in Social or Behavioral Sciences, Criminal Justice or a directly related field.
Licensure in counseling.

Knowledge, Skills, and Abilities:
Knowledge of:
• Management principles, practices and techniques.
• Policies, practices, procedures and terminology of assigned function.
• Federal, State, Local and County applicable laws, rules, regulations and guidelines.
• Standard practices in area of assignment.
• Budgetary practices and techniques.
• Computer equipment to include word processing, spreadsheets, databases and a variety of software packages.
• Business letter writing, grammar and punctuation, and report preparation.

Skill in:
• Directing and managing others, including team building.
• Problem-solving and decision-making.
• Developing and monitoring budgets.
• Preparing and making presentations.
• Both verbal and written communication.

Ability to:
• Direct, motivate, train, develop and evaluate staff.
• Develop, analyze, and interpret policies and procedures, financial statements, public information statements, and

operational plans or activities.
• Deal effectively with mentally disturbed, hostile and aggressive individuals.
• Gather, analyze and evaluate facts and to develop individual program planning and appropriate case disposition.
• Perform investigations and develop reports and results clearly, accurately, and impartially.
• Manage time well, perform multiple tasks and organize diverse activities.
• Research, compile, analyze, interpret and prepare a variety of fiscal, statistical and administrative reports.
• Establish and maintain effective working relationships with departmental clientele, representatives of outside

agencies, other County employees and officials, and the general public.

58Page 2 of 3

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: CES Director

JOB CODE: 27555 FLSA STATUS: Exempt
PAY GRADE: 27 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

WORK ENVIRONMENT AND PHYSICAL DEMANDS:

Physical requirements include the ability to lift/carry up to 5-10 pounds occasionally, visual acuity, speech and hearing,
hand and eye coordination and manual dexterity necessary to operate a computer and office equipment. Subject to
standing, walking, sitting, repetitive motion, reaching, climbing stairs, bending, stooping, kneeling, crouching, crawling,
pushing, pulling, balancing, client/customer contact, squatting to perform the essential functions. Requires exposure to
hostile behavior from clients. May be subject to contact with noise, vibration, fumes, foul odor, dirt, dust, mist, gases, and
poor ventilation.

This job description is intended to be generic in nature. It is not necessarily an exhaustive list of all duties
and responsibilities. The essential duties, functions and responsibilities and overtime eligibility may vary
based on the specific tasks assigned to the position.

C7 C
Page3of3 3C) I

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Chief Administrative Officer Medical Examiner

JOB CODE: 28267 FLSA STATUS: Exempt
PAY GRADE: 28 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

JOB SUMMARY:

Provides senior executive level administrative management direction for all aspects of operations at the Travis County
Medical Examiners Officer. Works with the Medical Examiner to provide leadership, oversight and direction in planning,
organizing, implementing and evaluating operations in accordance with State, Federal and Local laws, policies and
procedures and guidelines. Provides administrative oversight to the office in support of the statutory responsibilities for
death investigations, strategic initiative and fiscal administration. Works with the Medical Examiner and staff to develop
policies and standard operating procedures aligned with departmental strategic plans to accomplish goals and objectives
and improve effectiveness and efficiency of services. Directs the staffing, training, development and performance
evaluation of division staff.

DISTINGUISHING CHARACTERISTICS:

This is a job classification within the Senior Management/Middle Management job family. This classification is
distinguished by the senior executive-level administrative and management duties and responsibilities performed in
directing the staff and operations of one or more complex functional or programmatic areas within a medicolegal
environment. The Medical Examiner’s Office has interface with the public during traumatic and stressful events.

DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES:

• Directs, plans, organizes, implements, monitors and evaluates department-wide, non-medical operations and staff in
complex functional or programmatic areas. Provides oversight, directs and ensures conformity with State and
Federal laws and guidelines, industry standards and practices, and policies and procedures for the health, safety, and
welfare of employees and in accordance with stringent forensic pathology, toxicology, and investigative standards.
Directs operations to minimize potential risk exposure and liability to County.

• Provides senior executive-level administrative leadership and oversight to the office in support of the statutory
responsibilities of the Medical Examiners Office. Plans and provides for total quality management, and process
improvement. Develops public communications plans and staff development to enhance the operational efficiencies
and effectiveness to ensure that quality services are being provided.

• Develops departmental strategic plans to accomplish goals and objectives, improve effectiveness and efficiency of
services, and maintain stringent controls compliant with health and safety operations and industry standards.
Develops project management strategies, timelines and budgets to meet the goal achieving and maintaining
accreditation from the National Association of Medical Examiners (NAME). Provides administrative oversight of
projects and acquisitions of grants involving the Medical Examiners Office.

• Performs senior executive-level responsibilities to formulate, promulgate and enforce policies and procedures for
administrative non-medical operations e.g., death investigations and support functions. Publishes and maintains a
manual on policies and directives. Represents the department and serves as a liaison for local and statewide
committees and task forces, advisory groups, other County departments, and the general public. Represents the
Medical Examiner’s Office at Commissioners Court meetings. Serves as spokesperson to media and outside
agencies as necessary. Also coordinates with Medical Examiner on media presentations and press relations.

• Provides senior executive-level technical direction to develop infrastructure requirements (facilities and technology)
for the operation of the Medical Examiner’s Office. Serves as liaison with County staff in appropriate support
departments to define and develop technical and operational requirements and specifications.

• Develops programs and initiatives to expand community outreach and knowledge of Medical Examiner’s Office
operations and statutory requirements.

• Coordinates with emergency and crisis management personnel in the development of catastrophic response plans.

• Directs management and staff, including hiring, training, performance evaluation, disciplinary actions and dismissals,
and ensures activities are consistent with goals and objectives. Seeks and creates opportunities for improved
performance, learning and development of staff. Identifies and addresses problems or conflicts.

Page 1 of 3 3 7 0

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Chief Administrative Officer Medical Examiner

JOB CODE: 28267 FLSA STATUS: Exempt
PAY GRADE: 28 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES: (Cont.)

Prepares and analyzes a variety of programmatic, fiscal, administrative and statistical reports and interprets findings.
Evaluates department’s programs, services, procedures and practices on an on-going basis.

• Prepares and administers revenue and expenditure budget for the department. Monitors and approves budget
expenditures to ensure they are consistent with system goals and objectives and remaining available funds.
Establishes internal control procedures for budget-related activities.

• Performs other job-related duties as assigned.

MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS:

Education and Experience:
Bachelor’s degree in Public Administration or Business Administration, Hospital Administration, Health Care
Administration, Public Health, Criminal Justice, Management, Accounting, Finance or a directly related field AND eight (8)
years of responsible administrative/supervisory level experience in Hospital, Health Care, Public Administration or
Business Administration, using automated systems, including four (4) years of mid- to senior level supervisory or
management experience within a County or comparable environment for developing, implementing and managing goals
and objectives with significant organizational impact;

OR,

Any combination of education and experience that has been achieved and is equivalent to the stated education and
experience and required knowledge, skills, and abilities sufficient to successfully perform the duties and responsibilities of
this job.

Licenses, Registrations, Certifications, or Special Requirements:
None required.

Preferred:
Master’s degree in Public Administration, Business Administration, Hospital Administration, Health Care Administration,
Public Health or a directly related field.

Knowledge, Skills, and Abilities:
Knowledge of:
• Financial, budgetary and human resource management principles, practices and techniques.
• Process improvement and total quality management.
• Management functions, policies and procedures, principles, practices, and techniques.
• Federal, State, Local and County laws and industry standards, such as the National Association of Medical

Examiner’s (NAME) accreditation standards critical to the operation of the Medical Examiner’s Office (pathology,
investigative, radiation, bio-hazards).

• Outside agencies e.g., government interlocals, funeral homes, law enforcement, etc.
• Basic principles of an organization, public administration, accounting and budgeting, of state and local issues.
• Management and supervisory principles, practices and techniques.
• Development and implementation of public policy and operational procedures.
• Methods of presentations.
• Media relations, public health outreach.
• Computer equipment to include word processing, spreadsheets, databases and a variety of software packages.
• Business letter writing, grammar and punctuation, and report preparation.

Skill in:
• Training, managing and evaluating the work of others.
• Statistical methods, financial analysis, and cost-benefit analysis.
• Interpreting and applying planning standards, principles, policies and procedures, practices, codes, Federal, State,

Local and County applicable laws, codes, rules, regulations and guidelines.

Page 2 of 3

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Chief Administrative Officer Medical Examiner

JOB CODE: 28267 FLSA STATUS: Exempt
PAY GRADE: 28 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS: (Cant.)

Skill in: (Cant.)
• Preparing and making public presentations to multiple audiences, including Commissioners Court, media outlets,

general public, and outside agencies.
• Managing confidential information with high level of integrity and discretion.
• Developing and implementing comprehensive, long-range plans.
• Analyzing day-to-day processes and ability to develop long-term procedural improvements to resolve complex

problems.
• Developing innovative solutions to procedural problems.
• Building consensus and teamwork.
• Working with and communicating with various community groups and media representatives.
• Interacting effectively with all levels of management, employees, multiple outside agencies and outside contractors.
• Exercising independent judgment.
• Both verbal and written communication.

Ability to:
• Direct, motivate, train, develop and evaluate staff.
• Plan, develop and implement multi-functional policies and procedures, strategic and operational plans, and program

initiatives.
• Work in diversified, multi-faceted organization and perform in a stressful environment, while maintaining a

professional manner.
• Implement standard business practices and perform financial and statistical analyses to enhance operations.
• Create and successfully manage organizational change.
• Interpret policies, procedures, codes, ordinances and regulations.
• Interpret and set vision and goals, and develop short-term and long-term plans for successful implementation.
• Reach sound conclusions and make realistic recommendations based on facts and objective analyses of data.
• Manage time well, perform multiple tasks and organize diverse activities.
• Research, compile, analyze, interpret and prepare a variety of evaluative reports.
• Bring together several viewpoints and ideas to a balanced position.
• Reason and make judgments and decisions.
• Lead development of programs which foster increased efficiency and effectiveness.
• Evaluate impact of a policy and procedure, plan or program by itself in relationship to other policies and procedures,

plans or programs.
• Respond to inquiries from customers, regulatory agencies, or members of the professional community.
• Write complex reports and business correspondence.
• Effectively present information to management and public groups.
• Establish and maintain effective working relationships with representatives of multiple outside agencies, outside

contractors, other County employees and officials, and the general public.

WORK ENVIRONMENT AND PHYSICAL DEMANDS:

Physical requirements include the ability to lift/carry up to 25 pounds occasionally, visual acuity, speech and hearing, hand
and eye coordination and manual dexterity necessary to operate a computer and office equipment. Subject to standing,
walking, sitting, repetitive motion, reaching, climbing stairs, bending, stooping, kneeling, crouching, crawling, pushing,
pulling, balancing, client/customer contact, squatting to perform the essential functions.

This job description is intended to be generic in nature. It is not necessarily an exhaustive list of all duties
and responsibilities. The essential duties, functions and responsibilities and overtime eligibility may vary
based on the specific tasks assigned to the position.

Page 3 of 3 5 7 2

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: TNR Assistant Director

JOB CODE: 30314 FLSA STATUS: Exempt
PAY GRADE: 30 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

JOB SUMMARY:

Plans, implements and coordinates development and implementation of management work plans, budgets, and strategic
goals and objectives. Manages and evaluates, planning, administrative, fiscal functions and information systems. Plans
and directs development of department at Commissioners Court meetings and participates in overall administration.
Serves as Acting Executive Manager of Transportation and Natural Resources during the absence of the Executive
Manager.

DISTINGUISHING CHARACTERISTICS:

This is a job classification within the Senior Management/Middle Management job family. Incumbent’s in this
classification represents senior management within the department. This classification may require a flexible work
schedule in order to meet the needs of the department.

DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES:

• Directs and controls planning, budgets, resource allocation, financial systems and information technology of the
department. Directs, oversees and participates in the development and implementation of the department’s
planning, organizing, mission, overall strategic goals and objectives. Directs scheduling, monitoring and deploying
of human, operating and capital resources to accomplish policies, plans and program outcome measures. Ensures
that the department adheres to agency goals and objectives.

• Participates actively in organizational strategic planning. Assists the Executive Manager with overall departmental
responsibilities and has delegated authority to make necessary departmental decisions in absence of Executive
Manager.

• Develops, manages and controls departmental programs, budgets and personnel. Oversees the development of
the department budget, including revenue forecasting, departmental budget reviews and recommendations to the
Executive Manager. Supports the Executive Manager in presentation of budget and capital program to
Commissioners Court. Reviews and approves department operating expenditures. Assists senior managers in
implementing fiscal transactions and decisions. Plans future budgetary requirements.

• Manages conflict resolution for the department. Evaluates and reports on program performance. Prepares process
analyses using statistical process controls to continually improve the quality of processes and output.

• Represents the department at business meetings, legislative sessions, conferences, seminars, boards, panels and
committees.

• Directs, develops and monitors departmental policies and operating procedures. Implements, communicates and
effectively uses policies and procedures. Coordinates with departments, agencies and organizations to accomplish
desired goals and objectives. Communicates with Executive Manager and Commissioners Court.

• Coaches’ senior managers on matters of department structure and leadership. Plans and evaluates the work of
senior level management, professional, technical and other support staff. Interprets policies for subordinates.
Resolves conflicts and exercises broad coordination over activities. Reviews, evaluates and recommends
improvements to department administrative and financial internal controls and systems and procedures.

• Plans, develops and directs a comprehensive long-term strategic plan for automated systems needs for the
department, including centralized computer applications, personal computers and telecommunications functions.
Oversees automated systems within the department, including prioritizing requests for applications development or
enhancements, hardware and software standards and equipment acquisition and replacement. Coordinates
technical staff placed within the department. Positions the department to effectively respond to the changing
technological environment.

• Performs other job-related duties as assigned.

Page 1 of 3

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: TNR Assistant Director

JOB CODE: 30314 FLSA STATUS: Exempt
PAY GRADE: 30 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS:

Education and Experience:
Bachelor’s degree in Public Administration, Business Administration, Planning, Finance or a directly related field AND
seven (7) years of senior level management experience, including four (4) years of mid- to senior level supervisory or
management experience;

OR,

Any combination of education and experience that has been achieved and is equivalent to the stated education and
experience and required knowledge, skills, and abilities sufficient to successfully perform the duties and responsibilities
of this job.

Licenses, Registrations, Certifications, or Special Requirements:
Valid Texas Driver’s License.

Preferred:
Master’s degree in Public Administration, Business Administration, Planning, Finance or a directly related field.

Knowledge, Skills, and Abilities:
Knowledge of:
• Standard management theory, principles, practices and techniques.
• Federal, State, Local and County applicable laws, rules, regulations and guidelines.
• Planning and research methodology.
• State and Federal regulatory or administrative requirements and practices.
• Standards of policy analysis, finance and contract management.
• Budgetary and fiscal process.
• Quality management principles and practices.
• Techniques of statistical measurements and applications.
• Governmental procurement and contracts management requirements.
• Principles and practices of microcomputers, data processing and MIS functions and equipment capabilities.
• Supervisory principles, practices and techniques.
• Online computer searches.
• Computer equipment to include word processing, spreadsheets, databases and a variety of software packages.
• Business letter writing, grammar and punctuation, and report preparation.

Skill in:
• Resolving supervisory/management issues, including planning and managing teams.
• Planning and coordinating work activities.
• Researching, analyzing, compiling, preparing and presenting technical data/information and reports.
• Problem-solving and decision-making.
• Public speaking and content delivery.
• Conflict resolution and community relations.
• Both verbal and written communication.

Ability to:
• Interact effectively with staff, public, elected and appointed officials.
• Direct and organize department activities.
• Establish program goals and objectives that support the strategic plan.
• Identify problems, evaluate alternatives and implement effective solutions.
• Direct the development of agency policies and procedures.
• Prepare clear, complete, accurate and logical verbal and written reports and make presentations.
• Prioritize needs, develop and implement plans of action.

Page 2 of 3

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: TNR Assistant Director

JOB CODE: 30314 FLSA STATUS: Exempt
PAY GRADE: 30 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS: (Cont.)

Ability to: (Cont.)
• Direct preparation of department budget function.
• Plan, coordinate and direct the work of senior managers and professional.
• Work on a wide variety of tasks simultaneously and produce timely and tangible results.
• Utilize online resources.
• Value diversity and promote shared responsibility, teamwork, systems integration and acceptance of change.
• Read and understand basic legal documents.
• Listen and communicate effectively both verbally and in writing.
• Establish and maintain effective working relationships with representatives of outside agencies, consultants, other

County employees and officials, and the general public.

WORK ENVIRONMENT AND PHYSICAL DEMANDS:

Physical requirements include the ability to lift/carry up to 20—50 pounds occasionally, visual acuity, speech and hearing,
hand and eye coordination and manual dexterity necessary to operate a computer and office equipment. Subject to
standing, walking, sitting, repetitive motion, reaching, climbing stairs, bending, stooping, kneeling, crouching, crawling,
pushing, pulling, balancing, client/customer contact, squatting to perform the essential functions.

This job description is intended to be generic in nature. It is not necessarily an exhaustive list of all duties
and responsibilities. The essential duties, functions and responsibilities and overtime eligibility may vary
ed on the specific tasks assigned to the position.

Page 3 of 3 3 ‘7._5

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: County I District Attorney Assistant Division Director

JOB CODE: 30174 FLSA STATUS: Exempt
PAY GRADE: 30 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

JOB SUMMARY:

Assists the Division Director in the operation of one of the divisions of the County or District Attorney’s Office. Manages
the day-to-day activities involving personnel, case handling and resources. Oversees and participates in the review,
filing, presentation and disposition of cases. Directly supervises attorneys that practice criminal law for Travis County.
Implements and facilitates professional development and training of criminal attorneys.

DISTINGUISHING CHARACTERISTICS:

This is first in a series of two County/District Attorney-related job classification within the Senior Management/Middle
Management job family. Reports directly to and assists the division director in either the County or District Attorney’s
Office. Incumbents have management and administrative responsibilities in addition to functioning as high level
attorneys.

DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES:

• Manages the division’s professional and support personnel.

• Conducts training, mentoring and education presentations for professional and support staff.

• Performs advanced legal work. Conducts investigations to determine best court or non-court action. Performs
complex legal research. Presents cases to the Grand Jury.

• Confers with judges and defense attorneys in all matters concerning prosecution of cases.

• Performs legal research. Searches resources and studies legal records and documents to obtain information
applicable to case or issue under consideration.

• Drafts briefs, motions, orders, subpoenas and other legal documents as well as correspondence and reports.

• Responds to discovery requests, oversees the creation and issuance of legal documents, including subpoenas,
motions, orders, writs, warrants and other related documents.

• Prepares cases for trial. Collects, organizes and prepares evidence, information and other legal materials and
represents the state at all docket calls.

• Performs other job-related duties as assigned.

MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS:

Education and Experience:
J.D./LL..B. from an accredited law school AND ten (10) years licensed attorney work experience, including two (2) years
of mid- to senior level supervisory management experience.

Licenses, Registrations, Certifications, or Special Requirements:
Licensed to practice law in the State of Texas.

KnowledQe, Skills, and Abilities:
Knowledge of:
• Management and supervisory principles, practices and techniques.
• Jurisprudence, criminal and civil law and procedures, including constitutional and statutory law.
• Federal, State, Local and County laws, rules, regulations and guidelines.
• Methods and practices of pleading cases and of effective techniques for presentation of cases in court or to

effectively present facts and precedents orally and in writing in law related matters.
• Policies, practices, procedures and legal terminology related to court system.
• Investigative techniques.
• Accounting, purchasing and budgetary theory, principles and practices.
• Computer equipment to include word processing, spreadsheets, databases and a variety of software packages.
• Business letter writing, grammar and punctuation, and report preparation.

.... /
Pagelof2

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: County I District Attorney Assistant Division Director

JOB CODE: 30174 FLSA STATUS: Exempt
PAY GRADE: 30 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS: (Cont.)

Skill in:
• Supervising others, allocating resources and evaluating programs.
• Analyzing and appraising facts, policies, procedures and legal precedents in area of specialty.
• Problem-solving and decision-making.
• Entering and reconciling financial data and reporting and monitoring ledger balances.
• Both verbal and written communication, including presentations.

Ability to:
• Motivate, train, supervise and develop attorneys and support staff.
• Analyze and appraise facts, procedures and legal precedents affecting complex court cases in area of specialty.
• Conduct legal research and analysis, both manually and electronically.
• Present facts, precedents and arguments verbally and in writing and apply negotiation skills.
• Communicate effectively, both verbally and in writing.
• Work independently and efficiently.
• Manage time well, perform multiple tasks and organize diverse activities.
• Work well under pressure and exercise tact in trying situations.
• Establish and maintain effective working relationships with departmental clientele, representatives of outside

agencies, other County employees and officials, and the general public.

WORK ENVIRONMENT AND PHYSICAL DEMANDS:

Physical requirements include the ability to lift/carry up to 25 pounds occasionally, visual acuity, speech and hearing, hand
and eye coordination and manual dexterity necessary to operate a computer and office equipment. Subject to standing,
walking, sitting, repetitive motion, reaching, climbing stairs, bending, stooping, kneeling, crouching, crawling, pushing,
pulling, balancing, client/customer contact, squatting to perform the essential functions.

This job description is intended to be generic in nature. It is not necessarily an exhaustive list of all duties
and responsibilities. The essential duties, functions and responsibilities and overtime eligibility may vary
based on the specific tasks assigned to the position.

Page2of2 /7 7

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: County I District Attorney Division Director

JOB CODE: 31175 FLSA STATUS: Exempt
PAY GRADE: 31 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

JOB SUMMARY:

Directs the operation of one of the divisions of the County or District Attorney’s Office. Manages all daily activities
involving personnel, case handling and resources. Develops and implements policies and procedures for the operation
of the division and plans for future development. Oversees and participates in preparation, presentation and disposition
of cases and appellate briefs, contract preparation and review, development and review of County policies and
procedures, and planning and implementation of community justice projects and other community projects related to the
legal representation of the County.

DISTINGUISHING CHARACTERISTICS:

This is second in a series of two County/District Attorney-related job classifications within the Senior Management/Middle
Management job family. This classification functions as a division director in either the County or District Attorney’s
Office. Incumbents have management and administrative responsibilities in addition to functioning as high level
attorneys.

DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES:

• Manages and directs the divisions’ professional and support personnel, equipment, facilities and finances.
Evaluates personnel and services of the division. Allocates division resources and plans for the future services and
budgetary needs of the division.

• Directs and advises division legal staff on issues of law and the disposition of cases.

• Performs advanced legal work. Conducts investigations to determine best court or non-court action. Performs
complex legal research. Presents cases to the Grand Jury and prepares indictments. Serves as lead counsel in
trials of major cases of particular difficulty or importance.

• Prepares appellate briefs and argues before appellate courts. Makes punishment recommendations based upon
contact with victims and office policy.

• Takes depositions, responds to discovery requests, oversees the creation and issuance of legal documents
including subpoenas, motions, orders, writs, warrants, contracts, official policies and other related documents.
Represents the state at docket calls.

• Acts as primary liaison and representative for the department with law enforcement agencies, regulatory agencies,
criminal justice agencies, Texas Legislature, other elected officials within the County, and the community at large.
Provides legal advice to law enforcement and regulatory agencies and other Elected Officials within the County.

• Participates in program development and implementation of the department’s mission and goals, including
community justice initiatives.

• Conducts training, mentoring, and educational presentations regarding legal and community justice issues of
concern to the County for staff, law enforcement, other government employees, and civic organizations.

• Formulates and supervises the implementation of procedures and policy for the daily operation of the division.

• Confers with top management and judges in all matters concerning prosecution of cases, advising of clients, and
matters that will impact the policies and procedures of the division.

• Performs other job-related duties as assigned.

MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS:

Education and ExDerience:
J.D.ILL.B. from an accredited law school AND ten (10) years licensed attorney work experience, including three (3) years
of mid- to senior level supervisory management experience;

Page 1 of 2 ,5 75

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: County I District Attorney Division Director

JOB CODE: 31175 FLSA STATUS: Exempt
PAY GRADE: 31 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS: (Cont.)

Education and Experience: (Cont.)

OR,

J.D./LL.B. from an accredited law school AND ten (10) years licensed attorney work experience, including three (3) years
of supervisory or management experience, and including five (5) years experience in prosecution of felony offenses.

Licenses, Registrations, Certifications, or Special Requirements:
Licensed to practice law in the State of Texas.

Knowledge, Skills, and Abilities:
Knowledge of:
• Management and supervisory principles, practices and techniques.
• Jurisprudence, criminal and civil law and procedures, including constitutional and statutory law.
• Federal, State, Local and County applicable laws, rules, regulations and guidelines pertaining to area of assignment.
• Methods and practices of pleading cases and of effective techniques for presentation of cases in court or to

effectively present facts and precedents orally and in writing in law related matters.
• Policies, practices, procedures and legal terminology related to court system.
• Accounting, purchasing and budgetary theory, principles and practices.
• Investigative techniques.
• Computer equipment to include word processing, spreadsheets, databases and a variety of software packages.
• Business English, spelling and arithmetic, letter writing, grammar and punctuation, and report preparation.

Skill in:
• Supervising others, allocating resources and evaluating programs.
• Problem-solving and decision-making.
• Analyzing and appraising facts, policies, procedures and legal precedents in area of specialty.
• Both verbal and written communication, including presentations.

Ability to:
• Motivate, train, supervise and develop attorneys and support staff.
• Analyze and appraise facts, procedures, and legal precedents affecting complex court cases in area of specialty.
• Conduct legal research and analysis, both manually and electronically.
• Present facts, precedents and arguments orally and in writing and apply negotiation skills.
• Communicate effectively, both orally and in writing.
• Work independently and efficiently.
• Manage time well, perform multiple tasks and organize diverse activities.
• Work well under pressure and exercise tact in trying situations.
• Establish and maintain effective working relationships with departmental clientele, representatives of outside

agencies, other County employees and officials, and the general public.

WORK ENVIRONMENT AND PHYSICAL DEMANDS:

Physical requirements include the ability to lift/carry up to 25 pounds occasionally, visual acuity, speech and hearing, hand
and eye coordination and manual dexterity necessary to operate a computer and office equipment. Subject to standing,
walking, sitting, repetitive motion, reaching, climbing stairs, bending, stooping, kneeling, crouching, crawling, pushing,
pulling, balancing, client/customer contact, squatting to perform the essential functions.

This job description is intended to be generic in nature. It is not necessarily an exhaustive list of all duties
and responsibilities. The essential duties, functions and responsibilities and overtime eligibility may vary
based on the specific tasks assigned to the position.

Page2of2 3 /9

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Juvenile Public Defender

JOB CODE: 31390 FLSA STATUS: Exempt
PAY GRADE: 31 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

JOB SUMMARY:

Directs the operations and provides administrative oversight for the staff within the Juvenile Public Defender’s Office.
Provides legal representation for, or ensures juvenile clients are represented in criminal and other proceedings and
ensures their constitutional rights are upheld. Represents clients in the most complex litigation.

DISTINGUISHING CHARACTERISTICS:

This is a job classification within the Senior Management/Middle Management job family. This classification functions as
the department head within the office responsible for providing legal representation for juveniles in criminal and other
proceedings.

DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES:

• Directs and provides administrative oversight for the attorneys and other staff within the department, including hiring,
performance evaluation, disciplinary actions and dismissals.

• Plans, develops, implements and reviews departmental policies and procedures and ensures activities are consistent
with goals and objectives.

• Prepares and analyzes department budget and statistical reports.

• Represents indigent juveniles in court hearings for the most complex litigation, such as certification hearings,
determinate sentence hearings and special crimes. Directs and advises department legal staff on issues of law and
the disposition of cases.

• Researches and answers legal issues related to juvenile law for various County departments, district judges, external
attorneys and outside agencies.

• Prepares and argues legal briefs for appellate cases.

• Represents the department at community and business gatherings and makes presentations and conducts
seminars for groups and organizations. Functions as resource person for advice and assistance to attorneys and
law enforcement agencies.

• Prepares and argues legal briefs for appellate cases before Courts of Appeals and the Supreme Court.

• Meets with judges regarding court administration of the juvenile court docket.

• Performs other job-related duties as assigned.

MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS:

Education and Experience:
J.D./LL.B. from an accredited law school AND eight (8) years experience in public or juvenile defense case work,
including four (4) years of mid- to senior level supervisory or management experience.

Licenses, Registrations, Certifications, or Special Requirements:
Licensed to practice law in the State of Texas.

Knowledge. Skills, and Abilities:
Knowledge of:
• Supervisory principles, practices and techniques.
• Legal principles and practices including civil, criminal, juvenile, constitutional and administrative law procedure.
• Philosophy and practices of public defense.
• Principles, methods, materials and practices of legal research.
• Federal, State, Local and County applicable laws, rules, regulations and guidelines.
• Methods, practices and applications of pleading civil and criminal cases and of effective techniques in the presentation

of cases in court.

Page 1 of 2

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Juvenile Public Defender

JOB CODE: 31390 FLSA STATUS: Exempt
PAY GRADE: 31 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS: (Cont.)

Knowledge of: (Cont.)
• Trial procedures and rules of evidence.
• Investigative techniques.
• Texas Family Law and Penal Codes.
• Policies, practices, procedures and legal terminology related to court system.
• Computer equipment to include word processing, spreadsheets, databases and a variety of software packages.
• Business letter writing, grammar and punctuation, and report preparation.

Skill in:
• Supervising others, allocating resources and evaluating programs.
• Problem-solving and decision-making.
• Analyzing and appraising facts, policies, procedures and legal precedents in area of specialty.
• Both verbal and written communication, including presentations.

Ability to:
• Motivate, train, supervise and develop attorneys and support staff.
• Analyze and appraise facts, procedures and legal precedents affecting complex court cases in area of specialty.
• Supervise investigations and defend criminal complaints and civil actions.
• Conduct legal research and analysis, both manually and electronically.
• Present facts, precedents and arguments verbally and in writing and apply negotiation skills.
• Communicate effectively, both verbally and in writing.
• Work independently and efficiently.
• Manage time well, perform multiple tasks and organize diverse activities.
• Work well under pressure and exercise tact in trying situations.
• Establish and maintain effective working relationships with departmental clientele, representatives of outside

agencies, other County employees and officials, and the general public.

WORK ENVIRONMENT AND PHYSICAL DEMANDS:

Physical requirements include the ability to lift/carry up to 25 pounds occasionally, visual acuity, speech and hearing, hand
and eye coordination and manual dexterity necessary to operate a computer and office equipment. Subject to standing,
walking, sitting, repetitive motion, reaching, climbing stairs, bending, stooping, kneeling, crouching, crawling, pushing,
pulling, balancing, client/customer contact, squatting to perform the essential functions.

This job description is intended to be generic in nature. It is not necessarily an exhaustive list of all duties
and responsibilities. The essential duties, functions and responsibilities and overtime eligibility may vary
based on the specific tasks assigned to the position.

Page2of2

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Director Mental Health Public Defender

JOB CODE: 29395 FLSA STATUS: Exempt
PAY GRADE: 29 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

JOB SUMMARY:

Directs the operations of the Mental Health Public Defender’s Office. Manages all daily activities involving personnel,
case handling and resources. Develops and implements policies and procedures for the operation of the office and
plans for future development. Provides legal representation for, or ensures mental health clients are represented in in
criminal proceedings and ensures their constitutional rights are upheld. Serves as lead counsel. Oversees and
participates in preparation, presentation and disposition of cases.

DISTINGUISHING CHARACTERISTICS:

This is a job classification within the Senior Management/Middle Management job family. Incumbents in this
classification functions as director within the office and incumbents have management and administrative responsibilities
in addition to functioning as high level attorneys. Responsible for providing legal representation for adults in criminal and
other proceedings.

DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES:

• Directs, plans, manages and supervises professional and support personnel. Allocats resources for services,
equipment, facilities and finances. Plans for future services and budgetary needs of the office. Provides
administrative oversight for the attorneys and other staff within the department, including hiring, performance
evaluation, disciplinary actions and dismissals.

• Plans and participates in development and implementation of policies, procedures and programs. Ensures activities
are consistent with goals and objectives. Directs efforts to develop and improve day-to-day operations, work
processes and customer service.

• Supervises planning, development, preparation and monitoring of annual budget and statistical reports.

• Represents indigent adults in misdemeanor hearings for the most complex litigation. Directs and advises
department legal staff on issues of law and the disposition of cases. Resolves problem case negotiations.

• Researches and answers legal issues related to mental health law for various County departments, district judges,
external attorneys and outside agencies.

• Performs advanced legal work, including research, case preparation and Court appearances, as lead counsel on
selected cases, including cases of particular difficulty or sensitivity. Prepares and argues legal briefs for
misdemeanor mental cases. Serves as lead counsel.

• Represents the department at community and business gatherings and makes presentations and conducts
seminars and training for groups and organizations. Functions as resource person for advice and assistance to
attorneys and law enforcement agencies.

• Meets with judges regarding Court administration of the indigent mental health misdemeanor case loads.

• Performs other job-related duties as assigned.

MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS:

Education and Experience:
J.D./LL.B. from an accredited law school AND five (5) to eight (8) years experience in public or juvenile defense case
work, including two (2) years of mid- to senior level supervisory or management experience involved in the management
process and policy making functions of a law office.

Licenses, Registrations, Certifications, or Special Requirements:
Licensed to practice law in the State of Texas.

2Page 1 of 2

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Director Mental Health Public Defender

JOB CODE: 29395 FLSA STATUS: Exempt
PAY GRADE: 29 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS: (Cont.)

Knowledge, Skills, and Abilities:
Knowledge of:
• Management and supervisory principles, practices and techniques.
• Federal, State, Local and County applicable laws, rules, regulations and guidelines.
• Texas Family Law and Penal Codes and laws relating to mental health defense.
• Jurisprudence, criminal and civil law and procedures, including constitutional and statutory law.
• Methods and practices of pleading civil and criminal cases and of effective techniques for presentation of cases in

Court or to effectively present facts and precedents verbally and in writing in law related matters.
• Legal principles and practices including civil, criminal, constitutional and administrative law procedure.
• Philosophy and practices of public defense.
• Principles, methods, materials and practices of legal research.
• Trial procedures and rules of evidence.
• Investigative techniques.
• Accounting, purchasing and budgetary theory, principles and practices.
• Policies, practices, procedures and legal terminology related to Court system.
• Computer equipment to include word processing, spreadsheets, databases and a variety of software packages.
• Business letter writing, grammar and punctuation, and report preparation.

Skill in:
• Supervising others, allocating resources and evaluating programs.
• Problem-solving and decision-making.
• Analyzing and appraising facts, policies, procedures and legal precedents in area of specialty.
• Both verbal and written communication, including presentations.

Ability to:
• Motivate, train, supervise and develop attorneys and support staff.
• Analyze and appraise facts, procedures and legal precedents affecting complex Court cases in area of specialty.
• Supervise investigations and defend criminal complaints and civil actions.
• Conduct legal research and analysis, both manually and electronically.
• Present facts, precedents and arguments verbally and in writing and apply negotiation skills.
• Communicate effectively, both verbally and in writing.
• Work independently and efficiently.
• Manage time well, perform multiple tasks and organize diverse activities.
• Work well under pressure and exercise tact in trying situations.
• Establish and maintain effective working relationships with departmental clientele, representatives of outside

agencies, other County employees and officials, and the general public.

WORK ENVIRONMENT AND PHYSICAL DEMANDS:

Physical requirements include the ability to lift/carry up to 25 pounds occasionally, visual acuity, speech and hearing, hand
and eye coordination and manual dexterity necessary to operate a computer and office equipment. Subject to standing,
walking, sitting, repetitive motion, reaching, climbing stairs, bending, stooping, kneeling, crouching, crawling, pushing,
pulling, balancing, client/customer contact, squatting to perform the essential functions.

This job description is intended to be generic in nature. It is not necessarily an exhaustive list of all duties
and responsibilities. The essential duties, functions and responsibilities and overtime eligibility may vary
based on the specific tasks assigned to the position.

Page 2 of 2 0

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Attorney Senior Deputy

JOB CODE: 31230 FLSA STATUS: Exempt
PAY GRADE: 31 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

JOB SUMMARY:

Directs the day-to-day operations of the divisions and functions within the County or District Attorney’s Office. Provides
executive leadership, management and coordination. Plans and develops policies, procedures and programs. Oversees
interdepartmental, intergovernmental, and public/private coordination concerning operations and activities. Works
closely with elected officials and policy-making bodies and provides management support, legal counsel and advice to
department attorneys. Serves as high-level, special legal advisor to department head and attorneys. Prosecutes assigned
cases requiring special expertise. Represents the State in appeal cases requiring special appellate expertise.

DISTINGUISHING CHARACTERISTICS:

This is first in a series of two attorney-related job classifications within the Senior Management/Middle Management job
family. Reports directly to the department head and functions as the second highest level of management within the
department. Functions as the high-level legal advisor and prosecutor on cases requiring specialized expertise.

DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES:

• Directs daily operations of divisions and functions and provides executive leadership, management and coordination.
Oversees management and staff, including hiring, performance evaluation, disciplinary actions and dismissals, and
ensures activities are consistent with goals and objectives. Seeks and creates opportunities for improved
performance, learning and development of staff. Identifies and addresses problems or conflicts.

• Performs advanced legal work, including research, case preparation and court appearances, as lead counsel on
selected cases, including cases of particular difficulty or sensitivity. Confers with legal and investigative staff and
provides guidance and direction. Resolves problem case negotiations.

• Plans and develops policies, procedures and programs and supervises planning, development and preparation of
annual budget.

• Receives and reviews reports, monitors programs, and interprets findings. Evaluates current programs, procedures
and practices on an on-going basis. Keeps management informed on progress of significant cases, sensitive
investigations and matters of note.

• Meets with entities to establish procedures to facilitate coordination in continuing efforts to improve criminal and civil
justice system.

• Serves as liaison with community and judiciary on law enforcement problems and functions as resource person for
advice and assistance to prosecutors and law enforcement agencies. Represents the department at community and
business gatherings and makes presentations to groups and organizations.

• Performs other job-related duties as assigned.

MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS:

Education and Experience:
J.D./ LL.B. from an accredited law school AND ten (10) years licensed attorney work experience in diverse civil/criminal
matters, including five (5) years of mid- to senior level supervisory or management experience;

OR,

J.D./LL.B. from an accredited law school AND ten (10) years licensed attorney work experience in diverse civil/criminal
matters, including five (5) years of experience in the prosecution of felony offenses, including unusual and especially
complex cases.

Licenses, Registrations, Certifications, or Special Requirements:
Licensed to practice law in the State of Texas.

Page 1 of 2

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Attorney Senior Deputy

JOB CODE: 31230 FLSA STATUS: Exempt
PAY GRADE: 31 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS: (Cont.)

Knowledge, Skills, and Abilities:
Knowledge of:
• Management and supervisory principles, practices and techniques.
• Jurisprudence, criminal and civil law and procedures, including constitutional and statutory law.
• Federal, State, Local and County applicable laws, rules, regulations and guidelines.
• Methods and practices of pleading cases and of effective techniques for presentation of cases in court or to

effectively present facts and precedents verbally and in writing in law related matters.
• Policies, practices, procedures and legal terminology related to court system.
• Accounting, purchasing and budgetary theory, principles and practices.
• Investigative techniques.
• Computer equipment to include word processing, spreadsheets, databases and a variety of software packages.
• Business letter writing, grammar and punctuation, and report preparation.

Skill in:
• Supervising others, allocating resources and evaluating programs.
• Problem-solving and decision-making.
• Analyzing and appraising facts, policies, procedures and legal precedents in area of specialty.
• Trial and appeal of felony offenses.
• Drafting and executing search and arrest warrants.
• Both verbal and written communication, including presentations.

Ability to:
• Motivate, train, supervise and develop attorneys and support staff.
• Analyze and appraise facts, procedures and legal precedents affecting complex court cases in area of specialty.
• Conduct legal research and analysis, both manually and electronically.
• Present facts, precedents and arguments verbally and in writing and apply negotiation skills.
• Communicate effectively, both verbally and in writing.
• Work independently and efficiently.
• Manage time well, perform multiple tasks and organize diverse activities.
• Work well under pressure and exercise tact in trying situations.
• Establish and maintain effective working relationships with departmental clientele, representatives of outside

agencies, other County employees and officials, and the general public.

WORK ENVIRONMENT AND PHYSICAL DEMANDS:

Physical requirements include the ability to lift/carry up to 25 pounds occasionally, visual acuity, speech and hearing, hand
and eye coordination and manual dexterity necessary to operate a computer and office equipment. Subject to standing,
walking, sitting, repetitive motion, reaching, climbing stairs, bending, stooping, kneeling, crouching, crawling, pushing,
pulling, balancing, client/customer contact, squatting to perform the essential functions.

This job description is intended to be generic in nature. It is not necessarily an exhaustive list of all duties
and responsibilities. The essential duties, functions and responsibilities and overtime eligibility may vary
based on the specific tasks assigned to the position.

Page 2 of 2

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Attorney Senior Chief Deputy

JOB CODE: 98232 FLSA STATUS: Exempt
PAY GRADE: 98 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

JOB SUMMARY:

Directs the day-to-day operations of the divisions and functions within a comprehensive and complex legal office. Provides
executive leadership, management and coordination. Plans and develops policies, procedures and programs. Oversees
interdepartmental, intergovernmental and public/private coordination concerning operations and activities. Works closely
with elected officials and policy-making bodies and provides management support, legal counsel and advice to
department attorneys. Directs activities through subordinate division directors.

DISTINGUISHING CHARACTERISTICS:

This is second in a series of two attorney-related job classifications within the Senior Management/Middle Management
job family. Reports directly to the Elected Official and functions as the second highest level of management within the
department. Has broad scope of operational and staff responsibility and directs through subordinate division directors.

DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES:

• Directs daily operations of divisions and provides executive leadership, management and coordination. Oversees
management and staff, including hiring, performance evaluation, disciplinary actions and dismissals, and monitors
consistency of activities with goals and objectives. Seeks and creates opportunities for improved performance,
learning and development of staff. Identifies and addresses problems or conflicts.

• Performs advanced legal work, including research, case preparation and Court appearances, as lead counsel on
selected cases, including cases of particular difficulty or sensitivity. Confers with legal and investigative staff and
provides guidance and direction. Resolves problem case negotiations.

• Plans and develops policies, procedures and programs. Supervises planning, development and preparation of
annual budget.

• Receives and reviews reports, monitors programs and interprets findings. Evaluates current programs, procedures
and practices on an on-going basis. Keeps elected official informed on progress of significant cases, sensitive
investigations and matters of note.

• Meets with entities to establish procedures to facilitate coordination in continuing efforts to improve the criminal and
civil justice system.

• Serves as liaison with community and judiciary on law enforcement problems and functions as resource person for
advice and assistance to prosecutors and law enforcement agencies. Represents the department at community
and business gatherings and makes presentations to groups and organizations.

• Performs other job-related duties as assigned.

MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS:

Education and Experience:
J.D./LL.B. from an accredited law school AND ten (10) years licensed attorney work experience in diverse civil/criminal
matters, including five (5) years of mid- to senior level supervisory or management experience.

Licenses, Registrations, Certifications, or Special Requirements:
Licensed to practice law in the State of Texas.

Knowledge, Skills, and Abilities:
Knowledge of:
• Management and supervisory principles, practices and techniques.
• Jurisprudence, criminal and civil law and procedures, including constitutional and statutory law.
• Federal, State, Local and County applicable laws, rules, regulations and guidelines.
• Methods and practices of pleading cases and of effective techniques for presentation of cases in Court or of

effectively presenting facts and precedents verbally and in writing in law related matters.

Page 1 of 2

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Attorney Senior Chief Deputy

JOB CODE: 98232 FLSA STATUS: Exempt
PAY GRADE: 98 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS: (Cont.)

Knowledge of: (Cont.)
• Policies, practices, procedures and terminology of assigned function.
• Accounting, purchasing and budgetary theory, principles and practices.
• Investigative techniques.
• Computer equipment to include word processing, spreadsheets, databases and a variety of software packages.
• Business letter writing, grammar and punctuation, and report preparation.

Skill in:
• Supervising others, allocating resources and evaluating programs.
• Problem-solving and decision-making.
• Analyzing and appraising facts, policies, procedures and legal precedents in area of specialty.
• Trial and appeal of felony offenses.
• Drafting and executing search and arrest warrants.
• Both verbal and written communication, including presentations.

Ability to:
• Motivate, train, supervise and develop attorneys and support staff.
• Analyze and appraise facts, procedures, and legal precedents affecting complex Court cases in area of specialty.
• Conduct legal research and analysis, both manually and electronically.
• Present facts, precedents and arguments verbally and in writing and apply negotiation skills.
• Work independently and efficiently.
• Manage time well, perform multiple tasks and organize diverse activities.
• Work well under pressure and exercise tact in trying situations.
• Establish and maintain effective working relationships with departmental clientele, representatives of outside

agencies, other County employees and officials, and the general public.

WORK ENVIRONMENT AND PHYSICAL DEMANDS:

Physical requirements include the ability to lift/carry up to 10-25 pounds occasionally, visual acuity, speech and hearing,
hand and eye coordination and manual dexterity necessary to operate a computer and office equipment. Subject to
standing, walking, sitting, repetitive motion, reaching, climbing stairs, bending, stooping, kneeling, crouching, crawling,
pushing, puHing, balancing, client/customer contact, squatting to perform the essential functions.

This job description is intended to be generic in nature. It is not necessarily an exhaustive list of all duties
and responsibilities. The essential duties, functions and responsibilities and overtime eligibility may vary
based on the specific tasks assigned to the position.

Page 2 of 2 5__’5 7

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Records Mgmt and Communications Resources Dir

JOB CODE: 26225 FLSA STATUS: Exempt
PAY GRADE: 26 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

JOB SUMMARY:

Manages department and Public Access Programs, including mail and print shop operations. Manages day-to-day
operations of the department through subordinate mangers and supervisors. Serves as central point of contact related
to Public Information and the maintenance of policies and procedures.

DISTINGUISHING CHARACTERISTICS:

This is a job classification within the Senior Management/Middle Management job family. Incumbent’s in this
classification directs the planning, development, implementation and coordination of divisions that provide direct support
to County departments and the public. Provides leadership and direction to subordinate division managers to
accomplish departmental goals and division objectives and to improve effectiveness and efficiency of services.

DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES:

• Develops and plans strategic goals, objectives, budget and performance standards for department. Integrates
services of media support, law libraries, print shop, records retention and storage into a customer service oriented
department.

• Develops systems and strategies for centralized public information systems to provide ready access to citizens.
Evaluates most cost effective service delivery system to meet customer’s needs, including evaluation of services.

• Develops and implements an Internet system with linkage to State and City offices.

• Serves as central point of contact on Public Information including the maintenance of the Travis County Polices and
Procedures Manual. Develops strategies and systems to evaluate customer service satisfaction to determine areas
of needed improvements. Oversees information booth operation and evaluates systems to improve the level of
service.

• Oversees management and staff, including hiring, training, performance evaluation, disciplinary actions and
dismissals, and ensures activities are consistent with goals and objectives. Seeks and creates opportunities for
improved performance, learning and development of staff. Identifies and addresses problems and/or resolves
conflicts.

• Develops, plans and evaluates policies, procedures and programs. Prepares and reviews reports, monitors
programs and interprets findings. Develops and implements comprehensive short- and long-term records
consultation, retention and storage. Works with staff in developing solutions and building consensus on issues.

• Serves as State mandated Records Management Officer for non-elected officials and departments. Serves as
County’s designated Records Management Officer as required in Local Government Code. Promotes awareness
and compliance with state mandated administrative rules for records management practices to include reproduction,
maintenance, conversion, access and disposition/destruction. Preserves and protects the County’s historical
records.

• Represents the department and serves as liaison for committees, business and community meetings, conferences,
task forces, advisory groups and the general public. Coordinates and works closely with department heads, multiple
outside suppliers, other County staff and officials, and outside agencies. Serves as spokesperson to the media and
outside agencies.

• Provides support and serves as professional technical advisor. Provides formal and informal training programs on
records management and public access. Makes presentations to Commissioners Court, citizen groups and other
policy makers on assigned programs.

• Performs other duties as required.

Page 1 of 3

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Records Mgmt and Communications Resources Dir

JOB CODE: 26225 FLSA STATUS: Exempt
PAY GRADE: 26 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS:

Education and Experience:
Master’s degree in Public Administration, Business Administration, Government or a directly related field AND seven (7)
years of management experience in records management, including four (4) years of mid- to senior level supervisory or
management experience;

OR,

Any combination of education and experience that has been achieved and is equivalent to the stated education and
experience and required knowledge, skills, and abilities sufficient to successfully perform the duties and responsibilities
of this job.

Licenses, Registrations, Certifications, or Special Requirements:
None required.

Preferred:
Certified Records Manager (CRM).

Knowledge, Skills, and Abilities:
Knowledge of:
• Records management practices, techniques and regulations.
• Supervisory principles, practices and techniques.
• Records retention schedules.
• Open Records Act.
• Federal, State, Local and County applicable laws, rules, regulations and guidelines.
• Budget preparation and office management.
• Issues and trends in records management.
• Policies, practices, procedures and terminology of assigned function.
• Filing and reporting requirements.
• Accounting, purchasing and budgetary theory, principles and practices.
• Computer equipment to include word processing, spreadsheets, databases and a variety of software packages.
• Business letter writing, grammar and punctuation, and report preparation.

Skill in:
• Supervising others, including team building.
• Problem-solving and decision-making.
• Both verbal and written communication, including presentations.

Ability to:
• Direct, plan and implement department operations and activities.
• Make appropriate and effective public presentations.
• Train and supervise support staff.
• Write reports, business correspondence and procedure manuals.
• Work independently.
• Exercise sound judgment and make decisions.
• Plan, assign, supervise, train and evaluate the work of professional, technical and administrative support staff.
• Read, analyze and interpret general business periodicals, professional journals, technical procedures and

governmental regulations.
• Monitor a budget.
• Implement and maintain filing and accounting systems.
• Reason and make judgments and decisions.
• Interpret a variety of instructions furnished in written, verbal, diagram or schedule form.

Page 2 of 3 S

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Records Mgmt and Communications Resources Dir

JOB CODE: 26225 FLSA STATUS: Exempt
PAY GRADE: 26 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS: (Cant.)

Ability to: (Cont.)
• Manage time well, perform multiple tasks and organize diverse activities.
• Work with staff in a team environment.
• Perform in a stressful environment while maintaining a professional manner.
• Establish and maintain effective working relationships with County employees and officials, representatives of outside

agencies, and the general public.

WORK ENVIRONMENT AND PHYSICAL DEMANDS:

Physical requirements include the ability to lift/carry up to 25 pounds occasionally, visual acuity, speech and hearing, hand
and eye coordination and manual dexterity necessary to operate a computer and office equipment. Subject to standing,
walking, sitting, repetitive motion, reaching, climbing stairs, bending, stooping, kneeling, crouching, crawling, pushing,
pulling, balancing, client/customer contact, squatting, and occasional indoor/outdoor activities, carrying and lifting of
moderately heavy equipment, boxes to perform the essential functions.

This job description is intended to be generic in nature. It is not necessarily an exhaustive list of all duii
and responsibilities. The essential duties, functions and responsibilities and overtime eligibility may vary
based on the specific tasks assigned to the position.

Page3of3

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Risk & Benefits Manager Senior

JOB CODE: 28519 FLSA STATUS: Exempt
PAY GRADE: 28 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

JOB SUMMARY:

Manages the Enterprise Risk Management Program. Oversees risk assessment, implementing loss prevention and risk
controls to eliminate or reduce the County exposure. Manages and/or coordinates activities of the Risk Management
Section, to include worker’s compensation, liability, property and casualty insurance, group insurance benefits, Owner
Controlled Insurance Program, Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA), Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act
(HIPAA) privacy, Health Care Appeals Panel Coordinator, as well as Coordinator for U.S. Department of Transportation
(DOT) and Federal Aviation Administration (FAA) Drug and Alcohol Testing for certain employees. Supervises work
activities of subordinate professional, para-professional and clerical staff. Supervises staff and general activity of the
Travis County Wellness and Health Clinic.

DISTINGUISHING CHARACTERISTICS:

This is a job classification within the Senior Management/Middle Management job family. Top Risk & Benefits Manager
position at the corporate level. This position may require a flexible work schedule in order to meet the needs of the
organization.

DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES:

• Manages the multi-million dollar self-insured risk fund and approves expenditures. Coordinates and monitors
assigned staff, consultants and third party administrators (TPA’s).

• Implements proactive workers’ compensation claims administration through procedures and practices.

• Manages self-insurance claims for auto, general liability, professional liability and workers compensation.

• Negotiates claim settlements with claimants, attorneys and insurance carriers directly, through staff or TPA.

• Presents recommendations to Commissioners Court for action on claims disposition.

• Plans, develops and implements employee health, safety and loss control programs.

• Identifies facilities, conditions and situations of potential exposure to loss. Prepares recommendations and provides
assistance in eliminating and/or minimizing losses or remediation of unsafe conditions.

• Analyzes incurred loss information. Develops or revises loss retention or transfer of exposures, and recommends
optional risk financing techniques.

• Prepares monthly and quarterly incurred loss reports.

• Develops Requests for Proposals (REP’s) for insurance coverage and related consulting services. Negotiates new
and renewal insurance coverage and administers all contracts relating to risk fund expenditures.

• Prepares recommendations relative to insurance requirements and bond provisions for parties contracting with the
County.

• Coordinates insurance requirements and certification of insurance with Purchasing and project managers.

• Develops and organizes administration of the multi-million dollar group insurance benefits program and serves as
contract administrator.

• Acts as liaison with Texas Association of Counties (TAC) for insurance matters.

• Manages the Owner Controlled Insurance Program (OCIP) for construction projects.

• Prepares and maintains records of insurance coverage purchased to insure proper rates and distribution of costs.
Develops, implements and maintains a variety of information management and reporting systems.

Pagelof3

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Risk & Benefits Manager Senior

JOB CODE: 28519 FLSA STATUS: Exempt
PAY GRADE: 28 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES: (Cont.)

• Acts as County liaison with insurance agents/brokers, third-party administrators, consultants and department heads
and managers regarding risk management. Develops guidelines and implements procedures for establishment of the
Travis County Safety Program.

• Manages staff of the Wellness and Health Clinic.

• Manages activities of the County’s Americans with Disability Act (ADA) efforts to assure compliance with federal
regulations.

• Serves as Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act (HIPAA) Privacy Officer.

• Serves as Coordinator of Department of Transportation (DOT) and Federal Aviation Administration (FAA) Drug and
Alcohol Testing program for certain Travis County employees.

• Provides assistance to the County Attorney’s Office and outside legal counsel and participates in the defense and
settlement of law suits against the County.

• Serves as representative at workers’ compensation hearing. Attends mediation on litigated cases.

• Reads, reviews and analyzes changes in state and federal legislation as they apply to the areas of risk management,
assures that all insurance and self-insurance programs are in applicable regulations.

• Directs annual actuarial study and confirms its accuracy and forecasting for budgetary purposes.

• Performs other job-related duties as assigned.

MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS:

Education and Experience:
Bachelor’s degree in Business Administration, Public Administration, Environmental Sciences, Chemistry or a directly
related field AND seven (7) years of increasingly responsible experience in the field of Risk Management, including
workers’ compensation, and including three (3) years of mid- to senior level supervisory management experience;

OR,

Any combination of education and experience that has been achieved and is equivalent to the stated education and
experience and required knowledge, skills, and abilities sufficient to successfully perform the duties and responsibilities
of this job.

Licenses, Registrations, Certifications, or Special Requirements:
Valid Texas Driver’s License.

Preferred:
Certified Government Benefits Administrator (CGBA).
Certified Employee Benefits Specialist (CEBS).
Associates in Risk Management — Public Entities.

Knowledge, Skills, and Abilities:
Knowledge of:
• Policies, practices, procedures and terminology of assigned function.
• Federal, State, Local and County applicable laws, rules, regulations and guidelines.
• American’s with Disability Act (ADA), Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act (HIPAA), Department of

Transportation (DOT) and Federal Aviation Administration (FAA) Drug and Alcohol Testing requirements, and the
Texas Workers Compensation Program.

• Management and supervisory principles, practices and techniques.
• Commercial, property, casualty insurance and/or commercial lines and group insurance benefits experience.
• Principles and practices of insurance underwriting.

Page2of3

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Risk & Benefits Manager Senior

JOB CODE: 28519 FLSA STATUS: Exempt
PAY GRADE: 28 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS: (Cont.)

Knowledge of: (Cont.)
• Workers’ compensation procedures and practices.
• Currently accepted risk management and loss control practices.
• Investigative methods, procedures and techniques.
• Current trends and developments in the area of public risk management and employee benefits.
• Work management and work leadership concepts and skills.
• Wide range of administrative guidelines, rules, laws and statutes.
• Computer equipment to include word processing, spreadsheets, databases and a variety of software packages.
• Business letter writing, grammar and punctuation, and report preparation.

Skill in:
• Problem-solving and decision-making.
• Both verbal and written communication.

Ability to:
• Analyze and evaluate data and identify trends.
• Operate photographic equipment.
• Operate personal protective equipment.
• Manage time well, perform multiple tasks and organize diverse activities.
• Establish and maintain effective working relationships with departmental clientele, representatives of outside

agencies and providers, other County employees and officials, and the general public.

WORK ENVIRONMENT AND PHYSICAL DEMANDS:

Physical requirements include the ability to lift/carry up to 20-50 pounds occasionally, visual acuity, speech and hearing,
hand and eye coordination and manual dexterity necessary to operate a computer and office equipment. Subject to
standing, walking, sitting, repetitive motion, reaching, climbing stairs, bending, stooping, kneeling, crouching, crawling,
pushing, pulling, balancing, client/customer contact, squatting to perform the essential functions.

This job description is intended to be generic in nature. It is not necessarily an exhaustive list of all duties
and responsibilities. The essential duties, functions and responsibilities and overtime eligibility may vary
based on the specific tasks assigned to the position.

Page 3 of 3

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Human Resources Management Director

JOB CODE: 30346 FLSA STATUS: Exempt
PAY GRADE: 30 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

JOB SUMMARY:

Directs, plans, budgets, organizes, staffs, coordinates and administers the county wide human resources programs and
services, including staffing, training, employee relations, employment investigation, complaint investigation, employee
orientation, classification and compensation, position control, temporary employment, organizational development,
employee and retiree benefits, occupational health, wellness clinic, risk management, safety, health and HRIS.
Coordinates creative development, administration and implementation of program and service delivery systems that
require extensive collaboration with all operating units within the County.

DISTINGUISHING CHARACTERISTICS:

This is a job classification within the Senior Management/Middle Management job family. Top Human Resources
Management position in the organization. This position may require a flexible work schedule in order to meet the needs
of the organization.

DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES:

• Administers and directs comprehensive corporate Human Resources programs, services and activities to ensure
compliance with policies, procedures, practices, and State, Federal and local laws, policies and statues.

• Formulates and recommends policies, procedures, and practices to implement Human Resources programs and
services.

• Plans, develops, recommends and implements human resources management programs and services. Initiates
human resource program development, design and evaluation efforts to continuously enhance operational
processes and procedures, in accordance with Human Resources best practices and employment legislation, into
new and improved programs and services that meet short and long-range countywide organizational needs.

• Advises and consults with Elected and Appointed officials, Department Heads, department management, and
employees, including retirees on alternatives to meet their objectives related to assorted human resources policies
and operational procedures, including personnel actions, reorganizations, classification changes, targeted
recruitment, employee relations and discipline, employee benefits, risk management, health and safety.

• Plans, organizes and directs tasks and projects by applying research and assessment, and cost benefit analysis
methodologies for outcomes that support deliberations on program and budget related policy decisions, e.g., wage
and salary studies, ad hoc classification reviews, health benefits and pay for performance plans. Develops and
administer related implementation parameters in executing innovative solutions.

• Collaborates on complex tasks and project focused work groups that may comprise one or a combination of cross-
functional entities, including legal, purchasing, auditor, payroll, budget, labor union, department human resource
managers and employee representatives.

• Presents technical information clearly and logically in a manner that is easily understood to Commissioners Court,
various and diverse audiences.

• Directs the administration of total rewards, classification and compensation and performance management
programs and services to facilitate recruitment, employee development and retention of a productive workforce.
Ensures compliance with the Fair Labor Standards Act.

• Directs the administration of staffing, training, employee relations programs and services, such as EEOC, FMLA,
organizational development and employee assistance programs.

• Directs the administration of employment investigations programs and services.

• Directs the administration of HRIS programs and services.

Page 1 of 4

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Human Resources Management Director

JOB CODE: 30346 FLSA STATUS: Exempt
PAY GRADE: 30 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES: (Cont.)

• Directs the administration of group insurance employee and retiree benefits, wellness clinic, risk management,
owner controlled insurance programs, health and safety, and Americans with Disabilities Act programs and
services.

• Develops departmental strategic plans, work plans, work activities, projects and programs, monitors workflow and,
budgets, reviews and evaluates work products, and performance measures.

• Approves expenditures and manages departmental budget, additional resources, personnel, and equipment and
facilities.

• Performs other job-related duties as assigned.

MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS:

Education and Experience:
Bachelor’s degree in Human Resource Management, Public Administration, Business Administration or a directly related
field AND eight (8) years of increasingly responsible experience in a Human Resources, including four (4) years of mid- to
senior level supervisory or management experience.

OR,

Any combination of education and experience that has been achieved and is equivalent to the stated education and
experience and required knowledge, skills, and abilities sufficient to successfully perform the duties and responsibilities
of this job.

Licenses, Registrations, Certifications, or Special Requirements:
Senior Professional in Human Resources (SPHR); OR, Professional in Human Resources Certification (PHR).
Valid Texas Driver’s License.

Preferred:
Certified Corn pensation Professional (CCP).
Certified Employee Benefits Specialist (CEBS); OR, Certified Benefits Professional (CBP).
Certified Mediator.

Knowledge, Skills, and Abilities:
Knowledge of:
• All areas of human resource management.
• Management and supervisory principles, practices and techniques.
• Recent human resources developments and current literature.
• County policies and procedures.
• Federal, State, Local and County applicable laws, rules, regulations and guidelines relating to the field, including:

Title VII, Civil Rights Act; Fair Labor Standards Act (ELSA); Age Discrimination in Employment Act (ADEA); Public
Information Act; Equal Employment Opportunity (EEC); Equal Pay Act; Health Insurance Portability and
Accountability Act (HIPPA); Consolidated Omnibus Budget Reconciliation Act (COBRA); Family and Medical Leave
Act (FMLA); American with Disabilities Act (ADA); Immigration and Reform Act; Texas Workers Compensation; TX
Commission on Human Rights; TX Workforce Commission; Department of Labor/Wage and Hour Division.

• Labor relations methods and practices.
• State and local government budget, planning, systems, documents, issues, and trends.
• Negotiating and coordinating changes to human resources rules, policies and procedures.
• Leading-edge Enterprise Resource Planning (ERP) solutions, HRIS applications and systems development.
• Society for Human Resource Management (SHRM) and Local Human Resource Management Associations.
• Human Resource Publications and information sources.

Page 2 of 4 5_ 9c53

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Human Resources Management Director

JOB CODE: 30346 FLSA STATUS: Exempt
PAY GRADE: 30 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS: (Cont.)

Knowledge of: (Cont.)
• Budget preparation and office management.
• Computer equipment to include word processing, spreadsheets, databases and a variety of software packages.
• Business letter writing, grammar and punctuation, and report preparation.

Skill in:
• Improving seamless customer service delivery.
• Building and maintaining strong relationships with the Commissioners Court, citizens groups, community, and other

county employees and officials, representatives of outside agencies, and the general public.
• Supervisory principles, practices and techniques.
• Negotiating and coordinating changes to human resources rules, policies and procedures.
• Developing, implementing, interpreting, applying and enforcing human resources policies and procedures per laws,

rules, regulations, and codes.
• Contract management and project management.
• Working with executive management, and elected and appointed officials.
• Applying human resources methods.
• Developing strategic plans, budgets, and programmatic evaluation tools.
• Developing creative programs and solutions to address county needs.
• Developing human resources policies, total reward compensation and benefit systems, and employee relations/staff

development programs.
• Problem-solving and decision-making.
• Operating a variety of modern office equipment, including a computer.
• Explaining complicated technical problems in simple non-technical language.
• Both verbal and written communication.

Ability to:
• Direct, motivate, train, develop and evaluate staff.
• Direct, plan, organize and implement department programs, functions, operations and activities.
• Plan, direct, and coordinate the work of others through subordinates.
• Make appropriate and effective public presentations.
• Provide management, administration, organizational leadership and team building.
• Manage and prioritize projects and activities.
• Work independently.
• Exercise sound judgment and make decisions.
• Perform technical research, calculations and computations, and prepare plans and reports.
• Convey complex ideas and concepts verbally and in writing.
• Communicate goals to a wide and diverse audience.
• Plan, assign, supervise, train and evaluate the work of professional and administrative support staff.
• Communicate goals to a wide and diverse audience.
• Mediate and resolve employee grievances and differences at all levels externally and internally to the Human

Resources department.
• Manage time well, perform multiple tasks and organize diverse activities.
• Evaluate human resources problems and issues and recommend effective technical HRIS-related solutions.
• Perform in a fast-paced and stressful environment, while maintaining a professional manner.
• Establish and maintain effective working relationships with Executive Managers, Commissioners Court and staff,

Elected and Appointed Officials, Attorneys, Judges, all levels of management, other Department Heads, union
representatives, departmental clientele, contractors, representatives of outside agencies and providers, other
County employees and officials, and the public.

Page3of4 5 c?,

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Human Resources Management Director

JOB CODE: 30346 FLSA STATUS: Exempt
PAY GRADE: 30 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

WORK ENVIRONMENT AND PHYSICAL DEMANDS:
Physical requirements include the ability to lift/carry up to 15-20 pounds occasionally, visual acuity, speech and hearing,
hand and eye coordination and manual dexterity necessary to operate a computer and office equipment. Subject to
standing, walking, carrying, sitting, repetitive motion, reaching, climbing stairs, bending, stooping, kneeling, crouching,
crawling, pushing, pulling, driving, client/customer contact, balancing, occasional indoor/outdoor activities to perform the
essential functions.

This job description is intended to be generic in nature. It is not necessarily an exhaustive list of all duties
and responsibilities. The essential duties, functions and responsibilities and overtime eligibility may vary
based on the specific tasks assigned to the position.

Page 4 of 4

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Building Maintenance Division Manager

JOB CODE: 26047 FLSA STATUS: Exempt
PAY GRADE: 26 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

JOB SUMMARY:

Directs the day-to-day operations and staff performing all building maintenance, construction and repair activities,
custodial services, groundskeeping and building security services. Directs activities through subordinate managers and
supervisors. Plans, develops and implements new methods and procedures designed to improve operations.

DISTINGUISHING CHARACTERISTICS:

This is a job classification within the Senior Management/Middle Management job family. Incumbents in this classification
are responsible for directing the operations and staff engaged in building maintenance and repair, custodial services,
grounds keeping and security services functions. This classification is distinguished from other building maintenance
classes due to functioning as the highest-level manager in this program area and reporting to the department head. Has
broad scope of operational and staff responsibility and directs through subordinate managers and supervisors.

DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES:

• Directs subordinate managers and staff, including hiring, training, performance evaluation, disciplinary actions and
dismissals, ensuring activities are consistent with policies, procedures, laws, regulations, goals and objectives.
Creates opportunities for improved performance, learning and development of staff. Identifies and addresses
problems or conflicts.

• Inspects and oversees control inspections of buildings and facilities for building maintenance and repair, minor
construction, custodial and grounds maintenance work. Coordinates and manages utilization of vendors and
contractors. Manages inventory and purchases materials for maintenance, construction and custodial supplies as
needed.

• Develops, recommends and maintains long-range planning for staff and buildings, including development of new
maintenance and repair programs for buildings under construction.

• Plans, develops and oversees implementation of new methods and procedures designed to improve operations,
minimize operating costs and effect greater utilization of labor and materials.

• Oversees development and implementation of preventive maintenance programs. Collaborates with staff to develop
new maintenance and inspection programs. Monitors and evaluates program effectiveness.

• Develops, prepares and administers the annual budget for repair and maintenance operations. Directs ongoing
administration of approved budget and oversees expenditures.

• Directs, plans and schedules department warehouse operations.

• Performs other job-related duties as assigned.

MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS:

Education and Experience:
Bachelor’s degree in Public Administration or Business Administration a directly related field AND seven (7) years
increasingly responsible facilities maintenance experience, including three (3) years mid- to senior level supervisory
management experience;

OR,

Any combination of education and experience that has been achieved and is equivalent to the stated education and
experience and required knowledge, skills, and abilities sufficient to successfully perform the duties and responsibilities of
this job.

Licenses, Registrations, Certifications, or Special Requirements:
Valid Texas Driver’s License.

Page 1 of2 ..) /

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Building Maintenance Division Manager

JOB CODE: 26047 FLSA STATUS: Exempt
PAY GRADE: 26 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS: (Cont.)

Knowledge, Skills, and Abilities:
Knowledge of:
• Management and supervisory principles, practices and techniques.
• Policies, practices, methods and procedures within area of assignment.
• Federal, State and Local program laws and requirements.
• Applicable safety practices and regulations.
• Budgetary practices and techniques.
• Computer equipment to include word processing, spreadsheets, databases and a variety of software packages.
• Business letter writing, grammar and punctuation, and report preparation.

Skill in:
• Planning, assigning, directing and coordinating a variety of functional specialties with overlapping work areas.
• Managing, motivating, developing and evaluating staff.
• Developing and implementing goals, objectives, procedures, work standards and management controls.
• Allocating resources and evaluating programs.
• Carpentry, painting, plastering, masonry, plumbing, electrical repairs and installations and machine servicing.
• Troubleshooting, diagnosing and performing maintenance and repair needs.
• Reading and interpreting schematics and blueprints.
• Problem-solving and decision-making.
• Developing and monitoring program budgets.
• Both verbal and written communication, including presentations.

Ability to:
• Direct, motivate, train, develop and evaluate staff.
• Plan, schedule and oversee building maintenance, custodial, groundskeeping and security functions.
• Read and interpret documents, such as safety rules, operating and maintenance instructions, and procedure

manuals.
• Evaluate conditions and recommend effective technical solutions.
• Safely and correctly apply building and equipment maintenance and repair techniques, and operate tools and

equipment.
• Manage time well, perform multiple tasks and organize diverse activities.
• Establish and maintain effective working relationships with departmental clientele, representatives of outside

agencies and providers, other County employees and officials, and the public.

WORK ENVIRONMENT AND PHYSICAL DEMANDS:

Physical requirements include the ability to lift/carry up to 35 pounds occasionally, visual acuity, speech and hearing, hand
and eye coordination and manual dexterity necessary to operate a computer and office equipment. Subject to standing,
walking, sitting, repetitive motion, reaching, climbing stairs, bending, stooping, kneeling, crouching, crawling, pushing,
pulling, balancing, client/customer contact, squatting to perform the essential functions. Subject to extreme temperatures,
outside elements, noise, vibration, contact with dust, fumes and hazardous chemicals, foul odors, animal and human fecal
matter, insects and rodents.

This job description is intended to be generic in nature. It is not necessarily an exhaustive list of all duties
and responsibilities. The essential duties, functions and responsibilities and overtime eligibility may vary
based on the specific tasks assigned to the position.

Page 2 of 2

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Facilities Management Director

JOB CODE: 32682 FLSA STATUS: Exempt
PAY GRADE: 32 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

JOB SUMMARY:

Under administrative direction of the Executive Manager Administrative Operations, directs the countywide utilization,
maintenance, planning, design, construction, renovation, and maintenance repair of new and existing facilities. Plans
and manages bond/capital facilities management projects. Oversees the management of the County Real Estate function.
Oversees staffing operations. Oversees the operations and provides management direction to Exposition Center.
Oversees the maintenance, operations and housekeeping of all facilities and grounds. Coordinates and works closely with
officials, department heads and outside agencies. Serves as professional technical advisor, and may represent the
department and/or County with customers and media. Monitors and oversees that services delivered are in compliance
with statutory applicable laws, rules, regulations and applicable standards and procedures established by the state,
court, and the department. Performs all work using appropriate safety procedures.

DISTINGUISHING CHARACTERISTICS:

This is a job classification within the Senior Management/Middle Management job family. Incumbent’s in this
classification serves as the administrator. This classification is distinguished by the administrative duties and
responsibilities, license as a Registered Architect (R.A.) or Professional Engineer (P.E.) in the State of Texas, and
required additional senior level management, project management and entertainment and convention industry facility
management experience. This classification may require a flexible work schedule in order to meet the needs of the
department.

DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES:

• Plans, organizes, directs, monitors, reviews and evaluates the overall operations and development of Facilities
Management functional department program areas, including planning, design, construction and renovation and
maintenance repair of new and existing facilities, bond/capital projects, Exposition Center, architecture, structural,
mechanical, electrical, civil engineering project management, building physical plant, HVAC, utility management
systems, building maintenance, custodial, electrical, security, cost estimating, leasing and acquisition of property,
zoning and land planning, and inspections-compliance and codes.

• Makes presentations to Executive Manager Administrative Operations, other Departments, Appointed or Elected
Officials, City/State officials citizen groups and policy-making entities regarding current and future development and
planning, design, construction and maintenance/operation of facilities.

• Represents the department in Commissioners Court, makes presentations and recommendations to court regarding
critical departmental issues.

• Works with Commissioners Court, citizens groups and other County staff to establish priorities and set schedules
and budgets for timely completion of planning, design, construction and renovation and maintenance repair projects.
Oversees and develops long-term strategies in integration, coordination and direction in construction, maintenance
and leasing of facilities and development of long-term maintenance/replacement plans. Oversees, plans, organizes
and manages the management and administration of short-term and long-term improvement plans for facilities,
including acquisition of new properties and disposition of existing properties.

• Coordinates and works closely with officials, department heads, multiple outside suppliers, other County staff and
outside agencies. Serves as professional technical advisor and may represent the County with customers and
media.

• Oversees development and makes recommendations on best alternatives for awarding contracts to competing
contractors, and negotiates and oversees the contracts. Works with architects, engineers and contractors.
Oversees the preparation of bid documents and contracts, presentation of cost estimates and design specifications,
and plans for construction and modification of facilities. Manages these contracts to successful completion.
Monitors inter-governmental actions.

• Directs the goals and objectives to be consistent with priorities, and policies and procedures. Monitors and oversees
that services delivered are in compliance with statutory applicable laws, rules, regulations, building codes and
ordinances and applicable standards established by the state, court and the department.

Page 1 of 4

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Facilities Management Director

JOB CODE: 32682 FLSA STATUS: Exempt
PAY GRADE: 32 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES: (Cont.)

• Directs the department personnel, capital improvement, operating and project budgets. Manages the resources of
the department to ensure projects are on time and under budget, including the identification of cost savings,
efficiencies and resource allocations. Oversees and administers these budgets, as well as the budgets for targeted
improvements from long-term plans. Develops, initiates and reviews plans, reports, budget estimates and
proposals. Manages the preparation and administration of the budget. Prepares a variety of fiscal and
administrative reports.

• Directs and participates in the development and implementation of strategic short and long-term plans, develops and
implements goals, objectives, policies, procedures and priorities, and coordinates with officials to achieve those
goals. Plans, schedules, reviews and evaluates work needs on a short and long-term basis. Studies and
standardizes department policies and practices.

• Supervises professional, technical and administrative support staff, evaluates staff job performance and coordinates
schedules and assignments. Authorizes staff productive and non-productive work hours. Determines professional
development and training needs. Confers with and advises staff on problems related to the design, operation,
interpretation and compliance of systems.

• Oversees development of promotional marketing plans and enhances economic strategies of the Exposition Center.
Oversees the negotiation of contracts and the preparation of bid documents and contracts. Manages these
contracts to successful completion and monitors actions.

• Represents the County by attending meetings, community meetings, seminars, conferences and professional
association meetings. Participates in private organizations and serves on related committees.

• Analyzes and responds to difficult inquires, grievances or complaints.

• Performs other job-related duties as assigned.

MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS:

Education and Experience:
Bachelor’s degree in Architecture, Structural, Mechanical, Electrical or Civil Engineering AND eight (8) years of directly
related, increasingly responsible and varied professional facilities, architecture, construction, engineering, project
management, developing projects, building maintenance management, and managing construction or municipal
management experience, including five (5) years of senior level management, project management and entertainment
and convention industry facility management experience.

Licenses, Registrations, Certifications, or Special Requirements:
Possession of a license as a Registered Architect (R.A.) or Professional Engineer (P.E.) issued by the State of Texas. If
licensed in another state, must acquire license reciprocity in the State of Texas within six (6) months of date of hire.
Valid Texas Driver’s License.

Preferred:
Master’s degree in Engineering or Architecture and Business Administration (M.B.A.) or in Public Administration (M.P.A).

Knowledge, Skills, and Abilities:
Knowledge of:
• Principles, practices, programs, systems, methods and techniques of planning, design, construction, renovation, and

maintenance repair of new and existing facilities, and acquisition of properties.
• Technical, legal, financial and public relation problems involved in the conduct of Facilities Management

departmental programs.
• Procedures and techniques of planning, design, construction and renovation, maintenance and repair, and operation

of new and existing facilities, and acquisition of properties, buildings and grounds.
• Contract administration and facility management practices, procedures, methods and negotiation techniques and

services of an entertainment and convention/conference facilities program.
• Federal, State, Local and County applicable laws, regulatory codes, ordinances, rules, permits, licenses, purposes,

sources, standards, policies and procedures.

Page 2 of 4 &:4:::) /

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Facilities Management Director

JOB CODE: 32682 FLSA STATUS: Exempt
PAY GRADE: 32 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS: (Cont.)
Knowledge of: (Cont.)
• Methods of preparing designs, plans, specifications, estimates, reports and recommendations relating to proposed

facilities.
• Principles of project management, including scheduling, estimating, contracts and budgeting.
• Theory, principles, practices and methods of state and local facilities, engineering, construction, maintenance and

contract administration.
• Advanced mathematical and statistical methods as used in engineering and planning.
• Recent developments and current literature in engineering and architecture.
• Methods, practices and techniques of inspections, compliance and enforcement.
• Budget preparation and office management.
• Computer software applications to include word processing, presentations, spreadsheets, databases, maps,

records, graphics, project scheduling and management, and other related engineering/architectural applications.
• Business letter writing, grammar and punctuation, and report preparation.

Skill in:
• Planning and directing a variety of facilities management, engineering and architectural projects.
• Improving seamless customer service delivery.
• Building and maintaining strong relationships with the Commissioners Court, citizens groups, community, and other

County employees and officials, representatives of outside agencies, and the general public.
• Analyzing and evaluating complex data, technical facilities management, engineering and architectural data and

reports.
• Contract negotiation, compliance and dispute resolution.
• Supervisory principles, practices and techniques.
• Applying principles and practices as used in Architecture, Structural, Mechanical, Electrical or Civil Engineering.
• Adapting approved facilities management, engineering, and architectural methods and standards.
• Contract management and project budgeting.
• Using and caring of equipment, tools and testing materials.
• Explaining complicated technical problems in simple non-technical language.
• Problem-solving and technical decision-making for developing effective solutions.
• Both verbal and written communication.

Ability to:
• Establish and maintain effective public relations in a complex environment involving technical and non-technical

personnel.
• Direct, plan and implement department operations and activities.
• Make appropriate and effective public presentations.
• Provide management, administration, organizational leadership and team building.
• Manage and prioritize programs, projects and activities.
• Delegate authority and responsibility, and to schedule and program work on a long-term basis.
• Perform complex engineering/architectural studies, analysis and design.
• Work independently.
• Exercise sound judgment and make decisions.
• Manage time well, perform multiple tasks and organize diverse activities.
• Perform technical research, calculations and computations, and prepare plans and reports.
• Convey complex ideas and concepts verbally and in writing.
• Plan, assign, supervise, train and evaluate the work of professional, technical and administrative support staff.
• Interpret plans, specifications, standards, policies, procedures and regulatory codes.
• Respond to inquiries from customers, regulatory agencies or members of the professional community.
• Perform in a fast-paced and stressful environment while maintaining a professional manner.
• Establish and maintain effective working relationships with County employees and officials, developers, engineers,

architects, contractors, representatives of outside agencies, and the general public.

Page 3 of 4

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Facilities Management Director

JOB CODE: 32682 FLSA STATUS: Exempt
PAY GRADE: 32 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

WORK ENVIRONMENT AND PHYSICAL DEMANDS:

Physical requirements include the ability to lift/carry up to 10-60 pounds occasionally, visual acuity, speech and hearing,
hand and eye coordination and manual dexterity necessary to operate a computer and office equipment. Subject to
standing, walking, sitting, repetitive motion, reaching, climbing stairs, bending, stooping, kneeling, crouching, crawling,
pushing, pulling, balancing, client/customer contact, squatting, travel to various construction work sites, moving
equipment, cleaning chemicals, electrical hazards, and indoors/outdoors in all types of weather (excessive heat and cold)
to perform the essential functions.

This job description is intended to be generic in nature. It is not necessarily an exhaustive list of all duties
and responsibilities. Duties and responsibilities and overtime eligibility may vary based on the specific tasks
assigned to the position.

Page4of4
C03

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Engineering Division Manager

JOB CODE: 28255 FLSA STATUS: Exempt
PAY GRADE: 28 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

JOB SUMMARY:

Manages the development and implementation of complex engineering project scopes, schedules and budgets, and
programs. Develops policies and procedures. Allocates resources, staffing, equipment and material. Monitors budget
and oversees all other administrative matters for the division. Coordinates and works closely with officials, department
heads and outside agencies. Directs and supervises interdisciplinary group of professional and technical staff.
Functions as a project director providing Professional Engineering certification for work projects. Monitors and oversees
that services delivered are in compliance with applicable laws, rules, regulations and applicable standards and
procedures established by the State, court and the department. Performs all work using appropriate safety procedures.

DISTINGUISHING CHARACTERISTICS:

This is a job classification within the Senior Management/Middle Management job family. This classification is
distinguished by the manager duties and responsibilities, license as a Professional Engineer, and required additional
senior level management, project management and/or administrative experience. This classification may require a
flexible work schedule in order to meet the needs of the department.

DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES:

• Plans, organizes, reviews and evaluates the activities, functions and operations of the division. Coordinates
programs through staffing resources. Manages resources to ensure the completion of projects. Determines staffing
requirements and hires accordingly. Prepares a variety of fiscal, administrative and technical correspondence and
reports.

• Coordinates and works closely with officials, department heads, multiple outside suppliers, other County staff and
outside agencies. Negotiates with private engineering firms for outsourcing work.

• Develops, manages and controls division’s work programs, schedules, budgets and personnel. Plans future
budgetary requirements for division. Purchases, monitors and maintains fixed assets common to division. Evaluates
and reports on program performance of division. Prepares process analyses and uses statistical process controls to
continually improve quality of processes and output.

• Monitors and oversees that services delivered are in compliance with applicable laws, rules, regulations and
applicable standards and procedures established by the State, court and the department.

• Develops and monitors division/department policies and operating procedures. Implements, communicates and
effectively utilizes department policies and procedures. Coordinates with other division directors, departments,
agencies and organizations to accomplish division/department goals and objectives.

• Negotiates and oversees services contracts and supplemental agreements and services assuring financial integrity.

• Participates in the development and implementation of strategic short and long-term division plans, develops and
implements goals, objectives, policies, procedures and priorities. Coordinates with officials to achieve those goals.
Plans, schedules, reviews and evaluates work needs on a short and long-term basis. Studies and standardizes
divisional policies and practices.

• Supervises professional, technical and administrative support staff, evaluates staff job performance. Coordinates
schedules and assignments. Authorizes staff productive and non-productive work hours. Confers with and advises
staff on problems related to the design, operation, interpretation and compliance of systems.

• Analyzes and responds to difficult inquires, grievances and complaints.

• Represents the County by attending meetings, community meetings, seminars, conferences and professional
association meetings. Participates in private organizations and participates serves on related committees.

• Performs other job-related duties as assigned.

Page 1 of 3

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Engineering Division Manager

JOB CODE: 28255 FLSA STATUS: Exempt
PAY GRADE: 28 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS:

Education and Experience:
Bachelor’s degree in Civil Engineering AND five (5) years of directly related, increasingly responsible professional
engineering design and/or analysis experience as a licensed Professional Engineer, including three (3) years of mid- to
senior level supervisory/management or project management experience.

Licenses, Registrations, Certifications, or Special Requirements:
License as a Professional Engineer (P.E.) issued by the State of Texas. If licensed as a P.E. in another state, must
become licensed in the State of Texas within six (6) months of date of hire.
Valid Texas Driver’s License.

Knowledge, Skills, and Abilities:
Knowledge of:
• Principles, procedures, practices, programs, systems, methods and techniques of engineering.
• Advanced mathematical and statistical methods as used in engineering and planning.
• Principles of project management, including scheduling, estimating, contracts and budgeting.
• Supervisory principles, practices and techniques.
• Federal, State, Local and County applicable laws, regulatory codes, rules, permits, licenses, purposes, sources,

standards, policies and procedures.
• Recent developments and current literature regarding engineering.
• Methods, practices and techniques of inspections, compliance and enforcement.
• Computer equipment to include word processing, presentations, spreadsheets, databases, maps, records, graphics,

project scheduling and management, and other related engineering applications.
• Business letter writing, grammar and punctuation, and report preparation.

Skill in:
• Planning and directing a variety of engineering projects.
• Contract management and project budgeting.
• Analyzing and evaluating complex data, technical engineering data and reports.
• Contract negotiation, compliance and dispute resolution.
• Supervisory principles, practices and techniques.
• Applying principles and practices as used in engineering.
• Adapting approved engineering methods and standards in a variety of engineering projects.
• Using and caring of equipment, tools and testing materials.
• Using and caring of computer-aided design and drafting (CADD), Geographic Information System (GIS) and other

related electronic equipment.
• Explaining complicated technical problems in simple non-technical language.
• Problem-solving and technical decision-making for developing effective solutions.
• Both verbal and written communication.

Ability to:
• Coordinate, plan, and prioritize programs, projects, and activities.
• Plan, assign, supervise, train and review the work of professional and technical subordinates.
• Convey complex ideas and concepts verbally and in writing.
• Interpret plans and specifications, standards, policies, procedures, regulatory codes.
• Perform complex engineering studies, analysis and design.
• Perform technical research, calculations and computations, and prepare plans and reports.
• Manage time well, perform multiple tasks and organize diverse activities.
• Work independently.
• Exercise sound judgment and make decisions.

Page2of3

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Engineering Division Manager

JOB CODE: 28255 FLSA STATUS: Exempt
PAY GRADE: 28 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS: (Cant.)

Ability to: (Cant.)
• Respond to inquiries from customers, regulatory agencies or members of the professional community.
• Perform in a stressful environment while maintaining a professional manner.
• Make appropriate and effective public presentations.
• Establish and maintain effective working relationships with County employees and officials, developers, engineers,

contractors, representatives of outside agencies, and the general public.

WORK ENVIRONMENT AND PHYSICAL DEMANDS:

Physical requirements include the ability to lift/carry up to 10-60 pounds occasionally, visual acuity, speech and hearing,
hand and eye coordination and manual dexterity necessary to operate a computer and office equipment. Subject to
standing, walking, sitting, repetitive motion, reaching, climbing stairs, bending, stooping, kneeling, crouching, crawling,
pushing, pulling, balancing, client/customer contact, squatting to perform the essential functions. Subject to contact with
noise, vibration, fumes, foul odor, dirt, dust, mist, gases, and poor ventilation, parts, and tools or machinery. Requires use
of protective devices such as masks, goggles, and gloves. Requires fieldwork, and exposure to traffic, public work
development sites, construction site hazards, climbing and walking and traveling over rough, uneven, mud, rocky, high
grass terrain, and indoors/outdoors in all types of weather (excessive heat and cold).

This job description is intended to be generic in nature. It is not necessarily an exhaustive list of all duties
and responsibilities. The essential duties, functions and responsibilities and overtime eligibility may vary
based on the specific tasks assigned to the position.

Page 3of3

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Engineering Services Division Director

JOB CODE: 29254 FLSA STATUS: Exempt
PAY GRADE: 29 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

JOB SUMMARY:

Under administrative direction of the Executive Manager TNR, directs the development and implementation of complex
engineering projects and programs. Develops policies and procedures. Allocates resources, staffing, equipment and
material. Monitors budget and oversees all other administrative matters for the division. Coordinates and works closely
with officials, department heads and outside agencies. Supervises and directs work of professional and technical staff.
Monitors and oversees that services delivered are in compliance with applicable laws, rules, regulations and applicable
standards and procedures established by the State, court and the department. Performs all work using appropriate
safety procedures.

DISTINGUISHING CHARACTERISTICS:

This is a job classification within the Senior Management/Middle Management job family. This classification is
distinguished by the director duties and responsibilities, license as a Professional Engineer, and required additional
senior level management, project management and/or administrative experience. This classification may require a
flexible work schedule in order to meet the needs of the department.

DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES:

• Plans, organizes and directs, reviews and evaluates the activities, functions and operations of the division. Manages
resources to ensure the completion of projects. Determines staffing requirements and hires accordingly. Prepares a
variety of fiscal and administrative reports.

• Coordinates and works closely with officials, department heads, multiple outside suppliers, other County staff and
outside agencies. Negotiates with firms for outsourcing work.

• Develops, manages and controls division’s programs, budgets and personnel. Plans future budgetary requirements
for division. Purchases, monitors and maintains fixed assets common to division. Evaluates and reports on
program performance of division. Prepares process analyses and uses statistical process controls to continually
improve quality of processes and output.

• Monitors and oversees that services delivered are in compliance with applicable laws, rules, regulations and
applicable standards and procedures established by the State, court and the department.

• Directs, develops and monitors division/department policies and operating procedures. Implements, communicates
and effectively utilizes department policies and procedures. Coordinates with other division directors, departments,
agencies and organizations to accomplish division/department goals and objectives.

• Negotiates and oversees services contracts, supplemental agreements and services assuring financial integrity.

• Participates in the development and implementation of strategic short-term and long-term division plans. Develops
and implements goals, objectives, policies, procedures and priorities, and coordinates with officials to achieve those
goals. Plans, schedules, reviews and evaluates work needs on a short and long-term basis. Studies and
standardizes divisional policies and practices.

• Supervises professional, technical and administrative support staff, evaluates staff job performance and coordinates
schedules and assignments. Authorizes staff productive and non-productive work hours. Confers with and advises
staff on problems related to the design, operation, interpretation and compliance of systems.

• Analyzes and responds to difficult inquires, grievances or complaints.

• Represents the County by attending meetings, community meetings, seminars, conferences and professional
association meetings. Participates in private organizations and participates serves on related committees.

• Performs other job-related duties as assigned.

Page 1 of 3 07

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Engineering Services Division Director

JOB CODE: 29254 FLSA STATUS: Exempt
PAY GRADE: 29 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS:

Education and Experience:
Bachelor’s degree in Civil Engineering AND six (6) years of directly related, increasingly responsible professional
engineering design and/or analysis experience as a licensed Professional Engineer, including four (4) years of mid- to
senior level supervisory/management or project management experience.

Licenses, Registrations, Certifications, or Special Requirements:
License as a Professional Engineer (P.E.) issued by the State of Texas. If licensed as a P.E. in another state, must
become licensed in the State of Texas within six (6) months of date of hire.
Valid Texas Driver’s License.

Knowledge, Skills, and Abilities:
Knowledge of:
• Principles, procedures, practices, programs, systems, methods and techniques of engineering.
• Advanced mathematical and statistical methods as used in engineering and planning.
• Principles of project management, including scheduling, estimating, contracts and budgeting.
• Supervisory principles, practices and techniques.
• Federal, State, Local and County applicable laws, regulatory codes, rules, permits, licenses, purposes, sources,

standards, policies and procedures.
• Recent developments and current literature regarding engineering.
• Methods, practices and techniques of inspections, compliance and enforcement.
• Computer equipment to include word processing, presentations, spreadsheets, databases, maps, records, graphics,

project scheduling and management, and other related engineering applications.
• Business letter writing, grammar and punctuation, and report preparation.

Skill in:
• Planning and directing a variety of engineering projects.
• Analyzing and evaluating complex data, technical engineering data and reports.
• Contract negotiation, compliance, and dispute resolution.
• Contract management and project budgeting.
• Supervisory principles, practices and techniques.
• Applying principles and practices as used in engineering.
• Adapting approved engineering methods and standards a variety of engineering projects.
• Using and caring of equipment, tools, and testing materials.
• Using and caring of computer-aided design and drafting (CADD), Geographic Information System (GIS) and other

related electronic equipment.
• Explaining complicated technical problems in simple non-technical language.
• Problem-solving and technical decision-making for developing effective solutions.
• Both verbal and written communication.

Ability to:
• Coordinate, plan and prioritize programs, projects, and activities.
• Plan, assign, supervise, train and review the work of professional and technical subordinates.
• Convey complex ideas and concepts verbally and in writing.
• Interpret plans and specifications, standards, policies, procedures and regulatory codes.
• Perform complex engineering studies, analysis and design.
• Perform technical research, calculations and computations, and prepare plans and reports.
• Manage time well, perform multiple tasks and organize diverse activities.
• Work independently.
• Exercise sound judgment and make decisions.

Page 2 of 3 22 62

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Engineering Services Division Director

JOB CODE: 29254 FLSA STATUS: Exempt
PAY GRADE: 29 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS: (Cont.)

Ability to: (Cont.)
• Respond to inquiries from customers, regulatory agencies or members of the professional community.
• Perform in a stressful environment while maintaining a professional manner.
• Make appropriate and effective public presentations.
• Establish and maintain effective working relationships with County employees and officials, developers, engineers,

contractors, representatives of outside agencies, and the general public.

WORK ENVIRONMENT AND PHYSICAL DEMANDS:

Physical requirements include the ability to lift/carry up to 10-60 pounds occasionally, visual acuity, speech and hearing,
hand and eye coordination and manual dexterity necessary to operate a computer and office equipment. Subject to
standing, walking, sitting, repetitive motion, reaching, climbing stairs, bending, stooping, kneeling, crouching, crawling,
pushing, pulling, balancing, client/customer contact, squatting to perform the essential functions. Subject to contact with
noise, vibration, fumes, foul odor, dirt, dust, mist, gases, and poor ventilation, parts, and tools or machinery. Requires use
of protective devices such as masks, goggles, and gloves. Requires fieldwork, and exposure to traffic, public work
development sites, construction site hazards, climbing and walking and traveling over rough, uneven, mud, rocky, high
grass terrain, and indoors/outdoors in all types of weather (excessive heat and cold).

This job description is intended to be generic in nature. It is not necessarily an exhaustive list of all duties
and responsibilities. The essential duties, functions and responsibilities and overtime eligibility may vary
based on the specific tasks assigned to the position. I

Page 3 of 3 7

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Public Works Director

JOB CODE: 32256 FLSA STATUS: Exempt
PAY GRADE: 32 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

JOB SUMMARY:

Under administrative direction of the Executive Manager TNR, plans, organizes, directs, reviews and evaluates the
activities, functions and operations of the Public Works division. Coordinates and works closely with officials,
department heads and outside agencies. Serves as professional technical advisor, and may represent the department
and/or County with customers and media. Monitors and oversees that services delivered are in compliance with
statutory applicable laws, rules, regulations and applicable standards and procedures established by the state, court and
the department. Performs all work using appropriate safety procedures.

DISTINGUISHING CHARACTERISTICS:

This is a job classification within the Senior Management/Middle Management job family. Incumbent’s in this
classification serves as the administrator. This classification is distinguished by the administrative duties and
responsibilities, license as a Professional Engineer, and required additional senior level management, project
management and/or administrative experience. This classification may require a flexible work schedule in order to meet
the needs of the department.

DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES:

• Plans, organizes, directs, reviews and evaluates the activities, functions and operations of the division.

• Coordinates and works closely with officials, department heads, multiple outside suppliers, other County employees
and outside agencies. Serves as professional technical advisor, and may represent the department and/or County
with customers and media.

• Monitors and oversees that services delivered are in compliance with statutory applicable laws, rules, regulations
and applicable standards and procedures established by the state, court and the department.

• Manages the resources of the department to ensure the completion of long-term projects on time and under budget.
Develops and implements plans for financing improvements and reviews and approves the improvements. Reviews
plans, reports, budget estimates and proposals. Manages the preparation and administration of the budget.
Prepares a variety of fiscal and administrative reports.

• Negotiates and oversees services contracts, supplemental agreements and services assuring financial integrity.
Oversees the preparation of bid documents and contracts, and manages these contracts to successful completion.
Monitors inter-governmental actions.

• Directs and participates in the development and implementation of strategic short and long-term plans. Develops
and implements goals, objectives, policies, procedures or priorities, and coordinates with officials to achieve those
goals. Plans, schedules, reviews and evaluates work needs on a short and long-term basis. Studies and
standardizes department policies and practices.

• Supervises professional, technical and administrative support staff, evaluates staff job performance, coordinates
schedules and assignments. Authorizes staff productive and non-productive work hours. Confers with and advises
staff on problems related to the design, operation, interpretation and compliance of systems.

• Analyzes and responds to difficult inquires, grievances and complaints.

• Represents the County by attending meetings, community meetings, seminars, conferences and professional
association meetings. Participates in private organizations and participates serves on related committees.

• Performs other job-related duties as assigned.

MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS:

Education and Experience:
Bachelor’s degree in Civil Engineering AND eight (8) years of directly related, increasingly responsible and varied
professional engineering project management, developing and managing public works, or municipal management
experience, including five (5) years of senior level management, project management and/or administrative experience.

Page 1 of 3 0

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Public Works Director

JOB CODE: 32256 FLSA STATUS: Exempt
PAY GRADE: 32 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS: (Cont.)

Licenses, Registrations, Certifications, or Special Requirements:
License as a Professional Engineer (P.E.) issued by the State of Texas. If licensed as a P.E. in another state, must
become licensed in the State of Texas within six (6) months of date of hire.
Valid Texas Driver’s License.

Preferred:
Master’s degree in Civil Engineering a directly related field.

Knowledge, Skills, and Abilities:
Knowledge of:
• Principles and practices, programs, systems, methods and techniques of municipal public works, including planning,

design, construction, operation and maintenance.
• Technical, legal, financial and public relation problems involved in the conduct of a municipal public works program.
• Methods of preparing designs, plans, specifications, estimates, reports and recommendations relating to proposed

public works facilities.
• Principles of project management, including scheduling, estimating, contracts and budgeting.
• Theory, principles, practices and methods of state and local public engineering, construction, street maintenance

and contract administration.
• Advanced mathematical and statistical methods as used in engineering and planning.
• Federal, State, Local and County applicable laws, regulatory codes, rules, permits, licenses, purposes, sources,

standards, policies and procedures.
• Recent developments and current literature regarding engineering.
• Methods, practices and techniques of inspections, compliance and enforcement.
• Budget preparation and office management.
• Computer equipment to include word processing, presentations, spreadsheets, databases, maps, records, graphics,

project scheduling and management, and other related engineering applications.
• Business letter writing, grammar and punctuation, and report preparation.

Skill in:
• Planning and directing a variety of engineering projects.
• Improving seamless customer service delivery.
• Building and maintaining strong relationships with the community, employees and other agencies.
• Analyzing and evaluating complex data, technical engineering data and reports.
• Contract negotiation, compliance and dispute resolution.
• Supervisory principles, practices and techniques.
• Applying principles and practices as used in engineering.
• Adapting approved engineering methods and standards in variety of engineering projects.
• Contract management and project budgeting.
• Using and caring of equipment, tools and testing materials.
• Using and caring of computer-aided design and drafting (CADD), Geographic Information System (GIS) and other

related electronic equipment.
• Explaining complicated technical problems in simple non-technical language.
• Problem-solving and technical decision-making for developing effective solutions.
• Both verbal and written communication.

Page 2 of 3 77/

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Public Works Director

JOB CODE: 32256 FLSA STATUS: Exempt
PAY GRADE: 32 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS: (Cont.)

Ability to:
• Direct, plan and implement division operations and activities.
• Provide operational management, administration, organizational leadership and team building.
• Manage and prioritize programs, projects and activities.
• Delegate authority and responsibility, and to schedule and program work on a long-term basis.
• Perform complex engineering studies, analysis and design.
• Work independently.
• Exercise sound judgment and make decisions.
• Manage time well, perform multiple tasks and organize diverse activities.
• Perform technical research, calculations and computations, and prepare plans and reports.
• Convey complex ideas and concepts verbally and in writing.
• Plan, assign, supervise, train and review the work of professional and technical subordinates.
• Interpret plans, specifications, standards, policies, procedures and regulatory codes.
• Respond to inquiries from customers, regulatory agencies, or members of the professional community.
• Perform in a fast-paced and stressful environment while maintaining a professional manner.
• Make appropriate and effective public presentations.
• Establish and maintain effective working relationships with County employees and officials, developers, engineers,

contractors, representatives of outside agencies, and the general public.

WORK ENVIRONMENT AND PHYSICAL DEMANDS:

Physical requirements include the ability to lift/carry up to 10-60 pounds occasionally, visual acuity, speech and hearing,
hand and eye coordination and manual dexterity necessary to operate a computer and office equipment. Subject to
standing, walking, sitting, repetitive motion, reaching, climbing stairs, bending, stooping, kneeling, crouching, crawling,
pushing, pulling, balancing, client/customer contact, squatting to perform the essential functions. Subject to contact with
noise, vibration, fumes, foul odor, dirt, dust, mist, gases, and poor ventilation, parts, and tools or machinery. Requires use
of protective devices such as masks, goggles, and gloves. Requires fieldwork, and exposure to traffic, public work
development sites, construction site hazards, climbing and walking and traveling over rough, uneven, mud, rocky, high
grass terrain, and indoors/outdoors in all types of weather (excessive heat and cold).

This job description is intended to be generic in nature. It is not necessarily an exhaustive list of all duii
and responsibilities. The essential duties, functions and responsibilities and overtime eligibility may vary
based on the specific tasks assigned to the position.

Page3of3

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Human Resources Assistant I

JOB CODE: 12301 FLSA STATUS: Non-Exempt
PAY GRADE: 12 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

JOB SUMMARY:

Works under moderate supervision and normally receives detailed instruction on work assignments. Supports Human
Resources management activities in various divisions throughout the organization. Assists in administration of Human
Resources management programs. Performs entry-level Human Resources support activities and maintains
confidentiality regarding Human Resources related issues.

DISTINGUISHING CHARACTERISTICS:

This is a job classification within the Human Resources job family. Entry level Human Resources Assistant position.

DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES:

• Assists with administrative processing of new hires and terminations. Processes applications, pre-employment
screening, testing, scheduling interviews, meetings, training sessions, conducting employment verifications,
responding to applicants regarding job openings, and responding to departmental and other inquires related to
Human Resources issues. Prepares job postings and job descriptions, as required.

• Logs data and maintains personnel and/or payroll files, records and/or budget information.

• Assists with the administration and communication of policies and procedures pertaining to: ADA, FMLA, Workers
Compensation, health insurance, billings, employee benefits enrollment, and light duty assignments. Provides
guidance and recommendations concerning policy, procedures, and personnel issues, as required.

• Assists in the preparation, processing and monitoring of Personnel Action Forms (PAF5) and coordination with
payroll personnel ensuring conformity to State and Federal laws and regulations, and County policies.

• Processes and logs various personnel actions including employee performance appraisal forms, family medical
leave requests, vacation requests, and time-sheets.

• Assists in evaluating jobs, preparing job descriptions, conducting internal and external surveys to compile
information, and analyzing information for reports and presentations.

• Provides assistance to include typing, data entry, filing, coordinating statistical data, scheduling appointments,
assisting with payroll functions, and maintaining personnel, medical and training records and data.

• Performs other job-related duties as assigned.

MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS:

Education and Experience:
Associate’s degree in Personnel Management, Human Resources Management, Business Administration or a directly
related field AND one (1) year of administrative experience supporting Human Resources activities;

OR,

Any combination of education and experience that has been achieved and is equivalent to the stated education and
experience and required knowledge, skills, and abilities sufficient to successfully perform the duties and responsibilities
of this job.

Licenses, Registrations, Certifications, or Special Requirements:
Valid Texas Driver’s License.

Preferred:
Specialized coursework in the area of Human Resources.

Page 1 of 2

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Human Resources Assistant I

JOB CODE: 12301 FLSA STATUS: Non-Exempt
PAY GRADE: 12 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS: (Cont.)

Knowledge, Skills, and Abilities:
Knowledge of:
• File management and techniques.
• County policies, procedures and terminology.
• Principles and practices of Human Resources management.
• Federal, State, and Local regulations and laws pertaining to employment, Workers Compensation, American with

Disabilities Act, Family Medical Leave Act, Fair Labor Standards Act.
• Computer equipment to include word processing, spreadsheets, databases and a variety of software packages.
• Business letter writing, grammar and punctuation, and report preparation.

Skill in:
• Resolving problems.
• Conducting research and presenting information.
• Compiling data.
• Both verbal and written communication.

Ability to:
• Maintain confidential data and information.
• Maintain effective filing systems and retrieve and disseminate information.
• Explain information.
• Establish and maintain effective working relationships with departmental clientele, representatives of outside

agencies, other County employees and officials, and the general public.

WORK ENVIRONMENT AND PHYSICAL DEMANDS:

Physical requirements include the ability to lift/carry up to 20-50 pounds occasionally, visual acuity, speech and hearing,
hand and eye coordination and manual dexterity necessary to operate a computer and office equipment. Subject to
standing, walking, sitting, repetitive motion, reaching, climbing stairs, bending, stooping, kneeling, crouching, crawling,
pushing, pulling, balancing, client/customer contact, squatting to perform the essential functions.

This job description is intended to be generic in nature. It is not necessarily an exhaustive list of all duties
and responsibilities. The essential duties, functions and responsibilities and overtime eligibility may vary
based on the specific tasks assigned to the position.

Page 2 of 2

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Human Resources Assistant II

JOB CODE: 14308 FLSA STATUS: Non-Exempt
PAY GRADE: 14 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

JOB SUMMARY:

Works under moderate supervision and normally receives detailed instruction on work assignments. Supports Human
Resources management activities in various divisions throughout the organization. Assists in administration of Human
Resources management programs. Performs Human Resources support activities and maintains confidentiality
regarding Human Resources related issues.

DISTINGUISHING CHARACTERISTICS:

This is a job classification within the Human Resources job family.

DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES:

• Coordinates administrative processing of new hires and terminations. Processes applications, pre-employment
screening, testing, scheduling interviews, meetings, training sessions, conducting employment verifications,
responding to applicants regarding job openings, and responding to departmental and other inquires related to
Human Resources issues. Prepares job postings and job descriptions, as required.

• Logs data and maintains personnel and/or payroll files, records and/or budget information.

• Assists in the administration and communication of policies and procedures. Responds to requests from
employees, applicants, public, management, and other County departments regarding ADA, FMLA, ELSA, Workers
Compensation, health insurance, billings, employee benefits enrollment, hiring procedures, job requirements,
training, light duty assignments. Processes required forms and provides recommendations concerning procedures
and personnel issues, as required.

• Prepares, processes and monitors Personnel Action Forms and coordinates with payroll personnel ensuring
conformity to State and Federal laws and regulations and County policies.

• Processes and logs various personnel actions including employee performance appraisal forms, family medical
leave requests, vacation requests, and time-sheets.

• Assists in evaluating jobs, preparing job descriptions, conducting internal and external surveys to compile
information, and analyzing information for reports and presentations.

• Drafts, develops and processes memos, letters, reports, newsletters, forms, and other documents.

• Assists with payroll functions, and maintaining training records and data. Researches and produces Human
Resources related statistical reports and presentations, as required.

• Advises management and employees on Human Resources issues, Employment Law, Civil Service Regulations,
County Policy, ELSA, FMLA, ADA, Workers Compensation, and SherifVs Office Policy.

• Performs other job-related duties as assigned.

MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS:

Education and Experience:
Associate’s degree in Personnel Management, Human Resources Management, Business Administration or a directly
related field AND three (3) years of administrative experience supporting Human Resources activities;

OR,

Any combination of education and experience that has been achieved and is equivalent to the stated education and
experience and required knowledge, skills, and abilities sufficient to successfully perform the duties and responsibilities
of this job.

Page 1 of 2

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Human Resources Assistant II

JOB CODE: 14308 FLSA STATUS: Non-Exempt
PAY GRADE: 14 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS: (Cont.)

Licenses, Registrations, Certifications, or Special Requirements:
None required.

Preferred:
Specialized coursework in the area of Human Resources.
Bachelor’s degree in Personnel Management, Human Resources Management, Public Administration, Business
Administration.
Valid Texas Driver’s License.

Knowledge. Skills, and Abilities:
Knowledge of:
• File management and techniques.
• County policies, procedures and terminology.
• Principles and practices of Human Resources management.
• Federal, State, and Local regulations and laws pertaining to employment, Workers Compensation, American with

Disabilities Act, Family Medical Leave Act, Fair Labor Standards Act.
• Computer equipment to include word processing, spreadsheets, databases and a variety of software packages.
• Business letter writing, grammar and punctuation, and report preparation.

Skill in:
• Resolving complex problems.
• Conducting research and presenting information.
• Compiling data and generating reports.
• Both verbal and written communication.

Ability to:
• Maintain confidential data and information.
• Create effective filing systems and retrieve and disseminate information.
• Work independently and accomplish department/division objectives.
• Compile data and to write clear and comprehensive reports.
• Perform multitasking.
• Explain information.
• Establish and maintain effective working relationships with departmental clientele, representatives of outside agencies,

other County employees and officials, and the general public.

WORK ENVIRONMENT AND PHYSICAL DEMANDS:

Physical requirements include the ability to lift/carry up to 20-50 pounds occasionally, visual acuity, speech and hearing,
hand and eye coordination and manual dexterity necessary to operate a computer and office equipment. Subject to
standing, walking, sitting, repetitive motion, reaching, climbing stairs, bending, stooping, kneeling, crouching, crawling,
pushing, pulling, balancing, client/customer contact, squatting to perform the essential functions.

This job description is intended to be generic in nature. It is not necessarily an exhaustive list of all duties
and responsibilities. The essential duties, functions and responsibilities and overtime eligibility may vary

p based on the specific tasks assigned to the position.

Page2of2

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Human Resources Assistant Senior

JOB CODE: 16310 FLSA STATUS: Non-Exempt
PAY GRADE: 16 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

JOB SUMMARY:

Works under limited supervision. Supports Human Resources management activities in various departments
throughout the organization. Assists in administration of Human Resources management programs. Performs
moderately complex Human Resources support activities in such areas as employment, compensation, benefits,
training, employment relations, compliance, budget, and maintains confidentiality in these areas, as required. Exercises
a high degree of discretion, initiative, and latitude in executing work priorities. Maintains frequent contact with
employees at all levels in the organization.

DISTINGUISHING CHARACTERISTICS:

This is a job classification within the Human Resources job family. Senior level Human Resources Assistant position.

DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES:

• Coordinates administrative processing of new hires and terminations. Processes applications, pre-employment
screening, testing, scheduling interviews, meetings, training sessions, conducting employment verifications,
responding to applicants regarding job openings, and responding to departmental and other inquires related to
Human Resources issues. Prepares job postings and job descriptions, as required.

• Logs data and maintains personnel and/or payroll files, records and/or budget information.

• Performs direct administrative and office management support services to department head and staff. Assists and
prepare Commissioners Court agenda items for requested action (i.e., approve County Holidays, Leadership
Training, Tuition Refund).

• Coordinates and administers Peace Officers Pay Scale (POPS) Skill Based Pay and Bilingual Testing process.

• Prepares budget balance reports, fund transfers, purchase requisitions/purchase orders in H T E.

• Assists in the administration and communication of policies and procedures. Responds to requests and coordinates
employee, applicant, public, management, and other County departments regarding ADA, FMLA, Workers
Compensation, health insurance, billings, employee benefits enrollment, hiring procedures, job requirements,
training, light duty assignments. Processes required forms and provides recommendations concerning procedures
and personnel issues, as required.

• Prepares, processes and monitors Personnel Action Forms and coordinate with payroll personnel ensuring
conformity to State and Federal laws and regulations, and County policies.

• Processes and fogs various personnel actions including employee performance appraisal forms, family medical
leave requests, vacation requests, and time-sheets.

• Interprets and completes personnel forms, Workers Compensation claims, Family Medical Leave Act (FMLA)
claims, Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA) interpretation and light duty work requests, requests for payroll, sets
up and maintains personnel files; verifies and updates time sheets on-line; distributes payroll and operating checks.
Issue badges, keys, telephone calling cards and personal identification numbers.

• Assists in evaluating jobs, preparing job descriptions, conducting internal and external surveys to compile
information, and analyzing information for reports and presentations.

• Drafts, develops and processes memos, letters, reports, newsletters, forms, and other documents.

• Assists with payroll functions, and maintaining training records and data. Researches and produces Human
Resources related statistical reports and presentations, as required.

• Advises management and employees on Human Resources issues, Employment Law, Civil Service Regulations,
County Policy, FLSA, FMLA, ADA, and Sheriff’s Office Policy.

• Performs other job-related duties as assigned.

Pagelof2

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Human Resources Assistant Senior

JOB CODE: 16310 FLSA STATUS: Non-Exempt
PAY GRADE: 16 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS:

Education and Experience:
Associate’s degree in Personnel Management, Human Resources Management, Business Administration or a directly
related field AND five (5) years of administrative experience supporting Human Resources activities;

OR,

Any combination of education and experience that has been achieved and is equivalent to the stated education and
experience and required knowledge, skills, and abilities sufficient to successfully perform the duties and responsibilities
of this job.

Licenses, Registrations, Certifications, or Special Requirements:
None required.

Preferred:
Bachelor’s degree in Personnel Management, Human Resources Management, Public Administration, Business
Administration.
Senior Professional in Human Resources (SPHR); OR, Professional in Human Resources Certification (PHR).
Valid Texas Driver’s License.

Knowledge, Skills, and Abilities:
Knowledge of:
• County policies, procedures and terminology.
• Principles and practices of Human Resources management.
• Federal, State, and Local regulations and laws pertaining to employment, Workers Compensation, American with

Disabilities Act, Family Medical Leave Act, Fair Labor Standards Act.
• Computer equipment to include word processing, spreadsheets, databases and a variety of software packages.
• Business letter writing, grammar and punctuation, and report preparation.

Skill in:
• Resolving complex problems.
• Conducting research and presenting information.
• Compiling data and generating reports.
• Both verbal and written communication.

Ability to:
• Maintain confidential data and information.
• Work independently and accomplish department/division objectives.
• Compile data and to write clear and comprehensive reports.
• Perform multitasking.
• Explain information.
• Establish and maintain effective working relationships with departmental clientele, representatives of outside

agencies, other County employees and officials, and the general public.

WORK ENVIRONMENT AND PHYSICAL DEMANDS:

Physical requirements include the ability to lift/carry up to 20-50 pounds occasionally, visual acuity, speech and hearing,
hand and eye coordination and manual dexterity necessary to operate a computer and office equipment. Subject to
standing, walking, sitting, repetitive motion, reaching, climbing stairs, bending, stooping, kneeling, crouching, crawling,
pushing, pulling, balancing, client/customer contact, squatting to perform the essential functions.

rmis job description is intended to be generic in nature. It is not necessarily an exhaustive list of all duties
and responsibilities. The essential duties, functions and responsibilities and overtime eligibility may vary
based on the specific tasks assigned to the position.

/, ,c2
Page2of2 (/1O

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Benefits Assistant I

JOB CODE: 12304 FLSA STATUS: Non-Exempt
PAY GRADE: 12 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

JOB SUMMARY:

Works under moderate supervision and normally receives detailed instruction on work assignments. Performs entry-level
benefits administration/human resources support activities and maintains confidentiality regarding related issues.
Supports activities in such areas as health, life, welfare, retirement and maintains confidentiality in these areas as
appropriate. Assists employees and retirees with inquiries and questions concerning health, welfare and retirement
benefits. Provides support for employee orientation, open enrollment, claims submissions and verification of eligibility
status.

DISTINGUISHING CHARACTERISTICS:

This is a job classification within the Human Resources job family. Entry level benefits assistant position that provides
benefits administration support from Corporate Human Resources.

DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES:

• Provides support for New Hire Orientation. Assists in ensuring vendors are on time and keep within allotted time given
for presentation. Coordinates with Liaisons via email when new hires should report to HRMD for orientation.
Assembles information to be handed out at orientation. Assists in conducting New Hire Orientation and describing
Travis County health benefit coverage. Assists new hires on how to use the online benefits system.

• Provides customer service in assisting employees and retirees with any issues they are having regarding claims and
bills. Assists walk-in customers with questions. Gathers important documents that are needed to resolve the problem
(e.g., marriage license, birth certificates, loss of coverage documents, gaining insurance coverage documents).
Contacts outside vendors, as directed.

• Assembles reports on weekly basis from department email system to terminate employees.

• Assists with the review of employee benefit eligibility. Makes change in status for employees when requested within
the allowable thirty-day time frame. Makes determination of validity of the request. Makes the proper changes in the
open enrollment system for employees who are retiring. Enters employees who are retiring into the outside vendor
system for billing purpose.

• Submits claim information. Processes short and long-term disability claim forms for employees. Reviews forms when
they are turned into Human Resources to ensure they are filled out correctly before faxing to outside vendor.

• Assists in processing terminations from enrollment, receiving data from payroll on terminated employees. Accesses
vendors system to add terminated employees into their system for COBRA information to be sent out to employee.

• Assists with arranging offsite open enrollment locations. Gathers information to take to location. Answers questions
employees may have about benefits.

• Performs other job-related duties as assigned.

MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS:

Education and Experience:
Associate’s degree in Human Resources, Public Administration or a directly related field AND one (1) year of
administrative experience supporting human resources activities;

OR,

Any combination of education and experience that has been achieved and is equivalent to the stated education and
experience and required knowledge, skills, and abilities sufficient to successfully perform the duties and responsibilities
of this job.

Page 1 of 2

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Benefits Assistant I

JOB CODE: 12304 FLSA STATUS: Non-Exempt
PAY GRADE: 12 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS: (Cont.)

Licenses, Registrations, Certifications, or Special Requirements:
Certified Employee Benefits Specialist (CEBS) coursework.
Valid Texas Driver’s License.

Preferred:
Bachelor’s degree in Personnel Management, Human Resources Management, Public Administration, Business
Administration.
Specialized coursework in the area of Human Resources.
Proficient at speaking, English, Spanish and/or sign language.

Knowledge, Skills, and Abilities:
Knowledge of:
• County policies, procedures and terminology associated with the organization’s benefits programs.
• Medical terminology.
• Principles and practices of Human Resources management.
• Federal, State, and Local regulations and laws pertaining to employment, Workers Compensation, American with

Disabilities Act, Family Medical Leave Act, COBRA, HIPPA.
• Benefit and Insurance - Summary Plan Descriptions.
• Internal Revenue Service guidelines concerning insurance, weilness and benefits.
• Vendor Billing Computer System.
• Computer equipment to include word processing, spreadsheets, databases and a variety of software packages.
• Business letter writing, grammar and punctuation, and report preparation.

Skill in:
• Resolving problems.
• Conducting research and presenting information.
• Compiling data and generating reports.
• Both verbal and written communication.

Ability to:
• Maintain confidential data and information.
• Accomplish department/division objectives.
• Perform multitasking.
• Provide excellent customer service.
• Establish and maintain effective working relationships with departmental clientele, representatives of outside

agencies, other County employees and officials, and the general public.

WORK ENVIRONMENT AND PHYSICAL DEMANDS:

Physical requirements include the ability to lift/carry up to 20-50 pounds occasionally, visual acuity, speech and hearing,
hand and eye coordination and manual dexterity necessary to operate a computer and office equipment. Subject to
standing, walking, sitting, repetitive motion, reaching, climbing stairs, bending, stooping, kneeling, crouching, crawling,
pushing, pulling, balancing, client/customer contact, squatting to perform the essential functions.

This job description is intended to be generic in nature. It is not necessarily an exhaustive list of all duties
and responsibilities. The essential duties, functions and responsibilities and overtime eligibility may vary

Lbased on the specific tasks assigned to the position.

Page2of2

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Benefits Assistant II

JOB CODE: 14305 FLSA STATUS: Non-Exempt
PAY GRADE: 14 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

JOB SUMMARY:

Works under general supervision with latitude for the use of initiative in executing work priorities. Assists in administration
of benefits and human resource programs. Performs semi-routine to moderately complex benefits administration support
activities in such areas as health, life, welfare, retirement and maintains confidentiality in these areas as appropriate.
Maintains frequent contact with employees at all levels in the organization. Responsible for assisting employees and
retirees with inquiries and questions concerning health, welfare and retirement benefits. Provides support and may
coordinate employee orientation, open enrollment, claims submissions and verification of eligibility status.

DISTINGUISHING CHARACTERISTICS:

This is a job classification within the Human Resources job family. Intermediate benefits assistant position that provides
benefits administration support from Corporate Human Resources.

DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES:

• Provides support for New Hire Orientation, schedules new employees for Orientation. Assists in ensuring vendors are
on time and keep within allotted time given for presentation. Coordinates with Liaisons via email when new hires
should report to HRMD for orientation. Assembles information to be handed out at orientation. Assists in conducting
New Hire Orientation and describing Travis County health benefit coverage. Assists new hires on how to use the
online benefits system.

• Provides customer service in assisting employees and retirees with any issues they are having regarding claims and
bills. Assists walk-in customers with questions. Gathers important documents that are needed to resolve the problem
(e.g., marriage license, birth certificates, loss of coverage documents, gaining insurance coverage documents).
Contacts outside vendors, as directed.

• Assembles reports on weekly basis from department email system to terminate employees.

• Reviews benefit eligibility. Makes change in status for employees when requested within the allowable thirty-day time
frame. Makes determination of validity of the request. Makes the proper changes in the open enrollment system for
employees who are retiring. Enters the employees who are retiring into the outside vendor system for billing purpose.

• Submits claim information. Processes short and long-term disability claim forms for employees. Reviews forms when
they are turned into Human Resources to ensure they are filled out correctly before faxing to outside vendor.

• Assists in processing terminations from enrollment. Receives data from payroll on terminated employees. Terminates
employees in the open enrollment system. Accesses vendors system to add terminated employees into their system
for COBRA information to be sent out to employee.

• Assists with arranging offsite open enrollment locations. Gathers information to take to location. Answers questions
employees may have about benefits.

• Performs other job-related duties as assigned.

MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS:

Education and Experience:
Associate’s degree in Personnel Management, Human Resources Management, Public Administration, Business
Administration or a directly related field AND three (3) years of administrative experience supporting human resources
activities;

OR,

Any combination of education and experience that has been achieved and is equivalent to the stated education and
experience and required knowledge, skills, and abilities sufficient to successfully perform the duties and responsibilities
of this job.

Pagelof2

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Benefits Assistant II

JOB CODE: 14305 FLSA STATUS: Non-Exempt
PAY GRADE: 14 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS: (Cont.)

Licenses, Registrations, Certifications, or Special Requirements:
Certified Employee Benefits Specialist (CEBS) coursework.
Valid Texas Driver’s License.

Preferred:
Specialized coursework in the area of Human Resources.
Bachelor’s degree in Personnel Management, Human Resources Management, Public Administration, Business
Administration.
Proficient at speaking, English, Spanish and/or sign language.

Knowledge, Skills, and Abilities:
Knowledge of:
• County policies, procedures and terminology associated with the organization’s benefits programs.
• Medical terminology.
• Principles and practices of Human Resources management.
• Federal, State, and Local regulations and laws pertaining to employment, Workers Compensation, American with

Disabilities Act, Family Medical Leave Act, COBRA, HIPPA.
• Benefit and Insurance - Summary Plan Descriptions.
• Internal Revenue Service guidelines concerning insurance, weliness and benefits.
• Vendor Billing Computer System.
• Computer equipment to include word processing, spreadsheets, databases and a variety of software packages.
• Business letter writing, grammar and punctuation, and report preparation.

Skill in:
• Resolving problems.
• Conducting research and presenting information.
• Compiling data and generating reports.
• Both verbal and written communication.

Ability to:
• Maintain confidential data and information.
• Accomplish department/division objectives.
• Perform multitasking.
• Provide excellent customer service.
• Establish and maintain effective working relationships with departmental clientele, representatives of outside agencies,

other County employees and officials, and the general public.

WORK ENVIRONMENT AND PHYSICAL DEMANDS:

Physical requirements include the ability to lift/carry up to 20-50 pounds occasionally, visual acuity, speech and hearing,
hand and eye coordination and manual dexterity necessary to operate a computer and office equipment. Subject to
standing, walking, sitting, repetitive motion, reaching, climbing stairs, bending, stooping, kneeling, crouching, crawling,
pushing, pulling, balancing, client/customer contact, squatting to perform the essential functions.

This job description is intended to be generic in nature. It is not necessarily an exhaustive list of all duties
and responsibilities. The essential duties, functions and responsibilities and overtime eligibility may vary
based on the specific tasks assigned to the position.

Page2of2

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Benefits Assistant Senior

JOB CODE: 16311 FLSA STATUS: Non-Exempt
PAY GRADE: 16 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

JOB SUMMARY:

Works under limited supervision. Responsible for assisting employees and retirees with inquiries and questions
concerning health, welfare and retiree benefits. Performs employee orientation, open enrollment, claims submissions and
verification of eligibility status.

DISTINGUISHING CHARACTERISTICS:

This is a job classification within the Human Resources job family. Senior level benefits assistant position that provides
benefits administration support from Corporate Human Resources.

DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES:

• Performs New Hire Orientation, schedules new employees for Orientation. Makes sure vendors are on time and keep
within allotted time given for presentation. Coordinates with Liaisons via email when new hires should report to HRMD
for orientation. Assembles information to be handed out at orientation. Conducts New Hire Orientation and describes
all Travis County health benefit coverage. Instructs new hires how to use the online benefits system.

• Provides customer service in assisting employees and retirees with any issues they are having regarding claims and
bills. Assists walk-in customers with questions. Gathers important documents that are needed to resolve the problem
(e.g., marriage license, birth certificates, loss of coverage documents, gaining insurance coverage documents).
Contacts outside vendors, as directed.

• Assembles reports on weekly basis from department email system to terminate employees.

• Reviews benefit eligibility. Makes change in status for employees when requested within the allowable thirty-day time
frame. Makes determination of validity of the request. Makes the proper changes in the open enrollment system for
employees who are retiring. Enters the employees who are retiring into the outside vendor system for billing purpose.

• Submits claim information. Processes short and long-term disability claim forms for employees. Reviews forms when
they are turned into Human Resource to ensure they are filled out correctly before faxing to outside vendor.

• Processes terminations from enrollment. Receives data from payroll on terminated employees. Terminates
employees in the open enrollment system. Accesses vendors system to add terminated employees into their system
for COBRA information to be sent out to employee.

• Arranges for offsite open enrollment locations. Gathers information to take to location. Answers questions employees
may have about benefits.

• Performs other job-related duties as assigned.

MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS:

Education and Experience:
Associate’s degree in Personnel Management, Human Resources Management, Public Administration, Business
Administration or a directly related field AND five (5) years of benefit related experience;

OR,

Any combination of education and experience that has been achieved and is equivalent to the stated education and
experience and required knowledge, skills, and abilities sufficient to successfully perform the duties and responsibilities
of this job.

Licenses, Registrations, Certifications, or Special Requirements:
Certified Employee Benefits Specialist (CEBS) coursework.
Valid Texas Driver’s License.

Page 1 of 2

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Benefits Assistant Senior

JOB CODE: 16311 FLSA STATUS: Non-Exempt
PAY GRADE: 16 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS: (Cont.)

Preferred:
Specialized coursework in the area of Human Resources.
Bachelor’s degree in Personnel Management, Human Resources Management, Public Administration, Business
Administration.
Proficient at speaking, English, Spanish and/or sign language.
Certified Government Benefits Administrator (CGBA).

Knowledge, Skills, and Abilities:
Knowledge of:
• County policies, procedures and terminology associated with the organization’s benefits programs.
• Medical terminology.
• Principles and practices of Human Resources management.
• Federal, State, and Local regulations and laws pertaining to employment, Workers Compensation, American with

Disabilities Act, Family Medical Leave Act, COBRA, HIPPA.
• Benefit and Insurance - Summary Plan Descriptions.
• Internal Revenue Service guidelines concerning insurance, wellness and benefits.
• Vendor Billing Computer System.
• Computer equipment to include word processing, spreadsheets, databases and a variety of software packages.
• Business letter writing, grammar and punctuation, and report preparation.

Skill in:
• Resolving complex problems.
• Conducting research and presenting information.
• Compiling data and generating reports.
• Both verbal and written communication.

Ability to:
• Maintain confidential data and information.
• Work independently and accomplish department/division objectives.
• Compile data and to write clear and comprehensive reports.
• Perform multitasking.
• Explain information.
• Provide excellent customer service.
• Establish and maintain effective working relationships with departmental clientele, representatives of outside

agencies, other County employees and officials, and the general public.

WORK ENVIRONMENT AND PHYSICAL DEMANDS:

Physical requirements include the ability to lift/carry up to 20-50 pounds occasionally, visual acuity, speech and hearing,
hand and eye coordination and manual dexterity necessary to operate a computer and office equipment. Subject to
standing, walking, sitting, repetitive motion, reaching, climbing stairs, bending, stooping, kneeling, crouching, crawling,
pushing, pulling, balancing, client/customer contact, squatting to perform the essential functions.

This job description is intended to be generic in nature. It is not necessarily an exhaustive list of all duties
and responsibilities. The essential duties, functions and responsibilities and overtime eligibility may vary
based on the specific tasks assigned to the position.

Page2of2

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Benefits Assistant SeniorlWellness Specialist

JOB CODE: 16312 FLSA STATUS: Non-Exempt
PAY GRADE: 16 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

JOB SUMMARY:

Works under limited supervision. Responsible for assisting employees and retirees with inquiries and questions
concerning health, welfare and retiree benefits. Performs employee orientation, open enrollment, claims submissions and
verification of eligibility status.

DISTINGUISHING CHARACTERISTICS:

This is a job classification within the Human Resources job family. Senior level benefits assistant position that provides
benefits administration support from Corporate Human Resources.

DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES:

• Performs New Hire Orientation, schedules new employees for Orientation. Makes sure vendors are on time and keep
within allotted time given for presentation. Coordinates with Liaisons via email when new hires should report to HRMD
for orientation. Assembles information to be handed out at orientation. Conducts New Hire Orientation and describes
all Travis County health benefit coverage. Instructs new hires how to use the online benefits system.

• Provides customer service in assisting employees and retirees with any issues they are having regarding claims and
bills. Assists walk-in customers with questions. Gathers important documents that are needed to resolve the problem
(e.g., marriage license, birth certificates, loss of coverage documents, gaining insurance coverage documents).
Contacts outside vendors, as directed.

• Assembles reports on weekly basis from department email system to terminate employees.

• Reviews benefit eligibility. Makes change in status for employees when requested within the allowable thirty-day time
frame. Makes determination of validity of the request. Makes the proper changes in the open enrollment system for
employees who are retiring. Enters the employees who are retiring into the outside vendor system for billing purpose.

• Submits claim information. Processes short and long-term disability claim forms for employees. Reviews forms when
they are turned into Human Resources to ensure they are filled out correctly before faxing to outside vendor.

• Processes terminations from enrollment. Receives data from payroll on terminated employees. Terminates
employees in the open enrollment system. Accesses vendors system to add terminated employees into their system
for COBRA information to be sent out to employee.

• Assists in planning, developing, implementing and maintaining weilness programs. Coordinates with Health and
Lifestyle various program partners. Develops and maintains wellness programs. Assists with providing ongoing
communication to employees regarding health and weliness improvement events, activities and seminars. Tracks
members progress. Tracks program statistical data and prepares management reports. Assists in implementation of
wellness initiatives and provides guidance for wellness strategies. Coaches and guides employees on lifestyle
behaviors and lowering risk factors. Prepares all marketing material and information for the program.

• Arranges for offsite open enrollment locations. Gathers information to take to location. Answers questions employees
may have about benefits.

• Performs other job-related duties as assigned.

MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS:

Education and Experience:
Associate’s degree in Personnel Management, Human Resources Management, Public Administration, Business
Administration or a directly related field AND five (5) years of benefits and wellness related experience;

OR,

Any combination of education and experience that has been achieved and is equivalent to the stated education and
experience and required knowledge, skills, and abilities sufficient to successfully perform the duties and responsibilities
of this job.

Page 1 of 2

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Benefits Assistant SeniorlWellness Specialist

JOB CODE: 16312 FLSA STATUS: Non-Exempt
PAY GRADE: 16 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS: (Cont.)

Licenses, Registrations, Certifications, or Special Requirements:
Certified Employee Benefits Specialist (CEBS) coursework.
Valid Texas Driver’s License.

Preferred:
Specialized coursework in the area of Human Resources.
Bachelor’s degree in Personnel Management, Human Resources Management, Public Administration, Business
Administration.
Proficient at speaking, English, Spanish and/or sign language.
Certified Government Benefits Administrator (CGBA).

Knowledge, Skills, and Abilities:
Knowledge of:
• County policies, procedures and terminology associated with the organization’s benefits and wellness programs.
• Medical terminology.
• Principles and practices of Human Resources management.
• Federal, State, and Local regulations and laws pertaining to employment, Workers Compensation, American with

Disabilities Act, Family Medical Leave Act, COBRA, HIPPA.
• Benefit and Insurance - Summary Plan Descriptions.
• Internal Revenue Service guidelines concerning insurance, wellness and benefits.
• Vendor Billing Computer System.
• Computer equipment to include word processing, spreadsheets, databases and a variety of software packages.
• Business letter writing, grammar and punctuation, and report preparation.

Skill in:
• Resolving complex problems.
• Conducting research and presenting information.
• Compiling data and generating reports.
• Both verbal and written communication.

Ability to:
• Maintain confidential data and information.
• Work independently and accomplish department/division objectives.
• Compile data and to write clear and comprehensive reports.
• Perform multitasking.
• Explain information.
• Provide excellent customer service.
• Establish and maintain effective working relationships with departmental clientele, representatives of outside

agencies, other County employees and officials, and the general public.

WORK ENVIRONMENT AND PHYSICAL DEMANDS:

Physical requirements include the ability to liftlcarry up to 20-50 pounds occasionally, visual acuity, speech and hearing,
hand and eye coordination and manual dexterity necessary to operate a computer and office equipment. Subject to
standing, walking, sitting, repetitive motion, reaching, climbing stairs, bending, stooping, kneeling, crouching, crawling,
pushing, pulling, balancing, client/customer contact, squatting to perform the essential functions.

This job description is intended to be generic in nature. It is not necessarily an exhaustive list of all duties
and responsibilities. The essential duties, functions and responsibilities and overtime eligibility may vary
based on the specific tasks assigned to the position.

Page2of2

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Human Resources Specialist I

JOB CODE: 18314 FLSA STATUS: Exempt
PAY GRADE: 18 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

JOB SUMMARY:

This entry-level professional Human Resources position assists in the coordination, and administration of Human
Resource programs in County Departments or in the Corporate Human Resources Office. Performs generalist Human
Resources services such as Human Resource program administration, recruitment, staff training and development, job
analysis, administration of personnel actions, employee relations. Provides internal consulting services and advises
management on specific Human Resources programs and services and provides information and interpretation of
County and Human Resources policies and procedures.

DISTINGUISHING CHARACTERISTICS:

This is a job classification within the Human Resources job family. Entry level Human Resources generalist position.
This classification may require a flexible work schedule in order to meet the needs of the department.

DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES:

• Consults with employees and management on employee relations matters. Conducts documentation review and
recommends to management mutually acceptable solutions by taking corrective actions and/or through facilitation
and/or mediation to support disciplinary actions, demotions, suspensions, progressive disciplines, termination process,
performance evaluation process, and appeal process. Participates in or leads the process of resolving conflicts,
complaints, and problems.

• Investigates employee complaints, grievances, confrontations, performance improvement or disagreements in a
constructive manner. Writes reports and investigative documentation to support findings, makes determinations on
policy violations and recommendations for course of action.

• Assists with the development and/or customization of training programs for employees. Develops lesson plans and
delivers those programs. Assists in the development of curriculum and coordinates training.

• Evaluates and assesses organizational training and employee development needs. Recommends training and
program enhancements to ensure appropriate skills are developed. Plans training program schedules. Serves as
liaison with departments, management staff, and training consultants. Assists in the evaluation and selection of
training consultants.

• Conducts Human Resources research and sources for background and supporting information. Prepares written
analysis of such research.

• Confers with management in the development or modification of Human Resources policies, procedures, rules, and
practices of specific Human Resources programs and services. Recommends changes and improvements, and
ensures compliance with Federal, State and Local employment regulations and County objectives.

• Reviews performance evaluations and explains the process and appeals process.

• Attends grievance panel deliberations, and advises panel on policy.

• Advises managers, supervisors, and employees on human resource policies and procedures and State and Federal
laws and regulations such as Americans with Disabilities Act, Family and Medical Leave Act, Fair Labor Standards
Act and Equal Employment Opportunity.

• Administers Human Resources programs, services and events such as Tuition Refund, Employee Recognition,
Leadership Training, Exit Interviews to determine reasons why employees leave Travis County and monitor
compliance with employment law requirements such as FMLA, Workers Compensation, and ADA.

• Responds to unemployment claims and appeal hearings to contest benefits requested by former employees.

• Assists in the response to charges filed with the Equal Employment Opportunity Commissioner/Texas Commission
on Human Rights.

• Responds to open records requests and subpoenas.

Page 1 of 3 2? 7

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Human Resources Specialist I

JOB CODE: 18314 FLSA STATUS: Exempt
PAY GRADE: 18 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES: (Cont.)

• Develops and delivers training for departments and make presentations.

• Conducts new employee orientation from a policy perspective, summarizing the structure of Travis County,
retirement, at-will status, and other benefits not related to group benefits.

• Responds to inquiries and complaints from employees and the public about employment opportunities.

• Assists with the coordination of recruitment activities and acts as a recruiter for the department. Researches and
identifies trends for appropriate advertising sources. Designs, prepares and places job vacancy advertisements in
targeted professional journals, newspapers, internet employment sites and other related sources.

• Assists with the maintenance of the electronic mail box for receipt of applications. Processes the applications.
Screens and evaluates applications for acceptability.

• Supports the Employee Relations function as a member of the case review team.

• Makes presentations to employees on Human Resources-related topics.

• Consults with managers, supervisors and employees regarding human resource policies and procedures.

• Prepares correspondence, reports, conducts review studies and research on a variety of Human Resources issues.

• Performs other job-related duties as assigned.

MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS:

Education and Experience:
Bachelor’s degree in Personnel Management, Human Resources Management, Public Administration, Business
Administration or a directly related field AND one (1) year of directly related demonstrated experience as to assigned
Human Resources position;
OR,

Any combination of education and experience that has been achieved and is equivalent to the stated education and
experience and required knowledge, skills, and abilities sufficient to successfully perform the duties and responsibilities
of this job.

Licenses, Registrations, Certifications, or Special Requirements:
None required.

Preferred:
Certified Compensation Professional (CCP); OR, Certified Benefits Professional (CBP).
Senior Professional in Human Resources (SPHR); OR, Professional in Human Resources Certification (PHR).
Specialized coursework in the area of Human Resources.
Valid Texas Driver’s License.

KnowledQe, Skills, and Abilities:
Knowledge of:
• Federal, State and Local regulations, codes and laws: Employment laws and Affirmative Action, Title VII of Civil

Rights Act, Equal Pay Act, ELSA, ADA, FMLA, EEOC, 1-9, Texas Workforce Commission Rules, Regulations and
Statutes, Open Records Act, and Texas Governor’s Committee on Disabilities.

• Principles and practices of Human Resources management.
• County policies, procedures and terminology.
• Compiling data and generating reports.
• Recent Human Resources developments and current literature.
• Office management.
• Computer equipment to include word processing, spreadsheets, databases and a variety of software packages.
• Business letter writing, grammar and punctuation, and report preparation.

Page 2 of 3

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Human Resources Specialist I

JOB CODE: 18314 FLSA STATUS: Exempt
PAY GRADE: 18 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS: (Cont.)

Skill in:
• Applying Human Resources methods.
• Problem solving and decision-making.
• Customer service delivery.
• Explaining complicated technical problems in simple non-technical language.
• Both verbal and written communication.

Ability to:
• Interpret policies, procedures, and Federal, State and Local applicable laws.
• Develop and make effective presentations.
• Convey complex ideas and concepts verbally and in writing.
• Work independently as well as in a team environment.
• Manage time well, perform multiple tasks and organize diverse activities.
• Establish and maintain effective working relationships with County employees and officials, representatives of outside

agencies, and the general public.

WORK ENVIRONMENT AND PHYSICAL DEMANDS:

Physical requirements include the ability to lift/carry up to 20-50 pounds occasionally, visual acuity, speech and hearing,
hand and eye coordination and manual dexterity necessary to operate a computer and office equipment. Subject to
standing, walking, sitting, repetitive motion, reaching, climbing stairs, bending, stooping, kneeling, crouching, crawling,
pushing, pulling, balancing, client/customer contact, squatting to perform the essential functions.

This job description is intended to be generic in nature. It is not necessarily an exhaustive list of all duties
and responsibilities. The essential duties, functions and responsibilities and overtime eligibility may vary
based on the specific tasks assigned to the position.

Page 3of3

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Human Resources Specialist II

JOB CODE: 20320 FLSA STATUS: Exempt
PAY GRADE: 20 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

JOB SUMMARY:

This is an intermediate level generalist position that works closely with management to provide professional level human
resource management services to include recruitment and staffing, compensation and benefit administration,
employment relations, organization development. Works on problems of moderate scope where review of problems or
situations requires evaluation of identifiable factors. Exercises judgment within defined practices and policies in
selecting methods, techniques, and evaluation criterion for obtaining results. Provides assistance with Union
negotiations and administration. Responsible for facilitating effective problem-solving processes and employee
relations training. Ensures compliance with applicable Federal, State and County employment laws and policies.
Develops and maintains key relationships and alliances with relevant County, City and State management staff.
Provides assistance and coordination of administrative processing and recordkeeping for all personnel actions for the
department; including hiring, staffing, compensation, benefits, performance and leave.

DISTINGUISHING CHARACTERISTICS:

This is a job classification within the Human Resources job family. Intermediate level Human Resources generalist
position. This classification may require a flexible work schedule in order to meet the needs of the department.

DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES:

• Provides advice and counsel to Managers and Supervisors regarding Human Resource Management issues.
Facilitates problem-solving strategies. Develops and contributes to Human Resource program goals, initiatives and
best-practices, ensuring adherence to and compliance with applicable Federal, State and Local laws and
departmental and County policies and practices.

• Researches, compiles data, drafts and prepares correspondence and written analysis for revising or creating
Human Resources policies and procedures that are consistent with Federal and State laws and regulations.

• Consults with outside agencies (professional organizations, other employers, and government agencies) for advice
in policy development.

• Responds to unemployment claims and appeal hearings to contest benefits requested by former employees.

• Responds to open records requests and subpoenas.

• Serves as a liaison and works in cooperation with other County offices and departments.

• Counsels and coaches with employees on issues, concerns and grievances, professional development, and other
work-related issues.

• Provides assistance to management and employees on conflict resolution; researching, reporting and responding to
informal and formal complaints; provides advice, preparation and responses to grievance hearings, pre-deprivation
meetings, alternative dispute resolution/mediation and EEOC/TCHR complaints.

• Provides administration, coordination and communication of policies and procedures regarding various Human
Resource laws and practices including: EEO, FMLA, Workers Compensation, ADA, FLSA, hiring/staffing,
compensation and associated recordkeeping. Provides technical support to other professional human resource
support staff in carrying out these functions.

• Develops and delivers training to departments and staff and makes presentations. Conducts new employee
orientation from a policy perspective, summarizing the structure of Travis County, retirement, at-will status, and other
benefits not related to group benefits.

• Compiles and analyzes wage data. Oversees and approves Department Personnel Action process. Provides advice
on classification, corn pensation, salary administration matters.

• Evaluates jobs, develops job descriptions, conducts internal and external surveys to compile information, and analyze
information for reports and presentations.

Page 1 of 3 3O

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Human Resources Specialist II

JOB CODE: 20320 FLSA STATUS: Exempt
PAY GRADE: 20 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES: (Cont.)

• Plans. staffs, evaluates, and directs work of others.

• Serves a role in the development of departmental staff development strategies.

• Assists in the design, development, presentation, coordination, facilitation and evaluation of learning strategies and
training programs and initiatives for department employees.

• Provides assistance pertaining to the departments performance management systems and strategies.

• Serves as a resource and member of the team in strategic planning, budgeting, communications and policy
development initiatives for the department.

• Develops, creates and delivers oral reports, presentations, letters and policy revisions, as required.

• Performs other job-related duties as assigned.

MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS:

Education and Experience:
Bachelor’s degree in Personnel Management, Human Resources Management, Public Administration, Business
Administration or a directly related field AND three (3) years of directly related demonstrated experience as to assigned
Human Resources position;
OR,

Any combination of education and experience that has been achieved and is equivalent to the stated education and
experience and required knowledge, skills, and abilities sufficient to successfully perform the duties and responsibilities
of this job.

Licenses, Registrations, Certifications, or Special Requirements:
None required.

Preferred:
Certified Compensation Professional (CCP); OR, Certified Benefits Professional (CBP).
Senior Professional in Human Resources (SPHR); OR, Professional in Human Resources Certification (PHR).
Specialized coursework in the area of Human Resources.
Valid Texas Driver’s License.

Knowledge, Skills, and Abilities:
Knowledge of:
• Federal, State and Local regulations, codes and laws: Employment laws and Affirmative Action, Title VII of Civil

Rights Act, Equal Pay Act, FLSA, ADA, FMLA, EEOC, 1-9, Texas Workforce Commission Rules, Regulations and
Statutes, Open Records Act, and Texas Governor’s Committee on Disabilities.

• Principles and practices of Human Resources management.
• County policies, procedures and terminology.
• Compiling data and generating reports.
• Recent Human Resources developments and current literature.
• Office management.
• Computer equipment to include word processing, spreadsheets, databases and a variety of software packages.
• Business letter writing, grammar and punctuation, and report preparation.

Skill in:
• Applying Human Resources methods.
• Problem solving and decision-making.
• Customer service delivery.
• Explaining complicated technical problems in simple non-technical language.
• Both verbal and written communication. -

Page2of3 6-)

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Human Resources Specialist II

JOB CODE: 20320 FLSA STATUS: Exempt
PAY GRADE: 20 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS: (Cont.)

Ability to:
• Interpret policies, procedures, and Federal, State and Local applicable laws.
• Develop and make effective presentations.
• Convey complex ideas and concepts verbally and in writing.
• Work independently as well as in a team environment.
• Manage time well, perform multiple tasks and organize diverse activities.
• Establish and maintain effective working relationships with County employees and officials, representatives of

outside agencies, and the general public.

WORK ENVIRONMENT AND PHYSICAL DEMANDS:

Physical requirements include the ability to lift/carry up to 20-50 pounds occasionally, visual acuity, speech and hearing,
hand and eye coordination and manual dexterity necessary to operate a computer and office equipment. Subject to
standing, walking, sitting, repetitive motion, reaching, climbing stairs, bending, stooping, kneeling, crouching, crawling,
pushing, pulling, balancing, client/customer contact, squatting to perform the essential functions.

This job description is intended to be generic in nature. It is not necessarily an exhaustive list of all duties
and responsibilities. The essential duties, functions and responsibilities and overtime eligibility may vary
based on the specific tasks assigned to the position.

Page 3 of 3

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Human Resources Specialist Senior

JOB CODE: 22319 FLSA STATUS: Exempt
PAY GRADE: 22 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

JOB SUMMARY:

Works closely with management to provide advanced professional level human resource management services to
include recruitment and staffing, compensation and benefit administration, employment relations, organization
development. Serves as a management consultant on organizational development and strategic human resource
planning. Works on problems of diverse scope where review of problems or situations requires evaluation of
identifiable factors. Exercises judgment within broadly defined practices and policies in selecting methods,
techniques, and evaluation criterion for obtaining results. Provides assistance and guidance with Union negotiations
and administration. Responsible for facilitating effective problem-solving processes and employee relations. Ensures
compliance with applicable Federal, State and County employment laws and policies. Develops and maintains key
relationships and alliances with relevant County, City and State management staff. Provides technical leadership or
oversee the coordination of administrative processing and recordkeeping for all personnel actions for the department;
including hiring, staffing, compensation, benefits, performance and leave.

DISTINGUISHING CHARACTERISTICS:

This is a job classification within the Human Resources job family. Senior Human Resources generalist position. This
classification may require a flexible work schedule in order to meet the needs of the department.

DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES:

• Provides competent advice and counsel to Managers and Supervisors regarding Human Resource Management
issues. Facilitates problem-solving strategies. Develops and contributes to Human Resources program goals,
initiatives and best-practices, ensuring adherence to and compliance with applicable Federal, State and Local
laws and departmental and County policies and practices.

• Researches, compiles data, drafts and prepares correspondence and written analysis for revising or creating
Human Resources policies and procedures that are consistent with Federal and State laws and regulations.

• Consults with outside agencies (professional organizations, other employers, and government agencies) for
advice in policy development.

• Responds to unemployment claims and appeal hearings to contest benefits requested by former employees.

• Responds to open records requests and subpoenas.

• Serves as a liaison and works in cooperation with other County offices and departments.

• Counsels and coaches with employees on issues, concerns and grievances.

• Provides direction to management and employees on conflict resolution; researching, reporting and responding to
informal/formal complaints; provides advice, preparation and responses to grievance hearings, pre-deprivation
meetings, alternative dispute resolution/mediation and EEOC/TCH R complaints.

• Provides administration, coordination and communication of policies and procedures regarding various Human
Resource laws and practices including: EEO, FMLA, Workers Compensation, ADA, ELSA, hiring/staffing,
compensation and associated recordkeeping. Provides technical support, and direction to other professional
human resource support staff in carrying out these functions.

• Develops and delivers training for departments and staff and makes presentations. Conducts new employee
orientation from a policy perspective, summarizing the structure of Travis County, retirement, at-will status, and
other benefits not related to group benefits.

• Prepares and makes presentations to employees and Commissioners Court on Human Resource programs and
services, and Human Resource related topics.

• Serves in a key role in the development of departmental staff development strategies.

Page 1 of 3

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Human Resources Specialist Senior

JOB CODE: 22319 FLSA STATUS: Exempt
PAY GRADE: 22 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES: (Cont.)

• Assists in the design, development, presentation, coordination, facilitation and evaluation of learning strategies
and training programs and initiatives for department employees.

• Provides advice and recommendations pertaining to the department’s performance management systems and
strategies.

• Serves as a key resource and member of the team in strategic planning, budgeting, communications and policy
development initiatives.

• Develops, creates and delivers oral reports, presentations, letters and policy revisions, as required.

• Performs other job-related duties as assigned.

MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS:

Education and Experience:
Bachelor’s degree in Personnel Management, Human Resources Management, Public Administration, Business
Administration or a directly related field AND five (5) years of directly related demonstrated experience as to assigned
Human Resources position;

OR,

Any combination of education and experience that has been achieved and is equivalent to the stated education and
experience and required knowledge, skills, and abilities sufficient to successfully perform the duties and
responsibilities of this job.

Licenses, Registrations, Certifications, or Special Requirements:
None required.

Preferred:
Certified Compensation Professional (CCP); OR, Certified Benefits Professional (CBP).
Senior Professional in Human Resources (SPHR); OR, Professional in Human Resources Certification (PHR).
Specialized coursework in the area of Human Resources.
Valid Texas Driver’s License.

Knowledge, Skills, and Abilities:
Knowledge of:
• Federal, State and Local regulations, codes and laws: Employment laws and Affirmative Action, Title VII of Civil

Rights Act, Equal Pay Act, FLSA, ADA, FMLA, EEOC, 1-9, Texas Workforce Commission Rules, Regulations and
Statutes, Open Records Act, and Texas Governor’s Committee on Disabilities.

• Principles and practices of Human Resources management.
• County policies, procedures and terminology.
• Compiling data and generating reports.
• Recent Human Resources developments and current literature.
• Office management.
• Computer equipment to include word processing, spreadsheets, databases and a variety of software packages.
• Business letter writing, grammar and punctuation, and report preparation.

Skill in:
• Applying Human Resources methods.
• Problem-solving and decision-making.
• Customer service delivery.
• Explaining complicated technical problems in simple non-technical language.
• Both verbal and written communication.

Page2of3

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Human Resources Specialist Senior

JOB CODE: 22319 FLSA STATUS: Exempt
PAY GRADE: 22 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS: (Cont.)

Ability to:
• Interpret policies, procedures, and Federal, State and Local applicable laws.
• Develop and make effective presentations.
• Convey complex ideas and concepts verbally and in writing.
• Work independently as well as in a team environment.
• Manage time well, perform multiple tasks and organize diverse activities.
• Establish and maintain effective working relationships with County employees and officials, representatives of

outside agencies, and the general public.

WORK ENVIRONMENT AND PHYSICAL DEMANDS:

Physical requirements include the ability to lift/carry up to 20-50 pounds occasionally, visual acuity, speech and
hearing, hand and eye coordination and manual dexterity necessary to operate a computer and office equipment.
Subject to standing, walking, sitting, repetitive motion, reaching, climbing stairs, bending, stooping, kneeling,
crouching, crawling, pushing, pulling, balancing, client/customer contact, squatting to perform the essential functions.

This job description is intended to be generic in nature. It is not necessarily an exhaustive list of all duties
and responsibilities. The essential duties, functions and responsibilities and overtime eligibility may vary
based on the specific tasks assigned to the position.

Page 3 of 3

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Employment Specialist

JOB CODE: 24321 FLSA STATUS: Exempt
PAY GRADE: 24 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

JOB SUMMARY:

Overall responsibility for conducting internal investigations of complaints pursuant to the procedures and requirements
of Federal, State and Local government Equal Employment Opportunity (EEC) laws and regulations and other Federal,
State, and Local laws related to employment.

DISTINGUISHING CHARACTERISTICS:

This is a job classification within the Human Resources job family. This position performs highly advanced employment
specialist professional level human resource management duties. This position may require a flexible work schedule in
order to meet the needs of the organization.

DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES:

• Investigates and responds to complaints of discrimination based on Title VII, Civil Rights Act of 1964 and 1991,
Americans with Disabilities Act, Age Discrimination in Employment Act, and other Federal and State EEC laws and
affirmative action regulations and other Federal, State, and Local laws related to employment.

• Serves as the point of contact for discrimination complaints filed with the Human Resources Management
Department to log complaints and track the investigation process and activities to ensure timely and efficient
processing.

• Evaluates complaints in consultation with legal counsel and collaboratively develop an investigation strategy, if an
investigation is warranted.

• Plans, schedules, coordinates and conducts investigations of discrimination allegations on the basis of race, color,
religion, sex, national origin, disability, veteran status, sexual orientation, and retaliation in accordance with sound
and applicable investigative principles, techniques and procedures.

• Completes thorough, timely and well documented investigation reports that include recommendations based on
findings to prevent discriminatory environments or potentially discriminatory employment practices.

• Report findings and discuss recommendations with management in an effort to initiate change in the workplace
environment that may be perceived as discriminatory in consultation with legal counsel.

• Identifies, monitors and reports significant trends to mitigate risks and liabilities.

• Completes appropriate closure including acceptance/rejection decision making, preparation of closure letters, report
of investigation reviews and the development of proposed dispositions pursuant of EEOC guidelines.

• Initiate resolution process in consultation with legal counsel including gathering, analyzing and evaluating
documents for purposes of preparing files for investigations, hearings, requests and/or other administrative
requirements.

• Acts as a management advisor in the area of investigations. Assists in advocating for just and fair application of
policies and procedures. Assists legal counsel in representing department in fact-finding hearings and on-site
investigations of charges.

• Assists Counsel (internal/external) in discovery and preparation in event of a lawsuit.

• Attends meetings and provides staffing for department.

• Performs other job-related duties as assigned.

Page 1 of 3

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Employment Specialist

JOB CODE: 24321 FLSA STATUS: Exempt
PAY GRADE: 24 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS:

Education and Experience:
Bachelor’s degree in Human Resources, Business Administration, Public Administration, Organizational Development or a
directly related field AND five (5) to seven (7) years of experience in Human Resources functions e.g., EEO/AA
compliance, including legal interpretation, complaint investigation and reporting; grievance processes and outreach, and
discipline/discharge procedures. Must have demonstrated experience with Federal, State, and Local employment laws,
diversity, and investigative strategies. Demonstrated experience with EEC training and presentations. Demonstrated
knowledge of current EEO ‘best practices’, human resource compliance law, and policy & procedure development and
interpretation. Demonstrated computer competency and preferably knowledgeable of HRIS systems;

OR,

Any combination of education and experience that has been achieved and is equivalent to the stated education and
experience and required knowledge, skills, and abilities sufficient to successfully perform the duties and responsibilities
of this job.

Licenses, Registrations, Certifications, or Special Requirements:
Valid Texas Driver’s License.

Preferred:
Senior Professional in Human Resources (SPHR); OR, Professional in Human Resources Certification (PHR).

Knowledge. Skills, and Abilities:
Knowledge of:
• Employment law and Affirmative Action.
• Investigative processes.
• Developed analytical, organizational, and communication skills.
• Various Countywide and regional resources.
• Leadership.
• Highly developed organizational and analytic skills.
• Discrimination theories.
• Principles and practices of human resource management.
• Federal, State, and Local laws, including complex federal, and state regulations regarding employment, Affirmative

Actions/EEC, diversity, and investigative strategies.
• Compiling data and generating reports.
• Federal, State laws and significant employment statutes.
• Equal Employment Opportunity Commission.
• Texas Workforce Commission — Civil Rights Division.
• Texas Governor’s Committee on Disabilities.
• Exemplary communication skills (both written and oral) evidenced by background in investigations.
• Computer equipment to include word processing, spreadsheets and databases, and related software applications.

Skill in:
• Human Resources rules, policies and procedures.
• Project management.
• Working with executive management, and Elected and Appointed Officials.
• Applying Human Resources and consulting methods.
• Developing reports and conducting data analysis.
• Problem-solving and decision-making.
• Explaining complicated technical problems in simple non-technical language.
• Both verbal and written communication.

/2
Page2of3 LD

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Employment Specialist

JOB CODE: 24321 FLSA STATUS: Exempt
PAY GRADE: 24 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS: (Cont.)

Ability to:
• Demonstrate strong work ethic and professional demeanor.
• Maintain current with changing customers and federal EEO compliance laws.
• Work independently and as part of a team.
• Interpret information accurately and make decisions according to existing laws, regulations, and policies.
• Produce written documents with clearly organized thoughts using proper sentence construction, punctuation, and

gram mar.
• Counsel, mediate, and work cooperatively and tactfully with employees, management, clients, and business

associates of various backgrounds.
• Explain information in a clear and understandable manner to non-technical persons.
• Analyze and interpret complex federal and state legislation.
• Interpret County policies and procedures.
• Prepare various reports.
• Communicate effectively and in writing.
• Develop and make effective presentations.
• Establish and maintain effective working relationships with County employees and officials, representatives of

outside agencies, and the general public.

WORK ENVIRONMENT AND PHYSICAL DEMANDS:

Physical requirements include the ability to lift/carry up to 20-50 pounds occasionally, visual acuity, speech and hearing,
hand and eye coordination and manual dexterity necessary to operate a computer and office equipment. Subject to
standing, walking, sitting, repetitive motion, reaching, climbing stairs, bending, stooping, kneeling, crouching, crawling,
pushing, pulling, balancing, client/customer contact, squatting to perform the essential functions.

This job description is intended to be generic in nature. It is not necessarily an exhaustive list of all duties
and responsibilities. The essential duties, functions and responsibilities and overtime eligibility may vary
based on the specific tasks assigned to the position.

Page 3 of 3

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Human Resources Analyst I

JOB CODE: 18347 FLSA STATUS: Exempt
PAY GRADE: 18 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

JOB SUMMARY:

This position works under direct supervision with latitude for independent judgment and performs analysis on assigned
compensation, benefits or related human resources issues. Serves as team member on analysis projects. Assists with the
handling of assigned human resource areas such as compensation, benefits, or retirement programs, with some contact
with administrators and employees. Performs some human resource assignments. Performs assigned analytical work
involved in the planning and implementation of Travis County’s compensation systems and programs. Assists higher level
analyst positions with compliance of County policies and procedures.

DISTINGUISHING CHARACTERISTICS:

This is a job classification within the Human Resources job family. This is the entry level Human Resource Analyst
position. Performs analysis and entry-level professional Human Resource management duties.

DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES:

• Assists in the design, development, and implementation of compensation, benefit, human resource, economic, or
retirement systems, policies, programs, procedures and guidelines for Travis County. Complies with regulatory laws
and County directives.

• Conducts analysis studies to assist in determining proper classifications, market pricing, benefits cost, and
retirement planning.

• Assists in market studies and internal equity analysis of jobs to ensure countywide consistency and equity,
analyzing position questionnaires, conducting desk audits of positions to enhance job analysis. Presents findings to
management.

• Performs compensation studies and research on supplemental pay practices, salary structures, benefit experience
rates, recruitment and retention initiatives. Provides findings to management for further action.

• Participates in external market salary, benefit, retirement, or best practices surveys.

• Writes job descriptions for County jobs.

• Develops databases and spreadsheets to capture analysis information for reports.

• Assists in the preparation of fiscal impact reports of new or revised compensation, benefit, or human resource research
programs, and analytical studies.

• Utilizes knowledge of Federal, State and Local compensation, benefit or retirement laws, policies and practices and
County directives to ensure organizational compliance and facilitate meeting the business needs of the organization.

• Conducts research and compiles data for compensation, benefits or human resource measurements for reports,
analysis and management utilization.

• Maintains thorough and current human resource knowledge specific to compensation, benefits, or human resource
measurement and advises administrators, department management, staff, and employees on Federal and State laws
and regulations, and County human resource policies, wage and salary administration rules and payroll rules, COBRA,
ERISA, as required. Assists management in assuring compliance with regulatory laws and County directives, as
required.

• Assists in organizational development processes specific to compensation, benefits, and/or human resource
measurement to include assisting on departmental on-site audits and specialized classes. Participates in
continuous quality improvement strategies, practices, training and processes.

• Performs other job-related duties as assigned.

Page 1 of 3

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Human Resources Analyst I

JOB CODE: 18347 FLSA STATUS: Exempt
PAY GRADE: 18 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS:

Education and Experience:
Bachelor’s degree in Personnel Management, Human Resources Management, Public Administration, Business
Administration or a directly related field AND one (1) year of experience in compensation, benefits administration,
Retirement Programs;
OR,
Any combination of education and experience that has been achieved and is equivalent to the stated education and
experience and required knowledge, skills, and abilities sufficient to successfully perform the duties and responsibilities
of this job.

Licenses, Registrations, Certifications, or Special Requirements:
Valid Texas Driver’s License.

Preferred:
Senior Professional in Human Resources (SPHR); OR, Professional in Human Resources Certification (PHR).
Certified Compensation Professional (CCP); OR, Certified Benefits Professional (CBP).
Certified Employee Benefits Specialist (CEBS).

Knowledge, Skills, and Abilities:
Knowledge of:
• Federal, State and Local regulations, codes and laws: Title VII of Civil Rights Act, Equal Pay Act, FLSA, ADA, FMLA,

EEOC, 1-9.
• State and local government budget, planning, systems, documents, issues, and trends.
• Recent Human Resources developments and current literature.
• HRIS systems.
• Training programs.
• County policies, procedures and terminology.
• Office management.
• Computer equipment to include word processing, spreadsheets, databases and a variety of software packages.
• Business letter writing, grammar and punctuation, and report preparation.

Skill in:
• Human Resources rules, policies and procedures.
• Applying Human Resources and consulting methods.
• Developing reports and conducting data analysis.
• Problem-solving and decision-making.
• Explaining complicated technical problems in simple non-technical language.
• Both verbal and written communication.

Ability to:
• Evaluate human resources problems and issues.
• Interpret policies, procedures, and Federal, State and Local applicable laws.
• Exercise sound judgment and make decisions.
• Respond to inquiries.
• Work independently and as part of a team.
• Convey complex ideas and concepts verbally and in writing.
• Communicate goals to a wide and diverse audience.
• Prepare and conduct training.
• Manage time well, perform multiple tasks and organize diverse activities.
• Make appropriate and effective public presentations.
• Establish and maintain effective working relationships with departmental clientele, representatives of outside

agencies and providers, other County employees and officials, and the general public.

Page 2 of 3

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Human Resources Analyst I

JOB CODE: 18347 FLSA STATUS: Exempt
PAY GRADE: 18 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

WORK ENVIRONMENT AND PHYSICAL DEMANDS:

Physical requirements include the ability to lift/carry up to 20-50 pounds occasionally, visual acuity, speech and hearing,
hand and eye coordination and manual dexterity necessary to operate a computer and office equipment. Subject to
standing, walking, sitting, repetitive motion, reaching, climbing stairs, bending, stooping, kneeling, crouching, crawling,
pushing, pulling, balancing, client/customer contact, squatting to perform the essential functions.

This job description is intended to be generic in nature. It is not necessarily an exhaustive list of all duties
and responsibilities. The essential duties, functions and responsibilities and overtime eligibility may vary
based on the specific tasks assigned to the position.

Page 3 of 3

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Human Resources Analyst II

JOB CODE: 20348 FLSA STATUS: Exempt
PAY GRADE: 20 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

JOB SUMMARY:

Performs more complex analysis of human resources related projects and programs. Performs technical analysis on
assigned compensation, benefits or related human resources issues. Assists in higher-level analysis projects. This
position works under direction with increasing latitude for independent judgment. Performs a variety of professional
analytical work involved in the planning and implementation of Travis County’s compensation systems and programs.
Assist in the evaluation of compensation, benefit, retirement, or related programs, policies and procedures consistent
with professional standards and in compliance with the County’s policies and procedures.

DISTINGUISHING CHARACTERISTICS:

This is a job classification within the Human Resources job family. This is an intermediate Human Resources Analyst
position. Performs complex analysis and professional level Human Resource Management duties.

DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES:

• Performs some technical analysis in designing, developing, and implementing compensation, benefit, human
resource, economic, or retirement systems, policies, programs, procedures and guidelines for Travis County.
Ensures compliance with regulatory laws and County directives.

• Reviews and evaluates existing programs and monitors effectiveness. Researches and models trends and
recommends improvements.

• Conducts more complex analysis studies to determine proper classifications, market pricing, benefits cost,
retirement planning.

• Analyzes market and internal equity of jobs to ensure countywide consistency and equity. Analyzes position
questionnaires, conducting desk audits of positions to enhance job analysis. Makes recommendations for proper
classification and market to management.

• Performs some specialized compensation analysis of supplemental pay practices, salary structures, benefit
experience rates, recruitment and retention initiatives.

• Participates in external market salary, benefit, retirement, or best practices surveys and may conduct surveys to
supplement third-party and public sector market data sources.

• Creates, revises, and maintains job descriptions for County jobs.

• Researches, drafts, and provides input toward new and/or revised compensation, benefit, retirement-related policies
and procedures. Consults with department management, external public, and/or private sector organizations, as
required, to facilitate policy development.

• Develops databases and spreadsheets and prepares statistical reports and analysis. Provides input towards fiscal
impact reports of new or revised compensation, benefit, or Human Resource research programs, and analytical studies.

• Maintains thorough and current knowledge of Federal, State and Local compensation, benefit or retirement laws,
policies and practices and County directives to ensure organizational compliance and facilitate meeting the business
needs of the organization. Remains abreast of best practices and industry standards associated with these
disciplines.

• Assists in the administration of compensation, benefits, or statistical human resources functions to Travis County
departments, including collaboration with department’s management.

• Researches and compiles data for compensation, benefits or Human Resource measurements for reports, analysis
and management utilization. Conducts project analysis. Develops and maintains knowledge and skill in the use of
computerized tools, databases, spreadsheets and communication techniques.

Page 1 of 3

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Human Resources Analyst II

JOB CODE: 20348 FLSA STATUS: Exempt
PAY GRADE: 20 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES: (Cant.)

• Reviews and evaluates policies, procedures, and programs, within specialized human resource analytical areas and
recommends changes or improvements, as required.

• Assists in the development of written communications material, including correspondence, policy revisions, reports,
employee manuals, articles for publications and other informational materials. Assists in the communication of
policies to organizational staff through the use of memorandums, meetings, training programs and individual
contacts.

• Assists in organizational development processes specific to compensation, benefits, and/or human resource
measurement including performing departmental on-site audits and conducting specialized classes. Participates in
continuous quality improvement strategies, practices, training and processes.

• Assists in analyzing, developing, and recommending the implementation of total compensation strategies or
systems.

• Performs job analysis, job documentation, job evaluations, benefits analysis, turnovers, cost to hire, Human
Resource performance analysis and metrics, and policy and procedure review.

• Assists in evaluating and implementing compensation, performance assessments and/or benefits programs.

• Assists in planning, developing, and implementing training programs specific to compensation or benefits
administration enhancements or changes to assist with management and employee communications regarding
changes.

• Communicates with, and advises supervisors, managers, and employees on related services, resources, laws and
policies associated with compensation, benefits, or human resource statistical reports.

• Performs other job-related duties as assigned.

MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS:

Education and Experience:
Bachelor’s degree in Personnel Management, Human Resources Management, Public Administration, Business
Administration or a directly related field AND three (3) years of experience in Human Resources Administration or
related field;

OR,

Any combination of education and experience that has been achieved and is equivalent to the stated education and
experience and required knowledge, skills, and abilities sufficient to successfully perform the duties and responsibilities
of this job.

Licenses, Registrations, Certifications, or Special Requirements:
Valid Texas Driver’s License.

Preferred:
Senior Professional in Human Resources (SPHR); OR, Professional in Human Resources Certification (PHR).
Certified Compensation Professional (CCP); OR, Certified Benefits Professional (CBP).
Certified Employee Benefits Specialist (CEBS).

Knowledge, Skills, and Abilities:
Knowledge of:
• Principles and practices of human resource management.
• Federal, State, and Local laws, statutes, and regulations relating to the field.
• Analyzing and evaluating data; in providing recommendations; in using automated human resource management

systems.

Page2of3

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Human Resources Analyst II

JOB CODE: 20348 FLSA STATUS: Exempt
PAY GRADE: 20 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS: (Cont.)

Knowledge of: (Cont.)
• Federal, State and Local regulations, codes and laws: Title VII of Civil Rights Act, Equal Pay Act, ELSA, ADA, FMLA,

EEOC, 1-9.
• State and local government budget, planning, systems, documents, issues, and trends.
• Recent Human Resources developments and current literature.
• HRIS systems.
• Training programs.
• County policies, procedures and terminology.
• Office management.
• Computer equipment to include word processing, spreadsheets, databases and a variety of software packages.
• Business letter writing, grammar and punctuation, and report preparation.

Skill in:
• Human Resources rules, policies and procedures.
• Applying Human Resources and consulting methods.
• Developing reports and conducting data analysis.
• Problem-solving and decision-making.
• Explaining complicated technical problems in simple non-technical language.
• Both verbal and written communication.

Ability to:
• Evaluate human resources problems and issues.
• Interpret policies, procedures, and Federal, State and Local applicable laws.
• Exercise sound judgment and make decisions.
• Respond to inquiries.
• Work independently and as part of a team.
• Convey complex ideas and concepts verbally and in writing.
• Communicate goals to a wide and diverse audience.
• Prepare and conduct training.
• Manage time well, perform multiple tasks and organize diverse activities.
• Make appropriate and effective public presentations.
• Establish and maintain effective working relationships with departmental clientele, representatives of outside

agencies and providers, other County employees and officials, and the general public.

WORK ENVIRONMENT AND PHYSICAL DEMANDS:

Physical requirements include the ability to lift/carry up to 20-50 pounds occasionally, visual acuity, speech and hearing,
hand and eye coordination and manual dexterity necessary to operate a computer and office equipment. Subject to
standing, walking, sitting, repetitive motion, reaching, climbing stairs, bending, stooping, kneeling, crouching, crawling,
pushing, pulling, balancing, client/customer contact, squatting to perform the essential functions.

This job description is intended to be generic in nature. It is not necessarily an exhaustive list of all duties
and responsibilities. The essential duties, functions and responsibilities and overtime eligibility may vary
based on the specific tasks assigned to the position.

Page 3of3

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Human Resources Analyst Senior

JOB CODE: 22354 FLSA STATUS: Exempt
PAY GRADE: 22 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

JOB SUMMARY:

Performs advanced analysis of human resources related projects and programs. Performs technical analysis on assigned
compensation, benefits or related human resources issues. Assists in higher-level analysis projects. This position works
under direction with increasing latitude for independent judgment. Performs a variety of professional analytical work
involved in the planning and implementation of Travis County’s compensation systems and programs. Assists in the
evaluation of compensation, benefit, retirement, or related programs, policies and procedures consistent with professional
standards and in compliance with the County’s policies and procedures.

DISTINGUISHING CHARACTERISTICS:

This is a job classification within the Human Resources job family. This is the senior Human Resources Analyst position.
Performs advanced analysis and professional level Human Resource Management duties.

DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES:

• Performs highly technical analysis in designing, developing, and implementing innovative compensation, benefit,
human resource, economic, or retirement systems, policies, programs, procedures and guidelines for Travis
County. Ensures compliance with regulatory laws and County directives.

• Reviews and evaluates existing programs and monitors effectiveness. Researches and models trends and
recommends improvements.

• Conducts more complex analysis studies to determine proper classifications, market pricing, benefits cost,
retirement planning.

• Analyzes market and internal equity of jobs to ensure countywide consistency and equity. Analyzes position
questionnaires, conducting desk audits of positions to enhance job analysis. Makes recommendations for proper
classification and market to management.

• Performs specialized compensation analysis of supplemental pay practices, salary structures, benefit experience
rates, recruitment and retention initiatives.

• Participates in external market salary, benefit, retirement, or best practices surveys and may conduct surveys to
supplement third-party and public sector market data sources.

• Creates, revises, and maintains job descriptions for County jobs.

• Researches, drafts, and provides input toward new and/or revised compensation, benefit, retirement-related policies
and procedures. Consults with department management, external public, and/or private sector organizations, as
required, to facilitate policy development.

• Develops databases and spreadsheets and prepares statistical reports and analysis. Provides input towards fiscal
impact reports of new or revised compensation, benefit, or Human Resource research programs, and analytical studies.

• Maintains thorough and current knowledge of Federal, State and Local compensation, benefit or retirement laws,
policies and practices and County directives to ensure organizational compliance and facilitate meeting the business
needs of the organization. Remains abreast of best practices and industry standards associated with these
disciplines.

• Assists in the administration of compensation, benefits, or statistical human resources functions to Travis County
departments, including collaboration with department’s management.

• Identifies, analyzes, and recommends solutions for various compensation, benefits and/or human resources
problems, monitoring implementation of agreed upon actions until problems are resolved.

Page 1 of 3

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Human Resources Analyst Senior

JOB CODE: 22354 FLSA STATUS: Exempt
PAY GRADE: 22 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES: (Cont.)

• Researches and compiles data for compensation, benefits or Human Resource measurements for reports, analysis
and management utilization. Conducts project analysis. Develops and maintains knowledge and skill in the use of
computerized tools, databases, spreadsheets and communication techniques.

• Reviews and evaluates policies, procedures, and programs, within specialized human resource analytical areas and
recommends changes or improvements, as required.

• Assists in the development of written communications material, including correspondence, policy revisions, reports,
employee manuals, articles for publications and other informational materials. Assists in the communication of
policies to organizational staff through the use of memorandums, meetings, training programs and individual
contacts.

• Assists in organizational development processes specific to compensation, benefits, and/or human resource
measurement including performing departmental on-site audits and conducting specialized classes. Participates in
continuous quality improvement strategies, practices, training and processes.

• Assists in analyzing, developing, and recommending the implementation of total compensation strategies or
systems.

• Performs job analysis, job documentation, job evaluations, benefits analysis, turnover, cost to hire, Human
Resource performance analysis and metrics, and policy and procedure review.

• Evaluates and implements compensation, performance assessment and/or benefits programs.

• Assists in the planning, development, and implementation of training programs specific to compensation or benefits
administration enhancements or changes to assist with management and employee communications regarding
changes.

• Communicates with, and advises supervisors, managers, and employees on related services, resources, laws and
policies associated with compensation, benefits, or human resource statistical reports.

• Assists in policy formulation, consultations, and implementation of highly advanced compensation, benefits, or
Human Resource generalist programs, policies and/or procedures.

• Performs other job-related duties as assigned.

MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS:

Education and Experience:
Bachelor’s degree in Personnel Management, Human Resources Management, Public Administration, Business
Administration or a directly related field AND five (5) years of experience in Human Resources Administration or related
field;

OR,

Any combination of education and experience that has been achieved and is equivalent to the stated education and
experience and required knowledge, skills, and abilities sufficient to successfully perform the duties and responsibilities
of this job.

Licenses, Registrations, Certifications, or Special Requirements:
Valid Texas Driver’s License.

Preferred:
Senior Professional in Human Resources (SPHR); OR, Professional in Human Resources Certification (PHR).
Certified Compensation Professional (CCP); OR, Certified Benefits Professional (CBP).
Certified Employee Benefits Specialist (CEBS).

Page2of3

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Human Resources Analyst Senior

JOB CODE: 22354 FLSA STATUS: Exempt
PAY GRADE: 22 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS: (Cant.)

Knowledge, Skills, and Abilities:
Knowledge of:
• Federal, State and Local regulations, codes and laws: Title VII of Civil Rights Act, Equal Pay Act, FLSA, ADA, FMLA,

EEOC, 1-9.
• State and local government budget, planning, systems, documents, issues, and trends.
• Recent Human Resources developments and current literature.
• HRIS systems.
• Training programs.
• County policies, procedures and terminology.
• Office management.
• Service oriented leadership and hands on practitioner.
• Computer equipment to include word processing, spreadsheets, databases and a variety of software packages.
• Business letter writing, grammar and punctuation, and report preparation.

Skill in:
• Human Resources rules, policies and procedures.
• Project management.
• Applying Human Resources and consulting methods.
• Developing reports and conducting data analysis.
• Problem-solving and decision-making.
• Explaining complicated technical problems in simple non-technical language.
• Both verbal and written communication.

Ability to:
• Evaluate human resources problems and issues.
• Interpret policies, procedures, and Federal, State and Local applicable laws.
• Exercise sound judgment and make decisions.
• Respond to inquiries.
• Work independently and as part of a team.
• Convey complex ideas and concepts verbally and in writing.
• Communicate goals to a wide and diverse audience.
• Prepare and conduct training.
• Manage time well, perform multiple tasks and organize diverse activities.
• Make appropriate and effective public presentations.
• Establish and maintain effective working relationships with departmental clientele, representatives of outside agencies

and providers, other County employees and officials, and the general public.

WORK ENVIRONMENT AND PHYSICAL DEMANDS:

Physical requirements include the ability to lift/carry up to 20-50 pounds occasionally, visual acuity, speech and hearing,
hand and eye coordination and manual dexterity necessary to operate a computer and office equipment. Subject to
standing, walking, sitting, repetitive motion, reaching, climbing stairs, bending, stooping, kneeling, crouching, crawling,
pushing, pulling, balancing, client/customer contact, squatting to perform the essential functions.

This job description is intended to be generic in nature. It is not necessarily an exhaustive list of all duties
and responsibilities. The essential duties, functions and responsibilities and overtime eligibility may vary
based on the specific tasks assigned to the position.

Page 3of3 6’7

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Human Resources Analyst Specialist

JOB CODE: 24355 FLSA STATUS: Exempt
PAY GRADE: 24 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

JOB SUMMARY:

Performs highly advanced analysis of human resources related projects and programs. Performs technical analysis on
assigned compensation, benefits or related human resources issues. Assists in advanced analysis projects. This
position works under minimal direction having extensive latitude for independent judgment. Performs a variety of highly
technical analytical work involved in the planning and implementation of Travis County’s compensation systems and
programs. Plans, develops, recommends, facilitates implementation of and evaluates compensation, benefit,
retirement, or related programs, policies and procedures consistent with the County’s philosophy to meet organizational
needs. Ensures compliance with County policies and procedures. Assists in the evaluation of compensation, benefit,
retirement, or related programs, policies and procedures consistent with professional standards and in compliance with
the County’s policies and procedures.

DISTINGUISHING CHARACTERISTICS:

This is a job classification within the Human Resources job family. Highest Human Resources Analyst position. This
position performs highly advanced analysis and professional level human resource management duties. This position may
require a flexible work schedule in order to meet the needs of the organization.

DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES:

• Performs highly technical analysis in designing, developing, and implementing innovative compensation, benefit,
human resource, economic, or retirement systems, policies, programs, procedures and guidelines for Travis
County. Ensures compliance with regulatory laws and County directives.

• Reviews and evaluates existing programs and monitors effectiveness. Researches and models trends and
recommends improvements.

• Conducts complex analysis studies to determine proper classifications, market pricing, benefits cost, and retirement
planning.

• Analyzes market and internal equity of jobs to ensure countywide consistency and equity. Analyzes position
questionnaires, conducts desk audits of positions to enhance job analysis. Makes recommendations for proper
classification and market to management.

• Performs specialized compensation analysis of supplemental pay practices, salary structures, benefit experience
rates, recruitment and retention initiatives.

• Participates in external market salary, benefit, retirement, or best practices surveys and may conduct surveys to
supplement third-party and public sector market data sources.

• Creates, revises, and maintains job descriptions for County jobs.

• Researches, drafts, and provides input toward new and/or revised compensation, benefit, retirement-related policies
and procedures. Consults with department management, external public, and/or private sector organizations, as
required, to facilitate policy development.

• Develops databases and spreadsheets and prepares statistical reports and analysis. Provides input towards fiscal
impact reports of new or revised compensation, benefit, or human resources research programs, and analytical studies.

• Maintains thorough and current knowledge of Federal, State and Local compensation, benefit or retirement laws,
policies and practices and County directives to ensure organizational compliance and facilitate meeting the business
needs of the organization. Remains abreast of best practices and industry standards associated with these
disciplines.

• Assists in the administration of compensation, benefits, or statistical human resources functions to Travis County
departments, including collaboration with department’s management.

• Identifies, analyzes, and recommends solutions for various compensation, benefits and/or human resources
problems, monitoring implementation of agreed upon actions until problems are resolved.

Page 1 of 4

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Human Resources Analyst Specialist

JOB CODE: 24355 FLSA STATUS: Exempt
PAY GRADE: 24 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES: (Cont.)

• Researches and compiles data for compensation, benefits or human resources measurements for reports, analysis
and management utilization. Conducts project analysis. Develops and maintains knowledge and skill in the use of
corn puterized tools, databases, spreadsheets and corn munication techniques.

• Reviews and evaluates policies, procedures, and programs, within specialized human resource analytical areas and
recommends changes or improvements, as required.

• Provides consulting to elected and appointed officials, executive managers, department heads, human resources
coordinators and other departmental staff. Identifies issues, analyzes and recommends solutions. Monitors
implementation of approved recommendations, as required.

• Functions as a specialist in chosen human resources discipline and serves as a lead analyst providing direction and
training to less experienced staff members, reviewing and monitoring their work.

• Advises, counsels, directs, and administers compensation, benefits, or statistical human resources functions to
Travis County departments, including collaboration with department’s upper management in selection and
implementation of human resources programs. Develops and implements processes for standard operating
procedures for departments. Provides guidance for special project and analysis requests. Mentor’s and trains
department liaisons, supervisors and managers on human resources processes, policies and procedures. Provides
guidance to elected officials on compensation, benefit, or statistical human resources issues.

• Assists in the development of written communications material, including correspondence, policy revisions, reports,
employee manuals, articles for publications and other informational materials. Assists in the communication of
policies to organizational staff through the use of memorandums, meetings, training programs and individual
contacts.

• Assists in organizational development processes specific to compensation, benefits, and human resource
measurement including performing departmental on-site audits and conducting specialized classes. Participates in
continuous quality improvement strategies, practices, training and processes.

• Assists in analyzing, developing, and recommending the implementation of total compensation strategies or
systems.

• Performs job analysis, job documentation, job evaluation, benefits analysis, turnover, cost to hire, human resources
performance analysis and metrics, and policy and procedure review.

• Maintains thorough and current human resource knowledge specific to compensation, benefits, or human resource
measurement and advises administrators, department management, staff, and employees on Federal and State laws
and regulations, and County human resource policies, wage and salary administration rules and payroll rules, COBRA,
ERISA, as required. Assures compliance with regulatory laws and County directives, as required.

• Evaluates and implements compensation, performance assessment and benefits programs.

• Assists in the planning, development, and implementation of training programs specific to compensation or benefits
administration enhancements or changes to assist with management and employee communications regarding
changes.

• Communicates with, and advises supervisors, managers, and employees on related services, resources, laws and
policies associated with compensation, benefits, or human resource statistical reports.

• Assists in policy formulation, consultation, and implementation of highly advanced compensation, benefits, or
human resources generalist programs, policies and/or procedures.

• Performs other job-related duties as assigned.

Page 2 of 4

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Human Resources Analyst Specialist

JOB CODE: 24355 FLSA STATUS: Exempt
PAY GRADE: 24 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS:

Education and Experience:
Bachelor’s degree in Personnel Management, Human Resources Management, Public Administration, Business
Administration or a directly related field AND six (6) years of increasingly responsible experience in a human resources
area of specialization or related field;

OR,

Any combination of education and experience that has been achieved and is equivalent to the stated education and
experience and required knowledge, skills, and abilities sufficient to successfully perform the duties and responsibilities
of this job.

Licenses, Registrations, Certifications, or Special Requirements:
Valid Texas Driver’s License.

Preferred:
Senior Professional in Human Resources (SPHR); OR, Professional in Human Resources Certification (PHR).
Certified Compensation Professional (CCP); OR, Certified Benefits Professional (CBP).
Certified Employee Benefits Specialist (CEBS).

Knowledge, Skills, and Abilities:
Knowledge of:
• Federal, State and Local regulations, codes and laws: Title VII of Civil Rights Act, Equal Pay Act, ELSA, ADA, FMLA,

EEOC, 1-9.
• Principles, procedures, practices, programs, systems, methods, and techniques of Compensation.
• SHRM and World at Work publications and websites; AHRMA and Central Texas Comp and Benefits Assoc

websites; Bureau of Labor Statistics (BLS) and other publications; human resources related websites.
• Third party salary and benefit surveys (e.g., Mercer, Watson Wyatt, Hay, Aon); public sector surveys (e.g., Texas

Assoc of Counties, Texas Municipal League); Federal, State and Local legislative websites; human resources
textbooks and journals.

• Travis County policy and budget manuals; organization websites (Federal, State, City, County); any other human
resources reference material.

• Job analysis.
• State and local government budget, planning, systems, documents, issues, and trends.
• Recent Human Resources developments and current literature.
• Principles of project management.
• Advanced methods used in Compensation.
• HRIS systems.
• Intermediate to advanced MS Excel.
• Statistical analysis.
• Training programs.
• County policies, procedures and terminology.
• Organizational design methodology.
• Office management.
• Service oriented leadership and hands on practitioner.
• Computer equipment to include word processing, spreadsheets, databases and a variety of software packages.
• Business letter writing, grammar and punctuation, and report preparation.

Page 3 of 4

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Human Resources Analyst Specialist

JOB CODE: 24355 FLSA STATUS: Exempt
PAY GRADE: 24 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS: (Cont.)

Skill in:
• Creating policies and procedures.
• Human Resources rules, policies and procedures.
• Project management.
• Working with executive management, and Elected and Appointed officials.
• Applying Human Resources and consulting methods.
• Developing reports and conducting data analysis.
• Problem-solving and decision-making.
• Explaining complicated technical problems in simple non-technical language.
• Both verbal and written communication.

Ability to:
• Conduct market salary surveys.
• Evaluate human resources problems and issues.
• Coordinate, plan, and prioritize programs, projects, and activities.
• Interpret policies, procedures, and Federal, State and Local applicable laws.
• Exercise sound judgment and make decisions.
• Respond to inquiries.
• Work independently and as part of a team.
• Perform technical research, calculations and computations, and prepare plans and reports.
• Convey complex ideas and concepts verbally and in writing.
• Communicate goals to a wide and diverse audience.
• Prepare and conduct training.
• Manage time well, perform multiple tasks and organize diverse activities.
• Perform in a fast-paced and stressful environment, while maintaining a professional manner.
• Make appropriate and effective public presentations.
• Establish and maintain effective working relationships with departmental clientele, representatives of outside agencies

and providers, other County employees and officials, and the general public.

WORK ENVIRONMENT AND PHYSICAL DEMANDS:

Physical requirements include the ability to lift/carry up to 20-50 pounds occasionally, visual acuity, speech and hearing,
hand and eye coordination and manual dexterity necessary to operate a computer and office equipment. Subject to
standing, walking, sitting, repetitive motion, reaching, climbing stairs, bending, stooping, kneeling, crouching, crawling,
pushing, pulling, balancing, client/customer contact, squatting to perform the essential functions.

This job description is intended to be generic in nature. It is not necessarily an exhaustive list of all duties
and responsibilities. The essential duties, functions and responsibilities and overtime eligibility may vary
based on the specific tasks assigned to the position.

Page 4 of 4

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Human Resources Manager I

JOB CODE: 24370 FLSA STATUS: Exempt
PAY GRADE: 24 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

JOB SUMMARY:

Manages and administers broad professional level human resource management programs for an operating unit within
the County in partnership with upper management and the County’s Human Resources Management Department.
Serves in a management consultant role to the Department Head and management team on organizational
development and strategic Human Resources planning for the department. Serves in a key leadership role fostering
positive labor-relations within the department and Union (as applicable). Manages and facilitates effective problem-
solving processes and employee relations throughout the organization. Ensures department’s compliance with
applicable Federal, State, County, and Local employment laws and regulations. Develops and maintains key
relationships and alliances with relevant County, City and State management staff. Directs the coordination of
administrative processing and record keeping for all personnel actions for the department; including hiring, staffing,
compensation, benefits, performance and leave. Frequently consults with administrators, supervisors, and line staff on
specific Human Resources areas such as hiring, compensation, benefits, employee relations, and training. Provides
information regarding Human Resources policies and procedures. This position works under minimal direction with
considerable latitude for independent judgment.

DISTINGUISHING CHARACTERISTICS:

This is a job classification within the Human Resources job family. Management position for small to medium scope
operating units within the County (based on budget and employee size). This classification may require a flexible work
schedule in order to meet the needs of the department.

DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES:

• Schedules, monitors and deploys human, operating, and capital resources to accomplish departmental policies,
plans, and programs and achieves performance outcome measures. Assists in the development of program goals,
initiatives and best practices; ensuring adherence to and compliance with applicable Federal, State and Local laws
and departmental and County policies and practices.

• Supervises, evaluates and disciplines employees. Resolves conflicts. Oversees and directs employee
development activities such as progressive training and development, motivation, and goal setting.

• Provides competent directions, advice and counsel to the Department Head, Division Directors, Managers and
Supervisors regarding Human Resources Management issues. Facilitates problem-solving strategies. Serves as a
liaison and works in cooperation with the County’s HRMD, the County Attorney’s office and the Union, as required.

• Counsels and coaches employees on issues, concerns and grievances related to professional development and
other work-related issues. Provides direction to management and employees on conflict resolution; researching,
reporting and responding to informal and blind formal complaints. Provides advice, preparation and response to
grievance hearings, pre-deprivation meetings, alternative dispute resolution/mediation and EEOC/TCHR
complaints.

• Directs the administration, coordination and communication of policies and procedures regarding various Human
Resources laws and practices including: EEO, FMLA, Workers Compensation, ADA, ELSA, hiring/staffing,
compensation and associated record keeping. Provides management support, direction and evaluation of
professional Human Resources support staff in carrying out these functions.

• Provides leadership in the development of departmental organizational and staff development strategies. Designs,
develops, presents, coordinates, facilitates and evaluates learning strategies and training programs and initiatives
for department employees.

• Provides advice and recommendations pertaining to department’s performance management systems and
strategies.

Page 1 of 4

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Human Resources Manager I

JOB CODE: 24370 FLSA STATUS: Exempt
PAY GRADE: 24 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES: (Cant.)

• Directs, develops and monitors organizational policies and operating procedures. Interprets and explains personnel
policies, including performance evaluations, equal employment opportunity, sexual harassment and discipline, as
required. Implements, communicates and effectively uses policies and procedures to manage the organization.
Coordinates with division directors, departments, agencies and organizations to accomplish goals and objectives.

• Directs and administers the organization’s recruitment and hiring process.

• Supervises background investigators and Human Resources staff, which administer recruiting; advertising; hiring
process; promotional process; licensing; PAFs; payroll; medical case files; and background investigations.

• Provides recommendations to upper management for all Human Resources needs, which includes the recruiting
and hiring process, compensation, benefits administration, disciplinary issues, ELSA, FMLA, ADEA, ADA, Workers
Compensation and EEC.

• Administers, reviews, and provides recommendations to upper management concerning market analysis,
compensation justification, budget information for new positions, reclassifications, job postings, and Position
Analysis Questionnaire content.

• In cooperation with upper management and other Department supervisors, plans, proposes and implements Human
Resources policies, procedures, and operating practices.

• Fills vacant Human Resources staff positions utilizing the job task analysis, and completing vacancy announcement
requests, preparing hiring process materials, conducting interviews, and making candidate selections.

• Provides direction to personnel in the completion of staffing, training, benefits administration, compensation
administration and employee relations functions at a tactical level. Leads, directs and coordinates strategic
initiatives with staff, peers and customers to foster continuing improvements in processes and services. Manages
and evaluates the performance of Human Resources professionals and administrative staff.

• Consults with managerial and executive staff regarding employment decisions, policy interpretation, disciplinary action
review, staffing options, compensation determinations, insurance and benefit offerings, and training and development
opportunities.

• Manages the design and development of curriculum for adult learners and implements training programs, as required.

• Procures training and development services from vendors including price negotiations, contract review, and curriculum
content analysis.

• Performs other job-related duties as assigned.

MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS:

Education and Experience:
Bachelor’s degree in Personnel Management, Human Resources Management, Public Administration, Business
Administration, Organizational Development or a directly related field AND six (6) years of directly related demonstrated
experience as to assigned Human Resources position; including one (1) years of mid to senior level supervisory or
management experience. Prefer candidates who demonstrate requisite job knowledge and additional competencies
including organizational commitment, teamwork, negotiations, change management, adaptability, conflict resolution,
initiative, and project management;

OR,

Any combination of education and experience that has been achieved and is equivalent to the stated education and
experience and required knowledge, skills, and abilities sufficient to successfully perform the duties and responsibilities
of this job.

Page2of4 253

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Human Resources Manager I

JOB CODE: 24370 FLSA STATUS: Exempt
PAY GRADE: 24 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS: (Cont.)

Licenses, Registrations, Certifications, or Special Requirements:
Valid Texas Driver’s License.

Preferred:
Master’s degree in Personnel Administration, Human Resources Management, Public Administration, Business
Administration or a directly related field.
Certified Compensation Professional (CCP); OR, Certified Benefits Professional (CBP).
Senior Professional in Human Resources (SPHR); OR, Professional in Human Resources Certification (PHR).
Specialized coursework in the area of Human Resources.

Knowledge, Skills, and Abilities:
Knowledge of:
• Federal, State and Local regulations, codes and laws: Employment laws and Affirmative Action, Title VII of Civil Rights

Act, Equal Pay Act, ELSA, ADA, FMLA, EEOC, 1-9.
• Principles and practices of Human Resources management.
• Management and supervisory principles, practices and techniques.
• State and local government budget, planning, systems, documents, issues, and trends.
• County policies, procedures and terminology.
• Recent Human Resources developments and current literature.
• Innovative Human Resources programs.
• Various countywide and regional resources.
• Budget preparation.
• Office management.
• Service oriented leadership and hands on practitioner.
• Computer equipment to include word processing, spreadsheets, databases and a variety of software packages.
• Developed analytical, organizational, and communication skills.
• Business letter writing, grammar and punctuation, and report preparation.

Skill in:
• Developing, implementing, interpreting, applying and enforcing Human Resources policies and procedures per

laws, rules, regulations, and codes.
• Creating policies and procedures.
• Applying Human Resources methods.
• Supervisory principles, practices and techniques.
• Developing budgets and programmatic evaluation tools.
• Problem-solving and decision-making.
• Customer service delivery.
• Explaining complicated technical problems in simple non-technical language.
• Using information systems such as HRIS.
• Both verbal and written communication.

Ability to:
• Manage, plan, assign, supervise, motivate, train, evaluate and supervise professional and administrative support

staff.
• Interpret policies, procedures, and Federal, State and Local applicable laws.
• Manage, plan, organize, prioritize, and implement department programs, projects, functions, operations and activities.
• Provide management and team building.
• Prepare and conduct training.
• Convey complex ideas and concepts verbally and in writing.
• Work independently as well as in a team environment.

Page3of4
571

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Human Resources Manager I

JOB CODE: 24370 FLSA STATUS: Exempt
PAY GRADE: 24 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS: (Cont.)

Ability to: (Cont.)
• Manage time well and perform multiple tasks, and organize diverse activities.
• Exercise sound judgment and make decisions.
• Organize varied work assignments and meet appropriate priorities.
• Establish and maintain effective working relationships with County employees and officials, representatives of outside

agencies, and the general public.

WORK ENVIRONMENT AND PHYSICAL DEMANDS:

Physical requirements include the ability to lift/carry up to 20-50 pounds occasionally, visual acuity, speech and hearing,
hand and eye coordination and manual dexterity necessary to operate a computer and office equipment. Subject to
standing, walking, sitting, repetitive motion, reaching, climbing stairs, bending, stooping, kneeling, crouching, crawling,
pushing, pulling, balancing, client/customer contact, squatting to perform the essential functions.

This job description is intended to be generic in nature. It is not necessarily an exhaustive list of all duties
and responsibilities. The essential duties, functions and responsibilities and overtime eligibility may vary
based on the specific tasks assigned to the position.

Page 4 of 4

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT for 1011109

JOB TITLE: Human Resources Manager II

JOB CODE: 26371 FLSA STATUS: Exempt
PAY GRADE: 26 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

JOB SUMMARY:

Responsible for management and supervision of the planning, development, implementation, administration, and
budgeting of most or all of the following Human Resources functions: staffing, training, employee relations, employment
investigation, complaint investigation, background investigations, organizational development, affirmative action, and
HRIS. Establishes operational objectives and assignments, and delegating assignments to subordinate staff. Develops,
interprets, and recommends program goals and objectives, policies, procedures, and courses of action. Administers and
interprets procedures; provides advice and counsel to managers and supervisors based on sound administrative and
personnel practices, policy, and ensures compliance with laws and regulations. Directs the development of staffing
strategies; streamlines and enhances staffing systems, tracking, reporting, and analysis. Manages and evaluates staff
performance. Consults with managerial and executive staff countywide regarding policy and Human Resources practice
decisions. Manages and administers payroll functions and supervise Human Resources/Payroll positions. Manages
assigned staff and reports to the Department Head.

DISTINGUISHING CHARACTERISTICS:

This is a job classification within the Human Resources job family. Senior level Human Resources Management
position for large scope operating units (based on budget and employee size) and / or a corporate functional
management department. This classification may require a flexible work schedule in order to meet the needs of the
department.

DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES:

• Manages and evaluates the performance of Human Resources professionals and administrative staff.

• Consults with managerial and executive staff countywide regarding employment decisions, policy interpretation,
disciplinary action review, staffing options, compensation determinations, insurance and benefit offerings, and training,
professional development opportunities and HRIS.

• Provides recommendations to upper management for all Human Resources needs, which includes the recruiting
and hiring process, compensation, benefits administration, disciplinary issues, employment laws and Affirmative
Action, Title VII of Civil Rights Act, Equal Pay Act, FLSA, ADA, FMLA, EEOC, 1-9.

• In cooperation with upper management and other County supervisors, plans, proposes and implements Human
Resources policies, procedures, and operating practices.

• Directs and administers the organization’s recruitment and hiring process.

• Develops and maintains the organization’s Affirmative Action and I or EEO Plan.

• Manages and provides direction to personnel in the completion of staffing, training, employee relations, employment
investigation, complaint investigation, background investigations, organizational development, affirmative action, and
HRIS at a tactical level. Leads, directs and coordinates strategic initiatives with staff, peers and customers to foster
continuing improvements in processes and services.

• Manages functions including disciplinary and complaint/grievance processes, new employee orientation, recruiting,
posting job vacancies, applicant tracking, employee recognition, training, tuition refunds and unemployment claims.
Consults with management on a wide range of Human Resources issues, programs, policies, initiatives, and
procedures to accomplish objectives.

• Initiates projects that support customer needs that may include organizational studies and analysis and provides
recommendations on appropriate course of action, customized training and recruitment strategies. Prepares narrative,
administrative, statistical and analytical reports.

Page 1 of 5

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT for 1011109

Human Resources Manager IIJOB TITLE:

JOB CODE: 26371 FLSA STATUS: Exempt
PAY GRADE: 26 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES: (Cont.)

• Administers unemployment insurance processes, employee recognition and employee assistance programs.

• Oversees employee training and tuition refund programs.

• Functions as HR department manager on all matters relating to HRIS. Serves as technical manager for HR process
design, re-design and improvement and requirement definitions. Provides hands-on functional support,
consultation, development and maintenance of Human Resources data management systems. Provides technical
and analytical support to the HR department for information system needs.

• Serves a HRIS functional and technical Human Resources subject expert.

• Serves as an interface between internal and external customers and core team members to ensure delivery of
HRIS.

• Manages active participation for process improvement and solutions to proactively use approaches and methods in
using HRIS, up to and including solutions of creating efficiencies and effective business solutions. Partners with
departments to analyze work process and flow. Recommends policies and procedures to support streamline work
flow and process efficiencies and improvements.

• Provides vision, planning, project management for the HRIS integrated framework for all HR applications and
systems. Participates in testing, upgrades and new configurations for HRIS; include ensuring systems are
maintained. Adheres to project plans and schedules.

• Keeps abreast of market trends related to Human Resources issues and legislative or regulatory trends.

• Schedules, monitors and deploys human, operating, and capital resources to accomplish policies, plans, and
programs and achieve performance outcome measures.

• Supervises, evaluates and disciplines employees. Resolves conflicts. Oversees and directs employee
development activities such as progressive training and development, motivation, and goal setting.

• Directs, develops and monitors organizational policies and operating procedures. Interprets and explains personnel
policies, including performance evaluations, equal employment opportunity, sexual harassment and discipline as
appropriate, Implements, communicates and effectively uses policies and procedures to manage the organization.
Coordinates with division directors, departments, agencies and organizations to accomplish goals and objectives.

• Supervises background investigators and Human Resources staff, which administer recruiting; advertising; hiring
process; promotional process; licensing; PAF’s; payroll; medical case files; and background investigations.

• Administers, reviews, and provides recommendations to upper management concerning job analysis projects,
compensation justification, budget information for new positions, reclassifications, job postings, and Position
Analysis Questionnaire (PAQ) content.

• Fills vacant Human Resources staff positions utilizing the job task analysis, and completing vacancy announcement
requests, preparing hiring process materials, conducting interviews, and making candidate selections.

• Procures consulting services from vendors to include price negotiations, contract review, and content/scope
analysis.

• Manages and investigates alleged policy violations such as harassment, discrimination, theft and workplace violence.

• Manages the design and development of curriculum for adult learners and implements training programs, as required.

• Procures training and development services from vendors including price negotiations, contract review, and curriculum
content analysis.

• Performs other job-related duties as assigned.

Page 2 of 5

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT for 1011109

JOB TITLE: Human Resources Manager II

JOB CODE: 26371 FLSA STATUS: Exempt
PAY GRADE: 26 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS: (Cont.)

Education and Experience:
Bachelor’s degree in Personnel Management, Human Resources Management, Public Administration, Business
Administration, Organizational Development, Information Systems, Computer Science or a directly related field AND seven
(7) years of directly related demonstrated experience as to assigned Human Resources position, including three (3) years
of mid to senior level supervisory or management experience, including four (4) years of which must have been in a
responsible position within employee relations or HRIS system-related HR solutions projects or Compensation or Benefits
or EEO/AA compliance or an HR associate or assistant department head. Prefer candidates who demonstrate requisite
job knowledge and additional competencies including organizational commitment, teamwork, negotiations, change
management, adaptability, conflict resolution, initiative, and project management. Experiences should include training
delivery;

OR,

Any combination of education and experience that has been achieved and is equivalent to the stated education and
experience and required knowledge, skills, and abilities sufficient to successfully perform the duties and responsibilities
of this job.

Licenses, Registrations, Certifications, or Special Requirements:
Valid Texas Driver’s License.

Preferred:
Master’s degree in Personnel Administration, Human Resources Management, Public Administration, Business
Administration or a directly related field.
Certified Compensation Professional (CCP); OR, Certified Benefits Professional (CBP).
Microsoft Office Suite Certification.
Senior Professional in Human Resources (SPHR); OR, Professional in Human Resources Certification (PHR).
Certified Mediator.
HR Generalist background and experiences needed to manage Human Resources programs, processes and initiatives
including compensation, HRIS, benefits, weliness, affirmative action, staffing, training, employee relations, program
development, process improvements, organizational development, legal interpretation, complaint investigation and
reporting; grievance processes and outreach, and discipline/discharge procedures.
HRIS systems implementation experience, including requirements analysis, data migration, software application testing
and implementation.

Knowledge, Skills, and Abilities:
Knowledge of:
• Federal, State and Local regulations, codes and laws: Employment laws and Affirmative Action, Title VII of Civil Rights

Act, Equal Pay Act, ELSA, ADA, FMLA, EEOC, 1-9.
• Principles and practices of Human Resources management.
• Leading-edge Enterprise Resource Planning (ERP) solutions, HRIS applications and systems development.
• Texas Workforce Commission — Civil Rights Division and Texas Governor’s Committee on Disabilities.
• Leadership.
• Investigative processes and discrimination theories.
• Training programs.
• Organizational design methodology.
• State and local government budget, planning, systems, documents, issues, and trends.
• County policies, procedures and terminology.
• Recent Human Resources developments and current literature.
• Innovative Human Resources programs.
• Negotiating and coordinating changes to Human Resources rules, policies and procedures.

Page 3 of 5

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT for 1011109

JOB TITLE: Human Resources Manager II

JOB CODE: 26371 FLSA STATUS: Exempt
PAY GRADE: 26 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS: (Cont.)

Knowledge of: (Cont.)
• Principles of project management, including scheduling, estimating, budgeting.
• Advanced methods in Compensation.
• EEC best practices Human Resources compliance law, and policy & procedure development and interpretation.
• Computer competency and HRIS systems.
• Analyzing, designing, and developing systems and applications.
• HR processes, data, database design, structure, and functions.
• Information systems design, implementation and maintenance, including database applications.
• Intermediate to advanced MS Excel.
• Various countywide and regional resources.
• Statistical and trend analysis.
• Office management.
• Service oriented leadership and hands on practitioner.
• Computer equipment to include word processing, spreadsheets, databases and a variety of software packages.
• Developed analytical, organizational, and communication skills.
• Business letter writing, grammar and punctuation, and report preparation.

Skill in:
• Developing, implementing, interpreting, applying and enforcing Human Resources policies and procedures per

laws, rules, regulations, and codes.
• Contract management and project management.
• Creating policies and procedures.
• Developing budgets and programmatic evaluation tools.
• Compiling data and generating reports.
• Coordinating changes to Human Resources rules, policies and procedures.
• Project management.
• Working with executive management and Elected and Appointed officials.
• Applying Human Resources and consulting methods.
• Supervisory principles, practices and techniques.
• System-related projects, which may include payroll, position control, budgeting, compensation management, report

generation, forms, staffing, training, recruiting, employee relations, benefits, new hire orientation, government
compliance, performance management, employee self service, electronic filing, dealing with vendors, and
organizational development.

• HR database management.
• Using information systems such as HRIS.
• Using databases and other information systems tools.
• Developing reports and conducting data analysis.
• Participating and applying project planning skills that may require the revision, development and/or re-design of

existing Compensation program.
• Problem-solving and decision-making.
• Explaining complicated technical problems in simple non-technical language.
• Customer service delivery.
• Both verbal and written communication.

Page 4 of 5

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT for 1011109

JOB TITLE: Human Resources Manager II

JOB CODE: 26371 FLSA STATUS: Exempt
PAY GRADE: 26 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS: (Cont.)

Ability to:
• Manage, plan, assign, supervise, motivate, train, evaluate and supervise professional and administrative support

staff.
• Interpret policies, procedures, and Federal, State and Local applicable laws.
• Lead and implement continuous improvement processes.
• Evaluate Human Resources problems and issues and recommend effective technical HRIS-related solutions.
• Manage, plan, organize, prioritize, and implement department programs, projects, functions, operations and activities.
• Convey complex ideas and concepts verbally and in writing.
• Provide management and team building.
• Communicate goals to a wide and diverse audience.
• Prepare and conduct training.
• Work independently as well as in a fast paced team environment.
• Design and deliver training.
• Respond to inquiries.
• Manage time well, perform multiple tasks, and organize and prioritize diverse activities, changing priorities and

follow through to completion.
• Exercise sound judgment and make decisions.
• Organize varied work assignments and meet appropriate priorities.
• Ensure compliance with assigned guidelines, processes and procedures.
• Perform in a fast-paced and stressful environment while maintaining a professional manner.
• Make appropriate and effective public presentations.
• Establish and maintain effective working relationships with County employees and officials, all levels of management,

other Department Heads, departmental clientele, representatives of outside agencies and providers, other County
employees and officials, and the public.

WORK ENVIRONMENT AND PHYSICAL DEMANDS:

Physical requirements include the ability to lift/carry up to 20-50 pounds occasionally, visual acuity, speech and hearing,
hand and eye coordination and manual dexterity necessary to operate a computer and office equipment. Subject to
standing, walking, sitting, repetitive motion, reaching, climbing stairs, bending, stooping, kneeling, crouching, crawling,
pushing, pulling, balancing, client/customer contact, squatting to perform the essential functions.

This job description is intended to be generic in nature. It is not necessarily an exhaustive list of all duties
and responsibilities. The essential duties, functions and responsibilities and overtime eligibility may vary
based on the specific tasks assigned to the position.

Page 5of5

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: HRIS Specialist

JOB CODE: 24372 FLSA STATUS: Exempt
PAY GRADE: 24 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

JOB SUMMARY:

Under administrative direction of department head. Serves as key liaison and technical point-of-contact with other
stakeholders and provides hands-on functional support, consultation, development, and maintenance of human
resources data management systems. Assists subject matter experts to ensure data integrity, upgrades and testing of
system changes, running queries, analyzing data and standard report writing. Researches and resolves data
management problems. Recommends solutions or alternate methods to meet requirements. Develops procedures,
guidelines and documentation to train on new processes and new system users. Provides project management for a
given HR initiative.

DISTINGUISHING CHARACTERISTICS:

This is a job classification within the Human Resources job family. This classification is responsible for performing highly
technical and advanced HRIS work while serving as a functional HR generalist. This classification typically reports to the
department head. This classification may require a flexible work schedule in order to meet the needs of the department.

DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES:

• Functions as a key liaison and technical point-of-contact with other stakeholders and provides hands-on functional
support, consultation, development and maintenance of human resources data management systems. Serves as a
technical consultant in planning, researching, designing, developing and implementing new organization-wide
information systems.

• Maintains the accuracy and integrity of human resources information through all stages of system design,
development, testing, implementation, upgrade and change. Creates and recommends systems solutions
necessary to implement the department’s vision for improved HRIS services and increased options for web-based
self-service. Contributes to the functional specifications for new systems development and enhancement.

• Functions as HR departmental lead and point of contact on all matters relating to HRIS. HR process design,
redesign and improvement and requirements definition.

• Develops, maintains and supports a variety of HR-related reports and queries utilizing appropriate reporting tools.
Designs and generates databases, tools and management reports, to support the information needs.

• Develops user procedures, guidelines and documentation in support of all applications. Delivers end-user
technology support and training.

• Researches best HR practices/processes for all HR functions, including HRIS and incorporates in the development
and implementation of effective and efficient information systems. Reviews and evaluates existing programs,
practices and systems to identify opportunities for systems improvements.

• Maintains thorough and current knowledge of Federal, State and Local HR-related laws, policies and practices and
County directives to ensure organizational compliance and facilitates meeting the business needs of the organization.

• Supports functional testing, upgrades and enhancements of systems; provides detailed analysis and documentation
of upgrade changes and makes recommendations; communicates to end users.

• Tracks relevant HR measures, creates and generates complex qualitative and quantitative reports and analysis,
consults internally and externally on information systems and human resources policies and procedures.

• Communicates both orally and in writing representing HRMD to Commissioners Court, departments, other public
and private sector entities, and the public, as required of position and assigned. Develops and fosters partnerships
to define workable business solutions that support business requirements.

• Performs other job-related duties as assigned.

Page 1 of 3

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: HRIS Specialist

JOB CODE: 24372 FLSA STATUS: Exempt
PAY GRADE: 24 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS:

Education and Experience:
Bachelor’s degree in Personnel Management, Public Administration, Business Administration, Human Resources
Management, Information Systems, Computer Science or a directly related field AND six (6) years of increasingly
responsible HRIS or Human Resources generalist or specialist experiences and previous exposure, including a
minimum of three (3) years project management experiences through active participation in system-related projects,
which may include payroll, position control, budgeting, compensation management, report generation, forms, staffing,
training, recruiting, employee relations, benefits, new hire orientation, government corn pliance, performance
management, employee self service, electronic filing, dealing with vendors, and organizational development.
Experiences should include training delivery;

OR,

Any combination of education and experience that has been achieved and is equivalent to the stated education and
experience and required knowledge, skills, and abilities sufficient to successfully perform the duties and responsibilities
of this job.

Licenses, Registrations, Certifications, or Special Requirements:
None required.

Preferred:
Senior Professional in Human Resources (SPHR); OR, Professional in Human Resources Certification (PHR).

Knowledge. Skills, and Abilities:
Knowledge of:
• Leading-edge Enterprise Resource Planning (ERP) solutions, HRIS applications and systems development.
• Analyzing, designing, and developing systems and applications.
• HR processes, data, database design, structure, and functions.
• Information systems design, implementation and maintenance, including database applications.
• Policies, practices, procedures and terminology of assigned function.
• Federal, State, Local and County applicable laws, rules, regulations and guidelines.
• Problem-solving and decision-making.

Skill in:
• Using of database and other information systems tools.
• Project management.
• Computer equipment to include word processing, spreadsheets, databases and a variety of software applications

such as MS Excel, Word and PowerPoint.
• Planning and analytical.
• Both verbal and written communication.

Ability to:
• Lead and implement continuous improvement processes.
• Work independently as well as in a fast paced team environment.
• Evaluate human resources problems and issues and recommend effective technical HRIS-related solutions.
• Design and deliver training.
• Interpret policies and procedures.
• Manage time well, perform multiple tasks, organize and prioritize diverse activities and changing priorities.
• Establish and maintain effective working relationships with County employees and officials, representatives of

outside agencies, and the general public.

Page 2 of 3

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: HRIS Specialist

JOB CODE: 24372 FLSA STATUS: Exempt
PAY GRADE: 24 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

WORK ENVIRONMENT AND PHYSICAL DEMANDS:

Physical requirements include the ability to lift/carry up to 20-50 pounds occasionally, visual acuity, speech and hearing,
hand and eye coordination and manual dexterity necessary to operate a computer and office equipment. Subject to
standing, walking, sitting, repetitive motion, reaching, climbing stairs, bending, stooping, kneeling, crouching, crawling,
pushing, pulling, balancing, client/customer contact, squatting to perform the essential functions.

This job description is intended to be generic in nature. It is not necessarily an exhaustive list of all duties
and responsibilities. The essential duties, functions and responsibilities and overtime eligibility may vary
based on the specific tasks assigned to the position.

Page 3of3 ,43

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Benefits Administrator

JOB CODE: 24374 FLSA STATUS: Exempt
PAY GRADE: 24 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

JOB SUMMARY:

Responsible for ensuring employees are aware and informed of their benefits and choices and that the benefits programs
are accessible to all employees. Handles day-to-day benefits administration. Evaluates plan experience for management
and makes recommendations for future plans and/or plan revisions.

DISTINGUISHING CHARACTERISTICS:

This is a job classification within the Human Resources job family. Position serves as the Corporate Benefits
Administrator. This position may require a flexible work schedule in order to meet the needs of the organization.

DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES:

• Audits stop-loss and other claims on a weekly basis. Ensures appropriate use of funds in insurance funds and
monitors TPA payment of claims.

• Provides problem-solving solutions for employee claim/eligibility issues that have escalated. Ensures vendor
compliance with County contracts.

• Facilitates regular ongoing benefit committee meetings, includes preparation of materials for use in meetings including
experience data, benefit information, research of plan design or other benefit plans.

• Chairs the Retiree Policy Committee.

• Prepares and releases Benefit Requests for Proposals (REP’s) for all benefit related contracts. Conducts negotiations,
contract awarding and implementation of new contracts. Manages renewal of contracts on an annual basis.

• Analyzes claims and experience data and formulates reports and charts that show claim transactions. Prepares
reports and briefs the Commissioners Court and management, as required.

• Participates in annual open enrollment, including preparation of employee informational materials, (such as summaries
of benefits/rates and comparison of plan choices), auditing of data, and monitoring County online enrollment system
issues to help insure accuracy of data.

• Prepares Summary Plan Descriptions for each contract.

• Performs other duties and special projects to include: filing death claims, research, and preparation of materials for
Court, management, and meetings. Conducts training of employees for benefits HIPPA, FSA, Retirement, and New
Employee Orientation.

• Performs other job-related duties as assigned.

MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS:

Education and Experience:
Bachelors degree in Personnel Management, Human Resources Management, Public Administration, Business
Administration, Health Care field or a directly related field AND six (6) years of demonstrated increasingly responsible
experience in benefits administration or related field;

OR,

Any combination of education and experience that has been achieved and is equivalent to the stated education and
experience and required knowledge, skills, and abilities sufficient to successfully perform the duties and responsibilities
of this job.

Licenses, Registrations, Certifications, or Special Requirements:
Valid Texas Driver’s License.

Page 1 of 3

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Benefits Administrator

JOB CODE: 24374 FLSA STATUS: Exempt
PAY GRADE: 24 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS: (Cont.)

Preferred:
Master’s degree in Personnel Management, Human Resources Management, Public Administration, Business
Administration or a directly related field.
Strong background in health insurance administration, medical claims experience, and insurance underwriting.
Certified Employee Benefits Specialist (CEBS).
Certified Government Benefits Administrator (CGBA).
Health Insurance Associate (HIA).
Microsoft Office Suite Certification.
Certified Compensation Professional (CCP); OR, Certified Benefits Professional (CBP).
Senior Professional in Human Resources (SPHR); OR, Professional in Human Resources Certification (PHR).

Knowledge. Skills, and Abilities:
Knowledge of:
• County policies, procedures and terminology.
• Federal, State, and Local laws, statutes, and regulations relating to the field, including HIPPA, COBRA.
• Request for Proposal Guidelines and Rules.
• Health plans, and insurance.
• Medical terminology, ICD-9, and CPT codes.
• Local government codes and purchasing acts.
• Contract administration and negotiation skills.
• Claims background and an understanding of vendor claims processes.
• Program evaluation.
• State and local issues.
• Organization and management principles.
• Manual and automated systems relating to assigned function.
• Computer equipment to include word processing, spreadsheets, databases and a variety of software packages.
• Business letter writing, grammar and punctuation, and report preparation.

Skill in:
• Project management, managing staff, allocating resources and evaluating programs.
• Problem-solving and decision-making.
• Public policy research.
• Statistical methods.
• Financial analysis.
• Strategic planning.
• Analytical methods.
• Developing financial spreadsheets and financial trend analysis.
• Reviewing and completing professional financial reports.
• Long-range planning and evaluating financial processes.
• Developing financial policies and procedures.
• Both verbal and written communication, including public presentations.

Page 2 of 3

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Benefits Administrator

JOB CODE: 24374 FLSA STATUS: Exempt
PAY GRADE: 24 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS: (Cont.)

Ability to:
• Provide counsel and benefits information to family members in death claim situations.
• Facilitate committees and meetings.
• Research, compile, analyze, interpret, and prepare a variety of reports and presentations.
• Work independently and as part of a team.
• Manage time well, perform multiple tasks and organize diverse activities.
• Establish and maintain effective working relationships with County employees and officials, representatives of

outside agencies, and the general public.

WORK ENVIRONMENT AND PHYSICAL DEMANDS:

Physical requirements include the ability to lift/carry up to 20-50 pounds occasionally, visual acuity, speech and hearing,
hand and eye coordination and manual dexterity necessary to operate a computer and office equipment. Subject to
standing, walking, sitting, repetitive motion, reaching, climbing stairs, bending, stooping, kneeling, crouching, crawling,
pushing, pulling, balancing, client/customer contact, squatting to perform the essential functions.

This job description is intended to be generic in nature. It is not necessarily an exhaustive list of all duties
and responsibilities. The essential duties, functions and responsibilities and overtime eligibility may vary
based on the specific tasks assigned to the position.

Page 3of3

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Risk I Safety Specialist Assistant II

JOB CODE: 14515 FLSA STATUS: Non-Exempt
PAY GRADE: 14 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

JOB SUMMARY:

Works under moderate supervision and normally receives detailed instruction on work assignments. Supports Risk
Specialist in claim management activities and in various capacities throughout the organization. Assists in administration
of Risk Management programs. Performs Intermediate-level human resources support activities and maintains
confidentiality regarding human resource related issues.

DISTINGUISHING CHARACTERISTICS:

This is a job classification within the Human Resources job family. Intermediate-level Human Resource Assistant position
with experience in claims adjusting.

DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES:

• Coordinates administrative processing of new Risk Management claims including all lines. Tracks and inputs into
the Risk Management Information System. Logs data and maintains claim and/or salary continuation.

• Assists in the administration and communication of policies and procedures. Responds to requests from
employees, public, management, and other County Departments regarding ADA, Workers Compensation,
insurance, training, light duty assignments. Processes required forms and provides recommendations concerning
procedures.

• Prepares, processes and monitors All Lines Claim (including property, casualty, auto liability and workers
compensation). Forms and coordinates with payroll personnel ensuring conformity to State and Federal laws and
regulations, and County policies for workers compensation.

• Drafts, develops and processes memos, letters, reports, newsletters, forms, and other documents.

• Assists with payroll functions for workers compensation.

• Performs other job-related duties as assigned.

MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS:

Education and Experience:
Associate’s degree in Personnel Management, Human Resources Management, Public Administration, Business
Administration or a directly related field AND three (3) years of administrative experience supporting claims adjusting
activities;

OR,

Any combination of education and experience that has been achieved and is equivalent to the stated education and
experience and required knowledge, skills, and abilities sufficient to successfully perform the duties and responsibilities
of this job.

Licenses, Registrations, Certifications, or Special Requirements:
Valid Texas Driver’s License.

Preferred:
Bachelor’s degree in Personnel Management, Human Resources Management, Public Administration, Business
Administration.
Specialized coursework in the area of All Lines Claims Adjusting & Insurance courses.

Pagelof2 €227

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Risk I Safety Specialist Assistant II

JOB CODE: 14515 FLSA STATUS: Non-Exempt
PAY GRADE: 14 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS: (Cont.)

Knowledcie, Skills, and Abilities:
Knowledge of:
• County policies, procedures and terminology.
• Principles and practices of Human Resource Management and Risk Management.
• Federal, State, and Local laws, statutes, and regulations relating to employment, Workers Compensation, American

with Disabilities Act.
• Occupational Health & Safety Administration.
• Workers compensation procedures and practices.
• Recent Risk Management developments and current literature.
• Compiling data and generating reports.
• Office management.
• Computer equipment to include word processing, spreadsheets, databases and a variety of software packages.
• Business letter writing, grammar and punctuation, and report preparation.

Skill in:
• Resolving complex problems.
• Conducting research and presenting information.
• Problem-solving and decision-making.
• Customer service delivery.
• Compiling data and generating reports.
• Explaining complicated technical problems in simple non-technical language.
• Prioritizing work assignments.
• Both verbal and written communication.

Ability to:
• Work independently as well as in a team environment.
• Interpret, conduct research, analyze programs and policies, practices, and procedures.
• Manage time well, perform multiple tasks and organize diverse activities.
• Establish and maintain effective working relationships with County employees and officials, representatives of

outside agencies, construction safety management, construction safety subcontractors, and the general public.

WORK ENVIRONMENT AND PHYSICAL DEMANDS:

Physical requirements include the ability to lift/carry up to 20-50 pounds occasionally, visual acuity, speech and hearing,
hand and eye coordination and manual dexterity necessary to operate a computer and office equipment. Subject to
standing, walking, sitting, repetitive motion, reaching, climbing stairs, bending, stooping, kneeling, crouching, crawling,
pushing, pulling, balancing, client/customer contact, squatting to perform the essential functions

This job description is intended to be generic in nature. It is not necessarily an exhaustive list of all duties
and responsibilities. The essential duties, functions and responsibilities and overtime eligibility may vary
based on the specific tasks assigned to the position.

Page2of2

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Risk I Safety Specialist I

JOB CODE: 18524 FLSA STATUS: Exempt
PAY GRADE: 18 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

JOB SUMMARY:

Performs professional entry-level Risk / Safety management duties and responsibilities which may include but not
limited to contract administration for Third Party Administrators (TPA’s) and case management contractors,
administration of workers compensation program, oversight of the return to work program, administration of the salary
continuation policy, insurance coverage analysis for vendors and County, implementation of contracts and RFP’s, safety
inspections, fire safety training, life safety code inspections, ergonomic assessments, safety and health training, loss
prevention assessments, and hazard identification. Assists with the County’s Commercial Defensive Driving Program.
Assists in ADA compliance inspection efforts, identifying deficiencies in compliance, and recommended accessibility
improvements. Assists with employee pre-employment and post-accident drug screening, loss prevention, statistical
reporting and trend analysis, education and training, and awareness through investigations and inspections. Provides
assistance with the administration of loss prevention and safety programs at either the department or corporate level of
the organization. Follows standard practices and procedures in analyzing situations.

DISTINGUISHING CHARACTERISTICS:

This is a job classification within the Human Resources job family. Entry level Risk I Safety Specialist position.

DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES:

• Maintains a comprehensive underwriting database for both self-insured and insured coverage, utilizing risk
assessment tools such as risk survey, review of financial reports and on-site inspections.

• Assists management with the development of policies and procedures, particularly as related to self-insurance
programs or workers compensation administration. Updates and revises existing policies and procedures, as
required.

• Assists management with the development and advertising of Requests for Proposal for a variety of services,
including insurance coverage and professional services relating to claims administration activities. Provides
assistance in the review and analyses of RFP responses.

• Researches insurance coverage and other risk management issues, makes suggestions and provides input
regarding certain aspects of the risk management program, to include whether or not to insure specific types of
exposures.

• Maintains property schedule on database and property book for insurance purposes.

• Reviews open workers compensation claims to verify that TPA is adjusting claims in accordance with minimum
claims adjusting standards, as set forth in the contract.

• Maintains contact with TPA regarding workers compensation and liability claims; provides technical assistance
regarding procedures for handling claims.

• Provides technical assistance regarding workers compensation and liability claims, insurance coverage and other
risk management issues and provides information, as required.

• Provides workers compensation training, as required. Develops training materials and handouts.

• Assists with periodic audits of workers compensation files; identifies any areas of non-compliance with the contract;
issues audit reports outlining findings.

• Attends workers compensation hearings, including Medical Dispute Resolution Hearings, Benefit Review
Conferences and Contested Case Hearings. Assists attorney as appropriate in preparation of cases for hearings.
Identifies issues and provides information needed to support the County’s position.

• Assists with the administration of the Risk Management Information system (RIM’s) to include data entry, accuracy
validation, weekly data download from TPA, and departmental reports.

Page 1 of 4

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Risk I Safety Specialist I

JOB CODE: 18524 FLSA STATUS: Exempt
PAY GRADE: 18 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES: (Cont.)

• Verifies workers compensation time taken by employees. Verifies time was appropriate and authorized and notifies
Payroll of any TIBS payments that need to be deducted from employee’s pay. As appropriate, notifies employees of
the expiration of salary continuation time and ineligibility to use workers compensation time for lost time.

• Assists with the development of safety training for County employees, (defensive driving, forklift safety, office safety,
ergonomic training, lifting safety, hazardous waste, CPR and First-aid, AED, vehicle safety and vehicle safety policy).

• Assists with facility inspections (fire safety inspections and ADA inspections).

• Assists with mold damage remediation work.

• Assists with vehicle and equipment inspections and vehicle safety policies. Assists with training employees on written
requirements for vehicle safety policy.

• Provides assistance on Accident/Incident investigations. Interviews personnel involved in accident, performs area
survey for preventative a corrective actions. (Loss or damage to vehicle, heavy equipment or injury to 3 party).

• Assists with the development, implementation and training on countywide ergonomic program. Provides
recommended preventative and corrective actions, as required.

• Posts workers compensation injury recommendations and equipment purchasing to data files.

• Provides backup duties during absence of safety engineer.

• Assists with the inspection of County construction projects to ensure safety of County personnel and property and
compliance with federal laws. (Safety meetings, site inspections, and accident investigations).

• Assists with the County’s Health and Wellness Program, and County festival on healthy life awareness, exercises
wellness, walking wellness and healthy life styles.

• Assists with County employee DOT random drug testing, pre-employment exams, EAP program, Post-accident
testing, and reasonable suspicion. Assists the Drug and Alcohol Program Coordinator.

• Assists with Safety/Health Program Maintenance: Implements department’s work safety programs in coordination with
upper management. Implements associated safety related procedures and requirements to ensure compliance with
applicable federal and state laws and regulations, County policies and procedures.

• Evaluates specific activity job tasks, determines safety related needs and incorporates process safety criteria, personal
protective equipment and other safety related requirements, as required.

• Investigates, inspects and/or conducts statistical reporting on employee injuries, lost time injuries, and makes
recommendations to prevent reoccurrence utilizing preventive safety measures.

• Interviews employees and supervisors concerning vehicular collisions, determines preventive measures and writes
reports reflecting recommendations to minimize reoccurrence. Investigates major incidents involving third parties, and
reports findings and recommendations to affected parties.

• Works with the County Risk Management Department concerning loss minimization directed in areas where trends are
observed.

• Maintains database for recording and reporting loss experiences.

• Schedules and presents monthly, quarterly and other required safety training sessions for employees, supervisors and
managers. Incorporates preventive measures as determined by accident and injury investigations to communicate
procedures to utilize to minimize reoccurrence of similar losses. Conducts special training sessions, as required.

• Completes organizational paperwork, as required.

• Performs other job-related duties as assigned.

Page 2 of 4

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Risk I Safety Specialist I

JOB CODE: 18524 FLSA STATUS: Exempt
PAY GRADE: 18 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS:

Education and Experience:
Bachelor’s degree in Personnel Management, Human Resources Management, Public Administration, Business
Administration, Environmental Sciences, Safety Engineering, Chemistry or a directly related field AND one (1) year of
directly related demonstrated experience;

OR,

Any combination of education and experience that has been achieved and is equivalent to the stated education and
experience and required knowledge, skills, and abilities sufficient to successfully perform the duties and responsibilities
of this job.

Licenses, Registrations, Certifications, or Special Requirements:
Valid Texas Driver’s License.

Preferred:
Certified Safety Professional.
Certified Industrial Hygienist.
Certified Government Benefits Administrator.
Certified Employee Benefits Specialist.
Associate in Risk Management.

Knowledge, Skills, and Abilities:
Knowledge of:
• County policies, procedures and terminology.
• Federal, State, and Local laws, statutes, and regulations relating to the field.
• Occupational Health & Safety Administration.
• Principles and practices of Human Resources management.
• Recent Risk Management developments and current literature.
• Principles and practices of insurance underwriting.
• Workers compensation procedures and practices.
• Currently accepted risk management and loss control.
• Investigative methods, procedures and techniques.
• Work management and work leadership concepts and skills.
• Compiling data and generating reports.
• American’s With Disability Act, HIPPA, Department of Transportation FAA Drug and Alcohol Testing requirements and

the Texas Workers Compensation Program.
• TVVCC Field Safety designation.
• Digital photography, air quality meters, air sampling equipment, moisture meters, and anemometers.
• Negotiating, interviewing and investigative practices and techniques.
• Office management.
• Computer equipment to include word processing, spreadsheets, databases and a variety of software packages.
• Business letter writing, grammar and punctuation, and report preparation.

Skill in:
• Using respirators.
• Problem-solving and decision-making.
• Customer service delivery.
• Explaining complicated technical problems in simple non-technical language.
• Prioritizing work assignments.
• Both verbal and written communication.

Page 3 of 4

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Risk I Safety Specialist I

JOB CODE: 18524 FLSA STATUS: Exempt
PAY GRADE: 18 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS: (Cont.)

Ability to:
• Analyze and evaluate data and identify trends.
• Operate photographic equipment.
• Operate personal protective equipment.
• Work independently as well as in a team environment.
• Interpret, conduct research, analyze and develop programs and policies, practices, and procedures.
• Manage time well, perform multiple tasks and organize diverse activities.
• Network and interact with a diverse workforce, community and customer population.
• Establish and maintain effective working relationships with County employees and officials, representatives of outside

agencies, construction safety management, construction safety subcontractors, and the general public.

WORK ENVIRONMENT AND PHYSICAL DEMANDS:

Physical requirements include the ability to lift/carry 50 pounds occasionally, visual acuity, speech and hearing, hand and
eye coordination and manual dexterity necessary to operate a computer and office equipment. Subject to standing,
walking, sitting, repetitive motion, reaching, climbing stairs, bending, stooping, kneeling, crouching, crawling, pushing,
pulling, balancing, client/customer contact, squatting to perform the essential functions. Subject to dust, extreme
temperatures/weather change, extreme heat, extreme cold, humidity, dangerous machinery, and hazardous chemicals.

This job description is intended to be generic in nature. It is not necessarily an exhaustive list of all duties
and responsibilities. The essential duties, functions and responsibilities and overtime eligibility may vary
based on the specific tasks assigned to the position.

Page4of4 .
7€2.

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Risk I Safety Specialist II

JOB CODE: 20525 FLSA STATUS: Exempt
PAY GRADE: 20 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

JOB SUMMARY:

Performs intermediate level professional Risk I Safety management duties and responsibilities which may include but
are not limited to contract administration for Third Party Administrators (TPA’s) and case management contractors,
administration of workers compensation program, oversight of the return to work program, administration of the salary
continuation policy, insurance coverage analysis for vendors and County, implementation of contracts and RFP’s, safety
inspections, fire safety training, life safety code inspections, ergonomic assessments, safety and health training, loss
prevention assessments, hazard identification. Assists with the County’s Commercial Defensive Driving Program.
Assists in ADA compliance inspection efforts, identifying deficiencies in compliance, and recommended accessibility
improvements. Assists with employee pre-employment and post-accident drug screening, loss prevention, statistical
reporting and trend analysis, education and training, and awareness through investigations and inspections. Provides
assistance with the administration of loss prevention and safety programs at either the Department or Corporate level of
the organization. Works on problems of moderate scope, and exercises judgment within defined procedures and
practices.

DISTINGUISHING CHARACTERISTICS:

This is a job classification within the Human Resources job family. Intermediate level Risk I Safety Specialist position.

DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES:

• Maintains a comprehensive underwriting database for both self-insured and insured coverage, utilizing risk
assessment tools such as risk survey, review of financial reports and on-site inspections.

• Assists management with the development of policies and procedures, particularly as related to self-insurance
programs or workers compensation administration. Updates and revises existing policies and procedures, as required.

• Assists management with the development and advertising of Requests for Proposal for a variety of services,
including insurance coverage and professional services relating to claims administration activities. Provides
assistance in the review and analyses of REP responses.

• Researches insurance coverage and other risk management issues, makes suggestions and provides input
regarding certain aspects of the risk management program, to include whether or not to insure specific types of
exposures.

• Reviews open workers compensation claims to verify that TPA is adjusting claims in accordance with minimum
claims adjusting standards, as set forth in the contract.

• Maintains contact with TPA regarding workers compensation and liability claims; provides technical assistance
regarding procedures for handling claims.

• Provides technical assistance regarding workers compensation and liability claims, insurance coverage and other
risk management issues and provides information, as required.

• Provides workers compensation training, as required. Develops training materials and handouts.

• Assists with periodic audits of workers compensation files; identifies any areas of non-compliance with the contract;
issues audit reports outlining findings.

• Attends workers compensation hearings, including Medical Dispute Resolution Hearings, Benefit Review
Conferences and Contested Case Hearings. Assists attorney as appropriate in preparation of cases for hearings.
Identifies issues and provides information needed to support the County’s position.

• Assists with the administration of the Risk Management Information system (RIM’s) to include data entry, accuracy
validation, weekly data download from TPA, and departmental reports.

• Verifies workers compensation time taken by employees. Verifies time was appropriate and authorized and notifies
Payroll of any TIBS payments that need to be deducted from employee’s pay. As appropriate, notifies employees of
the expiration of salary continuation time and ineligibility to use workers compensation time for lost time.

Page 1 of 4 ; 73

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

Risk I Safety Specialist IIJOB TITLE:

JOB CODE: 20525 FLSA STATUS: Exempt
PAY GRADE: 20 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES: (Cont.)

• Assists with the development of safety training for County employees, (defensive driving, forklift safety, office safety,
ergonomic training, lifting safety, hazardous waste, CPR and First-aid, AED, vehicle safety and vehicle safety policy).

• Assists with facility inspections (fire safety inspections and ADA inspections).

• Assists with mold damage remediation work.

• Assists with vehicle and equipment inspections and vehicle safety policies. Assists with training employees on written
requirements for vehicle safety policy.

• Provides assistance on Accident/Incident investigations. Interviews personnel involved in accident, performs area
survey for preventative a corrective actions. (Loss or damage to vehicle, heavy equipment or injury to 3 party).

• Assists with the development, implementation and training on countywide ergonomic program. Provides
recommended preventative and corrective actions, as required.

• Posts workers compensation injury recommendations and equipment purchasing to data files.

• Provides backup during absence of Safety Engineer.

• Assists with the inspection of County construction projects to ensure safety of County personnel and property and
compliance with federal laws. (Safety meetings, site inspections and accident investigations).

• Assists with the County’s Health and Wellness Program, and County festival on healthy life awareness, exercises
wellness, walking wellness and healthy life styles.

• Assists with County employee DOT random drug testing, pre-employment exams, EAP program, Post-accident
testing, and reasonable suspicion. Assists the Drug and Alcohol Program Coordinator.

• Assists with Safety/Health Program Maintenance: Implements department’s work safety programs in coordination with
upper management. Implements associated safety related procedures and requirements to ensure compliance with
applicable Federal and State laws and regulations, County policies and procedures.

• Evaluates specific activity job tasks, determines safety related needs and incorporates process safety criteria, personal
protective equipment and other safety related requirements, as required.

• Investigates, inspects and/or conducts statistical reporting on employee injuries, lost time injuries, and makes
recommendations to prevent reoccurrence utilizing preventive safety measures.

• Interviews employees and supervisors concerning vehicular collisions, determines preventive measures and writes
reports reflecting recommendations to minimize reoccurrence. Investigates major incidents involving third parties, and
reports findings and recommendations to affected parties.

• Works with the County Risk Management Department concerning loss minimization directed in areas where trends are
observed.

• Maintains database for recording and reporting loss experiences.

• Schedules and presents monthly, quarterly and other required safety training sessions for employees, supervisors and
managers. Incorporates preventive measures as determined by accident and injury investigations to communicate
procedures to utilize to minimize reoccurrence of similar losses. Conducts special training sessions, as required.

• Completes organizational paperwork, as required.

• Performs other job-related duties as assigned.

47LIPage 2 of 4

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Risk I Safety Specialist II

JOB CODE: 20525 FLSA STATUS: Exempt
PAY GRADE: 20 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS:

Education and Experience:
Bachelor’s degree in Personnel Management, Human Resources Management, Public Administration, Business
Administration, Environmental Sciences, Safety Engineering, Chemistry or a directly related field AND three (3) years of
directly related demonstrated experience;

OR,

Any combination of education and experience that has been achieved and is equivalent to the stated education and
experience and required knowledge, skills, and abilities sufficient to successfully perform the duties and responsibilities
of this job.

Licenses, Registrations, Certifications, or Special Requirements:
Valid Texas Driver’s License.

Preferred:
Certified Safety Professional.
Certified Industrial Hygienist.
Certified Government Benefits Administrator.
Certified Employee Benefits Specialist.
Associate in Risk Management.

Knowledge, Skills, and Abilities:
Knowledge of:
• County policies, procedures and terminology.
• Federal, State, and Local laws, statutes, and regulations relating to the field.
• Occupational Health & Safety Administration.
• Principles and practices of Human Resources management.
• Recent Risk Management developments and current literature.
• Principles and practices of insurance underwriting.
• Workers compensation procedures and practices.
• Currently accepted risk management and loss control.
• Investigative methods, procedures and techniques.
• Work management and work leadership concepts and skills.
• Compiling data and generating reports.
• Americans With Disability Act, HIPPA, Department of Transportation FAA Drug and Alcohol Testing requirements and

the Texas Workers Compensation Program.
• TWCC Field Safety designation.
• Digital photography, air quality meters, air sampling equipment, moisture meters, and anemometers.
• Negotiating, interviewing and investigative practices and techniques.
• Office management.
• Computer equipment to include word processing, spreadsheets, databases and a variety of software packages.
• Business letter writing, grammar and punctuation, and report preparation.

Skill in:
• Using respirators.
• Problem-solving and decision-making.
• Customer service delivery.
• Explaining complicated technical problems in simple non-technical language.
• Prioritizing work assignments.
• Both verbal and written communication.

Page 3 of 4

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Risk I Safety Specialist II

JOB CODE: 20525 FLSA STATUS: Exempt
PAY GRADE: 20 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS: (Cont.)

Ability to:
• Analyze and evaluate data and identify trends.
• Operate photographic equipment.
• Operate personal protective equipment.
• Work independently as well as in a team environment.
• Interpret, conduct research, analyze and develop programs and policies, practices, and procedures.
• Manage time well, perform multiple tasks and organize diverse activities.
• Network and interact with a diverse workforce, community and customer population.
• Establish and maintain effective working relationships with County employees and officials, representatives of outside

agencies, construction safety management, construction safety subcontractors, and the general public.

WORK ENVIRONMENT AND PHYSICAL DEMANDS:

Physical requirements include the ability to lift/carry 50 pounds occasionally, visual acuity, speech and hearing, hand
and eye coordination and manual dexterity necessary to operate a computer and office equipment. Subject to standing,
walking, sitting, repetitive motion, reaching, climbing stairs, bending, stooping, kneeling, crouching, crawling, pushing,
pulling, balancing, client/customer contact, squatting to perform the essential functions. Subject to dust, extreme
temperatures/weather change, extreme heat, extreme cold, humidity, dangerous machinery, and hazardous chemicals.

This job description is intended to be generic in nature. It is not necessarily an exhaustive list of all duties
and responsibilities. The essential duties, functions and responsibilities and overtime eligibility may vary
based on the specific tasks assigned to the position.

Page4of4 cb 7&

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Risk I Safety Specialist Senior

JOB CODE: 22526 FLSA STATUS: Exempt
PAY GRADE: 22 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

JOB SUMMARY:

Performs advanced, senior level professional Risk I Safety management duties and responsibilities which may include
but are not limited to contract administration for Third Party Administrators (TPA’s) and case management contractors,
administration of auto and general liability and property claims, workers compensation program, oversight of the return
to work program, administration of the salary continuation policy, insurance coverage analysis for vendors and County,
implementation of contracts and REP’s, safety inspections, fire safety training, life safety code inspections, ergonomic
assessments, safety and health training, loss prevention assessments, and hazard identification. Assists with the
County’s Commercial Defensive Driving Program. Assists in ADA compliance inspection efforts, identifies deficiencies
in compliance, and recommends accessibility improvements. Assists with employee pre-employment and post-accident
drug screening, loss prevention, statistical reporting and trend analysis, education and training, and awareness through
investigations and inspections. Provides assistance with the administration of loss prevention and safety programs at
either the department or corporate level of the organization. Works on problems of diverse scope.

DISTINGUISHING CHARACTERISTICS:

This is a job classification within the Human Resources job family. Senior level Risk / Safety Specialist position.

DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES:

• Maintains a comprehensive underwriting database for both self-insured and insured coverage, utilizing risk
assessment tools such as risk survey, review of financial reports and on-site inspections.

• Assists management with the development of policies and procedures, particularly as related to self-insurance
programs or workers compensation administration. Updates and revises existing policies and procedures, as
required.

• Assists management with the development and advertising of Requests for Proposal for a variety of services,
including insurance coverage and professional services relating to claims administration activities. Provides
assistance in the review and analysis of RFP responses.

• Researches insurance coverage and other risk management issues, makes suggestions and provides input
regarding certain aspects of the risk management program, to include whether or not to insure specific types of
exposures.

• Reviews open workers compensation auto and casualty claims to verify that TPA is adjusting claims in accordance
with minimum claims adjusting standards, as set forth in the contract.

• Maintains contact with TPA regarding workers compensation and liability claims; provides technical assistance
regarding procedures for handling claims.

• Provides technical assistance regarding workers compensation and liability claims, insurance coverage and other
risk management issues and provides information, as required.

• Provides workers compensation training, as required. Develops training materials and handouts.

• Assists with periodic audits of workers compensation files; identifies any areas of non-compliance with the contract;
issues audit reports outlining findings.

• Attends workers compensation hearings, including Medical Dispute Resolution Hearings, Benefit Review
Conferences and Contested Case Hearings. Assists Attorney, as required, in preparation of cases for hearings.
Identifies issues and provides information needed to support the County’s position.

• Assists with the administration of the Risk Management Information system (RIM’s) to include data entry, accuracy
validation, weekly data download from TPA, and departmental reports.

• Verifies workers compensation time taken by employees. Verifies time was appropriate and authorized and notifies
Payroll of any TIBS payments that need to be deducted from employee’s pay. Notifies employees of the expiration
of salary continuation time and ineligibility to use workers compensation time for lost time.

Page 1 of 4

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Risk I Safety Specialist Senior

JOB CODE: 22526 FLSA STATUS: Exempt
PAY GRADE: 22 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES: (Cont.)

• Assists with the development of safety training for County employees, (defensive driving, forklift safety, office safety,
ergonomic training, lifting safety, hazardous waste, CPR & First-aid, AED, vehicle safety, and vehicle safety policy).

• Assists with facility inspections (fire safety inspections, and ADA inspections).

• Assists with mold damage remediation work.

• Assists with vehicle and equipment inspections and vehicle safety policies. Assists with training employees on written
requirements for vehicle safety policy.

• Provides assistance on Accident/Incident investigations. Interviews personnel involved in accident, erforms area
survey for preventative a corrective actions. (Loss or damage to vehicle, heavy equipment or injury to 3 party).

• Assists with the development, implementation and training on countywide ergonomic program. Provides
recommended preventative and corrective actions, as required.

• Posts workers compensation injury recommendations and equipment purchasing to data files.

• Provides backup during absence of safety engineer.

• Assists with the inspection of County construction projects to ensure safety of County personnel and property and
compliance with federal laws. (Safety meetings, site inspections and accident investigations).

• Assists with the County’s Health & Wellness Program, and County festival on healthy life awareness, exercises
weilness, walking wellness and healthy life styles.

• Assists with County employee DOT and FAA random drug testing, pre-employee exams, EAP program, post-accident
testing, and reasonable suspicion. Assists the Drug & Alcohol Program Coordinator.

• Assists with Safety/Health Program Maintenance, implements department’s work safety programs in coordination with
upper management. Implements associated safety related procedures and requirements to ensure compliance with
applicable Federal and State laws and regulations, County policies and procedures.

• Evaluates specific activity job tasks, determines safety related needs and incorporates process safety criteria, personal
protective equipment and other safety related requirements, as required.

• Investigates, inspects and/or conducts statistical reporting on employee injuries, lost time injuries, and makes
recommendations to prevent reoccurrence utilizing preventive safety measures.

• Interviews employees and supervisors concerning vehicular collisions, determines preventive measures and writes
reports reflecting recommendations to minimize reoccurrence. Investigates major incidents involving third parties, and
reports findings and recommendations to affected parties.

• Works with the County Risk Management Division concerning loss minimization directed in areas where trends are
observed.

• Maintains database for recording and reporting loss experiences.

• Schedules and presents monthly, quarterly and other required safety training sessions for employees, supervisors and
managers. Incorporates preventive measures as determined by accident and injury investigations to communicate
procedures to utilize to minimize reoccurrence of similar losses. Conducts special training sessions as determined
necessary or beneficial.

• Completes organizational paperwork, as required.

• Performs other job-related duties as assigned.

Page 2 of 4 , 7’

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Risk I Safety Specialist Senior

JOB CODE: 22526 FLSA STATUS: Exempt
PAY GRADE: 22 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS:

Education and Experience:
Bachelor’s degree in Personnel Management, Human Resources Management, Public Administration, Business
Administration, Environmental Sciences, Safety Engineering, Chemistry or a directly related field AND five (5) years of
directly related demonstrated experience;

OR,

Any combination of education and experience that has been achieved and is equivalent to the stated education and
experience and required knowledge, skills, and abilities sufficient to successfully perform the duties and responsibilities
of this job.

Licenses, Registrations, Certifications, or Special Requirements:
Valid Texas Driver’s License.

Preferred:
Certified Safety Professional.
Certified Industrial Hygienist.
Associate in Risk Management and Associate in Risk Management — Public Entities.
Texas State Adjuster’s License.

Knowledge, Skills, and Abilities:
Knowledge of:
• County policies, procedures and terminology.
• Federal, State, and Local laws, statutes, and regulations relating to the field.
• Occupational Health & Safety Administration.
• Principles and practices of Human Resources management.
• Recent Risk Management developments and current literature.
• Principles and practices of insurance underwriting.
• Workers compensation procedures and practices.
• Currently accepted risk management and loss control.
• Investigative methods, procedures and techniques.
• Work management and work leadership concepts and skills.
• Compiling data and generating reports.
• Americans With Disability Act, HIPPA, Department of Transportation FAA Drug and Alcohol Testing requirements and

the Texas Workers Compensation Program.
• TWCC Field Safety designation.
• Digital photography, air quality meters, air sampling equipment, moisture meters, and anemometers.
• Negotiating, interviewing and investigative practices and techniques.
• Office management.
• Computer equipment to include word processing, spreadsheets, databases and a variety of software packages.
• Business letter writing, grammar and punctuation, and report preparation.

Skill in:
• Using respirators.
• Problem-solving and decision-making.
• Customer service delivery.
• Explaining complicated technical problems in simple non-technical language.
• Prioritizing work assignments.
• Both verbal and written communication.

Page 3 of 4

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Risk I Safety Specialist Senior

JOB CODE: 22526 FLSA STATUS: Exempt
PAY GRADE: 22 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS: (Cont.)

Ability to:
• Analyze and evaluate data and identify trends.
• Operate photographic equipment.
• Operate personal protective equipment.
• Work independently as well as in a team environment.
• Interpret, conduct research, analyze and develop programs and policies, practices, and procedures.
• Manage time well, perform multiple tasks and organize diverse activities.
• Network and interact with a diverse workforce, community and customer population.
• Establish and maintain effective working relationships with County employees and officials, representatives of outside

agencies, construction safety management, construction safety subcontractors, and the general public.

WORK ENVIRONMENT AND PHYSICAL DEMANDS:

Physical requirements include the ability to lift/carry 50 pounds occasionally, visual acuity, speech and hearing, hand
and eye coordination and manual dexterity necessary to operate a computer and office equipment. Subject to standing,
walking, sitting, repetitive motion, reaching, climbing stairs, bending, stooping, kneeling, crouching, crawling, pushing,
pulling, balancing, client/customer contact, squatting to perform the essential functions.. Subject to dust, extreme
temperatures/weather change, extreme heat, extreme cold, humidity, dangerous machinery, and hazardous chemicals.

This job description is intended to be generic in nature. It is not necessarily an exhaustive list of all duties
and responsibilities. The essential duties, functions and responsibilities and overtime eligibility may vary
based on the specific tasks assigned to the position.

Page4of4

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Occupational Health & Safety Engineer

JOB CODE: 24527 FLSA STATUS: Exempt
PAY GRADE: 24 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

JOB SUMMARY:

Develops, implements, and coordinates health, safety and loss prevention programs. Primary areas of emphasis include
Indoor Air Quality Program, Public Access Defibrillator Program, ADA, Employee Emergency Action Program and
construction safety. Works with departmental personnel in implementing safety and loss prevention programs at the
department and division level. Performs inspections for health and safety, conducts or coordinates IAQ testing and
sampling, interprets results, plans and coordinates remediation of water or mold damage in County owned, leased or
occupied buildings. Responds to employee concerns about safety and health.

DISTINGUISHING CHARACTERISTICS:

This is a job classification within the Human Resources job family. Highest level position responsible for developing,
implementing and coordinating health, safety and loss prevention programs. This position may require a flexible work
schedule in order to meet the needs of the organization.

DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES:

• Develops and implements countywide Indoor Air Quality Program. Investigates employee concerns, inspects facility,
tests air quality, collects samples, interprets laboratory results, interviews personnel, performs work area surveys and
writes detailed evaluations with preventative and corrective actions. Recommends and designs water and mold
damage remediation scopes of work. Schedules, coordinates, inspects, and approves remediation work. Writes
requirements for IAQ contract bid documents, evaluates proposal and recommends best respondent for remediation
contractors and IAQ consultants. Reviews and approves invoices for payments.

• Develops, writes, and implements countywide Public Access Defibrillator Program. Act as PAD program manager for
County program and Liaison for HRMD. Assists all County offices and departments with AED facility assessments,
training requirements, and developing specific office and department programs to implement AED protocols.
Develops, with the purchasing office, County purchasing contract for AED and supplies. Maintains all installation,
maintenance, registration, and incident documentation. Conducts post-incident reviews. Coordinates activities with
Oversight Physician and ATC EMS. Reviews and approves invoices for payment.

• Performs facility inspection to ensure compliance with the ADA and the Texas Architectural Barriers Act. Prepares
written assessments and specifies corrective actions. Maintains license as a Registered Accessibility Specialist.

• Develops, writes and implements countywide Employee Emergency Action Program. Integrates and coordinates
facility specific plans with occupying offices and departments. Develops training for emergency wardens. Coordinates
activities with security, Austin Fire Department and ATC EMS.

• Writes construction project purchasing bid documents for project safety. Acts as Project Safety Manager for various
facilities construction projects. Reviews and evaluates contractor safety plans and procedures. Inspects and
evaluates construction sites to ensure safety and health of persons, property and the environment, and compliance
with loss prevention programs. Attends and participate in pre-bid, pre-construction and other project meetings that can
affect project safety.

• Responds to concerns regarding employee safety, health and security. Determines if life safety or health issues are
present and, as required, takes immediate actions to preserve safety and health of people, property and the
environment. Recommends preventative and corrective actions.

• Performs backup duties during absence of department’s safety officers, and Drug and Alcohol Program Coordinator.
Assists with Safety fair and weliness initiatives. Functions as a safety, health and security resource for Workers
Compensation, general liability claims and employee relations.

• Performs other job-related duties as assigned.

Page 1 of 3

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Occupational Health & Safety Engineer

JOB CODE: 24527 FLSA STATUS: Exempt
PAY GRADE: 24 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS:

Education and Experience:
Bachelor’s degree in Engineering, Environmental Sciences, Chemistry or a directly related field AND six (6) years of
increasingly responsible directly related experience;

OR,

Any combination of education and experience that has been achieved and is equivalent to the stated education and
experience and required knowledge, skills, and abilities sufficient to successfully perform the duties and responsibilities
of this job.

Licenses, Registrations, Certifications, or Special Requirements:
Certified Safety Professional or Certified Industrial Hygienist.
Registered Accessibility Specialist.
TWCC Field Safety designation.
Mold Assessment Consultant License.
Valid Texas Driver’s License.

Knowledge. Skills, and Abilities:
Knowledge of:
• County policies, procedures and terminology.
• Federal, State, and Local laws, statutes, and regulations relating to the field.
• Digital photography, air quality meters, air sampling equipment, moisture meters, and anemometers.
• Negotiating, interviewing and investigative practices and techniques.
• Occupational Health & Safety Administration.
• Principles and practices of Human Resources management.
• Recent Risk Management developments and current literature.
• Office management.
• Computer equipment to include word processing, spreadsheets, databases and a variety of software packages.
• Business letter writing, grammar and punctuation, and report preparation.

Skill in:
• Using respirators.
• Problem-solving and decision-making.
• Customer service delivery.
• Explaining complicated technical problems in simple non-technical language.
• Prioritizing work assignments.
• Both verbal and written communication.

Ability to:
• Interpret, conduct research, analyze and develop programs and policies, practices, and procedures.
• Network and interact with a diverse workforce, community and customer population.
• Analyze and evaluate data and identify trends.
• Operate photographic equipment.
• Operate personal protective equipment.
• Work independently as well as in a team environment.
• Interpret, conduct research, analyze and develop programs and policies, practices, and procedures.
• Manage time well and perform multiple tasks, and organize diverse activities.
• Establish and maintain effective working relationships with County employees and officials, representatives of

outside agencies, construction safety management, construction safety subcontractors, and the general public.

Page 2 of 3

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Occupational Health & Safety Engineer

JOB CODE: 24527 FLSA STATUS: Exempt
PAY GRADE: 24 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

WORK ENVIRONMENT AND PHYSICAL DEMANDS:

Physical requirements include the ability to lift/carry 50 pounds occasionally, visual acuity, speech and hearing, hand and
eye coordination and manual dexterity necessary to operate a computer and office equipment. Subject to standing,
walking, sitting, repetitive motion, reaching, climbing stairs, bending, stooping, kneeling, crouching, crawling, pushing,
pulling, balancing, client/customer contact, squatting to perform the essential functions. Subject to dust, extreme
temperatures/weather change, extreme heat, extreme cold, humidity, dangerous machinery, and hazardous chemicals.

This job description is intended to be generic in nature. It is not necessarily an exhaustive list of all duties
and responsibilities. The essential duties, functions and responsibilities and overtime eligibility may vary
based on the specific tasks assigned to the position.

Page 3 of 3

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Training Education Coordinator I

JOB CODE: 16566 FLSA STATUS: Exempt
PAY GRADE: 16 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

JOB SUMMARY:

This is an entry-level training and development position responsible for the implementation of effective employee training,
education, and career development programs. Assists in determining departmental training needs and conducts
supervisory, management, non-technical skill, and compliance training for assigned personnel. Prepares training methods,
media, and documentation to be presented in training programs. Assists in the development of training curriculums, and
instructional methods to enhance staff competency. Responsible for monitoring required training compliance.

DISTINGUISHING CHARACTERISTICS:

This is a job classification within the Human Resources job family. Entry level training and development position.

DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES:

• Conducts effective employee training, education, and career development programs. Consults with department to
determine departmental training needs. Receives and records requests for training.

• Serves as a trainer. Develops, arranges, and conducts or assists in conducting employee training opportunities for
professional enhancement, management, technical development, specialized, job skill certifications, on-the-job, job
specific, in-service, and continuing education and training programs. Coordinates with outside agencies for appropriate
training programs designed to maximize staff effectiveness. Provides outside training consultants, trainers, and
instructors assistance with various scheduling and logistical support, as required.

• Develops and prepares training course outlines, selects or develops instructional methods, training aids, and other
materials. Schedules and coordinates the attendance of employees at announced training programs. Disseminates
information concerning available training workshops/seminars. Ensures facility, materials and training supplies are
prepared and ready for use by time needed; maintains audio, audio-visual, and other supplies and equipment used for
training purposes.

• Maintains thorough and accurate training records. Maintains in-service training and continuing education records in
order to meet standards. Monitors compliance and prepares statistical reports for state standards for purpose of
funding; prepares specialized reports, as required.

• Evaluates effectiveness of training programs as reflected by the learning objectives. Evaluates the effectiveness of
delivery.

• Serves on various in-house working committees.

• Makes presentations to organizations and groups, as required.

• Performs other job-related duties as assigned.

MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS:

Education and Experience:
Bachelor’s degree in Education, Human Resource Management, Public Administration, Business Administration,
Organizational Development or a directly related field AND one (1) year responsible experience in the planning,
coordination and conducting of in-house or professional training, education, and employee development programs,
educational workshops and personnel seminars;

OR,

Any combination of education and experience that has been achieved and is equivalent to the stated education and
experience and required knowledge, skills, and abilities sufficient to successfully perform the duties and responsibilities
of this job.

Page 1 of 3

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Training Education Coordinator I

JOB CODE: 16566 FLSA STATUS: Exempt
PAY GRADE: 16 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS: (Cont.)

Licenses, Registrations, Certifications, or Special Requirements:
Valid Texas Driver’s License.

KnowledQe, Skills, and Abilities:
Knowledge of:
• Objectives and practices used in the development of professional training programs.
• Federal, State, and Local laws, statutes, and regulations relating to the field.
• Training methods, techniques, procedures and applications.
• Principles and practices of employee training, group process, group dynamics and interpersonal relations.
• Curriculum development and planning.
• Wide variety of training programs.
• Various standards for continuing education and training programs.
• Principles and practices of supervision and training.
• Organizational regulations and procedures.
• Various public service agencies and other community resources.
• Basic record keeping to ensure compliance with mandated training requirements.
• Training manual, books, references, resources and providers.
• Departmental policies and procedures.
• Computer equipment to include word processing, spreadsheets, databases and a variety of software packages.
• Business letter writing, grammar and punctuation, and report preparation.

Skill in:
• Prioritizing work assignments.
• Instructing others.
• Using and maintaining various audio-visual training aides.
• Working with and training large groups of people with diverse backgrounds in organization.
• Both verbal and written communication.

Ability to:
• Present an appropriate curriculum.
• Conduct training assessments, formulate learning objectives, create and evaluate training objectives, requirements

and effectiveness of delivery.
• Conduct research, analyze and develop programs.
• Coordinate and organize training activities.
• Plan and budget for various training programs.
• Control numerous projects simultaneously and works well under pressure.
• Exercise discretion and diplomacy in difficult and sensitive situations.
• Plan, assign, supervise and review the work of subordinates.
• Establish and maintain effective working relationships with County employees and officials, departmental clientele,

other County employees and officials, and the general public, including the training community.

Page 2 of 3

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Training Education Coordinator I

JOB CODE: 16566 FLSA STATUS: Exempt
PAY GRADE: 16 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

WORK ENVIRONMENT AND PHYSICAL DEMANDS:

Physical requirements include the ability to lift/carry up to 20-50 pounds occasionally, visual acuity, speech and hearing,
hand and eye coordination and manual dexterity necessary to operate a computer and office equipment. Subject to
standing, walking, sitting, repetitive motion, reaching, climbing stairs, bending, stooping, kneeling, crouching, crawling,
pushing, pulling, balancing, client/customer contact, squatting to perform the essential functions.

This job description is intended to be generic in nature. It is not necessarily an exhaustive list of all duties
and responsibilities. The essential duties, functions and responsibilities and overtime eligibility may vary
based on the specific tasks assigned to the position.

Page 3 of 3 616

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Training Education Coordinator II

JOB CODE: 18572 FLSA STATUS: Exempt
PAY GRADE: 18 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

JOB SUMMARY:

This position is responsible for the development, coordination, and implementation of effective employee training,
education, and career development programs. Determines departmental training needs and conduct supervisory,
management, non-technical skill, and compliance training for assigned personnel. Consults within department to
determine training and educational needs for assigned area. Prepares training methods, media, and documentation to
be presented in training programs. Assists in the development of training polices and procedures, training curriculums,
and instructional methods to enhance staff competency. Responsible for monitoring required training compliance and
prescribed training budgets, as required.

DISTINGUISHING CHARACTERISTICS:

This is a job classification within the Human Resources job family. Intermediate level training and development
position.

DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES:

• Develops, coordinates, and conducts effective employee training, education, and career development programs.
Consults with department to determines departmental training needs. Receives and records requests for training.

• Provides assistance to lower level staff in training methods and techniques, and various problem solving training
issues.

• Serves as a trainer. Develops, arranges, and conducts or assists in conducting employee training opportunities for
professional enhancement, management, technical development, specialized, job skill certifications, on-the-job, job
specific, in-service, and continuing education and training programs. Coordinates with outside agencies for
appropriate training programs designed to maximize staff effectiveness. Arranges for training consultants, trainers,
and instructors by providing them with various scheduling and logistical support, as required. Assists in the
evaluation and selection of training consultants.

• Develops and prepares training curriculums and course outlines; selects or develops instructional methods, training
aids, and other materials. Develops annual training calendar. Schedules and coordinates the attendance of
employees at announced training programs. Disseminates information concerning available training
workshops/seminars. Ensures facility, materials and training supplies are prepared and ready for use by time
needed; maintains audio, audio visual, and other supplies and equipment used for training purposes.

• Maintains thorough and accurate training records. Maintains in-service training and continuing education records in
order to meet standards. Monitors compliance and prepares statistical reports for state standards for purpose of
funding; prepares specialized reports, as required. Participates in the training budget preparation/requests and
assists in tracking expenditures during the year.

• Evaluates effectiveness of training programs as reflected by the learning objectives. Evaluates the effectiveness of
delivery.

• Serves on various in-house working committees. Acts as a contact between department and other agencies.
Makes presentations to organizations and groups, as required.

• Performs other job-related duties as assigned.

MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS:

Education and Experience:
Bachelor’s degree in Education, Human Resource Management, Public Administration, Business Administration,
Organizational Development or a directly related field AND three (3) years responsible experience in the planning,
coordination and conducting of in-house or professional training, education, and employee development programs,
educational workshops and personnel seminars;

Pagelof3

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Training Education Coordinator II

JOB CODE: 18572 FLSA STATUS: Exempt
PAY GRADE: 18 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS: (Cant.)

Education and Experience: (Cont.)
OR,

Any combination of education and experience that has been achieved and is equivalent to the stated education and
experience and required knowledge, skills, and abilities sufficient to successfully perform the duties and
responsibilities of this job.

Licenses, Registrations, Certifications, or Special Requirements:
Valid Texas Driver’s License.

Knowledge, Skills, and Abilities:
Knowledge of:
• Objectives and practices used in the development of professional training programs.
• Federal, State, and Local laws, statutes, and regulations relating to the field.
• Training methods, techniques, procedures and applications.
• Principles and practices of employee training, group process, group dynamics and interpersonal relations.
• Curriculum development and planning.
• Wide variety of training programs.
• Various standards for continuing education and training programs.
• Principles and practices of supervision and training.
• Organizational regulations and procedures.
• Various public service agencies and other community resources.
• Basic record keeping to ensure compliance with mandated training requirements.
• Training manual, books, references, resources and providers.
• Departmental policies and procedures.
• Computer equipment to include word processing, spreadsheets, databases and a variety of software packages.
• Business letter writing, grammar and punctuation, and report preparation.

Skill in:
• Prioritizing work assignments.
• Instructing others.
• Using and maintaining various audio-visual training aides.
• Working with and training large groups of people with diverse backgrounds in organization.
• Both verbal and written communication.

Ability to:
• Present an appropriate curriculum.
• Conduct training assessments, formulate learning objectives, create and evaluate training objectives, requirements

and effectiveness of delivery.
• Conduct research, analyze and develop programs.
• Coordinate and organize training activities.
• Train and supervise personnel.
• Plan and budget for various training programs.
• Control numerous projects simultaneously and works well under pressure.
• Exercise discretion and diplomacy in difficult and sensitive situations.
• Plan, assign, supervise and review the work of subordinates.
• Establish and maintain effective working relationships with County employees and officials, departmental clientele,

other County employees and officials, and the general public, including the training community.

Page 2 of 3

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Training Education Coordinator II

JOB CODE: 18572 FLSA STATUS: Exempt
PAY GRADE: 18 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

WORK ENVIRONMENT AND PHYSICAL DEMANDS:

Physical requirements include the ability to lift/carry up to 20-50 pounds occasionally, visual acuity, speech and
hearing, hand and eye coordination and manual dexterity necessary to operate a computer and office equipment.
Subject to standing, walking, sitting, repetitive motion, reaching, climbing stairs, bending, stooping, kneeling,
crouching, crawling, pushing, pulling, balancing, client/customer contact, squatting to perform the essential functions.

This job description is intended to be generic in nature. It is not necessarily an exhaustive list of all duties
and responsibilities. The essential duties, functions and responsibilities and overtime eligibility may vary
based on the specific tasks assigned to the position.

Page 3 of 3

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Training Education Coordinator Senior

JOB CODE: 20573 FLSA STATUS: Exempt
PAY GRADE: 20 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

JOB SUMMARY:

This is a senior level training and development position responsible for the development, coordination, and
implementation of effective employee training, education, and career development programs. Responsible for
determining departmental training needs and conducting supervisory, management, non-technical skill, and compliance
training for assigned personnel. Consults within department to determine training and educational needs for assigned
area. Prepares curriculum and training methods, media, and documentation to be presented in training programs.
Responsible for the development of training polices and procedures, training curriculums, and instructional methods to
enhance staff competency. Responsible for monitoring required training compliance and prescribed training budgets,
as required. Serves as lead trainer, and may supervise subordinate staff.

DISTINGUISHING CHARACTERISTICS:

This is a job classification within the Human Resources job family. Senior level training, development and supervisory
position.

DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES:

• Develops, coordinates, and conducts effective employee training, education, and career development programs.
Consults with department to determines departmental training needs. Receives and records requests for training.

• Guides and instructs staff in training methods and techniques, and various problem solving training issues.

• Serves as a lead trainer. Develops, arranges, and conducts or assists in conducting employee training opportunities
for professional enhancement, management, technical development, specialized, job skill certifications, on-the-job, job
specific, in-service, and continuing education and training programs. Coordinates with outside agencies for
appropriate training programs designed to maximize staff effectiveness. Arranges for training consultants, trainers,
and instructors by providing them with various scheduling and logistical support, as required. Assists in the evaluation
and selection of training consultants.

• Develops and prepares training curriculums and course outlines, selects or develops instructional methods, training
aids, and other materials. Develops annual training calendar. Schedules and coordinates the attendance of
employees at announced training programs. Disseminates information concerning available training workshops!
seminars. Ensures facility, materials and training supplies are prepared and ready for use by time needed; maintains
audio, audio visual, and other supplies and equipment used for training purposes.

• Maintains thorough and accurate training records. Maintains in-service training and continuing education records in
order to meet standards. Monitors compliance and prepares statistical reports for state standards for purpose of
funding; prepares specialized reports, as required. Participates in the training budget preparation/requests and assists
in tracking expenditures during the year.

• Evaluates effectiveness of training programs as reflected by the learning objectives. Evaluates the effectiveness of
delivery.

• Serves on various in-house working committees. Acts as a contact between department and other agencies. Makes
presentations to organizations and groups, as required.

• May supervise subordinate staff. Plans, schedules, distributes and monitors workload. Documents employee
performance, maintains personnel records, addresses personnel issues, and refers to manager when appropriate.
Responsible for employee performance evaluations.

• Performs other job-related duties as assigned.

Page 1 of 3

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Training Education Coordinator Senior

JOB CODE: 20573 FLSA STATUS: Exempt
PAY GRADE: 20 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS:

Education and Experience:
Bachelor’s degree in Education, Human Resource Management, Public Administration, Business Administration,
Organizational Development or a directly related field AND five (5) years responsible experience in the planning,
coordination and conducting of in-house or professional training, education, and employee development programs,
educational workshops and personnel seminars, including one (1) year of lead or mid to senior level supervisory or
management experience;

OR,

Any combination of education and experience that has been achieved and is equivalent to the stated education and
experience and required knowledge, skills, and abilities sufficient to successfully perform the duties and responsibilities
of this job.

Licenses, Registrations, Certifications, or Special Requirements:
Valid Texas Driver’s License.

Knowledge, Skills, and Abilities:
Knowledge of:
• Objectives and practices used in the development of professional training programs.
• Federal, State, and Local laws, statutes, and regulations relating to the field.
• Training methods, techniques, procedures and applications.
• Principles and practices of employee training, group process, group dynamics and interpersonal relations.
• Curriculum development and planning.
• Wide variety of training programs.
• Various standards for continuing education and training programs.
• Principles and practices of supervision and training.
• Organizational regulations and procedures.
• Various public service agencies and other community resources.
• Basic record keeping to ensure compliance with mandated training requirements.
• Training manual, books, references, resources and providers.
• Departmental policies and procedures.
• Computer equipment to include word processing, spreadsheets, databases and a variety of software packages.
• Business letter writing, grammar and punctuation, and report preparation.

Skill in:
• Prioritizing work assignments.
• Instructing others.
• Using and maintaining various audio-visual training aides.
• Working with and training large groups of people with diverse backgrounds in organization.
• Both verbal and written communication.

Ability to:
• Present an appropriate curriculum.
• Conduct training assessments, formulate learning objectives, create and evaluate training objectives, requirements

and effectiveness of delivery.
• Conduct research, analyze and develop programs.
• Coordinate and organize training activities.

Page2of3 67/

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Training Education Coordinator Senior

JOB CODE: 20573 FLSA STATUS: Exempt
PAY GRADE: 20 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS: (Cont.)

Ability to: (Cont.)
• Train and supervise personnel.
• Plan and budget for various training programs.
• Control numerous projects simultaneously and works well under pressure.
• Exercise discretion and diplomacy in difficult and sensitive situations.
• Plan, assign, supervise and review the work of subordinates.
• Establish and maintain effective working relationships with County employees and officials, departmental clientele,

other County employees and officials, and the general public, including the training community.

WORK ENVIRONMENT AND PHYSICAL DEMANDS:

Physical requirements include the ability to lift/carry up to 20-50 pounds occasionally, visual acuity, speech and hearing,
hand and eye coordination and manual dexterity necessary to operate a computer and office equipment. Subject to
standing, walking, sitting, repetitive motion, reaching, climbing stairs, bending, stooping, kneeling, crouching, crawling,
pushing, pulling, balancing, client/customer contact, squatting to perform the essential functions.

This job description is intended to be generic in nature. It is not necessarily an exhaustive list of all duties
and responsibilities. The essential duties, functions and responsibilities and overtime eligibility may vary
based on the specific tasks assigned to the position.

Page 3 of 3

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Human Resources Financial Analyst Lead

JOB CODE: 24579 FLSA STATUS: Exempt
PAY GRADE: 24 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

JOB SUMMARY:

This position is responsible for managing the financial analysis, financial reporting, budget, accounting, and purchasing
functions for the Human Resources Management Department (HRMD). Principle functions include financial analysis,
eligibility auditing, billing contract compliance, and financial reporting for the Employee Health Insurance Fund;
department wide budget forecasting, analysis, and preparation of the annual budget for HRMD; purchasing compliance,
budget approval and authorization for department purchase requests; accounting for department fixed assets; managing
year end accounting and accruals for the department; and providing ad hoc analysis and reporting from financial, human
resources, personnel, and benefit databases.

DISTINGUISHING CHARACTERISTICS:

This is a job classification within the Human Resources job family. The position contributes to the overall success of the
organization by managing all financial, budget, accounting, purchasing, and reporting details which are critical to provide
continued funding for personnel, services, and materials needed to meet departmental goals and objectives. This position
may require a flexible work schedule in order to meet the needs of the organization.

DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES:

• Manages the Financial Statement Reporting function for Travis County Employee Health Insurance Fund. Plans,
designs, analyzes, develops, reconciles, and prepares monthly financial statements in accordance with Governmental
generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP). Reconciles general and subsidiary ledgers, prepares trial balance
and journal entries. Develops statements of Net Assets, Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Fund Net Assets, Cash
Flows, and Detail of Contributions and Claims. Reconciles year to date claims to third party administrator (TPA)
electronic reports, develops custom reports on TPA web site for cash flow analysis, and prepares notes to financial
statements.

• Manages the Budget and Purchasing Functions for Human Resources Management Department divisions. Oversees,
advises, interprets, analyzes, forecasts, and prepares budget documents in accordance with Planning and Budget Office
budget rules and Budget Manual. Includes annual budget process leading up to approval of fiscal year budgets, as well
as budget review, forecast, calculation, and authorization of budget transfers throughout the year.

• Manages the purchase requisition process. Approves all purchase requests for budget availability and compliance with
Purchasing Office rules and regulations. Enters Human Resources requisitions on-line to H T E Purchasing System;
approves department requisitions on-line, monitors requisition through Purchase Order, receipt, invoicing, and payment
stages.

• Manages the Weekly Health Claims Reimbursement Process. Develops weekly health claims agenda item for
Commissioners Court approval. Maintains the database of health claim funding requests and claim data received from
third party administrator. Audits health claims data for eligibility against database of active, terminated, retired, and
COBRA participants, reconciles funding requests, and prepares agenda item for Commissioners Court approval.

• Manages the eligibility file update process. Creates encrypted eligibility files for secure transfer to third party
administrators (TPA) and providers of health, dental, and life insurance. Runs SQL database program to check and
correct errors. Updates file to H T E and creates benefit reports sent to staff for review. Sends files to PC and runs
encryption and files transfer software to update data to TPA systems.

• Conducts special projects and assignments, ad hoc reporting, miscellaneous financial analysis, benefit committees, DCL
and EEOC reporting. Develops ad hoc reports as requested by querying appropriate databases for information requests
for financial, human resource, payroll and personnel data. Analyzes, audits, researches and reports on miscellaneous
financial and budget issues throughout the year. Prepares, attends, and participates in County benefits committees.
Gathers data and prepares reports for monthly DOL reports and bi-annual EEOC reports.

• Perform other job-related duties as assigned.

f13Page 1 of 3

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Human Resources Financial Analyst Lead

JOB CODE: 24579 FLSA STATUS: Exempt
PAY GRADE: 24 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS:

Education and Experience:
Bachelor’s degree in Personnel Management, Human Resources Management, Business Administration, Public
Administration, Finance, Accounting or a directly related field AND six (6) increasingly responsible professional level financial
analysis, accounting experience, or budgeting analysis experience, including two (2) years of project management,
supervisory or management experience;

OR,

Any combination of education and experience that has been achieved and is equivalent to the stated education and
experience and required knowledge, skills, and abilities sufficient to successfully perform the duties and responsibilities of
this job.

Licenses, Registrations, Certifications, or Special Requirements:
Valid Texas Driver’s License.

Preferred:
Master’s degree in Personnel Management, Human Resources Management, Public Administration, Business
Administration or a directly related field.
Certified Public Accountant.
Microsoft Office Suite Certification.
Certified Public Accountant (CPA), Chartered Financial Analyst (CFA) or other relevant certification.
Certified Benefits Professional (CBP), OR, Certified Employee Benefits Specialist (CEBS).
Certified Government Benefits Administrator (CGBA).
Health Insurance Associate (HIA).
Senior Professional in Human Resources (SPHR); OR, Professional in Human Resources Certification (PHR).

Knowtedcie, Skills, and Abilities:
Knowledge of:
• Federal, State, Local and County applicable laws, rules, regulations and guidelines.
• Financial principles and practices.
• Travis County Policies, Procedures, and Regulations Manual.
• Travis County Budget, Budget Manual and Budget Rules.
• Local Government Code.
• County Auditor Disbursements Manual.
• Travis County Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR).
• State and local government budget, planning, systems, documents, issues, and trends.
• Policy and contract compliance decisions.
• Project management and supervisory principles, practices and techniques.
• Generally Accepted Accounting Principles (GAAP) and standardized financial, accounting and auditing practices.
• Budget planning, development, preparation and monitoring.
• Principles of project management, including scheduling, estimating, budgeting.
• Manual and automated systems relating to assigned function.
• Modern office practices, procedures and methods.
• Recent human resources developments and current literature.
• Negotiating and coordinating changes to human resources rules, policies and procedures.
• HRMS or HRIS systems.
• Intermediate to advanced MS Excel.
• Office management.
• Service oriented leadership and hands on practitioner.
• Computer equipment to include word processing, spreadsheets, databases and a variety of software packages.
• Business letter writing, grammar and punctuation, and report preparation.

Page2of3 299

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Human Resources Financial Analyst Lead

JOB CODE: 24579 FLSA STATUS: Exempt
PAY GRADE: 24 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS: (Cont.)

Skill in:
• Project management, managing staff, allocating resources and evaluating programs.
• Problem solving and decision-making.
• Public policy research.
• Statistical methods.
• Financial analysis.
• Strategic planning.
• Analytical methods.
• Developing financial spreadsheets and financial trend analysis.
• Reviewing and completing professional financial reports.
• Long-range planning and evaluating financial processes.
• Developing financial policies and procedures.
• Both verbal and written communication, including public presentations.

Ability to:
• Combine various financial and budget components into Monthly Financial Statements.
• Present statements in accordance with Generally Accepted Accounting Principles (GAAP) promulgated by the

Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB).
• Work independently and as part of a team.
• Provide information useful for management.
• Manage Auditor’s Office input related to statement information and design.
• Make analytical decisions related to retrieving information, auditing, and reporting on many varied and complicated data

requests.
• Access database with funding reimbursement and claims data.
• Direct, motivate, train, develop and evaluate staff.
• Work independently.
• Manage time well, perform multiple tasks, and organize diverse activities.
• Set priorities and manage the program operations.
• Analyze, calculate, forecast and interpret financial data and identify and resolve errors.
• Establish and maintain effective working relationships with County employees and officials, representatives of outside

agencies, and the general public.

WORK ENVIRONMENT AND PHYSICAL DEMANDS:

Physical requirements include the ability to lift/carry up to 20-50 pounds occasionally, visual acuity, speech and hearing,
hand and eye coordination and manual dexterity necessary to operate a computer and office equipment. Subject to
standing, walking, sitting, repetitive motion, reaching, climbing stairs, bending, stooping, kneeling, crouching, crawling,
pushing, pulling, balancing, client/customer contact, squatting to perform the essential functions.

This job description is intended to be generic in nature. It is not necessarily an exhaustive list of all duties and
responsibilities. The essential duties, functions and responsibilities and overtime eligibility may vary based on
the specific tasks assigned to the position.

Page 3 of 3

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Compensation Manager

JOB CODE: 26345 FLSA STATUS: Exempt
PAY GRADE: 26 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

JOB SUMMARY:

Manages the daily activities of the Compensation division and provides analytical expertise and guidance in the
administration and interpretation of Compensation policies. Manages all market pricing activities by establishing
standards, matching and analyzing internal positions to external data using standardized data for making
recommendations on base pay structure, job titles, and supplemental pay models. Participates in professional and
complex technical work in the Human Resources Compensation projects. Plans and programs and processing of
personnel actions and position control management, including planning, organizing, directing, analyzing, project planning,
scheduling and management. Recommends implementation of Compensation plans, programs, policies and procedures,
and guidelines. Ensures compliance to all Federal, State, and Local regulations and laws. Manages and performs
multiple detailed projects simultaneously. Manages Compensation staff and, reports to the Director, Human Resources
Management Department.

DISTINGUISHING CHARACTERISTICS:

This is a job classification within the Human Resources job family. Corporate Human Resource position distinguished by
supervisory responsibilities and performing the more difficult and complex assignments, project planning and management
duties and responsibilities, and requires additional supervisory experience. This position may require a flexible work
schedule in order to meet the needs of the organization.

DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES:

Plans, organizes, manages, directs, and analyzes Compensation projects, plans and programs. Oversees the
development and/or participation in Compensation salary surveys to collect and analyze competitive salary
information. Manages and oversees ongoing reviews, audits, and controls of actual data, maintains, tracks
assigned filled and vacant position records of past, present and future attributes, and pay grade/step assignments.
Manages and oversees the development and/or participation in Compensation salary surveys to collect and analyze
competitive salary information. Develops short and long-range Compensation and classification strategic plans to
maintain competitive Compensation philosophy. Manages the revision of Compensation operating processing and
procedures, including those related to computerization. Prepares and makes recommendations to management,
and to include making presentations before the Commissioners Court. Oversees the review and approval
processing of personnel actions according to established Compensation policies and procedures, and guidelines.
Maintains the integrity of position control information by ensuring updates and accuracy of information.

• Conducts and participates in Compensation surveys that may include creation of market-specific surveys, data
collection, analysis and feedback on results.

• Collaborates with HRIS partners to ensure appropriate Compensation data collection and retrieval capability.

• Keeps abreast of market trends related to Compensation issues and legislative or regulatory trends.

• Recommends implementation of Compensation projects, plans, programs, policies and procedures, and guidelines
for Compensation administration. Makes sure the Compensation policies are in accordance with all Federal, State,
and Local regulations and laws. Prepares policies and procedures to ensure achievement of equitable and
competitive Compensation.

• Works collaboratively with budget officers, Payroll, IT and HRIS to ensure accurate and timely processing of annual
salary recommendations. Conducts and reviews post implementation reports and trend analysis.

Pagelof4 _2q6

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Compensation Manager

JOB CODE: 26345 FLSA STATUS: Exempt
PAY GRADE: 26 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES: (Cont.)

• Assigns and monitors duties through project planning, scheduling and management. Manages and performs the
complex technical work in the Compensation projects, plans and programs of job analysis, market analysis, job
titles, pay grade assignments, job descriptions, job classification assignments to each position, pay range structure,
ELSA designations, job classifications revisions, position desk audits and organizational structures, including
formulating recommendations in accordance with strategic plans, policies and procedures, and guidelines. Works
with department supervisors, managers, and department heads in analyzing and classifying positions while
ensuring internal equity among positions. Reviews requests for new or revised job classifications.

• Manages the daily operations, maintenance, review, and approval of procedures, including those related to
computerization, processing of the Compensation function, including such examples as the processing of weekly
personnel actions, position control, PAE, temporary positions, second jobs; for compliance with policy and
applicable Eederal, State, and Local regulations and laws. Responsible for the design and implementation of
process improvements; makes necessary adjustments, as required. Coordinates efforts with appropriate Human
Resources and Information Technology staff regarding personnel action forms (PAF5) and position control systems.
Coordinates the review and development of non-routine personnel action requests, and presents to Commissioners
Court in accordance with Travis County approved policies and procedures.

• Provides consultation on policies and procedures to stakeholders including internal management and colleagues,
personnel liaisons and coordinators, elected and appointed officials including executive managers, department
heads, supervisors, and managers.

• Prepares and implements Compensation communications. Develops, oversees, and conducts ELSA and Position
Control training programs and presentations; compliance with Eederal, State, and Local regulations and laws;
conducts supervisory training in related areas. Works with staff to research and develop new policies and
procedures, guidelines, processing actions, and programs.

• Consults with elected/appointed officials, other department heads, and other staff to address Compensation issues
and recommends and Compensation-related problems.

• Represents Compensation and the Human Resources Management Department in attending meetings, seminars,
conferences, professional associations meetings, and participates on related committees.

• Responds to difficult inquires and complaints.

• Participates in special projects as assigned.

• Performs other job-related duties as assigned.

MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS:

Education and Experience:
Bachelor’s degree in Personnel Management, Human Resources Management, Public Administration, Business
Administration or a directly related field AND seven (7) years of demonstrated compensation, including total reward
systems related experience, demonstrated experience in the design, implementation and evaluation of total reward
systems, policies and procedures; in analyzing and recommending process improvements for operating procedures and
program delivery, including three (3) years of mid- to senior level supervisory or management experience;

OR,

Any combination of education and experience that has been achieved and is equivalent to the stated education and
experience and required knowledge, skills, and abilities sufficient to successfully perform the duties and responsibilities
of this job.

Page 2 of 4

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Compensation Manager

JOB CODE: 26345 FLSA STATUS: Exempt
PAY GRADE: 26 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS: (Cont.)

Licenses, Registrations, Certifications, or Special Requirements:
Valid Texas Driver’s License.
Preferred:
Master’s degree in Personnel Administration, Human Resources Management, Public Administration, Business
Administration or a directly related field.
Certified Compensation Professional (CCP); OR, Certified Benefits Professional (CBP).
Microsoft Office Suite Certification.
Senior Professional in Human Resources (SPHR); OR, Professional in Human Resources Certification (PHR).
Knowledge, Skills, and Abilities:
Knowledge of:
• Federal, State and Local regulations, codes and laws: Title VII of Civil Rights Act, Equal Pay Act, FLSA, ADA, FMLA,

EEOC, 1-9.
• Principles, procedures, practices, programs, systems, methods, and techniques of Compensation.
• Job analysis.
• State and local government budget, planning, systems, documents, issues, and trends.
• Recent Human Resources developments and current literature.
• Negotiating and coordinating changes to Human Resources rules, policies and procedures.
• Principles of project management, including scheduling, estimating, budgeting.
• Advanced methods used in Compensation.
• Innovative pay and Compensation programs.
• HRIS systems.
• Intermediate to advanced MS Excel.
• Statistical analysis.
• Training programs.
• County policies, procedures and terminology.
• Organizational design methodology.
• Office management.
• Service oriented leadership and hands on practitioner.
• Computer equipment to include word processing, spreadsheets, databases and a variety of software packages.
• Business letter writing, grammar and punctuation, and report preparation.
Skill in:
• Creating policies and procedures.
• Coordinating changes to Human Resources rules, policies and procedures.
• Project management.
• Developing, implementing, interpreting, applying and enforcing Human Resources policies and procedures per

laws, rules, regulations, and codes.
• Working with executive management, and Elected and Appointed officials.
• Applying Human Resources and consulting methods.
• Supervisory principles, practices and techniques.
• Participating and applying project planning skills that may require the revision, development and/or re-design of

existing Compensation program.
• Developing reports and conducting data analysis.
• Problem solving and decision-making.
• Explaining complicated technical problems in simple non-technical language.
• Both verbal and written communication.

Page 3 of 4

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Compensation Manager

JOB CODE: 26345 FLSA STATUS: Exempt
PAY GRADE: 26 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS: (Cont.)

Ability to:
• Ensures compliance with Compensation guidelines, processes and procedures.
• Plan, assign, supervise, train and evaluate the work of professional subordinates.
• Coordinate, plan, and prioritize programs, projects, and activities.
• Interpret policies, procedures, and Federal, State and Local applicable laws governing Compensation.
• Exercise sound judgment and make decisions.
• Respond to inquiries.
• Work independently and as part of a team.
• Perform technical research, calculations and computations, and prepare plans and reports.
• Convey complex ideas and concepts verbally and in writing.
• Communicate goals to a wide and diverse audience.
• Prepare and conduct training.
• Manage time well and perform multiple tasks, and organize diverse activities.
• Provide management, administration, organizational leadership and team building.
• Perform in a fast-paced and stressful environment, while maintaining a professional manner.
• Make appropriate and effective public presentations.
• Establish and maintain effective working relationships with departmental clientele, representatives of outside

agencies and providers, other County employees and officials, and the general public.

WORK ENVIRONMENT AND PHYSICAL DEMANDS:

Physical requirements include the ability to lift/carry up to 20-50 pounds occasionally, visual acuity, speech and hearing,
hand and eye coordination and manual dexterity necessary to operate a computer and office equipment. Subject to
standing, walking, sitting, repetitive motion, reaching, climbing stairs, bending, stooping, kneeling, crouching, crawling,
pushing, pulling, balancing, client/customer contact, squatting to perform the essential functions.

This job description is intended to be generic in nature. It is not necessarily an exhaustive list of all duties
and responsibilities. The essential duties, functions and responsibilities and overtime eligibility may vary
based on the specific tasks assigned to the position.

Page4of4

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Chief Information Officer

JOB CODE: 98353 FLSA STATUS: Exempt
PAY GRADE: 98 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09
SALARY Mm $149,670
RANGE: Mid $194,571

Max $239,472

JOB SUMMARY:

Functions as the Chief Information and Technology Officer for the enterprise. Provides executive leadership in
development, planning, and administration of short- and long-term information and telecommunications functions.
Leads countywide efforts to determine technology and communication needs. Develops and implements long-range
information technology master plan. Plans and administers information and telecommunications functions for
departments and implements policy dictated by Commissioners Court. Establishes and implements technology
standards and best practices and service levels for the enterprise.

DISTINGUISHING CHARACTERISTICS:

This is a job classification within the Information Technology job family. Functions as the top information and technology
position in the organization. Provides executive leadership in development, planning, and administration of short- and
long-term information and telecommunications functions to meet organizational needs. Manages through subordinate
managers. This classification may require a flexible work schedule in order to meet the needs of the department.

DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES:

• Directs and oversees development of County information policies, procedures, and priorities, defines objectives and
establishes direction of appropriate change in information technology.

• Provides overall strategic management, policy direction, and creative vision for the implementation of major information
systems projects.

• Fosters collaboration with other executives in departments throughout the County in the improvement of business
processes and the establishment of sound business practices.

• Develops evaluation mechanisms to ensure information technology policy objectives are met. Budgets and provides
financial planning support objectives, and advises executive management team on effective distribution of resources
among information technology objectives. Focuses on analytic data, results, and outcomes in accomplishing those
tasks.

• Implements information technology policy across departments and functions, evaluates progress in achievement of
goals, objectives, and management expectations.

• Administers overall operations of department. Selects, directs, and evaluates departmental staff. Prepares and
administers annual department budget.

• Focuses on customer needs and maintains a countywide perspective. Initiates development of planning, confers with
and advises personnel and departments concerning information technology, including computer, telephone and
network services. Allocates Information Technology System (ITS) resources and prioritizes requests to meet approved
plans.

• Coordinates with executive management team and Commissioners Court on priority of systems development,
recommended standards for applications to be implemented and information exchange methods to be employed.

• Conducts computer and telecommunication systems evaluations with department heads. Develops standards and
plans for technical support, including providing technical support and status of projects to department heads and
elected officials.

• Evaluates and procures computer and telecommunications equipment and recommends funding methods to
Commissioners Court. Interacts with equipment service and vendor personnel.

• Performs other job-related duties as assigned.

Page 1 of 3

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Chief Information Officer

JOB CODE: 98353 FLSA STATUS: Exempt
PAY GRADE: 98 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09
SALARY Mm $149,670
RANGE: Mid $194,571

Max $239,472

MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS:

Education and Experience:
Bachelor’s degree in Computer Science, Information Systems, Business Administration, Engineering or a directly related
field AND twelve (12) years of increasingly responsible experience in data processing, systems information and technology
systems development, planning, and networking, including five (5) years of mid- to senior level supervisory or
management experience;

OR,

Any combination of education and experience that has been achieved and is equivalent to the stated education and
experience and required knowledge, skills, and abilities sufficient to successfully perform the duties and responsibilities
of this job.

Licenses, Registrations, Certifications, or Special Requirements:
Valid Texas Driver’s License.

Preferred:
Master’s degree in Computer Science, Information Systems, Business Administration, Engineering or a directly related
field.

KnowledQe, Skills, and Abilities:
Knowledge of:
• Information and technology industry, communications and networking, disk operating systems and disk tape

processing.
• Management and supervisory principles, practices and techniques.
• Policies, practices, procedures and terminology of assigned function.
• Federal, State, Local and County applicable laws, rules, regulations and guidelines.
• Teleprocessing theory and technique.
• Budget preparation and office management.
• Computer equipment to include word processing, spreadsheets, databases and a variety of software packages.

Skill in:
• Directing and managing staff, allocating resources and evaluating programs.
• Working with executive management, and elected/appointed officials.
• Leadership, collaboration and negotiation techniques, including contracts, agreements and proposals.
• Managing user expectations and satisfaction.
• Developing and evaluating Requests for Proposals (RFP5).
• Strategic planning, developing, monitoring and evaluating.
• Developing and monitoring programs and related budgets.
• Problem-solving and decision-making.
• Both verbal and written communication, including presentations and communicating technical issues in non

technical language.

Ability to:
• Direct, motivate, train, develop and evaluate staff.
• Work independently and efficiently and as part of a team.
• Manage time well, perform multiple tasks and organize diverse activities.
• Research, compile, analyze, interpret and prepare a variety of memorandums or reports.
• Establish and maintain effective working relationships with departmental clientele, representatives of outside

agencies and providers, other County employees and officials, and the general public.

70/
Page 2 of 3

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Chief Information Officer

JOB CODE: 98353 FLSA STATUS: Exempt
PAY GRADE: 98 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09
SALARY Mm $149,670
RANGE: Mid $194,571

Max $239,472

WORK ENVIRONMENT AND PHYSICAL DEMANDS:

Physical requirements include the ability to lift/carry up to 35-40 pounds occasionally, visual acuity, speech and hearing,
hand and eye coordination and manual dexterity necessary to operate a computer and office equipment. Subject to
standing, sitting, walking, climbing, crawling, bending, stooping, crouching, kneeling, pushing, pulling, reaching, twisting,
balancing, repetitive motion, and squatting to perform the essential functions. Subject to exposure to variations in
extreme heat, cold, mechanical, fume/odor, and dust/mites.

This job description is intended to be generic in nature. It is not necessarily an exhaustive list of all duties
and responsibilities. The essential duties, functions and responsibilities and overtime eligibility may vary
based on the specific tasks assigned to the position.

Page 3 of 3

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Information Technology Director

JOB CODE: 31887 FLSA STATUS: Exempt
PAY GRADE: 31 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

JOB SUMMARY:

Oversees and directs all activities of an assigned Information Technology (IT) functional group or groups. Directs tactical
and operational IT provisioning infrastructure to support the enterprise’s business goals. Aligns and calibrates the
organization’s technology deployment strategy with its business strategy. Oversees technology purchases and services
provided to multiple internal customers. Directs the development and implementation of technologies to support business
objectives. Establishes and implements enterprise-level technology standards and processes. Approves, plans and
budgets for all assets in area of responsibility.

DISTINGUISHING CHARACTERISTICS:

This is a job classification within the Information Technology job family. Oversees and directs all activities of an assigned
Information Technology (IT) functional group or groups. Provides executive leadership and assists top IT executive in
developing, planning, and administering short- and long-term information and telecommunications functions to meet
organizational needs. Manages through subordinate managers. This classification may require a flexible work schedule
in order to meet the needs of the department.

DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES:

• Oversees and directs all activities of an assigned Information Technology (IT) functional group or groups. Provides
technical leadership and direction in ensuring the successful integration of new methods and technologies with
existing systems.

• Provides leadership, management and coordination in planning, organizing, implementing and evaluating operations in
accordance with Federal, State and Local laws, policies, procedures, guidelines and enterprise goals and objectives.

• Oversees and directs through subordinate managers staff, including hiring, training, performance evaluation,
disciplinary actions and dismissals, and directs activities to be consistent with goals and objectives. Seeks and
creates opportunities for improved performance, learning and development of staff and identifies and addresses
problems or conflicts.

• Develops, recommends and oversees implementation of strategic plans to accomplish goals and objectives and
improve effectiveness and efficiency of services.

• Directs tactical and operational IT provisioning infrastructure to support the enterprise’s business goals.

• Aligns and calibrates the organization’s technology deployment strategy with its business strategy.

• Directs the development and implementation of technologies to support business objectives.

• Establishes and implements enterprise-level technology standards and processes.

• Assists in preparing and administering annual department budget. Monitors budget expenditures to ensure consistent
with department goals and objectives and within available funds.

• Approves, plans and budgets for all assets in area of responsibility.

• Performs other job-related duties as assigned.

MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS:

Education and Experience:
Bachelor’s degree in Computer Science, Information Systems, Business Administration or a directly related field AND ten
(10) years of increasingly relevant responsible experience, including five (5) years of mid- to senior level supervisory or
management experience;

OR,

Any combination of education and experience that has been achieved and is equivalent to the stated education and
experience and required knowledge, skills, and abilities sufficient to successfully perform the duties and responsibilities of
this job.

Page 1 of 2

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Information Technology Director

JOB CODE: 31887 FLSA STATUS: Exempt
PAY GRADE: 31 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS: (Cont.)

Licenses, Registrations, Certifications, or Special Requirements:
Valid Texas Driver’s License.

Preferred:
Master’s degree in Computer Science, Information Systems, Business Administration or a directly related field.

Knowledge, Skills, and Abilities:
Knowledge of:
• Management and supervisory principles, practices and techniques.
• Policies, practices, procedures and terminology of assigned function.
• Federal, State, Local and County applicable laws, rules, regulations and guidelines.
• Information technology hardware, software and peripherals as related to assigned function.
• Communications and networking, network and systems security.
• Budget preparation and office management.
• Computer equipment to include word processing, spreadsheets, databases and a variety of software packages.

Skill in:
• Directing and managing staff, allocating resources and evaluating programs.
• Working with executive management, and elected/appointed officials.
• Leadership, collaboration and negotiation techniques, including contracts, agreements and proposals.
• Managing user expectations and satisfaction.
• Developing and evaluating Requests for Proposals (REPs).
• Strategic planning, developing, monitoring and evaluating.
• Developing and monitoring programs and related budgets.
• Problem-solving and decision-making.
• Both verbal and written communication, including presentations and communicating technical issues in non-technical

language.

Ability to:
• Direct, motivate, train, develop and evaluate staff.
• Work independently and efficiently and as part of a team.
• Manage time well, perform multiple tasks and organize diverse activities.
• Research, compile, analyze, interpret and prepare a variety of memorandums or reports.
• Work with both the big picture and the small details.
• Plan and direct the planning efforts of others.
• Establish and maintain effective working relationships with departmental clientele, representatives of outside agencies

and providers, other County employees and officials, and the general public.

WORK ENVIRONMENT AND PHYSICAL DEMANDS:

Physical requirements include the ability to lift/carry up to 35-40 pounds occasionally, visual acuity, speech and hearing,
hand and eye coordination and manual dexterity necessary to operate a computer and office equipment. Subject to
standing, sitting, walking, climbing, crawling, bending, stooping, crouching, kneeling, pushing, pulling, reaching, twisting,
balancing, repetitive motion, and squatting to perform the essential functions. Subject to exposure to variations in extreme
heat, cold, mechanical, fume/odor, and dust/mites.

This job description is intended to be generic in nature. It is not necessarily an exhaustive list of all duties
and responsibilities. The essential duties, functions and responsibilities and overtime eligibility may vary
based on the specific tasks assigned to the position.

Page2of2
icq

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Project Management Division Manager

JOB CODE: 30885 FLSA STATUS: Exempt
PAY GRADE: 30 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

JOB SUMMARY:

Directs and manages the enterprise Information Technology (IT) project portfolio. Develops the program strategy,
supporting business case and various enterprise-wide high-level project plans. Ensures delivery of all projects in the IT
portfolio on time, within budget and in alignment with strategic and organizational requirements. Ensures integration of
projects and adjusts project scope, timing and budgets as needed, based on the organizational needs and objectives.
Communicates to senior IT leadership and key stakeholders the program strategy, direction and changes. Oversees
and maintains relationships with user departments. Partners with elected and appointed officials as well as senior
management within user departments to identify and prioritize opportunities for utilizing technology to achieve enterprise
goals.

DISTINGUISHING CHARACTERISTICS:

This is a job classification within the Information Technology job family. Directs and manages the enterprise-wide IT
project portfolio and related project staff. Manages Information Technology (IT) projects to ensure delivery in
accordance with strategic and organizational goals. This classification may require a flexible work schedule in order to
meet the needs of the department.

DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES:

• Oversees and manages the Information Technology (IT) project portfolio. Provides technical leadership and
direction in ensuring the successful integration of new methods and technologies with existing systems.

• Provides leadership, management and coordination in planning, organizing, implementing and evaluating operations
in accordance with Federal, State and Local laws, policies, procedures, guidelines and enterprise goals and
objectives.

• Oversees staff, including hiring, training, performance evaluation, disciplinary actions and dismissals, and directs
activities to be consistent with goals and objectives. Seeks and creates opportunities for improved performance,
learning and development of staff and identifies and addresses problems or conflicts.

• Develops, maintains and communicates program strategy, supporting business cases and project plans.

• Develops and establishes project methodology standards, processes and procedures. Assists top management in
developing strategic plans to accomplish goals and objectives and improve effectiveness and efficiency of services.

• Builds and maintains relationships with elected and appointed officials as well as senior management in user
departments in order to identify and prioritize opportunities for utilizing technology to achieve enterprise goals.

• Plans and budgets for area of responsibility. Monitors budget expenditures to ensure consistent with department
goals and objectives and within available funds.

• Performs other job-related duties as assigned.

MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS:

Education and Experience:
Bachelor’s degree in Computer Science, Information Systems, Business Administration or a directly related field AND
ten (10) years of relevant work experience, including both five (5) years of increasingly responsible supervisory or
management experience and five (5) years managing projects;

OR,

Any combination of education and experience that has been achieved and is equivalent to the stated education and
experience and required knowledge, skills, and abilities sufficient to successfully perform the duties and responsibilities
of this job.

Licenses, Registrations, Certifications, or Special Requirements:
Valid Texas Driver’s License.

Page 1 of 2

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Project Management Division Manager

JOB CODE: 30885 FLSA STATUS: Exempt
PAY GRADE: 30 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS: (Cont.)

Preferred:
Master’s degree in Computer Science, Information Systems, Business Administration or a directly related field.
Project Management Professional (PMP) Certification.

Knowledge, Skills, and Abilities:
Knowledge of:
• Management and supervisory principles, practices and techniques.
• Policies, practices, procedures and terminology of assigned function.
• Federal, State, Local and County applicable laws, rules, regulations and guidelines.
• Information technology hardware, software and peripherals as related to assigned function.
• Budget preparation and office management.
• Computer equipment to include word processing, spreadsheets, databases and a variety of software packages.

Skill in:
• Directing and managing staff, allocating resources and evaluating programs.
• Leadership, collaboration and negotiation techniques, including contracts, agreements and proposals.
• Managing user expectations and satisfaction.
• Using industry standard project management tools.
• Developing and evaluating Requests for Proposals (RFP5).
• Strategic planning, developing, monitoring and evaluating.
• Developing and monitoring programs and related budgets.
• Problem-solving and decision-making.
• Both verbal and written communication, including presentations and communicating technical issues in non

technical language.

Ability to:
• Direct, motivate, train, develop and evaluate staff.
• Work independently and efficiently and as part of a team.
• Manage time well, perform multiple tasks and organize diverse activities.
• Research, compile, analyze, interpret and prepare a variety of memorandums or reports.
• Establish and maintain effective working relationships with departmental clientele, representatives of outside

agencies and providers, other County employees and officials, and the general public.

WORK ENVIRONMENT AND PHYSICAL DEMANDS:

Physical requirements include the ability to lift/carry up to 35-40 pounds occasionally, visual acuity, speech and hearing,
hand and eye coordination and manual dexterity necessary to operate a computer and office equipment. Subject to
standing, sitting, walking, climbing, crawling, bending, stooping, crouching, kneeling, pushing, pulling, reaching, twisting,
balancing, repetitive motion, and squatting to perform the essential functions. Subject to exposure to variations in
extreme heat, cold, mechanical, fume/odor, and dust/mites.

This job description is intended to be generic in nature. It is not necessarily an exhaustive list of all duties
and responsibilities. The essential duties, functions and responsibilities and overtime eligibility may vary
based on the specific tasks assigned to the position.

“Of0
Page2of2

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Project Manager III

JOB CODE: 30884 FLSA STATUS: Exempt
PAY GRADE: 30 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

JOB SUMMARY:

Responsible for the overall coordination, status reporting and stability of highly complex and cross-functional project
oriented work efforts. Manages multiple projects simultaneously. Establishes and implements project management
processes and methodologies for the Information Technology (IT) community to ensure projects are delivered on time,
within budget, adhere to high quality standards and meet customer expectations. Responsible for project planning,
tracking key project milestones and adjusting project plans and resources to meet customer needs. Partners with
elected and appointed officials as well as senior management in the user departments to identify and prioritize
opportunities for utilizing IT to achieve the goals of the enterprise. Serves as the senior relationship manager for specific
user departments.

DISTINGUISHING CHARACTERISTICS:

This is the third in a series of three project manager-related job classifications within the Information Technology job
family. Coordinates and directs the work of staff engaged in multiple, highly complex Information Technology (IT)-
related projects in a matrix environment. The Project Manager III plans and directs the work of multiple projects and
may function as project staff on other projects. This classification may require a flexible work schedule in order to meet
the needs of the department.

DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES:

• Manages multiple, highly complex projects/staff simultaneously, using established methodologies and processes.

• Develops, maintains and communicates project documentation, including project definition, schedules and budget
plans.

• Determines project methodology.

• Assembles project team, assigning individual responsibilities and coordinating activities.

• Leads and facilitates cross-functional project team meetings to identify and resolve issues impacting project
success.

• Elicits and documents project requirements from key stakeholders. Communicates project status, issues and/or
concerns with management and appropriate stakeholders.

• Ensures timely completion of projects and meets project deadlines. Develops contingency plans for projects.

• Provides quality assurance to project deliverables.

• Ensures projects are completed within budget and other resource constraints.

• Builds and maintains relationships with elected and appointed officials as well as senior management in user
departments in order to identify and prioritize opportunities for utilizing technology to achieve department goals.

• Performs other job-related duties as assigned.

MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS:

Education and Experience:
Bachelor’s degree in Computer Science, Information Systems, Business Administration or a directly related field AND
eight (8) years of relevant work experience, including four (4) years managing projects;

OR,

Any combination of education and experience that has been achieved and is equivalent to the stated education and
experience and required knowledge, skills, and abilities sufficient to successfully perform the duties and responsibilities
of this job.

Page 1 of 2 T’ 7

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Project Manager III

JOB CODE: 30884 FLSA STATUS: Exempt
PAY GRADE: 30 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS: (Cont.)

Licenses, Registrations, Certifications, or Special Requirements:
Valid Texas Driver’s License.

Knowledge, Skills, and Abilities:
Knowledge of:
• Project management methodologies, practices and techniques.
• Budget preparation and office management.
• Policies, practices, procedures and terminology of assigned function.
• Federal, State, Local and County applicable laws, rules, regulations and guidelines.
• Information technology hardware, software and peripherals as related to assigned function.
• Request for Proposal (RFP) development, evaluation and negotiation.
• Computer equipment to include word processing, spreadsheets, databases and a variety of software packages.

Skill in:
• Using industry standard project management tools.
• Managing staff, allocating resources and evaluating programs.
• Leadership, collaboration and negotiation techniques.
• Developing and monitoring programs and related budgets.
• Problem-solving and decision-making.
• Managing user expectations and satisfaction.
• Developing and evaluating Requests for Proposals (REPs).
• Negotiating contracts, agreements and proposals.
• Both verbal and written communication, including presentations and communicating technical issues in non

technical language.

Ability to:
• Direct, motivate, train, develop and evaluate staff.
• Work independently and efficiently and as part of a team.
• Manage time well, perform multiple tasks and organize diverse activities.
• Translate policies and objectives into ideas and applications web-based information products.
• Research, compile, analyze, interpret and prepare a variety of memorandums or reports.
• Establish and maintain effective working relationships with departmental clientele, representatives of outside

agencies and providers, other County employees and officials, and the general public.

WORK ENVIRONMENT AND PHYSICAL DEMANDS:

Physical requirements include the ability to lift/carry up to 35-40 pounds occasionally, visual acuity, speech and hearing,
hand and eye coordination and manual dexterity necessary to operate a computer and office equipment. Subject to
standing, sitting, walking, climbing, crawling, bending, stooping, crouching, kneeling, pushing, pulling, reaching, twisting,
balancing, repetitive motion, and squatting to perform the essential functions. Subject to exposure to variations in
extreme heat, cold, mechanical, fume/odor, and dust/mites.

This job description is intended to be generic in nature. It is not necessarily an exhaustive list of all duties
and responsibilities. The essential duties, functions and responsibilities and overtime eligibility may vary
based on the specific tasks assigned to the position.

Page 2 of 2

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Project Manager II

JOB CODE: 28883 FLSA STATUS: Exempt
PAY GRADE: 28 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

JOB SUMMARY:

Responsible for the overall coordination, status reporting and stability of complex and cross-functional project oriented
work efforts. Manages multiple projects simultaneously. Establishes and implements project management processes
and methodologies for the Information Technology (IT) community to ensure projects are delivered on time, within
budget, adhere to high quality standards and meet customer expectations. Responsible for project planning, tracking
key project milestones and adjusting project plans and resources to meet customer needs. Partners with senior
management in the user departments to identify and prioritize opportunities for utilizing IT to achieve the goals of the
enterprise. Serves as the relationship manager for specific user departments.

DISTINGUISHING CHARACTERISTICS:

This is the second in a series of three project manager-related job classifications within the Information Technology job
family. Coordinates and directs the work of staff engaged in multiple, complex Information Technology (IT)-related
projects in a matrix environment. The Project Manager II plans and directs the work of multiple projects while
functioning as project staff on other projects. This classification may require a flexible work schedule in order to meet
the needs of the department.

DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES:

• Manages multiple complex projects simultaneously, using established methodologies and processes.

• Develops, maintains and communicates project documentation, including project definition, milestones, schedules
and budget plans.

• Determines project methodology.

• Assembles project team, assigning individual responsibilities and coordinating activities.

• Leads and facilitates cross-functional project team meetings to identify and resolve issues impacting project
success.

• Elicits and documents project requirements from key stakeholders. Communicates project status, issues and/or
concerns with management and appropriate stakeholders.

• Ensures timely completion of projects and meets project deadlines. Develops contingency plans for projects.

• Provides quality assurance to project deliverables.

• Ensures projects are completed within budget and other resource constraints.

• Builds and maintains relationships with senior management in user departments in order to identify and prioritize
opportunities for utilizing technology to achieve department goals.

• Performs other job-related duties as assigned.

MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS:

Education and Experience:
Bachelor’s degree in Computer Science, Information Systems, Business Administration or a directly related field AND
seven (7) years of relevant work experience, including three (3) years managing projects;

OR,

Any combination of education and experience that has been achieved and is equivalent to the stated education and
experience and required knowledge, skills, and abilities sufficient to successfully perform the duties and responsibilities
of this job.

Licenses, Registrations, Certifications, or Special Requirements:
Valid Texas Driver’s License.

Page 1 of 2

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Project Manager II

JOB CODE: 28883 FLSA STATUS: Exempt
PAY GRADE: 28 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS: (Cant.)

Knowledge, Skills, and Abilities:
Knowledge of:
• Project management methodologies, practices and techniques.
• Budget preparation and office management.
• Policies, practices, procedures and terminology of assigned function.
• Federal, State, Local and County applicable laws, rules, regulations and guidelines.
• Information technology hardware, software and peripherals as related to assigned function.
• Request for Proposal (RFP) development, evaluation and negotiation.
• Computer equipment to include word processing, spreadsheets, databases and a variety of software packages.

Skill in:
• Using industry standard project management tools.
• Managing staff, allocating resources and evaluating programs.
• Leadership, collaboration and negotiation techniques.
• Developing and monitoring programs and related budgets.
• Problem-solving and decision-making.
• Developing and evaluating Requests for Proposals (RFP5).
• Negotiating contracts, agreements and proposals.
• Managing user expectations and satisfaction.
• Translating highly complex concepts for peers and customers.
• Both verbal and written communication, including presentations and communicating technical issues in non

technical language.

Ability to:
• Direct, motivate, train, develop and evaluate staff.
• Work independently and efficiently and as part of a team.
• Manage time well, perform multiple tasks and organize diverse activities.
• Translate policies and objectives into ideas and applications web-based information products.
• Research, compile, analyze, interpret and prepare a variety of memorandums or reports.
• Establish and maintain effective working relationships with departmental clientele, representatives of outside

agencies and providers, other County employees and officials, and the general public.

WORK ENVIRONMENT AND PHYSICAL DEMANDS:

Physical requirements include the ability to lift/carry up to 35-40 pounds occasionally, visual acuity, speech and hearing,
hand and eye coordination and manual dexterity necessary to operate a computer and office equipment. Subject to
standing, sitting, walking, climbing, crawling, bending, stooping, crouching, kneeling, pushing, pulling, reaching, twisting,
balancing, repetitive motion, and squatting to perform the essential functions. Subject to exposure to variations in
extreme heat, cold, mechanical, fume/odor, and dust/mites.

This job description is intended to be generic in nature. It is not necessarily an exhaustive list of all duties
and responsibilities. The essential duties, functions and responsibilities and overtime eligibility may vary
based on the specific tasks assigned to the position.

Page2of2
7,’O

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Project Manager I

JOB CODE: 27882 FLSA STATUS: Exempt
PAY GRADE: 27 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

JOB SUMMARY:

Responsible for the coordination, status reporting and stability of moderately complex project oriented work efforts.
Manages one or more projects simultaneously. Follows established project management processes and methodologies
for the Information Technology (IT) community to ensure projects are delivered on time, within budget, adhere to high
quality standards and meet customer expectations. Responsible for project planning, tracking key project milestones
and adjusting project plans and resources to meet customer needs.

DISTINGUISHING CHARACTERISTICS:

This is the first in a series of three project manager-related job classifications within the Information Technology job
family. Coordinates and directs the work of staff engaged in moderately complex Information Technology (lT)-related
projects in a matrix environment. The Project Manager I may direct the work of one or more projects while functioning
as project staff on other projects. This classification may require a flexible work schedule in order to meet the needs of
the department.

DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES:

• Manages one or more moderately complex projects simultaneously, using established methodologies and
processes.

• Develops, maintains and communicates project documentation, including project definition, schedules, milestones
and budget plans.

• Determines project methodology.

• Assembles project team, assigning individual responsibilities and coordinating activities.

• Leads and facilitates project team meetings to identify and resolve issues impacting project success.

• Elicits and documents project requirements from key stakeholders. Communicates project status, issues and/or
concerns with management and appropriate stakeholders.

• Ensures timely completion of projects and meets project deadlines. Develops contingency plans for projects.

• Provides quality assurance to project deliverables.

• Ensures projects are completed within budget and other resource constraints.

• Performs other job-related duties as assigned.

MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS:

Education and Experience:
Bachelor’s degree in Computer Science, Information Systems, Business Administration or a directly related field AND
five (5) years of relevant work experience, including two (2) years managing projects;

OR,

Any combination of education and experience that has been achieved and is equivalent to the stated education and
experience and required knowledge, skills, and abilities sufficient to successfully perform the duties and responsibilities
of this job.

Licenses, Registrations, Certifications, or Special Requirements:
Valid Texas Driver’s License.

/2/i
Page 1 of 2

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Project Manager I

JOB CODE: 27882 FLSA STATUS: Exempt
PAY GRADE: 27 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS: (Cant.)

Knowledge, Skills, and Abilities:
Knowledge of:
• Project management methodologies, practices and techniques.
• Budget preparation and office management.
• Policies, practices, procedures and terminology of assigned function.
• Federal, State, Local and County applicable laws, rules, regulations and guidelines.
• Information technology hardware, software and peripherals as related to assigned function.
• Request for Proposal (REP) development, evaluation and negotiation.
• Computer equipment to include word processing, spreadsheets, databases and a variety of software packages.

Skill in:
• Using industry standard project management tools.
• Managing staff, allocating resources and evaluating programs.
• Leadership, collaboration and negotiation techniques.
• Developing and monitoring programs and related budgets.
• Problem-solving and decision-making.
• Translating highly complex concepts for peers and customers.
• Both verbal and written communication, including presentations and communicating technical issues in non

technical language.

Ability to:
• Direct, motivate, train, develop and evaluate staff.
• Work independently and efficiently and as part of a team.
• Manage time well, perform multiple tasks and organize diverse activities.
• Translate policies and objectives into ideas and applications web-based information products.
• Research, compile, analyze, interpret and prepare a variety of memorandums or reports.
• Establish and maintain effective working relationships with departmental clientele, representatives of outside

agencies and providers, other County employees and officials, and the general public.

WORK ENVIRONMENT AND PHYSICAL DEMANDS:

Physical requirements include the ability to lift/carry up to 35-40 pounds occasionally, visual acuity, speech and hearing,
hand and eye coordination and manual dexterity necessary to operate a computer and office equipment. Subject to
standing, sitting, walking, climbing, crawling, bending, stooping, crouching, kneeling, pushing, pulling, reaching, twisting,
balancing, repetitive motion, and squatting to perform the essential functions. Subject to exposure to variations in
extreme heat, cold, mechanical, fume/odor, and dust/mites.

This job description is intended to be generic in nature. It is not necessarily an exhaustive list of all duties
and responsibilities. The essential duties, functions and responsibilities and overtime eligibility may vary
based on the specific tasks assigned to the position.

Page 2 of 2

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Application Support Division Manager

JOB CODE: 30881 ELSA STATUS: Exempt
PAY GRADE: 30 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

JOB SUMMARY:

Oversees and directs the support of enterprise application operations, including support requests and issue resolution.
Develops and communicates the application support strategy, service level agreements and project plans. Manages
support requests and operations issues to resolution. Oversees the investigation, analysis and resolution of application
and operational failures. Oversees the specification and implementation of upgrades, release management and the
troubleshooting of application performance problems.

DISTINGUISHING CHARACTERISTICS:

This is a job classification within the Information Technology job family. Directs and manages enterprise application
operations and staff. Manages incoming requests for applications support and technical consulting services designed to
improve business processes and meet user and organizational needs in accordance with strategic and organizational
goals. This classification may require a flexible work schedule in order to meet the needs of the department.

DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES:

• Oversees and manages enterprise Information Technology (IT) application support functions. Provides technical
leadership and direction in ensuring the successful integration of new methods and technologies with existing
systems.

• Provides leadership, management and coordination in planning, organizing, implementing and evaluating operations
in accordance with Federal, State and Local laws, policies, procedures, guidelines and enterprise goals and
objectives.

• Oversees staff, including hiring, training, performance evaluation, disciplinary actions and dismissals, and directs
activities to be consistent with goals and objectives. Seeks and creates opportunities for improved performance,
learning and development of staff and identifies and addresses problems or conflicts.

• Manages support and enhancement requests as well as key stakeholder inquiries.

• Oversees the investigation, analysis and resolution of application failures and issues.

• Oversees application upgrades, release management and performance monitoring.

• Develops, maintains and communicates application support strategy, service agreements and project plans. Assists
top management in developing strategic plans to accomplish goals and objectives and improve effectiveness and
efficiency of services.

• Builds and maintains relationships with elected and appointed officials as well as senior management in user
departments in order to identify and prioritize opportunities for utilizing technology to achieve enterprise goals.

• Develops and establishes application support standards, processes and procedures.

• Plans and budgets for area of responsibility. Monitors budget expenditures to ensure consistent with department
goals and objectives and within available funds.

• Performs other job-related duties as assigned.

MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS:

Education and Experience:
Bachelor’s degree in Computer Science, Information Systems, Business Administration or a directly related field AND
ten (10) years of relevant work experience, including both five (5) years of increasingly responsible supervisory or
management experience and five (5) years managing projects;

OR,

Any combination of education and experience that has been achieved and is equivalent to the stated education and
experience and required knowledge, skills, and abilities sufficient to successfully perform the duties and responsibilities
of this job.

Pagelof2 / ‘

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Application Support Division Manager

JOB CODE: 30881 FLSA STATUS: Exempt
PAY GRADE: 30 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS: (Cont.)

Licenses, Registrations, Certifications, or Special Requirements:
Valid Texas Driver’s License.

Preferred:
Master’s degree in Computer Science, Information Systems, Business Administration or a directly related field.

Knowledge, Skills, and Abilities:
Knowledge of:
• Management and supervisory principles, practices and techniques.
• Policies, practices, procedures and terminology of assigned function.
• Federal, State, Local and County applicable laws, rules, regulations and guidelines.
• Information technology hardware, software and peripherals as related to assigned function.
• Application support and project management methodologies.
• Application architecture.
• Budget preparation and office management.
• Computer equipment to include word processing, spreadsheets, databases and a variety of software packages.

Skill in:
• Directing and managing staff, allocating resources and evaluating programs.
• Leadership, collaboration and negotiation techniques, including contracts, agreements and proposals.
• Managing user expectations and satisfaction.
• Developing and evaluating Requests for Proposals (REPs).
• Strategic planning, developing, monitoring and evaluating.
• Developing and monitoring programs and related budgets.
• Problem-solving and decision-making.
• Both verbal and written communication, including presentations and communicating technical issues in non

technical language.

Ability to:
• Direct, motivate, train, develop and evaluate staff.
• Work independently and efficiently and as part of a team.
• Manage time well, perform multiple tasks and organize diverse activities.
• Research, compile, analyze, interpret and prepare a variety of memorandums or reports.
• Establish and maintain effective working relationships with departmental clientele, representatives of outside

agencies and providers, other County employees and officials, and the general public.

WORK ENVIRONMENT AND PHYSICAL DEMANDS:

Physical requirements include the ability to lift/carry up to 35-40 pounds occasionally, visual acuity, speech and hearing,
hand and eye coordination and manual dexterity necessary to operate a computer and office equipment. Subject to
standing, sitting, walking, climbing, crawling, bending, stooping, crouching, kneeling, pushing, pulling, reaching, twisting,
balancing, repetitive motion, and squatting to perform the essential functions. Subject to exposure to variations in
extreme heat, cold, mechanical, fume/odor, and dust/mites.

This job description is intended to be generic in nature. It is not necessarily an exhaustive list of all duties
and responsibilities. The essential duties, functions and responsibilities and overtime eligibility may vary
based on the specific tasks assigned to the position.

Page 2 of 2

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Business Consultant II

JOB CODE: 29880 FLSA STATUS: Exempt
PAY GRADE: 29 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

JOB SUMMARY:

Provides highly complex technical consulting and support services for defining, developing and improving functional or
business processes to meet user and organizational needs. Works with departmental management and staff to define
problems and management requirements. Serves as a senior technical liaison between department users and the
Information Technology (IT) organization in order to provide advanced technical solutions to meet user needs. Leads
the gathering of organization needs as well as the design of advanced solutions through direct interaction with
stakeholders. Provides expertise in supporting highly complex department applications and functions. Conducts
advanced process redesign and compiles documentation, as required for complex applications. Translates the highest
level organization requirements into functional IT specifications and manages changes to such specifications. Focuses
on strategic technical solutions in accordance with total departmental and organizational goals.

DISTINGUISHING CHARACTERISTICS:

This is the second in a series of two business consultant-related job classifications within the Information Technology job
family. Provides complex technical consulting and support services for defining, developing and improving functional or
business processes to meet user and organizational needs. The Business Consultant II serves as a senior technical
expert in analyzing the highest level business process needs and designing advanced solutions to meet these needs
with an emphasis on strategic technical solutions. This class typically supervises or leads subordinate Information
Technology (IT) staff and/or teams performing high-level technical business problems. This classification may require a
flexible work schedule in order to meet the needs of the department.

DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES:

• Provides highly complex technical consulting and support services for defining, developing and improving functional
or business processes to meet user and organizational needs. Works with departmental management and staff to
define problems and management requirements.

• Solicits and interprets client requests, documents client needs and automated procedures and works with users to
improve business processes. Proposes strategic solutions appropriate within the broader context of departmental,
County Information Technology (IT) and total organizational goals.

• Resolves day-to-day technology needs of the department with a focus on the analysis of processes, dissecting
problems and suggesting solutions. Reviews business processes, analyzes existing procedures and systems and
makes recommendations for improvements. Develops process performance measures and plans the transition to a
new process.

• Participates in continuous review and update to ensure that processes meet changing departmental and
organizational conditions. Identifies processes for improvement, documents existing processes, and identifies and
analyzes gaps between current processes and the desired state.

• Interfaces and collaborates with other IT staff in the design of new programs, processes, projects and software.
Conducts highly complex analysis, design, programming, validation, testing and training and maintenance. Assists
with and may oversee application testing and product defect tracking. Interfaces with software project team
members to assist in all aspects of requirements and testing activities. Participates in the coordination and
monitoring of software development activities. Reviews programs written by others. Establishes test procedures
and tests and debugs programs.

• Leads teams in identifying, analyzing and developing improvements for management, data, and business
processing needs. Oversees advanced complex project work conducted by subordinate and/or peer IT staff,
providing expertise and assistance, as required. Solves quality problems by interfacing with all project development
members and product-line project activities. Supervises subordinate IT or support staff.

• Serves as a liaison with Information Technology System (ITS) in network administration within a user department.
May possess primary responsibility for administration and troubleshooting of a stand-alone departmental network.

• May install computer hardware, software and peripheral devices, as required. Troubleshoots problems encountered
by department users, performs highly advanced diagnostics and provides limited user training. Coordinates and
may oversee technical support work provided by ITS. Maintains inventory of department hardware and software.

Page 1 of 3 7/5

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Business Consultant II

JOB CODE: 29880 FLSA STATUS: Exempt
PAY GRADE: 29 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES: (Cont.)

• Evaluates vendor hardware and software for user department. Collaborates with users, researches product
information and assesses available products. Leads or participates in development of formal Requests for
Proposals (REPs) or Request for Information (RFI5) to obtain computer systems, hardware and software. Monitors
ensuing contracts through implementation to insure vendor performance or delivery of services.

• Creates and/or develops enhancements needed for highly complex departmental databases. Maintains production,
development and test database systems to meet user needs and provides systems support and security for self-
contained departmental databases.

• Configures document management systems.

• Provides end-user and system support for specified department applications and functions.

• Produces periodic status and operational reports for high-level management review.

• Conducts training efforts of systems implementation, including documentation, instruction and hands-on-training of
others.

• May develop policies, operating procedures and protocols related to database systems within a department. May
monitor databases and servers and consult with department staff to develop database applications and facilitate the
effective use of database systems.

• Performs other job-related duties as assigned.

MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS:

Education and Experience:
Bachelor’s degree in Computer Science, Information Systems, Business Administration or a directly related field AND
eight (8) years of relevant work experience, including two (2) years of team lead, supervisory or management,
experience;

OR,

Any combination of education and experience that has been achieved and is equivalent to the stated education and
experience and required knowledge, skills, and abilities sufficient to successfully perform the duties and responsibilities
of this job.

Licenses, Registrations, Certifications, or Special Requirements:
Valid Texas Driver’s License.

Preferred:
Microsoft Certified Systems Engineer (MCSE) Certification.
Certified Novell Administrator (CNA) Certification.
Certified Novell Engineer (CN E) Certification.
Oracle Database Administrator (DBA) Certification.

Knowledge, Skills, and Abilities:
Knowledge of:
• Policies, practices, procedures and terminology of assigned function.
• Federal, State, Local and County applicable laws, rules, regulations and guidelines.
• Information technology hardware, software and peripherals as related to assigned function.
• Existing automated business applications and their relationships to each other and interfaces with other automated

systems.
• Software engineering and the software development lifecycle.
• Computer equipment to include word processing, spreadsheets, databases and a variety of software packages.

7/4Page 2 of 3

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Business Consultant II

JOB CODE: 29880 FLSA STATUS: Exempt
PAY GRADE: 29 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS: (Cont.)

Skill in:
• Understanding technical problems and solutions in relation to current, as well as future, business environment.
• Problem-solving and decision-making.
• Training users on computer applications.
• Translating highly complex concepts for peers and customers.
• Network administration and maintenance.
• Installation, maintenance and troubleshooting of hardware, software and peripherals.
• Both verbal and written communication, including presentations and communicating technical issues in non

technical language.

Ability to:
• Identify and analyze highly complex end-user problems and develop strategic, practical technological solutions.
• Lead, supervise and/or work independently and efficiently and as part of a team.
• Manage time well, perform multiple tasks and organize diverse activities.
• Research, compile, analyze, interpret and prepare a variety of memorandums or reports.
• Establish and maintain effective working relationships with departmental clientele, representatives of outside

agencies and providers, other County employees and officials, and the general public.

WORK ENVIRONMENT AND PHYSICAL DEMANDS:

Physical requirements include the ability to lift/carry up to 35-40 pounds occasionally, visual acuity, speech and hearing,
hand and eye coordination and manual dexterity necessary to operate a computer and office equipment. Subject to
standing, sitting, walking, climbing, crawling, bending, stooping, crouching, kneeling, pushing, pulling, reaching, twisting,
balancing, repetitive motion, and squatting to perform the essential functions. Subject to exposure to variations in
extreme heat, cold, mechanical, fume/odor, and dust/mites.

This job description is intended to be generic in nature. It is not necessarily an exhaustive list of all duties
and responsibilities. The essential duties, functions and responsibilities and overtime eligibility may vary
based on the specific tasks assigned to the position.

Page3of3 ‘7/7

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Business Consultant I

JOB CODE: 27879 FLSA STATUS: Exempt
PAY GRADE: 27 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

JOB SUMMARY:

Provides complex technical consulting and support services for defining, developing and improving functional or
business processes to meet user and organizational needs. Works with departmental management and staff to define
problems and management requirements. Serves as a senior technical liaison between department users and the
Information Technology (IT) organization in order to provide advanced technical solutions to meet user needs. Leads
the gathering of organization needs as well as the design of advanced solutions through direct interaction with
stakeholders. Provides expertise in supporting highly complex department applications and functions. Conducts
advanced process redesign and compiles documentation, as required for complex applications. Translates the highest
level organization requirements into functional IT specifications and manages changes to such specifications. Focuses
on strategic technical solutions in accordance with total departmental and organizational goals.

DISTINGUISHING CHARACTERISTICS:
This is the first in a series of two business consultant-related job classifications within the Information Technology job
family. Provides complex technical consulting and support services for defining, developing and improving functional or
business processes to meet user and organizational needs. The Business Consultant I serves as a senior technical
expert in analyzing high-level business process needs and designing advanced solutions to meet these needs with an
emphasis on strategic technical solutions. This class typically supervises or leads subordinate Information Technology
(IT) staff and/or teams performing high-level technical business problems. This classification may require a flexible work
schedule in order to meet the needs of the department.

DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES:

• Provides complex technical consulting and support services for defining, developing and improving functional or
business processes to meet user and organizational needs. Works with departmental management and staff to
define problems and management requirements.

• Solicits and interprets client requests, documents client needs and automated procedures and works with users to
improve business processes. Proposes strategic solutions appropriate within the broader context of departmental,
County Information Technology (IT) and total organizational goals.

• Resolves day-to-day technology needs of the department with a focus on the analysis of processes, dissecting
problems and suggesting solutions. Reviews business processes, analyzes existing procedures and systems and
makes recommendations for improvements. Develops process performance measures and plans the transition to a
new process.

• Participates in continuous review and update to ensure that processes meet changing departmental and
organizational conditions. Identifies processes for improvement, documents existing processes, and identifies and
analyzes gaps between current processes and the desired state.

• Interfaces and collaborates with other IT staff in the design of new programs, processes, projects and software.
Conducts complex analysis, design, programming, validation, testing and training and maintenance. Assists with
and may oversee application testing and product defect tracking. Interfaces with software project team members to
assist in all aspects of requirements and testing activities. Participates in the coordination and monitoring of
software development activities. May review programs written by others. Establishes test procedures and tests and
debugs programs.

• Leads teams in identifying, analyzing and developing improvements for management, data, and business
processing needs. Oversees advanced complex project work conducted by subordinate and/or peer IT staff,
providing expertise and assistance, as required. Solves quality problems by interfacing with all project development
members and product-line project activities. Supervises subordinate IT or support staff.

• Serves as a liaison with Information Technology System (ITS) in network administration within a user department.
May possess primary responsibility for administration and troubleshooting of a stand-alone departmental network.

• May install computer hardware, software and peripheral devices, as required. Troubleshoots problems encountered
by department users, performs highly advanced diagnostics and provides limited user training. Coordinates and
may oversee technical support work provided by ITS. Maintains inventory of department hardware and software.

Page 1 of 3 7/

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Business Consultant I

JOB CODE: 27879 FLSA STATUS: Exempt
PAY GRADE: 27 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES: (Cant.)

• Evaluates vendor hardware and software for user department. Collaborates with users, researches product
information and assesses available products. Leads or participates in development of formal Requests for
Proposals (RFP5) or Request for Information (RFI5) to obtain computer systems, hardware and software. Monitors
ensuing contracts through implementation to insure vendor performance or delivery of services.

• Creates and/or develops enhancements needed for highly complex departmental databases. Maintains production,
development and test database systems to meet user needs and provides systems support and security for self-
contained departmental databases.

• Configures document management systems.

• Provides end-user and system support for specified department applications and functions.

• Produces periodic status and operational reports for high-level management review.

• Conducts training efforts of systems implementation, including documentation, instruction and hands-on-training of
others.

• May develop policies, operating procedures and protocols related to database systems within a department. May
monitor databases and servers and consult with department staff to develop database applications and facilitate the
effective use of database systems.

• Performs other job-related duties as assigned.

MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS:

Education and Experience:
Bachelor’s degree in Computer Science, Information Systems, Business Administration or a directly related field AND
seven (7) years of relevant work experience, including one (1) year of team lead, supervisory or management,
experience;

OR,

Any combination of education and experience that has been achieved and is equivalent to the stated education and
experience and required knowledge, skills, and abilities sufficient to successfully perform the duties and responsibilities
of this job.

Licenses, Registrations, Certifications, or Special Requirements:
Valid Texas Driver’s License.

Preferred:
Microsoft Certified Systems Engineer (MCSE) Certification.
Certified Novell Administrator (CNA) Certification.
Certified Novell Engineer (CNE) Certification.
Oracle Database Administrator (DBA) Certification.

Knowledge, Skills, and Abilities:
Knowledge of:
• Policies, practices, procedures and terminology of assigned function.
• Federal, State, Local and County applicable laws, rules, regulations and guidelines.
• Information technology hardware, software and peripherals as related to assigned function.
• Existing automated business applications and their relationships to each other and interfaces with other automated

systems.
• Software engineering and the software development lifecycle.
• Computer equipment to include word processing, spreadsheets, databases and a variety of software packages.

Page 2 of 3

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Business Consultant I

JOB CODE: 27879 FLSA STATUS: Exempt
PAY GRADE: 27 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS: (Cont.)

Skill in:
• Understanding technical problems and solutions in relation to current, as well as future, business environment.
• Problem-solving and decision-making.
• Training users on computer applications.
• Translating highly complex concepts for peers and customers.
• Network administration and maintenance.
• Installation, maintenance and troubleshooting of hardware, software and peripherals.
• Both verbal and written communication, including presentations and communicating technical issues in non

technical language.

Ability to:
• Identify and analyze highly complex end-user problems and develop strategic, practical technological solutions.
• Lead, supervise and/or work independently and efficiently and as part of a team.
• Manage time well, perform multiple tasks and organize diverse activities.
• Research, compile, analyze, interpret and prepare a variety of memorandums or reports.
• Establish and maintain effective working relationships with departmental clientele, representatives of outside

agencies and providers, other County employees and officials, and the general public.

WORK ENVIRONMENT AND PHYSICAL DEMANDS:

Physical requirements include the ability to lift/carry up to 35-40 pounds occasionally, visual acuity, speech and hearing,
hand and eye coordination and manual dexterity necessary to operate a computer and office equipment. Subject to
standing, sitting, walking, climbing, crawling, bending, stooping, crouching, kneeling, pushing, pulling, reaching, twisting,
balancing, repetitive motion, and squatting to perform the essential functions. Subject to exposure to variations in
extreme heat, cold, mechanical, fume/odor, and dust/mites.

This job description is intended to be generic in nature. It is not necessarily an exhaustive list of all dutii
and responsibilities. The essential duties, functions and responsibilities and overtime eligibility may vary
based on the specific tasks assigned to the position.

Page 3 of 3

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Business Analyst Associate

JOB CODE: 18825 FLSA STATUS: Exempt
PAY GRADE: 18 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

JOB SUMMARY:

Provides routine technical consulting and support services for defining, developing and improving functional or business
processes to meet user and organizational needs. Works with departmental management and staff to define problems
and management requirements. Serves as a liaison between department users and the Information Technology (IT)
organization in order to provide technical solutions to meet user needs. Possesses expertise in supporting basic
department applications and functions. May assist with process redesign and documentation, as required for simple
applications.

DISTINGUISHING CHARACTERISTICS:

This is the first in a series of four business analyst-related job classifications within the Information Technology job
family. Provides routine technical consulting and support services for defining, developing and improving functional or
business processes to meet user and organizational needs. The Business Analyst Associate performs routine
Information Technology (IT) functions and may perform basic computer hardware and software installation, network
administration and database management within a department. This classification may require a flexible work schedule
in order to meet the needs of the department.

DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES:

• Provides routine technical consulting and support services for defining, developing and improving functional or
business processes to meet user and organizational needs. Works with departmental management and staff to
define problems and management requirements.

• Solicits and interprets client requests, documents client needs and automated procedures and works with users to
improve business processes. Proposes alternatives appropriate within the broader context of County Information
Technology (IT) and other operations and technology.

• Resolves day-to-day technology needs of the department with a focus on the analysis of processes, dissecting
problems and suggesting solutions. Reviews business processes, analyzes existing procedures and systems and
makes recommendations for improvements. Develops process performance measures and assists in planning the
transition to a new process.

• Participates in continuous review and update to ensure that processes meet changing departmental and
organizational conditions. Identifies processes for improvement, documents existing processes, and identifies and
analyzes gaps between current processes and the desired state.

• Interfaces and collaborates with other IT staff in the design of new programs, processes, projects and software.
Assists with analysis, design, programming, validation, testing, training and maintenance. Assists with application
testing and product defect tracking. Interfaces with software project team members to assist with requirements and
testing activities. Participates in the coordination and monitoring of software development activities. May review
programs written by others. Establishes test procedures and tests and debugs programs.

• Serves as a liaison with Information Technology System (ITS) in network administration within a user department.
May possess primary responsibility for administration, installation, maintenance and troubleshooting of a stand-alone
departmental network.

• May assist in or install computer hardware, software and peripheral devices, as required. Performs diagnostics and
troubleshoots problems encountered by department users and provides limited user training. Coordinates technical
support work provided by ITS. Assists in maintaining the inventory of department hardware and software.

• Assists in evaluating, acquiring and implementing vendor hardware and software for user department. Collaborates
with users, researches product information, assesses available technology, makes recommendations and may
assist with the purchasing process.

• Assists in the creation and/or development of enhancements needed for complex departmental databases.
Maintains production, development and test database systems to meet user needs and provides systems support
and security for self-contained departmental databases.

Page 1 of 3

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Business Analyst Associate

JOB CODE: 18825 FLSA STATUS: Exempt
PAY GRADE: 18 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES: (Cont.)

• Uses reporting tools to assist in the development of simple reports which are needed for department business
processes and statistical reports which are used by management to help them evaluate department productivity and
workload.

• Researches departmental data and recommends effective use of business information. Researches, documents
and catalogues business and information system processes.

• Assists in or configures document management systems.

• Participates in cross-functional project teams involving various levels of internal and external participants. Facilitates
team building to identify and resolve system or process problems.

• May develop and maintain department specific internet or intranet websites.

• Provides end-user and system support for specified department applications and functions.

• Produces periodic status and operational reports for management review.

• Performs other job-related duties as assigned.

MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS:

Education and Experience:
Bachelor’s degree in Computer Science, Information Systems, Business Administration or a directly related field;
OR,

Any combination of education and experience that has been achieved and is equivalent to the stated education and
experience and required knowledge, skills, and abilities sufficient to successfully perform the duties and responsibilities
of this job.

Licenses, Registrations, Certifications, or Special Requirements:
Valid Texas Driver’s License.

Preferred:
Microsoft Certified Systems Engineer (MCSE) Certification.
Certified Novell Administrator (CNA) Certification.
Certified Novell Engineer (CNE) Certification.

Knowledge, Skills, and Abilities:
Knowledge of:
• Policies, practices, procedures and terminology of assigned function.
• Federal, State, Local and County applicable laws, rules, regulations and guidelines.
• Information technology hardware, software and peripherals as related to assigned function.
• Existing automated business applications and their relationships to each other and interfaces with other automated

systems.
• Software engineering and the software development lifecycle.
• Computer equipment to include word processing, spreadsheets, databases and a variety of software packages.

Skill in:
• Understanding technical problems and solutions in relation to current, as well as future, business environment.
• Problem-solving and decision-making.
• Training users on computer applications.
• Network administration and maintenance.
• Translating moderately complex concepts for peers and customers.
• Installation, maintenance and troubleshooting of hardware, software and peripherals.
• Both verbal and written communication, including presentations and communicating technical issues in non

technical language.

Page 2 of 3

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Business Analyst Associate

JOB CODE: 18825 FLSA STATUS: Exempt
PAY GRADE: 18 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS: (Cont.)

Ability to:
• Identify and analyze end-user problems and develop practical technological solutions.
• Work independently and efficiently and as part of a team.
• Manage time well, perform multiple tasks and organize diverse activities.
• Research, compile, analyze, interpret and prepare a variety of memorandums or reports.
• Establish and maintain effective working relationships with departmental clientele, representatives of outside

agencies and providers, other County employees and officials, and the public.

WORK ENVIRONMENT AND PHYSICAL DEMANDS:

Physical requirements include the ability to lift/carry up to 35-40 pounds occasionally, visual acuity, speech and hearing,
hand and eye coordination and manual dexterity necessary to operate a computer and office equipment. Subject to
standing, sitting, walking, climbing, crawling, bending, stooping, crouching, kneeling, pushing, pulling, reaching, twisting,
balancing, repetitive motion, and squatting to perform the essential functions. Subject to exposure to variations in
extreme heat, cold, mechanical, fume/odor, and dust/mites.

This job description is intended to be generic in nature. It is not necessarily an exhaustive list of all dutiei
and responsibilities. The essential duties, functions and responsibilities and overtime eligibility may vary
based on the specific tasks assigned to the position.

Page 3 of 3

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Business Analyst III

JOB CODE: 25878 FLSA STATUS: Exempt
PAY GRADE: 25 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

JOB SUMMARY:

Provides moderately complex to complex technical consulting and support services for defining, developing and
improving functional or business processes to meet user and organizational needs. Works with departmental
management and staff to define problems and management requirements. Serves as a senior liaison between
department users and the Information Technology (IT) organization in order to provide technical solutions to meet user
needs. Possesses expertise in supporting complex department applications and functions. Conducts advanced
process redesign and compiles documentation, as required for complex applications. Translates high level organization
requirements into functional IT specifications and manages changes to such specifications.

DISTINGUISHING CHARACTERISTICS:

This is the fourth in a series of four business analyst-related job classifications within the Information Technology job
family. Provides moderately complex to complex technical consulting and support services for defining, developing and
improving functional or business processes to meet user and organizational needs. The Business Analyst III performs
complex Information Technology (IT) functions and may perform computer hardware and software installation, network
administration and database management within a department. This classification may require a flexible work schedule
in order to meet the needs of the department.

DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES:

• Provides moderately complex to complex technical consulting and support services for defining, developing and
improving functional or business processes to meet user and organizational needs. Works with departmental
management and staff to define problems and management requirements.

• Solicits and interprets client requests, documents client needs and automated procedures and works with users to
improve business processes. Proposes alternatives appropriate within the broader context of County Information
Technology (IT) and other operations and technology.

• Resolves day-to-day technology needs of the department with a focus on the analysis of processes, dissecting
problems and suggesting solutions. Reviews business processes, analyzes existing procedures and systems and
makes recommendations for improvements. Develops process performance measures and assists in planning the
transition to a new process.

• Participates in continuous review and update to ensure that processes meet changing departmental and
organizational conditions. Identifies processes for improvement, documents existing processes, and identifies and
analyzes gaps between current processes and the desired state.

• Interfaces and collaborates with other IT staff in the design of new programs, processes, projects and software.
Conducts analysis, design, programming, validation, testing, training and maintenance. Assists with application
testing and product defect tracking. Interfaces with software project team members to assist in all aspects of
requirements and testing activities. Participates in the coordination and monitoring of software development
activities. May review programs written by others. Establishes test procedures and tests and debugs programs.

• Serves as a liaison with Information Technology System (ITS) in network administration within a user department.
May possess primary responsibility for administration and troubleshooting of a stand-alone departmental network.

• May assist in or install computer hardware, software and peripheral devices, as required. Troubleshoots problems
encountered by department users, performs advanced diagnostics and provides limited user training. Coordinates
technical support work provided by ITS. Maintains inventory of department hardware and software.

• Assists in evaluating, acquiring and implementing vendor hardware and software for user department. Collaborates
with users, researches product information, assesses available technology, makes recommendations and assists
with the purchasing process.

• Creates and/or develops enhancements needed for complex departmental databases. Maintains production,
development and test database systems to meet user needs and provides systems support and security for self
contained departmental databases.

Page 1 of 3

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Business Analyst Ill

JOB CODE: 25878 FLSA STATUS: Exempt
PAY GRADE: 25 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES: (Cont.)

• Uses reporting tools to develop moderately complex to complex reports which are needed for department business
processes and statistical reports which are used by management to help them evaluate department productivity and
workload.

• Researches departmental data and recommends effective use of business information. Researches, documents
and catalogues business and information system processes.

• Assists in or configures document management systems.

• Participates in or leads many cross-functional project teams involving various levels of internal and external
participants. Facilitates team building to identify and resolve system or process problems.

• May lead or supervise work of lower level IT staff.

• May develop central automated systems to support the budget or other process.

• May develop and maintain department specific internet or intranet websites.

• Provides end-user and system support for specified department applications and functions.

• Produces periodic status and operational reports for management review.

• Assists with training efforts of systems implementation, including documentation, instruction and hands-on-training
of others.

• Performs other job-related duties as assigned.

MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS:

Education and Experience:
Bachelor’s degree in Computer Science, Information Systems, Business Administration or a directly related field AND
five (5) years of relevant work experience;

OR,

Any combination of education and experience that has been achieved and is equivalent to the stated education and
experience and required knowledge, skills, and abilities sufficient to successfully perform the duties and responsibilities
of this job.

Licenses, Registrations, Certifications, or Special Requirements:
Valid Texas Driver’s License.

Preferred:
Microsoft Certified Systems Engineer (MCSE) Certification.
Certified Novell Administrator (CNA) Certification.
Certified Novell Engineer (CNE) Certification.

Knowledge, Skills, and Abilities:
Knowledge of:
• Policies, practices, procedures and terminology of assigned function.
• Federal, State, Local and County applicable laws, rules, regulations and guidelines.
• Information technology hardware, software and peripherals as related to assigned function.
• Existing automated business applications and their relationships to each other and interfaces with other automated

systems.
• Software engineering and the software development lifecycle.
• Computer equipment to include word processing, spreadsheets, databases and a variety of software packages.

Page 2 of 3

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Business Analyst III

JOB CODE: 25878 FLSA STATUS: Exempt
PAY GRADE: 25 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS: (Cont.)

Skill in:
• Understanding technical problems and solutions in relation to current, as well as future, business environment.
• Problem-solving and decision-making.
• Training users on computer applications.
• Translating moderately complex concepts for peers and customers.
• Network administration and maintenance.
• Installing, maintaining and troubleshooting of hardware, software and peripherals.
• Both verbal and written communication, including presentations and communicating technical issues in non

technical language.

Ability to:
• Identify and analyze end-user problems and develop practical technological solutions.
• Lead, supervise and/or work independently and efficiently and as part of a team.
• Manage time well, perform multiple tasks and organize diverse activities.
• Research, compile, analyze, interpret and prepare a variety of memorandums or reports.
• Establish and maintain effective working relationships with departmental clientele, representatives of outside

agencies and providers, other County employees and officials, and the general public.

WORK ENVIRONMENT AND PHYSICAL DEMANDS:

Physical requirements include the ability to lift/carry up to 35-40 pounds occasionally, visual acuity, speech and hearing,
hand and eye coordination and manual dexterity necessary to operate a computer and office equipment. Subject to
standing, sitting, walking, climbing, crawling, bending, stooping, crouching, kneeling, pushing, pulling, reaching, twisting,
balancing, repetitive motion, and squatting to perform the essential functions. Subject to exposure to variations in
extreme heat, cold, mechanical, fume/odor, and dust/mites.

This job description is intended to be generic in nature. It is not necessarily an exhaustive list of all duties
and responsibilities. The essential duties, functions and responsibilities and overtime eligibility may vary
based on the specific tasks assigned to the position.

Page 3 of 3

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Business Analyst II

JOB CODE: 23877 FLSA STATUS: Exempt
PAY GRADE: 23 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

JOB SUMMARY:

Provides routine to moderately complex technical consulting and support services for defining, developing and improving
functional or business processes to meet user and organizational needs. Works with departmental management and
staff to define problems and management requirements. Serves as a liaison between department users and the
Information Technology (IT) organization in order to provide technical solutions to meet user needs. Possesses
expertise in supporting moderately complex department applications and functions. Conducts process redesign and
compiles documentation, as required for applications. Assists with or translates moderately complex organizational
requirements and assists with the translation of higher level organization requirements into functional IT specifications
and manages changes to such specifications.

DISTINGUISHING CHARACTERISTICS:

This is the third in a series of four business analyst-related job classifications within the Information Technology job
family. Provides routine to moderately complex technical consulting and support services for defining, developing and
improving functional or business processes to meet user and organizational needs. The Business Analyst II performs
moderately complex Information Technology (IT) functions and may perform computer hardware and software
installation, network administration and database management within a department. This classification may require a
flexible work schedule in order to meet the needs of the department.

DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES:

• Provides routine to moderately complex technical consulting and support services for defining, developing and
improving functional or business processes to meet user and organizational needs. Works with departmental
management and staff to define problems and management requirements.

• Solicits and interprets client requests, documents client needs and automated procedures and works with users to
improve business processes. Proposes alternatives appropriate within the broader context of County Information
Technology (IT) and other operations and technology.

• Resolves day-to-day technology needs of the department with a focus on the analysis of processes, dissecting
problems and suggesting solutions. Reviews business processes, analyzes existing procedures and systems and
makes recommendations for improvements. Develops process performance measures and assists in planning the
transition to a new process.

• Participates in continuous review and update to ensure that processes meet changing departmental and
organizational conditions. Identifies processes for improvement, documents existing processes, and identifies and
analyzes gaps between current processes and the desired state.

• Interfaces and collaborates with other IT staff in the design of new programs, processes, projects and software.
Conducts analysis, design, programming, validation, testing, training and maintenance. Assists with application
testing and product defect tracking. Interfaces with software project team members to assist in all aspects of
requirements and testing activities. Participates in the coordination and monitoring of software development
activities. May review programs written by others. Establishes test procedures and tests and debugs programs.

• Serves as a liaison with ITS in network administration within a user department. May possess primary responsibility
for administration and troubleshooting of a stand-alone departmental network.

• May assist in or install computer hardware, software and peripheral devices, as required. Troubleshoots problems
encountered by department users and provides limited user training. Coordinates technical support work provided
by ITS. Maintains inventory of department hardware and software.

• Assists in evaluating, acquiring and implementing vendor hardware and software for user department. Collaborates
with users, researches product information, assesses available technology, makes recommendations and assists
with the purchasing process.

• Creates and/or develops enhancements needed for complex departmental databases. Maintains production,
development and test database systems to meet user needs and provides systems support and security for self
contained departmental databases. /7Pagelof3

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Business Analyst II

JOB CODE: 23877 ELSA STATUS: Exempt
PAY GRADE: 23 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES: (Cont.)

• Uses reporting tools to develop moderately complex reports which are needed for department business processes
and statistical reports which are used by management to help them evaluate department productivity and workload.

• Researches departmental data and recommends effective use of business information. Researches, documents
and catalogues business and information system processes.

• Assists in or configures document management systems.

• Participates in or leads many cross-functional project teams involving various levels of internal and external
participants. Facilitates team building to identify and resolve system or process problems.

• May lead or supervise work of lower level IT staff.

• May develop and maintain department specific internet or intranet websites.

• Provides end-user and system support for specified department applications and functions.

• Produces periodic status and operational reports for management review.

• Assists with training efforts of systems implementation, including documentation, instruction and hands-on-training
of others.

• Performs other job-related duties as assigned.

MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS:

Education and Experience:
Bachelor’s degree in Computer Science, Information Systems, Business Administration or a directly related field AND
three (3) years of relevant work experience;

OR,

Any combination of education and experience that has been achieved and is equivalent to the stated education and
experience and required knowledge, skills, and abilities sufficient to successfully perform the duties and responsibilities
of this job.

Licenses, Registrations, Certifications, or Special Requirements:
Valid Texas Driver’s License.

Preferred:
Microsoft Certified Systems Engineer (MCSE) Certification.
Certified Novell Administrator (CNA) Certification.
Certified Novell Engineer (CNE) Certification.

Knowledge, Skills, and Abilities:
Knowledge of:
• Policies, practices, procedures and terminology of assigned function.
• Federal, State, Local and County applicable laws, rules, regulations and guidelines.
• Information technology hardware, software and peripherals as related to assigned function.
• Existing automated business applications and their relationships to each other and interfaces with other automated

systems.
• Software engineering and the software development lifecycle.
• Computer equipment to include word processing, spreadsheets, databases and a variety of software packages.

Skill in:
• Understanding technical problems and solutions in relation to current, as well as future, business environment.
• Problem-solving and decision-making.

Page 2 of 3

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Business Analyst II

JOB CODE: 23877 FLSA STATUS: Exempt
PAY GRADE: 23 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS: (Cant.)

Skill in: (Cant.)
• Training users on computer applications.
• Translating moderately complex concepts for peers and customers.
• Network administration and maintenance.
• Installing, maintaining and troubleshooting of hardware, software and peripherals.
• Both verbal and written communication, including presentations and communicating technical issues in non

technical language.

Ability to:
• Identify and analyze end-user problems and develop practical technological solutions.
• Work independently and efficiently and as part of a team.
• Manage time well, perform multiple tasks and organize diverse activities.
• Research, compile, analyze, interpret and prepare a variety of memorandums or reports.
• Establish and maintain effective working relationships with departmental clientele, representatives of outside

agencies and providers, other County employees and officials, and the general public.

WORK ENVIRONMENT AND PHYSICAL DEMANDS:

Physical requirements include the ability to lift/carry up to 35-40 pounds occasionally, visual acuity, speech and hearing,
hand and eye coordination and manual dexterity necessary to operate a computer and office equipment. Subject to
standing, walking, sitting, repetitive motion, reaching, climbing stairs, bending, stooping, kneeling, crouching, crawling,
pushing, pulling, balancing, client/customer contact, squatting to perform the essential functions. Subject to exposure to
variations in extreme heat, cold, mechanical, fume/odor, and dust/mites.

This job description is intended to be generic in nature. It is not necessarily an exhaustive list of all duties
and responsibilities. The essential duties, functions and responsibilities and overtime eligibility may vary
based on the specific tasks assigned to the position.

Page 3 of 3

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Business Analyst I

JOB CODE: 21876 FLSA STATUS: Exempt
PAY GRADE: 21 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

JOB SUMMARY:

Provides routine technical consulting and support services for defining, developing and improving functional or business
processes to meet user and organizational needs. Works with departmental management and staff to define problems
and management requirements. Serves as a liaison between department users and the Information Technology (IT)
organization in order to provide technical solutions to meet user needs. Possesses expertise in supporting basic
department applications and functions. May assist with process redesign and documentation, as required for simple
applications. Assists with or translates routine to moderately complex organization requirements and assists with the
translation of higher level organization requirements into functional IT specifications and manages changes to such
specifications.

DISTINGUISHING CHARACTERISTICS:

This is the second in a series of four business analyst-related job classifications within the Information Technology job
family. Provides routine technical consulting and support services for defining, developing and improving functional or
business processes to meet user and organizational needs. The Business Analyst I performs routine to moderately
complex Information Technology (IT) functions and may perform basic computer hardware and software installation,
network administration and database management within a department. This classification may require a flexible work
schedule in order to meet the needs of the department.

DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES:

• Provides routine technical consulting and support services for defining, developing and improving functional or
business processes to meet user and organizational needs. Works with departmental management and staff to
define problems and management requirements.

• Solicits and interprets client requests, documents client needs and automated procedures and works with users to
improve business processes. Proposes alternatives appropriate within the broader context of County Information
Technology (IT) and other operations and technology.

• Resolves day-to-day technology needs of the department with a focus on the analysis of processes, dissecting
problems and suggesting solutions. Reviews business processes, analyzes existing procedures and systems and
makes recommendations for improvements. Develops process performance measures and assists in planning the
transition to a new process.

• Participates in continuous review and update to ensure that processes meet changing departmental and
organizational conditions. Identifies processes for improvement, documents existing processes, and identifies and
analyzes gaps between current processes and the desired state.

• Interfaces and collaborates with other IT staff in the design of new programs, processes, projects and software.
Assists with analysis, design, programming, validation, testing, training and maintenance. Assists with application
testing and product defect tracking. Interfaces with software project team members to assist with requirements and
testing activities. Participates in the coordination and monitoring of software development activities. May review
programs written by others. Establishes test procedures and tests and debugs programs.

• Serves as a liaison with Information Technology System (ITS) in network administration within a user department.
May possess primary responsibility for administration and troubleshooting of a stand-alone departmental network.

• May assist in or install computer hardware, software and peripheral devices, as required. Troubleshoots problems
encountered by department users and provides limited user training. Coordinates technical support work provided
by ITS. Maintains inventory of department hardware and software.

• Assists in evaluating, acquiring and implementing vendor hardware and software for user department. Collaborates
with users, researches product information, assesses available technology, makes recommendations and may
assist with the purchasing process.

• Creates and/or develops enhancements needed for complex departmental databases. Maintains production,
development and test database systems to meet user needs and provides systems support and security for self
contained departmental databases.

,—,
?Q

Pagelof3

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Business Analyst I

JOB CODE: 21876 FLSA STATUS: Exempt
PAY GRADE: 21 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES: (Cont.)

• Uses reporting tools to develop simple to moderately complex reports which are needed for department business
processes and statistical reports which are used by management to help them evaluate department productivity and
workload.

• Researches departmental data and recommends effective use of business information. Researches, documents
and catalogues business and information system processes.

• Assists in or configures document management systems.

• Participates in cross-functional project teams involving various levels of internal and external participants. Facilitates
team building to identify and resolve system or process problems.

• May develop and maintain department specific internet or intranet websites.

• Provides end-user and system support for specified department applications and functions.

• Produces periodic status and operational reports for management review.

• Performs other job-related duties as assigned.

MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS:

Education and Experience:
Bachelor’s degree in Computer Science, Information Systems, Business Administration or a directly related field AND
one (1) year of relevant work experience;

OR,

Any combination of education and experience that has been achieved and is equivalent to the stated education and
experience and required knowledge, skills, and abilities sufficient to successfully perform the duties and responsibilities
of this job.

Licenses, Registrations, Certifications, or Special Requirements:
Valid Texas Driver’s License.

Preferred:
Microsoft Certified Systems Engineer (MCSE) Certification.
Certified Novell Administrator (CNA) Certification.
Certified Novell Engineer (CNE) Certification.

Knowledge, Skills, and Abilities:
Knowledge of:
• Policies, practices, procedures and terminology of assigned function.
• Federal, State, Local and County applicable laws, rules, regulations and guidelines.
• Information technology hardware, software and peripherals as related to assigned function.
• Existing automated business applications and their relationships to each other and interfaces with other automated

systems.
• Software engineering and the software development lifecycle.
• Computer equipment to include word processing, spreadsheets, databases and a variety of software packages.

Skill in:
• Understanding technical problems and solutions in relation to current, as well as future, business environment.
• Problem-solving and decision-making.
• Training users on computer applications.
• Translating moderately complex concepts for peers and customers.
• Network administration and maintenance.
• Installing, maintaining and troubleshooting of hardware, software and peripherals.
• Both verbal and written communication, including presentations and communicating technical issues in non

technical language.
Page 2 of 3

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Business Analyst I

JOB CODE: 21876 FLSA STATUS: Exempt
PAY GRADE: 21 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS: (Cont.)

Ability to:
• Identify and analyze end-user problems and develop practical technological solutions.
• Lead, supervise and/or work independently and efficiently and as part of a team.
• Manage time well, perform multiple tasks and organize diverse activities.
• Research, compile, analyze, interpret and prepare a variety of memorandums or reports.
• Establish and maintain effective working relationships with departmental clientele, representatives of outside

agencies and providers, other County employees and officials, and the general public.

WORK ENVIRONMENT AND PHYSICAL DEMANDS:

Physical requirements include the ability to lift/carry up to 35-40 pounds occasionally, visual acuity, speech and hearing,
hand and eye coordination and manual dexterity necessary to operate a computer and office equipment. Subject to
standing, walking, sitting, repetitive motion, reaching, climbing stairs, bending, stooping, kneeling, crouching, crawling,
pushing, pulling, balancing, client/customer contact, squatting to perform the essential functions.. Subject to exposure to
variations in extreme heat, cold, mechanical, fume/odor, and dust/mites.

This job description is intended to be generic in nature. It is not necessarily an exhaustive list of all duties
and responsibilities. The essential duties, functions and responsibilities and overtime eligibility may vary
based on the specific tasks assigned to the position.

Page 3 of 3 ‘/73)—

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Database Administrator II

JOB CODE: 28875 FLSA STATUS: Exempt
PAY GRADE: 28 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

JOB SUMMARY:

Manages and maintains production, development and test database systems. Responsible for standards and design of
physical data storage, maintenance, access and security administration. Performs backup and recovery of database
systems, configures database parameters and prototype designs against logical data models, defines data repository
requirements, data dictionaries and warehousing requirements. Optimizes database access and allocates database
resources for optimum configuration, performance and cost. Specializes in administration of complex database
platforms, such as Oracle, DB2 and Informix.

DISTINGUISHING CHARACTERISTICS:

This is the second in a series of two database-related job classifications within the Information Technology job family.
Implements, manages and maintains production, development and test database systems. The Database Administrator
II classification specializes in administration of complex database platforms. This classification may require a flexible
work schedule in order to meet the needs of the department.

DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES:

• Implements, manages and maintains production, development and test database systems.

• Completes database installation and configuration of database parameters.

• Provides system support for specified department applications and functions.

• Interfaces with software project team members to assist in all aspects of requirements and testing activities.

• Monitors database performance and takes corrective action to ensure efficient performance. Schedules and
performs database upgrades.

• Conducts back up and recovery, database consistency checking, and loading and unloading of data.

• Develops and maintains a comprehensive database software configuration database/library.

• Conducts software audits of database products for compliance with established standards, policies, configuration
guidelines and procedures.

• Provides ongoing trend analysis for determining current need and forecasting future resource requirements.
Produces periodic status and operational reports.

• Establishes privileges to databases and manages database elements.

• Develops policies and procedures designed to ensure the integrity of the database environment.

• Performs other job-related duties as assigned.

MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS:

Education and Experience:
Bachelor’s degree in Computer Science, Information Systems, Business Administration or a directly related field AND
five (5) years of relevant work experience:
OR,

Any combination of education and experience that has been achieved and is equivalent to the stated education and
experience and required knowledge, skills, and abilities sufficient to successfully perform the duties and responsibilities
of this job.

Licenses, Registrations, Certifications, or Special Requirements:
Valid Texas Driver’s License.

Preferred:
Microsoft Certified Database Administrator (MCDBA) Certification.

Page 1 of 2

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Database Administrator II

JOB CODE: 28875 FLSA STATUS: Exempt
PAY GRADE: 28 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS: (Cant.)

Knowledge, Skills, and Abilities:
Knowledge of:
• Database system management, maintenance and integration.
• Database design, analysis and normalization.
• Software engineering and the software development lifecycle.
• Policies, practices, procedures and terminology of assigned function.
• Federal, State, Local and County applicable laws, rules, regulations and guidelines.
• Information technology hardware, software and peripherals as related to assigned function.
• Computer equipment to include word processing, spreadsheets, databases and a variety of software packages.

Skill in:
• Managing complex databases such as Oracle, DB2 and Informix.
• Data analysis, database design, data dictionaries, and database normalization.
• Problem-solving and decision-making.
• Both verbal and written communication, including presentations and communicating technical issues in non

technical language.

Ability to:
• Work independently and efficiently and as part of a team.
• Manage time well, perform multiple tasks and organize diverse activities.
• Translate policies and objectives into ideas and applications web-based information products.
• Research, compile, analyze, interpret and prepare a variety of memorandums or reports.
• Establish and maintain effective working relationships with departmental clientele, representatives of outside

agencies and providers, other County employees and officials, and the general public.

WORK ENVIRONMENT AND PHYSICAL DEMANDS:

Physical requirements include the ability to lift/carry up to 35-40 pounds occasionally, visual acuity, speech and hearing,
hand and eye coordination and manual dexterity necessary to operate a computer and office equipment. Subject to
standing, sitting, walking, climbing, crawling, bending, stooping, crouching, kneeling, pushing, pulling, reaching, twisting,
balancing, repetitive motion, and squatting to perform the essential functions. Subject to exposure to variations in
extreme heat, cold, mechanical, fume/odor, and dust/mites.

rhs job description is intended to be generic in nature. It is not necessarily an exhaustive list of all duties
and responsibilities. The essential duties, functions and responsibilities and overtime eligibility may vary
based on the specific tasks assigned to the position.

Page 2of2

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Database Administrator I

JOB CODE: 26874 FLSA STATUS: Exempt
PAY GRADE: 26 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

JOB SUMMARY:

Manages and maintains production, development and test database systems. Responsible for standards and design of
physical data storage, maintenance, access and security administration. Performs backup and recovery of database
systems, configures database parameters and prototype designs against logical data models, defines data repository
requirements, data dictionaries and warehousing requirements. Optimizes database access and allocates database
resources for optimum configuration, performance and cost. Specializes in administration of moderately complex
database platforms, such as Microsoft Structured Query Language (SQL) server.

DISTINGUISHING CHARACTERISTICS:

This is the first in a series of two database-related job classifications within the Information Technology job family
Implements, manages and maintains production, development and test database systems. The Database Administrator
I classification specializes in administration of moderately complex database platforms. This classification may require a
flexible work schedule in order to meet the needs of the department.

DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES:

• Implements, manages and maintains production, development and test database systems.

• Completes database installation and configuration of database parameters.

• Provides system support for specified department applications and functions.

• Interfaces with software project team members to assist in all aspects of requirements and testing activities.

• Monitors database performance and takes corrective action to ensure efficient performance. Schedules and
performs database upgrades.

• Conducts back up and recovery, database consistency checking, and loading and unloading of data.

• Develops and maintains a comprehensive database software configuration database/library.

• Conducts software audits of database products for compliance with established standards, policies, configuration
guidelines and procedures.

• Provides ongoing trend analysis for determining current need and forecasting future resource requirements.
Produces periodic status and operational reports.

• Sets up privileges to databases and manages database elements.

• Develops policies and procedures designed to ensure the integrity of the database environment.

• Performs other job-related duties as assigned.

MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS:

Education and Experience:
Bachelor’s degree in Computer Science, Information Systems, Business Administration or a directly related field AND
three (3) years of relevant work experience;
OR,

Any combination of education and experience that has been achieved and is equivalent to the stated education and
experience and required knowledge, skills, and abilities sufficient to successfully perform the duties and responsibilities
of this job.

Licenses, Registrations, Certifications, or Special Requirements:
Valid Texas Driver’s License.

Preferred:
Microsoft Certified Database Administrator (MCDBA) Certification. 4

Pagelof2

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Database Administrator I

JOB CODE: 26874 FLSA STATUS: Exempt
PAY GRADE: 26 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS: (Cont.)

Knowledge, Skills, and Abilities:
Knowledge of:
• Database system management, maintenance and integration.
• Database design, analysis and normalization.
• Software engineering and the software development lifecycle.
• Policies, practices, procedures and terminology of assigned function.
• Federal, State, Local and County applicable laws, rules, regulations and guidelines.
• Information technology hardware, software and peripherals as related to assigned function.
• Computer equipment to include word processing, spreadsheets, databases and a variety of software packages.

Skill in:
• Managing moderately complex databases such as Microsoft Structured Query Language (SQL) server.
• Data analysis, database design, data dictionaries, and database normalization.
• Problem-solving and decision-making.
• Both verbal and written communication, including presentations and communicating technical issues in non

technical language.

Ability to:
• Work independently and efficiently and as part of a team.
• Manage time well, perform multiple tasks, and organize diverse activities.
• Translate policies and objectives into ideas and applications web-based information products.
• Research, compile, analyze, interpret and prepare a variety of memorandums or reports.
• Establish and maintain effective working relationships with departmental clientele, representatives of outside

agencies and providers, other County employees and officials, and the general public.

WORK ENVIRONMENT AND PHYSICAL DEMANDS:

Physical requirements include the ability to lift/carry up to 35-40 pounds occasionally, visual acuity, speech and hearing,
hand and eye coordination and manual dexterity necessary to operate a computer and office equipment. Subject to
standing, sitting, walking, climbing, crawling, bending, stooping, crouching, kneeling, pushing, pulling, reaching, twisting,
balancing, repetitive motion, and squatting to perform the essential functions. Subject to exposure to variations in
extreme heat, cold, mechanical, fume/odor, and dust/mites.

This job description is intended to be generic in nature. It is not necessarily an exhaustive list of all duties
and responsibilities. The essential duties, functions and responsibilities and overtime eligibility may vary
based on the specific tasks assigned to the position.

Page 2 of 2

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Application and Web Development Division Manager

JOB CODE: 30873 FLSA STATUS: Exempt
PAY GRADE: 30 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

JOB SUMMARY:

Oversees and directs activities related to management of the full software development life cycle of projects and web
design, development, and creation of web server architecture. Participates in long-range strategy planning and
manages policy development to address complex organizational issues related to development. Works collaboratively
with project management staff on requirements analysis, estimation, design and features. Serves as the primary point of
contact for development from inception to delivery. Defines the development infrastructure. Defines and directs a
methodology driven quality plan, monitors and controls the quality of the deliverable, and manages the project
completion process through customer acceptance.

DISTINGUISHING CHARACTERISTICS:

This is a job classification within the Information Technology job family. Directs and manages the full software
development life cycle of projects throughout the enterprise and web design, development, and creation of web server
architecture and related staff. Manages development, implementation, and maintenance of business applications
systems to meet user and organizational requirements in accordance with strategic and organizational goals. This
classification may require a flexible work schedule in order to meet the needs of the department.

DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES:

• Improves business processes and supports critical business strategies by directing the development,
implementation, and maintenance of business applications systems. Provides technical leadership and direction in
ensuring the successful integration of new methods and technologies with existing systems.

• Oversees and directs the development, release and maintenance of web (Internet, Intranet and Extranet) services,
including web design, development, and creation of web server architecture.

• Provides leadership, management and coordination in planning, organizing, implementing and evaluating operations
in accordance with Federal, State, and Local laws, policies, procedures, guidelines and enterprise goals and
objectives.

• Provides management and direction for the application and web development teams including setting priorities,
coordinating, and reporting of team activities.

• Oversees staff, including hiring, training, performance evaluation, disciplinary actions and dismissals, and directs
activities to be consistent with goals and objectives. Seeks and creates opportunities for improved performance,
learning and development of staff and identifies and addresses problems or conflicts.

• Works collaboratively with project management staff on requirements analysis, estimation, design and features.
Assists top management in developing strategic plans to accomplish goals and objectives and improve
effectiveness and efficiency of services.

• Develops, maintains and communicates application support strategy, service agreements and project plans.

• Builds and maintains relationships with elected and appointed officials as well as senior management in user
departments in order to identify and prioritize opportunities for utilizing technology to achieve enterprise goals.

• Develops and establishes application support standards, processes and procedures.

• Plans and budgets for area of responsibility, based on short-term and long-term needs. Monitors budget
expenditures to ensure consistent with department goals and objectives and within available funds.

• Performs other job-related duties as assigned.

MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS:

Education and Experience:
Bachelor’s degree in Computer Science, Information Systems, Business Administration or a directly related field AND
ten (10) years of relevant work experience, including both five (5) years of increasingly responsible supervisory or
management experience and five (5) years managing projects;

Pagelof3 137

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Application and Web Development Division Manager

JOB CODE: 30873 FLSA STATUS: Exempt
PAY GRADE: 30 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS: (Cont.)

Education and Experience: (Cont.)

OR,

Any combination of education and experience that has been achieved and is equivalent to the stated education and
experience and required knowledge, skills, and abilities sufficient to successfully perform the duties and responsibilities
of this job.

Licenses, Registrations, Certifications, or Special Requirements:
Valid Texas Driver’s License.

Preferred:
Master’s degree in Computer Science, Information Systems, Business Administration or a directly related field.

Knowledge, Skills, and Abilities:
Knowledge of:
• Management and supervisory principles, practices and techniques.
• Policies, practices, procedures and terminology of assigned function.
• Federal, State, Local and County applicable laws, rules, regulations and guidelines.
• Information technology hardware, software and peripherals as related to assigned function.
• Software engineering principles and the software development life cycle.
• Project management methodologies.
• Internet and lntranet security considerations.
• Budget preparation and office management.
• Computer equipment to include word processing, spreadsheets, databases and a variety of software packages.

Skill in:
• Directing and managing staff, allocating resources and evaluating programs.
• Leadership, collaboration and negotiation techniques, including contracts, agreements and proposals.
• Managing user expectations and satisfaction.
• Developing and evaluating Requests for Proposals (RFPs).
• Strategic planning, development, monitoring and evaluation.
• Developing and monitoring programs and related budgets.
• Problem-solving and decision-making.
• Both verbal and written communication, including presentations and communicating technical issues in non

technical language.

Ability to:
• Direct, motivate, train, develop and evaluate staff.
• Work independently and efficiently and as part of a team.
• Manage time well, perform multiple tasks and organize diverse activities.
• Translate policies and objectives into ideas and applications web-based information products.
• Research, compile, analyze, interpret and prepare a variety of memorandums or reports.
• Establish and maintain effective working relationships with departmental clientele, representatives of outside

agencies and providers, other County employees and officials, and the general public.

Page 2 of 3

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Application and Web Development Division Manager

JOB CODE: 30873 FLSA STATUS: Exempt
PAY GRADE: 30 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

WORK ENVIRONMENT AND PHYSICAL DEMANDS:

Physical requirements include the ability to lift/carry up to 35-40 pounds occasionally, visual acuity, speech and hearing,
hand and eye coordination and manual dexterity necessary to operate a computer and office equipment. Subject to
standing, sitting, walking, climbing, crawling, bending, stooping, crouching, kneeling, pushing, pulling, reaching, twisting,
balancing, repetitive motion, and squatting to perform the essential functions. Subject to exposure to variations in
extreme heat, cold, mechanical, fume/odor, and dust/mites.

This job description is intended to be generic in nature. It is not necessarily an exhaustive list of all duties
and responsibilities. The essential duties, functions and responsibilities and overtime eligibility may vary
based on the specific tasks assigned to the position.

Page3of3

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Application Development Manager

JOB CODE: 30872 FLSA STATUS: Exempt
PAY GRADE: 30 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

JOB SUMMARY:

Manages a team of developers participating in the planning and architecting of applications. Ensures assigned projects
remain on schedule and adhere to established software development life cycle practices. Meets regularly with
stakeholders to define priorities for the development team. Builds and maintains relationships with key vendors and
supports the software and infrastructure needs of the development group. Implements and manages the methodology
driven quality plan, monitors and controls the quality of the deliverable, and manages the project completion process
through customer acceptance. Works closely with other groups to coordinate plans and activities including coordination
to facilitate specific development projects that involve various platforms and the coordination of software upgrades.

DISTINGUISHING CHARACTERISTICS:

This is a job classification within the Information Technology job family. Manages the work of technical staff engaged in
activities related to the full software development life cycle of projects. Functions as technical expert and manager,
providing tactical direction, contributing to strategic planning for applications software, supervising staff and coordinating
closely with higher level management to meet user and organizational requirements in accordance with strategic and
organizational goals. This classification may require a flexible work schedule in order to meet the needs of the
department.

DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES:

• Oversees the development, deployment and maintenance of custom applications. Ensures applications are
consistent with, and in agreement with other enterprise applications and systems.

• Manages software development life cycle to facilitate on-time, high quality releases in accordance with user and
organizational objectives.

• Provides supervisory leadership in planning, organizing, implementing and evaluating web services in accordance
with Federal, State, and local laws, policies, procedures, guidelines and enterprise goals and objectives.

• Manages staff, including performing or collaborating with higher management in the hiring, training, performance
evaluation, disciplinary actions and dismissal of staff. Seeks and creates opportunities for improved performance,
learning and development of staff and identifies and addresses problems or conflicts.

• Develops standards for application development projects, including initiation, design, development and support.

• Serves as technical expert for difficult and complex software applications problems.

• Researches and maintains knowledge in emerging technologies, applicable to the organization environment.

• Assists senior management in developing strategic plans to accomplish goals and objectives and improve
effectiveness and efficiency of services.

• Plans and provides budget request information as part of the annual budget process. Assists in monitoring budget
expenditures to ensure consistent with department goals and objectives and within available funds.

• Performs other job-related duties as assigned.

MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS:

Education and Experience:
Bachelor’s degree in Computer Science, Information Systems, Business Administration or a directly related field AND
eight (8) years of relevant work experience, including five (5) years of management, supervisory or team lead
experience;
OR,
Any combination of education and experience that has been achieved and is equivalent to the stated education and
experience and required knowledge, skills, and abilities sufficient to successfully perform the duties and responsibilities
of this job.

Page 1 of 2

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Application Development Manager

JOB CODE: 30872 FLSA STATUS: Exempt
PAY GRADE: 30 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS: (Cont.)

Licenses, Registrations, Certifications, or Special Requirements:
Valid Texas Driver’s License.

Knowledge, Skills, and Abilities:
Knowledge of:
• Management and supervisory principles, practices and techniques.
• Policies, practices, procedures and terminology of assigned function.
• Federal, State, Local and County applicable laws, rules, regulations and guidelines.
• Information technology hardware, software and peripherals as related to assigned function.
• Software engineering principles and the software development life cycle.
• Modern enterprise architecture design, development, and deployment.
• Programming and development standards, procedures and architectures.
• State-of-the-art programming languages and object-oriented approaches to designing, coding, testing and

debugging programs.
• Systems design, development and source control.
• Quality assurance, performance monitoring, and integration methodologies.
• Budgetary theory and practices.
• Computer equipment to include word processing, spreadsheets, databases and a variety of software packages.

Skill in:
• Managing staff, allocating resources and evaluating programs.
• Leadership, collaboration and negotiation techniques, including contracts, agreements and proposals.
• Developing and monitoring programs and related budgets.
• Managing user expectations and satisfaction.
• Developing and evaluating Requests for Proposals (RFP5).
• Managing uS and other Microsoft server technologies.
• Problem-solving and decision-making.
• Strategic planning, development, monitoring and evaluation.
• Both verbal and written communication, including presentations and communicating technical issues in non

technical language.

Ability to:
• Manage, motivate, train, develop and evaluate staff.
• Work independently and efficiently and as part of a team.
• Manage time well, perform multiple tasks and organize diverse activities.
• Translate policies and objectives into ideas and applications web-based information products.
• Research, compile, analyze, interpret and prepare a variety of memorandums or reports.
• Establish and maintain effective working relationships with departmental clientele, representatives of outside

agencies and providers, other County employees and officials, and the public.

WORK ENVIRONMENT AND PHYSICAL DEMANDS:

Physical requirements include the ability to lift/carry up to 35-40 pounds occasionally; visual acuity, speech and hearing,
hand and eye coordination and manual dexterity necessary to operate a computer and office equipment. Subject to
standing, sitting, walking, climbing, crawling, bending, stooping, crouching, kneeling, pushing, pulling, reaching, twisting,
balancing, repetitive motion, squatting to perform the essential functions. Subject to exposure to variations in extreme
heat, cold, mechanical, fume/odor, and dust/mites.

This job description is intended to be generic in nature. It is not necessarily an exhaustive list of all duties
and responsibilities. The essential duties, functions and responsibilities and overtime eligibility may vary
based on the specific tasks assigned to the position.

Page 2 of 2

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Application Architect II

JOB CODE: 29871 FLSA STATUS: Exempt
PAY GRADE: 29 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

JOB SUMMARY:

Provides design recommendations based on long-term Information Technology (IT) organization strategy. Develops
enterprise level application and custom integration solutions, including major enhancements and interfaces, functions
and features. Uses a variety of platforms and utilities in order to deliver systems applications to department users.
Serves as functional and technical expert regarding the integration of applications across the enterprise. Determines
specifications, plans, designs and develops the most complex and critical software solutions, utilizing the appropriate,
established software engineering processes. Assists with the most difficult and complex application support problems
that cannot be resolved by junior team members. Develops programming and development standards and procedures
as well as programming architectures for code reuse.

DISTINGUISHING CHARACTERISTICS:

This is the second in a series of two application-related job classifications within the Information Technology job family.
Serves as an enterprise wide technical expert as well as a functional expert and team lead to Application Development
Analyst and Application Architect I positions. The Application Architect reports to the Application Development Manager.
The Application Architect serves as the application development project lead for related projects and efforts. This
classification may require a flexible work schedule in order to meet the needs of the department.

DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES:

• Develops programming and development standards and procedures.

• Works with users and other technical staff to analyze user needs and provide strategic design solutions.
Determines specifications, plans, designs and develops highly complex and critical software solutions.

• Develops enterprise level application and custom integration solutions. Develops enhancements to and interfaces
with existing software.

• Serves as a technical expert and provides enterprise-wide perspective and input into Information Technology (IT)
decisions.

• Researches and maintains knowledge in emerging technologies, applicable to the organization environment. Makes
recommendations to senior IT management for technological upgrades and efficiencies.

• Assists with difficult and complex application support problems, unresolved by junior team members.

• Performs other job-related duties as assigned.

MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS:

Education and Experience:
Bachelor’s degree in Computer Science, Information Systems or a directly related field AND eight (8) years of relevant
work experience, including two (2) years of team lead, supervisory or management experience;

OR,

Any combination of education and experience that has been achieved and is equivalent to the stated education and
experience and required knowledge, skills, and abilities sufficient to successfully perform the duties and responsibilities
of this job.

Licenses, Registrations, Certifications, or Special Requirements:
Valid Texas Driver’s License.

Knowledcie, Skills, and Abilities:
Knowledge of:
• Policies, practices, procedures and terminology of assigned function.
• Federal, State, Local and County applicable laws, rules, regulations and guidelines.
• Information technology hardware, software and peripherals as related to assigned function.

Pagelof2

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Application Architect II

JOB CODE: 29871 FLSA STATUS: Exempt
PAY GRADE: 29 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS: (Cant.)

Knowledge of: (Cont.)
• Programming and development standards, procedures and architectures.
• State-of-the-art programming languages and object-oriented approaches to designing, coding, testing and

debugging programs.
• Systems design, development and source control.
• Quality assurance, performance monitoring, and integration methodologies.
• Computer equipment to include word processing, spreadsheets, databases and a variety of software packages.

Skill in:
• Leadership, collaboration and negotiation techniques.
• Problem-solving and decision-making.
• Translating highly complex concepts for peers and customers.
• Both verbal and written communication, including presentations and communicating technical issues in non

technical language.

Ability to:
• Design, debug and maintain complex code, modules or applications.
• Work independently and efficiently and as part of a team.
• Manage time well, perform multiple tasks and organize diverse activities.
• Translate policies and objectives into ideas and applications web-based information products.
• Research, compile, analyze, interpret and prepare a variety of memorandums or reports.
• Establish and maintain effective working relationships with departmental clientele, representatives of outside

agencies and providers, other County employees and officials, and the general public.

WORK ENVIRONMENT AND PHYSICAL. DEMANDS:

Physical requirements include the ability to lift/carry up to 35-40 pounds occasionally, visual acuity, speech and hearing,
hand and eye coordination and manual dexterity necessary to operate a computer and office equipment. Subject to
standing, sitting, walking, climbing, crawling, bending, stooping, crouching, kneeling, pushing, pulling, reaching, twisting,
balancing, repetitive motion, and squatting to perform the essential functions. Subject to exposure to variations in
extreme heat, cold, mechanical, fume/odor, and dust/mites.

This job description is intended to be generic in nature. It is not necessarily an exhaustive list of all duties
and responsibilities. The essential duties, functions and responsibilities and overtime eligibility may vary
based on the specific tasks assigned to the position.

Page 2 of 2 ‘193

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Application Architect I

JOB CODE: 28870 FLSA STATUS: Exempt
PAY GRADE: 28 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

JOB SUMMARY:

Provides design recommendations based on long-term Information Technology (IT) organization strategy. Develops
enterprise level application and custom integration solutions, including major enhancements and interfaces, functions
and features. Uses a variety of platforms and utilities in order to deliver systems applications to department users.
Serves as functional and technical expert regarding the integration of applications across the enterprise. Determines
specifications, plans, designs and develops highly complex and critical software solutions, utilizing the appropriate,
established software engineering processes. Assists with difficult and highly complex application support problems.
Develops programming and development standards and procedures as well as programming architectures for code
reuse.

DISTINGUISHING CHARACTERISTICS:

This is the first in a series of two application-related job classifications within the Information Technology job family.
Serves as an enterprise wide technical expert as well as a functional expert and team lead to Application Development
Analyst positions. The Application Architect reports to the Application Development Manager. The Application Architect
may serve as the application development project lead for related projects and efforts. This classification may require a
flexible work schedule in order to meet the needs of the department.

DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES:

• Develops programming and development standards and procedures.

• Works with users and other technical staff to analyze user needs and provide strategic design solutions. Determines
specifications, plans, designs and develops highly complex and critical software solutions.

• Develops enterprise level application and custom integration solutions. Develops enhancements to and interfaces
with existing software.

• Serves as a technical expert and provides enterprise-wide perspective and input into Information Technology (IT)
decisions.

• Researches and maintains knowledge in emerging technologies, applicable to the organization environment. Makes
recommendations to senior IT management for technological upgrades and efficiencies.

• Assists with difficult and complex application support problems, unresolved by junior team members.

• Performs other job-related duties as assigned.

MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS:

Education and Experience:
Bachelor’s degree in Computer Science, Information Systems or a directly related field AND seven (7) years of relevant
work experience, including one (1) year of team lead, supervisory or management experience;

OR,

Any combination of education and experience that has been achieved and is equivalent to the stated education and
experience and required knowledge, skills, and abilities sufficient to successfully perform the duties and responsibilities
of this job.

Licenses, Registrations, Certifications, or Special Requirements:
Valid Texas Driver’s License.

Knowledge, Skills, and Abilities:
Knowledge of:
• Policies, practices, procedures and terminology of assigned function.
• Federal, State, Local and County applicable laws, rules, regulations and guidelines.
• Information technology hardware, software and peripherals as related to assigned function.
• Programming and development standards, procedures and architectures.

Page 1 of 2

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Application Architect I

JOB CODE: 28870 FLSA STATUS: Exempt
PAY GRADE: 28 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS: (Cont.)

Knowledge of: (Cont.)
• State-of-the-art programming languages and object-oriented approaches to designing, coding, testing and

debugging programs.
• Systems design, development and source control.
• Quality assurance, performance monitoring, and integration methodologies.
• Computer equipment to include word processing, spreadsheets, databases and a variety of software packages.

Skill in:
• Problem-solving and decision-making.
• Translating highly complex concepts for peers and customers.
• Both verbal and written communication, including presentations and communicating technical issues in non

technical language.

Ability to:
• Design, debug and maintain complex code, modules or applications.
• Work independently and efficiently and as part of a team.
• Manage time well, perform multiple tasks and organize diverse activities.
• Translate policies and objectives into ideas and applications web-based information products.
• Research, compile, analyze, interpret and prepare a variety of memorandums or reports.
• Establish and maintain effective working relationships with departmental clientele, representatives of outside

agencies and providers, other County employees and officials, and the general public.

WORK ENVIRONMENT AND PHYSICAL DEMANDS:

Physical requirements include the ability to lift/carry up to 35-40 pounds occasionally, visual acuity, speech and hearing,
hand and eye coordination and manual dexterity necessary to operate a computer and office equipment. Subject to
standing, sitting, walking, climbing, crawling, bending, stooping, crouching, kneeling, pushing, pulling, reaching, twisting,
balancing, repetitive motion, and squatting to perform the essential functions. Subject to exposure to variations in
extreme heat, cold, mechanical, fume/odor, and dust/mites.

This job description is intended to be generic in nature. It is not necessarily an exhaustive list of all duties
and responsibilities. The essential duties, functions and responsibilities and overtime eligibility may vary
based on the specific tasks assigned to the position.

Page2of2
7715

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Application Development Analyst III

JOB CODE: 27869 FLSA STATUS: Exempt
PAY GRADE: 27 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

JOB SUMMARY:

Designs, codes, tests, implements and supports complex internally developed application software. Works with
customers and senior team members to gather and document organizational requirements. Makes recommendations
towards the development of new code or reuse of existing code or modules. Participates in component and data
architecture design, performance monitoring, and product evaluation.

DISTINGUISHING CHARACTERISTICS:

This is the third in a series of three application-related job classifications within the Information Technology job family.
The Application Development Analyst reports to the Application Development Manager with general direction from an
Application Architect. This classification may require a flexible work schedule in order to meet the needs of the
department.

DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES:

• Designs, codes, tests, implements and maintains complex internally developed applications.

• Conducts application coding, testing and implementation for complex applications.

• Works with customers and senior team members in the collection and documentation of requirements.

• Makes recommendations on whether to develop new code, reuse existing code, or purchase new software
packages.

• Conducts application code review.

• Collects and reviews performance monitoring information.

• Conducts product evaluation.

• Performs other job-related duties as assigned.

MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS:

Education and Experience:
Bachelor’s degree in Computer Science, Information Systems, Business Administration or a directly related field AND
five (5) years of relevant work experience;

OR,

Any combination of education and experience that has been achieved and is equivalent to the stated education and
experience and required knowledge, skills, and abilities sufficient to successfully perform the duties and responsibilities
of this job.

Licenses, Registrations, Certifications, or Special Requirements:
Valid Texas Driver’s License.

Knowledge, Skills, and Abilities:
Knowledge of:
• Policies, practices, procedures and terminology of assigned function.
• Federal, State, Local and County applicable laws, rules, regulations and guidelines.
• Information technology hardware, software and peripherals as related to assigned function.
• Software engineering and the software development lifecycle.
• Systems design, development and source control.
• Quality assurance, performance monitoring, and integration methodologies.
• Computer equipment to include word processing, spreadsheets, databases and a variety of software packages.

Pagelof2 TV’

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Application Development Analyst Ill

JOB CODE: 27869 FLSA STATUS: Exempt
PAY GRADE: 27 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS: (Cont.)

Skill in:
• Understanding technical problems and developing software solutions to meet business needs.
• Problem-solving and decision-making.
• Training users on computer applications.
• Both verbal and written communication, including presentations and communicating technical issues in non

technical language.

Ability to:
• Design and maintain complex code, modules or applications.
• Work independently and efficiently and as part of a team.
• Manage time well, perform multiple tasks and organize diverse activities.
• Translate policies and objectives into ideas and applications web-based information products.
• Research, compile, analyze, interpret and prepare a variety of memorandums or reports.
• Establish and maintain effective working relationships with departmental clientele, representatives of outside

agencies and providers, other County employees and officials, and the general public.

WORK ENVIRONMENT AND PHYSICAL DEMANDS:

Physical requirements include the ability to lift/carry up to 35-40 pounds occasionally, visual acuity, speech and hearing,
hand and eye coordination and manual dexterity necessary to operate a computer and office equipment. Subject to
standing, sitting, walking, climbing, crawling, bending, stooping, crouching, kneeling, pushing, pulling, reaching, twisting,
balancing, repetitive motion, and squatting to perform the essential functions. Subject to exposure to variations in
extreme heat, cold, mechanical, fume/odor, and dust/mites.

This job description is intended to be generic in nature. It is not necessarily an exhaustive list of all duties
and responsibilities. The essential duties, functions and responsibilities and overtime eligibility may vary
based on the specific tasks assigned to the position.

Page2of2

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Application Development Analyst II

JOB CODE: 25868 FLSA STATUS: Exempt
PAY GRADE: 25 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

JOB SUMMARY:

Designs, codes, tests, implements and supports moderately complex internally developed application software. Works
with customers and senior team members to gather and document organizational requirements. Makes
recommendations towards the development of new code or reuse of existing code or modules. Participates in
component and data architecture design, performance monitoring, and product evaluation.

DISTINGUISHING CHARACTERISTICS:

This is the second in a series of three application-related job classifications within the Information Technology job family.
The Application Development Analyst reports to the Application Development Manager with general supervision from an
Application Architect. This classification may require a flexible work schedule in order to meet the needs of the
department.

DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES:

• Designs, codes, tests, implements and maintains moderately complex internally developed software applications to
meet user needs. Works with clients and participates in the collection and analysis of organizational requirements.

• Conducts application coding, testing and implementation for moderately complex applications. May work on entire
phase of a major project or a moderately complex portion of the project.

• Works with customers and senior team members in the collection, documentation and validation of requirements.
Identifies potential problem areas and recommends possible solutions to problems.

• Makes recommendations on whether to develop new code, reuse existing code, or purchase new software
packages.

• Participates in application code review.

• Maintains application software and collects and reviews performance monitoring information.

• Conducts product evaluation. Reviews product specifications and assists in determining product enhancements and
modifications required.

• Provides moderately complex end user training on application software. Develops user manuals.

• Assists in resolving customer complaints with software and responds to suggestions for improvements. Works with
other technical staff to understand problems with software and resolve them.

• Performs other job-related duties as assigned.

MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS:

Education and Experience:
Bachelor’s degree in Computer Science, Information Systems, Business Administration or a directly related field AND
three (3) years of relevant work experience;

OR,

Any combination of education and experience that has been achieved and is equivalent to the stated education and
experience and required knowledge, skills, and abilities sufficient to successfully perform the duties and responsibilities
of this job.

Licenses, Registrations, Certifications, or Special Requirements:
Valid Texas Driver’s License.

Page 1 of 2 7V

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Application Development Analyst II

JOB CODE: 25868 FLSA STATUS: Exempt
PAY GRADE: 25 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS: (Cont.)

Knowledcie, Skills, and Abilities:
Knowledge of:
• Policies, practices, procedures and terminology of assigned function.
• Federal, State, Local and County applicable laws, rules, regulations and guidelines.
• Information technology hardware, software and peripherals as related to assigned function.
• Software engineering and the software development lifecycle.
• Systems design, development and source control.
• Quality assurance, performance monitoring, and integration methodologies.
• Computer equipment to include word processing, spreadsheets, databases and a variety of software packages.

Skill in:
• Understanding technical problems and developing software solutions to meet business needs.
• Problem-solving and decision-making.
• Training users on computer applications.
• Both verbal and written communication, including presentations and communicating technical issues in non

technical language.

Ability to:
• Design and maintain moderately complex code, modules or applications.
• Work independently and efficiently and as part of a team.
• Manage time well, perform multiple tasks and organize diverse activities.
• Translate policies and objectives into ideas and applications web-based information products.
• Research, compile, analyze, interpret and prepare a variety of memorandums or reports.
• Establish and maintain effective working relationships with departmental clientele, representatives of outside

agencies and providers, other County employees and officials, and the general public.

WORK ENVIRONMENT AND PHYSICAL DEMANDS:

Physical requirements include the ability to lift/carry up to 35-40 pounds occasionally, visual acuity, speech and hearing,
hand and eye coordination and manual dexterity necessary to operate a computer and office equipment. Subject to
standing, sitting, walking, climbing, crawling, bending, stooping, crouching, kneeling, pushing, pulling, reaching, twisting,
balancing, repetitive motion, and squatting to perform the essential functions. Subject to exposure to variations in
extreme heat, cold, mechanical, fume/odor, and dust/mites.

This job description is intended to be generic in nature. It is not necessarily an exhaustive list of all duties
and responsibilities. The essential duties, functions and responsibilities and overtime eligibility may vary
based on the specific tasks assigned to the position.

Page 2 of 2

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Application Development Analyst I

JOB CODE: 23867 FLSA STATUS: Exempt
PAY GRADE: 23 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

JOB SUMMARY:

Assists in the designing, coding, testing, implementing and support of internally developed application software. Assists
customers and senior team members in gathering and documenting organizational requirements. Makes
recommendations towards the development of new code or reuse of existing code or modules. May participate or assist
with component and data architecture design, performance monitoring, and product evaluation.

DISTINGUISHING CHARACTERISTICS:

This is the first in a series of three application-related job classifications within the Information Technology job family.
The Application Development Analyst reports to the Application Development Manager with moderate supervision from
an Application Architect. This classification may require a flexible work schedule in order to meet the needs of the
department.

DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES:

• Assists with application design. Works with clients and participates in the collection and analysis of organizational
requirements. Designs software applications to meet user needs.

• Assists with application coding, testing and implementation. May work on entire phase of a major project or smaller,
less complex portion of the project.

• Assists in the documentation of requirements. Identifies potential problem areas and recommends possible
solutions to problems.

• Makes recommendations on whether to develop new code, reuse existing code, or purchase new software
packages.

• Assists with, and may participate in, application code review.

• Maintains application software and assists with performance monitoring.

• Assists with product evaluation. Reviews product specifications and assists in determining product enhancements
and modifications required.

• Provides routine end user training on application software. Assists in development of user manuals.

• Assists in resolving customer complaints with software and responds to suggestions for improvements. Works with
other technical staff to understand problems with software and resolve them.

• Performs other job-related duties as assigned.

MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS:

Education and Experience:
Bachelor’s degree in Computer Science, Information Systems, Business Administration or a directly related field AND
one (1) year of relevant work experience;

OR,

Any combination of education and experience that has been achieved and is equivalent to the stated education and
experience and required knowledge, skills, and abilities sufficient to successfully perform the duties and responsibilities
of this job.

Licenses, Registrations, Certifications, or Special Requirements:
Valid Texas Driver’s License.

Page 1 of 2

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Application Development Analyst I

JOB CODE: 23867 FLSA STATUS: Exempt
PAY GRADE: 23 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS: (Cont.)

Knowledge, Skills, and Abilities:
Knowledge of:
• Policies, practices, procedures and terminology of assigned function.
• Federal, State, Local and County applicable laws, rules, regulations and guidelines.
• Information technology hardware, software and peripherals as related to assigned function.
• Software engineering and the software development lifecycle.
• Systems design, development and source control.
• Quality assurance, performance monitoring, and integration methodologies.
• Computer equipment to include word processing, spreadsheets, databases and a variety of software packages.

Skill in:
• Understanding technical problems and developing software solutions to meet business needs.
• Problem-solving and decision-making.
• Training users on computer applications.
• Both verbal and written communication, including presentations and communicating technical issues in non

technical language.

Ability to:
• Design and maintain simple code, modules or applications.
• Work independently and efficiently and as part of a team.
• Manage time well, perform multiple tasks and organize diverse activities.
• Translate policies and objectives into ideas and applications web-based information products.
• Research, compile, analyze, interpret and prepare a variety of memorandums or reports.
• Establish and maintain effective working relationships with departmental clientele, representatives of outside

agencies and providers, other County employees and officials, and the general public.

WORK ENVIRONMENT AND PHYSICAL DEMANDS:

Physical requirements include the ability to lift/carry up to 35-40 pounds occasionally, visual acuity, speech and hearing,
hand and eye coordination and manual dexterity necessary to operate a computer and office equipment. Subject to
standing, sitting, walking, climbing, crawling, bending, stooping, crouching, kneeling, pushing, pulling, reaching, twisting,
balancing, repetitive motion, and squatting to perform the essential functions. Subject to exposure to variations in
extreme heat, cold, mechanical, fume/odor, and dust/mites.

This job description is intended to be generic in nature. It is not necessarily an exhaustive list of all duties
and responsibilities. The essential duties, functions and responsibilities and overtime eligibility may vary
based on the specific tasks assigned to the position.

Page2of2 TS/

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Web Services Manager

JOB CODE: 30866 FLSA STATUS: Exempt
PAY GRADE: 30 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

JOB SUMMARY:

Oversees development, release and maintenance of Internet, Intranet and Extranet services supporting a wide range of
content. Works with key stakeholders and other technical staff to prioritize projects and maximize the effectiveness of
Internet technologies in supporting the organization strategy, improving communications and enabling greater access to
information. Oversees and ensures the coordination of all web development activities, ensuring integration with other
technologies utilized in the enterprise as well as consistency across applications. Develops standards for web project
initiation, design, development and support.

DISTINGUISHING CHARACTERISTICS:

This is a job classification within the Information Technology job family. Manages the work of technical staff engaged in
activities related to web design, development, and creation of web server architecture. Functions as technical expert
and manager, providing tactical direction, contributing to strategic planning for web services, supervising staff and
coordinating closely with higher level management to meet user and organizational requirements in accordance with
strategic and organizational goals. This classification may require a flexible work schedule in order to meet the needs of
the department.

DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES:

• Manages the development, release and maintenance of web (Internet, Intranet and Extranet) services.

• Works with key stakeholders to identify and prioritize projects. Oversees the gathering of business requirements
and the analysis and translation of business requirements into web architecture in order to meet user and
organizational objectives.

• Provides supervisory leadership in planning, organizing, implementing and evaluating web services in accordance
with Federal, State, and Local laws, policies, procedures, guidelines and enterprise goals and objectives.

• Manages staff, including performing or collaborating with higher management in the hiring, training, performance
evaluation, disciplinary actions and dismissal of staff. Seeks and creates opportunities for improved performance,
learning and development of staff and identifies and addresses problems or conflicts.

• Oversees and ensures the coordination of all web development activities. Manages projects and services to ensure
delivery on time and in accordance with user objectives.

• Develops standards for web projects, including initiation, design, development and support.

• Serves as technical expert for difficult and complex application support problems.

• Assists senior management in developing strategic plans to accomplish goals and objectives and improve
effectiveness and efficiency of services.

• Researches and maintains knowledge in emerging technologies, applicable to the organization environment.

• Plans and provides budget request information as part of the annual budget process. Assists in monitoring budget
expenditures to ensure consistent with department goals and objectives and within available funds.

• Performs other job-related duties as assigned.

MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS:

Education and Experience:
Bachelor’s degree in Computer Science, Information Systems, Business Administration or a directly related field AND
ten (10) years of relevant work experience, including five (5) years of team lead, supervisory or management
experience;

OR,

Any combination of education and experience that has been achieved and is equivalent to the stated education and
experience and required knowledge, skills, and abilities sufficient to successfully perform the duties and responsibilities
of this job.

/75.)Page 1 of 2

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Web Services Manager

JOB CODE: 30866 FLSA STATUS: Exempt
PAY GRADE: 30 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS: (Cont.)

Licenses, Registrations, Certifications, or Special Requirements:
Valid Texas Driver’s License.

Preferred:
Microsoft Internet Specialist Certification.

Knowledge, Skills, and Abilities:
Knowledge of:
• Management and supervisory principles, practices and techniques.
• Policies, practices, procedures and terminology of assigned function.
• Federal, State, Local and County applicable laws, rules, regulations and guidelines.
• Information technology hardware, software and peripherals as related to assigned function.
• Web services architecture, operating systems, applications and hardware.
• HyperText Markup Language (HTML), style sheets, Common Gateway Interface (CGI), user interface design,

applets, source control, database structures, graphic layout, scripting languages, and web publishing procedures.
• Internet and Intranet security considerations.
• Budget preparation and office management.
• Computer equipment to include word processing, spreadsheets, databases and a variety of software packages.

Skill in:
• Managing staff, allocating resources and evaluating programs.
• Leadership, collaboration and negotiation techniques, including contracts, agreements and proposals.
• Developing and monitoring programs and related budgets.
• Managing user expectations and satisfaction.
• Developing and evaluating Requests for Proposals (RFP5).
• Problem-solving and decision-making.
• Strategic planning, development, monitoring and evaluation.
• Designing, implementing and maintaining web server architecture.
• Both verbal and written communication, including presentations and communicating technical issues in non

technical language.

Ability to:
• Manage, motivate, train, develop and evaluate staff.
• Work independently and efficiently and as part of a team.
• Create and maintain the content of complex web sites and pages, suited for Internet and Intranet purposes.
• Manage time well, perform multiple tasks and organize diverse activities.
• Translate policies and objectives into ideas and applications web-based information products.
• Research, compile, analyze, interpret and prepare a variety of memorandums or reports.
• Establish and maintain effective working relationships with departmental clientele, representatives of outside

agencies and providers, other County employees and officials, and the general public.

WORK ENVIRONMENT AND PHYSICAL DEMANDS:

Physical requirements include the ability to lift/carry up to 35-40 pounds occasionally, visual acuity, speech and hearing,
hand and eye coordination and manual dexterity necessary to operate a computer and office equipment. Subject to
standing, sitting, walking, climbing, crawling, bending, stooping, crouching, kneeling, pushing, pulling, reaching, twisting,
balancing, repetitive motion, and squatting to perform the essential functions. Subject to exposure to variations in
extreme heat, cold, mechanical, fume/odor, and dust/mites.

This job description is intended to be generic in nature. It is not necessarily an exhaustive list of all duties
and responsibilities. The essential duties, functions and responsibilities and overtime eligibility may vary
based on the specific tasks assigned to the position.

Page 2 of 2 ‘753

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Web Architect II

JOB CODE: 29865 FLSA STATUS: Exempt
PAY GRADE: 29 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

JOB SUMMARY:

Designs and implements the overall web server architecture, as it relates to Intranet, Internet or Extranet usage.
Analyzes and translates requirements and plans into the appropriate Internetllntranet architecture in order to meet
organizational objectives. As a technical expert in the web services area, provides input into the most highly complex
and significant decisions. Works independently as well as with intradepartmental and external (stakeholder
departments) project team members.

DISTINGUISHING CHARACTERISTICS:

This is the second in a series of two web-related job classifications within the Information Technology job family. Serves
as a functional expert and team lead to Webmaster positions. The Web Architect designs and implements the overall
web server architecture and may serve as the web services project lead for related projects and efforts. This
classification may require a flexible work schedule in order to meet the needs of the department.

DISTINGUISHING CHARACTERISTICS:

• Oversees the gathering of business requirements. Analyzes and translates business requirements into web
architecture in order to meet user and organizational objectives.

• Researches and maintains knowledge in emerging technologies, applicable to the organization environment. Makes
recommendations regarding implementation of such technology.

• Assists with difficult and complex application support problems, unresolved by junior team members.

• Designs and develops a web server architecture that promotes enterprise access to published web content, services
and applications.

• Performs other job-related duties as assigned.

MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS:

Education and Experience:
Bachelor’s degree in Computer Science, Information Systems, Business Administration or a directly related field AND
nine (9) years of relevant work experience, including two (2) years of team lead, supervisory or management,
experience;

OR,

Any combination of education and experience that has been achieved and is equivalent to the stated education and
experience and required knowledge, skills, and abilities sufficient to successfully perform the duties and responsibilities
of this job.

Licenses, Registrations, Certifications, or Special Requirements:
Valid Texas Driver’s License.

Preferred:
Microsoft Internet Specialist Certification.

Knowledge, Skills, and Abilities:
Knowledge of:
• Policies, practices, procedures and terminology of assigned function.
• Federal, State, Local and County applicable laws, rules, regulations and guidelines.
• Information technology hardware, software and peripherals as related to assigned function.
• Web services architecture, operating systems, applications and hardware.
• HyperText Markup Language (HTML), style sheets, Common Gateway Interface (Ccl), user interface design,

applets, source control, database structures, graphic layout, scripting languages, and web publishing procedures.
• Internet and Intranet security considerations.

Page 1 of 2

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Web Architect II

JOB CODE: 29865 FLSA STATUS: Exempt
PAY GRADE: 29 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS: (Cont.)

Knowledge of: (Cont.)
• Modern office practices, procedures and methods.
• Quality assurance, performance monitoring, and integration methodologies.
• Computer equipment to include word processing, spreadsheets, databases and a variety of software packages.
• Business English, letter writing, grammar and punctuation, and report preparation.

Skill in:
• Problem-solving and decision-making.
• Designing, implementing and maintaining web server architecture.
• Both verbal and written communication, including presentations and communicating technical issues in non

technical language.

Ability to:
• Create and maintain the content of complex web sites and pages, suited for Internet and Intranet purposes.
• Work independently and efficiently and as part of a team.
• Manage time well, perform multiple tasks and organize diverse activities.
• Translate policies and objectives into ideas and applications web-based information products.
• Research, compile, analyze, interpret and prepare a variety of memorandums or reports.
• Establish and maintain effective working relationships with departmental clientele, representatives of outside

agencies and providers, other County employees and officials, and the general public.

WORK ENVIRONMENT AND PHYSICAL. DEMANDS:

Physical requirements include the ability to lift/carry up to 35-40 pounds occasionally, visual acuity, speech and hearing,
hand and eye coordination and manual dexterity necessary to operate a computer and office equipment. Subject to
standing, sitting, walking, climbing, crawling, bending, stooping, crouching, kneeling, pushing, pulling, reaching, twisting,
balancing, repetitive motion, and squatting to perform the essential functions. Subject to exposure to variations in
extreme heat, cold, mechanical, fume/odor, and dust/mites.

This job description is intended to be generic in nature. It is not necessarily an exhaustive list of all duties
and responsibilities. The essential duties, functions and responsibilities and overtime eligibility may vary
based on the specific tasks assigned to the position.

Page 2of2

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Web Architect I

JOB CODE: 28864 FLSA STATUS: Exempt
PAY GRADE: 28 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

JOB SUMMARY:

Designs and implements the overall web server architecture, as it relates to lntranet, Internet or Extranet usage.
Analyzes and translates requirements and plans into the appropriate Internet/Intranet architecture in order to meet
organizational objectives. As a technical expert in the web services area, provides input into highly complex and
significant decisions. Works independently as well as with intradepartmental and external (stakeholder departments)
project team members.

DISTINGUISHING CHARACTERISTICS:

This is the first in a series of two web-related job classifications within the Information Technology job family. Serves as
a functional expert and team lead to Webmaster positions. The Web Architect designs and implements the overall web
server architecture and may serve as the web services project lead for related projects and efforts. This classification
may require a flexible work schedule in order to meet the needs of the department.

DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES:

• Oversees the gathering of business requirements. Analyzes and translates business requirements into web
architecture in order to meet user and organizational objectives.

• Researches and maintains knowledge in emerging technologies, applicable to the organization environment. Makes
recommendations regarding implementation of such technology.

• Assists with difficult and complex application support problems, unresolved by junior team members.

• Designs and develops a web server architecture that promotes enterprise access to published web content, services
and applications.

• Performs other job-related duties as assigned.

MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS:

Education and ExDerience:
Bachelor’s degree in Computer Science, Information Systems, Business Administration or a directly related field AND
seven (7) years of relevant work experience, including one (1) year of team lead, supervisory or management,
experience;

OR,

Any combination of education and experience that has been achieved and is equivalent to the stated education and
experience and required knowledge, skills, and abilities sufficient to successfully perform the duties and responsibilities
of this job.

Licenses, Registrations, Certifications, or Special Requirements:
Valid Texas Driver’s License.

Preferred:
Microsoft Internet Specialist Certification.

Knowledge, Skills, and Abilities:
Knowledge of:
• Policies, practices, procedures and terminology of assigned function.
• Federal, State, Local and County applicable laws, rules, regulations and guidelines.
• Information technology hardware, software and peripherals as related to assigned function.
• Web services architecture, operating systems, applications and hardware.
• HyperText Markup Language (HTML), style sheets, Common Gateway Interface (CGI), user interface design,

applets, source control, database structures, graphic layout, scripting languages, and web publishing procedures.
• Internet and Intranet security considerations.

Page 1 of 2 75

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Web Architect I

JOB CODE: 28864 FLSA STATUS: Exempt
PAY GRADE: 28 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS: (Cont.)

Knowledge of: (Cont.)
• Modern office practices, procedures and methods.
• Quality assurance, performance monitoring, and integration methodologies.
• Computer equipment to include word processing, spreadsheets, databases and a variety of software packages.
• Business English, letter writing, grammar and punctuation, and report preparation.

Skill in:
• Problem-solving and decision-making.
• Designing, implementing and maintaining web server architecture.
• Both verbal and written communication, including presentations and communicating technical issues in non

technical language.

Ability to:
• Create and maintain the content of complex web sites and pages, suited for Internet and lntranet purposes.
• Work independently and efficiently and as part of a team.
• Manage time well, perform multiple tasks and organize diverse activities.
• Translate policies and objectives into ideas and applications web-based information products.
• Research, compile, analyze, interpret and prepare a variety of memorandums or reports.
• Establish and maintain effective working relationships with departmental clientele, representatives of outside

agencies and providers, other County employees and officials, and the general public.

WORK ENVIRONMENT AND PHYSICAL DEMANDS:

Physical requirements include the ability to lift/carry up to 35-40 pounds occasionally, visual acuity, speech and hearing,
hand and eye coordination and manual dexterity necessary to operate a computer and office equipment. Subject to
standing, sitting, walking, climbing, crawling, bending, stooping, crouching, kneeling, pushing, pulling, reaching, twisting,
balancing, repetitive motion, and squatting to perform the essential functions. Subject to exposure to variations in
extreme heat, cold, mechanical, fume/odor, and dust/mites.

This job description is intended to be generic in nature. It is not necessarily an exhaustive list of all duties
and responsibilities. The essential duties, functions and responsibilities and overtime eligibility may vary
based on the specific tasks assigned to the position.

Page 2 of 2

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Webmaster III

JOB CODE: 26863 FLSA STATUS: Exempt
PAY GRADE: 26 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

JOB SUMMARY:

Designs, develops, enhances and maintains system web pages (Intranet and Internet) in accordance with the overall
goals, objectives and parameters established for the organization. Coordinates the publishing of moderately complex to
complex web site content, user interface, presentation and level of detail to meet user and business needs. Works with
senior and junior team members to coordinate content, structure and updates. Maintains web-related databases.
Responds to user requests for modifications. Participates in the functional design and technical architecture of website
pages.

DISTINGUISHING CHARACTERISTICS:

This is the third in a series of three webmaster-related job classifications within the Information Technology job family.
Typically has no subordinate levels reporting directly to it. The Webmaster III designs and develops web pages and
coordinates the publishing of moderately complex to complex web site content. May assist in performing duties related
to the basic technical architecture of somewhat complex website pages. This classification may require a flexible work
schedule in order to meet the needs of the department.

DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES:

• Converts content from other sources into web pages. Conceptualizes, designs and develops the layout and user
interface of web pages, content and applications.

• Writes necessary server-side scripting to deliver dynamic HyperText Markup Language (HTML).

• Maintains web-related databases, ensuring accuracy and integrity of database information.

• Coordinates publishing of moderately complex to complex content and updates. Consults with users in the
maintenance of web site information to facilitate accuracy and updating of information.

• Monitors the health of web server(s) and maintains them, as required.

• Reviews and troubleshoots website issues. Solves or recommends solutions, and refers only the most highly
complex website issues to higher level staff.

• Gathers user requirements and business objectives. Participates in the completion of programming content for
website pages.

• Assists in the placement of web site information, ensuring consistency, accuracy, appropriateness and timeliness of
content and graphic standards. Recommends service-related links to other County departments and/or Federal,
State and Local agencies and related links.

• Assists in researching, identifying and selecting appropriate Internet-based information products, packages and
vendors to meet County needs.

• Assists in developing and maintaining a strategic plan for the County’s Internet presence, based on priorities, policy
directions and management goals.

• Assists in developing and implementing website policies, procedures and standards. Ensures adherence to policies
and procedures. Monitors website for unauthorized and outdated information.

• Performs other job-related duties as assigned.

MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS:

Education and Experience:
Bachelor’s degree in Computer Science, Information Systems, Business Administration or a directly related field AND
five (5) years of experience in web page development or related work;

Page 1 of 2

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Webmaster III

JOB CODE: 26863 FLSA STATUS: Exempt
PAY GRADE: 26 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS: (Cont.)

Education and Experience: (Cont.)
OR,

Any combination of education and experience that has been achieved and is equivalent to the stated education and
experience and required knowledge, skills, and abilities sufficient to successfully perform the duties and responsibilities
of this job.

Licenses, Registrations, Certifications, or Special Requirements:
Valid Texas Driver’s License.

Preferred:
Microsoft Internet Specialist Certification.

Knowledge. Skills, and Abilities:
Knowledge of:
• Policies, practices, procedures and terminology of assigned function.
• Federal, State, Local and County applicable laws, rules, regulations and guidelines.
• Information technology hardware, software and peripherals as related to assigned function.
• HyperText Markup Language (HTML), st4e sheets, Common Gateway Interface (CGI), user interface design,

applets, source control, database structures, graphic layout, scripting languages, and web publishing procedures.
• Modern office practices, procedures and methods.
• Quality assurance, performance monitoring, and integration methodologies.
• Computer equipment to include word processing, spreadsheets, databases and a variety of software packages.
• Business English, letter writing, grammar and punctuation, and report preparation.

Skill in:
• Problem-solving and decision-making.
• Designing, implementing and maintaining web server architecture.
• Both verbal and written communication, including presentations and communicating technical issues in non

technical language.

Ability to:
• Create and maintain the content of complex web sites and pages, suited for Internet and Intranet purposes.
• Work independently and efficiently and as part of a team.
• Manage time well, perform multiple tasks and organize diverse activities.
• Translate policies and objectives into ideas and applications web-based information products.
• Research, compile, analyze, interpret and prepare a variety of memorandums or reports.
• Establish and maintain effective working relationships with departmental clientele, representatives of outside

agencies and providers, other County employees and officials, and the general public.

WORK ENVIRONMENT AND PHYSICAL DEMANDS:

Physical requirements include the ability to lift/carry up to 35-40 pounds occasionally, visual acuity, speech and hearing,
hand and eye coordination and manual dexterity necessary to operate a computer and office equipment. Subject to
standing, sitting, walking, climbing, crawling, bending, stooping, crouching, kneeling, pushing, pulling, reaching, twisting,
balancing, repetitive motion, and squatting to perform the essential functions. Subject to exposure to variations in
extreme heat, cold, mechanical, fume/odor, and dust/mites.

This job description is intended to be generic in nature. It is not necessarily an exhaustive list of all duties
and responsibilities. The essential duties, functions and responsibilities and overtime eligibility may vary
based on the specific tasks assigned to the position.

Page2of2

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Webmaster II

JOB CODE: 24862 FLSA STATUS: Exempt
PAY GRADE: 24 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

JOB SUMMARY:

Designs, develops, enhances and maintains web pages in accordance with the overall goals, objectives and parameters
established for the organization. Coordinates the publishing of moderately complex web site content, user interface,
presentation and level of detail to meet user and business needs. Works with senior team members to coordinate
content, structure and updates. Maintains web-related databases. Responds to user requests for modifications.
Participates in the functional design and technical architecture of website pages.

DISTINGUISHING CHARACTERISTICS:

This is the second in a series of three webmaster-related job classifications within the Information Technology job family.
Typically has no subordinate levels reporting directly to it. The Webmaster II assists in designing and developing web
pages and coordinates the publishing of moderately complex web site content. May assist in performing duties related
to the basic technical architecture of somewhat complex website pages. This classification may require a flexible work
schedule in order to meet the needs of the department.

DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES:

• Converts content from other sources into web pages. Conceptualizes, designs and develops the layout and user
interface of web pages, content and applications.

• Writes necessary server-side scripting to deliver dynamic HyperText Markup Language (HTML).

• Maintains web-related databases, ensuring accuracy and integrity of database information.

• Coordinates publishing of moderately complex content and updates. Consults with users in the maintenance of web
site information to facilitate accuracy and updating of information.

• Monitors the health of web server(s) and maintains them, as required.

• Reviews and troubleshoots websjte issues. Solves or recommends solutions, and refers highly complex website
issues to higher level staff.

• Gathers user requirements and business objectives. Participates in the completion of programming content for
simple website pages.

• Assists in the placement of web site information, ensuring consistency, accuracy, appropriateness and timeliness of
content and graphic standards. Recommends service-related links to other County departments and/or Federal,
State and Local agencies and related links.

• Assists in researching, identifying and selecting appropriate Internet-based information products, packages and
vendors to meet County needs.

• Assists in developing and maintaining a strategic plan for the County’s Internet presence, based on priorities, policy
directions and management goals.

• Assists in developing and implementing website policies, procedures and standards. Ensures adherence to policies
and procedures. Monitors website for unauthorized and outdated information.

• Performs other job-related duties as assigned.

MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS:

Education and Experience:
Bachelor’s degree in Computer Science, Information Systems, Business Administration or a directly related field AND
three (3) years of experience in web page development or related work;

Page 1 of 2

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Webmaster II

JOB CODE: 24862 FLSA STATUS: Exempt
PAY GRADE: 24 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS: (Cont.)

Education and Experience: (Cont.)
OR,

Any combination of education and experience that has been achieved and is equivalent to the stated education and
experience and required knowledge, skills, and abilities sufficient to successfully perform the duties and responsibilities
of this job.

Licenses, Registrations, Certifications, or Special Requirements:
Valid Texas Driver’s License.

Preferred:
Microsoft Internet Specialist Certification.

Knowledge, Skills, and Abilities:
Knowledge of:
• Policies, practices, procedures and terminology of assigned function.
• Federal, State, Local and County applicable laws, rules, regulations and guidelines.
• Information technology hardware, software and peripherals as related to assigned function.
• HyperText Markup Language (HTML), style sheets, Common Gateway Interface (CGI), user interface design,

applets, source control, database structures, graphic layout, scripting languages, and web publishing procedures.
• Modern office practices, procedures and methods.
• Quality assurance, performance monitoring, and integration methodologies.
• Computer equipment to include word processing, spreadsheets, databases and a variety of software packages.
• Business English, letter writing, grammar and punctuation, and report preparation.

Skill in:
• Problem-solving and decision-making.
• Designing, implementing and maintaining web server architecture.
• Both verbal and written communication, including presentations and communicating technical issues in non

technical language.

Ability to:
• Create and maintain the content of complex web sites and pages, suited for Internet and Intranet purposes.
• Work independently and efficiently and as part of a team.
• Manage time well, perform multiple tasks and organize diverse activities.
• Translate policies and objectives into ideas and applications web-based information products.
• Research, compile, analyze, interpret and prepare a variety of memorandums or reports.
• Establish and maintain effective working relationships with departmental clientele, representatives of outside

agencies and providers, other County employees and officials, and the general public.

WORK ENVIRONMENT AND PHYSICAL DEMANDS:

Physical requirements include the ability to lift/carry up to 35-40 pounds occasionally, visual acuity, speech and hearing,
hand and eye coordination and manual dexterity necessary to operate a computer and office equipment. Subject to
standing, sitting, walking, climbing, crawling, bending, stooping, crouching, kneeling, pushing, pulling, reaching, twisting,
balancing, repetitive motion, and squatting to perform the essential functions. Subject to exposure to variations in
extreme heat, cold, mechanical, fume/odor, and dust/mites.

This job description is intended to be generic in nature. It is not necessarily an exhaustive list of all duties
and responsibilities. The essential duties, functions and responsibilities and overtime eligibility may vary
based on the specific tasks assigned to the position.

Fm,
Page 2 of 2

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Webmaster I

JOB CODE: 22861 FLSA STATUS: Exempt
PAY GRADE: 22 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

JOB SUMMARY:

Assists in designing, developing, enhancing and maintaining web pages in accordance with the overall goals, objectives
and parameters established for the organization. Coordinates the publishing of routine to moderately complex web site
content, user interface, presentation and level of detail to meet user and business needs. Maintains web-related
databases. Responds to user requests for modifications. May participate in the functional design and technical
architecture of website pages.

DISTINGUISHING CHARACTERISTICS:

This is the first in a series of three webmaster-related job classifications within the Information Technology job family.
Typically has no subordinate levels reporting directly to it. The Webmaster I assists in designing and developing web
pages and coordinates the publishing of routine to moderately complex web site content. May assist in performing
duties related to the basic technical architecture of less complex website pages. This classification may require a
flexible work schedule in order to meet the needs of the department.

DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES:

• Converts content from other sources into web pages. Conceptualizes, designs and develops the layout and user
interface of web pages, content and applications.

• Writes necessary server-side scripting to deliver dynamic HyperText Markup Language (HTML).

• Coordinates publishing of routine to moderately complex content and updates. Consults with users in the
maintenance of web site information to facilitate accuracy and updating of information.

• Maintains web-related databases, ensuring accuracy and integrity of database information.

• Assists in monitoring the health of web server(s) and maintains them, as required.

• Reviews and troubleshoots routine website issues. Solves or recommends solutions, and refers complex website
issues to higher level staff.

• Assists with the gathering of user requirements and business objectives.

• Participates in the completion of programming content for simple website pages.

• Assists in the placement of web site information, ensuring consistency, accuracy, appropriateness and timeliness of
content and graphic standards. Recommends service-related links to other County departments and/or Federal,
State and Local agencies and related links.

• Assists in researching, identifying and selecting appropriate Internet-based information products, packages and
vendors to meet County needs.

• Assists in developing and maintaining a strategic plan for the County’s Internet presence, based on priorities, policy
directions and management goals.

• Assists in developing and implementing website policies, procedures and standards. Ensures adherence to policies
and procedures. Monitors website for unauthorized and outdated information.

• Performs other job-related duties as assigned.

MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS:

Education and Experience:
Bachelor’s degree in Computer Science, Information Systems, Business Administration or a directly related field AND
two (2) years of experience in web page development or related work;

Page 1 of 2

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Webmaster I

JOB CODE: 22861 FLSA STATUS: Exempt
PAY GRADE: 22 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS: (Cont.)

Education and Experience: (Cant.)
OR,

Any combination of education and experience that has been achieved and is equivalent to the stated education and
experience and required knowledge, skills, and abilities sufficient to successfully perform the duties and responsibilities
of this job.

Licenses, Registrations, Certifications, or Special Requirements:
Valid Texas Driver’s License.

Preferred:
Microsoft Internet Specialist Certification.

Knowledge, Skills, and Abilities:
Knowledge of:
• Policies, practices, procedures and terminology of assigned function.
• Federal, State, Local and County applicable laws, rules, regulations and guidelines.
• Information technology hardware, software and peripherals as related to assigned function.
• HyperText Markup Language (HTML), style sheets, Common Gateway Interface (CGI), user interface design,

applets, source control, database structures, graphic layout, scripting languages, and web publishing procedures.
• Modern office practices, procedures and methods.
• Quality assurance, performance monitoring, and integration methodologies.
• Computer equipment to include word processing, spreadsheets, databases and a variety of software packages.
• Business English, letter writing, grammar and punctuation, and report preparation.

Skill in:
• Problem-solving and decision-making.
• Designing, implementing and maintaining web server architecture.
• Both verbal and written communication, including presentations and communicating technical issues in non

technical language.

Ability to:
• Create and maintain the content of complex web sites and pages, suited for Internet and Intranet purposes.
• Work independently and efficiently and as part of a team.
• Manage time well, perform multiple tasks and organize diverse activities.
• Translate policies and objectives into ideas and applications web-based information products.
• Research, compile, analyze, interpret and prepare a variety of memorandums or reports.
• Establish and maintain effective working relationships with departmental clientele, representatives of outside

agencies and providers, other County employees and officials, and the general public.

WORK ENVIRONMENT AND PHYSICAL DEMANDS:

Physical requirements include the ability to lift/carry up to 35-40 pounds occasionally, visual acuity, speech and hearing,
hand and eye coordination and manual dexterity necessary to operate a computer and office equipment. Subject to
standing, sitting, walking, climbing, crawling, bending, stooping, crouching, kneeling, pushing, pulling, reaching, twisting,
balancing, repetitive motion, and squatting to perform the essential functions. Subject to exposure to variations in
extreme heat, cold, mechanical, fume/odor, and dust/mites.

This job description is intended to be generic in nature. It is not necessarily an exhaustive list of all duties
and responsibilities. The essential duties, functions and responsibilities and overtime eligibility may vary
based on the specific tasks assigned to the position.

Page 2 of 2

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Information Security Officer

JOB CODE: 30860 FLSA STATUS: Exempt
PAY GRADE: 30 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

JOB SUMMARY:

Plans and develops the information security strategy and best practices in support of the information security
architecture. Collaborates with Information and Telecommunication Systems (ITS) staff and information asset owners
and custodians to develop security and business continuance policies, standards, guidelines, practices, and procedures.
Oversees all security audits and tasks to ensure that the integrity, confidentiality and availability of information to end
users, is not compromised. Oversees and coordinates compliance management efforts with existing information
security policies, standards, and procedures including laws and regulations such as the Health Information Portability
and Privacy Act (HIPAA). Provides guidance to, and seeks consensus with management staff and information asset
owners and custodians to secure Information Technology (IT) networks, systems, applications, and information assets.
Ensures that information security solutions and safeguards are implemented to mitigate vulnerabilities within and reduce
the risk of threats against IT resources and assets. Acts as an advocate for information security best practices.
Consults with management staff and information asset owners and custodians regarding information security risks and
provides guidance in minimizing those risks. Maintains reliable, up-to-date, information from Federal, State and County
government and across the information security industry regarding identification of new threats and vulnerabilities to IT
resources and assets.

DISTINGUISHING CHARACTERISTICS:

This is a job classification within the Information Technology job family. Directs the work of technical staff engaged in
activities related to the development and delivery of ITS security standards, best practices, architecture, and systems to
ensure information system security of IT resources and assets. Functions as technical expert and manages through
subordinate manager, providing strategic direction for information systems security, directing staff and coordinating
closely with top management to meet user and organizational requirements in accordance with strategic and
organizational goals. This classification may require a flexible work schedule in order to meet the needs of the
department.

DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES:

• Oversees the development and delivery of ITS security policies, standards, procedures, best practices, architecture,
and systems.

• Provides leadership, management and coordination in planning, organizing, implementing and evaluating operations
in accordance with Federal, State and Local laws, policies, procedures, guidelines and enterprise goals and
objectives.

• Oversees staff, including hiring, training, performance evaluation, disciplinary actions and dismissals, and directs
activities to be consistent with goals and objectives. Seeks and creates opportunities for improved performance,
learning and development of staff and identifies and addresses problems or conflicts.

• Oversees IT risk management including risk assessments, threat assessments, vulnerability assessments.

• Develops the information security auditing methodology and oversees information security audits.

• Develops and oversees the implementation of security safeguards.

• Assists senior management in developing strategic plans to accomplish goals and objectives and improve
effectiveness and efficiency of services.

• Develops and directs the information security awareness program. Advocates the information security program and
assists the Chief Technology Officer in promoting the importance of adopting ITS security policies, standards, and
practices countywide.

• Approves, plans, and oversees the information security budget.

• Performs other job-related duties as assigned.

Page 1 of 3

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Information Security Officer

JOB CODE: 30860 FLSA STATUS: Exempt
PAY GRADE: 30 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS:

Education and Experience:
Bachelor’s degree in Computer Science, Information Systems or a directly related field AND ten (10) years of relevant
work experience, including both five (5) years of increasingly responsible supervisory or management experience and
three (3) years of direct work experience within the Information Security field as an auditor, analyst, administrator or
other related role;

OR,

Any combination of education and experience that has been achieved and is equivalent to the stated education and
experience and required knowledge, skills, and abilities sufficient to successfully perform the duties and responsibilities
of this job.

Licenses, Registrations, Certifications, or Special Requirements:
Valid Texas Driver’s License.

Preferred:
Certified Information Security Manager (CISM) from Information Systems Audit and Control Association (ISACA).
Certified Information Systems Auditor (CISA) from Information Systems Audit and Control Association (ISACA).
Global Information Assurance Certification (GIAC) certifications from SysAdmin, Audit, Network, Security (SANS)
Institute.
Certified Information Systems Security Professional (CISSP) from the International Information Systems Certification
Consortium (ISC2).
U.S. Federal Government Security Clearance (active or inactive due to time expiration or capable of being granted one).

Knowledge, Skills, and Abilities:
Knowledge of:
• Management and supervisory principles, practices and techniques.
• Policies, practices, procedures and terminology of assigned function.
• Federal, State, Local and County applicable laws, rules, regulations and guidelines.
• Information technology hardware, software and peripherals as related to assigned function.
• Information Security Management.
• Risk assessment and management.
• Administrative, operational, physical, and logical security safeguards.
• Security architecture and models.
• Information Security Management best practices.
• Telecommunications, network and internet security best practices and lifecycle management.
• Computer equipment to include word processing, spreadsheets, databases and a variety of software packages.

Skill in:
• Managing staff, allocating resources and evaluating programs.
• Leadership, collaboration and negotiation techniques, including contracts, agreements and proposals.
• Developing and monitoring programs and related budgets.
• Managing user expectations and satisfaction.
• Developing and evaluating Requests for Proposals (RFPs).
• Interacting with and supporting the activities of other information technology and information security professionals.
• Problem-solving and decision-making.
• Strategic planning, developing, monitoring and evaluating.
• Both verbal and written communication, including presentations and communicating technical issues in non

technical language.

Ability to:
• Manage, motivate, train, develop and evaluate staff.
• Work independently and efficiently and as part of a team.
• Manage time well, perform multiple tasks and organize diverse activities.

Page 2 of 3

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Information Security Officer

JOB CODE: 30860 FLSA STATUS: Exempt
PAY GRADE: 30 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS: (Cant.)

Ability to: (Cont.)
• Translate policies and objectives into ideas and applications web-based information products.
• Research, compile, analyze, interpret and prepare a variety of memorandums or reports.
• Deliver awareness training from documented training curriculum.
• Identify security safeguards using risk management based analysis that are in line with the value of the assets being

protected.
• Establish and maintain effective working relationships with departmental clientele, representatives of outside

agencies and providers, other County employees and officials, and the general public.

WORK ENVIRONMENT AND PHYSICAL DEMANDS:

Physical requirements include the ability to lift/carry up to 35-40 pounds occasionally, visual acuity, speech and hearing,
hand and eye coordination and manual dexterity necessary to operate a computer and office equipment. Subject to
standing, sitting, walking, climbing, crawling, bending, stooping, crouching, kneeling, pushing, pulling, reaching, twisting,
balancing, repetitive motion, and squatting to perform the essential functions. Subject to exposure to variations in
extreme heat, cold, mechanical, fume/odor, and dust/mites.

This job description is intended to be generic in nature. It is not necessarily an exhaustive list of all duties
and responsibilities. The essential duties, functions and responsibilities and overtime eligibility may vary
based on the specific tasks assigned to the position.

Page 3 of 3

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Information Security Manager

JOB CODE: 27859 FLSA STATUS: Exempt
PAY GRADE: 27 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

JOB SUMMARY:

Manages the staff and development and delivery of Information Technology (IT) security standards, best practices,
architecture, and systems to ensure information system security of IT resources and assets. Implements processes and
methods for auditing and addressing non-compliance to information security standards. Facilitates migration of non-
compliant environments to compliant environments. Conducts studies to ensure compliance with adopted policies and
standards and currency with widely accepted security norms. Manages and participates in the planning and
implementation of security administration for IT projects. Responsible for the evaluation and selection of security
solutions, tools, and technologies. Makes recommendations and assists in the implementation of changes to work
methods and procedures to make them more effective or to strengthen security measures.

DISTINGUISHING CHARACTERISTICS:

This is a job classification within the Information Technology job family. Manages the work of technical staff engaged in
activities related to the development and delivery of IT security standards, best practices, architecture, and systems to
ensure information system security of IT resources and assets. Functions as technical expert and manager, providing
tactical direction, contributing to strategic planning for information systems security, supervising staff and coordinating
closely with higher level management to meet user and organizational requirements in accordance with strategic and
organizational goals. This classification may require a flexible work schedule in order to meet the needs of the
department.

DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES:

• Manages the development and delivery of Information Technology (IT) security policies, standards, procedures, best
practices, architecture, and systems in accordance with user needs and organizational goals and requirements.

• Provides supervisory leadership in planning, organizing, implementing and evaluating IT security in accordance with
Federal, State and Local laws, policies, procedures, guidelines and enterprise goals and objectives.

• Manages staff, including performing or collaborating with higher management in the hiring, training, performance
evaluation, disciplinary actions and dismissal of staff. Seeks and creates opportunities for improved performance,
learning and development of staff and identifies and addresses problems or conflicts.

• Oversees IT risk management including risk assessments, threat assessments and vulnerability assessments, as
required.

• Develops the information security auditing methodology and manages information security audits.

• Develops and oversees the implementation of security safeguards.

• Develops and manages the information security awareness program. Assists in advocating the importance of
adopting Information and Telecommunication Systems (ITS) security policies, standards, and practices countywide.

• Assists senior management in developing strategic plans to accomplish goals and objectives and improve
effectiveness and efficiency of services.

• Serves as technical expert for difficult and complex security problems.

• Plans and provides budget request information as part of the annual budget process. Assists in monitoring budget
expenditures to ensure consistent with department goals and objectives and within available funds.

• Performs other job-related duties as assigned.

MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS:

Education and Experience:
Bachelor’s degree in Computer Science, Information Systems or a directly related field AND nine (9) years of
Information Technology work experience, including four (4) years of increasingly responsible supervisory or
management experience;

Page 1 of 3

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Information Security Manager

JOB CODE: 27859 FLSA STATUS: Exempt
PAY GRADE: 27 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS: (Cont.)

Education and Experience: (Cont.)
OR,

Any combination of education and experience that has been achieved and is equivalent to the stated education and
experience and required knowledge, skills, and abilities sufficient to successfully perform the duties and responsibilities
of this job.

Licenses, Registrations, Certifications, or Special Requirements:
Valid Texas Driver’s License.

Preferred:
Certified Information Security Manager (CISM) from Information Systems Audit and Control Association (ISACA).
Certified Information Systems Auditor (CISA) from Information Systems Audit and Control Association (ISACA).
Global Information Assurance Certification (GIAC) certifications from SysAdmin, Audit, Network, Security (SANS)
Institute.
Certified Information Systems Security Professional (CISSP) from the International Information Systems Certification
Consortium (ISC2).
U.S. Federal Government Security Clearance (active or inactive due to time expiration, or capable of being granted one).
Knowledge, Skills, and Abilities:
Knowledge of:
• Management and supervisory principles, practices and techniques.
• Policies, practices, procedures and terminology of assigned function.
• Federal, State, Local and County applicable laws, rules, regulations and guidelines.
• Information technology hardware, software and peripherals as related to assigned function.
• Information Security Management.
• Risk assessment and management.
• Administrative, operational, physical, and logical security safeguards.
• Security architecture and models.
• Information Security Management best practices.
• Telecommunications, network and internet security best practices and lifecycle management.
• Computer equipment to include word processing, spreadsheets, databases and a variety of software packages.
Skill in:
• Managing staff, allocating resources and evaluating programs.
• Leadership, collaboration and negotiation techniques, including contracts, agreements and proposals.
• Developing and monitoring programs and related budgets.
• Managing user expectations and satisfaction.
• Developing and evaluating Requests for Proposals (RFPs).
• Interacting with and supporting the activities of other information technology and information security professionals.
• Problem-solving and decision-making.
• Strategic planning, developing, monitoring and evaluating.
• Both verbal and written communication, including presentations and communicating technical issues in non

technical language.

Ability to:
• Manage, motivate, train, develop and evaluate staff.
• Work independently and efficiently and as part of a team.
• Manage time well, perform multiple tasks and organize diverse activities.
• Translate policies and objectives into ideas and applications web-based information products.
• Research, compile, analyze, interpret and prepare a variety of memorandums or reports.
• Deliver awareness training from documented training curriculum.
• Identify security safeguards using risk management based analysis that are in line with the value of the assets being

protected.

Page 2 of 3

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Information Security Manager

JOB CODE: 27859 FLSA STATUS: Exempt
PAY GRADE: 27 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS: (Cont.)

Ability to: (Cant.)

• Make realistic recommendations based on facts and objective risk analysis.
• Establish and maintain effective working relationships with departmental clientele, representatives of outside

agencies and providers, other County employees and officials, and the general public.

WORK ENVIRONMENT AND PHYSICAL DEMANDS:
Physical requirements include the ability to lift/carry up to 35-40 pounds occasionally, visual acuity, speech and hearing,
hand and eye coordination and manual dexterity necessary to operate a computer and office equipment. Subject to
standing, sitting, walking, climbing, crawling, bending, stooping, crouching, kneeling, pushing, pulling, reaching, twisting,
balancing, repetitive motion, and squatting to perform the essential functions. Subject to exposure to variations in
extreme heat, cold, mechanical, fume/odor, and dust/mites.

This job description is intended to be generic in nature. it is not necessarily an exhaustive list of all duties
and responsibilities. The essential duties, functions and responsibilities and overtime eligibility may vary
based on the specific tasks assigned to the position.

Page 3 of 3

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Information Security Analyst III

JOB CODE: 25858 FLSA STATUS: Exempt
PAY GRADE: 25 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

JOB SUMMARY:

Performs advanced information security tasks and functions and manages security functions across Information
Technology (IT) functional areas. Provides input into security policies, standards, practices and procedures development
and implementation efforts. Conducts security risk analysis using qualitative and quantitative methods. Develops risk
analysis scenarios and response procedures. Conducts forensic investigations. Manages malicious and unwanted
software tracking, monitoring and removal efforts. Monitors the use of central security management solutions and
performs user and application management. Monitors and analyzes logs, configurations and other information related to
computer and network activity and usage. Creates security profiles, security violation reports and investigation reports
and reviews those created by junior staff members. Enforces security policies, standards, procedures and practices
through operational, administrative and technical tasks. Evaluates products and analyzes procedures to enhance
productivity and effectiveness. Investigates security issues and conducts computer forensic research on all classes of
systems.

DISTINGUISHING CHARACTERISTICS:

This is the third in a series of three information security-related job classifications within the Information Technology job
family. Conducts complex information security tasks and functions. The Security Analyst III develops security risk
analysis scenarios and response procedures and manages malicious and unwanted software tracking, monitoring, and
removal efforts. This classification may require a flexible work schedule in order to meet the needs of the department.

DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES:

• Develops and continually analyzes the effectiveness and applicability of information security policies, standards,
practices and procedures to keep pace with evolving threats, changes in law, regulation and County policy.

• Collaborates with Information and Telecommunication Systems (ITS) staff to coordinate the implementation of
information security policies, standards, technical standards, practices and procedures countywide. Supports efforts
in encouraging adoption countywide.

• Conducts compliance monitoring and management activities in areas of policy and standards in all areas. Directly
contributes to the development of information security compliance monitoring and management methodology,
procedures and practices. Conducts gap analysis and makes recommendations for changes in existing policies,
standards and technical standards based upon findings of compliance monitoring and management activities.
Develops checklists and other tools and information in support of technical and administrative audits.

• Executes technical and administrative audits. Directly contributes to the development of information security
auditing methodology, procedures and practices. Develops checklists, technical standards and other tools and
information in support of technical and administrative audits.

• Assists in developing disaster recovery plans that are adaptable and able to be implemented under extreme
conditions that may involve reductions in personnel, poor transportation, slow access to funds, and other issues.
Specifically focuses on ITS Department operations center disaster recovery ensuring that security is an integral part
of plans.

• Conducts risk assessments in all areas. Directly contributes to the development of risk assessment and
management methodology, procedures and practices. Develops tools to support risk assessment and management
efforts.

• Conducts vulnerability assessments and management for all systems and environments deployed within the County.
Develops and manages vulnerability assessment and management processes and practices. Monitors vulnerability
management efforts to ensure efficiency and compliance.

• Executes threat monitoring and assessments in all areas. Deploys prevention and countermeasures using
established deployment procedures. Develops and manages technical standards, procedures, and practices related
to threat monitoring, assessment and management.

Page 1 of 3 1’2

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Information Security Analyst III

JOB CODE: 25858 FLSA STATUS: Exempt
PAY GRADE: 25 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES: (Cont.)

• Conducts and manages product evaluations and procedural analysis for all areas. Develops and manages
standards, procedures and practices for security engineering. Develops and manages configurations for security
safeguards and tools. Deploys and manages security solutions and safeguards. Creates project plans and
manages information security projects.

• Develops security administration processes, practices, and standards. Makes recommendations for modifications of
security policies and standards based upon investigations, exceptions, analysis and feedback from compliance
management and awareness efforts.

• Manages security operations efforts for security applications and other tools maintained by the security team.
Oversees the management of the information security web pages and other information security information
repositories. Provides operations status reports to the Information Security Manager. Creates summary reports that
include recommendations for action based upon analysis performed on activity, event, and security logs of deployed
systems and networks.

• Investigates security issues in all areas. Develops and manages peer to peer contacts within and between other
departments and organizations, both internal and external.

• Manages information security awareness activities including ad-hoc and formal training of users, management, and
staff. Conducts training and supports IT training resources in creating information security user awareness
curriculum and delivering training.

• May mentor, supervise and train security staff.

• Performs other job-related duties as assigned.

MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS:

Education and Experience:
Bachelor’s degree in Computer Science, Information Systems, Business Administration or a directly related field AND
five (5) years of relevant work experience, including at least three (3) years experience in information security;
OR,
Any combination of education and experience that has been achieved and is equivalent to the stated education and
experience and required knowledge, skills, and abilities sufficient to successfully perform the duties and responsibilities
of this job.
Licenses, Registrations, Certifications, or Special Requirements:
Valid Texas Driver’s License.

Preferred:
Global Information Assurance Certification (GIAC) certifications from SysAdmin, Audit, Network, Security (SANS)
Institute, and/or Certified Information Systems.
Security Professional (CISSP) from the International Information Systems Certification Consortium (ISC2).
Certified Information Systems Auditor (CISA) Certification from Information Systems Audit and Control Association
(ISACA).
U.S. Federal Government Security Clearance (active or inactive due to time expiration, or capable of being granted one).

Knowledge, Skills, and Abilities:
Knowledge of:
• Policies, practices, procedures and terminology of assigned function.
• Federal, State, Local and County applicable laws, rules, regulations and guidelines.
• Information technology hardware, software and peripherals as related to assigned function.
• Best practices for Information Security, malicious and unwanted software, email and content along with common

practices for protection and management.
• Advanced IT risk assessment techniques (qualitative and quantitative).
• Threats to systems, networks, applications and information for both standalone and interconnected computers.

Page2of3 17/

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Information Security Analyst III

JOB CODE: 25858 FLSA STATUS: Exempt
PAY GRADE: 25 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS: (Cont.)
Knowledge of: (Cont.)
• Advanced vulnerability management techniques for commonly encountered operating systems (Windows, NetWare,

Linux, UNIX) and Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act (HIPAA) Final Privacy and Security Rule
standards and implementation specifications.

• Telecommunication technology and network (LAN, MAN, WAN) architecture, protocols, hardware, software,
deployment, maintenance, and administration.

• Distributed, mid-range and mainframe computing systems high level architecture and web operations.
• Computer system implementation and administration.
• User administration.
• Electronic mail system implementation, administration, and usage.
• Internet access connectivity, administration, and usage.
• Software application development lifecycle.
• Major operating system software.
• Troubleshooting techniques for IT systems and Internet Protocol (IP) networks.
• Computer equipment to include word processing, spreadsheets, databases and a variety of software packages.
Skill in:
• Interacting with and supporting the activities of other information technology and information security professionals.
• Providing customer service to a wide range of internal and external customers.
• Utilizing common office automation software, such as word processing, presentation, spreadsheet and database

software.
• Training users on computer applications.
• Problem-solving and decision-making.
• Both verbal and written communication, including presentations and communicating technical issues in non

technical language.

Ability to:
• Comprehend the language of policies and standards and present them in an understandable way to ITS staff

members and department users.
• Read, comprehend, comply with and assist IT staff in complying with complex technical standards and procedures.
• Deliver awareness training from documented training curriculum.
• Work independently and efficiently and as part of a team.
• Manage time well, perform multiple tasks and organize diverse activities.
• Research, compile, analyze, interpret and prepare a variety of memorandums or reports.
• Establish and maintain effective working relationships with departmental clientele, representatives of outside

agencies and providers, other County employees and officials, and the general public.

WORK ENVIRONMENT AND PHYSICAL DEMANDS:
Physical requirements include the ability to lift/carry up to 35-40 pounds occasionally and use of dolly for heavier weight
objects. Subject to visual acuity, speech and hearing, hand and eye coordination and manual dexterity necessary to
operate a computer and office equipment. Subject to standing, sitting, walking, climbing, crawling, bending, stooping,
crouching, kneeling, pushing, pulling, reaching, twisting, balancing, repetitive motion, and squatting to perform the
essential functions. Subject to exposure to variations in extreme heat, cold, mechanical, fume/odor, and dust/mites.
Requires travel to multiple buildings in a 4-block radius to support remote computer rooms. Work conducted in secure,
raised floor computer room environment with moderate to high noise levels.

This job description is intended to be generic in nature. It is not necessarily an exhaustive list of all duties
and responsibilities. The essential duties, functions and responsibilities and overtime eligibility may vary
based on the specific tasks assigned to the position.

Page 3 of 3

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Information Security Analyst II

JOB CODE: 23857 FLSA STATUS: Exempt
PAY GRADE: 23 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

JOB SUMMARY:

Performs and assists with routine to moderately complex information security tasks and functions. Performs moderately
complex security administrative tasks across Information Technology (IT) functional areas. Provides input into security
policies, standards, practices, and procedures development and implementation efforts. Conducts security risk analysis
using qualitative and quantitative methods. Creates and monitors security profiles, security violation reports, and
investigates reports maintains and documents security controls. Conducts forensic investigations of workstations.
Manages malicious and unwanted software tracking, monitoring, and removal efforts. Contributes to the evaluation of
products and/or procedures to enhance productivity and effectiveness. Investigates elevated security issues regarding
Information and Telecommunication Systems (ITS) Department built/managed workstation systems.

DISTINGUISHING CHARACTERISTICS:

This is the second in a series of three information security-related job classifications within the Information Technology
job family. Conducts routine to moderately complex information security tasks and functions. The Security Analyst II
conducts security risk analysis manages malicious and unwanted software tracking, monitoring, and removal efforts.
This classification may require a flexible work schedule in order to meet the needs of the department.

DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES:

• Conducts basic compliance monitoring and management activities in assigned areas of policy and standards.
Supports senior information security personnel with compliance monitoring and management, as directed.

• Initiates basic audit tasks using pre-defined checklists on assigned systems. Supports senior information security
personnel with moderately complex to complex security audits.

• Executes basic risk assessments using established procedures for assigned systems. Supports senior information
security personnel with risk assessment and management.

• Conducts basic vulnerability assessments and management using established procedures and tools for assigned
workstations and servers. Monitors vulnerability management efforts to ensure efficiency and compliance. Supports
senior information security personnel with vulnerability assessment and management on other systems, as directed.

• Implements basic threat monitoring and assessments using established procedures for workstations and non-
mission critical systems. Deploys prevention and countermeasures on workstations using established deployment
procedures. Provides support for threat monitoring, assessment and countermeasure tasks.

• Conducts product evaluations and procedural analysis for the workstation technology area. Supports efforts to
evaluate products and/or procedures that enhance productivity and effectiveness of the security team.

• Implements security profiling of non-mission critical systems and reviews security violation reports and investigation
reports to improve understanding of the common threats to systems, networks, and information assets and
associated mitigation activities of the security team. Initiates user, application and system administration for security
applications and other tools maintained by the security team. Reviews termination process activities to make sure
access to systems, networks and information assets is properly and promptly terminated for departing employees,
workers, vendors, and others. Provides support for security administration tasks.

• Executes basic security operations tasks for security applications and other tools maintained by the security team.
Maintains the information security web pages and other information security information repositories. Runs reports,
forms, and graphs in support of periodic status and posture reporting. Performs analysis of logs for indication of
unauthorized access and activity and reports findings to senior staff for review and further analysis and remediation.
Trains and mentors ITS operations staff in security operations.

• Investigates elevated security issues regarding ITS Department built/managed workstation systems using
established computer forensic investigation procedures and tools. Uses established contacts within Austin Police
Department, Travis County Sheriff’s Office, District Attorney’s office, and County Attorneys office, as required, for
investigation or turn over.

‘7q3
Page 1 of 3

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Information Security Analyst II

JOB CODE: 23857 FLSA STATUS: Exempt
PAY GRADE: 23 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES: (Cont.)

Initiates user awareness tasks including ad-hoc and formal training of users. Conducts training and supports ITS
training resources in creating information security user awareness curriculum and delivering training. Educates
County staff about security policies and provides consultation on security issues.

• Represents the security needs of the organization by providing security related expertise and assistance in IT
projects.

• Assists in the implementation of security policies and procedures and provides input into the development of such
policies and procedures.

• Performs other job-related duties as assigned.

MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS:

Education and Experience:
Bachelor’s degree in Computer Science, Information Systems, Business Administration or a directly related field AND
three (3) years of relevant work experience, including two (2) years experience in security administration;
OR,

Any combination of education and experience that has been achieved and is equivalent to the stated education and
experience and required knowledge, skills, and abilities sufficient to successfully perform the duties and responsibilities
of this job.
Licenses, Registrations, Certifications, or Special Requirements:
Valid Texas Driver’s License.

Preferred:
Global Information Assurance Certification (GIAC) certifications from SysAdmin, Audit, Network, Security (SANS)
Institute, and/or Certified Information Systems.
Security Professional (CISSP) from the International Information Systems Certification Consortium (ISC2).
U.S. Federal Government Security Clearance (active or inactive due to time expiration, or capable of being granted one).

Knowledge. Skills, and Abilities:
Knowledge of:
• Policies, practices, procedures and terminology of assigned function.
• Federal, State, Local and County applicable laws, rules, regulations and guidelines.
• Information technology hardware, software and peripherals as related to assigned function.
• Best practices for Information Security, malicious and unwanted software, email and content along with common

practices for protection and management.
• Advanced IT risk assessment techniques (qualitative and quantitative).
• Threats to systems, networks, applications and information for both standalone and interconnected computers.
• Advanced vulnerability management techniques for commonly encountered operating systems (Windows, NetWare,

Linux, UNIX) and Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act (HIPAA) Final Privacy and Security Rule
standards and implementation specifications.

• Telecommunication technology and network (LAN, MAN, WAN) architecture, protocols, hardware, software,
deployment, maintenance, and administration.

• Distributed, mid-range and mainframe computing systems high level architecture and web operations.
• Computer system implementation and administration.
• User administration.
• Electronic mail system implementation, administration, and usage.
• Internet access connectivity, administration, and usage.
• Software application development lifecycle.
• Major operating system software.
• Troubleshooting techniques for IT systems and Internet Protocol (IP) networks.
• Computer equipment to include word processing, spreadsheets, databases and a variety of software packages.

Page2of3

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Information Security Analyst II

JOB CODE: 23857 FLSA STATUS: Exempt
PAY GRADE: 23 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS: (Cont.)

Skill in:
• Interacting with and supporting the activities of other information technology and information security professionals.
• Providing customer service to a wide range of internal and external customers.
• Utilizing common office automation software, such as word processing, presentation, spreadsheet and database

software.
• Training users on computer applications.
• Problem-solving and decision-making.
• Both verbal and written communication, including presentations and communicating technical issues in non

technical language.

Ability to:
• Comprehend the language of policies and standards and present them in an understandable way to ITS staff

members and department users.
• Read, comprehend, comply with and assist IT staff in complying with complex technical standards and procedures.
• Deliver awareness training from documented training curriculum.
• Work independently and efficiently and as part of a team.
• Manage time well, perform multiple tasks and organize diverse activities.
• Research, compile, analyze, interpret and prepare a variety of memorandums or reports.
• Establish and maintain effective working relationships with departmental clientele, representatives of outside

agencies and providers, other County employees and officials, and the general public.

WORK ENVIRONMENT AND PHYSICAL DEMANDS:

Physical requirements include the ability to lift/carry up to 35-40 pounds occasionally and use of dolly for heavier weight
objects. Subject to visual acuity, speech and hearing, hand and eye coordination and manual dexterity necessary to
operate a computer and office equipment. Subject to standing, sitting, walking, climbing, crawling, bending, stooping,
crouching, kneeling, pushing, pulling, reaching, twisting, balancing, repetitive motion, and squatting to perform the
essential functions. Subject to exposure to variations in extreme heat, cold, mechanical, fume/odor, and dust/mites.
Requires travel to multiple buildings in a 4-block radius to support remote computer rooms. Work conducted in secure,
raised floor computer room environment with moderate to high noise levels.

This job description is intended to be generic in nature. It is not necessarily an exhaustive list of all duties
and responsibilities. The essential duties, functions and responsibilities and overtime eligibility may vary
based on the specific tasks assigned to the position.

Page 3 of 3

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Information Security Analyst I

JOB CODE: 21856 FLSA STATUS: Exempt
PAY GRADE: 21 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

JOB SUMMARY:

Performs and assists with routine information security tasks and functions. Performs basic security administrative tasks
across Information Technology (IT) functional areas. Carries out and assists with carrying out security policies,
standards and procedures. Gathers information for security risk analysis and incident management efforts. Assists in
security risk assessment and management. Supports malicious and unwanted software tracking, monitoring and
removal efforts. Monitors security profiles, reviews security violation reports, investigates possible security exceptions,
and updates, and maintains and documents security controls. Provides routine technical support for evaluation of
products and/or procedures to enhance productivity and effectiveness. Investigates elevated security issues regarding
Information and Telecommunication Systems (ITS) Department built/managed workstation systems.

DISTINGUISHING CHARACTERISTICS:

This is the first in a series of three information security-related job classifications within the Information Technology job
family. Conducts routine information security tasks and functions. The Security Analyst I assists in security risk
assessment and management and supports malicious and unwanted software tracking, monitoring and removal efforts.
This classification may require a flexible work schedule in order to meet the needs of the department.

DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES:

• Assists with basic compliance monitoring and management activities.

• Initiates basic audit tasks using pre-defined checklists on assigned systems. Assists with moderately complex
information security auditing tasks.

• Conducts or assists in conducting routine risk assessment tasks using established procedures for workstations and
non-mission critical systems.

• Assists with assessment and management tasks. May conduct basic vulnerability assessments and management
using established procedures for workstations and non-mission critical systems.

• Assists with threat monitoring, assessment and countermeasure tasks. May perform basic threat monitoring and
assessments using established procedures for workstations and non-mission critical systems. May deploy
prevention and countermeasures on workstations and non-mission critical systems using established deployment
procedures.

• Executes or assists with security engineering support tasks. May provide basic technical support during products
and/or procedures evaluations.

• Assists with security administration tasks. May perform security profiling of workstations and non-mission critical
systems. Reviews security violation reports and investigation reports to gain an understanding of the common
threats and activities of the security team. May perform basic user, application, and system administration for
security applications and other tools maintained by the security team. Reviews termination process activities to
ensure access to systems, networks, and information assets is properly and promptly terminated for departing
employees, workers, vendors, and others.

• Executes basic security operations tasks for security applications and other tools maintained by the security team.
Maintains the information security web pages and other information security information repositories. Runs reports,
forms, and graphs in support of periodic status and posture reporting. Conducts analysis of logs for indication of
unauthorized access and activity and reports findings to a senior information security staff for review and further
analysis and remediation.

• Assists with security incident response tasks. May investigate security issues elevated by the Help Desk regarding
ITS built/managed workstation systems and non-mission critical systems using established procedures and tools.

Pagelof3

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Information Security Analyst I

JOB CODE: 21856 FLSA STATUS: Exempt
PAY GRADE: 21 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES: (Cont.)

• Initiates user awareness tasks including ad-hoc and formal training of users. Assists in the creation and delivery of
information security user awareness curriculum. Assists in educating County staff about security policies and
provides consultation on basic security issues.

• Represents the security needs of the organization by providing security related expertise and assistance in IT
projects.

• Assists in the implementation of security policies and procedures and may provide input into the development of
such policies and procedures.

• Performs other job-related duties as assigned.

MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS:

Education and Experience:
Bachelor’s degree in Computer Science, Information Systems, Business Administration or a directly related field AND
one (1) year of relevant work experience, including six (6) months experience in security administration;

OR,

Any combination of education and experience that has been achieved and is equivalent to the stated education and
experience and required knowledge, skills, and abilities sufficient to successfully perform the duties and responsibilities
of this job.

Licenses, Registrations, Certifications, or Special Requirements:
Valid Texas Driver’s License.

Preferred:
Global Information Assurance Certification (GIAC) certifications from SysAdmin, Audit, Network, Security (SANS)
Institute, and/or Certified Information Systems.
Security Professional (CISSP) from the International Information Systems Certification Consortium (ISC2).
U.S. Federal Government Security Clearance (active or inactive due to time expiration, or capable of being granted one).

Knowledge, Skills, and Abilities:
Knowledge of:
• Policies, practices, procedures and terminology of assigned function.
• Federal, State, Local and County applicable laws, rules, regulations and guidelines.
• Information technology hardware, software and peripherals as related to assigned function.
• Telecommunication technology and network (LAN, MAN, WAN) architecture, protocols, hardware, software,

deployment, maintenance, and administration.
• Distributed, mid-range and mainframe computing systems high level architecture and web operations.
• Computer system implementation and administration.
• User administration.
• Electronic mail system implementation, administration, and usage.
• Internet access connectivity, administration, and usage.
• Software application development lifecycle.
• Malicious and unwanted software, email and content along with common practices for protection and management.
• Information Technology risk assessment techniques (qualitative and quantitative).
• Common threats to systems, networks, applications and information for both standalone and interconnected

computers.
• Vulnerability management techniques for commonly encountered operating systems (Windows, NetWare, Linux,

UNIX) and Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act (HIPAA) Final Privacy and Security Rule standards
and implementation specifications.

• Computer equipment to include word processing, spreadsheets, databases and a variety of software packages.

Page2of3 ‘777

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Information Security Analyst I

JOB CODE: 21856 FLSA STATUS: Exempt
PAY GRADE: 21 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS: (Cont.)

Skill in:
• Interacting with and supporting the activities of other information technology and information security professionals.
• Providing customer service to a wide range of internal and external customers.
• Utilizing common office automation software, such as word processing, presentation, spreadsheet and database

software.
• Training users on computer applications.
• Problem-solving and decision-making.
• Both verbal and written communication, including presentations and communicating technical issues in non

technical language.

Ability to:
• Comprehend the language of policies and standards and present them in an understandable way to ITS staff

members and department users.
• Read, comprehend, comply with and assist ITS staff in complying with complex technical standards and procedures.
• Deliver awareness training from documented training curriculum.
• Work independently and efficiently and as part of a team.
• Manage time well, perform multiple tasks and organize diverse activities.
• Research, compile, analyze, interpret and prepare a variety of memorandums or reports.
• Establish and maintain effective working relationships with departmental clientele, representatives of outside

agencies and providers, other County employees and officials, and the general public.

WORK ENVIRONMENT AND PHYSICAL DEMANDS:

Physical requirements include the ability to lift/carry up to 35-40 pounds occasionally, and use of dolly for heavier weight
objects. Subject to visual acuity, speech and hearing, hand and eye coordination and manual dexterity necessary to
operate a computer and office equipment. Subject to standing, sitting, walking, climbing, crawling, bending, stooping,
crouching, kneeling, pushing, pulling, reaching, twisting, balancing, repetitive motion, and squatting to perform the
essential functions. Subject to exposure to variations in extreme heat, cold, mechanical, fume/odor, and dust/mites.
Requires travel to multiple buildings in a 4-block radius to support remote computer rooms. Work conducted in secure,
raised floor computer room environment with moderate to high noise levels.

This job description is intended to be generic in nature. It is not necessarily an exhaustive list of all duties
and responsibilities. The essential duties, functions and responsibilities and overtime eligibility may vary
based on the specific tasks assigned to the position.

Page3of3
77g

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Customer Support & Client Technologies Div Manager

JOB CODE: 30855 FLSA STATUS: Exempt
PAY GRADE: 30 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

JOB SUMMARY:

Oversees and directs the activities related to management of all customer support, client technologies,
telecommunications and training areas for the enterprise. Manages staff engaged in supporting computers, networks,
systems, software and telecommunications. Defines service levels and implements technical service restorations and
troubleshooting procedures for identifying, testing and diagnosing computer system and peripheral equipment failures.
Develops and communicates the support strategy, service level agreements and project plans. Participates in long-
range strategy planning and manages policy development to address complex organizational issues. Directs and
coordinates the activities associated with installation, deployment and upgrade of software, hardware and network
facilities as it relates to the desktop environment. Organizes and coordinates the activities associated with enterprise-
wide desktop application and systems training and telecommunications.

DISTINGUISHING CHARACTERISTICS:

This is a job classification within the Information Technology job family. Directs and manages activities related to
management of all customer support, client technologies, telecommunications and training areas for the enterprise.
Manages and coordinates the activities associated with installation, deployment and upgrade of software, hardware and
network facilities as it relates to the desktop environment, the activities associated with enterprise-wide desktop
application and systems training and telecommunications systems to meet user and organizational requirements needs
in accordance with strategic and organizational goals. This classification may require a flexible work schedule in order to
meet the needs of the department.

DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES:

• Provides and oversees the management of a centralized Help Desk (Call Center) for response to user department
support requests for computer hardware, software and telecommunication services, countywide technical training,
desktop and network support functions. Provides technical leadership and direction in ensuring the successful
integration of new methods and technologies with existing systems.

• Provides leadership, management and coordination in planning, organizing, implementing and evaluating operations
in accordance with Federal, State and Local laws, policies, procedures, guidelines and enterprise goals and
objectives.

• Plans, coordinates and manages technology delivery and support team projects and activities. Ensures personnel
are properly assigned and deployed to accomplish goals.

• Oversees staff, including hiring, training, performance evaluation, disciplinary actions and dismissals, and directs
activities to be consistent with goals and objectives. Seeks and creates opportunities for improved performance,
learning and development of staff and identifies and addresses problems or conflicts.

• Directs development of procedures and processes for enterprise-wide support of computers, networks, systems,
software and telecommunications. Assists top management in developing strategic plans to accomplish goals and
objectives and improve effectiveness and efficiency of services.

• Develops standards and specifications for countywide desktop and mobile systems, network and stand-alone
printers. Researches and recommends desktop and mobile operating system (OS) and productivity applications.

• Provides extensive technical and purchasing consultation to user departments. Assists in defining technical
requirements and specifications for technology related purchases. Reviews and approves user requisitions for
computer hardware and software.

• Plans and budgets for area of responsibility, based on short-term and long-term needs. Manages and prepares
annual countywide budget request for the consolidated funding and purchasing of desktop, mobile and printing
hardware. Accountable for annual purchasing and deploying of all new and replacement computer equipment.
Monitors budget expenditures to ensure consistent with department and countywide goals and objectives and within
available funds.

• Performs other job-related duties as assigned.

1/fl
Page 1 of 3

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Customer Support & Client Technologies Div Manager

JOB CODE: 30855 FLSA STATUS: Exempt
PAY GRADE: 30 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS:

Education and Experience:
Bachelor’s degree in Computer Science, Information Systems, Business Administration or a directly related field AND
ten (10) years of relevant work experience, including both five (5) years of increasingly responsible supervisory or
management experience and five (5) years managing projects;

OR,

Any combination of education and experience that has been achieved and is equivalent to the stated education and
experience and required knowledge, skills, and abilities sufficient to successfully perform the duties and responsibilities
of this job.

Licenses, Registrations, Certifications, or Special Requirements:
Valid Texas Driver’s License.

Preferred:
Master’s degree in Computer Science, Information Systems, Business Administration or a directly related field.

Knowledge, Skills, and Abilities:
Knowledge of:
• Management and supervisory principles, practices and techniques.
• Policies, practices, procedures and terminology of assigned function.
• Federal, State, Local and County applicable laws, rules, regulations and guidelines.
• Information technology hardware, software and peripherals as related to assigned function.
• Project management methodologies.
• Budget preparation and office management.
• Customer support, help desk, call center and client technology operations, functions and management.
• Computer equipment to include word processing, spreadsheets, databases and a variety of software packages.

Skill in:
• Directing and managing staff, allocating resources and evaluating programs.
• Leadership, collaboration and negotiation techniques, including contracts, agreements and proposals.
• Managing user expectations and satisfaction.
• Developing and evaluating Requests for Proposals (RFP5).
• Strategic planning, development, monitoring and evaluation.
• Developing and monitoring programs and related budgets.
• Problem-solving and decision-making.
• Both verbal and written communication, including presentations and communicating technical issues in non

technical language.

Ability to:
• Direct, motivate, train, develop and evaluate staff.
• Work independently and efficiently and as part of a team.
• Manage time well, perform multiple tasks and organize diverse activities.
• Research, compile, analyze, interpret and prepare a variety of memorandums or reports.
• Establish and maintain effective working relationships with departmental clientele, representatives of outside

agencies and providers, other County employees and officials, and the general public.

IgO
Page 2 of 3

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Customer Support & Client Technologies Div Manager

JOB CODE: 30855 FLSA STATUS: Exempt
PAY GRADE: 30 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

WORK ENVIRONMENT AND PHYSICAL DEMANDS:

Physical requirements include the ability to lift/carry up to 35-40 pounds occasionally, visual acuity, speech and hearing,
hand and eye coordination and manual dexterity necessary to operate a computer and office equipment. Subject to
standing, sitting, walking, climbing, crawling, bending, stooping, crouching, kneeling, pushing, pulling, reaching, twisting,
balancing, repetitive motion, and squatting to perform the essential functions. Subject to exposure to variations in
extreme heat, cold, mechanical, fume/odor, and dust/mites.

This job description is intended to be generic in nature. It is not necessarily an exhaustive list of all duties
and responsibilities. The essential duties, functions and responsibilities and overtime eligibility may vary
based on the specific tasks assigned to the position.

7,,Page 3 of 3

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Customer Support Manager

JOB CODE: 27854 FLSA STATUS: Exempt
PAY GRADE: 27 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

JOB SUMMARY:

Manages and coordinates the operations related to customer support and client technologies for the enterprise.
Coordinates and manages the projects, activities and day-to-day staffing of centralized customer support for response to
support requests for computer hardware, software and telecommunication services. Identifies, tracks, assigns,
escalates and reports customer computer related problems. Works with supported departments to establish
performance metrics. Analyzes performance using customer support database statistics, sharing results with
departments. Provides consultation to departments on their on-going support needs. Serves as liaison to other
technical groups in the support of legacy systems and support problems.

DISTINGUISHING CHARACTERISTICS:

This is a job classification within the Information Technology job family. Manages the operations related to customer
support and client technologies for the enterprise. Functions as technical expert and manager, providing tactical
direction, contributing to strategic planning for customer technical support, supervising staff and coordinating closely with
higher level management to meet user and organizational requirements in accordance with strategic and organizational
goals. This classification may require a flexible work schedule in order to meet the needs of the department.

DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES:

• Manages a team of technical staff providing countywide help desk customer support services. Coordinates activities
of the team and trains new team members.

• Provides supervisory leadership in planning, organizing, implementing and evaluating customer support services in
accordance with Federal, State and Local laws, policies, procedures, guidelines and enterprise goals and objectives.

• Manages staff, including performing or collaborating with higher management in the hiring, training, performance
evaluation, disciplinary actions and dismissal of staff. Seeks and creates opportunities for improved performance,
learning and development of staff and identifies and addresses problems or conflicts.

• Coordinates user assistance with customer support staff using published performance goals and priorities.

• Serves as technical expert for difficult and complex support and technology problems.

• Assists senior management in developing strategic plans to accomplish goals and objectives and improve
effectiveness and efficiency of services.

• Plans and provides budget request information as part of the annual budget process. Assists in monitoring budget
expenditures to ensure consistent with department goals and objectives and within available funds.

• Serves as system administrator for the Helpdesk Expert Automation Tool (HEAT) Call Center tracking system.
Utilizes the HEAT database, extracts and analyzes data ensuring staff is meeting performance goals. Works with
users to design and provide custom call tracking reports.

• Maintains legacy database systems as database administrator and developer.

• Serves as a liaison to all departments and Information Technology System (ITS) on relocations and installation of
new facilities.

• Performs other job-related duties as assigned.

MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS:

Education and Experience:
Bachelor’s degree in Computer Science, Information Systems, Business Administration or a directly related field AND
nine (9) years of related work experience, including three (3) years of team lead, supervisory or management,
experience;

Page 1 of 3

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Customer Support Manager

JOB CODE: 27854 FLSA STATUS: Exempt
PAY GRADE: 27 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS: (Cont.)

Education and Experience: (Cont.)

OR,

Any combination of education and experience that has been achieved and is equivalent to the stated education and
experience and required knowledge, skills, and abilities sufficient to successfully perform the duties and responsibilities
of this job.

Licenses, Registrations, Certifications, or Special Requirements:
Valid Texas Driver’s License.

Preferred:
Microsoft Certified Systems Engineer (MCSE); OR
Certified Novell Engineer (CNE).
Microsoft Certified Professional (MCP) and Certified Novell Administrator (CNA).

Knowledge, Skills, and Abilities:
Knowledge of:
• Management and supervisory principles, practices and techniques.
• Policies, practices, procedures and terminology of assigned function.
• Federal, State, Local and County applicable laws, rules, regulations and guidelines.
• Information technology hardware, software and peripherals as related to assigned function.
• Customer support, help desk, call center and client technology operations, functions and management.
• Local Area Networks (LANs) and database administration.
• Budget preparation and office management.
• Network operating systems, desktop operating systems, user applications and system integration.
• Network administration, monitoring and troubleshooting.
• Computer equipment to include word processing, spreadsheets, databases and a variety of software packages.

Skill in:
• Managing staff, allocating resources and evaluating programs.
• Leadership, collaboration and negotiation techniques, including contracts, agreements and proposals.
• Developing and monitoring programs and related budgets.
• Managing user expectations and satisfaction.
• Developing and evaluating Requests for Proposals (RFP5).
• Problem-solving and decision-making.
• Strategic planning, developing, monitoring and evaluating.
• Both verbal and written communication, including presentations and communicating technical issues in non

technical language.

Ability to:
• Manage, motivate, train, develop and evaluate staff.
• Work independently and efficiently and as part of a team.
• Create and maintain the content of complex web sites and pages, suited for Internet and Intranet purposes.
• Manage time well, perform multiple tasks and organize diverse activities.
• Translate policies and objectives into ideas and applications web-based information products.
• Research, compile, analyze, interpret and prepare a variety of memorandums or reports.
• Establish and maintain effective working relationships with departmental clientele, representatives of outside

agencies and providers, other County employees and officials, and the general public.

i23
Page 2 of 3

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Customer Support Manager

JOB CODE: 27854 FLSA STATUS: Exempt
PAY GRADE: 27 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

WORK ENVIRONMENT AND PHYSICAL DEMANDS:

Physical requirements include the ability to lift/carry up to 35-40 pounds occasionally, visual acuity, speech and hearing,
hand and eye coordination and manual dexterity necessary to operate a computer and office equipment. Subject to
standing, sitting, walking, climbing, crawling, bending, stooping, crouching, kneeling, pushing, pulling, reaching, twisting,
balancing, repetitive motion, and squatting to perform the essential functions. Subject to exposure to variations in
extreme heat, cold, mechanical, fume/odor, and dust/mites.

This job description is intended to be generic in nature. It is not necessarily an exhaustive list of all duties
and responsibilities. The essential duties, functions and responsibilities and overtime eligibility may vary
based on the specific tasks assigned to the position.

7’9
Page 3 of 3

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Customer Support Specialist

JOB CODE: 25853 FLSA STATUS: Exempt
PAY GRADE: 25 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

JOB SUMMARY:

Provides technical lead skills to customer support analysts and countywide internal Information Technology (IT) technical
support staff. Evaluates, tests, and creates images for new desktop and mobile hardware and software before
implementing countywide. Develops and distributes applications using complex distribution software and strategies.
Provides first through third level technical support for desktop hardware and software problems and local area network
(LAN)/wide area network (WAN) problems, as required. Resolves problems concerning vendors. Consults with IT users
for all aspects of end-user computing and desktop-based LAN systems software. Serves as a liaison to other technical
support groups or vendors. Documents solutions to problems and develops end-user guidelines.

DISTINGUISHING CHARACTERISTICS:

This is a job classification within the Information Technology job family. Functions as a technical expert and lead
providing complex technical assistance to other Information Technology (IT) technical support staff. Consults with IT
users for all aspects of end-user computing and desktop-based local area network (LAN) systems software. This
classification may require a flexible work schedule in order to meet the needs of the department.

DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES:

• Builds, tests, deploys and maintains software distribution packages for countywide application distribution.

• Participates in the evaluation, testing and deployment of new desktop packages and implements prototypes.
Contributes to determination of technology requirements.

• Conducts advanced diagnostics and troubleshoots system software and hardware (servers, desktops, notebooks,
printers, routers, hubs and other peripherals).

• Serves as Structured Query Language (SQL) server administrator for the countywide customer support server.
Supports customer support SQL applications and provides Helpdesk Expert Automation Tool (HEAT) Administrator
backup support. Maintains countywide software and hardware inventories using asset tracking and audit software.

• Participates in weekly security and network meetings providing liaison support. Works with other technical groups to
implement and monitor desktop security.

• Creates, updates, and maintains images for new and previous desktop and mobile hardware.

• Evaluates, tests, and deploys network client countywide.

• Configures, administers, and maintains desktop security and virus protection software. Initiates distribution and
updates and maintains distributed repositories.

• Provides Novell Network administration, maintaining user accounts, and ensuring remote access capability for
desktops. Configures and maintains network printing with specialized administration software.

• Performs other job-related duties as assigned.

MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS:

Education and Exjerience:
Bachelor’s degree in Computer Science, Information Systems or a directly related field AND seven (7) years of related
work experience, including one (1) year of management, supervisory or team lead experience;

OR,

Any combination of education and experience that has been achieved and is equivalent to the stated education and
experience and required knowledge, skills, and abilities sufficient to successfully perform the duties and responsibilities
of this job.

Page 1 of 2

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Customer Support Specialist

JOB CODE: 25853 FLSA STATUS: Exempt
PAY GRADE: 25 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS: (Cant.)

Licenses, Registrations, Certifications, or Special Requirements:
Valid Texas Driver’s License.

Preferred:
Microsoft Certified Systems Engineer (MCSE); OR,
Certified Novell Engineer (CNE).
Microsoft Certified Professional (MCP) and Certified Novell Administrator (CNA).

Knowledge, Skills, and Abilities:
Knowledge of:
• Network operating systems, desktop operating systems, user applications and system integration.
• Software and hardware (desktops, notebooks, printers and peripherals) installation, testing and deployment.
• Novell ZEN Works and McAfee ePolicy Orchestrator.
• Network administration, monitoring and troubleshooting.
• Federal, State, Local and County applicable laws, rules, regulations and guidelines.
• Management and supervisory principles, practices and techniques.
• Standard practices in area of assignment.

Skill in:
• Explaining complicated technical problems in simple non-technical language.
• Supervising operations personnel in operation of different computer systems and peripheral equipment.
• Problem-solving and decision-making.
• Both verbal and written communication.

Ability to:
• Provide support for desktop hardware and software problems as well as LAN/WAN problems, frequently interfacing

with vendors to resolve third level issues.
• Perform highly complex software and hardware diagnostics and troubleshooting.
• Work independently with limited supervision and direction.
• Demonstrate strong customer services skills.
• Work efficiently both independently and as part of a team.
• Reason and make judgments and decisions.
• Establish and maintain effective working relationships with departmental clientele, representatives of outside

agencies and providers, other County employees and officials, and the general public.

WORK ENVIRONMENT AND PHYSICAL DEMANDS:

Physical requirements include the ability to lift/carry up to 35-40 pounds occasionally, visual acuity, speech and hearing,
hand and eye coordination and manual dexterity necessary to operate a computer and office equipment. Subject to
standing, sitting, walking, climbing, crawling, bending, stooping, crouching, kneeling, pushing, pulling, reaching, twisting,
balancing, repetitive motion, and squatting to perform the essential functions. Subject to exposure to variations in
extreme heat, cold, mechanical, fume/odor, and dust/mites.

This job description is intended to be generic in nature. It is not necessarily an exhaustive list of all duties
and responsibilities. The essential duties, functions and responsibilities and overtime eligibility may vary
based on the specific tasks assigned to the position.

7gb
Page 2 of 2

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Customer Support Analyst III

JOB CODE: 24852 FLSA STATUS: Exempt
PAY GRADE: 24 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

JOB SUMMARY:

Performs Information Technology (IT) customer support work that is complex in nature. Provides first, second and third-
level desktop support on-site as well as through remote applications. Implements, evaluates and facilitates usage of
new client technologies. Performs moderate to advanced network administration and troubleshooting of communication
problems as they affect the user environment. Monitors and troubleshoots local area networks (LANs). Provides
technical support to other IT staff or users. Serves as a team lead when working the Call Center or when assigned
special projects. Provides strategic direction, guidance and training to staff.

DISTINGUISHING CHARACTERISTICS:

This is the fourth in a series of four customer support-related job classifications within the Information Technology job
family. Conducts complex first, second, and third-level desktop support on-site as well as through remote applications.
Serves as a team leader in the Call Center or when assigned special projects in the field. Conducts moderate to
advanced network administration and troubleshooting of communication problems. This classification may require a
flexible work schedule in order to meet the needs of the department.

DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES:

• Serves as a team lead to other Information Technology (IT) staff members on special projects providing technical
assistance to users and other support employees. Participates in the deployment of new computer equipment and
the relocation of County offices and corresponding IT equipment.

• Provides remote desktop support and assistance, using applications such as Novell ZEN Works. Remotely installs,
re-installs, configures or instructs the user over the phone and using the technician’s desktop.

• Works with varied versions of client technologies, installing and testing across many different platforms. Assists in
determination of technology requirements.

• Monitors local area networks (LANs). Conducts second-level or third-level troubleshooting of LAN issues, providing
assistance to other IT groups when necessary. Assists in the installation and modification of user department
networks.

• Creates, resets and deletes user profiles. Assists users with access or login problems.

• Works the Call Center, logging calls, providing first, second, and third-level technical assistance to users and other
IT technicians. Documents call problems and resolution.

• Installs, configures and deploys new software packages, upgrades and new desktop hardware for IT users’
desktops, laptops and printers.

• Executes preventative maintenance work and/or diagnostics on computers and peripherals within a department.

• Provides warranty and vendor support. Assists in the evaluation of vendor products in hardware, software, and
telecommunications equipment.

• Performs other job-related duties as assigned.

MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS:

Education and Experience:
Bachelor’s degree in Computer Science, Information Systems or a directly related field AND five (5) years of related
work experience;

OR,

Any combination of education and experience that has been achieved and is equivalent to the stated education and
experience and required knowledge, skills, and abilities sufficient to successfully perform the duties and responsibilities
of this job.

Page 1 of 2

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Customer Support Analyst III

JOB CODE: 24852 FLSA STATUS: Exempt
PAY GRADE: 24 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS: (Cont.)

Licenses, Registrations, Certifications, or Special Requirements:
Valid Texas Driver’s License.

Preferred:
Certified Novell Administrator (CNA) and Microsoft Certified Professional (MCP) Certifications.

Knowledge, Skills, and Abilities:
Knowledge of:
• Policies, practices, procedures and terminology of assigned function.
• Federal, State, Local and County applicable laws, rules, regulations and guidelines.
• Information technology hardware, software and peripherals as related to assigned function.
• Network operating systems, desktop operating systems, user applications and system integration.
• Software and hardware (desktops, notebooks, printers and peripherals) installation, testing and deployment.
• Job setup and scheduling procedures and maintaining a tape library and supply inventory.
• Computer equipment to include word processing, spreadsheets, databases and a variety of software packages.

Skill in:
• Supervising operations personnel in operation of different computer systems and peripheral equipment.
• Problem-solving and decision-making.
• Both verbal and written communication, including presentations and communicating technical issues in non

technical language.

Ability to:
• Work efficiently both independently and as part of a team.
• Perform complex software and hardware diagnostics and troubleshooting.
• Work independently with limited supervision and direction.
• Demonstrate strong customer services skills.
• Manage time well, perform multiple tasks and organize diverse activities.
• Establish and maintain effective working relationships with departmental clientele, representatives of outside

agencies and providers, other County employees and officials, and the general public.

WORK ENVIRONMENT AND PHYSICAL DEMANDS:

Physical requirements include the ability to lift/carry up to 35-40 pounds occasionally, visual acuity, speech and hearing,
hand and eye coordination and manual dexterity necessary to operate a computer and office equipment. Subject to
standing, sitting, walking, climbing, crawling, bending, stooping, crouching, kneeling, pushing, pulling, reaching, twisting,
balancing, repetitive motion, and squatting to perform the essential functions. Subject to exposure to variations in
extreme heat, cold, mechanical, fume/odor, and dust/mites.

This job description is intended to be generic in nature. It is not necessarily an exhaustive list of all duties
and responsibilities. The essential duties, functions and responsibilities and overtime eligibility may vary
based on the specific tasks assigned to the position.

Page 2 of 2

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTIONDRAFTJOB TITLE: Customer Support Analyst II
JOB CODE: 22851

FLSA STATUS: Exempt

PAY GRADE: 22

LAST REVISED: 10/01/09JOB SUMMARY:
Performs Information Technology (IT) customer support work that is moderately complex in nature. Provides first-level

and second-level desktop support on-site as well as through remote applications. Implements, evaluates and facilitates

usage of new client technologies. Performs basic network administration and troubleshooting of communication

problems as they affect the user environment. Monitors and troubleshoots local area networks (LAJs). May provide

technical support to other IT staff or customers. May act as a team lead when working the Call Center or handling

special projects.

DISTINGUISHING CHARACTERISTICS:
This is the third in a series of four customer support-related job classifications within the Information Technology job

family. Conducts moderately complex first- and second-level desktop support on-site as well as through remote

applications. Executes basic network administration and troubleshooting of communication problems and implements,

evaluates and facilitates usage of new client technologies. This classification may require a flexible wDrk schedule in

order to meet the needs of the department.
DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES:
• Provides remote desktop support and assistance, using applications such as Novell ZEN Works. Remotely installs,

re-installs, configures or instructs the user over the phone and using the technician’s desktop.
• Works with varied versions of client technologies, installing and testing across many different platforms. Assists in

determination of technology requirements.
• Monitors local area networks (LANs). Conducts first-level troubleshooting of LAN issues, escalating problems to

senior Information Technology (IT) support, as required. Assists in the installation and modification of user

department networks.
• Creates, resets and deletes user profiles. Assists users with access or login problems.• Works the Call Center, logging calls, providing first- and second-level technical assistance to users and other IT

technicians. Documents call problems and resolution.• Installs, configures and deploys new software packages, upgrades new desktop hardware for IT users’ desktops,

laptops and printers.
• Initiates preventative maintenance work and/or diagnostics on computers and peripherals within a department.
• Provides warranty and vendor support. Assists in the evaluation of vendor products in hardware, software, and

telecommunications equipment.
• May act as a team lead when working the Call Center or handling special projects. May provide technical support to

other IT staff or customers. Participates in the deployment of new computer equipment and the relocation of County

offices and corresponding IT equipment.
• Performs other job-related duties as assigned.
MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS:
Education and Experience:Bachelor’s degree in Computer Science, Information Systems or a directly related field AND three (3) years of related

work experience;
OR,

Any combination of education and experience that has been achieved and is equivalent to the stated education and

experience and required knowledge, skills, and abilities sufficient to successfully perform the duties and responsibilities

of this job.

Page 1 of 2

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Customer Support Analyst II

JOB CODE: 22851 FLSA STATUS: Exempt
PAY GRADE: 22 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS: (Cont.)

Licenses, Registrations, Certifications, or Special Requirements:
Valid Texas Driver’s License.

Preferred:
Certified Novell Administrator (CNA) and Microsoft Certified Professional (MCP) Certifications.
Knowledge, Skills, and Abilities:
Knowledge of:
• Policies, practices, procedures and terminology of assigned function.
• Federal, State, Local and County applicable laws, rules, regulations and guidelines.
• Information technology hardware, software and peripherals as related to assigned function.
• Network operating systems, desktop operating systems, user applications and system integration.
• Software and hardware (desktops, notebooks, printers and peripherals) installation, testing and deployment.
• Job setup and scheduling procedures and maintaining a tape library and supply inventory.
• Computer equipment to include word processing, spreadsheets, databases and a variety of software packages.
Skill in:
• Problem-solving and decision-making.
• Both verbal and written communication, including presentations and communicating technical issues in non

technical language.

Ability to:
• Work efficiently both independently and as part of a team.
• Perform moderately complex software and hardware diagnostics and troubleshooting.
• Work independently with limited supervision and direction.
• Demonstrate strong customer services skills.
• Manage time well, perform multiple tasks and organize diverse activities.
• Establish and maintain effective working relationships with departmental clientele, representatives of outside

agencies and providers, other County employees and officials, and the general public.

WORK ENVIRONMENT AND PHYSICAL DEMANDS:

Physical requirements include the ability to liWcarry up to 35-40 pounds occasionally, visual acuity, speech and hearing,
hand and eye coordination and manual dexterity necessary to operate a computer and office equipment. Subject to
standing, sitting, walking, climbing, crawling, bending, stooping, crouching, kneeling, pushing, pulling, reaching, twisting,
balancing, repetitive motion, and squatting to perform the essential functions. Subject to exposure to variations in
extreme heat, cold, mechanical, fume/odor, and dust/mites.

This job description is intended to be generic in nature. It is not necessarily an exhaustive list of all duties
and responsibilities. The essential duties, functions and responsibilities and overtime eligibility may vary
based on the specific tasks assigned to the position.

Page 2 of 2
7)

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Customer Support Analyst I

JOB CODE: 20850 FLSA STATUS: Exempt
PAY GRADE: 20 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

JOB SUMMARY:

Performs Information Technology (IT) customer support work that is basic to moderately complex in nature. Provides
first-level and second-level desktop support on-site as well as through remote applications. Assists with the
implementation, evaluation and usage of new client technologies. Performs basic network administration and
troubleshooting of communication problems as they affect the user environment. Performs monitoring and
troubleshooting of local area networks (LANs).

DISTINGUISHING CHARACTERISTICS:

This is the second in a series of four customer support-related job classifications within the Information Technology job
family. Conducts basic to moderately complex first- and second-level desktop support on-site as well as through remote
applications. Executes basic network administration and troubleshooting of communication problems and assists with
the implementation, evaluation and usage of new client technologies. This classification may require a flexible work
schedule in order to meet the needs of the department.

DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES:

• Provides remote desktop support and assistance, using applications such as Novell ZEN Works. Installs, re-installs,
configures or instructs the user over the phone and uses the technician’s desktop.

• Works with varied versions of client technologies, installing and testing across many different platforms. Assists in
determination of technology requirements.

• Monitors local area networks (LANs). Conducts first-level troubleshooting of LAN issues, escalating problems to
senior Information Technology (IT) support, as required.

• Creates, resets and deletes user profiles. Assists users with access or login problems.

• Works the Call Center, logging calls, providing first- and second-level technical assistance to users and other IT
technicians.

• Installs, configures and deploys new software packages, upgrades new desktop hardware for IT users’ desktops,
laptops and printers.

• Initiates preventative maintenance work and/or diagnostics on computers and peripherals within a department.

• Works on special projects providing technical assistance to users and other support employees. Participates in the
deployment of new computer equipment and the relocation of County offices and corresponding IT equipment.

• Performs other job-related duties as assigned.

MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS:

Education and Experience:
Bachelor’s degree in Computer Science, Information Systems or a directly related field AND one (1) year of relevant
work experience;

OR,

Any combination of education and experience that has been achieved and is equivalent to the stated education and
experience and required knowledge, skills, and abilities sufficient to successfully perform the duties and responsibilities
of this job.

Licenses, Registrations, Certifications, or Special Requirements:
Valid Texas Driver’s License.

Preferred:
Certified Novell Administrator (CNA) and Microsoft Certified Professional (MCP) Certifications.

Pagelof2 ‘‘ /

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Customer Support Analyst I

JOB CODE: 20850 FLSA STATUS: ExemptPAY GRADE: 20 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS: (Cont.)

Knowledge, Skills, and Abilities:
Knowledge of:
• Policies, practices, procedures and terminology of assigned function.
• Federal, State, Local and County applicable laws, rules, regulations and guidelines.
• Information technology hardware, software and peripherals as related to assigned function.• Network operating systems, desktop operating systems, user applications and system integration.• Software and hardware (desktops, notebooks, printers and peripherals) installation, testing and deployment.• Job setup and scheduling procedures and maintaining a tape library and supply inventory.• Computer equipment to include word processing, spreadsheets, databases and a variety of software packages.
Skill in:
• Problem-solving and decision-making.
• Both verbal and written communication, including presentations and communicating technical issues in nontechnical language.

Ability to:
• Work efficiently both independently and as part of a team.
• Perform basic to intermediate software and hardware diagnostics and troubleshooting.• Demonstrate strong customer services skills.
• Manage time well, perform multiple tasks and organize diverse activities.
• Establish and maintain effective working relationships with departmental clientele, outside agencies and providers,other County employees and officials, and the general public.

WORK ENVIRONMENT AND PHYSICAL DEMANDS:
Physical requirements include the ability to lift/carry up to 35-40 pounds occasionally, visual acuity, speech and hearing,hand and eye coordination and manual dexterity necessary to operate a computer and office equipment. Subject tostanding, sitting, walking, climbing, crawling, bending, stooping, crouching, kneeling, pushing, pulling, reaching, twisting,balancing, repetitive motion, and squatting to perform the essential functions. Subject to exposure to variations inextreme heat, cold, mechanical, fume/odor, and dust/mites.

This job description is intended to be generic in nature. It is not necessarily an exhaustive list of all dutiesand responsibilities. The essential duties, functions and responsibilities and overtime eligibility may varybased on the specific tasks assigned to the position.

Page 2 of 2

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Customer Support Technician
JOB CODE: 18849

FLSA STATUS: Non-ExemptPAY GRADE: 18
LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

JOB SUMMARY:

Performs first level Information Technology (IT) customer support work based on established and well-documentedchecklists or procedures. Answers incoming IT calls from department users, elicits pertinent information from the callerrecords and assigns to the appropriate second level support technician.

DISTINGUISHING CHARACTERISTICS:
This is the first in a series of four customer support-related job classifications within the Information Technology jobfamily. Conducts first level Information Technology (IT) customer support work. Receives and answers technical callsand refers to higher level customer support staff. May troubleshoot the most basic technical problems. Thisclassification may require a flexible work schedule in order to meet the needs of the department.
DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES:

• Receives and answers incoming Information Technology (IT) calls from department users and logs in. Assists usersby providing first-level, basic technical assistance based on well-documented checklists or procedures.
• Coordinates and assigns calls to second level support technician. Provides customer information to technician andcommunicates technical problems.
• Maintains and provides status reports on call tracking system. Provides statistics on types of calls, call volume,problem referral and resolution, and other variables.
• May conduct customer support work within user departments. Troubleshoots and solves problem or coordinateswith Information Technology System (ITS) technical staff.
• May assist with installation of hardware, such as desktops and printers, software, or assist in special projects. Mayexecute routine preventative maintenance and/or diagnostics within a department.
• Performs other job-related duties as assigned.

MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS:

Education and Experience:
Associate’s degree in Computer Science, Information Systems or a directly related field AND two (2) years of relevantwork experience;
OR,
Any combination of education and experience that has been achieved and is equivalent to the stated education andexperience and required knowledge, skills, and abilities sufficient to successfully perform the duties and responsibilitiesof this job.
Licenses, Registrations, Certifications, or Special Requirements:Valid Texas Driver’s License.

Preferred:
One (1) year of first-level customer support and/or call center work experience.
Knowledge, Skills, and Abilities:
Knowledge of:
• Policies, practices, procedures and terminology of assigned function.• Federal, State, Local and County applicable laws, rules, regulations and guidelines.• Information technology hardware, software and peripherals as related to assigned function.• Call center operations, desktop operating systems, user applications and system integration.• Software and hardware (desktops, notebooks, printers and peripherals) installation, testing and deployment.• Computer hardware systems, software systems and network equipment.• Computer equipment to include word processing, spreadsheets, databases and a variety of software packages.

79JPage 1 of 2

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Customer Support Technician

JOB CODE: 18849 FLSA STATUS: Non-Exempt
PAY GRADE: 18 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS: (Cont.)

Skill in:
• Problem-solving and decision-making.
• Both verbal and written communication, including presentations and communicating technical issues in non

technical language.

Ability to:
• Demonstrate strong customer services skills.
• Work independently and efficiently and as part of a team.
• Operate computers and peripheral equipment effectively.
• Manage time well, perform multiple tasks and organize diverse activities.
• Work efficiently both independently and as part of a team.
• Establish and maintain effective working relationships with departmental clientele, representatives of outside

agencies and providers, other County employees and officials, and the general public.

WORK ENVIRONMENT AND PHYSICAL DEMANDS:

Physical requirements include the ability to lift/carry up to 35-40 pounds occasionally, visual acuity, speech and hearing,
hand and eye coordination and manual dexterity necessary to operate a computer and office equipment. Subject to
standing, walking, sitting, repetitive motion, reaching, climbing stairs, bending, stooping, kneeling, crouching, crawling,
pushing, pulling, balancing, client/customer contact, squatting to perform the essential functions. Subject to exposure to
variations in extreme heat, cold, mechanical, fume/odor, and dust/mites.

This job description is intended to be generic in nature. It is not necessarily an exhaustive list of all duties
and responsibilities. The essential duties, functions and responsibilities and overtime eligibility may vary
based on the specific tasks assigned to the position.

Page2of2 TT4

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Telecommunications Manager

JOB CODE: 29848 FLSA STATUS: Exempt
PAY GRADE: 29 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

JOB SUMMARY:

Manages the operations, daily planning, engineering, design and resource allocation for enterprise telecommunications
functions. Ensures customer satisfaction through quality standards and measures by evaluating the performance of
telecommunications network and related interfaces. Manages strategic telecommunications planning and works with
upper management to coordinate telecommunication plans. Develops and implements standards, procedures and
processes for the telecommunications group. Plans and manages the support of new technologies, performance and
reliability. Defines and negotiates service level agreements.

DISTINGUISHING CHARACTERISTICS:

This is a job classification within the Information Technology job family. Manages the work of technical staff engaged in
telecommunications planning, engineering, design and resource allocation. Functions as technical expert and manager,
providing tactical direction, contributing to strategic planning for telecommunications, supervising staff and coordinating
closely with higher level management to meet user and organizational requirements in accordance with strategic and
organizational goals. This classification may require a flexible work schedule in order to meet the needs of the
department.

DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES:

• Manages the operations, daily planning, engineering, design and resource allocation for enterprise
telecommunications functions.

• Provides supervisory leadership in planning, organizing, implementing and evaluating telecommunications services
in accordance with Federal, State and Local laws, policies, procedures, guidelines and enterprise goals and
objectives.

• Manages staff, including performing or collaborating with higher management in the hiring, training, performance
evaluation, disciplinary actions and dismissal of staff. Seeks and creates opportunities for improved performance,
learning and development of staff and identifies and addresses problems or conflicts.

• Works with key stakeholders to identify and prioritize projects. Oversees the gathering of business requirements
and the analysis and translation of business requirements into telecommunications systems in order to meet user
and organizational objectives.

• Oversees and ensures the coordination of all telecommunications activities. Manages projects and services to
ensure delivery on time and in accordance with user objectives.

• Develops and implements standards, procedures and processes for the telecommunications group.

• Serves as technical expert for difficult and complex telecommunications problems.

• Researches and maintains knowledge in emerging technologies, applicable to the organization environment.

• Plans and provides budget request information as part of the annual budget process. Assists in monitoring budget
expenditures to ensure consistent with department goals and objectives and within available funds.

• Oversees long distance billing reimbursement.

• Performs other job-related duties as assigned.

MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS:

Education and Experience:
Bachelor’s degree in Computer Science, Information Systems, Business Administration or a directly related field AND
ten (10) years of relevant work experience, including two (2) years of team lead, supervisory or management
experience:

Pagelof3 7/5

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Telecommunications Manager

JOB CODE: 29848 FLSA STATUS: Exempt
PAY GRADE: 29 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS: (Cont.)

Education and Experience: (Cont.)
OR,

Any combination of education and experience that has been achieved and is equivalent to the stated education and
experience and required knowledge, skills, and abilities sufficient to successfully perform the duties and responsibilities
of this job.

Licenses, Registrations, Certifications, or Special Requirements:
Valid Texas Driver’s License.

Knowledge, Skills, and Abilities:
Knowledge of:
• Management and supervisory principles, practices and techniques.
• Policies, practices, procedures and terminology of assigned function.
• Federal, State, Local and County applicable laws, rules, regulations and guidelines.
• Information technology hardware, software and peripherals as related to assigned function.
• Telecommunications operations.
• Call management systems and Interactive Voice Response (IVR), Automatic Call Distribution (ACD), Computer

Telephony Integration (CTI), and Voice over Internet Protocol (VOIP).
• Budget preparation and office management.
• Computer equipment to include word processing, spreadsheets, databases and a variety of software packages.

Skill in:
• Managing staff, allocating resources and evaluating programs.
• Leadership, collaboration and negotiation techniques, including contracts, agreements and proposals.
• Developing and monitoring programs and related budgets.
• Managing user expectations and satisfaction.
• Developing and evaluating Requests for Proposals (REPs).
• Problem-solving and decision-making.
• Strategic planning, developing, monitoring and evaluating.
• Both verbal and written communication, including presentations and communicating technical issues in non

technical language.

Ability to:
• Manage, motivate, train, develop and evaluate staff.
• Work independently and efficiently and as part of a team.
• Create and maintain the content of complex web sites and pages, suited for Internet and Intranet purposes.
• Manage time well, perform multiple tasks and organize diverse activities.
• Translate policies and objectives into ideas and applications web-based information products.
• Research, compile, analyze, interpret and prepare a variety of memorandums or reports.
• Install, maintain and troubleshoot complex telecommunications systems and equipment.
• Establish and maintain effective working relationships with departmental clientele, representatives of outside

agencies and providers, other County employees and officials, and the general public.

Page2of3 / I -

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Telecommunications Manager
JOB CODE: 29848 FLSA STATUS: ExemptPAY GRADE: 29 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

WORK ENVIRONMENT AND PHYSICAL DEMANDS:
Physical requirements include the ability to lift/carry up to 35-40 pounds occasionally, visual acuity, speech and hearing,hand and eye coordination and manual dexterity necessary to operate a computer and office equipment. Subject tostanding, sitting, walking, climbing, crawling, bending, stooping, crouching, kneeling, pushing, pulling, reaching, twisting,balancing, repetitive motion, and squatting to perform the essential functions. Subject to exposure to variations inextreme heat, cold, mechanical, fume/odor, and dust/mites.

This job description is intended to be generic in nature. It is not necessarily an exhaustive list of all dutiesand responsibilities. The essential duties, functions and responsibilities and overtime eligibility may varybased on the specific tasks assigned to the position.

Page3of3 7’??

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Telecommunications Technician Ill

JOB CODE: 23847 FLSA STATUS: Non-Exempt
PAY GRADE: 23 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

JOB SUMMARY:

Monitors, operates, installs and maintains telecommunications systems and equipment, including Private Branch
Exchange (PBX), Interactive Voice Response (IVR), Automatic Call Distribution (ACD) and voicemail systems. Performs
advanced troubleshooting of hardware and software problems to ensure that systems perform in a manner that meets
organizational needs and objectives.

DISTINGUISHING CHARACTERISTICS:

This is the third in a series of three telecommunications-related job classifications within the Information Technology job
family. Monitors, operates, installs and maintains telecommunications systems and equipment. Conducts moderately
advanced troubleshooting of hardware and software problems. This classification may require a flexible work schedule
in order to meet the needs of the department.

DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES:

• Conducts complex installation of telecommunications equipment. Ensures newly installed equipment is fully
operational. Prepares equipment and service orders.

• Monitors telecommunications systems. Conducts complex testing of equipment to facilitate system operation.

• Executes advanced troubleshooting of telecommunications hardware and software problems systemwide and for
individual users. Analyzes system and equipment problems and completes complex repairs.

• Replaces, cleans or repairs parts on various telecommunications equipment. Maintains equipment and utilizes
testing devices to test and analyze operational malfunctioning.

• Executes complex additions, moves and changes for digital and analog phones. Programs software to include
telephones, associated features, and maintenance loads.

• May supervise and train technical staff.

• Logs system performance statistics and assists in preparing related reports.

• Establishes telecommunications policies and procedures.

• Performs other job-related duties as assigned.

MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS:

Education and Experience:
Associate’s degree in Computer Science, Information Systems or a directly related field AND five (5) years of related
work experience;
OR,

Any combination of education and experience that has been achieved and is equivalent to the stated education and
experience and required knowledge, skills, and abilities sufficient to successfully perform the duties and responsibilities
of this job.

Licenses, Registrations, Certifications, or Special Requirements:
Valid Texas Driver’s License.

Knowledge, Skills, and Abilities:
Knowledge of:
• Policies, practices, procedures and terminology of assigned function.
• Federal, State, Local and County applicable laws, rules, regulations and guidelines.
• Information technology hardware, software and peripherals as related to assigned function.
• Telecommunications operations.
• Call management systems and Interactive Voice Response (IVR), Automatic Call Distribution (ACD), Computer

Telephony Integration (CTI), and Voice over Internet Protocol (VOIP).
• Computer equipment to include word processing, spreadsheets, databases and a variety of software packages.

Page 1 of 2

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Telecommunications Technician III

JOB CODE: 23847 FLSA STATUS: Non-Exempt
PAY GRADE: 23 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS: (Cont.)

Skill in:
• Problem-solving and decision-making.
• Both verbal and written communication, including presentations and communicating technical issues in non

technical language.

Ability to:
• Install, maintain and troubleshoot complex telecommunications systems and equipment.
• Work independently and efficiently and as part of a team.
• Demonstrate strong customer services skills.
• Manage time well, perform multiple tasks and organize diverse activities.
• Establish and maintain effective working relationships with departmental clientele, representatives of outside

agencies and providers, other County employees and officials, and the general public.

WORK ENVIRONMENT AND PHYSICAL DEMANDS:

Physical requirements include the ability to lift/carry up to 35-40 pounds occasionally, visual acuity, speech and hearing,
hand and eye coordination and manual dexterity necessary to operate a computer and office equipment. Subject to
standing, sitting, walking, climbing, crawling, bending, stooping, crouching, kneeling, pushing, pulling, reaching, twisting,
balancing, repetitive motion, and squatting to perform the essential functions. Subject to exposure to variations in
extreme heat, cold, mechanical, fume/odor, and dust/mites.

This job description is intended to be generic in nature. It is not necessarily an exhaustive list of all duties
and responsibilities. The essential duties, functions and responsibilities and overtime eligibility may vary
based on the specific tasks assigned to the position.

Page2of2 7’’

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Telecommunications Technician II

JOB CODE: 21846 FLSA STATUS: Non-Exempt
PAY GRADE: 21 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

JOB SUMMARY:

Monitors, operates, installs and maintains telecommunications systems and equipment, including Private Branch
Exchange (PBX), Interactive Voice Response (IVR), Automatic Call Distribution (ACD) and voicemail systems. Performs
moderately complex troubleshooting of hardware and software problems to ensure that systems perform in a manner
that meets organizational needs and objectives.

DISTINGUISHING CHARACTERISTICS:

This is the second in a series of three telecommunications-related job classifications within the Information Technology
job family. Monitors, operates, installs and maintains telecommunications systems and equipment. Conducts
moderately complex troubleshooting of hardware and software problems. This classification may require a flexible work
schedule in order to meet the needs of the department.

DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES:

• Conducts moderately complex installation of telecommunications equipment. Ensures newly installed equipment is
fully operational. Prepares equipment and service orders.

• Monitors telecommunications systems. Conducts moderately complex testing of equipment to facilitate system
operation.

• Conducts moderately complex troubleshooting of telecommunications hardware and software problems systemwide
and for individual users. Analyzes system and equipment problems and completes moderately complex repairs.

• Replaces, cleans or repairs parts on various telecommunications equipment. Maintains equipment and utilizes
testing devices to test and analyze operational malfunctioning.

• Executes additions, moves and changes for digital and analog phones. Programs software to include telephones,
associated features, and maintenance loads.

• Logs system performance statistics and assists in preparing related reports.

• Assists in establishing telecommunications policies and procedures.

• Performs other job-related duties as assigned.

MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS:

Education and Experience:
Associate’s degree in Computer Science, Information Systems or a directly related field AND three (3) years of related
work experience;
OR,

Any combination of education and experience that has been achieved and is equivalent to the stated education and
experience and required knowledge, skills, and abilities sufficient to successfully perform the duties and responsibilities
of this job.

Licenses, Registrations, Certifications, or Special Requirements:
Valid Texas Driver’s License.

Knowledge. Skills, and Abilities:
Knowledge of:
• Policies, practices, procedures and terminology of assigned function.
• Federal, State, Local and County applicable laws, rules, regulations and guidelines.
• Information technology hardware, software and peripherals as related to assigned function.
• Telecommunications operations.
• Call management systems and Interactive Voice Response (IVR), Automatic Call Distribution (ACD), Computer

Telephony Integration (CTI), and Voice over Internet Protocol (VOIP).
• Computer equipment to include word processing, spreadsheets, databases and a variety of software packages.

Page 1 of 2

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Telecommunications Technician II

JOB CODE: 21846 FLSA STATUS: Non-Exempt
PAY GRADE: 21 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS: (Cont.)

Skill in:
• Problem-solving and decision-making.
• Both verbal and written communication, including presentations and communicating technical issues in non

technical language.

Ability to:
• Install, maintain and troubleshoot complex telecommunications systems and equipment.
• Work independently and efficiently and as part of a team.
• Demonstrate strong customer services skills.
• Manage time well, perform multiple tasks and organize diverse activities.
• Establish and maintain effective working relationships with departmental clientele, representatives of outside

agencies and providers, other County employees and officials, and the general public.

WORK ENVIRONMENT AND PHYSICAL DEMANDS:

Physical requirements include the ability to lift/carry up to 35-40 pounds occasionally, visual acuity, speech and hearing,
hand and eye coordination and manual dexterity necessary to operate a computer and office equipment. Subject to
standing, sitting, walking, climbing, crawling, bending, stooping, crouching, kneeling, pushing, pulling, reaching, twisting,
balancing, repetitive motion, and squatting to perform the essential functions. Subject to exposure to variations in
extreme heat, cold, mechanical, fume/odor, and dust/mites.

This job description is intended to be generic in nature. It is not necessarily an exhaustive list of all duti
and responsibilities. The essential duties, functions and responsibilities and overtime eligibility may vary
based on the specific tasks assigned to the position.

Page 2 of 2

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Telecommunications Technician I

JOB CODE: 19845 FLSA STATUS: Non-Exempt
PAY GRADE: 19 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

JOB SUMMARY:

Assists with the monitoring, operation, installation and maintenance of telecommunications systems and equipment,
including Private Branch Exchange (PBX), Interactive Voice Response (IVR), Automatic Call Distribution (ACD) and
voicemail systems. Performs basic troubleshooting of hardware and software problems to ensure that systems perform
in a manner that meets organizational needs and objectives.

DISTINGUISHING CHARACTERISTICS:

This is the first in a series of three telecommunications-related job classifications within the Information Technology job
family. Assists with the monitoring, operation, installation and maintenance of telecommunications systems and
equipment. Executes basic troubleshooting of hardware and software problems. This classification may require a
flexible work schedule in order to meet the needs of the department.

DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES:

• Conducts routine installation of telecommunications equipment. Ensures newly installed equipment is fully
operational.

• Assists in monitoring telecommunications systems. Conducts routine testing of equipment to facilitate system
operation.

• Executes basic troubleshooting of telecommunications hardware and software problems systemwide and for
individual users. Assists in analyzing system and equipment problems and makes routine repairs.

• Replaces, cleans or repairs parts on various communication equipment. Maintains equipment and utilizes testing
devices to test and analyze operational malfunctioning.

• Executes routine additions, moves and changes for digital and analog phones. Programs software to include
telephones, associated features, and maintenance loads.

• Assists in logging system performance statistics and preparing related reports.

• Performs other job-related duties as assigned.

MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS:

Education and Experience:
Associate’s degree in Computer Science, Information Systems or a directly related field AND one (1) year of related
work experience;
OR,

Any combination of education and experience that has been achieved and is equivalent to the stated education and
experience and required knowledge, skills, and abilities sufficient to successfully perform the duties and responsibilities
of this job.

Licenses, Registrations, Certifications, or Special Requirements:
Valid Texas Driver’s License.

Knowledge, Skills, and Abilities:
Knowledge of:
• Policies, practices, procedures and terminology of assigned function.
• Federal, State, Local and County applicable laws, rules, regulations and guidelines.
• Information technology hardware, software and peripherals as related to assigned function.
• Telecommunications operations.
• Call management systems and Interactive Voice Response (IVR), Automatic Call Distribution (ACD), Computer

Telephony Integration (CTI), and Voice over Internet Protocol (VOIP).
• Computer equipment to include word processing, spreadsheets, databases and a variety of software packages.

Page 1 of 2

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Telecommunications Technician I

JOB CODE: 19845 FLSA STATUS: Non-Exempt
PAY GRADE: 19 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS: (Cont.)

Skill in:
• Problem-solving and decision-making.
• Both verbal and written communication, including presentations and communicating technical issues in non

technical language.

Ability to:
• Install, maintain and troubleshoot complex telecommunications systems and equipment.
• Work independently and efficiently and as part of a team.
• Demonstrate strong customer services skills.
• Manage time well, perform multiple tasks and organize diverse activities.
• Establish and maintain effective working relationships with departmental clientele, representatives of outside

agencies and providers, other County employees and officials, and the general public.

WORK ENVIRONMENT AND PHYSICAL DEMANDS:

Physical requirements include the ability to lift/carry up to 35-40 pounds occasionally, visual acuity, speech and hearing,
hand and eye coordination and manual dexterity necessary to operate a computer and office equipment. Subject to
standing, sitting, walking, climbing, crawling, bending, stooping, crouching, kneeling, pushing, pulling, reaching, twisting,
balancing, repetitive motion, and squatting to perform the essential functions. Subject to exposure to variations in
extreme heat, cold, mechanical, fume/odor, and dust/mites.

This job description is intended to be generic in nature. It is not necessarily an exhaustive list of all duties
and responsibilities. The essential duties, functions and responsibilities and overtime eligibility may vary
based on the specific tasks assigned to the position.

Page 2 of 2

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Technical Trainer II

JOB CODE: 23844 FLSA STATUS: Exempt
PAY GRADE: 23 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

JOB SUMMARY:

Creates and delivers training and development programs to all levels of department users. Works closely with
Information Technology (IT) staff and department representatives to understand system and training needs for
supported applications. Plans training to meet user needs. Develops documentation for custom applications and
packaged applications, using a variety of mediums as needed. Designs training programs, classes and workshops.
Specializes in training programs for standard office productivity and e-mail applications.

DISTINGUISHING CHARACTERISTICS:

This is the second in a series of two technical training-related job classifications within the Information Technology job
family. Develops moderately complex to complex training to meet user needs. The Technical Trainer I works with other
Information Technology (IT) staff and users to understand training needs and plans training to meet these needs. This
classification may require a flexible work schedule in order to meet the needs of the department.

DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES:

• Creates and delivers training and development programs to all levels of department users. Creates and develops
manuals, technical documentation and other reference materials to assist users and other Information Technology
(IT) staff in the use of applications.

• Develops documentation for custom applications.

• Designs training programs, classes and workshops, based on organizational needs. Recommends or develops
schedule of training classes and more customized training sessions.

• Plans training to meet user needs. Provides input into development of organizational technical training goals and
objectives.

• Coordinates publishing of training content and updates.

• Reviews and troubleshoots web site issues. Ensures website training calendar is updated and accurate.

• Collects, maintains and produces reports on training effectiveness and other statistics.

• Performs other job-related duties as assigned.

MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS:

Education and Experience:
Bachelor’s degree in Computer Science, Information Systems, Instructional Technology, Education, Business
Administration or a directly related field AND three (3) years of related work experience;
OR,

Any combination of education and experience that has been achieved and is equivalent to the stated education and
experience and required knowledge, skills, and abilities sufficient to successfully perform the duties and responsibilities
of this job.

Licenses, Registrations, Certifications, or Special Requirements:
Valid Texas Driver’s License.

Preferred:
Microsoft Certified Trainer (MCT) or a related certification.

Knowledge, Skills, and Abilities:
Knowledge of:
• Standard office productivity applications, including the Microsoft Office suite of products.
• Policies, practices, procedures and terminology of assigned function.
• Federal, State, Local and County applicable laws, rules, regulations and guidelines.
• Information technology hardware, software and peripherals as related to assigned function.
• Computer equipment to include word processing, spreadsheets, databases and a variety of software packages.

Pagelof2

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Technical Trainer II

JOB CODE: 23844 FLSA STATUS: Exempt
PAY GRADE: 23 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS: (Cont.)

Skill in:
• Understanding user training needs and developing training solutions to meet business needs.
• Problem-solving and decision-making.
• Training users on computer applications.
• Both verbal and written communication, including presentations and communicating technical issues in non

technical language.

Ability to:
• Develop lesson plans and evaluation and measurement tools.
• Work independently and efficiently and as part of a team.
• Manage time well, perform multiple tasks and organize diverse activities.
• Translate policies and objectives into ideas and applications web-based information products.
• Research, compile, analyze, interpret and prepare a variety of memorandums or reports.
• Establish and maintain effective working relationships with departmental clientele, representatives of outside

agencies and providers, other County employees and officials, and the general public.

WORK ENVIRONMENT AND PHYSICAL DEMANDS:

Physical requirements include the ability to lift/carry up to 35-40 pounds occasionally, visual acuity, speech and hearing,
hand and eye coordination and manual dexterity necessary to operate a computer and office equipment. Subject to
standing, sitting, walking, climbing, crawling, bending, stooping, crouching, kneeling, pushing, pulling, reaching, twisting,
balancing, repetitive motion, and squatting to perform the essential functions. Subject to exposure to variations in
extreme heat, cold, mechanical, fume/odor, and dust/mites.

This job description is intended to be generic in nature. It is not necessarily an exhaustive list of all duties
and responsibilities. The essential duties, functions and responsibilities and overtime eligibility may vary
based on the specific tasks assigned to the position.

Page 2 of 2

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Technical Trainer I

JOB CODE: 21843 FLSA STATUS: Exempt
PAY GRADE: 21 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

JOB SUMMARY:

Creates and delivers training and development programs to all levels of department users. Works closely with
Information Technology (IT) staff and department representatives to understand system and training needs for
supported applications. Assists in planning training to meet user needs. Develops documentation for custom
applications and packaged applications, using a variety of mediums as needed. Designs training programs, classes and
workshops. Specializes in training programs for standard office productivity and e-mail applications.

DISTINGUISHING CHARACTERISTICS:

This is the first in a series of two technical training-related job classifications within the Information Technology job
family. Develops training to meet user needs. The Technical Trainer I works with other Information Technology (IT)
staff and users to understand training needs and assists in planning training to meet these needs. This classification
may require a flexible work schedule in order to meet the needs of the department.

DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES:

• Creates and delivers training and development programs to all levels of department users.

• Develops documentation for custom applications. Creates and develops manuals, technical documentation and
other reference materials to assist users and other Information Technology (IT) staff in the use of applications.

• Designs training programs, classes and workshops, based on organizational needs. Recommends or develops
schedule of training classes and more customized training sessions.

• Assists in planning training to meet user needs. Provides input into development of organizational technical training
goals and objectives.

• Coordinates publishing of training content and updates.

• Reviews and troubleshoots web site issues. Ensures website training calendar is updated and accurate.

• Collects, maintains and produces reports on training effectiveness and other statistics.

• Performs other job-related duties as assigned.

MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS:

Education and Experience:
Bachelor’s degree in Computer Science, Information Systems, Instructional Technology, Education, Business
Administration or a directly related field AND one (1) year of related work experience;
OR,

Any combination of education and experience that has been achieved and is equivalent to the stated education and
experience and required knowledge, skills, and abilities sufficient to successfully perform the duties and responsibilities
of this job.

Licenses, Registrations, Certifications, or Special Requirements:
Valid Texas Driver’s License.

Preferred:
Microsoft Certified Trainer (MCT) or a related certification.

Knowledge, Skills, and Abilities:
Knowledge of:
• Standard office productivity applications, including the Microsoft Office suite of products.
• Policies, practices, procedures and terminology of assigned function.
• Federal, State, Local and County applicable laws, rules, regulations and guidelines.
• Information technology hardware, software and peripherals as related to assigned function.
• Computer equipment to include word processing, spreadsheets, databases and a variety of software packages.

Page 1 of 2

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Technical Trainer I

JOB CODE: 21843 FLSA STATUS: Exempt
PAY GRADE: 21 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS: (Cont.)

Skill in:
• Understanding user training needs and developing training solutions to meet business needs.
• Problem-solving and decision-making.
• Training users on computer applications.
• Both verbal and written communication, including presentations and communicating technical issues in non

technical language.

Ability to:
• Develop lesson plans and evaluation and measurement tools.
• Work independently and efficiently and as part of a team.
• Manage time well, perform multiple tasks and organize diverse activities.
• Translate policies and objectives into ideas and applications web-based information products.
• Research, compile, analyze, interpret and prepare a variety of memorandums or reports.
• Establish and maintain effective working relationships with departmental clientele, outside agencies and providers,

other County employees and officials, and the general public.

WORK ENVIRONMENT AND PHYSICAL DEMANDS:

Physical requirements include the ability to lift/carry up to 35-40 pounds occasionally, visual acuity, speech and hearing,
hand and eye coordination and manual dexterity necessary to operate a computer and office equipment. Subject to
standing, sitting, walking, climbing, crawling, bending, stooping, crouching, kneeling, pushing, pulling, reaching, twisting,
balancing, repetitive motion, and squatting to perform the essential functions. Subject to exposure to variations in
extreme heat, cold, mechanical, fume/odor, and dust/mites.

This job description is intended to be generic in nature. It is not necessarily an exhaustive list of all duti
and responsibilities. The essential duties, functions and responsibilities and overtime eligibility may vary
based on the specific tasks assigned to the position.

Page 2 of 2

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Systems and Network Operations Division Manager

JOB CODE: 30842 FLSA STATUS: Exempt
PAY GRADE: 30 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

JOB SUMMARY:

Oversees and directs the overall operations, staff and management of network, systems, and data center operations for
the enterprise. Participates in long-range strategy planning and manages policy development to address complex
organizational issues related to areas of oversight. Establishes and implements enterprise-level technology standards
and best practices. Develops enterprise service levels for data and networking equipment as well as for software
applications. Develops and establishes procedures and processes for enterprise network operations. Oversees the
integration and support of new network technologies. Ensures that the enterprise has the capability to support new
technologies and maintain high levels of network performance and reliability. Approves, plans and budgets for all assets
in area of responsibility.

DISTINGUISHING CHARACTERISTICS:

This is a job classification within the Information Technology job family. Directs and manages the overall operations, staff
and management of network, systems, and data center operations for the enterprise. Manages integration and support
of new network, data and software applications technologies and establishes related service levels to meet user and
organizational requirements in accordance with strategic and organizational goals. This classification may require a
flexible work schedule in order to meet the needs of the department.

DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES:

• Oversees and manages enterprise Information Technology (IT) network, systems and data center operations
support functions. Provides technical leadership and direction in ensuring the successful integration of new methods
and technologies with existing systems.

• Provides leadership, management and coordination in planning, organizing, implementing and evaluating operations
in accordance with Federal, State and Local laws, policies, procedures, guidelines and enterprise goals and
objectives.

• Oversees staff, including hiring, training, performance evaluation, disciplinary actions and dismissals, and directs
activities to be consistent with goals and objectives. Seeks and creates opportunities for improved performance,
learning and development of staff and identifies and addresses problems or conflicts.

• Directs development of procedures and processes for enterprise network operations. Assists top management in
developing strategic plans to accomplish goals and objectives and improve effectiveness and efficiency of services.

• Oversees systems and network equipment upgrades, release management and performance monitoring.

• Provides for and oversees the integration and support of new technologies. Develops, maintains and communicates
application support strategy, service agreements and project plans.

• Builds and maintains relationships with elected and appointed officials as well as senior management in user
departments in order to identify and prioritize opportunities for utilizing technology to achieve enterprise goals.

• Develops enterprise service levels for data and networking equipment.

• Plans and budgets for area of responsibility. Monitors budget expenditures to ensure consistent with department
goals and objectives and within available funds.

• Performs other job-related duties as assigned.

MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS:

Education and Experience:
Bachelor’s degree in Computer Science, Information Systems, Business Administration or a directly related field AND
ten (10) years of relevant work experience, including both five (5) years of increasingly responsible supervisory or
management experience and five (5) years managing projects;

Page 1 of 2

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Systems and Network Operations Division Manager

JOB CODE: 30842 FLSA STATUS: Exempt
PAY GRADE: 30 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS: (Cont.)

Education and Experience: (Cont.)
OR,
Any combination of education and experience that has been achieved and is equivalent to the stated education and
experience and required knowledge, skills, and abilities sufficient to successfully perform the duties and responsibilities
of this job.

Licenses, Registrations, Certifications, or Special Requirements:
Valid Texas Driver’s License.
Preferred:
Master’s degree in Computer Science, Information Systems, Business Administration or a directly related field.

Knowledge. Skills, and Abilities:
Knowledge of:
• Management and supervisory principles, practices and techniques.
• Policies, practices, procedures and terminology of assigned function.
• Federal, State, Local and County applicable laws, rules, regulations and guidelines.
• Information technology hardware, software and peripherals as related to assigned function.
• Network and data systems and operations support.
• Application architecture.
• Budget preparation and office management.
• Computer equipment to include word processing, spreadsheets, databases and a variety of software packages.
Skill in:
• Directing and managing staff, allocating resources and evaluating programs.
• Leadership, collaboration and negotiation techniques, including contracts, agreements and proposals.
• Managing user expectations and satisfaction.
• Developing and evaluating Requests for Proposals (REPs).
• Strategic planning, developing, monitoring and evaluating.
• Developing and monitoring programs and related budgets.
• Problem-solving and decision-making.
• Both verbal and written communication, including presentations and communicating technical issues in non

technical language.

Ability to:
• Direct, motivate, train, develop and evaluate staff.
• Work independently and efficiently and as part of a team.
• Manage time well, perform multiple tasks and organize diverse activities.
• Research, compile, analyze, interpret and prepare a variety of memorandums or reports.
• Establish and maintain effective working relationships with departmental clientele, representatives of outside

agencies and providers, other County employees and officials, and the general public.

WORK ENVIRONMENT AND PHYSICAL DEMANDS:
Physical requirements include the ability to lift/carry up to 35-40 pounds occasionally, visual acuity, speech and hearing,
hand and eye coordination and manual dexterity necessary to operate a computer and office equipment. Subject to
standing, sitting, walking, climbing, crawling, bending, stooping, crouching, kneeling, pushing, pulling, reaching, twisting,
balancing, repetitive motion, and squatting to perform the essential functions. Subject to exposure to variations in
extreme heat, cold, mechanical, fume/odor, and dust/mites.

This job description is intended to be generic in nature. It is not necessarily an exhaustive list of all duties
and responsibilities. The essential duties, functions and responsibilities and overtime eligibility may vary
based on the specific tasks assigned to the position.

Page2of2

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Network Operations Manager

JOB CODE: 30841 FLSA STATUS: Exempt
PAY GRADE: 30 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

JOB SUMMARY:

Manages enterprise network operations and service levels for data and voice networking equipment. Develops and
implements standards, procedures and processes for the network operations group. Plans and manages the support of
new technologies and network performance.

DISTINGUISHING CHARACTERISTICS:

This is a job classification within the Information Technology job family. Manages the work of technical staff engaged in
network operations and service levels for data and voice networking equipment. Functions as technical expert and
manager, providing tactical direction, contributing to strategic planning for network services, supervising staff and
coordinating closely with higher level management to meet user and organizational requirements in accordance with
strategic and organizational goals. This classification may require a flexible work schedule in order to meet the needs of
the department.

DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES:

• Manages the operations, daily planning, engineering, design and resource allocation for the enterprise’s network
support functions.

• Works with key stakeholders to identify and prioritize projects. Oversees the gathering of business requirements
and the analysis and translation of business requirements into networks in order to meet user and organizational
objectives.

• Provides supervisory leadership in planning, organizing, implementing and evaluating network services in
accordance with Federal, State and Local laws, policies, procedures, guidelines and enterprise goals and objectives.

• Manages staff, including performing or collaborating with higher management in the hiring, training, performance
evaluation, disciplinary actions and dismissal of staff. Seeks and creates opportunities for improved performance,
learning and development of staff and identifies and addresses problems or conflicts.

• Oversees and ensures the coordination of all network support activities. Manages projects and services to ensure
delivery on time and in accordance with user objectives.

• Develops and implements standards, procedures and processes for the network support group.

• Serves as technical expert for difficult and complex network problems.

• Assists senior management in developing strategic plans to accomplish goals and objectives and improve
effectiveness and efficiency of services.

• Responsible for vendor evaluation, managing vendor services and negotiating and recommending contract terms
and conditions.

• Researches and maintains knowledge in emerging technologies, applicable to the organization environment.

• Plans and provides budget request information as part of the annual budget process. Assists in monitoring budget
expenditures to ensure consistent with department goals and objectives and within available funds.

• Performs other job-related duties as assigned.

MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS:

Education and Experience:
Bachelor’s degree in Computer Science, Information Systems, Business Administration or directly related field AND nine
(9) years of relevant work experience, including five (5) years of team lead, supervisory or management experience;
OR,

Any combination of education and experience that has been achieved and is equivalent to the stated education and
experience and required knowledge, skills, and abilities sufficient to successfully perform the duties and responsibilities
of this job.

Page 1 of 2

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Network Operations Manager

JOB CODE: 30841 FLSA STATUS: Exempt
PAY GRADE: 30 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS: (Cont.)

Licenses, Registrations, Certifications, or Special Requirements:
Valid Texas Driver’s License.

Knowledge, Skills, and Abilities:
Knowledge of:
• Management and supervisory principles, practices and techniques.
• Policies, practices, procedures and terminology of assigned function.
• Federal, State, Local and County applicable laws, rules, regulations and guidelines.
• Information technology hardware, software and peripherals as related to assigned function.
• Network systems and support operations.
• Network and internet security, network intrusion prevention, networking protocols, vulnerability testing, authentication

and encryption.
• Budget preparation and office management.
• Computer equipment to include word processing, spreadsheets, databases and a variety of software packages.

Skill in:
• Managing staff, allocating resources and evaluating programs.
• Leadership, collaboration and negotiation techniques, including contracts, agreements and proposals.
• Developing and monitoring programs and related budgets.
• Managing user expectations and satisfaction.
• Developing and evaluating Requests for Proposals (RFP5).
• Problem-solving and decision-making.
• Strategic planning, developing, monitoring and evaluating.
• Organizing, planning and executing large-scale projects from vision through implementation, involving internal

personnel, contractors and vendors.
• Both verbal and written communication, including presentations and communicating technical issues in non

technical language.

Ability to:
• Manage, motivate, train, develop and evaluate staff.
• Work independently and efficiently and as part of a team.
• Create and maintain the content of complex web sites and pages, suited for Internet and Intranet purposes.
• Manage time well, perform multiple tasks and organize diverse activities.
• Translate policies and objectives into ideas and applications web-based information products.
• Research, compile, analyze, interpret and prepare a variety of memorandums or reports.
• Establish and maintain effective working relationships with departmental clientele, representatives of outside

agencies and providers, other County employees and officials, and the general public.

WORK ENVIRONMENT AND PHYSICAL DEMANDS:

Physical requirements include the ability to lift/carry up to 35-40 pounds occasionally, visual acuity, speech and hearing,
hand and eye coordination and manual dexterity necessary to operate a computer and office equipment. Subject to
standing, sitting, walking, climbing, crawling, bending, stooping, crouching, kneeling, pushing, pulling, reaching, twisting,
balancing, repetitive motion, and squatting to perform the essential functions. Subject to exposure to variations in
extreme heat, cold, mechanical, fume/odor, and dust/mites.

This job description is intended to be generic in nature. It is not necessarily an exhaustive list of all duties
and responsibilities. The essential duties, functions and responsibilities and overtime eligibility may vary
based on the specific tasks assigned to the position.

g/I
Page 2 of 2

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Network Architect II

JOB CODE: 29840 FLSA STATUS: Exempt
PAY GRADE: 29 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

JOB SUMMARY:
Designs and manages multiple wide area networks (WANs) and local area networks (LANs) consisting of complex
architecture including multiple platforms and protocols designed to serve a large number of users with a variety of
different systems requiring extensive interchange of data. Serves as functional and technical expert and team lead,
overseeing the work of subordinate technical network staff. Performs activities of the highest complexity related to
design, implementation, configuration, coordination, control, maintenance, troubleshooting, security, and usage
monitoring of the networked environment. Consults with department users to understand network needs and service
requirements and to design integrated network services. Plans and integrates highly complex user needs into
countywide network structure.

DISTINGUISHING CHARACTERISTICS:
This is the second in a series of two network-related job classifications within the Information Technology job family.
Designs, implements and manages multiple wide area networks (WANs) and local area networks (LANs). Plans and
integrates user network needs into existing network structure and engages in activities of the highest complexity related
to the network environment. Serves as functional and technical expert and team lead, overseeing the work of
subordinate technical network staff. This classification may require a flexible work schedule in order to meet the needs
of the department.

DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES:

• Serves as functional and technical expert and team lead for subordinate technical network staff. Oversees, and
trains technical staff and coordinates team activities. Assists in appraising performance, discipline and hiring
decisions.

• Designs, installs, maintains, monitors and documents local area networks (LANs) and wide area networks (WAN5),
including network operating systems (NOS), network protocols, across a number of network systems.

• Designs and implements highly complex LAN and WAN strategies to meet a wide spectrum of customer and
network needs.

• Leads and engages in activities of the highest complexity related to implementation, configuration, coordination, control,
maintenance, troubleshooting, security, and usage monitoring of the networked environment.

• Conducts advanced diagnostics and troubleshoots network hardware components, system software and hardware.
Resolves the most complex infrastructure problems.

• Monitors LAN and WAN performance capacity. Conducts upgrades to device memory, disk subsystems and other
components, as required.

• Upgrades LAN and WAN device operating systems software. Maintains system documentation changes and
reviews documentation of other technical staff.

• Develops, recommends and implements LAN/WAN policies and standards and ensures adherence to approved
security and disaster recovery procedures.

• Consults with department users on proper systems selection and automation designs to meet business objectives
while maintaining full integration with other networks and resources.

• Gathers and documents user requirements. Develops network designs. Evaluates architectural, mechanical and
electrical floor plans and specifications relating to network devices for new and existing facilities.

• Researches and analyzes the technology market and evaluates vendor products in hardware, software and
telecommunications equipment. Recommends purchases consistent with the organizations short-term and long
term objectives.

• Coordinates work performed by outside vendors and monitors vendor service level agreements (SLAs).

• Provides or coordinates user assistance in the field or through Help Desk activities.

• Performs other job-related duties as assigned.

Page 1 of 2

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Network Architect II

JOB CODE: 29840 FLSA STATUS: Exempt
PAY GRADE: 29 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS:

Education and Experience:
Bachelor’s degree in Computer Science, Information Systems, Business Administration or a directly related field AND
eight (8) years of relevant work experience, including two (2) years of team lead, supervisory or management
experience;
OR,

Any combination of education and experience that has been achieved and is equivalent to the stated education and
experience and required knowledge, skills, and abilities sufficient to successfully perform the duties and responsibilities
of this job.

Licenses, Registrations, Certifications, or Special Requirements:
Valid Texas Driver’s License.

Preferred:
Cisco Certified Network Professional (CCNP) and Cisco Certified Design Professional (CCDP).
Cisco Certified Internetwork Expert (CCIE).

Knowledge, Skills, and Abilities:
Knowledge of:
• Policies, practices, procedures and terminology of assigned function.
• Federal, State, Local and County applicable laws, rules, regulations and guidelines.
• Information technology hardware, software and peripherals as related to assigned function.
• Network Operating Systems.
• Systems integration and multiple network protocols such as TCP/IP, IPXISPX, DHCP, DNS, and SNMP.
• Computer equipment to include word processing, spreadsheets, databases and a variety of software packages.
Skill in:
• Leadership, collaboration and negotiation techniques.
• Problem-solving and decision-making.
• Installation of LAN/WAN hardware and software.
• Both verbal and written communication, including presentations and communicating technical issues in non

technical language.

Ability to:
• Design, install, manage and monitor highly complex Ethernet networks.
• Troubleshoot highly complex network problems.
• Work independently and efficiently and as part of a team.
• Demonstrate strong customer services skills.
• Manage time well, perform multiple tasks and organize diverse activities.
• Establish and maintain effective working relationships with departmental clientele, representatives of outside

agencies and providers, other County employees and officials, and the general public.

WORK ENVIRONMENT AND PHYSICAL DEMANDS:

Physical requirements include the ability to lift/carry up to 35-40 pounds occasionally, visual acuity, speech and hearing,
hand and eye coordination and manual dexterity necessary to operate a computer and office equipment. Subject to
standing, sitting, walking, climbing, crawling, bending, stooping, crouching, kneeling, pushing, pulling, reaching, twisting,
balancing, repetitive motion, and squatting to perform the essential functions. Subject to exposure to variations in
extreme heat, cold, mechanical, fume/odor, and dust/mites.

This job description is intended to be generic in nature. It is not necessarily an exhaustive list of all duiii
and responsibilities. The essential duties, functions and responsibilities and overtime eligibility may vary
based on the specific tasks assigned to the position.

Page 2 of 2

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Network Architect I

JOB CODE: 28839 FLSA STATUS: Exempt
PAY GRADE: 28 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

JOB SUMMARY:

Designs and manages multiple wide area networks (WANs) and local area networks (LANs) consisting of complex
architecture including multiple platforms and protocols designed to serve a large number of users with a variety of
different systems requiring extensive interchange of data. Serves as functional and technical expert and team lead for
subordinate technical network staff. Performs highly complex activities related to design, implementation, configuration,
coordination, control, maintenance, troubleshooting, security, and usage monitoring of the networked environment.
Consults with department users to understand network needs and service requirements and to design integrated
network services. Plans and integrates highly complex user needs into countywide network structure.

DISTINGUISHING CHARACTERISTICS:

This is the first in a series of two network-related job classifications within the Information Technology job family.
Designs, implements and manages multiple wide area networks (WAN5) and local area networks (LANs). Plans and
integrates user network needs into existing network structure and conducts highly complex activities related to the
network environment. Serves as functional and technical expert and team lead for subordinate technical network staff.
This classification may require a flexible work schedule in order to meet the needs of the department.

DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES:

• Serves as functional and technical expert and team lead for subordinate technical network staff. Trains staff and
coordinates team activities. Assists in appraising performance, discipline and hiring decisions.

• Designs, installs, maintains, monitors and documents local area networks (LAN5) and wide area networks (WAN5)
including network operating systems (NOS) and network protocols across a number of network systems.

• Designs and implements highly complex, strategic LAN and WAN strategies to meet a wide spectrum of customer
and network needs.

• Leads and engages in complex activities related to implementation, configuration, coordination, control, maintenance,
troubleshooting, security, and usage monitoring of the networked environment.

• Conducts advanced diagnostics and troubleshoots network hardware components, system software and hardware.
Resolves more complex infrastructure server problems.

• Monitors LAN and WAN performance capacity. Performs upgrades to device memory, disk subsystems and other
components, as required.

• Upgrades LAN and WAN device operating systems software. Maintains system documentation changes and
reviews documentation of other technical staff.

• Develops, recommends and implements LAN/WAN policies and standards and ensures adherence to approved
security and disaster recovery procedures.

• Consults with department users on proper systems selection and automation designs to meet business objectives
while maintaining full integration with other networks and resources.

• Gathers and documents user requirements. Develops network designs. Evaluates architectural, mechanical and
electrical floor plans and specifications relating to network devices for new and existing facilities.

• Researches and analyzes the technology market and evaluates vendor products in hardware, software and
telecommunications equipment. Recommends purchases consistent with the organizations short-term and long
term objectives.

• Coordinates work performed by outside vendors and monitors vendor service level agreements (SLAs).

• Provides or coordinates user assistance in the field or through Help Desk activities.

• Performs backup and recovery services for LAN and WAN devices.

• Performs other job-related duties as assigned.
Page 1 of 2

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Network Architect I

JOB CODE: 28839 FLSA STATUS: Exempt
PAY GRADE: 28 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS:

Education and Exøerience:
Bachelor’s degree in Computer Science, Information Systems, Business Administration or a directly related field AND
seven (7) years of relevant work experience, including one (1) year of team lead, supervisory or management
experience;
OR,

Any combination of education and experience that has been achieved and is equivalent to the stated education and
experience and required knowledge, skills, and abilities sufficient to successfully perform the duties and responsibilities
of this job.

Licenses, Registrations, Certifications, or Special Requirements:
Valid Texas Driver’s License.

Preferred:
Cisco Certified Network Professional (CCNP) and Cisco Certified Design Professional (CCDP).
Cisco Certified Internetwork Expert (CCIE).

Knowledcie, Skills, and Abilities:
Knowledge of:
• Policies, practices, procedures and terminology of assigned function.
• Federal, State, Local and County applicable laws, rules, regulations and guidelines.
• Information technology hardware, software and peripherals as related to assigned function.
• Network Operating Systems.
• Systems integration and multiple network protocols such as TCP/IP, IPX/SPX, DHCP, DNS, and SNMP.
• Computer equipment to include word processing, spreadsheets, databases and a variety of software packages.
Skill in:
• Leadership, collaboration and negotiation techniques.
• Problem-solving and decision-making.
• Installation of LANIWAN hardware and software.
• Both verbal and written communication, including presentations and communicating technical issues in non

technical language.

Ability to:
• Design, install, manage and monitor highly complex Ethernet networks.
• Troubleshoot highly complex network problems.
• Work independently and efficiently and as part of a team.
• Demonstrate strong customer services skills.
• Manage time well, perform multiple tasks and organize diverse activities.
• Establish and maintain effective working relationships with departmental clientele, representatives of outside

agencies and providers, other County employees and officials, and the general public.

WORK ENVIRONMENT AND PHYSICAL DEMANDS:

Physical requirements include the ability to lift/carry up to 35-40 pounds occasionally, visual acuity, speech and hearing,
hand and eye coordination and manual dexterity necessary to operate a computer and office equipment. Subject to
standing, sitting, walking, climbing, crawling, bending, stooping, crouching, kneeling, pushing, pulling, reaching, twisting,
balancing, repetitive motion, and squatting to perform the essential functions. Subject to exposure to variations in
extreme heat, cold, mechanical, fume/odor, and dust/mites.

This job description is intended to be generic in nature. It is not necessarily an exhaustive list of all duties
and responsibilities. The essential duties, functions and responsibilities and overtime eligibility may vary
based on the specific tasks assigned to the position.

Page 2 of 2

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Network Engineer III

JOB CODE: 27838 FLSA STATUS: Exempt
PAY GRADE: 27 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

JOB SUMMARY:

Supports multiple wide area networks (WANs) and local area networks (LANs) consisting of complex architecture
including multiple platforms and protocols designed to serve a large number of users with a variety of different systems
requiring extensive interchange of data. Assists in complex activities related to implementation, configuration,
coordination, control, maintenance, troubleshooting, security, and usage monitoring of the networked environment.
Consults with department users to understand network needs and service requirements and to design integrated
network services. Assists in planning and integrating complex user needs into countywide network structure.

DISTINGUISHING CHARACTERISTICS:

This is the third in a series of three network-related job classifications within the Information Technology job family.
Supports multiple wide area networks (WANs) and local area networks (LAN5). Assists in planning and integrating
complex user network needs into existing network structure and conducts complex activities related to the network
environment. This classification may require a flexible work schedule in order to meet the needs of the department.

DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES:

• Designs, installs, maintains, monitors and documents Local Area Networks (LANs) and Wide Area Networks
(WANs) with network operating systems (NOS), network language protocols, with access and exchanging of
information across a limited number of network systems.

• Assists in complex activities related to implementation, configuration, coordination, control, maintenance,
troubleshooting, security, and usage monitoring of the networked environment.

• Conducts advanced diagnostics and troubleshoots network hardware components, system software and hardware.
Assists in resolving more complex infrastructure problems.

• Monitors LAN and WAN performance capacity. Performs upgrades to device memory, disk subsystems and other
components, as required.

• Upgrades LAN and WAN device operating systems software. Maintains system documentation changes and
reviews documentation of other technical staff.

• Develops, recommends and implements LAN/WAN policies and standards and ensures adherence to approved
security and disaster recovery procedures.

• Consults with department users on proper systems selection and automation designs to meet business objectives
while maintaining full integration with other networks and resources.

• Gathers and documents user requirements. Develops network designs. Evaluates architectural, mechanical and
electrical floor plans and specifications relating to network devices for new and existing facilities.

• Assists in the evaluation of vendor products in hardware, software and telecommunications equipment and
recommends purchases consistent with the organizations short-term and long-term objectives.

• Coordinates work performed by outside vendors and monitors vendor service level agreements (SLAs).

• Executes backup and recovery services for LAN and WAN devices.

• Provides or coordinates user assistance in the field or through Help Desk activities.

• Performs other job-related duties as assigned.

MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS:

Education and Experience:
Bachelor’s degree in Computer Science, Information Systems, Business Administration or a directly related field AND
five (5) years of relevant work experience:

Page 1 of 2

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Network Engineer III

JOB CODE: 27838 FLSA STATUS: Exempt
PAY GRADE: 27 LAST REVISED: 10101/09

MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS: (Cont.)

Education and Experience: (Cont.)
OR,

Any combination of education and experience that has been achieved and is equivalent to the stated education and
experience and required knowledge, skills, and abilities sufficient to successfully perform the duties and responsibilities
of this job.

Licenses, Registrations, Certifications, or Special Requirements:
Valid Texas Driver’s License.

Preferred:
Cisco Certified Network Associate (CCNA); OR,
Cisco Certified Design Associate (CCDA).

Knowledge, Skills, and Abilities:
Knowledge of:
• Policies, practices, procedures and terminology of assigned function.
• Federal, State, Local and County applicable laws, rules, regulations and guidelines.
• Information technology hardware, software and peripherals as related to assigned function.
• Network Operating Systems.
• Systems integration and multiple network protocols, such as TCP/IP, IPXISPX, DHCP, DNS, and SNMP.
• Computer equipment to include word processing, spreadsheets, databases and a variety of software packages.

Skill in:
• Leadership, collaboration and negotiation techniques.
• Problem-solving and decision-making.
• Installation of LAN/WAN hardware and software.
• Both verbal and written communication, including presentations and communicating technical issues in non

technical language.

Ability to:
• Design, install, manage and monitor highly complex Ethernet networks.
• Troubleshoot highly complex network problems.
• Work independently and efficiently and as part of a team.
• Demonstrate strong customer services skills.
• Manage time well, perform multiple tasks and organize diverse activities.
• Establish and maintain effective working relationships with departmental clientele, representatives of outside

agencies and providers, other County employees and officials, and the general public.

WORK ENVIRONMENT AND PHYSICAL DEMANDS:

Physical requirements include the ability to lift/carry up to 35-40 pounds occasionally, visual acuity, speech and hearing,
hand and eye coordination and manual dexterity necessary to operate a computer and office equipment. Subject to
standing, sitting, walking, climbing, crawling, bending, stooping, crouching, kneeling, pushing, pulling, reaching, twisting,
balancing, repetitive motion, and squatting to perform the essential functions. Subject to exposure to variations in
extreme heat, cold, mechanical, fume/odor, and dust/mites.

This job description is intended to be generic in nature. It is not necessarily an exhaustive list of all duties
and responsibilities. The essential duties, functions and responsibilities and overtime eligibility may vary
based on the specific tasks assigned to the position.

Page 2 of 2

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Network Engineer II

JOB CODE: 25837 FLSA STATUS: Exempt
PAY GRADE: 25 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

JOB SUMMARY:

Supports multiple wide area networks (WANs) and local area networks (LANs) consisting of complex architecture
including multiple platforms and protocols designed to serve a large number of users with a variety of different systems
requiring extensive interchange of data. Assists in moderately complex activities related to implementation,
configuration, coordination, control, maintenance, troubleshooting, security, and usage monitoring of the networked
environment. Consults with department users to learn and understand network needs and service requirements.
Assists in planning and integrating user needs into countywide network structure.

DISTINGUISHING CHARACTERISTICS:

This is the second in a series of three network-related job classifications within the Information Technology job family.
Supports multiple wide area networks (WANs) and local area networks (LANs). Assists in planning and integrating user
network needs into existing network structure and conducts moderately complex activities related to the network
environment. This classification may require a flexible work schedule in order to meet the needs of the department.

DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES:

• Installs, maintains, monitors and documents local area networks (LANs) and wide area networks (WANs), including
network operating systems (NOS) and network protocols across a number of network systems.

• Assists in moderately complex activities related to implementation, configuration, coordination, control, maintenance,
troubleshooting, security, and usage monitoring of the networked environment.

• Executes advanced diagnostics and troubleshoots network hardware components. Assists in resolving
infrastructure problems.

• Monitors LAN and WAN performance capacity. Performs upgrades to device memory, disk subsystems and other
components, as required.

• Upgrades LAN and WAN operating systems software. Maintains system documentation changes.

• Recommends and implements LAN/WAN policies and standards and ensures adherence to approved security and
disaster recovery procedures.

• Consults with department users on proper systems selection and automation designs to meet business objectives
while maintaining full integration with other networks and resources.

• Gathers and documents user requirements. Evaluates architectural, mechanical and electrical floor plans and
specifications relating to network devices for new and existing facilities.

• Assists in the evaluation of vendor products in hardware, software and telecommunications equipment and
recommends purchases consistent with the organizations short-term and long-term objectives.

• Coordinates work performed by outside vendors and monitors vendor service level agreements (SLAs).

• Perform backup and recovery services for LAN and WAN devices.

• Provides or coordinates user assistance in the field or through Help Desk activities.

• Performs other job-related duties as assigned.

MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS:

Education and Experience:
Bachelor’s degree in Computer Science, Information Systems, Business Administration or a directly related field AND
three (3) years of relevant work experience;

Page 1 of 2

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Network Engineer II

JOB CODE: 25837 FLSA STATUS: Exempt
PAY GRADE: 25 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS: (Cont.)

Education and Experience: (Cont.)
OR,

Any combination of education and experience that has been achieved and is equivalent to the stated education and
experience and required knowledge, skills, and abilities sufficient to successfully perform the duties and responsibilities
of this job.

Licenses, Registrations, Certifications, or Special Requirements:
Valid Texas Driver’s License.

Preferred:
Cisco Certified Network Associate (CCNA); OR,
Cisco Certified Design Associate (CCDA).

Knowledge, Skills, and Abilities:
Knowledge of:
• Policies, practices, procedures and terminology of assigned function.
• Federal, State, Local and County applicable laws, rules, regulations and guidelines.
• Information technology hardware, software and peripherals as related to assigned function.
• Network Operating Systems.
• Systems integration and multiple network protocols such as TCP/IP, IPXISPX, DHCP, DNS, and SNMP.
• Computer equipment to include word processing, spreadsheets, databases and a variety of software packages.

Skill in:
• Problem-solving and decision-making.
• Installation of LAN/WAN hardware and software.
• Both verbal and written communication, including presentations and communicating technical issues in non

technical language.

Ability to:
• Design, install, manage and monitor highly complex Ethernet networks.
• Troubleshoot highly complex network problems.
• Work independently and efficiently and as part of a team.
• Demonstrate strong customer services skills.
• Manage time well, perform multiple tasks and organize diverse activities.
• Establish and maintain effective working relationships with departmental clientele, representatives of outside

agencies and providers, other County employees and officials, and the general public.

WORK ENVIRONMENT AND PHYSICAL DEMANDS:

Physical requirements include the ability to lift/carry up to 35-40 pounds occasionally, visual acuity, speech and hearing,
hand and eye coordination and manual dexterity necessary to operate a computer and office equipment. Subject to
standing, sitting, walking, climbing, crawling, bending, stooping, crouching, kneeling, pushing, pulling, reaching, twisting,
balancing, repetitive motion, and squatting to perform the essential functions. Subject to exposure to variations in
extreme heat, cold, mechanical, fume/odor, and dust/mites.

This job description is intended to be generic in nature. It is not necessarily an exhaustive list of all duties
and responsibilities. The essential duties, functions and responsibilities and overtime eligibility may vary
based on the specific tasks assigned to the position.

Page2of2 Q I

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Network Engineer I

JOB CODE: 23836 FLSA STATUS: Exempt
PAY GRADE: 23 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

JOB SUMMARY:

Supports multiple wide area networks (WANs) and local area networks (LANs) consisting of complex architecture
including multiple platforms and protocols designed to serve a large number of users with a variety of different systems
requiring extensive interchange of data. Assists in routine activities related to implementation, configuration,
coordination, control, maintenance, troubleshooting, security, and usage monitoring of the networked environment.
Consults with department users to learn and understand network needs and service requirements. Assists in planning
and integrating user needs into countywide network structure.

DISTINGUISHING CHARACTERISTICS:

This is the first in a series of three network-related job classifications within the Information Technology job family.
Supports multiple wide area networks (WANs) and local area networks (LAN5). Assists in planning and integrating user
network needs into existing network structure and conducts routine activities related to the network environment. This
classification may require a flexible work schedule in order to meet the needs of the department.

DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES:

• Installs, maintains, monitors and documents local area networks (LANs) and wide area networks (WANs), including
network operating systems (NOS) and network protocols across a number of network systems.

• Assists in routine activities related to implementation, configuration, coordination, control, maintenance,
troubleshooting, security, and usage monitoring of the networked environment.

• Conducts general, basic diagnostics and troubleshoots network hardware components. Assists in resolving
infrastructure problems.

• Monitors LAN and WAN performance capacity. Performs upgrades to device memory, disk subsystems and other
components, as required.

• Upgrades LAN and WAN device operating systems software. Maintains system documentation changes.

• Recommends and implements LAN/WAN policies and standards and ensures adherence to approved security and
disaster recovery procedures.

• Gathers and documents user requirements. Evaluates architectural, mechanical and electrical floor plans and
specifications for new and existing facilities.

• Assists in the evaluation of vendor products in hardware, software and telecommunications equipment and
recommends purchases consistent with the organizations short-term and long-term objectives.

• Coordinates work performed by outside vendors and monitors vendor service level agreements (SLAs).

• Perform backup and recovery services for LAN and WAN devices.

• Provides or coordinates user assistance in the field or through Help Desk activities.

• Performs other job-related duties as assigned.

MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS:

Education and Experience:
Bachelor’s degree in Computer Science, Information Systems, Business Administration or a directly related field AND
one (1) year of relevant work experience;

OR,

Any combination of education and experience that has been achieved and is equivalent to the stated education and
experience and required knowledge, skills, and abilities sufficient to successfully perform the duties and responsibilities
of this job.

Page 1 of 2

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Network Engineer I

JOB CODE: 23836 FLSA STATUS: Exempt
PAY GRADE: 23 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS: (Cont.)

Licenses, Registrations, Certifications, or Special Requirements:
Valid Texas Driver’s License.

Preferred:
Cisco Certified Network Associate (CCNA); OR,
Cisco Certified Design Associate (CCDA).

Knowledge, Skills, and Abilities:
Knowledge of:
• Policies, practices, procedures and terminology of assigned function.
• Federal, State, Local and County applicable laws, rules, regulations and guidelines.
• Information technology hardware, software and peripherals as related to assigned function.
• Network Operating Systems.
• Systems integration and multiple network protocols, such as TCP/IP, IPXISPX, DHCP, DNS, and SNMP.
• Computer equipment to include word processing, spreadsheets, databases and a variety of software packages.

Skill in:
• Problem-solving and decision-making.
• Installation of LAN! WAN hardware and software.
• Both verbal and written communication, including presentations and communicating technical issues in non

technical language.

Ability to:
• Install, manage and monitor standard, simple Ethernet networks.
• Troubleshoot routine network problems.
• Work independently and efficiently and as part of a team.
• Demonstrate strong customer services skills.
• Manage time well, perform multiple tasks and organize diverse activities.
• Establish and maintain effective working relationships with departmental clientele, representatives of outside

agencies and providers, other County employees and officials, and the general public.

WORK ENVIRONMENT AND PHYSICAL DEMANDS:

Physical requirements include the ability to lift/carry up to 35-40 pounds occasionally, visual acuity, speech and hearing,
hand and eye coordination and manual dexterity necessary to operate a computer and office equipment. Subject to
standing, sitting, walking, climbing, crawling, bending, stooping, crouching, kneeling, pushing, pulling, reaching, twisting,
balancing, repetitive motion, and squatting to perform the essential functions. Subject to exposure to variations in
extreme heat, cold, mechanical, fume/odor, and dust/mites.

rnis job description is intended to be generic in nature. It is not necessarily an exhaustive list of all duties
and responsibilities. The essential duties, functions and responsibilities and overtime eligibility may vary
based on the specific tasks assigned to the position.

Page 2 of 2

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Systems Manager

JOB CODE: 29835 FLSA STATUS: Exempt
PAY GRADE: 29 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

JOB SUMMARY:

Manages the programming, administration and support activities for server operating systems that res,de on multiple
platforms in a complex enterprise. Oversees and is accountable for operating systems software selection and
development and continued maintenance of such systems to improve efficiencies. Develops departmental standards
and procedures including systems programming standards and program documentation requirements. Defines and
monitors multiple projects, providing technical supervision. Interfaces with members of the Information Technology (IT)
department and user community to coordinate activities relating to the implementation of new software and hardware.

DISTINGUISHING CHARACTERISTICS:

This is a job classification within the Information Technology job family. Manages the work of technical staff engaged in
programming, administration and support activities for server operating systems that reside on multiple platforms in a
complex enterprise. Functions as technical expert and manager, providing tactical direction, contributing to strategic
planning for systems services, supervising staff and coordinating closely with higher level management to meet user and
organizational requirements in accordance with strategic and organizational goals. This classification may require a
flexible work schedule in order to meet the needs of the department.

DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES:

• Oversees and manages projects and activities of a systems programming and administration support team.
Ensures personnel are properly assigned and deployed to accomplish team, division and organizational goals.

• Works with key stakeholders to identify and prioritize projects. Oversees the gathering of business requirements
and the analysis and translation of business requirements into systems processes in order to meet user and
organizational objectives.

• Provides supervisory leadership in planning, organizing, implementing and evaluating systems services in
accordance with Federal, State and Local laws, policies, procedures, guidelines and enterprise goals and objectives.

• Manages staff, including performing or collaborating with higher management in the hiring, training, performance
evaluation, disciplinary actions and dismissal of staff. Seeks and creates opportunities for improved performance,
learning and development of staff and identifies and addresses problems or conflicts.

• Oversees and ensures the coordination of all systems activities. Manages projects and services to ensure delivery
on time and in accordance with user objectives.

• Serves as technical expert for difficult and complex application support problems.

• Assists senior management in developing strategic plans to accomplish goals and objectives and improve
effectiveness and efficiency of services.

• Prepares annual budget for systems programming and administration support team functions and activities. Assists
in monitoring budget expenditures to ensure consistent with department goals and objectives and within available
funds.

• Develops standards and specifications for purchasing, installation and support of server hardware, operating
systems and application software.

• Researches and maintains knowledge in emerging technologies, applicable to the organization environment.

• Ensures adherence to approved security and disaster recovery procedures.

• Consults with departments on proper systems selection and automation designs to meet business objectives while
maintaining full integration with other networks and resources.

• Performs other job-related duties as assigned.

MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS:

Education and Experience:
Bachelor’s degree in Computer Science, Information Systems, Business Administration or a directly related field AND
nine (9) years of relevant work experience, including five (5) years of team lead, supervisory or management experience;

Page 1 of 3

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Systems Manager

JOB CODE: 29835 FLSA STATUS: Exempt
PAY GRADE: 29 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS: (Cont.)

Education and Experience: (Cont.)
OR,

Any combination of education and experience that has been achieved and is equivalent to the stated education and
experience and required knowledge, skills, and abilities sufficient to successfully perform the duties and responsibilities
of this job.

Licenses, Registrations, Certifications, or Special Requirements:
Valid Texas Driver’s License.

Preferred:
Microsoft Certified Professional (MCP).
Certified Novell Administrator (CNA).

Knowledge, Skills, and Abilities:
Knowledge of:
• Management and supervisory principles, practices and techniques.
• Policies, practices, procedures and terminology of assigned function.
• Federal, State, Local and County applicable laws, rules, regulations and guidelines.
• Information technoiogy hardware, software and peripherals as related to assigned function.
• Operating systems and foundation architecture.
• Network Operating Systems, systems integration and multiple network protocols, such as TCP/IP, IPXISPX, DHCP,

DNS, and SNMP.
• Tasks and processes associated with installing, administering and monitoring complex Ethernet networks.
• Budget preparation and office management.
• Computer equipment to include word processing, spreadsheets, databases and a variety of software packages.

Skill in:
• Managing staff, allocating resources and evaluating programs.
• Leadership, collaboration and negotiation techniques, including contracts, agreements and proposals.
• Managing user expectations and satisfaction.
• Developing and evaluating Requests for Proposals (RFPs).
• Strategic planning, development, monitoring and evaluation.
• Developing and monitoring programs and related budgets.
• Problem-solving and decision-making.
• Both verbal and written communication, including presentations and communicating technical issues in non

technical language.

Ability to:
• Manage, motivate, train, develop and evaluate staff.
• Work independently and efficiently and as part of a team.
• Manage time well, perform multiple tasks and organize diverse activities.
• Translate policies and objectives into ideas and applications web-based information products.
• Design, install, manage and monitor the most highly complex systems, operating system software and applications.
• Research, compile, analyze, interpret and prepare a variety of memorandums or reports.
• Establish and maintain effective working relationships with departmental clientele, representatives of outside

agencies and providers, other County employees and officials, and the general public.

Page 2 of 3

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Systems Manager

JOB CODE: 29835 FLSA STATUS: Exempt
PAY GRADE: 29 LAST REVISED: 10101109

WORK ENVIRONMENT AND PHYSICAL DEMANDS:

Physical requirements include the ability to lift/carry up to 35-40 pounds occasionally, visual acuity, speech and hearing,
hand and eye coordination and manual dexterity necessary to operate a computer and office equipment. Subject to
standing, sitting, walking, climbing, crawling, bending, stooping, crouching, kneeling, pushing, pulling, reaching, twisting,
balancing, repetitive motion, and squatting to perform the essential functions. Subject to exposure to variations in
extreme heat, cold, mechanical, fume/odor, and dust/mites.

This job description is intended to be generic in nature. It is not necessarily an exhaustive list of all duties
and responsibilities. The essential duties, functions and responsibilities and overtime eligibility may vary
based on the specific tasks assigned to the position.

p1
Page 3 of 3

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Systems Architect II

JOB CODE: 29834 FLSA STATUS: Exempt
PAY GRADE: 29 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

JOB SUMMARY:

Oversees the deployment, maintenance and administration of the most highly complex server hardware and operating
systems, application software and integrated solutions. Leads and oversees the work of subordinate technical systems
staff and functions as a technical expert. Monitors system performance and capacity and tracks performance trends.
Provides third tier technical support to end user departments. Troubleshoots, and works with external vendors, as
necessary, to resolve the most complex system issues. Consults with departments to understand network needs and
service requirements and to implement the appropriate integrated network services.

DISTINGUISHING CHARACTERISTICS:

This is the second in a series of two systems-related job classifications within the Information Technology job family.
Oversees the deployment, maintenance and administration of highly complex server hardware and operating systems
and application software. Provides third tier technical support to end user departments and consults with departments to
understand highly complex network needs and service requirements and implement the appropriate integrated network
services. Leads and oversees the work of subordinate technical systems staff and functions as a technical expert. This
classification may require a flexible work schedule in order to meet the needs of the department.

DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES:

• Leads and oversees the work of subordinate technical systems staff and functions as a technical expert. Trains
staff and coordinates systems activities. Assists in appraising performance, discipline and hiring decisions.

• Develops, configures and maintains servers with the most highly complex network operating systems, application
software and integrated solutions. Schedules highly complex software installations and upgrades.

• Troubleshoots and resolves the most difficult and complex system access and connectivity problems through the
use of highly advanced system utilities.

• Develops and maintains current system operations and backup procedures and ensures data/media recoverability.

• Prepares highly complex systems specifications and technical documentation for applications.

• Acquires, tests and applies system software/hardware updates, releases and patches.

• Conducts advanced, complex diagnostics and troubleshoots network hardware components, system software and
hardware.

• Develops, recommends and implements system policies and standards and ensures adherence to approved
security and disaster recovery procedures.

• Consults with departments on proper systems selection and automation designs to meet business objectives while
maintaining full integration with other networks and resources.

• Gathers and documents user requirements. Develops highly complex system designs.

• Coordinates the evaluation of vendor products in hardware, software and telecommunications equipment and
recommends purchases consistent with the organizations short-term and long-term objectives.

• Tracks performance trends, develops reports, maintains data bases, and assists users in utilizing automated
systems applications.

• Coordinates work performed by outside vendors and monitors vendor service level agreements (SLAs).

• Provides or coordinates user assistance in the field or through Help Desk activities.

• Performs other job-related duties as assigned.

Page 1 of 2

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Systems Architect II

JOB CODE: 29834 FLSA STATUS: Exempt
PAY GRADE: 29 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS:

Education and Experience:
Bachelor’s degree in Computer Science, Information Systems, Business Administration or a directly related field AND
eight (8) years of relevant work experience, including two (2) years of team lead, supervisory or management
experience;
OR,
Any combination of education and experience that has been achieved and is equivalent to the stated education and
experience and required knowledge, skills, and abilities sufficient to successfully perform the duties and responsibilities
of this job.
Licenses, Registrations, Certifications, or Special Requirements:
Valid Texas Driver’s License.

Preferred:
Microsoft Certified Systems Engineer (MCSE).
Certified Novell Engineer (CNE).
Novell Certified Linux Engineer (NCLE).

Knowledge, Skills, and Abilities:
Knowledge of:
• Supervisory principles, practices and techniques.
• Policies, practices, procedures and terminology of assigned function.
• Federal, State, Local and County applicable laws, rules, regulations and guidelines.
• Information technology hardware, software and peripherals as related to assigned function.
• Network Operating Systems.
• Systems integration and multiple network protocols, such as TCP/IP, IPX/SPX, DHCP, DNS, SNMP.
• Computer equipment to include word processing, spreadsheets, databases and a variety of software packages.
Skill in:
• Supervising staff, allocating resources and evaluating projects.
• Leadership, collaboration and negotiation techniques.
• Problem-solving and decision-making.
• Both verbal and written communication, including presentations and communicating technical issues in non

technical language.

Ability to:
• Design, install, manage and monitor the most highly complex systems, operating system software and applications.
• Work independently and efficiently and as part of a team.
• Manage time well, perform multiple tasks and organize diverse activities.
• Demonstrate strong customer services skills.
• Translate policies and objectives into ideas and applications web-based information products.
• Research, compile, analyze, interpret and prepare a variety of memorandums or reports.
• Establish and maintain effective working relationships with departmental clientele, representatives of outside

agencies and providers, other County employees and officials, and the general public.

WORK ENVIRONMENT AND PHYSICAL DEMANDS:
Physical requirements include the ability to lift/carry up to 35-40 pounds occasionally, visual acuity, speech and hearing,
hand and eye coordination and manual dexterity necessary to operate a computer and office equipment. Subject to
standing, sitting, walking, climbing, crawling, bending, stooping, crouching, kneeling, pushing, pulling, reaching, twisting,
balancing, repetitive motion, and squatting to perform the essential functions. Subject to exposure to variations in
extreme heat, cold, mechanical, fume/odor, and dust/mites.

This job description is intended to be generic in nature. It is not necessarily an exhaustive list of all duties
and responsibilities. The essential duties, functions and responsibilities and overtime eligibility may vary
based on the specific tasks assigned to the position.

Page 2 of 2

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Systems Architect I

JOB CODE: 28833 FLSA STATUS: Exempt
PAY GRADE: 28 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

JOB SUMMARY:

Oversees the deployment, maintenance and administration of highly complex server hardware and operating systems,
application software and integrated solutions. Leads and oversees the work of subordinate technical systems staff and
functions as a technical expert. Monitors system performance and capacity and tracks performance trends. Provides
third tier technical support to end user departments. Troubleshoots, and works with external vendors, as necessary, to
resolve the most complex system issues. Consults with departments to understand network needs and service
requirements and to implement the appropriate integrated network services.

DISTINGUISHING CHARACTERISTICS:

This is the first in a series of two systems-related job classifications within the Information Technology job family.
Oversees the deployment, maintenance and administration of server hardware and operating systems and application
software. Provides second and third tier technical support to end user departments and consults with departments to
understand complex network needs and service requirements and implement the appropriate integrated network
services. Leads and oversees the work of subordinate technical systems staff and functions as a technical expert. This
classification may require a flexible work schedule in order to meet the needs of the department.

DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES:

• Leads and oversees the work of subordinate technical systems staff and functions as a technical expert. Trains
staff and coordinates systems activities. Assists in appraising performance, discipline and hiring decisions.

• Develops, configures and maintains servers with highly complex network operating systems, application software
and integrated solutions. Schedules complex software installations and upgrades.

• Troubleshoots and resolves the most difficult and complex system access and connectivity problems through the
use of advanced system utilities.

• Develops and maintains current system operations and backup procedures and ensures data/media recoverability.

• Prepares complex systems specifications and technical documentation for applications.

• Acquires, tests and applies system software/hardware updates, releases and patches.

• Conducts advanced complex diagnostics and troubleshoots network hardware components, system software and
hardware.

• Recommends and implements system policies and standards and ensures adherence to approved security and
disaster recovery procedures.

• Consults with departments on proper systems selection and automation designs to meet business objectives while
maintaining full integration with other networks and resources.

• Gathers and documents user requirements. Develops highly complex system designs.

• Coordinates the evaluation of vendor products in hardware, software and telecommunications equipment and
recommends purchases consistent with the organizations short-term and long-term objectives.

• Coordinates work performed by outside vendors and monitors vendor service level agreements (SLAs).

• Tracks performance trends, develops reports, maintains data bases, and assists users in utilizing automated
systems applications.

• Provides or coordinates user assistance in the field or through Help Desk activities.

• Performs other job-related duties as assigned.

MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS:

Education and Experience:
Bachelor’s degree in Computer Science, Information Systems, Business Administration or a directly related field AND
seven (7) years of relevant work experience, including one (1) year of team lead, supervisory or management
experience;

53X7
Page 1 of 2

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Systems Architect I

JOB CODE: 28833 FLSA STATUS: Exempt
PAY GRADE: 28 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS: (Cont.)

Education and Exøerience: (Cont.)
OR,
Any combination of education and experience that has been achieved and is equivalent to the stated education and
experience and required knowledge, skills, and abilities sufficient to successfully perform the duties and responsibilities
of this job.

Licenses, Registrations, Certifications, or Special Requirements:
Valid Texas Driver’s License.

Preferred:
Microsoft Certified Systems Engineer (MCSE).
Certified Novell Engineer (CNE).
Novell Certified Linux Engineer (NCLE).

Knowledge. Skills, and Abilities:
Knowledge of:
• Supervisory principles, practices and techniques.
• Policies, practices, procedures and terminology of assigned function.
• Federal, State, Local and County applicable laws, rules, regulations and guidelines.
• Information technology hardware, software and peripherals as related to assigned function.
• Network Operating Systems.
• Systems integration and multiple network protocols, such as TCP/IP, IPX/SPX, DHCP, DNS, SNMP.
• Computer equipment to include word processing, spreadsheets, databases and a variety of software packages.

Skill in:
• Supervising staff, allocating resources and evaluating projects.
• Leadership, collaboration and negotiation techniques.
• Problem-solving and decision-making.
• Both verbal and written communication, including presentations and communicating technical issues in non

technical language.

Ability to:
• Design, install, manage and monitor the most highly complex systems, operating system software and applications.
• Work independently and efficiently and as part of a team.
• Manage time well, perform multiple tasks and organize diverse activities.
• Demonstrate strong customer services skills.
• Translate policies and objectives into ideas and applications web-based information products.
• Research, compile, analyze, interpret and prepare a variety of memorandums or reports.
• Establish and maintain effective working relationships with departmental clientele, representatives of outside

agencies and providers, other County employees and officials, and the general public.

WORK ENVIRONMENT AND PHYSICAL DEMANDS:
Physical requirements include the ability to lift/carry up to 35-40 pounds occasionally, visual acuity, speech and hearing,
hand and eye coordination and manual dexterity necessary to operate a computer and office equipment. Subject to
standing, sitting, walking, climbing, crawling, bending, stooping, crouching, kneeling, pushing, pulling, reaching, twisting,
balancing, repetitive motion, and squatting to perform the essential functions. Subject to exposure to variations in
extreme heat, cold, mechanical, fume/odor, and dust/mites.

This job description is intended to be generic in nature. It is not necessarily an exhaustive list of all duties
and responsibilities. The essential duties, functions and responsibilities and overtime eligibility may vary
based on the specific tasks assigned to the position.

Page 2 of 2

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Systems Engineer III

JOB CODE: 27832 FLSA STATUS: Exempt
PAY GRADE: 27 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

JOB SUMMARY:

Deploys, maintains and administers complex server hardware and operating systems and application software. Monitors
system performance and capacity and tracks performance trends. Provides second and third tier technical support to
end user departments. Troubleshoots, and works with external vendors, as necessary, to resolve complex system
issues. Consults with departments to understand network needs and service requirements and to implement the
appropriate integrated network services.

DISTINGUISHING CHARACTERISTICS:
This is the third in a series of three systems-related job classifications within the Information Technology job family.
Deploys, maintains and administers server hardware and operating systems and application software. Provides second
and third tier technical support to end user departments and consults with departments to understand complex network
needs and service requirements and implement the appropriate integrated network services. This classification may
require a flexible work schedule in order to meet the needs of the department.

DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES:

• Develops, configures and maintains servers with complex network operating systems and application software.
Schedules software installations and upgrades.

• Troubleshoots and resolves advanced, complex system access and connectivity problems through the use of
advanced system utilities.

• Develops and maintains current system operations and backup procedures and data/media recoverability.

• Prepares systems specifications and technical documentation for applications.

• Acquires, tests and applies system software/hardware updates, releases and patches.

• Conducts advanced diagnostics and troubleshoots network hardware components, system software and hardware.

• Recommends and implements system policies and standards and ensures adherence to approved security and
disaster recovery procedures.

• Consults with departments on proper systems selection and automation designs to meet business objectives while
maintaining full integration with other networks and resources.

• Gathers and documents user requirements. Develops complex system designs.

• Assists in the evaluation of vendor products in hardware, software and telecommunications equipment and
recommends purchases consistent with the organizations short-term and long-term objectives.

• Coordinates work performed by outside vendors and monitors vendor service level agreements (SLAs).

• Tracks performance trends, develops reports, maintains data bases, and assists users in utilizing automated
systems applications.

• Provides or coordinates user assistance in the field or through Help Desk activities.

• Performs other job-related duties as assigned.

MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS:

Education and Experience:
Bachelor’s degree in Computer Science, Information Systems, Business Administration or a directly related field AND
five (5) years of relevant work experience;
OR,
Any combination of education and experience that has been achieved and is equivalent to the stated education and
experience and required knowledge, skills, and abilities sufficient to successfully perform the duties and responsibilities
of this job.

Page 1 of 2

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Systems Engineer III

JOB CODE: 27832 FLSA STATUS: Exempt
PAY GRADE: 27 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS: (Cont.)

Licenses, Registrations, Certifications, or Special Requirements:
Valid Texas Driver’s License.

Preferred:
Microsoft Certified Systems Engineer (MCSE).
Certified Novell Engineer (CNE).
Novell Certified Linux Engineer (NCLE).

Knowledge, Skills, and Abilities:
Knowledge of:
• Policies, practices, procedures and terminology of assigned function.
• Federal, State, Local and County applicable laws, rules, regulations and guidelines.
• Information technology hardware, software and peripherals as related to assigned function.
• Network Operating Systems.
• Systems integration and multiple network protocols, such as TCP/IP, IPXISPX, DHCP, DNS, SNMP.
• Computer equipment to include word processing, spreadsheets, databases and a variety of software packages.

Skill in:
• Problem-solving and decision-making.
• Both verbal and written communication, including presentations and communicating technical issues in non

technical language.

Ability to:
• Design, install, manage and monitor complex systems, operating system software and applications.
• Work independently and efficiently and as part of a team.
• Manage time well, perform multiple tasks and organize diverse activities.
• Demonstrate strong customer services skills.
• Establish and maintain effective working relationships with departmental clientele, representatives of outside

agencies and providers, other County employees and officials, and the general public.

WORK ENVIRONMENT AND PHYSICAL DEMANDS:

Physical requirements include the ability to lift/carry up to 35-40 pounds occasionally, visual acuity, speech and hearing,
hand and eye coordination and manual dexterity necessary to operate a computer and office equipment. Subject to
standing, sitting, walking, climbing, crawling, bending, stooping, crouching, kneeling, pushing, pulling, reaching, twisting,
balancing, repetitive motion, and squatting to perform the essential functions. Subject to exposure to variations in
extreme heat, cold, mechanical, fume/odor, and dust/mites.

This job description is intended to be generic in nature. It is not necessarily an exhaustive list of all duties
and responsibilities. The essential duties, functions and responsibilities and overtime eligibility may vary
based on the specific tasks assigned to the position.

Page 2 of 2

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Systems Engineer II

JOB CODE: 25831 FLSA STATUS: Exempt
PAY GRADE: 25 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

JOB SUMMARY:

Deploys, maintains and administers moderately complex server hardware and operating systems and application
software. Monitors system performance and capacity and tracks performance trends. Provides second and third tier
technical support to end user departments. Troubleshoots, and works with external vendors, as necessary, to resolve
moderately complex system issues. Consults with departments to understand network needs and service requirements
and to implement the appropriate integrated network services.

DISTINGUISHING CHARACTERISTICS:

This is the second in a series of three systems-related job classifications within the Information Technology job family.
Deploys, maintains and administers server hardware and operating systems and application software. Provides second
and third tier technical support to end user departments and consults with departments to understand moderately
complex network needs and service requirements and implement the appropriate integrated network services. This
classification may require a flexible work schedule in order to meet the needs of the department.

DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES:

• Develops, configures and maintains servers with moderately complex network operating systems and application
software. Schedules software installations and upgrades.

• Troubleshoots and resolves moderately complex system access and connectivity problems through the use of
advanced system utilities.

• Develops and maintains current system operations and backup procedures and assists in ensuring datalmedia
recoverability.

• Assists in preparation of systems specifications and technical documentation for applications.

• Acquires, tests and applies system software/hardware updates, releases and patches.

• Conducts advanced diagnostics and troubleshoots network hardware components, system software and hardware.

• Recommends and implements system policies and standards and ensures adherence to approved security and
disaster recovery procedures.

• Consults with departments on proper systems selection and automation designs to meet business objectives while
maintaining full integration with other networks and resources.

• Gathers and documents user requirements. Develops moderately complex system designs.

• Assists in the evaluation of vendor products in hardware, software and telecommunications equipment and
recommends purchases consistent with the organizations short-term and long-term objectives.

• Coordinates work performed by outside vendors and monitors vendor service level agreements (SLAs).

• Tracks performance trends, develops reports, maintains data bases, and assists users in utilizing automated
systems applications.

• Provides or coordinates user assistance in the field or through Help Desk activities.

• Performs other job-related duties as assigned.

MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS:

Education and Experience:
Bachelor’s degree in Computer Science, Information Systems, Business Administration or a directly related field AND
three (3) years of relevant work experience;

Page 1 of 2

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Systems Engineer II

JOB CODE: 25831 FLSA STATUS: Exempt
PAY GRADE: 25 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS: (Cont.)

Education and Experience: (Cont.)
OR,

Any combination of education and experience that has been achieved and is equivalent to the stated education and
experience and required knowledge, skills, and abilities sufficient to successfully perform the duties and responsibilities
of this job.

Licenses, Registrations, Certifications, or Special Requirements:
Valid Texas Driver’s License.

Preferred:
Microsoft Certified Systems Engineer (MCSE).
Certified Novell Engineer (CNE).
Novell Certified Linux Engineer (NCLE).

KnowledQe, Skills, and Abilities:
Knowledge of:
• Policies, practices, procedures and terminology of assigned function.
• Federal, State, Local and County applicable laws, rules, regulations and guidelines.
• Information technology hardware, software and peripherals as related to assigned function.
• Network Operating Systems.
• Systems integration and multiple network protocols, such as TCP/IP, IPXISPX, DHCP, DNS, SNMP.
• Computer equipment to include word processing, spreadsheets, databases and a variety of software packages.

Skill in:
• Problem-solving and decision-making.
• Both verbal and written communication, including presentations and communicating technical issues in non

technical language.

Ability to:
• Design, install, manage and monitor moderately complex systems, operating system software and applications.
• Work independently and efficiently and as part of a team.
• Manage time well, perform multiple tasks and organize diverse activities.
• Demonstrate strong customer services skills.
• Establish and maintain effective working relationships with departmental clientele, representatives of outside

agencies and providers, other County employees and officials, and the general public.

WORK ENVIRONMENT AND PHYSICAL DEMANDS:

Physical requirements include the ability to lift/carry up to 35-40 pounds occasionally, visual acuity, speech and hearing,
hand and eye coordination and manual dexterity necessary to operate a computer and office equipment. Subject to
standing, sitting, walking, climbing, crawling, bending, stooping, crouching, kneeling, pushing, pulling, reaching, twisting,
balancing, repetitive motion, and squatting to perform the essential functions. Subject to exposure to variations in
extreme heat, cold, mechanical, fume/odor, and dust/mites.

This job description is intended to be generic in nature. It is not necessarily an exhaustive list of all duties
and responsibilities. The essential duties, functions and responsibilities and overtime eligibility may vary
based on the specific tasks assigned to the position.

Page 2 of 2

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Systems Engineer I

JOB CODE: 23830 FLSA STATUS: Exempt
PAY GRADE: 23 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

JOB SUMMARY:

Deploys, maintains and administers server hardware and operating systems and application software. Monitors system
performance and capacity and tracks performance trends. Provides second and third tier technical support to end user
departments. Troubleshoots, and works with external vendors, as necessary, to resolve general, more routine system
issues. Consults with departments to understand network needs and service requirements and implement the
appropriate integrated network services.

DISTINGUISHING CHARACTERISTICS:

This is the first in a series of three systems-related job classifications within the Information Technology job family.
Deploys, maintains and administers server hardware and operating systems and application software. Provides second
and third tier technical support to end user departments and consults with departments to understand general network
needs and service requirements and implement the appropriate integrated network services. This classification may
require a flexible work schedule in order to meet the needs of the department.

DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES:

• Configures and maintains servers with basic to moderately complex network operating systems and application
software. Schedules software installations and upgrades.

• Troubleshoots and resolves general, more routine system access and connectivity problems through the use of
system utilities.

• Maintains current system operations and backup procedures and assists in ensuring data/media recoverability.

• Prepares technical documentation for applications.

• Acquires, tests and applies system software/hardware updates, releases and patches.

• Conducts basic diagnostics and troubleshoots network hardware components, system software and hardware.

• Implements system policies and standards and ensures adherence to approved security and disaster recovery
procedures.

• Consults with departments on proper systems selection and automation designs to meet business objectives while
maintaining full integration with other networks and resources.

• Gathers and documents user requirements. Develops more routine system designs.

• Assists in the evaluation of vendor products in hardware, software and telecommunications equipment and
recommends purchases consistent with the organizations short-term and long-term objectives.

• Coordinates work performed by outside vendors and monitors vendor service level agreements (SLAs).

• Tracks performance trends, maintains data bases, and assists users in utilizing automated systems applications.

• Provides or coordinates user assistance in the field or through Help Desk activities.

• Performs other job-related duties as assigned.

MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS:

Education and Experience:
Bachelor’s degree in Computer Science, Information Systems, Business Administration or a directly related field AND
one (1) year of relevant work experience;
OR,

Any combination of education and experience that has been achieved and is equivalent to the stated education and
experience and required knowledge, skills, and abilities sufficient to successfully perform the duties and responsibilities
of this job.

Page 1 of 2
733

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Systems Engineer I

JOB CODE: 23830 FLSA STATUS: Exempt
PAY GRADE: 23 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS: (Cant.)

Licenses, Registrations, Certifications, or Special Requirements:
Valid Texas Driver’s License.

Preferred:
Microsoft Certified Systems Engineer (MCSE).
Certified Novell Engineer (CNE).
Novell Certified Linux Engineer (NCLE).

Knowledge, Skills, and Abilities:
Knowledge of:
• Policies, practices, procedures and terminology of assigned function.
• Federal, State, Local and County applicable laws, rules, regulations and guidelines.
• Information technology hardware, software and peripherals as related to assigned function.
• Network Operating Systems.
• Systems integration and multiple network protocols, such as TCP/IP, IPXISPX, DHCP, DNS, SNMP.
• Computer equipment to include word processing, spreadsheets, databases and a variety of software packages.

Skill in:
• Problem-solving and decision-making.
• Both verbal and written communication, including presentations and communicating technical issues in non

technical language.

Ability to:
• Design, install, manage and monitor complex systems, operating system software and applications.
• Work independently and efficiently and as part of a team.
• Manage time well, perform multiple tasks and organize diverse activities.
• Demonstrate strong customer services skills.
• Establish and maintain effective working relationships with departmental clientele, representatives of outside

agencies and providers, other County employees and officials, and the general public.

WORK ENVIRONMENT AND PHYSICAL DEMANDS:

Physical requirements include the ability to lift/carry up to 35-40 pounds occasionally, visual acuity, speech and hearing,
hand and eye coordination and manual dexterity necessary to operate a computer and office equipment. Subject to
standing, sitting, walking, climbing, crawling, bending, stooping, crouching, kneeling, pushing, pulling, reaching, twisting,
balancing, repetitive motion, and squatting to perform the essential functions. Subject to exposure to variations in
extreme heat, cold, mechanical, fume/odor, and dust/mites.

This job description is intended to be generic in nature. It is not necessarily an exhaustive list of all duties
and responsibilities. The essential duties, functions and responsibilities and overtime eligibility may vary
based on the specific tasks assigned to the position.

Page2of2

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Computer Operator IV

JOB CODE: 21829 FLSA STATUS: Non-Exempt
PAY GRADE: 21 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

JOB SUMMARY:

Oversees, operates, monitors and controls computing platforms including mini and midrange, mainframes and servers,
console systems and peripheral equipment, such as printers, disk drives and tape readers. Responsible for ensuring a
stable operating environment. Supervises and participates in the troubleshooting and restoration of complex technical
service and peripheral equipment, schedules and monitors production runs, performs system backup process, disaster
recovery tests, loads tapes, disks and paper, as required. Assists systems engineers in running jobs that are used for
testing and debugging new programs. Provides after-hours support, based on user call requests, for systems operations
(including mission critical server systems). Performs first and second-level diagnostics and troubleshooting. Assists
programming staff with advanced complex problem resolution. Trains subordinate computer operations staff and serves
as lead. Assigns work and monitors workload.

DISTINGUISHING CHARACTERISTICS:

This is the fourth in a series of four computer operator-related job classifications within the Information Technology job
family. Conducts complex operation and monitoring of computing platforms and peripheral equipment. Executes first-
level and second-level diagnostics and troubleshooting and schedules and monitors production runs. Trains subordinate
computer operations staff and serves as lead, assigning and monitoring workload. This classification may require a
flexible work schedule in order to meet the needs of the department.

DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES:

• Oversees monitors and controls computer console terminals, systems printers, mission critical server systems,
network management stations and other peripheral devices, and solves or escalates issues to the appropriate level
of technical staff.

• Supervises and conducts first and second-level diagnostics and troubleshooting of server and application systems,
based on user call requests. Oversees nightly back-up functions and procedures, including the rotation of critical
system backup tapes for disaster recovery purposes. Executes set scripts to address documented issues.

• Oversees maintenance of the tape library, verifies tapes with tape evaluator, conducts routine and unscheduled
maintenance on tape drives, labels and erases tapes, and mounts/dismounts correct tapes on the appropriate
system.

• Assigns and executes setup for production schedules and runs job requests for programmers, analysts and user
departments. Oversees preparation of computer system and peripherals for each program and keeps abreast of the
status of all active and pending jobs.

• Oversees, schedules, operates and conducts routine maintenance and cleaning of impact and laser printers.
Separates and bursts printed forms, and distributes printed output to correct user bin.

• Supervises, controls and monitors all system performance and takes appropriate action to resolve problems.
Installs and maintains department hardware and software inventory. Executes highly complex trouble shooting on
software and hardware problems. Oversees and conducts documented recovery operations when programs or
computers fail and contacts appropriate staff with necessary recovery information.

• Analyzes complex system errors and corrects program problems to complete processing tasks. Manually checks
computer output for accuracy and print quality. Maintains staff database programs.

• Trains and provides direction to computer operations staff to ensure proper operation of computer system. May
provide user training or direction related to production runs.

• Oversees recording, maintenance of records, and compilation of reports of computer jobs run and equipment
utilization. May prepare reports and statistics for management.

• Performs other job-related duties as assigned.

Page 1 of 2

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Computer Operator IV

JOB CODE: 21829 FLSA STATUS: Non-Exempt
PAY GRADE: 21 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS:

Education and Experience:
Associate’s degree in Computer Science, Information Systems or a directly related field AND seven (7) years of relevant
work experience;
OR,
Any combination of education and experience that has been achieved and is equivalent to the stated education and
experience and required knowledge, skills, and abilities sufficient to successfully perform the duties and responsibilities
of this job.

Licenses, Registrations, Certifications, or Special Requirements:
Valid Texas Driver’s License.

Preferred:
Microsoft Certified Professional (MCP) Certification.

Knowledge, Skills, and Abilities:
Knowledge of:
• Policies, practices, procedures and terminology of assigned function.
• Federal, State, Local and County applicable laws, rules, regulations and guidelines.
• Information technology hardware, software and peripherals as related to assigned function.
• Supervisory principles, practices and techniques.
• Network Operating Systems, computer hardware systems, software systems and network equipment.
• Computer equipment to include word processing, spreadsheets, databases and a variety of software packages.

Skill in:
• Problem-solving and decision-making.
• Performing complex first and second-level diagnostics and troubleshooting.
• Explaining complicated technical problems in simple non-technical language.
• Operating various server operating systems and peripheral equipment.
• Both verbal and written communication, including presentations and communicating technical issues in non

technical language.

Ability to:
• Supervise, lead, motivate, train, develop and evaluate staff.
• Determine basic operation requirements from various sources and staff.
• Implement and monitor production schedules and maintain production runs.
• Work efficiently both independently and as part of a team.
• Manage time well, perform multiple tasks and organize diverse activities.
• Demonstrate strong customer services skills.
• Establish and maintain effective working relationships with departmental clientele, representatives of outside

agencies and providers, other County employees and officials, and the general public.

WORK ENVIRONMENT AND PHYSICAL DEMANDS:

Physical requirements include the ability to lift/carry up to 35-40 pounds occasionally, visual acuity, speech and hearing,
hand and eye coordination and manual dexterity necessary to operate a computer and office equipment. Subject to
standing, sitting, walking, climbing, crawling, bending, stooping, crouching, kneeling, pushing, pulling, reaching, twisting,
balancing, repetitive motion, and squatting to perform the essential functions. Subject to exposure to variations in
extreme heat, cold, mechanical, fume/odor, and dust/mites. Lifting of boxes and containers and use of dolly for heavier
weight objects. Requires travel to multiple buildings in a 4-block radius to support remote computer rooms. Work
conducted in a secure, raised floor, computer room environment with moderate to high noise levels.

This job description is intended to be generic in nature. It is not necessarily an exhaustive list of all duties
and responsibilities. The essential duties, functions and responsibilities and overtime eligibility may vary
based on the specific tasks assigned to the position.

Page 2 of 2

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Computer Operator III

JOB CODE: 19828 ELSA STATUS: Non-Exempt
PAY GRADE: 19 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

JOB SUMMARY:

Operates, monitors and controls computing platforms including mini and midrange, mainframes and servers, console
systems and peripheral equipment, such as printers, disk drives and tape readers. Performs network maintenance.
Troubleshoots and restores moderately complex to complex technical service and peripheral equipment, schedules and
monitors production runs, performs system backup process, disaster recovery tests, loads tapes, disks and paper, as
required. Assists systems engineers in running jobs that are used for testing and debugging new programs. Provides
after-hours support, based on user call requests, for systems operations. Conducts first-level and assists with second-
level diagnostics and troubleshooting. Assists programming staff with more complex problem resolution. Trains
subordinate computer operations staff and serves as lead.

DISTINGUISHING CHARACTERISTICS:

This is the third in a series of four computer operator-related job classifications within the Information Technology job
family. Conducts moderately complex to complex operation and monitoring of computing platforms and peripheral
equipment. Executes first-level diagnostics and troubleshooting and assists with second-level issues and schedules and
monitors production runs. Trains subordinate computer operations staff and serves as lead. This classification may
require a flexible work schedule in order to meet the needs of the department.

DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES:

• Monitors and controls computer console terminals, systems printers, mission critical server systems, network
management stations and other peripheral devices, and solves or escalates issues to the appropriate level of
technical staff.

• Conducts first and second-level diagnostics and troubleshooting of server and application systems, based on user
call requests. Oversees nightly back-up functions and procedures, including the rotation of critical system backup
tapes for disaster recovery purposes. Executes set scripts to address documented issues.

• Maintains tape library, verifies tapes with tape evaluator, executes routine and unscheduled maintenance on tape
drives, labels and erases tapes, and mounts/dismounts correct tapes on the appropriate system.

• Conducts setup for production schedules and runs job requests for programmers, analysts and user departments.
Prepares computer system and peripherals for each program and keeps abreast of the status of all active and
pending jobs.

• Schedules, operates and conducts routine maintenance and cleaning of impact and laser printers. Separates and
bursts printed forms, and distributes printed output to correct user bin.

• Controls and monitors all system performance and takes appropriate action to resolve problems. Installs and
maintains department hardware and software inventory. Executes complex trouble shooting on software and
hardware problems. Oversees and conducts documented recovery operations when programs or computers fail
and contacts appropriate staff with necessary recovery information.

• Schedules, monitors and provides service for system problems and special projects. Conducts special operations
projects, as directed.

• Analyzes system errors and corrects program problems to complete processing tasks. Manually checks computer
output for accuracy and print quality. Maintains staff database programs.

• Trains and assists in providing direction to computer operations staff to ensure proper operation of computer
system. May provide user training or direction related to production wns.

• Records, maintains records of, and compiles reports of computer jobs run and equipment utilization.

• Performs other job-related duties as assigned.

Page 1 of 2

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Computer Operator III

JOB CODE: 19828 FLSA STATUS: Non-Exempt
PAY GRADE: 19 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS:

Education and Experience:
Associate’s degree in Computer Science, Information Systems or a directly related field AND five (5) years of relevant
work experience;

OR,

Any combination of education and experience that has been achieved and is equivalent to the stated education and
experience and required knowledge, skills, and abilities sufficient to successfully perform the duties and responsibilities
ofthisjob.

Licenses, Registrations, Certifications, or Special Requirements:
Valid Texas Driver’s License.

Preferred:
Microsoft Certified Professional (MCP) certification.

Knowledge, Skills, and Abilities:
Knowledge of:
• Policies, practices, procedures and terminology of assigned function.
• Federal, State, Local and County applicable laws, rules, regulations and guidelines.
• Information technology hardware, software and peripherals as related to assigned function.
• Network Operating Systems, computer hardware systems, software systems and network equipment.
• Computer equipment to include word processing, spreadsheets, databases and a variety of software packages.

Skill in:
• Problem-solving and decision-making.
• Performing complex first and second-level diagnostics and troubleshooting.
• Explaining complicated technical problems in simple non-technical language.
• Operating various server operating systems and peripheral equipment.
• Both verbal and written communication, including presentations and communicating technical issues in non

technical language.

Ability to:
• Determine basic operation requirements from various sources and staff.
• Implement and monitor production schedules and maintain production runs.
• Work efficiently both independently and as part of a team.
• Manage time well, perform multiple tasks and organize diverse activities.
• Demonstrate strong customer services skills.
• Establish and maintain effective working relationships with departmental clientele, representatives of outside

agencies and providers, other County employees and officials, and the general public.

WORK ENVIRONMENT AND PHYSICAL DEMANDS:

Physical requirements include the ability to lift/carry up to 35-40 pounds occasionally, visual acuity, speech and hearing,
hand and eye coordination and manual dexterity necessary to operate a computer and office equipment. Subject to
standing, sitting, walking, climbing, crawling, bending, stooping, crouching, kneeling, pushing, pulling, reaching, twisting,
balancing, repetitive motion, and squatting to perform the essential functions. Subject to exposure to variations in
extreme heat, cold, mechanical, fume/odor, and dust/mites. Lifting of boxes and containers and use of dolly for heavier
weight objects. Requires travel to multiple buildings in a 4-block radius to support remote computer rooms. Work
conducted in a secure, raised floor, computer room environment with moderate to high noise levels.

This job description is intended to be generic in nature. It is not necessarily an exhaustive list of all duties
and responsibilities. The essential duties, functions and responsibilities and overtime eligibility may vary
based on the specific tasks assigned to the position.

Page 2 of 2

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Computer Operator II

JOB CODE: 17827 FLSA STATUS: Non-Exempt
PAY GRADE: 17 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

JOB SUMMARY:

Operates, monitors and controls computing platforms including mini and midrange, mainframes and servers, console
systems and peripheral equipment, such as printers, disk drives and tape readers. Performs network maintenance.
Troubleshoots and restores routine to moderately complex technical service and peripheral equipment, schedules and
monitors production runs, performs system backup process, disaster recovery tests, loads tapes, disks and paper, as
required. Assists systems engineers in running jobs that are used for testing and debugging new programs. Provides
after-hours support, based on user call requests, for systems operations. Performs first-level and assists with second-
level diagnostics and troubleshooting. Assists programming staff with problem resolution. Assists in training
subordinate computer operations staff.

DISTINGUISHING CHARACTERISTICS:

This is the second in a series of four computer operator-related job classifications within the Information Technology job
family. Conducts routine to moderately complex operation and monitoring of computing platforms and peripheral
equipment. Executes first-level diagnostics and troubleshooting and assists with second-level issues and schedules and
monitors production runs. This classification may require a flexible work schedule in order to meet the needs of the
department.

DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES:

• Monitors and controls computer console terminals, systems printers, mission critical server systems, network
management stations and other peripheral devices, and escalates issues to the appropriate level of technical staff.

• Conducts first-level diagnostics and troubleshooting and assists with second-level issues related to server and
application systems, based on user call requests. Oversees nightly back-up functions and procedures, including the
rotation of critical system backup tapes for disaster recovery purposes. Executes set scripts to address documented
issues.

• Maintains tape library, verifies tapes with tape evaluator, conducts routine maintenance on tape drives, labels and
erases tapes, and mounts/dismounts correct tapes on the appropriate system.

• Executes setup for production schedules and runs job requests for programmers, analysts and users. Prepares
computer system and peripherals for each program and keeps abreast of the status of all active and pending jobs.

• Schedules, operates, and conducts routine maintenance and cleaning of impact and laser printers; separates and
bursts printed forms, and distributes printed output to correct user bin.

• Monitors all system performance and takes appropriate action to resolve problems. Installs and maintains
department hardware and software inventory. Executes trouble shooting on software and hardware problems.
Conducts documented recovery operations when programs or computers fail, and contacts appropriate staff with
necessary recovery information.

• Provides service for system problems and special projects. Assists with or conducts special operations projects, as
directed.

• Analyzes, develops and maintains staff database programs.

• Records, maintains records of, and compiles reports of computer jobs run and equipment utilization.

• Assists in training subordinate computer operations staff.

• Performs other job-related duties as assigned.

Page 1 of 2

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Computer Operator II

JOB CODE: 17827 FLSA STATUS: Non-Exempt
PAY GRADE: 17 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS:

Education and Experience:
Associate’s degree in Computer Science, Information Systems or a directly related field AND three (3) years of relevant
work experience;
OR,

Any combination of education and experience that has been achieved and is equivalent to the stated education and
experience and required knowledge, skills, and abilities sufficient to successfully perform the duties and responsibilities
of this job.

Licenses, Registrations, Certifications, or Special Requirements:
Valid Texas Driver’s License.

Preferred:
Microsoft Certified Professional (MCP) certification.

Knowledge, Skills, and Abilities:
Knowledge of:
• Policies, practices, procedures and terminology of assigned function.
• Federal, State, Local and County applicable laws, rules, regulations and guidelines.
• Information technology hardware, software and peripherals as related to assigned function.
• Network Operating Systems, computer hardware systems, software systems and network equipment.
• Computer equipment to include word processing, spreadsheets, databases and a variety of software packages.

Skill in:
• Problem-solving and decision-making.
• Performing complex first and second-level diagnostics and troubleshooting.
• Explaining complicated technical problems in simple non-technical language.
• Operating various server operating systems and peripheral equipment.
• Both verbal and written communication, including presentations and communicating technical issues in non

technical language.

Ability to:
• Determine basic operation requirements from various sources and staff.
• Implement and monitor production schedules and maintain production runs.
• Work efficiently both independently and as part of a team.
• Manage time well, perform multiple tasks and organize diverse activities.
• Demonstrate strong customer services skills.
• Establish and maintain effective working relationships with departmental clientele, representatives of outside

agencies and providers, other County employees and officials, and the general public.

WORK ENVIRONMENT AND PHYSICAL DEMANDS:

Physical requirements include the ability to lift/carry up to 35-40 pounds occasionally, visual acuity, speech and hearing,
hand and eye coordination and manual dexterity necessary to operate a computer and office equipment. Subject to
standing, sitting, walking, climbing, crawling, bending, stooping, crouching, kneeling, pushing, pulling, reaching, twisting,
balancing, repetitive motion, and squatting to perform the essential functions. Subject to exposure to variations in
extreme heat, cold, mechanical, fume/odor, and dust/mites. Lifting of boxes and containers and use of dolly for heavier
weight objects. Requires travel to multiple buildings in a 4-block radius to support remote computer rooms. Work
conducted in a secure, raised floor, computer room environment with moderate to high noise levels.

This job description is intended to be generic in nature. It is not necessarily an exhaustive list of all duties
and responsibilities. The essential duties, functions and responsibilities and overtime eligibility may vary
based on the specific tasks assigned to the position.

Page 2 of 2

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Computer Operator I

JOB CODE: 15826 FLSA STATUS: Non-Exempt
PAY GRADE: 15 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

JOB SUMMARY:

Operates and monitors computing platforms, including mini and midrange, mainframes and servers, console systems
and peripheral equipment, such as printers, disk drives and tape readers. Performs network maintenance.
Troubleshoots and restores basic technical service and peripheral equipment, schedules and monitors production runs,
performs system backup process, disaster recovery tests, loads tapes, disks and paper, as required. Assists systems
engineers in running jobs that are used for testing and debugging new programs. Provides after-hours support, based
on user call requests, for systems operations. Performs first-level diagnostics and troubleshooting.

DISTINGUISHING CHARACTERISTICS:

This is the first in a series of four computer operator-related job classifications within the Information Technology job
family. Conducts basic operation and monitoring of computing platforms and peripheral equipment. Executes first-level
diagnostics and troubleshooting and schedules and monitors production runs. This classification may require a flexible
work schedule in order to meet the needs of the department.

DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES:

• Monitors computer console terminals, systems printers, mission critical server systems, network management
stations and other peripheral devices, and escalates issues to the appropriate level of technical staff.

• Conducts first-level diagnostics and troubleshooting of server and application systems, based on user call requests.
Oversees nightly back-up functions and procedures, including the rotation of critical system backup tapes for
disaster recovery purposes. Executes set scripts to address documented issues.

• Maintains tape library, verifies tapes with tape evaluator, conducts routine maintenance on tape drives, labels and
erases tapes, and mounts/dismounts correct tapes on the appropriate system.

• Executes setup for production schedules and runs job requests for programmers, analysts and users. Prepares
computer system and peripherals for each program and keeps abreast of the status of all active and pending jobs.

• Operates and conducts routine maintenance and cleaning of impact and laser printers. Separates and bursts
printed forms and distributes printed output to correct user bin.

• Monitors all system performance and takes appropriate action to resolve problems. Installs and maintains
department hardware and software inventory. Executes trouble shooting on software and hardware problems.
Executes documented recovery operations when programs or computers fail, and contacts appropriate staff with
necessary recovery information.

• Provides service for system problems and special projects, as required. Assists with special operations projects.

• Analyzes, develops and maintains staff database programs.

• Records and maintains records of computer jobs run and equipment utilization.

• May provide user training.

• Performs other job-related duties as assigned.

MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS:

Education and Exierience:
Associate’s degree in Computer Science, Information Systems or a directly related field AND one (1) year of relevant
work experience;
OR,

Any combination of education and experience that has been achieved and is equivalent to the stated education and
experience and required knowledge, skills, and abilities sufficient to successfully perform the duties and responsibilities
of this job.

Page 1 of 2

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Computer Operator I

JOB CODE: 15826 FLSA STATUS: Non-Exempt
PAY GRADE: 15 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS: (Cont.)

Licenses, Registrations, Certifications, or Special Requirements:
Valid Texas Driver’s License.

Preferred:
Microsoft Certified Professional (MCP) Certification.

Knowledge. Skills, and Abilities:
Knowledge of:
• Policies, practices, procedures and terminology of assigned function.
• Federal, State, Local and County applicable laws, rules, regulations and guidelines.
• Information technology hardware, software and peripherals as related to assigned function.
• Network Operating Systems, computer hardware systems, software systems and network equipment.
• Computer equipment to include word processing, spreadsheets, databases and a variety of software packages.

Skill in:
• Problem-solving and decision-making.
• Performing complex first and second-level diagnostics and troubleshooting.
• Explaining complicated technical problems in simple non-technical language.
• Operating various server operating systems and peripheral equipment.
• Both verbal and written communication, including presentations and communicating technical issues in non

technical language.

Ability to:
• Determine basic operation requirements from various sources and staff.
• Implement and monitor production schedules and maintain production runs.
• Work efficiently both independently and as part of a team.
• Manage time well, perform multiple tasks and organize diverse activities.
• Demonstrate strong customer services skills.
• Establish and maintain effective working relationships with departmental clientele, representatives of outside

agencies and providers, other County employees and officials, and the general public.

WORK ENVIRONMENT AND PHYSICAL DEMANDS:

Physical requirements include the ability to lift/carry up to 35-40 pounds occasionally, visual acuity, speech and hearing,
hand and eye coordination and manual dexterity necessary to operate a computer and office equipment. Subject to
standing, sitting, walking, climbing, crawling, bending, stooping, crouching, kneeling, pushing, pulling, reaching, twisting,
balancing, repetitive motion, and squatting to perform the essential functions. Subject to exposure to variations in
extreme heat, cold, mechanical, fume/odor, and dust/mites. Lifting of boxes and containers and use of dolly for heavier
weight objects. Requires travel to multiple buildings in a 4-block radius to support remote computer rooms. Work
conducted in a secure, raised floor, computer room environment with moderate to high noise levels.

This job description is intended to be generic in nature. It is not necessarily an exhaustive list of all duties
and responsibilities. The essential duties, functions and responsibilities and overtime eligibility may vary
based on the specific tasks assigned to the position.

Page 2 of 2

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Information Technology Department Division Manager

JOB CODE: 29886 FLSA STATUS: Exempt
PAY GRADE: 29 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

JOB SUMMARY:

Oversees and directs all Information Technology (IT) operations within a large department having complex, multi-
functional operations. Manages the staff and all IT functions and resources for the department. Develops strategic and
tactical plans, determines all hardware, software and peripheral needs, determines user needs, develops and
communicates the IT support strategy, service level and project plans. Manages support requests and operations
issues to resolution. Directs the planning, scheduling, monitoring and implementation of all project plans and related
staff assignments. Works with top management to forecast needs, formulate plans and ensure adequate IT resources
are available to meet department needs.

DISTINGUISHING CHARACTERISTICS:

This class is in an Information Technology series of job classifications. Oversees and directs the IT operations within a
large department having complex, multi-functional operations. Works with senior management in strategic IT planning
and determines all hardware, software and peripheral requirements to meet departmental and user needs. Manages
multiple IT staff, resources and projects in accordance with strategic and organizational goals. This classification may
require a flexible work schedule in order to meet the needs of the department.

DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES:

• Oversees and directs all IT operations within a large department having complex, multi-functional operations.
Manages the staff and all IT functions and resources for the department.

• Provides technical leadership and direction in ensuring the successful integration of new methods and technologies
with existing systems.

• Provides leadership, management and coordination in planning, organizing, implementing and evaluating operations
in accordance with Federal, State and Local laws, policies, procedures, guidelines and enterprise goals and
objectives.

• Oversees IT staff, including hiring, training, performance evaluation, disciplinary actions and dismissals, and directs
activities to be consistent with goals and objectives. Seeks and creates opportunities for improved performance,
learning and development of staff and identifies and addresses problems or conflicts.

• Assists top management in developing strategic and tactical plans for IT operations. Forecasts and determines all
hardware, software and peripheral requirements to meet departmental and user needs.

• Develops, maintains and communicates departmental IT support strategy, service agreements and project plans.
Manages support and enhancement requests as well as key stakeholder inquiries.

• Plans and budgets for area of responsibility. Monitors budget expenditures to ensure consistent with department
goals and objectives and within available funds.

• Develops and maintains policies, procedures and standards for security and for backup and recovery.

• May manage stand alone network, database systems, desktop support, software development, internet
requirements and/or telecommunications systems within a department.

• Performs other job-related duties as assigned.

MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS:

Education and Experience:
Bachelor’s degree in Computer Science, Information Systems, Business Administration or a directly related field AND
ten (10) years of relevant work experience, including five (5) years of increasingly responsible supervisory or
management experience;

Page 1 of 2 1 ‘7:3

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Information Technology Department Division Manager

JOB CODE: 29886 FLSA STATUS: Exempt
PAY GRADE: 29 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS: (Cont.)

Education and Experience: (Cont.)
OR,

Any combination of education and experience that has been achieved and is equivalent to the stated education and
experience and required knowledge, skills, and abilities sufficient to successfully perform the duties and responsibilities
of this job.

Licenses, Registrations, Certifications, or Special Requirements:
Valid Texas Driver’s License.

Preferred:
Master’s degree in Computer Science, Information Systems, Business Administration or a directly related field.

Knowledcie, Skills, and Abilities:
Knowledge of:
• Management and supervisory principles, practices and techniques.
• Policies, practices, procedures and terminology of assigned function.
• Federal, State, Local and County applicable laws, rules, regulations and guidelines.
• Information technology hardware, software and peripherals as related to assigned function.
• Budget preparation and office management.
• Computer equipment to include word processing, spreadsheets, databases and a variety of software packages.

Skill in:
• Directing and managing staff, allocating resources and evaluating programs.
• Leadership, collaboration and negotiation techniques, including contracts, agreements and proposals.
• Developing and evaluating Requests for Proposals (RFP5).
• Strategic planning, development, monitoring and evaluation.
• Managing user expectations and satisfaction.
• Developing and monitoring programs and related budgets.
• Problem-solving and decision-making.
• Both verbal and written communication, including presentations and communicating technical issues in non

technical language.

Ability to:
• Direct, motivate, train, develop and evaluate staff.
• Work independently and efficiently and as part of a team.
• Manage time well, perform multiple tasks and organize diverse activities.
• Research, compile, analyze, interpret and prepare a variety of memorandums or reports.
• Establish and maintain effective working relationships with departmental clientele, representatives of outside

agencies and providers, other County employees and officials, and the general public.

WORK ENVIRONMENT AND PHYSICAL DEMANDS:

Physical requirements include the ability to lift/carry up to 35-40 pounds occasionally, visual acuity, speech and hearing,
hand and eye coordination and manual dexterity necessary to operate a computer and office equipment. Subject to
standing, sitting, walking, climbing, crawling, bending, stooping, crouching, kneeling, pushing, pulling, reaching, twisting,
balancing, repetitive motion, and squatting to perform the essential functions. Subject to exposure to variations in
extreme heat, cold, mechanical, fume/odor, and dust/mites.

This job description is intended to be generic in nature. It is not necessarily an exhaustive list of all duties
and responsibilities. The essential duties, functions and responsibilities and overtime eligibility may vary
based on the specific tasks assigned to the position.

Page2of2

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Emergency Wireless Communication Manager

JOB CODE: 26244 FLSA STATUS: Exempt
PAY GRADE: 26 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

JOB SUMMARY:

Directs and manages the County’s emergency, wireless, and wired communication services programs. Works in
conjunction with the Radio Users Committee (RUC), Emergency and Wireless Communications Coordinating Board
(EWCCB), and numerous other committees and government and public safety agencies.

DISTINGUISHING CHARACTERISTICS:
This is a job classification within the Information Technology job family. Directs and manages the County’s emergency,
wireless, and wired communication services programs. Ensures County’s services are coordinated with other relevant
agencies and are in accordance with strategic and organizational goals and requirements. This classification may
require a flexible work schedule in order to meet the needs of the department.

DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES:

• Coordinates County’s participation in the Austin/Travis County Regional Radio System (RRS, formerly the RDMT
Project), including system design, infrastructure technology, user equipment, and related costs. Manages
Emergency Services Technology and Communications personnel, capital, and operating budgets.

• Develops countywide wireless communication policies and procedures. Coordinates programs in conjunction with
Capital Area Council of Governments (CAPCOG) and regional public safety entities, including communications
interoperability initiatives following State of Texas and SAFECOM guidelines, radio and computer-aided dispatch and
Public Safety Answer Point (PSAP) system design and operation, MAP/ALl and Geographic Information System
(GIS) for 9-1-1, training for personnel, and public education. Represents Travis County on CAPCOG’s 9-1-1 Task
Force and Long-Term Interoperability Work Group. Administers Travis County’s 9-1-1 interlocal contract with City of
Austin. Oversees and coordinates technical matters relating to wireless communication networks.

• Coordinates with County Information and Telecommunication System (ITS) on design and technical matters related
to wired and wireless communications. Manages operating budget for radio repair and radio maintenance interlocal
agreement with City of Austin. Advises Planning and Budget Office on individual County departments’ wireless
communication needs and budgets and assists Purchasing with equipment vendors and service contracts.
Manages County radio equipment inventory. Oversees licensing process with Federal Communications
Commission (FCC) for radio frequencies. Helps develop and coordinate public safety communications training
programs for County employees and customers. Serves as representative on GIS Committee with other County
departments to assess needs of GIS maps and related data. Provides advice on communication issues to
management and advisory groups. Assesses wireless communication equipment requests for cost effectiveness
and reviews existing communication equipment inventories and systems for reconfiguration and/or replacement.

• Coordinates with and advocates for political subdivisions, including Emergency Services Districts and municipal
police departments for their access to the RRS via interlocal agreement. Acts as liaison between these entities and
the RRS Coalition managing partner (City of Austin).

• Provides leadership, management, and coordination in planning, organizing, implementing, and evaluating
operations in accordance with Federal, State and Local laws, policies, procedures, and guidelines and enterprise
goals and objectives.

• Performs other job-related duties as assigned.
MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS:

Education and Experience:
Bachelor’s degree in Communications or a directly related field AND eight (8) years increasingly responsible
management experience with demonstrated ability to administer and oversee large, complex communications-related
projects, including experience with public safety radio and 9-1-1 program coordination and administration;
OR,
Any combination of education and experience that has been achieved and is equivalent to the stated education and
experience and required knowledge, skills, and abilities sufficient to successfully perform the duties and responsibilities
of this job.

Licenses, Registrations, Certifications, or Special Requirements:
Valid Texas Driver’s License.

Page 1 of 2

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Emergency Wireless Communication Manager

JOB CODE: 26244 FLSA STATUS: Exempt
PAY GRADE: 26 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS: (Cant)

Preferred:
Master’s degree in Communications or a directly related field.
Recognized 9-1 -1, public safety communication, and instructor licenses or certifications.

Knowledge. Skills, and Abilities:
Knowledge of:
• Management and supervisory principles, practices and techniques.
• Policies, practices, procedures and terminology of assigned function.
• Federal, State, Local and County applicable laws, rules, regulations and guidelines.
• Information technology hardware, software and peripherals as related to assigned function.
• Budget preparation and office management.
• Voice radio and 9-1-1 network design, functionality, call-taking, and distribution processes.
• Computer aided dispatching, mobile data terminal operation, digital communication technology, Very High

Frequency (VHF), Ultra High Frequency (UHF), conventional and trunked 700-800 MHz wireless communication
systems with public safety emphasis.

• Wireless communication equipment repair and billing practices.
• Federal Communications Commission (FCC) rules and regulations.
• Wireless communication legislation.
• Computer equipment to include word processing, spreadsheets, databases and a variety of software packages.
Skill in:
• Directing and managing staff, allocating resources and evaluating programs.
• Leadership, collaboration and negotiation techniques, including contracts, agreements and proposals.
• Managing user expectations and satisfaction.
• Developing and evaluating Requests for Proposals (REPs).
• Strategic planning, development, monitoring and evaluation.
• Developing and monitoring programs and related budgets.
• Problem-solving and decision-making.
• Both verbal and written communication, including presentations and communicating technical issues in non

technical language.

Ability to:
• Direct, motivate, train, develop and evaluate staff.
• Develop short and long-term plans for emergency and wireless communication systems.
• Work independently and efficiently and as part of a team.
• Manage time well, perform multiple tasks and organize diverse activities.
• Research, compile, analyze, interpret and prepare a variety of memorandums or reports.
• Establish and maintain effective working relationships with departmental clientele, outside agencies and providers,

other County employees and officials, and the public.

WORK ENVIRONMENT AND PHYSICAL DEMANDS:

Physical requirements include the ability to lift/carry up to 20-25 pounds occasionally, visual acuity, speech and hearing,
hand and eye coordination and manual dexterity necessary to operate a computer and office equipment. Subject to
standing, sitting, walking, climbing, crawling, bending, stooping, crouching, kneeling, pushing, pulling, reaching, twisting,
balancing, repetitive motion, and squatting to perform the essential functions. Subject to exposure to variations in
extreme heat, cold, mechanical, fume/odor, and dust/mites.

This job description is intended to be generic in nature. It is not necessarily an exhaustive list of all duties
and responsibilities. The essential duties, functions and responsibilities and overtime eligibility may vary
based on the specific tasks assigned to the position.

Page 2 of 2

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Media Operations Manager

JOB CODE: 24425 FLSA STATUS: Exempt
PAY GRADE: 24 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

JOB SUMMARY:

Manages and coordinates activities, operations and staff related to County’s television and media support functions.
Oversees and participates in production, programming, equipment and facility management. Participates in short- and
long-range media planning and oversees daily television programming. Ensures service levels meet user needs at all levels
within the organization.

DISTINGUISHING CHARACTERISTICS:

This is a job classification within the Information Technology job family. Manages and coordinates activities, operations
and staff related to County’s television and media support functions. Manages incoming requests for media services to
meet user and organizational needs in accordance with strategic and organizational goals. This classification may
require a flexible work schedule in order to meet the needs of the department.

DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES:

• Manages and coordinates all division activities, including production, programming, equipment and facility
management.

• Directs and coordinates production and programming requests from County departments, including initial consultation,
conceptualization, development, and assignment of producers and support.

• Supervises the administration of the daily channel schedule to ensure compliance with County policies and cable
access policies.

• Provides leadership, management and coordination in planning, organizing, implementing and evaluating
operations in accordance with Federal, State and Local laws, policies, procedures, guidelines and enterprise goals
and objectives.

• Oversees staff, including hiring, training, performance evaluation, disciplinary actions and dismissals, and directs
activities to be consistent with goals and objectives. Seeks and creates opportunities for improved performance,
learning and development of staff and identifies and addresses problems or conflicts.

• Develops and implements performance measures, indicators, policies, and procedures, and evaluates their
effectiveness.

• Plans and budgets for area of responsibility. Monitors budget expenditures to ensure consistent with department
goals and objectives and within available funds.

• Researches, evaluates, and recommends innovations in television production, post production, and master control
operations. Supervises selection and acquisition of all television equipment.

• Meets and communicates with vendors, government agencies, business organizations, and personnel from other
County agencies to perform and coordinate required tasks.

• Performs other job-related duties as assigned.

MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS:

Education and Experience:
Bachelor’s degree in Communications, Radio, Television and Film or a directly related field AND five (5) years of
increasingly responsible relevant work experience in professional television, including two (2) years of mid- to senior level
supervisory and management experience;

OR,

Any combination of education and experience that has been achieved and is equivalent to the stated education and
experience and required knowledge, skills, and abilities sufficient to successfully perform the duties and responsibilities
of this job.

Page 1 of2

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Media Operations Manager

JOB CODE: 24425 FLSA STATUS: Exempt
PAY GRADE: 24 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS: (Cont.)

Licenses, Registrations, Certifications, or Special Requirements:
Valid Texas Driver’s License.

Preferred:
Master’s degree in Communications, Radio, Television and Film or a directly related field.

Knowledge, Skills, and Abilities:
Knowledge of:
• Management and supervisory principles, practices and techniques.
• Policies, practices, procedures and terminology of assigned function.
• Federal, State, Local and County applicable laws, rules, regulations and guidelines.
• Information technology hardware, software and peripherals as related to assigned function.
• Television production and operations.
• Budget preparation and office management.
• Computer equipment to include word processing, spreadsheets, databases and a variety of software packages.

Skill in:
• Directing and managing staff, allocating resources and evaluating programs.
• Leadership, collaboration and negotiation techniques, including contracts, agreements and proposals.
• Managing user expectations and satisfaction.
• Developing and evaluating Requests for Proposals (REPs).
• Strategic planning, development, monitoring and evaluation.
• Developing and monitoring programs and related budgets.
• Problem-solving and decision-making.
• Both verbal and written communication, including presentations and communicating technical issues in non

technical language.

Ability to:
• Direct, motivate, train, develop and evaluate staff.
• Work independently and efficiently and as part of a team.
• Write for broadcasting in a prescribed style or format.
• Interpret an extensive variety of technical instructions and deal with several abstract and concrete variables.
• Manage time well, perform multiple tasks and organize diverse activities.
• Research, compile, analyze, interpret and prepare a variety of memorandums or reports.
• Establish and maintain effective working relationships with departmental clientele, representatives of outside

agencies and providers, other County employees and officials, and the general public.

WORK ENVIRONMENT AND PHYSICAL DEMANDS:

Physical requirements include the ability to lift/carry up to 25-30 pounds occasionally, visual acuity, speech and hearing,
hand and eye coordination and manual dexterity necessary to operate a computer and office equipment. Subject to
standing, sitting, walking, climbing, crawling, bending, stooping, crouching, kneeling, pushing, pulling, reaching, twisting,
balancing, repetitive motion, and squatting to perform the essential functions. Subject to exposure to variations in
extreme heat, cold, mechanical, fume/odor, and dust/mites.

This job description is intended to be generic in nature. It is not necessarily an exhaustive list of all duties
and responsibilities. The essential duties, functions and responsibilities and overtime eligibility may vary
based on the specific tasks assigned to the position.

Page 2 of 2

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Imaging Division Manager

JOB CODE: 24349 FLSA STATUS: Exempt
PAY GRADE: 24 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

JOB SUMMARY:

Manages and coordinates activities, operations and staff related to imaging and related services for the County. Oversees
the production of products and services, including microfilm, electronic imaging, Optical Disk production, and print
services. Develops and evaluates systems and procedures related to the production, maintenance, distribution, storage
and destruction of public records and recommends cost effective solutions to problems. Participates in long and short-
range imaging services planning and ensures service levels meet user needs at all levels within the organization.

DISTINGUISHING CHARACTERISTICS:

This is a job classification within the Information Technology job family. Manages and coordinates activities, operations
and staff related to imaging and related services for the County. Manages incoming requests for imaging services to meet
user and organizational needs in accordance with strategic and organizational goals. This classification may require a
flexible work schedule in order to meet the needs of the department.

DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES:

• Provides leadership, management and coordination in planning, organizing, implementing and evaluating operations
in accordance with Federal, State and Local laws, policies, procedures, guidelines, imaging legal standards,
applicable notary public laws and regulations, and enterprise goals and objectives.

• Oversees staff, including hiring, training, performance evaluation, disciplinary actions and dismissals, and directs
activities to be consistent with goals and objectives. Seeks and creates opportunities for improved performance,
learning and development of staff, and identifies and addresses problems or conflicts.

• Develops, installs and maintains information management systems that improve public access and reduce costs.

• Initiates bid process, writes bid specifications and evaluates responses for the procurement of imaging, Optical Disk
and printing products and services. Develops interlocal agreements with other governmental entities for imaging
services.

• Conducts technology integration and media choice feasibility studies while constantly keeping up-to-date on the
information technology developments that affect imaging, computer output to laser disk (COLD) and laser disk
systems.

• Plans and budgets for area of responsibility. Monitors budget expenditures to ensure consistent with department
goals and objectives and within available funds. Ensures proper cash control methodology is used.

• Assists other County departments in developing, acquiring, implementing and maintaining imaging, computer output
to laser disk (COLD), and Optical Disk systems. Supervises development of imaging software in order to create
custom applications that deliver standardized countywide imaging to departments.

• Performs other job-related duties as assigned.

MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS:

Education and Experience:
Bachelor’s degree in Records Management, Imaging Technology, Management Information Systems, or a directly
related field AND five (5) years experience in records management with an emphasis on imaging and management
information systems, including two (2) years of supervisory or management experience;
OR,
Any combination of education and experience that has been achieved and is equivalent to the stated education and
experience and required knowledge, skills, and abilities sufficient to successfully perform the duties and responsibilities
of this job.

Licenses, Registrations, Certifications, or Special Requirements:
Valid Texas Driver’s License.

Page 1 of 2 1’’7

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION
DRAFT

JOB TITLE: Imaging Division Manager

JOB CODE: 24349 FLSA STATUS: Exempt
PAY GRADE: 24 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS: (Cont.)

Knowledge. Skills, and Abilities:
Knowledge of:
• Management and supervisory principles, practices and techniques.
• Policies, practices, procedures and terminology of assigned function.
• Federal, State, Local and County applicable laws, rules, regulations and guidelines.
• Information technology hardware, software and peripherals as related to assigned function.
• Microfilm processing, micrographics.
• Electronic document imaging.
• Computer output to laser disk (COLD) indexing techniques.
• Budget preparation and office management.
• Computer equipment to include word processing, spreadsheets, databases and a variety of software packages.

Skill in:
• Directing and managing staff, allocating resources and evaluating programs.
• Leadership, collaboration and negotiation techniques, including contracts, agreements and proposals.
• Managing user expectations and satisfaction.
• Developing and evaluating Requests for Proposals (RFP5).
• Strategic planning, development, monitoring and evaluation.
• Developing and monitoring programs and related budgets.
• Problem-solving and decision-making.
• Both verbal and written communication, including presentations and communicating technical issues in non

technical language.

Ability to:
• Direct, motivate, train, develop and evaluate staff.
• Work independently and efficiently and as part of a team.
• Manage time well, perform multiple tasks and organize diverse activities.
• Research, compile, analyze, interpret and prepare a variety of memorandums or reports.
• Establish and maintain effective working relationships with departmental clientele, representatives of outside

agencies and providers, other County employees and officials, and the general public.

WORK ENVIRONMENT AND PHYSICAL DEMANDS:

Physical requirements include the ability to lift/carry up to 20-25 pounds occasionally, visual acuity, speech and hearing,
hand and eye coordination and manual dexterity necessary to operate a computer and office equipment. Subject to
standing, sitting, walking, climbing, crawling, bending, stooping, crouching, kneeling, pushing, pulling, reaching, twisting,
balancing, repetitive motion, and squatting to perform the essential functions. Subject to exposure to variations in
extreme heat, cold, mechanical, fume/odor, and dust/mites.

This job description is intended to be generic in nature. It is not necessarily an exhaustive list of all duties
and responsibilities. The essential duties, functions and responsibilities and overtime eligibility may vary
based on the specific tasks assigned to the position.

Page 2 of 2

Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm



Last Updated 09-03-09 at 4:52pm


	Item 01
	Item 05
	Item 06
	Item 07
	Item 08
	Item 09
	Item 10
	Item 11
	Item 12
	Item 13
	Item 14
	Item 15
	Job descriptions

	Item 16
	Item 17
	Item 18
	Item 19
	Item 23
	Item 26
	Item 27
	Item 28
	Item 28b

	Item 29
	Item 30
	Item 31
	Item 32
	Item 33
	Item 34
	Item 35
	Item 38
	Item 39
	Item 40
	Item 41
	Item C2
	Item C3
	Item C4
	Northwest Road District 
	Bee Cave Road District



